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Arranged in Numerical Order, with their Titles at full length ; the Dates when

Ordered and when Presented to both Houses of Parliament ; the .Name of
the Member who moved for each Sessional Paper, and whether it is ordered
to be Printed or Not Printed.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 1.

(This volume is bound in two parts.)

1. Report of the Auditor General, for the year ended 30th June, 1898. Presented (in part) 7th April,
1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding. Presented, complete, 26th April, 1899.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 2.

2. Public Accounts of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898. Presented 23rd March, 1899,
by Hon. W. S. Fielding.......... .. ... ... Printed for both distribution and sessional paper.

2a. Estimates of sums required for the service of Canada, for the year ending on the 30th June, 1900.
Presented 24th April, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
2b. Supplementary Estimates for the year ending 30th June, 1899. Presented 12th June, 1899, by

Hon. W. S. Fielding................. ... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
2c. Supplementary Estimates for the year ending 30th June, 1900. Presented 18th July, 1899, by

Hon. W. S. Fielding.............. . . .... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
2c. Further Supplementary Estimates for the year ending 30th June, 1900. Presented 7th August,

1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding ............... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
3. List of Shareholders of the Chartered Banks of the Dominion of Canada, as on 31st December, 1898.

Presented 30th March, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

3a. Report of dividends remaining unpaid, and unclaimed balances in the Chartered Banks of Canada,
for five years and upwards, prior to 31st December, 1898. Presented 12th April, 1899, by Hon.
W. S. Fielding .......................... ..... Printed for both dbstribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 3.

4. Report of the Superintendent of Insurance, for the year ended 31st December, 1898.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

4a. Preliminary Statements of the business of Life Insurance Companies in Canada, for the year ended
31st December, 1898. Presented 10th April, 1899, by Hon. W S. Fieldmng.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
4b. Abstract of Statements of Insurance Companies in Canada, for the year ended 31st December, 1898.

Presented 25th May, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME 4.

5. Report of the Department of Trade and Commerce, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898. Pre-
sented 19th April, 1899, by Sir Richard Cartwright.

Printed for both-distribution and sessional papers.
5a. Special Report on Trade between Canada and the United States ; for use of the International Com-

mission, Quebec; Augurt, 1898 ........ . . .Prined for both distribition and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 5.

6. Tables of the Trade and Navigation of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898. Pre-
sented 20th March, 1899, by Hon. W. Paterson..Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 6.

7. Inland Revenues of Canada. Excise, etc., for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898. Presented
21st March, 1899, by Sir Henri Joly de Lotbinière.

Prirted for both distribution and sessional papers.

7a. Inspection of Weights, Measures, Gas and Electric Light, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898.
Presented 21st March, 1899, by Sir Henri Joly de Lotbinière.

Printed for both distribution and session<d papers.

7b. Report on Adulteration of Food, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898. Presented 21st March,
1899, by Sir Henri Joly de Lotbinière .... . .. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

S. Report of the Minister of Agriculture, for the year ended 31st October, 1898. Presented llth April,
1899, by Hon. S. A. Fisher .. ...... .. ..... .. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Sa. Report on Can'adian Archives, 1898. Presented 1st June, 1899, by Hon. S. A. Fisher.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papcrs.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 7,

Sb. Report of the Director and Officers of the Experimental Farms, for the year 1898. Presented 15th
May, 1899, by Hon. S. A. Fisher ............. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

Se. Criminal Statistics for the year 1898............. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 8.

9. Annual Report of the Minister of Public Works, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1898. Pre-
sented 27th June, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding.Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

10. Annual Report of the Department of Railways and Canals, for the fiscal year ended 30th June,
1898. Presented 23rd March, 1899, by Hon. A. G. Blair.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 9.

11. Annual Report of the Department of Marine and Fisheries (Marine), for the fiscal year ended 30th
June, 1898. Presented 7th April, 1899, by Sir Louis Davies.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
11*. Report of the Conmissioners appointed under the Order in Council of the 11th January. 1898, to

inquire into the alleged grievances of the Pilots of the district of Montreal, etc.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

1it. First Annual Report of the Geographie Board of Canada, 1898.
Printed for both distribution and sessional pae ers.

1la. Annual Report of the Department of Marine and Fisheries (Fisheries), for the fiscal year ended
30th June, 1898. Presented 30th March, 1899, by Sir Louis Davies.

Printed for both distribution and sessional pa pers.
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME 10.
11 b. List of Shipping issued by the Department of Marine and Fisheries ; being a List of Vessels on the

registry books of Canada, on the 31st December, 1898.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

11c. Report of the Canadian Lobster Commission, 1898. Presented 29th June, 1899, by Sir Louis Davies.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

1 id. Report of Harbour Cormissioners, &c., 1898 ..... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
12. Report of the P stmaster General, for the year ended 30th June, 1898. Presented 22nd March,

1899, by Hon. W. Mulock ..... ............ Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME i1.

13. Annual Report of the Department of the Interior, for the year 1898. Presented 15th May, 1899,
by Hon. C. Sifton ..... ... . ... .... . ..... Printed for both distrib ution and sessional papers.

13a. Summary Report of the Geo'ogical Survey Department, for the year 1898. Presented 24th April,
1899, by Hon. C. Sif ton ........... . ..... .Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 12.

14. Annual Report of the Department of Indian Affairs, for the year ended 30th June, 1898. Pre-
sented 21st March, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton .... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

15. Report of the Commissioner af the North-West Mounted Police Force, 1898. Presented 14th June,
1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier..... .. .......... Printed for both distribution and sessionalpapcrs.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME 13.

16. Report of the Secretary of State of Canada, for the year ended 31st December, 1898. Presented
27th March, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier....... .... Printed for both distribution and sessionlA papers.

16a. Civil Service List of Canada, 1898. Presented 27th March, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

16b. Annual Report of the Department of Public Printing and Stationery, for the yèar ended 30th June,
1898. Presented lth April, 1899, by Hon. Sir Wilfrid Laurier.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
16c. Report of the Board of Civil Service Examiners, for the year ended 31st December, 1898. Presented

2nd May, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.......... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
17. Report of the Joint Librar(ans of Parliament, for the year 1898. Presented 16th March, 1899, by

the Hon. The Speaker......... ... ........... Printcd for both distribution and sessional papers.
18. Report of the Minister of Justice as to Penitentiaries of Canada, for the year ended 30th June, 1898.

Presented 21st June, 1899, by Hon. C. Fitzpatrick.
Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

19. Report of the Department of Militia and Defence of Canada, for the year ended 31st December,
1898. Presented 27th March, 1899, by Hon. F. W. Borden.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

CONTENTS.OF VOLUME 14.

20. Report on the Prohibition Plebiscite held on the 29th day of Septenber, 1898, in Canada. Presented
24th April, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier ......... Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

21. Return to an order of the House of Commgns, dated 21st April, 1897, for copies of ail letters, cor-
respondence, petitions, etc., relating to the dismissal of David Ross as postmaster at Kinross, in
the province of Prince Edward Island. Presented 21st March, 1899.-Mr. Martin.. .Not printed.

21a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1897, for copies of ail correspon-
dence, papers, petitions, etc., in connection with the dismissal of the late postmaster at Little
Sands, province of Prince Edward Island. Presented 21st March, 1899.-Mr. Martin.

Not printed.
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21b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1897, for copies of all papers, cor-
respondence, petitions, evidence, reports and documents of every nature connected with the dis-
missal of J. H. Crépeau as postmaster at St. Camille, county of Wolfe, province of Quebec.
Presented 21st March, 1899.-Mr. Ives........ . . .. ............................. Not pi inted.

21e. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for a return giving : (a) The
names of employees relieved from duty by the government by dismissal or otherwise in the Mont-
real custom-house from 13th July, 1896, to 1st March, 1898. (b) The years of service of each
employee so relieved of duty. (c) The amount of retiring allowance, if any. (d) The cause of
dismissal in each case. (e) The amount of pay per annun of such employee at date of dismissal.
(f) The names of new employees appointed, whether permanently or temporarily, from 13th July,
1896, to 1st March, 1898. (g) The amount to be paid to each such new temporary or permanent
employee per month. Presented 2nd May, 1899.--Mr. Quinn .... ... .............. Not printed.

21d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 2nd May, 1898, fer a return showing the names
of all employees on the Lachine canal and St. Ann lock dismissed from the public service since the
23rd day of June, 1896, the cause of dismissal, the naine of complainant in each case, the amount
of salary paid to the disniissed official, the naine and salary paid to his successor in office. Presented
17th M ay, 1899. -- M r. M onk ................ ...................... ... ....... .. Not printed.

21e. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th March, 1898, for copies of all orders in
council, papers, depositions, reports, evidence, correspondence and documents in relation or
reference to any charges made against Peter S. Archibald, lately chief engineer of the Intercolo-
nial Railway, or tg the dismissal of the said Peter S. Archibald froin bis position or office as such
chief engineer, or the grounds or reasons for such dismissal, or in relation or reference to any claim
of the said Peter S. Archibald for superannuation allowance or otherwise in relation or reference
to the retirement or dismissal of the said Peter S. Archibald froni the service of the Intercolonial
Railway. Presented 25th May, 1899.--Mr. Borden (Halifax)......................Not printed.

21f. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 7th June, 1897, for a return of al] correspon-
dence, reports and papers in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Wm. Bateman of Port Perry
from, and the appointment of Mr. Williams to, the position of agent to the Scugog Island Indians.
Presented 29th May, 1899.-Mr. Hughes..................... ............. .... Not printed.

21g. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th April, 1899, for a statement of all persons
or commissions of inquiry appointed to inquire into the conduct of employees of the government
since August lst, 1896, giving the names of commissioners, their rate of pay and allowances, the
aggregate total amount paid to each as pay and allowance, and the total expenses of each commis-
sion outside of pay and allowance; also the names and post office addresses of all persons dismnissed
on the reports of the comnissioners (Inland Revenue). Presented 31st May, 1899. -Mr. Foster.

Not printed.

21h. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated lst May, 1899, for copies of all papers, docu-
ments and correspondence in connection with the dismissal of 1). W. Ball froin being postinaster
at the village of Bath, Ontario. Presented 2nd June, 1899. -Mr. Wilson ..... ... . Not printed.

2 1i. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for copies of the report of Mr.
Hawkins, post office inspector, in reference to the inquiry or investigation held on the conduct of
J. R, Leake, postmaster of Morton, in the county of Leeds, together with copies of all correspon-
dence, complaints, affidavits or declarations and evidence taken at the investigation relating to
said postmaster; together with a copy of the notice of his dismnissal. Presented 2nd June, 1899.-
Mr. Taylor........ ........................ .... ........... ........... ..... Not printed.

21 j. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th June, 1899, for copy of correspondence, etc.,
relating to the dismissal of Mr. Alfred Lenoir, as fishery overseer at Isle Madame, in the county
of Richmond, Nova Scotia. Presented 5th June, 1899.-Sir Louis Davies. . ... . ... Not printed.

21k. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 17th May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council respecting the appointment and dismissal of Mr. Russell, inspector of steamboats; copies
of all reports and evidence touching an inquiry into bis conduct ; also of all reports, papers and
correspondence respecting his last appointment or reinstatement to the public service; also all
communications from, to or concerning this officer since he has been discharging duties in the Yukon
district. Presented 6th June, 1899.--Sir C. Hibbert Tupper .................. ..... Not printed.
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211. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 1st May, 1899, for copies of all petitions, corre-
spondence, letters or documents in relation to the following dismissals: Job Bilodeau, postmaster
of Chambord; Louis Desbiens, postmaster of St. Jérôme; William Larouche, postniaster of Lake
Bouchette; Ferdinand Larouche, postmaster of Delisle; F. X. Letourneau, postinaster of St.
Bruno, all in the county of Chicoutimi; together with all petitions, correspondence, letters or docu-
ments in relation to the appointment of their successors. Presented 13th June, 1899.--Mr. Casgrain.

Not printed.
2 lm. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all papers and

correspondence in reference to the dismissal of Christopher Walker, postmaster of Ailsa Craig,
Ontario, with copies of charges, if any, iade against such officer and report of any investigation
held. Presented 13th June, 1899.-Mr. Haggart........ ..................... Not printed.

21n. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th March, 1898, for copies of all correspon-
dence, inspector's reports, and all documents respecting the dismissal of the postmaster at Agnes
and the removal of the office. Presented 13th June, 1899. -Mr. Pope ..... ......... Not printed.

21o. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th June, 1899, for copies of correspondence
and other papers in regard to the dismissal of Mr. Joseph McNeil, light.keeper, Jerome Point, St.
Peter's, Cape Breton. Presented 14th June, 1899. -Sir Louis Davies.............Not printed.

21p. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 12th April, 1899, for copies of the complaints and al]
correspondence relating thereto, which led to the dismissal of Mr. Freeman Ketcheson from the
position of post office mail clerk, including the statement or statements of the said Freenan
Ketcheson in reply to said complaints. Presented 15th June, 1899.-Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell.

Not printed.
21q. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 30th Macrh, 1898, for copies of all orders in

council, papers, depositions, reports, documents, etc., in relation to the dismissal of Napoléon
Alain as postmaster of L'Ancienne Lorette, and also copies of all instructions given by the depart-
ment of the postmaster general or any officers thereof, to the post office inspector in Quebec, or to
any other officer thereof in relation to the giving of evidence in an action by the said Napoléon
Alain versus one Frederic Belleau for damages. Presented 19th June, 1899.-Mr. Casgrain.

Not printed.
21r. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copies of all papers con-

nected with the dismissal of Boaz Gross, late harbour master of Hillsboro', N.B., and with the
appointment of his successor, including copies of all charges and complaints, the evidence taken
by Commissioner McAlpine, the commissioner's report, and all correspondence, recommendations
and other papers in any way relating to the said dismissal and the subsequent appointinent.
Presented 26th June, 1899.-Mr. McInerney,........................ .............. Not printed.

218. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all reports, corre-
spondence and other papers connected with the dismissal of Mr. Fairlie, principal of the Rupert's
Land industrial school, in the province of Manitoba. Presented 28th June, 1899.-Mr. Bourassa.

.Not printed.
21t. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, for copies of all papers,

documents and correspondence in connection with the dismissal of John Herns, caretaker of the
putlic building in the town of Napanee. Presented 4th July, 1899.-Mr. i ilson.... Not printed.

21u. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for a copy of the commission
issued to investigate into the charges made against W. A. Hogg, landing-waiter at the port of
Collingwood, the evidence taken by the said commission, the report made by the commission, the
order in council riade thereon, and all correspondence and papers in connection therewith.
Presented 25th July, 1899.-Mr. McCarthy......................... ............... Not printed.

21v. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th July, 1899, for copy of the report of
Thomas Woodyatt, commissioner, relative to certain charges made against John G;alna, of Her
Majesty's customs at Parry Sound, Ontario. Presented 26th July, 1899.-Mr. Paterson.

Not printed.
21w. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th July, 1899, for copy of report, etc., in

connection with the suspension of Wm. Caldwell, preventive officer of customs at Anderdon,
Ontario. Presented 26th July, 1899.-Mr. Paterson....-. .. .. . . . ........ .... Not printcd.

21x. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th July, 1899, for copy of the report of M.
B. Colcock, assistant inspector of porte, relative to the preventive station at Anderdon, and to
William Caldwell, late preventive officer thereat. Presented 29th July, 1899.-Hon. W. Paterson.

Not printed.
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21y. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th June, 1899, for copies of all correspondence
had with the department of railways and canals, or with any member of the government, in
connection with the cases of Pierre Michaud and Fred. Belanger, porter and track foreman,
respectively, on the Intercolonial Railway at Trois Pistoles, and dismissed therefrom in 1898, and
for all petitions and papers in regard thereto. Presented 8th August, 1899.-Mr. Foster.

Not printcd.
21:. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th June. 1899, for copies of all correspon-

dence, telegrams, petitions, reports and all other papers in connection with the dismissal of Mr.
William D. McMillan as light-keeper at Wood Islands, in the province of Prince Edward Island,
and the appointment of his successor. Presented 10th August, 1899.-Mr. Martin

Not printed.
22. Return to an order of the House of Commons, datcd 10th May, 1897, for copies of all petitions,

letters, notices, correspondence, bonds and papers in relation to the establishment of a post office
in the county of Annapolis called " Virginia," and the appointment of Mr. Ezekiel Banks as post-
master for such office. Presented 21st March, 1899.-Mr M ills . ............ Not printed.

22a. Return to an order of the House of Connions, dated 10th May, 1897, for copies of all petitions,
letters, notices, bonds, papers and documents in relation to the establishment of a post office in the
county of Annapolis called "North Perott," and the appointment of Mr. Alfred Spurr to the
postmastership of said office. Presented 21st March, 1899.-Mr. Mills. .... . ... ... .Not printed.

2eb. Return to an order of the House of Comrmons, dated 3rd May, 1897, for copies of all correspondence
in connection with the appointment and installation of George G. King to the postmastership of
Marsh Hill, Ontario, had with any inember of the governnent, or any officer of the post office
department. Presented 21st Marci, 1899.-Mr. Foster. . . . . , ............... ... Not printed.

23. Return of Treasury Board Over-Rulings of Auditor General's decisions between the beginning of
the session of 1898 and the session of 1899. Presented 21st March, 1899, by Hon. W. 8. Fielding.

Not printed.
24. Statement of Governor General's Warrants issued since last session of parliament, on account of the

fiscal year 1898-99. Presented 21st March, 1899, by Hen. W. S. Fielding ..... .. .. Not printed.
25. Statement of expenditure on account of miscellaneous unforeseen expenses from lst July, 1898, to

16th March, 1899. Presented 23rd M arch, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding .......... Not printed.
26. Report. of the Commissi>iner, Dominion Police Force, for the year 1898. Presented 27th March,

1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.............. . .... ................. ........ Notprinted.
27. Copy of an order in council relative to the issue of licenses to United States fishing vessels. Pre-

sented 30th March, 1899, by Sir Louis Davies ...... .. .... ...... ..... ...... .Not printed.
28. Return showing reductions and remissions made under section 141 as added to the Indian Act by

section 8, chai ter 35, 58-59 Victoria. Presented 30th March, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton.
Not printed.

29. Statement in pursuance of section 17 of the Civil Service Insurance Act, for the year ending 30th
June, 1898. Presented 30th March, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding... Printed for sessional papers.

30. Statement of all superannuation and retiring allowances in the civil service during year ended 31st
December, 1898, showing name, rank, salary, service and cause of retirem-nt of each person
superannuated or retired, also whether vacancy filled by promotion or new appointment, and
salary of any new appointee. Presented 30th March, 1899, by Hon. W. S. Fielding.

Printd for sessional papers.
30a. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th February, 1898, for a rekurn giving: (a)

The nanes of all civil servants who have been superannuated between the 13th of July, 1896, and
the lst of February, 1898. (b) The age of each servant so superannuated. (c) The years of service
of each person so superannuated. (d) The an.ount per annum eacb person had been in receipt of.
(e) The anount of superannuation each person is to receive per annum. (f) The name of the
new appointees in the civil service since said 13th of July. (g) The age of each such new
appointee. (h) The amount to be paid to each such new appointee. Presented 14th June,
1899.- M r. Taylor .............. ............ ................. ... ............. Not printed.

30b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, showing: (a) The superan-
nuations made in the department of agriculture froin 3Oth June, 1896, to 30th April, 1899, in both
the inside and outside services. (b) The retiring allowances in each case. (c) The inanner in
which the vacancies thus created have been filled, with names of persons appointed to such
vacancies and amounts of salary in each case. Presented 30th June, 1899. -Mr. Montague.

Not printed.
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31. Detailed statement of all bonds and securities registered in the department of the secretary of state
of Canada, since the last return, 16th February, 1898, subinitted to parliament in accordance with
section 23 of chapter 19 of the Revised Statutes of Canada. Presented 30th March, 1899, by Sir
W ilfrid Laurier............... ........ . .... ........ ..................... .. N ot printed.

32. Statement in reference to fishing bounty expenditure for 1897-98. Presented 4th April, 1899, by
Sir Louis Davies. .......... ................ ........................... Not printed.

33. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th April, 1899, for copies of papers in connec-
tion with the case of Nelson vs. Donelly, being an appeal from the decision of the gold commis-
sioner at Dawson city. Presented 5th April, 1899.- Hon. C. Sifton...............Not printed.

34. Return to an order of the flouse of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for copies of all reports and
reconmendations f rom the inspectors of cavalry, artillery and infantry on their inspections up to
April 18th, for the financial year 1897-98. Presented 10th April, 1899.-Mr. Hughes.Not printed.

35. Statenent of the affairs of the British Canadian Loan and Investment Company, as on the 31st
December, 1898. Presented (Senate) 21st March, 1899, by the Hon. The Speaker...Not printed.

36. Return of orders in council relating to Dominion lands in the provinces of Manitoba and British
Columbia, and in the North-west Territories. Presented (Senate) 11th April, 1899, by Hon.
R. W . Scott..... .... ..... ......... ... .... ... ..................... Not printed.

37. Commission appointing William Ogilvie, Esq., a commissioner under chapter 114, Revised Statutes
of Canada, to inquire into and report upon charges preferred against many gove -nment officials in
the Yukon territory. Presented 17th April, 1899, by Hon. C. Sif ton .......... .... Not printed.

38. Return prepared by the clerk of the crown in chancery in obedience to an order of the House or
Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for copies of the poll-books and voters' lists for the counties of
Beauce, Lévis, Montmagny and Kamouraska, used at the plebiscite vote. Presented 13th July,
1899, by The Deputy Speaker......... ...... .. .... ........ ... ... ......... Notprinted.

39. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th March, 1898, for a return showing in
detail the extent of all gold dredging leases applied for and granted in the North-west Territories
and the Yukon, where situated, the names and post office addresses of the applicants, and amount
paid tierefor; also aIl correspondence and orders in council in connection therewith. Presented
19th April, 1899. -- M r. Foster.... .... ......... .................... ........ Not printed.

40. Supplementary return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th February, 1898, for
copies of all correspondence, advertisements for tenders and answers thereto, reports and orders in
council, and a list of all permits, licenses or leases granted, containing names of the grantees and
extent of territory given and conditions attached to each, the amount paid and to be paid therefor
in respect of gold placer mining or gold dredging areas in the North-west Territories and the Yukon
district. Presented 1.th April, 1899.-Mr. Foster............. .. .......... ... Not prinied.

41. Return of all lands sold by the Canadian Pacific Railway Company, from the 1st October, 1897, to
the lst October, 1898. Presented 19th April, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton........... ... Norprintcd.

42. Return of correspondence, etc., respecting the affairs of the Canadian Pacific Railway Company,
which the department of the interior has had since the previous return was presented to parlia-
ment under the resolution of the 20th February, 1882. Presented 19th April, 1899, by Hon.
C. Sifton...... ... . . .. ... .... ... ........ ... .... .................. Not printed.

43. Return of orders in council which have been published in the Canada G«zette and in the British
Columbia Gazette, in accordance with the provisions of sub section (d) of section 38 of the regula-
tions for the survey, administration, disposal and management of Dominion lands within the 40-
mile railway belt in the province of British ColumLia. Presented 19th April, 1899, by lion.
C. Sifton .... ...· · · · ... · · · · · · ·.................. ... Not printed.

44. Return of orders in council which have been published in the Canada Gazdte, in accordance with
the provisions of section 46, the North-west Irrigation Act, being 57-58 Victoria, chapter 30, etc.
Presented 19th April, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton......... ............... ... ........ Not printed.

45. Return of orders in council which have been published in the Canada Gazette, in accordance with
the provisions of clause 91 of the Dominion Lands Act, chapter 54 of the Revised Statutes of
Canada, and its amendments. Presented 19th April, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton ....... Not printed.

46. Retur.n to an order of the House of Connons, dated 21st April, 1899, for a copy of representations
of the high commissioner for Canada and the agents general of the British colonies, respecting the
application of estate duty to personal property situate in the colonies in 1894. Presented 21st
April, 1899.-Sir Wilfrid Laurier ......... .. ...................... Printed for sessional papers.

11
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47. Return to an order of the House of Comm&ns, dated 21st April, 1899, for a copy of the correspon-
dence between the colonial office and the government of Canada on the subject of the island of
Anticosti. Presented 21st A.pril,, 1899.-Sir Wilfrid Laurier. . . . . . . Printed for sessional papers.

48. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for copies of all orders in
council, memorials, correspondence and every other document in connection with the granting
150,000 acres of public lands in favour of the university of Manitoba, and the transfer and pa-
tenting of the same to the university. Presented 24th April, 1899.-Mr. LaRivière.

Printed (in part) for distribution and sessionlt papers.
48a. Supplementary return to an address of the Senate, dated 31st March, 1898, for a statement of the

quantity of lands allotted for school purposes in Manitoba; the quantity of said lands sold, and
the prices at which they have been sold ; the amount received on that account; the amounts still
due to the government; the manner in which this fund is invested and administered; the amount
already paid to the province of Manitoba, how much on the capital, if any, and how much on the
interest ; the amount still at the credit of the province, whether on the capital or on the interest ;
the dates of payment in each case and the amount of each payment; and also all the correspon-
dence, papers, memoranda and orders in council relating thereto, up to date. Presented 25th
April, 1899.-Hon. M r. Bernier.... ..... ................... .. ................. oôt printed.

49. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a copy of the report of
the commissioners appointed in 1897 to inquire into the state of the public records and of the
public buildings. Presented lst May, 1899.-Mr. Belcourt ........... .. ........ . Not printed.

50. Order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a statement of the number of sheets of
notes of $1 and 82 delivered to the government from the ist of August, 1897, by the new con-
tractors, together with the number of back, tint and face plates of the above denominations,
delivered to the government to date, as per the contract. Presented lst May, 1899.-Mr. Foster.

Not printed.
51. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all correspon-

dence with the imperial and colonial governnents, and other parties, relative to the proposed
Pacific cable, since the return brought down last session; also of the report of the imperial commission
on this subject, if leave bas been obtained to publish it. Presented 8th May, 1899.-Mr. Casey.

Printed for both, distribution and sessional papers.
51a. Supplementary return to No. 51. Presented 12th May, 1899.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
516. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all orders in

council and correspondence connected with and relating to the offer of the government of British
Columbia, made in 1899, respecting the Pacific cable. Presented 12th June, 1899.-Sir C. Hibbert
Tupper .................................. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

52. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, for copies of all papers and
eorrespondence respecting the enforcement of coasting laws of Canada on the Pacific or Atlantic
coasts, in so far as it relates to the department of customs. Presented 8th May, 1899.-Sir C.
Hibbert Tupper... ....................... .. ..... .... ......... Printed for sessional papers.

52a. Supplementary return to No. 52 (Department of the Interior). Presented 5th June, 1899.
Not printed.

53. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a copy of lease of the
property in Quebec known as the " Plains of Abraham," or of any other title under which the
government of Canada holds said property; also of all memorials, correspondence, etc., addressed
to the government on the subject of renewing said lease or otherwise acquiring the same. Pre-
sented 8th May, 1899.-Mr. Casgrain .......... .. ........ .... ......... Not printed.

54. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a return showing the
expenditure for each year from 1867 to 1889, inclusive, of the militia department ; also the amount
in each of the above years expended for the staff of the militia ; also the amount in each of the
above years expended for the royal military college, Kingston. Presented 8th May, 1899.-Mr.
Domrille......................... ................................ Not printed.

55. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence, minutes of council, commission of appointment relating to the appointment of the hon. the
chief justice of the province of British Columbia from the date of the decease of the Hon. Chief
Justice Davie to the appointment of the present incumbent ; also relating to the appointment of
the Hon. Mr. Justice Irving and the Hon. Mr. Justice Martin of the supreme court of British
Columbia. Presented 15th May, 1899.-Sir Charles Tupper... ................... Not printed.

12
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56. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 26th April, 1899, for copy of lease or agree-
ment and of all correspondence relating to the occupation of the Champ de Mars in the city of
Montreal by the Montreal authorities and the condition of said occupation. Presented 9th May,
1899.-Mr. Monk..............· .................................. Not printed.

57. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a return showing the gross
working expenses and earnings, respectively, of the Intercolonial Railway for each month froms
1st July, 1898, to date. Also the gross working expenses and earnings, respectively, of the same

road for the similar months of the preceding year. Presented 9th May, 1899.-Mr. Foster.
Printed for sessional papers.

5 7a. Return to an order of the House of Gommons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a return showing the total
amount of revenue collected by the governinent (a) from passenger traffic ; (b) from freight traffic
at the stations, freight agencies and passenger agencies along the extension of the Intercolonial
Railway from Chaudière te Montreal, both included, (1) from the 30th day of June, 1898, exclu-

sive, to the 1st day of March, 1899, exclusive; (2) from the lst day of March, 1899, inclusive, to
the lst day of April, 1899, exclusive. Presented 16th May, 1899.-Mr. Powell.

Printed for sessional papers.
57b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for a return containing a

statement of expenditure out of income made for permanent improvements, extensions, additions
and betterments, exclusive of works for ordinary maintenance and renewals, on account of the
Intercolonial Railway from 30th June, 1891, to lst July, 1897. Presented 17th May, 1899.-Mr.
Powell.............................................. . Printcd for sessional papers.

57c. Return te an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for copies of all tenders for

ties for the use of the Intercolonial Railway from lst January, 1896, te date, giving names, quan-
tities, prices, and which tenders were accepted. Presented 17th May, 1899.-Mr. Foster.

Not printed.

57d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, for copies of all tenders
received by the government, or by the department of railways and canalis, or by any officiais
thereof, for railway ties and luniber of all kinds supplied to the Intercolonial Railway between

.July, 1896, and January, 1898, on the division of the railway in the province of Quebec. Pre-
sented 17th May, 1899.-Mr. Casgrain................................... ... Not Vrinted.

57e. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 24th March, 1899, for a statement showing the quan-

tity of rolling stock purchased in connection with the extension of the Intercolonial Railway from
Lévis to Montreal, from whom purchased, and the price paid therefor. Presented 19th May,
1899.-Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell ................. ..................... Not printed.

57f. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 25th April, 1899, for a return showing quantity of freight
carried over the Intercolonial Railway from Montreal te Halifax for shipment te Europe, during
the winter 1898 and 1899. Presented 29th May, 1899.-Hon. Mr. Perley.

Printed for sessional papers.

57g. Return te an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for a return showing: 1. The
total amount of expenditure on capital account in connection with the Intercolonial Railway and
the extension thereof te Montreal f rom 30th June, 1898, exclusive, to the lst day of May, 1899,
exclusive. 2. The total revenue of the Intercolonial Railway and the Montreal extension thereof
fron Soth June, 1898, exclusive, te the 1st day of May, 1899, exclusive. 3. The total expenditure
charged to revenue account in connection with the Intercolonial Railway and the Montreal exten-
sion thereof froni 30th June, 1898, exclusive, to the lst day of May, 1899, exclusive. Presented
13th June, 1899.--Mr. Powell. ...............-.... .................... vot printed.

57k. Return te an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for a return showing the
names of persons to whom paynents were made of allowance or drawback on freight charges on
the New Brunswick portion of the Interoolonial Railway during thë months of' January and
February, 1899, the amount and date of payment in each case, and the date at which the
overcharge was made. Presented 13th June, 1899.-Mr. Foster...... .. .. .... Not printed.

57i. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for a copy of lease or contract

under which the Intercolonial Railway management pernitted or authorized the building of a
restaurant on the railway right of way at Grand Narrows. Aise copies of all correspondence in
reference to the granting of the privilege of erecting such building on the railway property. and
also in reference te running the same. Presented 23rd June, 1899.-Mr. McDongall..Not printed.
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57j. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of advertisements
issued during 1898, inviting tenders for steel rails and fastenings tor the Intercolonial and Prince
Edward Island Railways, copies of tenders received therefor, of all correspondence in connection
therewith, pnd of any contract or contracts entered into. Presented 27th June, 1899.-Sir Charles
Tupper................ ..... .......... .......................... . Not prirted.

57k. Supplementary return to 57e. Presented 28th June, 1899 . . ...... ...... ........ Not printed.

571. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th J une, 1899, showing the names of persons
to whom payments were maade of allowances or drawbacks on freight charges on the Nova Scotia
portion of the Intercolonial Railway from lst Julv, 1898, to 31st March, 1899, giving amount and
date of payment and date at which overcharge was made. Presented 13th July, 1899. -Mr. Bell
(Pictou)....................... ................ . .. ............... Not printed.

57m. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, showinig: 1. The combined
engine and car mileage-total, and that of the Intercolonial Railway--for each month from March
1, 1898, for the terminals, bridge, and the other leased portions of the Grand Trunk Railway, as
contemplated in the third and thirty-third sections of the schedule to Bill No. 138. 2. The
amounts for (a) maintenance and repairs, and (b) for all other operating expenses separately,
incurred by thae Grand Trunk Railway Company and the Intercolonial Railway each month
since March 1, 1898. 3. Copy of returns and information made under section 33 of said schedule
for each month from March 1, 1898. Presented 18th July, 1899.-Mr. Foster ........ Not printed.

57n. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all petitions,
memorials, letters and correspondence addressed to the government, or to any of the members
thereof, since the last session, by the board of trade of the city of Quebec, the council thereof, the city
council of the city of Quebec, or any other public bodies or citizens of the said city, in relation to a
better service between the Intercolonial Railway and the city of Quebec. Presented 29th July,
1899.- M r. Casgrain ..................................................... ....... Not printed.

58. Return to an address of the House of Commuons, dated 1st May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council and all reports and correspondence made by or had between W. J. Christie, late of the
inland revenue department, Winnipeg, and other officers of department in Manitoba, and the
department at Ottawa or the minister of inland revenue relating to the removal, the suspension
and finail dismissal of W. J. Christie, lately one of the chief oflicers in departmnent at Winnipeg.
Presented 15th May, 1899.-Mr. Roche... .... .... ................... . . Not printed.

58a. Supplementary return to No. 58. Presented 30th May, 1899.......... .......... Not printed.

59. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copy of all reports to the
minister of the interior, or to the departnent of the interior, or to any officer of that department
fromu William Ogilvie, or from the council of the Yukon district, or fron any member of such
council relating to the administration of the said Yukon district or relating to any matter
connected with the administration of the said district. Presented 15th May, 1899.-Mr. Borden
(Halifax)................ . ..... . ..... ... . ........ .. ... ........... Not printed.

60. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of allcorrespondence
connected with the department of the interior at Ottawa authorizing the agent at Yorkton, North-
west-Territories, to grant entry for the S. M. j of section 14, township 24, range 3 west of the 2nd
meridian, to Mr. W. C. Middleton. Presented 15th May, 1899.-Mr. Davin...... Not printed.

61. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated lst May, 1899, for copips of all letters and
telegrans that have passed between the government and the Ashcroft Water and Electric Com-
pany, or Mr. Peter Ryan, or Mr. John Shi-.Ids, or any other person on their behalf in regard to
the purchase of somne 4,000 acres of land near Ashcroft, B.C., within the railway belt. Presented
15th May, 1899.-Mr. Prior....... ................................. ..... Not printed.

62i Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of any orders in
council passed up te date respecting any officers of thedepartment of the interiov taking nyp
mining claims; respecting any government officers;taking up mining-claims; respecting officers of
the department of the interior making homestead entries or buying lands. Presented'i5th May,
1899.-Mr, Davin............. ... ....... .... .... .... .... -. ... :Not printed.
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43. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copies of ail letters,
telegrams and communications from Archer Martin, of Victoria, B.C., barrister-at-law, to the
minister of interior or to the deputy minister, or to any officers of the department of the interior,
relating to the granting or recognition of any permit or authority to take or import liquor into the
Yukon district or relating to the importation of liquor into the Yukon district, and ail replies to
such letters, telegrams and communications. Presented 15th May, 1899.-Mr. Borden (Halifax).

Printed for sessi<nal papers.

63a. Return to an order of the House of Cominons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copies of ail letters,
telegrams and communications from Frederick Peters, Q.C., of Victoria, B.C., to the minister of
the interior, or to any minister of the crown, or to any deputy minister, applying for or relating tu
the granting of any permit to take or importiiquor into-the Yukon district, and ail replies to such
letters, telegrams and communications. Presented 15th May, 1899. -Mr. Borden (Halifax).

Printed for sessional papers.

63b. Correspondence relating to the importation of liquor into the Yukon territory. Presented 16th

May, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton........ ..... .. .... .. -· . ... Printed for sessional papers.

63c. lieturn to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of ail liquor pernmits
issued by Major Walsh, and ail reports and correspondence respecting his action in this respect.
Presented I8th May, 1899.-Sir C. Hibbert Tupper .................. Printed for scsional papers.

63d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for copies of correspondence,
telegrams, etc., in connection with the management of the Yukon territory, alluded to in the
speech of the honourable the minister of the interior, during the debate on the address in answer
to His Excellency's speech at the opening of the session. Presented 25th May, 1899.-Sir C.
Hibbert Tupper. .... . ........ ... . .. . .... ·......... .......... Rot printed.

43e. Return to an address of the- House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of ail correspon-

dence which has taken place between the hon. the minister of the interior, or any officer of bis

department, and the government of the North-west Territories respecting the issue, granting or
withholding of permits for the conveyance of liquor into the Yukon territory. Presented 30th
May, 1899.-Mr. Clarke ... - · · · ·........... ............ ..... ... .... .Not printed.

43f. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a return of ail liquors

taken into the Yukon since July 1, 1896, giving the names of the persons or companies taking
them in, the quantity in each case, the riate of issue of permit and the anthority granting the

permit ; also ail correspondence had with any parties in connection with the demand for, or granting

of, permits for taking liquors into the Yukon. Presented 6th June, 1899. -Mr. Poster.
Not printed.

43g. Return to an order of the House of Cominons, dated 19th April, 1899, for an itemized statement of
the number of gallons of intoxicating liquors taken into the Klondike district since .July, 1896, the
number o.f permits granted therefor, with the naies and post office addresses of those to whom
said permit& were granted and the amount paid therefor. Presented 6th June 1899.- Mr. Foster.

63g*. Supplementary return to No. 63f. Presented 13th July, 1899 ............. .... . Not printed.
63?.~~~~~ Supeetr.rtr Not printed.

·64. Copy of agreement dated lt July, 1890, between the Department of Railways and Canals and the
Canadian Pacific Railway Company. Presented 16th May, 1899, by Hon. A. G. Blair.

.Not printed.
-65. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of ail letters, docu-

ments, memoranda, agreements and correspondence containing, embodying, relating to or referring
to the terms and conditions upon which tenders were asked for the Magdalen Island mail contract,
and upon which the contract was subsequently let to R. J. Leslie, of Leslie, Hart & Co.,
Halifax, N.S. Presented 17th May, 1899.-Mr. Pope .... .... . ................ Not printed.

46. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 24th March, 1899, for copies of al] correspondence with
and instructions gi ven to Louis Coste, late engineer in the public works department, with reference
to the Yukon-Teslin route, and the navigation of the rivera and lakes connected therewith, and ail

reports thereon, made by the said Louis Coste. Presented 17th May, 1899.-Hon. Sir Mackenzie
Bowell...... .......... ................ .. .............. ... ·......... Not printed.

46a. Return to-an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a copy of the report or
reports of Mr. Coste, late engineer of the public works departient, on the Yukon, more especially
on the Teslin Lake route for a railway into the Yukon ;- also a copy of the report of Mr. Lafon-
taine, or a copy of their joint report, if they made such a report. Presented 18th May, 1899.-
Mr. Davin . ........................ ...................... Printcd for e88ional papers.
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66. (1898.) Report of commissioners appointed to investigate, inquire into and report upon the state and
management of the business of the St. Vincent de Paul penitentiary. Presented 26th April, 1898.-
Printed for distribution and sessional papers this year (1899). See Sessional Paper No. 18, page 221.

67. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 11th A pril, 1899, for: 1. Copy of the last governmen,,
return made by La Banque du Peuple before that bank suspended payment, as well as the name
of the bank official and a copy of the declaration made by him. 2. Copy of the different state-
ments of the affairs of said bank submitted by the directors at each of the public meetings of the
stockholders and depositors which were held since the date of suspension. 3. List of the names
of the directors of the bank at the date of its suspension, and the number of shares held by each cf
such directors on that date. 4. List of sales or transfers, if any, that may have been made of the
stock of any one or more of the directors since ths date of the suspension, and to whom made.
5. List of any vacancy or vacancies that may have occurred since the said date and the cause or
causes thereof, as well as the names of those who have been appointed to 611 any such vacancy.
6. The price as near as can be ascertained from the quotations of the stock of any sales or transfers
that were made within the last month immediately before such suspension, and the prices paid for
any such transfer of stock that may have been made since the date of suspension up to lst April,
1899. 7. List of the names of the stockholders of the bank on the lst day of April, 1899, and the
number of shares held by each on that date. 8. Statement in detail of the assets and liabilities of
the bank, excepting therefrom the liabilities to the depositors and stockholders which may be
given in the aggregate. Presented 17th May, 1899.-Hon. Mr. McMillan ........... Not printed.

68. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence between the government and B. Haigh & Son, of British Columbia, or any person or persons
acting on their behalf in the year 1880, or thereabouts, in regard to an application for the use of
L)eadman's Island. Also between the Dominion government and the attorney general of the
province of British Columbia or other member of the provincial government in regard to the said
application, or to the subject thereof. Presented 18th May, 1899.-Mr. Prior ...... Not printed.

68a. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated lst May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council respecting Stanley Park and Deadman's Island, Vancouver, B.C., and all correspondence
between the different departments of the Canadian government and the imperial military and
naval authorities respecting the park or island or both. Also for copies of all correspondence
respecting the same with the government of British Columbia, the city of Vancouver and the park
authorities. Also for all correspondence between the member for Burrard, the hon. minister of
militia and defence and the department of militia, the hon. minister of the interior and other
members of the government respecting the same. Also for all correspondence between Mr. Lud-
gate and his representative and any department of government respecting Deadman's Island.
Also a copy of all applications and correspondence respecting a lease or grant of -Deadman's Island.
Also a copy of all departmental reports, memoranda or letters on file in the departments of justice,
interior, militia and defence respecting the park, Deadman's Island, or the title and disposal of
the same. Also a copy of all grants or leases of the park or Deadman's Island. Also all reports
or information obtained by the different departments before any lease or grant of Deadman's
Island was enacted. Also all memorials or correspondence respecting the granting of any lease of
Deadman's Island. Presented 31st May, 1899.-Mr. Prior.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

69. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a return of all papers,
documents and correspondence between the Winnipeg grain exchange and the department of
public works in reference to keeping the haibour at Fort William free of ice to the latest possible
date. Presented 18th May, 1899.-Mr. Roche................................Not printed.

70. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of letters,
instructions, correspohdence and report of the commissioner appointed to inquire into the
grievances of the workmen on the Crow's Nest Pass Railway, and into the circumstances attending
the death of two of said employees, named McDonald and Fraser, at or near Pincher Creek,
with report of the commissioner in re investigation with respect to all the facts connected with the
death of Charles P. McDonald and E. McC. Fraser, who were employed in connection with the
construction of the Crow's Nest Pass Railway. Presented 18th May, 1899.-Mr. Bell (Pictou).

Sununary Report prnted for both distribution and sessional papers.
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71* Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of instructions
given to Mr. F. C. Wade, whether before he left for Dawson to act in several officiai capacities or
subsequently, more particularly a copy of the permission given him, if the permission was:in
writing, to stake claims in the Klondike. Presented 18th May, 1899.-Mr. Davin. . .Not printed.

72. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated lst May, 1899, for copies of ail correspon-
dence between the government of British Columbia and the government of Canada since July,
1898, to the present date respecting the supreme courts, county courts or any of the judges for the
province aforesaid, the appointments of said judges or of any of them, or other matters relating to
the administration of justice in the said province. Presented 25th May, 1899.- Sir C. Hibbert
Tupper........................... ... ·........................... Not prined.

78. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copies of any correspon-
dence in relation to the construction of sheds on the wharfs at St. Méthode and Mistassini, and to
the awarding of the contraet for the said buildings to L. P. Bilodeau, of Roberval. Presented
25th May, 1899.- Mr. Casgrain........ ................ ...................... ot printed.

74. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copies of ail papers, cor-
respondence, etc., in connection with the award of the contract to Mr. Thomas Gauthier, of
Montreal, by the department of public works for the dredging at Coteau Landing ; the cail for
tenders, if any; the amount expended out of the $21,O0 voted, and to whom paid. Also corre-
spondence between Mr. Gauthier and Mr. McDonald, who did the work ; the amount of work done
in cubic feet, and how paid. Presented: 25th May, 1899.-Mr. Bergeron.

Printed for sessional papers.

75. Return to an order of the Bouse of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for copies of correspondence
between the government, or the department of public works, and Mr. W. Donaghue, or any other
person, in relation to the building of scows at Roberval to accompany the dredge at that place,
and to the awarding of the contract for the building of the said dredges to the said W. Donaghue.
Presented 25th May, 1899.-Mr. Casgrain..................................... . . Not printed.

76. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for copies of ail leases, papers
and documents of and concerning the lease of certain property on Isle aux Noix, in the province
of Quebec, held by the government and under the control of the department of militia and
defence, showing the nanes of lessees since lst January, 1895, to present time, and the amount of
rental paid by such lessees. Presented 25th May, 1899.-Mr. Quinn................Not printed.

77. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a return showing when
and for what period the steamer " Alaska " was engaged on the survey of the channel in Lake
St. Francis, and the service the steamer " Alert " waa engaged on during the same period.
Presented 25th May, 1899.-Mr. Taylor...........................................Not printed.

78. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a return showing the
amounts paid to Tom S. Rubidge, superintending engineer of the Cornwall canal, for salary and
expenses from lst January, 1897, to lst January, 1899. A detailed statement of the amount paid
for cab or hack hire in the same period. A statement of the total expense incurred in connection
with the steamer " Alert"; also a statement showing how many days the steamer " Alert " ws
engaged in actual survey work, from lst January, 1897, to lst January, 1899, and how many days
in any other service and the nature of the same. Presented 25th May, 1899.-Mr. Taylor.

Not printed.

79. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, for copies of ail reports to
his excellency the governor general, minutes of council, reports, papers and correspondence in any
way relating te the navigation of the Yukon or Stikine rivers, or to customs regulations in con-
nection therewith, including the transhipment of cargoes; also ail reports to his excellency the
governor general, minutes of council, correspondence and papers touching the customs regulations.
and fees imposed in connection with Canadian goods passing through St. Michael's, Dyea,
Skagway and Wrangel. Presented 25th May, 1899.-Sir Charles Tupper.

Printed for sessional paper&.
80. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of ail correspon.

dence and papers connected with the removal of Mr. Fawcett from the position of Yukon gold
commissioner. Presented 25th ay, 1899.-Mr. Davin.............................Not printed.
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81. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for copies of all orders in
council, ordinances, commissions, appointments, bond certificates and oaths, relating to the
appointment of the sheriff foi Yukon territory; also copies of the same papers respecting the
appointment of the clerk of the court for the Yukon territory. Presented 25th May, 1899.-Sir
C. H ibbert Tupper............................. .................................. N ot printed.

82. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th March, 1898, for copies of all corre-
spondence between the government of Canada, or any member thereof, and the United States
government, either directly or through the British government or its representative at Washington,
in reference to bonding or transit arrangements on the Pacific coast, and to the relief of destitute
persons in the Yukon or Alaska districts. Also any reports of ministers to the government on
these matters. Presented 25th May, 1899.- Mr. Foster........ ..... ........... Not printed.

83. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated Sth May, 1899, for a return showing the number
and names of all United States fishing vessels not possessing modus vivendi licenses to which con-
cessions were granted in the Atlantic ports of Canada during the months of November and
December, 1898, and January and February, 1899 ; together with all correspondence between the
government or any member thereof and officers of the government, showing under what circum-
stances privileges were granted to any of said American vessels. Presented 26th May, 1899. -
M r. McAlister............... ..................................... N ot printed.

84. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, for a return of copies of all
correspondence, instructions, reports, bills of costs and accounts, together with a statement of all
moneys paid by the Dominion government in connection with the prosecutions arising out of the
Dominion general elections of 1896 in the province of Manitoba. Presented 29th May, 1899.-
M r. Roche..... .. ............................................................... N t printed.

84a. Supplementary return to No. 84. Presented 2nd June, 1899........................Not printed.
85. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 7th June, 1897, for copies of all correspondence

between the government and any parties in the county of Brant relating to the appointment of
Dr. Levi Secord, of Brantford, Dr. McKee, of the same place, and Dr. Beer, formerly of Platts-
ville, in the county of Oxford, to the positions of head physician and assistants to the Indians on
the reservation in the township of Tuscarora, county of Brant. Presented 29th May, 1899.-
Mr. Clancy.. .......... ........................................... .. Not printed.

86. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all correspon.
dence, from July 1, 1896, to the present date, between the Canadian government and the imperial
authorities and between the Canadian government and the office of the bigh commissioner for
Canada in London, relating to the cattle embargo. Presented 27th May, 1899.-Mr. Montague.

Printed for sessional papers.
87. Copy of the order in council of the 7th October, 1898, providing for appointment of Mr. William

Ogilvie as a commissioner, under the provisions of chapter 114, R.S.C., to investigate the charges
and complaints referred to in such order in council ; copy of the commission issued under the
great seal of Canada, appointing Mr. Ogilvie such commissioner; copy of his report of the 27th
April, 1899, and copies of the three public notices referred to in such report and attached thereto.
Presented 30th May, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton.. .Printed for both distribution and sessional papera.

87a. Copy of commission which issued in favour of William Ogilvie, Esq., under the provisions of
chapter 114 R.S.C., to hold an investigation and take evidence under oath with regard to certain
charges made against officials of the Dominion government in the Yukon territory ; and copy of
the evidence taken under such commission. Presented 9th June, 1899, by Eon. C. Sifton.

Printed for both distribution and sessional paper.
87b. Copy of further report, dated the 27th May, 1899, of William Ogilvie, Esq., commissioner appointed

under the provisions of chapter 114, R.S.C., and by commission issued thereunder, under the
great seal of Canada, to hold an investigation and take evidence under oath with regard to certain
charges made against officials of the Dominion government in the Yukon territory. Presented
th July, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton .............. Printed for both distribution and se8sionea papers.

87c. Copy of the evidence which accompanied the further report of the 27th May, 1899, of William
Ogilvie, Esq., commissioner appointed under the provisions of chapter 114, R.S.C., and by com-
mission issued thereunder, under the great seal of Canada, to hold an investigation and take
evidence under oath with regard to certain charges made against officials of the Dominion govern.
ment in the Yukon territory ; of which further report a copy was laid before the House of Con-
mons upon the 7th July, 1899. Preaented 12th July, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
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87d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th July, 1899, for copy of a report of William
Ogilvie, commissioner, relative to the values placed upon the steamers " Pingree " and " Low "
for customs entry. Presented 27th July, 1899.-Mr. Paterson ..................... Not printed.

88. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 22nd May, 1899, for : 1. The original contract entered
into between the government and the proprietors of the Drummond County Railway and the
Grand Trunk Railway Company. 2. The present contract or agreement entered into between the
same persons or companies. 3. A statement of all moneys paid to the proprietors of said railways
from the date of the non-ratification of the first contract to the 31st March, 1899. 4. An account
of the earnings and working expenses of the Drummond County Railway from the time of its
being first worked in connection with the Intercolonial Railway to the 31st March, 1899. 5. And
also an account of the total amount of money paid the Grand Trunk Railway Company for station
accommodation, running powers over its line, for bridge extension, or for any purpose whatever in
connection with the extension of the Intercolonial Railway system to Montreal. Presented
29th May, 1899.-Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell.................. Printed for sessionai papers.

8Sa. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 22nd June, 1899, calling for copies of any or all supple-
mental agreements and traffic arrangements entered into between the railway department of
Canada and the Grand Trunk Railway Company, in connection with the contract entered into
between the aforesaid parties for the extension of the Intercolonial Railway to the city of Mon.
treal. Presented 26th June, 1899.-Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell....... Printed for sessionai papera.

89. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 1st May, 18u9, for copies of all petitions
addressed to his excellency the governor general by members of the Turner administration in
the province of British Columbia respecting the conduct of his honour the lieutenant governor
of that province, and praying for the appointment of a commission to inquire inato the same,
together with all papers and correspondence connected with said petition ; and also copies of all
papers and correspondence in any way relating te the action of his honour the lieutenant gov-
ernor of British Columbia in dismissing the Turner administration in the said province. Pre-
sented 31st May, 1899.-Mr. Prior ............. Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.

90. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for: 1. Copies of all cor-
respondence had with the departmens of inland revenue, during the last ten years, in relation to
the compulsory inspection of potash at the port of Montreal. -2. Copies of ail petitions presented
on the same subject to the honourable the minister of inland revenue. Also copies of resolutions
adopted by the Montreal board of trade and others, urging the government to adopt some measure
to protect the Canadian trade in potash. Presented 31st May, 1899.-Mr. Préfontaine.

Not printed.
91. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for: 1. Statement shpwing

the quantity of Canadian tobacce grown and manufactured during each year since 1890. 2. The
number of factories established since 1890-with the date in each instance-for the manufacture
of Canadian tobacco, or of Canadian and foreign tobacco mixed. 3. Copies of ail petitions, appli-
cations and memorials presented to the government since 1896 in relation to the duties on tobacco.
Presented 31st May, 1899.-Mr. Gauthier........................................Not printed.

92. Copy of the prospectus of the Britisb Canadian Gold Fields of the Klondike Company, Limited,
and copies of correspondence and other papers on file in the department of the interior, respecting
the alleged connection of Mr. William Ogilvie with that company. Presented 31st May, 1899,
by Hon. C. Sifton...... .... ............... ... ............. ........... .... N otprinted.

93. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for statement showing the
amounts voted and the amounts expended, under their proper headings, by the Dominion govern.
ment on the harbour of Montreal during the lst twenty-eight years ; also the amounts voted and
the amounts expended, under their proper headings, by the Dominion government on the harbour
of Victoria, B.C., during the last twenty-eight years. Presented 31st May, 1899.-Mr. Prior.

Not printed.
94. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for a return showing the actual

expenditure on reconstruction of the pier at China Point, in the province of Prince Edward Island,
the date of such payments, to whom the payments were made and the amount paid to each per.
son; the amount paid for actual labour performed ; the amount paid for material not used, and
when ; the quantity and kind of material purchased, and the price ; the present actual condition
of the pier ; the progress made towards reconstruction; and all papers, correspondence and
documents relating te or giving any information or particulars respecting the matters aforesaid.
Presented 31st May, 1899.-Mr Martin .. ...... · ·..... ·..... Not printed.2½ 19
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95. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for a return showing al] sums
expended to date upon the new wharf at Pointe Claire, P.Q. Also how far the works have pro-
gressed ; a -copy of the estimate of the cost of said wharf and statement showing how much it will
coSt to finish said wharf. Copies of all advertisements calling for tenders, as well as of all tenders
and correspondence upon the subject. Presented 31st May, 1899.-Mr. Monk ........ Not printed.

96. Return to an order of the House cf Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all correspondence,
telegrams, papers, etc., in connection with the seizure of traps and ropes belonging te Messrs.
Benjamin Compton & Co., of Belle River, in the province of Prince Edward Island, on 30th July,
1898, by the Dominion cruiser " Acadia." Presented lst June, 1899.-Mr. Martin.. .fot printed.

97. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 17th May, 1899, for copies of all letters,
telegrams, cablegrams, memorials and other papers received by the right hon. the prime minister
of Canada, the Hon. J. I. Tarte, the minister of public works, or the Hon. A. G. Blair, the
minister of railways and canals, from the Northern Commercial Telegraph Company, Limited, the
Commercial Telegraph Construction Syndicate, Limited, or the W. T. Henley Telegraph Works,
Limited, or from any director or directors, person or persons on behalf of or as representing any
of these companies, or from the high commissioner for Canada in London, or from any other
person or company respecting the construction by or for the Northern Commercial Telegraph
Company, Limited, of a telegraph line between Skagway and Dawson, or of a submarine cable
telegraph between some point in British Columbia and Skagway or Wrangel, or in any way
relating to either of their objects. Also copies of all letters from the right hon. the prime minister
of Canada, or from either of said other ministers te any of said companies or to any director or
directors or other person or persons acting or purporting to act on behalf of any of said companies
in any way relating to the construction of said telegraph line or cable line by, for or under the
charter of the Northern Commercial Telegraph Company, Limited. Also copies of aIl correspon-
dence between the Dominion government or any member or department thereof and the United
States government at Washington or any department thereof bearing upon the laying and landing
of a submarine cable between some point in British Columbia and Skagway or Wrangel or any
point between these places. Presented lt June, 1899.-Mr. Prior........... .... Not printed.

97a. Supplementary return to 97. Presented 26th June, 1899................... ... . Not printed.
98. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 6th June, 1898, for a statement of the cost of the

voyages undertaken in 1897 by the honourable the prime minister and by the honourable the
solicitor general, to Europe, to the United States or elsewhere, together with the travelling
expenses of their private secretaries or of any other persons composing their following. Presented
29th May, 1899.-Hon. Mr. Landry....................................... ..... Not printed.

99. Protocol No. lxiii of the Joint High Commission, Washington, respecting the boundary between
Alaska and Canada. Presented 5th June, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
100. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 17th May, 1899, for copies of all papers, plans,

maps, reports of fishery officers, correspondence and other documents relating te the existence of a
dam across river Jésus, near the town of Terrebonne, and the construction of a fishway therein
according te the requirements of the law. Presented 5th June, 1899.-Mr. Fortin... .Not printed.

101. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a list of all persons
employed since lt 'August, 1896, by the minister of interior outside of the civil service employees
in Ottawa, for purposes of immigration, detailing the names and post office addresses of the
appointees, their rate of wages and allowances, the date and reason for dismissal where dismissals
have taken place, and the country or districts in which their work has been performed. Presented
5th June, 1899.-Mr. Foster......... .......................... .... .......... Not printd.

102. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a statement of ail persons
appointed to office or assigned to duties of any kind in the Yukon district since lat August, 1896,
giving the names, post office addresses, rate of salary and allowances or expenses of each person,
the duties assigned, the date of bis appointment, the date of resignation or dismissal, and the
reason therefor in the case of each resignation or dismissal. The above statement not to include
mounted police or Canadian militiamen, but te include paymasters in each branch. Presented 5th
June, 1899.-M r. Foster.......................................................... Not prined.

102a. Supplementary return te No. 102. Presented 9th June, 1899........ .......... Not printed.
102b. Copies of orders in council relating te the Yukon. Presented 21st June, 1899, by Hon. C. Sifton.

Not printed.
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103. Return (in part) to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th April, 1899, for a statement of
all persons or commissions of inquiry appointed to inquire into the conduct of employees of the
government since 1st August, 1896, giving the names of commissiofiers, their rate of pay and
allowances, the aggregate total amount paid to each as pay and allowance, and the total expenses
of each commission outaide of pay and allowance; also the names and post office addresses of al
persons dismissed on the reporta of the commissioners (Marine and Fisheries). Presented 6th
June, 1899.-Mr. Foster................ .............................. Not printed.

10a. Supplementary return to No. 103. (Customs Department.) Presented 6th June, 1899.
Not printed.

1 03b. Return to àn address of the House of Commons, dated 14th February, 1898, for a return showing
names of commissinners appointed by the government to inquire into the conduct of all employees
of the civil service in the province of Quebec since the 23rd of June, 1896, and the amount paid to
each commissioner as salary or travelling expenses. Presented 14th June, 1899.-Mr. Monk.

Not printed.
10Sc. Return (in part) to an address of the Senate, dated 28th April, 1899, of the names of all commis-

sioners appointed by order in council or otherwise since the 9th April, 1897, to inquire into and
report upon charges preferred against any employee of the governnment, whether permanent or
temporary, of offensive partisanship, or of any miaconduct whatever. 2. The reporta of said
commissioners, or of commissioners previously appointed, not already brought down, and a state-
ment showing the action taken by the government thereon. 3. The amounts paid each commis-
sioner since the 9th April, 1897, in fees, per diem allowance, travelling expenses and incidentals of
all kinds. 4. The names, ages, effices and salaries of all employees in the inside or outaide service
of the government, whether temporary or permanent, who since the 9th April, 1897, have been
removed from office by dismissal, superannuation, or otherwise, whether on a report of a commis-
sion or otherwise, specifying in each case the grounds of dismissal, and the amount of superannua-
tion or gratuity granted, if any; also the age, office, salary or remuneration of any and every
person appointed in the place of, or as a consequence of every such removaL Presented 28th
June, 1899.-Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell. ... ............ ............. Printed in abstract form.

1 03d. Supplementary return to No. 103. (PoSt Office Department.) Presented 5th July, i899.
Not printed.

1 0 3e. Supplementary return to No. 103c. Presented 4th July, 1899..... , ................ See 103.
103f. Supplementary return to No. 103c. Presented 5th July, 1899....... .......... ......... See 103C.
1039. Supplementary return to No. 103. (Railways and Canals.) Presented 29th July, 1899.

Not j>rined.1 03h. Supplementary return to No. 1030. Presented 28th July, 1899., ........................ Sec 103C.
104. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of all statements,

claims, memoranda, correspondence, telegrams, etc., with the government of Prince Edward
Island and a delegation from that province, in March last, consisting of the Honourable Hector
C. Macdonald, Jas. W. Richards, and Benjamin Rogers, in regard to questions at issue between
the government of Prince Edward Island and the dominion of Canada. Presented 6th June,
1899.-Mr. Martin.......... .......... ................. .... ... Printed for sesional papera.

105. Return to an addresa of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for all papers and corre-
spondence, including orders in council, tenders and contracta in connection with the engraving,
printing and supply'of paper for the denominational postal notes, with a sample of the notes
printed. Presented 6th June, 1899.-Mr. Foster ........ ................... Not printed.

105«. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for a statement of all
separate issues of postal stamps, carda, or notes since lst January, 1897, noting those that have
gone out of use, the quantity and date of each issue, and a sample of each issue, and giving in the
case of the jubilee stamps, the cost and airount of cash returned to the treasury for each denomina.
tion. Presented 12th June, 1899.-Mr. Foster . . ................. .......... .ot printed.

106b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for a copy of contract for the
production of postal notes, and the cost of such per 1,000 of each denomination, exclusive of paper,
and for all correspondence between the contractor, the government and the queen's printer. Also
for a statement of the number of reams of paper made for each denomination, by whom ordered
to be made, where made, and name of manufacturer, and who has now possession of the Dandy
rolla from which the paper was made. And also the following statements: Who furnished the
electrotypes, and where they were made, the date of firat delivery of postal notes, and amount of

21
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security given by the contractor, and whether the contractor has supplied the necessary accommo-
dation for government clerks for superintendence and storage for an ample supply of paper,
Presented 12th June. 1899.-Mr. Foster.... .... ........................... ... Notprinted.

105c. Return (in part) to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, showing in detail all
dies, plates or other parts, wholly or partially engraved, entered or imported by or for the use of
the American Bank Note Company and the British American Bank Note Company, to be used in
the making of bank notes, postage stamps, postal notes and inland revenue stamps for the govern-
ment, with the valuation and amount of duty charged and collected. Presented 12th June, 1899.
-Mr. Foster ................................ . ............................ Not printed.

105d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for all correspondence had
with the post office department, or any member of the government, in reference to the quality of
the post cards issued by the post office department since lst July, 1896. Presented 19th June,
1899.-Mr. Foster............................................... ....... ..... Not printed.

106. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for number of jubilee stamp
plates engraved and their denominations, and cost of such plates. Cost of jubilee stamps per
1,000 complete. Also the number of plates engraved for the greater empire stamp, and the cost
per plate, with the cost per 1,000 stamps complete. Presented 6th June, 1899.-Mr. Foster.

Printed for sessional papers.

107. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all papers,
including affidavits, and of all correspondence between the government and the government or
public officials of the United States or other parties, concerning the case of Thomas Meagher, who
was arrested by United States customs officers in Canadian waters, in the river St. Clair, on 19th
August, 1898 ; was held in custody and grossly ill-treated by said officials tor some time and
afterwards imprisoned, and who was finally discharged without trial by order of the United States
government. Presented 6th June, 1899.-Mr. Cowan.......................... Not printed.

10S. Return of the names and salaries of all persons appointed to or promoted in the civil service during
the calendar year 1898. Presented 6th June, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.

Printed for sessional papers.

109. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 14th March, 1898, for copies of all corre-
spondence, reports, orders in council and instructions in reference to the admission of foreign
countriem to commercial privileges under the so-called preferential clause of the tariff of 1897.
Presented 6th June, 1899.-Mr. Foster...... ....................... Printed for sessional papers.

110. Documents relating to the recent disallowance of certain statutes passed by the legislature of
British Columbia. Presented 7th June, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier.

Printed for both distribution and sessional papers.
11 Oa. Further documents relating to the recent disallowance of certain statutes passed by the legislature

of British Columbia. Presented 21st June, 1899, by Sir Wilfrid Laurier ......... Not printed.
111. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for a return showing by

departments, the expenditure in each year, beginning lst July, 1890, for salaries in the outside
service of the post office, customs and inland revenue departments, detailed by posta and sub-posts
in the case of the inland revenue and customs, and by post offices in case of employees in the
postal service, of all employees, whether temporary or permanent. Presented 7th June, 1899.-
Mr. McMullen............................................................. .. Not printed.

112. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for copies of all complaints,
referred to on page 3 of the report of the deputy minister of interior (Annual Report of the Depart-
ment of the Interior for the year 1897), minutes of council, commission instructions and report of
Mr. Archer Martin, the commissioner, respecting the New Westminster crown timber office.
Presented 9th June, 1899.-Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper .. ......................... Not printed.

113. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, for copies of all instruc-
tions given by the government of Canada, or any department thereof, to Charles Russeil, Esq.,
solicitor, London, England, or to the firm to which he belongs, or to any member thereof, in
relation to any case or business in which the said government or any department thereof was or is
concerned ; also copies in detail of all bills of costs or accounts rendered by the said persons to the
government or any department since 1st July, 1896. Presented 9th June, 1899.-Mr. Bergeron.

Printed for sess ional papers.
114. Return to an order of the House of Commons. dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all correspondence

between the Northern Commercial Telegraph Company and the department of public works
during the last six months. Presented 12th June, 1899.-Mr. Maxwell ............. Not printed.
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115. Return to an order of the louse of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for copies of ail correspondencS,
telegrams, reports, contracts, tenders and al other papers and documents in connection with the

change in carrying the mails for Prince Edward Island between the Intercolonial Railway and

Cape Tormentine during the past winter. Presented 12th June, 1899.-Mr. Martin.. Not printed.

116. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for copies of ail petitions,
correspondence, telegrams and instructions in reference to the granting of a bonded warehouse to
John Gow Scringeour at Cardigan Bridge, Prince Edward Island. Presented 12th June, 1899.-
Mr. Macdonald (King's)...... -...... ... .................... ........ Not printed.

117. Return to an order of the House of Comnions, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of ail correspondence

'between the government or any member thereof, or any person or official in behalf of the same,
and the Canada Eastern Railway Company, or any person in behalf thereof, and of any reports

and papers in connection with any proposal to purchase for the government the said railway.
Presented 12th June, 1899.-Mr. Poster ..... , ..................................... Not printe.

118. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated Sth May, 1899, for copies of all orders in

council, and ail papers and correspondence had with the department of railways and canals or the
minister of railways by the officers of the Central Railway Company of New Brunswick, or by any
contractors or persons concerned in the construction of the said Central Railway Company of New

Brunswick, or any one in their behalf, in connection with the payment of subsidy or grants made

to the said company. Presented 13th June, 1899.-Mr. Poster................. Not printed.

119. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of ail correspon-

dence, telegrams and reports that have passed between the Dominion government and the

provincial government of British Columbia, or any person or persons acting on their behalf, in

regard to the Songhees Indian reserve at Victoria, B.C., since Ist June, 1897. Presented 13th

June, 1899.-Mr. Prior .................................. .......... Not printed.

120. Return to an order of the louse of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for copies of all correspondence

between the minister or any officials of the department of interior and Mr. A. Soper, of Port Perry,
or other persons in reference to the suppression of the sale of liquor to the Scugog Indians.

Presented 13th June, 1899.-Mr. Foster...... .... ............................... Not printed.

121. Return to an order of the louse of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of ail contracts or

agreements entered into by or with the postmaster general or the post office department or her

majesty or the government of Canada for the carriage of the mails into or out of the Yukon

territory or district or any part thereof ; and also copies of ahl advertisements for tenders for the
carriage as aforesaid of such mails, and ail tenders received by the postinaster general, the post

office departinent or the government of Canada or her majesty the queen, for the carriage of mails

into or out of the Yukon territory or district, also copies of all reports, letters and communications

in writing from the post office inspector at Victoria, or any other post office inspector, or any other

officer of the post office department with respect to such tenders or advertisements or with respect

to the acceptance or rejection of any of the said tenders. Presented 13th June, 1899.-Sir C.
Hibbert Tupper.,.. ...... .. ......................... ... ......... Not printed.

122. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of ail correspondence,
papers, petitions, etc., in connection with the resignation of Dr. Morris as postmaster at Dundas,
Prince Edward Island, and the appointment of his successor and persons applying for the position.
Presented 13th June, 1899.-Mr. Macdonald (King's). ....................... Not printed.

123. Return to an order of the House of Comnlns, dated Stb May, 1899, for: 1. A return showing the

number of letter carriers who were employed in the post office in Victoria, B.C., in the year 1895-6,
1896-7 and 1897-8 respectively and the number employed at the present time. 2. The salary paid
to each letter carrier employed in 1895-6 and salaries paid in the present year. 3. The provisional

allowance granted to said letter-carrier in 1895-6 and in 1896-7 and 1897-8. Presented 13th June,
1899.-Mr Prior ............................ ................... .... Not printed.

124. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for a statement showing the

weight of every issue of the daily and weekly publications issued in Toronto and Montreal since
the introduction of the law requiring that al] publications must be weighed and stamped before the
acceptance of same at the post office of issue of paper. Presented 13th June, 1899.-Mr. Quinn.

Not printed
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125. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th April, 1899, for a statement in detail of
all sumas expended on account of the joint high commission between Great Britain and the United
States since its inception to date, with the names of all persons ,connected therewith as commis-
sioners, secretaries, clerks and attendants and the rate and total amounts of compensation of each
as salary, allowances and expenses itemized. Presented 14th June, 1899.-Mr. Foster.

Not printed.
126. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for copy of all instructions,

correspondence by letter or telegram between the government or any department or officer thereof
and the representative of the crown, or any other person in relation to the postponenient of the
hearing of the appeal before the court of queen's bench, in the case of the Queen vs. Coulombe
and others during the last term of the said court at Quebec, and of all documents in relation
thereto. Presented 14th June, 1899.-Mr. Casgrain........................... Not printed.

127. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated lst May, 1899, for copies of all correspon-
dence, petitions, resolutions and other papers in possession of the government, relating to the pro-
posed branch railway from Southport to Murray Harbour and other proposed railway branches in
the province of Prince Edward Island. Presented 14th June, 1899.-Mr. Martin .... Not printed.

128. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, showing: 1. Settlements (if
any) that have been made by the department of railways and canals since and during the last
session, with those parties who suffered from the construction of the Roche-Fendue and Calumet
dams in 1883. 2. The names of the valuators who adjusted the said claims, and by whom their
appointment was recommended. Presented 14th May, 1899.-Mr. Poupore......... .Not printed.

129. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th April, 1899, for all papers and correspon-
dence in connection with the claim of the British American Bank Note Company for the balance
alleged to be due to the company for contract work done for the post office department. Presented
15th June, 1899.-Mr. Poster.. ,. . ........................................... Not printed.

130. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, showing the names of persona
appointed to positions in the Toronto post office since 13th July, 1896, the date of each such
appointment, the salary paid to each such person and the office to which each such person was
appointed. Presented 15th June, 1899.-Mr. Clarke..... ..... ............. Not printed.

131. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 21st March, 1898, for copies of all reports and surveys
made by officers of the departinent of railways and canals, regarding the straightening of certain
curves on the Prince Edward Island Railway at or near North Wiltshire, and also> a statement
showing : 1. The amount expended on straightening the said curves, and to whom paid. 2. How
was the expenditure made, by tender or by day's work. 3. The nature and extent of the changes
made. 4. What further changes, if any, are contemplated. Presented 13th June, 1899.-Hon.
Mr. Ferguson.......................... . ....................... ot printed.

132. Return to an address of the Senate, dated the 25th May, 1899, for certified verbatim copies of all
letters or other documents written to the minister or any official connected with the department of
the interior, or to any member of the government, by H. H. Norwood, the person appointed by
the government to the position of gold inspector in the Yukon district. Presented 13th June,
1899.-Hon. Mr. Primrose.......... .............. .... ... ................... Not printed.

133. Return (in part) to an address of the Senate, dated the 23rd March, 1899, showing the amounts of
custoins and excise duties collected on goods imported into that part of the Dominion known as the
'Yukon and Klondike country, from the first day of September, 1898, to the first day of March,
1899, specifying the character of the goods so imported and the countries froin whence imported ;
together with a statement showing the quantity iihd character, as far as practicable, of Canadian
goods sent to the said Yukon district during the same period. Presented 13th June, 1899.-Hon.
Sir M ackenzie Bowell.......... ........................ . . ....... ............ Not printed.

184. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copy of a memorial signed
by the late Honourable John Norquay, president of the executive council of the province of Mani-
toba, on behalf of said council, praying to be heard before her majesty in council on the inter-
ference of the governor general in council in the practice of disallowing acts clearly within the
power of local legislature and asking that the saine be discontinued ; which memorial was addressed
to the honourable the secretary of state of Canada with request that the saine be transmitted to
ber majesty in council ; also. copies of all correspondence, reports to or from, and oraers in council
in connection therewith. Presented 16th June, 1899.-Mr. LaRivière.

Printed for sessional papers.
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135. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for a return showing the

amount spent by the government in the financial years 1896-7, 1897-8, and the proposed expen-

diture for the year 1898-9 on private piers and wharfs, and piers and wharfs not under government

control and not the property of Canada, together with the names of such piers and wharfs and the

owners thereof, as well as the sums spent on each for years mentioned. Presented 16th June,

1899.-Mr. Martin.............. ................................... Nt printed.

136. Return (in part) to an order of the House of Commons, dated 15th May, 1899, for a return of ail

reports and recommendations of the commission appointed to investigate and settle claims for

losses arising out of the Saskatchewan rebellion of 188; also a statement of ail claims presented,
the amount paid in each case, aise ail claims presented and not entertained. Presented 20th June,

1899.-Mr. Davis................····.................. .................... Nt printed.

17, Return ta an order of the House of Commons, dated 17th May, 1899, for copies of ail instructions,

correspondence and reports, accounts and vouchers, for expenses connected with the expedition of

Chief Engineer Coste, of the department of public works, referred ta in the annual report of the

minister of marine and fisheries, 1898, page 7, and aise connected with the visit subsequently paid

to Eugland by Mr. Coste in the same year. Presented 20th June, 1899.-sir C. Hibbert Tupper.
Not printed.

138. Return (in part) te an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of ail

correspondence, telegrams and reports between the departments of militia and defence and justice

or their agents, and the following claimants for compensation and damages in respect of the erec-

tien of fortifications at Macaulay Point, British Columbia, viz.: Fred. Bell, J. Jardine, W. F.

Bullen, R. W. Reford, Henry Moss, William Moss, J. G. Tiarks, Charles Kent, Thornton Fell,

Andreas Keating (B. L. Ker), Hans Ogilvy Price, H. F. Bishop, S. J. Pitts, and any others that

May have presented claims in regard ta same. Presented 21st June, 1899.-Mr. Prior.
Not printed.

1 3 8a. Supplementary return to No. 138. Presented 29th June, 1899.................... ... Not printed.

19, Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of the reports of

Walter Shanly, C.E., and T. C. Keefer, C.E., in connection jwith the proposed large locks at

Iroquois and Farran's Point. Presented 23rd June, 1899.-Mr. Taylor..........Not prinUed.

140• Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for : 1. Statement of the

expenditure connected with the royal military college, Kingston, every year since its foundation.

2. Of the number of graduates in each year, and of their present place of residence and occupation,
as far as known to the college authorities. 3. Of ail general orders or regulations relating to the

employment of these graduates in the permanent corps, volunteers or other branches of the public

service. Presented 23rd June, 1899.-Mr. Casey..... .. ..... .............. .Not printed.

41. Return ta an order of the House of Commons, dated 18th April, 1898, for copies of ail instructions,

correspondence, etc., in relation ta the construction of wharfs at Mistassini and St. Méthode

(Tékouabé); a detailed statement showing the quantity of timber, iron and stone used in the said

works ; by whom the said articles were furnished ; the prices paid therefor ta each person ; the

names of the carpenters and framers employèd and the prices paid them per day and how much

was received in cash by them, as also by the day labourers who worked with then ; ail other

expenditure in relation to the said works; copies of ail correspondence in relation ta the contracta

awarded to Messrs. Têtu & Savard, of St. Félicien, for making timber for the St. Méthode wharf ;

copies of the said contracts and of ail further correspondence as to presenting payment of their

accounts; a statement of the quantity of timber prepared by them, and of the amount paid to

them personally. Copies of instructions issued to J. B. Carbonneau, chief carpenter at the Mis-

tassini and St. Méthode wharfs ; correspondence as to cancelling of his instructions at St. Méthode

and the appontment of r. chief carpenter in his place. Presented 26th June, 1899.-Mr. Casgrain.
Not printed.

142·1 Return ta an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, showing the amounts paid

ta each and ail persons who worked at the Roberval pier in 1896; the number of days worked ;

the prices paid ; the quantity of timber and iron furnished, and the prices paid therefor ; the

place where the same was obtained ; copies of ail instructions, correspondence, etc., in relation to

the said work. Presented 26th June, 1899.-Mr. Casgrain.........................Net printed.
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143. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 27th April, 1899, for a statement of sums paid
as travelling expenses to the judges of the superior court for the province of Quebec coming from
outside districts to sit in the city of Montreal. 1. From the 1st of January, 1898, up to the
coming into force of the statute 61 Victoria (Canada), chap. 52. 2. Since the coming into force of
said statute down to the lst of March, 1899. Presented 26th June, 1899.--Mr. Monk. Not printed.

144. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all tenders opened
the 14th day of May, 1897, for works on the Farran's Point canal, showing the prices of different
tenderers for each item and the approximate quantities upon which the tenders were extended,
also the lump sum of each tender. Presented 27th June, 1899.-Mr. Clancy ...... Not printed.

145. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th February, 1898, for correspondence and
reports respecting increased wharf accommodation at Pictou, Nova Scotia, in 1892 and since.
Presented 28th June, 1899. -Sir C. HIbbert Tupper .. ........................... Not printed.

146. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all reports of any
survey held during 1897 or 1898 of Neufrage Pond, King's county, Prince Edward Island. Pre-
sented 28th June, 1899.-Mr. Macdonald (King's)............................ ..... Not printed.

147. Return to an order of the louse of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, for copies of ail unexpired
leases and unexpired renewals and modifications of leases, and of al papers and plans relating
thereto of all water lots, water power and hydraulic privileges in and along that portion of the
river Ottawa and its various channels within the city of Ottawa, from the westerly boundary of
the said city to the line of Kent street, produced into the Ottawa river, and commonly known as
the Chaudière, issued by the government to any person, persons or company, and for plans show-
ing the position of such water lots, water power and hydraulic privileges. Also for a statement of
the amount of power each lessee is entitled to use, and the date of the termination of the lease
under which he is entitled to ùse it. Presented 28th June, 1899.-Mr. Copp ........ Not printed.

148. Certain correspondence relating to the franchise of the different provinces as the franchise for the
elections to the House of Commons. Presented (Senate) 27th June, 1899, by Hon. Mr. Mills.

Not printed .
149. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, giving the names of all the

weirs now under license in the county of Charlotte, in the province of New Brunswick, with loca-
tion of each, with date said licenses were issued, and with the name or names of the licensees of
said weirs ; also the names of all weirs licensed during 1898 that were not built and the names of
licensees of said weirs, and the number of years said licenses have been granted without weirp
having been built by such licensees. Presented 29th June, 1899.-Mr. aanong.... Not printed.

150. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, showing: 1. The canals and
river works therewith forming the connection between the great lakes and deep water navigation
at Montreal which were completed on lst July, 1896, the depth of water in each, and the cost of
each to that date. 2. The canals and connected river improvements which at that date were in
course of construction or enlargement, showing the work which had been done on each, the cost
to lst July of such construction or enlargement, and the estimated cost to complete the contracts
then existing and amount of each ; the new contracts made since lst July, 1896, covering work

other than that completed or under contract at that date and the amount of each. 3. The estim.
ated cost of completing these works to the proposed depth over and above the amounts involved
in contracts existing on lst July, 1896. Presented 29th June, 1899.-Mr Foster.... Not printed.

151. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th May, 1899, showing the number of con-
tracts entered into by the government since the 30th June, 1897, in which there is a clause
prohibiting " sweating "; the total amount involved in such contracts; the name of the respective
department in which these contracts have been awarded ; the names of the companies, or firms,
or individuals to which such contracts have been given. Presented 29th June, 1899. -Mr. Clarke.

Printed for sessional papers.
152. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 23rd March, 1899, showing: 1. The number of persons

in the employment of the post office department on the 30th of June, 1896, and the total amount
paid to said employees for the year ending said 30th June, 1896. 2. A similar returu giving the
same information for the year ending 30th June, 1898. 3. The number of employees in the said
service on the 12th day of July, 1896, and on the 16th February, 1899. Presented 20th June,
1899.-Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell.. . . .... ............................... .... Not printed.
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153. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 29th May, 1899, for copies of all orders in

council, applications, correspondence, papers, plans, etc., in the departments of interior and
marine and fisheries, respecting 37-29 acres or thereabouts of foreshore and tidal lands about two
miles below Steveston, British Columbia, situate west and inmediately adjoining section 9, range
7 west, block 3 north, N.W.D. Presented 30th June, 1899.-Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper.

Not printed .
154. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, showing: 1. The amount

paid in the province of Prince Edward Island since 1896 as fines for the infraction of the lobster
fishery regulations, the names of persons so fined, and the amount of the fine in each case. 2. A
detailed statement of the fines collected. 3. The disposition of those fines. 4. The cost of pro-
secution in each case. 5. The names of fishery officers receiving a share of such fines, and the
amount received in each by any officer. 6. The magistrate or other officer who tried such cases.
Presented 30th June, 1899.-Mr. Martin.......... ............................. Not printed.

155. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, for copies of ail correspon-
dence, petitions, reports, telegrams, etc., in connection with the proposed change of mail arrange-
ments for Grand View, in Prince Edward Island. Presented 4th July, 1899.-Mr. Martin.

Not printed.
156. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 19th April, 1899, for a statement showing: 1. What was

the total average amount paid to the Ottawa Gas Co., per annum, for lighting the various
government buildings during the two years ending 1898? 2. What is the total cost per annum,
by the present system of lighting? 3. Were tenders called for lighting the various buildings by
either gas or electricity ? To what company was the contract for lighting awarded ? 4. What is
the total number and power of incandescent electrie lights now installed in all the public buildings
in Ottawa, and cost of installation, including wiring ard all other apparatus ? 5. What was the
number and power of electric lights operated by the governroent electric light plant, and annual
cost of the same, during the two years ending 1898? 6. What jis the. original cost and present
value of all governmant electrical plant and boilers in the public buildings in Ottawa? How many
men are employed to operate them? 7. Were tenders called for the wiring of any or all the
government buildings in Ottawa and the supply of all electrical appliances necessary for the same ?
From whom were offers received and what were the respective amounts of such offers? 8. How
was the parliamentary appropriation of $75,000 for extending the government ligbting plant, and the
purchase of certain pumps for fire purposes, expended ? What are the items of such expenditure,
and to whom paid ? Presented 4th July, 1899.--Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell .. ...... Not printed.

157. Return to an order of the bouse of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, for copies of ail correspondence,
petitions, etc., in reference to the recent appointnent of a postmaster at Clifton, New London, in
the province of Prince Edward Island. Presented 10th July, 1899.-Mr. Martin.... Not printed.

158. Return to an ozder of the House of Commons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of specifications
and plans for the construction of deep water terminal facilities at St. John, N.B., including
wharfs, warehouses, elevators, tracks, etc., together with copies of tenders for the said works and
of any contracts entered into therefor. Presented 18th July, 1899. -8ir Charles Tupper.

Not printed.
159. Return to an address of the House of Cominons, dated 19th April, 1899, for copies of the contract

and specification in connection with the North Channel improvement, below Prescott, with copies
of any supplementary agreement or agreements entered into with the contractor ; also plans
showing the location on which the contract was let and the present location. Presented 18th July,
1899.- M r. Taylor .... ....................... ....................... ........ Not printed.

160. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 20th April, 1899, for all correspondAnce with the govern-
ment, or any member thereof, relating to the subject of the introduction of a prohibitory liquor
law by the government, together with all affidavits and other documents having relation to the
vote cast upon the question of prohibition on the 29th day of September, 1898, and the alleged
frauds in connection therewith. Presented 18th July, 1899.-Hon. Sir Mackenzie Bowell.

Not printed.
161. Return to an address of the Senate, dated the 21st June, 1899, for copies of all correspondence

between the department of agriculture, the Prince Edward Island Fruit Growers' Association and
the provincial premier, Hon. Mr. Farquharson, with reference to experiments in fruit culture now
being carried on in Prince Edward Island ; said correspondence to include all instructions to
Mr. Kinsman with reference to the nature of the work to be undertaken and the selection of
orchards for the purpose of carrying on said experiments. Presented 18th July, 18 99.-Hon. Mr.
Ferguson...... ... ........................ .....------ ------ ------........... N ot printed.
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162. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th June, 1899, for : 1. Copies of ail papers,
documents, correspondence, letters, etc., in connection with the appointment of Dr. Hall,
veterinary surgeon, of Quebec, for the purpose of inspecting cattle for the discovery of tuherculosis
at Hébertville or elsewhere in the county of Chicoutimi. 2. In connection with any part of said
work done by his brother. 3. Statement of the nuinber of herds which he or his brother
examined. 4. Statement of sums of noney paid for such inspection, travelling expenses, carters,
aids or assistants. 5. Statement of any sun or sums paid to David Ouellet, of Hébertville, in
connection with said inspection. Presented l9th July, 1899.-Mr. Oasgrain.........Not printed.

162a. Supplementary return to No. 162. Presented 26th July, 1899...................Not printed.

163. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 26th June, 1899, for a copy of the final
estimate or settlement of section number three (3) of the Lachine canal enlargement of 1875-1880
in detail. Presented 20th July, 1899.-Mr. McInerncy ....... ........ .......... Not printed.

163a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th June, 1899, for copies of the plans and
profiles of the substructures of the highway and railroad bridges across the Lachine canal at Wel-
lington street, Montreal, the dimensions to be in figures, also esometrical projections of the pivot
and rest piers (àbutments), showing the figured dimensions and elevations of the several parts,
including turntable, circular girder, wheels and machinery. Presented 20th July, 1899.-Mr
M cInerney .................................... ....... . .. .................. Not printed.

163b. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 26th June, 1899, for a copy of the report of
the royal commission appointed to inquire into the construction of the Wellington street and
Grand Truuk bridges across the Lachine canal at Montreal. Presented 29th July, 1899.-Mr.
M cInerney..... .... ............. ............................ ....... ......... Not printed.

164. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th March, 1898, showing: 1. How many
were employed on the dredge "Prince Edward " as caretakers or otherwise since she went into
winter quarters at the end of last season. 2. How many were employed during the winter 1896-97.
3. How many cubi* yards were removed by dredge "Prince Edward " during the seasons of 1896
and 1897 respectively, and the cost per cubic yard each season. 4. The number of days the dredge
" Prince Edward " was doing actual work in each month during the seasons of 1896 and 1897
respectively. 5. The cost of repairs for the dredge "Prince Edward" for the years ending
31st December, 1896 and 1897 respectively. Also ail correspondence in connection with the dis-
missal of John N. Macdonald from dredge " Prince Edward," and the appointment of his suc-
cessor. Presented 22nd July, 1899.-Mr. Macdonald (King's). .......... ........ .Not printed.

165. Return to an address of the Senate, dated 25th April, 1899, for: 1. The number of acres of land
set apart for the purpose of education in the province of Manitoba and in the North-west Terri-
tories, respectively, under the authority of chapter 54, Revised Statutes of Canada, section 23.
2. The number of acres sold in Manitoba and the North-west Territories, the amount received in
payment therefor, and the amount now due thereon. 3. The total sum now at the credit of said
fund held by the dominion of Canada, how invested, and the rate of interest paid thereon. 4. The
amount advanced out of said principal sum in aid of education in the province of Manitoba and
the North-w.est Territories. 5. The sum recouped to the said principal out of the proceeds of the
sale of lands set appear for the purpose of education, and the amount now due to the said principal
sum. 6. And ail correspondence relating to any further advances out of said school fund, either
to Manitoba or the North-west Territories. Presented 26th July, 1899.-Hon. Sir Mackenzie
Bowell.......... ... . . . ..................................... ........ Not printed.

166. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 19th June, 1899, for a copy of ail corres-
pondence between the government and tne boards of trade of the Dominion in regard to the
passage of an insolvency law. Presented 31st July, 1899.-Mr. Monk............. Not printed.

167. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 31st July, 1899, for a statement of the amounts
paid for medical attendarce and medicines for Indians in the electoral district of Yale and Cariboo
during the years 1896-7, 1897-8 and 1898-9, showing to whom payments were made and amounts
paid to each. Presented 31st July, 1899.-Hon. C. Sifton .......... ... .. ..... Not printed.

168. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 25th April, 1898, for: 1. Copies of ail tenders
in 1897 for the supply of drugs to the North-west mounted police at Prince Albert and Battleford,
and the name of the successful tenderer and a copy of the contract. 2. Copies of ahl tenders for
the supply of drugs to the mounted police at Prince Albert and Battleford, for the year 1898 ; the
name of the successful tenderer, and a copy of the contract. Presented 7th August, 1899.-Mr.
Davin...... .......... .......................................... Not printed.
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169. Return to an order of the House of Cominons, dated 8th August, 1899, for copy of correspondence
in relation to the suit Esquimalt and Nanaino Railway Company, versus the New Vancouver
Coal Company, as to the ownership of the coal underlying Nanaimo harbour. Presented Sth
August, 1899.-Hon. . Sifton......... ............................ .Not printed.

170, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 25th July, 1899, for a copy of the report of the
hon. the minister of justice, on which the order in council was passed for the discharge from
prison of J. K. Skelton and T. Dewan, tried and convicted of perjury before Mr. Justice Wetmore,
at Battleford, October, 1897, and subsequently sentenced to a term of imprisonment ; also copy of
affidavits supporting the application for the discharge of the aforesaid Skelton and Dewan.
-Presented Sth August, 1899.-Mr. Davin..........................................Not printed.

171. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for : (a) Copy of all corres-
pondence or orders in council relating to the entering into an agreement by the government, or
department of railways and canals, for the operating by the same of the Baie des Chaleurs
Railway during the fiscal year 1896, and a copy of the contract governing the same. (b) A state-
ment containing the period during which the road was so operated, also the total expenses directly
or indirectly connected with such operation, and the total revenue derived from the same.
Presented 8th August, 1899.-Mr. Bergeron ........... ............... . . Not printed.

172. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 24th April, 1899, for: (a) Copy of tenders
for the letting of sections four, five, six and seven of the Soulanges canal; also .a copy of
advertisement for the same, and a statement of tenders moneyed out. (b) Copy of tenders for the
reletting of sections four, five, six and seven of the Soulanges canal; also a copy of advertisement
for same, and a statement of tenders moneyed out. (c) Copy of all correspondence or orders in

council directly or indirectly relating to the letting or the reletting of the above sections. Presented
8th August, 1899.-Mr. Bergeron ............................. ......... Not printed.

173. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th August, 1899, for copy of correspondence
relative to the question of reducing the dock charges at Esquimalt dry dock. Presented 8th
August, 1899.-Hon. W. S. Fielding ..... ............ ................. Not printed.

174. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 10th July, 1899, for copy of all papers in
connytion with the applications made for, and the consideration of the commutation of the
sentence of death on Marion Brown for murder. Presented 9th August, 1899.-Mr. Wallace.

Not printed.

175. Return to an address of the House of Commons, dated 8th May, 1899, for copies of all cablegrams,
papers, correspondence and despatches or other writing upon which the right honourable the prime
minister of Canada based the statement in the house of commons on loth June, 1898, as follows :
" I have the authority of the secretary of state for the colonies to state that he approves of the
principles on which the governor general acted, as based on the facts set forth in the letter of his
excellency to Sir Charles Tupper." Presented 1lth August, 1899.-Sir Charles Tupper.

Not printed.
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OFFICE OF THE CLERK OF THE CROWN IN CHANCERY, CANADA.

OTTAWA, January 2nd, 1899.

To the Right Honourable

Sir WILFRID LAURIER, G.C.M.G.,
Premier and President of the Privy Council.

SiR,-I have the honour to submit, my report on the plebiscite held on the 29th of

September last, relative to the prohibition of alcoholic liquors in the Dominion of
Canada.

I would state that in obedience to the instructions contained in the proclamation

of His Excellency the Governor General, dated the 4th day of August last, issued under
authority of section 4, chapter 51 of 61 Victoria, the writs for taking the plebiscite

on the prohibition question were issued on the 5th day of August, and Thursday, the
29th of September following, was fixed as the day for voting; the writs being made

returnable on the 3rd day of November following. The writs when sent to the re-
turning officers were accompanied by letters containing full instructions for their guidance
in the discharge of their duties; and in order to facilitate and insure a uniform procedure
on their part, such as with reference to the issue of the necessary proclamation, the
appointment of officers, and such other functions requiring the drawing up and the
execution of a document, a full set of such documents and of all the blank forms required
for their own use and that of their deputies, which had been prepared at this office and
printed at the governinent printing bureau, was sent to each of them.

As the voting on this question brought out the inauguration of the new franchise
law, its application was watched with some interest. A little difficulty was experienced
at first by some of the returning officers in procuring the voters' lists for their respec-
tive electoral districts, which districts vary very materially in their boundaries and areas
from those for provincial electoral purposes, for which the voters' lists when prepared
are made to conform; for instance, in some cases, an electoral district for Dominion
election purposes is made out of parts taken from as many as three and even four
different provincial electoral districts. Under ordinary circumstances this would have
proved very puzzling to any one not acquainted with the many changes in the boundaries
of those districts which have been made from time to time by parliament, but no serious
inconvenience arose out of it, however, as the trouble had been anticipated and each
returning officer had been supplied with a map showing clearly the boundaries of his
respective district.

In procuring the voters' lists, it was discovered that in many places their revision
had not been made for over a year previous to the date of the issue of the writs, thereby
making them ineligible for electoral purposes ; the government was inmediately
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BUREAU DU GREFFIER DE LA COURONNE EN CHANCELLERIE, CANADA.

OTTAWA, le 2 janvier 1899.

Au Très-honorable

Sir WILFRID LAURIER, G.C.M.G.,
Premier ministre et président du conseil privé.

MoNIEUR,-J'ai l'honneur de soumettre mon rapport sur l'appel fait au peuple le

29 septembre dernier, au sujet de la prohibition des boissons spiritueuses dans le

Dominion du Canada.

Conformément aux instructions que portait la proclamation de Son Excellence le

gouverneur général, datée le 4 août dernier et lancée sous l'autorité de l'article 4 du
chapitre 51 de la 61® Victoria, les brefs enjoignant de prendre le vote du peuple sur la
question de prohibition furent émis le 5 août, et le jeudi, 29e jour de septembre suivant,
fut fixé pour le scrutin, les brefs étant rapportables le 3 novembre suivant. Ces brefs
furent envoyés aux scrutateurs officiels accompagnés de lettres leur communiquant d'am-

Ples instructions sur lesquelles se guider dans l'accomplissement de leurs devoirs; et
afin de faciliter et assurer de leur part une manière de procéder uniforme--comme,
par exemple, à l'égard de la proclamation, de la nomination des officiers, et des autres
fonctions demandant la rédaction et la signature d'un document-il fut envoyé à
chacun d'eux une collection complète de tels documents et de toutes les formules en
blanc voulues pour leur usage et celui de leurs adjoints, lesquelles formules avaient été
dressées à ce bureau et imprimées à l'imprimerie nationale.

Comme la nouvelle loi électorale se trouvait à être appliquée pour la première fois à
loccasion du scrutin sur cette question, son fonctionnement fut observé avec quelque
intérêt. Certains des scrutateurs officiels eurent d'abord un peu de peine à se
Procurer la liste des électeurs pour leurs districts respectifs, qui dans leurs limites et
leur étendue diffèrent beaucoup des circonscriptions électorales provinciales, auxquelles

lon fait en sorte que les listes d'électeurs s'adaptent quand on les prépare; il arrive, par
exemple, qu'un district délimité pour les fins d'élections fédérales se compose parfois de
portions retranchées de trois et même quatre différentes circonscriptions électorales
provinciales. Dans des circonstances ordinaires cela aurait fort embarrassé quiconque
n'aurait pas été au fait des nombreux changements apportés de temps à autre aux
limites de ces districts par le parlement, mais il n'en est résulté aucun inconvénient
grave, attendu que la difficulté avait été prévue et que chaque scrutateur officiel avait

été pourvu d'une carte géographique indiquant clairement les limites de son district
respectif.

En se procurant les listes d'électeurs, on s'aperçut que dans beaucoup de localités la
revision n'en avait pas été faite depuis plus d'un an avant la date de l'émission des brefs,
ce qui les rendait impropres aux fins d'élection. Cette défectuosité fut immédiatement
Portée à la connaissance du gouvernement pour qu'il y fît remédier, mais après mûr
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apprised of this deficiency in order to have it remedied, but after due consideration it

was deemed that the period of time remaining between then and the day of voting was
too short to permit of a revision being made under the provisions of section 9 of the

Franchise Act; the voting had therefore to take place in such cases on the lists which

were last in force, which was done. In the province of Manitoba, the voters' lists had

not been revised since 1895, while in some places in the provinces of Ontario and
Quebec and in a few polling divisions in the lower provinces, the lists of 1897 had to

be used. It might here be stated, in explanation of the course pursued with regard to

the use of the voters' lists above referred to, that while in the niatter of an election of
a member to the House of Commons, the Franchise Act provides that the voters' lists to
be used at such an election shall not be over one year old since last revised, on the
other hand, for the purpose of taking the plebiscite, the Prohibition Plebiscite Act pro-
vides that "the same proceedings, as near as may be, shall be had as in the case
of a Dominion general election "; the foregoing words in italics would appear to offer
sufficient latitude to warrant the use, under the existing circumstances, of the voters'
lists which served at the plebiscite.

Another matter to which the attention of this office was called, was the exceptional
position held by the electors of the city of Saint John, N.B., in connection with the
voting on this question. Under the Dominion Representation Act to the House of
Commons, the electors of the city of Saint John can vote in two separate electoral dis-
tricts, but for two distinct mem bers, however, to wit :-in the electoral district of " The
city of Saint John," and in that of " The city and county of Saint John." It was
thought that on the question of prohibition the voting should take place on the prin-
ciple of one man one vote only, hence the question raised; but after consulting with the
Department of Justice, it was decided to allow the vcting to take place according to the
provisions of section 6 of the Prohibition Plebiscite Act, i.e., as in the case of a Dominion
general election. Under this ruhng, owing to the peculiarity of the law (peculiar only
in so far as it affected the voting on this particular question, for which it was not
framed), the electors of the city of Saint John who voted on this question, with few
exceptions, voted twice for one and the same thing. As the majority of the
votes cast in favour of prohibition in the city of Saint John was 1,485, it is reasonable
to suppose that nearly the same majority obtained from the same source in the
electoral district of " The city and county of Saint John," judging from a comparison
made of the recapitulation tables of the votes cast in both of those districts, which are
almost identical.

That the voting appears to have taken place very quietly throughout the country
is borne ont by the fact that no adverse report bas been received at this office from any
one of the returning officers ; on the contrary, soine of them took occasion to mention
the complete apathy shown by the electors on the question at issue, which was fully
confirmed by the smallness of the vote polled, as compaied with the vote polled at each
one of the .last three general elections, a comparison with which will be found further
on.

Errors occurred on the part of the deputy returning officeis as is always the case
on the occasion of a general election, most of which were rectified, however, while
those which were not would only affect the general result of the voting by a few hun-
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examen il fut jugé que le temps qu'il restait à s'écouler avant le jour du scrutin était
trop court pour qu'on pût faire une revision conforme aux dispositions de l'article 9
de l'Acte du cen électoral ; il fallait donc, dans cei cas, que le vote fût pris sur les listes
précédemment en vigueur, ce qui fut fait. Dans la province du Manitoba les listes
d'électeurs n'avaient pas été revisées depuis 1895, tandis que dans certaines localités des
provinces d'Ontario et de Québec, ainsi que dans quelques divisions de votation des
provinces maritimes il fallut se servir des listes de 1897. Il est bon de dire ici, pour
expliquer la ligne de conduite suivie relativement à l'emploi des listes d'électeurs sus-
Mentionnées, que si, d'un côté, l'Acte du cens électoral dispose que pour l'élection d'un
député à la Chambre des Communes les listes d'électeurs à employer dans cette élection ne
doivent pas avoir plus d'un an d'existence à compter de la dernière revision, d'un autre côté,
Pour les fins du plébiscite, l'Acte du plébiscite de prohibition porte que " les procédures seront
autant que possible les mêmes que celles qui sont suivies dans le cas d'une élection fédérale ";
les 'ots en italiques qui précèdent en dernier lieu sembleraient laisser assez de latitude
Pour autoriser l'emploi, dans les circonstances, des listes d'électeurs qui ont servi au
Plébiscite.

Une autre chose sur laquelle on a appelé l'attention de ce bureau a été la position
exceptionnelle qu'occupaient les électeurs de la cité de Saint-Jean, N.-B., relativement
au scrutin sur cette question. Aux termes de l'Acte de la représentation fédérale à la
Chambre des Communes, les électeurs de la cité de Saint-Jean peuvent voter dans deux
districts électoraux séparés, mais pour deux membres distincts toutefois, savoir: dans le
district électoral de la " cité de Saint-Jean" et dans celui " de la cité et du comté de
Sant-Jean." On pensait que sur la question de prohibition le même votant ne pouvait
donner qu'une seule voix: de là la question soulevée. Mais après consultation avec le
département de la Justice, il fut décidé de laisser prendre le vote suivant les dispositions
de l'article 6 de l'Acte du plébiscite de prohibition, c'est-à-dire comme dans le cas d'une
élection générale fédérale. A là faveur de cette décision, grâce à la singularité de la loi
(singulière seulement en tant qu'elle affectait le scrutin sur cette question particulière, pour
laquelle elle n'avait pas été faite), les électeurs de la cité de Saint-Jean qui se sont pro-
noncés sur cette question ont, à peu d'exceptions près, voté deux fois sur une unique et
mê1èMe chose. Comme la majorité de voix donnée en faveur de la prohibition dans la cité de
Saint-Jean a été de 1,485, il est raisonnable de supposer qu'à peu près la même majorité
est venue de la même source dans le district électoral " de la cité et du comté de Saint-
Jean"). à en juger par la comparaison des tableaux de récapitulation des voix
données dans les deux districts, lesquels sont presque les mêmes.

Que le scrutin paraisse avoir eu lieu très paisiblement dans tout le pays, c'est ce que
montre le fait qu'aucun des scrutateurs officiels ne m'a envoyé de rapport à ce contraire;
loin de là, certains d'entre eux n'ont pas manqué de parler de la complète indifférence
télmoignée par les électeurs à l'égard de la question en litige, chose qui fut amplement
Confirmée par la faiblesse du vote donné, en comparaison du vote recueilli à chacune des
trois dernières élections générales, comparaison que l'on trouvera plus bas.

Comme il arrive toujours à l'occasion d'une élection générale, des scrutateurs cfficiels
ont commis des erreurs, dont la plupart ont toutefois été rectifiées, tandis que celles qui
ne l'ont pas été n'affecteraient que de quelques centaines de votes le résultat, général du
scrutin, et cela, autant qu'on le sache, en faveur du parti opposé à la prohibition.

par exemple, dans le district électoral de Richmond, Nouvelle-Ecosse, la transposition
des nombres de voix donnés pour et contre la prohibition dans une division de votation
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dred votes, and so far as known, in favour of the side opposed to prohibition; for
instance, in the electoral district of Richmond, in Nova Scotia, the transposition of
the numbers of votes cast for and against prohibition in one polling division makes it
appear that a majority of 28 votes was cast in opposition to prohibition, whereas if the
figures had been placed in their proper columns, a majority of 36 votes would appear
in favour of prohibition in that electoral district, or a difference of 64 votes in favour
of prohibition. On the other hand, in the electoral district of Three Rivers and St.
Maurice, in the province of Quebec, the transposition of the number of votes cast for
and against prohibition in two polling divisions makes it appear that a majority of
1,032 votes was cast in opposition to prohibition, whereas had the figures been placed
in their proper and respecti.ve columns, the majority would have been 1,324, or a
difference of 292 votes in favour of the side opposed to prohibition.

Most of the reports of the returning officers were received at this office in good
time, but in many cases their publication in the Canada Gazette had to be deferred
owing to clerical errors and omissions which could only be corrcted by those officers
personally. As regards the apparent delay in getting complete returns of the result of
the voting, with one or two exceptions, the delay was not due to the negligence of the
returning officers, but to natural causes which could not be controlled, for it must te
borne in mind that several electoral districts cover such enormous areas of country,
some parts of which are so very difficult of access, that it is simply impossible to obtain
the returns from those districts any sooner than they have been ; if we take the case
of the electoral district of Burrard, British Columbia, for instance, we find that the
returning officer did not corne in possession of the result of the voting at one of the
polling divisions till the latter part of December, some three months after the voting
took place.

The result of the plebiscite is shown on the recapitulation table which will be found
on the last page of the tabulated statement of the polis which accompanies this report.
By that table it will be seen that the total number of votes cast and accepted in favour
of prohibition was 278,487, while the total amount of votes cast and accepted in oppo-
sition to prohibition was 264,571, showing an apparent majority of 13,916 votes in
favour of prohibition. Out of this amount, however, should be deducted the majority
of the votes counted in favour of prohibition, resulting f rom the double vote cast by the
electors of the city of St. John, N. B., hereinbefore referred to, i e., 1,485, say 1,400 ;.
also, the amount resulting from the corrections which should be made of the clerical
errors which occurred in the electoral districts of West Durham, South Oxford and
Prince Edward, in the province of Ontario; Hochelaga, Témiscouata, and Three Rivers
and St. Maurice, in the province of Quebec; Carleton, St. John City and County, and
St. John City, in the province of New Brunswick, and Richmond, in the province of
Nova Scotia, amounting in all to 230 votes against prohibition, making a total of 1,630
votes, which would reduce the majority of votes cast in favour of prohibition to 12,286.
Taking the number of votes cast and accepted in favour of prohibition, as reported by the
returning officers, i.e., 278,487, and comparing it with the number of voters reported to be

on the voters' lists, i.e., 1,236,419, it is found to amount to less than 22 per cent, or a
trifle over - of the electorate. Again taking the amount of the votes cast and accepted
both in favour and in opposition to prohibition, i.e., 543,058, and comparing it with the
number of voters on the voters' lists, i.e., 1,236,419, it is found to amount to only
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fait voir qu'une majorité de 28 voix a été donnée contre la prohibition, tandis que si les
chiffres avaient été mis dans leurs colonnes o e district électoral se trouverait avoir
donné 36 voix de majorité en sa faveur, ce qui ferait une différence de 64 voix pour la
prohibition. Par contre, dans le district électoral de Trois-Rivières et Saint-Maurice,
province de Québec, la transposition des nombres de voix donnés pour et contre la prohi-
bition dans deux divisions de votation est cause qu'une majorité de 1,032 voix paraît
avoir été donnée contre la prohibition, tandis que si les chiffres avaient été mis dans
leurs colonnes propres et rempectives ils auraient accusé une majorité de 1,324, soit une
différence de 292 voix, en faveur du parti opposé à la pçohibition.

La plupart des rapports des scrutateurs officiels ont été reçus à ce bureau en temps
opportun, mais dans beaucoup de cas il a fallu en diférer la publication dans la gazette
officielle à cause d'erreurs et d'omissions de çqpistes que seuls les scrutateurs pouvaient
rectifier eux-mêmes. Pour ce qui est de l'apparent retard apporté au rassemblement
d'états complets du résultat du scrutin, à une ou doux exceptions près ce retard n'a pas
été dû à la négligence des scrutateurs officiels, mais à des causes naturelles qu'il était
impossible de contrôler ; car il ne faut pas oublier que plusieurs districts électoraux
embrassent de telles immenses étendues de pays-dont certaines portions sont d'un accès
si difficile- qu'il est tout simplement impossible de se procurer les résultats pour ces
districts plus vite que nous ne les avons eus. Si nous prenons, par exemple, le district
électoral de Burrard, dans la Colombie-Britannique, nous voyons qui le scrutateur officiel
n'est venu en possession du résultat du scrutin à l'une des divisions dé votation que vers
la fin de décembre, soit trois mois après qu'on eut recueilli les votes.

Le résultat du plébiscite figure au tableau récapitulatif qu'on trouvera à lacernière
Page de la liste des bureaux de scrutin dont le présent rapport est acoompeggé. Ce
tableau fera voir que le nombre total des voix don»ées et acceptées en favepr de la pro-
hibition f été de 278,487, tan4is que le nombçe total des voix don»ées et accep4Ses en
OPposition à la prohibition a,été de 264,571, çe qui accuse une apparente majorité de
13,91b voix pour la prohibition. De ce monnt, tçutefois, doit être déduite la
ma jorité de voix cmptée en faveur de la prohibi4on par suite du double vote
des éleqteurs de la cité de Sintjean, N.-B., ainsi qqe ci-desus me tionn, c'est
dire 1,485-disons 1,400; aussi, la mNor,ité résulugt de rectications qui devraient
être faites des erreurs de copistes qui se sont pmodyiMes dans les districts électçraux de
Durham-Ouest, Oxford-Sud et Prince-Edouard, dans la province d'Ontario; Hochelaga,
Témiscouata et Trois-Rivières et Sai»tXIurice, dans la province de Québec; Carleton,
cité et comté de SaintJean et cité de Saint-Jean, dans la province du Nouveau-Bruns-
wick, et Richmond, dans la province de la Nouvelje-Ecosse, formant un montant de 230
votes contre la prohibition, ce qui fait un total de 1,630 voix qui réduirait à 12,286 la
majorité de voix donnée en faveur de la prohibition.

Si l'on prend le nombre de voix donné et accepté en faveur de la prohibition, tel
que représenté par les scrutateurs officiels, savoir 278,487, et qu'on le compare avec le
nombre d'électeurs que portaient les listes, c'est-à-dire 1,236,419, on voit qu'il s'élève à
Moins de 22- pour 100, soit à un petit peu plus d'un cinquième, de la masse des électeurs.
D'un autre côté, si l'on prend le nombre total des voix données et acceptées pour et
contre la prohibition-543,058, et qu'on le compare avec le nombre des électeurs inscrits
Sur les listes-1,236,419, on voit qu'il s'élève à 44 pour 100 seulement, soit à beaucoup
Moins que la moitié du nombre total des électeurs.
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44 per cent or much less than j of the electorate. Now, by comparing the number of
votes cast and accepted at the Prohibition Plebiscite with the number of votes cast and
accepted at each one of the three general elections, we find as follows, viz.:-

In 1898-The total number of votes cast and accepted at
the Prohibition Plebiscite was... . . ............. 543,058

In 1887-The total number of votes cast and accepted at
the general elections, irrespective of eight electoral
districts in which members were returned by accla-
mation was .................................. 708,630

(Or 30. more than at the Prohibition Plebiscite.)

In 1891-The total number of votes cast and accepted at
the general elections, irrespective of eight electoral
districts in which members were returned by accla-
mation was.,................................ 720,500

(Or 33. more than at the Prohibition Plebiscite.)

In 1896-The total number of votes cast and accepted at
the general elections, irrespective of four electoral
districts in which members were returned by accla-
mation was................ ................... 835,600

(Or 54o. more than at the Prohibition Plebiscite.)

But it should be borne in mind however, that the voters' lists which served at the
Prohibition Plebiscite in 1898 show 300,000 more voters thereon than the lists which
served at the general elections of 1887, and 200,000 more voters than the lists which
were used at the general elections of 1891,-so that taking this into consideration and
the further fact that 8 electoral districts which returned members by acclamation are
not included in the above computations, the number of votes cast and accepted at each
one of those two elections instead of being respectively 30 and 33%. greater was over
50. greater than that which was cast at the Prohibition Plebiscite. The figures used
in making the foregoing comparisons were taken from the returns made to the House
of Commons of the 6th, 7th and 8th General Elections.

Very respectfully, your obedient servant,

SAMUEL E. ST. O. CHAPLEAU,

Clerk of the Crown in Chancery for Canada
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Maintenant, si nous comparons le nombre des voix données et acceptées au plébi s
cite de prohibition avec le nombre des voix données et acceptées à chacune des trois
élections générales, nous obtenons le résultat suivant, savoir:-

En 1898-Nombre total des voix données et acceptées au
plébiscite de prohibition . ........................ 543,058

En 18 87-Nombre total des voix données et acceptées aux
élections générales abstraction faite de huit districts
électoraux qui ont élu des députés par acclamation... . 708,630

(Soit 30% de plus qu'au plébiscite de prohibition.)

En 1891-Nombre total des voix données et acceptées aux
élections générales, abstraction faite de huit districts
électoraux qui ont élu des députés par acclamation.. . 720,500

(Soit 3.1% de plus qu'au plébiscite de prohibition.)
En 18 9 6 -Nombre total des voix données et acceptées aux

élections générales, abstraction faite de quatre districts
électoraux qui ont élu des députés par acclamation..... 835,600

(Soit 54; de plus qu'au plébiscite de prohibition.)

Mais il ne faut pas perdre de vue, toutefois, que les listes d'électeurs qui ont servi
au Plébiscite de prohibition en 1898 portent 300,000 et 200,000 noms de plus que celles
qui ont servi aux élections générales de 1887 et de 1891, respectivement,-de sorte quesi l'on tient compte de ceci et aussi de ce que huit districts électoraux dont les députés
ont été élus par acclamation ne sont pas compris dans les calculs ci-dessus, le nombre de
voix donné et accepté à chacune de ces deux élections, au lieu d'être respectivement de
30 et 33% plus grand que celui qui a été donné au plébiscite de prohibibition, l'a été de
plus de 50 pour cent. Les chiffres dont je me sers pour faire les comparaisons qui
précèdent Ont été tirés des résultats des 6", 7e et 8e élections générales tels que présentés
à la Chambre des Communes.

Très respectueusement,

Votre obéissant serviteur,

SAMUEL E. ST.-O. CHAPLEAU,

Greffier de la Couronne en chancellerie pour le Canada.
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ERRATA

On page 87, in the column of remarks, in lieu of 5,870 read 5,932.
89, il 3,165 i 3,185.

154, , 2,216 should be ignored.
185, in the line of totals, in lieu of 1,305 read 1,315.
216, in the column of remarks, in lieu of 2,275 read 2,276.

ERRATA

A la page 87, dans la colonne des observations, au lieu de 5,870 lisez 5,932.
89, il 3,165 i 3,185,

154, 2,216 devrait être rejeté.
185, dans la ligne des totaux, au lieu de 1,305 lisez 1,315.
216, dans la colonne des observations, au lieu de 2,275 lisez 2,276.

62Victoria A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscita

ONTARIO

0-qi



62 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

z

umoiqs st,- Çouanlllsuoa qoua tu uoilndoj -

Wjumi RpU.u-D mnbv'ij go gtiaîal goweo

- *UOl mgÇJ oî!.to ut atIr

CD siaoA pasiAaUJ eip uo siloA jo .ýqtuitiK

o
"-e

-siofllt pepods jo ia)qiun~ 'Z :,~
4ava? o1Mîlflnq ap a.LqiUOJO .qc

-uOipa, ap lu.-Ilis00puo.i.t
qnInnp Ruup guiop Ra»oa Rep pDJoI a.&qtUOg r$

iloice ui pallod sajoA UO10I iýuO

opqo.DI In~quoi p uozl -

~ ~y.i.J~ ~dUOb9cq
R?UUOP saîO P p qLN -iqTqoJ sut0p

uoî~!qiqoJJ !qif qsuit.8V, t--

ýsuniR2i Put Joj 110S -!(I!oid V2 no

i PjIU'd sajoA jo jP-"'uN uoý xtJ lxog

r- --

o................................~C5.

h
h

z

H o
M

k
H jt

~
Q

:1

ADDINGTON.

pý
Ca

P-4

ý2 î l"I'. ý2 p 14 e 9 1281-- er>ý
r-4 r-1 ".4 r--ý -4 --ý r-i r-1 -q r-4 r-1 r-4 -1 r-1



Prohibition Plebiscite.

4 g2 - -S co#

Ct 0

sz:. .0~

: E : : .:, M.> : :, :,1 : :e :0 M :::: o - m :

.2 8 - . o . . . . . ® . .8 .e .

:e.- >

.e -go -:.7

ADDI8TON

A DDINGTON,
(Continued-Suite).

5

:~ ~ ~



62 Victoria Semional Papers (No. 20.)

î5m

ojdvp ~ 1 2iln blo abyapUZItd«

umis ouanl!lsuoo M0128 Hi uoi12Il cod

.Uotp4oa qp
2wytssi v..t aiibrnp suDp Ran aIopp 89
a9eaa.t aIir.i P~.2 n îau Rtncgîonpp a.quog 1 cq

âUOIeIAIU qaal1ux WîqUt
&

9 1 9
I

0
A P081A91Ù *94 UÔ 9JOA jo *LINI ---. . , e-

*9afla sut SUZllq ip;).tqutogT

ofl11t ploOds jo jzqn
9fl4Jv39 suýp2jnq pp a.qu40 f*

e~~o~j~ .vpÇ . .o ........

inbvqa flnDp gauuop sno sOé p 2MMO q.«pog C,7 r- C r- -i cn C. - C-. Cf -

t49e U' PEîlod SGWA JP1n moi
tiOýzqýyo.&i VI 1.qUOi Ilao

itnod uoilvlon Pp ;uywu vpo.dva&uo
-etplL.&v anb"nj Ruvp-
geUUp RaIoa ap a.6quwN

ist, u aJO; Uois -IQIYo1c vl ino

p1 o% SGIA 10 iv>qmni 1 uoiýqtqojJO

tý - ýPmt- 1ie"i c

ce4

43

ce
M..I
CD

0

P4

P4

I

0,

*14

CD
e.

j

.<

ALGOMA.

&. 1899

1.4
P4

E-

12
12

z
O

1

cq " t- -4 CD t- t- t- e " 00
m P-4 e- = r-4 t- S t- t- "



Prohibition Plebiscita,

o - co -o M *0 e t -
- ct-

* . . . . . . . - . . . . . .. . ... .- .. 4 . - . - * . . . 4- .

.* 
. 0

. . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . - .

1=-tt--t

A-

ALGOMA,
(Continued-Suite.)

7



62 Victoria

8.4

P-4

O

8.4

4G)

'-4

o4

0

0

Pd
o

Session.al Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

z

o

9.&dvp I77IO?0? PdafloD Pnb1/a ap U*O?ldJoj

*snsuD q«I 9qq £q
UAmo1{8 Sv Çouànll4suoo qova ut uolý1ndOd _____________________

pgî~tggzpuo4i.v -nbvyo 8U7Jp RÀoflvnp Rep m~ oc el -

*UOISIAIfl ýSui11o1 qzm1 ut isilJ
98&4A~o PQs1AO'1J O14ý 110 *wjaýA 30 ja1UIfN -. -- ____________

. . . el

_____ siouIvpolods j0 jaequnN

9JMÎÀ)O? oUtiojflq op 9.qw

-illv paip4faa jo a,:quiu

1{089 Ut PaI0d Sa
0 A JO 'àCUnN moi~

.Ànoti uot2vîo.t ap JUMtIu MtyoJd vl eifuo
*81p1Lo.i.tv fllbVl gup

S7w op o, iJap a.*qqgog qqw

-uoili*lqo,3
.tAItq 2uiI1l 0a {v8 Ut
PafIod s,ýoA jovaq1xÙ,- uoîiqq.q.o

zo

. . ... .. .. .

S......

ALGOMA,
(Continued-Suite.

.~ :~
O *.~
11 .~ oi C)



Prohibition Plebiscite.

tZ C ce. t 

t- c $

te *

c0

- oi

ALGOMA,
Ootttiftued-suite).



62 Victoria Sessional Pa.pers (No. 20.)A.89

0.'

JE RdvipIolp7DV j93illibni ap lLotîDpmIoj

.fsuoa() isv ç)q iq
Co umoqs S oueOfls~uoC qava ui uoi wîndo4Ul

ruatapogzpuoii.D Pn" tuvgD aýe tom~p =Min=

go 110UOIM ui jUfoj qava ut
42l3t42~fw .1 .41W

-________ 'siofllg pal!ods. jo jaquTnX

A ».M. ip pLaaplgtwau v o i'.'1cL
anbDya 

1
R'vp PUUOP geeOàa p îflo3 e.qaogi -n Ln L.- ~ t- t-

ilow9 UT paîod 8;)o e0
- 1 A JO loOJd1 »j -ul'a

O PUOpýyj 01o ~P &ýquo uoIq

d &o wn ffka

I P-4 
9 0 AJ Juoilq UNm .oiq o1 --

le ~ ~ ~ -pu% -. JO kfis U0îS

z Iz

z

o z
0- 1
P4l 0LPl

z
O ~ 0

o o

g4I BOTHWELL.



Prohibition Plebiseite,

I ~-

tauL'

Cà t- -44?* . 4

&c' lc

i% la

a ýpm

I I

77

Z-1-

't

4

BOTHWELL,
(Continued-Suite).

g

--ýl
BRANT, S. R.



62 Victoria Soeional Papers (No. 20.)

umoqs8-8 Suall7uoo i>lbD2j ut 1101)0 iidoj

PWýý.topq M ns geVut st1ne7j119 p 1LqutON .q

C
8SIGIOA Pe1!A;)S Jql u(l fl s.nO .0 . .

*9 o
0 111f poa(0J Io jý>quinK7

,gby sp puuop gaOi so t-O t-qoA

qat, PuII 9
alo sA JO .I9OIUtN 1'610,L

-Rtpu04.lin wibinqo OuDv

s?U1LOP Opa o~lp Ptqmg iqtA .

muoitqqJ uoz
isuîleâ pue .1o; uOIS - DqjoaI tnoj lè le9ý i--9Scc

_IAIUj 2UilO ol 9 Utv -

P:;IMlo fflA jo jaqmnN *UOi!q4oJd j

2

- r M

1~

o

K!
1-

2.

~

<~ .~ ,~

~

Q

BRANT, S. R.,
(Continued -Suite).

L. 1899

cq



Prohibition Plebiscite

c. m 0

BO. L

. . . . ... 4. .. M

BRCVLE



62 Victoria

4

P$4

,0

$4
ce

o'

.0
e

0
.94

e

Sessional Papers (Nô. 20.) A.L 1899

oe5
z
o

H
Ho

s?.«vp vÀapl aloigybvqa p uoip4o

umoqs m» Souaeu!suoo lqo UT uoîý,andoj
Uo»ffla 2,P

ju»Àt9vR>uoLJ 9flbvva~ mt&vp siflîjap ia~p
,gpyt aý"2ISf 12) .*fl RîMpeut 2.tn1oeoelp m.qfflxO

-OOaI SUtUlod TpI UT ig!q
C1ufflA POiA$IU "~Il "10 luEm4A jo oqmnK

I -4-4
-4-4 ~ ~ -~ ~q

pa1îodmi jo .wqmnèz

mi7illng a p r>titgio

IvI poooa jo .... vm...

mnbuy sup suuop 82;oa sRp IMOl 0u&oqit

UtodqO/di uosi t- t- 00c
.ll oa ~P viewg ~ P2o 2.6>0 t- t- C0 mD~ It 0C G 00 e e

i p u o 4 4 n i b ma p P tt & i i p -ql o d I; u o

ýea -q pue *10J UO19 .iè4~~»> ~
-1 AIG 2UII0 4 U T Hi y-i _ nc 0 tZ è % Oélr0 e

cv C-C e e0O0 t- O ~ S-CO -

d-------------------

ccz
z i

BRUCE, N. R.



Prohibition Plebisoit.

ce c.

4 x oo

w

iw

'0a

o-.

z-

g

BRUCE, N. R. BRUCE, E. R.

'F-1

'-1 cqI m
4

" 0 t- 00 ,.J cq m~ &0 CD L- t.. - q CI Co t- c q

8

g

C4



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

0

0?.uLJ 4p i)tOlo«gî pýû?1jo; ~pnbm1p ip ulo!3Uifdoj 1C

SflSi4 q a qI Xq
UM049 su1 Szouaniýsuoa tlOua ut uoW~ilutdod ________ ___

Ol?,DýoaZ qp

isJalOA P081AOU E)4ý UO sJ
4
)IOA JO à~UIl X _______

gflfl7&liLt supalinq -p a.*quio

-sioIpvlI papds jo jaqUifl __ ____

S~IUIpafla3i jo .îaqmnt _______________

abvqi su»p s?'uuop gapa Rep îvî(4 a.1quioNl I cMMIrQC ML- i

q0qUT PaI[<d WaJOA Uo*iSuinN iml - 4

uo~jzq<o.tJv ~.4JtO94 îuodf
)zo utvjon pU.l ýu"a È.d2) .lO3

*9.tpuo.t.tv a.nboya sur)p -

*uoivqiqOJa

WsUi,82 ptoe. .101 U0T9 'Ilody>.no

PaiIo fflOA JO JOqu1'
1 1

__uol4qqojJ .O{- ___0_______1___

O

'T

O

142

ai

O

-OZ

z------------

EEh

BRCE E-R
(Cninud-uie)

A. 1895q



Prohibition Plebiscite,

'- S. .q P-4 -4 -4

mi L =z ýrt-~ ='1:

~IC10

o
h

g

h

~0

ttoQ
g.

&Q

y.
o

o

BRUCE, W. R.

20--2 17



692 Victoria ýSessional Papers (No. 20.)

s~.idp ~v.oarqIj>1oa gnbj)ya Pp iioQ»ÎýndojI

1UM0444 fl çc)uanEIsiB1oo q0e ut UOtit-IU(Icod ______

-)ii~poJu nbDya Rt*op ga9aj aee -c.

Pffla;o 4 p ýMAI (l « 8101- 3.~) 0 a4~Umlý

.P.4

9.4

c.-'

ce

'0

P-4

r12

I.40
0 4

P4

CD

P.4

'0

CD
G,

o
E4:
C

Q

C) -O

* ~ .2

C)

U;%Zqo
O4 cz t- le

t- 0 C 1C~' M 4 4 t- cqc4 'e )c t- .1I

o
- 1%

-4 'o
z

CARDWELL.

A. 1899

4411011¶M pIfla1I)j JO .1aqun

onhlîqa Rulvp 4i?ltll0P stîo- 2?>) îzpî 3.140N j AT

*UflàAi utllod
ipaut pallod Sý0A yO Jaqt1,_40j,__

Y~~~~ *uiquq.d ) *O

m Lod ttOlliiîO.4 ep ilidlu99 M i>U4

-sipUtoi.'V iibivp guvp

QUu.Ol) ?op.lt ip aa,WON10 UOtil

4St1!vâ¶ put .U1?J UO!S »Jlqd >Iytod

Pi>IIOd saý
0 A JO .Iaq'unN Utýit4Jd.0K



Prohibition Plebiscite.

8. .

'"Z'

to e

a EE

ta c z -"'Cu cite-"

z 0 u, 0

00 c> C. C4

- - .

~C

CARDWELL
(Continued).

(Suite).

e•

CARLETON.

- A



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

umiq îm Sagn! oe 1 ui uoilWlnd : _________

-uollm~o.b op
pii~gtU.&Oanbmpy Ruvp R.în4leî Re 1

g?ýa. ýpf l ains Rlgutzsuip~uo ~-
'U0!SIAtq 2UtilO 4av Ill qJr

,uinOA Pfla 91 uO S.I4OA JO .iqtlUfl

~.9 po.aq,11UA

C~k~

* *~q~4-4~4 * *

~ C'1

q a v e u i p ai1 1 o d ia lO A U 0 -!a !(I " M O1Io 1

.uotqo.td ni aiîuoi id *0l4

-suuo.Ls e;qbrp snfïeiA

sumt~ pu-R .OIo u0!. =z~od ? to

pelo'd flOA JO JýeUU -ui!qqi lo~j

3-

v

o

o
E-

CORNWALL ANI) (ET) STORMONT.

Z

A. 1899



probibitiou PlebisoitO

e,

~
-4- -

~
'-4'

~ ~

- . o

o
* h

g

----------------
* * * ~ h

.~ 
~o

.~
0<

o *~"

(Continued).
(Suitei.



62 Victoria Sesional Papers 'No. 20.)

S?4dD; st /».OGIIl? o 3fl0 wbna ut uoi4vptdod

.(j8A! 2U!iI0d qoa) ut s
>;'910A Pfl-i4 aq "0 sJ;noA JO J*LOnK

wntOIria .9.dgrit

)ii»il X1,J * ROlIfop,.l p ojUS2Uo .

4av ut palo sQ-o.A JO iaqmntrç _PuloL

itnoduoqvî«& p u.na> -lèooc üld, uo
4&jfblt.40 inInnja guDj -

-IilI âuil10d ip,09 Ut cc t

eiiO( SGÏOA JO .blrIiMtoiliq!qoil AM0

E.

o

DUNDAS.1-

1.

A. 1899

. . . . . . . . . . .
. . . . . . . . . . . .



Prohibition Plebiscite.

?1~~~-t.--~ I

I I

t,- ~ t-
-. ?'zj~-I

il

zt-

c

e
* h

h

-~
t.

tt
-~ ce
r-I ~u

SUND).

(Suite).

-'tfl~ go'D
~ cz--- -n-~ 'Q

- *.-

~ ~ ee

~ C-C

- E. R.o -

DURHAM, E. R.



62 Victoria

sIi

1.4

.4e

0
.-

ý0

4
P4

0

oý0-

J.4 «#)3 "b~.okif ip lio.zlondoj

UMOtS "oi sÇaian-4 jsuoD tqma ut uoiWlidod

~Ua~22pUOLdà abiny g.u»p tWiJO. I

1S.fla01 POsIAa>J ~~4UO*siqOX Jo J*.LLULIX

1O-5{ PI!ocIs ;o .idxqiii

giblwyegu R2 gdJJ .b ÇJ pai jsI e Ja5qielU%7

jv 1dut pall(xi sao jo .IaqsunK tuo

DI~qsj.4o a.quoi p
a flod uci Woa il) juivide -eiio.dï Dla;

-Rf rt.LS) >nnn gimp-
apuo 2). 3)JqULÀ),vu

*UO1!q!4ojl

-!Aiqj 2uil)J 43j ut

Palod %;'OA JO oun

z
c

1-
c

oe

z

c

-t:

iq! qo.ad o; .tuoj

~UOi~!qtqtM<J JO4

A. 1899

-- ~ .,.~ ***s~~.. *~o.o

- t-

Ot 's~ i~t t.- Z - -~ s~ e t- Z ~t
-

. . . . . . . .

. .. ....

Ct s

C
D)URHAM, W. R.

Sesional Papers (No. 20.)



Prohibition Plebiscite.

ml

S Il

. ~ ~ ~ ~ . .•
. . . .. . . .. . .

E

ELGIN. E. IL
o

4.~ .~

4-' -..

C~ t- 4~

-~- .~4 . .

i ~ ~ _ ~ t-
-4 c~ t-

W.?~ ~.t- ,-.C4~L~ t- C~W

t.

a
1~

§0
su

o

(suite).

& #



62 Victoria Sessional PLpers (No. 20.)

z

st'IqFÇ Alula!wIo 4 UTi ni uoîWit dod:

;~J<)X1)~!.~NfdL~ U .4uloA liv lit IIlj

- Lq *dj1 O.RtUl

RJuîIop ~4 oa> g pq' a4 .I<IlIO.A

ittit) ul P.-gIIo<1 jo .Ia)Cuin.X 10.1

*mo ai)u?/ol >

g.51551/ ît/.1 Ji>) ).1911
1 10

g Z1

--I( WlllllOl wo11 ~

padl ý,a4<kX po .1o,4îqqo< '

- t

-4.> ~'e~
:4 

7-

A. 1899

~1

* I

I f.

z:

I.

ELGIN E. R.
<Continued).

(Sulite).

z

00 .'l oc

m -cet-" iýnt- " .. .. ý- 14 .



- -4 ~< ~. -~ ~i~2
-4 ,-.4 c~1,~q-4~ ~ ,-.4 ,-4

~

~

~ ~

-4 t>-t~-

- :::'E e
O

-O

O

O.0
Sp

ELGIN, W. R.
(Continued).

( 8uite).

Prohibition Plebiscita

qI
co

z

Z



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

*0

A~.l~ISO3 tlaa UsI uO!WIlOd

ÎUti11làgpuoltln en» u nup g.(naîaala Rp t- - -)c q L

UO4tU âU!iIOd 14a»8 ut psiq
psiJO e P a!I1 uo UO i'lA JO .1)UIfl, __ ___ ______

-sioliffl paI!odp JO iaqtîînK ý'~~''

- So1I'fIPAJP)afa' jo i,,aqtu .

m'?bP1j gu) )erruo7 g,?oa i e,ý Oj 1 iqmog M ,-4 &O e!e e

S.,. Ru» 1~ --
- UOSi< wtiqooj IU

1p1U[t-t u " PaIlod &ZOG= =*O Jà(IUIQN- 0~~ ___ _____D"O t-

O pfiqO>) saiO (P / )0 Ia >li *1

. .q4 ' . . . . . . .

~~~~~~~~~ .~~~ .U .IO .I!I . .~to o .no. .
0 -! uj~ a~(

1;~~~~~~~~~~ .~[< .
0 

.O .UlUl .I)~qI 1 .<~ . __._. __._. __._.

. .....

z . . .

0z

I ESSEX, N. R1.

Gr



Prohibition Plebiscite.

. . -

10 e

. . . - . .. . c~e .I .

-te c ~et- ~

s

.* . . . . . .

. - . .- . . .h

It
la~

ESSEX, N. R.
(Continued).

(Suite).

29



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

0z

0 e.Ol Ivail3 afian>oa anbi Pp "o»mnclod

*,uo R no~~
4-4) Rî) a .tR?21~ na).jf?,p 9.qut.V CN -. 1. - -

CD ~slé)OA PsI 014 uO SJalOA JO J,)qtUfl _________

-sloI(-e£ pajiods jo aaqîf ___ _________ __

;4011vg prnjaC .i JO) .ioqtitiUz

-. qiof U!SA! ýeCuwIrinCI-O Z2 9 -

41ilt) ut Plqo 4fflA JO Jýqrnti rIO_ _________

9:.f41140j 8S;Od" ap e.1t9W1OA(

-'P4d~î? ___________

*s(A ut aq t4OJ

-IUQ~~~~~ ?U(<{4O Q i,-C
mi 11o SX OAo qaut I --qq~~'kI _________________________

joaanK

'pZ

0

S z

' 0

ESE, .R

I 0



Prohibition Plebiscite.

- *

h

i~

å~

(continuid)i
(8uÎte).

-- 4. CID

m M t- -

c~ ~~ et- o -c~i'~ ~ - 1~-1 àf
-4-4-4 - -44P- -

zZ

. .. . . . . . 4

43

-à- &.

3'

~
~ tt

§0
E-~ iU

FRONTENAC



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

2:

4.~~ddOp jh.tO~Ja/;> .~flqjo~> ~nibi;qî .4/> llOdllqflcIOcf

uAmot144 si, ÀJhI! > t3i Ui uoiltind
*tLOqzflOa ap

~U1LgaUo4.t) )n>bDiti > sop tD~47>r»)p

4- 1 I

________ litnv palo 9Jo .( MOI

~~~~~~~l> ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~~~~n *l 1f p>(/ >( O .oi41à/JJ 74f(N ~ Z ~ t ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
a iod iojiîo. ýp p wem -!lfe4t( ti )0 ij 4 1- -4J , ' f i

-9O?0 
>fO( 4)J~lL4

-!'t!~~ d<I WtIU'?~V
u<iliq!(tOJ({ *4(0*4j

P.'I!U.xi '4i(>c .0/ iý'tOU -ili 4/OM 1/*"d

à

GLENGARRY.

A. 1899

'.4

$4

ý2 = ý9 = - S -e m. ý -4 ýý -I t- ý tD e e ct 10 e t- cq 114r- = ""q 14 t- = e Cý e 1-4 t- " L--
1-4 'q 'q ý4 -4 - 14 "..ï 1 CI P-4 " - cq ý 1.4 "-f 1.4 -4



Prohibition Plebiscite.

àk.

8 .

'-4

* Q

c

77

GLENGARRY

20-3

I -

. . . .

* * . . . .

m ~
- hh

QQ

~
0

C -

GRENVILLE, S. R.

33



62 Victoria ýSessiona1 Papers (No. 20.)

0z

- umoIf S 3 Çuani!oo ipue ut uoîlvIndod

eujaso.îpuoL.w aribvy run udt 2agl geOfD p

2?11u lj p aLuLO

4àO11~ peI!ods jo .xaqmf%.
.8iia gauîalptq op a.LqlliOg

G) I .gloI113g palpQai jo iaquin,,,

an boija su»p suuop ggloa gap IîjoI 9.49u*

e-E

A. 1899

U~E~"T PII~ 10AUOSIA1q r11d1

.tnod uojl ~pal wlAJ -..4 j g' Lj

*g.puo.tiD enbnp Ruip
gawuop glýO.' op '9.1quWTO4 uO

--!qqoid iiuîL2v

-iISQU puTllOJ 13i U *o ' -sb

zz
.

<0

z -

EE-

.pe

C4-

I GREY, E. R.

34

. . . . . . . . . . .



Prohibition Plebiscite.

cc€

-4______________________________ Iq'm
e =àe= =4r= ee=* . 1

"- D - ýP- ý - - r

___________________________________________ I

* . * . .

4
* . . . .............

* . . . . . .................

Qa"

g

a"

-~ .~ v
~ ,~ --

-~ ~ ha"
o

au

o

GREY, E. R.
(Continued- Suite.)

20-3

l



umoqs ffl Çz)uenl!lsuoo qavo ut uoil-elndol

lwýtino.iptiouv inb»,q.9 Ruvp sjnaýi7eI>

qZma il! IS!'l

SJalOA Palst,%aH @qI UO SJ910A joi-,ýqmnN

-glniuut ouiMInq ap «7.tqîftox

P;@ýIIod@ jojaqu

9'dbnyo RU»P 8.. uuop gq0a 09P lvloj ejqaoç l C, e- C"ý 10 Cq "qr- LO m m t- k'C tý 00

PaIfOd Sý-nOA J"éýjTHnýi MOI

Ànod »I îveoil '9P îuglljwg Dî pdîuog
-Qîpuotiv aiibvya guup
guuop gajoa ap etqltoAr

-!q!qo-"l igulig-8v
*Uoll!q!qojd

jsuivme puv 'j0j UOIS -?Q.'YO vi -illor-1ý%1(j 2ullloj 14ava ut
1:;aflOd saiOA JO J,ýqmnNZ

Z'

GREY, N. R.

62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899ý



Prohibition Plebiseita

-l

- - ~

n

tt

t- e 

GREY, N. R.
(Continued-Suite.)



62 Victoria

0

0

94-

P4

ce

P4

4

P4

ci,'

0

0-

CD

A. 1899

z

SpÀtv 4p ~voapaajoa an b» qa ip uoipajnidoj

*snsu» qI lçq
umost4SS¶ •auanlsuoo qýO1) ut UollVeIfldOd

2uau1a8in puo.4.av anbmnp mu»p to)J.apaagw?.La.t gigil V2 mirl Sp.Lj8tl2U lpp4  .t1o

*UOisi.%I(I ulo 2!Ipva 1t l Ut!

4 ýu;)jA 1Xi1A2 I uo UO lo j~O jO aqmnNZ
.gqn.lla ksuplîelul ap tqluoe

-84~amp guzsmnjle 9p "9qUioAj

-siolîî,£ pE4Joýa;ba jo iaquinN 1
-UOf*llv;Oi Pp JU)wUiq » p11o.1.10

a RIi»xq gsu»p Riuu p a. gp IDÎ04 elqvio&j

MOISlAq 2UL 11
[jOa ut peilod s»rqoA jo wixumI[n7 Wt,0J

.4lod UO? îvJo.L ap 3 U9ads
-oipuo.t4t? aniboqi gi»p
P.'4ttOp 83O t 7p 4/UON

lsuitU8t puv iOj UObS

eý2 fie~~~ R8C"zD' ge 0Rg-88CgC
v -1 -1 -1 -q -C A ~ -4-14-4- """

CSI~

.

uuil! ozpq.10

flO ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ c j îi~ ~- , C"

-2

GREY, S. R.

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

"ýV7ýQ "S sS m = = '..4oc t- tý C t- èn
1-4

bc
Z - - - -



Prohibition Plebiscite.

n -Suie.)

-~~O -4 C" C4 ~ C a 6~. t

~ t- cq FI

z

s

O ~ * * .. ~ O O
:E-4 OO * * ~

~ E-<~ :::.~~z
-O

z
.~

zz

O

o .--- ~ r-
HALDIMAND AND MONCK.

z



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

lVezO).)qjP at591U.1a aivp~ uQ4co

uAwrqs st Szouaillsuoo ipva ut uotitindojl_ ____

pIaU1a2/puoiJ» gnfbî)qj suv'p suf 3~2p C <z

~sJa4OA P0aSIAa a uO sdaýOA JO da qrîîut I,

guo.îî a!Os Pp ax.4qurnl

eu.?ý?llp oeap .tqutog

97ibvi 1Ruvp giuop Rdoî Rap ?D1Oý a>qiuOA 00 ;

1 '~UOISIAI(I 
28UiIIOd

t4OEa ut pki11od sa»A JO *jeî0uI luir0j, ___________

Ànod uot? 10a. gp î- P.I)O.tc .j ýjo2~
.021pUOLtf aiibrnja guop-

-lA!(iIyoi VU1I'P-U -mo

paN1(Xi s,'IOA J3IU *uoîltq!qo.jl .io{

or .

>I

Zg
HALDIMA.

AND~
Ç) MONCK

-,.-
(Cotined-uie).n

A 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite.

-- - CI L- - --

-C-r

_ 8

_ r
cqo

'c'à cq,

-e cqI.q C

z ?-

HALTON.



62 -Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

0z

.0

k 2~.id~p opepatJlloC qznitrni uoilvltidoj

pau.pgglpuo.t inbrnp guvp saq t1q 1C m Mc~c -t-cq0-
»~~~~~~~~~JI .*ng i Lgt- m ~uo ~.. ;4 ~ -q~- ~-

oÀ C4.. .

Mui o iom JiqiunJ

a, ~ ~ .?Ipva àruiîallnq op 34quLoAr ..
4D .q- - qM11 - q1- . -4 cq

.Ff sjojtq pjot!ods Io jaqmnu

-uozYDiO.1a ~p ~JU2pO&L

11ma Ul POIV)od Sý1A JO *J4qmnN P-evkL ________~ *uq~uo..»4 uoi îq I il
dl(;u - 1)o, a un -? o.id i>j P'uog

k *iputotd.v anboye ouip
0 g?uuop galOa ap q.12l'LO uoi

P4-!q!qo'd 4SufLi2v _ ____

-u0ý

o a mtx -u

(DkO

P4I

. .....
0 .. .....

0p

Uro

'pS

HAMILTON.

4.)



Prohibition Plebiscite.

fE 3

*

~e ce

el• 4

V>a

C: 
q

-~. . . . . .. . ... .. .. .. .. .

- •t*

a9

HAMILTON.
(Continued-Suite).

43



62 Victoria

-4

9-P4

Se.ssional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

<

ge.«f»up l~otoîgdlO? ijoe9bbvyi ap uo.zi>jnvoj

umoils " Çauý)nllsuooj u4offl ii uoîw-eIndodi

7ui.giui& anboqi suvp l$~ p

qOi~ 2UiIIOJ 4,Yii> mu ibiJ

&ýmaj
0A p0sL.taH aq,4 uo S.IaOA JO J',tIlunT

lg?înainu RUIP1719 pp ).9gyloN

~~nibnipuijoin aUD 9uo ao îp7» quiog T

UOt-I Q1110 j ýC 0t -t

qava- ut palIMO séqoA Io jaV""N 1l __ ____________

guuop ga 9P ÀqtoA *uo!j
- -!q!qold pSutlem~7

*uotýqiqlo.itLO

lTAIq 2Uilod 1pva ut Dl
pal . od saj

0
A JO .Idq>un, 1 Oqz ~ J O ~ __

ec

i

~ .~ .~
~I2~

H ASTI]

>

S;GS, E. R.

lu



Prohibition Plebiscite.

I Ê

F- © ©

" .-.k.8 .S

o 23 og ... xIg.g

P-4 -4 ;

* _SIG , .R

(Co ti ue -S it).

SE, t-4-4- - q '- t 4 -

'e

'e
C 'e

HASTINGS, N. R.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

o àU??iUdz3,. .iIt1<.ail? anvj)e

tlotmo.,b ep
twagggipuo.t.»i glffnbjo u»p poflujp -e _ý s

UOISIAIÎQ âLIllOd I4a¶W UT i

* ,9 ýn
0

A pass1auJ a44 UO gmjnOA JO .IaquI x
-sýjnpnvza gu.îgl? Pip? ýqP UP'«

-8»1tvO? guipnnq qp '.*?ntoN

*sýojj-g papaf(m jo aqun __________

~nbmju suvp !ýnon ua~ p pol 4.tqrno~
Pd nb»a RDP quup spa 91AJ -UH

ký qzmn ui pa 11od isa4A il) joIWnNl 114O 1 __________

.sod o .1 oap ýitnupR -o.Dl nj (ý I
-9ZpUO.14? anbDya oU?)p

O SputOp~ SIflo., ip Dif&iJLoN il

iguLWS2V pue .1OJ mis1 A=~.l 7 &o
-iAtq~~c &0fO X~ t

0 .~IO .a)A J .n u . . .o~ .

aw

a, z

14

0~ 0

, N
(P ~

o ISINS N.RE E 6-5

pe (Continued -Suite).

1: S



Prohibition Plebiscite.

". oc

~a :

Z r- - - - - - - - -- -

8..

82 o
8~

h - T 77
i M E

___ __ __ o 8

HASTINGS, W. R.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

zI

o>
0o

0o4 g?.idDp Ivtoîagl? aà~ljoa aflbDqJ dl) uojnndoj

)Ula ggt a ie .*n' p.t2u s.tLP ap 4  ugd-'4.- - .-. ,-4 .

mUiîi -8uq1o,{ qoa)! srn
9140~VA P98SîaU aq UOSJlaOA JO .îaqmnýz______________

_________ *o~ig vujods jo .zaqunýý

oe LO~~~~ S~U.ipflflq éap 2.L?1UoN .£..~...

UODl) )li Ilâ?agl puo4)
?flbvya suIp o?uuop gâ?3o.Lb .> l à .L1UO,

W. qâIva uî POIIO(I SaJOA JO qîi 1L_____
-Itoîpqýijo.d »J adîuoe Î1

.t îvod u p ttyJUJ vl Iiî -g ciOcqd1 tN uOjr-1 10
S-gflflLO.4ig gnbvyja Rimp

0 guuop gjo, ap P.squoN *uop

P4 UOIUqî4OJJ Uozî
le ~Ul2v puv .IOJ uo!s -zqyo.td elo7z 5 ' 0 0t C Clt

2i u[floJ q3wa à[ ~4O
I 'I

1
saOA J0 '9qu'nK 10,1uoI< o~ ____

CD

U2 m

. . . . . . .

Z



Prohibition Plebiscite.

ans

3
l I

(Sute).

20-4

%0 i- cqc ~t

CqC~

. . ....

. ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ -. .. . . . . . .

s~~~~ . . .: .::: . . . . . . .:

HURON, S. R.z
~



C2 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z

o.&dvýp z».moau? afinO3 rrnbiwq ap umlojndol

iuMolp se £cQU8n¶ýpUOr)l ti) ul Uot vu1udod

*UOMgAI( âuiloJ ipwa ut wr
4810 0A Pà@!AeýU Oql UO 0110 30 ffluIl

*olvIpâ1lo(ls jo xýlMi'N

U~.LX?9 uz~aaq l ç)q1aOg

.UOV ÜO.a op 114Ut2tp&o.&v

arnbrno ouDp eutWp rn&Ot sep3 2vo aigwtog(

*.UOISIAIq 2 Ulodl
UTl ulP0110d sOnA J6 *J94 UIflý MI'L

C4

.dnod uO mf0 . ¶~U2 ~ ~
-np.IîO.ni anboap tup
iUUOp 01. s~av 9.4qUAoNT ~ ;;v

MuOI.Iqilqojd '"Io
JBuiv21 pue 301 uois -sqnVoÀ.uI 4 .noj
-!,&!( SmIod' qo,9 UT-

peîîod 99 ' 0 A jo jo4tuni Iu.~qqoxl jojÇ

z

o
oD

U

1.

Z~ -- C
N

--d 4 I

EFURON S. R

(Coine)

(Sit)

L. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite.

- r-

--- -*

. . . . . .

~2

- ~g ag t0.ss

H URON, W. R.

20.. 51



62

0

O

M

4

CW

Qe

Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z>

UMIs se Xz)uz>ný 4 suoD qziiz u uoi4Wîndod ______

Iiuigg.1puo.t.z> »lbrnpj su»P tzi.a p

~SJz>;0A POIAOU a>4~ UO sJalOA JO Ja(lUIfn

*n40lie£J pz>pods JO .IqMUN

S ITlIpiaa 8J. 1o .anr>

anbz>zp 81LD

O R?UtLOP 2g3oa

igu-j PIM

OlO

0

V,

0

M
P4

*e'~

-uotnon ap 14ua~u..i

a p lumeg -.îjo.id Dlz»MO
bvyp Ruvp-

op a4qu4og !q(" uli2

'10J UOIS yo.dz

z" "'-v"

zz

Z E5

K ENT.

A. 1899

-~ c~I

~2I~



Prohibition Plebiscite.

's¢ leI
C-

• .I - C •

a e

m4

(conti•uen)

(ut-

KENT,
(Continued).

(Suite).

- - ~
~ -4 -4

-- '-4-4

'~ -4 ~. -4

-4 Cq e~

z- - - --

Q

.2

c1~l

z



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

otdDp Ivi;.l~p ,,O?Iloa Pflbuflf .p UOl3tfflcE

uAm049 im £Ueuo!lu0o qu'a~ ui uotildod

uoiww;a op
M"mn St~o..42 )nboiya rutp 8tna;m 237>

'UoTU!làa! 2utod qwa U!M
L9 S9O

0A àOiAJ q U6 PÀnA jo .oWxuInK.I
irflnrnL mtqpnnq 7#p aigqlox~

'910oIeq peîîod8 Io .aquung

1:4

0

:z

8.4
PW

0

la

4

-!A!KI 2uliod tlOvý ut-
pellod sal0 Â_jo .ieqmnt x uo!l!tqoj .ioj

o

M

M

o

o

.~ K!
~

~cqt-c>'~- ~coa~-E'c~ t-

* ~

:11

~t- -

âz::

KINGSTON,
(City-Cité).
(Oontinued).

(Suite).

A. 1899

8fl.t1 ? su fl fln p 2.L q u o"
e91o11Ia pneroÇi JO .I9qmfln.
tozw pop p»ltann?2puo0.4.tw

27&ino guvp PutLop Rajoa 2s72 pnoi aqm£

îpie ux peflod fflA 2oinUnK110d

untOi m~ 2duoo p 1 '140;q

t&nW~ "Mtoa ep Ju2ffle -ivo.i4 V2at>o
.6puo.À.w onbvqaf #u1&p
29tLUOP 84oa ep a.tqu4ox U01,

n

~ 'I.

-~ t.~

7?



Prohibition Plebiscite.

--- P.- - - R - -- -q - -1 1-- 1-

e

-oo

8 a .=g

LAMBTON, W. R.

55



62 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

*ju ieti2upp.& t2u.Olp 2;
e~l4tdvp Imip a6Jnloi inb»sp ap uoipjndoj

-susuao 4V qq S<q
umoqs qv Xauafl!lsuoa3 L409 ut uoTWIfd),j

pLsfm..Dstiipq tuvp 9-t"OÏ? ssPP
,qpqaO.1gf «1 Dl m Rj.au gtnnalsp è.squiOg

mOSIÎ 2uinUoj q3w ut ",!ri
sino p3ostAoU ai uo sJalA JO Jia1tIIN

2? gm~ uîtsflq -P s.tqULO
8OwfPaI! o JO aqwn,ý,

8flJ.tva9 gu.îlrlq pp giqluov

siollvgj pr4oÇaj jo .IeqmnN

pflu alc aO JO'.Iaqurnu__ _________

.inociuozjoa sl p lt'ou&as Djo I at o CDt -110 < C 0=0 à&
a-glptLO.44D--ibinp é -4 P--

8?UUOP gjpa '9P stquwx 'uo!l

-uoll!q!qoJJ
isuitg.f puv j0j UOtS -Uo 12.fJ

jAI
2
ui"Wo qolea Ut

PeTIOd SÀdAPlOmoj 
eT-N uoxrojiuoj,î 

PZ ;5

zo

E-o

2:2:

zo

LAMBTON,
East Ridxkg

(Division Est).

,~ .~

P mcq r- ".d Scq l" 2 = -4 M e
V-q "q "q ý4 "-i V-4 --f V-14

-1



Prohibition Plebiscite.

;à

,in

. . ~j. .

eo

77

9 ce

0i @

M E

LAMBTON, E. R.
(Continued).

(Suite).

.

-

~

- c-. t- ~ Q cq ~ c~ c-~ '~ c~ic-q .-4,-4

~
~. &c~

- '- - -~ - - ~4 - E

o------------------------------ -

.

2 ~

E

o

E-

LANARK,

North Riding.

(Division Nord).

Z .



6-9 Victoria

pq

-!

.0

oe

0j4
C4

4

a4

o

0

.Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

2?2flin»tu ?u.tllnq p j).Lqmo

*Ut g~ u.1laîpq -P 3JqULOs~

~orapaq,-QÇa lo zoqunI
-uOý&foa ep Ulmpu.t

MuiP 89UU0p 8210.1 top> m&;~O 249mU0

*uoiîlAx(J 2U!ll0di{ovi; ui pý11od saqA Io .oquInK Iwnol

.tn4x1 t&o:lvoi op 4umu

.au1uoJpl 840bmp uvpO

joU!i32I puv .10J UOIS

pe«iod f91 q0A 0 àJbquiiUm

A. 1899

s-aWvý IÀolalpaônoa anbuyp ap lLotepjn

umoqs e ou unl!lsuoa qoee ut uoil-eludoj ________

_ I -

................. ~. . ~L~i
* . . . . *11

4.4 ~ . . . . .

t-

~nb2np

UO!q

,uoiq!qqoJiO aj

0 h

LANK N. R.

(Contineclh

(it)

~u~,~uzpso.uv »bznp rut4p Iran~pln oPa
318.17 Pl dnu1 plupsui Irt6nol?p a.qtiojj

*UOISIAMQ 2 utIlOd I43-m UT 4gtrI
1 &I9~O pa~ie'gJ U0 gieq

0A 10.I~Ul

z >

- ie
2,ý



Prohibition Plebiscite.

St-I J
1<

2~ ý 2 eesnasa

I i M

LANAR, . . .

. . . . . . . .'

Pe

m Ag

-Cw Z

8.os

-ec k - ~

LARS. R.

- .. -. .,-i

zzl

N 8N

40i

A4ý te- C-1to-V z C-t-_4
-1 P-1 P-4 V-4 ý4 1.4 14 V-4

a



6'2 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

C
<

y. a?~~DPj.Op3~l~ nbiMf ap uoMnc(od

umoqs su £4ouý)nl!guoa qoae ui o4ut
LolîZ4;oa.9~p

4-44

-*UOSîAIqj 
2

Ull[Od, t{.9 ut I
g., *9

OA PGR!A@o{ uI4 iuO qA joi;3,iUfn________ _______

- 4t4

3flbTnp ~ ndw RittVppi RUOp ap D iq i*9VOAr ~ ~ ~ . tŽ --

ilv U! POIIOd salA JO J9LU JJI ,

Àra * uo leo.d D ?1&uog -?!ql *uo1. g 00e Oe-
el.-Spuot.v gnb"o Ru2p

0 P P.&O> UOS tj.Loj
Pd T UTO{t~~U ~~

Fsul2 PUY.......... D
DII tno ...."

-è-

I I

.4

CED .I\ .GRE.V.LL.E. .0Cotinedm
4Su(4)

IIIP 6



Prohibition Plebiscite.

t-

el__ _ _ _ I0 R C iI

C4.

LEEDS, S. R.

-.

.... ..

e 0 o. ... . €

- . .O. --

111



62 Victoria Se&sional Papers (No. 20.) &.1899

z

0

0I

o.i

>Mulpuo.utv anbina tutp v.no 29p

c UOISIAaU ~~AJ etn

Q 9J90à POS!Au O94o Ïfl 0 qn

s pol!g (lgt y) .I9qUn

w ~ ~ ~ ~ utp -v*2 î;p't4lîffPn U1&N p, piq A

-s~<o~~wg p~peÇ~a jo JaqLufl~

4P4 MA7ti7Ooa ep 3ltmepuo.4D, vq 1
nbipIP ?"»Op 2f04 gop linin flWJJ *= la9lo O -4C

qoffl U, P>;I1OEI fflA JO laqU1tlN MI 1

w ~ ~ v uolojJd1)&tLuOi 7utof:q

m. -âRlpuoLJ? anbmj u Lp-

uoî!,îq.d istut

lm1!8v pue .101 UO!S -tqjOp C VI "'lO
i Al u!llod qaim> u! i

CO L-0oCDý lS

z. .~ . . .

.4 z

. . . .. .

I LENNOX.

I zz



Prohibition Plebiscite.

1 * cqfi -- 9ï epzl &ec-, e - -ý4 8~-4

P-4 #-q-f

V,, " 10 t- = = - ~r

z 6 ce - - - -

z ~

LINCOLN AND NIAGARA.

Q<

.0

<~ L~I
Oq -

I -

Ir-~j
u

* fa

* ~ h

~

* 5
* E-~

LENNOX
(Continued).

i(Suite).

2

Q

Q

ri~



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

spjvýpptoai? loa anbit>f .p tuoflvp&coj

uAio4s 9¶t Çoal!so 4Oa ut U0iffluId'

j u34Um:.puO.4t anbrnp mUp Rd.Lflp gap

.8(11110«ul flasa' ut Igb

~~'~ 0A 9SÎAQ4 ~44 181 aI0A JO JttiLùnl
2flflnV1,& gutziinq p e*.Iqiis

~o~ug ~uod~JO .1;ru

011

t*. o o
01~*4~4 I

.0

P-4

P-4

4e
4

0
:a

9.4

0

0e
12

's

~I
5. .5o

Q

* Q

s- ~ g

~ 'Q
sua.* 12

g 1

-~ g~

K
c

Q

LINCOLN AND)
NIAGARA.
(Continued).

(Suite).

A. 1899

-R' ,taJ U.?Îalîq ap .qtWo
*SI4flhitU pnaGuj o iý)qTi

-uofl01o.a p pL3J&QRRI?1flLOJM)

qa"a ut pI1I(l s<nA JO ~AGUI"lol
»&lyfIO Piuo p *Urn

ýn~op~~~ uaiag -IoO.tGf v> atîwgo e. à-ID
-Ripuo.&;v -nbuz RuI>) -

R?UUOP ga)OI 9p ).IquLOg

*uo!qiq(iJ uol

ulilSil 
il O 0! ~~jod toj

-1G2ui11oi I4av ut à-l
peITo<d SOJ0A JO jgtu''N .otz ~ *0

P M



Prohibition Plebiscite.

Li~' Z>t-k

V4 7

LONDON.
O 7 (City)-(Cité).

65

20 -5~



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

0z

ce u..d»p S-6zq xalnfflOa 4»ih»ia ut vOI» j»ndoj

uoîinoa -ap

.0tS1uG110d ulwaÇ ut St

O S.i»oA pfflâam~ ;)J UO SLI/OA jOào4tý ___ ______

o ~ ~ j _ _______

*aau uO[GK sno? 4o) ieqmnN)ALO14» io
9Cuo p C ' CCt-onC nt-.~Ot

*RIPUO.IID g~vp:up 1

ce RU!1«2 pu¶R .I01 uois 1QV.170. I ill4flJ 1 e ý

.éz.

.2 Bu Riig
k 1 (DvsonEh

î ~



Prohibition Plebiscite.

L~.

00,-~ CD-I a.m *O e . f la ~e 'e-400

P-1 ~ ~ ~ e "~t.~ cq 14 c 4t - q '-g 1 :>1

1~1~

* 4
4

.~- . s
e

g
* . r .

* .~. ----- $ h

~

.. rE- e
E-

e
E- ~

I .~ ~F~;1

s..e

MIDDLESEX, E. R.
(Continued).

(Suite).

74 P "4 38 .0 , - - "4 P- P- r-a

-q ~ re ~. sr~ r~ t- re o ce ~ se t*- ~ O
- - -q q-q q-S q-q -~ ~ -q -q

ze
r r

MIDDLESEX, N. R.

t-



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

UM.id v Ç3UOan !ýSUOC) qZmaj UT UGLfýln)flc

a sn&siîp rna.11 gp 1 C wi m Cq g-e

's
9
alOA Pas!'O I tuO no alOA Jo jý)qiufl

'UO ' 1jnOý '9P 3Uflug - "puOjtv
atbrny uu»p 9?uuop ge;a sip ploî djuA iel81 => e8ep -80

lpva ut pOIIodi SOJOA U0 iiA>iun 1inJ

UyWOÀ4 Di> a.,O )a UO.Iîn

Iti -tyo.tc( y; uo»jP

gm~uop galoa cp e.tq7aoA *UO!ý
*uvuqioJ

lsUtv2/8 PUV? ibO UOW 2?OM >.&o
iAq Ui10J tIO'a ut

Pallod fflOA jo Jiotunl . uoîjxqî1loàj jo

zz
. . . . . . . ..

om M

>g

MIDDLSEXN. 
0

(Cntnud-uiI)

o -

;4O

A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite.

C. ..- oÎ2o - - -- -M~

. . . . . ~ . . ~ . . .. . . .

MIDDLESEX, S. R.

69



62 Victoria

.p.#

.1-4

P-4

54

P1-4

9,

0
.1

94
P,

9o

0
1i
0,

Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

1SU1U62- PW8 .10J UOIS

*!.%!(i SUltl(d qw tir
pagod sadjoA jotoIqu1fl

z

H.

z
o

k

.uonl 
; t

uoiViq0J(m Joli____________

...... 9

z

.MIDDLESEX, W. R.

X

' udile&ul.1 il 'v u.p 191
q&?v~ j t 1 oa anboqi ilq uoflndoJj

P21?IA gel ui CIrný

tUaýOA P 1 iSAaj )i11~1 UO sl.al(oA JO_.1ý(1flfl

_______~~C 44 M~id~>

.UOýj40Od ap îlaitiggpUO.1U1)
-nlLbuii~ snp @?UuOp 8S.1 gs.-P 11»0)f ý9IqOj' c_ e t- ici ~q OCI

qaaut pallcxl s
8
ýjA Io jaqiun.N 11jj UW1 ________

aliod uo.1îvo.t ip dlîu"t"s A -fod CI/ SJU~ '. I
-R.Zpuo.4, anbvy.9 sunp

gaUop Rij~o aip a.L9flOg
-Iqqo.JliiiuW



Prohibition Plebiscite.

*cq *

C4 mm Mg

a
h

g

ha'o

>0
I U

2

I..

~ c~~Z

MIDDLESEX, W. R.
(Continued-Suite).

. . . -

9 L

z

:z z

C

MUSKOKA AND PARRY SOUND.

9 p. 1

s ià



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

I -~

d

o

1-4

Pd

1.4

Pd

-

'.4

p4

P4

a

:a

P.4

0.

0,

oý
0

C

X<

.<

;p

IM-- 8 C "e~c< 9 ýC =- t- C .- - r cl

??Àdv~p Mi.ojapl? adlllocb -nbvqau ep "cflpYlfdJ

*sns VJ aqI Sq
umo4s sve Xzun!so qv ut uot,4ndodl

* wmpuo..&»>nbvqj suvrp R.&nîava? #ap
aeyw.a apqI vl .&Lg gip.tgoui socnaîoeap 3.tqLO/.

4SJâ4OA p 0!A 4ý UO fiJaOA JO ~0

* s4ollog papxIs JO jiýquinýz
*2.ndoi? k;in)pînq av a.&qiuJtOg

q0fl t ýbIO *UaO SA( 0 U!IIO

.dnod uotlbîo, aýp ïiuu- -zj 9.tîuug
.91puodtiD aInbmp suop
919UUop àrajoè 91> a9JquLo/iJ _U011

uot4!qqoid -q~w SU1

IA1qý( âutIIod ia.4 ii -

pýa11 od sajoAjo JOaaqiuýN tioUiq!,qo.1< aj(>J

o-
z-

e

C:

:~
s-
~c
~

.~- .c~

~ *-~

* ~ ~

~ :~

~
~

,.~ o~o~

C O O
E-E- E-

-e

*~ *~C

-.5-

s

5~
.C e.e

C
E- E-'

1M1SKOKA AND PARRY SOUTND.
(Continued-Suite.)

A. 1899

cq t-

c~

1

cq = "
m Vl ýl



Prohibition Plebiscite.

t- i . 2

-m V

~: -

CC Oo . Q

O -

-Ittttt- t- t- Z: 00 m

. o

MUSKOKA AND PARRY SOUND.
(Continued-Suite.)

73

.0
~ .Q ~

h

g
h

h.:
o.

tt
o.

g.

VD-

: - = :: = = = Z __ = z __ = = :: =



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A.19

~Md~p >uop ~iloia n buyi p uofloW2edoj

umoqs st •Xi,)nllsu<)o qao1 ut uoilatdo4___

îUpIlâg!puo.&À) af nvjJ guvp gdpJ 1J

ýsaO P~~a9IIO *a4 UO "s-fflA Io jýqUXUN

1p4

c1e

P,
0

-4

Pd

0

P14

a

*1-i

*1-

o
G,

NIPISSING.

______ soiiv pouods JO jaqrt;. . .

-uoeYo ep î?1ugggP1M.&UP

Wq0,: U! Pýdql(xl salOA JO -14qUIfl"I¶?Oj ______

niojq!.dV aitîuoa p u.îl

-q *ipitoi gnbinpq euvlp

-I!!( -sumlod tpv ut
paiiod salo,4 JO jaW-"N I UOit4!tojd 1jO - _______

z

Et 0

E4

J,ýZ à 0 M
le, ? 9 e à1- 1 "-1 r-4

62 Victoria A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite.

c•i-i~

* ~q

~

t- ~

-4 - -4 .

~ ~o t-.

-- ~~i m4. '4 ~ '

t-. c~..

.~

~ ~ -:

:~Z~ ~ ~

NIPISSING.
Oontinued-Siite>).

È



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

Ir

Ir

umoqs W~~ Cauanl!lqUOD q"q~ ut UOiWtlld

I ~>~ ~ -uOilwîo.ipj

2U!II uiqlol qoia U( S-
es&inOA PastAi1J at4S u0 sI4OA 3<0 lâqu"

0

-olpe paj!0d;Io3 iaqml
*g91.0ap gu2pflnq ap u.qllloA

Uoqmo3.,t ip 3îu2fltipiO."t
"n1Ern1a gitip RIUap saîoa Rp lD303 glqvO&r

uOISTIquqo

Ut o1 od 00 30 2eUfliýo WVk

anodu - ilv)o.z iJp juiiau
-9flpuO.tt ibo)qi gitop
P?4uOp fflo.2 ',ýP PIq?llol

ýquWv.f put, .103j U0is

PalII<l saI
0 A JO ~1U

on

i. ~.w

o- CI~~

>ioiq

q>OJL l..tUQ inoar 00~

-. ol(!ljj.u0j

b*z

i

~.o <~

ci

k

-I

£

* h

~

~fI@
E.~ '

hi..

o -,-,

NIPISSING.
(Continued- Suite.)

- o

A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite.

. . . . .- - e

eLise

Io=a c m-e e .- pl .

4 . . . . .

9 s 9

N N.

Stt

.5 NORFOLK, N. R.

31

o.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

U isv~43~i aqi Sq1a

$~4P~p~oopop di~logancop gap otpdJ

,SJ~O 1)~IA~T~1flUIOl qDVO JUIf

A. 1899

.- ~

~~c CI> 'tN

a7lbzoip gulip gstuOp se»a gep IDO aiuuoK ýe e8-4g2 neï$ q

IfclqoJdI o>-tiuoi p - Uoflq
md uot výoa p îuI

t
a -ta/oid v> a.tffl)

RIMUOP gi3O.a ap ai91OAI *UO!4
- *i~~-qitjo.ij pSui

2
V ___ _______

-liA!q 2tUUod qoug UT

ýPoId~< s,4A jo jWaUtýN -uw-liq!qoicl âjO{_______________

1-4~~~ ~ ~ ~ ~ Cqw - -i 4 o tS 1

z
o

E-o

zz

zoz

NGRFOLK, S. R.



Prohibition Plebiscite.

| t.

-- e

• ela

. a

Écc

bcI -

- co o

NORFOLK, S. R.

(Continued- Suite.)

c ~ t.- i

c -i 1.4 FI, CID

cl "e _ _S C>" _le 10_-=

NORTHUMBERLAND, E. R.

oz



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

o

Ca ~ l~Uf umoOq suXunutu0ilian uoileltîdod I ____________

i tlnlLo?#lmo.4 t i bl aie tw p îg aap sap 

MU1014'ë ut 4sir

î~~
0  

palell jor uoSJOA > qmnX _ __________

*2a,)Ilïn j apgagtqwoA

ipvaut a 2ld SloAJo UiftunK Ip qol~

- Iuo UOP)Of ~1 -ueV p * 2qf

g01 uoÀ17 nby supgo. rjo .uj luO

0 ULnnp R-)-. eI -tvovu

Wqjd ao J! p.1a 1a1Ç Jo .r!qpunj IioLI

* u~prij.i oja.uOa~9*uofl

CD pO~n) nîp~»

M pup ~ .~ .qo
~iU U~~2~~U~7____________>_

;5- I~¶ wi :J~ I-qq.d 1C~ 1

j eIo ~~ O4-"N__o~qîoJ~r~ ____________>__

0i

3r W:g1
p., ta

0h

(C nt n -d- t)
o- Z eL

a, 4
E-4.

80



Prohibition Plebiscite.

et.

. .. .. . . ... .. _

4 ~5 -NORTHUMBERLAND, W. R.

'c-

81
20-6



62 Victoria Se8ional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

lu qu ou i nrnoa Rwenp sp uo&p,2ndIoj

a;.îv n î-g- o.tneîaalp g.tqluo£ '='

âU1iî uillol qa"a ui i

O ~SJelA P .!A i~lIvU pelTod Io iaqiun,%, . _____ .__.__.__.

solivup guî?anq ap a.tquLij'

~o~g ~ÎIsjo iaqTUlnK.

, ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ .- .-Ulvo a uqtoà?u..

gnbvila oUJp guu'op galJon Rp zv4ol .iqULOx ý < ;.0 4 0, w
-' ï- e c

11le ui palIlod ffloA jo .iaqmnN 8u-ol 1_____

h Rpuo.t.lDflblflp utiDp -.. LiUo1 0

-4 N sutCv

$2 -uoTiiqiq0JJ*uo
4O su[Wâ2 PU *jj no0; flO!S -iqn d DI a qC '

oo'

zz

c -. . ... .. .. . ..

. . . .. . . . . . . . . . .

o o

I. -

P4 
éà

z>

0 
p

L .ONTARIO, N. R.

82



Prohibition Plebisoite

e

o;

.

~~ ~

8 l ý

.

o
~--

o o
E-

?q ai -i-- -4 "

-4 . t.-

1.4 -1-414C4

I

o

0

77
Lml

o :

à..

ONTARIO, N. R.
(Continued-Suite).

I

cee

z -

ad rd z N>1 OO

E *

o O e o -

e ONTARIO, S. R.
S-1
-' :

E-.2

20-6j



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

89.&dVP JD.toîi33I ib11. ifl niPp ep uWijvj ndojl1

iUmoqs svx /ozuanl!lsuoa qav ut uolvlltdlod

q 2Uillo«l itoa ut wii
'84JnOA Pds[A'4-9 044 110 S.i~Ajo*.iP-quIOn___________

Slju peoÇa jo .îPq'-Ufl~____________ ___

gnbvqi suDp 8?puop 0,7Ot i p jrmoj 9.tqWOAT Cr~C -M OC I-

UONM 2UI~o
__ç Ut palod SaloAJO .1Pq1Uflç ju

urtw3j.ttt0. qp i.*JUO3 cl

suu0p gliO.1 ip 9.4pitON

*uoliqioJ

qSUI12 pu éjO UO!8
-!t!G 2111I10 q1a~ ut
Pamod 

891
OA JO JPcIIUfN

o

o

o

35

\.- o
Q

M -1.

o-- 0-'e-----------

Cý -- -

àa

Q;15

ONTARIO, S. R.
(Coxtinued-Suite).

A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiseita

e~.

* . .~4 .

t-

~
t-

~ '-4

t.
.~ .~. I

.~ ~.

- I..~

~ ~

. - . c . - .- .n .- n- L-e -q -- . c

- we

. . d ; . . . .. . .

to-M

.·,

a 5.-Î · f i § 7

s-ý
ONTARIO, W. R.

CC <



62 Victoria

oi

0

0

Ca

P4
P4

P-4

.0

p.4
P4

0
oý
0

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

Îualukgguaaat. .L3U.&~PP il
s?.tdn<p In.topel 9tJ6j ,oi gnbvyip i oiqvpndoj

11mo1q Sm Xoailso 1439 UT uoîindod

euaueisgRpUOdtv ayebD?1.9 Runp R4l?9sp

PÎR.2 P mR .tsed&t sel.3aUal?)9p 9.q?«OAJT

A. 1899

e<i cieM U lF

*U!1A4 uTilod q3e ut 5VTJ

W&)IOA P9s1Aý{ *aqý IiÔ sJOA JO K~~1l _ _________

C- .4 'l &'D x

Sýjj gullalliq ap e.&quwg :..

'S~~O~jTfJ C'l3f~ JO.cTfl

inbi gunp ggiuop 82Îo.1 gep Ivînî aqwoAg

UTe pal1y)d 5'fl0 A Y; MxqIn OjI

.$7Z j tO3p.t ap îU'UL"b zq?,qoÀdvîgtîuPoo

ta?UUOP ggiOJ qp ?.liiox I 1Ot

iluft~ PUv .1OJ U0IS i lOLnJ.fJ

ýa U1IIaqOd JO .au uoil!q! idojjO<S9~lO Jo <IuIn

o

zz

z
o

nis 1" =CI1
-4-4, r_-4 "4444 -- 4-4r4

-4- 4- 4-4- 4- 4-

OTTAWA.



Prohibition Plebiscite.

'8n

'e .a-q- c-i-

o

~~~t- ~ c C'à50-- ~ -

- 7

S.. . . .

OTTAWA,
City-(Cité).

(Continued--Suite).



62 Victoria

$4

4

4

.

0

4

0

.0

o2

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

<U9U~ UJ3 > U~p

Rittd'v.p lnaî.9;l 9A41fi)f dnbDi ip tio.in 1 nd'oj

umoI4s we SÇ3Uafl!2suoo qO1a u! uotivndoj

u~w~8~po.L. giibrnja gauip g.aial? irdp

~~Jepiag Pd!. id~OJ. aMqttoTn

~?&tJia ~i~a JO 'ÏquiOim

soiapVIloIs JO .iacjutflt
* îJda9 Iupnq îqp d.rie?"OAi1

~ J.Wflq
-l ijijîoa p M.DpoL

ntin UVP Rulop 9,40o1 8,)P ljn)î-I(l

qz)t' -ut P;ý1o<iw "IOA JO 'JxjTnNl pIti>j
uotýIqlJd Di a.quog 'a tiozlý!

.1,nod Uoq»1vo.t 91p îugutgg -ujqojd Dijqatu'O3
4itOtI nbulie eurDp

ýjnuo0p R.aIOt pp 2.uuiog Kt

WsUUUv2 PUv 1IOJ UQIS

Paj*jo ffloA jo Jquu.Ufl uoil!q!qoj<{ ajO

- - - - - - - -

- E

>-

OXFORD, N. R.

-~

~ t .~

A. 1899

ËI Mac =""C'4 t- Ir _ - L_ -% M -4 - _. oc ZID00 ýe 2 e Veg 9 4.
" -4 tl

=C'lm



Prohibition Plebiscite.

z

-

m -t CN t4Q

OXFORD, N. R.
(Continued-Suite).

omo 8 w,

z t- - t-c e©' ' o z © ' 4

.2 zoo

> z X .

OXFORD, S, R.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

ir

UM()48 I? sej aq Â

-uoljvloz op
lualaj?iluo.&À ereboya guvp ei.LVadî?> Popi cq §es"

Pe
5
ý"'%9 pViV qI UO SJIalO) JO Jla7zII1flN

Spellods jo ZV4IIun . .. .

w Ivop glllînlîq op .9JqigoAT

u0foel)o.l ap )ulagolpuoz.ti
anbiaij ouop outop gaîo.> Pop ID oi a.?qfltoN

1131;a -ut P9110<I sdaIOA JO JKIX% 1~

.1mod uo *l»)jop apidîtag !, qodti ni~ ~L.p4Li.» )?tbvj gulp
gaUvop 8a)O.a op -.tquioxMOI

-sl2 puqq'a jSUimis

-ýII âu!1ltO qoIa ut uoqqi* .

z

zE-
z
>4

>4
zz

z
O

Oc t.- o
O~ t- O

" ý t m -D t e Iýt c-i

z.

0Q

OXFORD, S. R.
(Continued-Suite).

t-

A. 1899

OC 'I'ý CII C' M 10
00 Li iLD



Prohibition Plebiscite.

* .
.....- ~ *~~Cf~-I< .~

.....

'-4 * ,-4,~,4 '-~

-I i.~
-.- ~ t-

z

Q

Q

oo

o
o

o

o

o
E.4 o

E-~ E-~

0

o

Q
h

g
h

tt
o.
ai

.- 4 t- © OMC at-t-C4 t-

t -©¢ - - MMet- ,- t4

- Oam40 ©t- ~o C O M©coM 4 C0t-

. . . . . . . . . . .4- d,--

. . .8 e o
o
rJ2_________ ____

PERTH, N. R..:- tPEEL.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

,0

..

4
4

43

4

ce

P4

a

0

o

P4

UO XA( U![I()d qaOe U! lsri
~slalOA PI-2 ij OS~AJ dqmn9- __

8RPingmit Fvpflnq ap atqidoAr

s-1otIBeq papo.4Q jo .IaqTUlN

pvod ut p;)11 od ga4OA JO .L(iIUfl> 1 ______________

mLod ucipoa ep îuan/od2 -1oo« O)a 0.tOU aq m

-2eiopuo.4 nobnop oùop D1
eUO/ ' )OpRý.'L qp aoquoog O

- -qtoi lui!i ______________

-!Atq AUtI[Od qat'a Ut

PaiL0d 8;)IOA Jo iaqlunN iUitqq.4 jk

z0

zý

Q

s
Q

* ~ .

-~e~ ~o~t-
t- csI ~ ,-4 -

PERTH, N. R.
<Continued-Suite).

-Q

A. 1899

" -4 1--1 -ý 1-4

i .tdnlp ».oqa b/pîol anboyj) 'qp itotzi)jndor

snsua aî ; sq
umot{ S6 S~ouan4î ,Suoo qova ui uoi4tlndoa _____________

Yi ~ DO R.)p



Prohibition Plebiscite.

Jan

a

o

eo

e.~

PERTH, N R.
(Continuied-- ýsUite).

-n o

(DC

.cq

L0-4 2 C 4 -4 

~t I

In an ee

-- 4 ~ -4pq c NCýc '

:z s hE

ri E - -- - -

E: E

PERTH, S. R.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.).

s?.idp îtoýolp 9 Lnoqaubuyaxp .&0z1 doi~~fimo j« epm Xpuoo&c

umq l oal!so Iewa ut uoiWîundod _________________

1 lwggztJ v -nb»ya ouvp R.nlil gap M CM

68-10
0 A PgQ!AOU ýL4q1 110 SJOIOA JO J.ýqLflfl

ipv ut pallod fflA
DI uopyo.4qquoci îj

SilUO 8 ÎO l fi

*uoiqîtqol
4sumft1 puIR'.xo; uois
-TAIq MUI[IOl IqW M

Pait(ýd S9IÏ0A 10 J'3Itflý

sgu,nq ep 1.tqU&oAr

paltode JO jqnn
miulnq ap i tl'og

pale9. joaa9quU . .

ai 11i43UIgpLOt)
0,1 Sap Imfl0 'À.quLoA2

' u0!u

1 -uotiq!qoJl joj

zo
E-

E-
z

zo

.

"- - -4 P-4

C4 -4 =0 "d'( h0'-

>

CrL

--- sO 0

PETERBOROUGH, E. R.

A. 1899

4D I

01

S4

Pei~



Prohibition Plebiscite.

S~..'-4 .

.*. .1

o p.q I
'-"-4 ~

. ~ '-4 I

Za

0s

O 7

PETERBOROUGH E. R.
(Continued-Suite).

o2 :1 Goa-~ Ml e t-

z

G- O

.~ . . . . .

PETERBOROUGH, W. R.

oM



62 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.)

z
0
g-

~a.sip n.~~apa/k/oan bnp p uo.ilr)iidoJ

umioqs Se1 S;IUa1fllrEu03 qale U! uotiliud-)d

iflaa~1poJ.(> Il brj. gu np g.1n'gaâî Rap

,ci

-I

0

pq
CD

e1

mo *îi!qoid<)J njq~uw. p oe
jnlo'i uoîîooi ap pamags iu~u qinc J

k *Up ,?Oql l)qiqo4 *uoql

-[A!(J 2uilloj lqoua 111-
pailod i~ Jo. Ioiuq mi N *mîtqq .1c>jI

h

h

nu

,~ -~.

- ~c -

~

,~ Q

PETERBOROUG,'H, W. R.
(Continlued- Suite).

A. 1899

'o

~

sidj.410 pas0IIa aq 110 )0<~ JOaIqiuflx

g/.DU u.pîî q ip a.t(jweox

Spalaafa.i Io îiaqun

qzpme ui pailed C:aoA jo J.,ÇJuititi TWe0.I



Prohibition Plebiscite.

el ~ g,, t- m C-me

,-4 -. ,-4 -.1 .0t _ l- 0 D C

. Q

. . ... . ..

o

PRESCOTT.

97
20-7

e
h

a

'e
Sa



62 Victoria

-4

0

~4I

0

1"4

0

,0

Sessional Papers (No.. 20.) A. 1899

* l_________il

î?.dn<,p Ivool 2fJbfoi Pnbwju ap uon»iP1doj

*snsuao Islg[ X
umo4g im <oualilsnOo iqat ui uoi4vlndod

qU1IA< 2U1110<1 14va ut l
-&isJaOA P0@iAý1J 01P UO IJaO JO JaqTuIfn ______________________

spn»w uu1igîlnq p a4qiom( :.àI r,~ ,

_______________oiivg pallods jota1quing

*inoljwg paia,4?Ço1 JO jaqmn.

lflbDj3 ~up 2?uoP l?1oî 817 ep 3O ittat qgý oiÇI 

qDw~ ut P011O<' snOA JO ~11l ~O
*uoquio.i n

-0flpUO.& enbwp1 8t»p -

-îqîqo I;ae., ____ ____________ ____il_

PailOd 
8
alA JO .IgO.lttl uoll!qlqojJl ljOI

z .

> ... .. .. ..

z

o -D

oc==='O cQ

.99 0

PRINCE EDWARD.



Prohibition Pie biseite.

(c niud Suite).-

-. 4 ~o e~ctaOz

COD r-1.4 - -

OC~C~. C Co~ ~ i0t~. O~I-~C~C
-4

C~ C'~ '~< 10 C t- ~ C~ O 4 ca c~ .4< 10 C b- ~ -.4ca

z

s
ai ~

O

~ ~2~

RENFREW, N. R.

99



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

<

uI q eVt~ KGuoanýpsufoC) nipnja up ttoti3DndoJ

îto0tmoa ap

*UOISIAIqj 2U!ILOd qDo8a Il! sr
CD w81

0 A pas1AQfl.*JP 9 -1 
9 1 0 A 30JeUI

oe S~LP3~ ut1j.lnq ap 9.IQI(tov&

gnvq s Upsuop sa;o.a Rep ppe0 aq'uitOp

UOISIAI(j .8UiI10J

1 4Dffl ut Peii(I 9'al 0A JO q"' MIW

-Rpot anboya Ru»p-
Ospuuop g4o ip 9.tqmov milî

MO - 1!01d~S11

Ce I suXWv1 pu'9 .10J mis0 0u0o* t) t1O

poillq od 10 ia9 Ut - N I

zz

p >
10

0 z o o
O ~ E~àU

0

~ I I RENF~REW, N, R.
I (Continued-Suite).

100



Prohibition Plebiscite.

~t

csi

K

ens
• I

.~~~ ~ ~ . . . ..

~a

too

Mc-

RENFREW, S. R.



62 Victoria

,0

P-4

%0

-'-4

P-4

,0

1,

P'4

91

:a

.14

oP
kC

0,

o2

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z
Lo

A. 1899

sId<ýpp.oî»la.6ô?floo gnbio op uOflDndoJ

enetîuej levi atp Xq j
umoiqs wÇ ouonl!lsuoo rpve ui uoî;wIndoI

*"O14O' op
;ttmanpLo.t. Pnbvq suvp st.4l? sap

Peyo-&. P;ut) vlmo spzot39 sjnpîâa?p P.&qULO*g

49.Ie40A Pç3m!AO Otp UO 81-nOA JO J9aqung

.Rlfl3Dfl eU.lplIlq -op a9tUON
'-4- .

______ le paÇoia jo 19quint

.Uotîn7oa op îumegg!8WU.t.iv

qm ut Pk: 1 iOd sal0 A jo jaqmnN tWV)oL

.m od uoi2»Motp 1UL9 j- 2 1
fÀ VIL j)u.qUO3 e e*4-441-4ML 1- mC C 0 ý

7t.puo.i.o Pnbunp R2LDp
8?UUOP S.-O0a op 349tUO,& *UOi

Co P-4 le 0l.smUN~ pu' .1OJ mis *zqvo.*c VI .tnoj ~ 49qtC a 44e cl2-
-IAIQj 2uliUod lq3v; lit <- --- ' ''-IO4

P9'iiL- %ý JO i941u1n urjqoij.o

o

z

z
22

o
22

-

.~
y

- ~q ~ ~4 &~ t~ t-ce c~ ~

t)

o

t)

O

RUJSSELL,

102



Prohibition Plebiswita

*

-4

I~

-4 :

se,

P4

~IW

:ce

a

Sg

.~e ?

Z ~E

RUSSELL.
(Contipued-Suite),

103
8-4



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

0o

04  
-

- mq mAO4 ou oUet1Isuoq ilma ui u ____ __________

Ifflî2nOa -P

auoassipuo.t.t inbDju euvp m.nýauap sop C4- 00C -C

*UOiSTAI(J Sullol qoto ut 1r

4

Jo .8?1.nama sutafn" ap aqutog m

p4  UOtpfloa ap mwtwgpu.&4» -

onbi timp 9?uU'op ga& Sap lmo al,12li0N 00(lC A q-

_q.1v ut P01od OP
0 A JO àOqmnX MIut 1__ _______

ao ( uotIvîjotgi o lai.i3 S 0 =uezGo~~~~ lob-~l>oapuua -vio.unJaquo Ce -44-41-4r

O uaPuuop Saloa iap .Lq1uo*U0
P4 1

P. uoiltqtqojJ uo
isi2 pBUU3S P«.1OJ* mOis ?.?Io.d VI inj n C' t- S00e92C

I P1I0d sàýOA jo jaquitixn I . ou!qiqoJlj o _____ __ ___________

z --- - - -_ _ -_ -__ _ _

C)Cs
G)<

Etc
0) bcWz===o

115 z0o

o 104



Prohibition Plebiseite.

cq m

vlmI~

I

I

4

o
8.t
14

g

h

Q.

Il

00 ec* 4

. .. . . . . .

eZ4
~- ~ 2 r2

SIMCOE, N. R.
(Conftnued-Suite).

-4- 4-4- 4 -ý q ,< j-

*~~~~~~ '- -. . .- - t

o

SIMCOE, S. R.

.~- +~~J2~

105

0



62 Victoria

$i

F-.t

ce

o

0

1:4

Smsional Papens (No. 20.)

?.&dllp ivie;.gglj 1fi?IZOa gn.bvlnp op uonrqncloj

41AmUqs im Xauanl!suoo qaff ii uoiWîendd I _1

luflfl "Dl .*n g13uv 8.f3149pt ?O

m.mtu su piq op aiqwio£g

Sp.al!ods JO .aim
c~ *~ *,-. . .

*gJ.ivap gulia~lIq op aLqlaog

-siolj43çJ "Dora JO i;>q

.rnb»yp SUIp syUOP stp sop ?22ol aiQUtOJJ tO

qaff u! pellod sioA JO .i)qmnu linoL1
-uo.zrr-a.iod vj a.13114) Io

ÀLfO< UO'71jDîO op Iew

-k.pu.I.&D amlflflj3 suvp
àruuop gqýwop i3qlJ A

113IU2,u pu .10) UOI¶1
.11 ~!I0a iqatg ut

1,1o "OA 10 -1ç4qu1ux

z

44

.1ýioddc Pl À4LO, DC'

-uotl!qqoidjoa0

o-z-.

o
E-i

s-

J

4,-4 ,-< t-

0

SIMOE, S. R.
(Continued -Suite).

A&18

O

a

o
h

g
h

h
0

tt

77



Prohibition Plebiscite.

ï = , e g

_-4 "4 - 11c P-4 - cIM4r , 4 ý4 P1-

Cg4

CO ~D 5- ~ O -
1-4 1-4 - 1-4 1-4 0.5 0.1

k

O

o O c

c 0

=m c'P~~ --

S- , -m -
.9 ~~ ~D E.4O

SIMCOE, E. R.

107

k

~ ~

~
~



62 Victoria Sessional Papei's (No. 20.)A.19

;o

0.

0e

a,

21

-ÎUlU$i2lj3a .ti * iLJp a?
2?40P 12d~3~? ,?fon b".9 op Uo2îîoldoJ

-,nguao. ýSC ;q XCq
um0qs su sallaiWsu03 4"q? UT U0iifln(I0J

ll').3ugSzpio.tiv gfuIp oUp Ran Jp79 .ep Cre cl -r-D =

uotiM oc~ cq~ ut; 1-

pna 1 2L lo f1lS~ava JqUfl

-sýo0jpf pal!xTs JO .~1U

atdhflj3 çu»p Rséuiop

naut panlod Salo
m loi pq? 0 I)jo i;.Iltoa lai

-Ripuo.t.iz detbvija gurq
01saiulop gajoaL op a.Lqul

PQmjod sajoA jo in)qw

-"4

0

fil~

o'

OQ

a? ulîoljq -tp 9J4(jUIOAT

.4P*àqli>l,% l'eluOg ,

-. JjLd V lulJ

'N uoijiq!qojd J0,4

O

z

-ý cq

>l

HC

SIMCOE, E. R.
(Oontinued-Suite).

108

-e

rr~

H
H

K I
K

i o'

A. 189962 Victoria

Io JID ln



Prohibition Plebiscite.

b3 
e

e7e

1-4 t Dt - 1 -t -4 c

Cqc c c cq m Mtm

2 -

. .~ .-.. .... .- -. 0. .

TORONTO, Centre.

o -

109

109h



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z

pÎuau&jgtaa~.t£.3lu4p ai
R?.idvp Ivtoioalp lfi?llou nbzp ap uoflDmfdoJ 1

'snsuea isi 914i £q
umoqs lm £ouanl!luoo 4qoue ui uo!ifldoJ'

*uo Ipoa -p

GgSalOA PasiAGej 9111 UO s.E9GJOA 10 Jaqmfl __ ________ _____

.Rifiu g/uiîlînq7 ap P.tçmo0 :mm.

*sioUlilq POI!'s JO jaqung

8sloitvg pqjo4aîe JO .xaqunn z

e8oas» ?UOP gio.i gap fLnoi aiqvuw

qoea UT Paj1 od SaIA JO j';qmnK pnoj

uotnoa4 a uouas1-YÀ î 9.utîuog

.tflouop s'on~~un O9d aa?

*uo[l!!q*io
48U!%X1E puv .IOJ UO!S -iqiyoiJJJ n* 0

PalIId salA Jo jaWmnN I uotl!q!qoJio j_______

I C

> .. ..z
.o

.E- . . . . .
. . . ..-

s
Q

TORONTO, East, (Est).

11 (

A,. 1899

=Io e 0 =S -4 4 C 4 CI

z
z

z



Prohibition Plebiscite.

Rcoc .4

C t- -w

toe

2.. .. . . .ï

.... .m

....

g.

TORONTO, East (Est).
(Continued-Suite).

il



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

>

gýadD,~p 2Ob? aiioa anbznp dp tio.?v)nidoj

jumoqs su1 Xoaxia suooj qole u. o~qdJ _____

Sà,)
0

A Pala 9(4i UC) s-JDOA JO JýqwuIf

-soultt peI!uIs jo Iaquing ___________

*sloile pelaf.i jo aaqLuin 1 c

gnbrnj) mU1? R2jup g)o(b

U1(

qDaUT__paDI SOOA JO

'uolijoc dql) ptU~4~
.01od Uu Woî,~ Pp ZU&VLaR
-gt1puOJ.tD aibD1Jy4 RUep,

isu!13âu puv iO UOIS

PiI 
1 I0 A JO .Iqtuf1lN

-uWot4qtd ) .foj

z
O

* E-
z
o

z ~

o -

o

g tn - g-

.- . .C~ . . . .

., .~ . .- .

s

2

TORONTO, West (Ouest).

A. 1899

t ~

2
t)
~

112



Prohibition Plebiscite.

*~~O S *k . .24 ~ ~ ~ C

M

c'e e, 113 c c



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

gad, îo.topil ;jI o nbDyj rp uoioîndoj

umoqs i4 Souanl!louooj rpe ut uotivtidod

UOIIAI Xut11 od qog-i Ut 13r
,9jý>OA pLq.b UIf sbn0 S.A JO 1iaýul 1-'

I r.talnamut eîpn p PaQUZto

* *s~0II1~1 peipde oJXlI

-RÎIO su.1îanq a*p g.IqlOm4

* *s~1II11flp~oap o qnn

-umbrnp .,v p pfflupip -l.tquog

qoWG ut PallOd SalA p 1UhI1O

~19~Op23~~l p tog !

lsu!v2aB pu% '1OJ uOlS païjOJ Cl.nj~

Pall0d ffliA 10 laqmtN -uoiliqlqoiJ ioà

o-c

o

._ _ .E

Mr
E-~z
o 'i~
o
E~ ~

or.)

TORONTO, West (o)uest).
(Continued-Suite).

114

A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite.

t-

~ k~C~O I
t-k~~

-

c.

e»

o

o
h

g

1h
- -
g'
bi 0g'

- -

.~, -4
'g

TORONTO, West (Ouest).
(Continued-Suite).

m CD - t- L-t t

cqt D 4t <ý kf0 t-e 0 an r.4 Ct- 0 -

Cq Cq

Ln =-- " m~ - - = -1 = 4 --4Z e ;

p -f --4 - - ~ ~

- e a ''

.~~~~. . .=.3-o : . . = . ® .

' e.- o u - - .4à 0 r12

115

VICTORIA, N. R.

a

. . . . . . . . . . .



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

.tjdop jvioî,)gp afU3?i gn bvyi l) .oe3vLL4> Ijl

umoqs Sv Xuofl!qsUOo qate ut uoilvîndoj
1 i pO p

pe9int 3ojtS i .802 o Ru.21L 846333)p 3?u

mU0!lI lU1od lim
0 

Ut si
ii 4

9nOA POIA6L Hq4~ uO s-JýalA 10 .6lIUfng

g?îive? sUpe3lflq ap pUlaOAT

*UiJO8ap JUî1îlW894t1LO.8.t

V nfb1flf su1p seuip gaîo.a Rip pqoJý 3qJqm

_________ ot sjo j .I6qtufZle4 1~

.8,1. uo.&.&Z» 3flbrn/ ;up
R?UUOP 83joa .p 9.191MAJ mi

*u0lt!qit40«jJ
j.sutUs, pu'e *1ioj mis
-làM âutUlod 143%) ut
p;oi1od scal_ jo J6qmnfl

z

zo

D6

.Uoýî
-?qyO.dd VI dflOJ

CI "-

41

* Q

* 4

* . 4
* . e

* h
:4

* .~ ~

* *~ tt

VICTORIA, N. R.
(Continued-Suite).

116

A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite.

12g -ss a ecq ~ s -- ar Z >

ClC

.oo

:cq

z 7

VICTORIA, S. R.

s

1 17



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z

-jgsuog attttap 91

umoqs eV suanl!qguoa tlav ul uoq4ilidoj

apgz4t. i v y, . ya spOuZp 8no~pI.9pO

'U0!STAIÎJguil 4U10va ut3 Uti

6Sja40A PaS!AellR4~ 110*8-J'IO0A JO .I8quhng

s-ofljnev P',&I!1n ep etqunM

F sI401[tvq pa qý. Jo Jaqun *

F~
4  

uollpîo.i Ip îlliuaggptiO.UP

-nb-vqi suptp gR9uUO geO. SInJfO~~~LO'

lq-iv L<~ut PaIM<) salA JO .iàqtun,ýI MI'u
VeUP.?o.id »I 9.v..oi p um

S4-gtwlot'& anbvi o uvp-
0O MUop sl. qp a.qwopUOrI

02t-tqtold is ____

p i uB .1qi ois !Jtd~ ~ ~ ~~~9I- VI JI IJUi ??fd ;.noj r
-îAItq .8uîloj q0ffe Ut *.

I pliodm SGJOA JO jgquIflg JO

m ~ *-g i m e t t-

CI " oc a =0

z

z

11

. . . . . . . . . . . .

WATERLOO, N. R.

A. 1899

'z z c-1 A & -,0
f-4 '-f " m V-1



Prohibition Plebiscite.

g - - -q 0 t-c

GO

z e

WATERLOO, N. R.
(Continued-Suite).

-I r~. .q-4 *CM *-4 r-

oc- - 1 CI]-

cq t

z

E-1 1

119

o

o

4.-

z -~

o

o

WATERLOO, S. R.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

- mq oaýpuo aau uoriqndoj ______

.4vloa ip
l uawetpuo.&v aibnbil Rnvp g-nîji tep C

i)w j pîst vl tit RîMigui gs .a îpp PiqLo - ~ -

r~ f i UOiSIAiQ 2u1[[oj itqe@ ut t
c;n pOSIAeO{ aqp uo o.iqn_______

-o?lniw gut.191PUi p C.qULOx

«souiva ped Io 4î)qtun,ý

I s~~~-9orIvg polootgi Io jaquif...........___________

anboya guvp RUlwp Riloa gop IW4O) 9LQU&O

qaaut peiIo<I saiA Io jaqtit lin~oJ~_

iluod UOzîîot »j Duo aiuoa 'en

O ?UUOP pi i p at.tJof 'uOi

st u o qitoJJu

-là (J 2u!lloJ ilv ut uo 1qo ioj et______ 1______M"__"0

oe IK aO 0Jqà, " o
-CM-

P41

- x

5.4 A.

0 
'

WATERLOO, S. R.
(Continued-Suite). z

120



Prohibition Plebiscite.

9--4-sa4sa- à4 c-4-4-s 1 e

* . *C~3~'l .4 - * * .~j *~4L. ~4 .

--- 54 -4 -4 r-*

-j-P-4--4 Li-4-4

: t ,,

î

Fiv~

WELLAND.
(Continued-Suite).

121

ri~
-3-

*

-4

I

:4

~,

E~ ~

-~ tt
O ~i

NU

tt Z tio



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z

umoI4s fT? SOUE)nlsuoCo qzoc ut uoilutdod

t~Lltg g»Jgwt Sinolagip1 p a.tqwogf

*IO!STARJ 2uhulod qaPo "ý qsri
c<&01A pffltAei *9qý uOý sJiolA JO x;eqwng

Rfnrn u.talnq ap .tqlttLog

9OIdpellods JO jaquinm
s~.vap~utp~qap bq1ao1 T

s ",ji 3p aCfi Io ti)q(unm
-uo t;oo. ap iu po.o

inbtnji supp gt~uTopJ2Ot Rap Imo a.Uq1LoA

-UOISTAI(I 2u! 1 1 0j:
UTv ulPalOd sd4oA JO; J1fUIfn. MOJ,

C., 1-1M P-S-4

ce

to

Co

a

0

.1-0

4

6nru0%pqUj0J op l~uoau~

-R.Îpo.t.t* inbDf3 guvp -

i;.uuoup Rdoa ip < lqqOJ V __ ___ ______

-uoiliqi4oj *ot
r49u!1V.3 PU-0 JOJ UQIS -?tq.d DI noj
-pTaq 2UOJT10d Pflut 1

PI salOA JO <awntN 1 -uoîl!q!qoaj .O10,________

z

z
o

E-

z

s:
2

z
M.

WELLINGTON, Centre.

122

A. 1899

-. 4

ýi 8 ý2 e = 0 e ý; 2 -4 iýý eý t- 1ý = -4 m 'eml '*Z L- = 00 t- oc CD R " M ýp 00
r-4 1-q -4 1-4



Prohibition Plebiscite.

e

125

8 i

'WLLINGTON, Centre.
(Continued -Suite).

-4-4-4-4-4-4 -4~4-4-4-4-4-4-4~~

* . . .- 4-4 .

'fi ~O ~O t-- ~D ~ .-4 O~ C~ ~O t- ~ ~
-- 4-4 -4 -4 -4 -4 -4 ~4

oz
* . ~.
* . ... ~ ~

* .~ 4

* z
.-: :~:

.. ~-- 4.~

- ~-- ~

~

o

WELLINGTON, N. R.
- o

a-

lfý e = = " = S (Il ý! cq " S = =
" 00 ., " " -4 r.-I lý R



ý62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

:1:

ti: e

o

~azjaîRpuo. &norn s sjauv,

*U0191AIqj MUIll

t uajoA pos.AaU{ iq,4 UO S.X

______ 5V)jpq pal

arnbofle Ruvp~ Siuuup oa;.%

1 I pol.Pat[Od sal
0

A JO

-SflîiLo.t l)l a>tibtin 4U

opultop Rso0 ~P 9i.lqwtoAj

lsuisui" pue '.o; mOis

pellId s;nA jo 1-tIUfl_

zi

o

t-

'?p Ifip uOv~p ÇdO

a u uoîit-ndoi
*uofiDoa ap ,~:~ .4

j 1qve U! ýsVrj

)10 A JO Idqu'n,

îý)IJn U n .. . . ..uo

pfiq w'p tiqiog

aafaa~ jo ja- I

-ui! uq , oj

-iq4oj suî ~ ~ _______________________ ___

UOl

16

*uo!~qtqoJ .O~ ._._._._._.

6----------------------

Iz...........
††††

hî

z .-

;AZ~

WELLINGTON, N. R.
(Continued-Suite).

124

A. 1899

.Z .

-' -4



Prohibition Plebiscite.

c~

o

tý çy- 00 t-M Z4

ClC'

8p -

e

-o o o d

WELLINGTON, S. R.

125

M ~ CID 1 , CI tN ,.~-,.4 ~ CI

'a

u
b,

'~

~ au



62 Victoria

0j

-.

4a3

.0

oý

F-f

1:4

0

t-4

0

t
04

Sessional Papers (No. 20.) L. 1899

so.&dvp poloaap abllo) inbunp ap UO!jvindoJf

*Snsuo j« aq
umoI<s im¶ SCuaniwisu0o qaca ui uoitnd:) _

UO1S'A1 'UI o ?J14 0J a

cs
8linA pasiAeH at{p uo s.ia4oA Io jýqiUflK

*Sf11lVJ g-.1ipWb9 Pp atquiox

solt, papÇ. lo iýqin

anbuji gu»p j;?1UOP RG'O.l& Rp 1Î01 ýýjqwOç

*UOS!AI ~UIO
4ua Ul P-MO(I iiaOA j0 .IaquTflu Ieloj,

.tnod uo.i)jo(t qp p.-ag lJïUd n
-R2ipu042Dv gflboa guvp-
g?UUOp sajoOi 1) gÀ.qitoArpii

-S!.vpr 0 oi jqýqoÀd DI UUn*,o
-I' uoiqar lloAd

pai11od s;ý>j&A jo 10qmn *uoll aoa

z

<

E-
Z

= 4 t- z.- î ~ *cq ge- I. I

.-------------- -------

WENTWORTI4, N. K.,
AND BRANT.



Prohibition Plebiscite.

- .~ . CI

___ n
t-

flr~
I~I -

4

h

g

h

- -
hh
§0
.", .~un

WENTWORTH, N. R.
AND BRANT.

(Continued-Suite.)

t-' . yt-c ' . - - 1 -1 - 4 .

-4 - 1 r- -4 - l 4 q C" o

z

cg2

WENTWORTH, S. R.

z

127



Ru.d»,p 2vtolael? gb?lloa ënbi)q ap uioîjnd(oi

Iumoqs svS~ ouatVllsuoo qa; U! uoilvldodI
UlMýO.L a/)

luenii.-sspuoÀtiv anbvqo ou7>p1 mnalail àrp

l1~~JOA *UTSAIj uqjoj ilv ut!sr
'FO0 Pis!Aoù *a4ý uo SJênA jo j.4qlUf$N

à;itipl< 8~~lln9 ap .t91uox

-woiieg pni1iOdS JO jaqur

anbmji sri<uDp e?uuop eqýoz ggp flîOý atqînug

iiqiR u pq1od si4
0 A jo jaqmný, 1,6 0j,

-stpuo.taî anbirn suvp
Ig.luuop Riloa ap a.qu*oAr

-IA4j MUilUod ilone UT

Uop

*uo"JI

I.u014[qiqOjJj O

z0

I.

z- ~
;42

> ~'

cq in

'D m I. -r 00 c
t-M Cq I

. . . ~ .

>

oETORH S. R..

(Continued-suite).

128

62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 189f



Prohibition Plebiscit,

. .. . . .. . .1 .~ . Y E R.

11

.qe ..- . . . . .

oz
E~E-i

129
20-9



62 Victoria

ti

0

.0
9.
P4
ce

Po

CD
P-

004

ci

of

o1
k

0

0.
t

Sesional Papers (No. 20.)

>

M xe

umoqs im Xoua1n!lsuoo qove ut Uo1 Indojl

m lttu#puo.L anbui auvp tisniap~ vup

*UOISIATIq &tuittOd I<OUT Ui
to8JaloA pe8iAeèù à4q U6 U040A JO -.14uanx

*spnnia ouflajptq p aupuo0
_____ oiiea pood JO-u

Ut pejjod peaeff JO J8qUUt In 0

----- *u -0- M-0am 4atOME uo

inbviUp toa vp .qu ;o, U0Pm aqo

PeIO utA Joio sI94Ufl *otIqinOIvio

r. z J

,-4..~4 *~ *cq *~* ~q
'1~

~D~AO~

t.- o.
~j 1-

~

3

o-----------------z----------------

* I.

I.

g;
o

I.'
o.

I
2 z z z z
o

o

Q

YORK, E. R.
Continued-Siiiteî).

130

A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite.

tje

-~ 4§

cq "8PrdW40$22E ie

. . . . . . . . . . .
. . . . . . ~. .,-

: a : : : : : : : . r .4 •

. R . .

131-

o a 8 e e a a e 9 a e • 8 8 8 • • ia g e • .e a a a e e e e e

Z -a

~C

e en
YORK, N.eR

131



62 Victoria Seçfsiopa~l Papers (No. -20.) A. 1899

IIz
>i M

,snsuao j" aq S
uos~ w ouonl!lsuoa qava ui uotVendoj

UaU9pu..&D >nbînq sunp *?qDp~
9?gylu.t Ps17 DI7.4flt irî.toeut gdn >4'7al?.&IUg

*UOISIA1Ç(j âUlÎIIOJ 43a2 ut ls!rq N
&OIAPO@!AOH âqi uO &IalOA JO -iaqinN

efnnemm sutpfl7ug ap ,LÂZUioA

*inOi¶1Ç pood JO laqw - fl-
2.gnVtp gutîalnq p aquoK

*W4011va pEnDatei Io .I1qiufl ý

9ýtbrnp 2u»p #?uuop raoa sep 2mo 9.tqmAy eSIZ e 0 kiP

qaut pallod sEnoA JO iaqmnK~ IwýOI
Plij~ m i;uoo le *UoLpq

-afloi4v en bip Punp
Rpt&uop 81»a pp io.taoAr *u I ______________________

"Sit- S p.2 to àP4 pqrt4 e ý e '-el M" c,-4

-I' 2uniod I1ota Ut-
PllIO' sOiA JO 'OqtuflN UO14q!lqoàd JOJ

o-z-

......................o

-Q

z

.11 2

-". CC% 00 -1
4-4



Prohibition Plebiscite.

: :

e 2 e8S f2 =

m ~ ~ ~ ~~~~- q t.':Ae 4 e e 3

. ~ ~ ~ a < t. . . . . . . . . .
. ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ < .D .Ot .- .- .- .- . .. .. .. ..

YORK, W. R.
(Continued-Suite).

133

-t - - -

O:

~

O.-

IZ 
.



62 Victoria $fflionwi PYpens (No. 20.) A. 1899

0l
Zi
:az

f4

09pwrn qupn àp 2?O e e .41

sio ptiaHoq u~od iAo jaqurn . __

oe 9~~~.L2jn0v putinIlpq Pp iii.L9IOR. .

sioliv "a>arai JO q U.. I
Uo;mé ap luai 9ggtpuo"LJ

anbvyo mup ouuop oala sap IÏo .qsowg

1qleUt peIIod sýnoA jo .1oquIUg leo

0 ? *PuaOa apqiqloJ .110!4

124 ___ *UEtqqJ J0U[ _____________

VI jti

z >

0 p

z .O.R. . .

f-4

.2

134



Prohibition Plebiscit.

QUEBEC



62 Victoria Sessonal- Papers (No. 20.)

z
c

o

R.jdv,p 7jwtO33l? abtil Pflbiflqp t Uo.luldoJ

«Soefla joIaq X?

UOISIATfI Dan4 2U10<){O9U

eufflgt. pmÀt anbeq suvy onq ap .s1O>

_______Ot,,'U tt SOç PlOd JO lý4WflN

'R?Ît»a? Ruit jl9 apgtqmULO

*solîv£g paiboti Io jaqun.Lý

.0

V

ce

4à

4

e

1Âot3inoa Pp luutaggpuold.v
27tbinpq ouip suuop gl. 8oýp 2lflO e?.qnto»4

iquat pellod ffl;A JO Jumn" [OI

,"?o D2o~
PiIod u9lv;.A JO lu-io -q,0( » .lo

-et ptoÀ&v nbyj u z
RUop epae 2&97oe

z

z

h.

&Z~

o

p~ -C

>

ARGNTEIL

13

~D C~ k~ - ~

~o 
~ 

~

P5 -4- q

c

A. 1899

Cs e "..0a....R.a...



Prohibition- Plebiscite.

'-4 ~

osi~~~~~ cc. *q~.- . 4 .g R

t .
2388 0 32 & , W Co-

- ~ ~ t-oc c~ ~ oc ~. a~ ~ t-OC
'4 - -~ -' -

40w

I

a o
o g

Egce .
o a

r* .a16d~

BAGOT.

137

:5o

* o

* . 40

40* o
* h

I

~

E~ ~

------ ---------- a- --



,62 Victoria Sessional Plapers (No. 20.)

z

2g.&dvp iD4O;l)aaâgOo anbmnpa ip t1À7DjdO

umoqs su Xauonl!lsuoo q0fl U o!llndo&l

UOrDo PUp I
utsg j V &ne nimp 2ILg nal3 eÀPlONc

*pU. Uf ll RA( â2i2JoUt U.tna ut ~qnto
&ýSalOA POSIAOU~ 0q uo siffA 1j aqSux __

____________ ojjvi papods jo .aqtUlI

anb"e sm»p gmuop sie g2p pjoM aiuiof

qw ut pQIIod salA jo> jequifN IWio1 _______

*"eeqtjo.idvi i-euoi p *Uo.t?q
.&ouîo, ppîê -. ijo.td m~ "O t4 C4

m1U.L>~bvuip gu»ap -0-

lfUuop 901o1 Qp P.quog O!

-!q!qoia 4su!8s _______

.luovl qa"J~ Utl

-IAU uqo IU iUTqi - . .

z

. .' ~ .) . . ...

> . . .~ . . .

BEAUCE.
CD

138

&. 1 b9 11



Prohibition Plebiscite.

__ IS2amestss ___

- i-q i-e ,E e-4 i-< i-4 -

roiA Zjt ta2 -ï - oe0, t

8 I ___

Q

o
h

u

subU0

0Q

-. .~ 

pexu

à e.

;>ci

BEAUCE.
(Continued--Suite).

13

gO, = =~ C§ gP- P-4 ~ c

c

.00.

x i

Þ

:"~

1 ce

AO .>

:ciy~

.0
-o.,

o



62 Victoria

e
01-

o

1.4 ý4v liî

0
.14

-0

ýk

~ P4~ ~P

Sessional"Pap

z

'? injoia nbrnja op uofl»jncfoj

-snsui3)ao aq stu j
ianl!luoo I{cwo ui uot4-endoj

v irnb"vi Rupp R.nýj p
.1ng R;Me#rtt. RiPlýupj equ&oAr

IOtSIA!Uj mulqoj 4cVa ut iI
91 q O fug40A JO .iaqtrnK

-xPiii4m ml1pflnq op m.14wg

*sloiiiçi pellods jo .Iaq, 1

Brse (No."20.) A. 1899

CD --. i=2ïn -0~C M- -4 -4 ".4 " -4 e -- 1-1 M

.~ .- .,-~ .

t.0fiO91 gutlaflfl op a-qutox

*80 1l1fI poquerai JO .vquinN

.UO~O - go p Pi1Ua2*ZfJtO"UV I
Reuop gao o lino a.q'p r"x e 1~o

10(1 it( *U!SAU IMOd -. -4-
I(l 8 oA jý4munN 1v6Io __

e.qito p

mp sumap

"'qJ UOW

jo JibqxuIfl

-UO!q!qJ4suma

ZcZÊ

lt,,t-tt o-,mei

V-4 V-4 4 -4

~z

45

U2 - - -e

o

'a

o

h

n

o'; .~ j'

I. *~ *Onu
o

1-4 ~

BEAUHARNOIS.
(Continued-Suite).

I.

j 40



Prohibition Plebiscite.

~
-4-4 ~4-4-4-4 -4

.. ~ ****.~**.,.4

C~C~ ~ t-
C~I.-4t-

t=-~ ~ ~ ~~~~t 1-1ecLleUct " 0

* -qa cq *1

__ ___ -i ýê .

Ur. . . ... .

o

o
h

- ~
g'

tt
oo
77

BERTHIER.

141

t- eet-~ ~

"SI-4-44 M 4 M4 -

*t-~~ .- 4 .~

4 .~ . .0 . .- . . . . .

Mz

Mr 0

BELLECHASSE..

=



62 V ictoria

0

-'4

10-4

ce

P4

1"4

*0
Pd

0

0

.0

o4

Smesional Papers (No. 20.)

c

uý.dv, Imlia? eeii ~a nbpyep timlldoj

jumoqus su Sz>tanl!lluoo 40ffl UT uo11vîndo

*UOÎSIAia 2 utilOd 4uv U. 8t
tgJwnOA PO@!AE>U iý4 uo 1u'n

0A JO .I)qumnK 1
*2?pOVU srn~nqap 9491140g

snoîgp jiods joJiafq

-sioHug ~ J pe4aWfi joiqmx

* .cq.........~4~d -

.1.~I
-~~~~~ ~ ~ ~ 

t.- lî)o, PTt-7aRýuÀe

*Uoi Li1(j âuitoa0
1401 Ui pallod s

0 a j tnlo 1O _ _ _ _
A ~ 10 u~' -'n MO

~eutuau py ~io 1 1 -!iqiOd ;l .~nd

-TMGvâ pUqO .1019 UTi ?qv -ic VI .4 I

P0110d s,ýOA jo .aqmuiýý uoUt OJ ~ ______ _________

z
c ..

z x ..

ti. . 4

':

BELLECHASSE.
(Continued-Suite>.

cI~

A'-

142

&. 1899

9



Prohibition Plebiscite.

t.

-.4

p

. . .® . . . . ...

.Z b z

U t-

Z ~ ^ s ss

BA To

* hs

* ~ ~ o

MM0

BONVENURE

143

4 - .

BROME.

8 t-00*tz198 C-2 4e



62 Victoria Sessional Papers -No. 20.)

'5
o

e

o?a«hà,p pmopaipàb ljaoo anbrja, aiPp flIlO

.rn§iueo q« i X q
uos~ su uanl!lsuoC) tqoia ui uoilvlndo<I

A. 1899

w'-4
ýUpaa8îptLoaa eltboi ouvp tniglial? 99P 1~~4 ~ 4

ee.tè alpZ7 vi .ing sp.ti)out otn aa,p e4qug '4OX ~ '- - - ' ----

isial
0 A Pas!A_i qi uôoqo J~O o~q

_____________ q pellods jo jý,qiflflx

.11in)o>oot ap ptioggpuo.t.iv

anb»ip 8top 81muwp Rapoa gip ?»Woî a.tqnwg I

qDeo) ut paIIod sa
0 A pjaqfn 11J

twzjz!q!,yo.id o> a.tuoo la 16o1pq
.Lnýdot1lonapu4ia -4j& P-4 r-4UO m V- C
*9.puo.lio anbrnpsup
?U.Uop 0,9»1 gp aiquLog *uo!u

P01IOd qa O iqn uotlýql1oij io, i

zz

o -

0. h

fzh

> . ~

j(Col

144

BROME.
rtinued-Suite).



Prohibition Plebiscite.

an~~~ -f -c mc-c L

L- x.- .0 .- M z r4 -i ~in oc...............

. . . . . . . . . .

c

A8

cc

c&

-

S ©¢

CHMLcNi VRHRS

20-10



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z

RfIJ P>Àojgaî l?îlOa pltbma ap 1"lDf

snsuo iwi a,4 ç
umoqs im Xouanl!suoa qo'eauuoitdoj __________

-4t

-o?flnavii& outzpnnq ep ejqU1Og *V-.*

* ~ i~u'apal!odi JO .wqîun~ K

R.v~ uîî,ý>lnq ep g.iqitog . .

o*tLOvDgOl vp lU31JL3 2a7flLO.L.1lm

qcme ut PallOd 8910A JO* !GmnN' !11

uoilvlo.i ap î.uoa fuoqi

-R!tpuo.&ÀD onin UUDp

gsauuop tai pp a.Jqîu0ço*u0r
- -~~!q!qoid 4S1i~v2 ________ __

li%6pu"loxi qo1J cqInP-
!MG~I rUTIIQ CIY~U - -

JOI S0 j b'qîîut *wvioJ O

zz

CHAMPLAIN.

I

146

£. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscita

es-Co- coo q

me

cq~

* Q

*i -
* Q

h

I t
e OQ
77

~ .~

~ ~

~
~ .~ .~ ~

-i~ r~4~ -r

CHAMPLAIN,
(Contipued-suite).

20-.10i

94-- 5U 9G 99e

8

0..,A

t. I~ *.~

147

• . 3 - a

= -4

>~--

CHARLEVOIX.

P- M -"0e e m- . -4- .q •

Ps



62 Victoria

0

$p4

P4

ci
CW

P,

o1

0
$-

0,

0

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z

s?.dvp ivj.9,91? âijfoi gnb»ya ip uo.?îrjndoj

umoils -v. .Caunnijsiioâ qia ut uotit 1 ndiI

utflwsgîppw.iv anbvaja gtiîp 8UO!pJlO?09P

UOISIAIU pU!110 14Yl UT11 8p.1ku

~'~OA ~1atq{ 110 w.4jý JO aidqzuflZ

'-4 '- 1~

.8?171.rnIL Ruýqnîq ap 9.lqltoK

-;1Ia pa 1rods jo -zaq tun
*ggî.ik)Ip g'lpfïlTq '?p 9.1(i ' '..O: 7

anbanp guvp g.?ýtul)O ggîo.'t gp jD0 aiqwov

t4Ova UT PaIo(l salOA p-)i'1A4qii11tojL

.uaod uolp4.a ap pallo, *qoad IL> z.po m

-apuo.UD knb;aja Rv op-
g?UUOP ggîO.z ip .voju0Tp

*uoi~qili0j4l *u o1q

-IAMG .8u!l0>{ qOla 1*1

paiIod sn0oý J n*1<r
1
zM ~ ~ ___

< ~ t

z

cn V

CHARLEVIX,

(-ntnedSit)

A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscita

S . . .

CHATEAUGU-AY.

149



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

<

4 >

s?.&dvep .to6xj 1 irnbrp ap uoilvîndoj

umoqs sv douenl!iouoo qome ut uotiwpidod
*uo1moa èf>

;uammri oa. gnblnj39 6gu3) g8nfliai gep

U0191A1Utn sipgtojnaqoal, 9LII r

csj0ýoA pasAraj oqi uo siolV)A JO ae.inxUf
8.ofln>mJ gutiaflnq -p p.qUO.

*sr4ll14f[ F>o!,Wd jo iaqmnK
*q?ýjia gwi3afq -P,?.tqiaog

,gnnq suvp Pt9UUop ggO'L ep îmo P.LqrnoA

*UOl4IAI( uio
4eut PI'>4 B010A J6 »tGqrnn14 IvI0J,

"u&mq~.i -qj Pl.&ýtW9oa uoq
.tnod uot 2)op >7 u01s Z?/OME VI~ 2J~tO
*Spuoi.uv a~iju" mtvp-
2UP »1o u7 94qfl.

*uovi qio. ",,Id
isuiv2w puv JO uoi .tqo« zj .noj

Paqlod SifflA JO J@4"'nN 'uoIIq!ojd 109

Z

z
Pt

4Z
Qz

o.

z

- ~ ~ ~ ~ c -4--4---

2"e-~o

&0> et -4 9 0

. ............

Az >--

>4 ~ ~ ~ ~ e P ~E~*~-

CHICOUTIMI AND SAGUENAY

150

A. 1899



Prohibition Plebisoita

0

-4-4 P-4 .- -1 P-4 -4C< r-1 -t- 44- m ý

.~a e

t- p ooIe t-~ 018 t- 4ee e

à-0 Po

bà

Ag

CHICOUTIMI AND SAGUENAY.
(Continued-Suite).

151



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z

12 O

<1<
12

o

jo~jîîir,loi allbP?/ ap uoîipidoj

umoljs siw Çz)uanl!lsuoa îptea ui uoîi4tndod _________

'UO IfflOd 1)2
ýUpmami~.puo..?> 2QlljaY sUrpj 0g »apil Rp lt- lnCet-Mà2

*UO!1iSAi 2UilIod Ilina Ut ISTq
CS£IOA P.1SIAývJ 'ýq uô sàOA JO *jýLUflý,TI

U2qfllD)ut 2lLyflfnq 1/2 iJJQViON .

*81
0IPta pel!Od JO l,)qu1n

ga Uiîgîjlq ai)) 2.qutOg

______ S~O~?apA.Vx4a. jo .aqtunn

apnboy gupp gauop g2ýo:t Rap jD»O3 3.MjUWog C et-e
ICZ t-'-I' L. - 00 L - t- t- t- t-. cce

'UOlSIAI(I ButIO
IpaUT pal) 8

9 0 A j
0

; iiýn *~k I __0____

R.îpftttu anb»yo ou»p
g2auuop ga0 ip g.&qut1~ uov~

*uoTliqilojJ *uoq
ISUVle p)Uv jO UOTS 1 t--0-à c 2 C~ ~-~t

P sIaiô~A JO iaqu[ln* *uoil!q!qJ jjjoL

121

. . . . . .

>

. . ~ .
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ . ._ ._. _._..

____ ____ ____ Q~ Q r..

à- I COMPTON.

1,52

A. 1899

ig t

e lS=k ' X -==ý

%à



Prohibition Plebiscita

t.-. r.-
t.-

? ýRte- ý2-LýS- s S

* .4 * - g m-~ * cq :

Z

h

g
h

tt

COMPTON.
(Continued-Suite.)

l-ý fq -8 !2

z

* . . .~ . *

ID-e~

DORHESER



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) à.1899

.0

Pl

U44  .. . .l o .

ce .1s RIl £ouanmsuo 4"q ut ou sIdo . .

m W,>IoA"tAal aTl uo-ia opjo apn

______ __ soîlg p~iaa _tjo .i73qmns ______________

2potlmoa iup)q w p al.? uo

I fLbDl3 oUvp 8?UUOP Soaî% #>-p îmoî aigeogi t 0M0 e C
0

43WU ~I 1A *O$AaUTOTI___

daauo palo fiontus -iqou4tv% nw jle

O #puuop R.1joac «I ztqlaov *u0lý

Pd ! SI!IO .c~ Ut .P.I 4 ýA Oqiiind uo1 q{.< .xaf.
IBU! '6 pv JO misC-

0 TI( eulo] oaà ýýodV to

-:C 9

z

-v4. . . 1

S-4
P.,

z
.~ ~ E-i

o~~~~ g/ I i __04

t DORCHESTER,
(Continued Suite).

00



Prohibition Plebisoitoa

. . . . . . . . .

m t- :zt- C-1 x2 2 t- c-~ 'Z9 L 8- eS, 2 p9% î4t

. . . . . . . . . . .

. ..... . . ..

> r > :vP

< >

DRUMMOND ANI) ARTHABASKA.

1 55



>

0z

4 g'Ry Puoivnn

Umoqs St' Sainmo ijt4OU ui uo!Iflndod

sdna)a)? Rgqioj

*Ui!Aq2uI<lod qDa~ UT s
SJ~~~OAý pSAfJ UO "u'aIOA JO 1qUl

~sjn»ut UR~~lfl a q4utWN

-sqoIIUf pal!ods jo jaquing
*8~VJq'. gitil)fl'q ip ).tqI£og

,~ I uOlîaîo.s ai) )ualugqglpuotsl
anbzvy. su»P Rssuuop sa2O0% Rap 7D)OI a.sqMOSi

-sipuot.9?tabrnp mUpP

0 ?Ilu) .oiq iqwm .uoil

~ISUtu UQIS .tqvo.* vj lno
dG~UIIt à i

04 1-

oz

zgz

.f i>
laoz

Oz

r

A. 1899

v
C' C,- - *-ý- .ýt-eý n-, ' I'it

t- %- =M ý

zi

s-a.-

20>

DRUMMOND AND ARTHABASKA.
(C ontinued-Suite).

X .

156

62 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.)



Prohibition Plebisoite.

.r

t2 t2-

C~C)

~e

~e -

cq

DRUMMOND
AN 1)

ARTHABASKA.
(Continued -Suite).

4 -1 Ir ~ ,-4 Ma )( -o Io

*qCl r -4 r- - q c -q q

m~ m ý %MýC t.lr4 " 4

r-1 ~ ~ ~ ' M Li r1t cL

týC 4 L qt - îlL Cl 1 .

cqMM V cr
cqC qi

. .

C)

G4ASP.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A.1899

z

o>

.R aii O IjOai 6J0 niaa oî)to
enu) IploiX

U -?U .1SUa ý.L . .1 ap ~

UMO4SI( Bull« ~ I ut~ q

Sflfl3UU supjjuq ap itqtaoA - .- 4 .

anb"a ~ uuitiln R'U Rýig ap o uLe l ..Q Or .

0 ltbmup Uip 9utp T *u~z oiqo

Pd F' mol p 1O 0  
OJqIf~pilI_________________

ce . q.lq(q
.tnoiom pu.1J uou flqýO.od »I -mUol

UIp vf ut

ýa qo ~O 1 Jquitix UO1 lqql 0

-P4~J~U~8 ____ ______

uOvItiqOJ~ *uon. .dz

z

< >1

izM
O O .'I.-bc

~Q
0O

GASPÉ,

t)
1) -

158

t on nue UlLej.



Prohibition Plebiscite.

t- ct L*- Go O q Ccq -t- -' Cl c> f

~-Ott- CD eO CD O t- ~ t- cl= 0 '0 t- t - t -tO O t -

t-f - O Ln C. tOt- O O t Qact-

HOCHELAGA.

159

. . . . . . . . . .
. . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . .

............

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . ..
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

14



62 Victoria

d

:a

4

"4D

4

M

G,

0
%DÀ

4

.,

o0

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

>

o?.tdD,îp ID4oîod? e3B?12oiP ~boDyi ip iî'iolondoj

uAAoqs suI Ç)ualýpsuoD qoeq ui uoicflod j

lligtploav gnInpi~op R.naap p Orcqc o
Pi~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~~~~~~o &0 R3IU an~? ~iN '-' ~'' 4' ~~

-solv pa.vfa.x jo .1lquîn

U01)JO.L 1paJjIaaPJOql4

(101iIA!(I 21I0
q0eUT pfllod s~aj.% JO Ig~q!l-ln.N uIU1j, ____________

*uo *îp q? o.td vi dapo.) p

-9.puoiio 97b»yg guiqp
R.?UUOP RajlOit pp cdqlfWLoK O

jsUiv2c put j0j iuoiq euîq.î 'Il CqO tý- ClC
-l.i.tU ~ ~ -M qU0-1~~11 t

m~I~
1

PO JOii)( ~lmUN ut Oiql 1{ ___________ __________

1-4 " ro = t x ý-ýe qt- 2 " ~ DO 4 .4 C'=

I~

HOCHELAGA,
(Continued- Suite

I G0

A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscita

t-

o,

€ 2

HOCHELAGA,
(Continued-Suite).

HUNTINGDON.

161
20-11

cIiC, ltl



62 Victoria SemSiaI P&apers (No. 20.)

z
c

Tmist ÇDTuil!jsn1oa 14QO9 ulIld<

~U~et)b ~ WulUOo«:l q>bn1  .aa 1'1'

'ki&ýmr silplm «SI pi .I~UK 1

- )t»a.t pjnr à'p aiuioj

-siolli*ý po__isaiJO Jý)qll1Ul

~nboyi >rI>)p WM;lop ja 'j;âiptf

1'PlFr Mi P1il"< ý:a
0A JO I«iwl 1'ikl

1)?)f~P iliit<u )I tio ipil

uj1L) .1401 9p.10> UO îèlod î io

I *'(10dI (!404d U!tn

P-ItI21 pi~ JOj u.ieUfs LU>qoidt(1 j) aoj

k1%iJmtl« qv i

.1

-f' ?1 Z~ miiet4 M Ce.II

E; .a

h I h

~, T~ 4~

~J2 T

JO0LIETTE

16--,

As. 1899



Prohibition Plebiasit,

tt:

ce
iec

.OIETE -

( ntn l--Sute)

1 14 - P- W - I 4 i O - - 1 m14

-q .Itï1 QGZ

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

ce z

C t:

îa

zz

C e

zc

JACQUES- CARTIER.

20-.1l



62 Victoria

P-4

si
f0

P-4

0

Seaional Papers (No. 20.)

umoqs ft .oui)nlýstuoa 40W lui uoîwvlndojl

31Luaewgtptu3> ard>oil; stuip rs~~a2p

1101SII 2lupoaq l.>9ut qir
siÇnOA pQsîA8e{ alp f0&u AJoJq~

-sollug pa1todr j0 aqtun,,.Z

gitilmoII& av auiur:poi1

nabzno etLiJp 9ptLlop 940-. galp ima etqvt

1130 ut_ P'3110 d s,)IOA JO -1àqtnKg lWf0jl
uofll7.fl(o.d vl a.quoi, p

irnod uo.tlmoa p ju-p
-ti ptsO.uv mb"p R&PP

R?ttp en0Jb _^p 9qtog

¶lsuteâw puy .103 mis8

pe11od ffloA jo jemn

z

z

j

rJ2~
*

_______ t

'n
!-vfldoD ii;.uoo

m1'.

.u0lýqij to

140 0

ciE

JACQUES-CARTIER.
(continued-Suite).

164

L. 1899

1



.Prohibition Plebiseite.

'n
..... H

~ ~

I~1

E

1.

*1
a'
11.

w0

*0
7;

r - -
~ 'o ~o:.~

ZA 2r

KANMO17RAýS' A

165

SX

-4 '1ý I-CD CII



62 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.)

' ec[u,p JPeýqtI? -- )uLnp tp o.ioindoJ

*umoI{s S <ouanl4!iuo ,SU0 i U uoiIno

* u1Ldti IpuO.4 mntbrnj guop gjt;)-2 jep
a fi1.tagl Dj lt n itl.Jel, . prliA

-4

ce-

'-4

0
F-.t

0

CD

0

S-4

4

0

.1-

0

-e~ --" F

.. . . .

ceý 0 - mC' e

el e

I.-

>-

= j- -

J

I
r3ELLE.

A. 1899

XUi4A( UfflOd qâa~ ut igi1q

pasQia flpumau o t?1~7Io >p~jltiOnx

~~~B{pall!is JO ja(tUIliM

qal.blui alimisauioA paIo a ii3jon- .ilqin

ut pj[o ~~0  
J< .IqqiUn ýw1i-vk

-sutpt'e t.n Jbj misp - uo

I!q u[o< q.w u

el

î Fk



Prohibition Plebiscita

t

f t-

-Z r. C cr

ed a
o

LABELLE.
(Continued-Suite,).

107



62 Victoria Sesional Papere (No. 20.)

<

w)ele - le1a)j l pi

$?ItvpîlÀojIýiô o yy eptolpcrl

~~?ad,> ~ ~ ~~~sP 11u3»Î Sf~~a~bn~~u~ qoj

'UMOqS %'& o 1q39 ut uo!teldol

~of pî.-od jo .idqtinm

Rpnll RtJ>9 1~flfîlq 3qp iigluog

- oliva pallodiý jo .iaqunN

mbinja~~~~ Iesi 9U2D IO.1 el) 3~7LqO

-aiuou ibmp 2 îiiài

_OiI1ii4oJv af»atll

jsAiq2 pue '.J U!is
-!li P oS;é JO* ù'''XIuuqqoJ.O

c-
- -. ,-4 - - ,- ~4 ~4

-s-

o
~

+; 4m .j -a i . j 4 .;

LAPRAIRIE AN NAPIERVILLE.
ZÉE

z

A. 1899

C4 " 9 2

ýF .111 Ire.; mes" iz A A e t--qs 4m -e Z1
1-4



r Prohibition Plebisoita.

$ E

&

LAPRAIRIE
AN D

NAPIERVILLE.
(Continued Suite).

elt àC t-v- t4 oc -,, '-

'E' '*

ea1

---- il

z

G:

*

o6

16

z-

L'ASSOMPTION.

169

ce



UAO4s st £OuaIil!lsUloo o t4dut UC>!WtidOd

*LIAostI 2UiIROd qDra u U!

)ql O[ mdalOAI JO -1 qiinZ

_____ SIOTTf D~ Jo .idîinK

* ~1dnf~I 91ODp 1iop r3fl. btp flj»e iiu(iLoff

* iii ~od -uSu: i
jav l nod 4 atit ,oj. 1

Isnod vooffo.sp )witili -n.It »j 9.IP(0, 1

e-uuop o.l 91) ii.iloog UOI

uoiqii(oIld

* IAKU 2UtlIod i4l»v) ut-

oo

L. 1899

.?I O1?~-

a- r. t4'M' àý - C' q

?a -- IIIr

..*~ .

IZ?.

.2 o" G.

LA VAL.

170

62 Victoria Smsiona1 Papers (No. 20.)

-.nais Itèý M ï!-zl r
" -4 - ý- ý. " - C'a ý. -4 " " -4 .,



Prohibition Plebiscite.

2 I

LAVAL.
(Continued).

(Suite).

LEVIS.

171

* . * .A

- *iI~I~v?.~

i
- 4'

4'
's

s amaassssa 8283 m g.ct



632 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

3r

>

f0

0 i41Gv<p loo ioiiôqjo9 inbtqa ,p uîopqznevo

ce miiqs su irI)un4!suoj iqana ut uoiv<îldod

.'f"P?<P o.tqlO jp

ce .I!pN! aIt!TIOdI 43wa ut ýsl!1

saaloA pat.e 04 UO &JOO 10 .I*tIlN _____

*W0 a~~po<!<<s JO j9qFuIU.L ___

>ÎÀi)â gutîplq ap l.tqlloK

________ ~ o~a pe oa 30joitU$

30b01f3~u»p 29IîLOp îpno)30 a.tqiu*A

*UOISIA!Qj 2 1111IOd C
li-aut PýiIl<1 sal 0A* p;)
oe *UO<pQt1110.14/4 9.iîoap uog

1al"ivpuv ibi*uO!W ig431I0.itd 2); Inlr

I P<II OA JO J;<41iUfl\~.K uucxIa o

Q

0

z PCnine)

1:1 2



-Prohibition. PlebiBeite.

CI

.- 4-4 *CQ-4 ~ 4 . cq -

-4~q~~ t~~ C *~1aC~t<

-- 43-- 44-GOMz

* a* e
* w
* .0

o
h

* 0<

* g

.4 AI?

tto.

L'ISLET.

173

--- 4-4-4-4-4

* *-4 . *-4-4 * . *-4- .~-4 *

*-4 *-4 .- 4-4

- C~1 C~ I~ t- ~ C~. Q ~ t- ~ Q
-4 -4 -4 -- 4-4-4 -4 -4 -

* '.

:~ *~

:.< .~

~2U2

LOTBINIÈRE.

a



62 Victoria

o

S.

4

ce

P-4

4e

oi»

CD

0

0

0
&..

0

Ssmsi~ Papers (NO. 20.)

*J1E >lt1.qlltJJ.>.t J>0.E.L.)~ Q
>~,;o~ înb»ij~ ~1» non jîqndoj

-1oi t ag .lit ollv. l 1

anhànp ~ à»p uÔUO ~.t;o Io ~J49.#Io4

*Uotst.I(I MutMOd

*ov;ièq.1 ut pa.u.i o% Iop qi.ýrp

.iod uo* iueoa ap mwtteg I 14#o.d #)j ajjuog

*lO#pteo.Ll enbo»i tuop

!.~-!l(Ii IIOd'4t»' L
* 'NOdE0~IA o l~qtlU\~U<~Itquj.lv

IOI

q!lqlk-Jd .1)

LOTRIN IERE.
(Coxîtiîued--Sutit-).

17.1

A. 1899

z~ CID*

Ee

e
h

E

e.
77



PrGhibition Plebioita

. . . ~ . . .. . . . . .

eý e t ý in eO F." e 4.k e- R xw 2 q oMM M !2 1 M i î

?e.

Pp t

MAISONNEUVE.

175



62 Vietoria Seeioa Papens (No. 20.)

î?.dvirptD4Oi»j 3LCfloi Pnbvqoc ap tu»wjin*o

tiAmoq9sw bmou-ainî4suoo im utuo!ýiqudoc ______ _______

p&ttpLoLv inbuDlpoupp*2m2.p79p ýmt 1v

*UISA4 nllOd x1caua ut istrI
csJal

0
A P4 !NOI g94- U &10A J0 .11nciJJ ________

*#,aln3vu stupelnq 9-p eauituog '.

-noiie£ pa [0d4 jo jaqS1nn _______

*8l.D l9 tqonq OP a&quàoAr...

»Ibui~ ouvp quuop gnat Oe-p 1WIo ajqtogj ýRC e4">t-4i Rt-2 Lý 1 1 9ee

*uoiflqufo.& »jd~o~ ~ *tft

.&noduos iluo o r U?&2 -iOdo

. oto. flinofqa irt&vp
Opt&UOp 29?3O.& ap .è.iqmug O1

e ulloliqu.OJ il îqJ

peîiod ~f>A Io .xeq,,Ru -uo!jlql4O1j jOq .4 U~ ïf Cq t- t-o tc cc

Zo

S 176

MAISONNEUVE,
(Continued--Suite).

A. 1899

o

z

O

O

.~

. . . . . . . . . . .



Prohibition Plebiscite.

"0 14 -4

00-e

t.- t- t.-

~

E-t

~)

MAISONNEUVE,
(Continued-Suite).

I

t-Zq c t-t' C' G cl r - 4Ô

C4o

. . . . . . . . . . .c - co ' ~ e t- ~ C' -C~

. . . . . .

MASKINONGÉ.

20-12



'62 Victoria. Dcuments de la sýession -(No 20.)

us.idp 0"~O»~ S ~)out qbïn up uoilvindoJ
$4

4

0-o

ce

ci)

0

$4

40

t0:

l~j
K __

~
,-

___ i

*81o()Iwg p3eIJJO jaq(UI
uo.tv"oa ep riatitugsipuo.&.w

anvq u p uuop snoa pap IM'M ajgiuoAr

qove ui pel*11od fflo/ o.e n roJ _______I

'tiu *~o.d -noil i.qu
tranop RiOfl~ap PuPua -yjTjoLdO '.4t4o

leuiuft puw8 ».10; htio -îTq~o.1 vl;o
i!( 2uo 14 t_

P bIgq'OA 1 O (tuIuK 1 uotl!q!tloid JOLq

O

o Z>14

g

o:z
4

g

~
* I

* tt
* ~ §0

* E 77

I MASKINONGÉ.

(Continued--Suite).i

178

- ~ ~ ~~~ý cq =~t -~O- ~
z

o............

z--------

MEGANTIÇ.

A 1899

lu-atitai.to.&D atibnyg R14Dp sRdfli? ROP 1

diUO!SIQ UîIOdnoeî, qa e6qf 

4venOA posiA9eJ a" uo sielA jo iaqUIUý I
*Rflflonta Ruilaflnq ap uLqii&of



Plébiscite de Prohibition.

gf I

- ~ -4,~-4-4 -4

* ~ Yf.4 -4 * . *. ~ ~ * I
* . . . . . I

* . . .- 4...,--4 . . .c~ ~ *

__________ *1

Itv4C~~ t
,4 L I
-4 1-4 -4 -4 -4

-4 -

t~~I

:3 z

ce

c -- -- 5 2

MEGANTIC.
(Continued- Suite.)

20-12j

-



62 Victoria Sessional Iapers (No. 20.)

umoqs Sv SDCOUen!IauoD0e UT m uo!WIlndod

UOTTAl Muifllo I{om U! !r
&isJOA I)OSIAH 01 uO tuOI

0
A ý<> -WIGflnM __________

.oni»ut sutlfnn ap aiqfllox

- I ~ .... ...-

s.op palpdsi j, 41UOo1

UO 91p1voL R1LJOTI8Zf4Oq --pa jvo

rq~~c m.to oi

*P4pILo uvp oabD p Uj op po -ieot-Cm

spuuop galonap 3.tq?UOAT

-uoîiiqoJJ ,un
ýs8U!2, pu JOJ UOIS -?pfe? y .nop

iMUY-t LUt'I -tloi U
pOIl(I saqoA jo jaqm 'l'N__UOIIqtqoa io _________________________

z

z

3

:4

t y
t ~
.~ s
o *~

J
À

12,-

. . c c'
* '4

-~ ~ z
~

t
E ~

~J2

~

E-< ~;
~ ./'

uissisquoi.

180

A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite.

e 00 g-e

00 I. giL

m:"' :

ae

'a
'Io
h

a

a

£

t.e
1'ZC

~222:~'~2

z~ -~ -,t - ---,
† Il

o-

* e

o
i a .

MISSISQUOI.
(Continued-Suite).

MONTCALM.



62 Vietork&

0

0.
w-

Pd

c-

ce

0

0

Documents de la Session (No ' O.) A. 1899

t?.i4vp loma>)j Pno atn~ uip uonnindoj

isva3 aqI sq
umoqfl Fu SouaniuoD qpvo ui uoilw1 nd:, 1 ______________

pinao22puoÀ&D alibvtp euvp gtii tap . 2 C c- ?spè

,,uJnoA IpasAU e1jI 110 wnA JO i,7bqlunN __________

______ snoule papids Io .iaqtn~

gu~ iiplpInq ap aiq-tuL0 ....

"aorw~ p 10 ie.*....

'UOISIAI(j MU11, 1o
tpa ui pallod oïnA JO -'aqmnu~ jIOj,

'uoWtQI i'o.d zc2 Pilu03 l
.Lnod ut.o pSoav* 49l"»O
-9ýtpUO.L.t Mbmp uliwp

gauuop gaflon qp 2Àatog

jsi.f U1 *1OJ UOIS
-[AIq 2uUOd& qOVID lit
pellod Ra1OA JO ja1,UU

-tqillo4d Di .*noj

I.C

I~~t-151

-q q - e - QrýC4 e0 -

biI

0z

z

zo

MONTMAGNY.

182

ffllt&Wttp»"Opp



Plébiscite de Prohibition.

o. .seM mMM a

'È

mi

MONTMORENCY.

18

o o
77

-~E E

Q¢

1 83



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

0z

0o

M n

ce i
Id -~uolv;Ioa ep,

lt"oirot rbq go? p.t .4pnLOap

s"' 1 1'0 4 pI)A '941 Un) ýun
0A JO a'OquinK

s?ÎÀO uippi P!-P O~aun

___________ siollug poia.-mt Jo.qm 1 . . ....

g nij u»p gRttp Rejoi Itp pvjoj J.Lquog 1

I{3a ut poliod w
0 ao jo iaqtun lin

0 L
*qqotC).f j êtrw13 " I ~ liq

.inod umýo.lo4p îuovÀ -tlo.d '0 a.ido ~,~- ,

.Rpuoi entnnp surp 1
0 Railtp gl0 e;p pitaOJ *UOL4

i Wu!v2e pue .101 mis!9 - Vzo.1 i <~~1k
-t 2 U!llOd q3ea ut

PalIIc ffl0 A jotioqu,, uoîlq i i -lo

O z

f0

. cà

z b

IIZ



Prohibition Plebiscite.

Loi,

- e-

* 77

* g

ST. ANNE'S R.
(Continuied-Suite).

18 . 1



62 Victoria. Documents de la Session (No 20.) A. 1899

<

91sa jw oIX

umoqs se? Xouanluoo* qova U! uo!lttudod __ _____ ____ _______

- UOIF9IAIGl 
2U1!1JiOd t wi

siqApasiA@U aqo10@ýO 9J01 iot

Sja?floot tut;êllq op . .lA

s~fE[pamods jo .zeq(uný.Z

Kninnpo miMl>PpiqtisomA

- *UOiBiAiq ýU!11(>

9 pt&O.&.LD nibp ?ultp #4à -pII' Àm

w S1~S PUW u Ot p Oallo.d D îKj .toJ L

tottuoi I vt.- .

Cli!qq j lm4 I- . l .

z

z *

02

..3 -S.ANONSR

o2

a, -1zo



Plébiscite de Prohibition.

P=4 e

t e

RRE I W-t-AR## 34 C4wI42C223C%28

ST. ANTOINE'S R.
(Continued-Siite).

187

'a

oo



62 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

0z

cec

â Îol fla 8!

jýtsjýnA Pff!AOU @qI uO IJ'-n
0

A jo .iaqmnN ____ _________ __

______ *sto~jwgpa*11odr JO JaquinN _______________

* I fl.»~~suispjjnq op pdvpaoÀj

I ~~Stojpv£ papotai jo iaqw.nN

*UOIItA4 2U(lod
U PI10(i saIA J~ 'U fl * ~ )~ *__Z___

* *nod uq;o. P .op I tLOf

*Ilu.&& nbvi aRtp -

80 UO 2ImJop ap qIÀ4aog

q.O' SUIIO 4 UtV 1

vov

f0zZ

C

o188



Prohibition Plebiscit.

t-

eo

ce "

- s"

hhe

-s--
uge

ST. JAMES R.
(Continued-Suite).

189



62 Victoria. Documents% de la Session (No 20.) A. 1899

g.idop ip4oejp ,fi 1 oo inbvq.,) ep uo?ýplidoJ

u.nors Sv Xauen!luoo qo"e a! uoil4wIdod
flLoZpflO.1 opI

'UOISIiAI(1 âuîllOJ 4Z0V utls'

iOn»m 2tU1llUl ap a.&qnto&j

pellodsIo> iaqun m _______

* . . . .- ~. .

-siollt-£ paoÇat jo iequinxj
1L03ipim0a -p tlumajspo&.

anlibvp rt @?'UO syaa~ 82 pnOý iiquor t t--C~~ I~C C~- I04-~ Me- c

*u0!SIATi 2uI11oj
qw u pollod fflA Jo O1'N ~L ________

.4nod uoipi3oa op j VlOai)mair3 - l

.nu m.»~bvep rupp
t9i4UOp 940a op 0.iquioJr !tl suDtâ

4suîe2v pi .oj uo!s -qýoid, oj .nojr toI -e S 0e

pUÙ1od Sn
0A JO jýqIiqmnZ *tix111o 1

U t-C c -

z
a

-.

C

z

c

2
v

a
k

I..

k

ST. LAWRENCE R.

19()

8 " -I et-~ -4 = I-



Plébiscite de Prohibition.

ýe 9 Il=-, e-p-ýsîg a î y t=- m

ý-I CM

cq

T C ï 100, e ;z kt-c- M I"ng e ?I *=l e m 9 e k -2 8 R n cq

to 00 -P e 00 m m C> m
00 &0 &0 P-1 V--q V--4 pq I"

00 elo ep m e cq zq 0 z e cq e V..4 e L- e e
cq

e. g 8 e s;5 ?8 e -"f %14 zý '"e is t" iirÈ z S e en 2 n e à- le à sO 8 cc

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

OTCAWECER

ST. LAWRENCE IR.
(Continued-Suite).

191



62 Victoria

oi

0

4

ce

P4

-4à

4
.P

4

94

4

4

0

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

4r

.LtIdvp IDoîj,71? ciiqloj .anbemjq gp'ucozndoj

umoqs m~ £oauanýsuoD 4DV ut uoLIBwtIdoal

~i ) 'llgtpzoÀtn rýnblp Ruvp gnai oa 4C

8110 pd~sLA;)*H oqi tio sjaý,A j0 .1equ1fl ___

-011v RUIflîflfq lpg3.que-og

so1iua polod eI j ~uUfNx

-UO * loO.2t ap eU3vel.PtLOJ.LO
anbvj Ruvp àreuUop 2ORaîx e 2Lno 9» .tquog

q"e ut pajlod S;,30A jO aailun.ý 1ekL

* -QtellLftJItl 2'1»I) eÀ iPWg 2p -(
tnoduopp g3o.p $uwa -,Oj 1w

aiii1 1ooar awOv ) gUo

-UI

4SULâv PV -(iY.It I)jÀn:

n[zI lq-,d o

I ST. LAWRENCE
I Riding.

( Contnied-Suite).

192

A. 1899

~4 - ~,-4

QOM q OO C'

C4 M- leI t -00

l

bcI7

ST. MARY'SR.



Prohibition Plebiscite.

-4 takaG28n#92428aE2S5W g 0SR w i88 Ql

S at-m mn a- nt-siMaa qe 10séaC- 2 sae saM 10 -e

t- c - l - l -' l 01 1" 1 0 ee le l ï

1c' n t- c

~ -~0-t t- 1t- r- t- " cq %CCI0

cq I, oq .7,VD-, . . .. .

ST. MARY'S R.

ST. MARY'S R.
(Continued-Suite).

193
20-13



62 Victoria

--

f--

0

-4

0

5-4

4--o

14

.9.4

,

*0
P41

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

>

s.oq v Çzopuaq!,stoo 4nbrna ut uoltlndod

-UOzî»Oa~ ap
îu~cusipu.t.h 3bvy. gu»p R~.171 p zz t" t

g~. glv tns gîmagiq giqal, J.tquLox ~ -- ~c
*UtSAiI U[IOd 4Ota ut ISVJ

uIOA postAPoJ aq14 uo sipAoA Io idqrunN

*2aJnDviii, t:upfî-lnq 9p adq</iog

,soiita pai!ods JO .iequRn

pvu plld ajo 10~ *jo iXqrunjo

'um rp snip omnv aduo Î9 p -~~itogj t.

-'o'l92?joa» a.tuo ýp *ujpq I
.onocLuYopYo gap C4 -oyod m~~

gaulop Raoa ap 9.quioAr u I

lsUlt?.W" pur~ 'Joj mis yotd
-TAu itOdl qitP U -

zoo

i ~
O.>

E-i .~ s-

I O.>
-~ .~

f

ST. MARY'S R.
(Continued -Suite.)

194

A. 1899

c' t- 

ZD L- .

e'ý t -)



Prohibition Plebiseite.

1" n 0 e4 elt qr-0 R

ac k0,4

OqP4 D 10 -- q 'l t 10 &0 *'l M M cq cq:- c qC

Lz CDtýS== 4 t Q cl t-

>-~

NICOLET,
(Continued- Suite).

195
20-13j

I
I

o
h

g

Eh

g'

hh
Il
.", .- ,
gg



62 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.)

.4

$4

c

-4

*0

D

.s-E

-4D

.-0
10

o0

o

04

0

P.

~~.dvp v.o~pifi? 1o dnbuin dp w"np,.ndoj

IIMOI18 f Duan!SO qz>îpsu uowitndoa

*U!tq2Uil[Ol tf.ai ul î r
CU9 1~0A Pgs-A,%I aqP uO %JaýOA ~J.X4tufl,_____

'Uo02o 9p ýuuflt9ggpuo.&l.
nhrnpq guI)p gulwlp 01> gp 21)ýoi a.1qu0m =S

*UOI44îAÎ 2U!I10d)ç
Il.c U.1 PaII

0 d 5
;,)A JO .ýiKit jvqOj I

*UOpp 7i'qod VI d.uJ~i î*.)UOi!
.Ineà oipîîo.'ti qp îltgltus -?p ijo-d D~~Ip q

-9 «Ipuo.uo anbv1 a gu»p -

*?aWUOp galo. ap a4illfov 'U10p

i *le, u oix{oi IOSClG

-~ ~ tio!U d~!IO joti

196

IPONTIAC.

A. 1899

.

.

-< -9 e o-ý 14 1- t-1 CI] ,<Cli

48



Prohibition Plebiscita

ess
~ 4 I8

- .. .<. > 4

POTA.

(Cotined Suie)

-4 -

-4. . . .. .~t. . . .- 4

............-.-..

.z

.
. .e ... . . . ~ .- . .

Z

-6j o 1

PORTNEUF.

197

oý . o



62 Victoria

0

4

0.

t

4

.Ilouaâ. dnbî11j,?p uoi)

*sn8urj lse al Sq
umos s t1Wilava IJt u tiouvin doj

juamm - îpitotiv tflbrnp ouvp ga?Jljeî? p 

3)Sf Vj d~ 2ut ifl ja ut4ls!l

sbOAP"4s!A%;4 "0U Ja2'OA JO XIUl

*JfJVU SVtlliq ap at9qiu.A

s"oj11% paliOds 10 J.aqm

wit'!Pglnq il) à,uqV1og

__________________ j jo .. qulnN

,gnbiwy' guvp o?Uiiop ei4o.l 99P ivî9l aaqWo.1

qa, u! P-îjIo<l sajA jo 'j~~4 ivoj,
* uolpqy0aiod 'Di g.quo- p- P
.Lnod uotl7v1o.ti rp lligelt) -t old Di atittp

-2pL.tl nb»a sip-

R,'IUtip se40.'z qp t.U)UIT *Uo!

*11O~iqiOJ~ uoil
isuiv2v puv .I0J UOpt -vioi ~.nj

W!' UiIod 11018 UT
P10< iý>Lun JOýqý0ý .I~Il o~q4 j<_Oj

z

Ct'

(Con

Z

198

Crz cq p

c~ ir~ ~t4

-ze ~

cc *

-Ë 5

)RTNEUF.
tinued- Suite).

Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899~

Se



Prohibition Plebiscite.

-- q ,-4 cq c -- . l -

~.Cl -rt- O O C

P- = î- 1

cq myD -e 'O ' 0 tl m 0 O~1 1 ~'t 0~

"- - q - -0qc I " Re 'l f M9

z-------------- ..---.-.------.-..-----. --.---. -
4
4
1~

g

~1,

b5i~

.. , *-,
gu

QUEBEC EAST.

199



62 Vietoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)A.19

S~.I»~ /f.~p~p~/Jflo? nbvy)p ~puo.elndOJ
*snsulao ise aiq Çq

umLoils î0 ÇQuýnjpsiioD iiowa tii uoilndodI1

îUwULggglpUO.t.tî 3iboq. Suv'p 8.) cq ËZ9ý

,-4 mi. CI

spi ý p!ods jo .xitqunNi___

paparai *j'1ý>*-

*U2DO p ýwUgs?P»~UOJtp
ilibvji RUvp qUU0p gaeOi eap îl9joî ;Àu.L A UL cq c -t--ic -

4

.-

'-4

4à
.9.4

0

4Q
pq

04

:e

0

&Q

P14

VItIA( atUiIIOd
.md obl4.9 op ý, _ 1

0 
JO 6Ï Il -

0 1'UV4 ___ ceS

g.ýuuop aat. p a.iqutogr*11

iq -o4 *iqotid isuli2y ____ ___ __

~S!1? Pt1)i JOJ mo qio.c m LfOJ~

i1-

z

* ce

t ~QUEBEC CENTRE.

2100

62 Vic»ria A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscitea

-M li C

c- -P -4 cq

'. 00 -Q M-

-.

c',

we

a de

0
z

* ee

QUEBEC.
Centre.

(Continued).
(Suite).

*a *

g.
-~-~

.0
Q _____

QUEBEC WEST.

201

r4 x

Þ E

o.........

Q

.0

Q

h

g

Eh

g:
~ Q
g'

z

" e cq = e t- M e = -- d " cq



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

op.LtDp jD.tOîo30? JfI~Oa J)Ibrny u

*fSU81I o
umoqs~ sv ÂÇOuanl4 11qsuo iqara ut uo

.u,01"D)
~u~u~as17ro4.2? n bmla Pur9p gtnJflpý

ipfaa Rii; gu.

iep a

tqndoj

0J dq
[I 1lo ___ __M_____t__r "-

o

.P-4

ce~

o

k

Q ~11~3

~

o>
Q

QUECEC COUNTY.
1Continued-Sîite).

202

A. 1899

g?In7meÀ gutîlliiq apglztlviO

______ _______0111% pat(IIS 1o .zaqrnnK
g4.> Ut;eîlnq eip Pq?(IOAj

Pbvg 1p g n* gj 1 gq j)oî 9.iqqilo'f Me___

auho?< ut qOwaaa0u.t

paOlod Utt 'sajoA jo jaiur io
u01 p %ilomL 'Di 1.1 uo~i pa Uom 12?

(yéoà uoî;oa op jttumta -tio.id y; Y.Iîtoo vo3 - S = i ýià
.pflo.t.iiv anbvya Ritinp 4-

S?ILUOP 2gJO(L ap a.quJIo/Q *u0!

u0r~iqqoJJ uop

PIilOd b-ai0A JO di)qlUîlN 0;qlo<'x1~ ,.___

O

>O . .

ÇD W

- Mc
12>

nc ùr



Prohibition Plebiscite.

O ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~~ I t- COD 44 O~~C C~~~CccIi~t-C CoI 4. t 'I
cq r- 1- _q4 -'-4 4 -1 " 4 4 l 1 - r4-1.41-

r-4 in c . -4 -0 c q0 n0 Y

-i -4 L- r q C~, ~ I~C -4 r- Cl4 r- "m r .- 4

zqcý C Dr- qM1 -

C5

.
pQ ~

ÏM.

pl -io

~o oID
?rI2C.rX

RICHMOND AND WOLFE.

203

z -

~ <o



.P4

4

1-4

Pt

Co

41,

o

0,

t-0
Pd

A. 1899Sesional Papers (No. 20.)

or

igcdop 9io6; l/ioa gnbiznp .p Uozp1jv»doj

*snsuaj 4w a'il Xq

UMOI.9 S~~3Ual~î âuOllo qo in ut o¶if;dO

*uOis! 'DM gUfflaîîn{O qp Utq

-solîeg papo1s jo jaqtuui,ý

t -i z

s1upal81221f
1

1 ap alqpuog

*2ijOI111 j Iop~1 jO >un J4t1 1

9?11>l *iî> 8lîUv )70% i 17 7I1JOJ IJIJUWgi

Ut0 P!YTÀC 1 
inlSlMUUliloii

uofl6qy1o.Ld;.ta 1)7 4. 1.1JU03 7)? q801pq

-8)0. g nbvqi 814171
guu0p 8)70 9.)71,&A u.JI0 P

- -ilqiqolJ ýsuO v

2~USuiod ttova ui
P sa'j 8

oA JO %j9U1R x lo~qq.~.o'q

z
O
E-

1-

o

z
o

c~ -~ k

t-~t-~<e1

k.

c~ic ~

zZ:

>

Od

RICHMOND AND WOLFE
(Continued-Suite).

204

62 Victoria

- E7

M5



Prohibition Plebiscite,

c-co

7s1

: e

S lcc

lem

t

RICHELIEU.

205



Sosional Papers (No. 20.)

îloâp~ ~ndnqo 9p uoilmncldJ

*snsuao l"'e qq S£

d»?9?I) 2 t.1m ng gî?.Iggtu.i p ~~io '~~- 4' .4 

."JalA Pala 9ýj~ UO '.10 A JO 1J*flnN

-o.niO« emplnq ip ~qo

UOflVO.2 JO

U0SÎ o . IUOd

?touq~. p -?Ynd .oDcl .*j uoI

I ImUtop Sf01? qp dhi'jf10/1J'

14uuteS'Pula'IJ 110!8 -?q!yotcd Dl .tfoJ -4r4c it

Z z

RI à

A. 1899

o '~e~zc~
~OC~Z~t Cl ~?Cb,-4
~4 - ,~4 Cl -

-4 - - r- -ý l c ~ Cl

LOUSKI.

206

62 Victoria



Prohibition Plebiscito,

scsq essm CI ln esra zz cl - a

t q e ee t -.

-4 4 in 'ý cq cq m 4

>v

je Ct

m:

h

tt

RIMOUSKI.
(Continued-Suite).

207

s 2 e -s ïassmac =$

. 4 . . -. 4 . -. t. . ~ . ~ .
Z4 -

.t- . .. .4 . . . .

-4 -4-~ -4-4 ~4 cri-

ROUVILLE.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

0z

0 g?*drip le.0ol 9,?jo enbrp qp itoividoj

S"t4 Ri OLJibii Lnn m'>.Z t

UO âAt uîflo«l tiog ut ýslrj
0 ~"~~0A ~ eq~ "0 9-IffA 10 J~tfN _ ___

R~,lcUL ~~pnqap ~I0.
CD

.@-q sioî1 iq pa p jo jqin ___

j~~~~~ ..___. . . . .________

anbmja gu»p à?io 4JRpjýý'avor1C l-

sý- i aut paql0(1 salA jo jaqiin,-. Wu<\l _____ ________________

~ uoil!qzyoid o, aquoi p 1 I
z~noâ uoilo Pp îumdea -ijo.td o> 9.uo'j =Q 10 CD~eeoe
-R3pu.uua anbJ1<3 mu»p --

-!q!qo-id ism _____________ __

peld aoAliaquOJK *uoi> 11011.0,

Ir~
~SI121 Pll.lJ îltS . ~ no I '

CD 4-q ~tO IO U

.0

W . Q3..LE
(Cnt.edSit)

20



Prohibition Plebiscite.

*1

g 5

za

..

54

ST. HYACINTHE.

209
20-14



62 Victoria

Ç)
0,
.P.,

4b

P.,

o

la
0

f-40,

z

z 1-

z

Q

1.
C

4%

A. 1899

'991. nb l)a to:ld)

Im z ç
umoqs ~ ~ 2 SICZIal!so -m U olet(o

-7-7

iliddD 1iP OPO~~ 9fi?,o4i érnnap wnp.qndo
snsuzj «9.1 q't ui à? qý0

iJ àU2p ý&a ffiig -Iodn UO . 7m
-StmpUO&.L .bo urp2f U7 ~fa?1 ~

UOISLAi u 1 o pau S

lsu!v2),» poiv I2ij mis -! o vi un

ua'O o,ýnrn. ul~2po4

ut pj[o I~ao~oilq!iuj tmoi

CC O q~ .
~ .~q

... .......

....... .. .

t P-

ST JOHN AND IBRIL

-Z .

210

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

~cc~ ~

~ '-~.....

* . ~......



Prohibition Plebiscita

ec~c~ ~ t-~c~ -4
,-$ ~1 -~ C~ -4

-~ ~4 . . . -

-4 ~4 ci
-4-4-4~ ~ii

-4-4-4~4

I

* o
* h

* a

tt~ oo
1;

_ ~

~ c
%~ -. ~ -

~ -

ST. JOHN
AND

IBERVILLE.
(Continued-Suite).

20-14J

Z-4 . -- .. ZMI- r-4 .1. c

"-4 -

C4 t

t- -.-. 4" -4

J.
o

-o

.. . - . 1

Ci o

4à.

SHEFFORD.

211



62 Victoria

4

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

UMOqs st Ç;)uanl!lsuooj 43va ui uo!Wrlitdod ___

m*nj ei o gipfle~ gap î er-- Z -" =

au~~n' ~ ~ elleoîln, 91bnj )À» ?t MpOAT

dnbDq 811p gwil.>uî guzp~ loîp 9.tqiliov

*) *.?o la4. uCtý

-?Joad14 PIOfil J.q1fl __________________UNM

mod) uoilvno.q Pp uqtjwiok CD* *

elk)q go pfl4a o.qun

gilq sop1 aup j(7(o -p~njaUpogJ

ist2u puv ijut
I ~2tiijjlo> pe lit

PaIM<I sço -JO .Iaqu1ng

4,

o
w'z
a,

o
4,

o
L..

a,
4,

o'
4~

o
a,

'VO/.u '~ Jlj

-utiiqqJJ jxoli

o
- o

K,

z~

E' ~.

IZo

SHEFFORD.
(Continiued-Suite).

212

A. 1899

I



Prohibition Plebiscita

.0

.0.--~

e
o

aI 4 aIf. .-
e.
o- -

.a ~

e~ e-~t~ aI~

~

-~ ~ ~ = Q

Q

4

Q
14

14
14:
QQ

1414
QQ

SRERBBOOKE.

213

1 22~222iZ2 ~ r~I

C4~

e

Qcf

o.4-

a

-4-

~- -
a

-J:

SOULANGES.

m cg o L- S q o o cq cieQ -44 cq M " e = - = = -4

c
4...

- e



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

Ir

g?MI22,p flv.1O2>a9) J'io aulbnj qp uVo.1 î ndroj

JÇ3s8%xUQefltjsu0 0 40vo ut 1 o~rdo

olo ap
iwimisspto&&»v >nbqi ou»p m.napl gdp" à5 ocIt
apml ejgtj .tinsgitçu 8.4 ? Uqwfh

t. . -Cl

* UOSTA( 
2
uiIIod qain, m~ pi

@ ~JeOIOA P,!991 El4~ uO 8JO0A JO -J8qUIfl ________

S?laDu U. i2e7nq ep ~tvo

sioulig p9podsa jo j>quinl e:: e

RpU0LP Rgîo( a p IIl4OÎ ei9ifLO& .

Eod wý
0

nA 10 -aequnj' M _

5inguop -j :u p
Pp ý.qutog îoi I 9týo

J O I O S - q . 4 j . 1 , d p u . i o v

JOJ ~1 oîqioi 0 9

.4

anfbî>?p RuD

11va ui pal

.tnod wnoi2»a

-Ripuo.uv an
s?9U4>OP gaeon

UI0

jsuiv2g puv

(Gontinued-Suite).

214

- .q -t~ --

C'~ t- ~ qjQ-

cd-

z--------

.72
le

†e c

STANSTEAD.

A. 1899

6z::: -

'a
o
h

g

ut.
I. 1~

~
~ .~ ~

~ tt
-~ @@

h

SOULANGES.

kQ -

JO f""X -UOIIlq!40-ld JOA



Prohibition Plebiscite

. . ... . ,.

> .I

~.o t' :

ci?

ci i ~~oc~ - t-~.-~t-ot-I-

r é

>-
0

STANSTEAD.
(Continued-Suite).

: 15

m ~ -=o t-co-l

le,

-r ~ ~ ~ .x .- 4 CI. eelM CýC

z-

s>
~ O&a~ce

TÉMISCOUATA.

2 |i'Ê 4 - 6



62 Victoria Sebsional Papers (No. 20.)

ggtcrv«p IV.topel? gtiIloo giibD1fJ e uo!JOldoJ

iLmo1is sE Souatiimsuoa tIOa ut uoîIfldod

UO1StA1.ivý,, aUU4 P 2 pU
JI2b»qa PnS!A4 mmopa R1 J0 O ip

-sloIvg palpds jo ta<1U1N

ft-

0ff/a ~p ;WIULQ8S2PtOJ2»&

UOiAtqI) ýUO ep ': p 9.qýUOj 1

TIpl2o~ m quoi
.nod uozpiýO.p îUiviag -cq.c~i.uj t-

e8pl..1 nbinja gu»p -l

glaU1op gp.1O .9 01 etiuf .iUOj
-- c

1'KI U~I1O 4~2W2 Ut

jsuuâ, Pu8 Jojuoi C

Pd[L(>(I ~ ~ ~ P m~AJ Uviu od~

>l

z

ce 4ý~
-kZ1>.....

.m 00<ûr ào> r

CD

Q

I.

g

- -
g:

- -

tt
gg

TEMISCOUATA.
(Continued- Suite).

216

A. 1899

0
~-1

o

'G)

0

8.4

8.4
o

i



Prohibition Plebiscita

.~-4C C ~ C-4t-~~
-~Ie ~e~-¶ O e t- e ~ t- t- ,.< ~ ~

-4 c.1 ~ -4-4~4-4-4,--4 ~4,--4-4-4,-4,~-4~,~-4-4

L o -4 m m e o C CD m3L2 c

-4 Ci

-~ à-~ .- zo ~~-~e-oc ~ 9

o
h

g

g 1bi0gq,4

tt

i

>

CS Z

3_ 3~ J2

t

j
ci~ ~i~-r~ ro a)

TERREBONNE.

217

z

14



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

Umlq ç ouanvjsuo
0 q[mai UT uoiilttloJ

uo.î2voa gp
ju*lusgip¶1o.t.t ;kbitnp Ruvp ganaleaî? gp~ap«a.& P »gz M ng gýyoi;î ginaliip p m.quioAr i

*OSAq2uqllod 1q;)I UT JsTI

<8 u0 A PO9TACI OqlJ 110 
8

'JaA JO Je3ýIfl
S7lnonm sut ,îaqnq ap tîfl

g90JOm
9 eU.illq ap 36uo

'Off[plaafai Jo aqrunK
aor~ p VL30?ILet221pUO2Lv

,,gnvya uvpReltuop R;)10, Rap >lO a.umliox

qm ut pellod ffloA JO i,:)qmlfnK moi,
*î»vÀ4Dî e.quoo 79u?

tnod~ uotirioa op ?unase -itwyio.LdV7~.fL
-u aow nbmjo Ruvp

o.auu»p gPýoa qtp P.&tmîoj 'ji

-uoliqiqoj *110ý
Ism2 ~S P v *U8 1101mi -tqiiofoM v2 inflJ

!,%il 
2

UqijOa qa" ài

poud 9~A O u12q 14.I J>

z

Q

I -~

~

00 o

-t4 -4 cm

* ~...

.c~l

- ~ ~-~1 ~

C'l 2
cqe. . . t. . . -4CI ., . . . . .

z------------

z .

THRFE RIVER4 AND ST. MAURICE.

218

A. 1899

1-4



Prohibition Plebiscite.

I0 CI __ _ __ _ __ _ _ t _ C4__

* . . . . ..|. .

z - -MM lI .
c ID

;4N TWO MOUTNTAINS.

219



62 Victoria Sffsional Papers (No. 20.) L. 1899

0z

o1t a

su.-wspuo 9)ibi)qa Ik ou p4bp ei9pjj uo pci

4-j ng gmusne glC -m~

*SI0II-ea pâitoîs JO ii)q u1n \1

~nbtp 91>p~nntp s~qp 2?Jpsg iuomi
anbOqi O.mp ep WlESpLJDe

qDVoD ut P,ýuOd sýqOA JO .LýqUnKr Iti
0

,L

n oduwtdpýe1q -ljo.tc( Dl ).iîuog Ql
~, -Otpuo2* » anb»ili gu»p -

s?'uop gîOa )p agitiAr u0Ip

ju'-82OP pu . os (1 M ______

0 . .......... .

. . . ..

0v

-t>

- j. v

4-à-

o, ~ t20



Prohibition Plebiscite.

1 4~

.C C - - -

ete I-jM C C ©Cv c - M MMC C4MC eQtM .- C

Mew- emme NT12©iM 171©04 OCO C. C «C

WRIGHT.

221

h

n

~t §

nue
h



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z

s

c

k

uawaiajj 7p tal jld j 00

snsuao 48181 oq Xq
umoqs su~ Ç)anlýISUOD qaraI ut uoilellido<

wmagipuo.&.4 en buqa s up gia aIp Rip t M

wJ01
0A PasiAaH aql uO sJiý)IA JO .iaqumn,%

*s prappodw jo .1a-qmn,%

8 jl) U?flflnq ap 9aJqmoJ.J

pîî alfai jo .ÎIquinK 1
*uoinjo.1 ip lu.It)gg!lUoL. i

* "UOIOSAIql 2Uîi1O 0
qzaui pý)jod 19AA JO jooqUlng. Irl 0J,

Dl~q~jaC ato1no.> p U~I

'eît.uop gaîn.1 ýp atqeog
- -i~qqiJ 4sutiv i _____

PI<'4~0A P~ Jaquifl *UVMlll~ O~

z >

'Pl

WRIGHT,
(Continued--Siite).

1,.

Q I
9'>'>

A. 189.4



Prohibition Plebiscite.

------ t-

-00

e2

cqe

cc

YAMASKA.

223





Prohibition Plebiscite.

NOVA SCOTIA

NOUVELLE--COSSE

225
20-15



62 Victoria

itm0l u ÀuanV!JsuOa tiair ut UOI1ld)

Os.'
O

O
.0
'O

U0SAq211111j ilwa lit i'
~ ~ dt~ UO ýU.V4O 10 I.1tUUx

______ S~~()lP. I!Odg JO .. qui

~O~ji1~~ ~ JO .~nxy

1I(
3
va Ut patio1 JO* j.RqiIIll IV4

.1nod io.»il ep p ;ie>ed 19 upd3oo
.44lO.£D gnbl)fa pu» 1UQ

1

v>b1( puA JOj ilni\tOPljJ ~

1:0

s z

-4 -4- - -4~4

k~ -4 '1 -

. . . . .~ . .

. - . . .~ . ~ . . .

u*- ~>

ANNAPOLIS.

226

Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

cq ~ 1 -4-

0

P-

P4

0

w



Prohibition Plebisoite.

j

.1

w

~

~

'-I

O
h

g
h

~

~ -
hh
O.

ANNAPOLIS.
(Continued).

(Suite.)

w
t.- j

* . t..

* - I

~ I

- - - -

1-

O

zz
O
h

g
I.

*0

hh

O.
'g

'.27
20-15j

.- ~ .~

C#D~ ýN"

COLCHESTER.ANTIGoNISH.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

Snuà - " 4
amI snsu îOaj!w" qw utuiu

;,1 1

lbd

jua~wsB1puo4du1 aitbvip-. Ru Loflflo a

is.ýJOA Pos!.4o 0,î{i uo *BiýnA JO Ji1Wlnx

0~n D I 11.117.if?9 
p aLquLo. 1s poalpix(ios jo aaqwn,,ý

t- ~ -4

* .~4 4, . .. C4

4.8tvo? sitaptj aUp 9.49WUOK .

*9iojl-eg ~pn3eti 7<> jtLUiN

1L017140 ap îuassfgl).L
nup nie uvp sprutop gioâ sp >rmoîuuo à=l4J S .~-o-

.aiod t&2VOtll î&,p ;7U78 ~ -tuj.e P.1 CDqu m L' .

-9puu -nuy suv
S9ttOJ> 93;O.& ap 2atquwxo1lo

*IqTqoJd isuiway___

j ~ m PùI~>~~> O~lfl Aot Pi~j'- -- 4 -4 V-4 '

x.. .

94 . . . .

h i g

J t COLCHESTER.

228

A. 1899

i



Prohibition Plebiseite.

1-4 n Cq t- lqe C -4 - t- t- 1:

et semt ° I

'- -~ ~~- t- -A~

- - .F

. . . e . . . . . . .

. . .. . . . .. .

. . . .. . . • .

. . . . . .

-~ o,

D c

CUMBE RLAND.

229



62 Victoria

%0

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

~U~U1~UJJ).t .L~lti.4Jp J)

* I ~.tdn~p ,à?.top.>/? 4g;?fl0~:' )flblJqf.> p 2101 lllpldoj j

4 MIl~f- ?bPj nIp UJ>4 3

mU!~A( mult[ioj qat U! st

fu.-J~OA alpLe~ JIj U ialoA jE> .L>XUIn

-.jnoitsluq )pd;I ~jqb10pJ

*eIOtgLAI(L MUmIOd
tpu'O ut PaII(xi sa4WA JO JXjinnIf, tin>J,

t10!fl<jOq0*d VI -iuoa p *Ito * ip
* .llà U.GpanfO. ep îualijr -1io.id oi j.&pioDj

0 EUl#pga. ý1p ?.IqmoArUi

js1.3?pU>u àOJ misO Vid VI .11.0
2A( u!IIod t{owa Ut -Pqo

I)mII(xi "?foA joaq J9 ol!tUflxl« i jo

z

21

Il<

iý YR n e:3 el9 -I4m - 2

. . .- ..

. . .

C~APE BRETON.

230

A. 1899

;p



Prohibition Plebiscita

L - d I.** * e

eb

x TM t>

_

t
j o

CAPE BRETON.
(Continued-Suite).

231



62 Victoria Sesional Paper (o 20.)

0.i s

UM 2j D£uanl!w4suoD xjQe;ý ui uogelndo

»Îi %JD g U?3>fl7U1 >7 3JL4

_______ uorV p>noACi JO Jaqûi NZ

-rnjLmi i:i>p ii o$?a2p 3od4)

>nbo~ ~UY7> uuop~>joiliiL <>p 9)O .tqwOg

U0181A!(qq pa U!llt oia

t(3va ut pa 41od SaJOA pOJ8Ifl

.4 rio(à uoiQvja -P lu»i&ý -t<jlolci 'Di -- 4UcLD I .

R4Itp itl)Da arp 2guop(j - j
--!q!4'o'd isitV

;SU!V.2? puv JO> UO!" -ji .4 j.o

2~u Si11od q;)f ut
PatI 

0 AJeOqi .qw14: .10,4qIod O

c

~- t~ -

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
. . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . .
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

>
0

>

as Cu tc a e..= tIt
1- 'Ils

C Q>

1)I1GBY.

22

L. 1899

* ~ -

= S::ý týl " ý- ýC =



Prohibition Plebiscita

aOI-~C -~ ~ -~ ~ '~

hi
_____ i

* *.-cq........................-4~

"I- - - -4

Q

DIGBY.
(Clontinued).

(Suite).

e

Q
h

u
h

QQ
'-'-Iun

GUYSBOROUGII.

233

t-11 cq ^.I -4 -



62 Victoria Sesional Paper-s (No. 20.) A.1899

__ uMoqs im iÇuanl!suoo lqwç ut uoilvltidoi

*UOQDjo.1PL1L~fP1 a4L nbDIfJ eup g11tJUoii àtj i 14

ce UO WIA iq Jiuillo,& iqac ut sr 1 1-q E Im

~~J~~O ~~~u 'qNeI i a 10SJoA jo .ixltUIfl

-_________ ~ poi!oods jo_~Wl . . .

~~ncq c.ipln cq -4 qtu

gs i " - ..

-oiptio.ti 2nbznpi ruvp-
0 ?140*P R1a ip ailtA ~ uoi

jsp2l u .fl4J q oq!J Cà
IAWL1( 2UtîUOd tj31l) ut 1 -ý1 If4t4

eiIod ffl'A jo, iaUfl mtî tqtýZ ~ i

Q --

.Q .....

12Il

HALFAX

.4234



Prohibition Plebiscit.

ee 9eaoW -cà- e

-•n . .R ae P. e1 ýl ,

. . . . .. . . . . . . . . .

. .Q

HAcgFAv

H A LIFAX,
(Continued-Suite).

235



612 victoria Seeional Papers (No. 20.)

pýlQWU&ýUj3.4j .* i Uip 91~ ~j.io1~)~D6?11oa mb)Mâp »uoî»jndîoj

Pn fl UE4 82PU R7:6 m

UOSAq2 u1'a t1ava nt~i
4""a4oA )el~Aou aîq4 n10 sia4A JO lIeqltlflg

-oalnt gii.flaîl7q ap).qiO

g~01 ~f 1 p~p0I.4Jo iaquin~_______

.vllq p3l.)4l.a JO àaquin .

,0?O.'1 ap U14?IO.J
Iap 9.qllA cq ýT D t 1 ~

Uoijlqlljodd D/ j 2111UIlod 1eo

-,sl2 .iueoi '.o o

* 1ioiioqiI4oJJ - ____

-TA (I ~q~oj1Ia~4 Ir

C

~
- ISTs. -o 4-

;~ 4;

-4- 4-4

C~ ~ -~
k~ .-4 - ~

~4-44-4-4~4 ~~'1 ~1 e

C~ C~ C~

o
z

-4,- e4~

* -"I

I .~ i

-~

c~z~
1

~.

sC ~ce.

HALIFAX,
(Continued-Suîte).

À. 1899

'4

3
h

g
h

h

hh
§0



Prohibition Plebiscito,

-4 .. . . ..... CI

- -4 ~ e4 4

cq

c- ,- 4 q q 4 e IS -ce *

J 4

P-44 ".4 P'-i14

Q

'a

o
h

s
h

h
0

*'~ 04

@0

* ..........

HANTS.

237

- ---------

?a-

z --------

c

a EO

INVERNESS.

z
SI



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

'sojit11i Va1!O<iw JO Ja4qIl~

44nol~Ivi pop.tîaai JO 1J 1 1Ul j

i>JW~.p jp.Lt?ILJ>epulOd4à>
hmp' RU»~ ~nwoji >?zO.e R0/?p40 P qnw .

l palocI s
4

oflA JO jýbquitî, luo

afldIOJJ. p r)tlIl -il/Q).d »7>.P
0
b

R?UuOp 0;0).z ?/> )afl?ILOg YOi

-4uv p"ài R I -,,!qoqid vl U1110

pe 11od1 gafOA Jo ~ UOi~IIItIOt.1 )j~

i. - ________

p9ýîi;SLEilf-Îg1mî9[:5

-~ h
1I.4

t- ~

j-____

o

4
* 4* Q

a.

u
* h

I.; ~:

.~ Qo
7;

INVERNESS.
(Coitinti- Sui t4,).

238

&. 1899

10 ?--
ý .0 PL-q



Prohibition Plebisoita.

--- 4 .4.1 ~ -r e

el (Na t4- 7.t

Z et - ~

àf: = tGr_ "Mrý____Ç. _g: _

5.

I

a.

a.-

.~ 2

ha.

Oc

'g

KING(S.

239



62 Victoria Semional Papers (No. 20.)

#?jv.p.oplp pMo aibînj op ifotrnpufor

Isnsiuac %«I aqi £q
umoqs »e £z)onlsuoo t40139 ut uo!qvlndo,1____

u0!qm&,& ap

'UOISIG 28U!IIOJ îp ut vvi
.9-JaOA pOB!AGU Oql uo_8inO

0
A JO 20~qUIl ______________

.4-imp gtutpîînq alp a.&uog*. ..

*9~OlW~{pe~pÇeiJO 1JeqlUI

1Lqo4 p pEltU3SSLpU&LÀD

.(jsAI 2uiqlod
140,e Ul p(411Od saflOA JO ýq1IfnX MI~k

.47od uotimoa ap jum»a -tyo.*d I atluog
.puo.isO anbrnpa euvp-

offUOp #g?2Od ep a.tqMUO 'UOI~

213uu2v pue ao; uoifi
.1A!4R 2u!lloj q0ffl 1;1 -týdV

Pejjod ffloA aein 1V"" *uOrqqoa

tLcq tt-etc.0 0

----- P-4 fV.
4

".1~ CilCi -1 c ci

LUNENBURG.

240

A. 1899

0
Ç4

o

ai

ai

.4



Prohibition Plebiscite.

" ".4" è?ý-4 c

00 t- O cm
4 4

>-

0Q

LUNENBURG.
(continued-Suite).

à

.OU

20-16

c 4q -- ,4-----

t-. m -e,- e~ t- :c~C cq et=-

à4 Cq P 4 8 - C4 es

z-z

PICTOU.

241



t?.itivp Imo i? loe aflbD?( op iOlJDjfldoj

snsuaCj istl ýq X<q
umo014Sv X ~OuanusuoO 11073a ut. uotilndol

. 3~ puY)i &fltby Rup otnaaUi 2&J 99p U

UOSTRAtUr Suillod qoue ut ýstrj
j g~~PasItAa3 é4J 110 iu;n

0
A J ~U

00 -4M t-et-t

i sgulipfnq op pÀ()ULoA r

I ~~~~~ ~palods~ jo _____ _____________

inbo Rnj3 RUZ)Puo 5j1U1LO i p îvîJ aaquiog

qm) ut PalIWd Saflo jo joqwnN Ejulj,

*nuo.niîo. op 9.U0Pl
..tplduoipgn-i ap ujuta

efUop 84J0.1 op 3.tqrnog

ýsutISii put *.iôj* mlis

I%2 ultUod qàvoi Ut
POIO ~ J iqTuflN

110 Ip

V . u o g

-!q!wqod lsuti
2

v

*uotiqtoJ i X

t - i! Co I

C4 CI Iq00

tC4ý 1< S

,-4el -C t

0 =-------:-=-=-z----

h

* .. . i

h

~ ht
~ ~ . Q.

L~

o~
~ ~ ~
~

~ ____

PICTOU,
(Continued-Suite).

w Z
S-

242

'62 Victoria Se.-siona1 Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

z

z

E-

o

t-



Prohibition Plebiscita

C4 L -m

.c . q

cqt-- 0 11 t- Zý 1
cq -

0 Q.v eD" - 4 cC D

W-4 4

Càg -<%.C

> .- e:

1,0

RICHMOND.

z- -.: - .

-g2 gg -2 o8 - 4 -

Z SHELBUJRNE AND QUEEN'S.

z-

243
20-16



62 Victoria Soeional Papern (No. 20.)

54

sjdvýp iv.iovjp gDo nrp t uolwndojl1

.u ta2pt&o.Ltv r nbnp 9U ;2g. 4j11?99
ing2U~2fa a9p ItW

*uoistAI.( 2UIllOd wqaVg Ul ýStq
<&I40A pOSIAe53 aq UO 

8 ",9 0A JO Jý4InfzJ

0

8.4

ceP-
43

-4

(D
'o-
o4

G,

0

o
;_4

I S4 vp u.lle IP -&

-siolJ pug Ça JO jU)qIUfl7

I U0fl010.l ap ;?L118.pUo.It
mnlnnp gu»p àýmuop gra-p pnoî aiquoA

*UOlIAi U!~O
.o Paln p~<'SaIOA OJqIl

*towî!qO.t4 M qqiuoi la
*tnod "oaý ap lumdiLa
-. ipuLojÀD 9flbDj guvp
s?UUOP g9loa p a.tq1tQoA

lsu!2v PU- .1OJ mi!s

pellod s.e;oA jo jaqîtrnç

z

c.,

s

.uovp

'u!~q!qoj<{k IFIv9 L_

244

-4~
,~ o

_____ __ *~-

a ~

a ~1a,-4

* a *~~4 .

cqi

~ ~ f4l

(Coti e -Suite). -

A. 1899

9s?flnf)ut su.tfl nq p uaqittof

,siolJjg polcds jo aaqin

0



Prohibition Plebiacito.

8 Mg 8 Z

* . : . .:: .. . . '

cl NC tC1 0*Zt t t--M e ~ SIÀ

__ 2_e__e gi 1v

-l-

v-I~~ ~ cq C' 'i t 
4 

D O4 0 t- M

ci -bcez1) -

w s-ý54 4 ozoZ>z

o
1~
'i
'a

o
'.4
mi

g
h

Isq

o.
T?

VICTORIA.
4-4

Q
4-4

r-4 1-4

- 5.4
0  

P- *v--4 **-

r-4 v- 4 V4 , -4 v-I COI v- CD'I 1 O

1 -i 4 .4- i, 
v4~

V-4 cq C
4

à le e0 0 t- = g

ce

~c
a4

ce S u

YARMOUTHI.

R--425 245



qu2 Victoria

oý
0Q

:a

0

4

0

'0

4
9.

0

Sessional Papens (No. 20.)

z

. Iwfflwo.& "týwL4p 21
e9.Ldv, DÀO)a sca6 nmoa inbuyp "IOWldoJ

UmOqs Fm xou,)n!%Buoo tjqirt ut uoilundol
.uogvjoa 2p

maLgpeot U4iv antbtnp e141p gi.lr4p a p
p?ýý aipn ml in ap4jeui OJlp-tp .qU&O»

UIIAIÎ UI1 iqa 4O Ut 11
ý8-140A PfflAe5U *oji uo *sJaoA jo JaquIfl

2flboq irui»p opUOP 0SîOt fep lm'0) aiquwv~

i'ago li PÇNI1 X 8910 A Jo' J4qWflr I9t1ol
*oýI;qtvqo.d DI 9.17uoj g *uo ~qq
Lodtumîm"o ep îwuag~ -joid V'l atîiog

-tptto.t.*o anbvya Puvp
lr9umLO 03;a ap e.lvioAg iUOI2I

*uO[I!q!qO'duo~jouTpu PUW JOJ UO!s qtotdr ro
4A!(I Sutllo« 40e ut

0110od fflA JO z;W'qmà *UO,~q4J O

c

z

z

IÏ

~re~I 16

jYARMOUTH,
(Coutinued)

(Suite).

146

&. 1899)

»Rplnovu& suîiaj2nq op a.tçuLoA

,gýojv pods yo~qun
*S9À.LD3 tqptanq ap juqzaog

s81o11ec polpaa JO iaqitunN

=>



Prohibition Plebisoita

NEW BRUNSWICK

NOUVEAU-BRUNSWICK

247



Seasional Po

*snsuao isuI 011 Âq
l siil Sv auonl!lsuoa qara ut uoqiltd(ol{

-UOý,DjO.z ap

îuauLagg ' puoÀ4lv gnbwqc gu»p Ranipil?~ gep

UOOuiA!(I iU! zmO utO i! jr~
ýsuaqOA Pas1AO1J Otl UO sJalOA POJ~Uf

-slo11uq pall1S ;o a1,quinK
2-ondoi' ~ulmnq qp 9.tQ'U1OA

8-inpllv paqaaaeÇ.I J)Ul~

.Uoo' 114a'p ýUewg puo..LO
in'b".g survp OUU&P sëîOd 99P fl.JOJ 9.IQULO&

quv PuiM pald A jo io~qmnIf j o1

62 Victoria

.tnod uoîvo. pin~ îu1mi t VJ0U3

.s PUOÀ&ti 1'?bvqg, guop -

quuop ja~ ;?p Otqtogf !!od st2

ýsultfti pu"? 10J uoIs -Îq?yo04 M200 ilo, 0 n

. . . .

b4 ....

oc

bc

>
Sm.

ALBERT.-

s

248

pers8 (No. 20.) A. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscita.

t-

-4. . . . . . . -q 1" -4 ?4.

- ~~ - M - - i C

* +

=o ",q3c lm

2

-~sa

f- - . "CqC

S-.D:

3 E l

22

CARLETON,

E.

249



62 Victoria

ce
P-4

ce

Q

4

0V:
0

$4

0.
eý
0E

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)A.19

cqcq-4

*cq *~q .~

anbp Rvp ;)uoZp joa top Ulug1T tuoff

*UOITAIqj 2UîIo0
I10t9 Ut pallod SaJOA Io jotiung inV\L____________________
uoý'pg!Ojid ni aÀuj pl uolq

~~~ -no.id vl 9.quoq

82?UUOP a0 ap~3 .ilaOx *M!

.uot:!,q!qwoi 
-

-IAIQj Sull t4-t~ Mt

PF;< 0 S- 81A jo Ji<1qIN *uotvqqoi 1o0_____

,-icq m St m =f RO P4 e m~ e ào

o..............................

z---------------------

250

>

ue.aIvp po~p ib?lloi anbvmqq p V.O.Iîvndoj

Coue rgu ) t4OM9 Utq UOWIl

-11O 112O.1 ep
lwulagglpUiO.&s. aiibvqnp mv7> gannfl?7 o9p
,7?oaJ isn g RIMw .~ut tinfl32)9p "gtmogr

-UOLslAKI âutiilOd qate ut jmýrI
iflfl PaSIAOH 941 U O IOA lu jauni.

9-slý; I nnu o rn'nq a'p 3.&?tLg

palpe Ioio- . . .-

siolfWg paetai lo Jatfns

& 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite

I.C

c~

CHARLOTTE.
(Continued-Suite).

251



62 Victoria Sessional Papern (No. 20.)

g?4d»ýp îv.to)XJ l?ioi wibvn qa p u'olî?)IIoj

UMOqs w~ xjugqWWlsuoo qwç) uluotývlndoj

_(tJInOA POslTMOJ 0'4q uG 8101A jo iJ)qUlç

-o 11 -eqpaxods JO1 '1"

~o~apOqOO(aI 1o J;)u1n
uqo ap îu»asg.lpuotto

1-ý ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ i- = o"=I t i m CC4 C4 c C q -0C -44CIr4

ilma Ui pelIod 9'a1oA Io> .1equIIflï mmi' <I
uotpqiijo.4v I.quompq

.Lnod tLo alv)oa ap )tLifl&3 - Io. j u 4)U00
-1ftpuoi.k.vnbvq. guvp

g?tLUOp àriO0a ep 2qu&owg
-~~~ lqW O~ sU!.8

lgiftpi-0 1ioJ UO!S *illOtJm.Inoj

palod 0
A 10 -i)qthX. -uol!qtlqioJ JOA

I.

- .- ~t-t~
,-.4 ~4 ,-E

~4 ,-4 ~4 - ~4 -~ ,-~ ,-4 - -4

.% 0

I GLOUCESTER.

*252

&. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscita

tes 400

0 "- cl m "-ý ! SI". §

. . .. . . .§
%

KENT.

253

1.4cý c

a

3..

g

g:

hh
§0
gg

,-ClM -m=

25
PC



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

z

z
zo

8s.Ld7p ivtoî3»9 Pô?floi aubi Pp uoývptoj

*UOISiAîI .( Uiflol 4va ut pit~
,S-laOA PffliAOU a4tf UO sJDOA joiýqtun ________

-oaZlitivL guipfelnq 2p etqtaoA

'81ojjva pat!(XIs JO aqru,
-siii gu'illnq ep 2.tqiltOg

8O¶ papafal jo ja11uf
."U I0Op SaOp îwuog ?»' l?.oi1LLO

ênbvija gitup RuioflO gap Zuiu&3gMpuOJ.L

4 Ut P,-11d SOIOA 10 .1qmn,' liekll
u0z2jlq!ujOad MJ gtlioi p 'uoMp

-Ripuo.&À» inbrnj3 guvp
RaUUOP saýO., qp 9.qluov 'UOI

!q!qoid qqUltâ ______

~U11?2? ~UW IOJ UOs -ýWo.d v> .noJ ,

pý 1 jo qaïoA JO 1-lqmttm UO~q4 JOA4

z

z

c,0

z0

v -

o

S4 -~

s~ s.

C~'-4 ~ r- 1~ -~ ir~ C~1
~q r- ~q

~

C~OD~ r- îr~ ~ ~
- ,-4~ ,-4~ ,-4,-4~.4

. . .. . . .

Q-e ~C

KING'S.

25.1

A. 189Q.



Prohibition Plebiscite,

S - o

oo

4E

KIG'.

(Contnued-uite)

1:-

~ I~

* ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ C CI4-,4 .,4 .

* . .. I
t- S - CD -4 -I

77
W_ _ _

cz ma x o

NORTHUMBERLAND.

255



62 Victoria Sesional Paper (No. 20.) L. 1899

g? s.&dvp îvoî jy gfiqloo ernlmi ip uoi?,lndo«1

'sisuao lsw q q~ 
0

Iumo14s SiE XcOUafl!tl9uoo toug ut UOtltli(icOd

45 upfiTa2.eApuoit. 2-nbInj3 gUVp gjnjll g9p

I UOIsTAT<r Muiiiod pué) ut ýslrj
(D 41;nOA POSt(A;; àqj uO sj;n-A j I)qUn ____ __

1.4 I?~~~~qnJvuL d ~u ~ j >JWOl AJ

__î)o, ap . . .ROI . . e
PnbI1M su PeI!oditJO galq(Ifsep.. . . . .

TtP.1XO SUpfIT PJ!>0 Jirju> y;zdîo . .. . ,ý f

UOTàO. &nId tUJuJl8puo.L.t Ipjmg-

g?, paT toillA o .eingI

O uuop Rajo. "?op

ci - ___

ffliv.8t- pu- Di m0 )- c ?.I= eC

. . . . . . . .

o
'st

25



Prohibition Plebisoita

-4- t = - ag -4. 44-4

I tt

SUNUR AND QUEEN'S.o-r

2520-17t

v CI

Qw4 ' m Q

SUNBURY AND QUEEN'S.

257
20-17



62 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.)

umoi[S si" 2çzuanl!4suoo ipsa ut uoîwvlndod ____

~uui~~poJ1 nb"j Ru" R.nl3e)p 99P -c'e=D

&s.lOA pasliamj 9tl UO 81910A JO .1aqiIIl ________________

UOuflEO.Z a 3uLa2pUOd.L1)

ùfbDj 8U 9 ?1UOP g2)O" sip 20JoJ 9.LQUIOX< j- -

4O avu p:1od sejoA JO_ ioqinn iol

4.L.tu anbvy iti)up
Ruu0p 811oa 3J2 P.tqaOA.bj

But.101 q~toJ4 1

P fIIl OA JO ie)qtuni . joli___ _______

E-

.- .
.o

o Mr

cr.- SAINT JOHN, CIT

258

'Y AND COUNTY.

&. 1899



Prohibition Plebiscite.

4mc t-

h .

Ioo

..... . . . . . .

*e.e .~ .~ ~.. ..... ..

c.0

0o

o y

259
20---1



62 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.)

o

o

R?MdpIP V.tOZ3p Pfi?îîoo anb"rn p "uIMfndôj

snsuao isvi aq sq
tAmoî4s ",&Z£on4!lsuoo qoue ui uotiendoJ

____APoiO 91 uSOe PJOW JO jo iqmnK

#,t.4t;921an-q ep.?.qmoV

8
ý
0 IIlf[ pOea[w jo iaqmngl

*UOîDZo,- ep Z1Lutaggpuo..dv
anbvya Ruvp ?uu.op 94-1 Sap 2Vî«Oî a.9mof

*UOTSIA!Uj 2Uiljod
4flUL paqlod_ 9 0 

Salo*n uoj

VIlq1j~dD a.&fl4oo p~
itic UOtliolo, ap ýua?M,)g -t?(OMId VI eqLuo3q

-0.1puO.itt anb"mp guvp-
Suuop 2gO»z ap PdqiATo *Uoil

*uoi~îqiqo.x<

pe11od ~~OA JO JeqlU

75zo
7:

z

o

I *uo~
Dz

~N *uoqîqiqo.zJ .io~{

o

o

z
o

s- I
'o Q.

s-s .~ o"-

4 ~ ~ C ci 4 4-

9

. >: 2 E

ST. -JOHN CITY.

260

A. 1899

"Clm
>j ci c'l ci -:,,l ýp1



Prohibition Plebiselta

-e --

3 2

M C *e c.- * C-1 cq cg

-f
M8ssayem

: e

. . . . . . o

e

ST, JOHN CITY.
Continued-Suite).

'fi

CQ -<

16o

oo

- -

cee
>0

I
1-4

o
Q

rnmDT A

C 

.



62 Victoria

P41 i uia3
1 3

?fl0a 40bv00 ul uindod

* I~~PUOd.l» altboij. -np xL 2? Sap 4t -t't

*UjII 2UtitO& i.)¶1 Ut IsiVJ

9.1910A pesliAaù{ ij4 uo u4oWAN jo. JEKjuIfn __________

.ei>nomu gutW)f< 3)) 3.qULoX

___________ s;ollvg paîpods J DUn

*cq2Q m Co :1--q" pM",qC',

S4I1ug papa (à. JO -1ilqun..

nja( iUhp R?3tUO)) g2Oa, gp )vi) aÀqtoxA

*IiOis>OAtq 2uoj
13aut PaII0 d s

0 al& JO .I4lUtiKJ 1-i0k
*01WzIîý,Ot.I4 ,aiîuog p IUl N. 0 C- 0 C

-sipu.*.L inbflp Rup
8ýt3UGp) aOt p ht9vtIOx mUOil

isutuft put, Jol mis~ 1 C4O~c - ~ ~ -~ .

P sTW ï oA JO io(q1Ufl 11011!qoJ .1a1 ___________

in L- c

.Z1

ce4

0

1.4

0

.P.4

A

A

E

9-4

0

Sesional Papers (No. 20.) A, 1899

I. WEST-MORELAND

262



Prohibition Plebiscita

'Ct.-

cc - -- ,- -,

4

h

E
h

o yo

WESTMORELAND.
(Continued-Suite).

M r0 -- 4 1 M C1.- e. et D I

C c ~ I &0 -l "q - e -4

00 q e: q .- L-' '"' 00 ï ea~- Cq cq

z-

Z -0

- 2 >' 4, ..-.. 4" E

YORK.

263

. . . . . . . . . .



62 Victoria Smsional Papers (No. 20.)

R?ÀdP ldolai? 9oi ënbvii ip u'ofvpbutoj

u 2Ç3Svxzuanl!lsuoo qome ui uoilWîndod

ýt~u- SSulpuO.L.t 9flbuy. gU"i 2.tfl
; 0S11 Di ais4 83Z.tc2t4 R.&tll.9?ap a.tqîaog

csaqA p!aspio aq; uo «siaoOA Io .laqun~

* _

t-

P4

4

9.
'0

$4

p

.1

0

$4

4D

0

'0

UOlDO pý- 0- uwwgg8lpto.4.&v.92. lp ?UUOP gi0 RiP 21nol oi4lttLLU

43~~ liL pi1 10d 9 0 TeqIn '

st.. W
-2tLok.tiw nzbmp suvpl- -ý0dM .4

2?UUOP sa0 ap 2.4qitog *uou

~suiaw *ot~tqiqJ~ uoi2
pli, .10J misj ~tjo« n &o

-!AMq UI[lOd qv uit
paluod sajoA joàaIqiu,ý I uoîvqiqoij JO!

z
O

e

z
O

u -

YORK.

fflntiuedSuiah

264

«L 1899

*2fplin»u& 2Wulîal «gp e.&qmoAr

8o1apglpods jo ja

P4*)aaro JO~fn Jp~tuO



Prohibition Plobisoita

PRINCE EDWA RD ISLAND

ILE DU PRINCE-ÉDOUARD

265



62 Victoria

0

w
P 4

ce

-4

0
P-4

*0

P.,

a

0

"4à

9-4

a,

Pd

Seàsional Papers ,(No. .20.)

-- u~U~ua~aiv ai~np Çq

it[iO4s st, Çainl!lsuoo 4c~i U! uoi-liqndol-

~~U~?Q3~8ipUO.l&JO inpp t»

~54 VI ~g ~ aa~ ~uuW

.,?,rnaiu $;Ut3Iflîlè ap a.LcrmOp(

___________ lle£ pal!ods jo iaq1ufl _______ ___

-RJ.tl)ja srnîlal?) ap aiqtuO.

! pýoCq p ao J j iquinN
ioioa * p i u1uaOzpV.O.L.

gimp !i>p ? 1» lop gdîO.t gýp jvijoI a.upuogr

II __Pl lit pali ao

Ieuo.l??o.tdrn .quo

-R 'iipittoJ anboiqa gi)p
9?1mop pýq»Oa gp 9.

1
loAr

*uotiqiqo.ld
wsuiv8l; plin 1oj uoîs

p1A1od 2u o aq"qufil

4

lo *14fl I-eloiL

uop

-iq!iij.td i

--oe

I -C -~~

La. .-

ce -0 r .
'~-bc

266

A. 1899

g 9 âel 2 Q0CýU04 ý2 ý2 -le FI -ýzl gi C1ý OCO -il 1C:ý -S O-C R
,«-q "-0 ý 1-1 F-f 1-4 P-4 1.4 ý - 1.4 m e -4 Cq :Il - "-0 -

M M ýp -- q

KING'S.



Prohibition Plebiscite.

* t _

M q m %D t m CI."4ci

Cq-

Continued).
(Suite).

Cs

r o?

o

'o

o
h

g

I.
h

0

tt
00

PRINCE, EAST R.

N.

267

1-4 -c e
-- '- i pc1 9q

. . . . . . . . . .



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

i.
z

~~.tc(njjo avtp nboypè ap uo! îjnd(oj

ýU,:wtgg.puOt.10 etbOj RU»P ~>?~
~97DI tns1 gýÀ)g. OSJ»lpp 9.1,9110N

U0SaI .XUît1oJ qaua u! Jsiq

es
4
j'l

0
A posUL'f aq-4 uo ýuaj

0
A JO Jdqtufl __________

2ajnomm, iutîgllnq "P d.1q7.iox

WoiiIpap!ods jo jý>qiuuKrI

SV)lIVft p~4~i~ p ~iaquiflN

anoomv ,uitup gaîo.b sap Iviol a.iq7elo.

UOsÀq 2Uil0J
qaua ut pellod saýo J jo iqtunX pjoj~
-uoî»Qnjo.d DI a.&uoo la Uoiîlq
.inod ici inoa ap >m as -v41 otd n
sýîpîw..&v gnbvya suvp-
R?U1lop enoa J'p i491UOA U

*qoj ;suii.WV

rqsuMeýl pun 1oJ uoIu -qS j.dm ~o
28 P ýII ý Od J qutàx *o~qtOJJ~

z

or

z

1-4- " *

e ",--41 a

z-----------24 5S ----- p '-----

. . . . .

P>RINCE, WEST R.

268

IL 1899

Cr



Prohibition Plebiscite.

I I I -

I- I

-. ~ ~ ~ C :'** .

ci.. . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . ..x 0 (r00 cq 0I 1D cqt- 00 I-. ,~ - q
ciI -

à

P INCE, W. -R,

(Continued).
(Suite).

o
c'i

ON -L'Z o.~ieC1 1 Lcciicc ci

c :

>

z
d

e~
r~Q~

QU EEN'S EAST R.
Z-e
~

269

O
h

h

*0 ~

hh
§0
.- ' -gun

t- m 9 = x m t-ýý m e = 9 cq cq 00 " t- ZDt- ýý oc m CI Li cq m m LID MM= Z LZ lm k- &0



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)A.89

0

p4

'.4

ce

P-4
#D

'.4

.pq

.,d

P4

G,

0

uow.tpqocud Plj .ipwo3 p ufi
.&noc ui4a~ t~~ ~o&Iv

l9u!iâW pu JOJ UOis v2~qot &noflj

PIO 0AJO lDUý *uoil!qlt4ol JOJ[

.~ .~ .-- ~

CD *-0-0 0q,- CD- D 0t

ICo

QUEEN'S, WV. R.t

o

270

8?ME7iýp îviwýail? gbfirnoa Pnbvqg ap tiontrqnd

*8USU19 q'wI 9il4 iÇq
umoqs @%~ Çauan%!;suoD t{oea ut uojî%1nd id

~ anTnnp guvp sn-o9p s9p

isJeO1 PasAeOI glql TTo f!LIOA JO "-quunK

______ sloljv$ pa{pods JO .xaquI

8934iv£9 8Uipflnq JO laqU0n . . . . . .

-UOfl2ýOa ep ý'uql0gR2UOL.I
anbvye guy)p gauvop $?oa gep 11404 9aiquwg ltZ S,

t4ffl UT PiD1 Od snOA Io iaquinu jvýoj, 1

62 Victoria A 1899



Prohibition Plebisoite.

T'1

CC

• ss

QU EEN'S,
W. R.

(Continued).
(Suite).

271





Prohibition Plebiscite

MANITOBA

273
20-1M



62 Victoria SeÉiona1 Papers (Né. 20.)

oadvp gôrloa Pnbvyo ep "îv.lndo«

umoq« im XauanwýjsuoC qve ut uotý%Indo«j ______ _____

aM,&eltv &rng sl?.tiout stiugpp î.tqiuog3- '4'-Ar- -~- -

is.I4OA P'iAH 91P~ uO fuaI0A 1JO quný,

-sioiija pepoda ]o x3qU
-8 moimq ap a.qiIuoýf

.u .m o 
v-

4 
" ? .9 " 2

aib'qi g» LguOp galoa gê1Ppn OO .Cqmx C- -< g cq C'rq

'UOStAiq2 ,
qaffl ti pal[od sa

0
A jo ji4qttnç 1

0
lsio1

*unod qoîîo.,t ap l.ueo yi Dl *uooC

*9'tpuo.4in anbvql guIvp-
Ruuop Salon ap itqvw U!

isutico pu"e 161« Rois -~t

ZZ

to -

tze-P.- - (- m X ,ý t-

L. ~.

< -

Té

BRANDON.

&. 1899

>



Prohibition Plebi8cfte.

e R- - -: 8mV m z82 e - 2 -

-r c er4" 4 t- V4 "i m C -4 1- -4 -

*.-'- c-4 M M 0 C *eM *-à ý - q - q q?

-4 . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . .....

. . .. . . ..

o -. -0Q

(Contnued-bc--)

r. cz,
2la--8=



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

1taflmagtLaa.4 iatit.tap ai>

sMoqfl w Jv.to>x qs ioo iaflf u uo'i>ondoj

.0

1:4

P94

4s
4

0

,0
&4

P94

4

s1i~0
0

-s;Oiijf papaai 1 j.aqumnK
*t401>D>O4 e lual143ugptO.«

anlnnp euvap sutiop s4a>. olp 10>0> a.iquiogr

*UOtsiAli(j 2
UtIlOd

ut~ il!1o PsW'J A jO 'IrINï 1'C01

t--o- ~~~ r-4o 00 = t- eo stoc " e8P-

itoz»qyiiod Di a.quop pa UOMp
.tnod uoilmoa ip îulutag ->yqo.i DI P.Iîu00
-Ripuo..v Pnbrnp gu»p
;U~utOP 84a>0' àp Ptqw1oNf *uoi

uoq!loj loJai2
U1W2 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~~D ÀU IJu! .qi'.dz>.noj

PýI1Od @--OA 10 JaqtutlX uoiliqlqoiaJ -to

zo

o

M
o

M

zo
M
M

o

276

A, 1899

>ilaspuo.td gitbvi su07J 9.Àna>uai aPP
À>~ >.ne gî!dagu4 irina)aap OiPq«wx

UO(JI %Uliod iqza ut p,
<IOA PGI9A 01 uO 91911OA 10 lln

*sp7namt& suflal9 Pp a.LqwIoç.

ýsioIIui [peUods jo .iaqtnnK
RWÀDOPva gupanq lp adquwbZ

i

BRANDON,
(Continued- Suite.)

1

1



Prohibition Plebiscite.

C

o . 0 4 0 - p

*c h

a t.. tt

m .18 C c

BRANDON,
(Continued-Suite).

*:i~***--

i~ -.~ -:

'-4

:~ :~t-~

z ----

* . -.4 ~

re.î........

0 ..

LISGAR.

277



62 Victoria Sesional Papers (No. 20.) A.I89.4

<

1-4 g'u4op l)olpîp aô?lo airtbD1f ýp uoiin

*snsuao jim 9q

lu"getuot anvy ouvp 8 ap ~
.majP Ivans set4osuî stnal~plp m.qMOM - ~ '~~- 4 '4--

imlo

_____ olî,q paqiods p .iaqmnnK... . . . .

g?îivo? gui.Inq op 9.qiiwpj . . .

________ SýOfljWJ pnaGrai JO lo>q1u

-4 - t<njn;o.it e;p l¶ o .

-~po~t nbvqi ouDp

<~ PU .OJ UO!S .3cf.q 0j mLOJ e

-!Ala âniTIT0 qOmO Uù
I p~ii~~~0A P UILLM uoilqqoj .ij _________

P.:

o o

--g -Me-.=,=-ýç1- cd ce~

127



Prohibition Plebiscite.

ýý' ý;Q c

oLi -e

-410

ce _ _ _ ?0-c, C

e h

'00 !m g

72 7

LISGAR.
(Oontinued-Siiite)

t-- -D 4 -4 c-4 m e -

*. . . . . .- .. . . . . . .l

. . . . . . . . .

. . . -.

.

MACDONALD.

279



62 Victoria

,9?d jl.1O 3 éOflJ1oJ aflb".g ap vo.t îjndoj

umoqs w~ Xaliewwq!suoo 4tffw ut uoilvrlndod__

>UUL2ipOJt gl!.Iaguit~ O.Ifl;aafljp g4&q1

*SjgqoA pastAla' qq uo sial
0

A JO 'i'ïqmulN _______

gý;111jvyf ouip~~~ .9IO

")opJ plamas pujoiqrn

UOlSIAîqI 
2

UIROJ
-qflut Pa[[Od s,1AJ jo -iOqtnK l"1

0
1 ___

1401J91 qj.td »j a.i pLOl p UOipýq
.anod uo?lpnoa Pp liu-girtg t~ilotd VI a.Lîuoj9 C4
-S8tpUO.t.i) aýibviqd ouvp

1quiop geJo.i ap .lÀq<l(Off -u0t

~gU1~W U~ OJ O!S -Nqîlo. jd VIinoj

1pVuiod * Oiqf~ uo~IIqlqoi1<{ 1o91;

Z

o
M

o9

z'

~c~:e~ ~,4

k e

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . .
. . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . .

MACDONALD,
(Oontinued- Suite).

1).80

Sesional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

10D C9 CI-1 1-4 îý1 &? m = 0 " . t- = e t- &t 9 mcit 14D 'ý = ?? 8 or t-



Prohibition Plebiseit.

I C

t* S C - * * .
.. . . . . . . . . . .

MACDONALD,
(Continued-Suite).

bc

28I



62 Victoria

0

0

sJnO0A Pas'.

inbvyac su»p
CD
-'

0,

o4

.F4

P.,

o
P. Q

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

qnsu ti siql X~iq
.1afl3VlSU0c qova r uoiiundod

UO!8[AIcj 2UqIIO< q"a Ut 81
AOU ýýq u0 8J9ýA0J JO JiiqmIfl

.gltal glaîînq .9p p.*qutox

S;0llvg peod j0 Jiaqulfl

snouleq pejoeaa jo aqun
-UO -lvO. dip ptuagUsg!pUO.11

-r,- -4~ ~

*0
:~ :~

-0k
~ o

ipflý Ili paIIod 8,91A jo ixequin,ý IedlojA
-lto3Jqqlo.tC[ Dl l2quoa p Uap

.4nod uolîvloa ap 111"n'us VIod ailttogj
-.tpo.&.tv aflbW3 guvp-
RiLU<p ge» ap eiquog

ISU!W6Sli PUv .101 u0!s -i '0o.c a> noj
-IAIQ: 2t1HI0d 4qYBa Ut

PqTM0 9
,--IA JO JaXlIufM .uotl!q!tljJ .10,1

0 >
m

>

O

A. 1899

-,- -q -r t-b

*01

0 Ok
Qj4

MARQUETTE.

8 2

.- à.M



Prohibition Plebiscita

0 " S t-

cqe

cq ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ -t-0c n-t-00e oC 1= le, 0

r6- M 7O=O o -0O= -

0 ~~ o
oe 00pm

o..
o--
C> 1..

L. rJ2~
- ~OL. O

MARQUETTE,
(Continued-Suite).

283

go-.

g .8e .. I 7
.A3 g;M



62 Victoria

4

o

P4

4

P4

.0Po-

0P4
P4

0
:e
oF-
k

P 4
CD

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

R;O.etv, aIi?fl0 Pnbm<ap ?.lndcoJ

snsrII,3 8v oq,~ Sq

U00ffl 0 uiuield«

pom1so ' ipuOJ..W ânbno gu» anv~p
via3. n8)PJtg PptagUi R.Ilbaâ)??pa3~tL4O»

qOiS 8uillod 1qom ut Rr

.'~1OAP~!~I9I{1 UO 8sJalOA JO aquing
*R2m3lflI an -T~3ll( l .tofi»àx

A. 1899

Cm I3I CI. oc C1ý

011____ poiiwg s JO ia I __ng_

*>9fl6'o? gutPUlq Pp P.qmwg

___. .~~ . .' .qun . . . .__

âýtbvia suvp 0?1uop 89;.& g.p îvo 9.qUoAr e 410 cq Q .4 m ~ - ~1 Zt

q.~ui pa11Od se1OA 10 'aý4qrn.K l

I.?Uo -[qiqOJz _____ _____

isiu, pu .1. UOSD I-V. 00
Vq VII 1-C< *tod100

-IATU oll!i!j o3M IA

o

M

w
w
O
O

zo
O

PRO VENCHER.

984



Prohibition Plebiscita

- q - - 4

. .. . . .

PROVENCHER.
(Continued- Suite).

285



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

CM 1

Q.Mld 4 p IviMonp) aUjl 32t4lOZ anb"i t~ op I&i
umoie im&z)allsoa inbrn up toqvjnoi

UMOtI9 ~ ~ uoýio ap~Oal~SOq9~U

*UO!SIAMGIO {3 iq9e ut,. r
,s.I

9
lOA POBIAè'J *9q4 uO BJGI

0 A jo ittunN

*elnuvu iruilýqlfq op J.Lqi&Og . .

soflle pe!d jo -ikqmnK

guitJ3 SU$glflq ap a.&quwox

-801el Dra o laq

-Uitoit ip JIflu1t4gS2pUOtLtD
inbvi eu»p esntuop &rqoa sopop t qzoV

.1 UlpalI<d sajoA jo jaqWUN pnoj

.tnodiwqj tLPî4~ 9

?OP 8 sOa ap

*uoqil
lUUin8, pu% J6

pe1 1o0d s9iA 10

40~ 
4 0 v 0 ~

q~uDP Juox

qiqo-i,

pE)u!16 j _

z 94

zz ;

o C3 .- s
Z i- 4rodM

SELKIRK.

$4s
~ t.

286

&. 1899



Prohibition Plebisite,

I.

. . . . . . ......

z

m o

ce ~ ~ ~ 'g 5.0 c':

SELKIRK,
(Continued--Suite).

287



62 Victoria soeional Paper (No. 20.)

z

>

g.tep Djgl? e,791o invy Pnnp uoewzjndoj 1

umoqs su çz)ugn4!IBUO 4av ut -Uotlv 1 udoj

5t~\ 4d..4J qi uo sia4.OA ]0 iaqUIflNý,

nama eu.tîlinq ê7> .laquoV

-siolle p)e!ots Io aaqutn,,
5g?î£fDo gUlîflfl(q qp daquiOX

-s;olreg ffloÇta JO .IîaqrnKý

O t t 3,-i ~
t-

-uo ilfo.1 av una2pO.
anfboi Relup Reiiiop gaîii S.-p lvîoî a-4qiUOA .- ~-~e ot~o

-qofe- ui pallod sajoA 1 '.e uiiijoj,

*ttuoil?jo.d .tuo j

RtLuop a~op 3.squtog q t>d "r

ISU!t'2u puiv J0J mis -mtqid L/ tyfJ

-!Atq- WtllTlod qamd. UT
p4i w 

1
4 ýj JO .1aýqtn g uoil!tqojJ .ioý{

zo
E-

E-
z

z
o

à r c cq

.

. . . . . IP. . ..

288

A. 1899

i 1 *

7:î



M- In t M

L-~~ ~ e hh e9M

cq ClýC'l e

WINNIP1-4emGq;ýt

(Continued-Suite).

20-19

Prohibition Plebisite,

289





Prohibition Plebiseita

BRITISH COLUMBIA

COLOMBIE BRITAN NIQUE

20-19j



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

9?.idDp imtpay~) 2,6eioi Ptbrp gp iuomtPdoJ

umloqs se X<ou9ntjqsuoC) ilo ui uoxt-elndo1

-Uo01vloa ap
uWflspuo.t anbznp suvp oiaol t.p 1 f g =
apg"lj aîs.q ni ingl Sflýi.tt2U g4ngîaa7Jp 9.t&9IUOil

.(j lAIU uO«J ipwa Ut it»q i
taieloA pasIAej E)ql uo se'JOA JO aequil ______

*sti¶3gv PaIT<ds JO iaqtgl

-1 cq -4 ,q -
_____________ pEnaar.x p.iaqwnl%

.4

4j

8.4

P.4

ce

.94

t{ou ut paIlod solo ;Oa q 0
I

ev)d oz~ja ap ýeUqg&~ l-Zio.id VIy> U0 'anuo an t4.OC Ct. t 4 -C4
-Rtpw".v&1 anbtnjo git"p
gp1flOp geîoa ap aiq 'to -uot

- -i~~~_qfl4o.1 qsuewf ___________

-uotiqtqoaj 
til8u!v2Se put, 1OJ mOis myllod »2 tinodf g ýi. l t

-îArU~u!Iod t{o ut

peu .
0 

.O .uqn . .O~ila . . .

>6

xz
z ii

Pl

ceC
o'Or

BURRARD.

cg e

292

A. 1899

cq t-bc -l . . a

Ç'd 4,



Prohibition Plebiscita

t-

q *~

. . . . I~

t.x

BURRARD,
(Continued-Suite).

298



6 2 Victoria

si

o
4

4

k)

P.

a

4

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

i5z

>

A. 1899

7luafflo9um.t .ttuo97 97
RJ.«IV D.Ooal 9fLnOoi anbfl/ qp tiofll4ldJ

umoq » ouenu!x;uoo 1pve ut uoiviwndoj

pr9f7IO~~ v nbnyla ouvp~ sinl;cglp 8s73 1
22J *»2 in gîeu P"<>"o Rich- Dla hfiak

*11O189T(Mut uilJv ui~ Ut sVi[ mond. Dla hliak

ýs"n
0 A PIaQg!G GIfl UO glgq0A JO J -e---K

JO 3fl9Du ltL3 . .f. .9.3. . . . ..

~ p9och~JO leaqmnx

Pnvoeup9UUO73 opiOa #973 2mOý 9.iqm92L0mm 0r-

1pveSNI uttl0 peldsl

uooyI.tdm abvl 9tuu7 ~- ~ 4

S9141L073 "170a 97 9.tltleg 1

oq!qoidJUý

1911-92 Puv I 11018 -igqilijd v2 .t92J
*1A4J 2amloji X4O9 ut

P@IlId fflA JO .I9qulig Uotqojj 1o&~ ___________________

z > . . .

Ur

0

- MQ

922 e ~ 1

w 9zý1 J- >4

z

NEW WESTMINSTER.

294



Prohibition Plebiseite.

Dewdney. New Westminster,City (Cité).

c'à

eo

NEW WESTMINSTER,
(Continued-Suite).

296



32 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

uMoq ~i9,uetsoa -nvq i u*o.tevndMl

ta1~zuoL a nbxp guop stn.2 Sap

tOTAG2uiIIod qo3e ut Isr
is.xaioA p~Saqi% 91{q1 uo sjE)IA O Io~Il jatn ------ -

-gali'lv g3Vt1&i 8Uýfqp etqmov&

'940
1II QI!CKIoS JO JaqMUIflT

V3gulpllq p aquog9
'SiOlltg "orwa JO li2>qmnm

.rnboi m» S'au»p gks a mo .q

.O UTPIIod saj 0A jo« i0qmnu W"0 L I

-~ ~ Cq ~ ~~

*uO qiOd vi a.itoa el*11f

-R2ÎptO.ID elbvye guvp 1 -
gputiop galo.1 ap a.LqlI.tO 'uOi

AI qUtUO qoua Uit -

PaiijxI 9 "A JO jl)flNx *u.,ito1

z

z

z

C5-

:1

*U O

.~., ~J

t>

29>6

VANCOU VER.

A. 189.9

I.N m " ED = L_ 00 m CD -4 cli m 10 00
r-4 r-4 -1 -f - r-4



Prohibition Plebisocita

~ ~

'~1

CD -= -4 00 '- - -e 2e-M

d -
4e4

g • g

' e dZ7

VANCOUVER.
(Continued-Suiite).

.r .z z

ep o

ËMS >. - -

VICTORIA.

297



62 Victoria

0'

ce

CD

Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

____ op~ p.4t-Ill&q e joiqiutiAr

Uol4Oa ep îUumagg1puo..v

tlabin uip P mItup SaJA 10 zaq K a.inoj,

-~-~ i-c~
~ '-4 ,~ '-4

i-i

YALE AND CARIBOO.

298

A. 1899

sjdv'p 'w 2V1îa? fîo nb".ggp "eLoincroi

umoqs se SouanlitqsuoC qoe ui uo!itndod
UODW)lZ iP

ýlL~upwRgi pUO"4v obvi RuDp tinlo7ij9 u.-p
geaz 7ivi .&ng Rg .isw irnaap a.*qu1of

*u0!sAiQi( âutl[o q.'ea ut sr
ci3'alA pesAffl ei uo 

8-"olA jo JaUIng

8slolia popode joaqtnlN

a UO * 110.i. ap j.uoc. i

-R2puOI.&P 2nb7i st&vp-
R?UUOP sejoa 273 P..tqmAr u

qsle, pue IO oj e -?:j.JdO .njgSa

PIila0 A JO l uoîiqqtcu li

I q m zt M c

o>>

.o

.

'e0



Prohibition Plebisoito,

'-

t-a Dot-=~ m -4 M :CD 10,.4 "1 C.I qCI' _q t- t- t- t- C C'- Ct-à 10t 0 C

to00 L 144c C t-.- ci n1 - .

YALE AND CARIBOO.
(Continued-Suite>.

299



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

UMOS S? %~f~T~UO3O 1oti 9
4
1P 9

îu.1algglpuo.ti PubvY0 gunP Sa
in gi ý 2l8S.tgeUt giszagî?p c.quLog0f

uos 2t U111Oj ta~? ut ,Mi
<SJinOA& PaBL1911 9qý UO slal

0A JO Jf>qLUfl

palp? i ds' jo laqinng

*S~~oIII? 91 eipiS. Oaquing

:a

9.4
P4

4

0

0

*u0lq?old Di 9-tifoo la t?11
. uw4tlv 1730 ?~34u»m -.Zyo.i4 01 3aîuog

-giplio.Lfl) anbrnp su»,-p
S?UUOP ga70.1 ep 3.&qmu1 milT

pý) 11 od sal
0 A JO iirnlù,% uouli iqo.îj

>

z
0

~c~I

EU P:z Qe 2Imiz :

YALE AND OARIBOO,
(Continued-Suite).

800

A. 1899

inbjcy gflDp 8*?U1tOP salOi Sap p2oUJ .qZuoff

qoira U! pallod sinA JO~ iaqtunm 111j

-- ~t- - -



Prohibition Plebiscite.

z z

Z Z t-

z c zw

* -4-4 % 2

.

--- 44-4 -4-

0g

Q~~~- t.tdle >

91ý e -

YALE AND CARIBOO,
(Continued-Suite).

301





Prohibition Plebiscite.

NORTH-WEST TERRITO RIES

TERRITOIRES DU NORD-OUEST



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

*1F4

f-,

ce
P-4
ne,

&4

(D

,

0
4

P.4

.4

f-4

0,

*uow9: 14cD atu pUOîî!
.miod uoi~;. m pa apLu8 .Zjoc lamdU3 " 't)gc

.SlpuO.tL1 -itbnqo guop-
R?Ielt0p g3Jo.i 2p a.tqwog

.iqilqo.il '4su!8.8VI

.!AI(j Muiii0j i43vo ut
P0II<>l sajOA jola0qmifl UOI~I(1q0jdj .1o______________1______

Ile

ALBERTA.

Jý .2

304

-4 C~ ~l C~ C

cIc~e

îvduî.9di p a,~j5?flloa anb.,q.9 ip uol;DjnldoJ

u,%oqls S-C xauonqsuoo qDve ut uoilatndodI

.Up0 tqW - ~ -i--a -p

iUOlSaI( sU!IIo L{O1l l CUtl -c

4su910A Pffl!Aý3J Gl{l 11 SJalOA JO iaquiflM

-slnami t;itîiit do .Iqttolr
4VJ plflq jp aqunx.og. . . . . . . . .

-uollnoýt ap luwQp.o.Ro
,?nbvyo sîurp gUUOP gîo"t Rap jv)o; a.iv9vioff1 CMl' l ll L _I c0

p-ca ut peIîod sajoA jo iîeqmuiN. PnloL



Prohibition P1ebi8eitea

V..4 W -4 .4 - - q

40 C4

. . . . .

. ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ... ... . . . . .

.~ ~ ~ ~ ~ A~ ..'

305
20-2>



Sessional Papers (No. 20.)

sg.&dvp ivt.glP? afiilo.9 anbrnp ap uow! vîdld

îtQwUoîpipOLtv gflhvqlj RUDp g.4tfl)an~? RIP
9SU. 2)Dîin .LflS8fl43u? Jfi é~ atUquOAN

âUOiStAi 
2 U IIO pv~a Ut ýslVJ

Sla;OA PGSLAOH Gll UO S3JýlO.A JO iaqutn,%ý
-R?Zfl3V1 ou.îîglfln ?p etquoX

-siolleg paw4pIs JO iýqmntZ

9?3.t&gj? su.zallnq Pp ?&uo

__________sioIIltq pala~ai JO jaqmun -- .

9nD( suDp Q21uuOfl 940- l 1111101 2MOI eLOAT- 1 m r- C

qloff ut PaiIod SaJ
0 A Jo JqUNIV1__

VIf911J i)~tl-uog p -ZfO.td
-pu. Ioa Pnîp îuzup

9?UUOP 8apOa el a.Lq?1ov *Uot

*Uo!~iiqoJ~ -1qiqo.j qs1;v ~ .

-ii Uop!qýoj< -

S'aqd 
5
oA JO J -. itl *oTiiq!qo.iJ aod

z >

'CO

zzZ

'4

o -.

ALBERTA,
(Continued-Suite).

-O

306

62 Victoria L. 1899

CN-400=

cq C 4D C I



Prohibition Plebiscita

- * ~ c~ct *~.- * *- *~I *~~4

- . . *~~~c-~:c * -

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .¢ . . . .c . . c . .

..... ~ ..... :

. . . .. . .
.

. l o

ASSINIBOIA,
East (Est).

307

.- ~ .t-~ -

* ~ .~ *e~

-

.CCM



62 Victoria Soeional Papers (No. 20.) A.1899

<

s?MIvp 2po-I milo ambuyo, ap uoi.rqndoi

19nsuao jw @ qý £q
umoiqs se SOUan;!48uoD lIIO8 UT UOlwlndojl

-UOzrmoa ap

p.flmfJto.&.».D n4bznp. guvp 8jnýn SappSýa. li VI .tni gr.out iriniî»îpp P.tqL OX

.U(JA! 2utUloj qao~ ut
CB&IOA POs!AOU~ Olq uTo seOA 1J l*mZ __

unom»u FutPInq e P.,qlao£

*noIg pai1odig jo .1qIn

J'plO~ fiPQaglpuoL.» I
Pnbrnp suvp s?9uup sapa~ Sap fliJO 9.tqllIMA 1 c'

-U01S!ATc %Utillocl
q'l' Ut P011od 9 iç>

0 A JO .IaqIunKluq~oj
.Uo1 qýlijtd VI a.qtiolea U0 Wutq
.tndàuGýoûoaap MM"ua *1?jo.d VI 2.&MOD

VI À?&b

-IA!4j 2
U!itlo qava ut

'z pz 8 -

o4

0

ASSINIBOIEast. (Et)
(Cniudzut)

rD ~'



Prohibition Plebiscita

C-q .d .

.~~~ ._ . .. . . .
.~~ .

ASSINIBOIA, W. R.

309



62jTictoria

o

P.4

34w

e,

0.

zL
04
0,

Sesional Papers (No. 20.)

1z

um~oqs sv Souinq!lsuoa qava ut uoxwvlndod

îulllldg «fplotÀî) afl.lfl) gUlip é.L3)Jp ~j
)97'd. ii vl tn gî.1agiU? 9 ~ .tq?tov

*UOtSIAi([ 2UiI1Od I4O¶m. ut sr
SI.lO P~SIA 'dflUO JalOA JO J>quitii~_____ __

.s2oltq pa1iods jo aaqtui _______________

ett.ýgllngp aqwOA

.o:jjq. ~P3[.-Gaj 10 .I3qU1l _

LZ 11 c

rZ >,

Z
>

ASSINBIOAW. -

(Cotitiiiit-d -S iit .

310

A. 1899

*UO!p)« 37> lUintiL3g!pUOflt
gli»q> uvp eaui g3J0.t Sap> lv)l?) a.Lqllu

UOISTAIÇj 2Uî1104
iaaut PiI4 1

__8
l Sa

0
A jo m3Uf~Woi,

uoipq! Joad Di 9.1vo) la tio.l!
.ziîiod uoq'vlo.L 3P îuua -?2qo.ut Di 3.)uOg

-8 'ZI)LO.tiLd nbhn glilp
91jiLm1P 8310.'t 3> a.tqUIOg *uOlý

-!me j-TqiqolqDv!) ù
*uo 3quiJ ___

Wu!I~.~ ~ UJ UQIS - qod i njl

-IM ~i~OJ1{~?~ U)

tei~ T.0 zOa3qI:I 0



Prohibition Plebisoite.

la
CDz CDt- = z-'Z l t" L' "f-" l W OCI-4 me= 0 I== el -

el-ikD O 4t -- t- el Z -4 :

t-~~ ~ ~~~ ~ ~ ~ .0 el MC.e lL-C lr1L

m .q

r-4-. rO -4P4r1e îC1 le l( .

. . . . . . . .. . n

SASKATCHEWAN.

311

r12

tt -ce



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 20.) A. 1899

© ~ ' C 58 8e mm

es

> 2

t..g g

"M e . g - e

k --- ° -

les z

e- p

z8

:.Z.Z

-~o 8. -

~Oô

II

I oo.,-O-r .

- tî

3122

-tî
22

0 Z-o

P. x~ e z312



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 29.) A. 1899

CIVIL SERVICE INSURANCE

1897-1898

[29]

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE,
OTTAWA, 26th July, 1898.

Hon. W. S. FIELDING,
Minister of Finance,

Ottawa.

SIR,-In pursuance of section 17 of the Civil Service Insurance Act, I have the
honour to sub:nit the following statement for the year ending 30th June, 1898

Funds on hand 30th June, 1897..................... $5,256 72

Premiums received from lst July, 1897, to 30th June, 1898:
July............. ...... ............ $199 32
August.. ............................ 193 22
September.......................... .. 193 22
October........................... . 193 22
November...... ..................... 236 32
December............................ 193 22
January ...... ... ..................... 316 62
February............. ................ 196 16
March.............................. 192 94
A pril...... .......................... 192 94
M a'y................................. 192 94
June................................ 197 29

2,497 41
Interest to 30th Jude, 1898............ ............. 384 64

Funds on hand 30th June, 1898 ....... ............. $8,138 77

During the year four applications were received for $7,000, one of which for $2,000
was declined. Three policies were issued for $5,000. One of these for $2,000 was
surrendered after 8 monthly premiums were paid.

The premiums on the three policies issued are payable as follows:-
2 for $4,000 payable monthly for 20 years.
1 for $1,000 payable monthly for life.

Policies in force 1st July, 1897, 36 for $66,000.
Policies issued during the year, 3 for $5,000.
Policies surrendered during the year, 1 for $2,000.
Policies in force 30th June, 1898, 38 for $ 69,000.
Number of insured lives, 1st July, 1897, 35.
Number of new insurers during the year, 3.
Number of terminations during the year, 1.
Number of insured lives, 30th June, 1398, 37.
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Section 15 of the Civil Service Insurance Act is as follows
"15. In the event of any person to whom the Civil Service Superannuation Act

now applies taking advantage of the provisions of this Act, a deduction at the rate of
three per cent per annum shall be made from the salary of such person towards making
good the superannuation allowance provided for by the said Act, such deduction to be
instead of the deduction now payable under section six of the said Act."

The above quoted section vas applicable to 25 out of the 36 policies in force on Ist
July, 1897, and to 3 of the policies issued during the year 1897-98, one of which was
surrendered as stated above, so that said section is applicable to 27 out of the 38
policies in force at 30th June, 1898, the amount insured thereby being $49,000 ; and 11
policies for $20,000 upon the lives of 10 persons who were appointed to the Civil
Service since the Civil Service Insurance Act was passed, make up the total of 38
policies on the lives of 37 persons for $69,000 as above stated.

Respectfully submitted,

W. FITZGERALD,
Superintendent of Insurance.
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STATEMENT of ail Superannuations and Retiring Allowances in the Civil Service during
of Retirement of each person Superannuated or Retired, also whether vacancy

Departments and Names. Rank or Class. Salary. Age.

Audit Office. 8 cts. Yrs.

MacDonald, J. C....... 3rd Clasa Clerk... . ............... 1,000 00 45
Pender, John..... ..... Messenger...... .. . .......... .. ... 500 00 64

1,500 00
Custoeis.

Martin, S. E.,.........Collector, Windsor, Ont..1,800 w
Merriian, L. T......... Stanstead, Que...............1,000 00
Williams, J. L........Clerk and Locker, London, Ont...........750 00
Dwyer, M............Tide Waiter, Halifax, N.S 500 00
Blackhall, J. G. C Subcollector, Caraquet, N.B 600 00
Richardson, J. F.. Clerk, Halfax, N. .................... 800 00
Bashford, W. H.......Locker, Halifax, N.S................ 650 00
Baker, W. C.........2nd Glass Clerk Ottawa...............1,400 00
Hanson, G. K ........ Sub-collector, epreaux, N. B............400 00

look, Wm ........... Collector, Ingersol, Ont ... ... ........ 700 00

Rogers, H. B.........Landing Waiter, Niagara Fals .......... 9 00
Jackson, Jas ...........
Lewis, W. P...... ....
Smith, Peter...... .....
Sargent, D ............
Mullins, V . ..........
Jordan, J. A ...........

Fina nc.

Sub-collector, Cardigan, P.E.I .........
Preventive Officer, St. Armand.... ...
Collector, Barrington, N.S ...... .....
Preventive Officer, South Barrington, N. S.
Clerk, M ontreal.... .................

600 00
150 00
600 00
650 00
250 00
700 00

12,450 00

Anderson, C. J ......... Chief Clerk, Savings Bank Branch....... 2,400 00

Inland Revenue.

Burrows, Wn..........
Whittiker, Wm.........

Battle, M .............

Interior.

Grant, A. F,.........
Hiam, W. H ...........

Justice.

Gaudet, Dr. M. H. E...

Marine and Fisheries.

Beaton, Angus......
Purvis, Wm............
Smith, Geo. E.........
Desjardins, D.... ....

Walsh, Jas.... .....
Arcand, F... ........
Munro, E. ..........
Prinyer, John ..... . .
Latimer, Chas.........

Gas Inspector, Kingston .......... ...
Assistant Inspector, Weights and Meas-

ures, K ingston...,............... ...
Collector, Ottawa................. ...

3rd Class Clerk ..... ............
Dominion Lands Agent, Brandon........

Surgeon, St.
tiary ......

Lightkeeper,

fi
Il
fi
fi

Vincent de Paul Peniten

Pugwash, N.S..............
Great Duck Island .. .....
Cross Island, N.S.... ....
Pilgrims, St. Lawrence

River .......... .
Indian Point Pier, P.E.I
Seven Islands ... ....... .
Beaver Harbour, N.B. . . .
Port Pleasant, Ont. ..... .
Cal) La Ronde.............

400 00

600 00
1,600 00

2,600 00

910 00
1,400 00

2,310 00

1,500 00

300 00
500 00
800 00

340 00
350 00
50000
500 00
300 00
300 00

3,890 00

Service.

Yrs.

19
40

5A
25
18
7A

39
30
26
25
28
23

44
18
19
19
30
7-

27

Added
Service.

Yrs.

40

18 .. .. .

18 ........
38 ........

14 ........

il ....

A. 189)



Superannuations and Retiring Allowances.

the Year ended 31st December, 1898, showing Name, Rank, Salary, Service and cause
filled by Promotion or New Appointment, and Salary of any New Appointee.

Superan-
nuation Gratuity. Cause of Retirement. Vacancy filled by Rate of Pay.

Allowance

l Cts. 8 ets.

380 00 ..... .... Ill-health (Locomotor Ataxia)............................. 8 cts.
350 00 .... ..... Age ..... ...... . ... .... . . ... Tem'y appointment.. 18 00 p. month

730 00

762 50 Ill-health............................. Appointment.. 1,800 00p. annum
421 93 ....... .. Age and to promote efficiency .... ..... 1,000 00
270 00 ...... .. Age and mental and physical inability .... 500 00

... ... 463 54 Ill-health ......... ... ........... ..... 500 00
420 00 Age and infirmity. .. . .... ......... ..... 400 00
480 00 .... Age and to pronote economy..... ....... ..... 500 00
338 00 . . I ..... . . ...... 500 00
700 00 .. ...... Ill-health and to promote efficiency. . .... 1,100 00
224 00 .......... Age and abolition of office ............ .. .................
322 00 ... ...... Age and infirmity (physically and mentallyi

incapable) ...... .......... .. ..... Acting officer. ... 700 00
630 00 .......... Age and infirmity........ . ... .... .......... 600 00 
216 00 . ... ... i ..... . . .. ....... ........

57 00 ......... Age and ill-health (paralysis) .. Appointment... ..... 150 00
228 00 .......... Age and to promote economy............. Acting officer. ...... 500 00
390 00 ........... ge................ .......... Appointnient...... 650 00

. .1 45 Abolition of office. .... ........... . .. . .... ...... .. .....
37800..........Age and infirmity. .................... ....... ........ ...

5,074 00 1,387 49

..... Ageand to promote efficiency and economy.

... ..... Age............... ..............

Promotion.... .... 1,800 00

Appointinent... ..... 400 00

il . ... . 600 00
Transfer............ 1,600 00

537 15 Illness (cerebral hemorrhage) ... ......... .............
392 00 ......... Age and to promote etticiency. . ...... .Transfer ...... ..

392 00 537 15

308 00....... Age and infirmity.... Appointment..

114 0) ......... Age and consequent inability...... .. ... Appointment.......
210 00....... Age and bodily infirmity caused by rupture. .
239 20 . Age and consequent unfitness ...........

115 60 ..... :... Age and feebleness ..... ............... . .....
119 00 ......... Age and infirm ity. .... .................
17N 00 . .) . Age and ill-health,. . ......... .. ... ..--i. .
207 00. (paralyss) ..... ...... .Transfer.. .......
192 00 . . ....... Age . ... .... ... . ..... . .. Appointient...... .
144 00 ..... .. . Age and ill-health. ............ ...............

1,516 80

p. annum

p. annum

1,000 00 p. annum

1,500 00 p. annum

250 00p. annum
50000
80a 00

340 00
350 00
324 00
500 00
200 00
300 00

1,680 00.

144 00

216 00
1,120 00

1,480 00
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STATEMENT of all Superannuations and Retiring Allowances in the Civil

Departments and Names.

Post O.lice.

Watkins, J. L.......
Spencer, E ..........
Egan, John......... ..
Jones, Geo ...... ....

Rank or Class.

3rd Class, Toronto Post Office........

lst Class Railway Mail Clerk, Toronto...
Railway Mail Clerk, Montreal........

Davison, Robt........ ' i Nova Scotia .. , ...
Yates, Geo.............. Letter Carrier, Toronto ................

Wright, J. G..... .. . lst Class Railway Mail Clerk, London...
Lawrence, G. W....... 2nd itMontreal..
Sweetnam, M.......... Chief Post Office Inspector ............

Hopkirk, J. E

Printigy and Stationery.

Emond, E ............
Lefebvre, M... . . .

Railways and Canals.

1st Class Clerk, Kingston............ ..

2nd Class Clerk, Ottawa.................
3rd t t ... ............

Neil, John.. ......... Lockmaster, Welland Canal ............

Gleason, Jas........ ...

Demare, J. G. .... ....
Pilson, Henry .........
Howarth, Jas..... .....
Lafleur, Olivier ........
Brown, R. T........

Pirrette, John ........

Bradley, A. W .......
Burrows, Wm ....... .

il Cornwall Canal ............

Overseer, Welland Canal....... .......
Lockmaster, Rideau Canal.............
Locklabourer t? ... .......
Ferryman, Beauharnois Canal . ... ...
Mechanical Superintendent, Intercolonial

Railway................... . .
In office of Collector of Welland Canal

T olls ................. ...... .......
Locktender, Welland Canal .............
Collecter Canal Tolls, Kingston ..... .

Salary. Age.

8 cts. Yrs.

800 00 66
800 00 34
960 00 62
960 00 62

800 00 64
600 00 62

960 00 62
80000 58

2,800 00 67

1,250 (,0 48

10,730 00

1,30000 30
1,000 00 37

2,300 00

548 00 64

344 58 55

1,260 00 50
492 70 59
340 41 71
322 94 61

3,200 00 52

800 00 65
354 80 54
600 00 69

8,263 43

Srvc.AddedService.Service.

Yrs. Yrs.

23 ... ...
14 ..... ..
30 ........
36 .......

26
23

41 ........
15
46

28 ........

5 .... ....

18

28

27 . .
30 .. ......
30 . ... .
32 .... ...

20
34 ... .
19 ... .



Superannuations and Retiring Allowances.

Service during the Year ended 31st December, 1898, &c.-Continued.

Superan-
nuation Gratuity.

Allowance

8 ets.

416 00 . . .....
276 00 .........

672 00 ..........
240 00 ...... ..

1,960 00 ... ....

700 00 ...

6,1C4 00

197 28

192 97

680 40
295 62
204 24
206 68

Cause of Retirenent.

Age, lack of strength and activity.........
Ill-health (Fibrosis of lungs)........ ....
Age and ill-health (result of accident).....
Age and infirmity (chronic bronchitis) and

to promote efficiency and economy.. .
Age and ill-health (chronic bronchitis)...
Age and ill-health (chronic bronchitis and

chronic dyspepsia)................
Age, physically unable to attend to duties.
Bodily infirmity .. .............
Age, abolition of office, efficiency and

economy...... ... ..... .... .....
Abolition of office and ill-health .........

631 94 Office abolished............... ......
416 66 1ll-health, office abolished ..............

1,048 60

Age and ill-health (enlargement of prostate
gland).......................... .....

Accident while on duty unfitting him for
duty ... ........... ... .. ........

Ill-health (ulceration of the bowels). .. .
Ill-health (chronic spasmodic asthma).....
Age, physical weakness and infirmity .....
Age and failing health .............. .. .

........ 11,488 88 To promote efficiency....................

320 00
241 26
228 00

2,566 45

.. ........

1,488 88

Vacancy filled by

Appointment.......
el . .....

Promotion .........

fo .........
Appointment ... ....

Transfer ...........

Appointment........

Age and ill-health (chronic dyspepsia)..........
Failing eye sight . .......... ...... .
A ge...................... ... .......... P rom otion .........

Rate of Pay.

$ ets.
400 00 p. annuin
400 00
960 00

96000
300 00

360 00
960 00

42 00 p. month

1 25 per day.
100 00 p. month

1 25 per day.
1 25 i

38 00 p. month

2,500 00 a year.

700 00 e
45 00 p. month

600 00 p. year.
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STATEMENT of all Superannuations and Retiring Allowances in the Civil Service during
the Year ended 31st December, 1898, &c.-Concluded.

RECAPITULATION.

Departnents.
Superannua-

tion
Allowance.

$ cts.

A udit....... .. ........ .. ............................ 730 00
Custom s.............................. ................... 5,074 93
Finance ....... ... . ... ... ........................ ... 1,680 00
Inland Revenue .... ........ ... ..... ............... 1,480 00
Interior ................ .392 00
Justice........... ............... .... .. ........ ..... 308 00
Marine and Fisheries.......... .... .. ...... , ... 1,516 80
Post Office... .... ...... .............. ........... ... 6,104 00
Printing and Stationery ...................... .......... ........... .
Railways and Canals..... ....... ........... .... ... . 2,566 45

Totals............................ ... 19,852 18

Gratuity.

$ ets.

1,387 49

........... ...
537 15

.............

..............
1,048 60
1,488 88

4,462 12

Totals.

$ ets.

730 00
6,462 42
1,680 00
1,480 00

929 15
308 00

1,516 80
6,104 00
1,048 60
4,055 33

24,314 30

FINANCE DEPARTMENT,
OTTAwA, 27th March, 1899.

J. M. COURTNEY.
Deputy Minister of Finance.

A. 1899
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RETURN
[46]

To an ORDER of the HOUSE OF COMMONS, dated 21st April, 1899, for a copy
of representations of the High Commissioner for Canada and the
Agents General of the British colonies respecting the application of
Estate Duty to personal property situate in the colonies in 1894.

i. Copy of Memorial from the Representatives of the several Colonies respecting
the application of e.state duties to personal property situate in the Colonies.

2. Telegram, dated 22nd June, 1894, from Sir Charles Tupper, the High Com-
mis.sioner, to Sir John Thompson, re proposed amendment.

3. Telegram, dated 29th June, 1894, from Sir John Thompson to Sir Charles
Tupper, objecting to proposed amendment.

4. Letter, dated 3oth June, 1894, from the High Commissioner to the Colonial
Office, re proposed application of estate duties to personal property situate
in the Colonies.

5. Letter from High Commissioner to the President of the Privy Council, Can-
ada, with letter from Colonial Office re action taken on his communication.

6. Letter from the Colonial Office to the High Commissioner, acknowledging
letter of the 3oth June, criticising the Finance Bill of 1894.

7. Copy of Imperial Finance Bill of 1894.

1.

COLONIES.

COPY OF A MEMORIAL FROM THE REPRESENTATIVES OF THE
COLONIES OF CANADA, NEW SOUTH WALES, VICTORIA,
QUEENSLAND, SOUTH AUSTRALIA, WESTERN AUSTRALIA,
TASMANIA, NEW ZEALAND, AND THE CAPE OF GOOD HOPE,
RESPECTING THE APPLICATION OF ESTATE DUTY TO
PERSONAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE COLONIES.

The High Commissioner for Canada and the Agents General to Colonial Office.

(Received 13th June, 1894.)
LONDON, I2th June, 1894.

My LoRD,-We, the representatives in London of the self-governing colonies
of Canada, the Cape, New South Wales, Victoria, New Zealand, South Australia,
Queensland, Tasmania, and Western Australia, have the honour to inform you

46-1 1
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that we have received instructions from our respective governients to urgently
invite the reconsideration by Her Majesty's Government of those provisions of
the Finance Bill now before Parliament under which it is proposed to levy estate
duty on personal property .situate in the colonies of a person domiciled at his
decease in the United Kingdom.

2. Our governments take exception to property in the colonies being charged
with these death duties, and feel entitled to ask on what principle of constitutional
right this is sought to be done. We belong to the Empire, and inasmuch as the
Imperial Parliament has granted to us responsible and parliamentary government,
with the right to impose taxation on our people to meet the requirements of
State, how can the exercise of the proposed interference by the Imperial Parlia-
ment be possible without first suspending our respective constitutions ? That
the proposal of the Chancellor of the Exchequer will have the effect of imposing
taxation on our citizens it is impossible to doubt. It is aimed at properties
situated in the colonies, and in a large number of cases those who inherit and
who must pay the duties, are British subjects who have been born in the colonies
and have lived there all their lives. The question is a simple and clear one,
and we do not desire to elaborate it. Is it worth while to press a proposal likely
to give offence and create needless irritation, when the gain to the Imperial
Exchequer can be of no importance ? Such proposals do not tend to promote
the unity of the Empire.

3. Independently of the constitutional question to which we have referred,
we desire to point out that the proposal to impose a duty in the nature of a probate
and administration duty on personal property situate within the colonies is now
made for the first time ; and further to urge that if, in addition to the death duties
levied by the country in which the property is situate, a second duty is imposed by
the country in which the deceased owner of the property was domiciled at the
time of his death, the total amount of the double duty may in .some cases be as
much as 20 per cent, or one-fifth of the property involved. In short, it is sub-
miitted that it is undesirable that the estate of any British subject, in whatever
portion of the Empire his property is located, should be charged with death duty
more than once.

4. We are assured, moreover, that the proposal to levy the estate duties on
prcperty located in the colonies will be regarded there as a tax, not on British
subjects, but on colonial property, and consequently as a serious interference
with a field of taxation which they regard as constitutionally their own.

5. Our respective governments also regard with grave concern the fact that
the imposition of the proposed duty must seriously impede that free interchange
of capital between the mother country and the colonies which is so necessary
a factor in the development of the colonies and in the expansion of British trade.

6. We note that the Chancellor of the Exchequer, in supporting the pro-
posed duties on colonial property, quoted at some length from a pamphlet issued
by the Imperial Federation Defence Committee, in which it was stated that the
navy was provided and maintained almost entirely at the cost of the people of the
United Kingdom, and he went on to suggest that the colonies would by this tax
be made to share the cost of that burden. If the object of the proposed duties
on colonial property be, as stated, to enforce a contribution from the colonies
for an additional outlay upon the navy, we submit that the colonial governments
should first have been invited in a direct manner to contribute towards that out-
lay. Canada has, at great cost, secured the construction of an inter-oceanic rail-
way, declared by the highest military and naval authorities to be of great value in
the defence ôf the Empire, and is now pledged to an expenditure of £9o,ooo a
year for what the Lords of the Admiralty describe as " Royal Naval Reserve
cruisers." As a result of the Colonial Conference held in 1887 the colonial gov-



Estate Duty.

ernments of Australia have contributed to the cost of maintaining a fleet to be
specially built and devoted to the protection of British and Australasian trade.

7. Again, without expressing any opinion as to the wisdom of levying death
duties on property in foreign countries, we feel that we are justified in urging
that there is good ground for drawing a distinction in this matter between
British colonies and foreign countries, a principle which has been previously
adopted, notably in Customs and Inland Revenue Act, 1885-48 and 49 Vic.,
cap. 51, sec. 21, which exempted colonial securities from the operation of an
increased stamp duty levied upon foreign securities.

8. We need only say, in conclusion,. that the communications which we
have received show the existence of a strong feeling that the questions at issue
should be considered with due recognition of the constitutional, social, and com-
mercial relations between the different members of the Empire.

We have, &c.,

CHARLES TUPPER,
High Commissioner for Canada.

SAUL SAMUEL,
Agent General for New South Wales.

JAMES F. GARRICK,
Agent General for Queensland.

W. B. PERCEVAL,
Agent General for New Zealand.

MALCOLM FRASER,
Agent General for Western Australia.

ROBERT G. W. HERBERT,
Agent General for Tasmania.

D. GILLIES,
Agent General for Victoria.

T. FRED. WICKSTEED,
By direction, for Agent General for South Australia.

SPENCER TODD,
Acting Agent General for the Cape Colony.

The Mvost Honourable
The Marquess of Ripon, K.G.,

Secretary of State for the Colonies.

2.

Received Ottawa, 22nd June, 1894.

TRANS-ATLANTIC CABLEGRAM.

(From London to Thompson, Ottawa.)

Death duties Government propos' amendment enabling duties collectedcolonies to be deducted from charges made this country in cases where coloniesextend reciprocal treatnent.
TUPPER.
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3.

OTTAWA, 29th June, 1894.
TUPPER, London:

Council is of opinion that strong opposition should be made to proposed
pclicy of levying death duties on property in Canada even with the amendment
propcsed.

THOMPSON.

4.

COLONIES (ESTATE DUTY).

LETTER FROM THE HIGH COMMISSIONER FOR CANADA RE-
SPECTING THE APPLICATION OF ESTATE DUTY TO PER-
SONAL PROPERY SITUATE IN THE COLONIES.

The High Commissioner for Canada to Colonial Office.

(Received 2nd July, 1894.)

VICTORIA CHAMBERS, 17 VICTORIA STREET,

LONDON, 3oth June, 1894.

Siîi,--Referring to the jcint communication of the Agents General and
myself to the Marquess of Ripon, dated the 12th instant (C. 7433, June 1894), I
have to acquaint you, for the information of His Lordship, that the Chancellor
of the Exchequer was good enough to receive us on two occasions, when he
discus.sed the subject of the memorial with us ; and, as you are aware, subse-
quently modified the proposals which he had made in the Finance Bill as to the
imposition of death duties on property in the colonies belonging to persons
domiciled in this country.

While acknowledging the great courtesy of the Chancellor of the Exchequer
in his communications with us, and his evident desire to meet, to some extent, the
objections which we had raised, I feel it my duty to call the attention of the Sec-
retary of State for the Colonies to the present position of the question.

In due course I sent a telegram to the Prime Minister of Canada, informing
him of the modified proposals of the Chancellor of the Exchequer. This com-
munication has received the very careful consideration of the Government of
Canada, and I have this morning received from Sir John Thompson the following
telegram as the result :-
, " Council is of opinion that strong opposition should be made to proposed

policy of levying death duties on property in Canada even with the amendment
proposed."

I beg, therefore, to again invite the attention of the Marquess of Ripon to what
I cannot but consider a very important question. The modifications proposed by the
Chancellor of the Exchequer, if enacted by the Imperial Parliament, will un-
doubtedly re.sult in the death duties in all the colonies being increased to the
sane amount as the proposed estate duties, and, consequently, no revenue will be

4
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derived from their operation upon property in the colonies. But while the pro-
posed legislation will thus fail in providing revenue for the Imperial Exchequer,
it will be attended with very grave and serious objections from a colonial point
of view. In all the colonies where the death duties are now lower than they
would be under the proposed Bill the governments, in proposing increased taxes,
will no doubt explain that it is forced upon them by the Imperial Act, and the
responsibility for this increased taxation will fall upon Her Majesty's Government,
with the result of endangering that loyal devotion to British institutions which
now exists throughout the colonies.

I greatly fear that a serious question will be raised as to the right of Her
Majesty's Government, under the free institutions that have been accorded to
the colonies, to enact legislation which will have the effect of imposing taxation
upon property situate in the colonies. The right of taxation for the purpose of
maintaining the governments and carrying on the development of those great
colonies has been held to have been conceded exclusively to the colonial parlia-
ments, and I believe I am safe in saying that no precedent for any taxation of this
description can be found to have its origin since responsible government was
accorded to the colonies.

Under the proposed Bill, the property of a person acquired in the colonies
and situated there will be subjected to a large amount of taxation, which will fall
on his heirs, who may never have resided outside the colony, simply because in his
declining years the owner became domiciled in this country, where he has contri-
buted to the Imperial Exchequer taxes in respect of the income received from
his property in the colony.

So far as Canada is concerned, the case is even stronger than in the other
colonies, as, under the Confederation Act passed by the Imperial Parliament in
1867, the power of imposing taxation of this description was exclusively assigned
to the local governments and legislatures of the provinces of the Dominion, for
the purpose of enabling them to provide the revenue required to carry on the
administration of local·affairs. In many of those provinces considerable difficulty
has been experienced in providing the necessary amount of revenue for the pur-
pose, and this invasion of a field of taxation thus exclusively assigned to them
would result in very serious inconvenience.

I may al.so mention that a large amount of property which, under ordinary
circumstances, might well be spoken of as colonial, is regarded by the authorities
as being situate in the United Kingdom, and is already liable to the existing
probate or administration duty, even in the case of a deceased owner domiciled
in a colony. I refer to such classes of property as the following :-

(i.) Colonial inscribed stocks transferable only on the books of the Bank of
England or any other bank in London.

(2.) The registered stocks of a British joint stock company, although its
funds are invested and its enterprise is carried on in a colony.

(3.) The registered stocks upon the British register of a colonial company
having a register here as well as in the colony.

In these circumstances, I cannot but hope the Chancellor of the Exchequer
may be induced to abandon a proposal which, while it will absolutely fail in its
object, is calculated to raise questions of controversy between Her Majesty's
Government and the self-governing colonies that on every account are to be
.deprecat'ed.

I must, therefore, ask the continued good offices in this important matter
of the Marquess of Ripon.

I am, &c.,

CHARLES TUPPER.
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5.

VICTORIA CHAMBERS, 17 VICTORIA STREET,

LONDON, S.W., 11th July, 1894.
The Right Honourable the President of the Council, Ottawa :

My dear Sir JOHN THOMPSON,-In continuation of previous correspondence
respecting the proposed alteration in the death duties in this country, I now beg
to transmit, for your information, a copy of the letter I received from the Colonial
Office advising me of the action taken on the communication which I addressed to
the Secretary of State for the Colonies on the subject on the 3oth ultimo.

I remain yours faithfully,
CHARLES TUPPER.

6.

COLONIAL OFFICE, DOWNING STREET, S.W., 6th July, 1894.

The High Commissioner for Canada:

SIR,-I am directed by the Marquis of Ripon to acknowledge the receipt of
your letter of the 3oth ultimo further criticising the provisions of the Finance
Bill now before Parliament so far as they may affect colonial property.

Your letter was laid before the Chancellor of the Exchequer by Mr. Buxton,
together with the further representations which you made to Mr. Buxton at your
interview with him on the 2nd instant, and these were tihe sane day duly con-
sidered by him.

I am, &c.,
JOHN BRAMSTON.

7.

FINANCE ACT, 1894 (57 & 58 Vic., Ch. 30).

ARRANGEMENT OF SECTIONS.

PART I.

ESTATE DUTY.

Section. Grant of Estate Duty.

i. Grant of estate duty.
2. What property is deemed to pass.
3. Exception for transactions for money consideration.
4. Aggregation of property to form one estate for purpose of duty.
5. Settled property.
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Collection and Recovery of Duty and Value of Property.
Section.

6. Collection and recovery of estate duty.
7. Value of property.
8. Supplemental provisions as to collection, recovery and repayment of and

exemption from estate duty.
9. Charge of estate duty on property and facilities for raising it.

1o. Appeal from commissioners.

Discharge from and Apportionnment of Duty.
ii. Release of persons paying estate duty.
12. Commutation of duty on interest in expectancy.
13. Powers to accept composition for death duties.
14. Apportionment of duty.
15. Exemptions from estate duty.

Snall Estates.

16. Provision for estates not exceeding £i,ooo.

Rates of Estate Duty.

17. Scale of rates of estate duty.

Succession ,Duty.
18. Value of real successions for succession duty.

Local Taxation Grant.
19. Adaptation of law as to probate duty grant.

British Posseisions.
20. Exception as to property in British Possessions.

Savings and Definitions.
21. Savings.
22. Definitions.

Application to Scotland.
23. Application of part of Act to Scotland.

Commencement.
24. Commencement of part of Act.

PART II.

CUSTOMS.
25. Duty on tea.
26. Addition to customs duties on special kinds of beer.
27. Addition to customs duty on all other beer.
28. Additional duties of customs on spirits. Alteration of customs duties on

certain goods containing spirits.
7l
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PART III.

Section.
29. Additional
30. Additional
31. Additional
32. Additional

EXCISE.

duty of excise on beer.
excise drawback on beer.
duty of excise on spirits.
duties to be added to the price of articles contracted for.

33.
34.

35.
36.
37.

38.

PART IV.

INCOME TAX.

Grant of duties of income tax.
Exemption where income does not exceed £16o, and abatement where

income does not exceed £500.
Relief in respect of income tax under Schedule A.
Exemption of income tax in favour of savings banks.
Assessment of income tax under Schedules (A.) and (B.) and of the

inhabited house duties for the year 1894-95.
Provisions as to duty on dividends, &c., paid prior to the passing of this

Act.

PART V.

MISCELLANEOUS.

Composition for certain Stamp Duties.

39. Extension of 54 & 55 Vic., cap. 39, sec. 114.

Exemption of Coupons from Stamp Duty.

40. Exemption of coupons.

PART VI.

IMPERIAL AND NAVAL DEFENCE LOANS.

41. Alteration of Imperial and Naval Defence Acts.

Short Titie.
42. Short title.

SCHEDULES.
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CHAPTER 30.

An Act to grant certain Duties of Customs and Inland Revenue, to alter other
Duties, and to amend the Law relating to Customs and Inland Revenue, and
to make other provision for the financial arrangements of the year.

[31st July, 1894.]
MosT GRAcious SOVEREIGN:

WE, Your Majesty's most dutiful and loyal subjects, the Commons of the
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland, in Parliament assembled, towards
raising the necessary supplies to defray Your Majesty's public expenses, and
making an addition to the public revenue, have freely and voluntarily resolved to
give and grant unto Your Majesty the several duties hereinafter mentioned ; and
do therefore most humbly beseech Your Majesty that it may be enacted, and be
it enacted by the Queen's Most Excellent Majesty, by and with the advice and
consent of the Lords Spiritual and Temporal, and Commons, in this present
Parliament assembled, and by the authority of the same, as follows

PART I.

ESTATE DUTY.

Grant of Estate Duty.

1.-In the case of every person dying after the commencement of this part
of this Act, there shall, save as hereinafter expressly provided, be levied and paid,
upon the principal value ascertained as hereinafter provided of all property, real
or personal, settled or not settled, which passes on the death of such person a
duty, called "estate duty," at the graduated rates hereinafter mentioned. and the
existing duties mentioned in the first schedule to this Act, shall not be levied in
respect of property chargeable with such estate duty.

2.--(.) Property passing on the death of the deceased shall be deemed to
imclude the property following, that is to say :-

(a.) Property of which the deceased was at the time of his death çompetent
to dispose ;

(b.) Property in which the deceased or any other person had an interest
ceasing on the death of the deceased, to the extent to which a benefit
accrues or arises by the cesser of such interest ; but exclusive of
property the interest in which of the deceased or other person was
only an interest as holder of an office, or recipient of the benefits of a
charity, or as a corporation sole ;

(c.) Property which would be required on the death of the deceased to be
included in an account under section thirty-eight of the Customs and
Inland Revenue Act, 1881, as amended by section eleven of the Cus-
toms and Inland Revenue Act, 1889, if those sections were herein
enacted and extended to real property as well as personal property,
and the words "voluntary " and "voluntarily " and a reference to a
"volunteer" were omitted therefron ; and

(d.) Any annuity or other interest purchased or provided by the deceased,
either by himself alone or in concert or by arrangement with any
other person, to the extent of the beneficial interest accruing or arising
by survivorship or otherwise on the death of the deceased.

9
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(2.) Property passing on the death of the deceased when situate out of the
United Kingdom shall be included only, if, under the law in force before the
passing of this Act, legacy or succession duty is payable in respect thereof, or
would be so payable but for the relationship of the person to whom it passe.

(3.) Property passing on the death of the deceased shall not be deemed to
include property held by the deceased as trustee for another person, under a dis-
position not made by the deceased, or under a disposition made by the deceased
more than twelve months before his death where possession and enjoyment of the
property was bonâ fide assumed by the beneficiary immediately upon the creation
of the trust and thenceforward retained to the entire exclusion of the deceased
or of any benefit to him by contract or otherwise.

3.-(1.) Estate duty shall not be payable in respect oi property passing on
the death of the deceased by reason only of a bonâ fide purchase from the person
under whose disposition the property passes, nor in respect of the falling into
possession of the reversion on any lease for lives, nor in respect of the determina-
tion of any annuity for lives, where such purchase was made, or such lease or
annuity granted, for full consideration in money or money's worth paid to the
vendor or grantor for his own use or benefit, or in the case of a lease for the use
or benefit of any person for whom the grantor was a trustee.

(2.) Where any such purchase was made, or lease or annuity granted, for
partial consideration in money or money's worth paid to the vendor or grantor
for his own use or benefit, or in the case of a lease for the use or benefit of any•
person for whom the grantor was a trustee, the value of the consideration shall be
allowed as a deduction from the value of the property for the purpose of estate
duty.

4 -. For determining the rate of estate duty to be paid on any property pass-
ing on the death of the deceased, all property so passing in respect of which estate
duty is leviable shall be aggregated so as to form one estate, and the duty shall
be levied at the proper graduated rate on the principal value thereof :

Provided that any property so passing, in which the deceased never had an
interest, or which under a disposition not made by the deceased passes immle-
diately on the death of the deceased to some person other than the wife or husband
or a lineal ancestor or lineal descendant of the deceased, shall not be aggregated
with any other propertv, but shall be an estate by itself, and the estate duty shall
be levied at the proper graduated rate on the principal value thereof ; but if any
benefit urnder a disposition not made by the deceased is reserved or given to the
wife or husband or a lineal ancestor or lineal descendant of the deceased, such
benefit shall be aggregated with property of the deceased for the purpose of
determining the rate of estate duty.

5 -(i.) Where property in respect of which estate duty is leviable, is settled
by the will of the deceased, or having been settled by some other disposition passes
under that disposition on the death of the deceased to some person not competent
to dispose of the property,-

(a) a further estate duty (called settlement estate duty) on the principal value
of the settled property shall be levied at the rate hereinafter specified,
except where the only life interest in the property after the death of
the deceased is that of a wife or husband of the deceased ; but

(b) during the continuance of the settlement the settlement estate duty shall
not be payable more than once.

(2.) If estate duty has already been paid in respect of any settled property
since the date of the settlement, the estate duty shall not, nor shall any of the
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duties mentioned in the fifth paragraph of the first schedule to this Act, be payable
in respect thereof, until the death of a person who was at the time of his death or
had been at any time during the continuance of the settlement competent to dis-
pose of such property.

(3.) In the case of settled property, where the interest of any person under
the settlement fails or determines by reason of his death before it becomes an
interest in po.session, and subsequent limitations under the settlement continue to
subsist, the property shall not be deemed to pass on his death.

(4.) Any person paying the settlement estate duty payable under this section
upon property comprised in a settlement, may deduct the amount of the ad
valorem stamp duty (if any) charged on the settlement in respect of that property.

(5.) Where any lands or chattels are so settled, whether by Act of Parliament
or royal grant, that no one of the persons successively in possession thereof is
capable of alienating the same, whether his interest is in law a tenancy for life or a
tenancy in tail, the provisions of this Act with respect to settled property shall not
apply, and the property passing on the death of any person in possession of the
lands and chattels shall be the interest of his successor in the lands and chattels,
and such interest shall be valued, for the purpose of estate duty, in like manner
as for the purpose of succession duty.

Collection and Recovery of Duty and Value of Property.

6.-(1.) Estate duty shall be a stamp duty, collected, and recovered as here-
inafter mentioned.

(2.) The executor of the deceased shall pay the estate duty in respect of all
personal property (wheresoever situate) of which the deceased was competent to
dispose at his death, on delivering the Inland Revenue affidavit, and may pay in
like manner the estate duty in respect of any other property passing on such
death, which by virtue of any testamentary disposition of the deceased is under
the control of the executor, or, in the case of property not under his control, if the
persons accountable for the duty in respect thereof request him to make such
payment.

(3.) Where the executor does not know the amount or value of any property
which has passed on the death, he may state in the Inland Revenue affidavit that
such property exists but he does not know the amount of value thereof, and that he
undertakes, as soon as the amount and value are ascertained, to bring in an account
thereof, and to pay both the duty for which he is or may be liable, and any further
duty payable by reason thereof for which he is or may be liable in respect of the
other property mentioned in the affidavit.

(4.) Estate duty, so far as not paid by the executor, shall be collected upon an
account setting forth the particulars of the property, and delivered to the commis-
sioners within six months after the death by the person accountable for the duty,
or within such further time as the commissioners may allow.

(5.) Every estate shall include all income accrued upon the property included
therein down to and outstanding at the date of the death of the deceased.

(6.) Interest at the rate of three per cent per annum on the estate duty shall be
paid from the date of the death up to the date of the delivery of the Inland
Revenue affidavit or account, or the expiration of six months after the death,
whichever first happens, and shall form part of the estate duty.

(7.) The duty which is to be collected upon an Inland Revenue affidavit or
account shall be due on the delivery thereof, or on the expiration of six months
from the death, whichever first happens.

(8.) Provided that the duty due upon an account of real property may, at the
option of the person delivering the account, be paid by eight equal vearly instal-
ments, or sixteen half-yearly instalments, with interest at the rate of three per cent
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per annun from the date at which the first instalment is due, less income tax,
and the first instalment shall be due at the expiration of twelve months from the
death, and the interest on the unpaid portion of the duty shall be added to each
instalment and paid accordingly ; but the duty for the time being unpaid, with
such interest to the date of payment, may be paid at any time, and in case the
property is sold, shall be paid on completion of the sale, and if not so paid shall
be duty in arrear.

7.-(1.) In determining the value of an estate for the purpose of estate duty
allowance shall be made for reasonable funeral expenses and for debts and incum-
brances ; but an allowance shall not be made-

(a) for debts incurred by the deceased, or incumbrances created by a disposi-
tion made by the deceased, unless such debts or incumbrances were
incurred or created bonâ fide for full consideration in money or
money's worth wholly for the deceased's own use and benefit and take
effect out of his interest, nor

(b) for any debt in respect whereof there is a right to reimbursement from any
other estate or person, unless such reimbursement cannot be obtained,
nor

(c) more than once for the same debt or incumbrance charged upon different
portions of the estate ;

and any debt or incumbrance for which an allowance is made shall be deducted
from the value of the land or other subjects of property liable thereto.

(2.) An allowance shall not be made in the first instance for debts due from
the deceased to persons resident out of the United Kingdom (unless contracted
to be paid in the United Kingdom, or charged on property situate within the
United Kingdom), except out of the value of any personal property of the de-
ceased.situate out of the United Kingdom in respect of which estate duty is paid;
and there shall be no repayment of estate duty in respect of any such debts,
except to the extent to which it is shown to the satisfaction of the commissioners,
that the personal property of the deceased situate in the foreign country or British
possession in which the person to whom such debts are due resides, is insufficient
for their payment.

(3.) Where the commissioners are satisfied that any additional expense in
administering or in realizing property has been incurred by reason of the property
being situate out of the United Kingdom, they may make an allowance from the
value of the property on account of such expense not exceeding in any case five
per cent on the value of the property.

(4.) Where any property passing on the death of the deceased is situate in a
foreign country, and the commissioners are satisfied that by reason of such death
any duty is payable in that foreign country in respect of that property, they shall
make an allowance of the amount of that duty from the value of the property.

(5.) The principal value of any property shall be estimated to be the price
which, in the opinion of the commissioners, such property would fetch if sold in
the open market at the time of the death of the deceased :

Provided that, in the case of any agricultural property, where no part of the
principal value is due to the expectation of an increased income from such pro-
perty, the principal value shall not exceed twenty-five times the annual value as
assessed under Schedule A. of the Income Tax Acts, after making such deductions
as have not been allowed in that assessment and are allowed under the Succession
Duty Act, 1853, and making a deduction for expenses of management not exceed-
ing five per cent of the annual value so assessed.

(6.) Where an estate includes an interest in expectancy, estate duty in respect
of that interest shall be paid, at the option of the person accountable for the
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duty, either with the duty in respect of the rest of the estate or when the interest
falls into possession, and if the duty is not paid with the estate duty in respect of
the rest of the estate, then-

(a) for the purpose of determining the rate of estate duty in respect of the
rest of the estate the value of the interest shall be its value at the date
of the death of the deceased ; and

(b) the rate of estate duty in respect of the interest when it falls into possession
shall be calculated according to its value when it falls into possession,
together with the value of the rest of the estate as previously ascer-
tained.

(7.) The value of the benefit accruing or arising from the cesser of an interest
ceasing on the death of the deceased shall-

(a) if the interest extended to the whole income of the property be the prin-
cipal value of that property ; and

(b) if the interest extended to less than the whole income of the property be
the principal value of an addition to the property equal to the income
to which the interest extended.

(8.) Subject to the provisions of this Act, the value. of any property for the
purpose of estate duty shall be ascertained by the commissioners in such manner
and by such means as they think fit, and, if they authorize a person to inspect any
property and report to them the value thereof for the purposes of this Act, the
person having the custody or possession of that property shall permit the person
so authorized to inspect it at such reasonable times as the commissioners consider
necessary.

(9.) Where the commissioners require a valuation to be made by a person
named by them, the reasonable costs of such valuation shall be defrayed by the
commissioners.

(io.) Property passing on any death shall not be aggregated more than once,
nor shall estate duty in respect thereof be more than once levied on the same
death.

S -(i.) The existing law and practice relating to any of the duties now
leviable on or with reference to death shall, subject to the provisions of this Act and
so far as the same are applicable, apply for the purposes of the collection, recovery,
and repayment of estate duty, and for the exemption of the property of common
seamen, marines or soldiers who are slain or die in the service of Her Majesty,
and for the purpose of payment of sums under one hundred pounds without
requiring representation, as if such law and practice were in terms made applicable
to this part of this Act.

(2.) Sections twelve to fourteen of the Customs and ,Inland Revenue Act,
1889, and section forty-seven of the Local Registration of Title (Ireland) Act,
1891, shall apply as if estate duty were therein mentioned as well as succession
duty, and as if an account were not settled within the meaning of any of the above
sections until the time for the payment of the duty on such account has arrived.

(3.) The executor of the deceased shall, to the best of his knowledge and
belief, specify in appropriate accounts annexed to the Inland Revenue affidavit
all the property in respect of which estate duty is payable upon the death of the
deceased, and shall be accountable for the estate duty in respect of all personal
property wheresoever situate of which the deceased was competent to dispose at
his death, but shall not be liable for any duty in excess of the assets which he has
received as executor, or might but for his own neglect or default have received.

(4.) Where property passes on the death of the deceased, and his executor
is not accountable for the estate duty in respect of such property, every person to
whom any property so passes for any beneficial interest in possession, and also, to
the extent of the property actually received or disposed of by him, every trustee,
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guardian, committee, or other person in whom any interest in the property so
passing or the management thereof is at any time vested, and every person in
whom the sane is vested in possession by alienation or other derivative title shall
be accountable for the estate duty on the property, and shall, within the time
required by this Act or such later time as the commissioners allow, deliver to the
commissioners and verify an account, to the best of his knowledge and belief, of
the property : Provided that nothing in this section contained shall render a
person accountable for duty who acts merely as agent or bailiff for another person
in the management of property.

(5.) Every person accountable for estate duty, and every person whom the
commissioners believe to have taken possession of or administered any part of
the estate in respect of which duty is leviable on the death of the deceased, or of
the income of any part of such estate, shall, to the best of his knowledge and
belief, if required by the commissioners, deliver to them and verify a statement
of such particulars together with such evidence as they require relating to any
property which they have reason to believe to form part of an estate in respect
of which estate duty is leviable on the death of the deceased.

(6.) A person who wilfully fails to comply with any of the foregoing pro-
visions of this section shall be liable to pay one hundred pounds, or a sum equal to
double the amount of the estate duty, if any, remaining unpaid for which he is
accountable, according as the commissioners elect : Provided that the commis-
sioners, or in any proceeding for the recovery of such penalty the court, shall have
power to reduce any such penalty.

(7.) Estate duty shall, in the first instance, be calculated at the appropriate
rate according to the value of the estate as set forth in the Inland Revenue affi-
davit or account delivered, but if afterwards it appears that for any reason too
little duty has been paid, the additional duty shall, unless a certificate of discharge
has been delivered under this Act, be payable, and be treated as duty in arrear.

(8.) The commissioners on application from a person accountable for the
duty on any property forming part of an estate shall, where they consider that it can
conveniently be done, certify the amount of the valuation accepted by them for
any class or description of property forming part of such estate.

(9.) Where the commissioners are satisfied that the estate duty leviable in
respect of any property cannot without excessive sacrifice be raised at once, they
may allow payment to be postponed for such period, to such extent, and on pay-
ment of such interest not exceeding four per cent or any higher interest yielded by
the property, and on such terms, as the commissioners think fit.

(io.) Interest on arrears of estate duty shall be paid as if they were arrears of
legacy duty.

(i i.) If after the expiration of twenty years from a death upon which estate
duty became leviable any such duty remains unpaid, the commissioners may, if
they think fit, on the application of any person accountable or liable for such duty
or interested in the property, remit the payment of such duty or any part thereof or
any interest thereon.

(12.) Where it is proved to the satisfaction of the commissioners that too
much estate duty has been paid, the excess shall be repaid by them, and in cases
where the over-payment was due to over-valuation by the commissioners, with
interest at three per cent per annum.

(13.) Where any proceeding for the recovery of estate duty in respect of any
property is instituted, the High Court shall have jurisdiction to appoint a receiver
of the property and the rents and profits thereof, and to order a sale of the pro-
perty.

(14.) All affidavits, accounts, certificates, statements, and forms used for the
purpose of this part of this Act shall be in such form, and contain such particulars,
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as may be prescribed, and if so required by the commissioners shall be in duplicate,
and accounts and statements shall be delivered and verified on oath and by pro-
duction of books and documents in the manner prescribed, and any person who
wilfully fails to comply with the provisions of this enactment shall be liable to the
penalty above in this section mentioned.

(15.) No charge shall be made for any certificate given by the commissioners
under this Act.

(16.) The estate duty may be collected by means of stamps or such other
means as the commissioners prescribe.

(17.) The form of certificate required to be given by the proper officer of the
court under section thirty of the Customs and Inland Revenue Act, 188i, may be
varied by a rule of court in such manner as may appear necessary for carrying into
effect this Act.

(18.) Nothing in this section shall render liable to or accountable for duty a
bonâ fide purchaser for valuable consideration without notice.

9.-(1.) A rateable part of the estate duty on an estate, in proportion to the
value of any property which does not pass to the executor as such, shall be a first
charge on the property in respect of which duty is leviable ; provided that the
property shall not be so chargeable as against a bonâ fide purchaser thereof for
valuable consideration without notice.

(2.) On an application submitting in the prescribed form the description of
the lands or other subjects of property (whether hereditaments, stocks, funds,
shares, or securities), and of the debts and incumbrances allowed by the commis-
sioners in assessing the value of the property for the purposes of estate duty, the
commissioners shall grant a certificate of the estate duty paid in respect of the
property, and specify the debts and incumbrances so allowed, as well as the lands
or other .subjects of property.

(3.) Subject to any repayment of estate duty arising from want of title to the
land or other subjects of property, or from the existence of any debt or incum-
brance thereon for which under this Act an allowance ought to have been but has
not been made, or from any other cause, the certificate of the commissioners shall
be conclusive evidence that the amount of duty named therein is a first charge on
the lands or other subjects of property after the debts and incumbrances allowed
as aforesaid : Provided that any such repayment of duty by the commissioners
shall be made to the person producing to them the said certificate.

(4.) If the rateable part of the estate duty in respect of any property is paid by
the executor, it shall where occasion requires be repaid to him by the trustees or
cwners of the property, but if the duty is in respect of real property, it may, unless
otherwise agreed upon, be repaid by the same instalments and with the same
interest as are in this Act mentioned.

(5.) A person authorized or required to pay the estate duty in respect of any
property shall, for the purpose of paying the duty, or raising the amount of the
duty when already paid, have power, whether the property is or is not vested in
hini, to raise the amount of such duty and any interest and expenses properly paid
or incurred by him in respect thereof, by the sale or mortgage of or a terminable
charge on that property or any part thereof.

(6.) A person having a limited interest in any property, who pays the estate
duty in respect of that property, shall be entitled to the like charge, as if the estate
duty in respect of that property had been raised by means of a mortgage to him.

(7.) Any money arising from the sale of property comprised in a settlement,
or held upon trust to lay out upon the trusts of a settlement, and capital monelyarising under the Settled Land Act, 1882, may be expended in paying any
estate duty in respect of property comprised in the settlement and held upon thesame trusts.
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10.-(1.) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the commissioners with
respect to the repayment of any excess of duty paid, or by the amount of duty
claimed by the commissioners, whether on the ground of the value of any property
or the rate charged or otherwise, may, on payment of, or giving security as herein-
after mentioned for, the duty claimed by the commissioners or such portion of it
as is then payable by him, appeal to the High Court within the time and in the
manner and on the conditions directed by rules of court, and the amount of duty
shall be determined by the High Court, and if the duty as determined is less than
that paid to the commissioners the excess shall be repaid.

(2.) No appeal shall be allowed from any order, direction, determination, or
decision of the High Court in any appeal under this section except with the leave
of the High Court or Court of Appeal.

(3.) The costs of the appeal shall be in the discretion of the court, and the court,
where it appears to the court just, may order the commissioners to pay on any
excess of duty repaid by them interest at the rate of three per cent per annum for
such period as appears to the court just.

(4.) Provided that the High Court, if satisfied that it would impose hardship
to require the appellant, as a condition of an appeal, to pay the whole or, as the
case may be, any part of the duty claimed by the commissioners or of such portion
of it as is then payable by him, may allow an appeal to be brought on payment of
no duty, or of such part only of the duty as to the court seems reasonable, and on
security to the satisfaction of the court being given for the duty, or so much of the
duty as is not so paid, but in such case the court may order interest at the rate of
three per cent per annum to be paid on the unpaid duty so far as it becomes pay-
able under the decision of the court.

(5.) Where the value as alleged by the commissioners of the property in
respect of which the dispute arises does not exceed ten thousand pounds, the
appeal under this section may be to the county court for the county or place in
which the appellant resides or the property is situate, and this section shall for the
purpose of the appeal apply as if such county court were the High Court.

(6.) The county council of every county or county borough in Great Britain,
shall within twelve months after the commencement of this Act, and may there-
after froin time to time, appoint a sufficient number of qualified persons to act as
valuers for the purposes of this Act in their respective counties, and shall fix a
scale of charges for the remuneration of such persons, and the court may refer
any question of disputed value under this section to the arbitration of any person
so appointed for the county in which the appellant resides or the property is
situate ; and the costs of any such arbitration shall be part of the costs of the
appeal.

Discharge from and Apportionment of Duty.

11.-(.) The commissioners on being satisfied that the full estate duty has
been or will be paid in respect of an estate or any part thereof shall, if required by
the person accounting for the duty, give a certificate to that effect, which shall
discharge from any further claim for estate duty the property shown by the cer-
tificate to form the estate or part thereof as the case may be.

(2.) Where a person accountable for the estate duty in respect of any property
passing on a death applies after the lapse of two years from such death to the
commissioners, and delivers to them and verifies a full statement to the best of his
knowledge and belief of all property passing on such death a'nd the several persons
entitled thereto, the commissioners may determine the rate of the estate duty in
respect of the property for which the applicant is accountable, and on payment of
the duty at that rate, that property and the applicant so far as regards that pro-
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perty shall be discharged from any further claim for estate duty, and the commis-
sioners shall give a certificate of such discharge.

(3.) A certificate of the commissioners under this section shall not discharge
any person or property from estate duty in case of fraud or failure to cisclose
material facts, and shall not affect the rate of duty payable in respect of any pro-
perty afterwards shown to have passed on the death, and the duty in respect of
such property shall be at such rate as would be payable if the value thereof were
added to the value of the property in respect of which duty has been already
accounted for ;

(4.) Provided nevertheless that a certificate purporting to be a discharge of
the whole estate duty payable in respect of any property included in the certificate
shall exonerate a bonâ fide purchaser for valuable consideration without notice
from the duty notwithstanding any such fraud or failure.

12.-The commissioners in their discretion, upon application by a person
entitled to an interest in expectancy, may commute the estate duty which would or
might, but for the commutation, become payable in respect of such interest for a
certain surn to be presently paid, and for determining that sum shall cause a present
value to be set upon such duty, regard being had to the contingencies affecting
the liability to and rate and amount of such duty, and interest being reckoned at
three per cent ; and on the receipt of such sum they shall give a certificate of dis-
charge accordingly.

13.-(1.) Where, by reason of the number of deaths on which property has
passed or of the complicated nature of the interests of different persons in pro-
perty which has passed on death, or from any other cause, it is difficult to ascertain
exactly the amount of death duties or any of then payable in respect of any pro-
perty or any interest therein, or so to ascertain the same without undue expense in
proportion to the value of the property or interest, the commissioners on the
application of any person accountable for any duty thereon, and upon his giving to
them all the information in his power respecting the amount of the property and
the several interests therein, and other circumstances of the case, may by way of
composition for all or any of the death duties payable in respect of the property,
or interest, and the various interests therein, or any of them, assess such sum on
the value of the property, or interest, as having regard to the circumstances ap-
Pears proper, and may accept payment of the sum so assessed, in full discharge of
al claims for death duties in respect of such property or interest, and shall give
a certificate of discharge accordingly ;

(2.) Provided that the certificate shall not discharge any person from any duty
In case of fraud or failure to disclose material facts.

(3.) In this section the expression " death duties " means the estate duty
under this Act, the duties mentioned in the first schedule to this Act and the
legacy and succession duties, and the duty payable on any representation or
lfventory under any Act in force before the Custons and Inland Revenue Act,x881.

14..-(.) In the case of property which does not pass to the executor as
such, an amount equal to the proper rateable part of the estate duty fnay be
recovered by the person, who being authorized or required to pay the estate dutyin respect of any property has paid such duty, from the person entitled to any sum
charged on .such property (whether as capital or as an annuity or otherwise), under
a disposition not containing any express provision to the contrary.

(2.) Any dispute as to the proportion of estate duty to be borne by any pro-
perty or person, may be determined upon application by any person interested inmanner directed by rules of court, either by the High Court, or where the amount
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in dispute is less than fifty pounds, by a county court for the county or place in
which the per.son recovering the same resides, or the property in respect of which
the duty is paid is situate.

(3.) Any person from whom a rateable part of estate duty can be recovered
under this section shall be bound by the accounts and valuations as settled
between the person entitled to recover the same and the conunissioners.

1 5.--(.) Estate duty shall not be payable in respect of a single annuity not
exceeding twenty-five pounds purchased or provided by the deceased, either by
himself alone or in concert or arrangement with any other person, for the life of
himself and of some other person and the survivor of them, or to arise on his own
death in favour of some other person ; and if in any case there is more than one
such annuity, the annuity first granted shall be alone entitled to the exemption
under this section.

(2.) It shall be lawful for the Treasury to remit the estate duty, or any other
duty leviable on or with reference to death, in respect of any such pictures, prints,
books, manuscripts, works of art or scientific collections as appear to the Treasury
to be of national, scientific, or historic interest, and to be given or bequeathed for
national purposes, or to any university, or to any county council or municipal cor-
poration., and no property the duty in respect of which is so remitted shall be
aggregated with any other property for the purpose of fixing the rate of estate
duty.

(3.) Estate duty shall not be payable in respect of any pension or annuity
payable by the Government of British India to the widow or child of any deceased
officer of such Government, notwithstanding that the deceased contributed during
his lifetime to any fund out of which such pension or annuity is paid.

(4.) Estate duty shall not be payable in respect of any advowson or church
patronage which would have been free from succession duty under section twenty-
four of the Succession Duty Act, 1853.

Snall Estates.

16 -(i.) The provisions of sections thirty-three, thirty-five and thirty-six
of the Customs and Inland Revenue Act, 1881 (relating to the obtaining of repre-
sentation to the deceased where the gross value of his personal estate does not
exceed three hundred pounds), shall apply with the necessary modifications to
the case where the gross value of the property real and personal in respect of
which estate duty is payable on the death of the deceased, exclusive of property
settled otherwise than by the will of the deceased, does not exceed five hundred
pounds, and where the gross value does not exceed three hundred pounds the
fixed duty shall be thirty shillings, and where the gross value exceeds three hun-
dred pounds and does not exceed five hundred pounds the fixed duty shall be
fifty shillings.

(2.) All such property may be comprised in the notice under the 5aid section
thirty-three.

(3.) Where the net value of the property, real and personal, in respect of
which estate duty is payable on the death of the deceased, exclusive of property
settled otherwise than by the will of the deceased, does not exceed one thousand
pounds, such property, for the purpose of estate duty, shall not be aggregated
with any other property, but shall form an estate by itself ; and where the fixed
duty or estate duty has been paid upon the principal value of that estate, the settle-
ment estate duty and the legacy and succession duties shall not be payable under
the will or intestacy of the deceased in respect of that estate.

(4.) Where representation granted under this section if granted in England
extends to property in Ireland, and if granted in Ireland extends to property in
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England, the principal registrar of the Probate Division of the High Court in
England or Ireland, as the case may be, shall affix the seal of the court thereto on
the same being sent to him for that purpose, with the fee of two shillings and
sixpence.

(5.) Where the fixed duty of thirty or fifty shillings is paid within twelve
months after the death of the deceased, interest on such duty shall not be payable.

Rates of Estate Duty.

17.-The rates of estate duty shall be according to the following scale

Where the Principal Value of the Estate Estate thDu Ra be pay ble

£ £
Exceeds 100 and does not exceed.... .......... 500 One pound.

n 500 n n. ... ........... 1,000 Twopounds.
1,000 10,000 Three pounds.

10,000 0........... Four pounds.
n 25,000 n ...... . 50,000 Four pounds ten shillings.
e 50,00)0 , I ............... 75,000 Five poundb.
e 75,000 e I ........ .... . 100,000 Five pounds ten shillings.
e 100,000 1 I ............... 150,000 Six pound.
n 150,000 e ... . ......... 250,000 Si unds ten shillings.
n 250,000 n n ....... 500,000 V pounds.
n 500,000 ........... ... 1,000,000 Seven pounds ten shillings.

1,000,000...................... 1................... Eight pounds.

The rate of the settlement estate duty where the property is settled shail be
one per cent.

Provided that for any fractional part of ten pounds over ten pounds or any
multiple thereof, the estate duty and the .settlement estate duty shal be payable
at the rate per cent for the fuFl sum of ten pounds.

Succession Duty.

I8.-(i.) The value for flhc purpose of succession duty of a succession to
reaF property arising on the death of a deceased person shal, where the successor
iýs competent to dispose of the property, be the principal value of the property,
after deducting the estate duty payable in respect theyeof on the said death and thxe
expenses if any properly incurred of raising and paying the same ; and the duty
shall be a charge on the property, and shall be payable by the same instalments
as are authorized by this Act for estate duty on real property, with interest at the
rate of three per cent per annum ; and the first instalment shal be payable and the
interest shaîl begin to run at the expiration of tweîve months after the date on
which the successor became entitled in possession to, bis succession or to the
receipt of the income and profit thereof ; and after the expiration of the said twelve

OnthsS the provisions with respect to discount shapl nout apply.
(2.) The principal value of real property for the purpose of succession duty

shaîl be ascertained in the same manner as it would be ascertained under the pro-
visions of this Act for the purpose of estate duty; and in the case of any agricul-
ural property where no part of the principal value is due to the expectation of an

8ncrea.sed income from such property, the annual value for the purpose of succes-
sion duty shal be arrived at in the same manner as under the provisions of this
part of this Act for the purpose of estate duty.
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Local Taxation Grant.

19- In substitution for the grant out of the probate duties under
the Local Government Act, 1888, the probate duty (Scotland and Ireland)
Act, 1888, and the Local Government (Scotland) Act, 1889, there shall
be paid out of the proceeds of the estate duty derived from personal property,
such sum as the commissioners, in accordance with régulations made by the
Treasury under those Acts, may determine to be an amount equal to one and a
half per cent on the net value of such of the property in respect of which estate
duty is leviable as would, if this Act had not been passed, have been chargeable
with the duty imposed by section twenty-seven of the Customs and Inland Reve-
nue Act, 1881, on Inland Revenue affidavits, and the first-mentioned Acts shall
apply, as if the sum so determined were the probate duty grant or one-half of the
proceeds of the sums collected in respect of the probate duties (as the case
requires) within the meaning of those Acts.

British Possessions.

20.-(1.) Where the commissioners are satisfied, that in a British possession
to which this section applies, duty is payable by reason of a death in respect of any
property situate in such possession and passing on such death, they shall allow a
sum equal to the amount of that duty to be deducted from the estate duty payable
in respect of that property on the same death.

(2.) Nothing in this Act shall be held to create a charge for estate duty on any
property situate in a British possession, while so situate, or to authorize the com-
missioners to take any proceedings in a Briitsh possession for the recovery of any
estate duty.

(3.) Her Majesty the Queen may, by Order in Council, apply this section to
any British po.ssession, where Her Majesty is satisfied that, by the law of such
possession, either no duty is leviable in respect of property situate in the United
Kingdom when passing on death, or that the law of such possession as respects
any duty so leviable is to the like effect as the foregoing provisions of this section.

(4.) Her Majesty in Council may revoke any such Order, where it appears
that the law of the British possession has been so altered that it would not author-
ize the making of an order under this section.

Savings and Deninitions.

W 21 .- (1.) Estate duty shal not be payable on the death of a deceased person
in respect of personal property settled by a will or disposition made by a person
dying before the commencement of this part of this Act, in respect of which pro-
perty any duty mentioned in paragraphs one and two of the first schedule to this
Act, or the duty payable on any representation or inventory under any Act in
force before the Customs and Inland Revenue Act, 1881, has been paid or is pay-
able, unless in either case the deceased was at the time of his death, or at any time
since the will or disposition took effect had been, competent to dispose of the
property.

(2.) Where a person died before the commencement of this part of this Act,
the duties mentioned in the first schedule to this Act shall continue to be payable
in like manner in all respects as if this Act had not passed.

(3.) Where an interest in expectancy in any property has, before the com-
mencement of this part of this Act, been bonâ fide sold or mortgaged for full con-
sideration in money or money's worth, then no other duty on such property shall
be payable by the purchaser or mortgagee when the interest falls into possession,
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than would have been payable if this Act had not passed ; and in the case of a
mortgage, any higher duty payable by the mortgagor shall rank as a charge subse-
quent to that of the mortgagee.

(4.) The settlement estate duty of one per cent shall not be payable in respect
of property settled by a disposition which has taken effect before the commence-
ment of this part of this Act.

(5.) Where a husband or wife is entitled, either solely or jointly with the
other, to the income of any property settled by the other under a disposition which
has taken effect before the commencement of this part of this Act, and on his or
her death the survivor becomes entitled to the income of the property settled by
such survivor, estate duty shall not be payable in respect of that property until
the death of the survivor.

22.-(1.) In this part of this Act, unless the context otherwise requires-
(a.) The expressions " deceased person " and " the deceased " mean a person

dving after the commencement of this part of this Act :
(b.) The expression "will " includes any testamentarv instrument:
(c.) The expression "representation " means probate of a will or letters of

administration
(d.) The expression "executor" means the executor or administrator of a

deceased person, and includes, as regards any obligation under this
part of this Act, any person who takes possession of or intermeddles
with the personal property of a deceased person :

(e.) The expression " estate duty " means estate duty under this Act:
(f.) The expression " property " includes real property and personal property

and the proceeds of sale thereof respectively and any money or invest-
ment for the time being representing the proceeds of sale :

(g.) The expression " agricultural property " means agricultural land pasture
and woodland, and also includes such cottages, farm buildings, farm-
houses, and mansion-houses (together with the lands occupied there-
with) as are of a character appropriate to the property :

(h.) The expression "settled property " means property comprised in a set-
tlement :

(i.) The expression "settlement " means any instrument, whether relating to
real property or personal property, which is a settlement within the
meaning of section two of the Settled Land Act, 1882, or if it related to
real property would be a settlement within the meaning of that section,
and includes a settlement effected by a parol trust :

(f.) The expres.sion "interest in expectancy " includes an estate in remainder
or reversion and every other future interest whether vested or con-
tingent, but does not include reversions expectant upon the determina-
tion of leases :

(k.) The expression "incumbrances" includes mortgages and terminable
charges:

(1.) The expression " property passing on the death " includes property pass-
ing either immediatelv on the death or after any interval, either cer-
tainly or contingently', and either originally or by way of substitutive
limitation, and the expression "on the death" includes "at a period
ascertainable, onlv by reference to the death "

(m.) The expre.ssion -" the commissioners" means the Commissioners of In-
land Revenue :

(n.) The expression "Inland Revenue affidavit" means an affidavit made
under the enactments specified in the second schedule to this Act with
the account and schedule annexed thereto :

(o.) The expression " prescribed " means prescribed by the commissioners.
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(2.) For the purposes of this part of this Act-
(a.) A person shall be deemed competent to dispose of property if he has

such an estate or interest therein or such general power as would, if
he were sui juris, enable him to dispose of the property, including a
tenant in tail whether in possession or not ; and the expression "gen-
eral power" includes every power or authority enabling the donee or
other holder thereof to appoint or dispose of property as he thinks
fit, whether exerciseable by instrument inter vivos or by will, or both,
but exclusive of any power exerciseable in a fiduciary capacity under a
di.sposition not made by himself, or exerciseable as tenant for life
under the Settled Land Act, 1882, or as mortgagee :

(b.) A disposition taking effect out of the interest of the deceased person shall
be deemed to have been made by him, whether the concurrence of
any other person was or was not required :

(c.) Money which a person has a general power to charge on property shall
be deemed to be property of which he has power to dispose.

(3.) This part of this Act shall apply to property in which the wife or husband
of the deceased takes an estate in dower or by the courtes or any other like estate,
in like manner as it applies to property settled by thë will of the deceased.

Application to Scotland.

23.-In the application of this part of this Act to Scotland unless the context
otherwise requires-

(i.) The Court of Session shall be substituted for the High Court:
(2.) "Sheriff court" shall be substituted for "county court " :
(3.) "Confirmation" shall be substituted for "representation " :
(4.) The expression "receiver of the property and of the rents and profits

thereof " means a judicial factor upon the property :
(5.) The expression "Inland Revenue affidavit " means the inventory of the

personal estate of a deceased now required by law, and includes an
additional inventory :

(6.) The expression "on delivering the Inland Revenue affidavit" means on
exhibiting and recording a duly stamped inventory as provided by
section thirty-eight of the Act of the forty-eighth year of the reign of
King George the Third, chapter one hundred and forty-nine :

(7.) Section thirty-four of the Customs and Inland Revenue Act, 1881, shall
be .ubstituted for section thirty-three of that Act, and the Acts referred
to in such section thirty-four shall extend to an estate of a gross value
not exceeding five hundred pounds, and an application under the said
Acts may be made to any commissary clerk, and any commissary
clerk shall affix the seal of the court to any representation granted in
England or Ireland upon the sarne being sent to him for that purpose,
enclosing a fee of two shillings and sixpence :

(8.) The expression "personal property " means moveable property:
(9.) The expression "real property " includes heritable property :
(1o.) The expression "incumbrance " includes any heritable security, or other

debt or payment secured upon heritage :
(i i.) The expression " executor " means every person who as executor, near-

est of kin, or creditor, or otherwise, intromits with or enters upon the
possession or management of any personal property of a deceased
person :

(12.) The property comprised in any special assignation or disposition taking
effect on death shall be deemed to pass on death within the meaning of
this Act :
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(13.) The expression " trustee " includes a tutor, curator, and judicial factor:
(14.) The expression " settled property " shall not include property held

under entail :
(i5.) An institute or heir of entail in possession of an entailed estate shall

whether sui juris or not be deemed for the purposes of this Act to be a
person competent to dispose of such estate :

(16.) Where an entailed estate passes on the death of the deceased to an insti-
tute or heir of entail, who is not entitled to disentail such estate without
either obtaining the consent of one or more subsequent heirs of entail or
having the consent of such one or more subsequent heirs valued and
dispensed with, settlement estate duty as well as estate duty shall be
paid in respect of such estate, but neither estate duty not settlement
estate duty shall be payable again in respect of such estate, until such
estate is disentailed, or until an heir of entail to whom it passes on or
subsequent to the death of the institute or heir first mentioned, and
who is entitled to disentail it without obtaining the consent of any sub-
sequent heir or heirs or having in the consent of any subsequent heir
or heirs valued and dispensed with, dies :

(17.) Where an institute or heir of entail in possession of an entailed estate
who is not entitled to disentail such estate without either obtaining
the consent of one or more subsequent heirs of entail or having the
consent of such one or more subsequent heirs valued and
dispensed with, has paid estate duty in respect of such estate, and after-
wards disentails such estate, he shall be entitled to deduct from the
value in money of the expectancy or interest in such estate of such one
or more subsequent heirs, payable by him to them in respect of their
consents having been granted or dispensed with, a proper rateable
part of the estate duty paid by him as aforesaid :

(18.) Where any person who pays estate duty on aiy property, and in whom
the property is not vested, is by this Act authorized to raise such duty
by the sale or mortgage of that property, or any part thereof, it shall
be competent for such person to apply to the Court of Session-

(a) for an order of sale of the property or part of it, and in the event of the
court granting such order, it shall provide for the payment out of the
price of the amount of the estate duty which has been paid by such
person, and the court shall thereafter make such order as to the
disposal of the surplus, if any, of the price, by way of investment
or otherwise, as to the court shall seem proper ; the court may in such
order specify the time and place at which, the person by whom, and
the advertisement or notice after which the sale shall be made, and
may ordain the person in whom the property is vested to grant a dis-
position thereof in favour of the purchaser, and if the person in whom
the property is vested refuses or fails to do so, the court shall grant
authority to the clerk of the court to execute such disposition, and such
disposition so executed shall be as valid as if it had been executed by
the person in whom the property is vested ; or

(b) for an order ordaining the person in whom the property is vested to grant
a bond and disposition in security over the property in favour of the
person who has paid the estate duty, for the amount of the said duty,
and if the person in whom the property is vested -refuses, or fails to
do so, the court shall grant authority to the clerk of court to execute
such a bond and disposition in security, and such bond and disposition
in security so executed shall be as valid as if it had been executed by
the person in whom the property is vested, and shall be a first charge
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upon the property after any debt or incumbrance for which an allow-
ance is directed to be made under this Act in determining the value of
the property for the purpose of estate duty ;

Provided also that summary diligence shall not be competent thereupon, and
that nothing herein contained shall make the duty to be recovered by
the methods of these subsections (a) and (b) recoverable at any earlier
time than if it had been recovered by direct action against the person
ultinately liable for the duty :

(i.) This part of this Act shall apply to property in which the wife or hus-
band of the deceased take, an estate of terce or courtesy or any other
like estate in like manner as it applies to property settled by the will
of the deceased.

Conunencemnnt.

24 -This part of this Act shall come into overation on the expiration of the
first day of August, one thousand eight hundred a'nd ninety-four, in this part of this
Act referred to as the commencement of this part of this Act.

PART II.

CUSTOMS.

25.-The duty of custoins now payable on tea shall continue to be charged
and paid, on and after the first day of August, one thousand eight hundred and
ninety-four, until the first day of August, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-
five, on the importation thereof into Great Britain or Ireland (that is to say):

Tea, the pound .............................. Fourpence.

.26.-In addition to the duties of customs now payable on beer of the descrip-
tions called mum, spruce, or black beer, imported into Great Britain or Ireland,
there shall be charged and paid on and after the seventeenth day of April, one
thousand eight hundred and ninety-four, until the fir.st day of July, one thousand
eight hundred and ninety-five, the duties following (that is to say) :-

£ s. d.
For every thirty-six gallons of beer where the worts

thereof are or were before fermentation of a
specific gravity-

Not exceeding one thousand two hundred and
fifteen degrees ........................... o 2 O

Exceeding one thousand two hundred and fifteen
degrees ................ ,.............. o 2 4

This section shall extend to Berlin white beer, and other preparations,
whether fermented or not fermented, of a character similar to mum, spruce, or
black beer.

27.-In addition to the duties of customs now payable on every description of
beer (other than is specified in the last preceding section) imported into Great
Britain or Ireland, there shall be charged and paid on and after the seventeenth
day of April, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-four, until the first day of
July, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-five, the duty following (that is to
say)

£ s. d.
For every thirty-six gallon.s where the worts thereof

were before fementation of a specific gravity of-
One thousand and fifty-five degrees ............ o o 6
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and there shall be allowed and paid in and for the same period in respect of all
such beer a similar addition to the drawback granted on exportation, shipment
for use as stores or removal to the Isle of Man, by section four of the Customs and
Inland Revenue Act, 1881. And so, as to both duty and drawback, in proportion
for any difference in gravity.

2S.-In addition to the duties of customs now payable on spirits imported
into Great Britain or Ireland there shall be charged and paid on and after the
seventeenth day of April, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-four, until the
first day of July, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-five, the duties following
(that is to say)

£ s. d.
For every gallon, computed at proof, of spirits of any

description (except perfumed spirits) including
naphtha or methylic alcohol, purified so as to be
potable, and mixtures and preparations contain-
ing spirits ................................ o o 6

For every gallon of perfumed spirits.............. O 10
For every gallon of liqueurs, cordials, mixtures, and

other preparations entered in such a manner as
to indicate that the strength is not to be tested.. o o 8

And the duties of customs on the articles hereinafter mentioned, being
articles of which spirits are a part or ingredient, shall be proportionately increased
and there shall accordingly be charged and paid on and after the seventeenth day
of April, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-four, until the first day of July,
one thousand eight hundred and ninety-five, the duties following (that is to say):

£ s. c.
Chloral hydrate ..... .... .......... the pound o 1 4
Chloroform ........... ........ ..... the pound 0 3 3
Collodion ........ ........ ........ the gallon 1 6 3
Ether, acetic ........ ............... the pound o i ii
Ether, butyric ...................... the gallon o 16 5
Ether, sulphuric ........ ....... ..... the gallon 1 7 5
Ethyl, iodide of...................the gallon o 14 3

This section shall not affect the continuance after the thirtieth day of June,
one thousand eight hundred and ninety-five, of the duties existing prior to this
section taking effect.

PART III.

EXCISE.

2 .- In addition to the duty of excise now payable in respect of beer brewedin the United Kingdom there shall be charged and paid on and after the seven-
teenth day of April, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-four, until the firstday of July, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-five--

For every thirty-six gallons of worts of a specific gravity of
one thousand and fifty-five degrees the duty of sixpence,

and so in proportion for any difference in quantity or gravity.
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30.-In addition to the drawback of excise now payable in respect of beer
exported from the United Kingdom as merchandise or shipped for use as ship's
stores there shall be allowed and paid in respect of beer brewed in the United
Kingdom between the sixteenth day of April, one thousand eight hundred and
ninety-four, and the first day of July, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-five-

For every thirty-six gallons of beer of an original gravity of
one thousand and fifty-five degrees the drawback of six-
pence,

and so in proportion for any difference in quantity or gravity.

31.- In addition to the duty of excise now payable for every gallon computed
at proof of spirits distilled in the United Kingdom, there shall be charged and
paid on and after the seventeenth day of April, one thousand eight hundred and
ninety-four, until the first day of July, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-five,
the duty of sixpence, and so in proportion for any less quantity.

32.-Where, before the seventeenth day of April, one thousand eight hundred
and ninety-four, any person shall have contracted for the sale of spirits or beer
without reference to the duties of excise thereon granted by this Act, it shall be
lawful for such person, and he is hereby authorized to receive from the purchaser,
and sue for and recover the equivalent in money of the excess of such duties over
the duties which would have been payable if this Act had not been passed.

PART IV.

INCOME TAX.

t3.-(1.) There .hall be charged, collected, and paid for the year which
commenced on the sixth day of April, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-
four, in respect of all property, profits, and gains mentioned or described as
chargeable in the Income Tax Act, 1853, the following duties of income tax (that
is to say ):-

For every twenty shillings of the annual value or amount of property,
profits, and gains chargeable under schedules (A), (C), (D), or (E)
of the said Act the duty of eightpence :

And for every twenty shillings of the annual value of the occupation of
lands, tenements, hereditaments, and heritages chargeable under
schedule (B) of the said Act-

In England, Scotland, and Ireland respectively, the duty of threepence.

(2.) All such provisions contained in any Act relating to income tax as were
in force on the fifth day of April, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-four
shall have full force and effect with respect to the duties of income tax hereby
granted, so far as the same are consistent with this Act.

34.-The provisions of the Income Tax Acts with respect to the exemption
granted to persons whose respective incomes are less than one hundred and fifty
pounds a year, shall extend to persons whose respective incomes do not exceed
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one hundred and sixty pounds a year, and in lieu of the relief or abatement frorn
income tax granted by section eight of the Customs and Inland Revenue Act,
1876, to persons whose respective incomes are less than four hundred pounds a
year, the following provisions shall have effect

(i.) Any person who shall be assessed or charged to any of the duties of
income tax granted by this Act, or who shall have paid the same either
by deduction or otherwise, and who shall claim and prove in the
manner prescribed by the Income Tax Acts, that his total income
from all sources, although exceeding one hundred and sixty pounds
or upwards, does not exceed five hundred pounds, shall be entitled to
relief or abatement as follows :-

(a.) If the total income of such person does not exceed four hundred pounds,
to relief from so much- of the said duties assessed upon or paid by him
as an assessment or charge upon one hundred and sixty pounds of his
income would amount to ; and

(b.) If the total income of such person exceeds four hundred pounds, and
does not exceed five hundred pounds, to the relief from so much of
the said duties assessed upon or paid by him as an assessment or
charge upon one hundred pounds of his income would amount to.

(2.) Where the total joint income of a husband and wife charged to income
tax, by way either of assessment or deduction, does not exceed five
hundred pounds and, upon any claim under this section, the com-
missioners for the general purposes of the Acts relating to income
tax are satisfied that such total income includes profits of the wife
derived from any profession, employment, or vocation chargeable
under schedule D, or from any office or employment of profit charge-
able under schedule E, they shall deal with such claim as if it were a
claim for exemption or relief or abatement, as the case may be, in
respect of such profits of the wife, and a separate claim, on the part of
the husband, for exemption or relief or abatement in respect of the
re5t of such total income.

35.-In respect of the income tax hereby imposed under schedule A, where
the tax is charged upon annual value estiniated otherwi.se than by relation to
profits, the following provisions shall have effect :-

(a.) In the case of an assessment on lands inclusive of the farmhouse and
other buildings (if any), the amount of the assessment shall, for the
purposes of collection, be reduced by a sum equal to one-eighth part
thereof ; and

(b.) In the case of an assessment upon any house or building (except a farm-
house or building included with lands in assessment), the amount of
the assessment shall, for the purposes of collection, be reduced-

(i.) Where the owner is occupier or assessable as landlord, or where a
tenant is occupier and the landlord undertook to bear the cost of
repairs, by a sum equal to one-sixth part of that amount ; and

(ii.) Where a tenant is occupier and undertook to bear the cost of repairs,
by such a sum not exceeding one-sixth part of that arnount, as may
be necessary to reduce it to the amount of rent payable by him.

(c.) As between the owner and a mortgagee of his property, or any person
having a charge thereon or entitled to any ground rent, rent charge,
annuity, or other annual sum payable thereout, the owner's right
of deduction under the Income Tax Acts in respect of income tax shall
be in no wise prejudiced or affected by the relief afforded by this
section.
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(d.) Where the amount of the assessment in the case of lands (inclusive of the
farmhouse and other buildings) is more than one-eighth, and in the
case of any house or building (except a farmhouse or building included
with lands in assessment) is more than one-sixth, below the rent after
deducting from such rent any outgoing which should by law be de-
ducted in making the assessment, this section shall not apply.

36 -(1.) Any penny savings bank, or other bank for savings, whether cer-
tified under the Savings Bank Act, 1863, or not, shall be entitled to exemption
from income tax chargeable under schedules C and D of the Acts relating to
income tax in respect of the income of the funds of the savings bank, so far as it is
applied in the payment or credit of interest to any depositor not exceeding the
sum of five pounds in the year for which exemption is claimed.

(2.) The exemption shall be claimed, proved, and allowed in the same manner
as is prescribed by law in the case of income applicable and applied to charitable
purposes.

(3.) Provided that where interest is paid, or dividends or interest are or is
credited without deduction of income tax to a depositor in any savings bank
whose income exceeds one hundred and sixty pounds a year, such interest, or
dividends or interest, as the case may be, shall be accounted for and charged under
the third case of schedule D, under which profits of an uncertain annual value are
directed to be charged.

37.-(1.) The sum charged as the annual value of any property, elsewhere
than in the metropolis, as defined by the Valuation (Metropolis) Act, 1869, in the
asses.sment of income tax thereon for the year which commenced on the sixth day
of April, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-three, shall be taken as the annual
value of such property for the assessment and charge thereon of the duties of
income tax hereby granted under schedules A and B.

(2.) The sum charged as the annual value of every inhabited house elsewhere
than in the said metropolis made thereon for the year which commenced as re-
spects England on the sixth day of April, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-
three, and as respects Scotland on the twenty-fifth day of May, one thousand eight
hundred and ninety-three, shall be taken as the annual value of the inhabited
house for the assessment and charge thereon of the duties on inhabited houses
as respects England for the year which commenced on the sixth day of April,
one thousand eight hundred and ninety-four, and as respects Scotland for the
year commencing on the twenty-fifth day of May, one thousand eight hundred
and ninety-four.

(3.) The inspectors or surveyors of taxes shall be the assessors of the said
duties of income tax under schedules A and B, and of the said duties on inhabited
houses.

3S. -(i.) Where, in the case of any dividend, interest, or other annual
profits or gains due or payable half yearly or quarterly in the course of the said
year which commenced on the sixth day of April, one thousand eight hundred
and ninety-four, any half yearly or quarterly payments shall have been made prior
to the passing of this Act, the duty of income tax hereby granted, or so much by
relation to such duty as shall not have been charged thereon or deducted there-
from, shall be charged under schedule D in respect of such payments as profits
or gains not charged by virtue of any other schedule in conformity with the pro-
vision contained in the sixth case of schedule D, in section one bundred of the
Income Tax Act, 1842, and the agents entrusted with the payment of the divi-
dends, interest, or other annual profits or gains, shall furnish a list containing the
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names and addresses of the persons to whom payments have been made, and the
amount of such payments, to the Commissioners of Inland Revenue upon a requi-
sition in that behalf.

(2.) Where any person liable to pay any rent, interest, annuity, or other annual
payment in the course of the said year shall, on making any such payment prior
to the passing of this Act, have not made any deduction or have made an insuffi-
cient deduction in respect of the duty of income tax hereby granted he shall be
authorized to make the deduction or make up the deficiency on the occasion of the
next payment in addition to any other deduction which he may by law be author-
ized to make.

(3.) The charge or deduction of the duty of income tax at a rate not exceeding
the rate hereby granted in the case of any payment made in the course of the said
year prior to the passing of this Act shall be deemed to have been a legal charge or
deduction.

PART V.

MISCELLANEOUS.

Composition for certain Stamp Duties.

39.-The provisions contained in section one hundred and fourteen of the
Stamp Act, 1891, in reference to the composition for stamp duty chargeable on
transfers of certain stocks, shall extend to the stock of any foreign state or govern-
ment which is inscribed in the books of the Bank of England.

Exemption of Coupons from Stamp Duty.

40.-A coupon for interest on a marketable security as defined by the Stamp
Act, 1891, being one of a set of coupons, whether issued with the security or
subsequently issued in a sheet, shall not be chargeable with any stamp duty.

PART VI.

IMPERIAL AND NAVAL DEFENCE LOANS.

41.--(1.) All dividends or other moneys received by the Treasury after the
frst day of July, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-four, in respect of Suez
Canal shares shall be paid into the Exchequer.

(2.) The sum by which the aggregate payments made to the Naval Defence
Account under section two of the Naval Defence Act, 1889, before the thirty-first
day of March, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-four, exceed the authorized
expenditure of ten million pounds, or any less sum which on the completion of the
contract vessels has been actually expended on those vessels, shall be paid from
that account into the Exchequer, and the instalments payable to the said account
under the said section shall cease after the said day to be payable.

(3.>-(a.) The old sinking fund and the new sinking fund may, notwith-
Sanding anything in the Imperial Defence Act, 1888, and the Naval Defence Acts,
1889 and 1893, and in addition to any other mode of application, be applied in pay-
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ing off all or any part of the loan of two million six hundred thousand pounds bor-
rowed under Part IL. of the Imperial Defence Act, 1888 (in this Act referred to as
the Imperial Defence Loan), and of the loan of three million one hundred and forty-
six thousand pounds borrowed under the Naval Defence Act, 1889 (in this Act
referred to as the Naval Defence Loan) ;

(b.) The interest on the Imperial Defence Loan and the Naval Defence Loan,
or on such part thereof as is for the time being outstanding, shall, so far a it
would, but for this section, come into course of payment out of the moneys pro-
vided by Parliament for army services or naval services, be paid out of the per-
manent annual charge for the national debt, and the Treasury shall, so far as
regards any payments already made, make such adjustments as appear to them
necessary for carrying into effect this section.

(4.) Nothing in this section, nor any appeal by this section, shall affect the
charge on the Consolidated Fund of any loan, so far as the same is required for
the purpose of repaying the principal or interest of such loan to the holder of the
security for the same.

(5.) The Acts specified in the third schedule to this Act are hereby repealed
to the extent and from the dates in the third column of that schedule mentioned.

Short Title.

42.-This Act may be cited as the Finance Act, 1894.

SCHED ULES.

FIRST SCHEDULE.

EXISTING DUTIES REFERRED TO.

i. The stamp duties imposed by the Customs and Inland Revenue Act, î881,
on the affidavit to be required and received from the person applying for probate
or letters of administration in England or Ireland, or on the inventory to be ex-
hibited and recorded in Scotland.

2. The stamp duties imposed by section 38 of the Customs and Inland Reve-
nue Act, 1881, as amended and extended by section ii of the Customs and Inland
Revenue Act, 1889, on the value of personal or movable property to be included
in accounts thereby directed to be delivered.

3. The additional succession duties imposed by section 21 Of the Customs
and Inland Revenue Act, 1888.

4. The temporary estate duties imposed by sections 5 and 6 of the Customs
and Inland Revenue Act, 1889.

5. The duty at the rate of one pound per cent which would by virtue of the
Acts in force relating to legacy duty or succession duty have been payable under
the will or intestacy of the deceased, or under his disposition or any devolution
from him under which respectively estate duty has been paid, or under any other
disposition under which estate duty has been paid.
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SECOND SCHEDULE.

ACTS REFERRED TO.

Session and Chapter.

55 Geo. 3. c. 184.. .....

56 Geo. 3. c. 56 . .......

Title or Short Title.

The Stamp Act, 1815 .... .........

An Act the title of which begins wit
" An Act to repeal the several sta
and ends with the words " manag
" duties.".. ................. .

Section referred to.

..... .. Section thirty-eight.

h the words
mp duties"
ing the said
. .........

43 Vic. c. 14 .......... The Customs and Inland Revenue Act, 1880..

44 & 45 Vic. c. 12 ...... The Customs and Inland Revenue Act, 1881....

Section one hundred and
seventeen.

Section ten.

Sections twenty-nine and
thirty-two.

THIRD SCHEDULE.

ACTS REPEALED.

Session and Chapter.

51 & 52 Vie. c. 32......

52 & 53 Vie. c. 8.

56 & 57 Vie. c. 45......

Short Title.

The Imperial Defence Act,
1888.

The Naval Defence Act,
1889

The Naval Defence Act,
1893.

Extent of Repeal.

The whole of Part Two and section eleven, from
" The expression Treasury " to "Admiral."
from ''"the expression Suez" to "1876," and
f rom " The expression Exchequer" to the end
of the section, as from the passing of this Act.

The whole Act as from the following dates:
Section two, from " To provide such money"
to " Exchequer," being sub-sections two to five,
as from the end of the last financial year before
the passing of this Act, and from " the princi-
pal of aIl securities " to the end of the section,
bemng sub-sections six, seven and eight, as from
the 31st of December, one thousand eight
hundred and ninety-two ; section five, as fron
the completion of the audit therein mentioned ;
and the residue as from the end of the present
financial year.

The whole Act as from the end of the present
financial year.
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[47]

Of correspondence between the Colonial Office and the Government of Canada
on the subject of the Island of Anticosti.

No. 1. Despatch of Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Aberdeen, 12th August, 1898,
covering certain newspaper extracts with regard to the Island of Anticosti.

No. 2. Minute of Council, 24th September, 1898.
No. 3. Despatch of Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Minto, 23rd February, 1899.
No. 4. Minute of Council, 30th. March, 1899, approving report of the Solicitor

General.
No. 5. R3port of the Solicitor General, 30th March, 1899.
No. 6. Despatch of Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Minto, 25th March, 1899, covering

letter of the Reverend Edward J. Stobo.
No. 7. Letter of Reverend Edward J. Stobo, 3rd March, 1899.

No. 1.
Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Abercden.

DoWNING STREET, 12th August, 1898.
Governor General,

&c., &c., &c.

My LoRD,-I have the honour to transmit to you, for communication to your
government, the accompanying copies of newspaper extracts on the subject of the
control exercised by a French subject over the Island of Anticosti.

In Sir H. Strong's despatch No. 276 of the 19th of October, 1896, I have already
received a copy of the deed transferring possession of the island to M. Menier, but I
shall be glad if you will obtain from your ministers and forward to me at an early date
a report on the statements in the press as to the state of affairs which at present exists
in the island.

I have, &c.,
J. CHAMBERLAIN.

(From Daily Mail Tuesday, 9th, August, 1898.)

THE ANTICOSTI DANGER.

Trouble is brewing in Canada over the Island of Anticosti, lying at the mouth of
the St. Lawrence, and commanding the highway to the ports of Montreal and Quebec.

About April, 1896, M. Menier, the French " Chocolate King," acquired the island
from the Quebec government, in which province it is included, for a merely nominal
sum. His plan at the time was stated to be to turn the whole island, which has an
area of about 3,500 square miles, into an immense hunting park, where Canadian wild
animals might be bred.

M. Menier also expressed a desire to experiment in colonization by bringing out a
number of French farmers, etc. This was very pleasing to the then Premier of Quebec,

47-1
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who little realized what his government had done in bartering away territory to a
foreigner. He was shortly, however, to receive a rude awakening.

In May, 1896, a big cargo boat, "La Savoy," arrived at Anticosti, having among its
cargo a large number of field guns-presumably to shoot the wild animals with or to
assist the settlers.

On 30th, May 1896, a Nova Scotian fishing schooner, when fishing off West Point,
Anticosti, was warned off by M. Meriier's servants, and was informed that it was M.
Menier's desire that no vessel should fish within the three mile limits. If the order to
move on was not attended to, force was threatened.

This was practically a declaration on Mr. Menier's part that the island was foreign
territory, and must be regarded as such. The incident caused much indignation in
Canada at the time, and it was explained that although M. Menier had certain rights
over the island, it no longer ceased to be British territory, and he could not prevent
fishing around its shores.

The latest development is more interpsting still, and shows M. Menier's great
desire to advance colonization. The residents of Fox Bay, one of the principal settle-
ments in the island, were, according to mail advices dated the 9th instant, ordered to
vacate the place in twenty-four hours.

Some of the people have, it appears, lived there for twenty-five years. Being poor
they have appealed to the Canadian governnent for protection. The Ottawa author-
ities have, however, shifted the responsibility on the Quebec government, and the
people have beei told to look to the latter for redress.

The matter stands thus at present, and should be the subject of searching inquiry.
Valuable as the island is froin a strategic point of view, it has also a great value

for future cable expansion in the Gulf of St. Lawrence. M. Menier's name is associated
with many French and anti-British cable undertakings, among these being the so-called
first section of the Pacific cable from Queensland to New Caledonia, and the projected
cable from San Francisco to Hawaii. Having regard to the future uses to which
Anticosti may be put to, telegraphically, care should be taken to preserve British

jurisdiction intact.
J. B. WILSON.

A case in point is furnished by the trouble that is now brewing in Canada over the
Island of Anticosti. The island in question, vhich occupies a commanding position at
the mouth of the St. Lawrence, was acquired f rom the Quebec government a few years
ago by M. Menier, the French chocolate " king." The purchase price was almost
nominal, as the island was a wilderness and M. Menier professed to want it chiefly for
a hunting estate, where Canadian wild animals might be bred. As an experiment in
colonization he proposed to bring out a number of French farmers as settlers ; but
instead of farmers, the vessel, professedly chartered for the purpose, brought soldiers
and field guns, and the island was soon converted into a fortified demesne, over which the
purchaser began to exercise sovereign rights. Nova Scotia fishing vessels are now
forbidden to fish within the three mile limit of the shore, and the British residents at
Fox Bay, one of the principal settlements in the island, have been ordered to vacate
the place withiin twenty-four hours. It is to be hoped that the Dominion government
will lose no time in correcting M. Menier's erroneous ideas as to the nationality of the
island, and it would be well that millionaires generally should be enlightened as to the
limnits of the purchasing power of money where political and national interests are
involved.

* * * * **
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No. 2.

EXTRACT /rom a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved
by Ris Excellency on the 24th September, 1898.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had under consideration a despatch,
hereto annexed, dated 12th August, 1898, from the Right Honourable the Secretary of
State for the Colonies, with copies of newspaper extracts on the subject of the control
exercised by M. Menier, a French subject, over the Island of Anticosti. Mr. Chamber-
lain states that he will be glad if Your Excellency will obtain and forward to him at an
early date a report on the statements in the press as to the state of affairs which at
present exist on the island.

The Minister of Justice to whom the said despatch and inclosures were referred,
states that the necessary inquiries can be conveniently prosecuted, and the information
called for obtained by the attorney general of the province of Quebec.

The minister therefore recommends that copies of Mr. Chamberlain's despatch and
of the accompanying papers be referred to the Lieutenant Governor of the province of
Quebec with a request that he furnish Your Excellency with a report covering the par-
ticulars asked for

The committee submit the above recommendation for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

No. 3.

Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Vinto.

DOWNING STREET, 23rd Februarv, 1899.
Governor General,

&c,, &c, &c.

My LoRD,-I have the honour to invite your attention to my despatch, No. 253,
of the 12th August, in which I requested your predecessor to obtain from his ministers
and forward to me at an early date, a report on the statements which have appeared in
the English press as to the state of affairs at present existing on the Island of Anticosti.

2. I shall be glad if your ministers will do what they can to expedite the trans-
mission of this report. The matter formed i he subject of a recent question in the House
of Commons, and it is desirable that if it should be raised again, I should be in posses-
sion of the facts of the case.

I have, &c.,

J. CHAMBERLAIN.

No. 4.

EXTRACT fron a Report of thte Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved
by His Excellency on the 30th March, 1899.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had under consideration a despatch,
dated 23rd February, 1899, from the Right Honourable Mr. Chamberlain,
together with a former despatch dated 12th August, 1898, requesting a report re-
garding the truth of certain statements which had appeared in the English press on the
subject of the control exercised by a French subject over the Island of Anticosti, and
respecting the state of affairs at present existing on that island.

The solicitor general submits the annexed report upon the said matter.
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The committee concur in the said annexed report, and advise that Your Excellency
be moved to transmit a certified-copy of this minute and of the said report to the Right
Honourable Her Majesty's Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies.

All which is respectfully submitted for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE.
Clerk of the Privy Council.

No. 5.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, CANADA,
OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR GENERAL,

OTTAWA, 29th March, 1899.

To His Excellency the Governor General in Council:

The undersigned, to whom has been referred the despatch dated the twenty-third
day of February, 1899, from the Right Honourable the Secretary of State for the
Colonies to His Excellency the Governor General, requesting His Excellency to obtain
from his ministers a report regarding the truth of certain statements which had appeared
in the English press on the subject of the control exercised by a French subject over
the Island of Anticosti, and respecting the state of affairs at present existing on that
island, bas the honour to submit the following for the information of the Right
Honourable the Secretary of State for the Colonies.

The articles in the English press, to which the despatch of the Right Honourable
the Secretary of State for the Colonies referred, contain two different statements, the
first to the effect that the government of the province of Quebec had made a grant of
the Tsland of Anticosti to a French citizen, Mr. H. E. A. Menier; the second to the
effect that Mr. Menier had abused his rights as proprietor of the Island of Anticosti to
the prejudice of certain subjects of Her Majesty, who, it is alleged, held vested rights
therein. The undersigned will deal separately with each of these statements.

1. The I.-land of Anticosti was taken possession of in 1535 by Jacques Cartier in
the name of the King of France. In 1680 it was granted to Sieur Louis Jolliet, and
since thus passing from the public domain more than two hundred years ago, it bas
never reverted to the Crown. The present proprietor, M. Henri Emile Anatole Menier,
obtains his title under the deeds which record the various transfers of the property
during that period. The following is a brief summary of this chain of title:

In March, 1680, Jacques Duchesneau, intendant of New France, and M. LeComte
de Frontenac, Governor of New France, in the name of the King of France, granted the
fief and seigniory of the Island of Anticosti to Sieur Louis Jolliet, in consideration of
certain discoveries and explorations which the latter lias made on behalf of His
Majesty.

In 1701 Sieur Louis Jolliet died, leaving him surviving the following children:
Sons (4) Louis Jolliet,

Francois Jolliet,
Charles Jolliet,
Jean Jolliet.

Daughter (1) Claire Jolliet, married to Joseph Fleury des Chambeault.
Louis Jolliet and Francois Jolliet died unmarried.
18th Aprzl, 1725.-As appears by the Act of Foi et Homage of this date Charles

Jolliet, Jean Jolliet and Claire Jolliet Fleury de la Gorgendiere, were received in loi
et honage as joint seigneurs of the Island cf Anticosti.

4th December, 1769.-Deed whereby William Grant acquired from Antoine Grise
all the right, title and interest of Antoine Belcour de la Fontaine, which the said Grise
had acquired by deed from the latter.

lst June, 1772.-Deed whereby Thomas Dunn acquired all the right, title and
interest of Dame Marie Bissot, widow of Francois Vederique.

A. 1899
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20th November, 1777.-Deed whereby Thomas Dunn acquired ail the right, title
and interest of Demoiselle Madeleine de la Fontaine.

21st January, 1779.-Upon this date, at a sale held by the sheriff in pursuance of
an adjudication dated the 18th day of May, 1778, upon the suit of the heirs of Joeph
Fleury de la Gorgendiere against the heirs of Charles Jolliet, d'Anticosty, nine-twentieths
of the Island of Anticosti were sold to William Grant, the husband of Dame Catherine
Fleury de la Gorgendiere.

Uth August, 1784.-William Grant made a notarial declaration that the above
mentioned sale of nine-twentieths of the Island of Anticosti was to be considered as
having been made in the proportion of one-half to himself, one quarter to the Honourable
Thomas Dunn, and one-quarter to Peter Stuart.

lt/h November, 1779.-Deed of sale whereby William Grant acquired whatever
right, title or claim was possessed by Joseph Marin as heir of his mother, Dame Louise
Charlotte Fleury de la Gorgendiere.

ist February, 1781.-Deed of exchange whereby William Grant acquired through
Gabriel Elzear Tachereau, whatever right, title or claim which had descended to Louise
Therese Fleury de la Gorgendiere, Marquise de Vaudreuil.

17th February, 1784.-Deed of sale whereby the Honourable Thomas Dunn and
Peter Stuart acquired the rights of Dame Claire Jolliet de Migan, Dame Marie
Genevieve Jolliet de Migan, and Dame Marie Ann Jolliet de Migan.

18th January, 1786.-Deed of Cession from François Joseph Cugnet (who had
acquired the rights of François Belcour de la Fontaine by deed of sale, dated 12th
October, 1781) to the Honourable Thomas Dunn and Peter Stuart.

12th September, 1789.-The Honourable Thomas Dunn and Peter Stuart having
thus acquired nearly, if not aIl, the remaining interest in the Island of Anticosti, apart
from that acquired by the Honourable William Grant for himself and for them at the
sheriff's sale on 21 st January, 1779, or f rom that otherwise acquired by the Honourable
William Grant for himself alone, an agreement was made on the 12th day of September,
1789, between the Honourable William Grant and the Baroness Dowager de Longueuil,
(nee de la Gorgendiere), his wife, both their own names and as the representatives of the
heirs of Fleury Deschanbault, of the first part, the Honourable Thomas Dunn, of the
second part and Peter Stuart of the third part, which, after reciting that the parties
thereto were joint proprietors, in undetermined shares, of nearly the whole of the fief
or seigniory of the Island of Anticosti, set forth that they thereby agreed to hold the
said property in the following shares:-

The Honourable William Grant, one-half.
The Honourable Thomas Dunn, one-quarter.
Peter Stuart, one quarter.
30th July, 1808.-The Honourable William Grant having died leaving no heirs

him surviving, one John Richardson was appointed curator to the vacant estate, and as
a result of certain proceedings taken against the said estate in a suit intituled Langan
vs. Richardson, the sheriff of Quebec sold Patrick Langan one undivided one-half of the
Island of Anticosti, being the share held therein by the estate of the late William
Grant.

Patrick Langan died leaving him surviving as heiresses:-
Charlotte Langan (Mrs. H. G. Forsyth.)
Julia Langan (Mrs. P. Leslie.)
Maria Johnson Langan (Mrs. Kennedy.)
14th July, 1826.-Deed whereby Maria Johnson Langan (Mrs. Kennedy) conveyed

to her sister Charlotte Langan (Mrs. H. G. Forsyth) ail her right, title and interest in
and to the Island of Anticosti.

25th October, 1831.-Charlotte Langan (Forsyth) and Julia Langan (Leslie)
received in foi et homage as to the following parts of the Island of Anticosti :

Charlotte Langan (Forsyth), two-thirds of one-half.
Julia Langan (Leslie), one-third of one-half.
9th October, 1837.-Peter Stuart died leaving him surviving heira, and having on

lst May, 1797, made his last will, which is now amongst the archives of the Superior
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Court of the province of Quebec. On 9th October, 1837, his heirs were received in
foi et homage as owners of the seigneury of the Island of Anticosti as to the following
part :-

Mary Stuart, James T. S. Stuart, W. T. P. Stuart, each one-quarter.
23rd October, 1866.-The Honourable Thomas Dunn died on the 15th April, 1818,

leaving heirs him surviving, and having on the 5th August, 1801, made his last will,
which is now amongst the archives of the Superior Court of the province of Quebec.
On 23rd October, 1866, these heirs were proprietors of the following respective shares
of the Island of Anticosti:-

William Hew Dunn, five-sixths of one-fourth.
Ann Catherine Dunn, one-sixth of one-fourth.
23rd January, 1864.-An inspection having been made of the title of the Island

of Anticosti, under the ternis of the Seignorial Tenure Act, it was ascertained that it
was held as follows:-

Heirs of Thomas Dunn, three-twelfths.
Heirs of Peter Stuart, three-twelfths.
H. G. Forsyth, five-twelfths.
Hon. J. Leslie, one-twelfth.
4th January, 1876. - Deed whereby Dame Charlotte Langan (Forsyth) con veyed to

the Anticosti Company two-twelfths of the Island of Anticosti.
22nd January, 1881.-Last will of Darne Julian Langan (previously admitted to

probate) registered. It bequeathed one-twelfth of the Island of Anticosti to Patrick
Leslie, Grace Leslie (Henderson) and Kate Leslie,

11th January, 1881.-Deed whereby Grace Leslie (Henderson) conveyed to George
Bury one-third of one-twelfth of the Island of Anticosti.

31st January, 1880.-Deed whereby Dame M. S. Forsyth conveyed to George
Murray and Mona M. Lesser four-twelfths of the Island of Anticosti.

16th March, 1881.-Deed whereby the Anticosti Company conveyed to George
Bury two-twelfths of the Island of Anticosti.

10th September, 1884.-The above inentioned George Bury, Patrick Leslie, George
Murray and Mona Lesser, Dame Kate Leslie, and the Anticosti Company, together with
the heirs of Thomas Dunn and the heirs of Peter Stuart, were parties to a forced
licitation of the whole property in a suit intituled Bury vs. Leslie et al brought in the
Superior Court of the province of Quebec for the district of Saguenay.

The Island of Anticosti was on 17th June, 1884, sol i in the above mentioned suit
to Francis William Stockwell, the deed by the prothonotary of the said court being
dated the 10th day of Septemiber, 1884.

27th August, 1884.-Agreement made between F. W. Stockwell, T G. Stockwell,
and the Right Honourable Charles Mark Allanson Winn, Baron Headley, whereby the
parties thereto declared, under the terms therein contained, that one undivided third of
the Island of Anticosti should be acquired for the account of the said Baron Headley,
and two-thirds thereof for the said F. W. Stockwell.

31st October, 1884.-Deed whereby F. W. Stockwell conveyed to T. G. Stockwell
one undivided third of the Island of Anticosti.

16tht January, 1885.-Agreement made between Baron Headley, F. W. Stockwell,
and T. G. Stockwell, whereby the undivided one-third interest in the Island of Anticosti
acquired by Baron Headley under the agreement of 27th August, 1884, was conveyed
to T. G. Stockwell.

3rd July, 1888.-Deed whereby F. W. Stockwell and T. G. Stockwell conveyed to
the Governor and Company of the Island of Anticosti, Limited, of numbers 9 and 10
l'ancras Lane, in the city of London, England, the Island of Anticosti.

16th December, 1895.-Deed whereby, in consideration of payment by the vendee
of the sun of twenty-five thousand pounds sterling, H. Kendrick, liquidator of the
Governor and Company of the Island of Anticosti, Limited, conveyed the Island of
Anticosti to Henri Emile Anatole Menier, of number 8 rue Alfred de Vigny, Paris, in
the Republic of France.
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It thus appears that M. Menier did not acquire the Island of Anticosti from the
government of the province of Quebec, as stated in the article in the English press to which
the Right Honourable the Secretary of State for the Colonies requested His Excellency
the Governor General to draw the attention of his ministers. The Island of Anticosti
bas not formed part of the public domain of Canada or of any province thereof, since it
was granted in 1680 by the King of France to Sieur Louis Jolliet, to which grant the
present owner, M. Menier, traces his title.

2. M. Menier has never, either by his own acts or by those of his agents, alleged or
contended that the Island of Anticosti, was in any respect exempt from the inherent
sovereign power which is possessed by the Crown over all land within Her Majesty's
dominions. No claim bas been made by the proprietor or in his behalf to any immunity
from the provincial and federal laws which are applicable to him as well as to any other
proprietor in the province of Quebec. It is not considered that the future utility of the
Island of Anticosti, either as a position of strategic importance or as a base for cable
expansion, is, by reason of its possession by its present proprietor, threatened or im-
perilled to any greater extent than it bas been at any time during the last two hundred
years. The island, being private property, is at all times liable to expropriation for
military or such other public purposes as to Her Majesty's government inay seem
advisable.

3. The present proprietor of the Island of Anticosti bas not fortified it with field
guns or with artillery of any description, nor bas he assumed, under any pretence what-
ever, to prohibit fishing within a limit of three miles of the coast. He bas administered
it under the laws of the land, as a private estate and placed it under the management of
an agent, Mr. Oscar Commettant, to whom he bas given the rather pompous though
absolutely inoffensive title of Governor of the Island.

4. The present proprietor of the Island of Anticosti promulgated some years ago a
number of rules to be observed by his tenants on the island. These regulations have
apparently been beneficial to the inhabitants as a whole. The fishery inspector for the
province of Quebec, in the course of his annual official report to the Department of
Marine and Fisheries, comments at some length upon the great improvement wrought in
the island and in the condition of the settlers thereon since it passed into the hands of
its present owner. Many buildings have been erected and others are in the course of
construction. More'land has been put under cultivation. I ncreased means of com-
munication with the mainland have lessened the price of the necessities of life. Fish
and game have been preserved from wholesale destruction.

It appears, however, that some of the regulations regarding the killing of wild
animals, the cutting of wood and other matters, were repeatedly violated and ignored
by a group of settlers at Fox Bay. The proprietor, therefore, applied through his agent
in J une, 1898, to the provincial government of the province of Quebec for the assis-
tance of four constables, in order that, without any breach of the pace, the ten offend-
ing families might be formally served with notices to quit, and might be removed from
the island, to whatever point on the mainland thev might designate. The constables,
who were conveyed to the island at M. Menier's expense, were ordered to act in the
same manner as was usual when they were sent to protect the rights of proprietors in
any other part of the province. Soon after the arrival of the constables at Anticosti,
the settlers of their own free will, accepted certain terms proposed by the agent of the
proprietor, and an agreement embodying these propositions was accordingly signed by
the interested parties. The constables, therefore, returned to Quebec. It appears,
however, that the agreement referred to, did not effect a satisfactory settlement of the
difficulties between M. Menier and the Fox Bay settlers. The proprietor, therefore, bas
taken the ordinary proceedings necessary in order to obtain a judicial finding determin-
ing his rights. These actions, which are now pending in the Superior Court of the pro-
vince of Quebec, in the district of Saguenay, are contested by the Fox Bay settlers.
These settlers are poor, and the governinent of the province of Quebec. in order to have
full justice done to them, has retained counsel to act in their behalf, and has undertaken
to bear all costs of the defence.

Respectfully submitted,
C. FITZPATRICK,

7 Solicitor General.
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No. 6.

(Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Minto.)

DoWNING STREET, 25th March, 1899.
Governor General,

&c., &c., &c.

My LoRD,-I have the honour to transmit to you, to be laid before your ministers,
copy of a letter from the Rev. E. J. Stobo, of Quebec, respecting the state of affairs on
the Island of Anticosti.

2. I trust that, as public attention is being attracted to this matter, no long time
will elapse before your ministers are able to furnish me with the report which I requested
in my despatch No. 253 of the 12th August last, and again in my despatch No.i3O of
the 23rd ult.

I have, &c.,

J. CHAMBERLAIN.

No. 7.

QUEBEC EVANGELICAL ALLIANCE,
QUEBEC, 3rd March, 1899.

The Right Hon. J. CHAMBERLAIN,
Colonial Secretary, London, G.B.

HoN. and DEAR SIR,-Pardon me for addressing a few lines to you anent the Island
of Anticosti in Gulf of St. Lawrence, province of Quebec, Canada. There is at Fox Bay,
the eastern end of the island, a small Protestant community numbering betweeen sixty
and seventy persons, most of whom have been born on the island, the heads of families
having settled there in 1872 at the invitation of the " Forsyth Trading Company."

These have been in undisturbed possession for twenty-seven years, and now they
are to be expelled from the island, as it has by purchase passed into the hands of M.
Menier of Paris, France. He claims sovereign rights as to who shall reside upon the
island, land upon or leave the island, and absolute control of all trade and fishery rights.
We are contesting his right to expel these people, whose moral probity cannot be dis-
puted, and who are simple-minded, God-fearing persons, and British subjects. The island
is claimed by three parties beside Menier, a Paris family of the naine Bissot, the heirs
of Major General McLean, and a Mr. Forsyth, of the Forsyth Company. M. Menier
has bought fron a party who has a sheriff's title, but he has got the provincial govern-
ment to renounce all claim, and is in treaty to buy the province's fishery rights, which
by a decision of the Privy Council has just come into its possession.

It is a serious matter to haie an alien in possession of such a strategical position
right in the mouth of the river, wholly settled by those who submit to an absolutism.

We mean to make him prove his title, and, if lie can do so, then to demand com-
pensation for these poor people who are being evicted.

As secretary of the " Alliance " these poor people have applied to me for aid and
advice, and I have been appointed treasurer of the legal defence fund. Their case is now
in court, and will be decided at the opening of navigation.

The island is one hundred and twenty miles long, and on the average ten [miles
broad, and up to three years ago the Fox Bay settlers were about the only residents. If
the present claimant to proprietorship did not act so arbitrarily no one would make
trouble, but he governs not as a British Canadian, but as a Frenchman, and an
Ultramontane at that.
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The island's occupation and settlement is worth watching, and the case of these
poor British subjects worthy of ail the aid that can be rendered them.

I expect to be in London on the 22nd or 23rd of April, and anything addressed to
the care of " British and Foreign Bible Society " 146 Queen Victoria street, London, or
"Evangelical Alliance, " 7 Adam street, Strand, London, will find me.

As one deeply interested in the case, I am at your service to explain it, if necessary.
Our lawyer here is W. 11. Davidson, B.A., advocate, Quebec, Que., who is ready to

supply you with all the facts, and the blunders already made by the provincial govern-
ment.

I am, &c.,

Secretary of Auxilliary of British and Foreign Bible Society, and
Evangelical Alliance, and Treasurer of Anticosti Settlers'
Defence Fund, 1 Wolfe St., Quebec, Que.

EDWARD J. STOBO,
Minister of the Gospel.
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RETURN
(48)

To an ADDRESS of the HousE oF COMMONS, dated the 18th April, 1898, for
copies of all Orders in Council, menorials, correspondence and every
other document in connection with the granting of 150,000 acres of
public lands in favour of the University of Manitoba, and the transfer
and patenting of- the same to the University.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

CERTIFIED Copy of a Report of a Comnittee of the Ionourable the Privy Council,
approved by his Excellency the Governor General in Council, on the 15th June,
1887.

On a memorandum dated 6th June, 1887, from the Minister of th, Interior, submit-
ting the annexed regulations adopted by the University of Manitoba relating to the
allotment of land to be selected by the Dominion Government and granted as an
endowment to that university, under the provisions of chapter 47 of the Revised
Statutes of Canada, by the 5th section of which it is provided that the grant of land to
the University of Manitoba shall be held in trust for its maintenance as a university
capable of giving proper training in the higher branches of education upon some basis
or scheme to be framed by the university and approved by the Dominion Government.

The minister having examined the regulations now submitted recommends that
they be approved.

The Committee submit the same for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,

To the Honourable 
Clerk, Privy Council.

The Minister of the Interior.

EXTRACT /rom a Report oj the Land Grant Committee at an adjourned meeting of the
University Council on the 28th January, 1887.

REGULATIONS UNDER 48 AND 49 VIcTORIA, CHAPTER 50, DoMINIoN STATUTES.

1. After the selection and granting of the lands made under the provisions of
statute 2 of chapter 50, 48 and 49 Victoria, the University of Manitoba shall cause to
be kept one or more land registers which shall contain a description of the said lands,
the quality and character thereof so far as the same can be ascertained from the field
notes of the survey and the official maps of the portions of the country where such
lands are situate. The land register shall also contain a complete record of all the
particulars respecting the management, sales and disposition of such lands.

NOTE.-Only part of this Return bas been printed- the part desired by A. A. C. LaRivière, Esq.,
member for Provencher, Manitoba.

48-1
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2. The said lande shall be held upon the following trusts
The university may at any time, in such manner and on such terms as they may

deem proper, sell and dispose of or lease the said lands or any portion thereof and
receive the proceeds and income resulting therefrom.

3. The university may apply such portion of said proceeds and income as may be
considered proper to pay the expenses of the care and management of the said lands
and of the moneys arising therefrom:

" To purchase a suitable site and to erect thereon university buildings and to
furnish the same.

" To invest such portion of said proceeds as may not be immediately required for
any of the objecte aforesaid in such securities and on such terms as the council may
deem proper and safe for the purpose of deriving an income therefrom, and the council
may apply the income arising out of the leasing of said lands and from such invest.
ments, or any portion thereof, to any of the purposes aforesaid or to any other purpose
comtemplated by the said Act, chapter 50, 48 and 49 Victoria."

4. The management of such lands and the proceeds or income arising therefrom
shall be under the control of the council of the university, which may appoint all such
committees or persons as may be considered necessary for the purpose thereof, and may
pay any such persons so appointed if deemed requisite.

J. ROYAL,
Vice Chancellor of the University of Manitoba.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTÂWA, 3rd, January, 1889.

R. SEDGEWIcK, Esq., Q.C.,
Depr'ty Minister of Justice,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I am directed to inclose herewith an Order in Council bearing date the 15th
June, 1887, approving the regulations made by the council of the Manitoba University
for the disposal of the land grant to the university, and to request that you will
furnish this department with a draft forn of the patent to be issued for the endowment
lands.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

H. KINLOCH,
For the Assistant Secretary.

WINNIPEG, MAN., 12th January, 1889.
The SECRETARY,

Department of the Interior,
Ottawa.

SI,-In answer to your letter of the 3rd inst., Ref. No. 101818, addressed to J.
A. M. Aikins, EFq., and which has been handed to me for reply, I am directed by the
Lands Committee of the University of Manitoba to say that the university is a body
corporate under " The University Act of Manitoba " of the consolidated statutes of
Manitoba, 1880, cap. 63. I am further directed to say that the committee have by
resolution declared in favour of having one patent issued " for each of the blocks selected
in the second registration district."

I am, sir,
Yours truly,

FRED. C. WADE,
Secretary.
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTÂA, 15th March, 1889.

ROBERT SEDGEWICK, Esq., Q.C.,
Deputy Minister of Justice,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I am directed to draw your attention to the letter which was addressed to
you on the 3rd J anuary last, inclosing a copy of the Order in Council of the 15th June,
1887, approving of the regulations made by the council of the Manitoba University
with regard to the land grant to that institution, and to request you to furnish the
draft patent you were in that letter asked to prepare, as the Minister of the Interior is
very anxious that the patents be issued at once for the lands which the authorities of
the university have selected.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

P. B. DOUGLAS,
Assistant Secretary.

COMMISSIONER's OFFICE,
W[NNIPEG, 1lth March, 1889.

A. M. BURGESS, Esq.,
Deputy Minister of the Interior,

Ottawa.

DEAR MR. BURGE,-On my return to Winnipeg I find a letter dated the 7th
instant, from the registrar of the council of the University of Manitoba, advising me of
the resolution of council adopted on the 6th instant to the following effect:-

" Whereas it appears from the report of the secretary of the land committee that
but 172,520 acres remain at the disposal of the university from which to select 108,000
acres of land, if the lands recommended for patent by the land office should be accepted,
the Department of the Interior be asked to place 100,000 acres more at the disposal of
the university in the districts which have not already been examined by the university
land inspectors.

" Resolved that the land committee be authorized to have the land recommended
by the government to be patented to the university inspected before patent issue, in
order that any not of the quality required may be rejected, and that the Dominion
government be requested to allow them this privilege."

With regard to the first resolution, at present we have under reservation in addition
to the lands already recommended for patent in favour of the university, an area of
about 200,000 acres from which the university authoritiet are to be allowed to select the
remainder of its grant of 100,000 acres. It seems to me, therefore, and Mr. Pearce
agrees with me, that until the examiners have fully reported upon the lands now
reserved, it would be unwise to make any further reservation. I may say that we
have had several complaints already from settlers desiring to obtain entry for lands
held under reservation for this purpose.

I do not know, however, what assurance the minister may have given the delega-
tion representing the university that he met here at the Queen's hotel last year. It is
possible that he may be inclined to order the further reservation asked for.

With regard to the lands which I have already recommended for patent, I may
say that the list of vacant lands in the Winnipeg district was recommende 1 in toto
without being first inspected or accepted by the university authorities. This land is
icertainly of fair average quality, and on this account I would refuse the application
which the university people now make to be allowed to reject any of them which in
their opinion are not of that quality. I am quite sure that among the lands they are
now rejecting are many quarter sections of fair average quality, and that the lands that
they have accepted are above the average, that is of the lands remaining at the disposal
of the Crown at the time of the passage of the Act providing for the university grant.

3
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I wish very much thLt you will discuss this matter with the minister as early as
possible, and advise me of the result.

It seems to me that under the statute the right of selection rests with the depart-
ment, and not with the university, and that under direction of the minister it is coin-
petent for me or for any one whom he nay appoint for the purpose to select without
consulting the university authorities such lands as in the opinion of such officer of the
department may be deemed suitable.

Yours very truly,
H. H. SMITFH.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OTTAWA, 4th July, 1889.

The Secretary,
Department of the Interior,

Ottawa.

SIR,-Referring to Mr. Kinloch's letter of the 3rd January last, with which was
inclosed a copy of an Order in Council approving the regulations made by the council
of the University of Manitoba, with reference to the land grant to the university, and
in which I am asked to furnish a draft form of the patent which should be issued for
the endowninent lands.

I have now the honour to inclose a draft patent which has been prepared in the
department and is approved in point of form by the Minister of Justice.

The Minister of Justice directs me to state that lie thinks it would be well to send
this draft to the university authorities for their approval or for such observations as
they may think proper to make with reference to it.

It is believed that the draft embodies in effect the provisions which the university
council desires that the patent should contain, though it does not conforn precisely to
the language of the regulations passed by the council. It also contains certain other
provisions considered to be necessary or expedient, and it is right that the council
should have an opportunity of seeing, and, if they so desire, discussing these.

The form of patent as finally settled had better, the minister thinks, be submitted
to the Governor in Council for approval.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

ROBERT SEDGEWICK,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

CANADA.
VICTORIA, &c.

To all to whom these presents shall cone,
GREETING:

Whereas, in and by chapter 47 of the Revised Statutes of Canada intituled "An
Act respecting the Province of Manitoba," it is amongst other things in effect enacted
that an allotment of land not exceeding one hundred and fifty thousand acres of fair
average quality shall be selected by the Dominion Government and granted as an
endowment to the University of Manitoba, a body corporate and politic under the pro-
visions of the Consolidated Statutes of Manitoba, chapter sixty-three, for its mainten-
ance as a university capable of giving proper training in the higher branches of
education, and to be held in trust for theit purpose upon some basis or scheme to be
framed by the university and approved by the Dominion Government.

And whereas, the lands herein after mentioned and described the saine being
Dominion lands within the meaning of the Dominion Lands Act, have been selected by
the government of our Dominion of Canada to be granted to the said "The University
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of Manitoba " (hereinafter sometimes called the said university), in pursuance firstly
above mentioned.

And whereas, the said university has framed a basis and scheme under which it is
proposed that the said lands shall be held by the said university upon certain trusts
which are hereinafter embodied and set forth.

And whereas, the said basis or scheme bas been duly approved hy our Governor
General in Council who bas authorized the issue of letters patent granting the said lands
to the said university, upon and subject to the trusts and conditions hereinafter expressed
and contained.

Now know ye that we do by these presents, grant, convey and assign unto the said,
The University of Manitoba, their successors and assigns

To have and to hold the said lands unto the said, The University of Manitoba,
their successors and assigns for ever, for the purposes hereinafter mentioned, and upon
and subject to the trusts and conditions hereinafter expressed and contained saving
and

Provided always that the said lands are to be held by the said university, their
successors and assigns for the purposes hereinafter mentioned, and upon and subject to
the following trusts and purposes, that is to say -

1. That the said university, their successors and assigns, may at any time and in
such manner and on such terms as they may deem proper, sell and dispose of or lease
the said lands or any portion thereof, and receive the proceeds or incomeresulting
therefrom.

2. That the said university, their successors and assigns, may apply such portion
of the said proceeds and income as may be considered proper to pay the expenses of the
care and management of the said lands and of the moneys arising therefrom ; to pur-
chasc a suitable site or suitable sites for, and to erect thereon university buildings, and
to furnish such buildings, and shall invest such portion of the said proceeds as may not
be immediately required for any of the said objects in such securities and on such terms
as the said university, their successors or assigns inay deem proper and safe for the pur-
pose of deriving an income therefrom, and may apply the income arising out of the
leasing of the said lands, and from such investments or any portion thereof, to any of
the purposes aforesaid or to any purpose contemplated or provided for by the Act of
incorporation of the said university; and may also from time to time with the express
sanction and approval of our Governor in Council, but not otherwise, apply any part of
such income to any other purpose connected with the work of the university or the
objects for which it was created.

Provided always that if at any time hereafter the said university shall be dissolved
or shall cease to exercise its functions as a university, or if at any time hereafter the
said university shall cease to be constituted as provided by its present Act of incorpora-
tion, chapter sixty-three of the Consolidated Statutes of Manitoba, then and in such
case any and all of the said land which may remain unsold shall revert to and become
revested in us and our successors as our and their former estate therein; and all funds
in the hands of the said university, their successors and assigns, the proceeds of or
which in any way result from the said lease or other disposal of the said lands shall be
immediately paid over to us our successors or assigns.

Provided further, and it is hereby made an express condition of this grant that at
all times hereafter the said university, their successors and assigns, shall keep or cause
to be kept such separate and distinct accounts of the proceeds and income resulting
from the sale, lease or other disposal of and of all moneys in any way derived from or
arising out of the said lands as shall clearly and readily disclose the amount and nature
thereof as well as all dealings therewith, and also that all books, vouchers and papers
containing or in any way relating to such account shall at all times be open to the
inspection of any person or persons appointed by our Governor in Council to inspect
the same.

(Great Seal.)
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAwA, 30th July, 1889.

F. C. WADE, Esq.,
Secretary Land Committee of University of Manitoba,

Winnipeg, Manitoba.

SIR,-I am directed to transmit herewith a copy of a draft form of patent which
has been furnished by the law officers of the Crown as the form to be used in granting
to the Manitoba University the lands which have been allotted to them ; and to request
you to submit it for the approval of the authorities of the university, and to return it
to this department, under cover of a letter containing any suggestions or observations
which they may wish to make in regard to it.

I am, sir,
Your obedient servant,

H. KINLOCH,
for the Assistant Secretary.

UNIVERSITY OF MANITOBA,
LAND COMMITTEE,

WINNIPEG, l6th July, 1889.
Hon. EDGAR DEWDNEY,

Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa.

HON. SIR,-I have been requested by the land committee to write your depart-
ment and ascertain what progress is being made in the issuing to the university of
patents for the lands selected. It is of supreme importance to the university that
these patents should be finally issued before the next meeting of the council in Septem-
ber. The reasons for this can be briefly stated.

1. The provincial government will not assist the institution until it is decided to
remodel it and make it a teaching body, and

2. Until the lands are finally patented to the university, the friends of the institu-
tion do not care to urge any reform if so doing might have the effect of stirring up any
section to attempt to interfere with or divide the land grant.

3. The legislature meets in the opening winter months and are extremely anxious
to be then in a position to adopt our new programme and obtain the very substantial
assistance that will then, and not till then, be given us.

While urging on behalf of the university the speedy patenting of the lands, I
would like to add that I do not refer to those in Winnipeg district. Our examiners are
now at work inspecting the latter, and have found a large portion of them to consist of
pure bog lands, useless for any purpose. I refer at present to the lands in the other
districts. In about ten days we will be able to tell exactly what lands are useless and
what are worth accepting in the Winnipeg district as well.

I beg to remain, honourable sir,
Yours respectfully,

FRED. C. WADE,
Secretary Land Committee.

A. 1899'
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OFFICE OF THE MINIsTER OF JUSTICE,
OTTAWA, 13th September, 1889.

The Honourable E. DEWDNEY,
Minister of the Interior.

My DEAR MR. DEwDNEY,-Some time ago I had some correspondence with Arch-
bishop Taché on the subject of conditions which he wishes attached to the grant of land
to the University of Manitoba. I answered His Grace that I could not cause any
condition to be inserted in the grant, of a special character, without instructions from
your department, or from council, and that I could not avail myself of His Grace's
letter to explain his wishes in that regard, as the letters were marked " private."

He has accordingly written me the inclosed letter dated August, 1889, supposing
probably that he should write to me in continuation of the correspondence which we
already had. As the matter is, however, one for you, I send you the letter together
with a copy of the draft, which has already been suggested, to your department.

Yours faithfully,

JOHN THOMPSON.

ST. BONIFACE, August, 1889.
The Honourable

Sir JOHN THOMPsON, K.C.M.G., &c.,
Minister of Justice,

Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-As president of St. Boniface College and as one of the representatives
of the said college in the council of the University of Manitoba, I beg to submit to you
a few considerations in regard to the grant of Dominion lands made to the university
under 48, 49 Vie., ch. 50, sec. 2, of the statutes of the Dominion.

A brief sketch of the history of the university, of its foundation and working may
assist in explaining the true position our college is placed in, and in better showing my
views on the question at issue.

The university was created by an Act of the provincial legislature passed in 1877,
and incorporated in the consolidated statutes of Manitoba, ch. 63. Sec. 28 of that Act
declares that the incorporated colleges in connection with the university shall be the
college of St. Boniface, the St. John college and the Manitoba college, and the other
incorporated colleges which may, from time to time, he affiliated by the Lieutenant
Governor in Council.

The St. Boniface college is a Roman Catholie institution; the St. John college is
connected with the Church of England, and the Manitoba college with the Presbyterian
Church.

The above three colleges were in 1877, and remained the only ones conriected with
the university until 1886, when the Medical college was affiliated, and last year, 1888,
the Wesley college was also affiliated.

In the preamble of the Act, establishing the university, it is stated that the
University is to be established on the model of the university oj London. This was
inserted advisedly, as it was then intended and clearly understood that the university
was to be an examininig body and not a teaching body.

Sec. 11 of the said Act enacts that there shall be no professorship or teachership
at present in the university, the words at present in the section may seem to indicate an
intention to make the university in the course of time, a teaching body. A few obser-
vations may be made in regard to these words.

The bill creating the university, as framed by the Hon. Mr. Royal, then Attorney
General of the province, and as discussed and adopted at meetings of the representa-
tives of the three colleges, intended at the time to be connected with the university,
and as presented to the House, had not in it those two words. The Hon. Mr. Royal,
who had charge of the bill, who put it through the House, and supervised it in com-
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mittee of the whole, never saw those words, nor heard them mentioned. When the
statute-book appeared, we were greatly surprised to see the said words in it. They
must have been added in committee of the whole without the knowledge of the promoter
of the bill. But the bill had become law. I may add, however, that these words were
never found in the French copy of the statutes.

I enter into these details to show you that we never were consenting parties to
have those words in the Act. It was well known at the time that we, the representa-
tives of St. Boniface college and of the Catholic portion of the university in the organi-
zation, we could not have joined the other colleges in a teaching university.

The following sentence in the endowment clause 48, 49 Victoria, chapter 50,
section 2, " as an endowment to the University of Manitoba for its maintenance as a
university capable of giving proper training in the higher branches of education"
might perhaps, at first sight, be interpreted to apply to a teaching university ; but I
do not think such was the meaning of the programme or curriculum prepared by the
council for the yearly examination on the various subjects, necessitated on the part of
the affiliated colleges, who, in fact, have so far constituted the university, the obligation
of giving the training required by the university. And in this, the university may be
considered as giving proper training in the higher branches of education, within the
provisions of the Act.

During the last three or four years, the question of making the university a
teaching body by founding chairs in connection therewith, has been submitted and
urged in the university council by some representatives of the other colleges. We
made known to them our insuperable objection to such proposed scheme, as it was
impossible for us to send the pupils of our colleges to be taught by professors over
whose teaching we had no control. They understood our reasons; the discussion was
conducted in a good spirit on both sides, without any harsh words being uttered. They
regretted the difficulty of the situation as to St. Boniface college, but they repeatedly
said that it was for them a very important question; that the change would have to
came, and that, sooner or later, the legislature would have to be applied to to legislate
on the matter.

Now really, we anticipate that the scheme may be forced on us before very long,
when we might be compelled to modify, or perhaps sever our connection with the
university. We have no idea what form the modification may take or on what terms or
conditions the severance may be effected. Whether we shall be permitted to remain in
some shape or other, as an independent and separate branch of the university in regard
to the teaching of our pupils, or otherwise, we cannot foresee. At all events I think
that, as the oldest college in the country, as one of the three colleges with which the
university was founded, as one of the colleges which took a very active part in the organ-
ization, in framing, as they now exist, its statutes, ordinances, regulations and curriculum,
and as being stili what may be called a component part of the university, it is not
unreasonable to expect, in the event of the modification of the university from its
original plan, the St. Boniface college representing all the Roman Catholic population
of the country in the matter of superior education, should not be forced into an
undesirable position in the university, without some means being derived to protect its
right and reasonable claims. I do not wish to ask for any special privilege or favour
for the St. Boniface college. But what I desire and that I would suggest is that, in
the patent granting to the university the lands allowed by the statutes, some clause or
words may be inserted affording a protection to any particular college connected with
the university and constituting a part thereof, whose rights and position may be
affected or interfered with, in the event of the said university altering its constitution
or modifying its original plan. The protection asked to-day by the St. Boniface
college will be for the benefit of any of the colleges finding themselves in parallel
circumstances.

In a few months or a few years, some one of the other colleges may have interests
conflicting with the majority and claim the benefit of the same protecting clause. This
would also act as a warning to the university as a body that the right and just claims of
any of its constituent parts should not be infringed upon; and it would tend to pro-
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mote and preserve between the different denominational colleges, the harmony and
good relations which have so far been prevailing.

Pardon me, Dear Sir, for trespassing so much upon your valuable time. The
important interest at stake must be my justification. I have reason to hope that your
honourable colleagues in the government, when you will place the matter before
them, will see the force and urgency of my request and that the protection asked for
will be secured without difficulty.

I have the honour to be, dear sir,
Your most obedient servant

ALEX.,
Arch. of St. Boniface, O.M.I.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAWA, 14th October, 1889.

F. C. WADE, Esq.,
Secretary, Land Committee, University of Manitoba,

Winnipeg, Manitoba.
DEAR SIR,-I am directed by the Minister of the Interior, to send you the inclosed

copy af a letter from His Grace the Archbishop of St. Boniface to the Minister of
Justice, with reference to the grant of lands to the University of Manitoba, under 48-49
Victoria, chapter 50, for the information of the governing body of the university and
for any comments thereon which they may wish to offer.

I have the honour, dear sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN R. HALL,
Acting Deputy Minister of the Interior.

WINNIPEG, MANITOBA, 19th October, 1889.
Hon. EDGAR DEWDNEY,

Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa.

HONOURABLE SIR,-Re patent to University Lands. Your letter of the 14th
instant, inclosing a letter from lis Grace the Archbishop of St. Boniface to the Min-
ister of Justice with reference to the grant of lands to the University of Manitoba,
under 48-49 Victoria, chapter 50, for the information of the university council and
for any comments thereon which they may wish to offer, was duly received and will be
placed before the university council in a few days.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

FRED. C. WADE,
Secretary Lands Committee.

UNIVERSITY MANITOBA,
WINNIPEG, 6th December, 1889.

To the Honourable
The Minister of the Interior,

Ottawa.
HONOURABLE SIR,-I have the honour of transmitting to you for information, the

enclosed documents re lands patent to the university, by the direction of the council
of the said university.

I have the honour to be, hon. sir,
Your obedient servant,

T. A. BERNIER,
Registrar.
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EXTRACTS fron the minutes of the proceeding8 of a meeting of the Council of the-
University of Manitoba, held on the 22nd day of November, A.D. 1889.

Mr. Wade then moved, seconded by Mr. W. R. Mulock, that:
Whereas the preamble to the bill to incorporate and establish the University of

Manitoba when introduced to the legislative assembly of the province of Manitoba
contained the statement that the said university was to be established on the model of
the University of London.

Whereas the words "at present " were not in paragraph five of the said bill as so
introduced.

Whereas the said bill was referred to a committee of the whole House and while
before the said committee the said bill was amended by striking out of the preamble
the words "on the model of the University of London " and by changing clause 5 in
the original bill to clause 10, and by inserting in the said clause after the words
" teaching " the words "at present."

Whereas the Hon. Mr. Royal is reported to have stated when moving the second
reading of the said bill that the bill provided that thereafter chairs might be attached
and endowed and the university might become a teaching body as well as a university
for granting degrees and for graduating purposes.

Whereas the said bill as so amended as aforesaid was passed by the said legislature
and was in its said amended form assented to by His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor.

Whereas His Grace the Archbishop of St. Boniface has written under date of
August, 1889, the letter to the Minister of Justice which has been now read, and in
such he points out that "in the preamble of the Act establishing the university it is
stated that the university is to be established on the model of the university of London,
and that this was inserted advisedly as it was then intended and clearly understood
that the university was to be an examining body and not a teaching body," and in
which letter he also further points out that the " Hon. Mr. Royal, who had charge of
the bill also put it through the House and supervised it in committee of the whole,
never saw the words ' at present' (also referred to) nor heard them mentioned."

Whereas His Grace in the said letter further states "that I do not wish to ask
for any special privilege or favour for St. Boniface College, but what I desire and
what I would suggest is that in the patent granting to the university the lands allowed
by the statute soine clause or word may be inserted affording a protection to any
particular college connected with the university and constituting a part thereof whose
rights and position may be affected or interfered with in the event of the said
university altering its constitution or mo:ifying its original plan."

Whereas the Hon. the Minister of the Interior has sent to this council a copy of
the said letter of His Grace and has asked them for any comments thereon which they'
may wish to offer.

Whereas the draft patent for the said lands submitted for the approval of the said
council by the Hon. the Minister of the Interior contains a clause to the following
effect that "if at any time hereafter the said university shall cease to be constituted as
provided by its present Act of incorporation, chapter 63 of the consolidated statutes of
Manitoba."

Now it is resolved that this council having compared the statement of the Arch-
bishop of St. Boniface relating to the original constitution of the Act establishing and
incorporating the university of the province of Manitoba with the certificate of the
clerk of the legislative assembly and custodian of the statutes of the province of
Manitoba and the speech of the Hon. Mr. Royal, cannot but come to the conclusion
that the Act of the legislature incorporating the university of Manitoba contemplated
the establishment of chairs and professorships in said university in the course of time,
and did not provide that it should be founded on the model of the university of
London, and that this fact appears to have been known to the Hon. Joseph Royal, and
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are nominated by him on the floor of the legislature of this province at the time * *

the main motion was then put and carried on the following division:

YEAS:

Rev. Prof. Hart, Mr. Goggin, Mr. Mulock, Mr. Wade, Arch. Fortin, Rev. Dr.
Sparling, Prof. Kenrick, Hon. Ciiief Justice Taylor, Dr. Gray, Dr. Corbett, Rev.
McBaird, Prof. Laird, Mr. Pitblado, Dr. Jones, Mr. Aikens, Rev. Canon O'Meara, Rev.
Dr. Bryce.-17.

NAYs:

The Vice Chancellor, Hon. Mr. Prendergast, Rev. Mr. Cherrier, Rev. Father
Lory, Rev. M. Clouthier, Mr. Brophy and T. A. Bernier.-7.

** * * * * *

Mr. Mulock then moved, seconded by Mr. Wade:-
That this council do submit that the letters-patent from the Crown for the lands

granted by the Dominion government should be issued without any restrictive con-
ditions.

This motion having been put it was carried on the following division :-

YEAs :

The Chancellor, Rev. Prof. Hart, Mr. Goggin, Canon Coombs, Mr. Mulock, Mr.
Wade, Canon Matheson, Arch. Fortin, Rev. Dr. Sparling, Prof. Henrick, Rev. Dr.
King, Rev. A. B. Baird, Hon. Chief Justice Taylor, Dr. Grey, Prof. Laird, Mr. Pitblado,
Dr. Jones, Canon O'Meara, Rev. Dr. Bryce, Dean Grisdale.-20.

NAYs:

The Vice Chancellor, Rev. Father Lory, Rev. Mr. Cherrie, Rev. Mr. Clouthier,
Hon. Mr. Prendergast, Mr. Brophy, and T. A. Bernier.-7.

(Certified to be a true copy.)
T. A. BERNIER,

Registrar.

ST. BoNIFACE, 28th December, 1889.
J. R. HALL, Esq.,

Secretary,
Department of the Interior.

SIR,-I herewith inclose for the information of the Honourable the Minister of
the Interior, a copy of letters I address to the Honourable the Minister of Justice.

I remain, sir,
Your obedient servant,

ALEX., O. M. I.,
Arch. of St. Boniface.

ST. BONIFACE, 27th Deceniber, 1889.
Sir J. THOMPSON,

Minister of Justice.

HONOURABLS SIR,-Very likely you have received a copy of the resolutions passed
by the majority of the council of the University of Manitoba with the object of making
it a teaching body; also the objections taken to my letter addressed to you August
last.
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Likely you have also received affidavits purporting to refute my assertions with
regard to the original intent, at the time, of the founders of the university.

To this I reply that I emphatically maintain that the position I took at outset is
exactly the one I mentioned in my letter to you. I myself suggested, that the words
"on the model of the university of London " should be inserted in the preamble and
the act would contain the clause: "There shall be no professorship or other teachership
in the university."

J never knew that the words "at present " had been inserted within the just now
cited clause ; but after it was too late to remedy the insertion.

J would never have consented that the College of St. Boniface should join and
become an integral part of a university in which teaching would be imparted without
any control which could protect the students of our college in their religious belief.

As far as I am concerned, and in the face of the resolution adopted by the majority
of the council (when sickness prevented me from beinig preent), I declare that I have
nothiiig to retract from what I have written to you.

His Lordship the Bishop of Rupert's Land, objects to the sentence of my letter
which says: " The bill was discussed and adopted at the meetings of the representa-
tives of the three colleges." Naturally His Lordship knows better than I, what was
done at St. John's College, and I respectfully accept his version. The opinion I ex-
pressed with regard to this was the result of several conversations I had in 1876 and
1877 with His Honour the then Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba, the Hon. Mr.
Morris. It was he who urged upon me the advisability of joining with the two other
colleges, to secure a university in Manitoba; giving me to understand that the said two
colleges had meetings of their own on the subject. I at first declined the proposition,
my unsurmountable objection being in regard to teaching. His Honour insisted, then
I told him that I was exceedingly anxious to go as far as possible to meet the views and
desires of the other colleges, that having no experience myself in University matters
(there being no university in my native land when I left for the missions), I would
consult and study the whole subject.

I went to Quebec in 1876, with no other object than to coifer with the other bishops
and see what I could do to harmonize my great desire of removing any obstacles to the
university, with the sacred obligations of my position as spiritual guide of my people.
In Quebec, I saw a calendar of the University of London ; I studied the principal fea-
tures of the institution and satisfied myself that I could allow the College of St.
Boniface, to join the desired University of Manitoba, provided that the teaching of our
students would remain entirely under our control. I returned to Manitoba, informed
His Honour of my willingness, insisting that the functions of the university would be
limited to the examining of candidates for degrees and to the granting of such degrees.
The University of Manitoba was created. The new institution received congratulations
from many distinguished personages, it was considered as a marvel of liberality and
good will on the part of all those who had contributed to its establishment. Our dear
young university has already done a great deal of good, and has been a source of
enjoyment to its members. I have no doubt but it would have continued being so, if
the principle of its constitution had been preserved. Unfortunately the equilibrium is
disturbed ; the classical affiliated colleges have lost the security of their autonomy. In
the near future their own teaching inay be disregarded. The council of the university
itself has prepared the loss of its own control; political influences are getting hold of
the result of our work and sacrifices for the twelve last years. Nobody knows what can
be expected within the twelve next months or after.

. In the " whereas " of the resolution, great strength is attached to certain affidavits
with regard to the action of Mr. Royal. Surely the statements of the honourable
gentleman himself concerning his own action in the matter, has more authority than
the statement of others who know less than he does. Therefore I draw your particular
attention to the letter Mr. Royal wrote me on the 30th November last of which I annex
a copy marked " A." The letter speaks for itself and f ully corroborates my own state-
ment.

You may observe in the report of the meeting of the council of the university of
the 23rd November, that a motion of Rev. Dr. Bryce to appoint a committee was
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defeated. That motion would have permitted the committee to ascertain what Mr.
Royal would say of the affidavit alluded to in the resolutions, and myself could have
explained more fully our position, consequently the council, with the help of the new
information, might have arrived at a different conclusion. Unfortunately it was other-
wise decided and the Roman Catholics being the minority in the council could do
nothing but to register their votes against the measure.

It is painful to observe that the liberality of the Canadian government in the
granting of lands is causing unpleasantness among the members of our university.

With profound respect,
I remain your obedient servant,

ALEX.,
Archbishop of St. Boniface.

" A."
MONTREAL, 30th November, 1889.

To His Grace A. TACHE,
Archbishop of St. Boniface,

Manitoba.

My LoRi,-I have just read your Grace's letter to the hon. the Minister of Justice
in the Free Press of the 23rd instant, also Mr. Wade's resolution adopted by the
university Council, and I believe it to be my duty to address Your Grace some remarks
suggested to me by these two documents.

1. When the question of a university for Manitoba was first mentioned to me by
Hon. Mr. Morris, then Lieutenant-Governor, I agreed with him that unless the institu-
tion be made a non-teaching body, it would be impossible to expect to secure the co-oper-
ation of all the colleges in existence; and besides it would be necessary to make the
organic basis sufliciently broad so as to have these colleges feel that at no time their
various interests might be imperilled. Hon. Mr. Morris had been for some time desirous
of laying the-foundations of a university which would serve for a long tine to come
the educational requirements not only of Manitoba, but also of the North-west Territories,
and he was st.rongly of the opinion that in order to carry out this scheme, the university
should be so organized as to offer its members complete and absolute guarantees. I
remember that I consulted Your Grace upon this matter, and I arranged to have
several conversations with His Lordship of Rupert's Land. J made a first draft of the
bill in French and I afterwards submitted the translation in English to the Lieutenant-
Governor, which was slightly modified after some discussion with both Your Grace and
the Bishop of Rupert's Land. I finally introduced the bill in the legislative assembly
during the session of 1877. * * * I cannot now remember whether it was before or
after the introduction of the measure in the assembly that I received the visit of the
Rev. Dr. Bryce and Mr. Biggs on behalf of the Manitoba College and the views of these
gentlemen were submitted to the legislative council. Be that as it may, I am most
positive in stating that, to my knowledge, it was never understood at that time by any
one interested in the passage of the measure that the university was ever to become at
any period of its existence, a teaching body, and in order that no possible misunder-
standing should exist, it was expressly recited in the preamble of the bill that the
projected university was organized on the model of the London University, which is a
degree conferring body, and that alone.

2. How the words " at present " became to be interlineated in the bill, I am at a
loss to know. The principle of the measure, that is the establishment of a purely non-
teaching body, was solemnly affirmed by the assembly when it agreed to the second
reading of the bill, and by the adoption of its preamb!e by the committee of the whole ;
the words "at present " appear to have been added when the measure was committed,
but it is a well known rule that a committee of the whole can only deal with the
details of a bill. Besides this extraordinary feature of the amendnent, I can safely
assert that such was the importance attached to the measure that it seems well nigh
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impossible that such a material modification should have been made unchallenged or
unnoticed by any of those who, in the framing of the bill, had evinced a lively interest.

3. It seems that by the report of the Free Press, I am reported as having stated
upon the motion for the second reading of the University Bill, that the university
might eventually become a teaching body. I have evidently been misrepresented if not
misunderstood by the reporter. I may have mentioned to the House the circumstances
under which the bill had been prepared; I may have told the assembly about the views
held respectively by the three colleges, and the desire expressed by some to provide in
the future for the creation of at least chairs which in their opinion no objection might
be raised to-but the reporter, in making a very condensed indeed summary of my
remarks, certainly got himself mixed up if he reported as mentioned above. I suppose
I need not say here that a parliamentary report, if not official, or if not expressly
approved at the time by the speaker, is no evidence at all, or at least an evidence of a
very lame and questionable nature. As a rule a newspaper gets up its report of tho
debates of a legislature more with a view to advance, further or promote the cause or the
party it supports than to give a full, impartial and correct report of what is said on both
sides. Such an impartial and complete report is only to be found in the Standard,
and yet, who does not know that the reports of the Standard, as carefully made as
money and ability can make them, are not unusually corrected in the House by
members complaining of omissions, mistakes and sometimes grave misrepresentations.
That I have not apparently taken any steps to put myself right on this question of
being made to have said exactly the opposite of the report, will be easily understood
when one bears in mind the amount of work and the multiplicity of cares, which at
the time were the lot of an attorney general and leader of the assembly during a session.

I have the honour to be of Your Grace,
The moet humble servant,

J. ROYAL.

ATTORNEY GENERAL, MANITOBA.
WINNIPEG, MANITOBA, 2nd January, 1890.

The lien. ED)GAR DECWDNEY,
Minister of the Interior,

Ottawa, Ontario.

SIR,-The council of the University of Manitoba have drawn the attention of this
-government to a proposed restriction in the patents of their land grant. I am instrue-
ted by the government to enter a protest against the restriction contained in the fol-
lowing clause in said proposed patent-" Provided always that if at any time hereafter
the said university shall be dissolved or shall cease to exercise its functions as a uni-
versity, or if at any time hereafter the said university shall cease to be constituted as
provided by its present Act of incorporation, Chap. 63 of the Consolidated Statutes of
Manitoba, then and in such case any and all of the said lands which may remain unsold
shall revert to and become re-vested in us and our successors, &c., &c.'

It is the portion of said quoted clause which prohibits a change in the constitution
of the said university, to which I am instructed to object. The grant of 150,000 acres
to the University of Manitoba was part of the settlement made between this govern-
ment and the Dominion government in 1888. We therefore consider that the Domi-
nion government have no right to restrict the powers of this legislature in dealing with
a body like the University of Manitoba, which is entirely the creation of our own legis-
lature. I urze this point strongly as a matter of strict right, and I would also point out
that in the interest of the university it would be a most unfortunate provision ; the
practical effect of such a restriction must be to prevent any change whatever in the
university, no matter how clearly experience might show the necessity of some change.
The draft patent I understand is only a proposed one, and I feel quite sure when your
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government consider our rights in the matter and also the effect it would have upon the
future of the university, you will have no difficulty in striking out the obnoxious clause.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOSEPH MARTIN,
Attorney General.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAwA, 10th January, 1890.

R. SEDGEWICK, Esq., Q.C.,
Deputy Minister of Justice,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to inclose herewith, for the consideration of the Honour-
able the Minister of Justice, a copy of a letter received here from the Honourable
Joseph Martin, Provincial Lands Commissioner for Manitoba, protesting against the
form of patent proposed to be used in conyeying to the University of Manitoba the
lands comprised in their land grant. His Grace the Archbishop of St. Boniface has
sent to the Minister of the Interior a copy of a letter dated the 27th ultimo, which he
has addressed to the Minister of Justice on this subject, and also a copy of a letter from
the Hon. Joseph Royal, inclosed therewith.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. M. BURGESS,
Deputy of the Minister of the Interior.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
O'rrAwÂ, 10th January, 1890.

His Grace
The Right Reverend ARCHBIsHoP TÂCHE,

St. Boniface, Manitoba.
My LoRD,-I have the honour, by direction, to acknowledge the receipt of your

letter of the 28th ultimo, inclosing for the information of the Minister of the Interior a
copy of your letter of the 27th ultimo, addressed to the Minister of Justice, in regard to
the form of patent proposed to be used in conveying to the University of Manitoba the
lands comprised in their land grant. The subject is receiving consideration.

I have the honour to be, my lord,
Your lordship's obedient servant,

LYNDWODE PEREIRA,
For the Secretary.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAwA, 10th June, 1890.

The Hon. JOSEPH MARTIN,
Provincial Lands Commissioner,

Winnipeg, Manitoba.

SIR,-I have the honour, by direction, to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of
the 2nd instant, protesting against the form of patent proposed to be used in conveying
to the University of Manitoba the lands comprised in their land grant; and to say that
the matter is receiving consideration.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

LYNDWODE PEREIRA,
For the Secretary.
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WINNIPEG, MANITOBA, 27th January, 1890.
Hon. EDGAR DEWDNEY,

Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa.

Re University Lands.

DEAR MR. DEWDNFY,-I understand that the Commissioner of Dominion Lands
has forwarded to you a copy of my reply to his lett2r of the 7th instant, inclosing your
ruling limiting the university selection to three sections in a township in those south-
western townships in which a greater number of sections has been selected. That being
the case I can make this communication brief. On behalf of the university, then, I
may say that although when the selection of university lands was first begin last
February, it was with the understanding that only two sections were to be selected in a
township, the sub-committee understood that that basis had long since been departed
from. You will remember that at the interview here in September, for instance, you
spoke of giving us a township in Lake Dauphin country. We all believed that it
having proved impossible to procure anything like our complete grant of fair average
lands at the rate of two sections per township, the government were willing to give us
a block of land to close out the grant. Mr. Ruttan, with whom we have carried on the
work of selection for nearly a year now, admitted to the commissioner in my presence
that he did not understand we were to be limited to two sections per township. Finally
I may say that the department by re-opening the to vnships to the University in which
more than two sections had already been selected made it impossible for the Committee
to believe that it was the intention to confine the selections to two sections in a town-
ship. The townships in which the university is asked to give up lands are 5, 6, 7, 8
in R. 28, and 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 in R. 29. By my letter to the commissioner vou will
see that all these were re-opened to us for purposes of selections after the university
had selected more than two sections in almost every one of them. The university
incurred great expense in examining the lands in all these townships which were
re-opened soon after the interview with you in September here, and after you found it
impossible to grant an allotment in the Dauphin District. Under these circumstances
it would work a great hardship to the university to be deprived of some thirty thou-
sand acres of the only good land it I as been able to obtain besides losing all the expen-
diture incurred in a selection which it was invited hy the government to enter upon in
townships where the limit of two or three sections had already been greatly exceeded.
I am taking steps to have a meeting of the council called at once and can only ask that
you will not allow any of the land selected to be diverted elsewhere in the meantime.

I am yours respectfully,

FRED. C. WADE.

UNIVERSITY OF 1ý1ANITOBA,
WINNIPEG, 18th February, 1890.

To the Honourable
The Minister of the Interior,

Ottawa.

HoN. SIR,-I have the honour to transmit to you the following resolutions which
were adopted by the council of the University of Manitoba at a special meeting held
on the fourteenth day of February, viz:-

1. " The council of the University of Manitoba having had before it the letter of
the Deputy Minister of the Interior, transmitted by Mr. Ruttan, Assistant Secretary
of Dominion Lands Commissioner-disallowing the excess over three sections selected
by this university in any township, would in view of the facts, first :-that the selec-
tion of the excess which it is proposed to disallow, was made in the townships affected
with the knowledge of the Dominion Lands Commission at Winnipeg; second :-that

A. 1899
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large expense has been incurred in connection therewith ; and ti ird :-that great diffi-
culty has been experienced in the past in completing the selection, that still greater
may be anticipated in the future in the event of the disallowance being pressed to the
extent proposed, most earnestly urge in the interest of an early and satisfactory settle-
ment of the land grant, that the selection made in these circumstances and with such
cost, should be allowed to the extent of at least five sections in these townships."

2. " Resolved that in view of the approaching summer and the danger that the
university wouid incur by dealing with the lands allotted to it by the Dominion gov-
ernment before said lands are patented to the university, the university council
desires to urge upon the Dominion government the necessity of issuing to the Univer-
ty at the earliest possible moment patents for al] the lands already selected by the
university."

I have the honour to be, hon. sir,
Your most obedient servant,

T. A. BERNIER, Registrair.

WINNIPEG, MAN., 22nd July, 1891.
Hon. EDGAR DEWDNEY,

Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa.

Re University Lands.

SIR,-At a mass meeting of the graduates of Manitoba University held in the city
hall council chamber on the 3rd June last, at which Mr. D. J. Goggen was Chairman,
the following resolution was adopted;

Moved by J. J. Huggard, seconded by Dr. Ferguson, and resolved.
"It is desirable that the university should become a teaching body and that as

se-a as possible."
Moved by F. C. Wade, seconded by Isaac Pitblado, and resolved
" That the patent for the University lands should be issued as soon as possible and

without condition." The meeting was an adjourned one called expressly for the consi-
deration of these questions, and was thoroughly representative. Both resolutions were
carried unanimously. I make this communication to you now as it is possible that no
copies of the resolutions have been sent you.

I am yours very truly,

F. C. WADE.

WINNIPEG, MAN., lst August, 1891.

At a meeting of the university council held in the university rooms, on Friday,
the 31st July, 1891, for the purpose of discussing matters relative to the obtaining
letters patent for the land granted to the university, it was resolved :

" That this Council reaffirm the resolution 22nd November, 1889, viz: That this
Council do submit that the letters patent from the Crown for the lands granted by
the Dominion government should be issued without any restrictive conditions,nand
request the authorities to grant our prayer."

It was further resolved : That the Chancellor be requestel to forward the above
to the Hon. the Minister of the Interior.

(Certified corrcct.)
G. J. LAIRD,

Acting Reglstra--.
17
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Ris LORDSHIP
The Bishop of Rupert's Land, Bishop's Court,

Winnipeg, Man.
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,

Ottawa, 15th August, 1891.

My DEAR LORD BIsHoP,-I duly received your communication of the 4th instant
written f rom Banff, in reference to the land grant to the Manitoba University, and the
issue of patents therefor. In reply I beg to inform your lordship that the list of lands
to go to the university has been made out and is now being gone over carefully for the
last time. I am pleased, therefore, to be able to state that we expect to be in a position
to issue these patents at a very early date, and I shall do all in my power agreeably to
your lordship's wishes, to see that no further delay takes place in this matter.

Believe me, my dear Lord Bishop,
Yours sincerely,

E. DEWDNEY.

MANITOBA COLLEGE.
WINNIPEG, 26th September, 1891.

Hon. EDGAR DEWDNEY,
Ottawa.

My DEAR SIR,-Some time ago I wrote to you about the university lands, and
received a reply of a favourable kind from you as to the early issue of the patent. The
chancellor also received a letter which seemed very favourable, and the university was
pleased with your views. May I ask how matters stand at present I Our university
progress ir Manitoba now seems to depend on the land being transferred as soon as
possible. Were this done we might expect to have a building erected and other steps in
advance taken. Would it be too much trouble for you to let me know the present

position of the patent I have the honour to be,
Your obedient servant,.

GEORGE BRYCE.

MANITOBA UNIVERSITY,
WINNIPEG, MAN., 71h November, 1891.

The HoN. E. DEWDNEY,
Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-The question of the form of the patent for the university lands is not
yet settled ; the university have passed resolutions, which are in your bands no doubt, to
the effect that the patents should be free from conditions.

I gather from what I hear that there is a move on the part of some to request you
to issue the patent subject to conditions affecting the college.

Cannot something be done towards settling the question? It is a pity if we have
to go through the same difficulties again, but if it cannot be helped I suppose we must.
The people will not be satisfied with anything short of a clear patent.

I am, believe me,
Yours truly,

W. REDFORD MULOCK.
(I write this unofficially.)
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAwA, 19th November, 1891.

W. R. MULOCK, Esq., Q. C.,
Winnipeg, Man.

DEAR MR. MULoCK,-Your letter of the 7th instant respecting the Manitoba Uni-
versity lands, came duly to hand. The question of issuing patents for these lands, and
the form the patent should take, has just been under discussion in council; and a sub-
committee has been asked to report on the matter. They are now looking into it and I
am in hopes that in a very short time the question will be disposed of, and I will see
that no time is lost in advising you when a decision has been arrived at.

Believe me yours sincerely,
E. DEWDNEY.

BisHop's COURT,
WINNIPEG, Man., 6th November, 1891.

The Hon. E. DEWDNEY, M. P.,
Minister of the Interior, &c.

DEAR MR. DEWDNEY,-There was a meeting to-day of the Land Committee and
afterwards of the council, when resolutions were passed requesting me to ask what pro-
gress was being made in the allotment of the lands to the University and to press for
the issuing of the patent, as requested by the university.

The examination and selection of the lands were made at a very considerable cost,
and there is an uneasy feeling that lands are being withdrawn and will continue to be
withdrawn to the great prejudice of the university, till the government has distinctly
set the university lands apart. Many interested in the university feel hurt already at
the loss the universiby has probably already suffered from the delays in the allocation.
The range of selection was limited.

I am faithfully yours,
R. RUPERT'S LAND.

WINNIPEG, MAN., 23rd November, 1889.
The Honourable E. DEWDNEY,

Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa.

DEAR MR. DEWDNEY,-I am very much obliged to you for your letter of the 19th
instant. If there is any possibility of the sub-committee reporting in favour of the patent
being issued subject to the condition which is questioned, I think the university authori-
ties ought to know it formally before that conclusion is actually arrived at.

Yours truly,
W. REDFORD MULOCK,

Secretary Land Commission.

DoMINION LANDS COMMIsSIoN,
WINNIPEG, 1Oth February, 1892.

The Honourable EDGAR DEWDNEY,
Ottawa.

DEAR MR. DEWDNEY,-I am asked when the patent for the university lands will
issue. Can you give me any information on the subject, which I can make public ?

Yours truly,
H. H. SMITH.

19
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CHAPTER 35.

An Act to amend " The University Act of Manitoba." Assented to 1lth March,
1893.

Her Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the legislative assembly of
the province of Manitoba, enacts as follows:

1. Paragraph (b) of section 4 of chapter 147 of the Revised Statutes of M anitoba is
hereby repealed and the following substituted therefor:

(b.) Four representatives to be selected by the College of Physicians and Surgeons
and three representatives to be selected by the Manitoba Medical College. The elec-
tions of such representatives shall take place in such manner as may be prescribed by
said Colleges respectively; the members of the council holding office as representatives
of the College of Physicians and Surgeons at present shall remain in office until the
expiration of the terms for which they were elected.

2. Said section 4 of said Act is hereby further amended by adding thereto the fol-
lowing paragraph :

(d.) Seven representatives to be appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor in council,
who shall hold office for the terni of three .years. The member of the executive council
for the time being at the head of the Department of Education shall be ex-officio a mem-
ber of the council.

3. The Lieutenant-Governor in council may, after consultation with the Council,
or with a Committee thereof, appoint professors and assistant professors to be paid by
the Government of the province in the branches of modern languages and mathematics
subsequent to the previous year, and in Natural Sciences. It shall not be competent
for the Council to abolish any of the chairs so established, and the professors and assist-
ant Professors so appointed shall hold office during pleasure.

4. There shall be no fees charged to students of the university in connection with
the Lectures to be delivered by such professors and assistant professars.

5. The allotment of land granted by the Dominion of Canada as an endowment to
the University of Manitoba shall not, when vested in the university, be sold, conveyed
or disposed of without the consent of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council.

6. The council of the university may enact statutes for the investment and the
application of the proceeds of the sales of the said land in the next preceding section
mentioned, but such statutes shall only take effect upon approval by the Lieutenant-
Governor in Council.

7. This Act shall come into force on the day it is assented to.

UNIvERSITY OF MANITOBA,
WINNIPEG, 7th July, 1897.

To the Honourable
The Minister of the Interior,

Ottawa, Ont.

DEAR SIR,-I have been instructed by the university council to forward to you
the inclosed copy of a resolution which was passed at a meeting of the university
council held to-day.

The motion was moved by Rev. Principal Sparling, D.D., and seconded by Very
Rev. Dean O'Meara, M.A., D.D.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. PITBLADO,
Registrar.

Moved by Rev. Principal Sparling, D.D., seconded by Very Rev. Dean O'Meara,
M.A., D.D.

Whereas so early as the year 1878, application was made to the Dominion govern-
ment by the University of Manitoba for a land grant; and in the following year

20
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another application was made thro>ugh the local government and in the next succeeding
year a petition to the sane effect was sent to the Dominion government, which was
favourably responded to by the Premier, Sir John Macdonald; and in the year 1881
and 1882, action was taken by the university to urge the granting of such lands.

Whereas in the year 1885, in what was known as the Better Terms Settlement
(48 and 49 Victoria, chapter 50, section 2) it is declared:

" An allotment of land not exceeding one hundred and fifty thousand acres of fair
average quality, shall be selected by the Dominion government and granted as an
endowment to the University of Manitoba for its maintenance as a university, capable
of giving proper training in the higher branches of education, and to be held in trust
for that purpose upon some basis or scheine to be framed by the university, and
approved by the Dominion government."

Whereas on the 28th of January, 1887, the university council unanimously adopted
the following:

Regulations under 48 and 49 Vic., chap. 50 Dom.
1. After the selecting and granting of the lands made under the provisions of

section 2 of chap. 50, 48 and 49 Vic., the University of Manitoba shall cause to be
kept one or more land registers, which shall contain a description of the said lands, the
quality and character thereof, so far as the same can be ascertained fron the field notes
of the surveys and the official maps of the portions of the country where such lands
are situate. The land register shall also contain a complete record of all the particulars
respecting the management, sales and disposition of such lands.

2. The said lands shall be held upon the following trusts: The university may at
any time, in such manner and on such terms as they may deem proper, sell and dispose
of or lease the said lands or any portion thereof, and receive the proceeds and income
resulting therefrom.

3. The university may apply such portions of said proceeds and income as May be
considered proper to pay the expenses of the care and management of the said lands
and of the moneys arising therefrom.

4. To purchase a suitable site, and to erect thereon university buildings and to
furnish the sane.

5. To invest such portions of said proceeds as may not be immediately required
for any of the objects aforesaid in such securities, and on such terms as the council
may deeni proper and safe, for the purpose of deriving an income therefrom, and the
council may apply the income arising out of the leasing of said lands and from such
investments, or any portion thereof, to any of the purposes aforesaid.

6. Or to any other purpose contemplated by the said chap. 50, 48 and 49 Vic.
7. The management of such lands and the proceeds or incomes arising therefrom

shall be under the control of the council of the university, which may appoint all such
committees or persons as may be considered necessary for the purpose thereof, and may
pay any such person so appointed, if deemed requisite."

And the foregoing basis was approved by Order in Council of the Dominion
Government on the 15th June, 1887.

Whereas the local government in 1888 granted $4,000 for the selection of such
lands, and such lands were selected by the Dominion government, and accepted by the
university, and are reserved for the use of the university.

Whereas the university is not now permitted to manage or control the said lands
in any way or to receive any revenue therefrom.

Whereas the large increase in students in the university, as shown by 350 present-
ing themselves in arts and 75 in medicine at this year's examination, has led to
negotiations between the university and the local government as to providing proper
facilities for the work of the university ; and the legislature has passed legislation for
the advance of certain sums on the security of the land.

And whereas it is absolutely necessary for the furtherance of university education
in Manitoba that immediate steps be taken in this matter.

Therefore the university council strongly urges the Dominion government to issue
without delay the patent of the aforesaid lands to the University of Manitoba on the
terms of the trust set forth and already approved by the Dominion government.
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Further the council instructs the registrar to forward copies of this resolution to
the Hon. the Minister of Justice and the Hon. the Minister of the Interior, at Ottawa.

Carried at a meeting of the university council, held this 6th day of July, 1897.

J. P.

WINNIPEG, MAN., 9th November, 1897.
Hon. CLIFFORD SIFTON,

Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa, Ont.

DEAR SIR,-In July last, the covncil of our university made application to the
Dominion government to transfer to the university the 100,000 acres of land set aside
for the purpose of that body. This was but a reiteration of the wish expressed by them
for some time past, and is one that with the lapse of time becomes more and more im-
perative if higher education is to hold its own in this country. I understand they are
again making an effort to get your government to transfer these lands, and I think it
very necessary that this should be done at the earliest possible moment. Would you
kindly take it up and see if the saine could not be carried out at once I I presume you
have a copy of the resolution in regard to the matter passed at the meeting in July, but
in case it bas been mislaid, I inclose you herewith a memo. of saine. Trusting you may
see your way clear to press upon the government the immediate issue of the patents.

I remain yours truly,

J. H. ASHDOWN.

WINNIPEG, 25th November, 1897.
Hon. CLIFFORD SIFTON, &c.

MY DEAR SIR,-Thinking it might be of service to you in dealing with the ques-
tion of our university lands, I have received from our members and Mr. Ashdown their
opinions about the speedy granting of the lands to the university.

If we do not get these lands before the meeting of the legislature, our arrangement
will fall through, and we may not for years succeed in reviving the question. The pro-
vince is suffering at present in the character of its science teaching.

I am yours truly,

GEORGE BRYCE.

PORTAGE LA PRAIRIE, Man., 1lth November, 1897.
Dr. BRYCE, Winnipeg.

DEAR SIR,-As it is any case desirable to have the university in the public interest,
obtain control of its lands, you may put me down as being in favour of the issue of the
patent at as early a date as possible.

I remain yours faithfully,

J. G. RUTHERFORD.
Certified as a true copy of an extract f rom

letter to Dr. Bryce, written by J. G.
Rutherford.

J. PITBLADO.
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WINNIPEG, MAN., 6th November, 1897.
Dr. BRYCE,

Manitoba College, City.

DEAR DR. BRYCE,-I have carefully considered the resolution adopted on July
17th last, regarding the lands granted to the University of Manitoba and heartily
approve of the same. I will do all that lies in my power to further the objects referred
to in that resolution.

Yours truly,
R. W. JAMESON.

Certified a true copy.
J. PITBLADO.

WINNIPEG, 30th October, 1897.

DPZAR DR. BRYCE,-In thinking over the question of the Manitoba University, I
arrived at the conclusion that it would be in the best interests of that body and of the
interests of higher education, if the Dominion governnent would issue with as little
delay as possible to the University of Manitoba, the patent to the land grant which was
set aside by the said government for the university as a condition of the " better
terms " arranged I think in 1885, and I shall be pleased to exert any influence which,
as a member of the Dominion House of Commons, I may possess, to secure the speedy
issuance of the patent.

Yours faithfully,
R. L. RICHARDSON.

Certified a true copy.
J. PITBLADO.

WINNIPEG, 12th November, 1897.
Rev. DR. BRYCE, Winnipeg.

DEAR SIR,-My attention has been called to the fact that the university lands
granted under the " better terms " Act of 1885 have not been handed over to the
university. I can see no reason why this long delay should have taken place. The
University of Manitoba represents all classes in our province, and desires to utilize these
lands for the advancement of higher education. I an entirely in favour of the action
taken by the university council in asking that these lands be handed over to it without
delay. The interests of higher education are suffering in the province, especially in the
departments of science which the university wishes to help. I shall do all in my power
to help forward this matter, both by letter and by personal advocacy at Ottawa.

Yours very truly,

JNO. A. MACDONELL,
Certified a true copy. M.P., Selkirk.

J. PITBLADO.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAWA, 24th December, 1897.

J. PITBLADO, Esq., M.A., LL.B.,
Registrar, University of Manitoba,

Winnipeg, Man.

SIR,-With reference to your letter of the 7th of July last, in the matter of the
Dominion grant of lands to the University of Manitoba, I now beg to submit an amended
draft form of patent, which has been approved by the Minister of Justice, and to request
that you will be good enough to lay the same before the university council for approval,
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and if satisfactory to return it here, when steps will be at once taken to prepare the
several patents to cover the university grant in question.

It will be observed that the draft now inclosed is similar to the one already sub-
mitted to the university council, with the exception of the following words which have
been, in accordance with the wishes expressed by your council, eliminated froin the
clause providing for the reversion of the said grant to the Crown in certain events:-
" Or if at any time hereafter the said university shall cease to be constituted as pro-
vided by its present Act of Incorporation, chapter 63 of the Consolidated Statutes of
Manitoba."

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JAS. A. SMART,
Deputy Minister.

CANADA.
VICTORIA, &C.,

To all to whom these presents shall come,
Greeting:

WHEREAS in and by Chapter 47 of the Revised Statutes of Canada intituled "An
Act respecting the province of Manitoba " it is amongst other things in effect enacted
that an allotment of land not exceeding one hundred and fifty thousaud acres of fair
average quality shall be selected by the Dominion government and granted as an endow-
ment to the University of Manitoba, a body corporate and politic, under the provisions
of the Consolidated Statutes of Manitoba, chapter sixty three, for its maintenance as a
university capable of giving proper training in the higher branches of education, and to
be held in trust for that purpose, upon some basis or scheme to be framed by the
university and approved by the Dominion government.

AND WHEREAS the lands hereinafter mentioned and described, the same being
Dominion lands within the meaning of the Dominion Lands Act, have been selected by
the government of Our Dominion of Canada, to be granted to the said " The University
of Manitoba " (hereinafter sometimes called the said university) in pursuance of the Act
firstly above mentioned.

AND WHEREAS the said university has framed a basis or scheme tinder which it is
proposed that the said lands shall be held by the said university upon certain trusts
which are hereinafter embodied and set forth.

AND WHEREAs the said basis or scheme has been duly approved by our Governor
General in Council who has authorized the issue of letters patent granting the said lands
to the said university upon and subject to the trusts and conditions hereinafter expressed
and contained.

Now know ye that we do by these presents grant, convey and assure unto the said
University of Manitoba, their successors and assigns for ever, all the parcel or tract of
land, situate, lying and being in the

(Description of land.)

To have and hold the said lands unto the said " The University of Manitoba " their
successors and assigns for ever for the purposes hereinafter mentioned and upon and
subject to the trusts and conditions hereinafter expressed and contained, saving and
reserving, nevertheless, unto us, our successors and assigns, the free uses, passage
and enjoyment of, in, over and upon all navigable waters that now are or may be here-
after found on, or under, or flowing through or upon any part of the said parcel or tract
of land; also reserving thereout and therefrom all rights of fishery and fishing and occu-
pation in connection therewith upon, around and adjacent to said lands, and also the
privilege of landing from and mooring boats and vessels upon any part of the said lands
and using the said land in connection with the rights of fishery and fishing hereby
reserved, so far as may be reasonably necessary to the exercise of such rights, provided
always that the said lands are to be held by the said university, their successors and
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assigns, for the purposes hereinafter mentioned and upon and subject to the following
trusts and purposes, that is to say -

1. That the said University, their successors and assigns may at any time and in
such manner and on such terms as they may deem proper, seil and dispose of or lease
the said lands or any portion thereof, and receive the proceeds or income resulting there-
from.

2. That the said university, their successors or assigns, may apply such portion of
the said proceeds and income as may be considered proper to pay the expenses of the
care and management of the said lands and of the moneys arising therefrom; to purchase
a suitable site or suitable sites for and to erect thereon university buildings and to fur-
nish such buildings and shall invest such portion of the said proceeds as may not be
immediately required for any of the said objects in such securities and on such terms as
the said university, their successors or assigns may deem proper and safe for the pur-
pose of deriving an income therefrom, and may apply the income arising out of the
leasing of the said lands and f rom such investments or any portion thereof to any of the
purposes aforesaid or to any purposes contemplated or provided for by the Act of Incor-
poration of the said university; and may also from time to time, with the express sanc-
tion and approval of our Governor in Council, but not otherwise, apply any part of such
income to any other purpose connected with the work of the university or the objects
for which it was created.

Provided always that if at any time hereafter the said university shall be dissolved
or shall cease to exercise its functions as a university, then and in such case any and all
of the said lands which nay remain unsold shall revert to and Lecome revested in us
and our successors as of our and their former estate therein ; and all funds in the hands
of the said university, their successors or assigns, the proceeds of, or which in any way
result f rom the sale, lease or other disposal of the said lands, shall be immediately paid
over to us, our successors or assigns.

Provided, further, and it is hereby made an express condition of this grant, that at
all times hereafter the said university, their successors and assigns shall keep or cause
to be kept such separate and distinct accounts of the proceeds and income resulting from
the sale, lease, or other disposal of and of all moneys in any way derived from or arising
out of the said lands as shall clearly and readily disclose the amount and nature thereof
as well as all dealings therewith and also that all books, vouchers and papers containing
or in any way relating to such account, shall at all times be open to the inspection of
any person or persons appointed by our Governor in Council to inspect the same.

(Great Seal.)

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAWA, 24th December, 1897.

PROFESSOR GEORGE BRYCE,
Winnipeg, Man.

DEAR SIR,-Referring to your letter of the 25th ultimo, addressed to the Minister
of the Interior, in the matter of the Manitoba University land grant, I beg to inclose
you herewith a copy of my letter, of even date, addressed to Mr. Pitblado, which is
accompanied, as you will see, by a draft form of patent for approval by the university
council.

Yours truly,
JAS. A. SMART,

Deputy Minister.
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DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OTTAWA, 8th February, 1898.

SIR,-I have the honour to transfer to your department a letter of the 4th inst.
from the registrar of the University of Manitoba, inclosing a draft form of patent for
university lands.

I am, sir,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

UNIVERSITY OF MANITOBA,
WINNIPEG, 4th February, 1898.

The Deputy Minister of Justice,
Ottawa, Ont.

DEAR SIR,-The draft form of patent for university lands recently submitted by
you, has been duly considered by the university council, and I now beg to hand you
herewith a form of patent, which was approved by the university council at a meeting
held on the 3rd inst. I trust that the amendments made will meet with the approval of
the Minister of Justice, and that the patent for the university lands will now issue in
due course.

Yours truly,
J. PITBLADO,

Registrar.

UNIVERSITY OF MANITOBA.

The following is the draft form of patent for the university lands, as approved by
the committee appointed at last meeting, which is to be considered at the special
meeting of council to be held Thursday, 3rd February, 1898, at 4 p.m.

CANADA.
VICTORIA, &c.,

To all to whoin these presents may come,
Greeting:

Whereas in and by chapter 47 of the revised statutes of Canada, intituled : Ah
Act respecting the Province of Manitoba," it is amongst other things in effect enacted
that an allotment of land not exceeding one hundred and fifty thousand acres of fair
average quality shall be selected by the Dominion government and granted as an
endowment to the University of Manitoba, a body corporate and politic under the
provisions of the consolidated statutes of Manitoba, chapter sixty-three, for its main-
tenance as a university capable of giving proper training in the higher branches of
education, and to be held in trust for that purpose, upon some basis or scheme to be
framed by the university and approved by the Dominion government.

And whereas the lands hereinafter mentioned and described the same being Dom-
inion lands within the meaning of the Dominion Lands Act, have been selected by the
government of our Dominion of Canada, to be granted to the said " The University of
Manitoba" (hereinafter called the said university) in pursuance of the Act firstly
above mentioned.

And whereas the said university has framed a basis or scheme under which it is
proposed that the said lands shall be held by the said university upon certain trusts
which are hereinafter embodied and set forth.

And whereas the said basis or scheme has been duly approved by our Governor
General in Council who. has authorized the issue of letters patent granting the said

26



University of Manîtoba.

lands to the said university upon and subject to the trusts and conditions hereinafter
expressed and contained.

Now know ye that we do by these presents, grant, convey and assure unto the
said University of Manitoba, their successors and assigns for ever, all that parcel or
tract of land, situate, lying and being in the

(Description of property.)
To have and to hold the said lands unto the said the University of Manitoba,

their successors and assigns for ever, for the purposes hereinafter mentioned and upon
and subject to the trusts and conditions hereafter expressed and contained, saving and
reserving, nevertheless, unto us, our successors and assigns, the free uses, passage and
enjoyment of, in, over and upon all navigable waters that now are or may be hereafter
found on, or under, or flowing through or upon any part of the said parcel or tract of
land; also reserving thereout and therefrom all rights of flshery and fishing and
occupation in connection therewith, upon, around and adjacent to said lands, and also
the privilege of landing from and monoring boats and vessels upon any part of the said
lands, and using the said lands in connection with the rights of fishery and fishing
hereby reserved, so far as may be reasonably necessary to the exercise of such rights.
Provided always that the said lands are to be held by the said university, their
successors and assigns for the purposes hereinafter mentioned, and upon and subject
to the following trusts and purposes, that is to say:-

1. That the said university, their successors and assigns, may at any time and in
such manner and on such terms as they may deem proper, sell and dispose of, mortgage,
pledge, or lease the said lands or any portion thereof, and receive the proceeds or
income resulting therefrom.

2. That the said university, their successors or assigns, may apply such portion
of the said proceeds and income as may be considered proper, to pay the expenses of
care and management of the said lands and of the moneys arising therefrom ; to
purchase a suitable site, or suitable sites, for and to erect thereon university buildings
and to furnish such buildings, and shall invest such portion of the said proceeds as may
not be immediately required for any of the said objects, in such securities and on such
terms as the said university, their successors or assigns, may deem proper and safe for
the purpose of deriving an income therefrom, and may apply the income arising out of
the leasing of the said lands, and from such investments or any portion thereof to any
of the purposes aforesaid or to any purposes contemplated or provided for either by
the said chapter 47 of the Revised Statutes of Canada or by the Act of Incorporation
of the said university, or any acts amending the same.

Provided always, that if at any time hereafter the said university shall be dissolved
or shall cease to exercise its functions as a university, then, and in such case, any and all of
the said lands which may remain unsold shall revert to and become revested in us and
our successors as of our and their former estate therein, subject to any mortgage or
pledge which may have been given by the said university; and all funds in the hands
of the said university, their successors or assigns, the proceeds of, or which in any way
result from the sale, lease, mortgage, pledge or other disposal of the said lands, shall be
immediately paid over to us, our successors or assigns.

Provided further, and it is hereby made an express condition of this grant, that at
all times hereafter the said university, their successors and assigns, shall keep or cause
to be kept such separate and distinct accounts of the proceeds and income resulting
from the sale, lease, mortgage, pledge or other disposal of, and of all moneys in any
way derived from or arising out of the said lands as shall clearly and readily dis-
close the amount and nature thereof as well as al] dealings therewith, and also that all
books, vouchers and papers containing, or in any way relating to such account, shall at
all times be open to the inspection of any person or persons appointed by our Governor
in Council to inspect the saine. (Great Seal.)

The above form of patent was approved at the meeting of the university council
held 3rd February, 1898.

J. PITBLADO.

Registrar.
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WINNIPEG, MAN., 4th February, 1898.

Re University Land Grant.

The Hon. CLIFFORD SWrON,
Minister of the Interior,

Ottawa, Ont.

DEAR SIR,-At a meeting of the university council held yesterday, two reports of
committees were submitted. A copy of the minority report is herewith enclosed. The
objections of the minority to the report of the majority (which report was accepted by a
majority of the council) are, amongst others.

1. That the form of patent as approved by the majority, authorizes the university
to mortgage or pledge its endowment. The objection of the minority to this is that the
grant of one hundred and fifty thousand acres according to the terms of the statute,
was for an endowment to the university-in other words, the creation of a perpetual
provision out of the lands for the maintenance of a university capable of giving proper
training in the higher branches of education. The minority think that the power to
mortgage or pledge would be inconsistent with, and contrary to the spirit and intention
of the grant, and if exercised, would be d<structive to the perpetual provision for the
maintenance of the university out of the lands.

2. Minority think that unless the statute making the grant clearly authorized the
,right in the university to mortgage or pledge those lands for the purpose of raising
money at interest, such power should not be given to a body varying so greatly in
divers interest, and likely to vary in its constitution, as the university council.

3. The form of patent as approved by the majority of the council, also provides
that the income may be applied to any purpose contemplated by the provincial Act of
Incorporation of the university, or any Acts amending the same. The minority of the
council think that the purpose of the grant is clearly expressed in the statute making
the grant, and that it was not contemplated by the parliament of the Dominion that
the legislature of the province of Manitoba should have power by its legislation to
authorize the university council to divert the income arising out of the lands to any
purposes not contemplated by the statute making the grant. By the terms of the form
of the proposed patent adopted by the majority, the legislature of the province of
Manitoba would, by Acts amending the University Act, have power to change the
purposes of the grant and to apply it to purposes other than those originally intended.
Indeed, the present legislature of the province of Manitoba, chapter 35, 60 Victoria, in
amending the University Act, indicates to what extent it is possible for the income
from the lands to be diverted from its original purpose.

(4.) The minority also think that as the basis of trust agreed upon by the university
council in the year 1887, was approved by the Governor General in Council shortly
after, that basis of trust should be the one to be incorporated in the patent, and no
other, unless such basis of trust is altered by the university council with the assent of
the Governor General in Council. The form of the patent as proposed by the minority
contains strictly the basis of trust agreed upon by the university council and approved
by the Governor General in Council, which does not authorize the university to mort-
gage or pledge its endowment;, nor does it put it in the power of the local legislature
f rom time to time to vary the application of the income arising out of the lands to any
other purpose than that contemplated by the Act making the grant.

I asked the registrar of the university this morning if he would, in forwarding the
report as passed by the council, notify your department that the university council were
not unanimous in their recent action concerning the issue of the patent. He said,
however, that it was not customary to do so, and in order that you may be seized of all
facts in connection with this matter, I have set forth briefly the contention of the
minority on the council; and I inclose also with this, a memorandum showing the
division of the council, with the names of those who voted for and against the form of
patent sent to you.

Yours truly,
HEBER ARCHIBALD.
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UNIVERSITY OF MANITOBA.

The following is the draft form of patent for the university lands, as submitted by-
the Department of the Interior, Ottawa, which is to be considered at the special meet-
ing of council to be held Friday, 7th January, 1898, at 4 p.m.

CANADA.
Victoria, &c.

To all to whom these presents may come,
Greeting:

Whereas in and by chapter 47 of the Revised Statutes of Canada, intituled: " An
Act respecting the province of Manitoba," it is amongst other things in effect enacted
that an allotment ofland not exceeding one hundred and fifty thousand acres of fair
average quality shall be selected by the Dominion government and granted as an
endowment to the university of Manitoba, a body corporate and politic, under the pro-
visions of the Consolidated Statutes of Manitoba, chapter 63, for its maintenance as a
university capable of giving proper training in the higher branches of education, and to
be held in trust for that purpose, upon some basis or scheme to be f ramed by the
university and approved by the Dominion government.

And whereas the lands hereinafter mentioned and described, the same being
Dominion lands within the meaning of the Dominion Lands Act, have been selected by
the government of our Dominion of Canada, to be granted to the said the University
of Manitoba (hereinafter sometimes called the said university) in pursuance of the
Act firstly above mentioned.

And whereas the said university has framed a basis or scheme under which it is
proposed that the said lands shall be held by the said university upon certain trusts
which are hereinafter embodied and set forth.

And whereas the said basis or scheme has been duly approved by our Governor
General in Council, who has authorized the issue of letters patent granting the said lands
to the said university upon and subject to the trusts and conditions hereinafter expressed
and contained.

Now know ye that we do by these presents grant, convey and assure unto the said
University of Manitoba, their successors and assigns for ever, all that parcel or tract of
land, situate, lying and being in the

(Description of property.\
To have and hold the said lands unto the said the University of Manitoba, their

successors and assigns for ever, for the purposes hereinafter mentioned and upon and
subject to the trusts and conditions hereinafter expressed and contained; saving and
reserving, nevertheless, unto us, our successors and assigns the free uses, passage and
enjoyment of, in, over and upon all naviagable waters that now are or may be hereafter
found on or under or flowing through or upon any part of the said parcel or tract of
land; also reserving thereout and therefrom all rights of fishery and fishing and
occupation in connection therewith, upon, around and adjacent to said lands, and also
the privilege of landing from and mooring boats and vessels upon any part of the said
lands and using the said lands in connection with the rights of fishery and fishing
hereby reserved so far as may be reasonably necessary to the exercise of such rights.
Provided always, that the said lands are to be held by the said university, their
successors and assigns for the purposes hereinafter mentioned, and upon and subject to
the following trusts and purposes, that is to say -

1. That the said university, their successors and assigns, may at any time in such
manner and on such terms as they may deem proper sell and dispose of or lease the
said lands or any portion thereof, and receive the proceeds or income resulting there-
from.

2. That the said university, their successors or assigne, may apply such portion
of the said proceeds and income as may be considered proper, to pay the expenses of
the care and management of the said lands and of the moneys arising therefrom; to
purchase a suitable site for and to erect thereon university buildings, and to furnish,
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such buildings, and shall invest such portion of the said proceeds as may not be
immediately required for any of the said objects, in such securities and on such terms
as the said university, their successors or assigns, may deem proper and safe for the
purpose of deriving an income therefrom, and may apply the income arising out of the
leasing of the said lands, and from such investments or any portion thereof to any of
the purposes aforesaid or to any purpose contemplated or provided for by the Act of the
Parliament of Canada passed in the 48th and 49th year of Her Majesty's reign, and
chapter 50, being chapter 47 of the Revised Statutes of Canada.

Provided always, that if at any time hereafter the said university shall be dissolved
or shall cease to exercise its function as a university, then and in such case, any and all of
the said lands which may remain unsold shall revert to and shall become revested in us
and our successors as of our and their former estate therein ; and all funds in the hands
of the said university, their successors or assigns, the proceeds of, or, which in any way
result f rom the sale, or disposal or leasing of the said lands, shall be immediately paid
over to us, our successors or assigns.

Provided further, and it is hereby made an express condition of this grant, that at
all times hereafter the said university, their successors and assigns, shall keep or cause
to be kept such separate and distinct accounts of the proceeds and income resulting
f rom the sale, lease or other disposal of, and of all moneys in any way derived from or
arising out of the said lands as shall clearly and readily disclose the amount and nature
thereof as well as all dealings therewith, and also that all books, vouchers and papers
containing, or in any way relating to such accounts, shall at all times be open to the
inspection of any person or persons appointed by our Governor in Council to inspect the
same.

The undersigned members of a committee appointed by the council of the university
of Manitoba to consider the form of patent to be used by the Dominion government
are unable to concur with the majority of the committee, and beg to report as follows:-

By an Act of the parliament of Canada now embodied in chapter 47 of the Revised
Statutes of Canada, it was enacted that-

" An allotment of land not exceeding one hundred and fifty thousand acres of fair
average quality shall be selected by the Dominion government and granted as an
endowment to the university of Manitoba for its maintenance as a university capable
of giving proper training in the higher branches of education, and to be held in trust
for that purpose upon some basis or scheme to be framed by the university and approved
by the government."

Afterwards, in the year 1887, a basis or scheme was framed by the university and
shortly thereafter approved by the government, and no alteration of such basis of trust
has been made by any agreement between the government and the university council,
and it is the intention of the government to make the grant upon that basis of trust as
is indicated by the recital in the form of the proposed patent; and as it is apparent
from the wording of the Dominion statute that it was not the intention that any person
or g9vernment should have a right to interfere with or vary the trust agreed upon by
the university and the government, and as it is further apparent from the'construction
of the Dominion statute that it was not the intention of the parliament of Canada that
the lands granted should be pledged or mortgaged for the purpose of raising money on
which interest would be payable to erect buildings or pay professors, but that it should
be an endowment in perpetuity for the purpose of the trust agreed upon, it seems to
the undersigned that the committee have no power to settle upon any form of patent
that would make it vary from the terms of the basis of trust, and that the form of
patent, therefore, should be in the terms of the copy hereto annexed.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,

HEBER ARCHIBALD, Esq., OTTAwA, 23rd February, 1898.

Barrister, Winnipeg, Man.

SIR,-I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 4th instant,
with reference to the university land grant, in which you inclose a statement by the
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minority and also a copy of the minutes of the proceedings in this matter, and in
reply to say that the Minister of the Interior will be pleased to give these matters his
consideration.

I am, sir, your obedient servant,

LYNDWODE PEREIRA,
Assistant Secretary.

EXTRACT from a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved
by His Excellency on the 29th March, 1898.

On a memorandum dated 29th March, 1898, from the Minister of the Interior,
submitting herewith a copy of the draft form of patent which was approved of at a
special meeting of the University of Manitoba which was held at the city of Winnipeg,
on the 3rd of February, 1898, as the form of patent to be issued for the land allotted
by the Dominion government as an endowment to that university, under the provis-
ions of Chapter 47 of the Revised Statutes of Canada, and recommendirg that he be
authorized to issue this patent forthwith in accordance with such draft form.

The committee submi. the above recommendation for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

UNIVERSITY OF MANITOBA.

The following is the draft form of patent for the university lands, as approved
by the committee appointed at the last meeting, which is to be considered at the special
meeting of the council to be held Thursday, February the 3rd, 1898, at 4 p.m.

CANADA.
VIcToR1A, &c.

To all to whom these presents may come,
Greeting

Whereas in and by chapter 47 of the Revised Statutes of Canada entitled "An
Act respecting the province of Manitoba " it is amongst other things in effect enacted
that an allotment of land not exceeding one hundred and fifty thousand acres of fair
average quality shall be selected by the Dominion government and granted as an en-
dowment to the University of Manitoba, a body corporate and politic, under the pro-
visions of the Consolidated Statutes of Manitoba, chapter sixty-three, for its mainten-
ance as a university capable of giving proper training in the higher branches of
education, and to be held in trust for that purpose, upon some basis or scheme to be
framed by the university and approved by the Dominion government.

And whereas the lands hereinafter mentioned and described, the same being
Dominion lands within the meaning of the Dominion Lands Act, have been selected by
the government of our Dominion of Canada, to be granted to the said the University
of Manitoba, (hereinafter sometimes called the said university) in pursuance of the
Act firstly above mentioned.

And whereas the said university has framed a basis or scheme under which it is
proposed that the said lands shall be held by the said university upon certain trusts
which are hereinafter embodied and set forth.

And whereas the said basis or scheme has been duly approved by our Governor
General in Council who has authorized the issue of letters patents granting the said
lands to the said university upon and subject to the trust and conditions hereinafter
expressed and contained.
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Now know ye we do by these present grant, convey and assure unto the said
University of Manitoba, their successors and assigns for ever, all that parcel or tract of
land, situate, lying and being in the

(Description of Property.)

To have and to hold the said lands unto the said the University of Manitoba,
their successors and assigns for ever, for the purposes hereinafter mentioned and upon
and subject to the trusts and conditions hereinafter expressed and contained ; saving
and reserving nevertheless, unto us, our successors and assigns, the free uses passage and
enjoyment of, in, over and upon all navigable waters that now are, or may be hereafter
found on, or under, or flowing through or upon any part of the said parcel or tract of
land; also reserving thereout and therefrom all rights of fishery and fishing and occupa-
tion in- connection therewith, upon, around and adjacent to said land, and also the
privilege of landing f rom and mooring boats and vessels upon any part of the said lands,
and using the said lands in connection with the rights of fishery and fishing hereby re-
served, so far as may be reasonably necessary to the exercise of such rights. Provided
always, that the said lands are to be held by the said university, their succesors and
assigns, for the purposes hereinafter mentioned, and upon and subject to the following
trusts and purposes, that is to say :

1. That the said university, their successors and assigns, may at any time and in such
manner and on such terms as they may deem proper, sell and dispose of, mortgage,
pledge or lease the said lands or any portion thereof, and receive the proceeds or
income resulting therefrom.

2. That the said university, their successors or assigns, may apply such portion of
the said proceeds and income as may be considered proper to pay the expenses of the
care and management of the said lands, and of the moneys arising therefroni ; to pur-
chase a suitable site, or suitable sites for and to erect thereon university buildings and to
furnish such buildings, and shall invest such portion of the said proceeds as may not be
immediately required for any of the said objects, in such securities and on such terms
as the said university, their successors or assigns, may deem proper and safe for the
purpose of deriving an income therefrom, and may apply the income arising out of the
leasing of the said lands and from such investments or any portion thereof to any of the
purposes aforesaid, or to any purposes contemplated or provided for either by the said
chapter 47 of the Revised Statutes of Canada, or by the Act of Incorporation of the
said university, or any acts amending the same.

Provided always, that if at any time hereafter the said university shall be dis-
solved or shall cease to exercise its functions as a university, then, and in such case,
any and all of the said lands which may reinain unsold shall revert to and become
revested in us and our successors as of our and their former estate therein, subject to
any mortgage or pledge which may have been given by the said university; and all
funds in the hands of the said university their successors or assigns, the proceeds of, or
which in any way result from the sale, lease, mortgage, pledge or other disposal of the
said lands shall be immediately paid over to us, our successors or assigns.

Provided further, and it is hereby made an express condition of this grant, that at
all times hereafter the said university, their successors and assigns, shall keep or cause
to be kept such separate and distinct accounts of the proceeds and income resulting
from the sale, lease, mortgage, pledge or other disposal of and of all moneys in any
way derived f rom or arising out of the said lands as shall clearly and readily disclose the
amount and nature thereof as well as all dealings therewith, and also that all books,
vouchers and papers containing, or in any way relating to such accounts, shall at all
times be open to the inspection of any person or persons appointed by our Governor in
Council to inspect the same.

(Great Seal.)
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RETURN
[51]

To an ADDRESS of the HoUSE of COMMONs, dated the 19th April,' 1899, for
copies of all correspondence with the Imperial and Colonial Govern-
ments and other parties relative to the proposed Pacifie Cable, since
the return brought down last session ; also of the report of the Imperial
Commission on this subject, if leave has been obtained to publish it.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

DEPARTMENT op TRADE AND COMMERCE,

JOsEPn PoPE, Esq., OTTAwA, 1st May, 1899.

Under-Secretary of State,
Ottawa.

SiR,-I have the honour to hand you herewith a Return to an Address of the House
of Commons, of date the 19th ultimo, for

"Copies of all correspondence with the Imperial and Colonial Governments and
other parties relative to the proposed 4 Pacific Cable' since the Return brought down
last Session; also of the Report of the Imperial Commission on this subject, if leave
has been obtained to publish it. "

The Return will be complete by adding thereto :-A copy of a letter addressed
by Sir Sandford Fleming to the Right Honourable the Secretary of State for the Colo-
nies, of date the 28th of October, 1898 ; and of a letter covering a memorandum on the
subject addressed by Sir Sandford Fleming to yourself, of date the 31st of January
last, of neither of which are there copies in this department. *

With reference to the Report of the Imperial Commission referred to, you will observe
that under terms of Lord Strathcona's letter of the 12th of April, the objection to the
publication is withdrawn, but it is suggested that if reprinted in Canada, it should be
the same as published in London, corrections having been made since first printed, and
that a copy would be forwarded as soon as available. No such oopy has yet been received
at this department, and it is difficult to understand in what respect the Report itself
could be corrected, the inference being that the corrections are in the attaches to the
Report. tUnder these circumstances, I hand you herewith a copy of the Report as
originally received here, so that should it be considered proper it may be added to the
Return in question.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

W. G. PARMELEE,
Deputy Minister.

* These papers are now added in their proper chronological order.
51-2
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SINGAPORE AND HONG KONG SECOND CABLE, 1893.

AGREEMENT made the 28th day of October, 1893, between the Most Honourable the
Marquis of Ripon, &c., &c., Secretary of State for the Colonies, of the one part,
and the Eastern Extension Australasia and China Telegraph Company, Limited
(hereinafter called the company) of the other part.

Whereas it is expedient that the existing telegraphic communication with Hong
Kong should be strengthened by the laying of a second submarine telegraph cable
between Singapore and Hong Kong without touching at any point not in British
territory and connecting at Labuan en route ;

And whereas the company are prepared to provide, lay and work such a cable
forthwith as their own cost on the conditions hereinafter expressed. It is hereby agreed
as follows:-

Article 1.-The company will at their own cost, and as promptly as possible,
provide and lay a submarine telegraph cable connecting Singapore, Labuan and Hong
Kong, and will work and maintain the same in good condition (save in cases of Jorce
majeure) for the term of twenty-five years from the date hereof, and upon the same
terms and conditions as the existing cables of the company, except so far as these
terms and conditions are varied by this agreement in respect of the new cable.

Article 2.-During the term of this agreement all messages on the service of the
Imperial Government, or of the Colonial' Government of Hong Kong, the Straits
Settlements, or Labuan, may be sent over any line owned or controlled by the company
at one-half the rates paid by the public.

Article 3 -Her Majesty's government will invite the Colonial governments of
Hong Kong, the Straits Settlements and Labuan to provide that the company's repairing
steamers and all cables, cable apparatus, telegraphic instruments and materials which
are used solely for the purposes of the company in laying, repairing or working the new
cable, shall, during the term of this agreement, be exempt from payment of port and
light dues at Hong Kong, Singapore and Labuan.

Article 4.-In consideration of the engagements entered into by the company in
this agreement, and of the strict fulfilment thereof, Her Majesty's Government under-
takes to secure the company against competition to the extent following, that is to
say.-

Her Majesty's government will not during the term of this agreement lay, nor
grant nor permit to be granted, any concession or authority for laying any new sub-
marine cables connected with Hong Kong, Singapore, or Labuan (whether in competition
with the cables of the company or not) unless such new cables should in the opinion of
Her Majesty's government be found necessary in the public interest of Great Britain,
Hong Kong, the Straits Settlements, or Labuan, or in the general interests of interna-
tional telegraphic communication. Provided always, that if it shall be decided that
new cables are to be laid the company shall, all things being equal, have the preferential
right to the contract or concession for laying the saine. Provided that this article shall
not prevent the Great Northern Company froim repairing, renewing, or replacing any
submarine cable connected with Hong Kong, and shall not prejudice or affect the
existing rights of that company.

Article 6.-Her Majesty's government shall have the option at any time of
cancelling all the foregoing articles of this agreement on giving to the company twelve
montha' previous notice, and on payment to the company of a sum of £300,000, being
the estimated cost of laying such second cable.

Article 6.-Immediately on the payment of the amount provided in the last
preceding article the said second cable shall become the property of Her Majesty's
Government, and this agreement shall at once cease and determine. ,

Article 7.-Nothing in this agreement shall affect the right of Her Majesty's
government to grant to the government of the Dominion of Canada or of any Colony
in Australia permission to lay or cause to be laid a submarine telegraph cable connecting
Hong Kong with Canada or with Australia, provided such connection with Canada or
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Australia be completed within five years from the date of this agreement, after which
date the exception in this article mentioned shall become null and void.

Article 8.-This agreement, unless sooner determined under Article 5, shall remain
in force for the term of twenty-five years from the date hereof.

In witness whereof the said George Frederick Samuel Robinson, Marquis of
Ripon, &c., &c., has, to one part of this agreement, set his hand and weal, and the
company have, to another part of this agreement, caused their Common Seal to be affixed
the day and year above stated.

RIPON.

COLONIAL OFFICE, S. W., 11 th November, 1895.

The High Commissioner for Canada.

Si,-A proposal was recently made that a deputation of the Agents-General for
the Australasian Colonies and the High Commissioner for Canada should wait upon the
Secretary of State for the Colonies, with the view of discussing the question of the
Pacific cable; but it was arranged at the beginning of September that, having regard
to the meeting of Parliament and the consequent pressure of business, the interview
should be deferred to a more convenient season.

Since then the position of the matter bas been materially affected by the grant by
the Hawaiian Government to Col. L. S. Spalding, subject to certain conditions, of an
exclusive franchise for 20 vears to lay cables for commercial purposes. It is reported
that Col. Spalding, on obtaining this concession, entered into negotiations having for
their object the continuance to Honolulu of the cable laid by a French association
between New Caledonia and Queensland. If this whole project, as contemplated, is
carried through, San Francisco or some other point in the United States territory will
be placed in direct communication with Australasia, and it need hardly be observed
that in that case the position of the British project, from the financial point of view,
would be very prejudicially affected.

It seems, therefore, to Mr. Chamberlain, to be highly desirable that no further
time should be lost in considering the subject, and that some open step should be taken
which will disabuse foreign promoters of the idea that no competition is to be feared
from a British line, as recommended last year by the Ottawa Conference.

For this purpose Mr. Chamberlain would suggest that the proposed interview
should take place at an early date this month.

If it then appears that there is a sufficient body of opinion in favour of, considering
the terms on which united action could be taken, Mr. Chamberlain would be glad to
co-operate in the appointment of a joint commission, or to lend' 'assistance in any
other way which may seem best.

I am, &c.,
JOHN BRANSTON.

17 VICTORIA ST., LONDON, S.W., l9th November, 1895.
The Honourable

Sir MACKENZIE BoWELL, K.C.M.G.,
&c., &c., &c.

MY DEAR SIR MACKENZIE BOWELL,--The meeting between the agent-general and
myself and Mr. Chamberlain, took place to-day as before advised.

I stated to Mr. Chamberlain that my colleagues and myself were very much
gratified at the prompt manner in which he had responded to our request that he
would receive us in connection with the question of the Pacific cable; that I had
invited the agents-general of all the colonies to attend, including the representatives of
the Cape and Natal, which colonies, although not directly interested, were warmly in
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favour of the project; that all were present except those representing South and
Western Australia, who, for reasons with which he was already acquainted, did not
propose to assist.

I then read the following letter which I had received from Mr. Playford, agent
general for South Australia :

" In reply to yours of the 13th inst., I beg to say that I have written to Mr.
Chamberlain, in answer to his of the l th, informing him that my government have by
cable advised me that they are not in favour of the appointment of a commission to con-
sider the Pacific cable question.

Under the circumstances I feel it would be out of place for me to attend a
deputation, the object of which my government cannot support."

I also drew attention to the following statement made by Mr. Playford at the
Ottawa conference :

" I told the conference that if this line was required for public and imperial
purposes, our government will never in any way stand in the way. I am giving not
only my own opinion, but the opinion of my own government, and I believe of the
majority of the people of South Australia. If the work is done at all it should be
done as a government work.»

I said that the agents-general for Victoria, New South Wales, Queensland and
New Zealand and myseif had all been instructed by our respective governments to urge
upon the Secretary of State for the colonies the appointment of a commission on which
the Imperial government, Australasia and Canada should be represented for the
purpose of considering and reporting upon the best means to be adopted to secure the
prompt construction of a cable between Canada and Australasia; that I might call
his attention to the fact that my colleagues and myself had pressed in the strongest
manner upon the consideration of his predecessor, the Marquis of Ripon, and upon
Lord Rosebery, the great importance in connection with this work, of Her Majesty's
government promptly taking possession of Neckar Island; that Neckar Island was in
the same category as other islands which had been taken possession of by Her Majesty's
government in recent years without any remonstrance on the part of the Hawaiian
government; and we had furthur pointed out that as soon as it became known that we
were seriously contemplating the construction of a cable between Canada and Australasia
no doubt that island would be taken possession of by some other power. What we
had feared had taken place, and the Hawaiian government had formally taken possession
of Neckar Island-clearly showing that they had not previously done so, and with the,
unfortunate result that at least half a million pounds sterling had been added to the
necessary expenditure for the construction of the cable by the greater distance to
Fanning Island, which would now be required to be used in order to obtain the
important object of having the cable only touching British territory.

Mr. Chamberlain expressed his great interest in the subject, and felt that prompt
action was demanded by the movements on the part of foreign countries whose action
would seriously affect the support that the cable would otherwise receive. He stated
hie readiness to promptly appoint a commission, and suggested that it should consist of
six members-two to be nominated by the Imperial Government, two by Australasia,
and two by Canada.

He intimated the desirability of having two representatives of the Imperial Gov-
ernment, as he wished boththe Colonial Office and the Treasury to be represented on
the Commission.

He also expressed great satisfaction at the result of the tenders asked for by the
Canadian Government having elicited the fact that the contemplated expenditure would
not materially exceed a million and a half, and he could not doubt that the return from
such an enterprise would to a very large extent cover the expenditure that would be,
involved.

After soine general conversation respecting the terms of reference to the commis-
sion, he said that these would be submitted to us in the course of a day or two. It was
agreed that we should immediately inform our respective governments what had been
decided upon, and he would communicate in like manner with the governors of the,
various colonies concerned.
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When discussing the terms of reference, Sir Westby Perceval, the agent general
for New Zealand, suggested that the question of compensation to the South Australia and
Eastern Extension Telegraph Company might arise, but Mr. Chamberlain immediately
replied that it would be as well to state at once that Her Majesty's government would
not listen to the question of compensation from any source whatever.

After the meeting the agents-general adjourned to my office, where we settled on
the terms of the cable communication to our governments as follows :- -

" Re Pacific cable : Colonial Minister at interview to-day with the representatives of
al colonies, except South and West Australia, agreed to appoint commission, but sug-
gested six-two to be nominated by Imperial government, two Australasia, and two
Canada. Terms of reference will follow shortly."

Inclosed you will find the communique that was handed to the press by the
Colonial Office.

I feel sure that you will agree with me that under the existing circumstances no
good object could be gained by communicating Mr. Fleming's letter of 1lth October to
the agents-generai or to the Colonial Office, and I think we may al] congratulate our-
selves of having advanced this matter in such a material degree as I have no doubt will
result in promptly securing the establishment of this invaluable line of communication.

I beg to quote the telegram dispatched yesterday by the agent-general for New
South Wales to the Premier of that colony.

" High Commissioner for Canada and agents-general for Australasian colonies
except South Australia and Western Australia had interview wiTh Secretary of State
for the colonies to-day relating to Pacific Cable. Mr. -Chamberlain agreed to appoint a
commission as suggested by colonies. Great Britain, Canada and Australasian colonies
each to nominate two commissioners, that is to say six in all. Repeat this joint tele-
gram to other colonial governments, including New Zealand, and communicate here
names of colonies' nominees. Prompt action desirable. Terms of reference will be
forwarded to you to-morrow will include full inquiry into all details."

I am, &c.,

CHARLES TUPPER.

(Memorandum.)

THE PACIFIC CABLE.

The present administration of the Dominion and the Canadian Parliament have
during the past year in emphatic terms, declared to the world that "the Canadian
Government and people are determined, in al] ways, to promote imperial unity."

Imperial unity will practically remain an impossibility without union by telegraph
of the two great divisions of the Empire, Canada and Australasia.

A POTENT FACTOR IN FOsTERING TRADE AND SHIPPING,

The telegraphic connection of the Dominion with the Australian continent and
New Zealand would not simply advance the unity and greatness of the Empire, it would
promote Canadian interests on the Pacific by developing trade and shipping far beyond
any present conceptions. Steam and electricity go hand in hand. Trade and telegraphy
are intimately blended, the latter being the most valuable ally of the former in building
up and expediting all business. As the means of collecting cargoes for shipment, the
telegraph is indispensable-without electric cables across the Atlantic the successful
operation of fleets of ocean steamships would be impossible. A cable across the Pacific
would be of similar utility, it would successfully promote the interchange of both freight
and passenger traffic, it would foster and help to build up a commerce on that ocean, the
magnitude of which, at this period, is not deemed possible.
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THE DUTY OF CANADA.

The project of the Pacific cable, its bearing on the commercial future of the Dominion,
its influence on the well-being of the Empire, with the causes which have delayed its
establishment, are set forth in the letter addressed by the undersigned to the Premier,
published on 1st January of the present 'year. Since that date circumstances have
arisen which have a material bearing on the subject and which demand the most earnest
attention.

Independently of the benefits that will accrue to Canada and Australasia, the cable
bas distinctive elements of imperial importance; nevertheless the Home Authorities do
not see the way to take the initiative in its consummation. On the contrary they ask for
a proposal for its attainment from the Australasian Colonies or from Canada. The
Australasian Colonies are disunited politically, and much as they require and desire an
alternative telegraph route to Great Britain, they are not in a position to submit the
proposal suggested. Consequently under these circumatances the duty of taking the
initiative step devolves upon Canada, and the question presented is, what fair and
reasonable proposal can Canada submit I ,

THE COMMERCIAL ASPECT OF THE PROJECT.

As we regard the subject in its commercial aspect, we must recognize that the com-
mercial success of the Pacific cable must depend on the business it will command.
There is an enormous and constaitly increasing cable business between Australasia and
Europe, which takes its origin chiefly in the four principal colonies, New South Wales,
Victoria, Queensland and INew Zealand ; it is far greater than is actually required to
yield a revenue sufficient to pay ail charges connected with the establishment and work-
ing of the cable. Investigation has demonstrated that less than half this business would
meet every charge, including interest and sinking fund to replace capital, and make the
undertaking, as a State work, self-supporting.

HOW REMUNERATIVE TRAFFIC CAN BE SECURED.

The land lines within each respective Colony are public property, controlled by the
Post Office Departments. The four Governments of New South Wales, Victoria,
Queensland and New Zealand, would therefore have it in their power to direct traffie
over the Pacific cable to the extent required to make it remunerative.

From a business standpoint it is of the first importance that the governments con-
trolling the traffic should be directly interested in the commercial success of the under-
taking. It will be obvious, therefore, that in any proposal which Canada may make it
would be advisable to stipulate that the four colonies named should have a proprietary
interest in the cable, or that they should guarantee the traffic, in ample volume to yield
a net revenue sufficient to meet all charges. On this principle the suggested proposals
No. 1, No. 2 and No. 3, appended, are based.

COST OF THE CABLE.

The tenders received by the Canadian Government in 1894 prove that the Pacifie
cable can be established at a cost of £1,500,000. Of this sum it is understood, although
it has not been definitely settled, that the Home Government may contribute one-third,
or £500,000, leaving £1,000,000 to be made up in some form by the Australasian
Colonies and Canada.

sUGGESTED PROPOSALS.

Proposal No. 1 suggests that Canada and the four Australasian Colonies should
each hold an equal proprietary interest, each sharing alike one-fifth in costs and profits,
and that the Imperial government should be invited to advance, on loan, a portion of
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the capital Possibly this proposal may best be carried out by means of a " Pacifie Cable
Trust," duly empowered by the several parliaments.

Proposal No. 2 suggesta that the four colonies should guarantee the traffic, and
that the Imperial Government and Canada together should agree to lay and work the
cable.

Proposal No. 3 is much the same as No. 2. It would, however, have the advan-
tage of limiting executive action and responsibility to one government.

Either proposal would, it is believed, lead to the accomplishment of the desired
object. Under either plan a liability would be incurred by the Dominion, but all
charges being met by revenue the liability would in reality become merely nominal and
there would be no charge imposed on the public exchequer.*

HOSTILE PROJECTS.

In the letter of the undersigned to the Premier it is pointed out that a Pacifie
cable on the Canadian route meets with strenuous opposition from adverse intereste,
and that two rival projects are pressed forward with vigour. First.-The Eastern
Extensson Telegraph Company propose as a substitute for the Canadian line, a cable
from Australia to Great Britain via the Cape of Good Hope. Second.-A cable is pro-
jected from San Francisco to Australia, and the United States Congres is now strongly
appealed to for a large subsidy. The first section is to extend from San Francisco to
Honolulu, thence by Tahiti and Samoa to the French penal settlement at New Cale-
donia. From New Caledonia a cable under the control of the French government is
already laid to Queensland.

A CABLE FROM SAN FRANCISCO.

In my letter above mentioned I have pointed out that the project of the Eastern
Extension Company would be no adequate substitute for the Canadian Pacific cable.
With respect to the projected cable from San Francisco it is obvious that as3 this line
would be under the control of the United States and French Governments, little regard
would be had to Canadian interests. Controlled by foreign powers such a trans-Pacific
cable would fail altogether to supply the want of a- British cable from Canada to
Australia. We must, however, recognize that the completion of either of these cables,
the one by the Cape of Good Hope, or the other by San Francisco, would meet the com-
mercial needs of the Australasian Colonies. But while so acting it would endanger the
prospects, if it did not indefinitely postpone the establishment of the Canadian Pacifie
cable. That there is actual danger of' such a consequence will be apparent from inform-
ation received within the past few days, as follows:-

HONOLULU, 3rd February, 1898.

"The French cruiser ' Duguay Truin' entered port this morning aid the usual salutes
were exchanged. The Cabinet is bewildered, as the vessel brought a letter informing
the government that the French cable from Tahiti, touching at Honolulu, will be
immediately laid."

SHALL CANADA BE "sIDE-TRACKED"I

Does not this intelligence, with the movements in the United States, together with
the troubles in Chinese waters, suggest that the time for inaction on our part should
end I There seems little doubt that unless Canada moves in the matter and that
speedily, France and the United States will shortly carry out the project of a trans-

* A private compaly proposed some years ago to establish the cable under government subsidies. An
Order in Council was passed by the Canadian government (July 19th, 1887) ageeing to pay £7,500 per
annum for 25 years, equaltoa total pfenby a 5of 187 without taking account of interest on
such payments. The company asked dditional subidies from tie Rome Government and the Australasian
Colonies of £67,500 per annum, making £75,000 for 25 years or in al £1,870,000. The proposai of the
company was not accepted by the other governments, so nothing further was done.

11
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Pacifie cable and leave the Dominion (what in railway parlance is termed) side-racked.
Do we not owe it to our self-interest as well as our self-respect, that the means of com-
munication with our fellow subjects in the southern seas should not fall into foreign
hands ? Commercially there is not room for two cables across the Pacific for years-our
own all-British cable should be first, and would be first if we so determine.

A DECISIVE STEP NECESsARY.

This is indeed a rare opportunity for the Parliament and people of Canada, taking
a decisive step-a step which will secure to us in the future our maritime position on
the Pacific, and which without cost to the taxpayer will at once extend our trade, and
draw the separate parts of the Empire more closely together.

THE GRATITUDE OF THE EMPIRE.

Should the Canadian government see the way to submit to the other governments
concerned, a fair and reasonable proposal, it can scarcely fail at this juncture, to be
readily accepted, and if accepted it must lead to the satisfactory accomplishment of a
great Imperial connecting link of much commercial utility. Even if the proposal be
declired, the action taken by our Government would redound no less to the credit of
Canada than the tariff action of last year.

The London Times points out in a late issue (18th January) that Canada has " shown
herself well able to deal with questions of a wider than provincial range " and that by
taking the lead in initiating the Pacifia cable "she would deserve no less the gratitude
than the respect of the Empire."

SANDFORD FLEMING.
OTTAWA, 19th February, 1898.

SUGGESTED PROPOSAL No. 1.

1. It is proposed that the five governments of Canada, New Zealand, New South
Wales, Victoria and Queensland, or any four of them shall enter into a join' arrange-
ment for establishing an electric cable across the Pacifia, sharing equally in costa and
profits.

2. That the Imperial government be invited to guarantee, or loan, one-third of the
capital, or assist in such manner as the Home Authorities may determine.

3. That the High Commissioner for Canada, and the Agents-General for the four
Australasian Colonies in London, be charged with the duty of ascertaining how best to
carry out the proposal and that they enter on their duties so soon as the assent of their
respective governments be obtained.

SUGGESTED PROPOSAL No. 2.

It is proposed that the Home Government and Canadian government jointly shall
proceed to connect British Columbia with Australia and New Zealand by direct sub-
marine telegraph and shall adopt means to work the same for commercial purposes on
the following conditions, viz. :-

1. That the governments of New South Wales, Victoria, Queensland, and New
Zealand or any three of them, shall each guarantee that the revenue to be derived from
the transmission of messages shall be sufficient to meet all charges, including working
expenses, repairs, maintenance, interest and sinking fund to replace capital.

2. That the guaranteeing governments shall determine the rates o be charged for
the transmission of messages and shall have the power to lower the rates from time to
time as they may deem expedient.
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3. That if by reason of the lowering of rates, or any other cause, the earnings fall
short in any one year of the sum required to meet all charges above referred to, the
guaranteeing governments shall make good the deficiency.

SUGGESTED PROPOSAL No. 3.

It is proposed that the government of Canada shall establish an electric sub-
marine cable from British Columbia to Australia and New Zealand, touching at
Fanning Island, Fiji Island and Norfolk Island and shall take means to work the same
for commercial purposes on the following conditions, viz.:-

1. That Her Majesty's Home government shall assist in the undertaking by the
loan of a considerable portion of the capital, or by guaranteeing the same.

2. That the governments of New South Wales, Victoria, Queensland and New
Zealand, or any three of them shall each guarantee that the revenue to be derived
from the transmission of messages shall be suflicient to meet all charges, including work-
ing expenses, repairs, maintenance, interest, and sinking fund to replace capital.

3. That the guaranteeing governments shall determine the rates to be charged for
the transmission of messages and shall have the power to lower the rates from time to
time as they may deem expedient.

4. That if by reason of the lowering of rates or any other cause, the earnings fall
short, in any one year, of the sum required to meet all charges above referred to, the
guaranteeing governments shall make good the deficiency.

VIcToRIA GOVERNMENT HOUsE,
MELBOURNE, 29th March, 1898.

The Right Honourable
JOSEPH CiHAMBERLAIN, M.P.

SIR,-At the instance of the Premier, Sir George Turner, I have the honour to
transmit to you a copy of a resolution adopted at a conference of Premiers held
this month at which the Governments of New South Wales, Victoria, South Australia,
Queensland, Tasmania and Western Australia were represented, with respect to the
questions of a Pacific cable, and a cable via the Cape.

I have, &c.,

JOHN MADDEN.

Resolution-Premier8' Conjerence, March, 1898.

9.-PACIFIC CABLE, AND CABLE VIA CAPE.

Reolved, that if Great Britain and Canada will contribute each one-third of the
cost, the four colonies of New South Wales, Victoria, Queensland and Tasmania will
favourably consider the proposal for a Pacific cable, and the provision of the remaining
one-third of the contribution.

Mr. Kingston and Sir John Forrest did not join in this resolutin, being disposed
to perfer the Cape route, stopping at Perth. It was considered that, in any case, fair
consideration should be given to the position of South Australia, in view of the large
expenditure by that colony in the past on cable service.

13
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918 K.
PRIVY COUNCIL, CANADA,

DOWNING, S'rREET, lOth May, 1898.
The Officer Administering

The Government of Canada.

My LoRD,-I have the honour to transmit to you for communication to your
Ministers, copies of the documents noted below respecting the question of a Pacifie cable.

I have, &c.,

EDWARD WINGFIELD,
For the Secretary of State.

Date. Description of Document.

March 29th '98.
The Officer administering the Government of Victoria to the Secretary of State for

the Colonies.
Resolution adopted by Conference of Australian Premiers.

DEPARTMENT op TRADE AND COMMERCE,
OTTAWA, June 1lth, 1898.

The undersigned Minister of Trade and Commerce has the honour to acknowledge
the receipt of P. C. Reference No. 918 K., being a copy of a communication from the
Colonial Office, of date the 10th ultimo, to His Excellency the Governor General, for-
warding a copy of a communication from Government House, Melbourue, Victoria,
covering a copy of a Resolution adopted by the Conference of Australian Premiers
held in March last, on the subject of "Pacifie Cables," and to report having caused the
same to be placed on file with other papers in connection with the matter for considera-
tion when an opportune time for such purpose can be found.

17 VicToRiA STREET,

The Honourable 
LONDON, S.W., 29th July, 1898.

Sir RonARD CARTWRIGHT, G.C.M.G.
Minister of Trade and Commerce,

Ottawa.

MY DEAR SIR RICHARD,-At the close of the Postal Conference a few days ago,
some of the Australian delegates desired to discuse with me the Pacifie cable scheme,
when I informed them that I had no authority from our government to deal with the
matter, but that I should be quite pleased to hear all they desired to say and report the
same to the government, and a time has been fired for an informal and wholly unofficial
meeting.

It would beem that all the Australian colonies are not in favour of the construction
of the Pacifle cable. Amongst others I would jùdge South Australia, for I have this
morning received the inclosed letter from the Hon. J. A. Cockburn, M.D., Agent
General for South Australia, which appears to suggest that no Pacific cable is needed.

I inclose bis letter to be put on file, together with oopy of my aoknowledgment to
him.

Yours sincerely,
WM. MULOCK.
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OFFICE OF AGENT GENERAL voi SouTH AUsTRALIA,
1 Crosby Square, Bishopegate Street, Within,

LoNDON, E.C., 28th July, 1898.
The Honourable

The Postmaster General for Canada,
17 Victoria Street, S.W.

SIR,-In reference to the question of telegraphic communication with the Austra-
lian colonies, I have been requested by the government of South Australia to inform
you that at a cost of over £50,000 we have in hand the work of erecting a second wire
in the line from Port Darwin to Adelaide, and are duplicating the line at all dangerous
crossings.

Both lines will be worked duplex, so that not only will there be greater expedition
in transmission of messages, but the possibility of delay from a breakdown will be
reduced to a minimum.

I am, sir, your obedient servant,
J. A. COCKBURN,

Agent General.

17 VICTORIA STREET,
LONDON, S.W., 29th July, 1898.

The Honourable J. A. COCBURN, M.D.,
Agent General, South Australia.

SI,-I have your letter of the 28th instant, stating that you have been requested
by the government of South Australia to inform me that at a cost of over £50,000
your government bas undertaken the work of erecting a second wire on the line from
Port Darwin to Adelaide, and is duplicating the line at all dangerous crossings whereby
greater expedition will be secured and, at the same time, the pousibility of delay from a
breakdown will be reduced to a minimum.

In reply, I would say that I have no instructions from the Canadian government
to represent them in connection with the proposed Pacific cable scheme, that matter
pertaining to the department of Trade and Commerce, but I shall have much pleasure
in transmitting your communication to Sir Richard Cartwright, the minister in charge
of that department.

Yours sincerely,
WM. MULOCK.

17 VICTORIA STREET,
LONDON, S.W., 23rd August, 1898.

The Honourable SIR RICHARD CARTWRIGHT, G.C.M.G.,
Minister of Trade and Commerce,

Ottawa.

Dear Sir RICHARD CARTRIGHT,-With references to previous correspondence on
the subject of the Pacifie cable project, I now beg to quote for the information of the
government a Reuter's telegram from Sydney, dated 21st August, which appeared in
the papers of yesterday:-

" At the conference of the premiers of New South Wales, Victoria and Queenaland
which met here to-day it was decided, with reference to the Pacifie cable project, to
make a definite offer that if Great Britain and Canada would collectively guarantee
five-ninths of the cost of laying the cable the premiers would recommend their respective
legislatures to contribute one-ninth each, asking New Zealand to contribute the remain-
ing ninth."

Believe me yours very truly,
STRATHOONA.
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VICTORIA OFFICE, 15 VICTORIA STREET,
'WEsTMINSTER, S.W., 2nd August, 1898.

The Under-Secretary of State,
Colonial Office.

SiR,-I have the honour to forward herewith a copy of a letter addressed to the
Premier of Victoria by the Melbourne Chamber of Commerce, together with a copy of
the resolution therein referred to relative to the Pacifie cable question.

I have also to inform you that I am instructed by my government to place these
documents before the Secretary of State for the Colonies and to urge upon him, on behalf
of Victoria, that in view of the importance of the issues involved no other project should
be allowed to interfere with the prosecution of the establishment of the Pacific cable.

I have, &c.,
ANDREW CLARK.

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE,
MELBOURNE, 6th June, 1898.

The Right Honourable,
Sir GEORGE TURNER,

SIR,-I have the honour, by direction of the President and Council of this Chamber
to forward to you copy of a resolution arrived at by the Council at their last meeting
on the subject of the long projected Pacific cable.

I am respectfully to say that the terme of a recent press telegram intimate that the
committee of the Imperial government, which had been dealing with this matter, had
reported unfavourably on the question of a Cable via the Pacific, notwithstanding the
strong and general opinions expressed at conferences and by the heads of the colonies
most interested and the weighty evidences in favour of the project which this Chamber
has been assured were put before the Imperial Committee.

I am further respectfully to suggest that the recent movements of the Foreign
Powers in acquiring new stations in the North Pacific and the East generally as well as
the significant action of the Russian Authorities in insisting upon partial control of
the telegraph lines passing through their territory to Hong Kong furnish new and
urgent reasons for adhering to the recognized necessity of an all-British telegraph line
to Australia as well as of relieving the colonies from the obvious perils incidental to a
great telegraphic monopoly, even if the suggested line via South Africa could be made
to touch only on British territory.

My Council therefore trust that your government will again urge these views on
the Colonial Office and on the government of the Canadian Dominion.

I have, &c.,

C. HALLETT,
Secretary.

(Copy of the Resolutioit Adopted by the Chamber of Commerce.)

" That in the opinion of this Council the peril of these Colonies in case of the
Empire becoming involved in war has been accentuated by the adverse pronouncement
of the Departmental Committee of the Imperial government when reporting on the
proposed extension of an all-British telegraph line to Australia. That the activity
displayed by other nations in strengthening their military and naval positions in
neighbouring seas and connecting them by a net work of cables of which they have
exclusive or partial control, furnishes new and demonstrable evidence of the necessity of
the long discussed cable acrosa the Pacific, and that it be urgently suggested to the
Right Honourable the Premier, that the Colonial Office and the government of the
Canadian Dominion should be appealed to with a view to a definite decision in favour
of this great work being no longer delayed."
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17 VICTORIA STREET,
LONDON, S. W., 25th August, 1898,

The Honourable
The Minister of Trade and Commerce,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I am directed by the High Commissioner to transmit to you, herewith, for
your information and in continuation of previous correspondence, a copy of a letter
from the Colonial Ofice, covering communications, with inclosures, from the officer
lately administering the government of Queensland, and the Agent General for
Victoria, on the subject of the proposed Pacific telegraph cable.

I have the honour, &c,
ARTHUR W. REYNOLDS,

Asst. Secretary for High Commissioner.

COLONIAL OFFICE,
DowNING STREET, 24th August, 1898.

The High Commissioner for Canada.

My LORD,-I am directed by the Secretary of State for the Colonies to transmit
to you, for your information, with reference to previous correspondence respecting the
proposed Pacifie telegraph cable, copies of a despatch with enclosures on the subject
from the officer lately administering the government of Queensland, and of a letter
with inclosure from the Agent General for Victoria.

I am, My Lord,
Your moet obedient servant,

EDWARD WINGFIELD.

GOVERNMENT HoUSE, BRIsBANE,
QUEENSLAND, 18th May, 1898.

The Right Honourable
The Secretary of State for the Colonies.

SIn,-I have the honour to inclose for your information copy of a letter from the
Honourable the Chief Secretary, transmitting a copy of a resolution on the subject of
the proposad Pacific telegraph cable, adopted at the Postal Conference of representa-
tives of the Australasian Colonies held at Hobart in March last.

I have, &c.,
S. W. GRIFFITH,

Deputy Governor.

CHIEF SECRETARY'S OFFICE,
BRISBANE, 1Ith May, 1898.

The Honourable
Sir S. W. GRIFFITH, G.C.M.G.,

Deputy Governor.

SI,-I have the honour to inclose, herewith, for transmission to the Right
Honourable the Secretary of State for the Colonies, a copy of a Resolution on the sub-
ject of the proposed Pacifie Submarine Telegraph Cable, adopted at the Postal Confer-
ence of representatives of the Australasian Colonies held in Hobart in March last, and
to request that you will be good enough in forwarding the resolution to the Secretary
of State, to inform Mr. Chamberlain that this government is strongly impressed with

17



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 51.) A. 1899

the importance, as well from a national as from a commercial standpoint, to the
Australasian Colonies, of the establishment of a means of telegraphic communication
with Great Britain entirely independent of the existing system, and free from foreign
control. We are prepared to afford all possible assistance to the project for the con-
struction of a submarine cable across the Pacific cable (ocean) to Canada, and are there-
fore thoroughly in accord with the opinion expressed by the Postal Conference. I shall
feel obliged, accordingly, if you will ask the Secretary of State to urge upon the Imper-
ial government the desireableness of taking prompt action with a view to some definite
arrangement being concluded between Great Britain, the Dominion of Canada, and the
Australasian Colonies, which would ensure the carrying out of the undertaking in
question. 

I have, &c.,

JAMES R. DICKSON,
For the Chief Secretary.

Resolution adopted at the Postal Conference of repre8entatives of the Australasian
Colonies held at Hobart in March, 1898.

"That this Conference re-affirms the opinion that, in the interests of Australasia,
the Pacifie cable project should be consumated as speedily as practicable and that the
Governments of the various Australasian Colonies be requested to represent to the
Imperial and Dominion governments the foregoing opinion, together with the proposal
of the Premiers as agreed to at their recent Conference held in Melbourne, viz. :-That
if Great Britain and Canada would each contribute one-third of the cost, the Colonies
would be prepared to contribute the remaining third."

6th September, 1898.
The Right Honourable

Lord STRATHCON, G.C.M.G.,
High Commissioner for Canada,

London, England.

MY LoR,-I have the honour to acknowledge with thanks the receipt of your
Nos. 684-700 of the 23rd and 25th of August, respectively, further in re Pacific cable.

I have, &c.,
For Deputy Minister.

NEW SOUTH WALEs GOVERNMENT.
WESTMINSTER CHAMBERS, 9 VICTPORIA, STREET,

WESTMINSTER, S.W., 28th August, 1898.
The High Commissioner for Canada,

London.

SiR,-I have the honour to inclose herein a copy of a telegram addressed to me to-
day by the Honourable the Premier and Colonial Treasurer of New South Wales, report-
ing an agreement arrived at b a recent conference at Sydney of the Premiers of
Queensland, Victoria and New South Wales, respecting the proposed Pacific cable.

A copy of the telegram has been sent to the Secretary of State for the Colonie.

I have, &c.,

DANIEL COOPER.
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(Copy of Telegram.)

From the Honourable the Premier and Colonial Treasurer of New South Wales
To the Acting Agent-General for the Colony, London.

SYDNEY, 29th August, 1898.

Pacifie Cable. Conference of Premiers, New South Wales, Queensland, Victoria,
just held Sydney. Agreed that if Great Britain and Canada pay five-ninths and New
Zealand one-ninth then New South Wales, Queensland, Victoria will contribute one-
ninth each.

PREMIER AND COLONIAL TREASURER.

VIcToRIA OFFICE, 15 VICTORIA STREET,
WESTMINSTER, S.W., 29th August, 1898.

The High Commissioner for Canada.

Si,-I have the honour to forward herewith copy of a letter which I have this day
addressed to the Under-Secretary of State for the Colonies relating to the proposed
Pacifie cable.

I have, &c.,
AND. CLARK.

15 VIcToRIA STREET,
WEsTMINsTER, 29th August, 1898.

The Under Secretary of State,
Colonial Office.

SIR,-I have the honour to inform you that I have received the following telegram
from my government on the subject of the proposed Pacifie cable:-

Pacifie Cable Conference of Premiers, New South Wales, Queensland, Victoria,
just held Sydney. Agree that if Great Britain and Canada pay five-ninths and New
Zealand one-ninth, then New South Wales, Queensland, Victoria will contribute one-
ninth each.

I have, &c.,
AND. CLARK.

17 VICTORIA ST.,
LONDON, S.W., 6th September, 1898.

The Honourable
The Minister of Trade and Commerce,

Ottawa.

DEAR SIR RicHARD CAiTwRJGu,-I beg to confirm the following telegram which
I addressed to you on the 1st inst., relative to the proposed Pacifie cable:-

" Premier New South Wales cables Agent General that agreed at Conference, Pre-
miers New South Wales, Queensland, Victoria just held Sydney, those colonies will
contribute one-ninth each to Pacifie cable if Great Britain and Canada pay five-ninths
and New Zealand ono-ninth."

I now transmit, for your information, a copy of the letter I received from the Agent
General for New South Wales, with its inclosure, on which my message to you was
based ; together with a letter addresed to me by the Agent General for Victoria,
inclosing a communication sent by him to the Colonial Office, from which you will observe
that he has been telegraphed by his government in terme identical with the message
sent to the Agent General for New South Wales.
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I take the opportunity to send you also a cutting of a telegram which appeared in
the papers on the Ist inst, in which it is announced that the New Zealand Government
are prepared to support the scheme to the extent of one-eighth of the cost, and also to
invest the Canadian Government with the construction and management of the cable.

Believe me, yours very truly,

STRATHCONA.

P.S.-I also inclose an extract from the Daily Chronicle of the 3rd instant, giving
the text of a telegram from New York showing what is being done in the United
States with the object of establishing cables in the Pacific.

S. M.

Extract /rom " The Daily Chronicle," September 3rd, 1898.

THE PACIF1C CABLE.

Duplicate Sy8tem Arranged.

NEW YoRK, Friday.

Important developments in the plans of the Pacific Cable Company have been decided
on after a meeting at the office of Mesrs. J. P. Morgan & Co. In addition to the lines
which are to connect San Francisco, Honolulu, the Ladrones, the Carolines, Manila and
Japan, a duplicate system is now arranged for connecting Japan with Sitka and the
Aleutian Islands. Surveys will be begun at once. Mr. James A. Scrymser, president
of the company, left last night for Japan via Vancouver, to arrange contracts with the
Tokio Government. The company hopes that Japan and the United States will both
subsidize the scheme.

STREET's ADVERTIsING OFFICEs,
30 CORNHILL, LoNDON, E.C., 3rd September, 1898.

(Pres Notice8.)

"MONEY MARKET REVIEW."

THE CANADIAN PACIFIC CABLE.

"A Reuter's telegram from Wellington (New Zealand), dated 31st August, states:
"A select committee of the House of Representatives report that it is desirable to

establish cable communication between Australia, New Zealand and England, via the
Pacific and Canada. It is recommended that New Zealand should join with the other
Australasian colonies upon the basis of a guarantee of four-ninths of the cost of con-
struction and of any annual deficiency, New Zealand's proportion not to exceed one-
eighth of the whole. Further, the report recommends that the Canadian government
should be entrusted with the construction, administration and maintenance of the cable,
on the understanding that the contributing colonies have a right to be represented and
vote on matters of policy and management, and that the cable be jointly owned and
controlled by the contributing country and colonies.

" The report goes on to say that it is desirable that a conference of representatives
of the countries concerned should be held in New Zealand."
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The Right Honourable 16th September, 1898

Lord STRATHCONA, G.C.M.G.,
High Commissioner for Canada, &c., &c.,

London, England.

My LoRD,-In the abs-nce of the Honourable the Minister, I beg to acknowledge
the receipt of your No. 714 of the 6th instant, further in re proposed "Pacifie cable, "
and am pleased to note the action taken by New South Wales and New Zealand, which
seem to clpar the way of some obstruction that has heretofore existed.

I will forward your communication and attaches to the Minister.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

W. G. PARMELEE.
Deputy Minister.

17 VICTORIA ST., LONDON, S.W., 17th September, 1898.

DEAR SIR RIcHARD CARTWRIGHT,-With reference to previous correspondence
regarding the Pacific cable project, I beg to inclose for your information a copy of a
paper published by the Parliament of Cape of Good Hope, embodying copies of commu-
nications that have passed between the government of the colony, the Imperial Govern-
ment, and the Eastern Telegraph Company, on the subject of a deep sea cable via the
Cape, with extension to Australia. This will acquaint you with the methods which are
being adopted by the Eastern and other interested companies to maintain their present
monopoly, and to prevent the possibility of competition arising from a cable across the
Pacifie.

As you will have gathered from my recent communications, the Australian colonies
have now definitely announced their acceptance of the Pacific cable proposals to the
extent of four-ninths of the requisite capital, subject to Great Britain and Canada con-
tributing the remainder, and I think it would have the best of good effects if it were
possible for the Canadian government to follow this up by making some announcement
as to the proportion of expenses for which they would be prepared to become respon-
sible. This, of course, if in accordance with the views of the Dominion government,
would, I think, be calculated to bring about a definite consideration of the question by
Her Majesty's Government.

I also inclose for your information a paper published by the New Zealand
government relating to telegraph cables.

Believe me, &c.,

STRATHCONA.

INTERNATIONAL COMMISSION, QUEBEc, 4th October, 1898.

The Right Honourable LORD STRATHCONA,
High Commissioner, &c., &c., London.

DEAR LORD STRATHCONA,-I am in receipt of your No. 729 of the 17th ultimo,
further re Pacifie cable, which I will bring to the attention of my colleagues at the
earliest practicable moment, with a view to eliciting an expression of their views on the

Subject.I remain, &c.,

R. J. CARTWRIGHT.
21
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OTTAWA, lst November, 1898.
lon. R. W. Scorr,

Secretary of State,
Ottawa.

SIR,--I have the honour to inclose for the information of the government a copy
of a letter to the Right Honourable Joseph Chamberlain on the subject of a State-owned
system of electric cables for the Empire.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

SANDFORD FLEMING.

(Letter to the Right Honourable Joseph Chamberlain on the subject of a State-owned
System of Electric Cables for the Empire. By Sir Sandford Fleming.)

OTTÂWA, 28th October, 1898.
The Right Honourable

JOSEPH CHAMBERLAIN,
Secretary of State for the Colonies.

SIR,-I had the honour, on 28th December of last year, to address Sir Wilfrid
Laurier respecting the proposal to establish a state-owned Pacifie cable. Circumstances
have since arisen which impel me to ask permission to address you on the subject of a
state-owned system of cables for the British Empire.

The paper which follows discusses the subject on its merits. I venture to think
that the arguments adduced make it clear that such a service is extremely desirable and
is fast becoming a necessity. The telegraph is an essential ally of commerce and is
indispensable to the full and satisfactory development of trade and shipping. The trans-
Pacifie steamship lines which have been established are heavily handicapped by the
absence of any direct means of telegraphy between the ports with which trade is carried
on. The Pacific cable would serve the purposes of trade between Australasia and
Canada, but these countries are debarred from establishing independent telegraphic
connection with Hong Kong, the terminal port of one of the steamship lines. Under
an agreement, dated 28th October, 1893, the Eastern Extension Telegraph Company
strengthened its monopoly by baving Canada and the southern colonies telegraphically
excluded from Hong Kong and forbidden to lay, or assist in laying, any new cable to
that port for a period which does not expire until twenty years from the present date.

There remains only one way of gaining telegraphic connection with Hong Kong
freed from exacting charges, and that is through the Home government. In granting
to the Eastern Extension Company exclusive privileges, Lord Ripon, then Colonial
Secretary, reserved to Her Majesty's government the option to take possession of the
cable between Singapore, Labuan and Hong Kong, by giving twelve months' notice and
paying the company £300,000.

My letter of December last to Sir Wilfrid Laurier (copy inclosed) sets forth the
position and the attitude, to Canada and the Aurtralasian colonies, of the Eastern Exten-
sion Telegraph Company. The proposal submitted in the following paper would
undoubtedly interfere with the rich monopoly which that company enjoys, and to some
extent, and for some time, diminish its profits; but I venture to hold that no private
company, however rich and influeiitial, should be allowed to stand in the way when
great Imperial interests are at stake. It must be borne in mind, too, that telegraphy
is one of the most astonishing results of science, and that the facilities which it offers, if
not shackled by hinderances, may be rendered of greater and greater value to the human
race.
r The advantages of cable connections and low charges increase with distance in an
accelerated ratio. It is impossible, therefore, to set a limit to the commercial, social
and political benefits which would result to the Empire from a state-controlled cable
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service reaching every British possession. In the following remarks I have pointed out
that the Pacifie cable, established as now proposed, will prove to be the key to such a
service, and practically its forerunner.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

SANDFORD FLEMING.

BRITISH EMPIRE CABLE SERVICE.

The action recently taken in London in adopting the principle of cheap Imperial
postage suggests that the time has arrived when the expediency of establishing a com-
plete telegraph cable system throughout the Empire may be considered on its merits.
The advantages which will inevitably follow the adoption of a universal penny postage
appear to be generally recognized, and I venture to think the public mind will be
prepared to entertain favourably another proposal not less important. It is not neces-
eary in the least to undervalue cheap postage or detract from its immense importance
in order to show that a cheap telegraph service on a comprehensive scale is easily
attainable, and that it would prove an effective means of speedy communication for an
Empire such as ours.

The transmission of letters has always been a function of the government; indeed,
it has been wisely held throughout the civilized world that the postal service should be
controlled by the State. The electric telegraph is a comparatively modern introduction.
In the mother country private companies were the first to establish lines of telegraph,
but in 1868 it was found to be in the public interest to have them taken over by the
8tate and placed under the Post Office Department.

A Committee of Inquiry had reported to Parliament: " That the telegraph service
as managed by companies, (1) maintained excessive charges, (2) occasioned frequent and
vexatious delays in the transmission of messages, and inaccuracies in sending them, (3)
left a large number of important towns and districts wholly unprovided for, and (4)
placed special difficulties in the way of that newspaper press which had in the interest
of the public a claim, so just and so obvious, to special facilities." The transfer was
effected in 1870. Changes and improvements were inimediately made; the telegraph
service, previously confined to lines connecting great cities where business was most
lucrative, was extended to many towns and districts previously neglected, and, not-
withstanding the, fact that the charges on messages were greatly reduced, the business
developed to such an extent that the receipts progressively increased. Before the
transfer it cost about six shillings to send an ordinary message from London to Scotland
or Ireland. The rate was reduced to a shilling, and subsequently to six pence (the rate
at present charged), and for that sum a telegram can be sent from any one station to
any other station within the limits of the United Kingdom, without regard to distance.

It was early discovered by every country in Europe that so efficient a servant to
trade and commerce, so important an aid to the State itself, should become a national
institution. France,Austria, Prussia, Russia, Sardinia, Italy, Spain, Portugal and Belgium,
each established a State telegraph system, and, as in Great Britain, experience has
shown that they have done this, not only with advantage to the various administrative
necessities, but with benefit to the public at large.

Such being the unanimous conclusion, is not the application of the principle of
State ownership on a larger scale than hitherto attempted a fit subject for inquiryl
Is it not desirable and expedient that the whole British Empire should have a State-
controlled cable system 1

The conditions of the Empire are totally different to what they were some years
back. When Her Majesty ascended the throne there was not a single mile of electric
telegraph anywhere. There was not an iron ship of any class afloat, and mail steam-
ships were practically unknown. From that period the conditions have been continually
changing and the process of growth and development still goes on. True, change has
met with resistence from individuals and companies and classes, but resist it who
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may, the law of development follows its steady course and continually makes demands
on science and skill to meet the ever-changing conditions. We are living in an age of
transformation; the spirit of discovery and enterprise, of invention and achievement,
has exteznded and expanded the British Empire from the small islands on the coast of
Europe to new territories, continential in extent, in both hemispheres. The develop-
ment of the mercantile marine has carried the flag of our country over every mile of sea
to meridians far distant from the mother land. In these distant territories, communities
have established themselves under the protection of that flag. They have drawn
riches from the forest, the soil and the mine. They have caused noble cities to spring
up, rivalling in the splendour of their streets and buildings the finest cities of the Old
World. These young nations, full of hope and vigour, have made progress in every
direction; they are imbued with lofty aspirations, and their most ardent desire is to
give their energy and strength to the building up of a greater British Empire, on the
firm foundation of common interest and common sentiment.

At an earlier period in the world's history it would have been diflicult to conceive
the possibility of any lasting political union between countries so widely separated by
intervening seas. The problem is, however, being solved, not by old methods, but by
the application of wise principles of government, aided in a wonderful wav by the
highest resources of modern science. Steam bas made the separating oceans no longer
barrier, but rather the medium of union. Electricity has furnished the means by
which the British people in all parts of the globe may exchange thought as freely as
those within speaking distance. These twin agencies of civilization are pregnant with
stupendous possibilities. Already the one, as the prime factor in sea-carriage, has ren-
dered universal penny postage possible. The other bas made it equally possible to bring
the British people, so widely sundered geographically, within the same neighbourhood
telegraphically.

Imperial penny postage will have far-reaching consequences; it is undoubtedly a
great onward movement in the career of civilization, and in the development of wider
national sympathy and sentiment. But great as are the benefits to follow the adoption
of universal cheap postage, the first result, and not the least, will be to make plain
that a postal service, however cheap and comprehensive, is in itself insufficient for the
increasing daily needs of the now widely-distributed British peoples. It will be seen
that in addition to an ocean penny postal service, the circumstances of our world-
empire demand a cheap ocean cable service, extending to every possession of Her
Majesty.

The carriage of letters at any known speed consumes time, and the length of time
consumed depends on the distance traversed. The telegraph, on 'the other hand,
practically annihilates space, and in this one respect has immeasurably the advantage
over the ordinary postal service, especially in the case of correspondents who are
separated by the greatest distances.

We can as yet but faintly appreciate the extent to which the telegraph may be
employed, because its use heretofore has been restricted, on long-distance messages, by
almost prohibitory charges. If messages be exchanged between places not far apart, let
us say between London and Edinburgh, or Toronto and Montreal, the gain in time by
the use of the telegraph is inconsiderable. But if the points of connection be far
separated, such as London and Melbourne, or Ottawa and Capetown, the comparison
between a postal and a telegraph service brings out the distinct value of the latter. In
the cases last mentioned, while it would require the lapse of eight or ten weeks to obtain
an answer to a letter by post ; if the telegraph be employed, a reply may be returned
next day, or even the same day.

Existing long-distance cables are little used by the general public ; it may be said,
not at all except in emergencies. They are used in connection with commerce, the
growing needs of which demand more and more the employment of the telegraph, but
owing to the high charges exacted its use is limited to business which would suffer by
delay. These cables are in the bands of private companies striving chiefly to earn large
dividends, and who adopt the policy of charging high rates, in consequence of which
trade and commerce is unduly taxed, and its free development retarded. Were the
cables owned by the State, large profits would not be the main object, and precisely as
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in the case of the land lines of the United Kingdom, it would be possible to reduce
charges so as to remove restrictions on trade, and bring the service within reach of many
now debarred from using it.

When the government assumed control of the inland telegraphs of the United
Kingdom it was found possible greatly to reduce charges. In 1869, the year before the
transfer, less than seven million messages were carried. At the transfer the rate was
reduced to one shilling per message; the tradic immediately increased nearly 50 per cent,
and continued increasing until, in the tenth year, twenty-nine million messages were
transmitted, with a surplus of revenue over expenditure of £354,060. In another decade
the total annual business equalled ninety-four millions, the operations still resulting in a
surplus of £251,806 although the charge for a message had been meanwhile reduced
from one shilling to six pence. It is indisputable that high charges restrict the utility
of sea cables as well as of land lines, while low charges have the opposite effect. A few
years ago the tariff of charges between Australia and London was nine shillings and four
pence per word. The proposal te establish the Pacific cable and the discussion which
followed, led to the cheapening of the rate to four shillings and nine pence per word.
In 1890, the year before the rates were lowered, the gross business consisted of 827,278
words. Last year (1897) it had increased te 2,349,901 words. In 1890, with high
charges, the revenue was £331,468. In 1897, with reduced charges, the revenue was
£567,852, or £236,384 in excess of 1890, when the highest rates were exacted.

The utility of the telegraph may be measured by the time gained over the post, and
the success of the telegraph service of the United Kingdom must be accepted as con-
vincing evidence of its utility and value, for the gain in time is, in this case, measured
by hours only. Its striking success in this instance may be largely owing to State con-
trol, but, whatever the cause, it is obvious that if, under similar conditions, weeks were
gained instead of hours, the utility of the telegraph would be proportionately increased
and its value as a means of communication correspondingly enhanced. There is another
immense advantage, not generally known to the public, which can be claimed for tele-
graphy: It is the fact, that within certain limitations the actual cost of transmission
is but little affected by distance. While the cost of carrying letters is in proportion te
the distance traversed, the same rule does not apply te the electric wire. With a
properly equipped telegraph system, the actual expenditure incurred in transmitting a
message thousands of miles is practically no greater than in sending it ten miles. Ob-
viously, therefore, the principle of " penny postage," that is te say, a low uniform charge
for all distances, is applicable even more fully to ocean telegraphy than te the Imperial
postal service. With these considerations before us, a moment's reflection leads te the
conviction that this wonderful agency-the electric wire-places within our reaeh, if we
have the wisdom to accept it, an ideal means of communication for the world-wide
British Empire.

Thirty years ago the British Parliament, for reasons, the soundness of which
experience has fully confirmed, determined that the State should assume control of the
inland telegraph system of the United Kingdom. To-day there are incomparably
stronger reasons for State control being exercised over a cable system for the whole
Empire.

The proposal is not altogether new. If the proceedings of the Colonial Conference
of 1887 be referred te, it will be found that an Imperial telegraph service was fore-
shadowed in the discussions. To these I would refer, and especially pages 225 te 228,
339 te 341, and 513 te 520. In these discussions the delegates from the Cape of Good
Hope, Natal, Australia, New Zealand, Newfoundland and Canada took part. Again,
at the Colonial Conference of 1894 the proposal was set forth in some detail, and the
advantages of an all-British system of telegraphy around the globe pointed out. On
that point I beg leave to direct attention te the proceedings of the Ottawa Conference,
and more particularly te pages 88 te 90, inclusive. Likewise te the proceedings of the
second Congress of the Chambers of Commerce of the Empire, and more especially to a
letter from the Ottawa delegate (July lst, 1892) te the President, Sir John Lubbock.

The proposal te complete the telegraphic circuit of the globe has no doubt suggested
itself te many persons. Among those who have written on the subject may he men-
tioned Sir Julius Vogel, at one time Postmaster General of New Zealand ; the late
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Mr. F. N. Gisborne, Superintendent of Telegraph for the Canadian government; Sir
George Baden-Powell, M.P., London; Mr. J. C. Lockley, of Nhill, Australia; and the
veteran postal reformer, Mr. Henniker Heaton. At the Cape, Mr. Jan Hendrich
Hofmeyer has given the matter his strongest support.

PROJECTED CABLE SYSTEM.

It may be laid down as an essential conditioni of an Imperial cable service, that
none of the lines should touch foreign soi, and that they should be placed so as to avoid
shallow seas, more especially those seas in proximity to any country likely at any time
to prove unfriendly. In describing generally the route which would best comply with
these conditions, I shall commence at Vancouver, for the reason that up to this point
telegraphic connection with the Imperial centre in London is already assured, witbout
being dependent on any foreign power. First, we have directed telegraphic connection
across the Atlantic by a number of cables, and it is a mere question of cost to lay
additional trans-Atlantic cables whenever they are wanted. Secondly, we have a
transcontinental telegraph from the Atlantic coast to Vancouver, extending
along the line of the Canadian Pacific Railway, and all practical telegraphers will
recognize the great advantage of this position. By having the wires hung within
sight of passing trains, the telegraph can be frequently inspected with the greatest
possible ease, and faults when they occur, can speedily be repaired.

Commencing at Vancouver the cable would cross the Pacific to New Zealand and
Australia, from Australia the main line would cross the Indian Ocean to South Africa,
from South Africa it would traverse the Atlantic to Canada, where it would connect
with the trans-Atlantic lines. Such a system of cables would complete the telegraphic
circuit of the globe, and would constitute a base for connecting every one of Her
Majesty's possessions and naval coaling stations (Gibraltar and Malta excepted) by the
most perfect means of conveying intelligence at our disposal. Moreover, the connection
would be formed by a system of all-British deep-sea cables in the position where they
would be least vulnerable. This Imperial cable system may be considered in three
divisions.

(1.) Cables in the Pacifie Ocean.

The cable from Vancouver would first find a mid-ocean station at Fanning Island,
second at Fiji Islands, third at Norfolk Island; at Norfolk Island it would bifurcate,
one branch extending to New Zealand, the other to the eastern coast of Australia.

There are many islands in the Pacific, some under British, others under foreign
flags; in course of time these islands could be served by branches as circumstances may
require. The land lines of Australia would complete telegraphic connection with the
western coast, or it may be deemed expedient to substitute a cable for the land lines
over that portion of the interior between Adelaide and King George's Sound.

(2.) Cables in the Indian Ocean.

From King George's Sound, or other point in Western Australia, the cable would
extend to Cocos Island, thence to Mauritius, and thence to Natal or Capetown, as may
be found expedient. Cocos would become an important telegraphic centre; it would be
a convenient point for connecting Singapore by a branch cable. Singapore is already in
connection with Hong Kong by an all-British cable via Labuan, and Her Majesty's
government can take possession by giving 12 months' notice. India could be reached
by a branch from Cocos to Colombo or Trincomalee in Ceylon. At Mauritius a connec-
tion would be formed with the existing cable to Seychelles, Aden and Bombay.

(3.) Cables in the Atlantic Ocean.

In order to avoid the shallow seas along the west coast of Africa, Spain, Portugal
and France, it is proposed that the cable should extend from Capetown to Bermuda,
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touching at St. Helena, Ascension and Barbados as mid-ocean stations. At Bermuda
a connection would be formed with the existing cable to Halifax, and at that point
with the Canadian and trans-Atlantic lines.

Much prominence has been given to a proposal to connect England with the Cape
by a line of cable touching at Gibraltar, Sierre Leone or Bathurst, Ascension and St.
Helena. I pointed out in my letter of last December to Sir Wilfrid Laurier, that there
are grave objections to the northern half of that route, as "the cable, of necessity,
would be laid for some distance in shallow seas where it would be exposed to injury
from various causes, and where, too, the agent of an unfriendly nation or, indeed, an
evil-disposed fisherman, would have it in his power to destroy the cable with ease,
totally unobserved. For hundreds of miles it would be exposed to such risks."

The route now proposed from Ascension to Great Britain is certainly less direct,
but the cable would be much less in jeopardy, and to this may be added, the advantage
which would result in bringing the West Indian possessions within the Imperial
telegraphic circle.

In order that some estimate may be formed of the cost of such an undertaking, I
submit the following approximate distances which each group of cables would require
to cover :-

(1.) In the Pacific Ocean, f rom Vancouver to Australia and
New Zealand ............................ ........ 7,150 knots.

(2.) In the Indian Ocean, from Western Australia to South
Africa-

Main line...................... ..... 6,500
Branch to Singapore................... 1,100

Colombo................... 1,500
-- 9,100 knots.

(3.) In the Atlantic Ocean, from South Africa to Bermuda.... 6,600

22,850

The total distance for which new cables would be required (of which 20,250 knots
would be in the main line, and 2,600 knots in branches) may be roughly placed at
23,000 knots, and the cost (including the branch to Hong Kong) between £5,000,000
and £6,000,000 sterling.

I have long advocated the first division of the proposal,-the establishment of a
cable f rom Canada to Australasia as a state work. I have felt that it would be the
forerunner of an all-British telegraph system embracing the whole empire. As a state
undertaking I am satisfied that the Pacific cable would be a complete commercial success,
and that so soon as it so proved, the cable extension to South Africa and India would
follow.

Oupe advantage peculiar to a globe-encircling system of cables will be apparent,
dach point touched would be in connection with every other point by two routes
extending in opposite directions. This feature is of special value, as it practically
constitutes a double connection in each case. The projected system of all-British cables
with its branches would thus doubly connect the following fortified and garrisoned
coaling stations, namely :-Hong-Kong, Singapore, Trincomalee, Colombo, Aden, Cape-
town, Simons Bay, St. Helena, Ascension, St. Lucia, Jamaica, Bermuda, Halifax,
Esquimalt, King George's Sound and Thursday Island. The following "defended
ports" would likewise be connected, viz.:- Durban, Karachi, Bombay, Madras,
Calcutta, Rangoon, Adelaide, Melbourne, Hobart, Sydney, Newcastle, Brisbane,
Townsville, Auckland, Wellington, Lytteltown and Dunedin.

Would it not be in the interest of a great commercial people to have these and all
such points in the outer Empire counected by a means of communication so perfect as
the electric telegraph 1 Is it not a matter which vitally concerns every British com-
munity around the globe? Is it not in their common interest that they all should be
placed in possession of the speediest medium of conveying intelligence the one to the
other, free from the burden of high charges?
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That a State owned Pacific cable is the key to the situation, I am firmly convinced.
Exhaustive examinations have proved its entire practicabihty. Its financial aspect bas
been minutely investigated by business men of the highest rank. The Canadian gov-
ernment appointed Lord Strathcona and the Honourable A. G. Jones for the purpose,
than whom there are no men with stronger business insight. Their report is in the pos-
session of the government, and it takes the most favourable view of the project. As a
State undertaking it would be self-supporting from the first year of its establishment,
and would admit of charges being lowered year by year. That the final outcome of the
laying of this cable would be au Imperial telegraph service there can be little doubt. I
am satisfied that the Pacific cable would prove to be the entering wedge to remove for
ever all monopoly in ocean telegraphy, and free the public from excessive charges; that
it would be the initial link in a chain of State cables encircling the globe, with branches
ramifying wherever the British Empire extends, and that it would be the means of
bringing into momentary electric touch every possession of Her Majesty.

In 1837, Rowland Hill, in advocating uniform penny postage for the United King-
dom, pointed out how desirable it would be to have the same low rates as on inland
letters charged on letters passing to and from the colonies. This remarkable man con-
cluded with the memorable words: " There is perhaps scarcely any measure whi'h would
tend so effectually to remove the obstacles to enigration, and maintain that sympathy
between the colonies and the mother country which is the only sure bond of connection,
as the proposed reduction on the postage of colonial letters."

Had Sir Rowland Hill known of the neans of instantaneous communication which,
since bis day, bas been placed at our comniand, he assuredly would have viewed it as
the most civilizing agency of the century. He would have seen that while promoting
the activities of trade and cominerce an 'improving tie well-being of the human race,
nothing would more tend to deepén the sjipathies of our people and make firm the
foundations of the Empire, than the adding to a universal penny postage, the incalcul-
able advantage of a State-controlled ocean telegraph system encircling the globe.

Holding the views which I have ventured to submit, I feel that in the public
interest I should greatly err if I failed to seek an opportunity of giving expression to
them.

S.F.

EXTRACT FROM REPORT OF J. S. LARKE, SYDNEY, N.S.W.,
NOVEMBER, 1898.

THE PACIFIC CABLE.

A few days ago a deputation from the Chamber of Commerce of this city waited
on the Hon. Varney Parkes, who bas recently been appointed Postmaster General of
the colony, to urge action in respect to a Pacific cable. I beg to inclose an official
report of the interview. The assertion that Canada had practically broken faith with
these colonies in respect to a cable having been made before, I deemed it right to wait
upon the Postmaster General to point out that this was an error and that no govern-
ment of Canada had even agreed to undertake one-third of the responsibility of such a
work. I took the liberty of drawing bis attention to the fact that at the Ottawa
Conference of 1894 an Australian delegate had stated that Australasia, at a postal
conference of the colonies held early in that year, bad agreed to be responsible for one-
half of the charge, leaving but one-half to be divided between Canada and Great Britain.
Subsequently Australia, not Canada, proposed that the charges should be borne equally
by these colonies and Great Britain. The Sydney Chamber is asking the other Cham-
bers of Commerce of Australasia to press the subject upon their governments as it does
not deem that a cable via South Africa to be a substitute for a cable from Canada across
the Pacific.
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RE PoRT of a deputation from the Sydney Chamber of Commerce which waited on the
Poutmaster General on 13th October, 1898, re8pecting the Pacific Cable.

PREsENT :

John S. Brunton, President; M. Gotthelf, Vice-President; A. F. Robinson, A. W.
Meeks, Geo. Wall, J. T. Tillock, G. S. Littlejohn, and H. C. Mitchell, Secretary.

Mr. John S. Brunton said he had the honour to introduce the deputation, on a
subject which was well known, and which had been before them for a number of years.
It was particularly interesting to him considering he was at the deputation of the
Associated Chambers of Commerce in London in 1895 which waited on Lord Rosebery
on the subject He represented the Sydney Chamber of Commerce. The reply to that
deputation was that the colonies did not know wnat they would receive till they asked.
This had been.supported by Hon. Joseph Chamberlain in his remarks in 1897, where he
said his government was prepared to help, but waited for the colonies to take the
initiative step.

At the Conference of Associated Australasian Chambers of Commerce which met in
Sydney, the late Mr. Joseph read a very able paper on the subject, and the following
resolution was passed :-

" That this Conference is of opinion that the early establishment of telegraphic
communication with the mother country via the Pacific Ocean and the Dominion of
Canada, under Imperial control, and passing through British possessions only, is a
necessity not only in commercial interests, but for Imperial strategic reasons, and will
materially assist not only the great cause of Australian Federation, but will also form a
strong bond of union between Great and Greater Britain. Further, that it be a
recommendation to the governments of the various colonies represented at thiq Confer-
ence to urge upon the Imperial government to carry out the laying of the Pacifie cable
at the joint expense of the governments interested, with the least possible delay."

That resolution covered everything. Mr. Joseph dealt with it from a commercial,
social and national standpoint. The matter had perhaps been forced upon the community
during the last few months while the Spanish-American war was on, for had Great
Britain been drawn into it, no doubt it might have resulted seriously.

No material point had been raised as to the unprofitableness of the undertaking.
On the reduced cost of present rates, from 4s. 9d. to the proposed 3s. tariff, meant a
saving of la. 9d. a word, and a saving of about £190,000 per annum to Australasia.
The proportion of cost of interest and maintenance of the cable, say £145,000 per
annum, could be divided on a basis which was not for them to advise. They considered
that Canada and the United Kingdom would meet the colonies in a fair spirit. It must
also be considered that a cheap rate for messages would mean a great increase in social
and private messages. The cable was now run on commercial and press lines only. The
figures show that in 1893, 1,323,000 words were transmitted to the United Kingdom,
and in 1895, 2,327,000-a gain of 1,000,000 in that short space of time.

He understood the amount of the contribution to the Eastern Extension Company
was £33,000 per annum, and that one on two thousand pounds more would be the
colony's share of the Pacific cable.

They recognized the benefits of the Eastern Extension Company's line, which had
been a commercial and profitable undertaking to the company. The proposal to lay a
cable to the Cape was not what they required. They wanted a cable on British
possessions which would be state owned and practically in their hands, and as it had
been shown that no loss would be likely to follow they had no hesitation in recommend-
ing the government to take up the question.

The federal feeling which now existed showed that with this particular venture
most cordial feelings were shown in the other colonies and New Zealand.

He therefore urged the Postmaster General to bring the matter before the Cabinet
at an early date.

Mr. Gotthelf endorsed the remarks of Mr. Brunton and emphasized the fact that
for some years past the Chamber of Commerce had been moving in the matter, and that
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Mr. Parkes' predecessor was in sympathy with the Pacific cable movement. He
thought the time was opportune to again move in the matter, consequently they appealed
to Mr. Parkes.

Mr. Meeks said he had attended several deputations and was pleased to say Mr.
Parkes' pred-cessor was very strongly impressed with the necessity of a second cable.
Mr. Cook seemed to be in strong sympathy with trie Chamber of Commerce. The other
colonies looked to New South Wales, but the difficulty was in getting a definite propo-
sition placed before the governments. There had been an indication that if the colonies
would take four-ninths of the responsibility, England would probably take three and
C .nada two. There was some exception to Canada taking so small a share, but it had
been pointed out that Canada would not be greatly benefited, inasmuch as a large
proportion of their telegraph lines were privately owned. They wanted some definite
proposal from the government, and it could then be seen whether they could come to
an understanding.

If New Zealand joined, the colonies could easily take a share in the proposition.
Of course they understood South Australia must stand by its present line unless it were
compensated.

The trade with America and Canada was undoubtedly on the increase, and at the
present time the charge for messages was very high, something like 6s. a word, whilst
the rate to England was much less.

He would also like to urge, without impressing too strongly on Mr. ParkeR, the
fact of his predecessor expressing himself in the matter so strongly. At the same time
Mr. Cook could not see his way to make the first proposal.

He strongly urged the Postmaster General to consider the important question.
Mr. PARKEs.-Gentlemen, this question did not escape me, because when I had

been in office about a fortnight I realized it was necessary to come to an understanding
in connection with this cable communication. Some years ago the Pacific cable had a
rosy aspect, but recent developments (since you waited on Mr. Cook) put things in a
different light. It is the imperative duty of the government to obtain the best and
cheapest service for their country. I had a consultation with Mr. Read and went into
the question. We came to the decision that we must go into the question in a business-
like fashion in order to get proper and permanent cable communication with the world
on a much cheaper basis.

First, let me tell you that a month ago a message was sent to the British govern-
ment asking if they would agree to bear a substantial portion of the subsidy to the
Pacific cable. No reply has yet been received, and you must see that it is impossible
for us to act until we get a reply. I am expecting it from day to day.

The position is that the British government have indicated their disinclination to
subsidize the Pacific cable at all, because, from a strategie point of view, and the capa-
bilities of protecting the cable, they could not see that they are in a safe position. They
lean entirely to the Eastern Extension Cable proposal.

A commission (in July, 1898) sat to discuss this route, and also took into considera-
tion the other. That commission recommended strongly that the British government
should subsidize the route to Gibraltar, Ascension, St. Helena, Cape of Good Hope,
Durban, Mauritius, Keeling Islands, and on to Australia, because they would have
absolute control. They pointed out also that the Pacifie cable would be very difficult
to maintain, because of the great length of sections-moreover, they would not have con-
trol of the waters through which it ran.

The committee has raised such strong objections that the Agent General advises
that he thinks it impossible to break them down. However, we have sent the cable
message of which I told you.

As you stated the proportions were Great Britain one-third, Canada two-ninths,
but it was very doubtful whether Canada would take two-ninths, and the Australian
governments one-ninth each. There were practically only three of the colonies fully
in sympathy with the Pacifie cable scheme, and they would have to bear, if Great
Britain fails to subsidize-say, seven-ninths of the cost. That would mean that instead
of paying £13,000, New South Wales would have to pay about £16,000 or £17,000 per
annum, which is out of the question.
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I can assure you the government intends to settle the matter at the earliest
moment. I cannot tell you all the negotiations that have taken place as they are
secret; but the government will take very good care that you are not lef t at the mercy
of the Eastern Extension Company.

Supposing the Pacific cable were laid and became interrupted at any time, we would
then be left at the nercy of the Eastern Extension Company; whereas, if the British
Government constructed the other route, it would in all probability be a duplicate line
and the cost would not be nearly so great. A Il the colonies would join in with it, and
the possibilities are that, by pitting one scheme against the other, get a very much
cheaper service indeed. That seemed the proper policy of the government to follow.

The difficulties in the way are the ways and means.
As soon as we get a reply from the British government we will be able to advise

you and the public what will be the course adopted by the government. That is all I
can tell you.

M r. BRUNTN.-We can see you have the matter in hand, and from your remarks
that you intend to make the best deal. As commercial men we expect you to do so.

THE PACIFIC CABLE AND ITS RELATION TO A SYSTEM OF STATE-
OWNED CABLES ENCIRCLING THE EMPIRE.

OTTAWA, 31st January, 1899.
The Honourable

R. W. Scorr,
Secretary of State.

SiR,-The subject of a Pacific cable, considered as the great initiatory link in a
system of State-owned cables encircling the Empire, has recently attracted much
attention in Great Britain.

My open letter on this subject to the Right Honourable Joseph Chamberlain,
Secretary of State for the Colonies (October 28, 1898), appeared early in December in
the Canadian press. A fortnight later it attracted attention in the United Kingdom,
and leading articles appeared in the Tines and other London newspapers. A
wide interest was awakened in England, Ireland and Scotland, and with singular
unanimity the subject was favourably noticed by the press generally. A list of some
of the newspapers and journals in which the subject was considered is appended.

The general testimony of the British press, is, that the Pacific cable, apart, from
its inherent merits, would be the direct precursor of a " Round the World " cable
system for the Empire; that as such it would lead to cheap telegraph transmission
between every British possession, promote closer union, develop commerce, and confer
many social as well as naval and political advantages.

This consensus of opinion adds a new interest to the proposal to connect Canada
and Australasia telegraphically, and it becomes important that the government should
be placed in possession of every fact relating to it. With that object in view I have
prepared the accompanying memorandum on the cost and revenue of the undertaking
from the latest and best information obtainable.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

SANDFORD FLEMING.
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ROUND THE EMPIRE CABLE.

Testimony of the British press.

The following is a list of some of the newspapers and magazines, published in the
United Kingdom, in which notices have recently appeared, respecting the establishment
of a system of State-owned electric cables for the Empire, and of which the Pacifie
cable would constitute the initial link:-

"The Evening Mail," Manchester, Dec. 12, 1898.
"The Manchester Guardian," Dec. 13, 1898.
"The Eastern Morning News," Dec. 14, 1898.
"The Yorkshire Herald," Dec. 15, 1898.
"The English Mechanic," Dec. 16, 1898.
'The Home News," Dec. 16, 1898.

"The Electrical Engineer," Dec. 16, 1898.
"The Empire," London, Dec. 17, 1898.
"The Times," Dec. 17, 1898.
" The Yorkshire Post," Dec. 19, 1898.
"The Dundee Courier, Dec. 19," 1898.
"The Financial News," London, Dec. 20, 1898.
"The Aberdeen Free Press," Dec. 20, 1898.
"The Daily Mail," London, Dec. 20, 1898.
"The Commerce," London, Dec. 20, 1898.
"'The Financial News," London, Dec. 21, 1898.
"The Belfast News Letter," Dec. 21, 1898.
"'The Sheffield Telegraph," Dec. 21, 1898.
"The Shields Daily Gazette," Dec. 21, 1898.
"The Glasgow Record," Dec. 22, 1898.
"The Shipping World," Dec. 22, 1898.
"The Mlorning Post," Dec. 23, 1898.
"The Electrician," Dec. 23, 1898.
"The Eveninz News," Dec. 23, 1898.
"The Glasgow Citizen," Dec. 23, 1898.
"The Liverpool Mercury," Dec. 23, 1898.
"The Railway News," Dec. 24, 1898.
"The Scotsman," Dec. 24, 1898.
"The Brighton Herald," Dec. 24, 1898.
"The Investors Guardian," Dec. 24, 1898.
"The Electrical Review," Dec. 24, 1898.
"The Liverpool Mercury," Dec. 28, 1898.
"The New Age," Dec. 29, 1898.
"The Outlook," Dec. 31, 1898.
"The Cambridge Express," Dec. 31, 1898.
"The Imperial Institute Journal," Jan. 1, 1899.
"Chaniber of Commerce Journal," Jan. 1, 1899.
"The Times," Jan. 5, 1899.
"The Daily Chronicle," Jan. 6, 1899.
"B. Columbia Review," London, ,lan. 7, 1899.
"The Dundee Advertiser," Dec. 12, 1898.

"The Echo," London, Dec. 13, 1898.
"The Canadian Gazette," London, Dec. 15, 1898.
"The Newcastle Leader," Dec. 15, 1898.
"The Electrical Review," Dec. 16, 1898.
"The Times," Dec. 16, 1898.
"The Yorkshire Herald," Dec. 16, 1898.
" The Pall Mall Gazette," Dec. 17, 1898.
"The Outlook," London, Dec. 17, 1898.
"The Daily News," London, Dec. 19, 1898.
"The Times," London, Dec. 19, 1898.
"The Daily Mail," Birmingham, Dec. 19, 1898.
"The Daily Graphic," London, Dec. 20, 1898.
"The Glasgow Record," Dec. 20, 1898.
"The Birmingham Gazette," Dec. 20, 1898.
"The Contract Recorder," Dec. 20, 1898.
"The Sheffield Telegraph," Dec. 21, 1898.
"The Daily Telegraph," London, Dec. 21, 1898.
"The Daily Mail," London, Dec. 21, 1898.
"The Commerce," Dec. 21, 1898.
"The Liverpool Merctiry," Dec. 22, 1898.
"The Canadian Gazette," Dec. 22, 1898.
"The Lightning," Dec. 22, 1898.
"The Engineer," Dec. 23, 1898.
"The Daily Graphic," Dec. 23, 1898.
" The Morning Post," Dec. 23, 1898.
"The Home News," Dec. 23, 1898.
"The Empire," London, Dec. 24, 1898.
"The Citizen," Dec. 24, 1998.
"The Glasgow Herald," Dec. 24, 1898.
"The South Africa," Dec. 24, 1898.
"The Outlook," Dec. 24,1898.
"'The Saturday, Review," Dec. 24, 1898.
"The Canadian Gazette," Dec. 29, 1898.
"The Electrical Review," Dec. 30, 1898.
"The Illustrated News," Dec. 31, 1898.
"The Britannia," Jan. 1, 1899.
" The Morning Post," Jan, 5, 1899.
"The Mechanical World," Jan. 6, 1899.
"The Invention," Jan. 7, 1899.
"The Canadian Gazette," Jan. 12, 1899.
"The Outlook," Jan. 28, 1899.

(Memorandum.)

COST, ANNUAL CHARGES AND REVENUE.-THE PACIFIC CABLE.

CoST.

A careful and exhaustive inquiry was made by the Imperial Cable Committee which
met in London in 1896, Lord Selborne, Chairman, the Canadian representatives being
Lord Strathcona and Hon. A. G. Jones.

The committee had before them the tenders received by the Canadian government
in 1894 ; they examined the managers of various cable construction firms and they took
a large amount of technical evidence. After a thorough investigation the committee came
to the conclusion that a cable of a serviceable type could be manufactured, shipped, laid
and guaranteed for £1,500,000 and that it would be possible to secure another type of
cable, one capable of transmitting fifty per cent more traffic for £1,800,000.

A. 1899
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One of the most substantial construction firms offered to furnish and lay the cable
of the first mentioned type for £1,517,000, and of the second type for £1,880,000; and
this offer not only included the erection at each station of suitable buildings with dupli-
cate sets of all proper instruments, but also the cost of maintaining the cables for three
years. It is probable, the report states, that another firm would offer similar terms.

The report of the Imperial Committee is dated January 5th, 1897 ; in this docu-
ment all particulars will he found. The committee did not think it necessary to include
maintenance for three years in the original cost of the cable ; they considered six months
sufficient. In their estimates which follow, £35,000 is included for six months' main-
tenance, £80,000 for the purchase of two repairing ships and £78,000 as a margin of
capital to cover possible contingencies :

Minimum cost (first type of cable).................. £1,500,000
Maximum cost (second type of cable)................ £1,800,000

ANNUAL CHARGES.

The Imperial Committee took a large amount of evidence bearing on the cost of
working, maintenance and repairs. They considered it necessary to make provision of
capital by sinking fund for replacing the cable after a term of years. They likewise
under this heading took into account inttrest on capital, the rate of which to a great
extent must depend on the conditions under which the capital is raised. They append
four estimates of total annual charges, varying according to the type of cable and the
rate of interest, as follows:-

Interest. Capital. Total Annual Charges.

1-2 per cent £1,500,000 £144,887
2-21 1,500,000 147,561
3-2A 1,800,000 155,464
4-2¾ " 1,800,000 158,673

The annual charges of every description may therefore be placed at -

Minimum......... £144,887.
Maximum.. . . . . . . 158,673.

REVE NUE.

lu the report of the Imperial Committee under the sub-heading " Recommenda-
tion and Summary " (page 9) they allude to this branch of the subject in these words:
" Taking the total annual expenditure at £144,887 and the increase of business at 10
per cent per annum on 750,000 words in 1896, a Pacific cable would, if it came into
actual work on the 1st of January, 1900, earn £178,437 in its first year of working if
the rate obtained by it per word % ere 3s. 3d., thus leaving a credit balance on the first

year's working of i33,550. If the rate per word were reduced to 2s., in the year 1900
it would earn £109,807 ; in 1901, £120,788; in 1902, £132,867, and in 1903, £146,153;
it would thus become a paying concern during the fourth year of working."

In reference to the above it may only be remarked :
(1) The committee repeatedly explain that in estimating revenue " they must be

actuated by extreme caution," and as an evidence of the caution exercised they base
the estimate on the Pacific cable securing scarcely more than one-third the grosa
Australian-European traffic, and they include nothing for Australasia-American traffic.

(2) Notwithstanding the great caution of the committee, their estimate goes to
show that, even at the reduced rate of 2s. a word, (as the new line would not be open
for business before 1902,) annual charges would be covered by earnings in the second
year-viz., in 1903.

In the special report of Lord Strathcona and Mr. A. G. Jones (12th January, 1897),
a more liberal view is taken. They submit two estimates (pages 13 and 14), in both of
which it is shown that there would be in the year 1902 a surplus of revenue over all

charges, and in every following year the surplus would go on increasing.
38
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ESTIMATE OF REVENUE PROM THE LATEST INFORMATION.

It is two years since the Imperial Committee reported, and it may be well to con-
aider the subject of revenue in the light of information acquired since that date.

The latest returns of telegraph business between Australasia and Europe appear in
the printed proceeding of the Postal and Telegraph Conference held at Hobart in April,
1898. These returns are given on the authority of Sir Charles Todd, Postmaster
General of South Australia, who has always been a consistent opponent of the Pacific
cable. In Table 4, page 58, we find as follows:-

The gross traffic in 1889 consisted of 793,917 words,
" " 1890 " 827,278 "

The rates then charged were 9s. 4d. per word. The rates were reduced on May
1st, 1891, to 4s. and on January lst, 1893, raised to 4s. 9d. per word, the latter rate
has not since been changed.

Under the new rates, according to the same authority, the gross annual traffic has
been as follows:-

In 1892 the number of words transmitted were......... 1,275,191
1893 " " " ......... 1,303,336
1894 " " " ......... 1,381,400
1895 " " " ......... 1,450,446
1896 " " " . . . . . . . . . 2,110,917
1897 " " " ......... 2,349,901

It is not probable that the Pacific cable will be completed much within three
years from the present date. Assuming that it will come into working condition by the
first of January, 1902, the questions to be considered are: (1) What will be the gross
traffic for 1902, and (2) what proportion of it will be secured by the new line I

However much opinion may differ on both questions, with respect to first it is
obvious from the returns quoted that there is a great development of telegraph traffic

steadily going on, and that this development is greatly accelerated by a reduction of
rates. In the last year of the 9s. 4d. per word tariff, 1890, the gross business consisted
of 827,278 words, the reduction at once had the effect of increasing the business fifty
per cent. Even under the conditions of a uniforn tarif, there is evidence of great
vitality. From 1893 to 1897 the tariff of charges remained at 4s. 9d. per word and the
business grew from 1,303,336 words to 2,349,901 words in these four years.

We may fairly infer from these facts that in the year 1902, even if the tarif of charges
remains unchanged, there will be a large increase in telegraph business, and that with
the new line established and the chargqs on messages reduced the increase would be
still greater. If more than a million words were added to the traffic in the four years
from 1893 to 1897, under precisely the s&me conditions the increase in five years from
1897 to 1902 would be a million and a quarter words. That is to say if the tarif of
charges on messages remains unchanged at 4s. 9d. per word, and the same condition of
growth continues, the gross Australia-European traffic will in 1902 be, in round figures,
3,600,000 words.

It may of course be said that there is no absolute certainty that the grosa tele-
graphie traffic will be as stated, there is however reasonable probability, and there is
more than a probability that if the rates be lowered as proposed, telegraphic intercourse
will be stimulated and a much increased business will follow. There are indeed good
grounds for the belief that with the tariff lowered from 4s. 9d. to 3s. per word the gross
telegraph business in 1902 will not be less than 4,000,000 words. It is advisable,
however, in forming estimates to be well on the safe side; we may with perfect safety
then take 3,600,000 words, as the probable business within the year 1902 when the
Pacific cable may be opened.

With respect to the second question, what proportion of the gross traffic will fall to
the share of the Pacific cable ? The following reasons will make plain that the new
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line will obtain a full share, certainly not less than one-half the whole number of words
transmitted.

1. The Pacifie cable would undoubtedly give a better service to the public than
the existing line. On this point it will only be necessary to quote from a Return to
Parliament (No. 94) to an address dated April 18th, 1898 (see foot note, page 32), as
follows:-

" In reference to the remarks of Sir Julius Vogel in the above letter, the under-
signed deems it proper to point out thatit is the manual asdistinguished from the automatic
repetitions which cause delay and increase the chances of error in the transmission of
messages. The repeating stations on the overland route through Canada are automatic,
and in a comparison they should not be taken into account. By the Eastern route
there are ten manual repeating stations intervening between Great Britain and
Australia, viz.: at Gibraltar, Malta, Alexander, Suez, Aden, Bombay, Madras, Penang,
Singapore and Java. By the Pacific route there would be only five manual repeating
stations, viz.: at Canso, Vancouver, Fanning Island, Fiji and Norfolk Island. With
but half the number of such repeating stations, naturally the tendency to greater
accuracy and speed in transmission and generally to a better service by the new route
would be increased."

2. The Australasian governments being at the chief sources of traffic and possess-
ing control of all the land lines, would not only have it in their power to throw business
over the Pacific cable, but as joint-owners would be directly interested in so doing.
The Pacific cable would become the "normal route" for all telegrams from these
Colonies to North and South America, to Great Britain, Germany, France, Scandinavia,
Belgium and Holland. By the term "normal route" it is understood that unless telegrams
are specially directed by the sender to follow some other route, they follow the " normal
route." This circumstance would give to the Pacific cable an enormous advantage in
securing business, as experience proves that a very large proportion of traffic is handed
in by the public without any indication of route. With respect to messages from
Europe to Australasia, it will be obvious that every Atlantic cable company with their
offices in every city in the United Kingdom and elsewhere, would be interested in col-
lecting return traffic for the Pacific cable.

In view of the facts submitted, it is a reasonable and perfectly safe prediction that
there will be a gross telegraphic traffic in the year 1902 of not less than 3,600,000
words, and that of this business the Pacific cable will obtain fully one-half, or
1,800,000 words.

The transmission of 1,800,000 words at 2s. per word would yield a revenue of
£180,000 to meet annual charges of every description. The maximum charges have
been placed at £158,673, and there would remain a surplus of £21,327. But this sur-
plus would result from the Australasia-European business alone. To this must be added
the Australasia-American business, the whole of which would pass over the Pacific cable.
By a return to the New Zealand house of representatives of date 30th August, 1898
(page 128), it appears that the Australasia-American business for the year 1897 consisted
of 87,033 words, the cost of which at present rates would average 6s. per word. It is
impossible to say how much the gross business of 1902 will exceed that of 1897 when
the rates will be reduced to 2s. per word. Nothing can be more certain than that in
six years from 1897 there will be a great advance, that with charges on messages
lowered to less than one-third present rates, the trans-Pacific traffic will eventually develop
to large proportions, and that it will all go to swell out the profits of the Pacific cable.

The estimates submitted are extremely moderate. They go to show beyond all
question that the Pacific cable, from the first year of its establishment as a government
undertaking, will prove a complete commercial success. Moreover the growth of traffic
stimulated by the reduction of rates will so improve business that the net surplus revenue
will go on increasing every succeeding year, and will thus admit of the further lowering
of rates from time to time.

SANDFORD FLEMING.
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COLONIAL OFFICE, S.W., 10th April, 1899.
LORD STRATHCONA, G.C.M.G.

DEAR LORD STRATHCNA,-An official letter is being sent to you stating that the
report of the Pacific cable Committee with the accompanying papers is about to be
published in this country, and that, therefore, there is no objection to the report being
published in Canada.

The papers annexed to the report have undergone certain corrections since they
were first printed, and will therefore, as published, differ in some details from the copies
which were supplied to the members of the committee and to the Colonial governments.

It is desirable therefore that if the report is to be reprinted in Canada, your gov-
ernment should be notified that the version to be published is that which will be given
to Parliament, not that of the uncorrected copy at present in their possession ; and I
should be much oblidged if you would kindly mention this point in communicating with
your government.

It is expected that the Parlimentary Paper will be out in about a fortnight.
Believe me, &c.,

SELBORNE.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE APPOINTED TO CONSIDER THE PRO-
POSAL FOR LAYING A TELEGRAPH CABLE BETWEEN BRITISH

NORTH[ AMERICA AND THE COLONIES OF AUSTRALASIA.

1. The committep have the honour to report that, having been appointed by the
Secretary of State for the Colonies on the 2nd of June last, they held their first meeting
on the 5th of that month ; but that owing to unavoidable delays they were unable to
begin the examination of witnesses till the 12th of November.

2. The committee desire to express their obligations to Mr. Sandford Fleming,
whose long labours on the subject of a Pacific cable have thrown much light upon the
project and materially facilitated the task of the committee, and to all the gentlemen
who have been so good as to give evidence, and whose answers range over the whole
ground comprised in the reference to the committee.

3. The committee have carefully considered these answers and other materials
bearing on the subject, which have been laid before them, and have had the honour to
report as follows upon the questions submitted to them.

4. The committee consider that the most convenient course will be for them to
deal with the points submitted to them in the same order as is laid down in the
instrument of appointment.

I. PRACTICABILITY.

5. No one disputes the practicability of the project from a technical point of view,
although the depth, probably in places over 3,000 fathoms, is as great as that in which
any cable has hitherto been laid. The committee consider that a preliminary survey is
indispensable, principally for the purpose of ascertaining, before the cable is laid, and of
avoiding, while it is being laid, any serious inequalities in the bed of the ocean which
might cause " suspension," and in course of time, fractures of the cable. Such a survey
could, however, be made while the cable is being manufactured ; it could be made by
the contractors under the supervision of an officer appointed for the purpose by the
owners of the cable; and the necessary provision for it, with al proper conditions,
could be contained in the contract. The present information with regard to the route
is sufficient for the purpose of estimating the expense of the cable, and it may be
assumed that the further survey recommended would not lead to any material variation
in the tenders.

6. Further, it will be necessary that a careful examination be made of the various
islands to be presently mentioned, with a view to ascertaining the best spots available
for landing stations.
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Il. ROUTE.

7. The committee recommend that the route should be from Vancouver via
Fanning or Palmyra Island, Fiji and Norfolk Island, with branches from last named
station to Queensland and New Zealand. No doubt there would be a decided advantage
in taking the cable via the Hawaiian Islands, instead of via Fan ining or Palmyra Island,
as the section would, in that case, be shorter and therefore less ( ostly for the same speed,
or faster for the same cost, and some traffic would, if no line is laid f rom California, be
obtained f rom Honolulu. But this route would involve a deps rture fron the principle
of using only British territory for landing stations, and as his principle has been
formally endorsed by the Canadian and Australasian governments at the conferences at
Ottawa and Sydney, the committee consider that it should be adhered to, and that a
departure from it would be g material change in the character of the scheme which was
approved at those conferences.

8. The length of the cable over the route recommended would be, allowing 10 per
cent for "slack " actually used, about 7,986 nautical miles, viz. :-

Vancouver to Fanning Island 3,561, or a little less from Vancouver to Palmyra
Island.

Fanning Island to Fiji, 2,093, or a little less fron Palmyra Island to Fiji;
Fiji to Norfolk Island, 961.
Norfolk Island to New Zealand, 537.
Norfolk Island to Queensland, 834.
9. The Pacifie cable as a means of communication between Australasia and Europe

would be, of course, dependent of the land lines across America and on the trans-Atlantic
tables; and it would be necessary for it to have sone working arrangement with them.
Such arrangements are universal in the case of sub-marine cable companies, which must
obviously make terms with the land lines by which their traffic is received or forwarded.
The only telegraph line which at present runs from the eastern sea-board to Vancouver,
is that of the Canadian Pacific Railway Company. This company is in connection at
Canso in Nova Scotia with the Commercial Cable Company, which possesses three cables
from Great Britian to Canso ; and the nature of the arrangement between them is shown
in the telegraphic correspondence contained in the appendix to this report. The
Commercial Cable Company is an American company, but all the landing stations are
on British territory. It is stated that the other trans-Atlantic cable companies,
whether British or foreign, are in connection and alliance with the Western Union
Telegraph Company, wbich is also an American company.

10. The Western Union at present effects its junction with the Canadian Pacifie
Railway Company's telegragh lines at Montreal, but it is highly probable that were
a Pacifie cable laid from Vancouver to Australia it would (if it does not already
possess such a connection) make its own connection with Vancouver through the
United States territory as far as British Columbla.

11. The effect of this position of affairs is that the choice of routes would lie
between an American cable company having its stations exclusively on British soil and
in connection with a land systemt passing over British territory and controlled by a
British company, and cable companies which, whether British or American, and which,
whether possessing stations on British or American soil, are in connection with a land
system controlled by an American company, and possibly passing through the greater
part of its length over American territory.

III. CosT.

12. The cost of laying the cable depends mainly on the materials used in it; and as
the quality of these can be tested, the question is practically one of quantity. The outer
coverings are much the same in ail specifications, according to the conditions of the case,
but the conductor of copper and the insulator of gutta-percha vary in quantity in propor-
tion to the speed of transmission required, and, therefore, the question of cost practically
depends upon them, the heavier the cable in these respects the greater being the speed
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and the cost. With rigard to all the sections, except the long one from Vancouver to
Fanning Island, opinions as to the composition of the cable do not much vary, and as
the speed of the whole line is limited, for through trafflic, to that of the longest section
it will only be necessary to go into particulars with regard to that section.

13. On this branch of their inquiry, the committee have taken a large amount of
technical evidence froni electrical experts. This evidence bas been in some important
respects conflicting, and the committee have been obliged to form their own conclusions,
weighing one authority against another.

14. The principal points which the committee have had to consider, are

1. The weight per nautical mile of the core best suited for the purposes of the
long section.

2. The theoretical speed of transmission obtainable from a given core over a
given distance.

3. The deductions which ha% e to be made f rom the theoretical speed of
transmission to arrive at the actual practical speed in " paying " letters.

4. The number of hours per diem during which a cable can be worked for
commercial purposes.

THE CORE.-15. The cores recomnended to the committee varied from 500 lbs.
copper and 320 ibs. gutta-percha (Mr. Siemens) to 800 lbs. copper and 550 lbs. gutta-
percha (Mr. Preece, of the General Post Office), but the committee have decided to
select for detailed consideration from between those limits, two types, which have been
recommended from different points of view.

16. The first would contain 552 Ibo. copper and 368 lbs. gutta-percha, and was
that recommended to the India-rubber, Gutta-percha and Telegraph Works Company
by Lord Kelvin in November, 1895.

17. The committee do not consider that it would be wise economy to lay down a
cable of any lighter type than this. The speed of transmission would be reduced to
too low a figure.

18. The second would contain 650 Ibs. copper and 400 lbs. gutta-percha, and is
that which was adopted for the cable laid by the Anglo-American Telegraph Company
in 1894. There is a serious mechanical difficulty in bandling cable of very heavy
weight at great depths, and the committee are of opinion that it would not be prudent
in any case to lay a cable of a heavier core than this over the long section.

SPERD, THEoRETICAL AND PaAcTIcAL.-19. It is, however, in connection with the
speed obtainable from a given cable over a given distance, that the opinions of the
experts have differed mosti materially.

20. For instance, Dr. A. Muirhead gave it as bis opinion that a cable of 552 lbs.
copper and 368 lbs. gutta-percha over the long section would, with experienced
3perators and by the use of the automatic curb method of transmission, give a speed of
80 letters per minute; and, similarly, for a cable of 650 lbs. copper and 400 lbs. gutta-
percha, 95 letters per minute.

21. Mr. Preece, on the other hand, stated that the same core as that last-named,
over the same distance, and by the same process, would give a speed of not quite 63
letters per minute.

22. For the same cable Mr. M. H. Gray, Mr. Lucas, speaking for himself and for
the late Admiral Sir George Richards, and the representatives of the Eastern Extension
Telegraph Company, estimated a speed of 70 letters per minute.

23. On the other hand, Mr. Siemens estimated the same speed of 70 letters per
minute for a cable of 500 lbs. copper and 320 Ibs. gutta-percha, while, for a cable of
800 lbs. copper and 550 ibs. gutta-percha, Mr. Preece estimated a speed of 85 letters
per minute.

24. Lord Kelvin wrote to the committee that in his opinion they might reckon on
getting 60 letters per minute, and that possibly they might get 80 letters per minute
out of a cable composed of a core of 552 lbs. copper and 368 lbs. gutta-percha over the
lopg section.

In all cases the speed given was the theoretical speed for simplex working.

A. 1899
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25. On the question of the deductions which have to be made to reduce the theo-
retical to the practical speed, the divergence of opinion was not less remarkable.

26. The explanation of this is to be found in the fact that much depends upon the
system on which a line is worked. Thus, in the case of the trans-Atlantic Unes where
the competition is very keen and the hours of business comparatively limited, and where
the regulations of the International Telegraphic Convention do not apply, it has been
found possible to reduce the non paying traffic to about 16 per cent.

27. On the other hand, on the Eastern lines the proportion is much higher because
the reserve power of the lines is very great, and, therefore, there is more margin for
non-paying traffic, the working hours are practically longer, and the regulations of the
International Convention have to be followed. Mr. Preece estimated that a theoretical
speed of nearly 63 letters per minute for the core of 650 Ibs. copper and 400 lbs. gutta-
percha would be reduced in practical working to 28 paying letters pr minute. Mr.
Lucas stated that a theoretical speed of 70 letters per minute for the smme core was
equivalent to four or five paying words a minute. Mr. Lamb, of the General Post
Office, said a deduction of 55 per cent must be made from the theoretical to fnd the
practical speed of a given cable. Mr. Ward, Manager of the Commercial Cable Com-
pany, calculated that a total allowance of 16 per cent, 8hould be made for "dead"
traffic; Mr. Carson, of the Anglo-American Telegraph Company, 15 per cent; and Mr.
Gray, of the India-Rubber, Gutta-Percha, and Tetegraph Works Company, about 17 per
cent. Mr. T. B. Finch, Director in Chief of the Indo-European Telegraph Department
of the Goverment of India and having charge of the telegraphs from Karachi up the
Persian Gulf and through Persia, stated that the average number of service indications
which have to be forwarded with a message of 12 paying words of a length of eight
letters each would on the average be equivalent to 10 letters. Furthermore, he stated
that the unavoidable use of the lines under his charge for administrative purposes would
amount to less than 5 per cent of the whole traffic. His estimate, therefore, of the
total unavoidable "dead " traffic amounts to about 17 per cent.

By the theoretical speed of a cable the committee understand the maximum
number of words which can be transmitted in a minute, so that an experienced operator
can certainly and easily read them. The practical speed is the proportion of that
maximum number which remains after certain deductions have been made for the trans-
mission of words for which no revenue is received and for loss of time.

28. The committee ascertained that these deductions were made on account of-
1. Service indications and prefixes, such as station of origin, number of mes-

sage, time, date, &c.
2. Repetitions, errors in transmission, corrections.
3. Necessary intervals between the messages, time lost by clerks, &c.
4. Administrative messages connected with the traffic.
There are, of course, other administrative messages which must necessarily be

sent on the business of the line, but these could, in most cases, be left for periods
when there was no traffic for transmission.

29. It muet also be borne in mind, in considering this question, that though the
speed of a cable is usually stated as being a certain number of words per minute, these
words are "reputed " words of five letters each. In actual practice a word averages
eight letters, the increase being due to the use of code words and to the omission of
many conjunctions and prepositions when messages are sent "in clear."

30. The so-called " words," however, which have to be added to each message as
service indications and prefixes do not consist generally of more than two or three
letters each.

31. After weighing all the evidence carefully, the committee are of opinion that a
deduction of 33 per cent from the theoretical speed is amply sufficient to give the
practical speed, or the paying traffic.

32. This estimate is a cautious one.
33. There is no apparent reason why, witb good management, the "dead " traffic

on a Pacific cable should not be kept much nearer to the level which obtains on the
Atlantic than to that which obtains on the Eastern lines. In addition, however, must
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be taken into consideration unavoidable losses of time in each working hour, and the
fact that the use-of code words (usually long ones) is increasing.

34. It has also besn stated in evidence that possibly a Pacifie cable would have to
comply with the regulations of the International Telegraph Convention, but in the case
of a lino touching only British territory this necessity may perhaps be avoided.

35. The estimate of 33 per cent has been arrived at with the desire to include an
allowance for every possible deduction from the earning power of the cable.

If the experience of the Atlantic cable companies can be relied on the percentage
would be considerably reduced.

NUMBER OF WORKING HOURs PER DTEM.-36. In this matter, again, the expert
evidence was somewhat conflicting, but the committee consider that an estimate of 18
hours per diem during which the cable could be worked, would be a moderate one. A
very small allowance for duplex working has been made in this calculation.

37. Duplex working is the system under which the same cable is made to transmit
messages from both ends at the same time. It can be applied so as to add about 80
per cent to the traffic sent by simplex working. But full advantage can only be taken
of this system when the business bours are substantially the same at both ends of the
cable. This, for instance, is the case between, say, London and Lisbon: as between
London and New York, where the difference in point of time is about five hours, duplex
is only regularly available for the few hours which may be considered part of the work-
ing day in both places: while as between this country and the east of Australia, where
the difference is about ton hours, so that night here is almost synchronous with day
there, duplex working would only be resorted to té a small extent.

38. The conclusion the committee have arrived at is that the core of 552 lbs.
copper and 368 lbs. gutta-percha might reasonably be expected to give 40 paying letters
a minute.

39. The core of 650 Ibs. of copper and 400 lbs. gutta-percha similarly would give
48 paying letters per minute.

40. To get the carrying capacity of these cables in a year the above numbers of
letters should be multiplied by 60 (minutes to the hour) ; then by 18 (working hours.
per day; then by 300 (working days in a year). The totals on this basis would be:-

At 40 paying letters, or 5 paying words .......... 1,620,000 words.
At 48 " " or 6 "i .1. . . . . .. .1,944,000

41. Thus the lowest of these totals considerably exceeds the whole of the Austral-
asian traffic in any year except 1895.

COST OF LAYING.-42. The India Rubber, Gutta-Percha, and Telegraph Works.
Company has offered to lay the whole cable over the route recommended, with the first
above-mentioned types for the long section, for the sum of £1,517,000, this sum includ-
ing the erection at each station of a suitable dwelling-house and operating room, iwith
duplicate sets of all proper instruments; also the use of two cable-repairing ships, with
the cost of maintaining them as well as the cables themselves for three years.

43. This estimate included an allowance for 10 per cent slack.
44. The allowance of slack is, in the opinion of the committee, a reasonable oie

for actual laying, but they are of opinion that another 10 per cent should be manu-
factured, which would be properly chargeable to the repair and maintenance fund to be
hereinafter mentioned.

45. The condition as to maintenance for three years was laid down by the Cana-
dian government in inviting tenders, but though there is some convenience in thus
having maintenance guaranteed for the first three years, the committee consider that.
snch a period is unnecessarily long as a test of the original condition of the eable when
laid, without being long enough to prove its durability while under water; and they-
would recommend that the contractors should be required to maintain the. cable for six.
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months. With this modification the price would presumably be ta1iid in approximately
the following manner:

£
1,517,000

Deduct cost of maintenance for three years; this was
put at £40,000 a year for the two ships, and £30,000
a year for the cable used ....................... . 210,000

£ 1,307,000
Add for maintenance for six months at the same rate. . . 35,000
Add for purchase of two repairing ships.............. .. 80,000

£ 1,422,000

or in round numbers, and leaving a margin of £78,000 for miscellaneous expenses
payable out of capital, £1,500,000.

46. It seems probable that another firm would offer similar terms.
47. As regards the probable cost of a cable of the second of the above types, the

information laid before the committee is to the following effect :-
48. The Telegraph Construction and Maintenance Company estimated that the

price for such a cable from Vancouver to New Zealand via Honolulu would be
£1,870,000; this sum including the cost of.five stations, estimated at £37,000. This
distance (without slack) would be 6,352 nautical miles, and the longest span (Vancouver
to Honolulu) 2,325. The route recommended is (without slack) 7,186, and the long
section is about 3,200. The price of this type, therefore, on the basis of the above
estimate, would considerably exceed £2,000,000.

49. The India Rubber, Gutta-Percha, and Telegraph Works Company stated, in
reply to a question from the Canadian government, that their price for a 15 word per
minute cable would be £1,672,000; and for 18 words £1,880,000; but specifications
for these cables have not been given.

50. The representatives of the Eastern Extension Telegraph Company estimated
the cost of the cable, with a core of 650 lbs. of copper and 400 lbs. of gutta-percha
between Vancouver and Fanning Island, allowing 15 per cent or more for slack, and
including the cost of erecting stations and supplying apparatus, at about £1,650,000.
The Henley Telegraph Works Company tendered for a cable of this type, with com-
pletely equipped and furnished stations and cable huts for £1,492,000.

51. Mr. Preece also estimated that a cable of a heavier core over the section to Fan-
ning Island (800 lbs. copper and 550 lbs. gutta-percha), would cost a little over £2,000-
000. It seems therefore possible that a cable of the dimensions under consideration
might be had for £1,800,000. It would not be prudent to put the whole capital
required for such a cable at less.

WORKING EXPENsEs-52. The annual working expenses at the stations on the
line may, the committee consider, be put at £17,000, having due regard to their
position and the cost of living.

53. For the central management £5,000 is allowed, making a total for annaul
working expenses of £22,000.

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRs.-54. With regard to the maintenance and repairs, it
is of course impossible to forecast what interruptions would occur in any year and
what expenditure would be incurred in restoring communication. It may, however, be
remarked that repairs of a cable are the substitution of new material for old ; so that
in course of time the whole of a cable might be replaced ; and this circumstances affords
some guide as to the annual sum which should be set apart, on the principle of provid-
ing, not merely for the cost of annual repairs, in case of the interruption, but for the
entire replacement of the cable, so far as might be found necessary, within some definite
period. Thus the replacement of the cable would be completed in 40 years by laying
200 miles of cable a year; and taking the cost of cable, in round figu&es at £200 a mile,
thiî process would, on that basis, be effected by devoting £40,000 a year to this purpose.
It is not suggested that it would be necessary to replace every part of the cable in such
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a period, or that such a sum would be expended each year on repairs ; but the fact that
the sum named would not only meet current repairs but would in 40 years be equival-
ent to the replacement of the whole cable, indicates, in the opinion of the committee,
that it is as great a provision as need be made under this head. To it, however, should
be added the fixed expenses of two repairing vessels, which may be put at £30,000,
making £70,000 in all.

55. It should be added that the evidence clearly shows that the great depth of the
Pacific will be a favourable factor in determining the life of the cable, while it will be
an unfavourable influence on the facility and cost of the necessary repairs.

56. The provision suggested would therefore, it is estimated, in the shape partly of
new cable and partly of unexpended balances, perpetually maintain the value of the
cable as an asset.

TOTAL ANNUAL CHARG.-57. To the expenses of working and maintaining the
cable must be added the annual charge for interest, and provision for replacing the
capital at the end of a certain period.

58. Having regard to the character of the work, the committee think that a period
of 50 years might reasonably be allowed for the latter purpose.

59. The rate of interest to be assumed must depend to a great extent on the
conditions under which the capital is raised; and we have therefore thought it better
to append four estimates of the total annual charge which must be provided for, varying
according to the type of cable selected and the rate of interest.

60. In each case the sinking fund is calculated to replace the capital in 50 years.

With a capital of £1,500,000. With a capital of £1,800,000.

Interest at Interest at Interest at Interest at
2ï per cent. 2j per cent. 2ï per cent. 2j per cent.

£. £. £. £

Interest......... ......... .. . 41,250 37,500 49,500 45,000
Sinking fund. .......... ......... 14,311 15,387 17,173 18,464
Working expenses....... .......... 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000
Maintenance... .. .. ... ...... 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000

Total ..... ... ...... 147,561 144,887 158,673 155,464

61. The Agent General for South Australia, under instructions from his govern-
ment, placed before the committee the claim of that government to be compensated for
the luss which they will sustain by the diversion of traffic from the line of telegraph
which they erected across the continent of Australia, and over which a considerable
proportion of the traffic now passes.

62. A somewhat similar claim may be put forward by the Eastern Extension Tele-
graph Company in the event of a cable being laid across the Pacific with government
assistance. No question of compensation has been referred to the committee, and they
therefore abstain from expressing any opinion upon the equity of any such claim.

63. The government of India, whose position is in many respects similar to that of
South Australia, have intimated that they do not propose to make any such claim.

IV. REvENUE.
64. The revenue depends on the amount of traffic obtained, and there are no cer-

tain data by which this can be calculated. The representatives of the Eastern Extension
Telegraph Company and Mr. Lamb, of the General Post Office, estimated that on the
total traffic of 189M the amount which would be diverted to the new cable would be
672,297 and 620,000 words respectively. Mr. Sandford Fleming, for the reasons given
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in his evidence, put it at one-haif the existing traffic. The committee having considered
all the evidence bearing on the subject, and feeling that they must in such a matter be
actuated by extreme caution, select 750,000 words (which are between a third and a
half) as a basis of calculation for the year 1896. They further consider that the esti-
mate may assume an annual increase of this traffic at a rate of 10 per cent. In 1875
the amount of the Australasian telegraphic traffic was 235,160 words; in 1885 this had
risen to 537,:5 words; and in 1895 to 1,860,423 words. Thus, the estimated rate of
increase is considerably below the ascertained average increase of recent years ; but
special caution is advisable in drawing ari inference from thi, as the increase has latelv
been out of proportion to the increase of business, so far as shown by imports and exports,
thus probably indicating a change of habit in transacting commercial business, which
Inust have some limit, and further, the rather special circumstanceq of the Western
Australia gold discoveries must be taken into account. There are no materials for
estimating the probable increase in the American-Aµtstralasian traffic, which is at present
very small, but it is likely that with a Pacifie cable it would substantially develop. A
little local traffic in the Pacific may also be counted upon.

65. These circumstances appear to the committee to show the moderation of their
estimate, but they have not failed to bear in mind the fact that the Eastern Telegraph
Companies possess an old-established business, with wide connections, and that if any
prolonged breakdown occurred on a Pacific cable, great injury might (in the absence of
a duplicate cable) be inflicted on its business. On the other hand, the Atlantic Cable
Companies in England would be interested in collecting traffic for a Pacific cable.

66. The amount of the through rate would depend on the terms made with the trans-
Atlantic Companies and the American land-lines. but the committee have been info'rmed
that a shilling rate could be obtained from Great Britain to Vancouver.

67. Taking, however, the existing rate to Australia of 4s. 9d. a word as a basis,
and assuming that the existing rate of Is. 6d. from London to Vancouver is maintained,
a Pacifie cable would be able to secure 3s. 6d. a word. On an estimated traffic of
750,000 words in 1896, this would amount to £121,875. If the tariff were reduced so
as t admit of a Pacifie cable retaining 2s. a word, the revenue would be £75,000, and
at Is. 6d. a word, £56,250. This calculation is based on the assumption that each word
pays the full rate. No reduction is made for government or press telegrams, because
allowance for this consideration bas been made by the committee in arriving at the
above estimate of the total traffic, and after reckoning that similar proportions of press
and government telegrams would be carried by a Pacific cable, and at similarly reduced
rates to those now transmitted by the eastern route. According to the returns of the
Eastern Extension Telegraeh Company for 1895, the press words were about 10 per cent
of the whole, and the government words about 2 per cent.

68. The committee have only to add, with reference to the financial question, that
the cable would be a competitive line and would have to be managed accordingly.
While they have felt themselves bound, as they have remarked, to show extreine
caution in their estimates, they consider that the question of expenditure, and still more
the question whether a business approximating more to the capacity of the cable could
be obtained, would largely depend, as would similar questions in all industrial enter-
prises, on the energy and care shown by the management.

69. The evidence has clearly shown that the best m-nagement and the adoption of
the most improved methods can get much more paying work out of a cable than inferior
management and the use of older methods.

RECOMMENDATION AND SUMMARY.-70. In consideration of the traffic estimated for
the cable, and of the opinion expressed below, that a duplicate cable should be laid at
the earliest possible moment, the committee have arrived at the conclusion that a core
over a locng section from Vancouver to Fanning Island of 552 lbs. copper and 368 lbs.
gutta-percha will be suflicient. On the assumption that this recommendation is adopted,
and in taking the total annual expenditure at £144,887 and the increase of business at
10 per cent per annum on 750,000 words in 1896, a Pacific cable would, if it came into
actual work on the first of January, 1900, earn £178,437 in its first year of working
if the rate obtained by it per word were 3s. 3d., thus leaving a credit balance on the
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first year's working of £33,550. If the rate per word were reduced to 2s., in the year
1900 it would earn £109,807; in 1901, £120,788; in 1902, £132,867, and in 1903,
£146,153; it would thus become a paying concern during the fourth year of working.

V. OWNERSHIP.

71. The committee are of opinion that the cable should be owned and worked by
the governments interested.

72. In arriving at this conclusion they do not underrate the importance of allowing
all commercial undertakings to be carried out, whenever possible, by private enterprise
unassisted by government. But in the present case there seems to be no probability
that private capital will be forthcoming for the purpose of laying a Pacific cable with-
out a larger subsidy than the governments interested in the project would be prepared
to grant.

73. If the government assistance, in some form or other, is necessary, the committee
think that a scheme under which the cable would be constructed and owned by the
governments interested is much to be preferred to a private company working under a
government subsidy.

VI. MANAGEMENT.

74. The committee are of opinion that the general direction should be in the hands
of a manager in London, under the control of a small board, on which the associated
governments would be represented. The manager would be in communication with
the telegraph authorities of the respective governments with regard to matters of local
administration. The details could be arranged without difficulty by the governinents
interested.

VII. CONTRACT.

75. The contract would in the main follow the ordinary forms, specimens of which
are shown in the appendix. Provision should be made for a preliminary survey under
the supervision of an officer appointed by the governments, and for the maintenace of
the cable by the contractor for six months, as reconmended above. The cable in shal-
low water should be protected by brass tapeing against marine insects. The details of
the specification would present no difficulty when the type for the long section has
been fixed upon, as there is not much difference between the present modes of construct-
ing submarine cables.

DUPLICATIN.-76. The committee have only to add that it would, in their opinion,
be necessary to lay a duplicate cable, and that if a deviation from an all-British route
were permissible in the case of a duplicate cable, and if the circumstances of the time
permitted of it, such a cable might advantageously follow a somewhat different route,
via Honolulu. Most cables on important routes have been duplicated, but generally in
the flrst instance they have been laid singly, and the duplication has followed when the
success of the undertaking warrauted a fresh outlay of capital.

77. There can be no doubt, however, that the duplication should be effected at the
earliest convenient opportunity. Cables have usually been duplicated to protect and
preserve their business in case of interruptions, even when there have been no compet-
in, lines ready to profit by their breakdowns. Duplication would be, therefore the
more necessary in case of a new line, which would be laid in competition with an exist-
ing undertaking.

78. If a second cable were laid along the same route as the first, the annual
expenditure entailed by it might be reckoned at £67,000 les than that of the first, as
the additional working expenses would certainly not exceed £15,000, and there would
be no additional standing charges for repairing ships. If a second cable were laid via
Honolulu, not only would there be the above mentioned reduction in annual expendi-
ture of £37,000, but also a very material reduction in the charges for interest and sink-
ing fund, as the capital required would be less.
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79. In the event, therefore, of a second cable being laid along the route recom-
inended for the first, and on the assumption that the tariff were reduced to 2s. a word,
and that such a reduction brought no increase of business beyond the 10 per cent
per annum already estimated, the total annual receipts from the two cables would
exceed the total annual expenditure upon them in the tenth year from the com-
mencement of the work of the firat cable in 1900. If a second cable were laid
along the cheaper route, or if the tariff were not reduced to 2s. a word, or if the annual
increase of business exceeded 10 per cent, the period during which the total annual
expenditure exceeded the tot4l annual receipts would be proportionately shortened.

80. Moreover, the financial position of the cables would be a very strong one.
81. The custom of the owners of cables is to put by such a sum of money every

,year as will enable their cables to be kept in continuai repair and the old cable entirely
replaced by a new cable within a certain number of years. This they consider to be a
sufficient provision for the replacement of their capital. The committee have, however,
suggested that in the case of a Pacific cable there should be what practically amounts
to a double replacement of capital. They have recommended that a sufficient sum
should be set aside for annual maintenance to ensure the complete renewal of the cable
within 40 years, so that at the end of that time the associated governments should
either be in possession of a new cable or, if the old cable had not been wholly renewed,
of a reserve fund sufficient to replace such part of the original cable as still existed.
And, further, they have provided for the complete extinction of the original loan at the
end-of 50 years. These facts must be borne in mind in considering the financial pros-
pects of the cable.

82. The coimmittee cannot conclude this report without expressing their strong
sense of the value of the services rendered to them by their secretary, Mr. W. H. Mercer.
It has been mainly owing to hii exertions that they bave been enabled to carry through
their work evenly and promptly since their regular sittings first commenced.

SELBORNE, Chairman.
DONALD A. SMITH.
A. G. JONES.
SAUL SAMUEL.
D. GILLIES.
GEO. H. MURRAY.

COLONIAL OFFICE, 5th January, 1897.
W. H. Mgiec, Secretary.
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SPECIAL REPORT OF THE CANADIAN COMMISSIONERS ON THE
IMPERIAL COMMITTEE TO THE MINISTER OF TRADE

AND COMMERCE.

VIcToRIA CHAMBERS, 17 VICToRIA STREET,

The Honourable LONDON, S.W., 12th January, 1897.

The Minister of Trade and Commerce,
Ottawa.

SIR,-We beg to refer you to the letters from Sir Donald Smith and Sir Mackenzie
Bowell to the Premier, dated the 10th and 17th July last, respecting the preliminary
meetings of the Pacifie Cable Committee, which were adjourned on the 8th July until
26th October. The date of the reassembling of the committee was subsequently post-
poned for a few days.

In the meantime a change was made in the representation of Canada on the com-
mittee, and we were appointed members of the committee by the following Order in
Council, approved by His Excellency on the 13th November:-

" The committee, on the recommendation of the Minister of Trade and Commerce,
advise that the Honourable Sir Donald A. Smith, G.C.M.G., and the Honourable Alfred
Gilpin Jones, of Halifax, be appointed comnissioners to represent the Dominion of
Canada as the conference to be held in London on the 9th November instant in reference
to the subject of a Pacific Ocean Telegraph Cable, and that Mr. Sandford Fleming, C.M.G.,
be appointed to accompany the said commissioners as expert adviser.

" The committee further advise that Your Excellency be moved to forward a certified
copy of this minute to the Right Honourable the Principal Secretary of State for the
Colonies."

The appointments in question having been approved by the Secretary of State for
the Colonies, the committee reassembled on the 12th November last under the presidency
of the Right Honourable the Earl of Selborne, the Under Secretary of State, and con-
tinued its sittings at frequent intervals until the signature of its report (a preliminary
copy of which is inclosed) on the 5th instant.

The questions referred to the committee by the Right Honourable the Secretary of
State for the Co'onies, for their consideration, embraced the following points:-

"1. Is the laying of such a cable practicable from a technical point of view I
"2. If so, what route should be selected for the cable I
"3. What would be the cost (a) of laying, (b) of maintaining the cable, and (c)

of the annual working expenses?
" 4. What reven'ue will arise from the traffic which may be expected to pass

over the cable I
"5. Should the cable be owned and worked hy government, or by a subsidized

private company 'i
" 6. If the cable were to be national property, what would be the proper method

of management and administration I
"7. What should be the form of contract offered to a contractor for its con-

struction ?
"It is desired that the report should embody the views of the committee

upon any subsidiary questions of a practical nature which may arise during the
investigation.

" Should the report of the committee, after it has. been submitted to Her
Majesty's government, render such a course advisable, the Chancellor of the
Exchequer and myself will be prepared to discuss with the representatives of the
Dominion of Canada and of the Australasian colonies the financial side of the
question in its bearing upon the interests of the governments concerned."
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The committee at once proceeded to obtain the evidence of some of the leading
authorities upon each branch of the inquiry. The report deals at length with the
various matters, and it will only be necessary for us to supplement it with a few addi-
tional observations.

Reference to the printed reports of our proceedings will show that such recognized
authorities as Lord Kelvin (who, as Professor Thomson, was associated with the laying
of the first Atlantic cable) and Dr. Muirhead, agree with the well-known electricians,
Messrs. Gray and Siemens, and the Trans-Atlantie Cable Managers, Messrs. Carson and
Ward, as to the practicability of the undertaking, and as to the weight and capacity of
the cable recommended. Tbey 'appear to be of the opinion that a cable of the weight
proposed-say 552 pounds of copper and 368 pounds of gutta-percha-would be capable
of transmitting ten words, and probably twelve words, of eight letters, per minute. We
therefore urged that the evidence justified the committee in coming to the conclusion
that the proposed cable would be capable of transmitting a larger number of words per
minute than has been adopted in the report.

Any opinions submitted as to the probabilities of revenue must be in the nature of
estimates. The actual results must largely depend upon the percentage of the present
and prospective business which might be sent over the proposed cable. We have had
the advantage of valuable assistance on these points from Mr. Fleming, who, as expert
adviser, bas given us the benefit of his own investigations, extending over a number of
years, and bas also taken the trouble to obtain information on the subject from some of
the chief bouses interested in the Australian trade. Mr. Fleming's inquiries show
clearly that an annual increase of fifteen per cent is generally regarded as a very
moderate estimate. It certainly does not seem excessive when taken in conjunction
with the factthat, the average increase, for the past five years, is shown by the official
returns to have been 27 per cent.

The percentage of traffic which might be diverted to the proposed cable has been
variously estimated, and any one with a knowledge of the circumstances may forrn an
opinion upon that branch of the subject. The Eastern Extension Company estimate it
at one-third. Others not equally interested, including Australasian merchants, seem to
favour one-half as the probable proportion.

Our own view was to accept a mean between one-third and one-balf, which, on the
total number of words for 1895 would have given 811,820 as the figures for that year.
The majority of the committee, however, decided to adopt an estimate of 750,000 words.

Assuming that the cable would not be in operation before 1900, and adding the
estimated increase of 10 per cent per annum from 1895 to that date, the prospect of its
early earning capabilities appears to be very favourable. The working results on that
basis are indicated by the following figures:-

Year. Er Annual Deficiency. Surplus.Earnings. Charges.

1900...... £130,744 £144,886 £14,142 ......
1901 ...... 143,818 144,886 1,068 .. ...
1902 ...... 158,200 144,886 ...... . 13,314
1903 ...... 174,020 144,886 ......... 29,134
1904,..... 191,422 144,886 46,536
1905...... 210,564 144,886 ......... 65,678

Total ...................... £15,210 £154,662

Surplus in five years........................ £139,452

If the cable should secure a mean between the various estimates of one-third and
one-half of the traffic (exclusive of the entire American traffic upon which the new cable
might safely rely), and estimating the annual increase at 12J per cent-the mean
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between 10 per cent and 15 per cent-the results would be still more satisfactory, as
will appear from the following figures :-

Year. Gross Earnings. Annual Charge. Surplus.
1900 ,............... £146,000 £144,886 £ 1,114
1901 ................. 164,275 144)886 19,389
1902 ................ 184,809 144,886 39y923
1903................ 212,900 144,886 68,014
1904,........... ... .239,512 144,886 94,626
1905.................269,451 144,886 124,565

Surplus in five years....... ............ .... £347,631

The question of the division of responsibility was not referred to the committee,
being left for discussion at a later date between the Chancellor of the Exchequer, Mr.
Chamberlain, and the representatives of the Dominion of Canada and Australasia.

The committee consider that the esýtimate for laying the cable is amply sufficient to
cover all the expenses ; and that the same remark applies to the estimate for the sinking
fund on a 50 years' basis (which we all agreed as preferable to a shorter period) and for
the working expenses and repairs.

The report of the committee deals at length with all the different branches of the
inquiry referred to them by the Secretary of State. An official copy of the report as
signed will follow in a few days. In due course we shall be in a position to transmit
the evidence taken by the committee, which is now being printed. It is understood by
the committee, and desired by the Secretary of State for the Colonies, that the
report and evidence is not to be made public either in the United Kingdom or in the
colonies, until it has been presented to the Imperial Parliament, which, of course,
equally applies to this letter.

In conclusion, we desire to express our great appreciation of the patience, courtesy
and ability shown by the Right Honourable the Earl of Selborne, chairman of the com-
mittee, throughout the course of their investigations and deliberations.

We are, sir,
Your obedient servants,

DONALD A. SMITH,
A. G. JONES.

REPORT ON THE IMPERIAL CABLE COMMITTEE BY SANDFORD
FLEMING TO THE HONOURABLE THE MINISTER OF

TRADE AND COMMERCE.

Sir RicHARD CARTWRIGHT, OTTAWA, 30th January, 1897.

Minister of Trade and Commerce.

SIR,-On the 21st October last I had the honour to be officially notified by you of
my appointment, by Order in Council, associated with Sir Donald A. Smith and the
Hon. Alfred G. Jones, to represent the Canadian government at the Pacific Cable
Conference to meet in London at an early date. Leaving Ottawa the following day I
was able to report myself at the Colonial Office on the 3rd November.

Before the Imperial Cable Committee could be called together a difficulty presented
itself. In accordance with the original design of the Secretary of State for the
Colonies it had been determined that there should be two representatives for Canada,
two on the part of the Australasian colonies, and two for the Home government. As
it was held to be expedient to adhere to this arrangement it bAcame necessary to reduce
the number of the Canadian representatives.
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Recognizing the importance of the Dominion being represented on the Imperial
Conmittee by the High Commissioner and an ex-Minister of the Crown of the status
of Mr. Alfred Jones, I expressed ny willingness to retire. On Wednesday, November
7th, I wrote the Secretary of the Committee to that effect and requested him to inform
the Chairman, Lord Selborne, that as Mr. Laurier, the premier, had been good enough
specially to ask me to assist in the business of the committe, I was prepared to meet
bis wishes and those of the committee itself as far as I was able and as might be con-
sidered expedient.

On November 9th, I learned by telegraph from Ottawa that the Order in Council
appointing me one of the Canarlian representatives in conjunction with Sir Donald A.
Smith and Hon. A. G. Jones, had been canoelled a-id that a new order had been passed
appointing these two gentlemen to serve on the committee and myself to act as Expert
Adviser.

On November 10th, I received a note f rom the Secretary of the Committee in reply
to my letter of the 7th conveying, on behalf of Mr. Chamberlain and Lord Selborne, an
expression of their thanks, asking me to attend the first regular meeting of the com-
Inittee.

The committec met to receive eý idence on the 1 2th November, I appeared as the
first witness, when I submitted my views as they are set forth in Statement No. 1
appended (page 18). My examinations continued throughout the itting as will appear
in the printed proceedings.

The investigation was continued from week to week until the middle of December.
At the conclusion.of the examination of witnesses, I placed in the hands of the Canadian
representatives on December 16th a " note " reviewing the evidence and furnishing
additional information which I considered would be useful to the committee. Had I
been recalled, I would have embraced the opportunity of submitting this additional
information as part of my evidence, for the reason that the facts presented throw light
on points of importance and remove doubts as to the weight which should be attached
to the testimony of some of the witnesses.

I beg leave to refer you to my " note " of December 16th, which I append, and ask
you to consider it part of this report. (See Statement No. 2, page 41.)

With your permission I will briefly suminarize the results of the investigation.
1. All doubts as to the practicability of laying an electric cable from the western

coast of Canada to the Australasian Colonies, touching only on islands in the possession
of Great Britain, is now entirely set at rest. The best authorities known were examined
and not one of them expressed the least misgiving on this point.

2. It has been definitely ascertained that the total cost of a cable of the type recom-
mended would be less than one and a half million pounds sterling (£1,500,000).

3. The evidence goes to st ow that the annual charges, including interest on capital'
allowance for maintenance and renewal, sinking fund to provide for the replacement of
capital in fifty years, together with all ordinary working expenses would not exceed the
following amounts :

Interest at 2j per cent............................£ 37,500
Maintenance and renewal.......... ............ ..... 70,000
Sinking fund ............. ,............. ... . ..... 15,386
W orking expenses ..... ........ .... ........ ..... 22,114

Total annual charges ....................... ,£145,000

4. With respect to the earning capability of a cable .f the Lord Kelvin type, this
is fully discussed in my "note " of December 16th. All the best evidence establishes
that, worked with modern tranemitting and receiving apparatus precisely as the Atlantic
cables are now worked, the Pacific cable would be capable of transmitting 12 paving
words per minute, at this rate the cable fully employed for eighteen hours a day and
300 days in a year would transmit 3,888,000 paying words in 12 months. More over
this is not the full capacity of the cable as there would be nothing to prevent it being
worked 24 hours each lday.if business. re.quired. It is obvious therefore that the cable
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proposed to be laid would have ample capacity for transmitting a full share of the busi-
ness for a considerable number of years to comne. The whole telegraph traffic between
Australasia and Europe in 1895 did not exceed 1,948,369 words and it is not claimed
that more than one-half of the whole would be diverted to the new route. The returns
for 1896 have not yet been received.

5. The revenue cannot be definitely ascertained, we have however in the existing
business, and in statistics respecting its continual growth, excellent data for forning
fairly reliable estimates. The government returns indicate a remarkable vitality in
telegraphy between these distant colonies and Great Britain. Notwithstanding the very
high charges exacted from 1875 to 1890, never less than 9/4 per word, the number of
words transmitted increased within each period of five years 11 per cent per annum, and
during the whole fifteen years the growth was equal to an annual average of 16-8 per
cent. Since 1890 the tariff has been lowered from 9/4 to 4/9 per word and the average
yearly increase for each of the five years ending with 1895 has been 27 per cent. While
it is not to be expected that this extraordinary growth will be continued indefinitely,
there can be no reasonable doubt that a still further reduction in charges on messages,
consequent on the completion of the Pacific cable, will stimulate telegraphy and tend
further to increase traffic for some time to come. I have already on various occasions,
presented my own views and calculations respecting the probable volume of business in
future years. I need not repeat them here, I shall however submit carefùlly prepared
estimates based on the opinion of others. In each case it will be assumed that the cable
will be in working order by the beginning of the year 1900 and the estimates will indi-
cate the possible earnings for six years from that date. The gross earnings will be
reckoned at the rate of two shillings a word and from which will be deducted an expendi-
ture of £145,000 annually, the sum considered sufficient to include all charges.

€In estimate No. 1, it is assumed that of the 1,948,369 words transmitted in 1895,
the share of the Pacifie cable would be 750,000 words or 38J per cent of the whole,
and that there would be an increase of traffic averaging 10 per cent each year.

ESTIMATE No. 1.

Year. Gross earnings. Annual charges. Deficiency. Surplus.
1900 ........ £120,788 £145,000 £24,212 .....
1901 ........ 132,866 145,000 12,134 .
1902 .... ... .146,153 145,000 . . £1,153
1903 ........ 160,768 145,000 15,768
1904 ........ 176,845- 145,000 ..... 31,845
1905 ........ 194,529 145,000 . ... . 49,295

Totals........................£36,346 £98,295

Net surplus by end of 1905 ............. £61,949

In estimate No. 2, it is assumed that of the whole number of words transmitted in
1895 (1,948,639), the share of the Pacific cable would be 811,932 words or about 411
per cent, being the mean between one-third and one-half of the traffic, and that the
annual increase will average 12k per cent, the mean between 10 per cent and 15 per
.cent.

EsTIMATE No. 2.

Year. Gros earnings. Annual charges. Surplus.
1900 .................. £146,414 £145,000 1,414
1901............ ..... 164,715 145,000 19,715
1902................,. 185,304 145,000 40,304
1903....... .......... 208,470 145,000 63,470
1904.................. 234,725 145,000 89,725
1905.................264,066 145,000 119,066

Net surplus by end of 1905.................. £333,694
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When in London I deemed it important to obtain from leading Australians infor-
mation bearing on the question of revenue. The steps taken are set forth in my note
of December 16th (page 41), and the information obtained is given in the appended
paper (page 46), in which also will be found a list of the gentlemen who were good
enough to favour me with their opinions. The following estimate (No. 3) is based on
the opinions generally expressed, viz., that the Pacific cable will obtain fifty per cent
of the whole business and that telegraph traffic will increase annually at the average
rate:of 15 per cent. ESTIMATE o. 3.

Year. Gross earnings. Annual charges. Surplus.

1900 .................. £195,960 £145,000 £ 50,960
1901.................. 225,354 145,000 - 80,354
1902 .... ............. 259,157 145,000 114,157
1903................ 298,031 145,000 153,031
1904................ 342,735 145,000 197,735
1905............ ..... 394,144 145,000 249,144

Net surplus by end of 1905.... ......... .£845,381

The calculations are made on the assumption that the cable will be completed and
in operation by the beginning of 1900. Each of the three estimates shows a net surplus
by the end of 1905 as follows:

Estimate No. 1 net surplus earning by end of 1905......£ 61,949
Estimate No. 2 " " ...... 333,694
Estimate No. 3 " " ...... 845,381

The data on which No. 1 is based has been taken with excessive caution and I feel
warranted in saying that the estimate itself may be regarded as a minimum estimate.
No. 2 must be held to be an extremely moderaté estimate. No. 3 is based on the
general opinion of many gentlemen of high standing, the heads of great mercantile
firms, and others familiar with Australasian trade and prospects. Such opinions must
undoubtedly carry with them great weight. According to estimates Nos. 2 and 3 the
earnings of the Pacifie cable for transmitting European-Australasian telegraph traffic
would yield a surplus from the first year of its operation.

In addition to a share of the Australasian-European business, the Pacifie cable
'Will be in a position to obtain all the traffic between Australasia, Canada and the
United States.

There is no data to admit of any proper estimate being formed of the trans-Pacific
new traffic, but it is not improbable that with a direct cable and low rates it will rapidly
develop, and in a few years assume substantial proportions.

In concluding this summary of the results of the recent investigation, I feel fully
justified in saying that the estimates of revenue establish beyond all doubt that the
Pacific cable if laid as a national undertaking under government control will be more
than self supporting.

The sums which form a charge on gross earnings in each case provide, it may be
said, for a double replacement of capital. The allowance for maintenance ensures the
complete renewal of the cable in addition to meeting the cost of current expenses, and
the sinking fund provides for the extinction of the original loan when it matures. All
surplus earnings may therefore be regarded as profit, but as the national object to be
attained in establishing the cable is not to realize dividends, the policy of the contribut-
ing governments, when profits accumulate, will probably be to lower the tariff of
charges, and by this policy confer additional benefits on trade and commerce.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

SANDFORD FLEMING.
NOTE.--The papers appearingf on Ipages 52 to 85 in the edition for distribution in 1899 are omitted

here, as they can be found in Sessional Paper No. 94 (1898), pages 5 to 36, inclusive.
51



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 51.) A. 1899

MY DEAR LAURIER,-I inclose you a copy of a cable I have just received from Lord Strathcona.

Yours faithfully,

R. J. CARTWRIGHT.

(Cor>y of Trand<ation.)

The Honourable 
LoNDo, 12th April, 1899.

Sir RICHARD CARTWRIGHT, G.C.M.G.,

Minister of Trade and Commerce,
Ottawa, Canada.

Colonial Office inforns me no longer any objection publication Pacific cable report, and will be

issued here as Parlianentary Paper in about fortnight. If paper reprinted in Canada it should be

same as published here as corrections made since first printed. Copy will be forwarded inmediately

available. Colonial Office add publication not to be taken to imply acceptance schene by Her

Majesty's government.

DOMINION.

17 VICTORIA STREET,

LONDON, S. W., 12th April, 1899.
The Honourable

Sir RICHARD CARTWRIGHT, G.C.M.G.,

Minister of Trade and Commerce,
Ottawa, Canada,

DEAR SIR RICHARD CARTWRIGHT,-I beg to confirm the following cablegram which I sent you

to-day :-

" Colonial Office inform me no longer any objection publication Pacific cable report and will be

issued here as Parliamentary Paper in about fortnight. If paper reprinted in Canada it should be

same as published here as corrections made since first printed. Copy will be forwarded immediately

available. Colonial Office add publication not to be taken to imply acceptance scheme by Her

Majesty's government."

With this is inclosed, for your information, a copy of the official communication I received from

the Colonial Office, together with a copy of a private note from Lord Selborne, the Parliamentary

Under Secretary of State for the Colonies, on which my message was based.

I will not fail to send you copies of the report as published here as soon as ever it is out.
Believe me,

Yours very truly,

STRATHCONA.

THE COLONIAL OFFICE,

The Hligh Commissioner for Canada. DoWNING STREET, S.W., 10th April, 1898.

My LORD,- I am directed by Mr. Secretary Chamberlain to inform you that the report of the

Pacific Cable Committee is about to be published in this country, and that therefore there is no

longer any objection to the report being publishel in Canada.

2. I am, however, to make it clear to you for the information of your government, that publica-

tion of the report must not be taken to imply any acceptance by Her Majesty's government of the

scheme which forms its subject.

I am, &c.,

H. BERTRAM COX.
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RESOLUTIONS NOW BEFORE THE HOUSE OF COMMONS OF CANADA INTRODUCED
BY THE PREMIER.

21st April, 1899

That for the purpose of establishing direct submarine telegraphic communication between Canada
and Australasia it is expedient to authorize the Governor in Council to enter into an agreement with
such of the Governments of the United Kingdom and Her Majesty's Australasian possessions as desire
to share in the undertaking for the purpose on their behalf of securing the construction, acquisition,
laying, maintenance, and operation of a cable between Canada and Australasia on the following con-
ditions :-

(a.) That a Board of Commissioners be created by or under the legislative authority of the Par-
liament of the United Kingdom with all powers requisite for the purpose aforesaid.

(b.) That the proposed cable and all its branches, additions or extensions, and all property, real
or personal at any tine acquired for the purpose of the undertaking, shall vest and continue vested
in such Board in trust to carry out such undertaking for the benefit of the respective Governments
sharing in the undertaking and in proportion to their respective intereste therein.

(c.) That for the purpose of obtaining money wherewith to carry out the undertaking, the Board
mlay issue debentures for such suins, payable at such dates not being less than years, nor more
than years from the respective dates of issue, and bearing such rate of interest, and payable
at such place as the Board nay deterinine, but the total amount of the principal money of such
debentures at any time outstanding shall not exceed £ sterling.

(d.) That subject to the cost of operation, maintenance, management, and the setting apart of
such proper sinking fund as the Board may deem advisable wherewith to provide for renewals, the
said principal moneys and interest shall be a first charge on al] the said property, real and personal,
and earnings of the undertaking.

(e.) That the cable shall be laid between Canada and Australasia via the Pacific Ocean, and may
be in sections, but all points of its landing shall be on British territory.

f.) That the Commissioners shall have full power to administer the affairs of the Board and the
carrying on of the undertaking in trust for the benefit of said Governmnents.

(g.) That the total number of Commissioners and the nature of their tenure of office shall froni
tine to time be determinEd by the said Governments, and each Government, having regard to such
total number, shall be entitled to appoint to such Board, as near as may be, as many members thereof
as represent the relative liability of such appointing Government as guarantor, as hereinafter inen-
tiOned, and to fill vacancies, as same occur from tinte to time.

(h.) That the respective Governments joining in such agreement shall be interested in the profits
and losSes of the undertaking in proportion to the amount of their liability as aforesaid.

(i.) That the Governor in Council is hereby authorized on behalf of the Dominion of Canada, to
guarantee payment of five-eighteenth parts of the said total principal money of said debentures,
limited as aforesaid and interest as aforesaid on said five.eighteenth parts.

(Code Telegroe"> MR. CHAMBERLAIN TO LORD MINTO •

26th April, 1899.

Referring to your telegram of 24th April, Her Majesty's governmnent, anxious to show sympathy
'ith Canadian and Australasian governments by assisting Pacific cable scheme, but cannot agree to
tke active part in laying or working line. Are accordingly willing to make contract with those
oOvernments by which they assist setting up financially in every respect as if it were an enterprise
Of a private company on these conditions:

Pirtly. That Canadian and Australasian governiments undertake to construct line and to pro-
vide Yearly any further sum necessary for efficient maintenance and working.
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Secondly. That subsidy runs for twenty years from opening of line to traffic as long as it is open
-allowing reasonable time for repairs when communication interrupted.

Thirdly. That in accordance with specifications and samples to be approved by treasury and to
satisfaction of officer appointed by treasury for this purpose, cable is constructed, submerged in
proper order and equipped with proper stations and officers at places approved by treasury and
effectively worked by sufficient staff of efficient officers-being British subjects.

Fourthly. Messages froin Imperial government to be transmitted in priority of all othere; rates
not to exceed half those payable from general public.

Fifthly. That all rates charged to public, whether for messages to or from >r between intermediate
stations or for through messages between this country, Australia and New Zealand are approved by
Treasury.

Sixthly. Annual returns duly certified and audited to be reudered to treasury as soon as possible
after anniversary of opening, showing net traffic receipts for messages sent over line, deducting pay-
ments for further transmission by other lines ; also expense incurred, including interest of sinking
fund and maintenance of repairs and working.

On examination of account treasury will pay to person chosen by Colonial governments five-
eighteenths of deficit not exceeding £20,000 per annum.

Seventhly. Cable to be worked in accordance with International Telegraph Convention, 1875.

Despatch follows by mail.

CHAMBERLAIN.

OTTAWA, 5th May, 1899.
Hon. R. W. ScoTr,

Secretary of State.

Si,-I have the honour to submit for the information of the government a communication of
this date, addressed to the British people, setting forth the present position of the Pacific cable
movement.

I have the honour to be, sir,

Yonr obedient servant,

SANDFORD FLEMING.

THE PACIFIC CABLE MOVEMENT-ITS PRESENT POSITION.

OTTAwA, 5th May, 1899.
TO THE BRITISH PEOPLE-

Within the last few days it has been stated that the Home government has not responded to the
proposals of Canada, Australia and New Zealand respecting the establishment of the Pacific cable,
in the way that the governments and the people of these countries had reason to expect, in conse-

quence of which a feeling of disappointment and surprise is on all sides expressed.

It had been arranged that the Pacific cable should be established as a national work, the gov-
ernments of Canada, Australia and New Zealand being joint partners with the Imperial government.

This arrangement has been slowly developed. It has been generally favoured by all the govern-
ments for some time. The Home government has frequently been asked to take the initiative in
carrying it into effect, but the Colonial Secretary has always insisted that Canada and the Austral.
asian Colonies should take primary action by determining what proportion of the cost of the under.
taking each would be willing to contribute.

It has been a matter of much difficulty to reach an agreement on this point, and the difficulty
bas been enhanced by the great intervening distances and the character of the means of communica-
tion, in consequence of which much delay has arisen. At length, however, conclusions have beenm
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arrived at. On 20th August last the Australasian Colonies finally agreed to contribute eight-eight-
eenths of the cost, and last month Canada finally undertook to contribute five-eighteenths, making
thirteen-eighteenths in all, thus leaving only five-eighteenths to be assumed by the Home govern-
ment.

It appears that the Home governinent although it has not absolutely declined to enter into the
partnership and assume the renaining five-eighteenths share of the liability, ias merely offered to
bear five-eighteenths of any loss of revenue (not exceeding £20,000) which may result from operating
the cable, provided priority be given to Imperial government messages and that they be transmitted
at half ordinary rates.

As this proposal at the eleventh hour, taken by itself, involves an entire change in the well
known plan upon which Australia, New Zealand and Canada have been proceeding in their negotia.
tions for more than two years; and moreover, is in itself of no value in securing the establishment of
go important a national work, it is impossible to believe that it is the full or the final judgment of
ler Majesty's Home governnent for the following reasons, viz. :-

1. It would always be regarded as a recession on the part of the mother country from a common
understanding with Canada, Australia and New Zealand.

2. It would always be regarded as an attem.pt to retard the expansion and cripple the commerce
of the Empire in the interest of a few rich monopolists.

3. It would always be regarded by the people of Canada, Australia and New Zealand as an
unjustifiable and discourteous act to them.

4. Its effect would be far-reaching and its immediate effect would be a fatal blow to the scheme
for establishing a system of state-owned British cables encircling the globe.

5. It would be a very grave retrograde step in the Imperial movement which aims to draw closer
the bonds between the mother country and her daughter lands.

Some of the grounds for these reasons may be stated as follows:-

The principle of joint government ownership was referred to at length at the Ottawa Conference,
Where Lord Jersey represented the Home government (see page 67 of the proceedings appended to
Lord Jersey's report). Lord Jersey in his report alluded to state ownership (page 15), and said that
the matter of joint ownership was "left undecided, and indeed must remain so till the two main
Points of route and cost are settled. Once they are arranged definite agreements become pos
sible." Both these points were shortly afterwards settled. The question of route was settled by
sending a special comnmissioner to the Hawaiian Islands to obtain a landing station. A landing on
any one of the islands was refused, and there remained only one route for the cable to follow. The
second point was settled by the Canadian government taking steps, as authorized by the Conference,
to ascertain the cost. Both points were thus settled before the end of 1894. Up to that date there
'as sone divergence of opinion as to the best means of establishing the cable: whether by a sub-

aidized company, or a state work to be jointly owned and controlled by the several governments, but
there was no difference of opinion afterwards.

The Canadian governmnent gave notice, by public advertisement in London and elsewhere, that
they were prepared to receive proposals in several forms. The result showed beyond all question that
the principle of state ownership was the true principle for establishing this particular work in the
Interests of the British people.

In 1895 the High Commissioner for Canada and the Agents General for the Australasian Colonies
Were charged by their respective governments to represent to the Colonial Secretary the importance
attached to the Pacific cable, and to ask that an Imperial commission be appointed to promote it.
The Colonial Secretary (Mr. Chamberlain) constituted an Imperial Cable Committee, which sat in
London in 1896 and reported on 5th January, 1897. The report of this committee has been published
Only a few days ago, but some information respecting the decisions and recommendations of the
Colmittee were given to the public directly after it was signed. Among other things published in
January, 1897, it was stated in the London, Canadian and colonial press that the principle of state
Ownership was favoured. The full text of the report was sent confidentially to each respective gov-
erfInment, and its whole contents has of course been known to them for more than two years. In
short, ever since the cable committee made their investigation the principle of state ownership has
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been accepted, and l has been understood that the Pacifie cable should be jointly owned by the
Home government, Canada, Australia and New Zealand in proportions to be determined. The only
question remaining unsettled was the precise share to be asasumed by each.

To determine the last question bas been a matter of great difficulty and it has caused much
delay. The Australasian governments have had several conferences among themselves, and when at
last they agreed, on 20th August, 1898, to bear eight-eighteenths of the whole liability it was with
the distinct condition that the Imperial and Canadian governments would together contribute the
remaining five-ninths of the capital required. The Canadian government bas done her part by
accepting without cavil the principle of state ownership, and by undertaking to contribute as large a
share of the capital as the Imperial government. The Australasian Colonies and Canada have
together agreed to bear thirteen-eighteenths of the liability, leaving only five-eighteenths for Great
Britain to assume. In view of all the circumstances narrated it may reasonably be expected that
this matter will be reconsidered and that Her Majesty's home authorities will yet see their way to
complete the partnership arrangement which Canada and Australia and New Zealand are se desirous
Of having consummated, in their own interests and in the inter ests of the whole empire.

There is no denying the fact that the British communities on both sides of the Pacific Ocean
have a determined enemy in the Eastern Extension Telegraph Company. In his published letter to
Sir Wilfrid Laurier, of December 28th, 1897, the writer pointed out the exact position of that com-
pany. Fearing competition and a reduction in the high charge exacted, its attitude bas always been
hostile to the Pacific cable. On every occasion during the past twelve years it bas thrown obstacles
in the way of connecting Canada and Australasia telegraphically, and bas frequently employed subtle
means to accomplish its ends. One such attempt was exposed at the last meeting of the Canadian
Senate (April 28th) when the Secretary of State and the leader of the opposition were of one mind in
denouncing it. On that occasion the Minister of Justice used these words:-

"I apprehend that for a hundred years there has been nothing more seriously doue under Im-
perial authority affecting colonial interesta than the attempt to create a monopoly and restrain and
cripple the commercial growth of this country."

The case alluded to is but a single illustration of the means taken by that company to defeat the
aspirations of Canada and Australasia. When the history of the conflict between these countries
and the monopoly cones to be written it will be found that the case recently unveiled does not stand
alone, that there are a number of other cases equally extraordinary.

The monopoly's present design is to delay the British Pacific cable until their own adverse scheme
be sufficiently advanced. There is evidence to show that the Eastern Extensi:n Company is in
alliance with a company organized in the United States to lay a cable from San Francisco to Manilla.
This company did not succeed before Congress rose in getting the subsidy it sought, but it succeeded
in defeating the government measure to establish a cable to Manilla under the United States Post
Office Department. Having done so there is a atrong probability that it will obtain all it wants
when Congres& again meets. With a cable stretched from San Francisco to Manilla and there con-
nected with the Eastern Extension cables, the two companies will practically become one concern.
If before then the British Pacific cable has made no progress there will be small hope for it
afterwards.

Obv iously the Eastern Extension Company bas much to gain by delay and they will secure ample
delay for their purpose if the Home Government now departs from the plan upon which Australia,
New Zealand and Canada have acted with the full knowledge of the Colonial Office. But we must
refuse to believe that Her Majesty's government will, without any pre'vious intimation, withdraw
from the arrangement, and niake an offer practically of no value, the first effect of which would be
the defeat of the British Pacific Cable project. The offer is, that, for certain stipulated advantages
the treasury in London will pay five-eighteenths of any deficiency in earnings. What does this
mean? It is not a subsidy of £20,000, as stated in the press, or of any sum. If we refer to the
reports of the Canadian Commissioners, Lord Strathcona and Honourable A. G. Jones, of January
12th, 1897, we find that in the year 1902, if the cable be then laid, and it could not possibly be laid
sooner, there would be an actual profit ranging from £13,000 to £40,000. If we turn to the report of
the cable committee of which Lord Selborne was chairman, there would be no deficiency in revenue
if the present charges are maintained, and even if they be lowered fully thirty-three per cent the
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deficiency would only be £12,000 in 1902, while there would be no deficiency in 1903 or in any
subsequent year. The offer then is that under a certain contingency the treasury may be called upon
to pay five-eighteenths of £12,000 for one year only, and for this possible payment the Imperial
government could claim priority of transmission and half price on all messages for an indefinite
number of years.

In December last the press of Great Britain was ringing the praises of a proposal to establish a
tate-owned system of electric cables for the Empire. It is recognized that a British Pacific cable is

the key and the only key to such a system. Without a telegraph connecting Canada and Australasia
the greater scheme is impossible.

" The general testimony of the British press, is, that the Pacific cable apart from its inherent
merits, would be the direct precursor of a ' Round the World ' cable system for the Empire; that
as such it would lead to cheap telegraph transmission between every British possession, promote
closer union, develop commerce, and confer many social as well as naval and political advantages."

If these are objects worth having there must be nothing done, or left undone which will cause
further delay ; it is therefore with gratification we read in this evening's newspapers the following
,condensed telegram:-

" Fearing that Great Britain's departure from the original proposal would delay and thus defeat
the Pacifie cable, British Columbia offers to contribute two-eighteenths of the cost, in addition to
Canada's five-eighteenths."

It is a mistake to suppose that a Pacific cable is greatly required by Canada for purely Canadian
purposes. While it is necessary to Australasians and their correspondents in the United Kingdom

have an alternative line in order that correspondence may be facilitated and never interrupted, it
is not so indispensable to the Dominion. It must be recognized by all, that Canada is mainly moved,
fnot by local or narrow selflsh considerations but by her zeal for Imperial unity.

The joint ownership of the cable by Great Britain, Canada, Australia and New Zealand, would
%e a unique co-partnership unparallelled in history-it would be an object lesson to the modern
world. To throw this co-partnership overboard at the last moment would be a momentous step back-
ward in the movement which we had hoped would bring into permanent alliance, Great Britain and
lier great self-governing daughter nations in both hemispheres.

SANDFOR) FLEMING.

Sir W IRI LAURIER, VICToRIA, B.C., 5th May, 1899.

Ottawa.'

This government observes with great regret that further difficulties have arisen in connection
With Pacifie cable scheme. It -gards the enterprise as of vast importance and absolutely necessary
if Canada is to secure her proper share of Pacifie commerce which it believes will rapidly assume
large proportions. Particularly is the enterprise of moment to British Columbia, the Dominion gate.
Way to the Pacifie. On these grounds, this government feels justified in assisting in the realization
of the scheme beyond what is involved in its provincial share of Dominion responsibility. This
Government, therefore, will assume for the province one-ninth share of cost of cable on arrangement

ililar to those with Australian Colonies. Hoping that in thus strengthening the hands of Dominion
government the consummation of this Imperial enterprise may be achieved.

F. CARTER COTTON,
Minister of Finance.
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MEMORANDUM FOR THE HONOURABLE WILLIAM MULOCK IN RE-
FERENCE TO THE PROBABLE REVENUE OF THE PACIFIC
CABLE, ETC.

10th May, 1899.

The undersigned can state with absolute certainty that no estimate of revenue yet
made, that he has seen, includes any allowance for Asiatie business passing over the
Pacific cable.

The estimates of the Pacific cable committee, Lord Selborne, chairman; those of
the Canadian commissioners, Lord Strathcona and Hon. A. G. Jones, and the writer's
own estimates are all based upon the existing business between Australasia and Europe.
Tney do not even include, which they might very properly do, a considerable allowance
for cable business which will most certainly be developed hetween Australasia and
North America.

The excluiive landing rights at Hong Kong, which have been granted to the
Eastern Extension Company, will, it is true, prevent Canaia or Australasia establishing
a branch cable to Hong Kong for twenty years. The home government can, however,
as provided in the agreement of October 28th, 1893, by giving twelve months' notice,
and paying the Eastern Extension Company £300,000, take possession of the cable from
Singapore to Labuan and Hong Kong, and a further expenditure of, possibly £300,000,
would connect that cable with the Pacific cable, and give Canada access through
Australasia to the great trade centres of Asia. This telegraphic access can, however,
only be secured through the home government in the manner described.

With respect to the probable revenue of the Pacifie cable. The two great sources
of telegraphie business are the United Kingdom and the Australasian colonies. In
the course of a few years, after the laying of the cable, Canada and the United States
will become a third source of traffic; but for the present we may only consider the two
first mentioned. It is obvious that all trans-Atlantic cable companies would be inter-
ested in sending messages by the Pacifie route, and not by the Eastern Extension route
as every message from Great Britain passing by the Pacific would first have to cross
the Atlantic. As a consequence the offices of the Atlantic cable companies, throughout
the United Kingdom, would practically become collecting stations for the business of
the Pacific cable.

Again in Australia and New Zealand, as ail the land telegraph lines are owned by
the governments, and the post offices throughout the colonies are used as telegraph
offices, each one of them would practically become an agency for the Pacifie cable, and
it would be in the power of the several governments, to a very large extent, to deter-
mine the route by which messages would be transmitted to Great Britain.

In view of these facts there can be no doubt whatever that the Pacifie cable as a
state work, owned by the Governments as proposed, would obtain a full share of ail the
Australia-European telegraph business. The undersigned obtained the written opinion
of many Australian houses on this point. He would refer to parliamentary return of
last session, No. 94, on page 29 to 32 will be found the names of twenty-four of the
best known mercantile firms of London, and their replies to questions placed before
them. The general opinion of these merchants of the highest position, and no inen are
better qualified to judge, is that the Pacifie cable would be of immense public service;
that it would be quite reasonable to count on the new line obtiining one-half the total
business; and that it would be safe to reckon on the business continuing to increase at
an average rate of fifteen per cent per annum.

The estimate, based on this opinion, is that the revenue of the Pacifie cable, after
meeting ail charges for working, renewal fund, interest, sinking f und to replace capital,
etc., would leave a surplus profit as follows:-

In 1902, the first year ............................ £114,157
In 1903, " second " ............... ............. 153,031
In 1904, " third " ........................... 197,735
In 1905, " fourth " .................... ........ 249,144
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The Pacifie Cable Committee, who state in their report, that " they must in such a
matter be actuated by extreme caution" assumed that much less than half the traffle
would pass over the new line. They assumed, in fact, that what is equal to i8j per cent
or little more than one-third the total Australian-European business would find its way
by the Pacific cable, and that 61½ per cent would continue to pass by the old route.
Moreover they atssume that the increase of traffic, whatever it has been in the past,
would Le limited, hereafter, to a rate of ten per cent per annum. Taking this cautious
conclusion as a basis, they pointed out that if the charges on mes'ages be maintained at
3s. and 3d. per word, there would be a large surplus profit on the first year's working,
and if the rate per word were reduced to 2es. there would be a small deficiency in the
year 1902, of about £12,000, but in 1903 it " would become a paying concern."

While Lord Strathcona and Mr. Jones attached their names to the report of the
committee in acknowledgment of their general assent, they deemed it their duty to point
out in a special report forwarded at the same time to the Canadian government, that
they took a somewhat different view from the committee as a whole, on the matter of
probable revenue. These gentlemen saw no reason, under the hircumstances, why a
larger share of the traffic should not pass over the Pacific cable than that assumed by
the committee. They do not go so far as to assume that the Pacific cable would
obtain one-balf the business, they adopt a perfectly safe mean between one-third and one-
half, leaving for the Eastern Company seven-twelfths of the whole business. On this
basis they furnish two estimates, dependent on the annual increase being 10 per cent or
12½ per cent. Their-estimates go to show that the traffic would be sufficient to meet
all charges and leave surplus profits as follows:-

In 1902, from .. .... . ........ .... .... .... £]3,314 to £ 39,923
In 1903 " . ... ................... 29,134 " 68,014

In 1904 " ..... ....... 46,536 " 94,626

In 1905 " ........................... 65,678 " 124,565

These estimates of Lord Strathcona and Hon. Mr. Jones are " exclusive of the
entire North American traffic upon which the new cable might safely rely."

SANDFORD FLEMING.
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CORRESPONDENCE RELATING TO THE PROPOSED CON-
STRUCTION OF A CABLE ACROSS THE PACIFIC OCEAN.

(Received at Ottawa 15th May, 1899)'

No. 1.

THE AGENT-GENERAL FOR VICTORIA TO COLONIAL OFFICE

(Received September 3rd, 1898.)

VICTORIA OFFICE, 15 VICTORIA ST., WFSTMINSTER, S.W.,
29th August, 1898.

SIR,-I have the honour to inform you that I have received the following telegran
from my government on the subject of the proposed Pacifie cable:-

" Pacific cable. Conference of Premiers, New South Wales, Victoria, Queensland,
just held Sydney, agree that if Great Britain and Canada pay five-ninths and New
Zealand one-ninth, then New South Wales, Queensland, Victoria *ill contribute one-
ninth each."

I have, &c.,
AND. CLARKE.

No. 2.

THE AGENT-GENERAL FOR NEW ZEALAND TO COLONIAL OFFICE.

(Received November 16, 1898.)

WEsTMINISTER CHAMBERS, 13 VICTORIA STREET,
LONDON, S.W., 14th November, 1898.

SIR,-I am directed by the Agent-General to inform you that he has received a
cablegram from his government stating that they are prepared to join the other colonies
in guaranteeing one-ninth of the cost of laying the Pacific cable, subject to the terms
and conditions given in the inclosed New Zealand Public Accounts Committee's
Report. 

I am, &c.,
WALTER KENNAWAY

(Enclosure in No. 2.)

REPORT.

The Public Accounts Committee, to whom was referred the question of establiah-
ing a Pacifie cable service, has the honour to report that, in the opinion of the com-
mittee:-

1. It is desirable that telegraphic communication between England and-New
Zealand via Canada and the Pacific, should be established.

2. The colony of New Zealand should agree to join with such of the Australian
colonies as are prepared to do likewise upon the basis of a guarantee of four-ninths of
the cost of construction and annual deficiency (if any) by such colonies, New Zealand's
proportion of the guarantee not to exceed in any case one-eighth of the whole cost.
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3. For the purpose of working the cable, it is desirable that a central authority
should be empowered, on behalf of the contributing countries, to carry out the laying
and working of a cable across the Pacifie.

4. The maximum rates for ordinary messages between New Zealand and the
United Kingdom should be 3s. per word ; for government messages, 2s. per word ; for
press messages, 1s. per word and 6s. per hundred words (8ic).

5. The construction, control, and maintenance of the cable should be entrusted to
the Canadian government, upon the understanding that each contributing colony shall
have the right to be represented and to vote upon all matters appertaining to policy,
acceptance of tenders, or anything material in the management of the cable.

6. The contributing country and colonies should jointly own and control the cable.
7. It is desirable that, with a view of furthering the establishment of a Pacifie

cable service, a conference of representatives from the several countries concerned should
be held in New Zealand at an early date.

W. J. M. LARNACH,
August 30, 1898. Chairman.

No. 3.

TUE HIGH COMMISSIONER FOR CANADA TO COLONIAL OFFICE.

(Received December 23, 1898.)

17 VICTORIA ST., LONDoN, S.W., 22nd December, 1898.

Si,-I beg to quote, for the information of Mr. Secretary Chamberlain, the follow-
ing cable message, which has reached me this morning from Lord Strathcona:-

" Pleas.e convey following to Mr. Chamberlain. Am authorized by Secretary State
inform Mr. Chamberlain that Canadian government will gladly join Imperil govern-
ment in contributing each one-half of five-ninths for Pacifie cable, provided Australian
Colonies and New Zealand together contribute remaining four-ninths, and hope will be
proceeded with without undue delay. Formal official information will follow from
Ottawa."*

I shall be glad if I can be placed in a. position to cable to Canada at an early date
that Her Majesty's government are prepared to concur in this proppsal.

1 am, &c.,
J. G. COLMER,

Secretary.
*Nono received.

No. 4.

COLONIAL OFFICE TO THE AGENTS-GENERAL FOR THE AUSTRALASIAN
COLONIES AND THE HIGH COMMISSIONER FOR CANADA.

DowNING STREET, 28th April, 1899.

SIR, My LoRD,-I am directed by Mr. Secretary Chamberlain to convey to you the
decision at which Her Majesty's government have arrived as to the forn and extent of
the assistance which they are prepared to give. to the scheme for connecting Canada
with Australasia by a direct subnarine cable across the Pacifie.

I am: to remind yeu that in the various communications which have been from time
to time addressed to the Colonial governments on this subject, Her Majesty's govern-
ment have never concealed their opinion that the construction of a Pacifie cable is a
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matter of much greater importance to Australasia and Canada than to the United
Kingdom; and they would not have themselves been disposed to recommend Parlia-
ment to aid it but for their desire to afford the support and assidtance of the mother
country to her great self-governing colonies in a project the sucess of which cannot fail
to promote Imperial unity.

For this reason they consider that the responsibility for constructing and working
the cable should be borne by the governments of Canada and Australasia, to whom any
profits which niay hereafter accrue from the undertaking would consequently fall ; and
that the aid to be given by the United Kingdom should take the form of an annual
subsidy, which has hitherto been adopted by parliament in promoting the establishment
of important lines of telegraphic communitation between different parts of the Empire.

In considering the question Her Majesty's government have had regard to the
report of the committee of 1897. The estimates of initial cost and annual expenses put
forward by that committee were £1,500,000 for original cost, and £144,900 for total
annual expenses. Against this it was anticipated, on the basis of the latest returns
available, that the traffic receipts in the first year would amount to £132,000, leaving a
deficit of £12,900, diminishing annually until it ceases altogether at the end of the third
year.

It is not, however, possible to act with certainty on these estimates, for the prices
of materials have risen since they were made, and in other respects the cost of estab-
lishing the cable may possibly exceed $he estimate of the committee.

Her Majesty's government have accordingly decided to offer, for a period not
exceeding twenty years, an annual subsidy, calculated on the basis shown below, not
exceeding a maximum limit of £20,000 in any year, on the following conditions:-

1. That the Canadian and Australasian governments undertake to. construct the
line, and to provide in each year any further sum that may be necessary for its efficient
maintenance and working.

2. That the subsidy runs only from the cpening of the cable for traffic, and so long
as it is so open, with the allowance of a reasonable time for repairs in the event of
interruption of communication.

3. That the cable is, in accordance with a specification and samples to be approved
by thé Areaary nd to the satitsfaction of an officer acpointed by the treasury for that
purpt ôbructed, submerged in proper working order, and established with proper
stations and offices at such places as the treasury may approve, and effectually worked
with a sufficient staff öf proper and efficient officèrs, being British subjects.

4. That messages- of the Imperial government are tiansmitted in priority to al
other messages at rates not exceeding one-half of those charged to the general public.

5. That all rates charged to the general public, whether for messages to, from, or
between intermediate stations, or for through messages between this country, Australia.
and New Zealand, are approved by the treasury.

6. That an account, duly oertified and audited, is rendered annually to the treasury
as soon as possible after the anniversary of the opening of the cable showing-

(a.) The net traffic receipts in the past year for messages sent over the line
af ter the deduction of money paid out for the further transmission of
messages on other lines.

(b.) The expenses incurred in the same year, including interest, sinking fund,
maintenance and repairs, and working expenses.

The treasury will cause this account to be duly examined, and wili pay over to
such 'person as the associated governments of Canada and the Australasian Colonies
may nominate in their behalf, five-eighteenths of ·the amount by which the net receipts
shown by this account, after examination, shall fall short of the amount of the expenses,
subject to the maximum limit named above.

T. That the cable is worked in accordance with the International Telegraph Con-
vention of St. Petersburg of the 10th (22nd) July, 1875, and the regulations in force
for the time being thereunder.
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Her Majesty's government trust that the liberal arrangement proposed will meet
the views of the colonies, and that it will be accepted as a proof of their cordial desire
to co-operate with the Colonial governments in any undertaking of general concern,
even though the colonial interest in the matter may be more direct and apparent than
bat of this country.

*l' I am to add that the substance of the above was communicated by telegram to
the Governor General of Canada on the 26th inst.

I am, &c.,

H. BERTRAM COX.
* To High Commismioner only.

OTTAWA, 15th May, 1899.
Hon. R. W. ScoT,

Secretary of State,
Ottawa.

Si,-I have to-day received from London the correspondence relatiig to the
Pacific cable, presented to the Imperial parliament early this month.

This correspondence confirms the views previously formed that the home government
misapprehends the facts and, therefore, may be asked to reconsider the decision reached.

In August last the governments of New South Wales, Victoria, Queensland and
New Zealand offered to contribute each two-eighteenths of the cost of the Pacific cable on
the express condition that the United Kingdom and Canada would together contribute
the remaining ten-eighteenths.

In December last the home governmeut was informed that Canada would share
equally with the United Kingdom in contributing the remaining ten-eighteenths.

This ofer has not been accepted.
Instead of agreeing to co-operate with Canada, Australia and New Zealand in the

form and to the extent expected, a counter offer is made.
In the letter from the Colonial Office of 28th April, 1899, now published, the ofer

of the home government in to pay at the end of each year after the cable is in full
operation, five-eighteenths of any shortage in earnings.

This offer of financial assistance is made subject to seven conditions several of
which are extremely objectionable.

In the memorandum for the information of the Hon. Mr. Mulock, of the 10th
instant, I pointed out that the estimates of Lord Strathcona and the Hon. A. G. Jones,
and other estimates, prepared with the utmost care and caution, Indicate that in the
event of the Pacifie cable being established as proposed, no deficiency would arise in
operating the cable. If these estimates be well founded, the Canadian and Australian
people will not, I apprehend, regard the offer now made by the home government as
generous and satisfactory.

While it is admitted in the letter of 28th April, that the project cannot fail to
promote Imperial unity, it is stated that " the construction of a Pacifie cable is a
matter of much greater importance to Australasia and Canada than to the United
Kingdom."

It is well known to commercial men that telegraphy is an important ally of trade
and shipping. All experience goes to show that the volume of trade and of postal
matter passing between any two countries are the best indices of the value of telegraphie
communication as a means of facilitating intercourse.

Inquiry at the Department of Trade and Commerce brings out these facts, viz.:-
The mean annual aggregate trade between the United Kingdom and Australasia for
the three years, 1895, 1896 and 1897 amounted to £53,168,642, while the mean annual
aggregate trade between Canada and Australasia for the same years was ($949,450)
about £190,000,



62 Vietoria, 3irmal § a 's Cid., b1.) A. 1899

It is further learned on inquiry at the Post Office Department, that the number of
letters passing annually between the United Kingdom and Australamia is between
6,000,000 and 7,000,000, while the letters passing between Canada and Australasia are
about 90,000 per annum.

Thus it appears that the correspondence between the United Kingdom and
Australasia is some seventy fold the Canadian correspondence, while the trade between
Australasia and the mother country is no less than two hundred and eeventy times
greater than with the Dominion.

I respectfully submit that it is only necessary to point out these facts in order to
modify the opinion of the home government, and remove the impression, that com-
mercially, the United Kingdom is less interested than Canada in the Pacide cable.

I have the honour to be, air,
Your obedient servant,

SANDFORD FLEMING.
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RETURN
[51b.]

To an ADDRESS of the HOUsE oF COMMONS, dated the 29th May, 1899, for çopies
of all Orders in Couneil and correspondence connected with and relating
to the offer of the Government of British Columbia, made in 1899, res-
pecting the Pacifie Cable.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

(Telegram.)

The Right Honourable
Sir WILFRID LAURIER, G.C.M.G.,

Ottawa, Ontario.
VIcToRIA, B.C., 5th May, 1899.

This government observes with great regret that further difficulties bave arisen in
9çOnnection with Pacific cable scheme. It regards the enterprise as of vast importance
and absolutely necessary if Canada is to secure her proper share of Pacific comruerce
Which it believes will rapidly assume large proportions. Particularly is the enterprise
Of Inoment to British Columbia, the dominion gateway to the Pacifie. On these
Munds, this government feels justified in assisting in the realization of the scheme
hoYond what is involved in its provincial share of dominion responsibility. This
gOvernment, therefore, will assume for the province one-ninth share of cost of cab-le on
arrangement similar to those with Australian colonies. Hloping that in thus strengthen-
l!ig the hands of dominion government, the consumation of this imperial enterprise
rnay he achieved.

F. CARTER-COTTON,
Minister of Finance.

THE GOVERNMENT OF THE PROVINCE oF BRITISH COLUMBIA,
TREAsURY DEPARTMENT,

The Right Honourable VICTORIA, 6th May, 1899.

Sir WILFRID LAURIER, G.C.M.G.,
Ottawa.

DEAR SIR WILFRID,-I sent you last evening the following telegrani: "Tbis
government observes with great regret that further difficulties have arisen in connectioQ
with Pacifie cable scheme. It regards the enterprise as of vast imperial importance ad
absolutely necessary if Canada is to secure her proper share of Pacifie commerce, which
't believes will rapidly assume large proportions. Particularly is scherne of moment to
Hritish Columbia, the dominion gateway to the Pacifie.
th On these grounds this government feels justified in assisting in the realization of

e enterprise beyond what is involved in its provincial share of dominion responsibility.
51b
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This government, therefore, will assume for the province one-ninth share of cost of
cable on arrangements similar to those with Australian colonies, hoping that in thus
strengthening the hands of dominion government the consumation of this imperial
enterprise may be achieved."

I have now the pleasure of confirming the above telegram by stating that this
government will be prepared to assume the responsibility for one-ninth share of the
cost of the cable on the same terms and under the same arrangements in respect to the
control and management of the enterprise as have been proposed by the colonies of
New South Wales, Victoria, Queensland and New Zealand.

This government, of course, realizes that as that of a province of the Dominion it
will have to bear its share, with the governments of the other provinces, of any res-
ponsibility incurred by the Dominion in regard to the enterprise. It also recognises the
fact that, in making this offer, it departs somewhat from the course which a provincial
government would generally follow in regard to a federal enterprise.

But in the opinion of this government there are sound reasons for its adoption of
the course which has been intimated to you. As the province which abuts on the
Pacific ocean, British Columbia is most directly and chiefly interested in any scheme
the object of which is to foster and develop commerce with all communities bordering
on that ocean. It has sometimes seemed that the federal parliament did not fully
grasp the potentialities of this Pacific commerce and of the events which are now trans-
piring, destined, as this government believes, to have an immense influence on the
policies and fortunes of the great powers of the world.

This government, therefore, viewed with much satisfaction the decision taken by
your government a few weeks ago to propose to assume one-half of the five-ninths of the
cost of the cable, provided the imperial government did the same, which, with the con-
tributions of the four Australian governments, would have provided the requisite sum
and assured the early completion of the enterprise.

It has been, therefore, with the deepest regret that this government observed that
a check had been sustained by the refusal of the imperial government to meet your
government's proposal.

With the aim of strengthening the hands of your government, and of inducing the
imperial government to reconsider its decision, this government decided to assume that
share of responsibility in the enterprise of which my telegram informed you, and it will
await with anxiety your reply that your efforts have been successful and that at last
the negotiations of several years have been brought to a satisfactory conclusion.

Although, as this government understands from the despatches which have
appeared in the newspapers, the imperial government is prepared to make an annual con-
tribution to any deficiency which may occur in the earnings of the cable to meet the
expenditure for maintenance, operation in interest on capital, of a larger sum than would
be its share if it became the owner of five-eighteenth in the enterprise, this government
considers it is of the greatest importance that the imperial government should be a co-
partner in the scheme, whether to the extent proposed or to a smaller one.

It is of great moment that the necessary capital should be obtained on the most
favourable terms and to this end it is essential that an imperial guarantee should be
given, jointly with that of the various colonial governments. As this government is
in ignorance of the actual situation beyond what has been disclosed by press reports
(which may or may not be accurate) it is unable to discuss the subject more fully. But
it would suggest that even should the imperial government decline to accept any share
of ultimate risk for the capital invested in the enterprise, it might be induced to give
its guarantee to the subscribers to the capital, provided that the colonial governments
entered into a joint indemnity to it against any financial loss from the giving of such
guarantee.

I am, dear Sir Wilfrid,
Faithfully Yours,

F. CARTER-COTTON,
Minister of Finance.
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The Hon. F. CARTER-COTTON, OTTAwA, 13th May, 1899.

Treasury Department,
Victoria, B.C.

DEAR MR. CARTER-CTTON,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your
favour of the 6th instant, repeating and confirming your message of the preceding day.
You are probably aware, by this time, that on the receipt of your telegram, I caused it
at once to be communicated to the press both here and in England ; there is nothing
Imore to do at present in the matter of the Pacific cable. We have strongly represented
to the imperial authorities, that any deviation from the terms laid down by the impe-
rial committee, would be prejudicial to the success of the scheme. We still hope that
the action of the imperial government will be reconsidered.

I have the honour to be,
Dear Mr. Carter-Cotton,

Your very sincerely,

WILFRID LAURIER.

THE GOVERNMENT OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA,
TREASURY DEPARTMENT,

The Right Honourable VICTORIA, 20th May, 1899.

Sir WILFRID LAURIER, G.C.M.G.,
Ottawa, Ontario.

DEAR SIR WILFRID,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your favoùr
of the 13th instant.

I hope that the imperial government will see fit to reconsider its decision as to
the terms on which it will assist the Pacifie cable enterprise so as to bring its method
of participation in the project into harmony with that proposed by other governments
interested in the matter.

In any case I trust that you will introduce a bill at this session of parliament
authorizing your government to take action within certain prescribed lines, so that any
delay on the part of the imperial government in modifying their proposals will not
nlecessarily prevent any action being taken until the dominion parliament meets again.

I am, dear Sir Wilfrid,
Yours faithfully,

F. CARTER-COTTON.
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To an ADDRESS of the HousE oF COMMONS dated the Sth Marchi, 1898, for
copies of all paperï and correspondence respecting the enforcement of
Coasting Laws of Canada on the Pacifie or Atlantic coasts.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

OFFICE OF CANADIAN PACIFIc NAVIGATION Co., LTD.,

G. PARMELEE, Esq., VICTORIA, B.C., 18th July, 1887.

Asst. Commissioner of Customs,
Victoria, B.C.

DEAR SIR,-Referring to our conversation the other day, I now submit to you the
cause of complaint.

At present all merchandise from Eastern Canadian provinces in transitu through
the United States to British Columbia is carried from the terminus of American rail-
roads to destination by American registered vessels, whilst goods from Eastern States
In transitu to Pacifie Coast States via the Canadian Pacifie Railway are not allowed to
be carried to destination by vessels of Canadian register. I may state the same rule
apPlies for all freight east bound.

Goods from British Columbia to Eastern Canada being freighted to railroad terminus
by American registered vessels would not be a grievance if Canadian vessels were allowed
the same privileges to Sound ports and Portland, Oregon and vice versa.

We certainly should be placed upon equal terms in this business as American
registered vessels. We are as well prepared to perform this business as our American
cousins. Trusting that you will give this matter due consideration, and inform me of
the results.

Yours truly,
JNO. IRVING.

H10n. CHAs. TUPPER, VICTORIA, B.C., 7th Sept., 1889.

Minister of Marine and Fisheries,
Ottawa.

American steamers arranging to carry salmon direct from canneries on Fraser River.
.lease advise collector to define port of New Westminster so that canneries down the

river will not be included in the port and thus protect our steamers here.

52-1 
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KAMLOOPS, B.C., 9th Sept., 1889.
~Hon. M. BOWELL,

Ottawa.

American steamers should not be allowed to load salmon at canneries on Fraser
River, but confined to the port of entry in order to protect Canadian vessels.

J. A. MARA.

OTTAWA, 10th September, 1889.
Collector of Customs,

New Westminster, B.C.

Should cause foreign vessels to act within requirements of law in taking cargo and
all other respects at your port.

J. JOHNSON.

CANADIAN PACIFIc NAVIGATION Co., LTD.,
VICTORIA, B.C., 7th September, 1889.

The Hon. Minister of Marine and Fisheries,
Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-I have the honour to call your attention to the fact that foreign vessels are
being permitted to call at the diflerent canneries on the mouth of the Fraser River, and
take aboard from the canneries salmon shipments destined to foreign ports.

There are some fifteen or twenty canneries situated on the mouth of the Fraser
River, and it would appear that foreign steamers are allowed the same privileges to call
at such canneries as are enjoyed by Canadian vessels in Canadian waters. If foreign
vessels are allowed to go direct to the canneries and take on salmon, it brings Canadian
steamers into direct competition with them, which is very discouraging to Canadian
ship owners, as I take it, that such a policy is not in accord with the intentions
of the present government, whose object is rather to protect and foster home
industries whenever possible, and in the present instance, Canadian vessels are needlessly
brought into competition with foreign steamers. It is not even probable that steamers
flying the Canadian flag would be allowed the privilege to call at the canneries situated
on the Columbia River by entering and clearing at the nearest port to the canneries.

I therefore beg to suggest that the port of New Westminister be defined, so that
the canneries down the river are not included in such port, and that instructions to
that effect be issued to the collector of customs at New Westminster. At the present
time a steamer flying the American flag, or any other foreign vessel, is permitted to
enter and clear at the port of New Westminster and then proceeds to one or more of
the canneries on the Fraser River for salmon. If this were forbidden, it would secure
to our steamers the haul on the salmon from the canneries to the port of New West-
minster, and foreign vessels would only be allowed to take salmon from the port itself.

It is a matter of much concern to Canadian shipowners on this coast that this
question be investigated, and I would ask that you will be kind enough to give it that
prompt attention which has already on previous occasions been characteristic of your
administration in office, as the salmon shipments are now being made in large quantities,
and if the measure asked for is to be of use to us this season, action must be taken at
once.

I have the honour, sir,
To remain your obedient servant,

JNO. IRVING,
Manager.

Across the head of this letter is the following note:
Ack. and say this letter with a former communication from Mr. Prior on the same subject has been

ansferred to Custoins Department, and transfer accordingly.
C. H.T. Sept. 14th, 1889. Done, Sept. 14th, 1889.
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MARINE DEPARTMENT, CANADA,

J JOHNSON, Esq., OTTAwA, 14th September, 1889.

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

SIR,-J have the honour to transfer herewith a letter received from Mr. John
Irving, manager of the Canadian Pacifie Navigation Company calling attention to the
fact that foreign vessels are being permitted to call at the different canneries on the
Praser River and take aboard from the canneries salmon shipments destined to foreign
ports.

I am, sir, your most obedient servant,
JOHN HARDIE,

For Deputy Minister of Marine.

CusToMs DEPARTMENT,

.SMIT, Esq., OTTAWA, 18th September, 1889.

Deputy Minister of Marine,
Ottawa.

SIR,-Referring to your letter of 14th instant, respecting the practice of foreign
"essels taking cargoes of fish from the canneries on the Fraser River, B.C.

I have already telegraphed the collector of customs at New Westminster on this
subject requesting him to enforce the law with reference to foreign vessels entering the
eraser River, and will now send the file to him for inquiry and report. As soon as I
have his reply, I will have a better understanding of the matter.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. JOHNSON,
Commissioner.

CusToM HOUsE,

j. qNEW WESTMINSTER, B.C., Ilth September, 1889.

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your telegram of yesterday,
lOth inst., in re foreign vessels taking cargo at this port strictly in accordance with the
requirements of the law, and beg to submit for your approval, my interpretation of such
equirements, as contained in the various circulars issued by the department on this

,question.

of Aecording to departmental circular No. 373 of 14th August, 1886, the provisions
be OC. of 17th April, 1883, " Coasting Regulations, " does not apply to any shipping

onging to the United States.
A section of said circular No. 373 says, " foreign vessels or boats must not be allowed

go from place to place in Canadian waters for the purpose of making up or seekingacargo.»

This section must have been repealed hy section 2 of O.C., 10th November, 1886,a this section allows foreign vessels to take cargo at more than one place in Canadian'Waters.

The section immediately following this in circular 373 says " the collector of a port
y assign to such vessels a landing berth at any one place within the limits of his

Juksdiction' but must not allow vessels to go f rom place to place in order to fill up or
take in 3erecargo."
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The latter part of this section I take to mean, that foreign vessels must not be
allowed to go from wharf to wharf in the same port to take in cargo.

The words " a landing berth at any one place " I take to mean, that such vessel
must land her entire cargo at such assigned landing place, but I do not hold that she
must of necessity take in her cargo at this assigned landing place, but that I can as
collector of the port, assign her a place where she must take in the whole of her cargo
without moving to any other place, therefore separate places for discharging and taking
in cargo, may be permitted, always under the supervision of a proper officer.

In this same connection, for the purpose of loading merchandise for export, I have
always considered the area embraced between Port Hammond and the mouth of the
Fraser River to be the port of New Westminster.

If I am in error in any of my interpretations as above given will you kindly point
out my error in order that I may govern myself accordingly.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JNO. S. CLUTE.

(Copy of Telegrams.)

NEW WESTMINSTER, 18th September, 1889.
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

American ship " Lakme " wishes to proceed to Skeena River and load canned salmon
for Astoria, clearing either at Port Simpson or Victoria going out. Will you wire
permission to collector at New Westminster?

B. CAMPBELL,
Agent.

OTTAWA, 18th September, 1889.
B. CAMPBELL,

New Westminster, B.C.

Collector has been instructed to act according to law, and I cannot interfere.

J. JOHNSON.

19th September, 1889.

Mr. JOHNsON,--Your message of yesterday to B. Campbell is undelivered, as party
had left town before your message was received.

NEW WESTMINSTER OFFICE,
C.P.R. Telegraph Co.

Collector of Customs, OTTAWA, 19th September, 1889.

New Westminster, B.C.

Letter eleventh received but requires consideration. It is alleged you allow foreign
vessels to enter and clear and afterwards proceed to one or more canneries for salmon.
If so, you are certainly wrong. Clearance should never be granted until cargo fully
oomplete and outward report filed.

J. JOHNSON.
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Minister of Marine and Fisheries, VICTORIA, B.C., 19th September, 1889.

Ottawa.

On behalf Canadian shipowners I protest against allowing " Lakme " clear for
Skeena River, there being no town or village on the river, the only marks of civilization
are isolated canneries. Hope Customs Department will see way clear to refuse per-
mission, as it is virtually coasting and infringing on our trade and just rights.

JOHN IRVING,
Manager Canadian Pacifie Navigation Co.

J. H. JOHNSON, NEW WESTMINSTER, l9th September, 1889.

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

Telegram received. Your information is entirely false. Please wire me address of
informer.

JNO. S. CLUTE.

eon. M. BowELL, VANCOUVER, B.C., 19th September, 1889.

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

Complaints are being made of American vessels doing coasting business in British
Columbia, one steamer'arrived from Port Townsend, landed cargo on Fraser River, and
nOw proceeding to Skeena to load salmon for Astoria.

E. DEWDNEY.

Memo. for Hon. CHARLES H. TUPPER, CUsTOMs DEPARTMENT, CANADA.

Minister of Marine and Fisheries.

The question at issue in this case is, can a foreign vessel enter and report at a port
of entry, such as New Westminster, discharge her cargo and then proceed to a distant
Point which may be within the survey of the collector or otherwise, and load with
c'anned salmon or other goods for a foreign port. See letter from manager Canadian
Pacific Navigation Co. of 7th inst., and several telegrams froin other parties.

REFERENCES.

Customs Act as published by department, sections 22, 23 and following sections
ire entering port and reporting inwards.

Sections 97, 98 and 99, also 101, reports outwards and clearance.
Section 245, clauses (c) and (d), power of Governor in Council.
Coasting regulations, page 47, in re foreign trading vessels. Customs Orders in

Council.
Customs Act. Section 140, collector may put officer on board, &c.
Council is of opinion that if the destined point is in the survey or port of the

collector the foreign vessel may pick up goods in that port, &c., but an officer should
accompany vessel, and all regulations regarding clearance, &c., should be obeyed.

21st September, 1889. C. H. T.
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CANADIAN PACIFIC NAVIGATION Co., LTD.,
MANAGER'S OFFICE,

VICTORIA, B.C., 17th September, 1889.
E. G. PRIOR, Esq., M.P.

Victoria, B.C.

DEAR SIR,-I wish to cal] your attention to an article which appeared in the
Victoria Times of September the 16th, which states that the steamer " Lakme "
arrived in Westminster with a cargo of freight for the Ross McLaren Lumbering Co.,
and that she will clear for Skeena River to load salmon. (The paragraph in question is
attached.)

It seems pretty hard lines when American vessels are allowed to go to any port of
British Columbia to Joad or unload cargo, and from there proceed to another port in
British Columbia. By the item referred to, it would seem that the steamer " Lakme "
is allowed to clear from Westminster for Skeena River for a shipment of salmon.
Skeena River is not a port of entry and there is not even a town at that point. The
only habitations consist of canneries isolated from each other, with the exception of
Essington, where there are two canneries together. If an American vessel is allowed
to clear at Westminster and proceed to a point in British Columbia some 500 miles
away, and call at the different canneries for freight it seems to me that Canadian
shipowners might as well give up trying to increase their business, or else if they
wish to stay in the business, they will require to own American vessels for self protection.

I wish you would kindly write a letter to the department explaining the position
of affairs, and at the same tinme, in the interests of Canadian shipowners in this pro-
vince get the department to do away with Port Simpson as a port of entry, as it is of
no benefit whatever to either Canadian merchants or shipowners, but it is of great
advantage to American vessels sailing between Washington Territory and Alaska -as
it gives them an opportunity of competing with us, while we have no means whatever
to compete with them.

Port Simpson was made a port of entry upon the representations of Captain Wm.
Moore, at the time when the Cassiar Mines were in the height of their prosperity.
Previous to this time Fort Wrangel was a port of entry, and Canadian vessels could
go to Fort Wrangel and transfer their cargoes to river steamers for the Cassiar Mines.
In order to give the American steamers the monopoly of this trade, the United States
government did away with Fort Wrangel as a port of entry, thereby forcing Canadian
vessels to proceed to Sitka (some three or four hundred miles further on), before they
could enter and clear. The river boat, being of too light a construction to go to Sitka,
on account of the very rough water intervening between Fort Wrangel and Sitka,
caused the Canadian steamers to lose this trade, and it was then thought that by having
a port of entry at Port Simpson, the river steamers could clear at that point and clear
direct up the Stikine River, without touching at Fort Wrangel, the Stikine River
being one of the treaty rivers. This however was never put into effect, as a steamer
suitable for the voyage from Port Simpson to the Stikine River, was entirely unsuit-
able for the Stikine River, and since that time Port Simpson is only used as a convenience
to American steamers as I have already stated.

Yours truly,

JNO. IRVING,
Manager.

(Clippingfronm -Vew Westminster " Times.")

Special to the Times.-The steamer "Lakme" arrived in port to-day f romi Port
Townsend with fire brick and clay for the McLaren Ross Lumbering Company. When
the cargo is unloaded the " Lakme " will clear for Skeena River to load salmon for Astoria.

A. 1899
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Ilon. CHAS. H. TUPPER, VICTORIA, B.C., 18th September, 1889.

Minister of Marine and Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-I have the honour to inclose a letter just received from Captain Irving,
mafnager of the Canadian Pacific Navigation Co., in regard to an item appearing in the

îmes which I inclose, which states that the American steamer " Lakme " bas cleared
from one British Columbia port for another. As this is highly prejudicial to Canadian
shipping interests, I trust you will at once give the matter your earnest consideration
and accede to Captain Irving's requests if possible.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

ED. GAWLER PRIOR.

NoE-.-Transferred to Customs Department. C.H.T., 25th Sept., 1889.

MARINE DEPARTMENT, CANADA,

J* JOHNSON, sq., OTTÀWA, 25th September, 1889.

Commissioner of Customs.

SIR,-I have the honour, by direction of the minister, to transfer, herewith to your
department a letter received from E. G. Prior, Esq., M.P., covering a communication
fron Capt. John Irving, manager of the Canadian Pacific Navigation Co., with reference
to American vessels clearing from one port in British Columbia to another port.

I am, sir, your obedient servant,

JOHN HARDIE,
For Deputy Minister of Marine.

CANADIAN PACIFIC NAVIGATION CO., MANAGER'S OFFICE,

The Hon. the Minister of Customs, VICTORIA, B.C., 21st September, 1889.

Ottawa, Dominion of Canada.

SIR,-Referring to my letter of the 7th instant addressed to the Minister of Marine,
(which I am informed should have been addressed to you and which has been transferred
to your department,) I now beg to call your attention to the fact that American
steamers are even now attempting to virtually do the coasting trade of this province,--
the case in point being an attempt of an American steamer, the " Lakine " to clear from
Nanaimo to Skeena River for the purpose of loading salmon to carry to a foreign port.
Before going to a foreign port fromi Skeena River, she would necessarily have to call at
a port of entry for clearance. The distance f rom Nanaimo or Vancouver to Skeena
River is about 400 miles, and the fact of a vessel going from either of these ports to
Skeena River, and returning f rom Skeena River to Nanaimo or Vancouver for clearance,
with a cargo of salmon, would be nothing less than coasting. Skeena River embraces a
very considerable area, and as Skeena River proper, it is very indefinite. There is not even
a town or a village on any point on Skeena River,-the only marks of civilization con-
Sisting of canneries isolated from each other, with the exception of Port Essington,
where there are two canneries together. Even if a vessel were allowed to go to Skeena
River it would necessitate her coasting to the different canneries ii order to secure her
Cargo. The trade for Canadian vessels on the western coast of British Columbia for
sole years past has been very limited, and continues so even under the present circum-
stances. To allow American vessels to call at the different canneries along the coast
would take away a greater portion of the only traffic Canadian vessels now command
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besides compelling a cutting of rates through this unfair competition. I am pleased to
state that this protest meets with the approval of the principal commercial people here,
and is only objected to by one or two who have no patriotism, love of country, or
evidently any sympathy with the national policy of our country. Indeed the facilities
now sought by those interested in the " Lakme's " proposed voyage are, as of course you are
aware, entirely denied us on the American side.

I would also call your attention to the fact that while British Columbia has no less
than five ports of entry at which foreign vessels can enter, Washington Territory with
a greater seaboard than British Columbia, has only one port of entry.

I also beg your consideration and attention to Port Simpson as a port of entry, it
being of no advantage whatever to Canadian vessels, but is of material advantage to
American vessels plying between Washington Territory and Alaska, as it gives them
opportunities of competing with us, without giving us like advantages of competing
with them in any way whatever.

Port Simpson was only made a port of entry for the purpose of allowing Canadian
steamers to compete with American vessels for the trade of Cassiar on the head waters
of the Stikine River. Previous to that time, Fort Wrangel, at the mouth of the Skeena
River, was a port of entry, and Canadian vessels carried the bulk of this trade, and
American shipowners in order to get a monopoly of the business induced the American
government to cancel Wrangel as a port of entry, thereby forcing Canadian vessels to
proceed 500 miles further north and west to Sitka, which was the only other port of
entry. The Canadian vessels were compelled to go this extra 500 miles to enter, then
they were allowed to proceed to Fort Wrangel, discharge their cargo, and return again
to Sitka to clear, thus compelling Canadian steamers to travel between 1,500 and 2,000
miles uselessly and at a great waste of time, with the result that it drove the Canadian
vessels out of this trade both on the river and on the coast. The only steamer now plying
on the Stikine River is an American steamer, while no Canadian vessel whatever plies to
Alaska. I may state that Port Simpson was not utilized for the purpose for which it
was made a port of entry, as it was found that a steamer built to ply between Port
Simpson and Stikine River was of too slight a construction for the trip between Port
Simpson and the Stikine, and consequently Port Simpson as a port of entry was not
utilized in any way by Canadian vessels. As the mines of Cassiar are virtually worked
out, I would, therefore, ask in the interests of Canada and Canadian shipowners, that
it would be of great advantage if Port Simpson were cancelled as a port of entry by the
department.

I have the honour to remain, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN IRVING,
Manager.

THE CANADIAN PACIFIC NAVIGATION Co., LTD.,
MANAGER's OFFICE,

The Hon. the Minister of Customs, VICTORIA, B.C., 25th September, 1889.

Ottawa,

SIR,-Notwithstanding our protest, we note that American vessels are still allowed
the privilege of loading at way-side places on the Fraser River (after having cleared at
New Westminster), to the great loss and detriment of Canadian shipowners in these
-waters.

The collector of customs at New Westminster not only allows foreign vessels this
privilege, but he grants privileges to American vessels which not even their own govern-
ment would allow them-much less allowing same to British bottoms-as the collector
at New Westminster allows American vessels to clear at his p->rt (and in the last
instance I believe directly for a foreign port), and then to proceed to the various land-
ings on the Fraser River and take on cargo for a foreign port. I nnderstand that

A. 199
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flot even a special landing-waiter is detailed off to watch the loading of the ship, to guard
against any possible smuggling which might be carried on. My information on this
point, however, may not be accurate.

I desire to remind you that even American vessels are not allowed to do the saime
thing by the American government. For example, take an American vessel arriving at
Port Townsend, from San Francisco or Victoria, wishing to proceed to Seattle, Tacoma
or any other Puget Sound port and thence to Vancouver, such a vessel cannot get a
clearance from Port Townsend until she bas called at ber Puget Sound ports and bas
returned to Port Townsend to clear direct for Vancouver, B.C. If she called at any
port between Port Townsend and Vancouver, B.C., in American territory for the pur-
pose of landing passengers or freight, or transacting any business whatever, she would
be liable to a very heavy penalty. But in British Columbia it would appear from recent
events that American vessels can obtain such facilities, even under the authority of
Canadian customs officers, as lately evidenced in the case of SS. " Michigan, " which,
after clearing at New Westminster for a foreign port, took on the bulk of ber cargo after
having left the port of entry.

The owners of the vessels whom I represent do by far the greater amount of the
coasting business in British Columbian waters at the present time. In fact, there is only
one other steamer engaged in the cnasting trade on this coast, and if the present circum-
stances are allowed to exist I must say I do not see much encouragement for improving
the service for the coasting trade of this province. The company I represent have had
to transfer a quarter of a million dollars into an American vessel for their protection,
Owing to the present protective laws of the United States, and the clemency and liber-
ality of the Canadian laws to foreign vessels.

If it would have any influence on the merits of this case, I could get a petition from
Over two-thirds of the most influential business men of the country, but I have consid-
ered that such would be of little value, as I have always been led to believe that it is
the policy of the present Conservative government to protect Canadian interests in
accordance with the laws which have been passed therefor.

I have the honour to remain, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN IRVING,
Manager.

CANADIAN PACIFIC NAVIGATION COMPANY, LTD.,
MANAGER's OFFICE,

VICTORIA, B.C., lst October, 1889.
lion, W. HAMLEY,

Collector of Customs,
Victoria, B. C.

SIR,-I beg to call your attention to a serious infraction of the custoins laws and
regulations of Canada by the American steamer " Lakme," in having loaded a cargo
of salmon at Skeena River, and having carried passengers from that point to Victoria,and landing the passengers at that point, and I understand without even reporting
herself to the customs authorities at Victoria. Besides this being a serious violation
of the Dominion custom laws, it is interfering with the coasting trade of Canadian
vessels, and if it is not taken notice of, will simply amount to a precedent for future
Operations by American steamers.

Yours truly,

JOHN IRVING,
Manager.
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THE CANADIAN PACIFIc NAVIGATION COMPANY, LTD.,
MANAGER'S OFFICE,

VICTORIA, B.C., Ist October, 1889.
The Honourable the Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to inclose you a copy of a complaint sent to the Houour-
able the Collector of Customs at Victoria, and I consider the complaint as affecting
very seriously Canadian shipowners, as offering a precedent for future operations, unless
the government take immediate action as an example that our rights cannot be in-
fringed upon with impunity.

I have the honour to remain, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN IRVING,
Manager.

THE CANADIAN PACIFIc NAVIGATION COMPANY, LTD.,
MANAGER'S OFFICE,

VICTORIA, B.C., 7th Sept, 1889.
Hon. E. DEWDNEY,

Minister of the Interior,
At New Westminster, B.C.

SIR,-I understand that the steamer " Michigan," chartered by the O.R. & N. Co.,
has been permitted to enter and clear at the port of New Westminster, and then pro-
ceed to one or more canneries on the Fraser River. Such a privilege would not be
accorded to any of our steamers on the Columbia River, and as a direct result, we are
obliged to compete with a foreign vessel without the opportunity being accorded us of going
on to their ground to secure freight. American steamers are being allowed the same
privileges as are enjoyed by Canadian vessels in Canadian waters.

I am anxious to have the port of New Westminster defined so that the canneries
situated on the Fraser shall not be included in the port, and that the collector be in-
structed by the department accordingly. If this were done our steamers would get the
lighterage on the salmon from the canneries to New Westminster, and foreign vessels
will only be allowed to take salmon from the port itself.

As you are at the present time at New Westminster and therefore on the ground,
I venture to ask for your kind assistance, although I am aware that the matter is not
one appertaining to your department. It is of great importance to us that the question
of defining the port of New Westminster be done at once, if we are to obtain any benefit
from the order this season. You are aware that shipments of salmon are beginning to
be made in large quantities now from the different canneries, and I will esteem it as a
great favour and kind consideration if you will interest yourself in the matter so that
it may be pushed through as speedily as possible.

Yours very truly,
JOHN IRVING.

BOND TO BE GIVEN BY THE MASTER OF A VESSEL, WITH TWO

SURETIES, UNDER COASTING REGULATIONS.

DOMINION OF CANADA.

Know all men by these presents that we (1) ................... are held and
firmly bound unto Our Sovereign Lady the Queen, lier heirs and successors, in the sum
of five hundred dollars of lawful money of Canada, to be paid to our said lady, the
Queen, her heirs and successors for which payment well and truly to be made, we bind
ourselves and every of us, and the heirs, executors and administrators of us, and
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each of us, jointly and severally firmly by these presents, sealed with our seals, and
dated this. .............. day of................in the,...............year of
Her Majesty's reign, and in the year of Our Lord, one thousand eight hundred and

Whereas the above bounden (2) ... ............ master of the (3).............
of (4).............. (5) ............... tons burthen, British registered and wholly
owned by British subjects, has taken out a license to carry goods, always subject to
entry or clearance, conformably with the coasting regulations of this Dominion.

Now the conditions of the above written obligation is such that if the said (2) ....
.......... or any other person in charge of the said vessel do at all times comply

with the said license, during the term for which issued, and with the conditions of the
coasting regulations of this Dominion (which are printed hereon), then this obligation
shall be void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and virtue.

... ...................... S.)

........................ (L.S.)
........................ (L .S.)

Sealed and delivered in presence of ............................

(1.) Naine and master of the two sureties.
(2.) Name of master.
(3.) Name of vessel.
(4.) Port where registered.
(5.) Gross tonnage.

ORDER IN COUNCIL.

GOVERNMENT HoUSE, OTTAWA,
TUESDAY, 17th day of April, 1883.

PRESENT :

HIS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR GENERAL IN COUNCIL.

On the recommendation of the Honourable the Minister of Custons, and under
the provisions of the 13th and 125th sections of the Act passed in the Session of the
Parliament of Canada held in the 40th year of Her Majesty's reign, chaptered 10 and
intituled " An Act to amend and consolidate the Acts respecting the customs."

His Excellency, by and with the advice of the Queen's Privy Council for Canada,
has been pleased to order and it is hereby ordered, that the following regulations
respecting the coasting trade of the Dominion of Canada be and the same are hereby
adopted and established.

COASTING REGULATIONS.

1. Vessels and boats employed in the transport of goods or passengers from one
port or place to another port or place within the limits of the Dominion of Canada, shall
be deemed to be engaged in the coasting trade and shall be subject to the regulations
governing the same.

2. None but British registered vessels and boats wholly owned by British subjecta
and such other vessels or boats as may be owned by the subjects of countries included
in any treaty with Great Britain by which the coasting trade is mutually conceded,
can lawfully be engaged in the coasting trade of the Dominion of Canada, and the
names of such vessels or boats and the names of their port of registry shall be distinctly
painted on the stern of the said vessels or boats.

3. Such vessels and boats may, without being subject to entry or clearance, as
required by law, for vessels trading between ports in the Dominion of Canada, as well
as with foreign ports, carry goods the produce of Canada, or goods duty free, or goods

il
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duty paid, or passengers from any ports or places in the provinces of Ontario, Quebec,
New Brunswick, Nova Scotia and Prince Edward Island to any other ports or places
in the said several provinces, provided always that the owners or masters of such
vessels or boats shall take out a license for the year or part of the year, always termin-
able on the 30th day of June, for that purpose, from a collector of customs in Canada,
and that the owners or masters in taking out the said license shall enter into bonds of
$500 conditioned that such vessels or boats shall not be employed in the foreign trade,
unless as hereinafter provided, and provided also that the master of every such vessel
or boat shall report inwards and outwards on entering or leaving a port, on the forms
hereinafter prescribed.

4. The master of any such vessel or boat shall produce his license to any officer of
customs, whenever the same shall be demanded, and answer all questions put to him,
and such officer of customs shall be at liberty to go on board any such coasting vessel
when he may deem proper, and if he should find any dutiable goods therein which had
not been entered at the customs, or any prohibited or smuggled goods, or if any goods
had been unladen therefrom before the master had reported to a customs officer, the
goods and vessel shall be forfeited, and the master shall incur the penalty of $100.

5. Before any coasting vessel or boat shall depart from any port of lading in any
one of the provinces of the Dominion of Canada for any other port in the said
Dominion, a report with a duplicate thereof, in the form or to the effect following, and
signed by the master, shall be delivered to the collector or some officer of customs who
shall retain the duplicate and return the original report dated and signed by him, and
such report shall be the clearance of the vessel or boat for the voyage, except for goods
under bond, or goods liable to excise or internal revenue duty which shall require the
entries and warrants for landing to be signed by the proper officers as required by law,
and if any report be false, the master who signed it shall forfeit the sum of $100.

REPORT INWARDS.

COASTWISE for a registered coasting vessel or boat arriving at one port from another in
the Dominion of Canada.

Port of .............................. Port of registry.....................

Name of vessel ................. Registered tonnage....... .......... tons.

Master's name........................ Where from......., ...............

I, the undersigned, master of the above described vessel, do solemnly declare that
I have not touched at any foreign port, nor have I taken on board, nor landed, nor put
off of said vessel any goods liable to customs duty, or other revenue impost, since leaving
the above named port of departure.

............ ... day of.................., 188 ..... ................ Master.

................ Collector of Customs.

REPORT OUTWARDS.

COASTWISE for a registered coasting vessel or boat proceeding from one port to another
in the Dominion of Canada.

Port of.............................. Port of registry.......................

Name of vessel....................... Registered tonnage...............tons.

Master's name........................ Whither bound......................

1, the undersigned, master of the above named vessel, do solemnly swear that I am
bound for, and will proceed directly to the port of .............. and that I will not,
during said voyage, touch at any foreign port, nor take on board, nor land, nor put off

12

A. 1866



Enforcement of Coasting Laws.

of said vessel any goods liable to customs duty, or other revenue impost, before arriving
at the above named port of destination.

................ day of.................. , 188 ...................... M aster.

................ Collector of Customs.

6. Vessels and boats employed in the coasting trade that shall not have taken out
a license for carrying goods, shall report inwards and outwards at the nearest port to
their place of arrival or destination, and require clearances whenever they depart from
any port or place within the Dominion Qf Canada, and in default of their so reporting
the vessel and cargo, the master shall in such cases be subject to the penalty of $100
for departing and arriving without due entry inwards or outwards, as the case may be.
Provided that when a vessel shall sail from any place where there is no custom house or
officer of customs, it shall be sufficient for the carrying out of this regulation that the
master or owner of such vessel do, as soon afterwards as possible, forward to the nearest
custom house a similar report in duplicate, or lodge the same at the first port at which
he shall touch where there is a custom house officer.

7. Goods under a removal bond from one Canadian port to another Canadian port
Inay be carried in any British registered vessel or boat trading coastwise, with a proper
icense, upon such goods being properly entered in the report outwards and clearance,
in duplicate, the collector at the port from which such goods are removed being required
to forward by mail, to the collector of the port for which the goods are destined ail the
particulars and description of the goods so forwarded, and the packages shall be properly
marked in red as now provided, but no goods under bond shall be carried in any coast-
ing vessel or boat without being so reported and cleared.

8. No coasting vessel or boat shall touch at any foreign port unless forced by
unavoidable circumstances or thereunto authorized by a collector or proper officer of
customs, and the master of any coasting vessel or boat which has touched at any foreign
port shall declare the same in writing under his own hand to the collector or proper
Officer of customs at the port or place in Canada where his vessel or boat afterwards first
arrives, under a penalty of $100.

9. If any goods are unshipped from any vessel or boat arriving coastwise,or unshipped
or water borne to be shipped, to be carried coastwise on Sundays or holidays, or unless
in the presence or with the authority of the proper officer of customs, or unless at such
tiies and places as shall be appointed and approved by him for that purpose; the same
shall be forfeited and the master of the vessel or boat shall forfeit the sum of $100.

10. Officers of customs may board any coasting vessel or boat in any port or place,
and at any period of the voyage search her, and examine ail goods on board, and demand
al the documents which ought to be on board; and the collector may require such docu-
ments to be brought to him for inspection.

11. No fishing boat or boats used in ferrying under fifteen tons burthen, shall,
except by special license or permission, carry any goods from a foreign country, which
are liable to duty, under pain of seizure, unless the same (in the case of ferry boats) be
for the sole use of some passenger then on board.

12. No goods can be carried in any coasting vessel or boat, except such as are laden
to be so carried at some port or place in Canada, and no goods shall be taken into or
put out of any coasting vessel or boat while on her voyage by river, lake or sea.

13. The report inwards and outwards coastwise required by these regulations may,in the case of any steam vessel carrying a purser, be signed by such purser, with the like
effect in all respects, and subject to the like penalty on the purser, and the like forfei-
ture of the goods-in case of any untrue statement or violation of customs law-as ifthe report was signed by the master; and the word master, for the purposes of these
regulations, shall be construed as including the purser of any steam vessel; but nothingherein contained shall preclude the collector or officer of customs from calling upon
the master of any steam vessel to answer ahl such questions concerning the vessel,Passengers, cargo and crew, as might be lawfully demanded of him, if the report had
been made by him, or to exempt the master from the penalties imposed by these regula-
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tions for failure to answer any such question, or for answering untruly, or to prevent
the master from making such report, if he shall see fit so to do.

14. The foregoing regulations are also to govern the coasting trade of the province
of British Columbia so far only as relates to vessels trading or making voyages between
the several ports in that province.

15. The coasting regulations, dated the 28th July, 1868, and 31st May, 1870, and
aIl regulations heretofore existing in the Dominion of Canada in reference to coasting in
any of the said provinces, are hereby repealed.

PRIvY COUNCIL, OTTAWA, 17th April, 1883.

I hereby certify that the foregoing regulations respecting the coasting trade of the
Dominion have been this day approved by His Excellency the Governor General in
Council.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

THE CANADIAN PACIFIC NAVIGATION COMPANY, LTD.,
MANAGER's OFFICE,

VICTORIA, B.C., 17th September, 1889.
FRANK BARNARD, Esq., M.P.,

Victoria, B.C.

I)EAR SI,-I wish to call your attention to the attached article clipped from the
Victoria Times, dated 16th September, which states that the steamer " Lakme " arrived
in Westminster with a cargo of freight for the Ross McLaren Lumbering Company, and
that she will clear for the Skeena River to load salmon.

It seems pretty hard lines when American vessels are allowed to go to any port of
British Columbia to load or unload cargo, and proceed to another port of British
Columbia for a cargo. By the item referred to, It would seem that the steamer
" Lakme " is allowed to clear from Westminster for Skeena River for a shipment of
salmon. Skeena River is not a port of entry, and there is not even a town at that
point. The only habitations consist of canneries isolated from each other, with the
exception of Essington, where there are two canneries together. If an American
steamer is allowed to clear at Westminster and proceed to a point in British Columbia-
some 600 miles away-and call at the different canneries for freight, it seems to me that
Canadian shipowners might as well give up trying to increase their business, or else if
they wished to stay in the business, they will require to own American vessels for self
protection.

I wish you would kindly write a letter to the department explaining the position of
affairs, and in the meantime in the interests of Canadian shipowners in this province,
get the department to do away with Fort Simpson as a port of entry, as it is of no bene-
fit whatever to either Canadian merchants or ship owners, but it is of great advantage to
American vessels sailing between Washington Territory and Alaska, as it gives them
an opportunity of competing with us, while we have no means whatever to compete
with them.

Port Simpson was made a port of entry upon the representations of Captain Wm.
Moore, at the time when the Cassiar mines were in the height of their prosperity.
Previous to this Fort Wrangel was made a port of entry, and Canadian vessels could go
to Fort Wrangel and transfer their cargoes to river steamers for the Cassiar mines. In
order to give the American steamers the monopoly of this trade, the United States gov-
ernment did away with Fort Wrangel as a port of entry, thereby forcing Canadian
vessels to proceed to Sitka (some 300 or 400 miles further on) before they could enter
and clear. The river boats being of too light a construction to go to Sitka, on account
of the very rough water intervening between Fort Wrangel and Sitka caused the
Canadian steamers to lose this trade, and it was then thought that by having a port of
entry at Port Simpson, the river steamers could clear at that point and proceed direct
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Up the Stikine River without touching at Fort Wrangel, the Stikine River being one of
the treaty rivers. This, however, was never put into effect, as a steamer suitable for
the voyage from Port Simpson to the Stikine River was entirely unsuited for the
Stikine River, and since that time Port Simpson is only used as a convenience by the
American steamers, as I have already stated.

Washington Territory has only one port of entry, and one sub-port, although it
Possesses a seaboard twice the size of that of British Columbia.

Yours truly,

JNO. IRVING,
Manager.

(Clipping from " Times.")

NEw WESTMINSTER, Sept. 16. -The steamer "Lakme " arrived in port to-day from
Port Townsend with fire brick and clay for the McLaren-Ross Lumbering Co. When
the cargo is unloaded the " Lakme " will clear for Skeena River to load salmon for
Astoria.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,

o.MACKENZIE BoWELL, OTTAWA, 7th October, 1889.

Minister of Customs.

My DEAR BoWELL,-I inclose you the letters received f rom Captain Irving respect-
ing the coasting matter which I spoke to you about. I think it would be well if you
Would write Captain Irving a letter on the subject and say I have brought the matter
before you on my arrival. It would do good just at this time.

I also inclose you copy of the regulations which your son handed to me when we
talked the matter over at Vancouver.

Believe me, my dear Bowell,
Yours very sincerely,

E. DEWDNEY.

DEPARTMENT OF CUsTOMs,
OTTAWA, 1.5th October, 1889.

JOHN IRVING, Esq.,
Manager, Canadian Pacifie Navigation Co.,

Victoria, B.C.

M. SIR,-In connection with your letter of the 1 ith inst., addressed to Mr. Barnard,
., and by him transferred to this department, I am instructed by the hon. the

Minister of Customs to inclose to you a copy of the recent instructions sent to the
oustoms ports in British Columbia, respecting the coasting matter, being the subject of
Your letter above referred to.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. JOHNSON,
Commissioner.
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BRITISH COLUMBIA BOARD oF TRADE,
VIcToRIA, 18th October, 1889.

The Honourable the Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

SI,-By direction of the president and council of the British Columbia Board of
Trade, I have the honour to transmit herewith a copy of a letter addressed to the board
by the Canadian Pacific Navigation Company, Limited, having reference to certain
alleged infractions by United States vessels of the Canadian shipping laws.

I further have the honour to band you copy of a minute prepared by the board in
connection with the above matter, as also one of a resolution relating to the desirability
of doing away with Port Simpson as a port of entry, the utility of the place in such
respect having, in the opinion of the board, ceased to exist, and its retention as such
being calculated to encourage and facilitate the infractions of the law as complained of
in the letter above referred to.

The board trusts that the matter may receive early and careful consideration at
the hands of the government.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Yours faithfully,

W. MONTEITH,
Secretary.

NoTE.-The following memorandum from the Minister to the Commissioner appears on this letter,-.
" Abolish outport of Port Simpson."

Minutes of British Columbia Board of Trade.

14th October, 1889.

The board having taken up a communication f rom the Canadian Pacifie Navigation
Company, Limited, dated the 27th September, ulto., relative to alleged infraction of Can-
adian coasting laws, is of opinion that the subject matter in question should be laid
before the hon. the Minister of Customs, with a copy of the communication referred to,
and that the minister be respectfully asked to give the same his careful and prompt con-
sideration in order that the existing coasting regulations be firmly and impartially
administered ; that no facilities be afforded foreign shipping which are not in accordance
therewith, having in view that no such facilities are extended to Canadian coasters
under foreign regulations.

And this board would furtber point out that freight from eastern Canadian points
is constantly brought to this port by foreign steamers and distributel to different ports
on the Canadian coast by said steamers.

The board would also direct the attention of the hon. the Minister of Customs to
circular No. 116, (see Treasury Department, Washington, July 24th, 1885,) addressed to
collectors and officers of customs of the United States.

RESOLUTION,

"That the hon. the Minister of Customs be asked to consider whether it is desir-
able to retain the port of Fort Simpson as a port of entry, as this board is of the opinion
that the necessity for a port of entry at that point has ceased, for Canadian bottoms,
while it affords foreign shipping facilities to seriously interfere with the carrying trade
properly belor ging to Canadian vessels."
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TEE CANADIAN PACIFIc NAVIGATION CO.,
MANAGER'S OFFICE.

R. WARD, Esq., VICTORIA, B.C., 27th September, 1889..

President of the Board of Trade,
Victoria, B. C.

DEAR SIR,-I desire to call the attention of the Board of Trade of British Columbia.
to the fact that American vessels are being allowed facilities for loading cargo at all porta
in British Columbia, which are foreign to existing customs regulations for shipping at such
Ports; and I refer specially to the case of the SS. "Michigan" on more than one recent.
Occasion.

There is no doubt that the manner in which the collector of customs at New West-
Iminster, in permitting American vessels to load cargo at points other than a port of
entry, is a direct violation of the coasting laws of Canada, and as a representative of the
Owners of the vessels engaged in carrying most of the traffic between the various porta
Of British Columbia, I desire to state that by granting such privileges to foreign
bottoms, those legitimately engaged in bona fide Canadian carrying trade are subjected
to serious loss and injury thereby.

I may inform you that the trade of British Columbia is very limited at the bea*
and if American vessels are allowed such privileges as are accorded to them by tL
collector at New Westminster, the value of Canadian vessels engaged in coasting mus.
necessarily be depreciated. I could point out two recent instances, where an Americaa
steamer has entered and cleared at New Westminster, and after having cleared, ha
been permitted to call at the various canneries on the Fraser River, and take in th:
bulk of her cargo for a foreign port.

I would call your attention to the fact, that such facilities are not even allowed tc
Ainerican vessels in their own waters. For instance,-an American vessel arriving a'
Port Townsend is not allowed to clear from Port Townsend for Vancouver and thon
Proceed to Seattle, Tacoma or any other port on Puget Sound, and return from samt
to Vancouver. After entering, she could go to any port, as to as many as she pleasec
in Washington Territory (being an American register), but before she could proceed to
Vancouver, she must return to Port Townsend for her clearance. In the casE
mn3entioned of the collector at New Westminster, in permitting an American steamer tc
load at way landings on the Fraser River, the collector might at least order suo:a
steamer to return to the port of entry before granting a clearance to a foreign port.

I trust that you and your board will take this matter up in the interests of the
Province generally, as without protection, we cannot hope to place and maintain fira>
class steamers for the coasting trade of British Columbia.

I also desire to call your attention to Port Simpson as a port of entry. At th
Present time it is of no benefit to the province, though it can at any time be used by
American vessels to the great injury of Canadian vessels.

I trust that representations by the board will be made to the Minister of Custom:
at your next meeting as will result in doing away with Port Simpson as a port of entr'
until at least such time as it will be of benefit to the commerce of the country.

In giving the above your consideration I would ask you to compare the facilities
offered by the Dominion to shippers of all nationalities, in having no less than fou.
ports of entry within a radius of 40 miles, with the two American territories, on
Çý1aska) to the north, and the other (Washington Territory) to the south of British
'.lumbia. In Alaska there is but one port of entry-Sitka-to which al foreigVeesels must proceed. In Washington Territory there is only one port of entry, and
one sub-port-two in all,-the sub-port at Roche Harbour being virtually no port at all
anid in fact was only opened for the purpose of allowing the farmers of San Juan Islanc
and Orcas Island direct communication to Victoria, in order that they might get thei
Produce in to Victoria, without the circuitous route via Port Townsend, and enabk
them to compete with Canadian farmers on Vancouver Island, and more particularly
to the injury of the farmers on the mainland, who have to send their produce from 4,
to 100 miles further.
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With the above explanation, I trust that your honourable body will see the neces-
sity of aiding and protecting the legitimate carrying trade of the country against
-unfair competition by foreign steamers.

Dear sir, yours truly,
JNO. IRVING,

Manager.

P. S.-Since writing the inclosed letter I learn that the SS. " Lakme " has been
allowed by the customs officials the privilege of taking salmon from the canneries on the
Skeena River. As you are no doubt aware there is not even the semblance of a village
at Skeena, and the nearest port of entry to Skeena is Port Simpson which is distant
about 50 miles.

Should this be legal there is virtually no protection whatever to Canadian vessels
for any trade in the country, for if a vessel is allowed to proceed to the canneries on the
Skeena River, and canneries on the Fraser River, she certainly must be allowed to go
to any other canneries along the coast, or even to call at any settlement along the coast,
or at any settlement on any one of the rivers, and there certainly cannot be any dis-
tinction or difference with the exception of the class of freight she would probably
call for.

J. I.

MARINE DEPARTMENT,
OTTAwA, 25th September, 1889.

Lieut.-Col. E. G. PRIOR, M.P.

MY DEAR SIR,-I have to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 18th instant
inclosing a communication addressed to you by Captain Irving, manager of the Canadian
Pacific Navigation Company.

As his letter relates to the coasting trade and customs regulations affecting it, I
have transferred it together with your own to the Customs Department.

I may remark, however, that this question was recently considered in council, so
far as it affects the right of an American vessel to pick up cargo at a Canadian port or
at different points within the legal limit of that port, and it was ascertained that this is
permissible under our laws under proper customs surveillance. Instructions I believe
to this effect have been given to collectors in British Columbia from the Customs
Department here.

I am yours faithfully,

, CHARLES H. TUPPER.

CANDIAN PACIFIC NAvIGATION Co., LTD.,
MANAGER'S OFFICE, VICTORIA, B.C., 3rd October, 1889.

Lieut.-CoL. E. G. PRIOR, M.P.,
Victoria, B.C.

DEAR SIR,-Referring to the letter of the Minister of Marine and Fisheries of the
25th of September addressed to you, and which you have kindly allowed me to peruse.
In the interest of Canadian shipowners will you be kind enough to ask for a definition
of what constitutes the different pointe within the legal limit of a Canadian port, and
with your influence, and as a representative of the people and the interests of Canadian
shipowners in this district, to define the legal limit of the different ports, so that it will
not come into competition with the local traffic 1

Yours faithfully,

JOHN IRVING,
Manager.
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Hon. C. H. TUPPER, VICTORIA, B.C., 4th October, 1889.

Minister of Marine and Fisheries,
Ottawa.

SI,-I beg to thank you for your letter of the 25th September last.
I showed same to Capt. Irving, the manager of the C.P. Navigation Co., and

he sent me the inclosed letter.
Will you please give me the definition he asks for?
There is a great deal of feeling here about this matter and I am anxious to have it

4ettled satisfactorily.
I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,

ED. GAWLER PRIOR.

MARINE DEPARTMENT,

The Hon. MAcKENZIE. BOWELL, OTTAw, 14th October, 1889.

Minister of Customs.

SIR,-I have the honour to inclose herewith, by direction of the Minister of Marine,
and with his compliments a letter received from Mr. Prior, M.P., inclosing a letter from
Mr. John Irving, manager of the Canadian Pacifie Navigation Company, at Victoria,

.C., and I am to request that you will be good enough to give Col. Prior the informa-
tion required.

A copy of a letter addressed by the Minister of Marine to Mr. Prior on the 25th
Ultimo is also inclosed.

I am, sir, your most obedient servant,
WM. SMITH,

Deputy Minister of Marine.

HRon. MACKENZIE BOWELL, KAMLOOPS, 12th October, 1889.

Ottawa.

MY DEAR BowELL,-I inclose cOpy of reSolution passed by the Board of Trade,
Victoria, re coasting regulations and the closing of Port Simpson as a port of entry. I
Was requested some time ago to bring the latter resolution before you, but I declined to
do so until the Board of Trade first took action in the matter. It does appear as if the
port at present affords great facilities to the Americans at the expense of our own ship-
OWners.

I will be glad if you will give this matter your early attention.

Yours faithfully,
J. A. MARA.

RESOLUTION.

The board having taken up a communication from the Canadian Pacifie Navigation
Company, Limited, dated the 27th September, ulto., relative to alleged infractions of
Canadian coasting laws, is of opinion that the subject matter in question should be
laid before the hon. the Minister of Customs, with a copy of the communication referred
to, and that the minister be respectfully asked to give the same his prompt and careful
Consideration in order that the existing coasting regulations be firmly and impartially
adninistered; that no facilities be afforded foreign shipping which are not in accordance
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therewith, having in view that no such facilities are extended to Canadian coasters
under foreign regulations.

And this board would further point out that freight from eastern Canadian points
is constantly brought to this port by foreign steamers and distributed to different ports
on the Canadian coast by said steamers.

The board would also direct the attention of the hon. Minister of Customs to cir-
cular No. 116, (see Treasury Department, Washington, July 24th, 1885,) addressed to-
collectors and officers of customs of the United States.

RESOLUTION.

That the hon. the Minister of Customs be asked to consider whether it is desira-
ble to retain the port of Port Simpson as a port of entry, as this board is of the opinion
that the necessity for a port of entry at that point has ceased for Canadian bottoms,
while it affords foreign shipping facilities to seriously interfere with the carrying trade
properly belonging to Canadian vessels.

(Copy of Telegrams.)

NEW WESTMINSTER, B.C., 28th October, 1889.
The Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

Recent order respecting conveyance of Canadian goods on Pacific coast calculated
to disturb trade. Board of Trade requests suspension of order until other shipping
arrangements can be made.

D. ROBSON,
Secretary Board of Trade.

VICTORIA, B.C., 30th October, 1889.
The Hon. the Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

Apparent misunderstanding by your government regarding recommendations of
British Columbia Board Trade respecting American steamers coasting in this province.
Board is of opinion until regular lines of Canadian steamers are established between
American and Canadian ports on this coast that permission be asked from the Minister
of Customs to allow foreign steamers to carry Canadian goods coming through the
United States in bond from their port of shipment in United States to one port of
destination in this province. Board respectfully urges this suggestion.

ROBT. WARD,
President.

THE CANADIAN PACIFIC NAVIGATION COMPANY, LTD.,
MANAGER'S OFFICE, VICTORIA, B.C., 25th October, 1889.

J. JOHNSON, Esq.,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-In the absence of Captain Irving, I beg to acknowledge the receipt of
your favour of the 15th instant, inclosing a copy of the recent instructions sent to the
collectors in British Columbia, respecting the coasting matter.

Your favour with the said inclosed copy will be laid before Capt. Irving
immediately on his return.

Yours truly,
J. W. VINCENT,

Asst. Manager.
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CANADIAN PACIFIC NAVIGATION CoMPANY, LTD., ,
MANAGER's OFFICE, V ICTORIA, B.C., 23rd November, 1889.

J. JORNSoN, Esq.,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-Again troubling you in reference to foreign vessels loading salmon at
canneries on the Fraser River within the port of New Westminster, if the collector
(acting under section 140, chapter 32, 49 Victoria and Amending acts) allows a foreign
Vessel to proceed to a cannery to load, I contend that the vessel should return to the
port to clear, or if that is not necessary, that the captain of the vessel should return to
the customs house, after he has finished loading for the purpose of obtaining his
clearance. I understand that it is the custom of the collector of New Westminster to
place an officer on board under section 140, giving him the necessary papers for
clearance,which are handed to the captain at the outport after the vessel is loaded, not
by the collector or in the proper office, but by an officer who in all probability would be
a special officer appointed for the occasion.

This procedure without doubt is irregular, and I do not think that it occurs in any
other port in Canada or in the United States. My experience has been in all ports
that I have entered and cleared from, that I had to go to the custom house for the
Purpose of clearing, after having received my cargo.

Your ruling in this matter is kindly asked for.

I am, sir, your obedient servant,
JNO. IRVING,

Manager.

(Copy of Telegram.)

M. BOWELL, VICTORIA, B.C., 29th November, 1889.

Minister of Customs, Ottawa.

Anxiously awaiting reply to our telegram of the twenty-second. Effect of order
already seriously felt. Fifteen to twenty cars bond freight en route when order was
enforced. Now lying at Tacoma. Impossible to let them, relaying order which reaches
far beyond what Board of Trade represented or asked. Universal feeling of hostility
to government's action. Immediate rtply by wire requested.

E. G. PRIOR.
THOMAS EARLE.

1 Telerams sent to Messrs. Prior and Earle. Instructions to Young by Minister, November 30&889. ( o n file.)

CusToMs DEPARTMENT, CANADA,

ROBERT WARD, Esq., OTTAwA, 14th November, 1889.

President of the Board of Trade,
Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-I am in receipt of your telegram of the 30th October, expressing the opinion
that there is a "misunderstanding by the government regarding recommendations of
British Columbia Board of Trade respecting American steamers coastng in the province
of British Columbia.

It is to be regretted that there should be any misunderstanding upon this very
important question, but if such exists, I venture the opinion that it is not on the part
of this department or of the government, as the documents before me clearly establish.
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On the 8th October, 1889, the secretary of the British Columbia Board of Trade
forwarded to this department a letter under the seal of the corporation, in which he
states that, " by direction of the president and council of the British Columbia Board
of Trade, he transmits a copy of a letter addressed to the board by the Canadian
Pacific Navigation Company (Limited), having reference to certain alleged infractions
by United States vessels of the Canadian shipping laws." The secretary also incloses
" a copy of a minute prepared by the said board in connection with the above matter," and
a resolution asking the government to abolish Port Simpson as a port of entry, on the
ground that its continuance as a port of entry "affords foreign shipping facilities to
seriously interfere with the carrying trade properly belonging to Canadian vessels."

On reference to the resolution passed by the "council of the British Columbia
Board of Trade," forwarded to this department by its secretary, W. Monteith, Esq., I
find that it prays, "that the Minister of Custoins be respectfully asked to give the
complaint of the Canadian Pacific Navigation Company (Limited), dated the 27th
September, 1889, relative to alleged infractions of Canadian coasting laws, his careful
and prompt consideration in order that the existing coasting regulations be firmly and
impartially administered; that no facilities be afforded foreign shipping which are not
in accordance therewith, having in view that no such facilities are extended to Canadian
coasters under foreign regulations."

After making this emphatic request to have the coasting laws of the Dominion
"firmly and impartially administered" without any reservation, the board, in order to
give force and power to its request "further points out that freight from eastern
Canadian points is constantly brought to the port of Victoria by foreign steamers, and
distributed to different ports on the Canadian coast by said steamers."

The board "also directs the attention of the hon. the Minister of Customs to
circular No. 116 of the Treasury Department, Washington, of July 24, 1885, addressed
to collectors and officers of customs of the United States, " for the purpose, I doubt not,
of impressing upon the mind of the minister the action taken by the Treasury Depart-
ment at Washington, when dealing with a question similar to the one now under
consideration.

When the order of October 15th, 1889, was issued by the Customs Department at
Ottawa, as suggested by the council of the British Columbia Board of Trade, enforcing
the coasting laws, and thereby restricting the privileges enjoyed in the past by
American vessels, the department had in view the two circulars issued 'oy Mr. Secretary
Manning of 2nd July, 1885, and of 24th July, 1885, which had the effect of preventing
vessels of Canadian register from participating in a trade on the great lakes in Ontario,
and on the seaboard of the Pacific Ocean, which was and had been enjoyed by United
States vessels on the Pacific coast until the issue of said order.

Then follows in the letter of the secretary of your board a resolution passed by the
board asking for the abolition of Port Simpson, for the reasons hereinbefore pointed
out.

With these requests from the council of your board of trade, supplemented by
telegrams and letters from members representing British Columbian constituencies in
the Parlianient of Canada, and from others interested in Canadian shipping, to accede
thereto and to protect, so far as the coasting laws of the Dominion would permit,
Canadian shipping interests, all of them sent to the department, I doubt not, in good
faith, it cannot fairly be alleged that the department misunderstood the requests and
demands made by the British Columbian Board of Trade in this particular.

I desire to add, that the propriety of enforcing the full observance of the provisions
of the coasting laws of Canada by foreign vessels on the shores of the Pacific has, in
consideration of the interests of Canadian shipowners, been for some time under the
consideration of the department, but fearing that a prompt and vigorous enforcement
thereof to the extent asked by the council of the British Columbia Board of ['rade,
might interfere in some way with the trade of the province of British Columbia, (until
greater home facilitieswereafforded for the carrying of goods and merchandise) the depart-
ment hesitated to issue orders bringing into operation the full provisions of the coasting
laws on the Pacific coast.
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Having, however, now had its attention again drawn to the subject by those
inlterested in shipping in British Columbia, supported by so important and influential a
body of commercial men as those who compose the council of the British Columbia
Board of Trade, the department felt justified in believing that the time had come when
the coasing laws of the Dominion might be enforced with advantage to the shipping
ilterests of the western portion of the Dominion and without detriment to the trade of
any portion of the country.

Pertinent to this subject, and for the information of your board, I desire to point
Out that the government of Canada bas always been prepared to extend to the United
States the fullest measure of reciprocity in coasting and wrecking in all parts of the
Dominion, whenever that country is prepared to concede the same privileges to Canada,
but until this is done, the department is in accord with the opinion of the council of
the British Columbia Board of Trade " that no facilities be afforded foreign shipping
Which are not in accordance with the laws, having in view that no such facilities are
extended to Canadian coasters under foreign regulations."

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

MACKENZIE BOWELL,
Minister of Customs.

BRITISH COLUMBIA BOARD OF TRADE,

The Hon. MAC KENqZIE BoWELL, VICToRIA, B.C., 25th November, 1889.

Minister of Customs, &c., &c.,
Ottawa.

SIR,-J have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter dated 14th instant, and
to express the thanks of this board for the very full and careful consideration which you
have devoted to the matter of coasting, recently submitted to you.

It is to be much regretted that the board in asking for an impartial administration
Of the coasting laws, (do you remark, without reservations) did not more clearly empha-
Size the complaint 'which emanated from the Canadian Pacific Navigation Company, and
which the board considered had special reference to the cases of the American steamers
" Michigan " and " Lakme," in carrying cargo between various different points on our
coast, and which were cited as infractions of the coasting laws.

With reference, however, to regular daily (American) steamers bringing Canadian
bonded goods to British Columbia from Puget Sound, State of Washington, U.S.A.,
Our local coasting trade is not jeopardised thereby, seeing that said steamers merely
lake the final "haul " of said Canadian bonded goods to one Canadian port only, no
British steamer being at present available for the purpose ; indeed this privilege bas been
already reciprocated by the United States authorities permitting one of our local
steamers to carry American bonded goods from the port of Vancouver to one port of
entry in the United States.

To the port of Victoria particularly these facilities form a most important and
Valuable connection in the conduct of a considerable traffic in freight, passengers and
mails, and to cut off these facilities at the present time would be inflicting a most
disastrous blow to our commerce, while in no way conserving the shipping interests as
they at present exist, and I cannot too strongly impress upon your department the
saerious results which must follow in the event of the full provisions of the coasting laws
being enforced, and which the board sincerely trusts will be suspended in so far as they
relate to cases other than actual coasting between different Canadian ports by foreign
Steamers.

Confirming my telegrams to you on this point dated 22nd instant, and to which I
await your reply.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

ROBERT WARD,
President.
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(Copies of Telegrams.)

VicToRiA, B.C., 22nd November, 1889.
Hon. M. BOWELL,

Minister of Customs, Ottawa.

Referring recent Order in Council relative coasting, board trade's reference to
department had special object of regulating cases such as quoted in connection with
steamers " Michigan" and " Lakme " distributing goods different ports; not with daily
ateamers Northern Pacific Railway from Puget Sound bringing bonded goods and
delivered at one port only British Columbia. Under existing circumstances impossible
aecure British steamers for this business and enforcement of order would most seriously
affect our trade and daily communications with neighbouring territory. Strongly urge
suspension of order. Kindly wire reply.

E. G. PRIOR,
THOS. EARLE.

VICTORIA, B.C., 22nd November, 1889.
Hon. MACKENZIE BoWELL,

Minister of Customs, Ottawa.

Letter received, please suspend order pending board's reply by mail. Unreserved
snforcement would prove very disastrous our commercial interest. Reply by wire respect-
fully asked.

ROBT. WARD,
President.

VICTORIA, B.C., 2nd December, 1889.
Hon. Minister of Customs.

Kindly grant same concessions steamer " Premier " Tacoma to Vancouver handling
asnadian bonded goods as allowed Victoria. Please reply.

JOHN IR VING.

VICTORIA, B.C., 3rd December, 1889.
Hfon. Sir JOHN A. MACDONALD, K.C.M.G.,

Ottawa.

Telegram sent Minister of Customs to-night in regard to recent order re coasting.
Please give same your attention, order must be cancelled without delay.

E. G. PRIOR,
THOS. EARLE.

VICTORIA, B.C., 3rd December, 1889.
ion. M. BOWELL,

Ottawa.

The exceptional case quoted of Canadian steamer allowed carry bonded freight from
Vancouver should be explained. Suggest you ask Van Horne obtain by wire from Brown
at Vancouver.

GEO. H. YOUNG.
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on. MACKEN4ZIE BOWELL. VICTORIA, B.C., 3rd December, 1889.

Your telegram of thirtieth received. Although Government may have some grounds
for interpreting board's request as they do, still board never intended it to refer to
Canadian goods coming through States and delivered at one British port only. Your
interpretation is directly antagonistic to our trade. Impossible for British vessels to be
put on the route at present with profit. Our constituents unanimously demand cancella-
tion of order at once in which demand we fully concur in the interests of provincial
trade. Immediate action by Government necessary. Immediate reply by wire requested.

E. G. PRIOR,
THOS. EA.RLE,

-Ron. MACKENZIE BOWELL, VICTORIA, B.C., 9th December, 1889.

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

Please wire reply our telegram third instant, immediate reply very important to us.

E. G. PRIOR,
THOS. EARL

CANADIAN PAcIFIC NAvIGATION COMPANY, LTD.,
MANAGER's OFFICE.,

VICTORIA, B. C., 7th December, 1889.

The Hon. the Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

SIR,-Confirming my telegram to you dated the 2nd instant as follows:-
" Kindly grant same concessions to steamer " Premier " Tacoma to Vancouver

handling Canadian bonded goods as allowed Victoria. Please reply."
A.nd with further reference to the above message:-

I beg to request that the same concessions be allowed to our steamer "Premier"
for the privilege of handling Canadian bonded goods as have been granted to steamers
PlYing between Puget Sound and Victoria. We do not wish to infringe on the laws as
they now are, now has this company asked for any change or modification in the recent
,order issued by Commissioner Johnson, and we would much prefer to see theni carried
Out impartially and without prejudice. At the same time if the order has been sus-
Pended, I think that the "Premier" should have the same privileges accorded her as
have been given to American steamers running to Victoria from Puget Sound.

I would also iiform you that the earnings and expenses of the " Premier" are to a
great extent distributed in Canada, and were it not for the restrictions of the customs
regulations in the United States which compel us to run an American vessel on the
route between Puget Sound and Vancouver, B.C., we would use a Canadian steamer
for that work. If the suspension of the order issued by Commissioner Johnson on the
1lth October ultimo is only temporary, I do not wish to trouble you, as it is publicly
reported that the suspension of the order is only in favour of Canadian bonded goods
Passing through Duluth prior to 23rd November, ulto.

I have the honour to remain, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JNO. IRVING,
Manager.
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VICTORIA, B.C., 7th December, 1889.
The Hon. the Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

Si,-I have the honour to inclose herewith the statements, as promised in a
previous letter, of the Canadian free goods that have been entered at the ports of
Victoria and Vancouver, during the periods named.

The report for the port of New Westminster has been delayed, I suppose on
account of the illness of Peter Grant, who has been very ill for some time.

From these returns you will be able to judge as to the necessity of allowing the
special permission as given on the 30th ultimo to lapse or to be continued.

My letter of permission was so worded, as to justify the department in only allow-
ing it to last until the 21st instant. Should you wish the permission to be continued
indefinitely, I would be glad to receive a hint to that effect.

The volume of trade is such, as I think that now the railway company should ask
for an officer to be stationed at Tacom-, to witness the transfer of the freight from the
sealed cars to the steamer, and the signing of the steamers' manifests.

As it is now the goods that come here in transit f rom Eastern Canada, and that
are allowed free entry as being Canadian free goods, are so allowed to pass, on
what is far from being satisfactory proof; the special car manifests do not always
arrive, and if they did, they do not bear all the signatures they should, as we have no
officer west of Duluth on the one route and west of Minnesota Transfer on the other.

The seals placed at Duluth or the Minnesota Transfer are broken by any person at
Tacoma, and the goods loaded on the steamer without the inspection or signature of an
officer as required by the Order in Council. Fraud is therefore possible or error is very
apt to arise.

I have thought that if you decided to allow the special permission to continue in
force, now would be a good time to notify the railway, that unless by a certain date
they had an officer at Taconia, to break the seals and witness the transfer of this freight
from cars to steamer, we would have to decline to recognize as Canadian goods any of
the freight so called.

This action might at first raise the same objection here that it did at first in
Winnipeg, but I am sure that as soon as the consignees felt the benefit of the new
arrangement, they would, as they now do in Winnipeg, recognize the wisdom of the
action taken.

On this point I would also wish to be guided or to have a hint as to your wish.
I can then take the matter up on my own responsibility, and give my reasons for

acting by reference to the practice elsewhere, the law on the subject, and the benefit that
will arise to the consignees by its being carried out.

The additional protection to the revenue is not a side of the question that I need
mention in this community, but as a matter of fact·it should be considered as necessary.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of ports, &c., &c.
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IMPORTED FROM EASTERN CANADA.

PORT OF VICTORIA.

From 1st July, 1888, to 30th June, 1889.

July, 1888 .........................
August, "............. ...

September," .... ..........................
October, " ..............................

November, " ............ ..... ......

December, ".............................

January, 1889,............................
February, "............. 

M arch, ............................

April, " .:...............

May, "................

June, " ............... .............

Total..............................

July, 1889 ......................... ...
A ugust, " ........... . ...............

September," ............................

... $ 14,707 00

... 9,177 00

... 8,568 00

18,987 00
12,237 00
14,183 00

... 22,666 00
... 12,936 00
... 14,910 00
... 12,630 00
... 11,646 00
. .. 12,655 00

$ 165,332 00

27,103 00
... 21,742 00

26,602 00

Total................. ................ $ 75,447 00

October, 1889............ ..................... 21,894 00
November, " ............. .................... 12,688 00

Total......................... ........ $ 34,582 00

PORT OF VANCOUVER.

Statement showing value and classification of Canadian goods in transit through
the United States arriving at this port by steamer direct from Tacoma or via Victoria
from lst July to 30th November, 1889.

Groceries, including provisions.......................... $2,877
Tobacco............................................. 93
Paper, wrapping, bags, etc............................. 476
China and porcelain................................... 114
Boots and shoes...................................... 340
D ry goods........................................... 784
Glass, window ....................................... 822

Total.............................. $5,506

J. M. BOWELL,
Collector.
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PORT OF VANCOUVER.

Statement showing value and classification of Canadian goods in transit through
the United States arriving at this port direct from Tacoma by steamer or via Victoria
during the fiscal year ending 30th June, 1889.

Groceries, including provisions... ................... .$ 4,749
Spirits........................ .................... 6,666
Machinery, including tools............................ 127
Hardware. ..................... .................. 599
R ope........................................ ..... 573
Furniture......................................... 1,381

Total.............................. $14,095

J. M. BOWELL,
Collector.

VICToRIA, B.C., 7th Decemuber, 1889.
The Hon. the Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

SI,-I have the honour to inclose herewith an extract from the report inwards of
the steamer "Olympian" of the 6th instant, that shows the Canadian goods that had
passed in transit through the United States, and came to this port under the special per-
mission of that date.

As you will see, it comprises about three car-load lots.
I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,
GEO. H. YOUNG,

Inspector of ports, &c., &c.

EXTRACT fron manifest of steamer " Olympian," December 6th, 1889, of goods in transitu
through the United States, via Northern Pacific Railway :-

E. S. Scoullar & Co., 135 bundles iron pipe and 138 lengths iron pipe; W. J. Wil-
son, 1 case ; Turner, B. & Co., 4 cases ; Langley & Co., 9 packages (18 cases) E. goods ;
Rithet & Co., 1 case C. goods; Boucherat & Co., 3 cases; E. S. Scoullar & Co., 128
bundles iron pipe and 133 lengths iron pipe.

VICTORIA, B.C., 7th December, 1889.
The Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to report that yesterday I received verbal application from
the late agent of the Ontario, Richelieu and Navigation Company, now the agent of the
Union Pacific Railway Company, for permission to allow an American steamer to bring
in from the port of Tacoma, 3 car-loads of machinery, that had passed in transit
through the United States from Western Canada, and which were for a mill at
Chemanus on the Island of Vancouver; and to allow the same steamer to pass after
reporting here, and partially unloading here, to Chemanus with the machinery.

As the special permission given for the temporary handling of this kind of freight
was only written to include the port of Victoria, I would only allow the machinery to
be brought here by the American steamer; from here to destination, I informed the
agent it would have to be sent by local vessel.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of ports, &c.
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VICTORIA, B.C., 9th December, 1889.
The Hon. the Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to inclose herewith the return from the port of New
Westminster, of the Canadian free goods brought into that port for the periods named,
by United States steamers f rom Tacoma; the goods having been sent in transit through
the United States by the Northern Pacifie Railway.

This return along with the returns sent the other day from Vancouver and Victoria,
will give you the business that will be effected by a strict enforcement of clause 1 of the
order of the 1 Ith October.

I have just received your letter of the 2nd instant, with instructions to report on
this entire question.

I have the honour to be, air,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of ports, &c.

Statement showing values and description of goods from Eastern Janada passed
through the Custom House at New Westminster from Ist July, 1888, to 30th
November, 1889, by United States steamers.

For year ended 30th June, 1889:-

Wrapping paper............ . ............. $ 63 00
Groceries............ .................... 68 00

Total.......................... ..... $ 131 00

From 1st July, 1889, to 30th November, 1889:-

W rapping paper.............. ............ $273 00
Groceriee............ .................... 612 00
Rope...................... ............. 914 00
D rugs...... ..... ....................... 149 00
Hardware. ............................... 669 00
Dry goods........................ ........ 450 00
Plated ware.............................. 128 00
Paints................................... 96 00
Boots and shoes.......... ................ 557 00

Total................................ $3,848 00

Grand total.... ...................... $3,979 00

JNO. S. CLUTE,
Collector.

Ron. M. BOWELL, VANcoUvER, 6th December, 1889.

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

Si,-Your telegram re privileges given Canadian vessels to carry Canadian bonded
goods from American Sound ports to Canadian ports received.

I have seen all the owners of vessels here but they all say that they have never
attempted to do this class of business.

The United States vice consul here informs me that in his opinion a Canadian
bottom cannot go to Seattle or Tacoma or other Sound points and load cargo without

29
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first getting special permission from Washington; that a Canadian bottom, if she
requires to load such goods as you refer to would have to have them brought to Port
Townsend from Tacoma or Seattle and transhipped at that port, that being the last port
where our vessels are allowed to trade on the Sound.

A case occurred here a day or two ago where a Canadian tow-boat wanted to go to
one of the Sound points (either Seattle or Tacoma) and tow a vessel to New Westminster
to load lumber,-this was refused.

I have sent your telegram to Young at Victoria, asking him to get what informa-
tion he can from the Canadian Pacific Navigation Company, on this subject, who own
about all the cargo and passenger vessels in this province.

I hope you will not rescind the last orders re coasting regulations as they are the
best issued in the way of protecting Canadian institutions on this coast.

Your obedient servant,

J. M. BOWELL,
Collector.

VICTORIA, B.C., 5th December, 1889.
The Hon. the Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

SI,-I have the honour to inclose herewith an extract taken this morning from
the report inwards of the United States steamer " Olympian," which report is dated the
4th of December.

This is the first trip of any of the steamers of the line that have brought in Canadian
goods from Tacoma, since the special permission was given to them last Saturday night.

At that time it was claimed that there was at Tacoma and in the vicinity, some
twenty-seven car loads of this freight for this port, and the detention of which was a
great hardship to the merchants here.

The fact is, that when the steamer left Tacoma on the morning of the 4th instant,
she brought all the freight that was then at hand for transportation, amounting as you
will see to the estimated amount of sixty tons and which was contained in either six or
seven cars.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of Ports.

From manifest of steamer Olympian from Tacoma, 4th December, 1889. Goods in transitu
from eastern provinces via Northern Pacific Railway.

Turner, Beeton & Co., 6 bundles leather; M. W. Waitt & Co., 1 iron safe; Hy.
Young & Co., 3 cases woollens ; D. Spencer, 2 cases woollens ; D. Spencer, 2 cases
woollens; D. Spencer, 5 cases dry goods; Jas. E. Sully, 1 car wagons; Turner, Beeton
& Co., 50 barrels whisky; Turner, Beeton & Co., 50 barrels whisky; Turner, Beeton &
Co., 1 case flannels; Turner, Beeton & Co., 7 cases boots and shoes; Turner, Beeton &
Co., 11 cases merchandise; R. P. Rithet, 450 cases cotton goods; D. H. Ross & Co.,
10 cases champagne; Jno. Weiler, 15 packages merchandise; Mrs. Mugrudge, 1 grind-
ing machine; McQuade & Son, 120 coils rope; Mrs. Jeffrey, 1 case clothing; C. J.
Robson, 2 packages merchandise. T. J. Trapp & Co., 16 coils rope; D. H. Ross & Co.,
12 cases cottons; Fred Norris, 23 trunks. Estimated 60 tons.

A. 1899
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VICTORIA, B.C., 4th December, 1889.
The Hon. the Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour in explanation of my telegram of yesterday, on the subject
of information to be obtained from the Canadian Pacifie Railway officer at Vancouver,
in reference to the use of the steamer " Maude" in taking one load of machinery from
Vancouver to Port Townsend, to report,-

The facts are about as follows:-
Mr. George A. Brown the general freight and passenger agent of the Canadian

Pacific Railway, on the coast, and the collector at Port Townsend are friends.
When this machinery arrived at Vancouver, in transit for the States, Brown

thought that he would try and see if he could, as a special case, obtain the permission
to allow the " Maude " to take it to Townsend.

He (Brown) accordingly wired the collector at Townsend asking him for his special
permission in a very lengthy message, as I understand it, putting it before the collector
as a courtesy in exchange for the courtesy then allowed to American steamers to carry
like freight f rom Tacoma to ports on our side of the line.

In reply, Mr. Brown received, somewhat to his surprise, the permission he had
asked for; and he then informed his chief in Montreal of the fact by wire.

His chief in Montreal knowing the United States law on the subject, was afraid to
venture at first, being afraid that the steamer and cargo would be seized for an infrac-
tion of the United States coasting laws; but on an assurance that Mr. Brown held the
collector's consent in black and white, he at last consented to try it.

The same permission has not again been asked for, and there the matter resta, so it ie
hardly fair to quote it as an example of the greater liberality of the United States in
the administration of their laws, or to so make reference to it as to lead people to think
that it is a matter of practice or something that happens frequently.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Respectfully, your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of Ports, &c., &c.

J. 8. CLUTE, Esq., 30th December, 1889,

Customs Inspector, New Westminster, B.C.

Governor of British Columbia states that he understands British steamer " Danube"
is engaged in the carriage of American goods f rom Vancouver, B.C., to Portland,
Oregon, which have been transhipped in bond from eastern pointe in United States
over Canadian Pacific Railway. Ascertain if " Danube " has permission to do this and
from whom.

M. BOWELL.

(Copy of Telegram.)

Hâon. M. BOWELL, NEw WEsTmINTER, B.C., lst January, 1890.

Minister of Customs, Ottawa.

British steamer " Danube " has never carried any American bonded goods coming
over Canadian Pacific Railway from Vancouver to any port in the United States. This
is positive.

J. S. CLUTE.
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THE CANADIAN PAcIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY,
MONTREAL, l2th December, 1889.

Hon. MACKENZIE BoWELL,
Ottawa.

DEAR MR. BoWELL,-I owe you an .apology for the delay in replying to your note
about the Victoria agitation against your recent order as to American bottoms.

The papers got astray somewhere and I have just got the inclosed from Mr. Olds,
which I trust will afford the desired information.

Faithfully yours,

W. C. VAN HORNE.

TRE CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILwàY CoMPANY,
OFFICE OF THE GENERAL TRAFFIC MANAGER,

MONTREAL, 12th December, 1889.
W. C. VAN HORNE, Esq.,

President.

DEAR SIR,-I do not understand Mr. Irving's position as related in the
Colonist.

Mr. Irving invoked our aid in getting a stop put to the steamer " Michigan " doing
a coasting trade. This we did, and it would seem that both Mr. Irving and the Victoria
Board of Trade would have liked the Customs Department to have stopped here, and to
have left the Puget Sound boats undisturbed, although, assuming Canadian vessels may
carry American bonded freight to one United States port, it is difficult to understand
why the C. P. N. Co. went to the expense of building a vessel in San Francisco at a cost,
of $130,000 for the express purpose of complying with the late Secretary Manning's
circular requiring that Inter-State freight must be transported in American vessels to
and from Puget Sound ports.

What is said about permission to Canadian vessels to carry United States bonded
freight is misleading, there is a great difference between freight in bond from a foreign
country destined for entry at a United States port, and United States "States to
States " freight carried through Canada in bond. Secretary Manning's order does not
affect the former, but it prohibits the carriage of the latter in Canadian bottoms. The
Victoria people have probably not distinguished between these cases.

In only one case, so far as I know, has "States to States " been carried in connec-
tion with our line in a Canadian bottom, and that was in the case of a locomotive and
some cars which we carried to Vancouver for a railway on Puget Sound about two
years ago. There was no American bottom to be had that could carry these, and after
great delay and difficulty special permission was obtained to forward them in a Cana-
dian vessel. We have never repeated the attempt to forward "States to States " freight
in a Canadian bottom, and therefore it may truthfully be said that permission has not
been denied us, but unless in some very special case, such as I have described, it is cer-
tain that permission would be denied us if we asked for it.

Turner, Beeton & Co., who are the chief agitators against Mr. Bowell's order, are
practically the agents of the N. P. R. at Victoria, which accounts for their attitude.

Yours truly,

GEO. OLDS,
General Trafflic Manager.
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MONTREAL, 4th December, 1889.
JNO. IRVING, Victoria.

Minister Customs has received statement from Victoria Board of Trade to the
effect that a Canadian steamer is permitted to carry bonded American goods from
Vancouver to one port of entry in United States. Has your company or any others in
Victoria so far as you know had such permits fromn the United States customs
authorities ? Answer quick.

GEO. OLDS.

SEATTLE, 5th December, 1889.
GEO. OLDs.

" Maude " made special trip Vancover to Townsend with load rails, one motor,
one passenger car. Customs arrangements were made by Brown. This was
only trip I know of. See my confidential letter to Gordon, M.P. for Nanaimo.

JOHN IRVING.

CUsToMs HOUSE,
PORT OF VANCOUVER, 2Oth September, 1889.

J. JOHNsoN, Esq.,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-Inclosed please find a letter froin Mr. D. E. Brown, assistant general freight
and passenger agent, Canadian Pacific Railway, asking for information re coasting
regulations.

As 1 understand Mr. Brown, he wishes to know if under the coasting regu-
lations the SS. " Michigan," an American bottom, can take a car-load of Canadian
goods consigned from a point in Eastern Canada to a merchant in Vancouver via
Union Pacific Railway to Portland on board at Portland and jand portion of same at
Victoria, portion at Nanaimo, portion at Vancouver and the balance at New West-
minster, clearing from each port.

Mr. Brown claims that these goods are all cleared out at Portland for Vancouver,
but in transit are manifested on Canadian forms on the above mentioned points, also
that before this steamer was put on, all these goods were distributed from Vancouver
or Victoria by Canadian bottoms.

I might state that all goods manifested on this port are landed here,
Your obedient servant,

J. M. BOWELL,
Collect>r.

CANADIAN PAcIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY,
VANCOUVER, B.C., 19th September, 1889.

J. M. BOWELL, Esq.,
Collector of Customs,

Vancouver, B.C.

DEAR Sll,-I understand that the American steamer "Michigan " a short time
ago brought in a car-load of eggs consigned to Mr. Clark, Vancouver, and distributed
these eggs for him, some at Victoria, some at Nanaimo, some at New Westminster,
and the balance at Vancouver. Would you kindly look up your records and advise
me if my information is correct and also whether an American ship, under our present
coasting laws, is permittad to carry Canadian freight from the port it is consigned,
say Vancouver, to any other British port.

52-3 .83
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Is this not a service that should be performed by a Canadian bottom? I am also
informed that this same steamer has undertaken to deliver a portion of a car-load of
sugar that is consigned to Vancouver at New Westminster. They may, of course,
attempt to state that it is not unloaded at Vancouver, and I would like to know if
an American bottom is permitted to do this business. This is a matter that not only
seriously affects the revenue of this company, but also all Canadian steamers doing
business along our coast and f rom the sparsity of our population, I should judge that
they require all the encouragement in the way of coast business that can be given then.

When I get your ruling on this matter, I wish to take it up with our people at
Montreal, and I would like before doing so to be able to state that so far as your

jurisdiction is concerned that you will insist on all freight consigned to Vancouver to
be landed at this port and that an American bottom will not be allowed to transport
it any further, whether for a money consideration or otherwise.

Yours truly,
D. E. BROWN,

Assistant General Freight Agent.

OTTAWA, lltli October, 1889.
To the Collector of Customs,

Port of Victoria, B.C.

SIR,- I am instructed by the Honourable the Minister of Customs to forward for
your guidance, the following instructions in addition to the general coasting regulations,
and to request your close attention thereto in dealing with vessels, the owners or
masters of which may wish to pursue any of the irregulai courses indicated therein.

1. When goods are transported in bond over United States railways in transitu
from a Canadian port, and destined to another Canadian port in the province of
British Columbia, but intended to be transhipped at a United States port on the coast
of the Pacific Ocean, and to be carried thence by vessel to their destination, such carry-
ing may be permitted to be done by any vessel having a Canadian register, or being a
registered vessel of Great Britain and Ireland, or of any foreign country which has
acquired the right to the coasting trade of Canada, but by none other.

2. Vessels of foreign register of countries which have not acquired the right to the
coasting trade of Canada shall not be permitted to carry goods or passengers from a
port or out-port in British Columbia to any other place in the same province not being
a port of entry, whether such goods or passengers have been taken on board at a foreign
port or not, and no such vessel shall be allowed to remove from her first mooring or
anchorage within the port at which she first arrives to any other point within such port
except under special permit of the collector of customs, and with an officer on board
as iequired by section 140 of the Customs Act.

3. Vessels having a Canadian register, and vessels of foreign countries which have
acquired the right to the coasting trade of Canada, and vessels registered in Great Britain
and Ireland, shall not leave a port of entry, with or without passengers or goods, and
proceed to any place in British Columbia not being a port ->f entry, without special
permit of the collector, and on such conditions as he may find necessary for security of
the revenue.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. JOHNSON,
Commissioner.
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VICTORIA, B.C., 23rd November, 1889.
The Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa, Ont.

SIa,--I have the honour to apply herewith for a decision as to the extent of the
meaning of the words " in transit " as used in the letter of the 11 th of October in
clause 1, bearing on the carrying of goods " in transit " through the United States.

Mr. Milne and I have talked the matter over and have held different views as
regards the interpretation of part of the order.

I held, perhaps wrongly, that goods from.the United Kingdom or other foreign
country landed at Montreal and destined to pass by Grand Trunk and connections to
this province " in transit " through the States, would not come under the order ; and
that all goods passing from one port in Canada in transit through the States, already
duty paid or manufactured in Canada, and covered by a special car manifest as free
goods (Form A No. 11) were the only goods covered by the order.

Mr. Milne takes a larger view of the order and thinks that it covers all goods, once
landed in Canada, either entered in the east or for entry here.

The matter may not become a matter of public argument or arise in practice at all,
but I thought it wise to be instructed in case it should arise.

I hear this morning that a steamer is to be put on to run under our flag and under
our registry to connect with the railway (Northern Pacific) for the carrying of these
goods; as yet I have not this information from a positive or reliable source.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of Ports, &c., &c.

OTTAWA, 2nd December, 1889.
GEo. H. YoUNG, Esq.,

Inspector of Customs,
Victoria, RC.

SIu,-Referring to your letter of the 23rd ultimo, in which you ask for decision as
to the extent of the meaning of the words " in transit " in connection with recent
instructions re coasting in British Columbia.

You are quite right in your interpretation as regards goods from a foreign country
and passing through Canada by rail to rail connections in the United States, and so on
to British Columbia via Puget Sound. The instructions cannot cover a case of this
kind as under the Washington Treaty such transit is provided for.

The "in transit" in which United States vessels cannot be permitted te parti-
cipate is simply on goods coming from one portion of Canada passing through the
United States to another portion of Canada.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

W. G. PARMELEE,
Assistant Commissioner.

(Telegrara.) 30th November, 1889.
To E. G. Prior, Esq., M.P.,

Victoria, B.C.
If difficulties have arisen they are the result of compliance with board's demande.

Order does not go one step beyond what board asked. Americans enforce same regula-
tions on lakes in Ontario. Am informed that British vessel is to be put on the route.
Have no desire te dissarrange trade, but if law be not enforced British vessels will never
be used. Have telegraphed inspector how te act.

M. BOWELL.
52--8j 85
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30th November, 1889.
To GEO. H. YOUNG,

Inspector of Customs,
Victoria, B.C.

If loss will occur to importers you may give special permission to United States
steamers to bring Canadian goods brought by American railways to Sound ports to
Victoria. Permission not to be considered permanent.

M. BOWELL.

(Telegram from New Westminst er, B. C.)

3rd December, 1889.
To J. JOHNSON, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

Victoria newspapers state clause one letter of instructions ilth October, suspended
until twenty-first instant. Is this correct.

J. S. CLUTE.

(Telegran.)ý
4th December, 1889.

To Collector of Customs,
New Westminster, B.C.

Instructions have been sent Young. Consult him.

W. G. PARMELEE,
Assistant Commissioner.

VICTORIA, B.C., 30th November, 1889.
The Hon. THE MINISTER OF CUSToMS,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your telegram of this date
(at 6.10 p.in.) in reference to the allowing as a special case the United States steamers
hitherto engaged in that trade, to bring into this port the Canadian goods in transit,
providing I thought that importers would suffer loss if the permission was refused.

Immediately on receipt of the order I hunted up Mr. Milie and consulted him, and
together we saw the agent of the steamer company (the O. R. & N. Co.) and satisfied
ourselves that as yet no contract was closed for the use of a Canadian steamer to carry
the 100 tons of that freight that was now at Tacoma.

We then consulted together and decided to act as we understood the telegram, and
in consequence I wrote the letter, of which a copy is attached, and handed at 7.45 p.m.
to Mr. Cooper to whom it is addressed.

My reason for extending the operation of the special permission to the 21st of
December, was to allow of all the freight that might come in, under special car manifests
dated since the 23rd of November, to pass; and so hinder any feeling that might arise.

I trust that in acting as I have done I have your approval, and the granting of the
21 days' grace, for goods already in transit, was not exceeding the power you intended
me to exercise.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of Ports, &c., &c.
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VICTORIA, B.C., 30th November, 1889.
GEORGE A. COOPER Esq.,

Agent O. R. N. Company,
Victoria.

SI,-I have the honour to inform you that I have just received telegraphicinstruc-
tions from the Honourable the Minister of Customs, under which I am empowered to
give special permission to the United States steamers that carry Canadian g3ods brought
by the Northern Pacific Railway to Tacoma, to bring in to the port of Victoria auch
freight of that description as nay now be at Tacoma.

And also to allow the same steamers to bring into the port of Victoria such freight
of that description as may have passed Duluth and Port Huron before the 23rd instant;
it is also part of this special permission that freight so allowed to come in by the steam-
ers named nust arrive here on or hefore the "Ist of December, 1889."

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of Ports, &c.

VICTORIA, B.C., 2nd December, 1889.
The Hon. THE MINISTER OF CUsTOMs,

Ottawa.
Si,-I have the honour, in further reference to the report of Saturday night, the

30th ultimo, in reference to my action on your telegraphed order of the same date, to
inclose herewith a copy of my letter of instructions to the collector at Victoria.

I trust that this letter will meet with your approval.
I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,
GEO. H. YOUNG,

Inspector of Ports.

VIcToRIA, B.C., 2nd December, 1889.
The Hon. W. HAMLEY,

Collector of Customs,
Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-I have the honour to inform you that at 6.10 p.m. on the 30th ultimo,
Saturday last, I received a telegram from the Honourable the Minister of Customs, by
which I was empowered to grant special permission for the landing ex-United States
steamers, of such Canadian goods as night be in transit through the States, from
eastern Canada to this port.

In accordance with that authority at 7.45 p.m. the same evening I handed Mr.
Cooper of the O. R. & N. Co., a letter, a copy of which I inclose for your information.

I have the honour to request that you will see that the terms of that letter are put
in force at once, and that the special permission therein granted remains in force until
the date mentioned in that letter.

When I gave Mr. Cooper the letter, as I wished it not to be made public until you
had received official intimation from me of the action taken, 1 had him promise me
that he would not give it to the press until J consented.

To my surprise, I see that the Colonist of yesterday morning contains a very correct
extract from that letter.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of Ports.



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 52.) A. 1899

(Telegram /rom Victoria, B. C.)
4th December, 1889.

To the Hon. M. BOWELL,
Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

First part letter 26th November anticipated. Please see letter of 20th to Parmelee
favourable.

GEO. H. YOUNG.

(Telegram jrom Victoria, B.C.)
9th December, 1889.

To Hon. M. BOWELL,
Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

In answer letter 2 instant Milne and I report not trade pay continued use of
Canadian steamer and suggest you order me by wire extend my letter of permission to
30th June next and inform Prior and Earle this will meet case.

GEO. H. YOUNG.

(Telegram from Victoria B.C.)

19th December, 1889.
To Hon. M. BOWELL,

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa,

When Northern Pacific asks for officer Tacoma suggest Robertson sent from Duluth.
New man sent Duluth in spring; friction there. Please send flag, bible and bound tariff
here mail.

GEO. H. YOUNG.

(Telegram.)
20th December, 1889.

GEO. H. YOUNG, Esq.,
Inspector of Customs,

Victoria, B. C.

Will attend to suggestion re-Duluth when time arrives. Allow trade to go on. Full
instructions sent yesterday. See Northern about man for Tacoma. If bonded goods
are sent by steamer down Columbia from Portland to British Columbia a man will be
wanted at that point.

M. BOWELL.

OTTAWA, 19th December, 1889.
GEORGE H. YOUNG., Esq.,

Inspector of Ports,
Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-Referring to the order recently issued to the collectors at ports in British
Columbia with reference to enforcing a strict compliance with coasting regulations.

I am instructed by the Hon. the Minister of Customs to advise that, in consequence
of strong representations made to him on the subject, and interested parties in which it
is shown that by reason of the want of sufficient or proper British or Canadian vessels
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to do the work, the strict enforcement of the coasting regulations would inflict great
injury to the trade on the Pacifie coast-at the same time asking either a modification
of the orders issued, or that the same be suspended.

Under these circumstances he directs that you instruct the various collectors
throughout the province that the orders so issued may be allowed to rest in abeyance
until further instructions, and that the same privileges allowed in the past be, until
further orders, allowed to continue.

In order, however, to facilitate the proper transit of goods from Eastern Canada
across the United States by railway, under the u8ual transit car manifests, and their
subsequent transhipment at Sound ports to vessels either Canadian or United States,
the Northern Pacific Railway will be required to pay for the services of a customs
officer to be stationed at the transfer point in the same manner as is done at Duluth,
Minnesota Transfer and Chicago.

The arranging and carrying out the details will be left to you.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

W. G. PARMELEE,
Asst. Commissioner.

(Private.) OTTAWA, l9th December, 1889.

MY DEAR YOUNG,-Referring to the official communication sent you to-day in
reference to the suspension of the orders recently issued re coasting on the Pacific
coast.

I am desired by the Minister to privately call your attention to the paragraph
requiring the Northern Pacifie Railway to furnish an officer to be stationed at the
transfer point, as is done at Duluth, &c., and to state that he would like to have you
insist upon this if possible, yet at the same time if you fail to succeed on this point, the
remainder of the instructions are to be carried out, and the orders recently issued with
reference to coasting be allowed to rest in abeyance until further instructions.

Yours truly,
W. G. PARMELEE.

Nana irno "Fret I'ress," Monday, 9th December, 1889.

THAT OBNoXIoUs ORDER.

The greatest blunder, among a very large number, made by the misnamed British
Columbia Board of Trade at Victoria, was demanding the strict enforcement of the
Doniinion coasting laws in British Columbia waters. Not only did the demand return
like a boomerang and strike the Victorians straight between the eyes in regard to their
eastern bonded shipments via the Northern Pacific Railway, but has actually had the
effect of closing down for the present the prosecution of a very promising industry. We
allude to the fact that the American steamer chartered to carry granite f rom the Nelson
Island Granite Quarry has had to be withdrawn from the trade owing to the ill-advised
and hasty action cf the Victoria yclept British Columbia Board of Trade. Under the
coasting laws of the Dominion an American steamer is not allowed to go to Nelson
Island to load because there is no port of entry or outport located there. At the
present time there is no suitable British or Canadian steamer available, and as a
consequence the work at the quarry bas come to a decided standstill. The ill-effects of
the demand for the rigid enforcement of the coasting laws are becoming daily apparent
and show the wisdom of the Dominion Government in allowing such liberal latitude to
British Columbia in regard to the enforcement of the revenue and coasting laws. Like
a fond parent the Federal Government knew what was best for us, better than their
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children as represented by the Victoria Board of Trad--. In a great many instances it
has been found that the Dominion laws could not be literally and strictlv applied to
this province without inflictiig grave injury to commercial indu-tries, and they were
"honoured in the breach " much to the benefit of British Columbians. But the people
of the Capital as represented by their board of trade, thinking they were being injured
in one particular by this concession made a demand for its renoval, and on getting
their demand promptly complied witht can now see the great ir.jury they have done not
alone to themselves, but io the entire province. Finding themselves smarting under
the blow of the boomerang they are stirring heaven and earth througli tie electric wire
to retrieve the injury they have caused, but the parent is inexorable and replies : " My
sons, I have given you exactly what you asked for, and stili you are iot >atisfied. i
am not inclined to recall the gift I gave you at your own request, on your own seeking.
Like dutiful sons you must abide by the const quences of your rash and ill-advised
requests. I have done fully a parent's duty in the premises, and you inust he satistied."

(Telegram.)

VANCOUVER, B. C., l9th December, 1889.
To Hon. Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

At special general meeting of Vancouver Board of Trade held to-day, the following
resolution was uiianimously clrried: That this board respectfully urge on the Honour-
able Minister of Customs the importance of enforcing the order in council respecting
the carrying of Canadian bonded goods in Canadian bottoms as of vital necessity to the
best interests of C mnadian shipping, and involving as it does the commercial progress of
the whole Province of British Columbia ; and this board is able to assure the Honourable
Minister of Customs that there are sufficient Canadian ships available to carry all these
goods.

RICHARD H. ALEXANI)ER,
President.

VICTOIIA, B. C., 23rd December, 1889.
The Hon. the Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIî,-I have the honour to inclose herewith a copy of the letter sent by me on
Saturday last (the 21st ultimo) in obedience to your telegram received by me that norn-
ing, to the agents of the two roads concerned.

The Northern Pacific is concerned in such traffic as may be delivered at Sand Point
or Tacoma, and the Union Pacific in the freight transhipped at Portland.

I trust this letter will meet with your approval.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of Ports.

VICTORIA, B.C., 21st December, 1889.

This is a copy of a letter sent to agents of the Northern Pacific and Union Pacific
Railways at Victoria, B. C.

G. H. Y.

SIR,-I have the honour to inform you that I have just been instructed by the
Honourable the Minister of Customs to allow the transportation of Canadian goods from
ports on the Sound to be resumed by the steamers of United States register lately
engaged in that trade.
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In this connection I would aiso inform you that it will now be neci ssary for your
Company, through the general manager, to appiy to me bv wire or letter (at an early
date) for the appointment of Canadian custoins officers to be stationed in the interest of
your roads at all such points west of Duluth and Minnesota Transfer as you may wish
to break our seal at, or transfer Canadian goods from car to car or from car to vessel.

This letter will also require to contain a guarantee to me of the payment of the
officer's travelling expenses from his home to bis destination, and cf his salary at the
rate of $3.00 per diein.

Should the officer's services be required before 8 a.in., or after 6 p.m., he will he
entitled to charge 50c. an hour for his overtime, in addition to the $3.00 above
Mentioned.

The officers will be paid their salaries from Ottawa and your company will refund
the amount, $3.00 per diem, to department by monthly drafts, made to the order of the
Commissioner of Customs, Ottawa. The "lovertime accout " wiIl be settled for by the
company through the inspector of ports in British Columbia, whose address is New
Vestninster, B. C.

The necessity for this action, is that under our law and regulations, Canadian
goods passing "in transit" through the United States can only be allowed " free entry"
again into Canada on its being established that the goods while "in transit" were pro-
tected by Canadian customs seals, and that t ese seals were not broken except in the
presence of a Canadian customs officer.

These regulations are almost identical with those enforced by the United States
Treasury in its dealings with like cases.

As soon as the officers are asked for I will supply you with copies of their instruc-
tions so that your company may see at a glance what is required, desk room, desks
(locked), stationery, seals and seal press, and books will have to be supplied by your
Company.

The officer so stationed in the interest of your company will be responsible to and
take orders from inspectors of ports of the Canadian customs only.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. Hl. YOUNG,
Inspector of P, rts.

(Telegram.)

MONTREAL, 28th Deceniber, 1889.
W. G. PARMELEE,

Ottawa.

Reported that customs order respecting transportation of Canadian goods in
American bottoms on Pacific coat lias been modified. Will you kindly let me know
to what extenti Shall be glad if you can write me to-day.

C. DRINKWATER.

(Telegram.)

OTTAWA, 28th December, 1889.
C. DRINKWATER,

Montreal.

Instructions have been sent to allow recent orders re coasting by American vessels
onl Pacific coast to remain in abeyance till further orders. Practically " As you were."

W. G. PARMELEE.
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(Telegram.)

-W. G. PARMELEE, MONTREAL, 30th December, 1889.

Ottawa.

Does it mean that American vessels will be permitted to do a coasting trade in the
Fraser, for instance, or does suspension of order only apply to vessels between American
terminal points and Victoria and Vancouver?

C. DRINKWATER.

(Telegran.)

OTTAWA, 30th December, 1889.
C. DRINKWATER,

Montreal.

Does not give American vessels privilege of coasting between local points, but to
carry Canadian shipments from railway terminal points on Sound to ports in British
Columbia.

W. G. PARMELEE.

(Telegram.)

VICTORIA, B.C., 6th January, 1890.
Hon. M. BOWELL,

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

Northern have applied for officer at Tacoma. Received application yesterday
morning. Have wired Robertson to come to Tacoma and meet me there for orders and
bring all Duluth papers with him Have wir d Northern to furnish him with trans-
portation. Hope satisfactory to you.

GEO. H. YOUNG.

(Telegram.)
7th January, 1890.

Jonsx ROBERTS>)N,
Merchants Hotel,

Duluth.

Report for duty to inspector Young, Tacoma. Ask transportation from Northern

W. G. PARMELEE.

VANCOUVER BOARD OF TRADE.

R. H. ALEXANDER, H. T. CAPERLEY, A. H. B. MAccowAN,
President. Vice-Pre8ident. ecretary.

Hon. MACKENZIE BowELL, VANCOUVER, B.C., 17th January, 1890.

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

SIR,-By direction of the president and council of this board, I have to acknowledge
your communication of the 19th ult., and to express their satisfaction that the matter
referred to will be thoroughly inquired into, and now beg to forward their views at
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greater length than could be done in a telegram and trust that they will meet with
your consideration. They are as follows:-

1. That the commercial progress of British Columbia depends to a great extent
upon the increase of her mercantile marine and that the first step towards this is
affording ship and steamboat owners the fullest measure of protection by the rigid
enforcement of all coasting regulations.

2. That there are now in this province a number of steamers not regularly
erployed, any one of which is of sufficient tonnage to transport ail bonded freight
coming to Victoria via Sound ports of United States, viz.: the "Sardonyx" and
" Maude " owned by the Canadian Pacifie Navigation Company, at whose instance the
first representations were made, and the " Rainbuw," as well as the " Amelia " which
has been laid up for some time for want of employment.

3. That the Union Steamship Company of this city is just being established for the
Purpose of purchasing, owning and running steamers in the waters of British Columbia,
&c., a letter received from them is hereunto attached.

4. That the insistence of the United States authorities on this very regulation,
as regards Anierican bonded goods passing through Canada and destined for
another point in the United States, prevents Canadian vessels carrying such
freight, thus compelling the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company to arrange with
American vessels for the transport of such freight. " The " Premier " a vessel practi-
cally owned by the Canadian Pacific Navigation Company of British Columbia,
having been specially built in the United States and kept under that, flag to do that
trade between Vancouver and the Sound ports, and further that were it not for this
regulation on the part of the United States, a Canadian line of steamers might and
should be established between British Columbia and San Francisco, instead of an
American one which now enjoys a subsidy from the Canadian Government of $17,000
per annum.

5. That there are now both a British steamer the "I Danube " and an American
steamer the " Michigai " plying between Portland, Oregon and British Columbia, and
should the coasting regulations with respect to Canadian bonded hoods not be
enforced, such goods will no doubt be carried by the American to the exclusion of the
British steamer now in the service.

6. That by statement in the Victoria press, an arrangement had already been
made with the steamer " Rainbow " for carrying of Canadian bonded goods, in the
event of the order being enforced, thus proving the falsity of the statement that no
Canadian vessels were available.

7. That in view of the foregoing it is the opinion of this board, that Canadian
shipowners are entitled to the fullest possible protection, as they are discriminated
against by the enforcement of a similar regulation on the part of the United States,
and that foreign lines of railways competing for the conveyance of goods from one
point in the Dominion of Canada to another, in justice to our national highway on
which so much Canadian money bas been spent, should by the enforcement of the
order be compelled to make arrangements with Canadian vessels, similar to what has
been done by the Canadian Pacifie Railway for the conveyance of American bonded
goods.

8. That the relaxation of the coasting regulations is calculated to foster the increase
of the number of United States vessels plying between British C:lumbia and the United
States and to discourage Canadian owners from entering into that trade.

9. That the view held by many in Victoria that the enforcement of the regulations
would lead to the discontinuance of the present line of United States steamers plying
between there and Puget Sound, is in our opinion, incorrect, as those steamers now
enjoy a subsidy of $8,000 f rom the Dominion Government for the service, and f rom the
fact that the quantity of goods of this description carried by them is not of sufficient
importance as compared with their other traffic in freight and passengers to cause their
withdrawal, and we would point out that another line is shortly to be established, vessels
for which are already on their way f rom New York.
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10. That we desire to point out that the request on the part of the Victoria board
for the enforcement of the coasting regulatioin, was for the purpose of checking a sys-
tem which was held by them to be inimical to the interests of shipwners there, and
that the New Westminster Board of Trade was averse to the enforcement of these regu-
lations on the ground that such action interfered with the commercial privileges as
enjoyed by that community; when, however, it was found that certain other por-
tions of the regulations were considered inconvenient to Victoria an outcry was immedi-
ately raised, and a demand, not for the abrogation of the order in its entirety, but for
that portion which did not suit Victoria, aud we would respectfully protest against the
interests of the whole province heing made subservient to the selfish views of a single
community.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. H. B. MACGOWAN,
Secretary.

THE UNION STEAMSIIP COMPANY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA,
VANCOUVER, B.C., 13 CORDOVA STREET, 2Oth January, 1890.

W31. CARGILL,
Secretary the Board of Trade,

Vancou ver.

Sin,-I have been instructed by the directors of the above company to respectfully
urge the consideration of your board to the proposed cancellation of that portion of the
Order in Council having reference to the carrying of Canadian bonded goods by Ameri-
can ships and the injustice and hardship that will be caused thereby to local owners.
The statement that sufficient Canadian tonnage cannot be procured is incorrect, as there
are steamers quite ready and conpetent to carry out the work.

Our company here bas just been floated with a capital of S500,000. The proprietary
shows a strong local support, and we are fully prepared to put on superior boats from
timne to time, as trade develops, and have already made arrangements for the purchase
of steamers.

Any attempt therefore to hamper endeavours to build up a Canadian trade should
surely be strongly depre-ated, and it is submitted, that it should be the object of our
legislators in every w ay to encourage and support local industries.

The future of this and similar Canadian companies must be, as you are aware,
largely dependent on the encouragement and support given to them by the Canadian
people and government.

The whole of Canadian shipping interests suffer if they are lef t unprotected by legis-
lation, specially so as the United States of Amuerica, our near neighbours, ;rotect their
shipping by the most stringent regulations. The great reason for there not being at this
time a Canadian line of steamers trading beween Vancouver and the Sound ports and
San Francisco exists in the fact that American shipping is allowed certain privileges by
their local laws that are denied to Canadian shipping interests. It is always difficult in
building up satisfactory shipping business, and doubly so does it become if the govern-
ment regulations are unfavourable to them. With the large sea-board British Columbia
has, and its trade interests being so largely connected with the United States of America
and the trans-continental lines of railway to the Pacific Slope, the shipping of Vancouver
must eventually be one of the most important industries of the place.

The promoters of the Union Steamship Company of British Columbia, Ltd., are
alone desirous of building up the shipping interests here and feel that as long as the
Order in Council is not enforced that they will meet with serious obstacles and difficul-
ties.

The promoters feel that they are indebted to your board for the position you have
taken in this inatter and earnestly hope that your endeavours will be suocessful in obtain-
ing a recognition of Canadian rights and thus prevent the continuance of the palpable
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injustice that is now being inflicted on all western Canadian shipping interests, by
8lowing American ships to carry Canadian bonded goods, while Canadian ships are pre-
vented from carrying American bonded goods,

I remain, sir, your obedient servant,
A. ST. H A MERSLEY,

Chairman of Directors, U.S.S. Co., Ltd.

UNION STEAMSHIP COMPANY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA, (LIMI'ED.

Head Office, Vancouver, B.C.

Capital............ .......................... 500,000

In shares of $5.00.

Payable as follows :--50 cents on application, $1.50 allotment and balance by cails
not exceeding $1.00 per share at intervals of not less than three months.

Bankers:-Bank of British Columbia, Vancouver, B.C.
Solicitors :--Messrs Drake, Jackson & Co., Vancouver, B.C.
European Agent :-E. G. Buchanan, Leith.
Secretary pro ten :-W. Cargill, Accountant, Vancouver.
Provisional Directors :-C. D. Rand, Real Estate Agent; Capt. McPhaiden,

Manager Burrard Inlet Ferry Co; Capt. H. Staiker, Captain S.S. " Senator "; Capt.
Webster; James Orr, M.P.P.; D. Cartmel, Retired Fleet Engineer, R.N.; A. St. G.
Ramersley, Barrister-at-Law, Middle Temple; W. D. Creightou, Merchant; F. C.
Cotton, President San Juan Lime Company; J. ). Townley, Esq.; Page Ponsford,
Merchait; E. Penzer, Coal Merchant.

The above provisional directors were appointed at a generl meeting of the share-
holders held on the 16th of November, 1889.

The permanent board of directors will be elected at general meeting of the share-
holders to be held in tbe city of Vancouver on the 18th day of February, 1890, at a
time and place of which due notice will be given, who will have the management of the
business of the company.

The above company is formed to acquire, carry on, and extend the business known
as the Burrard Inlet Ferry Company, as a going concern, and to own steamships,
lighters ani vessels, for mai], passenger and freight traffic, in the waters of British
Columbia or elsewhere.

The Burrard Inlet Ferry Company is the only steamship company owned in the
city of Vancouver, B.C., which is situated on the shores of Burrard Inlet, being the
terminus of the Canadian Pacific Railway, the home port in Canada of the China and
Japan mail steamers, and shortly probably of the Australian Colonies.

Vancouver, B.C., in 1886, contained less than 1,000 inhabitants; in June, 1889,
the population exceeded 10,000. Large business blocks and public buildings are being
erected ; land is rapidly increasing in value; new industries are being started, and the
progress of the city is beyond doubt.

It is estimated there are at present between two and three thousand people
employed in logging, mining and various pursuits near the shores of the waters of British
Columbia to the north of Vancouver. They are without regular communication other
than occasional steamers that are employed in towing logs from the various logging
camps to the different saw-mills, and there is no regular communication with the north
part of Vancouver Island.

From the geographical position of Vancouver it will be seen people are constantly
arriving from the east and west. The tourist travel, which is now very considerable,
Imust rapidly increase. The want of a steamer adapted for this purpose, and excursions
among the grand scenery of the north is felt during the suminer months. At present



62 Victoria. Bessional kapers (No. 52.) A. 1899

the S.S. " Senator " now running the Moodyville Ferry, is the only steamer owned in
Vancouver employed in any regular passenger route, and carrying the mails.

As soin as suitable steamers are available it is expected the Postal Department
will grant other subsidies for carrying mails to the newly settled districts. Such
steamers will also be in demand for pleasure parties, etc.

There is steady employment for good power steamers in all kinds of towing, most
of the building inaterial being conveyed by water carriage. The entire coal supply for
Vancouver is towed in lighters from Nanaimo, a distance of 35 miles. Lime Stone is
towed from Texada Island, a distance of 60 miles, to the San Juan Lime Kiln on
Burrard Inlet. Logging camps are distributed all along the coast of the Straits of
Georgia for a distance of 150 miles. Towing booms of logs from these camps to the
various saw-mills, also ships in and out to load lumber, is a highly remunerative business.

The coast fishing industries are cr-ating considerable interest, and as they are
developed should prove a source of revenue to the company in the fish carrying trade.
Passengers, f reight and supplies to and f rom the northern salmon canneries will be within
the scope of the operations of the company, and regular communication with Vancouver
Island.

British Columbia supports a large mining population ; there are always numerous
prospectors working on the coast, which will give considerable employment to the
steamers of this company.

The increase of shipping to the port of Vancouver is best illustrated by the report
of the collector of customs for the year ending the 3Oth June, 1889

FOREIGN-GOING VESSELS.

1888. 1889.
Total vessels cleared. ..................... 271 297

CoAsTING.

1888. 1889.
Steamers .. .. .. ....................... 466 751
Sailing vessels..................... .......... 25 63

According to the international law of shipping the coastal trade can only be
carried on bv British or Canadian vessels.

The Burrard Inlet Ferry Company's sole reason for disposal is their having spent
the entire accumulated profits in increasing the plant and they find it still inadequate to
meet the demand ; the population of Vancouver having increased tenfold since they
started business.

The company's property at present consists of three steamers known as the S.S.
"Skidegate," S.S. " Leonora," S.S. "Senator," together with seven cargo lighters, and
water lighter fitted with steam pumps, also all the requisite gear and plant used in
connection therewith, all of which with occasional chartered vessels, are now actively
employed.

The price fixed by the vendors for the goodwill, business, steamers, lighters, gear
and plant complete as a going concern, and the profits earned by the Burrard Inlet Co.,
since lt July, 1890, together with the existing contracts, which are guaranteed remun-
erative, also three years' postal mail contract between Vancouver and Moodyville is
offered by the vendors to the company for the sum of $22,500, payable as follows:-
$20,000 in three instalments, one-third cash, one-third in three months and one-third in
six months from date of delivery, on incorporation of the company, and $2,500 in fully
paid up shares. These shares will not rank for dividend until a dividend of 20 per
cent has been paid in any one year, on the remaining capital thereafter the shares will
rank equally.

After providing for the payment of the purchase money the balance of capital will
be devoted to increase the number of steamers suitable for the trade to meet the present
requirements and for further developing the business.
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The whole plant of the company bas been valued by Capt. H. A. Mellon, as
annexed :-
REPORT on Valuation of Plant, by Captain H. A. Mellon, Marine Surveyor to record

of American and foreign shipping, San Francisco and New York Board of Under-
writers.
I hereby certify that I have surveyed and estimated the value of floating plant

known as the "Burrard Inlet Ferry Company," Vancouver, B.C.

S.S. "Skidegate ".... ..... $ 5,000 Insured 2,000
S.S. "Leonora"....................4,0 Insured 2,000
S.S. "Senator ".......... ......... 4,000

Lighter (scow) No. 1..... .......... 1,000
c " " 2 ........ ...... 1,000

"ci 3................ 900
4 ........ ...... 850
5................ 700
6.......... ..... . 800
'ï ... ,............ 800

Water lighter (scow) with steam pump. 800
Two spare boilers, 2 spare propellors,

staging, gghgways, etc., etc., ..... 150

$20,000

I find the above mentioned are in good repair and working order.

H. A. MELLON,
Marine Surveyor.

Vancouver, B. C., 23rd August, 1889.

The Honourable M. BoWELL, M.P., VICTORIA, B.C., 30th January, 1890.

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour, in answer to your several letters, on the subject of the
availability and fitness of the Canadian steamers, as registered in the offices in this pro-
vince, for carrying the trade, on Puget Sound and the San Juan de Fuca Straits, of
freight received at the terminal port of the Northern Pacific Railway at the southern
end of the Sound; to report as follows :-

1st. The delay in the forwarding of this report has been caused by the illness of
t e collector and registrar of shipping at New Westminster, from whoni I have been
waiting for reports from his books of registration, in reference to the ateamers available
in his part of the province.
E2I have also been delayed by a promised answer in writing, that was promised to

the collector at Vancouver by one of the United States customs and consular officers,
in reference to their law on the points raised, and as to whether the law might be
rnodified by the action of an individual collector.

2nd. I have now received from New Westminster the report that there are no
steamers available on the books of that registration office for this trade.

3rd. The answer from the United States customs bas not been as yet received, I
Presume because of the absence of the collector of the South Sound collection district
in Washington.

On bis return I will call on him and ascertain exactly the position of their law and
regulations on the case in point.

4th. The registration district of Victoria is then the only place left in which to
look for such steamers as may be available and suitable for this work ; this I have done,
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and along with Collector Milne I have consulted the Canadian Pacific Navigation Com-
pany and Captain J. D. Warren the manager of the steamer " Boscowitz."

5th. From neither of these parties could I obtain an assurance that it was their
desire or intention to put on a steamer should the trade of carrying Canadian f ree goods
be reserved for them, as being of Canadian registry. The Canadian Pacific Navigation
Company were very careful in their answers to my questions, and no information as to
their policy, desires or intentions was obtainable.

Captain J. D. Warren was also guarded in his answers and had at present no
steamer available for this particular trade.

6th. The steamer " Boscowitz" represented by Captain J. D. Warren is a screw
steamer used for freight and passenger trade on the Victoria, Skeena and Naas route;
in the summer time she leaves here about twice a month and in the winter she, as a rule,
lays up until March. She is not fast, being of only 12 horse-power nominal; she is of
239 tons registered tonnage.

The steamers of the Canadian Pacific Navigation Company that are at all suitable
are as follows

1st. The " Yosemite," 1,054 tons, :53 horse-power nominal. She is not considered
suitable for the exposed route that has to be taken by the steamers going to Tacoma or
Port Townsend.

2nd. The " Princess Louise," 544 tons, 75 horse-power. She is a good sea boat and
in that way suitable. She is used on the New Westminster route.

3rd. The " Maude," 93 tons, 13 horse-power nominal. Not suitable for the
route or the trade, either in power or capacity.

4th. The "Sardonyx," 311 tons, 86 horse-power nominal. She is a good sea boat
and has good fair freight capacity and is now used on the Victoria, East Coast, Skeena
and Fort Simpson route.

5th. The " Islander," 478 tons, 280 horse-power nominal. She is a very fine
steamer with very good passenger and freight capacity and is employed on the route
between Vi. toria and V.ancouver.

The fact is th n ustablished that there is steamer capacity available for the work of
transporting this Canadian free freiglt froin the terminal station of the railway to
Victoria, by a slight re-arrangement of routes and dates of sailing.

And should it he desirable to leave these as they are at present, the addition of
another steamar to the fleet would meet all the requirements of this freight traffic.

In saying this I take it for granted that the foreign steamers would still remain on
the route, and carry their share (at least) of all foreign goods imported and of the pas-
sengers carried to and fro.

The question that now arises is as to the amount of this freight that offers, the
rates at which it is carried, and if the amount and the rate paid would pay a steamer to
take up the trade as a matter of business.

To this query 1 feel that I must report that the trade in the transportation of this
honded freight alone, would not pay at present prices for the employment of a suitable
steamer of Canadian registration.

I say this in view of the fact that the very large amount of local freight and pas-
sengers, that are carried by the foreign steamers between Tacoma and Seattle and Port
Townsend, and which assists them to make low rates for this particular freight that is
under consideration ; this local business or coasting trade as between United States
interior cities would not be available for steamersof Canadian register and their receipt
would all depend on the share of through business that they may be able to obtain from
their competitors, sailing under United States registry, and the revenue to be derived
from the freight collected on the goods from Eastern Canada.

For these reasons I am glad that you saw fit to allow the carrying of this particu-
lar freight for a furth-r priod by the steamers of United States registry.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

GEO. H. YOUNG,
Inspector of Ports, &c., &c.
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CANADIAN PACIFIC NAVIGATION COMPANY, LTD.,
MANAGER'S OFFICE, VICTORIA, B.C., 16th November, 1889.

J. JoHNsoN, Esq.,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I am in receipt of your f vour of the 4th instant, inclosing a copy of the
report of the collector of customs at Victoria to the department in answer to my com-
plaint made against the " Lakme."

With further reference to this matter, I inclose a copy of ny letter to Mr. Hamley
(his neglect to reply to same being the subject matter of my < mplaint to the depart-
ment) and also a cutting from the Victoria Times of 5th Oc( )ber last, containing my
letter published in that paper in its issue of that date.

Mr. Hamley's statement in reference to his sending me M . Turner's letter, as well
as his statement in the postscript of his letter to the departme, it "No passengers were
landed by the " Lakme " on her way out-the pilot landed i% .d the stevedore-sent
ashore in a boat two miles from Victoria "-are not in accorduice with the facts. I
certainly saw Mr. Turner's letter in an informal way, and had every reason to believe
that it reached me in a surreptitious manner without Mr. Hamley's knowledge. Under
any circumstances, Mr. Turner's letter to Mr. Hamley was no reply to my complaint,
and if Mr. Hamley sent it to me, he should have done so in an official and proper
manner, and not in the underhand way in which it was done.

The statement contained in Mr. Turner's letter "that no Canadian vessels were
available at the time " can only be called under the circumstances an unmitigated
falsehood, and there is only one conclusion to be arrived at-that Mr. Hamley made a
bungling attempt to place me in a false position in order to shield his friend Mr.
Turner, and for a gentleman of Mr. Hamley's position as a public official such conduct
is to say the least very unbecoming, and is deserving of the strictest criticism.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN IRVING,
Manager.

HoN. MR.TURNER AND HOME INDUSTRY.

To the Editor of the Times :

SIR,-The Hon. Mr. Turner's actions as a private individual should be consistent
with the position he occupies as a public servant, or, as the Times very pertinently
stated, he sbhould resign.

The Hon. Mr. Turner was elected by the citizens to guard and protect their
interests and to use the honourable position intrusted to him te advance the general
welfare of the country to the best of his ability, for which he receives a tidy sum, paid
indirectly by the public to remunerate him for the loss of time and attention to the
important duties of his office.

How well he earns it and how consistently he endeavours to repay the confidence
reposed in him I leave the public to judge. If it is by supporting and diverting all the
trade from this country to American shipping he certainly is accomplishing his object
with marked success.

Messrs. T. B. & Co's. statement that the arrangement they made for their salmon
freight, is a very small hole for the Hon. Mr. Turner to crawl out of, in fact too small
for him to squeeze through. It is quite possible that the "Lakme " was the only
American vessel they could get for this purpose, but I challenge them to prove that
they made the slightest effort or inquiry as to whether the service could have been
performed by a Canadian vessel. I am fully aware that at least one company was in a
position to have delivered sixteen thousand or more cases of salmon from Skeena River
to San Frp.ncisco by the 7th of October.
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It would be interesting to know what effort, if any, the Hon. Mr. Turner made
to secure the' services of a local steamer, thereby retaining their earnings in the
province.

The " Lakme " laid at anchor within a mile of the outer wharf for two hours or more
and landed Mr. Stapelton and Wm. Beynow, who came direct from Skeena River on
ber, also the purser, who after attending to his affairs in Victoria, returned on board,
when the vessel proceeded on ber voyage, without having reported at the customs-house
-an infraction of the coasting laws.

Messrs. T. B. & Co. state the " Lakine" case as follows :-" She enters at Fort Simpson
from a foreign port, loads at the canneries and clears at Fort Simpson again for a foreign
port.' In an innocent sort of way, Messrs. T. B. & Co. would have it understood that
the " Lakme " went to Fort Simpson, entered, and then under the eye of the law and with
proper surveillance proceeded to the different canneries, loaded, returned to Fort
Simpson and cleared for a foreign port.

The facts are as follows :-The " Lak me " called at Fort Simpson, and the fact of ber
calling was noted on lier American clearance by an official of the Hudson's Bay Co.
She then proceeded to the various canneries with passengers, and having loaded came
on direct to Victoria without returning to Fort Simpson-further infractions of the
law and most unfair as affecting the interests of Canadian coasters, so much so that it
will doubtless receive prompt action at the hands of the customs authorities.

JOHN IRVING.

CANADIAN PACIFIc NAVIGATION COMPANY, LTD.,
MANAGER'S OFFICE, VICTORIA, B.C., 1st October, 1889.

Hon. W. HAMLEY,
Collector of Customs,

Victoria, B.C.

Si,-I beg to call your attention to a serious infraction of the customs laws and
regulations of Canada by the American steamer " Lakme," in having loaded a cargo of
salmon at Skeena River, and in having carried passengers from that point to Victoria,
and I understand without even reporting herself to the customs authorities at Victoria.
Besides this being a serious violation of the Dominion customs laws, it is interfering
with the coasting trade of Canadian vessels, and if it is not taken notice of, will simply
amount to a precedent for future operations by American steamers.

Yours truly,

JOHN IRVING,
Manager.

OTTAwA, 4th November, 1889.
Hon. W. HAMLEY,

Collector of Customs,
Victoria.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 24th ulto.,
reporting on the complaint of Mr. Irving; in reference thereto, I am instructed by the
Hon. the Minister of Customs to infoi m you that you had no authority to permit
American vessels to coast in British Columbia, and that in future it must not be
permitted.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. JOHNSON,
Commissioner.
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CUSTOMS HOuSE,
VICTORIA, 12th November, 1889.

J. JOUNSON, Esq.,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-In your letter of the 4th instant you say, referring to the case of the
"Lakme ": " I am instructed by the Hon. the Minister of Customs to inform you that
you had not authority to permit American vessels to coast in British Columbia." In
may letter of the 24th ultimo I stated that the " Lakme " bad never entered at this port
-- had never been in our harbour, and that I bad never any control over the vessel or
her movements.

I can only say in addition to this, that if permission was given her to coast, it was
not given by me.

I am, sir, your obedient servant,
W. HAMLEY.

CUSTOMS HoUSE,
VICTORIA, 2 tth October, 1889.

MR. JoHNSoN,-I received a letter from Captain Irving complaining that Mr.
Turner had employed an Anerican vessel "Lakme" to bring down salmon from his
cannery on the coast of British Columbia. I sent immediately for Mr. Turner who
came to the customs bouse and explained that he was greatly pressed for time under
his contract to deliver his salmon and that lie had chartered the " Lakme," no Canadian
vessel being available at the time. I asked him to put this in writing, which he did,
and I sent his letter for Captain Irving to read, thinking that the best reply I could
make to him. I thought the matter as far as I was concerned had ended there, as I
had nothing further from Captain Irving, and he knew perfectly well that the " Lakme"
had never entered at Victoria-she had never been in our harbour, and I had no con-
trol over this vessel or her inovements. Captain Irving is out of town or I would see
him and satisfy hi without any trouble, I am sure.

W. HAMLEY.

No packages were landed off the " Lakme " on her way out. The pilot landed and
the stevedore-sent ashore in a boat two miles f rom Victoria.

W. HAMLEY.

CANADIAN PAcIFIC NAVIGATION COMPANY, LTD.,
MANAGER'S OFFICE,

VICTORIA, B.C., 7th October, 1889.
The Hon. the Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

Sii,-Referring to my favour of the 1st instant, inclosing a copy of my complaint
to the collector of customs at Victoria, B.C., after waiting patiently for a reply from
him, it now seems apparent that my written complaint is to be ignored.

I consider that as the representative of the Canadian Pacific Navigation Company,
who own four-fifths of the Canadian coasting steamers of this coast, that I am at least
entitled to an acknowledgment of my complaint, and I consider it the duty of the
collector to investigate the matter, and allow me the opportunity of giving the evidence
I have to produce in substantiation of my complaint.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN IRVING,
Manager.
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VICTORIA, B.C., 10th July, 1889.
Hon. MACKENZIE BOwELL,

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to inclose herewith a letter received by me from Captain
John Irving, the manager of the Canadian Pacific Navigation Company, in reference to
an alleged infringement of the customs laws of Canada by the American S.8. "Lakme."

If Captain Irving's complaint is in keeping with the facts of the case, and I firmly
believe it is, it seems to me that this is a case in which you will at once interfere and
put a stop to any recurrence of the same. Hoping you will take this matter under
your immediate consideration.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

EDWARD G. PRIOR.

(Telegram.)

VICTORIA, B. C., 20th December, 1894.
To Hon. N. CLARKE WALLACE.

Two American vessels coal laden from Nanaimo to San Francisco put back here
leaking, forced to discharge. Does it violate coasting regulations if coal sold here for
consumption I A. R. MILNE,

Collector.

(Telegram.)

OTTAWA, 21st December, 1894.
To A. R. MILNE,

Collector of Customs,
Victoria, B. C.

It is violation of coasting laws and if coal is not reloaded and taken to destination
and discharge unavoidable, I would consider circumstances mitigating and not enforce
full penalty.

N. CLARKE WALLACE.

CUSTOMS, CANADA.
VICTORIA, B. C., 25th January, 1895.

Hon. N. CLARKE WALLACE,
Controller of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-On the 20th ultimo I had the honour to forward you a telegram to the
following effect, viz:-

" Two American vessels coal laden from Nanaimo to San Francisco put back here
leaking, forced to discharge. Does it violate coasting regulations if coal sold here for
consumption 1"
And in reply I received the following, viz.

" It is violation of coasting laws and if coal is not reloaded and taken to destination
and discharge unavoidable, I would consider circumstances mitigating and not enforce
full penalty."

In compliance with your direction, I imposed a penalty of $400 on the American
barque " Detroit " for an infraction of the coasting regulations.
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I have to-day in the usual manner sent to the acting commissioner of customs,
seizure report, port number 187, therein reciting the particulars of the detention and
payment of the penalty, which in due course will be placed before you.

The circumstances were that the American barque " Detroit " loaded a cargo of
coal, 1,985 tons, at the port of Nanaimo, B.C., destined for San Francisco, proceeding
from the first named port direct to sea, and when outside of Cape Flattery or entrance
to Straits of Fuca, was overtaken by severe gales, sprung a leak, re-entered the straits
coming to this port leaking badly.

Permission was asked and granted by me, to allow the vessel to discharge for the
purpose of ascertaining the damage, the result being that the barque was found to be
unfit to reload her cargo of coal safely, and the master and agents here decided to sell
the cargo, and were informed by so doing, that such would be a violation of the coast-
ing laws, and subject the master or owner to a penalty of $400.

The penalty has been paid by Messrs. R. P. Rithet & Co., Ltd., of this city, agents
of the owner, and deposited to the credit of the Receiver General.

I would beg to say that the agents wish me to express their desire that you would
be pleased to give this case your most favourable and early consideration under the cir-
cumstances.

The other vessel named the " Portland" discharged sufficient cargo to effect repairs,
going into the dry dock here, afterwards reloading cargo, and proceeded to San Fran.
cisco, her destination.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. R. MILNE,
Collector.

A. R. MILNE, Esq., OTTAwA, 13th February, 1895.

Collector of Customs,
Victoria, B.C.

MY DEAR SIR,-I carefully observe what you say in your letter of the 25th ulto. re
seizure No. 187 of your port-the United States barque "Detroit," from Messrs. R. P.
Rithet & Co., Ltd.

In order to arrive at a settlement of this seizure I shall require to know what the
usual rate of freight, per boat, is between Nanaimo and Victoria. Aiso leaving aside
all question of damage, and considering only the question of transfer of the cargo of
coal, what amount of profit was derived as a result of the carriage of such coal simply
from Nanaimo to Victoria. How much does it sell for at Victoria, as compared with
the price at Nanaimo, and the average per ton ?

I am faithfully yours,

N. CLARKE WALLACE.

CUSTOMS, CANADA,

THos. JI. WATTERs, Esq., VICTORIA, B.C., 25th January, 1895.

Acting Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

Si,-I have the honour to forward herewith seizure report port No. 187, being
for the detention for the barque " Detroit," an American vessel of 1,438 tons register
which had loaded a cargo of coal 1,985 tons, at the port of Nanaimo, B.C., destined for
San Francisco, U.S.A., and which sprung a leak to the south and westward of Cape
Flattery on the Pacific ocean.
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The vessel re-entered the straits of Fuca, and this being the nearest port as well as
having a dry dock and other conveniences for repairs, returned leaking badly, and
asked permission to discharge for the purpose of ascertaining the amount of damage,
and to make such necessary repairs as would enable her to complete the voyage.

Permission was granted by me under those circumstances to discharge only, and it
was afterwards found that the vessel was unfit to reload her cargo, and the master and
agents concluded to sell the cargo.

I informed the master and agents that it was contrary to the coasting regulations
of this Dominion, and to satisfy them, I wired the Honourable the Controller, to which
he replied on the 21st December last, " that such was a violation of the coasting laws."

The penalty of $400 was imposed by me under Order in Council, chapter 21, section
3, "Foreign trading vessels."

Under the circunistances I would recommend this case for the most favourable
consideration of the Honourable the Controller of Customs.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. R. MILNE,
Collector.

VICTORIA, B.C., 19th February, 1895.
N. CLARKE WALLACE, Esq.,

Commissioner of Castorms,
Ottawa.

SIR,--We acknowledge receipt of a letter from your department dated the Sth
instant, in reference to a fine iinposed upon the American barque " Detroit," which vessel
put into this port in distress and landed a cargo of coal which had been shipped at
Nanaimo for San Francisco but which on account of the condition of the vessel had to be
discharged at this port, and was sold by the underwriters. The circumstances, we
understand, have been fully set out by the collector of customs at this port, and we
have but little to add to what he bas no doubt informed you of, beyond calling your
attention to the special circumstances, and asking you in the interests of this port to
make the fine merely a nominal one.

It is, as you are no doubt aware, something which is liable to occur at any time,
and if it becomes lnown that these vessels, when returning from sea in a disabled or
dainaged condition with cargo from a British Colunbia port, are to be subjected to a
heavy fine, they will in-stead of using this port, proceed to one of the other ports in
Washington, and thus deprive the tradesmen and others here of the advantages which
the large expenditure of moiiey for discharging the cargo and repairing the vessel
entails.

We have besides facilities here for repairing vessels, and the Dominion Government
dock would be deprived of the opportunity of earniig a revenue front such vessels,
which we think you will admit adds additional grounds for your being lenient in matters
of this kind, and we hope you will see fit to take the view of the collector of customs
here, and reduce the fine to a merely nominal amount to cover the law, without making
it such as would be liable to operate against the interests of this port, and of the
commerce of this country.

Asking your kind consideration in the circumstances stated.

We have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servants,

R. P. RITHET & CO., (LTD.,)
R. P. RITIIET, President.

A. 1899
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CUSTOMS, CANADA,
VICTORIA, B.C., 7th March, 1895.

Hon. N. CLARKE WALLACE,
Controller of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 13th
ultiino, re seizure No. 187 of this port-with reference to the settlement of the penalty
imposed upon the United States barque " Detroit," for whom Messrs. R. P.
Rithet & Co., Ltd., are the agents, and who paid the penalty for the infraction of the
coasting regulations.

I beg to say that I have carefully observed what you have stated in your letter,
and have made due and diligent inquiry as to the particulars you require to enable you
to arrive at a settlenent of this matter.

From the best information I can obtain the present freight rate for coal by the
cargo, fron Nanaimo to Victoria, is 75 cents per ton. The amount of profit on the
freight derived as a result of the carriage of such coal, simply from Nanaimo to Victoria,
would have been that amount had the coal been sold at the usual advertised rate of $7
per ton. This cargo of coal, however, has been sold for $6 per ton, being $1 less than
the " combine's " price.

I have here to state that during the last six months the two Nanaimo collieries
that formerly had several agents here, retailing their coal for consumption at this port
withdrew the sale of coal to all agents, and each of these collieries established one
agency of their own, with the mutual understanding that the coal should be sold at $7
per ton, for consumption in this city and for cash.

I have ascertained by direct information that the price of Wellington coal by
cargo is $3.50 per ton, and the price for the Vancouver Coal Company's coal for domestic
use to the agent here is $4 per ton on board at Nanaimo.

This cargo of 1,985 tons, ex " Detroit," was Wellington coal, and I would summarize
the cost as follows:-

The price at Nanaimo (Wellington) by cargo, per ton. ..... .$3 50
Freight from Nanaimo to Victoria, per ton ................ 0 75
Whartage at Victoria, per ton.......................... 0 25
Sacking, sorting and delivering, per ton .................. 1 00
Expense of salesman and clerk to date, per ton, say ........ 0 15

$5 65

This coal was landed here on the 20th of December last, and there is at present on
the wharf about one-fourth of the quantity remaining unsold, and part of which may
be carried over until next fall.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. R. MILNE,
Collector.

CUSTOMS, CANADA,
21st June, 1895.

F. E. KILVERTI Esq.,
Acting Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to forward herewith a communication received from
Messrs. R. P. Rithet & Co., merchants, etc., of this city, with reference to the penalty
of $400 imposed on the American barque " Detroit" on the 24th of January last, and
which was paid by them as agents of the vessel.
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I beg to say that the circumstances of the case were all presented in seizure report
No. 187 of this port.

It would appear by the inclosed letter to me, that the agents of this vessel are
very desirous that the Honourable the Controller would render an early decision.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. R. MILNE,
Collector.

VICTORIA, B.C., 21st June, 1895.
A. R. MILNE, Esq., C.M.G.,

Collector of Customs,
Victoria.

SIR,-On the 8th February last the commissioner of customs notified us that you
had reported to him the seizure of the " Detroit " on 24th January for an infraction of
the customs law. He further notifled us that any evidence we might present within
thirty days in rebuttal of the charge preferred would be duly considered, and submitted
to the Controller for his consideration.

The facts of the case having been already presented to the department through
you, we did not consider it necessary to go into the question again, but we did think it
advisable, in the interest of maritime commerce on this coast, to write the commis-
sioner, on the 19th February, with a view to reducing the penalty imposed to a merely
nominal amount.

We have not yet been favoured with a reply of any kind to our letter, a copy of
which is inclosed for your information. We therefore beg that you will take the matter
up with your department, and use your influence to have it settled as soon as possible.

As pointed out in our letter to the commissioner, the general question is of consi-
derable importance to this and other ports in the province, which must be our excuse
for inviting your assistance.

We have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servants,

R. P. RITHET & 00. (LTD.),
R. P. RITHET, President.

VICTORIA, B.C., 6th August, 1895.
The Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

SI,-We have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 29th
ulto., in reference to the seizure of the United States barque " Detroit " on the 24th
January last. We are much obliged for your information conveyed of a remission of
part of the amount originally deposited, and

We have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servants,

R. P. RITHET & CO. (LTD.),
R. P. RITHET, President.

A. 1899
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Copy of Seizure Decision-Re. File No. 14057.
" In this case the United States barque " Detroit " was seized for having taken on

board a quantity of coal at Nanaino, destined for San Francisco, and landed the same at
Victoria, B.C., in violation of the coasting regulations.

" No sufficient evidence having been submitted by or on behalf of the parties in
rebuttal of the charge, but considering the special circumstances of the case,-the
undersigned would recommend that the seizure be released on payment of a nominal
fine of $100, such sum to be retained from the amount deposited as forfeited to the
Crown and the balance of the deposit remitted.

S. W. McMICHAEL,
Acting Commissioner.

15th July, 1895.
Decision approved by Controller of Customs, 15th July, 1895.

(Clipping fron the Ottawa Journal, 15th December, 1897.)

PROTEST AGAINST CLOSING DYEA AS A SUB-PORT OF ENTRY FOR
KLONDIKE SUPPLIES.

BRITIsH COLUMBIA BOARD OF TRADE ASK THE DoMINION GOVERNMENT TO MAKE
IREPRESENTATIONS AT WASIIINGTON.

VICTORIA, B.C., 15th December, 1897.

The following telegran was sent to the Dominion Government by the British
Columbia Board of Trade last night:

"At a special meeting of the British Columbia Board of Trade the following reso-
lution was carried unanimously

" Whereas the Chamber of Commerce of San Francisco, Portland, Tacoma and
Seattle have combined to force their government to close Dyea as a sub-port of entry,
resolved that the Dominion Government be asked to inake representations at Washing-
ton protesting against such closing of Dyea and in the event of the negotiations proving
unsuccessful this Board of Trade urges upon the Dominion Government to close the
custom-house at Tagish Lake and prevent importation goods and outfits via Lynn canal
routes.

" In view of the great importance of this question the favour of the earliest infor-
mation of any decision is requested."

PETITIONS PREsENTED.

WASHINGTON, D.C., 15th December.

Senator Perkins of California and Senator Wilson of Washington have had a con-
sultation with Secretary Gage, in which they recommend that the sub-port of entry of
Dyea be abolished. They presented numerous papers and petitions to this effect which
represented that Dyea as a sub-port now furnishes advantages to persons from British
Columbia which are not given to Unitedý States citizens going through the passes and to
the Klondike. British subjects now ship goods to Dyea in bond and they are passed on
to the North-west Territory unhampered by customs of any kind. United States
citizens, the petitions say, meet with annoyances as soon as they reach the lakes in
British North-west Territory. Secretary Gage said he would investigate the whole
matter and would also ask the commerce committee of the Senate to make a thorough
inquiry.
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CANADIAN PACIFIc NAVIGATION COMPANY, (LTD.,)
MANAGER'S OFFICE,

VICTORIA, B.C., 15th December, 1897.
Hon. WM. PATERSON,

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-I sent you yesterday a copy of the Seattle Po8t Intelligencer and also a.
Victoria paper containing an editorial on the question of closing Dyea as a sub-port of
entry.

I would like to call your attention to the very great injustice such a proceeding
would be to Canadian ship-owners, and to ask if the Dominion Government intend to
take any steps to protect the interests of ship-owners, both in this matter and in the
matter of American steamers plying in the Canadian portions of the Yukon River.

Canadian boats have to observe the customs regulations very closely, while in
many cases American vessels are allowed to break our Canadian laws without even a
protest.

Canadian ship-owners are placed in a very bad position by such a state of affairs,
and as one who is heavily interested in shipping and transportation, I would like to
know what stand the government is going to take.

I am, sir, yours obediently,

JNO. IRVING,
Manager.

CusTOms DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 26th December, 1897.

JOHIN IRVING, Esq.,
Manager, Canadian Pacific Navigation Co., Ltd.,

Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 15th instant.
to the Honourable the Minister of Customs, respecting the closing of Dyea as a sub-port
of entry, and the navigation of the Yukon.

The minister will give your representations bis best attention, with the view of
carrying out the law.

The department is not at present aware of any violations of the coasting laws by
American vessels on the Yukon.

No intimation bas been received from official sources as to the closing of Dyea as a
sub-port of entry, and such action is not anticipated, so far as I know.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

CUSTOMS, CANADA,
VICTORIA, B.C., 10th November, 1897.

JORIN MCDOUGALD, Esq.,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to forward herewith a letter received from Captain
John Irving, manager of the Canadian Pacific Navigation Company, Ltd in reference
to the carrying of Canadian goods and passengers from one Canadian Port to another,
except in British ships.
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I beg to state that the inquiry made by Captain Irving is whether goods shipped
at Montreal to Vancouver, thence to St. Michaels, Alaska, thence to Fort Cudahy, or
other British port in the North-west Territory and on voyage passing outside the limits
of Canada, can legally be carried by an American steamer contrary to the provisions of
chapter 83, section 2 of the Revised Statutes of Canada.

American vessels proceeding from San Francisco to American ports on Puget
Sound, U.S.A., passing outside the limits of the United States en voyage are considered
by the United States law to be voyaging coastwise; the Canadian tug boats have been
fined on more than one occasion for towing vessels which they have taken hold of from
twenty to thirty miles outside on the Pacific Ocean to American ports on Puget Sound.

The American laws will not permit any foreign ship to carry goods from one
American port to another, even if a portion of the voyage is outside of the United
States.

It has been so for many years that American goods landed at this port f rom a part
in the United States can only go forward to their destination on an American bottom.

The company of whi3h Captain Irving is manager have several vessels in the
coast trade in British Columbia, and his company is now building a stern-wheel steamer
at St. Michaels to be ready for the trade next season on the Yukon, and wishes to be
instructed if the customs will insist that no goods will be carried by water from one
port in Canada to another except in British ships, even if part of the voyage is outside
of the limits of Canada and the goods are transferred at a foreign port.

Chapter 83, section 2, R.S.C., is not quite clear, and apparently only refers to
goods and passengers in Canada being carried from one port tp another, nor does
chapter 21, section 3 of the coasting regulations seem any clearer.

I would therefore submit Captain Irving's letter for the consideration of the Hon-
ourable the Minister.

I have the honour to be, sir
Your obedient servant,

A. R. MILNE,
Collector.

CANADIAN PACIFIC NAVIGATIoN COMPANY, LTD.,
MANAGER'S OFFICE,

VICTRIA, B.C., 6th November, 1897.
A. R. MILNE, Esq.,

Collector of Customs,
City.

DEAR SIR,-Will you kindly inform me under what regulations, statute or Order
in Council I can find the following information.

There is a law which prohibits an American vessel from cai rying Canadian mer-
chandise from an American port to a Canadian port whilst in transit from one Canadian
port to another Canadian port by rail through the United States in bond.

A similar law prevails in the United States as initanced in the case of the
Canadian Pacific Railway. They take American merchandise from New York and other
eastern points for California but cannot ship it from their western terminus to San
Francisco except in United States vessels.

Yours truly,

JOHN IRVING,
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OTTAWA, 19th November, 1897.
A. R. MILNE, Esq., C.M.G.,

Collector of Custom,
Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the l0th
instant, with inclosed communication from Captain John Irving of the Canadian Pacifie
Navigation Company (Limited).

In reply I beg to state that I am not aware of any law which prohibits an Ameri-
can vessel from carrying Canadian merchandise from an American port to a Canadian
port whilst in transit from one Canadian port to another Canadian port by rail through
the United States in bond.

I do not find any regulations at all (by Order in Council) for carrying goods in bond by
water from the United States.

I understand it is the practice to carry goods corded and sealed to some points in
British Columbia in this way, and without an Order in Council to the contrary, the
regulations respecting foreign trading vessels would seem to apply. Section 1 of these
regulations, reads as follows:-

"Foreign vessels may transport cargo and passengers from a foreign port and land
the same at two or more Canadian ports, clearing from each in succession until all of
said cargo and passengers are landed."

The custons officer attending to the " cording and sealing " in the case above
mentioned, is usually paid by the transportation company and I suppose he would be
directed by the department not to cord and seal any goods except for carriage on
"British or Canadian " bottoms, and in this way, goods brought into Canada without
being so corded and sealed would become liable to duty.

Such directions, however, if given, I think, should be authorized by the Governor in
Council.

The following inquiry is made in your letter, -" I beg to say that the inquiry
made by Captain Irving is whether goods shipped at Montreal Io Vancouver, thence to
St. Michaels, Alaska, thence to Forth Cudahy, or other British port in the North-west
Territory, and en voyage passing outside the limits of Canada, can legally be carried by
an American steamer contrary to the provisions of chapter 83, section 2 of the Revised
Statutes of Canada. "

Chapter 83 of the Revised Statutes does not prohibit an American vessel from
carrying goods f rom a port in the United States to a port in Canada.

I understand that goods cannot be carried from Vancouver to Fort Cudahy in the
same vessel-transhipment at St. Michaels being necessary.

Section 2 of the regulations respecting foreign trading vessels, provides as follows
"Foreign vessels may take cargo and passengers f rom two or more Canadian ports

and transport the same to a foreign port, clearing from each in succession, but taking
final clearance for such foreign port at the last Canadian port which they enter on such
voyage. "

Under this regulation, an American vessel would be entitled to carry goods from
Vancouver to St. Michaels and another Ainerican vessel, I think, might carry the same
goods from St. Michaels to Fort Cudahy.

A question would, however, arise as to the collection of customs duties on such
goods, on arrival at Fort Cudaby.

The class of vessels (if any) to which this privilege might be extended and the con-
ditions of transit should, in my opinion, be determined by the Governor in Council.

There are no regulations by Order in Council on this subject, so far as I am aware.
Article 468 of the Regulations issued by the United States Treasury Department,

respecting certain merchandise in transit from one part of the United States to another,
partly by land and water routes outside of the United States, provides as follows :-

" Merchandise in transit from port or place within the territory of the United
States to another by a route a part of which is by land carriage through the Dominion
of Canada, and a part by the great lakes and the rivers connecting the same, or by the
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River St. Lawrence, may be transported by water in American vessels only from ports
on the northern f rontier of the United States to ports on the Canadian frontier, at the
termini of railway transportation, to points on the northern frontier of the United
States. The compensation of the officers stationed in Canada to surpervise these
transhipments must be reimbursed to the government by the transportation companies
interested.

" If the goods are subject to duty they must be shipped under the ordinary tran-
sportation entry and bond, and if the character of the goods will admit of it, must be
duly corded and sealed."

The solution of the question raised by Captain Irving is not clear until it is known
what facilities will be afforded for the transfer of goods at St. Michaels for Fort Cudahy
without payment of United States customs duties on goods so transferred.

Correspondence in regard to this matter is now being carried on, and you will be
advised when there is a practical conclusion reached.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD.
Commissioner.

CANADIAN PACIFIC NAVIGATION CoMPANY, LTD.
MANAGER's OFFICE,

VICToRIA, B.C., 30th December, 1897.
Hon. WM. PATERBON,

Controller of Customs,
Ottawa.

Sin,-I have to call your attention to phase of coasting trade now carried on by
United States vessels between British ports on this coast, under a system absolutely
prohibited in United States ports to British vessels.

Cananian freight from Victoria, B.C., has been carried to Glenora, B.C., (near
Telegraph Creek) by United States vessels, a transhipment taking place at Fort
Wrangel, a port on United States coast of Alaska.

The "Alaskan " is the name of the United States vessel which has taken these
goods from Fort Wrangel to Glenora, while boats of the Pacific Coast Steamship
Company, all American registered vessels, carry them from Victoria to Fort Wrangel.
I refer you to section 2 of chapter 83 (R.S. Canada) an Act respecting the coasting
trade of Canada, and to section 4 of said Act.

The responsibility for the enforcement of our Act seems to rest wholly with your
department, but your officers at these ports, Victoria and Glenora, apparently think
our Act does not apply to the shipments in question.

No such evasion of the principle of coasting laws is permitted in the United States,
and the competition is consequently most unequal for our vessels on this coast. I do
not believe a similar state of affairs is allowed anywhere on the Atlantic coast.

Should, however, by any possibility, the letter of our coasting Act, allow this over-
riding of the undoubted object of ail such legislation and of the spirit of our Act, which
prohibits foreign vessels carrying goods " by water from one port in Canada to another,"
1 hope you will see fit to have an amendment submitted to Parliament, which will
remove all doubt as to the effect of the legislation now on the statute book.

Owing to the importance of the interests involved, I trust you will promptly take
the opinion of your department's legal advisers as to your present powers to protect our
coasting trade, and that, in the event of further legislation being required, it may be
speedily obtained at the next session of Parliament.
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Should your authority be ample already, and you are ready to institute proceedings
for the penalties incurred as contemplated by the Act, I shal be happy to furnish you
with specific information respecting United States vessels on the route referred to.

I am, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JNO. IRVING,
Manager.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT.

JOHN IRtvING, Esq., OTTAWA, 20th January, 1898.

Manager Canadian Pacific Navigation Co., Ltd.,
P.O. Box K., Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 30th
ultimo, respecting the carrying of Canadian freight by United States vessel from
Victoria, B.C., to Wrangel, Alaska, where it is transferred and carried by another
United States steamer to Glenora, B.C.

It is not clear that such carrying is in contravention of the Canadian coasting laws
and regulations. There may, however, be a question as to the collection of duty on
arrival at Glenora, unless the goods are transhipped at Wrangel in the presence of a
Canadian customs officer.

The conditions under which transhipment at Wrangel is to be regulated are not yet
settled, but it is expected that definite regulations will soon be issued.

The representations contained in your letter are being considered by the Hon.
the Minister of Customs.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Through Collector of Customs, Commissioner.

Victoria, B.C.
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RETURN
(57)

In answer to an ORDER OF THE HOUSE OF COMMONS, dated %4th April, instant,
calling for a statement showing the groes working ex}.enses and earnings,
respectively, of the Intercolonial Railway for each month from lst July,
1898, to date.

Also the gros working expenses and earnings, respectively, of the same road
for the similar months of the preceding year.

The gross working expenses and earnings of the Intercolonial Railway each month
from the 1st of July, 1898, to 1st of March, 1899, were:-

July .................
August................
September ...............
October ...... .........
November. ..............
December...... .........
January .................
February ................

Working expenses.
$321,615 86

311,876 23
331,681 58
304,514 76
278,524 60
298,905 47
292,324 47
282,320 81

the same period in the previous year the working expenses and earnings

July.............
August.............
September ..........
October ... .... ,...
November ..........
December...........
January.............
February. ..........

Ottawa, 19th April, 1899.

Working expenses.
$280,745 73

290,479 65
270,242 96
268,266 58
234,759 23
241,461 99
234,581 31
227,127 64

COLLINGWOOD SCHREIBER.

57-1

A 1899

For
were :-

Earnings.
$318,373

329,615
351,315
344,117
306,173
285,004
243,373
244,155 4

Earninge.
$280,213

263,593
294,125
280,799
249,723
232,821
188,275
186,909

.. ... ...... .

.. ...... .. .

. ... ...... ..

.. ...... ....

............
...........
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OFFICE OF THE DEPUTY MINISTER AND CHIEF ENGINEER,
OTTAWA, ONT., 9th May, 1899.

'ýMemo. for the Honourable A. G. Blair.)

I send you herewith a copy of information asked for by Mr. Foster, which I under-
etand, you have already laid on the Table of the House. I have added the month of
March to each year.

L. K. JONES.

The gross working expenseg and earnings of the Intercolonial Railway each month
from the lst of July, 1898, to lat of March, 1899, were:

Working expenes.
July....... ................. $32165 86
August.................... 311,876 23
Septeinber......................331,681 58
October ... .................... 304,514 76
November ..................... 278,524 60
December....................... 298,905 47
January ........................ 292,324 47
February........................ 282,320 81
March ......................... 288,941 18

Earnings.
$318,373

329,615
351,315
344,117
306,173
285,004
243,373
244,155
303,394

the same period in the previous year the working expenses and earnings

July.......................
A ugust.................... ....
September.......................
October ......... ............
Novembet ..... ,..............
December.......................
January ........................
Pebruat!y...................
M arch . ........................

Ottawa, 19th April, 1899.

Working expenses.
280,745 73
290,479 65
270,242 96
268,266 58
234,759 23
241,461 99
234,581 31
227,127 64
263,937 26

Earnings.
280,213 72
263,593 25
294,125 71
280,799 01
249,723 90
232,821 77
188,275 15
186,909 33
269,973 00

COLLINGWOOD SCHREIBER.

A. 1899

For
were:-



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 57A.)

RETURN
[57a]

In answer to an ORDER OF THE IIOUSE OF COMMONS dated the 24th April, 1899,
calling for a statement showing the total amount of revenue col-
lected by the Government (a) from passenger trafflc; (b) from

freight traffic at the stations, freight agencies along the extension of
the Intercolonial Railway from Chaudière to Montreal, both included,
(1) from the 30th day of June, 1898, exclusive, to the lt day of March,
1899, exclusive; (2) from the 1st day of March, 1899, inclusive, to the
first day of April, 1899, ejelusive.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

STATEMENT showing cash collections on the Extension of the Intercolonial Railway
from Chaudière to Montreal for Passengers and Freight, both included.

1st. From 30th June, 1898, exclusive, to lst day of March, 1899, exclusive.

Passenger
Collections.

$71,714.73

Freight
Collections.

$178,803.04

Total.

$250,517.77

2nd. From 1st
exclusive.

Passenger
Collections.

$6,174.73

day of March, 1899, inclusive, to the 1st day of April, 1899,

Freight
Collections.

$31,994.31

Total.

$38,169.04

A. 1899
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R E T UJRN
[57b]

In answer to an ORDER OP THE HOUSE OF COMMONS dated the 18th April, 1898,
calling for a statement of expenditure out of income made for perman-
ent improvements, extensions, additions and betterments, exclusive of
works for ordinary maintenance and renewals, on account of the Inter-
colonial Railway from 30th June, 1891, to lst of July, 1897.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

57b-1

62 Victoria A. 1899
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INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

MAINTENANCE OF WAY DEPARTMENT.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from 1st July, 1891, to 1st July, 1892.

Class of Work.

Ballasting ........ ...........

Buildings and platforms.

Bridges.......................

Culverts.. ...... ...........

Fencing... .. ................

Land and land damages......

Rails and fastenings..... . .

Sidings......................

Trestles .... .................

Miscellaneous.... ...........

Particulars.

Additional ballast on certain parts of the line originally bal-
lasted with sand and clayey gravel..... . ... .......

New buildings or additions and improvements to old, includ-
ing water closets and water supplies to stations .........

Difference in cost between iron and wood. Difference ini
cost between standard and original floors, strengthening
old bridges...................... ... ..... ....

Improvements to masonry culverts between Halifax and
Truro, and between River du Loup and Lévis ..........

Difference in cost between wood and wire fences and new
fences where none existed previously..............

Additional for stations, loading platforms, water supplies,
snow fences, &c.... ... ..... ........... ... .......

Difference in cost between 56 lb. rails and 67 lb. rails........

New sidings and extensions of old ones, grading and ties, &c.

Renewing trestles at Halifax and Richmond with Georgia
pine nstead of hemlock as originally built, difference in
cost......................................

Additional track scales, signals, pile driver, sewers andl
dredging at St. John ............................ ....

Total additions or betterment...........

A. 1899

Amount.

$ ets.

22,409 12

18,122 89

27,040 17

4,400 00

20,966 25

2,997

29,232

14,475

4,420 00

6,190 78

150,254 90



Intercolonial Railway.

INTERCOLONIAL ]RAILWAY.

MAINTENANCE OF WAY DEPARTMENT.

STATEMIENT of Additions or Betterments from 1st July, 1891, to Ist July, 1892.

Value Value Improve-
Description. of of ment Total.

New Work. Old Work. or T oBetterment.

Ballasting. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.

Additional ballast on certain parts of line . ... ..... 22,409 12 ......... . . 22,409 12 22,409 12

Buildings and Platformns.

Halifax, covered gangway from freight shed to immi-
grant shed..... .. .......... ........ .70 20 70 20

Richmond, additional to coal shed .................. 1,486 24............1,486 24
Fairville, new flag station.......................... 90 . .0 90 0o
Dewars i . ......... . ... ........ 9 ( 90 00
Rockingham, platform extended 50 feet. ....... . 25 00 25 0
Richardson, platform at, extended................... 2000
Bedford, platform extended 50 feet.. .... .......... 25 0 25 0
McKay's siding, new flag station.................... 90 0 90 0
Alton, new cattle guards where none existed before.. 55 0 55 0
Truro, new tool house for section men ................ 135 0 135 0

t improvements in water closets at station ...... 144 50 144
Campbell's Siding, new tool house for section men... 50 ............. 50 0
Chisholme's Siding, new loading platform . .......... . M 0 .......... 85 (A

Î t new flag station .................. 5590
Landsbury Siding, new lo ing platform.... .118 0 118 0
Trenton, new passenger and freight station .......... 1,644 0 1,644 0
Antigonish, passenger platform extended 80 feet.... 40 0 400
Pugwash, new freight shed at....... . . ....... 388 60 8 60
Henderson's Siding, new freight platform, 30 by 7 ft. 20 . 20 0
Rosm Road, new freight platform, 30 by 7 ft ........ 20 0 20 0
Atkinson Siding, new flag station. .. ........... ... 900 45 00 45 0
Trenton, new two-stall water closet at. .............. 36 0............. 36 0
Amherst, improvements in station beating appliances. 2,090 0.............2,090 0
Meadow Brook, newgfla station and loadng platform 190 0 190 0
Moncton, new electric lght station ..... ........... 3,413 60 3,413 60

new oil warehouse ..... ................. 1,350 0 1,1500
new w. closets in machine shop.. ,. . 00.. . .... 9 0

Memramcook, new freight shed and alteration in stn. 525 0 525 0
Saunders' Crossing, new flag station and platform. 145 77 145 77
Moncton, improvement Governnient Houses, furnace

and electric light. ...... .... ........ ..... 400 0 400
Hampton, passenger platform extended 100 feet ...... 45 37 45 37
St. John, building for sheltering cabmen............

screen for top of ticket office in station.. . . .
Charlo, new dwelling apartinents to station..........1,095 . . 1,095 0
Flat Lands, new addition to station. ............... 50 0............ 50 0
Mill Stream, new addition to station............... 50 ............. 500
Birch Ridge, passenger platforin extended 50 feet 20 0 .... 0 0
Campbellton, new water closet in station and engine

house.. ................................. 254 40............. 254 40
Rivière du Loup, new water closet in station.........218 14........... 218 14

Léis, proveerts in water closes................400 00 ............ 40090 16,121 82

Bridges.

Merrigonish, new prot. truss, 160 foot span, Suther-
land River ..... . . .......... ... ........... i1,4860 4,000 0 7, 0

Antigonish, new plate *irder, ô5 fot grouts, Brook. 3,167 90 1,590 0 1,667 0
Fort Lawrence new Warren girder, 190 foot span,

Musquash hiver ..................... ........ 4,020 00 2,250 0 1,750 0

Carried forward .................. ............ 38,530 94
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INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

MAINTENANCE OF WAY DEPARTMENT.

STATEMENT Of .Mditions or Betterments from Ist July, 1892, to Ist July, 1893.

Description.
Value

of
New Work.

$ ets.
Brought forward..--. -.....-..-................

Bridges-Concluded.

Standards, floors on bridges, 1,602 lin. feet at $5.00
(old at $2.00) .......... .... ............ .....

Beam bridges, old rail girder, 137 lin. feet...........
Bridges between Rivière du Loup and Lévis strength.

ened and improved. .... ..... ... .... ........
Lateral bracing added to present iron bridges...... .

Overhead Bridges.

Charlo, old rail bridge, 86 ft. clear span . ...... ....

Cilverts.

Improvements to masonry, culverts between Halifax
and Truro .......................... .........

Improvements to masonry, culverts between Rivière
du Loup and Lévis.............. ....... .....

Land.

Lansburg Siding, land for loading platform .........
Anagance, land for ballast pit (legal expenses) .... ..
Chisholmes, land for loading platform...... ........
Dalhousie Branch, land for snow fences........ ....

.. if . l " i (legal expenses)
Jacq-et River, right of way for pipe line . . ......
Trois Pistoles, right to lay pipes from reservoirs .....
Calhouns, right to lay pipes and land for..........
St. Eloi Station, land for station purposes .... ....
Newcastle, land damages at wharf ............. ....
St. Arsène, land for ballast pit......................
St. Luce " " ....-....... .
Trois Pistoles, land for reservoir.... ...............
St. Anacet, land for station purposes......... ......
Bayfield Road, right for a well at station............

Fencing.

Difference in cost between wood and wire and new
fence where none existed previously.........

Pile Drivers.

One patent steam pile driver, complete............

Rails and Fastenings.

436 miles of line laid with 67-lb. rails in place of 56.1b.,
difference in cost. ......................

Signala.

New electric signal@ and semaphores............

Carried forward.......-...............

8,010 00
1,370 00

8,086 17
1,400 00

1,685 00

1,800 00

2,600 00

147
91
40

150
75
50
32

414
104

1,500
117
80

110
50
35

26,326 25

600 00 .... ......

29,232 00 .. . ....

906 35 ...... ....

............ ............

Value
of

d Work.

cts.

3,204 00
274 00

450 00

........

...........

5,360 00

Improve-
ment

or
Betterment.

$ ets.

4,806 00
1,096 00

8,086 17
1,400 00

'1,235 00

1,800 0

2,600 00

147
91
40

150
75
50
32

414
104

1,500
117

80
110

50
35

20,966 25

600 00

29,232 00

906 35

Total.

$ ets.

38,530 94

25,805 17

1,235 00

4,400 00

2,997 95

20,966 25

600 00

29,232 00

906 35

............. 1 124,673 66

A. 1899



Intercolonial Railway.,

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

MAINTENANCE OF WAY DEPARTMENT.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from 1st July, 1891, to 1st July, 1892.

Value Value Improve-
Description. of of ment Total.

New Work. Old Work. or
Betterment.

8 cts. ets. ets. S cts.

Brought forward....................... .. .. ............. .,. ...... 124,673 66

Sidings.

New siding and extension of old............ ....... 14,475 74 ............ 14,475 74 14,475 74

Track Scals.

New additional track scales and extensions of old.... 2,500 0 ........ ,.... 2,50 00 2,500 0>

Sewers.

New clay pipe sewer from tank for station and engine
house ............. ........................ 771 20 ............ 771 20 771 20

Water Supply for Stations.

Putting wells and pumps at stations where none
existed............................. ...... ... 304 50 ............ 304 50

Putting in gravýitatin supply in Oxford Jot., Aulac
ana Dalhousie... . ............................ 1,696 57 ............ 1,696 57 2,001 07

Dredging at St. John .. .. . ................... 1,413 23 ...... .. . 1,413 23 1,413 23

Trestles.

Renewing coal trestle on wharfs at Halifax and Rich-
mond in hard pine instead of hemlock, as before. 7,800 00 3,380 00 4,420 00 4,420 00

Grand total.... .......... ....... .... ............ .. ......... 150,254 90
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INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

MAINTENANCE OF WAY DEPARTMENT.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from 1st July, 1892, to lst July, 1893.

Class of Work.

Buildings and platforms ....

Bridges..... ....

Culverts..... ..............

Land ............ .......

Fencing ............. ........

Rails and fastenings .... ......

Sidings......... ........

Tie plates.....................

Wharves .....................

Miscellaneous .............

Description.

New buildings, or additions and improvenents to old, includ-
ing water closets ... ...........................

Difference in cost between iron and wood. Difference in cost
between standard and original floors strengthening old
bridges..... ..... ....................................

Improvements to masonry culverts.........................

Additions for stations and legal expenses...................

Difference in cost between wood and wire fences and new
fences where none existed ....... ....................

Difference in cost between 56-1b. rails and 67-lb. rails. ......

New sidings and extensions of old, grading, ties, &c...... ..

N ew tie plates........................... ................

Extensions of old wharves .................. .............

Cattle, pens and siding at Point du Chêne.................

Total............................

A. 1899

Amoun.

$ cts.

2,153 00

16,216 65

2,200 00

395 00

10,318 40

19,277 35

5,528 93

9,133 21

700 00

200 00

66,122 54



Intercolonial Railway.

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

MAINTENANCE oF WAY DEPARTMENT.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from 1st July, 1892, to Ist July, 1893.

Value of
New

Work.

$ cts.1

118 00
9000

100 00
675 00
900 00
180 00
4000

100 00

3,600 0
2,600 00
1,288 00
3,100 00

8,732 65
2,031 00
4,500 00

75 00
2000

320 00

Description.

Buildings and Platforms.

Lansdown, loading platform........ .. ..........
Hawkesbury . .......
Sussex . . ..... ..... ...
Acadeaville Station, building....... ...........
Cedar Hall, addition to station.... ................
Hampton, water closet............................
Lake View, platform ...... ......................
Rivière du Loup, water closet machine shop ........

Bridges.

Dewar's Mill, new plate girder 84J foot span.......,
Bridges at Rivière du Loup and Lévis, strengthening
Lateral bracing in other bridges ..... ...... ..... .
Barney's River, new plate girder and iron trestle....
Robinson Meadow, filling in land, legal and other

expenses .... ................................
Leper Brook Bridge, abutments and excavation ......
Standard floors or iron bridges, 900 lineal feet........
Yankie Grant Brook, bridge seats.......... .....
Sutherland River Bridge stringer resta. ............
Old rail girders, 40 feet, 8 betterment.........

*C1dverts.

Improvements to masonry culverts. . ...............

Land.

Talbot, furnishing light for farm crossing ..........
Boulay land, legal expenses ......................
Bic, land for station. ........ ,...................

t legal expenses for land.........................

Fencing.

Everett woven wire and barted wire-
7,716 rods, at a betterment of 50c. per rod...........

ti ff 40c. Il ...... .

Rails and fastenings.

30-52 miles of line laid with 67-lb. rails in place of
56-1b. rails, at a betterment of.............

Sidings.

1-1 mile new siding and extension of old, at $5,026.30
per m ile.................. ........... ........

Tie Plates.

Tie plates........... . · ·..................
Carried forward...................... ..... .......

Cost of
Renewing
Works as
or ginally

Buit.

$ cts.1
........ ...

...........

............

50 00

............

.... ........

............

1,80060

1,450 00

5,000 00

1,800 00
........ ....

2,200 00 ......

3,358 00 ...... .. .
6,960 40 ...... 

...

19,277 35 ...........

5,528 93 .......... .

9,133 21

*Many culverts between Halifax and Truro and between Rivière du Loup and Hadlow were originally
built of small stone laid in lime mortar. These have been replaced with a superior class of masonry, con-
sisting of large atones laid in cement and mortar.

Improve.
ment or

Betterment.

1 cts.

118 00
90 00

100 00
625 00
90000
180 00

40 00
100 00

1,800 00
2,600 00
1,288 00
1,650 00

3,732 65
ý,031 00
2,700 00

75 00
20 00

320 00

2,200 00

3,358 00
6,960 40

19,277 35

5,528 93

.... ...... 9,133 21

.. . . ..... ............

Total.

$ cts.

2,153 00

16,216 65

2,200 00

395 00

10,318 40

19,277 35

5,528 93

9,133 21

65,222 54

....... ....
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INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

MAINTENANCE OF WAY DEPARTMENT.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from 1st July, 1891, to lst July, 1892.

Cost of
Value Renewing Improve-

Description. of Works as ment or Total.
New Work. or inally Betterment.

$ ets. $ ets. e ts, $ ets.

Brought forward,............. ..... ............ ........ ... ......... 65,222 54

Wharves.

Pointe du Chêne, steamboat wharf extension... .... 700 00 ............ 700 00 700 00

Miscellaneous.

Pointe du Chêne, cattle pen and siding. ...... ... 200 00......... .. 200 200 00

Grand Total............... ............ ............ ............ 66,122 54

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from lst July, 1893, to lst July, 1894.

Class of Work. Particulars. Amount.

$ et$
Buildings and platforms..... New buildings and additions or improvements to old.... ...... 6,332 00

Bridges..................... Difference in cost between wood and iron bridges.............. 2,968 77

Wharves and cribwork...... New and extension of old. ... ................. ..... ..... 3,115 00

Land, &c.. ................ Additional land for stations.................................. 4,067 36

Culvets.............. ..... N ew .................................... . .. .... ........ 350 00

Tie plates ................. ........ ............. 7,539 99

Signala ....................................... 280 00

Turntables......... ........ Addition te old.... ........... .. ................ 200 00

Rails............. ......... Difference in cost between 56-1b. rails and 67-1b. rails .......... 13,834 26

Sidings..................... Additional...... .. . . . .............................. 11,309 17

Fencing .................... New barb and woven wire in place of old pole and board fence. 5,760 00

Water supplies at stations... Additional............................. .................... 75 20

Miscellaneous........,...... Scales, block pavement................... ........... 1,571 80

Total....... ......... ......................... 57,403 55

A. 1899



Intercolonial Railway.

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

STATEMENT oF Additions or Betterments from July 1st, 1893 to July lst, 1894.

Description.

Buildings and Platforms.

Beaver Brook, sectionman's bouse.............
Metapedia, addition to station. ..............
Bayfield il
Truro, water closets in restaurant..............

G l waitingroom...........
Graham's Siding, fia4 station................
Sydney, trackmaster s office at................
Trenton, plumbing at .......................
Mulgrave, water closets at $209 and $6....
Moncton, water closets in restaurant............
Ross, road station and water closet............
Tatamagouche, plumbing and sewer............
Metapedia, water for ..... . .... ............
St. John, pipe-fitting in freight shed............
Moncton, water closet for mechanical department...
St. John, asphalt flooring train shed............
Merrigonish, kitchen addition.................
Riedmont ' ......
Scotch Hill, freight shed....................
Anslow, loading platforma (150 ft. long)..........
Rockland, fitting up additional room............
Hampton, water closet at........ ............
Torryburn, small loading platform.............
New Castle, platform (40 ft. x 9 ft.)............
Truro, addition to engine bouse.... ...........
Elmsdale, loading platform extended 150 ft.
Bedford, platform extended 50 ft..............
Window, sashes (outside) ........... ....
Stewiacke, loading platform extended 200 ft .........

Bridges.

Antigonish Bridge, 35,897 (over West River) R.N.S.
expenses, $71-77 .......................... ....

Whlarves and Cribwork.

C. B. Railway, 1,200 ft. of new crib,................
Mulgrave, cribwork, 175 ft ........ ...........

Land, &c.

Mitchell property, legal services, $119.74; land, *3,500
Pepper land, legal services... , .....
Frser lot e .....
Pas Road Station, land for legal services, *38.75;

land, $13.44.. ..
Little Métis, water supply land for 50, $25 and S1..
St. Flavie, land for water supply ..............
M. Poirier, farm crossing....................
M. & J. McNeil, C. B. Railway, farm crossing ...
C. Campbell, farn crosasng.. ...............
Boulay, land deed, legal ......... ............
J. M. MePherson, damage to land.............
D. P. McDonald, land and damages, C. B. Railway..

Value
of

New Work.

$ ots.

775 00
899 00
221 00

83 00
275 00

90 00
329 00

60 21
215 00

69 00
1,190 00

102 56
174 30
47 91
69 00<

549 00
5000
5000

20000
20000

5 00
86 67
60 00
30 00

100 00
200 00
40 00

140 85
250 00

5,968 77

Value
of

Old.

$ cts.

.......... .

............
...........

............

.. . .. .,,... ..

........ ....

.... ... .....
-. ....... ... .

. 7 .. .. .. .

.. ....... ...
... .... ....

....... .....

. ... .. ... .. .

. . . . .... ....

.... ,. ... . . .

... . .... ....

3,000 00

2,740 00 .... .......
375 00 ............

3,619 74
50 43
34 00

52 19
70 00
50 00
25 00
3000
20 00
10 00
3500
65 00

Carried forward...........................
15

Improve-
ment

or
Betterment.

S cts.

775 00
899 00
221 00

83 00
275 00

90 00
329 00
60 21

215 (0
69 00

1,190 00
102 56
174 30

47 91
69 00

274 50
50 00
5000

20000
20000
5000
86 67
60 00
30 00

100 00
20000
4000

140 85
25000

2,968 77

2,740 00
375 00

Total.

$ Ct.

6,332 00

2,968 77

3,115 00

3,619 74
50 43
34 00

52 19
76 00
5000
2500
3000
2000
10 00
35 00
65 00 4,067 36

............ 16,483 13

............

.......... ,..
,...........

.. . .......

...........
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INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

STATEMENT of Addition or Betterment from July Ist, 1893 to July lst, 1894.

Description.

Brought forward.....................

Culverts.

Near Shubenacadia, stone box culvert..............

Tie Plates.

Tie plates.............. . .........................

SignaIs.

2 semaphores at Rockland and Ferrona Junction....

Turntables.

St. John, Sussex and Ste. Flavie, lengthened and
strengthened ................................

Rails.

27 miles of old rails replaced by 67 lb. rails at better-
ment of 512 per mile ............. .............

Sidings.

2½ miles additional at $5,026.30 per mile.............

Fencing.

110 miles new barb wire and woven wire in place of
old pole-

6,400 rode at a betterment of 40e. per rod.......
12,800 rods board fence, 6,400 rods at a better-

ment of 50c. per rod........ ..............

Water Supply at Stations.

Montmagny, pipe and laying............ .... .....
Trois Pistoles, water supply, legal services ..........
Orangedale, digging and walling hill, J. E. McFarline

Miscellaneous.

Sydney, scales at......... ...............
St. John, cedar block pavement to freightshed

Grand total.................... .

Value
of

Old.

$ ets.

.. .........

2,560 00 1
>5,760 00

3,200 00

42 30 ............
17 90........
15 00 ............

761 80 190 00
1,00000 .. . ......

............ .... 1........

571 80
1,000 00

............ 57,403 55

Value
of

New Work.

$ cs.

............

35 00

7,539 99

28000

200 00

13,834 26

11,309 17

Improve-
ment

or
Betterment.

$ cts.

350 00

7,539 99

280 00

20000

13,834 26

11,309 17

5,760 00

42 30
17 90
15 00

Total.

8 cts.

16,483 13

35000

7,539 99

28000

20000

13,834 26

11,309 17

5,760 00

75 20

1,571 80
:



Intercolonial Railway.

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

MAINTENANCE OF WAY DEPARTMENT.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from July lst, 1894, to July lst, 1895.

Class of Work. Particulars. Amount.

S ets.

Building and platforms.. .New buildings and additions or improvements to old .......

Bridges..... . .. .... .. Difference in cost between wood and iron bridges. .... ......

Wharves and cribwork .New and extensions of old................... .............

Land, &c ............. Additional land for stations, &c.............. ......

Culverts.. ............. Extended .......... ... ...... ... ......... ...........

Rails .... . ...... ..... Difference in cost between 56 lb. rails and 67 lb. rails.......

Sidings ................ Additional.... .... .. ... ...........................

Fencing ........ ........ 'New barb wire and woven wire in place of old pole and board
i fen ce .... ........................... ...................

Snow fences .............. New snow fence built, C B. Ry ............. ...............

W ater supplies at stations... 1 Additional.... ........... ...........................

M iscellaneous........ ...... Guard rail fasteners .... ....... ..... ........... .....

Grand total .. .. .........................

7-2

1,265 18

6,727 18

1,540 00)

2,581 20

360 00

12,809 50

11,300 17

6,768 00

346 81

178 25

326 75

44,212 04
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INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

STATEMENT of Additions oc Betterments from lst July, 1894, to 1st July, 1895.

Description.

Buildings and Platforns.

Meadowville, loading platform......................
Newcastle, water closet at $133 and $30.... .....
Jacquet River, plumbing..... .. .. ..... .......
Halfax, north street station platforin, 120 ft. x 4 ft..
Enfield, extension to station platform, 50 feet.......
Grosseruer, new platforni, 75 ft. long..........
Barachois, freight shed and platform............
Wentworth, tool house at.... . . ............
Moncton, addition to electric light station ... . ..

l Outside window sashes................
Kempt, loading platform, 150 ft. long ...... .. ..

Bridqes.

French and James River bridges, 87,411.58, $20.00
and $16.60.. ............. .... ..........

Black River bridge. .................... ....
Leper Brook bridge, masonry abutment .... ........

Wharres and Cribworks.

Mulgrave and Point Tupper crib girders.......
Pugwash wharf, chute for shifting coal... .. ....

Land, &c.

Laruse Siding, land for $100, legal service, $1.06 and
827.64 ...... ........ . . . ........

Gloucester Jct., Ferguson for ballast pit... ......
Moncton, masters siding land, &c.................
Pitblods, J., damage to land.......................

Culverts.

Ferronn Junction, extended 60 yards, masonry......
Rails.

25 miles of old rails replaced by 67 lb. rails including
fastenings at a betterment of $512.38 per mile...

Sidings.

2j miles additional siding at $5,026.30 per mile..
Fencini.

47 miles, 15,040 rods new barb-wire and woven-wire
fence in place of old pole and board, 7,520 rods at
a betterment of 50 etb. per rod........... . .

47 miles, 15,040 rods new barb-wire and woven-wire
fence in place of old pole and board, 7,520 rods at
a betterment of 40 ets. per rod .. ...........

Snow Fencing;.

C. B. Railway building, snow fegces, $206.46 and
$140.35...... ....... ... .. ..... ... .........

Water Supplies at Stations.

Rogersville, boring and putting in well..........
Trois Pistole,, water supply, right of way for pipes..
Salt Springs, well at....... .. ...............
Denmark, well at.... .. ...................... ...

Miscellaneous.

Guard rail fasteners (Stewarts).....................

Value
of

New Work.

$ ets.

100 00
163 00
143 43

60 00
40 00
60 00

150 00
5000

200 00
98 75

200 00

7,448 18
4,660 00

469 00

1,440 00 ...... ....
100 00 .. .....

128 70
2,360 00

2 50
150 00

360 00

Value
of

Old.

$ cts.

.... .....
. . . . . .

... .... ..

. . . . . . . .. .
.. . . . . . . ...

. .... . ....

3,200 00
2,650 00

. . . . . . .

12,809 50 1.......

11,309 17

3,760 00

3,008 00

346 81 .............

326 75

Improve-
ment or Total.

Betterment.

8 ets.

100 00
163 00
14. 43
60 00
40 00
60 00

150 00
50 00

200 00
98 75

200 00

4,248 18
2,010 00

469 00

1,440 00
10000

128 70
2,300 0

2 50
150 00

360 00

12,809 50

11,309 17

6,768 00

346 81

326 75

G rand total................. ......... 1..... ...... |... - .

$ cts.

1,265 18

6,727 18

1,540 00

2,581 20

36060

12,809 50

11,309 17

6,768 CO

346 81

178 25

326 75

44,212 04

A. 1899

............



Intercolonial Railway.

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

MAINTENANCE OF WAY DEPARTMENT.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from lst July, 1895, to 1st July, 1896

Class of Work. Particulars. Amount.

l cts.

Buildings and platforms ...... New buildings and additions or improvements to old ........

Bridges............. ......... Difference in cost between iron and wood bridges .........

Wharves and cribwork....... Additional........................................

Land, &c. ... .. ......... Additional land for stations........... ..............

Culverts........ .. New ........... ..... ... ..... ........................

Tie-plates... . ..... ... .... ,, .................. ........ .....

Rails ............ ... .. .... Difference in cost between 56-1b. rails and 67-lb. rails .......

Sidings.................. Additional.. ................. .................. .....

Fencing ................ .... New barb wire and woven wire, in place of old pole and

Snow fencing.................

Water supplies at stations..

Miscellaneous .........

board fence.. ...................... ..... ...........

Building snow fences......................................

Additional.............. . .. . . ..................

Guard-rails, switches, &c.... . . .... .... .... .......

Grand total..... ........ .. . . ....

2,756 67

9,676 00

750 00

2,945 55

620 00

35,817 95

23,057 10

15,078 90

6,898 90

2,460 00

206 21

383 10

100,650 38



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 57B.)

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

STATEMENT of Addition8 or Betterments from Ist July, 1895, to Ist July, 1896.

Description.
Ne

Buildings and Pl«tforms.

Beaver Brook, new station.. ....... ............ .
Montnagny, water closet at station ...... .........
E ureka station ...................... .......... .
Little Métis: water closets, $119; expenses, $36.47..
Lake View, flag station....... ...............
Sussex, plumbing at .. ............ .............
A ntigonish , ................. .. ........
O xford .............................
Rivière du Loup, extending and building new pit ...
Moncton: specification for station, $26; advertising,

$127.30 ...................... ......... _
Truro, platform extended 100 feet ......... .....
Meadowville. a kitchen made .... .. ... ..... ..
Christnas Island, Beaver Cove, Sydney River, load-

ing platforns............. ..... ........
Spring Hill, platform extended 4P feet.... .......
Culligan's siding , a shelter provided ........ .....
Nashes' Creek, Hamilton's Siding, loading platforimsl

at .... . . ....... .. . .................. ...
Cedar Hall, loading platforn...................

I outside window sashes......... .. .....
Bic, platform extended 50 feet........ .. .......

Bridtyes.

South River bridge .. ......... .. .. ... .......
vMonastry, bridge ..............................

Red pine, two span .... .... . .. . .... .... ..
Levis, beam bridge for culvert..................
Etcheman, pier for strengthening.................

Wharvis and Cribu-ork.

Dalhousie cribwork, 180 x 15, 600 ydF. at $1.25

L«nd, &c.

D. Matheson, land from... .... ..........
Sayabec: land fromn H. Boulay, $300; legal, $52.25..
Windsor Junction, wier land... .............
G ibson, land from, legal, 8219.67 and $31.10 .......
Painsec, land at: $40, legal services; $14.86, deed...
Milistreani, land from E. Keys.. ...............
J. McDougall, for farm crossing.--.................
Cam pbell, J. I l . .-. - ... ... ...
Coates, R. J. : damages to land at Hoppan, $500 ;

legal services, $26.80 ........ .......... ..
Angers, C. P., legal services, E. Samson ............
Belgea, J. A. , Robinson vs. Queen....
Borden, Ritchie & Co., legal services, C. B. Ry . .

O. & N. G., $5.56 and $11.30
Chisholm & Crowe, legal service, C. B. Ry., Queen vs.

J. Cameron..... .... .. ....... . ....
O'Connor & Hogg, legal service, C. B. Ry., Isabella,

Cameron............... ............. ....
O'Connor & Hogg, legal service, C. B. Ry., A. J.

Cam eron... ........... .......... .. . .......
O'Connor & Hogg, legal service, C. B. Ry., J. Mc

G ilvray . .. ... ....... ............... ..

Carried forward. .... ......... .......
:I0

Value
of

w Work.

8 cts.

880 00
30 00

225 00
155 47

90 00
133 00

60 00
50 90

208 00

153 30
75 00
50 00

300 00
30 00
90 00

20000
100 00

76 00
40 00

9

1

3

,718 00
848 00

,600 00
210 00
000 00

750 00C.

Value Improve-
of ment Total.

Old Work. rBetterment.

8 cts. $ ets.! $ ts.

100.00 780 00
30 00

90 00 135 00
........... 155 47
..... . .... . 90 00

... .... 133 (10
............ 60 00

...... 50 90
........... 208 00

..... ..... 153 30

.. .. ..... 75 00

.... . . ... 50 00

. ......... 300 00

... ...... 30 00
90 00

.. ........ 20000
.......... .. 100 00
... ........ 76 00
.... ...... 40 00

-, 1 2,756 67

4,400 00
400 00
800 00
100 00

....... ...

352 25 ........
à 50 ............

250 77 .... ....
54 86
80 00.......
20 00...........
25 00.........

526 80 ...... ..
21 65 ............
15 50 ...........

341 17 ....... ....
16 86 . ..........

12 75 ............

4 66...........

28 47 . .. .......

14 34 .... .......

5,318 00
448 00
800 OC
110 00

3,000 00

750 00

352 25
5 50

250 77
54 86

9,676 00

750 00

80 00
20 00
25 00

526 80
21 65
15 50

341 17
16 86

12 75

4 66

28 47

14 34

...... ... 13,182 67

A. 1899



Intercolonial Railway.

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments frÙm Lst July, 1895, to Ist July 1896-Con.

Description.

Brought forward..... .... .... ....

Land, ,.c.--Concluded.

J. Campbell, witness for A. J. Cameron.........
J. A. Dumontier, 1 gal service, Widow Carrier ....
Borden, P. L. e brook at Muilgrave.. .
Newcastle, right to lay water pipe (Rev. R. W. Dixon)
Angers, C. P., legal services, St. Charles Branch,

Town of Lévis, S31.33; Mrs. Carrier, $37.98....
Lavery, J. L., legal services..................
Carrier, T. W., regiýter of deeds...............
Dumontier, J. A., legal services ...............
LaRue, V. W. i
Roy, J. E., legal services. ...............
Lavery, J. L., legal services, town of Lévis.
Riley, Thos., Land damiages at Hampton.
Dumontier, A., legal services, corporation of Lévis..
Gillis, S., apple trees, C. B. Ry. ......
McNeil, R. D., road to station, C. B. Ry........
McLeod, A., damage, C. B. Ry.......
Angus O'Hanley t . . . . .
Labie, Chs., legal services, M. F. Carrier.......
Labie, Chs. M. Poirer.. .........

Cul verts.

WVestville, 2 culverts.... .. ............
45 mile post, culvert cedar, 3' x 6 = 24, eastern.
31 1 .
North No. 1 division, 2 cedar box culverts, 150' x 70'

=220'.......... ....... ........ ... ...

Tie Plates.

Tie plates............ ... .... ............ ....

Ra ils.

45 miles of old rails replaced by 67 lbs. rails, includingi
fastenings at a betterment of $512.38 per mile ...

Sidingsa.

3 miles additional siding at 85,026.30 per mile...... .

Fencing.

47·71 miles = 15,331 rods new barb wire and woven
wire in place of old pole and board fence, 7,665 at
a betternient, 50c. per rod, $3,832.50 ; 7,666 at

te 40c. l $3,066.40... ......

Snow Fencing.

C. B. railway building, snow fences, 615 rods. ......

Carried forward....................
21

Value
of

New Work.

Value
of

Old Work.

$ cts. S ets.

2 00
2 00

12 36
16 00

69 31
67 47
48 90

112 87
53 97
16 21
46 65
75 00
67 71
50 00
75 00
40 00

150 00
54 70

164 82

60 00
60 00
60 00

440 00

35,817 95

23,057 10

15,078 9o .<

Improve-
ment Total.

or
Betterment.

S ets. $ cts.

.... ....... 13,182 67

2 00
2 00

12 36
[f6 00

69 31
67 47
48 9e

112 87
53 97
16 21
46 65
75 00
67 71
50 0
75 00
40 00

150 00
54 70

164 82

60 00
60 00
60 60

440 00

35,817 95

23,057 10

15,078 90

620 00

35,817 95

23,057 10

15,078 90

6,898 90 ............ 6,898 90 6,898 90

2,460 00 ........... 2,460 00 2,460 00

....... ... ....... 100,061 07

...........

............

......... ..
............

............

............

............

............

............

............



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 57B.)

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from 1st July, 1895, to Ist
July, 1896-Concluded.

Value Value Improve-
Description. of of ment Total.

New Work. Old Work. or
Betterment.

$ cts. $ ets. $ ets. S cts.

Brought forward................ .. ... ........ ............ ............ 100 061 07

Watcr Supplies at Statons.

Mines' road, well at.. . .................... 20 00 . 20 00
Pugwash, well at, $30; Ross road station, well at,

830; Nashes creek, i30 .... .... .... ..... .. 90 0
Little Métis, water supply ..... . ............. .. 36 47
Isle Vérte 19 .... ........ . . .. 59 74

Miscellaneous.

Switch locks, Hopper..................... ...... 89 60
Guard rail fasteners, Stewart. .... ..... .. ... 53 50
Between New Glasgow and Mulgrave, 16 sets old

switch gear replaced with standard, at a better-
ment of $15.00 each. ................... . .. 240 00

Grand total .................... .... ....

90V 00

36 47
59 74

89 60
53 50

............ 240 00

. ............

206 21

383 10

100,650 38

A. 1899

. ..........

.... ........

1



Intercolonial Railway.

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

MAINTENANCE OF WAY DEPARTMENT.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from July lst, 1896, to July Ist, 1897.

Class of Work.

Buildings and platforms .....

Bridges...............

Wharves and cribwork .... .

Land, &c...............

Culverts.. ......

R ails.. ... .........

Sidinga.. .. ... ....

Fencing .. ..... ........

Water supplies at stations...

Miscellaneous...... .

Particulars.

New buildings and additions or improvements to old ..... ....

Difference in cost between iron and wood bridges.............

Over-expended on capital vote...... ..... .... ...........

Additional land for stations, &c ...... .... ..........

N ew . ........... ........... ....... .......

Difference in cost between 56-lb. rails and 67-lb. rails..........

A dditional.. .... ...................... ......... .........

New barb wire and woven wire fence in place of old pole and
board fence. ......... .. . ........................

Over-expended on capital vote......... .... ..... .... .....

G uard rails, &c............ ........ .................. ...

T otal.......... ...........................

Amount.

$ cts.
2,334 22

3,221 14

2,555 41

488 86

30000

6,917 13

3,769 72

4,968 00

41 00

454 25

25,049 73



62 Victoria Sessional Papers (No. 57B.)

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments froi Ist July, 1896 to Ist July, 1897.

I Value
Description. of

New Work.

Buédins and Platforms. 8 cts.

St. John, revolving door for station............
St. Rouinald, flag station......................
St. John, platforn at . ......... ...........
Amherst, plunbing at . .. .
St. John, gas fitting in freight shed...............
Amherst, watchnan's shelter .........
Truro. over expended on capital vote for freight shed

extension ... ..........................
Sacre Coeur, over expended on capital vote.
Rawdon River, passenger platforn 36' x 8.........
New Glasgow 80' x 8.
MerrigoIish, loading platform .... .... ........
Avondale. a large rooni fitted up..............
Pugwash, platform extended 40 feet .............
Tracadie, a large room fitted up at. .. .......
Boisdale, a kitchen provided....................
Trenton, a passenger platforn 60' x 8..
Rogers Siding, a loadng platform built....
Oxford Junction, passenger platform extended 80 feet'
Fort Lawrence, loading platforn extended andl

widened.......... . .........
Painsee to Truro, 4 tool houses at 50 ............
Rothsay, addition to freight house .........
Gallagher's Ridge, a passenger platform bujît ...
Adamsville, kitchen titted up...................
Kent Junction , .........
Outside window sashes ... .....................

Brides.

Grant's Brook, bridge 30'. .. . .... .... .. .......
Red Pine bridge 1 span .......... ........... ...
Bean Bridge Murphy's $279 and Grants .... .......
Musquash Bridee, abutment $1,083.97 and 6.0.. ..
Pirate Cove Brid e, $1,930; R. W. Simpson, exps.,

$49.27 ; C.P.R., $58.60.... .... ..... ...... .

Wharves and Cribwork.

Pictou, over expended on capital vote...............
C. B. Railway, over expended on capital vote.....

La'nd, &c.

Moncton, Master's Siding, legal expenses ...... ....
Newcastle, water supply, legal, $7.65 and $1.90.....
O'Connor & Hogg, legal services, Queen vs. Cameron,

$57.29 and $14.27 .... ............ ......
Heirs of Alex. McInnis, land damage...........
Lavery, J. T., heirs of Chas. Labrie, legal services...
Michaud, Nap., deed of Boulay land................
Pouliot, J., legal services, Paquet and Joncas, Cedar

Hall, water supply. ... ...................
Atkinson, H., legal services, Campbell estate.. ....
O'Connor & Hogg, legal services, Simmoneau vs.

- Queen $1620 and 846.50 .... ...............
John P. lowat, land and damages, $150; legal

service, $37.79. .. . .......................
Campbell, J., land damages on C. B. Railway.

46
00
00
00
00
00

04
17
00
0J
00
00
00
00
00
(0
00!
00

00
00
00
00
00
00
55

550 00
825 00
513 00

1,144 87

2,038 27

Value Improve-
of ment Total.

Old Work. Betterneut.

s cts. 8 ets. $ cts.

.... .... 214 46
212 00

...... 30 00
. ........ 160 00)
.. ... ..... 98 00

....... 75 00

............ 146 04

............ 179 17

.. ......... 30 00

............. 60 00

........... 100 00

............ )4 00

......... ... 40 00
... .. .... 40 00 1
........... 50 00

45 00
100 00

60 00

............ 250 00
100 00 10000

.. . ...... 50 00
50 00

...... ... 50 00
...... . 50 00
........... 104 55

233 22

450 00 100 00
400 00 425 00
35000 163 00

..... . ..... 1,144 87

650 00 1,388 27

1.973 41 .... ...... 1,973 41
582 00 ........... . 582 00

Carried forward.. ................ .... 1............ .........
24

3,221 14

2,555 41

50
9 55

71 56
5000
15 00
30 00

36 76
8 50

62 70

187 79
12 00
--- 488 86

............ 8,599 63

A. 1899

,1

....... ....

............

............



Interco'onial Railway.

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

STATEMENT of Additions or Betterments from 1st July, 1896, to Tst July, 1897-Concluded.

Description.
Value

of
New Work.

$ cts.

Value Improve-
of ment

Old Work. IBetterment.

Brought forward........... ...... .. ... ....... .. ......

Culverts.

Fairview, culvert built 50 feet long (cedar)..........
Painsee and Truro, sec. 26J and 292 culverts 3' x 4'

= 50' (cedar). ........ .............. ..

Rails.

13 miles of old rails replaced by 67 lb. rails, including
fastenings at a betterment of $512.38 per mile...

Sidings.

¾ mile additional sidingat $5,026.30 per mile.

Fencing.

34-5 miles = 11,040 rods of new barb wire and woven
wire in place of old pole and board fence, 5,520
rods at betterment of 50c. per rod..... .........

5,520 i 40c. t ...............

Water Supplies at Stations. .

Wells at station, over expended on capital vote...

Miscellaneous.

Chief engineer's office (transit) .......... ..........
Signallamps, M. B. Hurley...... .................
Guard rail fasteners ..... . ............

Total ............... .............

100 00

200 00

6,917' 13 ... .. ...... . 6,917 13

3,769 72

2,760 00 i
2,208 00 f

41 00 ......... .. 41 00

250 25 ........... 250 25
10800 ..... ..... 108 00

96 00 ............ 96 00

CHIEF ENGINEER's OFFICE,
MoNCToN, N.B., 26th March, 1896.

57-3

$ cts. S cts.

100 00

200 00

Total.

$ ets.

8,599 63

300 00

6,917 13

3,769 72

4,968 00

41 00

45425

25,049 73

3,769 72

4,968 00





Sessional Papers (No 57F.)

R.ETIRN
[57f1

To an ADDRESS of the SENATE, dated the 25th April, 1899, for a Return
showing quantity of freight carried over the Intercolonial Railway from
Montreal to Halifax for shipment to Europe during the winter 1898 and
1899.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY.

Return showing the quantity of freight carried over the Intercolonial R.ailway
from Montreal to Halifax for shipment to Europe during the winter of 1898-99

Weight (iba.)
500 sacks flour................................ 75,000

20,000 bushels wheat.............................1,200,000
455 cases bacon............................... 298,700
598 cases poultry............................... 77,800
986 bundles shooks............................. 32,000

9,000 bushels oats....... ....................... 300,068
3,085 bundies doors and moulding ................. 117,000

Total .............. ,................ 2100568

GENERAL MANAGER'S OFFICE,
MONCOON, N.B., 23rd May, 1899.

A. 189962 Victoria



Sessional Papers (No. 63.)

RETURN
[63]

To an ORDER of the HousE oF COMMONS, dated the 24th April, 1899, for
copies of all letters, telegrams and communications from Archer
Martin, of Victoria, B.C., Barrister-at-Law, to the Minister of the
Interior, or to the Deputy Minister, or to any officer of the Depart-
ment of the Interior, relating to the granting or recognition of any
permit or authority to take or import liquor into the Yukon Dis-
trict or relating to the importation of liquor into the Yukon District,
and all replies to such letters, telegrams and communications.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

(Telegrans.)

VICTORIA, B.C., July 8, 1898.

Pither and Leiser, leading firm liquor merchants here, were granted permit
from Regina, May twenty-first, to import two thousand gallons into Yukon 'and
forwarded goods charge responsible employee. Mes.senger just arrived from
north that goods stopped by 1\Iajor Steele at Lake Bennett under your instructions
of May tenth and June third, presumably because of conflict between govern-
ments.

Public here understood this matter had been amicably arranged and that
Regina permits now recognized by you. Parties interested very responsible mer-
chants and good standing, stoppage working great hardship and heavy loss.
Would respectfully urge you wire immediate instructions Steele my care allow-
ing permit recognition so that messenger return by steamer sailing probably to-
morrow and party proceed without further delay and loss.

ARCHER MARTIN.

To Hon. CLIFFORD SIFTON, VICTORIA, B.C., July 8, 1898.

Ottawa.

Would recommend that Archer Martin's application for confirmation of
Pither and Leiser permit from north-west be granted. Goods now at Bennett
cost company over twenty thousand dollars.

W. TEMPLEMAN.
63-I1

62 Victoria. A. 1899
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OTTAWA, July 9, 1898.
ARCHER MARTIN, Victoria, B.C.

This telegram will be authority to Major Steele to recognize permit to Pither
& Leiser issued by North-west government to take into Yukon 2,000 gallons
liquor.

CLIFFORD SIFTON.

VICTORIA, B.C., July II, 1898.
To Hon. CLIFFORD SIFTON,

Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa.

One thou.sand gallons liquor which are being imported by George Aý Gar-
diner reputable party of Victoria under his permit from Regina dated May thir-
tieth have been stopped at Lake Bennett under circumstances identical with those
detailed in my telegram of eighth instant. Kindly send similar telegram to that
already received. Message from Lake Bennett awaiting here your authorization.

ARCHER MARTIN.

ARCHER MARTIN, Barrister, Victoria, B.C. OTTAWA, July I2, I898.

'Minister out of town. Instructions sent police officials by mail yesterday to
allow George A. Gardiner to take in amount of liquor for which he holds permit.

A. P. COLLIER,
Private Secretary.

To Hon. CLIFFORD SIFTON, VICTORIA, B.C., July 1I, 1898.

Ottawa.

On thirtieth May George Shearwood reputable party of Victoria obtained
permit from Regina one thousand gallons and despatched liquor about month
ago via St. Michaels for Dawson. Responsible parties interested fear that they may
have similar unexpected trouble on Yukon River to that now being experienced
at Lake Bennett which they wish to avoid as consequences of being stopped on
Yukon very serious. Kindly send telegram to me authorizing your officials on
Yukon to allow liquor to pass. Messenger now waiting here to overtake shipment
at St. Michaels with your telegram.

ARCHER MARTIN.



Liquor Permits in the Yukon.

OTTAWA, July 12, 1898.

ARCHER MARTIN, Barrister, Victoria, B.C.

Minister out of town. Instructions sent police officials by mail yesterday to
allow George Sheanvood to take in amount of liquor for which he holds permit.

A. P. COLLIER,
Private Secretary.





Sessional Papers (No. 63A.)

RETURN
[63a]

To an ORDER of the MoUSE oF CoMMONS, dated the 24th April, 1899, for
copies of all letters, telegrams and communications from Frederick
Peters, Q.C., of Victoria, B.C., to the Minister of the Interior or to
any Minister of the Crown, or to any Deputy Minister, ajplying
for or relating to the granting of any permit to take or import
liquor into the Yukon Distiet, and all replies to such letters, tele-

grams and communications.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

(Telegrams.)

A private telegram, in cipher, was received from Mr. Frederick Peters by Sir
Louis Davies. The answer to the telegram was as follows:-

FREDERICK PETERS, Victoria.

Saw Minister Interior. Regret exceedingly absolutely impossible to grant
permit.

L. H. DAVIES.

VIcTORIA, B.C., July 28, 1898.
To Hon. CLIFFORD SIFTON,

Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa.

Governor North-west issued license to G. A. Strickland to take three thousand
gallons liquor into Yukon date 21 May last ; liquor has been sent and is now on
way up Yukon River, great loss wil result if liquor stopped. Will you kindly tele-
graph me an order to let it pass in and be sold.

FRED. PETERS.

62 Victoria. A. 1899
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAWA, July 29, 1898.

Hon. FRED. PETERS, Victoria, B.C.

Yukon authorities already instructed re permits issued by North-west Gov-
ernor. Strickland's included.

T. G. ROTHWELL,
Acting Deputy Minister.

VIcTORIA, B.C., July 30, 1898.
T. G. ROTHWELL,

Acting Deputy Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa.

Can you say whether instructions are to pass liquor, Strickland permit ; im-
portant to know as lie is sending agent to Dawson, Tuesday. Your telegram
leaves doubtful what instructions sent.

FRED. PETERS.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAWA, July 30, 1898.

Hon. FRED. PETERS, Victoria, B.C.

Yes. Strickland's permit of twenty-first May last, for three thousand gallons,
is included in list which all police officers instructed to pass.

T. G. ROTHWELL,
Acting Deputy Minister.

VICTORIA, B.C., August 8, 1898.
JAMEs A. SMART,

Deputy Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa.

Bennett Lake and Klondike Navigation Company's permit dated May
twenty-ninth not included in general release forwarded Major Steele, understand
from Hon. Clifford Sifton it was included as telegraphed Haultain. "Amur"
sails Wednesday. Please wire Steele release liquor covered by this permit.

FREDERICK PETERS.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,

Hon. FRED. PETERS, Victoria, B.C. OTTAWA, August 9, 1898.

Permit one thousand gallons Bennett Lake and Klondike Navigation Com-
pany issued May 21 last, is on list periits which police officers instructed to pass.

JAS. A. SMART,
Deputy Minister.

A. 1899
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RtETUIRN
[63b]

To the HOUSE OF COMMONS of correspondence relating to the importation

of liquor into the Yukon Territory.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

YUKON LIQUOR ORDINANCE.

Assented to December 7, 1898-not otherwise dated.
Received Interior Department, March 21, 1899.
Disallowed, April 14, 1899.
Letter to Mr. Ogilvie notifying him of disallowance sent April 15, 1899.

DEPARTMENT OF TH1E INTERIOR,
OTTAWA, April 13, 1899.

MAJOR PERRY,
North-west Mounted Police,

Vancouver, B.C.

DEAR SIR,-I beg to confirm my telegram to you of this date, which was as
follows :-

" Order has been passed prohibiting importation of liquor into Yukon Terri-
tory for the present. Advise all persons who have received permits or contem-
plate taking liquor into the territory accordingly, and also inforni the press. This
action has the effect of cancelling any permit issued upon which no liquor has
been taken in up to the present time, except permits issued direct by the depart-
ment for liquor for personal use."

Yours very truly,
JAS. A. SMART,

Deputy Minister.

Sinilar letter sent to J. M. Bowell, Collector of Customs, Vancouver, and to
A. R. Milne, Collector of Customs, Victoria, B.C.
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RET [RN
[63c]

To an ORDER of the HousE oF COMMONS, dated the 8th May, 1899, for
copies of all liquor permits issued by Major Walsh, and all reports
and correspondence respecting his action in this respect.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAWA, March 4, 1898.

Major J. M. WALSH,
Administrator Yukon District,

Dawson, Yukon Territory.
SIR,-I have the honour, by direction, to inclose herewith a copy of an order

of the Senate for a return of permits to take liquor into the Yukon District.
In the event of your having issued any such permits, or having authorized

any other person to do so, please furnish the department with the following
information in regard thereto :-

i. Number of permits granted to take liquor into the Yukon District;
2. Date of each permit ;
3. Name of each permittee;
4. Number of gallons covered by each permit
5. Fee charged per gallon in each case.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

LYNDWODE PEREIRA,
Assistant Secretary.

THE SENATE,
FRIDAY, February i8, 1898.

Resolved,-That an humble Address be presented to His Excellency the Gov-
ernor General praying that His Excellency will cause to be laid before the Senate
the number of permits that have been granted to persons for the purpose of taking
spirituous and intoxicating liquors into the Yukon District, the date of such per-
mits, together with the name of the per.son to whom a permit has been granted,
and the number of gallons covered by such permit, and the fee charged by the
government per gallon.

Ordered,-That the said Address be presented to His Excellency the Gov-
ernor General by such members of the Senate as are members of the Privy
Council.

Attest,
EDOUARD J. LANGEVIN,

Clerk of the Senate.
63-2 9
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COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE,
BENNETT, March 24, 1898.

To the Assistant Secretary,
Department of the Interior.

Ottawa.
SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of March 4,

463602, requesting a return from me of permits granted in the Yukon District.
I shall forward this to you within a f ew days.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. M. WALSH,
Commissioner, Yukon District.

COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE,
BENNETT, April 1, I898.

To the Hon. JAMEs A. SMART,
Deputy Minister of the Interior,

Ottawa.

SIR,-Inclosed find statement of permits for the importation of liquor into
the Yukon District, issued by me or by my authority, as requested by the As.ist-
ant Secretary of the Department of the Interior.

The money in payment of these permits in McLeod's case was paid to
Captain Strickland, who handed it over to Captain Wood, and was used by him in
paying off accounts. McCauley paid Wood for his permit, and this money too
was used by Wood in paying off accounts.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. M. WALSH,
Commissioner, Yukon District.

BENNETT, April i, 1898.

STATEMENT of Permits for the importation of Liquor into the Yukon District
issued by the Commissioner of the District.

Number
Nanie. Date. of Fee per Gallon.

Gallons.

McLeod and Sullivan............. . .... Nov. 5th, 1897.......... 1,000 $2.00

P. McCauley.......... ..... ........... Feb. 18th, 1898 ........ 100 2.00

Certified correct.
J. M. WALSH,

Commissioner, Yukon District.
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAWA, April 23, 1898.

Major J. M. WALSH,
Commissioner of the Yukon Territory,

c.|o. Officer in Command of N. W. Mounted Police,
Skagway, via Vancouver, B.C.

DEAR SIR,-I duly received your letter of the ist instant, written from Ben-
nett, in which you inclose a statement of liquor permits issued by you up to that
date. I may state that the government has not yet decided upon any policy with
regard to the admission of liquor in the Yukon Territory, and that no permits
are being issued from here in the meantime. I presume, therefore, that until yqu
are further advised, it might be well not to issue any other permits.

Yours truly,
JAS. A. SMART,

Deputy Minister.

COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE,
BENNETT, April 25, 1898.

To the Hon. JAMES A. SMART,
Deputy Minister of the Interior,

Ottawa.

SIR,-Inclosed find statement of permits for the importation of liquor into
the Yukon District issued by me or by my authority. I may say in forwarding a
similar statement to the Assistant Secretary of the Department of the Interior, for
the information of the Senate, N. McCauley's permit was shown for oo gallons in
place of for 1,ooo gallons. Inspector Wood, who issued McCauley's permit, had only
received payment for oo gallons, and I had ordered cancellation of the balance of
the permit, but afterwards found that McCauley had the liquor here, and in conse-
quence had to allow it to pass in.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. M. WALSH,
Commissioner, Yukon District.

STATEMENT of Permits for the importation of Liquor into the Yukon District,
issued by Major Walsh, Commissioner, or by his authority.

Name. Where insued. Date. Year. Quantity. Amountpaid.

Galls.
McLeod and Sullivan...... ........ Tagish.......... Nov. 5...... 1897 1,000 2,000

N. McCauley..................Bennett ........ Feb, 22..... 1898 1,000 2,000
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The amount of $2,ooo for McLeod and Sullivan's permit was paid by them to
Inspector Strickland, and was handed over by him to Inspector Wood, who
credited same to the general revenue from customs and other sources.

The amount of $2,ooo for N. McCauley's permit was paid by him to Inspector
Wood, who credited same as above.

J. M. WALSH,
Commissioner, Yukon District.

BENNETT, April 25, 1898.

EXTRACT from Report of August 15, 1898, from Major J. M. Walsh, Commissioner,
upon the Yukon District, zith regard to Liquor.

On my arrival at Dawson I found that Mr. Bulyea, representing the North-
west Territorial Government, had collected $2,000 license fee from each of some
sixteen saloon-keepers, and had issued licenses to them accordingly. I had
written you previously that I could not recognize the authority of the territorial
government in this district, and advised the saloon-keepers that I would not
irecognize Mr. Bulyea's action. The saloons were, in consequence, run as before
Mr. Bulyea's arrival at Dawson, under regulations defined by Superintendent
Constantine, of the North-west Mounted Police, with some few amendments, such
as the closing up of the bars on the Sabbath. Such liquor as was brought into
the district was passed through under permit from the Lieutenant Governôr of
the North-west Territories previous to my appointment as chief executive officer
of the Government of Canada in the Yukon District, except in two instances
of permits issued on my own authority. In two or three cases liquor was allowed
to pass into the district at Dawson City by the North-west Mounted Police at
Tagish, under permit issued by the territorial government, subsequent to my
appointment as aforesaid, but why those permits were recognized I have been
unable to ascertain, as it was directly contrary to instructions in this regard, which
I had explicitly given and which I thought were as explicitly understood. Imme-
diately upon the arrival of this liquor at Dawson I ordered it to be put in bond
until such time as instructions could be received from Ottawa. At the sane
time I forwarded instructions to the officer commanding the North-west Mounted
Police in the southern district to rigidly adhere to my previous instructions, and
I concurrently sent him a copy of the list of permits which had been issued for the
importation of liquor into the Yukon District, which were to be honoured
by him, instructing him that these were the only permits which he could honour.
This was in accordance with your communication to me from the Deputy Min-
ister of your department, with which was inclosed a list of all permits issued for
the importation of liquor into the Yukon District up to that time. I forwarded a
copy of this list to the officer commanding the North-west Mounted Police in the
southern division. At that time I wrote to you that I would do all in my power
to curtail the liquor trafflic and strongly advised that until I had seen you and
given you all the details of which I had become cognizant, liquor be prohibited
from the district. Subsequently, I received a further list of permits from Colonel
Steele, which had been issued by the Government of the North-west Territories,
and which, having been held by the Minister of Justice to be legal, had to be
recognized, and I gave orders accordingly.

A. 1899
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RETURN
[66a]

To an ORDER Of the HOUSE OF COMMONs dated the 24th April, 1899, for a copy
of the report or reports of Mr. Coste, late Engineer of the Public
Works Department, on the Yukon, more especially on the Teslin
Lake route, for a railway into the Yukon; also a copy of the report
of Mr. Lafontaine, or a copy of their joint report, if they made such
a report.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

Re YUKON-TESLIN ROUTE.

Feb. loth, 1S98.-From Cnief Engineer.-Reports on navigation of Stikine River from Fort Wrangel
to Glenora, and of Teasin Lake, Teslin, Lewes and Yukon Rivers, and states
that examination should be made of these waterways this summer. Cost to be
defrayed out of suin of $20,000 herein mentioned.

March 10th, 1898.-From Minister.--Approving instructions to be given to Chief Engineer respecting the
examination to be made of propotsed Canadian route to the Yukon gold fields.

April 23rd, 1898.-From Chief Engineer.-Reports on his examination of the mouth of the Stikine.
Calls attention to wharf accommodation required at Glenora, and suggests the
acquirement of a site for a wharf at Wrangel. Estimates cost of wharf and ware-
house at Glenora at $25,000, and states that in his opinion the Yukon can best be
reached by the Stikine route, on condition that for the present a wagon route be
built between Glenora and Teslin Lake, said wagon route to be transformed into
a railway before the opening of navigation in 1899.

Dec. 7th, 1898.-From Chief Engineer.-Reports on letters from the manager of the Canadian Develop.
ment Co. and the manager of the Canadian Pacific Navigation Co., in which they
reconimend certain improvements in waterways between the head of Lake Ben.
nett and Dawson City, and estimates cost at $30,000. Recommends J. C. Tache
to take charge of work, preparations for which should be comnienced at once.

Dec. 9, 189.-From Chief Engineer.-Reporting on his examination of the principal inlets north of
Burrard Inlet with a view of selecting the best harbour on the coast, which
might be used as a terminus on Canadian territory, should it be decided to extend
the proposed railway between Teslin Lake and the Stikine River, southward.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC -WORKS OF CANADA.

CHIEF ENGINEER'S OFFICE,
OTTAWA, 10th February, 1898.

Honourable J. I. TARTE,
Minister of Public Works.

SIR,-1 have the honour to lay before you the following information which I have
obtained by consultation with Mr. Ogilvie and by reading Mr. Jennings's report con-
cerning the navigation of the Stikine river from Fort Wrangel to Glenora, and con-
cerning the navigation of Teslin lake, the Teslin River, the Lewis river and the Yukon
Rivnr.
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FIRST.-STIKINE RIVER.

The Stikine River is navigable for powerful boats from its mouth to Glenora, a
distance of about 140 miles. The average current of the river is about three miles with
occasional short stretches of rapid water with a current not exceeding five to six
-niles.

The estuary in American territory is tidal, that is, vessels must wait for tide to
enter the river owing to the large sand flats drying at low water.

The river is comparatively free of snags, although difficulty has been experienced
in several places by accumulation of drift wood, particularly at the little Cafnon, 96
miles f rom the sea, and at Klootchman Cafion, 106 miles from the sea. A sum of
$5,000 could probably clear the river.

At two or three of the sharpest bends of the river, boats experience difficulty
owing to the current carrying them on shore. At these places cables could be placed to
assist these boats in ascending the current. Cost, say $2,000.

Near Glenora there appear to be some rocks in the way of boats, these could be
blasted if after examination they are found to be a serious obstruction. It would be
well to provide say $3,000 for this work.

The total required for the Stikine for immediate work should not exceed
$10,000.

SECOND.-TELIN LAKE.

Teslin lake is about 65 miles long, and is navigable for vessels of light draught
(not more than three feet 6 inches). The first ten miles are more like a river than a
lake and have two narrows in which only four feet of water are available towards the
end of the season of navigation, viz., 15th October.

THIRD.-TELIN RIVER.

There does not appear to be any difficulty to navigate that river with small river
steamers of three to four feet draught.

FOURTH.-LEwEs RIVER.

The river Lewes is navigable to its nonfluence with the Yukon, but a great difficulty
is experienced in running up the Five Finger rapids.

For the coming season of navigation the only assistance that could be given, to
boats ascending the river would be to stretch a strong wire cable across the rapids, by
which vessels would pull themselves up.

In the meantime an examination could be made with a yiew of removing the
obstacles which form this dip or rapid. It would be well to provide for the purpose of
the cable, examination and work next winter the sum of $10,000.

FIFTI.-YUKON RIVER.

The Yukon River while shallow in places appears to be navigable for the same class
of river boats which would have to be provided on the Lewes, Teslin River and Teslin
Lake.

A general examination of these rivers should be made during the summer, the cost
of which could be defrayed out of total of $20,000 which is mentioned in this report.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

LOUIS COSTE,
Chief Engineýer.
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OTTAWA, 10th March, 1898.
Louis COSTE, Esq.,

Chief Engineer,
Public Works Department.

S1a,-By direction of the Honourable the Minister, I have the honour to send you
the following instructions with references to the examination you have already been
verbally instructed by him to make in connection with the proposed Canadian route to
the Yukon gold fields.

You will kindly proceed with al] possible despatch to Victoria or Vancouver,
British Columbia, and there make your final preparations for the examination in
question.

You will understand that it is hardly possible to give you absolutely definite
orders, as the information at hand is of a meagre nature, but it will be necessary that
you shall include in your examination the following points, namely:-

lst.-Port Simpson and Observatory Inlet; to obtain all desirable information
with reference to the navigation of that arm of the Portland Canal, depth of water,
possibilities and facilities for transhipment at Simpson on boats capable of navigating
to and up the Stikine, desirability of the construction of wharfs, docks, etc., at its
upper end, should it be necessary in the future to extend from Glenora south-ward to
the head of the Inlet. the railway which is now under contract from Glenora to Teslin
Lake.

2nd.-Fort Wrangel and Stikine River.
You will make as close an examination of that portion of the river from its mouth

to Glenora with a view of ascertaining the possibilities of navigation, the depth of
water which will of course regulate the draft of the vessels which will navigate thereon,
the works required to improve that navigation, either by snagging, renoval of rocks or
otherwise.

In this connection you will have at your dispossal the snag boat "Sampson" which
you are authorized to place in commission, and put it at work at such points of the
Stikine river where you think it advisable.

As regards the examination of that portion of the Stikine river within the line
which is claimed by the United States as their boundary, you are requested to exercisè
the greatest possible care, so as to avoid any friction of any kind, with the officials of
the United States, but at the sanie time, it is desirable that you should make all
endeavours to obtain all the information which might prove useful or desirable.

You will then proceed in the quickest manner to the head of Teslin Lake and to the
Yukon Territory, through the rivers Hootalinqua, Lewes and Yukon, to Dawson City,
naking en ronte all the observations which you will think necessary, and putting in hand

such work on that route as you will think indispensable in the interest of navigation.
While proceeding on that journey you will also be good enough to take notice

with reference to the possibility of the construction of a telegraph line from the head of
Tealin Lake to Dawson city, noting for that purpose the nature of the soil, whether there
is any timber fit for poles, and taking all information in reference to the cost of trans-
portation, wages, etc.

As often as it will be practicable, you will be kind enough to keep the department
informed by interim reports, of your progress, and of the steps you have taken under
these instructions.

The sum of $1,000 will be placed at your disposal, immediately for the preliminary
preparations, and a further credit for the sum of $10,000 will be given to you on a bank
in British Columbia, in order to enable you to complete your preparations and to pay
the expenses of the examination to be made.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. GOBEIL,
Deputy Minister.
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OTTAWA, 23rd April, 1898.
Hon. J. IsRAEL TARTE,

Minister of Public Works.

SIR,-I have the honour to state the following concerning the examination I made
of the mouth of the Stikine River, and upon the information which I obtained relative
to its condition both during the winter and summer seasons.

The River Stikine has its source in the southern part of the Cassiar district, and
runs north a distance of nearly 130 miles up to the 58th parallel, where it suddenly
makes a sharp bend, and then runs almost due south to within twenty miles of its
mouth, a distance of 150 miles. From that point it runs in a westerly direction and
empties in the Stikine Strait (Pacific Ocean) between the islands of Wrangel and
Mitkof. The total length of the Stikine River is approximately 300 miles, of which
130 miles are navigable, or as far as Glenora, which is the terminus of the proposed
railway between the Stikine and Teslin Lake.

MOUTH OF THE STIKINE.

The mouth of the Stickine River proper is situated 10 miles from the port of
Wrangel, between Point Rothsay and Farm Island, where it has a width of 2½ miles.
It is subjected to high tides varying from 18 to 26 feet (neaps 18, springs 26 feet)
which affect the river as far up as the Ka-te-té River, a small tributary which empties
into the Stikine 25 miles from its mouth.

That portion of the river is navigable without any difficulty on the rising tide.
At the lowest water the mouth is for about two hours a sand flat for a distance of about
5 miles, through which the river winds its course, being about 200 feet in width, with a
depth of water of about 20 inches ; but as I said before, the rise of the tide makes this
part of the river easily navigable, and as soon as the tide has risen 4 or 5 feet, there is
abundance of water for any river boat.

The width of the river for the first 25 miles varies fron 2½ miles to 500 feet,
although in some places islands divide it in several channels, the largest of which is
about 200 feet in width.

STIKINE RIVER FROM TIDAL WATER TO LITTLE CANON.

From the 25th mile to the Little Cafion, situated 95 miles from Port Wrangel,
the river is tortuous, but is, froin information obtained, easily navigable as soon the
freshets commence, generally on or about the 1st June, when the water rises very
suddenly to a height of 16 feet above its normal level. This navigation is good in June,
July, August and September, the depth of water decreasing gradually. From the time
of the opening of navigation until June, that is to say during the month of May, the
river is low and can only be navigated with powerful river boats of a small draft. The
same may be said for the month of October.

The greatest current from the mouth of the river to the Little Caion is said to be
about 7 miles an hour, but only at one or two places for short distances. In that
section of the river the only impediment to navigation consists of snags and large trees
which overhang the bank of the river. These obstructions can be easily removed, and
the snag boat "Samson," which will shortly reach the mouth of the Stikine, will have
no trouble in removing these obstacles.

As a matter of fact I believe that one season's work of the "Samson" will clear all
the obstructions ot that nature.

SECTION FROM LITTLE CANON TO GLENORA.

From Little Cafion to Glenora, a distance of about 45 miles, the information
obtained leads me to believe that the Stikine River is deep enough for the navigation
of river boats. In some stretches, p trticularly in the Little Cañon, the Klootchman

4
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Cafion and the Grand Rapids, the current is said to be very great, but the "Caledonia"
has often made the trip as far as Telegraph Creek, and inasmuch as the new river boats
built for the Stikine route are far more powerful than the "Caledonia," I have no
reason to doubt that they will be able to reach Glenora without trouble.

The banks of the river are very high, the peaks of mountains over 5,000 feet high
being situated only l½ miles from the valley of the river. Fortunately whenever a
glacier reaches the valley, it is in the widest part of the valley, and the navigable
channel is on the opposite shore, so that danger cannot be anticipated from land or snow
slides.

CONDITION OF THE STIKINE RIVER THROUGIOUT THE YEAR.

The Stikine River is generally opened for navigation on or about the first week
in May. It is low until the melting of the snow commences, but affords good navigation
in June, July, August and September, and while difficult in May and October, can be
navigated by small powerful river boats during these two months.

The ice forns on the river in the upper stretches from the 15th November, to the
30th November, and the first cold weather is generally followed by great falls of snow
which militate greaitly against the facility of travel during the winter season, although
it is always possible for light convoys to reach Glenora by that route during the months
of January and February and often inl March. This year owing to a very early spring
all movement on the river ceased about the 15th March.

WORK REQUIRED ON THE STIKINE.

The work required on the Stikine will be light. Beyond the removal of snags,
vhich will be attended to by the snag boat "Samson," there may be a few pieces of pro-

jecting rock to blast in the caions, and a small ledge near Glenora to remove.
For this purpose 500 lbs. of dynamite have been taken from Vancouver on the

"Samson."
, In two or three places it may also be found advisable to close some small channels

to concentrate the force of the current in the main channel and obtain a greater depth
by scour. This work if found necessary, will be done by the crew of the "Samson,"
which has had a great experience of wo k of that kind on the Fraser river. The work
will be done cheaply with brush mattresses and piling.

POSSIBILITIES OF THE STIKINE RIVER AS A LINK IN A ROUTE TO THE YUKON.

From all I have heard and seen on the coast, I believe that being given that the
portage from Glenora to Teslin Lake is improved by the construction of a railway or
wagon route, the Stikine route will be the cheapest and best inlet into the Yukon
Territory for all provisions and mining supplies required in that country during the
Summer season, particularly as it is known by Mr. Hamlin's repdrt that the Hootalinqua
river offers no obstacle to navigation, and that the Lewis and Yukon rivers are
navigable,-the only difficult place being the Five Finger Rapid on the Lewes river,
which, from a description given to me by Mr. Ogilvie, can be improved with very little
work. A great number of people are anxious to avail themselves of the Stikine route,
and I, therefore, must strongly insist upon the necessity of improving at once that part
of the route which lies between Glenora and Teslin Lake.

Had it been possible to construct the proposed railway between these two points in
time for the opening of navigation, I have no doubt that the large majority of the gold
seekers or traders intending to go into the Yukon, would have adopted that route.

In this connection allow me to point out that large wharfing accommodation will
be required both at Wrangel and at Glenora.

- At Wrangle there are only two wharfs, the Boscowith wharf which is I under-
stand the property of the Hudson Bay Company, and the Canadian Pacific Railway
wharf. I doubt very much that these wharfs which have only a frontage of 250 and
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340 feet respectively, for ocean steamers, and about the same frontage for river boats,
will afford sufficient accommodation, and I fear that the rates charged for tranship-
ment ($3 per ton) may militate against cheap supplies in the Yukon.

My idea would be that the Government should acquire a site through an agent and
build a wharf at that place ; this can be done, although as Wrangel is in American
territory it might perhaps be as well to ascertain whether there would be any objection
to the construction of a wharf at that place by the Canadian Government, on the part
of the American authorities.

At Glenora wharf accommodation is at present almost nil. A good wharf 500 feet
frontage on the river with a first class warehouse would not cost more than $25,000.

To resume, the Stikine route is in my opinin the best to reach the Yukon on con-
dition that, for the present, a wagon route be built between Glenora and Teslin Lake
without delay, said wagon route being transformed into a railway before the opening
of navigation in 1899.

Later on, when this work has been completed, the question of a railway route to a
Canadian port might be considered, and when built would certainly assure to Canadians
the vast trade to the Yukon and the larger share of the immense riches contained in
that territory and in the numerous mineral districts of northern British Columbia.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

LOUIS COSTE,
Chief Engineer-

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS OF CANADA.
CHIEF ENGINEER'S OFFICE,

OTTAWA, 7th December, 1898.
Hon. J. I. TARTE,

Minister of Public Works.

SIR,-With reference to letters from Mr. Maitland Kersey, Manager of the Cana-
dian Development Company, and Captain John Irving, Manager of the Canadian
Pacific Navigation Company, in which they recommend certain improvements in the
waterways between the Head of Lake Bennett and Dawson City, I have the honour to
report the following:

The most popular route into the Yukon country has been in the past, by way of
Skagway, Lake Bennett, the Lewes and Yukon rivers.

This route with the exception of 38 miles from Skagway to the head of Lake Bennett
and the 3 mile portage occasioned by the Mile Cafñon and the White Horse Rapids is
entirely a water route.

The overland journgy from Skagway to the head of Lake Bennett can at the present
time be accomplished by train for a distance of 8 miles, and by pack train for 30 miles,
but the railway is very nearly completed to the summit of the White Pass, a distance of
18 miles, and will undoubtedly be completed to the head of Lake Bennett at the begin-
ning of next June, if the company is allowed to construct on Canadian territory.

From the head of Lake Bennett, the route is Lake Bennett, Lake& Nares, Lake
Tagish, the 6 Mile River, Lake Marsh, the 60 Mile River (Upper Lewes) up to the land-
ing above Mile Cafñon a distance of about 95 miles. This stretch of water is navigated
daily by two small steamers of light draught and passengers and freight are safely-
carried in these boats and landed at the upper end of Mile Cafñon.

From the landing above the Mile Caflon to the landing below the White Horse
Rapids the distance is about three miles. Freight is carried by tramway, passengers-
walk, unless they are tempted to run the Cafñon and White Horse Rapids, in small
row-boats or in small barges, a feat attempted by many last year with comparatively few-
accidents.
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From the White Horse Rapids to Dawson City, the navigation is continuous, the
distance being about 439 miles. The starting point is the landing below the White
Horse Rapids, and thence by the 60 Mile River, Lake Laberge, the 30 Mile River, the
Lewes and Yukon rivers, Dawson City is reached without change of boats.

The existence of the Mile Canon and the White Horse Rapids is a great draw-
back to the continuity of navigation, and increases the cost of transportation consider-
ably, but as the only way of improving this condition of affairs would be to build a dam
and lock at an enormous cost probably half a million dollars, I do not propose to recom-
mend that any work be undertaken at that point, especially in view of the proposed
extension of the railway from Skagway to a point below the White Horse Rapids on the
60 Mile River.

On the first stretch of navigation, viz. : between the head of Lake Bennett to the
White Horse Rapids; two points require to be improved. The first point is the Cariboo
Crossing at the foot of Lake Bennett where for a short distance there is only about 2
feet 6 inches of water at the time of low water in June and beginning of July.

The only reliable means cf increasing that depth would be by the construction of a
wing dam about 150 feet in length so as to raise the water by about 1 foot.

This dam would cost about $6,000.
The second point is the 6 M ile River in which four or five rocks, which are in close

proximity to the channel, should be blasted.
Estimated cost $2,000.
Improvements at these two points would enable light draught boats to reach the

White Horse Rapids without any danger whatever.
On the second xtretch of navigation, from the White Horse Rapids to Dawson City,

a nunber of improvements çe required to permit navigation with any degree of reason-
able security.

Starting from the White Horse Rapids, the steamers go down the 60 Mile River
until they reach Lake Labarge, and go down that portion of the Lewes River, known
locally as the 30 Mile River, thence by the Lewes and Yukon rivers they proceed on to
Dawson.

It is principally on the 30 Mile River that improvements are required.
This river, which may be said to be the outlet of a large number of mountain lakes,

is at its lowest level immediately after the ice has disappeared, and remains very low up
to about the 15th of July. During that time it is extremely difficult to navigate this
river owing to the large quantities of rocks in the channel. From July to the close of
navigation the 30 Mile River rises from 8 to 12 feet, but even then, several very danger-
ous rocks, almost level with the water, or submerged from 2 to 3 feet, render the navi-
gation very difficult and precarious. I an not able to give an estimate of the cost of
removing al] the rocks or boulders which are in the way of navigation, as the examina-
tion was made at the time of high water by Mr. Lafontaine, but a sum of $10,000
could profitably be expended this winter in blasting the most dangerous of the rocks.

I inclose a sketch of the river which will give an approxinrate idea of its condition.
The next point of importance where improvements are needed is the Five Finger

Rapids, on the Lewes River.
The present channel is on the right hand side, but it is hardly wide enough for

steamers such as the "James Domville," the " Canadian," the " Columbian," which
are nearly 150 feet in length, and moreover there is a considerable dip or fall in the
water level of the river which makes it very dangerous for steamers.

A lack of steam power at the required moment would mean sure destruction.
On the lef t hand side the channel is wide, fully 250 feet, and while the current is

very rapid there is no fall.
Unfortunately several large rocks obstruct the channel and render it more dangerous

than the other.
By the removal of these rocks four or five in number, and of two or three a little

below the rapids, this channel would afford ample security to any steamboat.
The estimated cost of removing these rocks is $5,000.
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Three miles below the Five Finger Rapids there is another rapid known as the
Rink Rapid. The channel is wide, about 150 feet along the right bank of the river,
but it is obstructed by two rocks which can easily be removed at a small cost, probably
not more than $1,000.

From that point down to Fort Selkirk and thence to Dawson City there are no
rapids and practically no impediment to navigation except during the period of low
water in Septenber and October, when, owing to the low water and the existence of
gravel bars the main channel has only about three to four feet of water. These shoal
spots occur generally where the river is very wide and where there are a number of
different channels.

This has lead several people to recommend the closing of several subsidiary channels,
so as to confine the flow of the river into one main channel, but ny opinion is that the
force of the water would not have the desired effect on the very coarse gravel bars, and
that to deepen the channel it would be necessary to build works strong enough to con-
fine the flow of ice in the spring through the one channel. This, however, would entail
a very large expenditure which [ cannot recommend, with a better knowledge of the
Lewes and Yukon rivers, and with a great deal of caution, the pilots of the steamers
navigating these rivers will be able, even at the tine of lowest water, to pick up a chan-
nel where their light drauglt boats can pass without too much difficulty.

The improvements above referred to are important. The Skagway route is bound
to remain for years yet the favourite route into the Yukon country, and inasmuch as it
is almost entirely in Canadian territory, I feel justified in recommending these improve-
ments to the earnest attention of the lonourable the Minister.

The following table shows the work recommended

1. At Cariboo crossing, wing dam required to increase depth
of water by one foot at least, estimated cost .......... $ 6,000

2. Removal of rocks in the Sixty-mile River between Lake
Tagish and Lake Marsh, say.. . ... ............ .. 2,000

3. Iemoval of rocks in the Thirty-mile River from Lake
Laberge to the confluence of the Lewes and Hootalin-
qua rivers, say .................................. 10,000

4. Removal of rocks at the Five Finiger Rapids, say ...... . 5,000
5. Removal of rocks at the Rink Rapids .......... ... 1,000

$ 24,000
Add for contingencies and superintendence ...... . 6,000

$ 30,000

Preparations for the carrying out of this work should commence at once. The only
favourable season to do this work is the winter, when the water is low, most of the rocks
are bare, and the points are easily accessible.

In this connection I would suggest that Mr. J. C. Taché, of this department, be
placed in charge of the work, and that James Jarmin, who has had considerable expe-
rience in handling dynamite, be sent with him not later than the 15th January next, in
order that they may reach the scene of operations early in March.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

LOUIS COSTE,
Chief Engineer.
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS OF CANADA,
CHIEF ENGINEER'S OFFICE,

OTTAwA, 9th December, 1898.
Honourable J. I. TARTE,

Minister of Public Works.

S1R,-Early last March you instructed me to proceed to the Pacific coast to examine
the principal inlets north of Burrard Inlet with a view of selecting the best harbour on
the coast which might be used as a terminus on Canadian territory for the proposed
railway between Teslin Lake and the Stikine River, should it be decided to extend this
railway southward, either in case of difficulties with the American authorities at
Wrangel, or in the event of the Stikine River proving non-navigable.

You also instructed me to make an examination, and if I thought it advisable, a
complete survey of the Stikine River, and you gave me authority to undertake what-
ever work I might deem expedient in the interest of navigation on that river, and for
that purpose you placed at my disposal the services of the snag boat "Samson," which
was then in commission on the Fraser River.

You further directed me to proceed to Dawson City by way of Teslin Lake, and
to examine Teslin Lake, the Hootalinqua, the Lewes and the Yukon rivers, so as to
ascertain whether or not these waterways were navigable or could be made so with a
small expenditure of money.

To enable me to carry out this important work, you were kind enough to give me
the following staff:-

M r. Emery Lafontaine, as first assistant.
Mr. N. B. McLean, as second assistant.
Mr. J. Gobeil, as secretary.
Messrs. J. McDougall, E. B. Charleson, J. A. Armstrong, and Blain St. Aubin, as

rodmen, chainîmen, &c.
Messrs. Jarmine and Lemoine, as foremen of work.
To this staff I added Captain Gardner, a first class pilot, who had been strongly

recommended to me by the manager of the Hudson Bay Company as one of the best
swift water pilots on the Pacific coast.

I also obtained the services of a cook.
All the members of this staff have given me entire satisfaction, and it was with

regret that I dispensed with the services of most of theni when after a most careful
examination of the Stikine River I concluded that it was not necessary to make a
thorough survey of that river, owing to the ever-changing course of the navigable
channel, and the fact that I realized that a survey would cost at least $25,000.

I have already given you my report concerning the examination of the inlets, and
have recommended. in the event of the Teslin-Stikine Railway being built and event-
ually extended in a southerly direction, that Kitimat Harbour at the head of the Douglas
Channel be selected as the terminus on the Pacific coast in Canadian territory.

My reason for selecting Kitimat Harbour, in preference to the harbour at the head
of Alice Arm was that a railway from the Stikine at or near Glenora to Kitimat Har-
bour would, although somewhat longer, pass through a much better country than a
railway which would reach Alice Arm, and would become a great factor in the future
development of two important mining districts, i.e., the Omenica and North Cariboo
districts.

STIKINE RIVER.

Much has already been written concerning the Stikine River. It has been since
1873, when the Cassiar district was opened up, an important avenue of communication
from the coast to the Dease Lake district.

The exact position of its source is unknown, but it is supposed to be in the high
mountains from which both the Skeena and the Naas rivers flow. Its general course
is first northward for a distance of about 120 miles, then it gradually circles westward
for a distance of 50 miles and trends southward for nearly 100 miles to a point about
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25 miles from its mouth, where its direction becomes almost due east and west until it
reaches the sea, through the flats situated between the Mitkof and Wrangel Islands.

The mouth of the Stikine is subjected to very high tides, varying from 18 to 26
feet.

From personal observations, I would say that the highest tide only affects the river
for a distance of about 12 miles from its mouth. Other authorities, however, contend
that the influence of tidal action is felt as far up as the mouth of Ka-te-té River, a small
tributary which empties into it 25 miles from the mouth.

At lowest water, the channel of the river through the flats has only a depth of
about 20 inches of water, but on the rising tide, this channel becomes navigable for
stern-wheeled steamers, and as a matter of fact the whole of the portion of the river
affected by tide is always easily navigated, the current averages only two miles per hour.

From the mouth of the Ka-te-té to the Little Cafien, 95 miles from Fort Wrangel,
the river is tortuous and at various points very swift, 5 and 6 miles per hour, but
powerful stern-wheel steamers navigate this stretch without too much difficulty from the
time of the freshets which occur on or about the 1st June until about the 15th August,
when the water has receded 12 or 15 feet and has reached a very low stage. Fi om that
time to the close of navigation, about 15th November, navigation is only possible to the
smallest stern-wheel steamers, and then with considerable difficulty. The only impedi-
ment to navigation in that portion of the river was snags and overhanging trees.
These obstructions have been in great part removed during the past summer.

The Little Cafion is about ¾ of a mile in length, its width being from 150 to 200
feet, confined between banks 100 to 350 feet in height. This cafñon is navigable at
all times, except for three or four days at the time of the freshets, when the current is
exceedingly swift, probably 8 to 10 miles per hour, and at that time the river carries so
many trees and logs that it would be unsafe to attempt to run the cafion.

Above the Little Canâon and right up to Glenora, a distance of about 40 miles, the
river is very rapid, particularly at the Klootchman Canon and at the Grand Rapid, but
the depth of water is generally ample for the stern-wheel steamers which can navigate
the lower portion of the river. In that stretch it is, however, a constant pull, and good
engine power is required.

Above Glenora the river is navigable to Telegraph Creek, a further distance of 10
miles ; on that stretch of the river, the current averages, 6 miles per hour, but there is
good water, and powerful boats have no difficulty.

At Telegraph Creek the river is 500 feet in width, and its elevation above sea-
level is 540 feet. The principal tributaries of the Stikine River are :-The First and
Second Forks, the Scud and the Iskoot Rivers on the left bank, and the Tuya, the
Tahltan and the Clearwater Rivers on the right bank.

The banks of the river are generally very high. In places peaks 5,000 feet high
are only one mile from the water's edge, and several very large glaciers extend gradually
from the summit of these mountains to almost the banks of the river-such as the
Little Glacier, the Great Glacier, the Mud Glacier and the Flood Glacier. These
glaciers are almost the only feeders of the lower portion of the river, that below the
Little Cafion, and the river commences to lower as soon as the weather becomes cold
and the thawing of these glaciers ceases, so that it often happens in the aut umn that the
Stikine River is very high after several days of rain in its upper stretch, from its
source to the caffon, and yet it remains very low below the caflon to the mouth.

During the season considerable work was done on the Stikine River in removing
snags and sunken logs and in cutting over-hanging trees along the banks in the deepest
channels.

The snag boat " Samson" commenced operations on the 1st of June, and continued up
to the 27th day of September, removing during the time 1,923 snags, over-hanging trees
or logs which were all considered a source of danger to navigation. All those snags or
trees were of considerable length, some being nearly 200 feet.

The operations of the snag boat were confined to that stretch of the river lying
between the Provisional Boundary and the 75th mile. Owing to the great current of
the river and the lack of power in the boat, it was found better and more economical
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to send a party composed of Indians and half-breeds under the supervision of Messrs.
Jarmin & Lemoine to remove by blasting all the bad snags and other obstructions lying
between the 75th mile and Glenora.

This party performed the work entrusted to them to the satisfaction of the
captains of the steamers navigating the river. I regret to be unable to give the details
of thoir work. The weekly reports of the superintendents have been destroyed by fire
at New Westminster.

The total expenditure for this work from March to the end of October will not
exceed $20,000.

On the whole, while the Stikine River is navigable for three months of the year
by powerful stern-wheel steamers of light draught, it is evident that if the proposed
railway between Glenora and Teslin Lake had been constructed, the Stikine River
would only have served temporarily as the first link in the route, and that it would
have been necessary to extend the railway in a southerly direction to a point on the
Pacifie, in Canadian territory.

The movement of passengers and merchandise on the Stikine was considerable
between the opening of navigation and the first of July, but the abandonment of the
projected railway and the knowledge that the trait between the Stikine River and Teslin
Lake was in very poor condition, and beyond all other reasons, the fact that the cost of
transportation of freight was about $800 per ton from Glenora or Telegraph Creek to
Teslin Lake, and only possible by horses or mules, discouraged the large number of pros-
pectors who had selected the Stikine-Teslin route, and some abandoned all idea of reach-
ing the Yukon and went to the Dease Lake country, while others returned to Wrangel
and made their way to the Yukon by Skagway or Dyea. A few, however, more coura-
geous and better equipped, undertook the long portage between the Stikine and Teslin
Lake, but very few of these unfortunates have been lucky enough to reach the Klondyke
this year.

TRAIL FROM THE STIKINE TO TESLIN LAKE.

This trail starts from Glenora or Telegraph Creek on the Stikine and trends
in a northerly direction until the Tahltan River is reached, thence it runs westwardly
to the Egnelle Mountain, and thence again in a northerly direction until it reaches the
head of Lake Teslin.

The length of the trail is 175 miles. With the exception of the first 4 miles which
had been converted into a wagon road by the Mackenzie-Mann party in the early spring,
and the next twenty miles on which some little work was done, the trail was in a most
deplorable condition, and travelling across froui the Stikine to Teslin was the hardest
kind of travelling.

Freighting was done almost altogether by pack trains of horses and mules, at the
enormous cost of 40e. per pound, and at that price very little business would have been
done by the packers had it not been for the large amount of freight of the Yukon
military force.

Only about 600 prospectors undertook to portage bet ween the Stikine and Teslin
Lake, and all experienced considerable difliculty and great hardship, and lost the greater
part of the summer on the trail.

The government of British Columbia had, in the early part of the season, a small
force of men at work at various points on the trail, but while the few bridges erected,
did afford better passage across some of the streams, miles and miles of marshy ground
had to be crossed, in which pack animals would sink and fall, necessitating re-packing
and causing great delay.

The country traversed by the trait is generally covered by moss or decayed vegeta-
ble matter to a depth of from one to two feet which would have to be removed in case
the construction of a wagon road was decided upon. This would considerably increase
the cost of such a road. and probably bring it up to about $3,000 per mile.

From Telegraph Creek to the Nahlin River a distance of about 120 miles, a wag-
on road could be located along the present trail, but from the Nahlin to Teslin Lake,
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it would be necessary to locate the road considerably east of the present trail on the
side hill situated from 6 to 8 miles eastward, in order to avoid the numerous marshes
which the present trail crosses.

A very good description of the country traversed by the trail has already been
given by Mr. St. Cyr, see report of Department of Interior for the year 1897, pages
101 to 114.

TESLIN LAKE AND HOOTALINQUA RIVER.

Teslin Lake is about 65 miles in lengtli but its average width is not more than 1¾
miles. It has more the appearance of a large river. The depth of water varies consi-
derably, is always ample for any stern-wheel steamer which might be placed on the
route. At the lower end, however, there is a very shallow passage known as the
Narrows in which only 5 feet of water are found, but when these Narrows cease to
afford enough water for light draught steamers, the Hootolinqua bas long ceased to be
navigable. The bearing of the lake is north-west. The only important rivers which
empty into Teslin Lake are the Nisultin and the Morley Rivers.

The lootalinqua River is the outiet of Lake Teslin, It runs generally in a north-
westerly direction for a distancetof 130 miles until it joins the 30 Mile River forming
with this latter the Lewes River proper.

The Hootalinqua is a rapid river exceedingly crooked, with very sharp bends. The
average rate of the current in July was about 4 miles per hour-maximum current
being 6 miles per hour in four or five places, but only for very short distances.

The river is for the greater portion divided into many channels and its width there-
fore varies considerably. The main channel may be said to average about 350 feet in
width, although in places the navigable channel is less than 100 feet in width, through
sand and gravel bars through which it is very difficult to find the deepest water.

At the time of my examination, end of July, the Hootalinqua was navigable for
small steamers drawing 4 feet of water, and the " Anglian " a small stern-wheler built
on Teslin Lake, made one trip down the Hootalinqua at that tine, drawing 3 feet 6
inches, without experiencing too much difficulty, but on the 15th of August, this same
steamer attempted to go up the Hootalinqua on a draught of only 1 foot 10 inches, but
only inanaged with the utmost difficulty to go up 20 miles, then it was a-certained that
for a long distance the river only afforded 2 feet of water and the attempt to proceed
further up was abandoned.

I can fully credit the statements made by the officers of the " Anglian" as I
realised while examining the river that it was fast falling and that there was then in
many places barely enough water for a loaded boat.

LEWES RIVER.

The Lewes River proper commences at the confluence of the Hootalinqua and the
30 Mile River, this latter being the discharge of a series of lakes situated north of the
Lynn Canal in the coast range of mountains.

The bearing of the river is nearly due north until the mouth of the Big Salmon
River is reached, 28 miles from the confluence of the Hootalinqua and the 30 Mile
River. It is generally much narrower and comparatively speaking less crooked than
the remainder of the river. The average width of that stretch of the river is not more
than 500 feet, while the average current is 4½ miles per hour. The capacity of the
river was computed to be, at the end of July, 35,000 cubic feet per second above the
junction of the Big Salmon River.

Fron the mouth of the Big Salmon River, which emptie3 into the Lewes on the
right bank, to the mouth of the Nordenskiold, which empties into the Lewes on the left
bank, or for a distance of 58 miles, the bearing of the river is almost west-north-west.
The only tributary of importance between the Big Salmon and the Nordenskiold is the
Little Salmon, which empties into the Lewes about half way between the two, on the
right bank.

A. 1899
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On this stretch the current is not so great and seldom exceeds 4 miles per hour,
while it only averages about 2½ miles. It does not appear to offer any difliculty to
navigation.

The hills forming the valley of the river are comparatively low, seldom exceeding
800 feet in height, except the Siminow Hills, opposite the mouth of the Big Salmon
River, which rise fully 2,000 feet above the level of the river.

From the mouth of the Nordenskiold to its confluence with the Pelly River at Fort
Selkirk, the Lewes River runs in a north-westerly direction. It is very swift for the
whole distance which is about 56 miles. The average being fully 4½ miles per hour, and
occasionally as much as 6 miles per hour for short distances.

The hills along this section of the river are not much more than 1,000 feet in height.
They slope to the water's edge in terraces, the lower one being generally flat and often
not more than 50 feet in height. The river is strewn with islands and in many places
it is a hard matter to select the best channel. It is particularly so, near Fort Selkirk,
among what is known as the Ingersoll group of islands, where at the time of low water,
September and October, it is only with great difficulty that a steamer requiring 4 feet
of water can find its way.

It has been suggested that if a number of the smaller channels were closed, the
increased volume of water which would be thrown into the main channel might have a
tendency to scour and thus deepen the river. I do not think that the closing of any of
the channels would have the result anticipated. The bars are composed of very coarse
and packed gravel and the force of the water would not deepen the main channel. The
only way of obtaining more water would be by the building of very extensive works
which would confine the flow of the ice in the spring into the one channel. This pro-
ject, however, cannot be recommended owing to the very great cost of such a
project.

Navigation must always be subjected to some slight drawback in a sparsely
inhabited country such as the one traversed by the Lewes River, although I have no
doubt that as the pilots become better acquainted with the river channels they always
will be able to overcome the difficulty above referred to.

There are, however, on this section of the Lewes River two points where by a
small expenditure of money great good might be done to navigation. I refer to the
Five Finger Rapids and the Rink Rapids.

The Five Finger Rapid is situated 17 miles below the mouth of the Nordenskiold
River. At that point the river is divided into several channels formed by rocky
islands. Its total width is about 700 feet.

The channel on the right bank is not over 80 feet in width, but the fall or dip of
nearly 2 feet while not a great obstacle to boats going down stream, stands as a great
obstruction to boats going up river. Several of these such as the " Canadian " and the
" Columbian " have run up this fall, but it is a dangerous feat. Lack of steam power
or the slightest derangenent in the machinery would mean sure destruction.

The left hand channel is wide, fully 250 feet and would afford a much safer pas-
sage for steamers were it not that it is obstructed by several rocks which render it very
dangerous.

These rocks could be blasted during the winter season for a comparatively small
expenditure, probably not more than $5,000, and then the Five Finger Rapid could
easily be overcome. This improvement is all the more required that the navigable
channel below the rapids is along the left bank of the river and steamers shooting the
rapids on the right hand channel have to immediately cross the river in order to avoid
the shallow point of the island situated below the rapids, a not always easy thing to do
i a current of nearly 7 miles per hour.

Three miles below the Five Finger Rapids is another rapid known as the Rink
Rapid formed by a bar of rocks. The navigable channel is along the right bank of the
river. It is fully 150 feet in width, but is obstructed by two points of rock. The
reinoval of these two small obstructions would make the channel perfectly safe. This
could be done on the ice for about $1,000.
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YUKON RIVER.

At Fort Selkirk the Lewes and the Pelly rivers join to from the Yukon River.
From the contluence of these rivers to Dawson City, the distance by river is about

169 miles, 75 miles in a direction almost due west and the remainder of the distance
almost due north.

The Yukon is generally very wide, averaging fully one-half a mile. It contains a
great many islands all well timbered, and a great nany coarse gravel bars, but the
main channel is very easy to follow and offers abun<ance of water for stern-wheel
steamers. The current is moderate, varrying from 1 to 4 miles per hour, but it is only
very occasionally and for very small distances that it exceeds three miles.

The principal tributaries are: on the east side, the Stewart, the Indian and the
Klondike rivers : on the west side, the White River and the 60 Mile River.

Both the Stewart and the White rivers are very important feeders of the Yukon.
Dawson City is situated on the right bank of the Yukon, north cf the confluence

of the Klondike River. It is the mining town of that country. The population on
the 10th of August, according to the mounted police, was 16,000 inhabitants. There
are three churches, two hospitals, the government and mounted police buildings,
three steam saw-mills, the permanent buildings of the Alaska Commercial Company
and of the North American Transportation and Trading Company, and a large number
of saloons and hotels.

There are yet only very few private resi<4ences worth speaking rf. Most of them
are small log shanties.

The only question which is of interest to this department in connection with
Dawson City, is the question of the water frontage.

The frontage of the town on the Yukon River has a length of about 5,600 feet,
but out of that only one half is available for navigation purposes, the other half being
obstructed by a bar of considerable extent formed by the confluence of the Yukoa and
Klondike rivers. This bar is bare at the time steamers commence to arrive at Dawson
from St. Michaels. It is still covered in part by water when the first steamers arrive
from up river.

The principal navigation companies are anxious to secure water frontage, and the
Alaska Commercial Company, the North American Transportation and Trading Com-
pany and the Canadian Development Company have already made applications for
grants or leases of certain portions of the frontage on which they may provide landing
facilities for passengers and freight.

The North American Transportation and Trading Company apply for an absolute
grant of the foreshore in front of their property situated north of Fourth Street, the
frontage having a length of 178 feet for the purpose of building a permanent wharf.

The Alaska Commercial Company ask that the foreshore in front of their premises
between Third and Fourth Streets, a distance of 200 feet be reserved for their com-
pany's steamboats, their purpose being to build temporary landings to accommodate
their trade.

The Canadian Development Company make a request similar to that of the Alaska
Commercial. They ask about 200 feet frontage to accommodate their steamers.

This question is an important one, and some steps ought to be taken to settle it
before the opening of navigation next season. Last year nobody looked after the dis-
tribution of the water frontage and the result was that the mill-owners occupied nearly
the whole of the deep frontage, leaving only about 350 feet for the accommodation of a
large fleet of steamers.

If the government does not intend to grant absolutely portions of the foreshore to
the owners of the land fronting on such foreshore, I would recommend that yearly leases
be issued to bonafde navigation or trading companies, at the rate of $5.00 per foot
frontage per annum limiting the length of frontage granted under each lease to 200 feet
and giving under such lease power to the lessors to collect moderate wharf dues.

During the season of navigation of 1898, fully one hundred steamers made their way
to Dawson City. All stern-wheel steamers varying greatly in size f rom 60 to 260 feet
in length.
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LOWER YUKON FROM DAWSON TO THE BEHRING SEA.

From Dawson to the Behring Sea a distance of about 1,300 miles, the Yukon River
is navigable for large stern-wheel steamers, as was amply demonstrated last season, fully
100 steamers making their way to Dawson from St. Michaels all loaded up with merchan-
dise of every description and often having two or more barges in tow.

The only portions of that stretch of the Yukon where steamers have some difficulty
are between Circle City and Fort Yukon for a distance of nearly 100 miles where the
river passes through flats and is divided into a very large number of channels out of
which it is very difficult to pick up the main channel and at the mouth of the Yukon
where at low tide it takes a first class pilot to find the channel, but with a little more
experience, and a few land marks which will without doubt be erected next year I do
not doubt that the Yukon will always prove a formidable rival for the carriage of freight
to any other route.

It is an all water route by which freight can be landed at Dawson City from San
Francisco or Seattle for about $60 per ton.

The greatest drawback to the St. Michaels route is the fact that the mouth of the
Yukon is seldom free from ice bpfore the 1st of July, but to obviate this disadvantage,
I heard that the Transportation Company intended shortly to erect large warehouses at
a place called Fort Hamilton some 60 miles up river from the mouth, and that they
would henceforth start their river boats from that point and would by so doing have
from four to five weeks more navigation. Between St. Michaels which is the terminal
point for ocean steamers, and Fort Hamilton, a special fleet of small flat bottom steam-
ers would navigate and constantly replenish the warehouses at Fort Hamilton.

A first class stern wheel steamer mak es the journey between St. Michaels and Daw-
son City in 16 to 20 days, against the current, the return voyage only occupying from
6 to 8 days, nearly half of that time being lost in stoppages at the different mining
camps along the river on Alaskan Territory or in taking fuel on board.

Concerning the construction of a telegraph line from Quesnelle, the present terminus
of the Government Telegraph Line in British Columbia, to Dawson City, by way of
Telegraph Creek, Teslin and Fort Selkirk, I am able to report that the construction of
this line would be an easy matter. The country is an open one, in which, however,
timber suitable for telegraph poles is plentiful all along the route which the line would
follow. Generally along the trail from Telegraph Creek and Teslin Lake and from
Teslin Lake along the east shore of the lake, then following practically the Hootalinqua,
the Lewes and the Yukon, it would reach Dawson City.

There would be several important rivers to cross and in my opinion it would be
necessary to have small lengths of cable, for example in crossing the Mitsultin River,
the Stewart River and possibly the Big Salmon.

The average cost per mile should not exceed $275.
A telegraph line to Dawson City would be very valuable, and would undoubtedly

earn a large income, not counting the immense service it would render to the govern-
ment and to the mining population in the Yukon, and the Omenica District.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

LOUIS COSTE,
Chief Engineer.
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Stanley Park and Deadman's Island.

RETTRN
[68a.]

To an ADDREss of the HousE of CoMMoNs, dated lst May, for copies of all Orders
in Council respecting Stanley Park and Deadman's Island, Vancouver,
B.C., and all correspondence between the different Departmenta of the
Canadian Government and the Imperial military and naval authorities
respecting the park, or island, or both. Also for copies of all correspon-
dence respecting the same with the Government of British Columbia, the
city of Vancouver, and the park authorities.

A1so for all correspondence between the member for Burrard, the
Hon. Minister of Militia and Defence and the Department of Militia, the
Hon. Minister of the Interior and other members of the Government,
respecting the same.

Also for all correspondence between Mr. Ludgate and hie represen-
tative and any Department of Government respecting Deadman's Island.
Also a copy of all applications and correspondence respecting a lease or
grant of Deadman's Island. Also a copy of all departmental reporta,
memoranda or letters on file in the Departments of Justice, Interior,
Militia and Defence, respecting the park, Deadman's Island, or the title
and disposal of the same; also a copy of all grants or leases of the park
or Deadman's Island. Also all reports or information obtained by the
different departments before any lease or grant of Deadman's Island was
enacted. Also all memorials or correspondence respecting the granting
of any lease of Deadman's Island.

R. W. SCOTTI
Scretary of &ate.
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4-5-'86 Hon. J. W. Trutch to Departnent of Public Works.
6-5-'86 Hon. J. W. Trutch to Minister of Militia and Defence.
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3-9-'98 Minister of Militia and Defence to G. R. Maxwell, Esq.
26-8-'98 Minister of Militia and Defence to Lieut. Colonel Macdonald, C. S. of Stores.
16-8-'98 G. R. Maxwell, Esq., to Minister of Militia and Defence.
15-8-'98 Mayor of Vancouver to G. R. Maxwell, Esq.
20-1-'99 Hon. Joseph Martin to Minister of Militia and Defence.

3-2-'99 Geo. R. Maxwell, Esq., to Minister of Militia and Defence.
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14-2-'99 Lease of Deadman's Island-Minister of Militia and Defence to Vancouver Lumber Co.
16-2-'99 Order in Council authorizing lase to Vancouver Lumber Co.
21-2-'99 City Clerk of Vancouver to Minister of Militia and Defence.
25-2-'99 Mayor of Vancouver to John McKenzie, Esq., Dominion Lands Agent.
27-2-'99 H. H. Morris, Esq., to T. Ludgate.

1-3-'99 Hon. Joseph Martm to Minister of Militia and Defence.
3-3-'99 John McKenzie, Esq., to Department of the Interior.
9-3-'99 Delegation of Vancouver to Minister of Militia and Defence.

11-3-'99 Department of the Interior to Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.
14-4-'99 Department of Justice to Minister of Militia and Defence..
22-4-'99 Commissioner of Lands and Works to Minister of Militia and Defence.

2-5-'99 Commissioner of Lands and Works to Minister of Militia and Defence.
5-5-'99 Telegram from Hon. Joseph Martin to Minister of Militia and Defence.

12-5-99 Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence to Commissioner of Lands and Works..
29-5-'99 Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence to Minister of Militia and Defence.
15-4-'99 Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence to City Clerk of Vancouver.
23-5-'99 Chief Commiusioner of Lands and Works, Victoria, to Deputy Minister of Militia and

Defence.
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Corr of a Report of a Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved by
His Excellency the Governor General in Council, on the 25th February, 1880.

On a memorandum dated 16th February, 1880, from the Honourable the Minis-
ter of the Interior, reporting that he is informed that a considerable area of lands,
situate at important points along the coast line in the province of British Colum'ia,
is held by the Imperial Government as military and naval reserves, and suggesting
for the consideration of your Excellency in Council the expediency of inviting the
attention of the Imperial authorities to the fact, and asking should the same not be
inconsistent with the views of Her Majesty's government that the lands in question,
excepting such as may actually be required for military or naval purposes, may be
transferred to the Dominion, to be held and administered in the saie manner as the
lands of corresponding character in the older provinces formerly transferred by
Her Majesty's government to Canada.

The committee submit the foregoing suggestions for your Excellency's approval.

J. O. COTÉ,
Clerk Privy Council.

The Earl of Derby to the Marquis of Lansdowne.

Governor General, the Most Honourable
The Marquis of Lansdowne, G.C.M.G., &c., &c., &c.

DoWNINq STREET, 27th March, 1884.

My LoRD,-With reference to your despatch No. 207 of the 13th of July, 1881,
and to previous correspondence respecting the proposed surrender to the Canadian
Government of certain lands reserved for naval and military purposes in British
Columbia, I have the honour to state that the power of Governor DouglaR to make
reserves in British Columbia appears to have rested on the 2nd clause of his com-
mission, dated the 2nd of September, 1858, directing him to execute his trust ac-
cording to powers, directions and authorities granted or appointed to him under
the Royal Sign Manual and Signet or by Order in Council or by the Queen through
one of Her Majesty's principal Secretaries of State; and further, upon dospatches
fron Sir E. B. Lytton, dated the 31st of July and 14th of August, 1858, and giving
him instructions as to the marking out of allotments for public purposes and giving
him provisional rules for his guidance in selling lands. These papers are contained
in a parliamentary paper given to the Britieh Parliament in 1859 entitled " Papers
relative to the affairs of British dolumbia," printed 18th February, 1859, pp. 3, 45
and 49. And it has always been considered that reserves made by him were valid
and became effectual without confirmation by the Secretary of State.

As reuards the reserves now in question no formal deed appears to have been
made conveying them to the military or naval authorities, and I am advised that
they may now in like manner be surrendered without the formality of a regular
deed of conveyance.

It appears therefore sufficient to state that Her Majesty's Government are pre.
pared to surrender the military reserves specified in the schedule to the War Offilce
Letter of the 27th of July, 1883, a copy of which is inclosed, and all navy reserves
with the exception of those mentioned in the letter from the Admiralty of the 29th
ultimo, a copy of which is inclosed.
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I request that you will inform me whether the Dominion Government desire to
receive any more formal notification of surrender than this despatch, and, if so,
that I may also be informed of the nature of the instrument which they would like
to receive.

I have, &c.,
DERBY.

War Office to Colonial Office.

The Under Secretary of State, WAR OFFICE, 27th July, 1883.

Colonial Office.

SIR,-With reference to your letter dated 21st July, 1883, I am directed by the
Secretary of State for War to transmit for the information of the Earl of Derby
the accompanying "Schedule of the Res;erved Lands of British Columbia proposed
to be surrendered to the Dominion Government " as therein requested.

I have, &c.,

RALPH THOMPSON.

SCHEDULE Of the Reserved Lands of British Columbia proposed to be surrendered
to the Dominion Government.

No. Area in Acres. Description.

Esquimalt and Victoria District.

5 About 30 William Head.
6 i 70 Bentick Island.
7 et 80 Sooke Harbour.
8 ' 180 Mount Douglas.
9 .. .......... Chatham Island.

10 ....... ... Chain Island.
il............. Trial Island.

New Westminster District.

1 About 600 Between north arm and main branch of Fraser River. Inland between Fraser
River and Burrard Inlet.

3 t 640
4 95 On north shore of Port Moody near the centre.
5 l 159 On south shore of Port Moody near theentrance.
6 t 160 On north shore at mouth of Port Moody.
7 et 3,000 On south shore of Burrard Inlet outside 2nd Narrows.
8 i 300 On the south shore of Burrard Inlet near Coal Harbour.
9 i 600 South shore of lst Narrows.

10 if 800 et English Bay.
11 i 500 Point Grey.
12 fi 480 On the north shore of l t Narrows.
13 if 120

and On each ide of the entrance of the north arn of the Fraser River.
14 t 90
15 120 nland, south of the main branch of the Fraser River.
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The Admiralty to the Colonial Office.

ADIRALTY, 29th February, 1884.

The Under Secretary of State for the Colonies.

SiRa,-Adverting to my letter of the 14th August last, D. W. No. 2631, I am
commanded by the Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty to inform you that they
have received from the naval commander in chief on the Pacifie station a report on
the subject of the surrender of naval reserves in British Columbia, to which your
letter of the 21st July last and its enclosure related.

I am now to state, for the information of the Earl of Derby, tbat my lords are
prepared to give up ail the reserves belongibg to the admiralty in that colony with
the exception of those which they occupy in Esquimalt, i.e., the naval hospital and
cemetery. The Naval Yard, Thetio Island, Brothers' Island, Albert Head, Cole
Island and also the plot of 110 acres in Burrard Inlet marked C in the accompanying
plan.

This last mentioned plot, their lordships propose to retain as a site for a
possible future raval establishment, or In order to exchange it for a site suitable
for the dockyard if it should at any time be decided to remove that establishment
from its present position.

I m, &c.,
G. TRYON.

The Earl of Derby to the Governor General.

Governor Genral, DOWNING STREET, 27th January, 1885.

The Most Honourable
Thu Marquis of Lansdowr e, G.C.M.G.

My LoRD,-With reference to my despatch No. 119 of the 2nd August last, and
to previoun correspondonce, I have the honour to transmit to you for communication
to your Lordship's government, a copy of a letter from the admiralty respecting
the reserve in English Bay in British Columbia.

I should be glad to receive the observations of your government in regard to
the proposal of the admiralty in respect to the reserve referred to.

I have, &c.,
DERBY.

The Admiralty to the Colonial Office.

The Under Secretary of State, Anur aALTr, 15th January, 1885.

Colonial Office.

Sra,-With reference to my letter of the 29th July last, D.W. 2912, on the
êubject of the reserves in British Columbia, I am commanded by the Lords Commis-
sioners of the Admiralty to acquaint you that at the time they consented to relin-
quish certain of these reserves, retaining only a plot of 110 acres at Port Moody,
they were under the impression that the terminus of the Canadian Pacific Railway
would be close to the reserve in question.

2. They have now received a report from the commander in chief on the station
stating that the terminus is likely to be at English Bay, and if this is the case the
reserve plot at the entrance of Burrard Inlet marked "A" on the plan, which they
consented to resign, would be of far greater value to the navy than the one they
retained.
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3. Under the altered circumstances I am to express their lordships' hope that it is
not too late for them to resume possession of the reserve in English Bay, and if so I
am to suggest it would perhaps be better that both the reserves referred to should
be retained by them until such time as the position of the terminus is definitely
settled, when they would be botter able te decide which should be retained by them
in the interests of Her Majesty's navy.

I amn, &c.,
EVAN M&cGREGOR.

CERTIFIED CopY of a Report of a Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council,
approved by His Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 8th August,
1885.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had under consideration a despatch
dated 27th January, 1885, from the Right Honourable the Secretary of State for the
colonies with respect to certain admiralty reserves on English Bay, in British
Columbia.

The Minister of the Interior, to whom the despatch and enclosure were referred,
reports that the exchange suggested iD Lord Derby's letter of the 2nd August, 1884,
has never been completed. There is therefore no action necessary on the part of
the government of Canada upon bis lordship's despatch of the 27th January lait,
as possession of the reserve at English Bay has never been given up by the Imperial
authorities, and is not therefore at the disposai of the Dominion authorities.

The Minister of the Interior submits a communication herewith, dated 14th
March, 1885, from Mr. W. C. VanHorne, Vice-President of the Canadian Pacifie
Railway Company, in which it is stated in effect that it will be necessary for the
company to place their deep water terminus at English Bay.

That in consequence of this, the company propose to construct docks and other
terminal facilities upon a strip of land proposed to be conveyed to them for the
purpose by the government of British Columbia; that an extensive tract of level
ground for terminal sidings and train yards will be necessary at this point; that
the only suitable ground for the purpose is the naval reserve alluded to in the above
mentioned despatch of the colonial secretary, and that the company desire to
acquire this reserve.

The committec advise that a copy of this minute, if approved, be forwarded to
Her Majesty's Principal Secretary of State for the colonies for the favourable con-
sideration of the Lords of the Admiralty.

All which is respectfully submitted for Your Excellency's approval.

Clerk, Privy Council.

THE CANADIAN PACIFIc RAILWAY,
MONTREAL, 14th MARCH, 1885.

HON. SIR D. L. MACPERsoN, K.C.M.G., Minister of the Interior.

SIa,-Finding the harbour at Port Moody utterly inadequate to the require-
ments of the company at its Pacific terminus, provision has been made for the ex-
tension of the line west along the south shore of Burrard Inlet to Coal Harbour
and English Bay as approximately shown on the enclosed plan.

Owing to the extreme force of the tide at the fir:t Narrows, (the entranco to
Burrard Inlet) access to the inlet for large ocean steamships will be almost im-
practicable except at low tide and, from investigations recently made, it seems
that English Bay muet be utilized as the main harbour and that the railway must
be extended to run along that bay.

A. 1899
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The construction of the necessary docks, etc., will involve a very large ex-
penditure, and, to provide for this, the Government of British Columbia proposes to
convey to the company the tracts of land coloured red on the encloeed plan.

As extensive track of level ground for terminal sidings and train yards will
be necessary and the only ground suitable for that purpose, in the vicinity of Eng.
lish Bay, is on the naval reserve and the strip immediately Eouth of it.

The naval reserve was originally intended to provide timber for spars, etc., but
I am informed that alt the timber suitable for this purpose bas already been'cut and
that there is no reason now for holding tbis particular tract for naval or other
public purposes.

The company is now in negotiation with the Government of British Columbia
for a strip of land adjoining and immediately south of the naval reserve and de-
sires also to acquire the naval reseive itself from the government. Indeed the
acquisition of this property by the company is almost essential for the construction
of proper facilities for traffie.

The company cannot safely execute the proposed agreement with the province
of British Columbia without knowing whether, or not, this property may be secured
and they have only until the 23rd of Apiil to decide the matter.

The agent of the Dominion government, the Honourable J. W. Trutch, is now
in Ottawa and he is fully acquainted with the situation of the property in question
and it was ho who made the original reservation.

The naval reserve embraces as we believe about 780 acres, although the Gov-
ernment of British Columbia claims that it should include only 120 acres, but all
the evidence we have been able to obtain indicates that the firt named figures are
substantially correct.

I trust that we may be informed as soon as possible whether or not the
property may be secured by the company and upon what terms.

I have the honour to be, air,
Your obedient servant,

W. C. VAN HORNE,
Vice-President.

The Earl of Derby to the Governor General.

Governor General, DowNING STRET, 2nd August, 1884.

The Most Honourable
The Marquis of Lansdowne, G.C.M.G.

MY Loan,-With reference to my despatch No. 39, of the 27th March lat, and
to previous correspondence respecting the proposed surrender of certain lands
reserved for naval and military purposes in British Columbia, I have the honour to
transmit to you for communication to Your Lordship's government a copy of a
letter from the admiralty 1 roposing a certain exchange of plots of land at
Esquimalt.

I request that you will inform ore whether your Government agree to this
proposal.

I have, &c., DERBY.

The Admiralty to Colonial Office.
ADMIRALTY, 29th July, 1884.

The Under Secretary of State,
Colonial Office.

Sra,-With reference to admiralty letter of the 29th February last, D.W. 2789
on the subject of the surrender of naval reserves in British Columbia, I am con-
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manded by the Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty to request that you will
move the Secretary of State for the colonies to ascertain from the Dominion gov-
-ernment whether there would be any objection on their part to transfer to the
Admiralty a plot of ground in Constance Cove, EQquimalt ilarbour, tinted blue on
the accompanying chart, in excbange for the reserves C and D on the plan trans-
mitted with the letter above referred to.

I am, &o.,
EVAN MÂaGREGOR.

HoUSE OF CoMMoNs,
OTTAWA, 24th March, 1886.

Sir ADOLPHE CARON,
Minister of Militia,

Ottawa.
Si,-I inclose herewith a map showing the military reserve at the entrance

to Burrard Inlot. It contains 950 acres adjoining the terminal city of Vancouver
on the Canadian Pacifie Railway. I would respectfully request that yon wouid
grant the same to the city reserving the right te use any portion of it for military
purposes or on occasion when required even the whole of it. The city to build a
carriage road around the reserve and otherwise spend money on it te make it
attractive for a park. In my opinion it can be made one of the finest parks in the
world and in connection with the proposed establishment of national parks along
the line of the Canadian Pacifie Railway would be quito an attraction to tourists
travelling over our national railway and the above proposed arrangement would
not in any way interfere with the right of your department to these lands.

Please give the matter your earnest consideration and advise me of your
decision.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. W. ]ROSS.

This military reserve piece of ground is the identical spot that Lieut. Col. Hohnes, D.A.G., so strongly
recommends for the site of our barracks and battery. W ould it not be better to suspend action in this
regard until we have personally inspected the spot ?

FRED. MIDDLETON,
Major General.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIoI,

GRANT POWELL, Esq., OTTAWA, 19th April, 1886.

Under Secretary of State,
Ottawa,

SIE,-In a letter received from the Honourable Mr. Trutch, dated the 30th
ultimo, he incloses a clipping from the British Columbia Gazette being an adver-
tisement of notification, dated the 1lth March, by Mr. Alexander Russell, of his-
intention to make application within 60 days to the Chief Commissioner of Lands
and Works of that province for permission to purchase an island, containing 10
acres, situated near the head of Coal Harbour, Burrard Inlet.

The island in question is included in the ireservation for military purposes,
)50 acres in extent, established in 1859 on the south aide of the First Narrows,

Burrard Inlet, and I have thorefore to request that you will communicate with the
Government of British Columbia calling their attention to the fact this land is so
reserved and not subject to sale by that government.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. M. BURGESS,
Doputy Minister of the Interior.
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EXTRACT from a memorandum inclosed in a letter to the Secretaay o f the Pulic Works
Department, dated 4th May, 1886, respecting government reserves generally in
British Columbia.

I bave bad several interviews lately with the Hon. Mr. Smithe, chief commis-
sioner of lands and works and premier of British Columbia, on the subject of the
government reserves generally in this province, the object of arriving at an under.
standing as to which particu ar reserves came under the control of the Dominion
government upon the union of British Columbia with Canada, or failing this to
endeavour to arrange with him, as suggested by Mr. Burbidge, for reference to this
question to the arbitrament of some competent tribunal.

I have, bowever, been.entiroly unsuccessful on both these points.
Mr. Smifhe maintains, as I understand from him, that al the publie lands of the

province subject under the provisions of the 108th section of the British North
America Act to become the property of Canada upon union, were specified in the
descriptive schedule and plans thereof prepared at the lands and works office of
British Columbia in January, 1872, aDd forwardod by the Lieutenant Governor to-
the Secretary of State by dispatch, dated 3lst Jannary, 1872.

That there never were in British Columbia any ordnanco lands nor any lands set
apart for general public purposes in the sense of the 1Oth section of the third schedule
of the British North America Act.*

That from time to time both before and since the union of British Columbia
with Canada various t acts of land have been placed by the governfnent of British
Columbia under reservation from the operation of the pre-emption and purchase pro-
visions of the land laws, in sôme cases at the sole instance of that government, and
in others upon the suggestion and advice of offleers of Her Majesty'd naval or military
forces, with a view to their possibly being required for fortifications or for the defence
of the country.

That these tracts of land have for the most part been retained, and are still
held under reservation for the purposes of such requirements and subject to be se
applied under the 117th section of the British North Arnerica Act upon application
by the gove:nrnent of Canada for the use thereof for such purposes and upon due
grounds for such requirerbents being shown to the satisfaction of the government
of British Columbia.

But the government of Canada have no rights under the British North America
Act and the terms of union to the title of these lands, or to the control of them in
any way, further than is provided by the 117th tection of that Act, and eau bave ne
such right under the provision@ of that section until it shall have been specially
conceded in any particular case to them by the goverement of British Columbia, and
that no such concession of title or control will be granted exeept upn. application
made by the gaverntnent of Canada, and die grounds of requirentent shown for the
use of any particular tract of land for purposes of fortification or defemoc nor wihl
such concession in any case convey a saleable or transferable title er right of posses-
sion and occupaney, for any other than purposes of fortification and defence.

holding strongly the above views, Mr. Smithe maintainà that there is no ques-
tion to be settled between the province and the Dominion in eonnotiôn with the
position of these reserved land8, and he thereifore declines to entertain any idea of
referring the matter to any tribunal.

JOSEPH W. TRUTCrO,
Dominion Government Agent.

4th May, 1886.

* In a map published by the admiralty, 1859, there are several tracts of land set apart as admiralty
reserves, i.e., land set apart for general public purposes.
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OTTAWA, 20th April, 1886.
J. W. TRUTOR

Victoria, British Columbia.

I am informed that a sale of lots on the military reserves in British Columbia
is proposed to be held in two weeks. You must -take measures to stop sale of any
property belonging to the reserves which belong to and are under the contrul of the
Federal government.

ADOLPHE P. CARON.

VICToRIA, B.C., 6th May, 1886.

The Hon. Sir ADOLPHE P. CAnoN, K.C.M.G.,
Minister of Militia,

Ottawa.

Sra,-I duly received your two telegrams of the 20th and 21st ultimo, respec-
tively, directing me to stop sale of any portion of any reserved land in this province
under the control of the Federal government, and particularly of -an islànd in Coal
Harbour, Burrard Inlet, forming part of the reserve for military purposes on the
south shore of the First or Outer Narrows of Burrard Inlet.

These telegrame I acknowledged on the 24th ultimo and subsequontly, at the
first opportunity, I had an interview with the Hon. Mr. Smithe, Premier and Chief
Commissioner of Lande and Works of British Columbia, when I protested as directed
by you, against the alienation from the Crown of any portion of these reserves.

Mr. Smithe thereupon assured me that although an application had been made
to him for permission to purchase the island in question, the government had not
entertained it, and that they had no intention at present of disposing of any of the
lands in this province which have been reserved for military purposes.

At that interview I discussed very fully with Mr. Smithe, as I already had
frequently done on previous occasions, the various questions connected with the
original establishment and present position of government land reserves in British
Columbia.
DXbCeThe results of these interviews, as far as the expression of the views on this
subject of the government of British Colrubia as represented by Mr. Smithe, I have
embodied in a memorandum prepared in pursuance of instructions to me from the
Honourable the Minister of Public Works to report upon certain points in a letter on
this su'bject to the Department of Public Works from the deputy minister of justice,
a copy of which was forwarded to me.

I think it very desirable that the views of the provincial government so
expressed, especially as far as they relate to lands in British Columbia reserved for
military purposes, should be at once brought to your notice.

I therefore inclose a copy of that part of my memorandum, already forwarded
to the Department of Public Works, which relates to this portion of the subject of
lands in British Columbia reserved for public purposes.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOSEPH W. TRUTCH,
D,1minion Govt. Agent in British Columbia.
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PETITION.

To His Excellency the Most Honourable Sir Henry Charles Keith, Marquis of Lans-
downe, Governor General in Council:
The petition of the mayor and aldermen of the city of Vancouver, in the pro-

vince of British Columbia, hum bly showeth:-
Whercae an Act has been passed by the legislative assembly of British Colum-

bia, incorporating the city of Vancouver;
And whoreas thero is within our city limite a portion of land known as " The

Dominion Government Military Reserve," near the first Narrows, and is bounded
on the west by English Bay, and on the east by Burrard Inlet;

And whoreas it is advisable that permission should be given to the mayor and
council of the said city of Vancouver, te have control of said reserve, in order that
it may be used by the inhabitants of the city of Vancouver as a park.

Your petitionors therefore pray that said reserve should be handed over to the
said corporation, te be used by them subject te such restrictions as to your Excel-
lency may seem right. To be and to be beld by them as a public park.

M. A, MAOLEAN, Mayor,
THOS. F. MoGUIGAN, City Clerk,

Copr of a Report of a Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved by Ris
Excellency the Governor Generat in Council, on the 8th day of June, 1837.
On a report dated 10th May, 1887, from the Minister of Militia and Defence,

stating that he has had under consideration a petition of the mayor and alderman of
the city of Vancouver, B.C., praying that the Dominion government military
reserve near the first Narrows, bounded on the west by English Bay, and on the east
by Burrard Inlet, may be handed over to the said corporation for use as a park. The
minister reports that ho sees no objection to this proposal, provided this corporation
keep the park in proper order, and the Dominion governmont retain the right te
resume the property when required at any time. The minister furthor states that
he does not deem it advisable te recommend that this property b. transferred to
class 2 as no‡ available for military use, as he is of opinion that it will be required
for military purposes, but until this he recommends that the corporation bave the
use of the same as a park, subject te the provisions mentioned. The committee
advise that the Minister of Militia and Defence be authorized te take the necessary
stops for carrying the same into effect.

JOHN J. MKoGEE,
Clerk, Privy Council.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE,

Ris Worship OTTAWA, 12th July, 1887.

The Mayor of Vancouver City, B.C.
SIR,-With reference te the petition of the corporation of the city of Vancouver,

for a grant of the military reserve at that place for the purpose of a park, I have
now the honour, by direction of the Minister of Militia and Defence, te transmit te
yeu the inclosed copy of au Order in Council granting the desired privilege under
certain conditions. A copy of the Order in Council has also been forwarded te the
Deputy Adjutant Goneral in command of Military District No. 11 for his informa.
tion and guidance.

I have the honour te be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

c. EUG. PANET, Colonel,
Qeputy Minister of Militia and Dutence.
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MAYOR'S OFFICE,

COL. C. E. PANET, VANCOUVER, B.C., 27th July, 1887.

Deputy Minister of Militia,
Ottawa.

SI,-Yours of the 12th instant received inclosing a copy of a report of a com-
mittee of the Honourable the Privy Couneil, granting the city of Vancouver for
park purposes the military reserve between English Bay and Burrard Inlet with
conditions set forth.

The citizens of Vancouver fully appreciate the kindness of the government in
the matter, and request me to state that the conditions mentioned therein will be
etrictly carried out.

Thanking you for your prompt action.
I. have the honour to be, sir,

Your most obedient servant,
M. A. MAcLEAN,

Mayor.

D. CHIsHOLM, Esq., M.P., VANCOUVER, 18th February, 1888.

Ottawa.
DRAfa SI,-I have much pleasure in introducing the bearer, Mr. Cooke, who is

the promoter of and principal owner of the Vancouver Iron Works.
He is desirous of getting a lease of Deadman's Island from the government.

Any assistance you can give him I shall consider as donc to myself. He wants it
to build upon and improve. As it is now it is neither useful not ornamental.

Yours very sincerely,
J. M. LEFEVRE.

Da. CHIS3HoLU, M.P. OTTAWA, 28th March, 1888.

Ottawa.
DIRAS S[a,-With regard to " Deadman's Island " referred to in this letter by

Dr. Lefevre, I have only to say that if practicable I would like to purchase it from
the government, or if not, to get a long lease of it. It is utterly useless as it is to
any one, and being inside the mihtary reserve and in shoal water never can be of
the slighest use for military purposes. If, in Sir A. Caron's department, 1 think he
would not object to letting me have it on condition that if required by the govern-
ment, at any time, in connection with hie department I would, of course, be pre-
pared to vacate.

Sincerely yours,
R. P. COOKE.

VANCOUVEa, B.C., 9th March, 1888.
Hon. Sua A. P. Cao , K.U.M.G.,

Minister of Miliua and Defonce.
Ottawb.

Sia,-On the 12th of July, A.D. 1887, a communication was received by the
mayor of this city from the department of Militia and Defence, informing him that
by an Order in Council, dated Sth June, 1887, permission was given the corporation
of the city of Vnteoaver to usé the Dominion government military reserve within
the limite of said eorporation for a publie park.
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Said order further authorized you to take the necessary steps to carry its pro-
visions into effect, but nothing bas since beon done in the matter.

What will be the character of the title to said lands given to this city ? A
lease for a long period, subject to the conditions of the Order in Council will be, I
presume, the mode of conveyance.

Where will the necessary document bo prepared and if by the department, how
soon may it be expected ?

It will be difficult for this corporation to deal with persons trespassing on said
reserve or to keep it in proper order until they can show their right to same, and I
doubt if the Order in Council would suffice.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOS. F. McGUIGAN.
City Clerk.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENcE,
OTTAWA, 21st March, 1888.

The City Cleik,
Vancouver City, B.C.

SIR,-I have the horour, by direction of the Minister of Militia and Defence, to
acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 9th instant, inquiring what title will
be given to the city of Vancouver, under Order in Council of 8th June, 1887, of the
lands which the city is pet mitted to occupy as a park; an I am to inform you that
the matter will be looked into, and that you will be again communicated with at as
early a date as practicable.

i have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

C. EUG. PANET, Colonel.
Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

CiTy oF VANCOUVER, 1lth October, 1888.

C. Eua. PANET,
Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence,

Ottawa, Ont.

Sia,-I have been directed by the city council of Vancouver to communicate
with you with a view of ascertaining whether the Departmentof Militia and Defence
has taken any further stops towards granting a title to the city of Vancouver of the
militia reserve within her corporate liniits.

A communication numbered " Case A 3758 " was received from you on the last
of March this year intimating that the matter would be looked into at as early a
date as practinable. I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,

TIHOS. F. McGUIGAN,
City Clerk.
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VANOOUVER, B.C., 9th January, 1889.

The Hlonourable Sia ADOLPHE P. CARON, K.C.M.G.,
Minister of Militia and Defence,

Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-We have been directed by the council of the oity of Vancouver, to for-
ward you the following resolution, passed by that body on Monday the 7th inst.:

" Whereas the corporation of the city of Vancouver has expended upwards of
$30,000 in making roads through tho government reserve in this city, now known
as Stanley Park.

" And whereas said park is to be u.ed by the corporation only until the Govern-
ment of Canada require same for military purpo-es.

" And whereas said park in a state of nature would be impassable for troops or
war material withont a large expenditure of money, and the roads and drives made
by the city being of a subStantial character, and permanent kind, will enable such
tioops and war material to move at once to any point of said park.

"And whereas it is the intention of the city to make other roada and drives
through said park, from year to year, and are willing to make same to such points
as may be indicated by any military engineer appoiited by the government for that
purpose.

" Therefore, be it resolved, by the mayor and council of the city of Vancouver,
in council assembled, that the government be requested to make a grant on account
of the sums alroady expended by the corporation, and make a yearly grant for the
purpose of further improving same from year to year.

" And be it further resolved, that a copy of this resolution, singed by the mayor
and the city clerk, with the corporate seal affixed, be forwarded to the Honourable
Sir Adolphe P. Caron, K.C.M.G., Minijpter of Militia and Defence."

We have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

D. OPPENHEIMER,
Ma yor.

THOS. F. McGUIGAN,
City Clerk.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE,
OTTAWA, 26th January, 1889.

His Worship
The Mayor of Vancouver City, B.C.

SI,-I have the honour, by direction of the Minister of Militia and Defence, to
inform you that the two propositions made in the letters of yourself and the city
clerk of Vancouver, dated respectively 9th March, 1888, and 9th January, 1889,
have received due consideration, and have been decided upon as follows:-

1e. With reference to the City clerk's inquiry, what titie will be given to the
city, of the land which the corporation is pormitted to'occupy as a park, I am to
etate that no other document can be furnished than the copy of the Order in Council
of 8th June, 1887, officially furnished to you by this department.

2nd. As regards the request of the corporation for a grant on account of sams
already expended in improving the property, and for an annual grant for a similar
purpose in future, the miniter regrets that there are no funds available for any
uch pp . I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,
C. EUG. PANET, Colonel,

Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.
18
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(Memorandum.)

With reference to the inquiry made by the Department of Marine and Fisheries
concerning the military reserve lands near the city of Vancouver, British Columbia,
known as "Stanley Park," with special reference to " Deadmanu's4 Island."

The undersigned has the honour to report that there are no plans of this mili-
tary property in the store branch, but a reference» to the admiralty plan No. 922 in
the office of the Quarter Master General at Head Quarters, indicates the position of
"Deadman's Island" as contiguous to the governient reserve, now used by the
city of Vancouver and known a' "Stanley Park," and is thorefore military property.

Reference to Case A. 7770 will show that an application was made to lease or
purchase "Deadman's Island," R.C., in behalf of R. P. Cooke, Ottawa, in a letter
dated 28th March, 1888. Upon this application tbp acting D.A.G. of the district
and the General Officer Commanding, reported against the lease or sale of this
ieland for any private purpose. "Ilt is quite close to the most suitable barrack site,
and at low water easily got at from the mainland."

The Genoal Officer Commauding at the time 23rd April. 1888 (General Middleton)
reported also that the island in question " might prove to be of immense value when
the general defence came to be considered."

In the event of a private company trying to lease the island, as indicated in the
letter from the Marine department of the 17th instant, it would be advisable that
steps bo taken to protect the interests of the government.

Respectfully submitted,
J. MACPHERSON, Lt.-Colonel,

Director of Stores, &c.
Ottawa, 21st April, 1896.

OTTAWA, 7th May, 1896.

lFrom Major-General Commanding to Deputy Minister Militia and Defence.

DEADMAN'S ISLAND, STANLEY PARK, VANCOUVER,

From the enclosed correspondence, and after examination of the plans of the
property reterred to, I would strongly endorse the conclusion arrived at by Major-
G.Ieneral Middleton in his minute of 23rd April, 1888, as to the value of this island in
connection with the defence of Vancouver, and am therefore of opinion that no occu-
pation by private parties or business corporations should be permitted.

W. J. GASCOIGN E,
Major-General Commanding Canadian Militia.

(Memorandum.)

From the Major-General Commanding the Militia to the Deputy Minister of Militia
and Defence.

OTTÂWA, 16th September, 1896.
With reference to Deadman's Island at Vancouver, B.C., i am strongly of opinion

that it may and very likely will become of great value in !connection with the
defences of Vancouver, and therefore I regret I am unable to recommend that the
whole or any part of it should be leased to any corporation, or to any private indi-
vidual.

W. J. GASCOIGNE,
Major-General Commanding Canadian Militia.
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Whereas the reserve, being 950 acres, known as Stanley Park, situated to the
west of the city, is believed to be vested in the Dominion government.

And whereas by a certain Order in Council dated the 8th of June, 1887, the
said reserve was handed over to the corporation of the city of Vancouver for use as
a park subject to the right of the Dominion government to resume the property
when required at any time and subject to the city keeping the same in proper
order.

And whereas the corporation of the city of Vancouver have no powers vested
in it further than the right to use the said reserve as a park.

And whereas there are a number cf small dwellings of a very undesirable
character existing on the foreshore and other parts of the said park harbouring
squatters, undesirable characters, such being detrimental to the interests of the
public and unsightly.

And whereas there is now no power vested in the corporation to prevent the
continuance of the nuisances that exist and usefulness to the public of the park is
Eeriously affected thereby, and in consequence thereof the citizens cannot use the
park to the same advantage as they could if such nuisances were represed, and
there always exists a great danger of fire destroying the trees and beauty of the
park unless control is vested in the city.

And wheroas the city has expended the sum of $100,000 in making roads and
annually improving the park.

And whereas the city annually expends a large sum in improvements therein.
Be it therefore resolved that it is in the interests of the city and the public

generally that powers be vested in the city that would enable the corporation to
put an end to the nuisances that do now exist, and to prevent the occurrence of
them in the future. That in order to place the corporation in such a position that
it would be authorized to further improve the park and keep the same more strictly
as a park and for the use and benefit of the public generally, a petition be forwarded
to the honourable the Minister of Militia and Defence, praying that an Order in
Council be passed vesting the said reserve in the corporation to be held in trust as
a public park and such deed of trust should confer on the said corporation all the
necessary powers to evict trespassers, remove undesirable buildings and prevent
nuisances, and all powers that may be deemed necessary to empower the said
corporation to keep and preserve the reserve as a park for the city, in so far as it
may be consistent with the requirements of the Department of Militia and Defence,
and that any land taken for the purposes of the Department of Marine and
Fisheries, for lighthouse purposes, be done only by consultation between the
Dominion and city authorities.-Carried.

JAMES F. GARDEN,

T. F. McGUIGAN Mayor.

Per W. COWDEROY,

Dtcd this lst day of August, 1898. City Clerk.

CITY HALL, MAYOR'S OFFICE,

G. R. MAXWELL, EsQ., M.P., VANCOUVER, l5th August, 1898.

City.
DEAR SIE,-I enclose a copy of resolution of the council in reference to Stanley

PaIrk, which explains itself. When the Governor General was here ho suggested
that it be forwarded to him at Ottawa and ho would put it in the right cliannel.
We have done so, and would aFk you to use your influence also to attain the desired
end.

Yours truly,
JAMES F. GARDEN,

Mayor.

A. 1899
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Honourable Dr. BORDEN, VANCOUVER, B.C., 16th August, 1898.

My DEAR S,- beg to enclose a resolution passed by our city conneil re Stanley
Park. It gives me very great pleasure to support the same. Oar park is one of
most beuttiful spots in Canada and our people take a great pride in it. We spend a
large sum of morney every ycar towards making it attractive, but owing to our
helplessness a large number of very undesirable people settle down along the fore-
shore and we have no power to remove them. In the interests of morality, and
this is the interests of the city, 1 hope you wili sec your way to grant what is asked
for, as it would be a great boon to our people.

With best wishes,
Yours very truly,

GEO. R. MAXWELL.

STANLEY HousE, NEw RICHMOND, 25th August, 1898.

The Honourmble DR. BORDEN, &c., &c.
Minister of Militia and Defence,

Ottawa.

DEAa DR. BoRDEN,-In transmitting to you Officially the accompanying memorial
and petition in the form of a resolution which has been forwarded to my care by the
city council of Vancouver, B.C., I desire to commend the request which it contains
for your favourable consideration.

Having recently visited the park at Vancouver I can testify to the fact that the
municipality have been giving much attention to the care and improvement of the
resort, including the expenditure of a considerable amount of money in improving
the approach to the grounds, which, as of course you are aware, are of a very
attractive description.

I remain, dear Dr. Brrdon,
Very taithfully yours,

ABER DEEN.

R. MAXWELL, Eq., M.P., CANNING, N.S., 26th August, 1898.

Vancouver, B.C.
DEAR MAXWELL,-I am in receipt of yours of the 16th inst., with inclosures,

and have forwarded the papers to Lt.-Col. Macdonald who bas charge of that branch
of the departmont. I shall do my best to meet the views of the city coutcil
especially as their request is so strongly endorsod by yourself. Itoccurs to me that
perhaps an amendment to the lease might be made whieh would meet the case.

Yours very truly,
F. W. BORDEN.

Lt.-Col. D. A. MACDONALD, CANNING, N.S., 26th Augu@t, 1898.

Chief Supt. of Stores,
Ottawa, Ont.

DEAR CoLONEL,-I inclose papers which speak for themselveq. Please look
hito this matter carefully and see whether powers such as the city desires cannot be
Conferred by an amendm'ent to the lease. It would seem to me as if the difficulty
might be got overi in that way. Yours very truly,

F. W. BORDEN.
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DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE, CANADA,
SToRE BRANCH, OTTAWA, 30th August, 1898.

The Honourable Dr. F. W. BORDEN,
Canning, N.S.

Re "STANLEY PARK," VANCOUVER, B.C.

My DEAR DoCToR,-The right given to the corporation of Vancouver to trans-
form this property into a public park, was given toit by Order in Council, 10th May,
1887, but no lease was granted nor any authority other than the Order in Council,
although asked for from time to time.

While the properties in British Columbia belong to the Canadian government
yet they bave never been apportioned or classified: namely, those which should go
to the Department of the Interior, others claimed by the British Columbia
Government, and those which should come under the Department of Militia and
Defence. However, at the time this pro perty was asked for, it was considered that it
might become a valuable military one and henec the department dealt with it.

The whole niatter was managed in the deputy's office, and papers only seen by
me, for the first time, to-day.

After looking them over I considered that, in view of the former action of the
department, it would be qùite within its right to grant a lease to the corporation of
Vancouvet for twenty-one (21) years, this by Order in Connoil giving them the
control for park purposes, but possession to be resumed if required, and also con-
taining a clause holding the department harmless from any trouble that might arise
ftom dispoÈsessing the squatters.

'To make sure that miy idea is correct I saw the Deputy Minister of Justice Who
fully endorses it.

Pending the paesing of an Order in Couneil on your return to Ottawa, Mr.
Maxwell and the Mayor of Vancouver might be written to stating the intention of
the department.

Faithfully yours,

D. A. MACDONALD.

Mr. G. R. MAXWELL, M.P., CANNINq, N. S., 3rd September, 1898.

V ancouver, B.C.

My DEAa MAXWELL,-With reference again to your letter of the 16th uit., I
have looked into the matter and find that no lease was ever given by the Dominion
government to the city of Vancouver. The authority is simply contained in an
Order in Council. I am advised that the department might give a lease for 21
years, renewable, under which the city would bave ail the power they desire. The
government would, of course, reserve the right to take possession, if necessary, for
military purposes, and would put in a clause in the lease holding the department
harmless from any trouble which might arise from dispossessing the squatters
referred to.

If this will satisfy the city authorities I shall be very glad to have it carried
out as soon as possible. Will you kindly ascertain and let me know?

Yours very truly,

F. W. BORDEN.

A. 1899
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VANCOUVER, B.C., 20th Jaiuary, 1899.
The Honourable Di'. BORDENY

Minister of Militia, Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-The Department of Militia and Defenco are the owners, under the clause
of the B. N. A. Act, which gives the Dominion ail military reserves existing in a
province at the time of the union, and the property known as Stanley Park, in the
city of Vancouver.

This park, as you are no doubt aware, is a promontory bounded on the one side
by English Bay, which is a small bay in the Gulf of Georgia, and on the other side by
Burrard Inlet, the entrance to Burrard Inlet being at the pont of this promontory.
On the Burrard Inlet side there is a small projection which is an island at high
water, called Deadman's Island. This is a part of your reserve. You have, no
doubt, maps in your office which will show ail this very plainly.

A client of mine, who represents a number of very large Canadian and American
capitalists, is desirous of purchasing this island from your government, as a site for
a large lumber mid. The people of Vancouver are, I understand, very anxious that
this mill should be erected in their city. Mr. Ludgate informs me that he has seen
the members of the city council and that they ail favour this site.

Under these circumstances, would your government sel it for this purpose, and
at what price? It seems to me that it could not in any way injure the reserve to
part with this small portion; it is really of no value to the reserve, and it would be
a great boon to the city of Vancouver to get an immense mili, such as this would be,
in their midst.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOSEPH MARTIN.

OrTAWA, 3rd February, 1899.
Hon. Dr. BORDEN,

Minibter of Militia,
Ottawa, Ont.

Mr DEAR SIR,-I beg to make application for a lease of Deadman's Island,
situated near the harbour of Vancouver, for a term of years as may be agreed upon
by you, for which I am willing to pay $500 per year.

My firm desire the island to build thereon a saw-mill, costing in the neighbour-
hood of a quarter million dollars, with all the latest improvements. Seeing that
between the mill and the woods we will employ about 1,000 men, the granting of
my request menns a good deal for the city.of Vancouver.

Awaiting your favourable answer.
Yours, &c.,

THEO. LUDGATE.

OTTAWA, 3rd February, 1899.
Hon. Dr. BoRDEN,

My DEAR Sia,-I have great pleasure in recommending to your favou'able con-
sideration Mr. Ludgate's application. As the island desired is of no use to anybody
at present and this company will employ a large number of mon, your favourable
docision will be of great advantage to the city.

Yours very truly,
GEO. F. MAXWELL.
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OFFICE OF THE CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF STORES,
OTTAwA, 6th February, 1899.

To the Deptity Mini:ter, Militia and Defence.
DEAR Sit,-In 1888 an application was made to the Department of Militia and

Defence to purchase or lease "Deadman's Iland " situated in Burrard Intet opposite
to the city of Vancouver, B.C.

A reference was made at the time to the military branch as to whether the
island was a military necessity for defensive purposes. The general officer com-
mandirig opposed the application upon the ground that it might prove of value for
general dofence.

An application is again made for the leasing of the island, for the purpose of
establishing an industry thereon, ut a rental of $500 per annum, and the lessees
would be willing to accept ail the necessary restrictions and provisions to be
embodied in the lea.e, for immediate possession by the government at any time, if
required for military uses or defensive purposes, and without any compensation for
outlaying and improvements, and also to give the right to H. M. men-of-war and
Canadian> government vessels to make use of all wharfs which may be constructed
by the lessees for coaling and watering purposes.

The island is close in shore in shallow water, low and hardly above full tide. It
is claimed by the applicants that the imp:ovements they would make will enhance
rather than take away from its value (if it has any) for defonsive purposes.

As a considerable revenue will be dorived by leasing this island, and as the con-
ditions of the proposed lease will ensure its immediate control by the department at
any time, the general officer commanding might now in view of these conditions
ofer no military objection to the granting of the lease asked for.

The island covers an area of tive acres.

D. A. MACDONALD, Lt.-Col.,
Chief Superintendent of Stores.

(Memorandum.)

From the Major General Commanding the Militia to the Deputy Minister,
Department of Militia and Dejence.

OTTAWA, 8th Fobruary, 1899.
SIR,-I have the honour to state, with reference to the leuse of Deadman's

Island, proposed to be concluded, that it was the opinion of Mijor General Sir
Frederick Middleton that this island should not be surrvndered, as "ilt May prove
to be of immense value when the general dofence comes to be considered." This
opinion was recorded on the 23rd April, 1888.

In face of the opinion of this distinguished officer I cannot recommend, without
a personal inspection, the surrender of Deadman's Island for the purposes required.
It is impossible for me with th'e materials ut my disposai, and with no maps of
reference of an adequate kind, to give any military opinion upon this question
which could be of value.

Having in view the fact of tho increasing importance of Vancouver in the
future, and the necessity for its adequate defonce, I consider that it would be highly
inadvisable to close any lease of the nature indicated uintil it was made quite clear
that the island in question would not be required for some portion of the defence.

It is my intention, with the concurrence of the minister, to visit Vancouver for
the purposes of a military inspection in April next. I could then, after a personal
investigation on the ground, record my views of the present situation of the defence,
which, having in view modern changes, might be modified from that recorded by
Sir Frederick Middleton in 1888.

EDW. T. H. HUTTON,
Major Genoral,

Commaading Canadian Militia.
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The Senior Naval Officer, Royal Navy, OrrAwa, 8th February, 1899.

Esquimait, B.C.
A proposal has been made to this governmont for temporary alienation, with

power to resume, of Deadman's Island, Vancouver Harbour, for erection of a wharf
and buildings of commercial importance and value to the city. This island was
originally a part of the military reserve.

This goverrment would esteem it a favour if you would state your opinion as
regards the advisability of sanctioning such a lease, in view of this island being
required for purposes of defence.

Necessity for prompt decision does not admit of inspection by the Major Gen.
eral commanding our forces.

F. W. BORDEN,
Minister of Militia and Defence.

(Memora- dum.)
From the Major General Comnanding the Militia to the Bon. the Minis-

ter, Departnent of Mlitia and De)fence.

{Pressing.] 
OTTAWA, lth February, 1899.

Sa,-With referenco to my letter of the Sth inst., having reference to D3adman's
Island, Vancouver Island. I beg to state that, having received through you the
telogram from Admiral Bury Palliser, R. N., commanding at Esquimalt, to the
effoct as given below, I see no objection to the granting of the lease undor the cir-
cuinstances proposed by you.

Minister of Militia and Defence, EsemMALT, B. C., 9th February, 1899.

Ottawa.
2. " In reply to your telegram, I cannot see that Deadman's Island, Vancouver

Harbour, would evqr be required for purposes of defence.
"ADMIRAL BURY PALLISER."

3. I would, nieveribeless, suggest that it would be advisable to include in the
terms of the lease a clause giving the Militia Dopartment power to resume posses-
sion at any time in the event of circumstances arising which might necessitate the
resumption of the island for possible contingencies in connection with the defence
of the Domin·on.

I have, &c.,
EDW. T. B. HUTTON,

Major General,
Commanding Canadian Militia.

Corr of a report of a conmittee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved by Ris
Excellency the Governor General in Council, on the 16th February, 1S99.

On a memorandum dated lth February, 1899, from the Minister of Militia and
Defonce, recommending that authority be given hilm to lease Deadman's [sland,
situated in Coal Harbour, Burrard Inlet, British Columbia, to the Vancouver Lum.
ber Company, of Vancouver City, British Columbia, for a term of twenty-five
years, at an annual rental of five hundred dollars.

The committee submit the same for Your Excellency's approval.
JOHN J. McGEE,

Clerk of the Privy Council.
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DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE,
OTTAWA, 16th February, 1899.

Hon. JOSEPH MARTIN,
Attorney General, Victoria, B.C.

DEAR SIR,-As intimated to you in a telegram I have leased for a term of years
the property known as Deadman's Island referred to in your letter of the 20th ulti mo
to the gentleman named Mr. T. Ludgate. I am glad to know that you approve of the
acquisition of the island by Mr. Ludgate.

Yours very truly,
F. W. BORDEN.

CITY OF VANCOUVER,
CITY CLERK's OFFICE,

The Honourable VANCOUVER, 2st February, 1899.

The Minister of Militia and Defence, Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-I have the honour to forward herewith draft lease of Stanley Park drawn
in accordance with your letters dated 3rd September, 1898, and shall be obliged if
you shall have the same executed and returned at your convenience.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOS. F. MoGUIGAN,
City Clerk.

MATOR's OFFICE,

J. MOKENZIcE, Esq., VANCOUVER, 25th February, 1899.

Dominion Land Agent, New Westminster, B.C.

DEAR SiR,-I inclose copy of Order in Council of date 8th *June, 1887, under
which the city holds possession and bas improved the military reserve known as
Stanley Park. Also copies of letters from the Minister of Mihtia to Mr. Maxwell
approving of the city's application for a lease.

The reason the city wisbed a lease was to put us in a better position to deal with
squatters and trespassers which we could not do directly under the Order in Council.
We always felt that our tenure of the park was perfectly good and the government
would not resume possession of any part of it except for military purposes as is
stated in the order.

Now it is stated that a lease has been privately granted to a saw-mill company
of that portion of the park known as Deadman's Island. The city bas occupied
this island and improved it by building a bridge connecting it with the main land
and opening up a trail through its lengtb. We are advised that legally our claimi
to the reserve for park purposes is good and that Deadman's Island forms part of it.

By the notes of record in the Department of Land and Works, Victoria, of the
survey made in 1863, by Lance Corporal Turner of the Sappers and Miners it is
shown that in surveying the military reserve he included the island, and it is
only on the premises that it is a portion of the reserve that the Dominion government
can lay any ciaim to it at all. Otherwise it is Crown lands under the jurisdiction
of the provincial government and the Dominion authorities have in that case no
authority to deal with it at all.

The objection to the lease is not wholly because a saw-mill is to be erected, but
because it is a site most admirably adapted for a large dry dock, and which for the
purpose of the rapid increaso in the shipping of the port must in no distant day be
constructed.

A. 1899
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We also strorgly object to the method in which the lease was secured from the
executive of the Dominion government.

The Iease was issued without giving us an opportunity to expross our views on
the matter and the first that we knew of the deal was an announcement in the news-
paper that it had been granted.

I send you a copy of the World newspaper which was published on the day the
news became known and which gives copies of letters received by the council in
connection with the matter.

I hope you will report to the authorities the facts of the case. The sum of $500
per annum, it may be pointed out, is an altogether inadequate annual rent for the
valuable rights given by the lease. The 7j acres at a moderato estimate is worth
from $75,000 to $100,000.

Yours very truly,

JAMES F. GARDEN,
Mayor.

THE CANADIAN BANK OF COMMERCE,
VANCOUVER, B C., 27th February, 1899.

THIODoRE LUDGATE, Esq.,
727 lornby St., Vancouver, B.C.

DEAR SI,-I beg to state that a credit to the extent of $100,000 has been estab-
lished in your favour in this bank, to be availed of in the construction of a saw-mill
here.

I am directed to intimate also that this credit will be increased to $200,000 or
more, if necessary.

Yours truly,
H. H. MOR RIS,

Manager.

VANCOUVER, B.C., lst March, 1899.
Hon. F. W. BORDEN,

Minister of Militia, Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-With regard to the lease of the property known as Deadman's
Island to the Vancouver Lumber Company; as you are aware there has beei a great
deal of publie discussion in this city as te the course adopted by your department
in the matter. One point that bas been raised is as to the efrect of an Order in
Council dated the 8th day of June, 1887, a copy which I inclose. It is contended
that the description of the pi operty in this Order in Council includes all the naval
reserve, and if so, it would include Deadman's Island. I understand, bowever, that
it was not considered ut the time of the passing of the Order in Council by the city
that they were te get lieadman's Island, because at that timo it was thought that
that island belonged to the local governnent. I would suggest on behalf of the
Vancouver Lumber Company that it would be well to rescind the said Order in
Council and pass a new one contining same te S'anley Park proper, which I would
define as being ail the naval reserve excepting Deadman's Island. There was. I
understand, no formal lea!e ever executed in faveur of the city. I understand that
a deputation is leaving bore to-day to interview you with regard te this matter.
This will reach you a day later than they do, and I am wiring you to-day to wait to
sce this letter.

Yours truly,
JOSEPH MARTIN.
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1>om[NIoN LANDS OFFICE.
NEW WESTM[NSTER, B.C., 3rd March, 1899

Re Ilead Offlce File 503273.
The Secretary,

Department of the Interior,
Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,--Referring to my letter of the 25th ultimo, No. 23908, in the matter of
Deadnan's Island application for saw-mill site, I beg to inclose a letter which I
have received from Mr. James F. Gardon, mayor of the city of Vancouver, together
with copy of the Vancouver World newspaper of the 21st of February received
from Mr. Garden, and containing some other correspondence in the matter to that
date.

I understand that a delegation representiig some of the interests in Vancouver
has already gone to Ottawa to oppose the granting of the lease.

A great deal of newspaper reporting of meetings, etc., has been published, and,
if necessary, copies may be secured from the severai newspaper offices of Vancouver.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McKENZIE,
Agent Dominion Lands.

OTTAwA, 9th March, 1899.
Right Honourable SIR WILFRID LAURIER,

Premier and President of the Privy Council.
SI,-In reference to the interview held with yourse!f and other members of the

government last Tuesday, relative to the lease of Deadman's Island by tho govern-
ment for saw mill purposes, at your request, the delegates representing the citizens
cf Vancouver herewith submit a statement of their case:

1. That in 1863 a survey was made of the peninsula now known as Stanley
Park, and it was set aside as a military and naval reserve,said reserve being bounded
on the west by English B:ay îand on the east by Burrard Inlet.

2. The survey iade of ibis block of land, the original field notes, tracings and
traverse of the iiiet, &c., which weie produced by the delegates and accompany this
statement and marked X, demonstrate that the aforesaid reser'vation embraces
the whole of the said Stanley Park, including that portion known as Deadman's
Island, but which may be more properly designated a peninsula.

3. That at the request of the mayor, aldermen and citizens of the city of Van-
couver, on the 8th day of June, A.D. 1887, an Order in Council was issued granting
to the city of Vancouver the use of the aforesaid reservation for park purposes upon
-stipulations named in the said Order in Council, and to be held as such by the
citizens of Vancouver until such time as the said reservation should bo required for
military or naval purposes.

See the following letters:-

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DLFENCÉ,
OTTAWA. 12th July, 1887.

SIR,-With reference to the petition of the corporation of the city of Vancouver,
for a grant of the military reserve at that place for the purpose of a park, I have now
the bonour by direction of the Minister of Militia and Defence to transmit te you
the inclosed copy of an Order in Council, granting the desired privilege under cer-
tain conditions. A copy of the Order in Council has also been forwarded to the
Deputy Adjutant General in command of Military District No. 11, for his informa-
tion and guidance.

I have, &c.,
C. E. PANET, Colonel.

Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.
28
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FULL TEXT OF THE ORDER IN COUNCIL.

Copy of a report of a committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved by
His Excellency the Governor General in Council, on the 8th June, 1887:

On a report dated 10th May, 1887, from the Minister of Militia and Defence,
stating that he has had under consideration a petition of the mayor and alderman of
the city of Vancouver, B.C., praying that the Dominion government military re-
serve near the First Narrows, bounded on the west by English Bay, and on the enst
by Barrard Inlet, may be handed over to the said corporation for use as a park.
The minister reports that he secs no objection to this pr-posal, provided the corpora-
tion keeps the park in proper order, and the Dominion government retain
a right to resume the property when required at any time. The min-
ister further states that h. does not deem it advisable to recommend
that this property be transferred to class 2 as not available for mili-
tary use, as ho is of opinion that it will be required for miliiary
purposes, and until this, he recommends that the corporation have the use of the
same as a park, subject to the provisions nientioned. The committee advises that
the Minister of Militia and Defence be authorized to take the necessary steps for
carrying the same into effect.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

4. That on the 9th day of March, A.D. 1888, the city communicated with Sir
A. P. Caron, Minister of Militia and Defence, asking for information as to the
character of the title which would be given to the city, relating to the lands named
in the Order in Council, and in response thoreto was informed that no other titie
could be furnished than the said Order in Council and offlcially furnished to the
city council.

See the following letters:-
VANCOUVER, 9th March, 1888.

IHon. Sir A. P. CARON, K.C.M.G.,
Minister of Militia and Defence,

Ottawa.
SIR,-On the 12th July, 1887, a communication was received by the mayor of

this city from the Department of Militia and Defence, informing him that by Order
in Council, dated 8th June, 1887, permission wae given to the corporation of the city
of Vancouver. to use the Dominion government military reserve within the limita
of the said corporation for a public park.

Said order further notified you to take the necessary steps to carry its provi-
sions into i frect, but nothing has since been done in the matter. What will be the
character of the title of said lands, given to the city? A lease for a long period,
subject to the conditions of the Order in Council wili be, I presume, the mode of
conveyance. Where will the necessary document be prepared, and if by the
department, how soon may it be expected? It wili be difficult for the corporation
to deai with persons trespassing on said reserve, or to keep it in proper order, until
they can show their right to same, and I doubt if an Order in Council would suffice.

I have, &C.,
THOS. F. McGUIGAN,

City Clerk.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE,
OTTAWA, 26th January, 1889.

SIR,-I have the honour by direction of the Minister of à1ilitia and Defence, to
inform you that the two propositions made in the letters of yourself and the city
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clerk of Vancouver, dated respectiveJy 9th March, 1888, and 9th January, 1889,
have received due consideration, and have been decided upon as follows: (1) With
reference to the city lerk's inquiry what title will be given to the city of the lands
which the corporation is permitted to occupy as a park, I am to state that no other
document can be furnished than the copy of the Order in Council of 8th June, 1887,
officially furnished to yon by this department. (2) As regards the request of the
corporation for a grant on account of sums already expended in im proving the
property, and for an annual grant for a similar purpose in future, the minister
regrets that there are no funds available for any such purpose.

I bave, &c.,
C. B. PANET, Colonel,

Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

5. That relying upon the Order in Council and correspondence with the govern-
ment, and in order to comply with stipulations in the Order in Council, the corpora-
tion of the city of Vancouver by by-laws raised a considerable sum of money, to be
expended in the making of roads, construction of bridges, including a bridge landing
on to Deadman's Island, and trails thereon, culverts and paths through other portions
of the reserve. The total expenditure incurred in connection with Stanley Park
since the Order in Council was passed up to the present time amounts to one hundred
thousand dollars (8100,000). For the present year (1899) the sum of six thousand
five hundred dollars (86,500) is included in the civic estimates for expenditure on
improvements in said park.

6. As showing that the city of Vancouver has always regarded Deadman's
Island as a portion of Stanley Park, we herewith submit an extract from the
inaugural address, delivered by His Worship Mayor Ophonheimer, on the 5th of
January, A.D. 1891, it being his third torm in succession of that office-in reviewing
the work of the previous year, under the heading of " parks and drives," said:

During the past year a considerable amount of work bas been done ou some of
the city parks.

In Stanley Park the grounds leased to the Brockton Point Athletic Association,
have been cleared, levelled and feuced.

A bridge has been built to Deadman's Island and several new trails have been
constructed in order to make more accessible and acceptable the beautiful spots in
that lovely demesne.

7. The expenditure on the Deadman's Island section of Stanley Park has been
greater in proportion to its dimensions than any other portion, excepting the recrea-
tion grounds and around the neighbourhood of the Zoo and flowers gardens.

8. The request of the city council transmitted in August last through Ris
Excellency the Governor General, the Earl of Aberdeen, and Mr. Maxwell, represent.
ative for Burrard district, was not made because the city believed its title to the
lands for the use of park purposes to be dufective, but that the city might be vested
with the power to evict squatters and abate nuisance.'

See resolution of city council and letter of Minister of Militia, as follows
Whereas the reserve being 950 acres, known as Stanley Park, situated to the

west of the city is believed to be vested in the Dominion Government:
And whereas by a certain Order in Council, dated the 8th of June, 1887, the

said reserve was handed over to the corporation of the city of Vancouver for use as
a park subject to the right of the Dominion government to resume the property
when required at any time and subject te the city keeping the saine in the proper
order.

And whereas the corporation of the city of Vancouver have no powers vested
in it further than the right to use the said reserve as a park:

And whereas there are a number of small dwellings of a very undesirable
character existing on the foreshore and other parts of the said park, harbouring
squatters, undesirable characterssuch beingdetrimental to the interests of the public
and unsightly;

A 1899
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And whereas there is now no power vested in the corporation to prevent the
continuance of the ruisances that exist and the usefulness to the publie of the park is
seriously affected thereby and in consequence whereof the citizens cannot use the
park to the saie advantage as they could were such nuisances repressed, and there
always exists a great danger of fire destroying the trees and beauty of the park
unless control is vested in the city ;

And whereas the city bas expended the sum of $100,000 in making roada and
annually improving the park;

And whereas the city annually expends a large sum in improvements therein;
Be it therefore resolved that it is in the interesta of the City and the publi c

generally that powers be vested in the city that would enable the corporation to put
an end to the nuisances that do now exist and to prevent the occurrence of them in
the future. That in order to place the corporation in sucb a position that it would
be authorized to furtber improve the park and keep the same more strictly as a park
and for the use and benefit of the public generally, a petition be forwarded to the
Honourable the Minister of Militia and Defence praying that anOrder in Council be
passed vesting the said reserve in the corporation to be held in trust as a public park
and sucb deed or trust should confer on the baid corporation all the necessary powers
to evict trespassers, remove undesirable buildings and prevent nuisances and ail
powers that may be deemed necessary to ermpower the said corporation to keep and
preserve the reserve as a park for the city.

(ANNINa, N.S., 3rd September, 1898.
MY DIaZ M-aXwELL,-With reference again to your letter of the 16th ultimo,

I bave looked over the matter and find that no lease was ever given to the city of
Vancouver by the Dominion government. The authority is simply contained in an
Order in Council. I am advised tbat the department might give a lease for twenty-
one years, renewable, under which the city would have the power they desire. The
government would of course reserve the right to take possession, if necessary, for
military purposes, and would put in a clause in the lease holding the departinent
harmless from any trouble which might arise from dispossessing the squatters
referred to.

If this will satisfy the city authorities, I shall be very glad to have it carried
out as soon as possible. Will you kindly ascertain and let we know.

Yours very truiy,
F. W. BORDEN.

9. When part of Stanley Park was required for lighthouse purposes by the
Department of Marine and Fisheries such department always recognized the fact
thut the property is held by the city of Vancouver under the terms of the Order
in Council, and that no part thereof could be interfered with except by the consent
of the city of Vancouver an.d the Department of Militia and Defence.

10. We desire specially to direct the attention of the government to the letter
of the Department of the Interior to the city clerk, dated 3rd February, 1899,
inclosing the reply of said department to an application of Messrs. Davis, Marbhall
and MacNeill for the parchase on behalf of a client of Deadman's Island and the
city's reply thereto.

These are as follows:-

OTTAWA, 3rd February, 1899.
The City Clerk,

Vancouver, B.C.

Sî,-I am directed to send you herewith a copy of a communication which bas
been addressed by the department to Messri. Davis, Marshall and MacNeill of Van-
couver, in reply to an application from that firm to purchase, un behalf of a client,
Deadman's Island, situated in Vancouver Harbour. I am to ask that yon will be
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good enough to submit the application in question to tht- ilayor and corporation of
Vancouver, for an expression of their views thereon, :md to kindly advise the
Department of the result.

I amn, &c.,
LYNDWODE PEREIRA.

Messrs. DAvis, MARSHALL and MACNEILL. OTTAWA, 3rd February, 1899.

GENTLEMEN,-I am directed to acknowledge your letter of the 13th uit., stating
that a client of yours desires to purchase, if possible, Deadman's Island, situated in
Vancouver harbour, near Stanley Park, for the purpose of mill-site. In reply, 1 am
to say that it cannot be ascertainod from the maps in the department that any such
island as that exists in Vancouver harbour, but there is an island which seems to be
identical with Deadman's Islind just off the shore of Stanley Park. This island,
along with the lands surrounding the harbour, at one time formed what is k nown as
the naval reserve, made by the Imperial government and handed over to Canada.
As the pot tion of the point upon which Stanley Park is situated is still the property
of tho Dominion, and as the island forms a part of this properly, it could not well
be disposed or, even were the department inclined to grant the application yon
now make. Ilowever, if you will furnish more definite information on the subject,
I am to say that the matter will receive further consideration.

Your (bedient servant,
LYNDWODE PEREIRA,

Atsistant Secretary.

VANCOUVER, 22nd February, 1899.
To the Secretary,

Department of the Interior,
Ottawa.

Sra,-In reply to your communication of the 3rd February, the council of the
city bas considered the subject matter of the communication and also the copy of a
letter written to Messrs. Davis, Marshall and MacNeill by the assistant secretary,
dated 3rd February, 1899, and beg to point out that the area of land referred to,
known as Deadman's Island, is, as stated in your communication, part of the naval
or military reserve and forms part of the property known as Stanley Park, and is
at low water absolutely connected and part of the park enjoyed by the public.

That by an Order in Council, dated the 8th day of June, 1887, this property
was granted to the corporation of the city of Vancouver for use as a public park.
That the city has since that date occupied the said property and spent considerable
money in the improvement thereof.

That the said property is now being used and enjoyed by the public of the city
as a public park, it being the best and onily park available for the public.

That num bers of citizens on Sundays and public holidays enjoy recreation and
open air in the park.

That it has always been considered by the city and approved of by various
members of the Crown that the said Order in Council by virtue of which the park
was handed over to the city was a sufficient and reliablo tenure of the lands to be
held by the city, and owing to such assurances from time to time so given the public
have been satisfied and content in expending moneys for the improvement thereof,
and that the use of the park by them would not be interferod with unless it became
necessary to do so for military purposes only.

That the park is now the property of the Dominion of Canada as a military
reserve.
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That the city of Vancouver holds under the said Order in Council all the rights
over the property beld by the Dominion of Canada subject only to its resumption
for military purposes.

That the property being so heid by the city cannot be and should not be dealt
with except under the Order in Council, that is, when required for military purposes.

That when part of this property has been used for lighthouse purposes by the
Department of Marine and Fisheries such department and the council have always
recognized the fact that the property is held by the city under the above Order in
Council and that no part of it could be int.erfered with except by permission of the
city and the Department of Militia.

That during such undisturbed occupancy by the city since June of 1887 certain
parties built sbcks and became trespassers on portions of this property particularly
on that portion known as Deadman's Island.

That in the opinion of the council of the city and on the suggestion of His Ex-
cellency the then Governor General it was considered desirable that such acta of
trespass on the property by unauthorized persons should be stopped and these
persons ejected. In consequence thereof the council forwarded in August, 1898, to
the Department of Militia and Defence a resolution of the council asking that the
said park should be vested in the corpotation so that the corporation would be
placed in a legal position to take proceedings against trespassers.

That in consequence of such resolution the Honourable the Minister of Militia
wrote on the 3rd September, 1898, to the member for Burrard that he approved of
a lease being granted and would be happy to see it carried out.

That the council of the said city on receipt of the above communication from
the Minister of Militia felt satisfied that a lease would be granted, and expected
to receive such a lease.

That a lease bas been drawn and forwarded to the Minister of Militia with a
request that it be executed.

That as the Minister of Militia agreed to give a lease it was anticipated that
one would be forwarded.

That it was never contemplated that any other disposition of the park would
be suggested after the correspondence that had passed.

That the council receive the communication from your department with
surprise.

That it is of the greatest importance for the welfare and future of the city that
this property should be maintained as a public park.

That, for the above reasons and that the interests of the city would be very
materially injured by acceding to the request contained in your letter, the council
on Monday, the 20th day of February, resolved that the following answer be sent to
your communication:-

" That the council is opposed to the granting of the request contained in the
letter of the 3rd of February, 1l99, and is opposed to the operation of a saw-mill on
Deadman's Island."

I remain, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOS. F. MoGUIGAN,
City Clerk.

11. The city bas not made use of the island as a cemetery as the following tele.
gram from Ris Worship Mayor Garden will show:

VANCOUVER, B.C., 8th March, 1899.
JAMEs McQUIEN,

Russeli House, Ottawa.
City expended three hundred, ç4tting trail, besides bridge. City has not used

island as a cemetery. JAMES P. GARDEN.
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12. In reference to the movement for the building of a dry dock, at the close of
1890 and the beginning of 1891, the following extracts from the by-law submitted
to the taxpayers will show that not only no reference was made to the selection of
Deadman's Island for the site of the dry dock and arsenal, but the terms of the by-
law specified the limits within which the said dry dock and arsenal were to be con-
structed, and which precluded Deadman's Island.

See copy of extracta from by-law as follows:-

CITY OF VANCOUVER.

By-law relating to a bonus for the construction and maintenance of a graving
dock and ship repairing yards for the city of Vancouver:

Section 1 said by-law reads as follows:-
That the said individual, individuals, or body corporate shall by the 30th dayof

August, 1891, commence the construction of a graving dock and arsenal for the
repairing of ships within the limita of the city of Vancouver between Bu.rnaby
Avenue and Chilco street. The cost of the construction and equipmentof said grav-
ing dock and arsenal for the repairs of ships shall amount to the sum of one million
of dollars ($1,000,000).

Advertised and forming a part of said by-law, section 2 is as follows
That the said Henry Bell, Perry, Cutbill de Long & Co., or the company by

them to be formed, will construct the said graving dock of the following dimensions,
that is to say, six hundred (600) feet long, eighty (80) feet wide at the gates, with a
depth of water of twenty-eight (28) feet on the sill, and of good substantial atone
work in the most workmanlike and skilful manner with ail the necessary appliances
for docking ships, on the south shore of Burrard Inlet, in the limits of the city of
Vancouver, between Boundary Avenue and Chilco Street, and adjacent thereto, will
construct an arsenal for the repair of ships, fully equipped with all the most modern
and approved appliances for using the same.

Section 3 of the agreement is as follows:-
That the said graving dock and arsenal shall cost, with all the improvements

and equipmenta for successfully working same, the sum of not less than one million
($1,000,000) dollars.

The foregoing by-law, from which the extracts are quoted, was submitted to
and voted upon by the duly qualified taxpayers of the city of Vancouver, on the
22nd day of January, A.D. 1891, and carried by a vote of 353 in faveur to 16
agamnst.

13. Regarding the application made te the provincial government in 1895 for a
lease of Deadman's laland by promoters of a marine railway company, the corpora-
tion of the city of Vancouver took no action to oppose this application, being
advised that no such lease could be granted except by the Federal govern ment, and
that no portion of the park lands would be leased to any one without the consent of
the said corporation and the Department of Militia and Defence.

. 14. We therefore, in view of the foregoing established facts and documenta
herewith submitted, respectfully request that the government will be pleased to
revoke the lease of Deadman's Island granted to Theodore Ludgate, dated 16th
February, 1899.

J. C. MOLAGAN
JAMES MOQUEEN,
H. J. SENKLER,
FRED BUSCOMBE,
HARRY COWAN.

Herewith are appended resolutions and letters
1. From the Vancouver Board of Trade.
2. From the Art, Historical and Scientific Association.
3. From the harbour master of the port of Vancouver.
4. From the chairman and secretary of the Brockton Point Athletic Club.
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5. From Captain Adair, of H.M.S. Imperieuse, Flagship, to Captain McLeod,
harbour master, asking that a certain portion of the harbour be reserved for berths
for ships named.

Copy resolution passed at a special general meeting of the Vancouver board of
trade, held in Vancouver on the 20th day of February, 1899.

LEASE OF DEADMAN'S ISLAND.

At a general meeting of the Vancouver board of trade, held in the board rooms
on Monday, 20th Februiary, 1899, which was largely attended and thoroughly repre-
sentative in its character, it was resolved that the opinion of this meeting is
thoroughly averse to the leasing of Deadman's Island by the Federal government,
as a site for a saw-mill or any other purpose.

The islaud is within the limite of Stanley Park, and the citizens have always
regarded it as part of the park in accordance with Order in Council pasged by the
Federal government some time in 1887; and the locating of a saw-mill on Lead-
man's Island would, in case of fire, be fraught with extreme danger to the whole
park. Further, having made improvements on the island, the citizens feel that with
the knowledge of these facts, the claim of the coancil and citizens to the island as a
part of Stanley Park should be recognized.-Carried.

A true copy.
WILLIAM T. STEIN,

Secretary.

To Alderman McQUEEN;, City. VANouVER, B. C., 28th February, 1899.

Sia,-I beg to inclose a copy of the resolution passed at the monthly meeting
of the executive committee of the Art, Historical and Scientific Association, held
yesterday afternoon.

While sincerely desirous of promoting the industrial development of the city
of Vancouver in every reasonable way, the general committee of the Art Historical
and Scientific Association are strongly opposed to the establishment of a saw-mill
on Deadman's Island.

Yours sincerely,

H. J. DEFOREST,
Secretary of the Art, Historical and Scientific Assooiation.

VANCOUVER, lst March, 1899.
J. C. McLAGAN, Esq.,

DEiA Sia,-Yours of 28th uit., received, asking me how a saw-mill on Dead-
man's Island would affect the harbour of Vancouver. As Coal Harbour js confined
to a limited space of anchorage and the safest in this harbour, I am of opinion that
it would be dangerous and inconvenient to ships laying at anchor by continual float-
ing booms and rafts, and also the only safe place to anchor small crafts and coasters.

I am yours truly,

MALCOLM McLEOD,
Harbour Master.
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VANCOUVER, B. C., 1st March, 1899.
FRED. BUSCOMBE, Esq.,

Vancouver.

DEAR SIR,-As you are going to Ottawa with the deputation of citizens leaving
to-day to protest against alienation of any part of Stanley Park for commercial pur-
poses, and more particularly against the proposed lease to Mr. Theodore Ludgate,
for a saw-mill site, you will please act at the same time for the Brockton Point
Athletic Club, and in its name do everything possible to prevent this action.

Being a member of the committee of the club, you are familiar with its objects
and the work it has accomplished, and can forcibly point out to the Minister of
Militia the serious objections that exist to the establishment of such an industry
within the park limita.

Yours truly,
C. S. SWEENEY, Chairman.
I. S. C. SAUN DERS, Hon. Secy.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
OTTAWA, 11lth Mar-ch, 1899.

Lieutenant Colonel Pinault,
Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence,

Ottawa.

SIR,-With further reference to the matter of Deadman's Island, [ am directed
to transfer to the Department of Militia and Defence, the inclosed papers relating
to this subject, namely:-

(1.)-Letter from Mr. John McKenzie, the agent of this department at New
Westminster, dated the 3rd instant, together with the stated inclosures therein,
being-

(2.)-Letter from Mr. James Garden, mayor of Vancouver, dated 25th Febru-
ary, L899, and

(3.)-A copy of the Vancouver World newspaper of the 21st ultimo.
I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,
FRANK HALL.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OTTAwa, 14th April, 1899.

The Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence,
Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letters of the 24th
and 29th ultimo, in which you ask for my opinion upon certain questions with
respect to the reserve for military and naval purposes at or in the vicinity of Vancou-
ver, B.C.

As to the first question stated in your letter of the 24th ultimo, namely:-Was
the property ever transferred by the Imperial government to British Columbia
before confederation ? I beg to state that it does not appear from the papers sub-
mitted and from the researches made in 1888 by Messrs. Drake, Jackson and Helm-
oken, the then agents of this department, that there was any actual transfer. The
title to the public lands of British Columbia is, and always has been, in the Crown,
" but the right to administer and dispose of the (ordinary) Crown lands to settlers,
together with all royal and territorial revenues arising therefrom had been trans-
ferred to the province before its admission into the federal union." So it is stated
in the judgment of the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council in the Precious
Metals Case, and, I think, that the Imperial legislation affecting such lands, which
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is referred to in the report of Messrs. Drake, Jackson and Helmeken, must be taken
to have recognized and confirmed such a right on the part of the Province.

The lands now in question, however, are not ordinary Crown lands. They
were apparently reserved by the Imperial authorities for Imperial purposes, and it
may weil be doubted whether they wero affected by the legislation referred to. In
order to come to a decision upon that point, the time and manner of their first reser-
vation and the object of it would require to be considered, and the information before
me as to these particulars is not sufficient to enable me to forrm an opinion. The
lands in question were not, so far as appears, transferred to the colony in any other
way.

2. For the same reason I am unable to form any confident opinion u pon the
second question in your letter of the 24th ultimo, namely: Who is the actual owner
of this Imperial property, and in virtue of what titles or Acts of Parliament? If
the reserve belongs to Canada, it must be under section 108 of " The British North
America Act," and item either 9 or 10 of the schedule theroin referred to, i. e., either
as ordnance property or as lands set apart for general public purposes. It would
not, however, be the property of Canada by virtue of that section unless at the time
of the union it was the property of the province.

3. As to the first question in your letter of the 29th ultimo, namely, " Is Dead-
man's Island embraced in the reserve covered by the Order in Council of the 8th
June, 1887 ?" there is no information in the papers sent by you or in Mesrs. Drake,
Jackson and Helmcken's report or the papers which accompanied it, which would
enable me to form an opinion upon this point. In a letter which Mr. Gemmili,
acting on behalf of the city of Vancouver, bas written to your minister, dated 23rd
ultimo, he refers to plans of the reserve which he states have been deposited with
the Prime Minister. These I have not seen, and it is possible that they might throw
some light upon the question. Mr. Gemmill refers to the lands in question, includ-
ing Deadman's Island, as having been constituted a reserve for military and naval
purposes. In your letter of the 24th ultimo you refer to the property including the
island as having been " formerly an Imperial naval reserve,' and in the Order in
Council of 8th June, 1887, the property handed over to the city as a park is describ-
ed as the Dominion government military reserve." If it can be shown, as I nnder-
stand may be the case, that the island was set apart as a naval reserve, that would
go a long way towards showing that only the parcel on the mainland was intended
to be handed over to the city.

4. As to the second question in that letter, viz.: "Is the lease granted to T.
Ludgate by the government legal and valid ?" I may say that this question depends
to some extent upon the answer to the preceding ones. Assuming, however, that
Canada has a good title to these lands, the authority of the Governor in Council
would be necessary to the validity of such a lease. It does not appear from the
papers whether any such authority was obtained before a lease was executed. I
may state further that the Act respecting Ordnance and Admiralty lands has no
application to lands in question, that Act dealing only with the lands in the older
provinces which are specified in the schedule to the Act. If the government can
dispose of them it is only by virtue of the royal prerogative, or undor section 3 of
chapter 26 of the Statues of 1894.

Papers returned herewith.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

B. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 68A.) A. 1899

VICTORA, B.C., 28th May, 1896.
The Deputy Minister of Justice,

Ottawa.

Re NAVAL AND MILITIA RESERVE, B.C.

Re DIADMAN's ISLAND, VANCOUVER.

SIR,-We have the honour to report that on receipt of your instructions of the
20th instant herein we at once communicated with the IIonourable the Premier,
notifying him of the instructions which we had recoived from you, and asking
whether some arrangement could not be arrived at whereby the lease of Deadman's
Island was considered by the Dominion government to be of great value in con-
nection with the defences of the city of Vancouver, and that it was desirable that
this matter should be unencumbered with the question of a lea8e. During the course
of the day we ascertained the tact to be that a lease had actually been executed in
favour of a company, which refused to accept the same on the groands that the
terms therein inserted were too onerous. The Honoturable the Premier notified us
in writing that hewould be glad to see us at 12 o'clock to-day. Our Mr. Helmcken
attended at the hour appointed and had the honour to meet the Executive Council.
The matter was discussed, and inasmuch as the company had refused to accept the
lease which had been granted in its flavour by the provincial government, and as the
provincial government could not reasonably refuse to accede to the request of t he
Dominion government, the executive at once agreed that it would be in the interests
of the province that the island should be reserved at once, and that all negotiations
between the government and the proposed company should be considered at an end.

We have written to the government asking them to reserve the place at once.
We wired you to-day as follows: " Provincial government has agreed to reserve

Deadman's Island, Vancouver, for defensive purposes," which we now beg to confirm.

We have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

DRAKE, JACKSON & HELMCKEN.

To the Honourable VICTORIA, k3.C., 28th December, 1888.

The Minister of Justice, Ottawa.

SI,-With respect to the reserves in British Columbia, we beg to report as
follows:-

First, with respect to Vancouver Island. The Hudson Bay Company, by a
charter from the Imperial government, dated 13th January, 1849, held the island
for the purposes inter alia of settlement, with power to make sales of lands, except
so much as might be required for public purposes, or for the formation of naval
establishments. Under this charter down to 1858, the company dealt with the island
lands. In that year by an arrangement between the government and that company,
the lands were sold by the colonial surveyor with the understanding that
the proceeds were to be accounted for under the charter; and on the 3rd of April,
1867, the Imperial government paid in full settlement of all the company's demande
the sum of $57,500, and by that deed the lands reverted to the Crown as from lst
January, 1862.

A number of reserves have been made, some by the Hudson Bay Company
and some by the colonial government. A lst of which is set ont in Appendix A
which is a copy of a return made by the then chief commissioner of lands and works
to the house of assembly in the year 1873.

These reserves are mostly still in existence, and on the union of the colonies of
Vancouver Island with British Columbia under the Imperial Statute of 6th August,
1866, nothing was enacted with respect to the lande or reserves.
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Se-ondly, with regard to the colony of British Columbia.
This colony was established as a Crown colony, (see 21 and 22 Vie., cap. 99)

and in September, 1858, an Imperial proclamation was issued authorizing the gov-
ernment to provide for the administration of justice and government in British
Columbia.

The Governor of British Columbia from time to time set out reserves in British
Columbia for publie purposes which are also defined in Appendix A.

There is no Act, proclamation or ordinance, which we have been able to dis-
cover by which the proprietorship of land on the mainland or island has been trans-
ferred to the colonies of British Columbia; but by Imperial Act 28 and 29 Vie.,
cap. 63, " An Act to remove doubts as to the validity of Colonial Laws," it may be
reasonably hold that all Colonial Acts relating to land, not disallowed, practically
admitted the right of colonial legislatures to deal with the Crown lands.

The British government from time to time passed ordinances relating to the
Crown lands of the provinces, but nowhere is there any reference to the reserves
which had been made while the colonies were Crown colonies. A list of these
ordinances is appended.

When British Columbia was admitted into the union, 16th May, 1871, under
section 10 of the terms of the union, the British North America Act of 1867 was
made applicable to British Columbia in the like way and to the same extent as the
said Act applied to other provinces, and as if British Columbia had been one of the
provinces originally united by the said Act.

By section 109 of the said Act all lands, etc., belonging to the severai provinces
should belong to the several provinces subject to any trusts existing in respect there-
of and to any interest other than that of the province in the same.

And by section 108 the public works and property of each province enumerated
in the third schedule should be the property of Canada.

To us it appears questionable whether the province acquired under the British
North America Act on confederation, title to any land, the 109th section having
reference only to lands belonging to and not those situated in the province, and if
it did, our view of the reserves is this: that al reserves for public purposes made
while the colonies were under the Crown did not belong to the province on confed-
eration. They fall into the category of lands in respect of which an interest other
than that of the province existed therein.

What strengthens this contention is that under the 3rd schedule of the British
North America Act, clause 10, lands set apart for generai public purposes are handed
over to the Dominion. This position, we understand is repudiated by the govern-
ment of this province, and the ground taken is that the words must be treated as
having reference to the preceding terms, i.e., armouries, drill sheds, military clothing
and munitions of war, and as British Columbia bad no armouries, drill sheds, &c., the
government claim that no reserves passed to the Dominion. This is a proposition
which we need not now discuss further than referring to it as apparently being the
chief grounds of the contention of the province, adverse to the Dominion claim.

We may further point out that during the Crown colony times the Imperial
government made charts of the waters of Vancouver Island and British Columbia,
and the officers engaged in such employment marked off various places as govern-
ment reserves, which reserves appear on the charts, and are marked in the appendix
A as permanent reserves. As the lands were Crown lande at the time of the
reservations it is submitted that these reserves were lawfully made without any
special reference to the local government.

In referring to the various Acte, proclamations and Orders in Council relating
to these colonies, a list of which for reference we send, we would draw attention to
the Act 1 William 4th, cap. 25, " An Act for the support of Bis Majesty's House-
hold, and of the honour and dignity of the Crown of the United Kingdom." This
Act purported to deal with the revenues of the Crown, including the proceeds of
the Crown lands sold. The Act 15 and 16 Vie. 39:

"An Act to remove doubts as to the lands and casual revenues of the Crown in
the colonies and foreign possessions," whereby it was enacted that the Act of 1
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William A. cap. 25, did not apply to lands in the colonies, and that the colonies
were at liberty to appropriate the revenues for colonial purposes; and also to the
Act 3 and 4 Vic., cap. 78, relating to clergy reserves in Canada, and the Act 16 and
17 Vic., cap. 21: "An Act to authorize the Legislature of the Province of Canada
to make provisions concerning the clergy reserves in that province and the proceeds
thereof." These Acts taken together show that it required Imperial legislation to
deal with colony lands, and such lands could only be dealt with by the colonies as
far as they were authorized by Imperial legislative enactment, and any lands not so
dealt with remain in the absolute possession of the Crown, and still belong to the
Crown and not to the province.

It is to be remarked that the list of province reserves made out by the then
Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works in 1873 is made out from the records of the
Land Offlue; and there appears to be no special order by the Governor, or procla-
mation setting the lands apart as reserves; they are simply entered in the Land
Offce book and memoranda as government reserves.

We submit above for your consideration.
And we have the honour to be, &c.,

DRAKE, JACKSON & HELMCKER.

LANDS AND WoRKs DEPARTMENT,
VICToRIA, 22nd April, 1899.

Tho Hon. F. W. BORDEN,
Minister of Militia and Defence,

Ottawa.

SIRa,-I notice in the reports in the newspapers it is stated that you have decided
the dispute over the lease of Deadman's Island, in Burrard Inlet, on the ground that
the island was a " naval" reserve while the adjacent portion of the mainland (now
known as Stanley Park) was a " military " reserve,

Might I ask you to be good enough to give me the data on which this decibion,
reported to have been given by you, is based?

The agitation which has been aroused over the matter, has caused me to make
some researches among the papers in this department (which is the one in which
the documents relating to the matter would be found, if anywhere) and the result
of the investigation is such as to lead me to ask you to afford this government the
information which I have asked.

I have the honour to be, air,
Your obedient servant,

F. CARTER COTTON,
Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works.

LANDS AND WoRKs DEPARTMENT,
ViCToRIA, 2nd May, 1899.

lon. F. W. BORDEN,
Minister of Militia, Ottawa.

SIa,-Since I had the honour to address you on the 22nd ulti mo, asking you to
be good enough to furnish me with the data on which your decision was based in
regard to the so-called reserves on Burrard Intet, comprised in what are known as
Stanley Park and Deadman's Island, I have still further inveetigated the question of
the ownership of these tracts.

From the documents and records in this department, supplemented by the
information afforded by officials and others who were personally engaged in the
government service at the time when the transactions connected with the reserva-
tions of these lands were effected, I have reached the conclusion that the tracts of
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land, known as Stanley Park and Deadman's Island are the property of the Crown
as represented by this provincial government.

As matters connected with the controversy between the corporation of Van-
couver and Mr. Theodore Ludgate over the lease grattted by your department to
the latter have assumed a serious aspect, and any further delay on the part of this
government in asserting what it considers to be its rights of ownership might be
prejudicial to the interests of others as well as to those of the province, I beg to
inform you that as Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works I have formally taken
possession of Deadman's Island on behalf of this government and have instructed my
officials to permit no interference with or trespass on the property by any one.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

F. CARTER COTTON,
Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works.

(Telegrams.)
VICTORIA, B. C., 5th May, 1899.

Hon. F. W. BoRDEN,
Minister of Militia,

Ottawa.
Provincial government satisfied Stanley Park including Deadman's Island

belongs to them. Will Dominion government relinquish their laim in our favour?
JOS. MARTIN.

Hon. JosEPH MARTIN, OTTAWA, 5th May, 1899.

Attorney General,
Victoria, B. C.

Impossible to reply until grounds upon which you base your opinion are
furnished to this government.

F. W. BORDEN.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE,
Hon. F. CARTIER COTTON, OTTAWA, 12th May, 1899.

Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works,
Victoria, B. C.

Smn,-In reply to your letters of the 22nd ultimo, and 2nd instant, addreueed to
the Honourable the Minister, I hardly consider it necessary to tell yon that al naval
and military reserves are now the property of the Dominion of Canada; Stanley
Park and Deadman's Island are without the slightest doubt military and naval
reserves, and as speh are Dominion property.

The Domiin government bas been in peaceable possession of that reserve
since a great number of years. In 1887, it exercised its rights of ownership in
passing an Order in Council, granting to the city of Vancouver permission to use a
par of this propert.y for park purposes. This possession has been undisputed for
May ers before 1887. I Am at A lose to understand bQw yQU.0an Dow claiça to be
the proprietor and takp ephion of the sarse, on 1pebaIf Q your goverament,

tm V lQg#l Proc. ns
e mpri government is the dsly recgnird proprietor, aud it intends to

rgnsin in .,esatop and meintain itsl ' bts. as aqp.
It ai t perhaps e to mirs d fiedly conclusions if you woeld be

good enough to advise us as to the nature of titles under which you lay Qlailm to the
property in question.
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Meanwhile I think it right to inform you that it is the intention of the Dom.
inion government to vindicate its rights in the promises, and to romain in po:bession
until decided to the contrary by competent authority or by mutual consent.

I feel disposed to believe that everything can be settlod amicably between the
two governments and without any friction whatever.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

L. F.-PINAULT, Lt.-Col.,
Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE,
OTTAWA, 29th May, 1899.

The Honourable
The Minister of Militia and Defence,

Ottawa.

The following statement is taken from the journal of the legislative assembly of
British Columbia, December, 1872, to February, 1873:-

" Government reserves: South of first Narrows, Burrard Inlet kept for military
purpose, 950 acres, commauding entrance to Burrard Inlet."

There are other papers and correspondence with the admiralty, but they refer
to naval reserves. Stanley Park site and Deadman's Island being military reserves
are not mentioned therein.

L. F. PINAULT, Lt.-Col.,
Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITIA AND DEFENCE,
OTTAWA, 15th April, 1899.

THos. F. MOGUIGAN, F.Fq., City Clerk,
Vancouver, B.C.

SIR,-Having reference to the claim made by the corporation of Vancouver to
Deadman's Island as part of Stanley Park, and the exercising by the above corpora-
tion of jurisdiction over it,-

I have the honour to inform your corporation, through you, that Deadman's
Island bas never been considered by this department as in any way forming a por-
tion of the military reserve granted to your corporation by Order in Cou neil in 1887.
On the contrary it bas always been held as a separate reserve, subject to such
disposition as the department might see fit to make of it.

I have further the honour to inform you, that this department bas granted a
lease of this island to the Vancouver Lumber Company, of the city of Vancouver,
said company to have, by virtue of its lease, full control of it for the purposes for
which the lease was granted.

I have the houour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

L. F. PINAULT, Lt.-Col.
Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.

THs INDENTURE, made in duplicate the fourteenth day of February, in the year
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and nnety-nine, in pursuance of the Act
respecting short forme of leases, between Her Majesty Queen Victoria, acting
through the Honourable the Minister of Militia and Defence, the HonourabM
Frederick William Borden, of the city of Ottawa, in the province of Ontario ana
Dominion of Canada, of the firet part, and the Vancouver Lumber Company, of the
city of Vancouver, in the province of British Columbia and Dominion of Canada, of
the second part.
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Witnessoth, that in consideration of the rente, covenants, and agreements here-
inafter reserved and contained on the part of the said party of the second part, his
executors, administrators or assigns to be paid, observed and performed, he. the said
party of the first part, hath demised and leased, and by these presents doth demise
and lease unto the said party of the second part, his executors, adminietrators, and
assigns, all that certain Island known as " Deadman's Island," situated in Coal
Harbour, in Burrard Intet, near the city of Vancouver, in the province of British
Columbia and Dominion of Canada, to be used as a lumbering location, with the
right of erecting thereon a lumber plant and all such appliances as may be necessary
for carrying on a general lumber business, including wharfs, etc. To have and to
hold the said demised premises for and during the term of twenty-five years
(renewable) to be computed from the first day of March, one thousand eight
hundred and ninety-nine and from thonceforth next ensuing, and fully to be com-
plete and ended at the expiry of said term, or until determined as hereinafter mon-
tioned, yielding and paying therefor, yearly, and every year during the said term,
unto the party of the first part, or his successors in office, the sum of five hundred
(8500) dollars current money of the Dominion of Canada, to be payable on the foi-
lowing days and times, that is to say, half-yearly, in each and every year during the
continuance of the said term, without any deduction, defalcation, or abatement
whateoever, the first of such payrmente to become due and be made on the first day
of September next, 1899.

And the said lessee covenants with the said lossor to pay rent and to pay taxes,
and to repair and to keep up fonces; and that the said lessor may enter and view
state of repair; and that the said lessee wili repair according to notice, and will not
carry on any business that shall be deemed a nuisance on the said promises; and
will not assign or sub-let the said leased premises, or any part thereof, without leave
in writing from the party of the first part. The said lessees to have the right to
cut doWn and remove sncb timber as may be necessary to provide space for the
erection of all buildings in connection with thoir industry. Her Majesty's Men of
War and Canadian Government vessels to have the right to use all wharfs con-
structed by the said lessees for coaling and watering purposes. And that ho will
leave the prem'ses in good repair; proviso for re-entry by the said party of the
first part, on non-payment of rent. or non-performance of covenant. The said party
of the first part covenants with the said party of the second part for quiet
enjoyment.

Provided always, and it is hereby agreed that this demise may be determined,
by either party giving to the other a notice thereof in writing months before
the expiration of the firet or any subsequent , or the said party of the first

prt may determine this demise at any time, by a demand of possession of the said
Ieasod priemises, or any part thereof, if required for military or defentive purposes,

and the said lessees to have no claim for compensation for buildings erected or
improvements made thereon.

In witness thereof, the said parties have hereunto set their bands and seals the
day and year firet above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered, F. W. BoRDEN,by the party of the first part in presence i ilta and DfePce
of the undersigned witness. )Minisir of MIt

D. A. MACDONALD, Lt.-Col.

Signed, sealed and delivered, ' THEo. LUDGAÂrT forby the party of the second part in presence T
of the undersigned witness. The Vancouver Lumber o.

F. E. KNIGHT.
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LANDS AND WORKs DEPARTMENT,
VICTORIA, 23rd May, 1899.

Lient.-Colonel L. F. PI'AutLT,
Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence

Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-[ have the honoir to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 12th
instant.

In reply to the remarks therein in referenceo to the claim that Stanley Park and
Deadman's Imland aro the property of the Dominion, I beg to state that there is
nothing in the records of this department which would show that such is the case.
On the contrary there is evidence that those tracts belong to the province.

I have every confidence that upon investigation your government will acknow-
ledge the correctness of the position assumed by this government, a position I may
say which has been held by my predecessors in this department for many years.

This government will be pleased to afford your government any information on
the subject which it may have, and I would repeat what I said in my letters of the
22nd ultimo and 2nd instant to tho Honourable the Minister of Militia, that it will
facilitate the settlement of the matter if you will forward me details of the facts on
which the claim of the Dominion is based.

I sincerely reciprocate your expression that everything can be settled amicably
between the two governments and without any friction.

I have the honour to be, &c.,
F. CARTER COTTON.

Chief Commissioner of Lande and Works.
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REPORT OF Ma. R. C. CLUTE ON THE COMMISSION TO INQUIRE INTO
THE DEATH OF McDONALD AND FRASER ON THE

CROW'S NEST PASS RAILWAY.

SUMMAR.

The following is a summary of the principal facts:-
Hugh Mann and James D. Kennedy were partners in a contract on the Crow's

Nest Pass Railway at " Mann's Camp," about 80 miles west from Seventh siding,
which at that time was the end of the track.

On the 3rd of January, 1898, Hugh Mann engaged the deceased Charles P. Mc-
Donald and E. McC. Fraser to work on this contract at 81.75 per day. Charles P.
MeDonald worked from noon of the 3rd to the night of the 14th January, 1898.

He was allowed for his work 10h days at $1.75...........818 40

Less charges store ....... ...................... ,$ 0 15
Board ............................ 12 15
Medical dues................. ........ ... ,... ...... 0 50
M ail.................................................. 0 25

-- 813 05
Leaving a balance due him of........ ......... $ 5 35

E. MeC. Fraser worked on the 3rd of January, j day, 4th January, j day, full
time on the 5th and 6th,½ day on the 7th, full time on the 8th, the 9th was Sunday,
no time on tho 10th, full time on the 11th, 12th, 13th, 14th and 15th, no time on
the 16th and 17th, and on the 18th, j a day, on the 19th a full day.

His account stands thus, 11 days at $1.75......... ....... 819 25
Board 17 days.... ................................ $12 15
M edical dues ........ ................................ 0 50
M ail........................................... ...... ô 25

-- 812 90
Leaving a balance due of................... .. . $ 6 35

At this time there were about sixty men in the camp in two bunk-houses twenty
four by forty feet, wall seven feet, and two windows thirty by thirty-six inches
nailed up, and a door three and a half by five feet. Each bunk-house was furnisbed
With two rows of bunks one above the other, on each side, each bunk six by seven
leaving a passage way of about twelve feet. The lower bunk one foot off the ground
and the upper bank five feet from the ground, and leaving from one and one-half totwo feet between the upper bunk and the roof. The roof was composed of cedar
logs eut out trough shape, and covered with dirt. There was no ventilation
provided untit after the death of McDonald and Fraser. In deseribing this campon the day after Fraser and McDonald left, Louis Fontain, who had been engàged
at Crow's Nest Lake on the day Fraser and MoDonald passed down, says (page1111):
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"I reached the camp in the afternoo, and left next morning bocause there was
a good many sick, and it was not a healthy place, and I left next morning.

Q. Iow many sick ? A. There appeared to me to be like a hospital, that is
the short and long of it. I thought I could not stay in that camp because I thought
there was too many sick. I am a healthy man and I want to stay there."

The beds consisted of polos with some brush on top of the polos, and each man
had to furnish his own blankets. The two bunk bouses wero intended to accom-
modate sixty men each. There were twenty in the bouse where Fraser and Mc-
Donald slept. There was only at this time abouit one half of the full complement
of men at the camp.

The 15th of January is an important day in this investigation. On this day
McDonald for the first time remained in camp unable to work. Dr. Gordon had on
that morning called. He was on his way to Mission hospital with a number of
patients, one of whom he took for Mann's Camp. While there he was told that
there were a couple of men who complained of sore throat. He left a cough
mixture and went on. There were a numer sick in camp at this time, but from
the evidence it is clear that McDonald is referred to as one of those who complained
of sore throat; it is equally clear that Fraser was not conplaining at this time, as
on the 15th ho worked all day.

Hugh Mann returned from Banff either on the evening of the 15th or on the
16th. Kennedy though frequently at the cabmp spent the principal part of his time
at another camp further webt.

The cough mixture which was left by Dr. Gordon was spilt by the carelessness
of one of the men.

McDonald did not again go to work. Gallagher, Mann's walking boss, had
knowledge of this, but took no action with roference to the matter. He seemed to
regard it as a kindness to permit him to remain in camp without further attention.
McDonald gmew worse. For at least two days before they left camp he was not
able to take food, at least very little if any, and on the evening of the 19th, Mc-
Donald especially was in very bad condition, and had as ye.t received no attention,
except from the camp boy who offered him food from time to time.

Dr. Gordon, in whose district the men were, was still west, and did not again reach
Mann's Camp until the evening of the 23rd, the date at which they (McDonald and
Fraser) arrived at Seventh Siding. The western limit of Dr. Roy's district came to
within a few miles of Mann's Camp. His headquarters was at this time at Crow's
Nest Lake, distant from Uann's Camp about 30 or 35 miles by the Tote Road. Dr.
Gordon was at the Mission hospital on the 17th, 18th and 19th of January, and on
the 20th ut Cranbrook, both places being distant from Mann's Camp about 70 or 75
miles. He reached Wardner on the 20th.

On the morning of the 20th, Gallagher, Mann's walking boss, drew the attention
of Mr. Kennedy to the condition of the men. That was the first that he, at all
events, had knowledge of their condition. He examined their throats and from such
an examination was at least suspicious that they had diphtheria, (and McDonald
expressing a desire to be sent to the hospital) after consulting with Mann, decided
that they should be sent. Fraser requested that he might accompany his chum, and
this was agreed to. fann says that he had deciaed independently of Kennedy to
bave them sent to the hospital. No attempt had been made to send for a doctor or
to isolate the men, or to give them any special attention, other than that I have
mentioned by the cook, if that may be called attention.

Mann'e team had already gone east, but there was then at Mann's Camp a team
belonging to McAnnany, and Mann engaged this team to carry them until his own
teaim was overtaken. They were placed in an open sleigh without a box, rigged as
a freight sleigh, with polos upon either side and three cross poles, and split cedar for
the bottom. Upon this they placed a quantity of hay with blankets over the hay.
At about half-past one or two o'clock in the afternoon of Thursday, the 20th of
January, the men lay down side by side upon the sleigh, and, being covered with
two or three pairs of blankets, commenced their Iong and fatal journey. Fraser had
given hie overcoat to McDonald, and had taken MeDonald's overcoat, which was not
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large enough to button. It was a bright afternoon and not excessively.cold. It was
impossible to ascertain the exact temperature in the mountains, but at Pincher
Creek it ranged from 24 above zero at 7 a.m., to 10 above zero at 9 a.m., the maxi-
mum being 34 above zero, with a westerly wind at 8 or 9 miles an hour. They
stopped at headquarters and were told by Charlesworth to go back to the quarantine
hospital which they had passed 1ý miles east of Mann's Camp, but the driver, following
bis original instructions, went on. Mann having proceeded on horseback in advance
overtook and detained bis team near Michel until the sick mon arrived, and the men
were then transfer red to Mann's freight sleigh (which was similar to the other) drawn
by four heavy horses and necessarily slow, and proceeded on their journey, arriving
at the Loop about 7 o'clock in the evening, where they stopped all night at a
place kept by John Bidgood, otherwise called " Jack the Ripper." Mann did
flot remain to see that the men were properly cared for, but was overtaken the
next day at Crow's Nest Lake. The mon were offered food but were not able
to eat, and were given, as appears by the evidence of one witness, brandy
and water to drink, apparently as much as they would take. It appears from
the evidence of Mr. Bricker, a merchant of Crow's Nest Lake, and who was taking
a chance ride from Coal Creok, and accompanied the men from Mann's Camp to
Crow's Nest Lake, that the place where the men slept was the ordinary bunk-house,
occupied by a number of other mon, freighters and others who had stopped there
over night. The place was so little desirable that ho slept in another building
recently erected. No attention was given the men beyond what I have mentioned,
and it is certain that during the night one of them was ont doors. In the morning
there seemed to be some difficulty in being able to arouse the mon. They were in
a deplorable condition. The driver and Mr. Bricker flaving got their breakfast, and
the mon, being unable to take food, were heLped into the sleigh and continued their
journey. The men did not speak, they lay upon their backs with their mouths
open. They loft Bidgood's between 7 and 8 o'clock in the morning. They stood a few
minutes at Bull's Head, and Campbell told the driver to go on to Crow's Nest Lake,
a distance of 5 miles from Bull's Head. At Crow's Nest Lake they were taken into
Mrs. Taylor's boarding-house. " McDonald's face looked swollen; never spoke;
both of them always had their mouths open all the time they were driving. They
did not seem able to keep it closed." Mrs. Taylor was very indignant that the men
1n this condition should be brought to her place on account of her other boarders
and her family, and sent for Mann, and also sent word to Corporal Hilliam of the
mounted police, whose quarters were near. Mrs. Taylor arranged beds and made
them as comfortable as possible while they remained there. They seemed to sleep.
Mrs. Taylor felt worried about their condition, and did not think one in particular
Could live very long. Mann's explanation to Mrs. Taylor was that they had been
sOnt past Bull's Head by mistake. At this time the condition of the mon may per-
haps be best described in Mrs. Taylor's own language: "A kind of greenish yellow
nucous was flowing from his mouth and nostrils. His clothes werespotted with the
dischiarge." Another witness says: " Hewas lying with bis back towards me on a
cot just inside the door. I walked around in front of him to get a view of bis face.
1e was lying with his face quite close to the front of the bed, so that his mouth
projected in front of the bed. Ho evidently had been placed in that position. There
was a peculiar matter running from bis mouth. I can scarcely describe it. It was
Several colours. When I saw him it was hanging from his mouth clear to the floor
without a break. It was running into a cuspidore on the floor. His face was
terribly swollen, and his tongue was swollen and protruded from bis mouth, which
Was wide open." The person here referred to was undoubtedly MoDonald.

This point, Crow's Nest Lake, was Dr. Roy's headquarters. He had gone west
and no attempt was made to recall him at this time. The driver, Waddy, who had
driven the men thus far, went on to Macleod, and Mann engaged the witness, Fon-tain, and directed him to take the men back to Bull's Head, giving him a note to
Campbell. The men were replaced upon the sleigh and started to return to Bull's
Head, a distance of about 5 miles. Mann made no further provision for the men and
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this was the last he saw of them. He left for Macleod that afternoon. It would
appear that all, or the greater part of the hay which had before been under thom
had been fed to the horses. They returned by the lake. There was a bigh wind,
and the driver, Fontain, found it impossible to keep them covered with the
blankets. There were two blankets and a quilt under the mon and probably two or
three pairs over them. The driver says " I drove across the lake. It was about
three miles long. Then of course the wind blew very hard. Very hard winds
blow on that lake. It was impossible for me to keep the blankets on the sick men
on the rig. The wind blew thom off of them every time. It was cold enough that
day so that I could hardly stand the cold myself. The men never squealed. I
never heard them say nothing frem the time I loft with them until I got into Bull's
Head." The note to Mr. Campbell, who was agent and storekeeper of the Canadian
Pacifie Railway at Bull's Head, was as follows:-

CRow's NEST LAKE, 21st January, 1898.
MR. C. CAMPBELL,- The bearer bas two very sick men that should be sent downý

to the hospital. Kindly have tho looked after. Kindly hire a man to look after
them and I will settle with you.

Yours, &c.,
HUGH MANN.

Campbell received the letter and wrote to the keeper of a restaurant as follows:
Ma. SANGREEN,-Will you please keep these two sick men until to morrow. I

will pay you. Take good carm of them.
Yours truly,

J. C. CAMPBELL.
BULL's HEAD, 21st January, 1898.

Mr. Campbell took no further trouble with the men.
I" Q.-Now, Mr Campbell, just tell me yourself what provision there was for the

comfort or attendance of the men who were ill at that time on that part of the
route? A.-I do not kuow of any."

Mr. Campbell says that he understood it to be his duty to lend assistance in
cases of this kind. Corporal Hilliam forbade Mr. Campbell from allowing the men
to proceed further. Tho sick men had passed Dr. Roy on bis way west, the doctor
being at this time within 20 miles at most of Bull s Head, but bis exact whereabouts
was not known. He had been passed by the men on their way down, and if inquiry
had been made might have been found. The men arrived at about two or balf past
two o'clock in the afternoon of the 21st, and remained at Sangreen's all night. Oscar
Stenstrom, who was cook for Sangreen, describes their condition while at Bull's
Head: " I went into the restaurant. I saw the.two men sitting there. They appeared
very sick and matter was flowing out through their mouth. I understood that
Charles Flodin, being the cook, cooked them some beef broth and tried to give them
all possible assistance, but they could only take liquid beef tea, and finally between
six and seven on the evening of the 22nd the ambulance wagon called. When
Mann's driver arrived at the restaurant with the patients he was asked whether
these men had any contagious disease, but he answered that they only had sore legs,
which was accounted for by their staggering when they walked in from the sleigh.
On the strength of that statement and Mr. Campbell's note, they were received.
Under other circumstances they would not have been allowed, it being a public res-
taurant, having between 50 and 60 people ateach meal. They tried to get a doctor,
but there was none to be had. Finally, after having been.kept there for 26 hours, the-
ambulance arrived. The driver said bis horses were played out, so he could not start
with then before morning. The owners of the restaurant insisted on bis taking them
away from their place, as they at that time were satisfied that the men were infected,
with contagions disease. After some parleying the men were taken out in the ambu-
lance about seven o'clock in the evening."
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It will be seen that the men remained at Bull's Head 26 hours, and I do not
hesitate to say that within half that time medical attendance could and should have
been obtained, and that the duty to obtain it devolved upon Hugh Mann and
Campbell, the company's agent.

Corporal Hilliam, whose conduct throughout I desire to commend, having
received a message from Mrs. Taylor in regard to the men, went>to Mr. Campbell and
told him:-" That he had no business to send them there to a public restaurant, but
should have erected a tent away from his camp and left a man in charge of the two
sick men, as I believe the men were suffering from some very serions disease accord-
ing to the information of Mrs. Taylor. He poohpoohed the idea altogether that it
was diphtheria, and said it was nonsense. He (Campbell) then wanted to have a
four horse team hitched up. and the men sent at once to the end of the Iron. I
would not allow him to do so until I had been over to see what condition these mon
were in. I then went over to the bouse where; these men were lying and saw the
two men. One of the men, whom I was told was Fraser, was so helples that ho
could not move at ail, hands, legs or anything else. He was lying on the broad of
bis back. Hie face and neck were very much swollen, and the spittal that ho had
been trying to spit from bis mouth was all over bis own face and clothes. He could
just mutter, so that by getting very close to him you could understand what ho was
saying. He asked me not to allow him to be moved from that place, as ho had
enough driving about in the cold, and ho would rather die where ho was. McDonald
who did not appear so sick as Fraser although ho could scarcely move at all, asked
ue not to take any notice of what Fraser said, but if possible to have them sent

down to the hospital that day. I looked around the place and went outside and
called the proprietor out. He told me nothing had been done for them since they
had been in bis charge, excepting what ho had given them himself, which was
somothing to drink, and that ho would like to have the mon sent away from his
bouse. I told Johnston that ho would have to keep the men there and attend to
them himself until the doctor came, whom I bad already sent for, and ho was to
allow nobody in or out of the restaurant. I went back to Mr. Campbell and told
him. Of course I could not say what was the matter with the mon, but they cer-
tainly were not in any condition to be moved, and that they were to stay in this
restaurant until the arrival of a doctor, who would then give bis own directions and
ho could work on them as ho liked. I sent west for Dr. Roy that morning."
That is on the morning of Saturday the 22nd. Notwithstanding this warning, and
the fact that the doctor bad been sent for by Corporal Hilliam that morning,
the men were sent east at Mr. Campbell's instance. It seems that John Davis (alias
Williams) the ambulance driver, bad reached Bull's Head on Saturday evening, and
although ho complained that bis horses were nearly played out, ho was told by
Campbell that ho must return that night. He asked to be permitted to wait until
morning, and describes bis interview with Campbell as follows:-

Q. What did you say to him ?-A. He asked me how my horses could stand it
to go right back again. I told him they were pretty nearly played out. Then he
says you have to go right back to-night with these sick men. Well, I says, my
horses are pretty nearly played out, Mr. Campbell, what is the matter with the men?
They have got quinsy, ho says. Well, I says, cannot you wait until morning, and ho
Says no, pull them out to-night for fear they would die.

Q. Did ho say that ?-A. Yes.
Q. What else?-A. Well, I says, there's no use pulling them out of bore if

they're going to die.
Q. What did ho say to that?-A. Well, ho says, my orders to you is to pull

them out to-night. Eat your supper and go right back.
h Williams was reluctant to remove the men withort the order of Dr. Roy, because

he says " I always took my orders from Roy, with papers to admit them to the
hospital." Campbell told him that by the time ho got his men loaded Dr. Roy wouldbe there, and after the mon were in the ambulance the driver called at ÛCanPbell's
and asked, " Have you got the letter from Dr. Roy for these people," and Caimpbotu
said, "No Williams, go ahead, ho is not here." The ambulance in whicha the moin
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were at this time placed plied between Bull's Head and Seventh Siding, a distance
of about 40 miles. It was a Democrat wagon covered with a kind of canvass or
oit cloth, with springs in the bottom and a mattrass over that, and with a flap to
close it in behind. There was no stove or other means of heating the ambulance.
There was one pillow given by Mrs. Taylor, and apparently three pairs of blankets,
two of which were provided by Mr. Campbell. The men were placed in the ambu-
lance covered with the blankets, and at about 7 o'clock on the evening of Saturday,
the 22nd of January, proceeded on their journey. They went that night as fur as
Willoughby's about 16 or 17 miles from Buli's Head. No stimulants or nourishment
of any kind was given them upon the road. Williams endeavoured to obtain per-
mission for the men to remain at Allison's, which is about six or seven miles east of
Bull's Head, and again at McGillivray's about four and a half miles still further east,
but was refused at both places, which wero crowded with freighters and other men.
Mr. Willoughby helped the men into the house, and offered them some milk and tea
and a little gruel, but they were not able to swallow. The room where they slept
was kept warm, and though not a place suitable for sick men, doubtless Mr.
Willoughby did the best ho could for them. Another witness, Mr. Parr, says that
he saw them lying upon the floor. In the morning they were again offered some tea,
but they wanted water, with which they gargled their throat, and from it flowed froth
and scum " like corruption." They were again placed in the ambulance and at half-
past seven or eight o'clock on the morning on the 23rd January, started for 7th Siding,
distant about 25 miles. They reached Will Eddy's at noon, and asked if they could
takea cup of soup, but they shook their heads. Theywere thon brought out some tea.
They could not drink the tea, but wanted water, which was brought them. They
could not drink, but gargled their throats with the water, and again flowed out froth
and scum, "white and green-like corruption." The driver here remained about
twenty minutes for dinner, the men remaining in the wagon outside. Hle thon
drove on to 7th Siding, reaching there, as ho says, " about half-past 4, between 4 and
5 in the afternoon." The driver thon saw Reuben Steeves, Canadian Pacific Rail-
way operator and agent at 7th siding, and said: " I have got two men here very
sick, I think they have got diphtheria." Steeves replied: " Bring them up to Joe
Wark's car, the Jumbo, and see him up there." (The " Jumbo" was the boarding
and sleeping car for Canadian Pacific Railway men at 7th Siding.) The driver saw
Wark, and said to him: " I have two sick men here, Joe, and Steeves sent them up to
the Jumbo." Wark replied: " What is the matter with them ? " and the driver
said: " I don't know what is the matter with them, it might be diphtheria, or some-
thing like that." Wark thon said: "If its diphtheria you won't put them in my
car." The driver went back and told Steeves that Wark would not have them in his
car among his men with diphtheria, and Steeves said: " You tell Joe Wark to take
these men in or l'Il report you." The driver went back and told Joe Wark what
Steeves had said, and Wark replied: " They are not coming in the car among my
men if they have got diphtheria," the driver replied, " they have got to be put
somewhere." Thon Steeves came up just as the driver was speaking to Wark, and
said to Wark: " Joe, who's down in that car down there ?" pointing to a box car.
Joe said, "I don't know." The driver thon went down to the car and Steeves came
along and said, " put them in this car down bore " (indicating with his bead the
box car standing on the siding along with the flat cars), so the driver took them
down to the car and ordered out the three or four men that were in the car. The
ambulance was backed up to the box car, the side door slid back, and the men
crawled out into the car, and the driver says that ho put their blankets and a bottle
of water in the car, and shut the door and went off to the hotel and did not see
them again. The day was cold and had been growing colder towards evening. At
7 o'clock in the morning it was 13 degrees above zero, at 9 p.m. it was 5 degrees
below zero, and fell to 8 degrees below zero during the night, with a wind from the
north-east blowing nine miles an hour, as appeared from the report kept at the
Hudson Bay Post at Pincher Creek, four miles distant. The condition of the car at
the time the sick men were placed in it is described by William McAllister, page
728. He and other freighters were occupying a tent near by. The iight being cold
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they thought they could make themselves more comfortable in the car, which was
an ordinary box car without windows and with the usual sliding door. At one side
there were a number of bunks in the car, but no mattrasses, bedding or other
furnishings. There was a small tin camping stove broken in at the top and unfit to
be used as a coal or wood stove, as it smoked. The smoke pipe went ont through
the side of the car. The freighters had endeavoured to start a fire of hay and coal
before the ambulance drove up. The witness is asked:

Q. Was thore a fire there ?-A. A kind of a fire.
Q. When you went to the car ?-A. Yes.

.Q. What do you mean bv that?-A. A poor fire-smoking.
Q. What did you do?-We got some more coal and put it into the stove, and it

hadn't started well before we had to get out.
He goes on to say that they used hay mixed with the coal. That the stove

smoked so badly they had to leave the door open to let the smoke out, that had they
not opened the door they would have been blinded with smoke, that the car was
very cold at the time they left it; that when the ambulance was backed up to the
car door the driver used foul language to the siek men and ordered them out. They
crawled ont on their hands and knces. He says that the driver put in their
blankets, but denies that ho put in any water. The stove was still smoking at the
time this witness left, and he says the carwas not fit to receive the men. Tho witness
further says that he was ordored out of this car personally by Mr. Steeves. Steeves,
the Canadian Pacifie Railway agent,says: Williams came to him and said he had two
sick men, " and I sent him to the Jumbo car, where Igenerally sent the rest of them
that came down from the west," and generally confirms what the driver says in
regard to the men being but in the box car. Steeves thon went back to his office.
He thon saw Kidd, afterwards Dechene and thon Hogan, and asked theni to look after
the men. There is a great discrepancy in the evidence as to the heur when these
men were engaged and when they actually went on duty. One would infer from
Steeves' evidence that it was shortly after the ambulance drove up that ho spoke to
Kidd and afterwards to the other men. The order in which they were engaged and
went to the car is of great importance in reaching a conclusion upon this point. The
evidence shows that Kidd was first engaged, then Dechene and last of all logan.
Later in the evidence Steeves says that he procured Hogan's services later on, after
he had sent for the doctor. Now, the doctor was not sent for until 8 o'cloek, which
corresponds with the time that Kidd says ho first went to the car; and if Hogan
and Dechene went there afterwards it must have been 8 o'clock before any one gave
the men any attention whatever. Hiogan and Dechene, however, both say that they
were at the car shortly after 6 o'clock. This may possibly be true as to Dechene,
but cannot, I think, be true as to Hogan, because ho at all events was not seen by
Steeves until after Kidd was spoken to. It is very possible that Dechene may have
been to the car and thon loft, if prior to the first visit by Kidd. There is an uncer-
tainty here that I was unable to clear up. One thing is, however, certain, I think,
that, at 8 o'clock in the evening, whether any person had been there before or not,
the car was in darkness, there was absolutely no fire in the stove, and the tempera-
ture was five degrees below zero, with a wind blowing 9 miles an hour. The'
deplorable condition of the mon at this time is described by the witness Kidd, of
whose truthfulness I entertain no doubt. He was in the employ of the Canadian
Pacific IRailway at the time ho gave his evidence, but gave it in such a manner
as to command my entire confidence. Steeves is asked:

Q. Why did yon got as many as three mon to look after these sick mon ?-A.
Well, after I got Kidd I knew his duties would not allow him to look after the
men properly, as he would have to look after his engine, and the same with Hogan.
He had his duties outside to perform, and ho could drop in and out as required, and
I get this third man who would romain with them.

Turning now to the evidence of Kidd, page 844, ho was at 7th Siding when the
sick men arrived. He was engine watchman. Hie hours were from 7 p.m. to 5.30
a.m., and bis duty was to watch the engine, clean the fire, get the ongine ready for
starting and call the crew in the morning. On the night in question ho went on duty
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at fve minutes after 7 o'clock; filled the boiler full of water which took about 20
minutes; cleained the fire which took another 20 minutes; thon took off his overalls
and went to the Jumbo car to get his lunch for midnight. This was somewhere
within a few minutes of 8 o'clock. He got his lunch and started back again. It
was now about 8 o'clock; ho thon says: I started back towards the engine, and on
my way back I went on the south side of the side track for to get logan's lunch,
because I had been taking his lunch other nights to keep it warm for him. While
I was passing some cars I heard some person crying inside. I opened the door for
to see what was going on. I wanted to know who was in there, somebody said:
"I am sick." He says, " my mate is sick too, I would like to geo some person for
to get a fire." I got in the car and ho said it was a shame that they were loft there
alone in the dark without a fire and without any person to look after them. He
wanted to know if there was a doctor around. I told him no, that I would try to
get one as soon as possible. He then wanted water. By this time I had a fire
started, and I went and fetched him some water.

Q. Was there any fire or remains of a fire in the stove ?-A. No, sir, not when I
found it.

Q. Was the stove warm ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Was it cold so that there was no indication of fire having been there ?-A.

Yes, sir, there was no indication of fire whatever.
The witness then took some pieces of boards and broke them up and got some

pieces of shavings and lighted the fire. He says coal was there but ho did not use
it because it was not a coal stove, and ho did not think it would burn. He describes
the position and condition of the men when ho went into the car. The car was not
lighted. The witness had a h.ntern with him. Fraser was lying on hie left side
beside the stove on the floor. He had some hay under him and some behind him,
but no blankets about him. McDonald was on the top bunk, lying on his right side,
partly covered up with an overcoat. The witness asked him if ho had any blankete
and ho said, yes; asked where they were, ho said ho didn't know. Kidd then left
them and started for the operator's ear. Ie met Hogan upon the road and told him
ho had found two sick men in the box car. Hogan asked where they were and thon
went down to the operator's car with Kidd. Kidd thon went into the operator's car
and reported to the operator that there were two sick men in the car on the siding;
ho said, I asked him what we could do for them. He said he did not know. I then
asked him if there was a doctor around or could we get one, he said ho would try
to get one from Macleod if possible. He says, will you go back and keep on the fire
until we can get a doctor. I told him I could not very well do it, because I could
not leave the engine alone for long at a time. I said that I would go back and see
that the fire was all right. I took logan back to the car with me, and ho took hold
of Fraser and lifted him up on the bunk, because the stove was pretty bot, and we
were afraid ho would get burnt or burn his clothes. Fraser was not strong enough
to get up himself. He then left Hogan there and went back to his engine, then went
into the caboose and told the engineer and conductor that ho had found two sick men
in a car, and was told that if ho thought it was safe to be around them, to look after
them. It was now about 9 o'clock. Kidd thon left the caboose and went down to
the car where the men were. He saw that the fire was burning all right and spoke
to Hogan.

"Q. What did you say to him ?-A. I told him we ought to try and hunt some
blankets or something to make them a bed, and ho said ho did not know what to do
about blankets, and I suggested to go to the operator's, so we both went down to the
operator's car and told him that we had to have some blankets or something.

" Q. Told Steeves ?-A. Yes, sir. He said ho did not know what to do until ho
had seen Mr. Ryan. I told him I would have to go and look after the rest of my
work thon, and to get some person else to stay with thom. He asked me if I would
go up to Wark, the gang boss, and ask him to put a man down there with them."

Kidd thon found Wark who promised to see that it was done. He thon went
down to the car again and found Hogan, and a Frenchman, evidently "Dechene,"
in the car. le asked the Frenchman if he was the man Wark sent to look after

8
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them, and he said "yes." Kidd then went down to the operator's car and asked
him if there was a doctor coming. Steeve said there was no train going out from
Macleod that night, but that they would send to Pincher Creek for a doctor. Kidd
thon went back to bis engine, and a few minutes afterwards Hogan came down and
said: " Come up to the car with me, I am afraid one of them fellows is going to die."
Ridd could not leave the engine just then. He told Hogan if he would wait just
about five minutes he would go up with him. Hogan said he would warm himself
until Kidd was ready to go. When Kidd got back to the car Fraser was on the
floor. It was now about ten o'clock. Kidd asked him where he came from and
what his name was. He said lis name was E. McC. Fraser, that bis mate was up in
the bunk and his name was Charles P. McDonald; that they came from Nova Scotia,
near New Glasgow; that they had been working near the loop, when they got sick
and they were sent d->wn there. They were trying to get to the hospital at Macleod.
McDonald was so weak that the witness could not understand what he was trying
to say, §' but I made out that he wanted a drink of water, and I gave him some water.
I sent Dechene for it." This is important as it indicates the time when Dechene
went for the water, of which he speaks afterwards. There was nothiug there to
bring it in, and he got a pail from the engine and gave McDonald a drink. He
seemed to swallow some but not much. It was very hard for him to swallow. He
then gave Fraser a drink. Fraser got down on the floor off the bunk and lay down
close to the stove and was talking to the Frenchman. It was now nearly l o'clock.
Kidd then had to go back to bis engine, and remained there until the operator called
him. Before leaving the car he and Hogan had prepared some wood by cutting
up a couple of boxes. Dr. Mead having arrived from Pincher Creek between
10 and 11 o'clock, the operator asked Kidd if he would go down with the doctor and
show him the car where the sick men were. The doctor asked Kidd if he had any
kind of a light to take with him, Kidd replied he had a train light, il was not a very
bright light, but it was the bust ho could do. He thon took the doctor up to the car
where the men were. The Frenchman also had a lantern. Kidd went back to the
caboose and got another lantern, the conductor's lantern, and returned to the car.
The doctor said if that was the best they could do ho would try and make out with it.

Before reforring to the doctor's evidence it will be convenient hore to refer to
the evidence of Hogan and Dechene. Hogan says that the first he knew the men
had arrived was at six o'clock in the evening. His foreman, Wark, told him " there
was two sick men up there, and to have a look after them. He told me to assist
the Frenchman by the name of Dechene in looking after them. He told me to
attend to them good." Hogan thon went from Wark's office to the agent's office, and
the agent told him to attend to the men, so ho went down to the car and McDonald
and Fraser were sitting up in their bunks. They were not separate bunks. Fraser
asked for a drink. Hogan describes what he did as follows: I told him I would
get him a drink. He said ho would like some snow to eat, so I went out and got
him a dieh of snow on a pie plate, and by the time I had brought the snow in
bechene had brought in a dipper of water from the Jumbo car. I did not know ho
Was on. We gave McDonald a drink. He drank pretty near all the water. We
did not give him all ho wanted to drink. He was pretty dry. Fraser drank the
balance of the water."

"Q. How much was there for Fraser ?-A. About a quart of water was
brought up; I should judge there would be about one quarter ofit left-one quarter
of a quart.

Q. What did you do next, or what is the next thing you know about it ?-A.
Well I was in and out of there all night.

Q. What was done after they got a drink of water ?-A. Nothing.
Q. Did you get anything furthor for them except the snow and Dechene the

Water ?-No, that is all they wanted. I asked-them if they wanted anything else,
and they did not seem to want anything except water and snow."

Hogan went to lunch, he says, about 11 o'clock.
"Q. Did either of them leave the car that night after they went in ?-A. Well,

Praser told me that while I was down at lunch that ho went out and got a little
9
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snow, and came in again. I did not think he could open the car door, it was very
hard to open.

Q. Had they anything to drink from the time they got the water in the first
instance about a quarter after six until twenty minutes to eleven.-A. Nothing
except the snow.

Q. Did you or anybody else get more water up to twenty minutes to eleven.-
A. No, snow is the principal thing they wanted.

Q. Do you want me to understand that although McDonald took a drink of
three-quarters of a quart, you say he did not want anything more until eleven
o'clock ?-A. They got all they wanted there.

Q. Just answer my question. Did he not want a drink again until near 11
o'clock?-A. He did not ask for any.

Q. Did you get any or did anyone else?-A. Dechene got water.
Q. That was near 11 o'clock ?-A. Yes.
Q. But between those imes?-A. They were eating snow.
Q. Did they have any water ?-A. No.
Q. During all the time that you were there what did they have besides the

water on two occasions and snow ?-A. Nothing except the medicine that Dr. Mead
gave them.

Q. Up to the time that Dr. Mead came did they have anything ?-A. They did
not have anything.

Q. And you say they did not ask for anything?-A. That is all they asked me
for-snow and water; snow principally.

Q. Did you take any soup over, or did anybody tell you to, or take any tea
over with milk in it?- A. No.

Q. Was anything offered to them or any attempt made to induce them to eat
or to drink ?-A. No, sir.

Q. Anything that you know of?-A. No.
Q. Do you call that treating them good ?-A. Woll, I asked them if they wanted

anything. The Frenchman, Narcisse Dechene, was at 7th Siding when McDonald
and Fraser were brought down. He says the men came in about 4 o'clock. That
Wark called for him, and he and Wark together went to the car a little after 6
o'clock; that ho went in the car. He found one of the men right across tie door,
about 2å feet from the door, and the other one was in front of the stove. They
were pretty cold, because they were shaking. Dechene said, "what is the matter
with you ?" and one of them replied, " we are cold and want water." One asked for
water and one for snow. The car was pretty tough; it was not fit for a sick man.
There was no window in it, and no lamp in it. It was a dirty car. There was a
little fire when Dechene went tbere, but it was choked with smoke. It would have
been better if there was none. It was a tin stove and broken on top; he could not
keep it from smoking. He says the car was pretty cold when he went there. He
went to get some water. While he was away to get the water Fraser went down
himself and got some snow. He got off the car himself and got in himself. He was
net se strong after. It seemed as if it hurt him a little to go down, and the ,snow
was for bis chum McDonald.

Q. Well, when you brought the water what did you do ?-A. I gave it to Fraser.
Q. Hiow did be drink ?-By gosh, he take it with both hands, and I had to take

it away from him. I was afraid ho was going to choke, he grabbed it that way
with both hands. His chum was neair cry alougside of him to get the water.

Q. And ho took the water up to bis mouth in his hands ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you say bis chum, MoDonald, was crying for the water ?-A. Yes,

pretty near cry. He was say for God's sake give me some water.
Q. How much water did you have ?-A. I had a dish full. I thought it was

no use to give him some more at the time, and I says I could get some more.
Q. How much did you have ?-A. About a pint.
Q. Did McDonald drink any ?-A. No. He tried to take some but it pass all

over the outside of bis mouth. With snow he get along better. He says he didn't
get any snow or any water on the road.

A. 1899
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Q. Thon did you build a fire before you went for the water a second time ?-
A. Yes, I built a good fire.

Q. What did yeu get ?-A. I had coal with me.
Q. Where did you get the coal? A. I went back te the Jumbo car for it. The

first time I had nothing, I went with Wark."
Re says the fire burnt well enough as long as the wood was on it, but it 8moked

very badly. He had to open the doors some time, opened it about six inches, to let
the smoke out. He says: " We were not sick men and we were hardly able te
stand it ourselves."

" Q. Well, when did you go for the water ?-A. I went straight back as soon as
I built the fire. I says, now I am going to get you some more water. I didn't like
Io give them too much, but they asked se much for it, and, by gosh, I says I will go
for more. They says they don't get any on the road at all.

Q. Did they drink any more ?-A. That was the time Mr. McDonald tried to
drink. The first time I could not take it from Fraser. He drink the whole of it."

Wark stayed a half an hour at the car. He seemed te know Fraser. Fraser
had worked for him on a railway near Winnipeg. Then Fraser cried and said to
Wark, " we are going te die here," and Wark said we will leave old Joe here with
you, and ho will give you everything you want, and Wark turned to Dechene and
said: " Joe, what do yen think of these two men now ? Are they going to die or
live? And I says tbey will die by two in the morning, the both of them."

Q. Why did you say that ?-A. Because they were too far gone. They were too
low. They were too cold. I knew it was net possible to live thon.

Q. What did Wark say to that? -A. Well, ho said we will do the bet we can
anyway.

Q. How long did Wark remain there after that ?-He went away after that."
He came once afterwards. Dechone thinks it was about 9 o'clock. He is net

sure as te the time as ho had no watch. The next person that Dechene saw was
Hogan. He says that this was nearly two heurs after ho had been at the car. It
would seem from this that Dechene may have been at the car before Kidd went
there; if so ho was away long enough for the fire te go out and the car to become
cold. Dechene being asked if the car could be kept comfortable with that stove,
answers: " No, sir. There was no man in the world could."

"Q. Did it smoke all through the evening more or less. -A. Sometimes they
didn't smoke very much, sometimes they smoke enough te choke anybody, and
we had te open the door. Sometimes we could net leave it open because it was too
cold; too cold for any sick man. The sick men complained of the cold."

Later on in his evidence Dechene says that ho thinks Hogan went there ahead
of him. If this be true, thon I think it is tolerably certain that Kidd was in fact the
first man at the car. That would be about eight o'clock.

Dr. Mead resided at Pincher Creek, four or five miles distant. The roads were
bad, the night was cold, and the roads were filled with the drifting snow, so much se that
it was difficult te follow them. Dr. Mead recoived the message about nine o'clock
at night, and reached the siding about ton. It was thon that ho was shown te the car
by Kidd, as above mentioned. When ho got into the car the smoke was se thick
that ho had to leave the door open. It was some minutes before ho "could se or
breathe." They were trying te burn soft coal and hay in a common box stove. Fraser
was lying on the floor, close te the stove, trying to get warm-coiled around the
Stove. McDonald was lying up against the farther end of the bunk. The doctor
examined McDonald and feund him at the point of death. He was suffering fiom
pnoumonia. His pulse could scarcely be counted. His temperature was about 104.
He was too weak te speak. Fraser was net quite so weak. He tried to speak te the
doctor. The doctor put his ear close te his month and heard him say, " something
ease pain. " He was suffering from pneumonia a;nd his temperature about the same.
They both had diphtheria. The doctor did net, however, know it at the time, as
Owing te the poor light ho could net examine them properly. The doctor asked for
stimulants, or milk or eggs. He was told that the cook's nar was shut, and they
could net get in until the cook came in the morning. He gave Fraser an * of a grain
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of morphia as a stimulant in the absence of anything else te ease pain. After receiv-
ing the stimulant Fraser sat on the side of the bunk and wanted to know if he could
not sue the company for the brutal treatment of himself and his chum. The doctor
went back to the agent's car and told the agent Steeves that if they died before
morning he should certainly hold an inquest. Steeves then wired down to Mr. Haney
and Haney wired back, "Spare no expense. Send special messenger to Creek for
whatever the doctor orders. " A messenger was then, with some difficulty, procured
to go back to Pincher Creek for brandy and eggs and milk. About five minutes after
the doctor returned to the agent's car, after sending the men for the necessaries. A
man came to the car and said McDonald was dead and Fraser was sinking rapidly.
This was about midnight. The temperature had fallen from 5 to 8 degrees below
zero. The doctor, returning to the car, found that what the man said was true. Fraser
was dying. The necessaries had come, but too late, and between one and two o'clock
in the morning the end came, Fraser died.

From the time the men were taken sick until their death they had no chance
for their life. At no time, in no place, did they receive that reasonable care and at-
tention, baving regard to their condition and the nature of the case, that they were
entitled to. All the doctors are unanimous that their journey to 7th Siding, and the
lack of proper treatment on the road and when they arrived, accelerated, if it did not
cause, their death. Why was the doctor not sent for? Why wero they sent ont
without a doctor's certificate, or at ail ? Why was not a doctor summoned at Bull's
Head, and why were they sent forward without the doctor's order? Why the utter
lack of proper care and treatment when they arrived at 7th Siding? They had paid
for medical service at a rate fixed by the company. Why, in their utmost need, had
they not received it?

Before proceeding with a consideration of these matters it may be here stated
that on the following day Dr. Mead, as coroner, ordered a post mortem examination,
and took steps to hold an inquest. The post mortem was conducted by Dr. Har-
wood and Dr. Kennedy, and their report, and their evidence taken before me show
beyond doubt that the men both died from diphtheria, complicated by pneumonia
resulting from that disease and their exposure. The inquest was not completed. A
copy of the evidence as far as taken will be found as Exhibit 8. The proceedings
were stopped by an order nisi dated the 4th day of February, 1898, fur a writ of
prohibition, which order was made absolute on the 24th of March, 1898, by Judge
Rouleau, and on the 28th March, 1898, the writ of prohibition was issued and served
on Dr. Mead on the 30th March, 1898. All the proceedings in connection with the
writ of prohibition will be found as Exhibit 15 in the papers 1 to 9 inclusive, No. 6
of which is a certifled copy of the judgment of Judge Rouleau. The application was
made on behalf of Michael J. Haney, manager of construction.

In answer to the question how it came about that Fraser and McDonald were
exposed to the hardships and suffering which they endured from the time they were
taken sick until they died, it will be necessary to examine the conditions existing,
including the medical system then in operation upon the line. The distance from
Lethbridge to Cranbrook is 205 miles. At the time the road commenced there was
a hospital at Lethbridge and one at Macleod, 37 miles west. It was decided te use
these as base hospitals and send the patients to these hospitals for treatment. The
instructions given to the medical staff were as follows:-(Ex. 6.)

INSTRUCTIONS TO MEDICAL OFFICERS.

1. Medical officers are expected to make regularly one trip a week over their
division, and to make other trips when called upon te do so.

2. All serious cases and other cases requiring the constant care of the medical
officer are to be moved into the hospital assigned te the division. Notice muet be
forwarded to this office at once of such removals, together with nature of the
disease. Notice must also be forwarded when such cases are discharged from the
hospital.
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3. In case of infections diseases arising, prompt measures must be taken at once
to isolate such cases, and notice of same must be forwarded to this office.

4. Medical officers will keep this office advised as to wants, etc., in medical
supplies.

5. Prompt attention to all cases is imperatively demanded. F. H. Mewburn,
assistant surgeon.

There was no provision made for temporary hospitals at this time, nor was
there any provision for isolating patients with contagions disease other than the
direction contained in clause 3 of the above instructions. No tents or other equip-
ment for that purpose were furnished either to the medical staff upon the line, or to
the contractors, nor were the contractors instructed in that matter. Dr. Mewburn,
chief of the medical staff, who had a large private practice at Lethbridge, had his
headquarters there and attended to correspondence and had charge of the hospital.
The hospital occupied him about three hours a day; the correspondence was prin-
cipally attended to in the evening. The rest of his time was largely devoted to his
private practice. His assistant in the early part of construction attended to patients
along the line within ten miles of Macleod. Dr. Kennedy took charge from that
point and attended patients to within a short distance of Pincher Oreek, and at the
time in question to, and including 7th siding. Dr. Roy's division extended from 7th
siding to headquarters, and he had under him at this time, according to the com-
pany's return (Exhibit 52), between 900 and 1,000 men. His division covered about
65 or 70 miles. Dr. Gordon's division at this time extended from the west end of
Dr. Roy's to Cranbrook, a distance of about 75 miles, although there were compara-
tively few men west of Wardner. His headquarters was at the Mission, nine miles
north of Cranbrook, and about 25 miles north-west of Wardner. Upon his part of
the line there were at the time in question about six or seven hundred men. Under
the system then in force " all serious cases and other cases requiring the constant
care of the medical officer " from Dr. Roy's district were to be sent to Macleod, and
all such cases within Dr. Gordon's district to the Mission hospital. The Mission
hospital proper had not at this time been built. It consisted then of a small log
building capable of accommodating 12 or 15 patients. It was arranged that the
company should pay to the different hospitals 81 per day for each patient for their
board, attendance, &c. It may be here said that all patients who reached any of
these hospitals seema to have been well cared for.

In the language of Mr. McCaul, " nobody suggested that the cases should be
treated at the camps where tbey broke out; that is not a common sense view; the
only two suggested were temoporary and base hospitals." What then was to be
done with "the serious cases and other cases requiring the constant care of the
medical officer that could not be moved to the base hospitals ?" No provision for
this contingency was made.

Dr. Roy had found the necessities of the case such that ho had detained patients
at a restaurant kept by Mrs. Taylor at Crow's Nest Lake until he thought it safe to
send them forward. In March when the number of men in and about the Loop and
at Coal Creek were likely to be increased, the company erected temporary hospitals,
one at the Loop and the other at Coal Creek, about 30 miles distant. Mann's Camp
was between the two, and had these hospitals been in existence at the time in ques-
tion there can searcely be a doubt that what befell Fraser and McDonald would have
been avoided. A great deal of evidence was taken as to the necessity of temporary
hospitals upon the line, and the overwhelming weight of evidence is that they
were necessary to be used in connection with base hospitals and without
which it was impossible that the sick men upon the line could be properly
cared for. This necessity seeme to have forced itself upon the company
and the medical staff at a later stage, and resulted, as I have said, in the build-
ing of the two hospitals one at the Loop and the other at Coal Creek, but too late to
be available for the present emergency. The great weight of medical evidence
seems to establish that temporary hospitals should have been placed within twenty-
five, or at most, 40 miles apart, having regard to the nature of the work and the
number of men employed: and the provision could and should have been made for
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isolating patients suffering from any contagious disease within a few hundred yards
of the temporary hospital, so that the doctor having his headquarters at the tom-
porary hospital could give patients of that kind, attention, and contractors would
know where to send them. These hospitals should have been furnished with a
nurse, cook and medicines. Nothing of this kind, at the time in question, was
provided. It is doubtful, even with temporary hospitals, whether the doctors in
charge of the divisions west of 7th siding could have efficiently attended to the
extent of line within their district; but it is plain that without temporary hospitals
it was an impossibility. lad Dr. Mewburn, the chief of the medical staff been less
occupied at Lethbridge with his private practice and so been able to give more
time to inspection of the work upon the line and its requirements, the necessities of
the case muet have occurred to hie mind at an earlier stage. The evidence of Mr.
Shaughnessy, Mr. Haney and Dr. Mewburn is that the want of these provisions was
not due to a lack of funds, because, although it is clear that the fifty cents per
month charged to each man upon the line was not sufficient to defray the expense
of the medical staff, that, it is declared, by the above witnesses was not the reason
why a different system and method was not adopted. Whatever the cause, the
deplorable fact remains, that the system of utilizing the three base hospitals without
providing the necessary field, or temporary hospital elsewhere on the line was con-
tinued until some months after the death of McDonald and Fraser. That these base
hospitals were not sufficient to meet the requirements without being supplemented
by temporary hospitals is manifest from another consideration. Early in the fall
it wae found that the hospital at Macleod was not nearly sufficient to receive the
number of patients sent down, and thereupon two or three box cars were supplied
with bunks and turned into a temporary hospital, at that point, under the charge
of Dr. Kennedy, who says that some 500 patients, nearly all of whom were sent down
from the lino to the west, were there received and treated; and Dr. Roy's evidence
is clear that ho utilized Mrs. Taylor's restaurant from time to time, because he would
not assume the responsibility of sending the patients through. Dr. Harwood, in the
fall of 1897, for the same reason found it necessary from time to time to detain
patients at Pincher Creek in rooms provided on bis own responsibility until they
were able tp go through. He had resigned in November, 1897, from ill-health
caused by over-work. No doctor was located at Pincher Creek to succeed him, and
this temporary provision there for treating patients was'discontinued.

It will be borne in mind that Mann's Camp was within Dr. Gordon's division,
distant from his mission hospital 65 or 70 miles. On the 15th of January Dr. Gor-
don had gone west with patienta, calling at Mann's Camp and taking one from there.
Although requested to do so, and informed that there were two men sick complaining
of sore throat, ho did not visit them, saying, as one of the witnesses states, that he
could not spend ail hie time at one camp; and by another, he would see them on his
way back. Dr. Gordon denies this, and says he thought he examined all the patients
requiring his attention in Mann's Camp. But he certainly did not see McDonald,
and Fraser, on this day, was at work.

Mann returned to his camp from the east on the 15th or 16th, the day after
McDonald had fallen sick. So far as the evidence shows, it does not appear that
McDonald's illness was brought specially to hie attention until the day before or the
morning that they loft. He says that two days before bis attention was drawn to
a 3ick man in camp, and at first he thought that McDonald was the man, but after-
wards he ascertained that it was another man that was sick and not McDonald.
McDonald was therefore sick in camp from the 15th to the 20th without medical aid
or other attendance in the way of nursing. For at least two days before he left he
took very little if any food, and on the morning he loft was certainly not in a con-
dition to start upon such a journey.

Kennedy, the partner of Mann, was at the camp on the morning he left, and
seems to have had a suspicion that the disease from which McDonald was suffering
was diphtheria, and ho and Mann appear to have been anxious that the men should
be sent out of camp. It does not seem to have occurred to them or if it did, they
did not act upon it, to isolate the patients or to send for a doctor. The excuse given
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is that the doctor had gone west and it would likely take some days to reach him,
and they took upon themselves the responsibility, without a doctor's order or cer-
tificate, to send the men forward.

The history of the journey has been traced. At Bnll's Head the men were in a
deplorable condition. They remained there sufficiently long to have procured Dr.
Roy's attendance if prompt action had been taken. Corporal Hilliam, of the
Mounted Police, finding that a doctor had not been summoned, on the morning after
thoir arrivai sent for Dr. Roy, but ho did not arrive until the mon had left, and Mr.
Campbell, the agent of the company there, took upon himself without a doctor's
certificate to order the man in charge of the ambulance to take the men forward,
although Corporal Hilliam had forbidden him to do so. They arrived at Pincher
Creek between four and five in the afternoon. The company's agent, although
informed of their arrival, placed them in a box car wholly unfit for their reception,
and did not see to it that they had propor attendance even thore, nor did he cause
the doctor to be sent for until 8 o'clock in the evening, although only 4 miles distant,
and where they died.

It has been urged before me that the patients ought nover to have been sent
forward, and in this view I concur; but having been sent they should have received
very different treatment upon the road, and having reached Bull's Head they ought
not to have been pormitted to go further, and the doctor should have been summoned.
Having, however, been sent on at the instance of the company's officer thon in charge,
they should have been properly cared for on the way and on their arrival at 7th
Siding. This duty, in my judgment, fell upon the company and their officers
stationed at that point. It is true that cases of contagious diseases weronot expected
there, but sick persons were constantly being sent down, and provision should have
been made, such as that suggested by Dr. Mewburn, in December, for the reception
of patients. This request of Dr. Mewburn to provide a car properly heated and
supplied with bunks for the reception of patients sent down to the end of the track
not having been complied with, it was the plain duty of the company's officer at
that point to exercise all diligence in making the mon comfortable and supplying
medical aid.

It bas also been urged before me that as there was an isolation hospital within
a mile and a half of Mann's Camp the men should have been taken there. Doubtless
this would have been done had a doctor been summoned, but it must also be remem-
bered that Dr. Mewburn himself says that the contractor would not have been justi-
fied in taking the men to a diphtheria isolation hospital except upon the authority of
a doctor, lest a patient not suffering from that disease might have been placed in
imminent peril, and no provision was made for contagious diseases except as they
arose.

In the present case, while it appears that Kennedy, Mann's partner, was suspi.
cious that the men were suffering from that disease, Mann denies that ho had any
suspicion of that fact, and also denies that ho had any knowledge that there were
patients suffering from diphtheria isolated near his camp. If it were intended that
contractors should send patients suffering from any contagious disease to the quaran.
tine hospital near Mann's Camp they should have been notified and so instructed.
But the fact is, that this quarantine hospital was established to receive the cases of
diphtheria from Card's Camp, and was not intended or especially provided for the
reception of any other patients, although afterwards it was so utilized, and might
have been used in the present case had Dr. Gordon been summoned.

It is said that the system of base hospitals was preferable to that of temporary
hospitals. In my view it is not a question of alternative systems. The base hospitals
should have been supplemented by temporary hospitals supplied with tent and stove
for isolating any case of contagious disease that might arise.

The conclusion at which I have arrived is that the medical system as carried
out on the lino, at least down to the time Fraser and MoDonald died, was inadequate
to the reasonable requirements of the case; and that chiefly arose from the lack of
temporary hospitals, and from the fact that the doctors in charge had too many
miles to cover within their respective districts. I am further of opinion that the
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circumstances being as they were, the men ought not to have been removed from
the camp, but that a doctor should have been summoned, either Dr. Gordon, or if it
were thought he was too far west, Dr. Roy. That the accommodation provided for
their removal was insufficient, and the lack of stimulants and nourishment and other
proper care and treatmont was inhuman and without excuse. That their detention
for 26 hours at Bull's Head afforded ample time to have there procured a doctor,and
their dangerous condition while there was so manifest that I can find upon the evi-
dence before me no excuse for this neglect, nor for their having been sent forward,
neither can I find excuse or palliation for the inhumanity with which they were
treated when they arrived at 7th Siding.

It bas also been urged before me, and some evidence was given to the effect that
the system adopted upon this road was better than that employed in the construc-
tion of other lines and the men better served. It may be so, and if so it but
emphasises the following suggestions which I beg to offer:-

1. The number of men working upon the road who became ill and were treated
by the medical staff is, I think, abnormally large. With a particularly healthy
climate and sufficiently good food, how does it happen that there should be in the
neighbourhood of 1,500 men requiring treatment in a total aggregate' of 2,000 to 4,000,
and all within the space ofless thana year ? This, it is plain, is not attributable in any
way to the medical staff, and the reason for it must be sought elsewhere; and I
venturu to think we have not far to look for at least a partial cause. In what I am
about to say T do not desire to draw any invidious distinction between the different
camps upon the line, or the accommodation provided in eacli camp, but I refer to
the result rather with the object of making some suggestions for the future. There
must have been an utter disregard of the simplest laws of health somewhere, and I
think it may be found in the lack of sanitary conditions in the camp. How is it
possible that sickness could be avoided where fifty or sixty men oceupy a bunk-
house 24 x 40 feet with seven feet ceiling, and no ventilation provided ? l it any
wonder that some of the camps were described as hospitals, and that sometimes
twenty men at a time w:>uld be unfit for work, meantime paying their board and
losing their time? The suggestion I venture to offer in this regard is, that in large
public works of this nature there should be some form of health inspection, and
probably the case could be met by appointing the government engineer upon the
works and the chief modical officer a board of health to enforce reasonable sanitary
regulations. This upon the part of the government would not incur additional
expense, and with trifling increase of cost to the contractors would, I am satisfied,
enormoutsly decrease the number of sick, and in the end be a great saving to the
contractors themselves.

2. I beg further to suggest that in large public works of this nature, at a dis-
tance from cities or where hospital accommodation cannot be had, provision should be
made for field hospitals within such distance of each other, having regard to the
location and the number of men employed, so that patients might be cared for with-
out endangering their lives, until they could with safety be sent to base hospitals,
and that contractors should be directed to provide or be supplied with a tent and
store for the purpose, where in case of emergency a patient suffering from contagious
disease might be isolated at once and so not endanger the rest of the men in the
camp.

The Canadian Pacifie Railway afforded every facility for the investigation, and
promptly complied with all requests for the production of papers and documents
bearing upon tho matter. I desire also to acknowledge the assistance received from
the able couneel who attended on their behalf, and on behalf of Mr. Hugh Mann
and Dr. Mead.

I have the honour to transmit berewith the evidence taken under this commis-
sion and the plans, papers and exhibits therein referred to.

R. C. CLUTE,
Commissioner.

Dated the 17th day o? January, 1899.
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To an ORDER of the HOUSE o COMMONS, dated the 24th April, 1899, for copies
of all papers, correspondence, etc., in connection with the award of the
contract to Mr. Thomas Gauthier, of Montreal, by the Department f
Public Works for the dredging at Coteau Landing; the call for tenders,
if any; the amount expended ont of the $21,000 voted, and to whom paid.
Also, correspondence between Mr. Gauthier and Mr. McDonald, who did
the work; the amount of work done in cubic feet, and how paid.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

CORRESPONDENCE, etc., relating to dredging at Coteau Landing and Laprairie.

March 15, 1898.-From Deputy Minister to T. Gauthier.-Stating that the Minister has directed him to
inquire if he has at his disposal the necessary plant to do the dredging at Coteau
Landing and Laprairie, as the Department is prepared to arrange for said work.
Two dredges will be required. The price paid by the Department is 88.00 per
hour of work, when the dredges have the normal capacity.

March 25, 1898.-From Thos. Gauthier.-In reply to Deputy Minister's etter, states that he has
a first class plant at his disposal, and that he is willing to accept $8.00 per hour as
the price to be paid. Suggests that he be allowed to commence work April 4.

April 1, 1898.--From Thos. Gauthier.-Stating in reply to letter of 15th March that he is willing
to undertake work mentioned at 88.00 per hour of work.

April 5, 1898.-From Deputy Minister.-Instructions to prepare a report to Council in the natter
of the request of the Canada Atlantic Iailway Go. that dredging be done in
front of their dock at Coteau.

April 6, 1898.-To Chief Engineer.-Informing him that Minister authorizes acceptance of Mr.
Gauthier's offer to execute dredging required at Coteau Landing and Laprairie
for $8.00 per working hour.

April 6, 1898.-From Canada Atlantic Railway Co.-Stating that the foundations of their wharfs
will not be affected by the dredging which is to be done.

April 23, 1898. -From Canada Atlantic Railway Co.-Asking that dredging be pushed. Advices
state that only one dredge is at work.

April 25, 1898. -Order in Council.-Granting authority to ask Parliament to appropriate the sum
of $21,000 for dredging at Coteau Landing.

April 25, 1898.-From Minister.-Copy of telegram to Thos. Gauthier as follows: "I understand
that you intend using the Kingston dredge at Laprairie. Do you know whether

APril 26, r there is another dredge available at Coteau now ? Please wire immediately."
898.-From Minister.-Telegram asking Mr. Gauthier how long he can secure dredge

now at Coteau.
April 27, 1898.-From Deputy Minister.-Informing Secretary that Chief Engineer is to be notified

that Minister authorizes employnent of a second dredge at Coteau Landing, and
that necessary arrangements are to be made therefor with Mr. Gauthier, the price
to be 88.00 per hour.

une 27, 1898.-Order in Council.-Granting authority to set aside O. C. of 23rd March, 1880, in so
far as it can relate to the payments which will have to be made to Mr. Gauthier
on account of dredging at Coteau, the said dredging having been authorized by
0. C. dated 25th April, 1898.

rom Accountant.-Statement of amounts expended in 1897-98 and 1898-99 for dredging at Coteau Land-
ing-817,303.62.

Statement showing number of cubie yards dred ed--129,850.
August 4, 18 98.-From Randolph Macdonald.-Offering to supply Dredge No. 4, with two dump

scows and suitable tug, to do the dredging at Rivière du Loup for $8.00 per hour
working time, with an extra allowance of two days for towing plant to and from
work. Or would undertake work at 25 cts. per cubic yard, scow measurement.

'pril 7, 1899.-From Acting Chief Engineer.-Detailed statement of work done and price per cubic yard
paid at Coteau Landing.

74-1 1
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(Translation.)

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS,
OTTAWA, 15th March, 1898.

THos. GAUTHIER, Esq., Montreal.

SIR,-The HÔn. Minister of Public Works has instructed me to write and inform
you that the department is disposed to treat with you for the execution of the dredging
work we are to do this year at Laprairie and Coteau Landing. We shall, of course,
require a dredge at each place.

Will you be good enough to inform me, as quickly as possible, whether you are
disposed to undertake this work ; whether you have at your disposal a suitable plant,
and whether you would be ready to proceed so soon as navigation opens. The price
paid for this kind of work by the department, when the dredges are of the ordinary
normal capacity, is $8 per hour's work.

Kindly favour me with a reply with the least possible delay.
Your obedient servant,

A. GOBEIL,
Deputy Minister.

(Translation.)

MONTREAL, 25th March, 1898.

THE HON. MINISTER OF PUBLIC WORKS,
Ottawa, Canada.

Si,-In reply to letter of 15th March received from your department, I beg to say
that I am prepared to undertake the dredging work at Laprairie and Coteau Landing
at the prices offered, namely, $8 per hour's work.

I have at my disposal a first-class plant, and I shall be ready to begin the work on
receipt of instructions. Of course the dredges will be subject to inspection by the
officials of your department.

As regards Coteau Landing, I beg to say that as the work there is, I am told,
exceedingly urgent, I would suggest that I be allowed to begin the work on the 4th
April next.

The dredge at my disposal for this work is No. 5, belonging to Manning & Mc-
Donald, and is on the spot.

Trusting that this may meet with your approval, and hoping for a favourable
answer,

I remain, sir, your devoted servant,
THOS. GAUTHIER.

(Translation.)

MONTREAL, 1st April, 1898.
To the HON. MINISTER OF PUBLIC WORKS,

Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-In reply to letter of 15th March last, receivad from your department, I beg
to inform you that I am prepared to undertake the dredging work at Laprairie and
Coteau Landing at the prices offered, that is to say, $8 per hour's work.

I have at my disposal a first-class plant, and I shall be ready to begin work at
once on receipt of instructions. The dredges will, of course, he subject to the inspection
of the officers of your department.



Dredging at Coteau Landing.

As regards Coteau Landing, I beg to say that inasmuch as the work there is, as I
am informed, very urgent, I suggest that I have leave to begin work on the 4th April
next.

The dredge I have at my disposal for that locality is No. 5, belonging to Manning
& McDonald, and it is on the spot.

Trusting that this may meet your approval, and hoping for a favourable answer,
I am, sir, your obedient servant,

THOS. GAUTHIER.

(Tran8lation.)

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKs,
OTTAwA, 5th April, 1898.

E. F. E. Roy, Esq.,
Secretary of the Department of Public Works.

SIR,--Be good enough to prepare a report to Council to the effect that a request
has been made to us by the Canada Atlantic Railway Company askiig that dredging be
done in front of their Dock and Grain Elevator at Coteau Landing; that the first re-
presentations were to the effect that this dredging would cost $6,000 ; that we have had
an examination made,-somewhat superficial it is true,-but sufficiently extended to en-
able us to estimate the total cost of the work, if the depth of water required, which is
fixed at 14 feet, be given, at $18,000.

The report to Council should point out, in a general way, the enormous importance
to the trade of the St. Lawrence of affording easy access to a point such as this, where
the railway will put in store the grain brought from the west, that it is most im-
Portant that this expenditure should be made, and that, though the sum is large, it will
produce a result, in proportion, much greater, as regards the general trade of the
country.

A. GOBEIL,
Deputy Minister of Public Works.

(Translation.)

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS,
OTTAwA, 13th April, 1898.

E. F. E. Roy, Esq.,
Secretary of the Department of Public Works.

SIR,-Have I forgotten to ask you to make a report to Council and represent to
that body that the dredging which the department has undertaken to do at Coteau
Landing, in order to give easy access to the elevator of the Canada Atlantic Railway,
will cost $21,000; and to ask for a special vote in the supplementary estimates of this
Year and in those of next year, to cover this work 1

A. GOBEIL,
Deputy Minister of Public Works.
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OTTAWA, 6th April, 1898.

The Chief Engineer,
Department of Public Works,

Ottawa.

SiR,-I am directed to inform you that the Minister authorises you to accept Mr.
Thomas Gauthier's offer herein inclosed, to undertake and execute the dredging required
at Laprairie and Coteau Landing, Que., at $8.00 per working hour.

I have the honour, to be, sir, your obedient servant,
E. F. E. ROY,

Secretary.

OTTAWA, ONT., 6th April, 1898.

A. GOBEIL, Esq,
Deputy Minister of Public Works.

Ottawa, Ont.

DEAR SI,-I am directed to state, in answer to yours of the 5th inst., with refer-
ence to the possible damage which might result from the dredging at Coteau Landing,
that the foundations of our elevator wharfs at Coteau Landing will not be affected by
your dredging around them to a maximum depth of fourteen (14) feet below low water
level, as stated in your letter, consequently no damage can arise thereby.

Yours truly,

A. W. FLECK,
Secretary Treasurer.

DEPOT HARBOUR, ONT., 23rd April, 1898.
A. W. FLECK,

Ottawa.

Four vessels in port now and we expect the " Lynn " to-morrow morning with six
thousand tons of corn all for Montreal. See letter to me from our traffic manager
relative to situation at Coteau Landing.

E. J. CHAMBERLIN.

DEPOT HARBOUR, 23rd April, 1898.

A. W. FLECK,

My advices frcm Coteau Landing state that only one dredge at work at Coteau
Landing. I hope you explained fully to the Minister that we have large contracts for
flour via Montreal for first half of May. Warehouse at Coteau Landing will be ready
to handle flour on order on May 5th, but is useless unless dredging is done and if we
are unable to carry out contracts it will give our line a black eye with shippers that we
will not recover from for a long time and the port of Montreal will suffer correspond-
ingly.

, Explain situation fully to the Minister and am sure he will act in this matter with
his customary promptness and energy. Reply.

E. J. CHAMBERLIN.
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CANADA ATLANTIC TRANSIT COMPANY.

April 17th, Schr. " Boyes ".. ... ........ 21,200 bushels.
18th, Str. " Prentice " ................. 30,721
18th, Schr. "Middlesex "..... ...... .42,250

18th, Schr. "Halstead " ....... ..... .... 35,625
23rd, Str. "Grecian " .................... 103,000
23rd, Str. "Lynn " ..................... 210,00C

Total............ ........ 442,796 "

The next boat from Duluth, arriving about Tuesday next, will have about 50,000
bushels corn, and deck load of flour, and the next boat from Chicago, early in the week,
will also have 50,000 bushels corn, and deck load of flour, lard and provisions.

Owing to the existing trouble with Spain, we will undoubtedly be offered large
shipments for May sailings from Montreal, and we should be in a position to take
advantage of same, as traffic once secured, for this route, will probably result in future
shipments.

OTTAWA, ONT., 23rd April, 1898.

EXTBACT from a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Prity Council approved
by His Excellency on the 25th April, 1898.

On a report dated 19th April, 1898, from the Minister of Public Works, stating
that the Canada Atlantic Railway Company, who are building a large elevator at
Coteau Landing, have asked the Department of Public Works to undertake the neces-
sary dredging to allow of boats reaching the wharf upon which said elevator is being
built, and that from casual information obtained by them the railway company have
represented to the department that the dredging in question to be performed will
require the expenditure of some $6,000.

That he, the Minister, having in view the great importance of allowing easy acceas
to the elevator in question, agreed to perform the dredging required, and made arrange-
ments to have the same put in hand immediately upon the opening of the présent season.

That meanwhile, in order to obtain more satisfactory data with reference to the
quantity of dredging to be performed, he, the Minister, sent one of the engineers of the
Department of Public Works to make a survey and report upon the work necessary to
be done.

That the engineer now states that in order to give the depth of 14 feet applied for,
dredging will require to be done of at least 200,000 yards at an estimated cost of
$21,000 (twenty-one thousand dollars).

The Minister, in view of the result of the survey above referred to, and of the fact
that the amount actually to be expended to provide the depth required will largely
exceed the amount which it was originally intended to expend, recommends that Parlia-
mxent be asked to make provision for the appropriation of the sum required.

The committee submit the above recommendation for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,
• Clerk of the Privy Council.
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OTTAWA, 25th April, 1898.
THoMAs GAUTHIER, Esq.,

157 St. Denis Street,
Montreal.

I understand that you intent using the Kingston dredge at Laprairie. Do you
know whether there is another dredge available at 'Coteau now ? Please wire im-
mediately.

J. I. TARTE.

OTTAWA, 26th April, 1898.
THOMAs GAUTHIER, Esq.,

157 St. Denis Street,
Montreal.

For how long can you secure second dredge now at Coteau Landing? Please wire
immediately.

J. I. TARTE.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS,
OTTAWA, 27th April, 1898.

E. F. E. Roy, Esq.,
Secretary Department of Public Works.

Please notify the chief engineer that the Hon. the Minister authorizes the em-
ployment of a second dredge to do the work required at Coteau Landing. That dredge
is to be the " No. 6 " now at Coteau Landing, and is to be set to work immediately by the
chief engineer making the necessary arangements therefor with Mr. Thomas Gauthier,
of Montreal. The price to be paid is to be the same as that now paid for the other
dredge, namely, $8.00 per hour for a working day of 10 hours.

A. GOBEIL,
Deputy Minister.

EXTRACT from a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved
by His Excellency on the 27th June, 1898.

The Committee on the recommendation of the Minister of Public Works. advise
that the Order in Council dated 23rd March, 1880, be set aside in so far as it can relate
to the payments which will have to be made to Mr. Thomas Gauthier, in connection
with dredging being executed by him at Coteau Landing, Quebec, the dredging in ques-
tion having been authorized to be performed by an Order in Council, dated the 25th
April, 1898.

H. G. LAMOTHE,
Assistant Clerk of the Privy Council.



Dredging at Coteau Landing,

AMOUNTS expended at Coteau Landing in 1897-98 and 1898-99, and to whom paid.
1897-98.

F. W. Cowie, travelling expenses..........$ 22 30
J. H. Lalonde, rope, &c .................. 3 92
Alexandre Méthot, inspector............... 218 00
Thomas Gauthier, dredging............... .8,245 00

8,489 22

1898-99.

J. H. Lalonde, rope, &c.................. ... 2 90
Alexandre Méthot, inspector.......... .. 353 50
Thomas Gauthier, dredging............... 8,485 00

8,814 40

Total .............................. $17,303 62
A. G. KINGSTON,

Accountant Dept. Public Works.

DREDGING AT COTEAU LANDING.

Number of cubic yards dredged, 129,850=1,505,950 cubie feet.

COTEAU LANDING, QUEBEC, 4th August, 1898.
To A. GOBEIL, Esq.,

Deputy Minister Dept. Public Works,
Ottawa.

Re DREDGING AT RIVIÈRE DU LOUP.

DEAR SIR,-In reply to yours of 29th July, beg to state that I will furnish diedge
"No. 4 " with two dump scows (of over 100 yards capacity each) and suitable tug to do
the work required, at the usual price allowed, viz. : eight ($8) per hour, working time
with an extra allowance of two days for towing plant to and from work, or I would
undertake the work by scow measurement at twenty-five cents (25 cents) per cubic
yard.

I understand that from the exposed position of the work, considerable delay will
be caused by wind and storms.

Yours truly,
RANDOLPH MACDONALD.

COTEAU LANDING, 7th April, 1899.

Memorandum re Dredging at Coteau Landing, Que., during 1898.

Time.

April 11 to Oct. 29.......

May 2 to May 21 ......

"No. 4. May 24 to June 1, inclu-
sive.

"No. 4. June 6 to June 10, inclu-
i Sive.

Hours.

1,7321k

223

41

47

Rate
per

Hour.

800

8 00

8 00

700

Total...... ..... 2,093¾ I.. .

Quantt
Dredged

Çub. Yds.
108,450

17,200

2,100

2,100

Average d per Total Cost.Cubic Yard. oaCot

Cts.
Less than 13à

$ cts.
14,262 00

1,784 00

328 00

329 00

129,850 Slightly over 121 16,703 00

Dredge.

" No. 6 ".

" No. 5"..



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 74.) A. 1899

On the 1st of June it was verbally reported to the Honourable the Minister of
Public Works that the operations of dredge " No. 4 " were not sufficient to warrant the
payment of $8 per hour. The Superintendent of Dredging was therefore ordered to
stop the dredge from working. On 6th June, by order of the Honourable the Minister
of Public Works, the dredge was again allowed to resume work, but at a reduced rate
of $7 per hour. As the amount of work performed by the dredge was again not con-
sidered satisfactory, its services were finally dispensed with on the 10th June.

EUGÈNE D. LAFLEUR,
Acting Chief Engineer.
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To an ADDRESS of the HOUSE OF COMMONS dated the 30th March, 1898,
for copies of ail reports to His Excellency the Governor General, minutes
of council, reports, papers and correspondence, in any way relating to the
navigation of the Yukon or Stikine Rivers, or to customs regulations in
connection therewith, including the transhipment of cargoes; also all
reports to His Excellency the Governor General, minutes of council, cor-
respondence and papers touching the customs regulations and fees
imposed in connection with Canadian goods passing through St. Michaels,
Dyea, Skagway, and Wrangel.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, CANADA,
OTTAWA, 2nd June, 1897.

To His Excellency the Governor General in Council:-

UJpon the reference from council of the 24th May last, Ref. P.C. 240 K., of a des-
patch from His Honour the Lieutenant Governor of British Columbia, dated 13th ultimo,
covering copy of a certified minute of a committee of the Honourable the Executive
Council of that province, approved by His Honour the Lieutenant Governor on the 11 th
of the sane month, with regard to the advisability of facilitating the transport of goods
fromn Canada to the Yukon country through United States territory, the undersigned
begs to recommend that as the suggestion made by the Executive Council would appear
to be One upon whicl it would be in the public interest to act, the matter be referred to
the Minister of Customs, so that, if deemed advisable, negotiations may be opened with
the government of the United States with a view of facilitating the transport through
the territory of Alaska of Canadian goods intended for the Yukon district.

Respectfully submitted,

CLIFFORD SIFTON,
Minister of the Interior.

Privy Council, referred to customs accordingly,

JOHN J. McGEE,
12th July, 1897.

79-1
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PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA.

GOVERNMENT HOUSE, VICTORIA, 13th May, 1897.
To the Honourable,

the Secretary of State,
Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-I have the honour to transmit herewith, a certified copy of an approved
minute, embodying a resolution of the Legislative Assembly of this province, urging
that steps may be taken by the Federal Government for the facilitation of the trans-
sport of goods from Canada through the territory of Alaska to the Yukon country.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

E. DEWDNEY,
Lieutenant Governor.

PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA.

CERTIFIED Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Ionourable the Executive Council
approved by Hi8 Honour the Lieutenant Governor on the 11th day of May, 1897.

The Committee of Council submit for the approval of His Honour the Lieutenant
Governor, the undermentioned resolution of the Legislative Assembly, namely:-

That whereas in the country lying north of British Columbia, more particulary the
Yukon country, there are wide areas which contain rich quartz ledges and placer dig-
gings, and are attracting a large mining population, with prospects of becoming
thickly settled and establishing an extensive import trade:

And whereas already there is an important and growing trade between this
province and the country to the north :

And whereas for the carrying of the goods into the said country by the present
routes it is necessary to pass through the United States Territory of Alaska, and as
much delay and irritation are caused on account of customs restrictions imposed under
the United States regulations, in some instances duty being collected on goods during
transit through said territory:

Therefore, be it resolved, That a respectful address be presented to His Honour
the Lieutenant Governor, praying that he may urge upon the Dominion Government the
necessity of arriving at an arrangement with the government of the United States, in
order that the transport of goods from Canada through the territory of Alaska to the
Yukon country may be facilitated.

The Committee advise that a copy of this minute, if approved, be forwarded to the
Honourable the Secretary of State.

JAMES BAKER,
Clerk, Executive Council.

VICTORIA, 7th May, 1897.

DEPARTMANT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE,
OTTAWA, 21st May, 1897.

His Honour,
The Lieutenant Governor of British Columbia,

Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch No. 52, of
the 13th instant, inclosing a certified copy of a Minute of your Executive Council,
embodying a resolution of the Legislative Assembly of your province, respecting the

2



Transport to the Yukon District

transport of goods from Canada through the territory of Alaska tk the Yukon country,
and to state that same has been submitted to the Governor General in Council.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOSEPH POPE,
Under Secretary of State.

!iTelegrams.] OTTAWA, 22nd July, 1897.
W. B. HOWELL, Esq.,

Assistant Secretary, Treasury Dept.,
Washington, D.C.

May Canadian goods pass from Juneau, Alaska, to Yukon frontier without pay-
ment customs duties if parties pay for United States Officer accompanying goods.
Please wire reply and instruct your officers at Juneau.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

WASHINGTON, D.C., 22nd July, 1897.
JOHN MLvCDOUGÂLD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa, Ont.

Arrangements suggested in your telegram under consideration, will advise you
tO-morrow, would it facilitate matters to make Dyea a sub-port of entry.

W. P. HOWELL,
Assistant Secretary.

P. HOwELL, Esq., OTTAWA, 22nd July, 1897.

Assistant Secretary, Treasury Dept.,
Washington, D.C.

It would facilitate matter if Dyea made sub-port of entry pending settlement of
boundary question. If agreed to, please wire instructions to allow British steamers
froma Canadian ports to land and receive passengers and goods at Dyea.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

WASHINGTON, D.C., 23rd July, 1897.
JOHN MCDOOGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

Dyea has been made sub-port of entry and collector at Juneau advised that
steamers may proceed there and unlade entering merchandise for transportation to be
accompanied by a customs officer at expense of owners.

W. B. HOWELL,
Assistant Secretary.

79-1i
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27th Juiy, 1897.
W. B. HOWELL,

Assistant Secretary, Treasury Dept.,
Washington, D.C.

Will you please wire Collector Saunders, at Port Townsend, State of Washington,
to instruct Collector of Customs of Juneau, Alaska, that Dyea has been made a sub-
port of customs and authorize Collector Saunders to wire such instructions to our
collector or to your consul at Victoria, British Columbia, so that they can be sent to
Juneau by steamer leaving twenty-eight July.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

WASHINGTON, D.C., 28th July, 1897.
JOHN McDOUGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa, Can.

Deputy Collector of Customs, at Juneau already instructed by wire in regard to
Dyea, American Consul at Victoria will be duly informed.

W. B. HOWELL,
Assistant Secretary.

OTTAWA, 1-th August, 1897.
W. B. HOWELL, Esq.,

Assistant Secretary Treasury Department,
Washington, D.C.

Freight and passengers for Yukon are going in by White Pass, and the landing is
at Skagway Bay, three miles south of Dyea. American vessels deposit freight and
passengers at the Bay, but privilege refused to Canadian vessels. Customs officers can
as conveniently pass entries at Skagway as at Dyea. Will you please instruct officials
by wire to extend privilege of landing at Skagway Bay to Canadian vessels as conceded
to American vessels. Please wire me if instructions will be sent.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State and Acting Minister of Customs.

WASHINGTON, D.C., 20th August, 1897.
Hon. R. W. SCOTT,

Secretary of State,
Ottawa, Canada.

On 6th instant limits of Port of Dyea were extended to include Skagway and
deputy in charge instructed accordingly. This action gave Canadian vessels same rights
as vessels of United States. Have again wired deputy all vessels may enter at
Skagway.

W. B. HOWELL,
Assistant Secretary.
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CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,

Hon. W. B. HOWELL, OTTAWA, 2nd October, 1897.

Assistant Secretary, Treasury Departinent,
Washington, D.C.

SIR,-I beg leave to inclose for your consideration a letter from Mr. G. E. C.
Martin, of Victoria, B.C., dated 27th August, 1897, applying for permission to com-
plete and put together in bond at St. Michaels, Alaska, a small stern-wheel steamer, for
service on the upper waters of the Yukon, the materials for the construction of the
steamer to be transported from Victoria, B.C.

As sea-going steamers cannot navigate the Yukon River, bonding facilities for the
transhipment of articles froin ocean steamers to river steamers at St. Michaels would
no doubt be a great convenience to parties in the trade of the Yukon District. I am
not, however, aware whether customs officers of the United States are now stationed at
that point, or whether it is proposed to establish a sub-port of entry there in the near
future.

I shal1 be obliged for information on these points and for your reply as to the
granting of the inclosed application and the conditions thereof, so that I may com-
ilunicate the same to the party concerned.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

The Commissioner of Customns, VICTORIA, B.C., 27th August, 1897.

Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-I am forwarding this letter to you through the collector of customs
here, in the hope that the request contained herein may be laid before the American
Government without delay.

I wish to request the privilege of putting together a small stern-wheel steamer at
St. Michaels in bond. As the steamer is destined entirely for the higher waters of the
Yukon, she will require to be built and registered at a Canadian port; hence the re-
quest for the privilege of completing her in bond at St. Michaels, as this seems the only

ay in which the difficulty of getting such a small steamer safely into the Yukon can
e overcome. Her proposed dimensions are from 40 to 50 feet length, and about 15

feet beam.
I trust that the Ainerican Government will see its way to grant this favour, especi-

ally if request is presented by your department, and I shall be grateful if you will be so
kind as to. forward my application with as little delay as possible, as on receiving
an answer there is much to be done in order to get steamer ready in time.

Thanking you in anticipation,
I amn, yours faithfully,

G. ED. C. MARTIN.

P.S.--My address is: Care of Bank of B.C., Victoria, B.C.
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TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

The Commissioner of Customs, WASHINGTON, D.C., 5th October, 1897,

Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-I have the honour to inclose herewith a copy of a letter this day addressed
to the deputy collector of customs at St. Michaels, Alaska, authorizing the putting
together at that port in bond, of a small stern-wheel steamer for service on the upper
waters of the Yukon River.

The application of Mr. G. E. C. Martin for said privilege is herewith returned.

Respectfully yours,

W. B. HOWELL,
Assistant Secretary.

CUSToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 9th October, 1897.

Hon. W. B. HOWELL,
Assistant Secretary, Treasury Dept.,

Washington, D.C.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 5th instant,
inclosing copy of a letter sent to the deputy collector of customs at St. Michaels,
Alaska, authorizing the putting together at that port in bond, of a small stern-wheel
vessel for service on the upper waters of the Yukon River.

The Honourable Minister of Customs desires me to thank you for your prompt
and satisfactory reply to the application sent you under date of the 2nd instant,
respecting the above matter.

I have the honour to be, sir.
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

CusToMs DEPARTMENT,

W. B. HowELL, Esq., OTTAWA, 2lst October, 1897.

Assistant Secretary, Treasury Dept.,
Washington, D.C., U.S.A.

SiR,-I have the honour to forward herewith a letter from Algernon Stracey, Esq.,
of Il Chesham Place, London, S.W., England, asking in effect for information, as
follows

1st. Will Mr. Stracey be permitted to warehouse goods in bond, under United
States Customs supervision, at St. Michaels, Alaska, in a building to be there erected
by him, and under what conditions as to fees and charges I

2nd. Will Canadian steamers plying between St. Michaels, Alaska, and the upper
waters of the Yukon River in Canada, be permitted to take on board, for fuel, wood
or other substances, delivered on the banks of the Yukon River in United States
Territory ?

3rd. On what terms as to rental or purchase can Mr. Stracey procure at St.
Michaels a block of land, say 300 x 300 ft., with water frontage, at a suitable place for
the landing and discharging of passengers, and the forms of application requiredi

4th. On what terms and conditions can permission be given to cut fire-wood in
Alaska, for delivery on the banks of the Yukon River in the United States, to be used
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as fuel on Canadian steamers navigating the said river between Canadian territory and
St. Michaels, and the steps necessary to be taken therefor i

The Honourable Minister of Customs will be obliged for such information as will
enable him to answer these inquiries, as Mr. Stra.-ey is a capitalist of large means, who
proposes to engage in carrying goods and passengers, in Canadian vessels, between St.
Michaels and the upper waters of the Yukon in Canada (the navigation of the river
being provided for by treaty between the United States and Great Britain).

You will confer a favour by obtaining from any other department such information
as may be required to answer the injuiries.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

11 CHESHAM PLACE,

To the Honourable W. Paterson, LONDON, S. W., ENGLAND, 16th October, 1897.

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-AR you so kindly volunteered to ascertain from the U.S.A. Government
the following questions I now take the liberty of asking you to do so.

(1.) On what conditions can we procure fuel for our boats (as Canadian boats) on
the Yukon River between St. Michaels and the Canadian border ?

(2.) I am given to understand the U.S.A. Government have no storage for a large
quantity of goods at St. Michaels, so will they permit me to erect a warehouse at my
OWn expense and would they be prepared to rent me a block of land say 300 feet x 300
feet with water frontage at a suitable place for the landing and discharging of cargo
and passengers, say with a yearly lease with the option of renewal, and at what rental 1

Your truly,

ALGERNON STRACEY.

TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

JOHN MCDouG-ALD, Esq., WASHINGTON, D.C., 27th October, 1897.

Conmissioner of Customs,
Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-The department is in receipt of your letter of the 21st instant, inclosing letterfroIn Mr. Algernon Stracey, asking information relative to warehouse facilities, &c., atSt. Michaels, Alaska.

wh The matter will be duly considered by the department, and you will be advised
en a conclusion is reached.

Respectfully yours,

JOHN M. COMSTOCK,
Chief of Division of Customs.
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T&EASURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

WASHINGTON, D. C., 29th October, 1897.
JOHN MCDoUGALD, Esq.,

Commnissioner of Customs,
Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 21st
instant, with which was inclosed a communication addresed to you hy Mr. Algernon
Stracey, of London, England, requesting certain information on niatters pertaining to
the conduct of business in Alaska.

In reply, I have to state, in answer to the question of Mr. Stracey concerning the
warehousing of merchandise at St. Michaels, Alaska, under Customs supervision, that
bonded warehouses are not established at the place named. Such proceeding would
involve the bonding of the lines of vessels iii instances where the goods are forwa rded
from ports in the United States. In reply to a communication from persons interested
in the transportation of merchandise purchased iii Canada and forwarded via Tacoma,
Washington, and St. Michaels, Alaska, to places in the British possessions, they were
advised that the goods should be forwarded from the exporting port in the State of
Washington under a transportation and export entry. In such instances a bond is
given conditioned for the exportation of the goods within a specified time. If by reason
of obstruction to navigation or other unavoiciable cause, transportation beyond St.
Michaels was temporarily impracticable, the persons interested were inforined that the
goods should be placed in a warehouse on the wharf at St. Michaels where they should
remain under Customs supervision until the opening of navigation or the removal of
the obstruction whch caused the delay. In such instances, upon application for an ex-
tension of the time specified in the bond above referred to, an extension will be allowed.

The other questions of Mr. Stracey, which appear to involve the laws relating to
public lands, have been referred to-day to the Honourable the Secretary of the Interior,
who will communicate with you or Mr. S'-racey on the subject.

Respectfully yours,
W. B. HOWELL,

Assistant Secretary.

CUSTOMS DEPARTMENT, CANADA,
OTTAWA, 20th November, 1897.

Hon. W. B. HoWELL,
Assistant Secretary, Treasury Department,

Washington, D.C., U.S.A.

SIR,-The following inquiries have been submitted to this department, with a
request to obtain f rom the treasury department the information desired by the parties,
viz.:-

1. Can goods carried in British vessels from Vancouver, B.C., to St. Michaels,
Alaska, in transit for Fort Cudahy in Canada (via Yukon River), be entered at St.
Michaels "for immediate transportation and exportation in bond, without appraise-
ment" or payment of United States duty, and the conditions of such bond,--the inten-
tion being to carry the goods from St. Michaels to Fort Cudahy in Canada, in British
or Canadian steamers, on the Yukon River, the navigation of which is free by treaty ?

2. The same question is submitted by a party in another form, viz.:-
If goods are sent from Great Britain by the all-sea route, and transhipped at St.

Michaels into river boats for the Yukon district in Canada, would duty be chargeable
at St. Michaels? And on what conditions can such transhipment be made without
payment of United S.ates duties?

3. If the goods were transhipped from a British vessel at the Yukon River, outside
the three mile limit, into smaller launches conveyed on the vessel, and then trans-
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ported in such launches, via the Yukon River, to Fort Cudahy in Canada, would the
goods in those circumstances be chargeable with duty by the United States authorities ?
And if free from duty, under what conditions or regulations as to customs supervision
on the Yukon River through United States territorvy

The Honourable Minister of Customs will be obliged for such information as can
be furnished in reply to these inquiries.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Conimissioner.

CusToIs DEPARTMENT, CANADA,

Hon. W. B. oWELL, OTTAWA, 30th November, 1897.

Assistant Secretary, Treasury Department,
Washington, D. C.

SIR,-I have the honour to forward herewith a letter from Mr. William T. Stein,
Secretary of the Board of Trade at Vancouver, B. C., to the Honourable Minister of
Customs, daied 16th Noveniber, 1897, as to customs regulations in regard to the
transfer of goods from British bottoms at Wrangel or in the Stikine River into river
boats nîavigating the Stikine River,-the cargoes having been cleared fron a British or
Canadian port.

Under Article XXVI. of the treaty of Washington (1871), it is provided that:-
"The navigation of the river St. Lawrence, ascending and descending, froni the

forty-lifth parallel of north latitude, where it ceases to form the boundary between the
two countries, from, to and into the sea, shall for ever remain free and open for the
Purposes of commerce to the citizens of the United States, subject to any laws and regu-
lations of Great Britain or of the Dominion of Canada, not inconsistent with such pri-
vilege of free navigation.

" The navigation of the Rivers Yukon, Porcupine and Stikine, ascending and
descending from, to and into the sea, shall for ever remain free and open for the pur-
P)ses of commerce to the subjects of Her Britannic M\Iajesty and to the citizens of the
United States, subject to any laws and regulations of either country within its own
territory, not inconsistent with such privilege of free navigation."

The Honourable Minister of Customs will be obliged for such information as you
can supply in respect to the United States customs regulations applicable to the traffic
referred to in the inclosed letter, and particularly as to whether the proposed tranship-
nient at Wrangel can be effected under the supervision of United States customs officers,
and the conditions to be observed.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

VANCOUVER BOARD OF TRADE,
SECRETARY'S OFFIcE, BANK OF BRITISH NORTH AMERICA BUILDING,

The Honourable HASTINGS ST., VANCOUVER, B.C., 16th November, 1897.

The Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

SIR,-I am instructed by this board of trade to ask you on their behalf:
1. If a British bottom can transfer her cargo at Wrangel, or the mouth of the

Stikine River, into a river boat of any nationality? and
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2. If this is not the case, this board would be pleased to learn the customs regula-
tions re the entering of the Stikine River ?

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

WILLIAM T. STEIN,
Secretary.

TTREAsURY DDEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

WASHINGION, D.C., 16th December, 1897.
JOHN MCDoUGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-Acknowledging the receipt of your communication of the 20th ultimo,
w-herein you submit several inquiries with reference to the transportation of merchan-
dise via the Yukon River to Fort Cudahy, Canada, t have the honour to inform you
that said inquiries are under consideration, and that you will be advised in the premises
when a conclusion is reached.

Respectfully yours,

W. B. HOWELL,
Assistant Secretary.

TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

WASHINGTON, D.C., 18th December, 1897
JOHN MCDoUGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner, Customs Department,
Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of 30th Novem-
ber, in which you quote article 26 of the Treaty of Waslington, and inclose a letter
from the secretary of the Vancouver board of trade, inquiring if a British bottom can
transfer her cargo at Wrangel, or the mouth of the Stikine River into a river boat of
any nationality.

In reply I have the honour to state that it is the practice of this department to
receive inquiries from foreign governments concerning the administration of the laws of
the United Stat-s, and particularly those involving the construction of treaties, through
the customary diplomatie channels. I have the honour, therefore, with great respect to
inform you that your letter with its inclosure has been referred to the Honourable the
Secretary of State.

Respectfully yours,

O. L. SPAULDING,
Assistant Secretary.

(Telegram.)
OTTAwA, 2nd February, 1898.

Hon. O. L. SPAULDING,
Assistant Secretary, Treasury Department,

Washington, D.C., U.S.A.

SIR,-Small American river steamers may be carried in sections from Dyea or
Stikine to head waters Yukon River, to be assembled there free of Canadian customs
duty, and may carry cargo and passengers f rom customs station at head waters to
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Circle City, Alaska, but steamers cannot engage in coasting froin one place to another
in Canadian territory unless under British register. Regulations mailed.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,

Ilon. 0. L. SPAULDING, OTTAWA, 2nd February, 1898.

Assistant Secretary, Treasury Department,
Washington, D.C., U.S.A,

Sin,-Referring to your unofficial telegram of the 31st ultimo, respecting regulations
applicable to the transport of small river steamers in sections to the Yukon River, and
the carrying of passengers and cargo therein from the head waters of the river to Circle
City, Alaska, I wired you to-day as follows:-

" Small American river steamers may be carried in sections from Dyea or Stikine
to head waters Yukon River to be assembled there free of Canadian Customs duty, and
iay carry cargo and passengers from Customs station at head waters to Circle City,
Alaska, but steamers cannot engage in coasting from one place to another in Canadian
territory unless under British Register. Regulations mailed."

The coasting regulations are contained in the "Customs Orders in Council"
inclosed herewith.

The steamers will be subject to customs duty of 25 per cent on the machinery,
aId 10 per cent on the hull and appurtenances, if the owners apply for British registry
in Canada.

The stations to be occupied by customs officers at the head waters of the Yukon,
are not yet fully determined, and their establishment will be to some extent, contingent
on the business to be done.

Parties sending such steamers across to the Yukon, can, however, be advised more
definitely on applying to this department and giving specific information as to points of
departure, etc., on the head waters of the river.

In navigating the Yukon River, the usual coasting regulations are to be observed.
These permit only vessels of British registry to carry passengers and cargo from one
Place in Canada and land the same at another place in Canada. If the river steamers
transported into the Yukon have American registers, they may " clear " with passen-
gers and cargo from a customs station on the Yukon in Canada for ports in Alaska and

ice ver8a.
In cases of urgency, pending receipt of registry, a clearance may, however, be

granted to any of these steamers without certificate of registry on board, for the first
voyage down the Yukon to Alaska, but not for a subsequent voyage.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.
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COASTING TRADE-GENERAL REGULATIONS.

GOVERNMENT HOUsE, OTTAWA,
The 25th day of July, 1888.

On the recommendation of the Minister of Customs and under the pro-
visions of Chapter 32 of the Revised Statutes of Canada, intituled " The
Customs Act,"

His Excellency in Council has been pleased to make the following regu-
lations respecting the Coasting Trade of Canada:

COASTING REGULATIONS.

British Registered Vessels.

Vessels and Sec. 1. Vessels and boats employed in the transport of goods or passen-
boats deemed gers from one port or place to another port or place within the limits of the

Seastinaged Dominion of Canada, shall be deemed to be engaged in the coasting trade,
trade. and shall be subject to the regulations governing the same.
British ves- Sec. 2. None but British registered vesseis and boats wholly owned by
sels and ves- British subjects, and such other vessels or boats as may be owned by the
sels o-,%ned by
subjects of subjects of countries included in any treaty with Great Britain by which
countries the coasting trade is mutually conceded, can lawfully be engaged in the
included ini c
any treaty. coasting trade of the Dominion of Canada, and the names of such vessels or

boats and the names of their port of registry shall be distinctly painted on
the stern of the said vessels or boats.

License to be Sec. 3. Such vessels and boats nay, without being subject to entry or
taken out by clearance, as required by law, for vessels trading between ports in the
masters orD
owners of Dominion of Canada, as well as with foreign ports, carry goods the produce
such vessels of Canada, or goods duty free, or goods duty paid, or passengers from any
Provisions ports or places in the provinces of Ontario, Quebec, New Brunswick, Nova

bonean Scotia and Prince Edward Island to any other ports or places in the said
report of the several provinces, provided always, that the owners or masters of such
master of ves- vessels or boats shall take out a license for the year or part of the year
sel or boat. always terminable on the 30th day of June, for that purpose, from a collec-

tor of customs in Canada, and that the owners or masters in taking out the
said license shall enter into bonds of $500 conditioned that such vessels or
boats shall not be employed in the foreign trade, unless as hereinafter pro-
vided, and provided also that the master of every such vessel or boat shall
report inwards and outwards on entering or leaving a port, on the forms
hereinafter prescribed.

License to be Sec. 4. The master of any such vessel or boat shall produce his license to
1)rodiiced to
customs offi- any officer of customs, whenever the same shall be demanded, and answer
cer. Penalty all questions put to him, and such officer of customs shall be at liberty to
of $100 for go on board any such coasting vessel when he may deem proper, and if he
contraven-
tion. should find any dutiable goods therein which have not been entered at the

customs, or any prohibited or smuggled goods, or if any goods had been
unladen therefrom before the master had reported to a customs officer the
goods and vessel shall be forfeited, and the master shall incur a penalty of
$100.

Report f rom Sec. 5. Before any coasting vessel or boat shall depart from any port of

"es o ol- lading in any one of the provinces of the Dominion of Canada for any
lector. Pen- other port in the said Dominion, a report with a duplicate thereof, in the
alty of $100 form or to the effect following, and signed by the master, shall be delivered
for contra- to the collector or some officer of customs who shal retain the duplicate and
vention. t h olco rsm fie fcsoswosalrti h ulct n

return the original report dated and signed by him; and such report shall
be the clearance of the vessel or boat far the voyage, except for goods under
bond, or goods liable to excise or internai revenue duty, which shall require
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the entries and warrants for landing to be signed by the proper officers as
required by law ; and if any report be false, the master who signed it shall
forfeit the sum of $100.

Report Inwards.

Coastwise for a registered coasting vessel or boat
from another in the Dominion of Canada.

arriving at one port

Port of

Naine of vessel,

Master's name,

Port of registry,

Registered tonnage, tons,

Where from,

1, the nndersigned, master of the above described vessel, do solemnly
declare that I have not touched at any foreign port, nor have I taken on
board, nor landed nor put off of said vessel any goods liable to customs duty,
or other revenue impost since leaving the above named port of departure.

, 18 .
Collector of Customs. Master.

Report Outwards.

Coastwise for a registered coasting vessel or boat
Port to another in the Dominion of Canada.

proceeding from one

Port of

Name of vessel,

Master's name,

Port of registry,

Registered tonnage,

Whither bound,

1, the undersigned, master of the above named vessel, do solemnly swear Affidavit of
that I am bound for, and will proceed directly to, the port of , and the master.
that I will nos, during said voyage, touch at any foreign port, nor take on
board ndrr land, nor put off of said vessel any goods liable to customs duty,
or other revenue impost, before arriving at the above named port of
destination.

day of

Collector of Custom8. Master.

Sec. 6. Vessels and boats employed in the coasting trade that shall not Penalty of
have taken up a license for carrying goods, shall report inwards and out- $100 for

departinewards at the nearest port to their place of arrival or destination, and without duerequire clearances whenever they depart f rom any port or place within the entry.
Dominion of Canada; and in default of their so reporting the vessel and
cargo, the master shall in such cases be subject to the penalty of $100 fordeparting and arriving without due entry inwards or outwards, as the case
may be. Provided that when a vessel shall sail from any place where there

13

tons.

, 18 .
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Report of the is no custom-house or officer of customs, it shall be sufficient for the carry-
nearesr t he ing out of this regulation that the owner or master of such vessel do, as
tom-house soon afterwards as possible, forward to the nearest custom-house a similar
when no Cus- report in duplicate, or lodge the same at the first port at which he shalltom-house in touch where there is a custom-house officer.place.

Goods under Sec. 7. Goods under a removal bond from one Canadian port to another
removal bond may be carried in any British registered vessel or boat trading coastwise
from o"e Ca- with a proper license, upon such goods being properly entered in the reportnadian port
to another ; outwards and clearance in duplicate-the collector at the port from which
how carried. such goods are removed being required to forward by mail, to the collector

of the port for which the goods are destined all the particulars and descrip-
tion of the goods so forwarded, and the packages shall be properly marked
in red as now provided; but no goods under bond shall be carried in any
coasting vessel or boat without being so reported and cleared.

Touching at Sec. 8. No coasting vessel or boat shall touch at any foreign port unless
an ore n forced by unavoidable circumstances, or thereunto authorized by a collector
forced by cir- or proper officer of customs ; and the master of any coasting vessel or boat
cumstances. which has touched at any foreign port shall declare the same in writing
Penalty for under his own hand to the collector or proper officer of customs at the port
net declaring or place in Canada where his vessel or boat afterwards first arrives, under
the same. a penalty of $100.
Goods un- Sec. 9. If any goods are unshipped from any vessel or boat arriving
shP d from coastwise, or unshipped or water borne to be shipped, to be carried coast-verse on oswse n pp ipe
Sundays and wise, on Sundays or holidays or unless in the presence or with the authority
holidays; of the proper officer of customs, or unless at such times and places as shall
p100or io- be appointed and approved by him for that purpose-the same shall be

lation. forfeited, and the master of the vessel or boat shall forfeit the sum of $100.

Boarding, Sec. 10. Officers of customs may board any vessel or boat in any port or
searching and place, and at any period of the voyage search her and examine ail goods on
®eaelng of board, and demand all the documents which ought to be on board; and the
customs ofi- collector may require such documents to be brought to him for inspection.
cers.

Fishing-boat Sec. 11. No fishing boat or boat used in ferrying under fifteen tons
or boat ferry- burthen shall, except by special license or permission, carry any goods froming under 15
tons. a foreign country, which are liable to duty, under pain of seizure, unless the

Goods taken
into or put
out of Coast-
ing vessels.

Reports in-
wards and
outwards
coastwise,
how made;
duty of the
collector.

same (in the case of ferry boats) be for the sole use of some passenger then
on board.

Sec. 12. No goods shall be carried in any coasting vessel or boat, except
such as are laden to be so carried at some port or place in Canada, and no
goods shall be taken into or put out of any coasting vessel or boat while on
her voyage by river, lake or sea.

Sec. 13. The reports inwards and outwards coastwise required' by these
regulations may, in the case of any steam vessel carrying a purser, be
signed by such purser, with the like effect in all respects, and subject to
the like penalty on the purser, and the like forfeiture of the goods, in case
of any untrue statement, or violation of customs law as if the report was
signed by the master; and the word master, for the purposes of these
regulations, shall be construed as including the purser of any steam vessel;
but nothing herein contained shall preclude the collector or proper officer of
custons from calling upon the master of any steam vessel to answer ail
such questions concerning the vessel, passengers, cargo and'crew, as might
be lawfully demanded of him if the report had been made by him, or to
exempt the master from the penalties imposed by these regulations for
failure to answer any such questions or for answering untruly or to prevent
the master from making such report, if he shall see fit so to do.

A. 1899



Transport to the Yukon District.

Sec. 14. The foregoing rugulations are also to govern the coasting Coasting
trade of the province of British Columbia so far only as relates to vessels trade in Brit-
trading or making voyages between the several ports in that province. how to be,

O. C. April 17, 1883. governed.

COASTING TRADE-FOREIGN VESSELS.

GOVERNMENT HOUsE, OTTAWA,
The 25th day of July, 1888.

On the recommendation of the Minister of Customs and under the pro-
visions of chapter 83 of the Revised Statutes of Canada, intituled " An Act
respecting the coasting trade of Canada,"

His Excellency in Council has been pleased to declare as follows:

VESSELS OF ITALY.

Section 1. Whereas by the 2nd section of chapter 83 of the Revised Goods and
Statutes of Canada, intituled, " An Act respecting the coasting trade of senger in
Canada," it is, anongst other things, enacted that no goods or passengers
shall be carried by water from one port of Canada to another, except in
British ships ;

And whereas by the 5th section of the said Act it is further enacted Ships or ves-
that the Governor in Council may, from time to time, declare that the fore- sels of any
going provisions of said Act shall not apply to the ships or vessels of any corutry.
foreign country in which British ships are admitted to the coasting trade
Of that country, and permitted to carry goods and passengers from one port
or place to another in such country;

Sec. 2. And whereas British ships are allowed to participate in the Ships of
Coasting trade of Italy on the same footing as the vessels of that kingdom,- Italy.

Ris Excellency in Council bas been pleased to order and declare, that Admitted to
the provisions of the said Act shall not apply to the ships or vessels of coasting
Italy, but that such vessels shall be, and they are hereby admitted to the trade in
coasting trade of the Dominion of Canada on the same terms and condi- Canada.
tions as are applicable to Canadian vessels.

O. C. Oct. 13, 1873.

VESSELS OF GERMANY.

Sec. 3. And whereas British ships are allowed to participate in the coast- Ships of
ing trade of Germany on the sanie footing as the vessels of that empire,- Germany.

His Excellency in Council has been pleased to order and declare that the Admitted to
provisions of the said Act shall not apply to the ships or vessels of Germany, coasting
but that such vessels shall be, and they are hereby, admitted to the coast- Canada.
ing trade of the Dominion of Canada on the same terms and conditions as
are applicable to Canadian vessels.

O. C. MIay 14, 1874.

VESSELS OF THE NETHERLANDs.

Sec. 4. And whereas British ships are allowed to participate in the
coasting trade of the Netherlands on the same footing as vessels of that
country,-

Ris Excellency in Council bas been pleased to order and declare that the Ships of the
provisions of the said Act shall not apply to the ships or vessels of the Netherlands.

A dmittedNetherlands, but that such vessels shall be, and they are hereby admitted into Canada.
to the coasting trade of the Dominion of Canada on the same terms and
conditions as are applicable to Canadian vessels.

O. C. Nov. 5, 1874.
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VESSELS OF SWEDEN AND NORWAY.

Sec. 5. And whereas British ships are allowed to participate in the coast-
ing trade of Sweden and Norway on the same footing as the vessels of that
country,-

Ships of His Excellency in Council bas been pleased to order and declare that the
Sweden and provisions of the said Act shahl not apply to the ships or vessels of Sweden
Norway.
Adxnitted and Norway, but that such vessels shall be, and they are hereby admitted
into Canada. to the coasting trade of the Dominion of Canada on the same terms and

conditions as are applicable to Canadian vessels.
O. C. Nov. 5, 1874.

VESSELS OF AUSTRO-HUNGARY.

Sec. 6. And whereas British ships are allowed to participate in the coast-
ing trade of the Austro-Hungarian Empire on the same footing as the ves-
sels of that country, --

Ships of His Excellency in Council bas been pleased to order and declare that
Austro". the provisions of the said Act shall not apply to the ships or vessels of the
Empire. Austro Hungarian Empire, but that such vessels shall be, and they are
Admitted hereby admitted to the coasting trade of the Dominion of Canada on the
mto Canada. saine terms and conditions as are applicable to Canadian vessels.

O. C. June 1, 1876.

VESSEL8 OF DENMARK.

Sec. 7. And whereas British ships are allowed to participate in the coast-
ing trade of Dennark on the same footing as the vessels of that country,-

Ships of His Excellency in Council bas been pleased to order and declare that the

D"niae provisions of the said Act shall nût apply to the ships or vessels of Den-
into Canada. mark, but that such vessels shall be, and they are hereby admitted to the

coasting trade of the Dominion of Canada on the same teris and condi-
tions as are applicable to Canadian vessels.

O. C. Jan. 25, 1877.

VESSELS OF BELGIUM.

Sec. 8. And whereas British ships are allowed to participate in the coast-
ing trade of Belgium on the saine footing as the v -ssels of that country,-

Ships of His Excellency in Council bas been pleased to order and declare that the
Belgiuin. provisions of the said Act shall not apply to the ships or vessels of Belgium,Admnitted apl elim
into Canada. but that such vessels shall be, and they are hereby admitted to the coasting

trade of the Dominion of Canada on the same teris and conditions as are
applicable to Canadian vessels.

O. C. Sept. 13, 1879.

VESSELS OF THE ARGENTINE REPUBLIC.

Sec. 9. And whereas British ships are allowed to participate in the coast-
ing trade of the Argentine Republic on the saine footing as the vessels of
that country,-

Ships of His Excellency in Council bas been pleased to order and declare that

Republic. the provisions of the said Act shall not apply to ships or vessels of the
Admitted Argentine Republic, but that such ships shall be and they are hereby ad-
into Canada. mitted to the coasting trade of the Dominion of Canada on the same terms0

and conditions as are applicable to Canadian vessels.
O. C. May 10, 1881.
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FOREIGN TRADING VESSELS.

GOVERNMENT HUsE, OTTAWA,
The 25th day of July, 1888.

On the recommendation of the Minister of Customs, and under the pro-
visions of Chapter 32 of the Revised Statutes of Canada, intituled, " The
Customs Act,"

His Excellency in Council has been pleased to make the following regu-
lations, that is to say:

Foreign Yessels.

All foreign vessels trading on the coast and entering the harbours of Foreign
Canada from sea or inland waters, are governed by the following rules:- vessels trad-

ing on coast
and entering
harbours.

Section 1. Foreign vessels may transport cargo and passengers from a Transporting
foreign port and land the same at two or more Canadian ports, clearing cargo, &c.,
from each in succession until all of said cargo and passengers are landed. p foreign

Canadian
ports.

Sec. 2. Foreign vessels may take cargo and passengers f rc m two or more Taking car-
Canadian ports and transport the same to a foreign port, clearing from each 0o, &c., from
in succession, but taking final clearance for such foreign port at the last anadianports to
Canadian port which they enter on such voyage. foreign ports.

Sec. 3. Foreign vessels shall not take freight or passengers at one Cana- Penalty of
dian port and land the same at another Canadian port, and the master or 840 for con-
owner of any vessel found to have violated this rule shall be subject to a travention.

penalty of $400 for each such offence, and the vessel may be detained until
the same is paid.

Sec. 4. Foreign vessels bringing cargo or passengers from a foreign Foreign ves-
port may, after landing the same, be permitted to clear light to another sels, final
Canadian port for the purpose of loading cargo for a foreign port, and may clearance.

clear from port to port to complete such cargo, taking final clearance as
above.

Sec. 5. Foreign vessels may tow other vessels or things from a foreign Towing from
port to a Canadian port ; but if they drop or part from any such vessel or foreign port
thing in Canadian waters, they shall not again take such vessel or thing in to anadian
tow for the purpose of moving the same further in Canadian waters.

Foreign Trading Vessels.

Sec. 6. Foreign vessels may tow other vessels or things from a Cana- Towing from
dian port to a foreign port, but having parted from such vessels or things, Canadian
or any of them, in Canadian waters, they cannot again take such vessels or Port to foreign
things in tow to move them further in Canadian waters; but this and the
preceding rule are not to apply to an accidental parting of such vessel by
breaking hawser or other temporary damages.

Sec. 7. Foreign vessels shall be entitled to the foregoing privileges only Vessels must
on condition of strict compliance with the provisions of " The Customs Act," report in-
respecting reporting inwards and outwards on entering and leaving Cana- oua and
dian ports by the masters of such vessels.

Sec. 8. Where vessels bring cargo or passengers from a foreign port con- Report of
Signed to more than one Canadian port, the masters of such vessels must master of ves
make a full report of the whole contents at the first port of entry, and dis- "me'
tinguish therein the items to be there landed and the ports at which all m
other items are to be landed. Such report must be made in duplicate, with
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an additional copy for each succeeding port at which there are goods to be
customs landed; and the collector or proper officer of customs shall mark each item
officer inust iii such report with the entry number, if entered, and in case of any itemmark e'ach
hee. landed and placed in sufferance warehouse without entry, it shall be marked

with the letter " L " in the said report ; duplicate copies to be filed at said
first port of entry, and the others to be carried with the vesse], and one to
be filed at each succeeding port of entry.

Entraiice and Sec. 9. As required by section 112 of "The Customs Act," the fee to be
clearance fee, exacted from all vessels navigating inland waters, when entering or clearing

eMont- at any port above Montreal, shall be fifty cents for each report inwards or
clearance outwards, irrespective of the tonnage of the vessel, and that such
fees shall be exacted from all vessels so entering or clearing, except vessels
holding coasting licenses, and that all orders or regulations inconsistent
lierewith shall be rescinded.

O. C. 22nd May, 1889. Memo. 295 B.
Fine of >400 See. 10. For any violation of the requirements of these rules the master
for contra- or owner of any such vessel shall be subject to a fine of $400, or such other
vention. fine or penalty provided by the said Act as may be applicable to the case,

and the vessel mnay be detained until such fine or penalty is paid.
Deep sea Sec. 11. Vessels titted for and engaged in the deep sea fisheries are not
fisheries. included in these rules.

O. C. Nov. 10, 1886.

(Sir J. Pauncefote to Lord Aberdeen.)
His Excellency •

The Earl of Aberdeen, G.C.M.G.
BRITisii EMBAssY, WASHINGTON,

20th January, 1898.

MY LoRD,-I have the honour to transmit herewith, copy of a note from the United
States Secretary of State, containing certain inquiries relative to the transportation of
American stern wheel steamers to Dyea.

I shall be obliged if Your Excellency will cause the desired information to be
supplied me, for communication to the United States Government.

I have, &c.,
JULIAN PAUNCEFOTE.

DEPARTMENT OF STATE,
WAsHINGTON, 19th January, 1898.

Sir J. PAUNCEFOTE,
&c., &c., &c.

EXCELLENCY,-At the instance of the Secretary of the Treasury I have the honour
to request you to do me the favour to furnish the department with information as to
whether -

1. Under the laws and regulations of the Dominion of Canada small Arrerican
stern wheel steamers, built in sections and transported to Dyea, there packed over the
mountains, may thereafter be assemnbled and navigate, so far as such waters nay be in
British territory, the chain of lakes and rivers and the Yukon River to American ports
in Alaska ?

2. If such vessels destined for Anierican ports in Alaska will be subject to any
duties at the British frontier ?

3. If such steamers can carry cargo or passengers or both, from the point where
they are assembled, if in British territory, to Alaska?

I have, &c,
JOHN SHERMAN.
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TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

WASHINGTON, D.C. 1st February, 1898.
JONN McDOUGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-I beg to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 28th ultimo, with
inclosures, sent in reply to my telegraphic request of the 27th ultime, and to thank you
for the same. It is expected that our regulations will be completed to-morrow, and I
shall take pleasure in sending you copies.

W. B. HOWELL,
Assistant Secretary.

(Telegran.)
2nd February, 1898.

A. R. MILNE,
Collector of Customs,

Victoria, B.C.

Consult with Major Perry and instruct officers to pass duty free supplies and outfit
of Alaska Relief Expedition upon declaration by official in charge that supplies and
Outfit are bona fde part of relief exepdition despatched by United States Government
from Portland early this month. Instruct officers, however, that if any United States
troops under arms accompany the expedition permission must not be given for such
troops to enter Canada. Proposed sending expedition supplies partly by Dalton Trail
and partly by White or Chilkoot Pass. Appoint police officer in charge on Dalton Trail
as customs officer with full instructions under your survey. Am writing.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

(Re Alaska Relief Expedition.)

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT, OTTAWA, 2nd February, 1898.

A. R. MILNE, Esq., C.M.G.,
Collector of Customs,

, Victoria, B.C.,

SIR,-I wired you to-day in the above matter as follows:-
" Consult with Major Perry aird instruct officers to pass duty f ree supplies and out-

fit of Alaska Relief Expedition upon declaration by official in charge that supplies and
Outfit are bona fide part of relief expedition despatched by United States Government
from Portland early this month. Instruct officers, however, that if any United States
troops under arms accompany the expedition permission must not be given for such
troops to enter Canada. Proposed sending expedition supplies partly by Dalton Trail
and partly by White or Chilkoot Pass. Appoint police officer in charge on Dalton Trail
as customs officer, with full instructions under your survey. Am writing."

The department is advised that the expedition is expected to sail from Portland,
Oregon, for Lynn Canal, early this month. General Merriam supervises in person the
starting, and he proposes (as at present advised) to divide the supplies, sending part
over the Dalton Trail, with the snow locomotives, to be followed by reindeer transporta-
tion, when available, and sending part by White or Chilkoot Pass by lake route,

Assurance is given that no unofficial or unauthorized person will be allowed to
accompany the expedition, and also that the officers in charge will be instructed to furnish
the Canadian officer of customs with a properly certified list of persons and an inventory
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of the outfit comprising the expedition. You will instruct your officers accordingly to
allow the expedition to pass without payment of duty, but to carefully observe that they
must not give permissien for United States troops under arms to enter Canadian territory
in the event of any such troopsforming part of the expedition.

The officials in charge of the supplies, and all civilians employed in their transport-
ation, are, however, to be permitted to accompany the expedition to its destination.

The Canadian Government has arranged to furnish the necessary escort for the
expedition through Canadian territory.

You will direct that the list of persons, with inventory of the outfit, when furnished
as above mentioned, shall be forwarded to you for transmission to this department.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

TREASURY DEPARTMENT, OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,
WASHINGTON, D.C., 4th February, 1898.

JOHN MCDOUGALD, Esq.,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-Please accept my thanks for the information conveyed in your telegram of
the 2nd instant, reading as follows :

" Ottawa, Ont., 2nd Feb., '98.
" Hon. O. L. Spaulding, Asst. Secy., Treasury,

"Washington, D.C.

"Small American river steamers may be carried in sections f rom Dyea or Stikine
to head waters Yukon River to, be assembled there free of Canadian customs duty and
may carry cargo and passengers from customs station at head waters to Circle City,
Alaska, but steamers cannot engage in coasting from one place to another in Canadian
territory unless under British register, regulations mailed.

"JOHN McDOUGALD,
" Commissioner of Customs."

Respectfully yours,
O. L. SPAULDING,

Assistant Secretary.

TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF ýFHE SECRETARY,

WASHINGTON, D.C., February 5, 1898.
.IN MCDOUGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-Please accept my thanks for your letter of the 2nd instant concerning the
navigation of the Upper Yukon by small American river steamers, and for the copy of
the Canadian regulations inclosed therewith.

Respectfully yours,

O. L. SPAULDING,
Assistant Secretary.
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CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,

To His Excellency, OTTAWA, February 4th, 1898.

The Governor General in Council.

The undersigned, Minister of Customs, having had under consideration Privy
Council Reference No. 633 K., being copy of a despatch, dated 20th January, 1898,
from the British Ambassador at Washington to Your Excellency, transmitting copy of
a note from the United States Secretary of State, containing certain inquiries relative
to the transportation of American stern wheel steamers to Dyea,-has the honour to
report,

That permission will he given for small American stern wheel eteamers, built in
sections, to be transported to Dyea, to be thence packed over the mountains and to be
thereafter assembled in Canadian territory under Customs supervision without payment
of duty.

That any such steamer, if under application for United States registry, may with-
out a certificate of such registry on board, proceed with passengers and cargo through
such waters as may be in Canadian territory direct to a port in Alaska for the first trip
Outwards from the point where assembled in Canadian territory.

That it is to be observed that only vessels of British register or vessels entitled to
participate in the Canadian coasting trade, are permitted to carry passengers or cargo
from one place in Canada and land the same at another place in Canada.

That under Item No. 409 of the Canadian customs tariff vessels built in a foreign
Country, on application for Canadian register, are dutiable at the rate of ten per cent
On the fair market value of the hull, rigging and all appurtenances, and at the rate of
twenty-five per cent on the boilers, steam engines and other machinery.

The undersigned recommends that a copy of the foregoing report, if approved, be
forwarded to Sir Julian Pauncefote, for the information of the Honourable the Secretary
of State of the United States.

WM. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.

(Telegram.)

A. R.MILNE, Esq., C.M.G. OTTAWA, ilth February, 1898.

Collector of Customs,
Victoria, B.C.

United States troops not under arms destined for Alaska, accompanying relief
expidition, are permitted to pass through Canadian territory. Their arms and muni-
tions of war may also be carried through Canadian territory as baggage free of duty
Without entry. Please instruct officers at the frontier accordingly.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

(Telegram.)
A. R.) ILNEOTTAwA, 1lth February, 1898.
A. R. MILNE,

Collector of Customs,
Victoria, B.C.

Referring to telegram of this date with reference to United States troops not
under arma passing through Canadian territory to Alaska add to instructions contained
therein that such United States troops shall be in civilian dress while passing through
Canadian territory. JOHN McDOUGALD,

Commissioner of Customs.
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CusToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 9th February, 1898.

A. R. MILNE, Esq., C.M.G.,
Collector of Customs,

Victoria, B.C.

Re Cashing United States Customs Certificates.

SIR,-You are hereby instructed that Canadian custons officers in the Yukon
District at or near Chilkoot Pass and White Pass are authorized, " to cash with customs
moneys, and also to accept in payment of Canadian Customs duties, the certificates or
vouchers given for amounts payable by the United States Customs, under United
States Treasury Regulations of 2nd February, 1898 (Circular No. 23) in refund of
duties deposited at Dyea and Skagway as security for the exportation to the Klondike
region of goods purchased at Canadian ports and carried thence in transit via Dyea and
Skagway, when such certificates or vouchers are duly verified and properly endorsed."

2. A special officer of Canadian Customs is to be stationed at Skagway and Dyea,
with an assistant, for the purpose of carrying out the arragement authorized as above
mentioned, until otherwise advised, and for the purpose of supervising the transit of
Canadian goods via Skagway and Dyea into the Yukon District.

3. Copies of the United States Treasury Regulations providing for the transporta-
tion of imported merchandise arriving at Juneau, Dyea, Skagway or any other Customs
port in Alaska, in transit to the " Klondike region," are forwarded herewith, for the
informatiou of all concerned.

4. The special officer in charge at Skagway and Dyea, and his assistant, are
required to give to importers of Canadian goods such information and instructions as
may be necessary for the transportation of their goods into the Yukon District with as
little friction as possible.

5. It will be the duty of the special officer to obtain from the United States
deputy collector of customs at Skagway or Dyea, copies of the forms, with the require-
ment as to endorsement of the certificates or vouchers to be issued for the refund of
United States customs duties deposited on Canadian goods in transit. He shall
forward to the Canadian customs officers on the Yukon frontier, for their guidance,
copies of the forms, with full directions as to the cashing and endorsing of the said
certificates vouchers, and for transmitting same without delay for payment by United
States customs at Dyea or Skagway. He shall forward the proceeds of such certificates
or vouchers, as received from United States customs, to the collector of customs at
Victoria, B.C., and he shall be subject in the discharge of bis duties to the orders
and directions of the said collector of customs.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

(Memorandum.) CUSTOMS DEPARTMENT, No. 966 B.

OTTAWA, 9th February, 1898.
To Collectors oj Customs :

RE ENTRY OF GOODS INTO YUKON DISTRICT AND STIKINE.

The following instructions are issued for the information of collectors of customs
and other persons concerned.-

1. Goods purchased in Canada, duty paid or the produce of Canada, may be
admitted into the Yukon District or Stikine free of duty, when the transportation of
such goods by water, from any port in British Columbia, direct or via a foreign port, is
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wholly in vessels entitled to participate in the coasting trade of the Dominion of Canada:
Provided, however, that the goods are identified to the satisfaction of the customs
officer at the port of entry in the Yukon or Stikine, and that the regulations and
condition,; prescribed for the transportation of the goods from ports in British Columbia
are duly observed.

2. Except as above provided, all goods arriving in the Yukon District or Stikine,
from or through Alaska, or via the Yukon or Stikine Rivers, will be treated as to.
liability to duty as ordinary importations.

3. Goods imported into the Klondike region, Yukon district or Stikine, are subject
to the same duties and exemptions as if imported into any other part of Canada, and
duties are to be levied under the provisions of sections 58 and 59 of the Customs Act,
as to market values of goods at the time and place whence exported directly to Canada.

4. Wearing apparel, articles of personal adornment, toilet articles and similar
personal effects of persons arriving in Canada may be passed free, without entry at
customs, as travellers' baggage, under the provisions of the customs tariff, but this
provision shall only include such articles as actually accompany and are in the use of
and as are necessary and appropriate for the wear and use of such persons for the
immediate purpose of the journey and present comfort and convenience, and shall not
be held to apply to merchandise or articles intended for other persons or for sale.

5. Goods purchased in Canada, duty paid or the produce of Canada, admitted free
of duty into the Yukon District or Stikine, shall be subject to the following regulations
and conditions for the transportation thereof, from ports in British Columbia:-

(a) A manifest or invoice containing a description of the goods and their value,
with the numbers and marks of the packages, shall be presented to the customs officer
at the Canadian frontier port in the Yukon District or Stikine.

(b) The certificate of a Canadian cu-toms officer is required to be endorsed on the
manifest or invoice, to the effect that the goods described therein have been "shipped
duty free from a port in British Columbia."

(c) Customs officers shall not grant the certificate above mentioned when the ship-
ment from a port in British Columbia is not made by a vessel entitled to engage in the
Canadian coasting trade.

(d) The said certificate may be si2ned by special officers of the Canadian customs
when stationed at Dyea, Skagway or Wrangel, but in all such cases the transfer from
the importing vessel must be made in the presence of such officer who must satisfy
himself bv an inspection of the vessel's inanifest and clearance that the goods have not
been exported from British Columbia in bond.

(e) The certificate of a Canadian customs officer (if any) stationed at Wrangel, may
be accepted as to the origin and exemption from duty of goods shipped*from ports in
British Columbia in transit via Wrangel to the Stikine when transferred at Wrangel
to a river steamer in the presence of a Canadian customs officer.

6. The following regulations issued by the United States Treasury Department are
appended hereto, viz.

Circular 23, being-Regulations governing the entry and transportation of mer-
chandise destined for the Klondike region and North-west Territory of British Columbia,
via the United States sub-ports of Juneau, Dyea and Skagway, or other customs port
in Alaska.

Circular 24, being-Regulations concerning the navigation of the Yukon and
Porcupine rivers and their tributaries.

7. It may be advisable for parties purchasing goods in Canada for the Yukon
district to provide themselves with invoices in duplicate,-their attention being directed
to the following requirement of the United States cu8toms regulations in regard to goods
passing in transit to the Yukon District through Alaska, via: Dyea or Skagway

"Sec. 3. A manifest and duplicate copy of the entry containing a description of
the merchandise, with the numbers and marks of the packages, shall be presented to
the collector at the subport at which entry is made, and said manifest and entry, after
being duly certified, shall accompany the merchandise on its route through United
States territory, and shall be delivered with the duplicate copy of the entry, to the
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deputy collector at the frontier for verification by comparison with tha merchandise
covered thereby."

8. The following regulation issued by the Customs Department of Canada is also
appended, viz.:-

" Regulations for carrying goods of the United States and other foreign goods in
transit through Canada, from Juneau, Alaska, to Circle City or other points in Alaska,
United States, via Chilkoot or White Pass."

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

REGULATIONS governing the entry and transportation of merchandise destined ,or the
Klondike region and North-west Territory of British Columbia via the United States
subports of Juneau, Dyca and Skagway, or other customs port in Alaska.

Department Circular No. 1889.
Division of Customs3.

TREAsURY DEPAIITME'NT,
OFFICE OF TIIE SECRETARY,

WASHINGTON, D.C., 2nd Feb., 1898.

To Collectors of Customs and others interested

The following regulations are published for the information and guidance of all
concerned :-

1. Imported merchandise arriving at Juneau, Dyea and Skagway, or any other
customs port in Alaska, for transportation to the Klondike region, unless immediately
entered under warehouse, transportation and exportation entry, will be taken possession
of by the chief customs officer at the port, and stored at the expense of the owners.

2. Such merchandise may, after proper entry has been made, proceed under
warehouse, transportation and exportation entry, without payment of duty, in charge
of a customs officer, the cost of whose transportation and maintenance must be paid
by the importer or upon the filing of a bond by the importer with satisfactory
securities, for its due exportation; said bond to be in amount equal to the duties and
charges on the goods and to be cancelled upon proper evidence of exportation. When-
ever the owner shall prefer to deposit with the deputy collector an amount of money
equal to the duties and customs charges on the goods, the filing of a bond may be
waived, and such deposit will be refunded by the deputy collector receiving it, as
hereinafter provided: but in view of the prohibition of the landing of intoxicating
liquors within the territory of Alaska, any package containing such spirits intended for
immediate exportation shall be transported in custody and under the supervision of a
customs officer, as above provided.

3. A manifest and duplicate copy of the entry containing a description of the
merchandise, with the numbers and marks of the packages, shall be presented to the
collector at the sub-port at which entry is made; and said manifest and entry, after
being duly certified, shall accompany the merchandise on its route through United
States territory, and shall be delivered with the duplicate copy of the entry, to the
deputy collector at the frontier for verification by comparison with the merchandise
covered thereby.

4. A deputy collector shall be stationed at the frontier line on the route used
for such transportation, and it shall be his duty to identify the merchandise by com-
parison with the description thereof contained in the entry and certified manifest.

5. If the merchandise corresponds with the description, and shall pass into
British territory, the deputy collector at the frontier shall so certify in the manifest,
which shall then be transmitted by him to the collector at the port of entry, and he
shall also give the owner a certificate stating that the conditions of the bond have been
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fulfilled, or if the duty shall have been deposited with the collector at the port of
entry, the deputy collector shall furnish the owner with a certificate of exportation,
which certificate, duly endorsed by the owner shall, whenever presented to the
deputy collector by whom the deposit was received, be accepted by him as full
authority for the refund of the amount due on such deposit, and such refund shall
be paid by him to the original owner or to the person designated by the owner's
endorsement on the certificate.

6. If any of the merchandise included in the manifest shall have been consumed
or abandoned on the route or shall otherwise fail to appear at the frontier, duty shall
be collected on the sane by the deputy collector at the frontier, before he shall furnish
a voucher for the cancellation of the bond ; if the duties shall have been deposited at
the port of entry, the deputy collector shall deduct the duty on the missing goods from
the amount so deposited, and shal give his voucher for the balance remaining due to
the owner of the goods.

7. Ail imported animals or merchandise abandoned or sold on the route through
'United States territory shall be seized by the customs officers and forfeited to the
goveriment unless duty shall be paid thereon.

8. Whenever the collector at the port of entry shall receive from the deputy at
the frontier a report that the conditions of any bond have been fulfilled, he shall cancel
such bonds, and whenever he shall receive the certified statement of exportation above
provided for and a voucher for the duty remaining due the owner, he shall pay over
8uch duties, or so much of the same as shall have been found due, to the owner of the
goods or the person duly designated by the endorsement of the owner

9. The customs officers at the ports affected by these regulations are hereby
authorized to require, wherever they shall deem it expedient to do so, t he landing under
customs supervision of all imported goods at such wharf or warehouse as shall be duly
designated by them, there to be held in customs custody, until the issuance of permit
for their removal.

10. All articles carried by passengers on the above routes, which are in use and
which consist of wearing apparel and personal effects necessary for the present comfort
and convenience of such passengers are ex&mpt from duty.

11. Any person engaged in an attempt to evade the United States revenue laws
under these regulations, will be arrested and, on conviction, will be subject to the
extreme penalty of the law in such cases provided, and any merchandise introduced
into the United States in violation of the revenue laws will be confiscated by the
government.

NAVIGATION OF THE YUKON AND PORCUPINE RIVERS AND
THEIR TRIBUTARIES

Department Circular No. 1898. TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
Bureau of Navigation. WASHINGTON, D.C., 2nd Feb., 1898.

To Collectors of Customs and others :

The attention of collectors of customs and others is directed to the following
regulations concerning the navigation of the Yukon and Porcupine rivers and their
tributaries:-

(A)-TRANSFER OF CARGOES AND PASSENGERS AT ST. MICHAELS.

(a) The transfer of cargo or passengers froin a seagoing vessel from any port in
the United States (except another port or place in Alaska) or from any foreign port, to
a vessel destined by way of the mouth of the Yukon river to any port or place on the
Yukon or Porcupine rivers and their tributaries, and

(b) the transfer of cargo or passengers from a river vessel, destined by way of the
Maouth of the Yukon River from any port or place on the Yukon or Porcupine rivers or
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their tributaries to any American port or place (except to another port or place in
Alaska) or any foreign port.

Shall be pernitted only at the port of St. Michaels under the supervision of officers
of the customs.

(2.) Officers of the customs at St. Michaels, when they deem it necessary, shall
board any vessel hound to the United States within four leagues of the coast of the
United States for the purpose of demanding its manifest and enforcing the laws and
regulations of the United States.

(3.) Vessels entitled by law to engage in the coasting trade of the United States,
may proceed from one port or place in Alaska to another port in Alaska in the manner
prescribed by law for the entry and clearance of vessels within the same customs
district.

(B)-ENTRY AND CLEARANCE AT ST. MICHAELS.

AMERICAN VESSELS.

(1.) Any vessel, entitled by law to engage in the coasting trade of the United
States, in ballast, or with passengers or cargo or both, that are destined from a port or
place in the United States (elsewhere than in Alaska), or from a foreign port for any
port or place on the Yukon or Porcupine rivers or their tributaries, shall enter at St.
Michaels in the manner prescribed by law.

Such vessel may then
(a) Proceed to her place of detination, or
(b) Transfer her cargo and passengers, if destined for a port or place in Alaska, to

another American vessel which may proceed according to laws governing the entry and
clearance of vessels in the same customs districts; or

(c) Transfer her cargo and passengers, if destined to a port or place in British
Columbia, to an American or British vessel, which shall clear from St. Michaels in the
manner provided by law.

(2.) Any vessel, in ballast or with passengers or cargo or both that are destined
from a foreign port or place to a port or place on the Yukon or Porcupine rivers or
their tributaries, shall enter at St. Michaels in the manner prescribed by law.

A British vessel may then
(a) Proceed to her place of destination ; or
(b) Transfer her cargo and passengers if destined to a port or place in Alaska, to

an American vessel which may proceed according to the laws governing the entry and
clearance of vessels in the same customs district ; or

(c) Transfer her cargo or passengers, if destined to a port or place in British
Onlumbia to an American or British vessel, which shall clear from St. Michaels in the
manner prescribed by law.

(3.) Article XXVI. of the treaty of 1871 between the United States and Great
Britain, so far as applicable to the Yukon, Porcupine and Stikine rivers, provides:

" The navigation of the rivers Yukon, Porcupine and Stikine ascending and
descending, from, to, and into the sea, shall for ever remain free and open for the purpose
of commerce to the subjects of Her Britannic Majesty and to the citizens of the United
States, subject to any laws and regulations of either country within its own territory,
not inconsistent with such privilege of free navigation."

This article creates a reserve privilege for a reciprocal equivalent and the general
favoured-nation clause of treaties, which covers only gratuitous favours, does not, there-
fore, apply. The navigation privileges, reserved by Article XXVI of the treaty to
American citizens and British subjects, are not extended to the citizens and vessels of
other nations.
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(C)-ARRIVAL OF VESSELS AT CIRCLE CITY FROM PORTS OR PLACES
IN BRITISH COLUMBIA.

(1.) A vessel decending the Yukon or Porcupine rivers from ports or places in
British Columbia, in ballast or with cargo or passengers, or both shall come to at Circle
City or such other port near the boundary between Alaska and British Columbia as may
hereafter be designated, and shall there report in compliance with the provisions of
sections 2772 of the Revised Statutes.

AMERICAN VESSELS.

(2.) A vessel entitled by law to engage in
the coasting trade of the United States,
may then

(a) proceed on her voyage in compliance
with the laws governing the coasting
trade of the United Staces; or

(b) enter at St. Michaels and there transfer
ber cargo and passengers, if destined to
a port or place in the United States, to
an American vessels, as transfers are
provided for in section A of these regu-
lations; or

(c) enter at St. Michaels and there transfer
ber cargo and passengers, if destined to
a foreign port or place, to an American
or foreign vessel.

BRITIsH vESSELS.

(3.) A British vessel may then enter at St.
Michaels and there transfer her cargo and
passengers, as such transfers and pro-
vided for in section A of these regula-
tions ;

(a) if destined to an American port to an
American vessel; or

(b) if destined to a foreign port,
American or foreign vessel.

to an

(D)-SUPERVISION OF VESSELS ASCENDING AND DESCENDING THE
YUKON, PORCUPINE OR THEIR TRIBUTARIES.

The collector of customs of Alaska, under the direction of the secretary of the
treasury, shall from time to time, station deputy collectors and inspectors of customs
at such places on the Yukon and Porcupine rivers and their tributaries, as he may
deem necessary, for the enforcement of the laws of the United States. Such officers
shall be compensated at rates to be fixed by the secretary of the treasury.

(E)-PRIVILEGES.

British vessels plying on the Yukon or Porcupine rivers, or their tributaries, be-
tween St. Michaels and ports and places in British Columbia, may touch at places in
Alaska on the Yukon or Porcupine Rivers or their tributaries, for the purchase of fuel
or supplies or in distress, under the supervision of an officer of the customs.

Said officer of the customs may, in his discretion, issue permits for the temporary
landing of passengers, but if any passenger fails to return to a vessel before ber depart-
ure, the vessel shall become liable to the penalty prescribed by law.

No merchandise shall be landed at such places under penalty of forfeiture provided
by R. S. 4347 as amended by the Act of February 15, 1893.

No liquor shall be sold or used on such vessel at such places, under the penalties
prescribed by R. S. 1955 and section 14 of chapter 53 of the laws of 1884.

Secretary
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R EGU LATIONSJOr carrying goods o] the United States and otherjoreign goods in transit
through Canada, from Juneau, Alaska, to Circle City or other points in Alaska,
United States, via Chilkoot or White Pass.

1. Imported goods in transit as above described, shall be reported at the Canadian
Custom House, Lake Tagish, and inay be entered for exportation there, on the usual
formI "Intransitu," in duplicate.

2. The goods may then be delivered without payment of duty, to be carried to
their destination out of Canada by any transportation company which has duly executed
a bond in the form prescribed by the Minister of Customs, for the due and faithful
delivery of all packages carried by such company and for the general compliance with
tie customs laws and regulations governing such traffic.

A duplicate of the entry intransitu, duly signed and marked with the proper cus-
toms stamp, shall accompany each shipment of goods conveyed by a bonded carrier, so
that the same may be returned to the custom-house at Fort Cudahy, with a certificate
thereon as to the landing of the goods in the United States or of their being passed
outwards from Canada within six months from date of entry.

3. If the goods when entered intransitu for exportation are not delivered to be for-
warded by a bonded carrier, as provided in the last preceding section, the duty thereon
is to be deposited with the customs officer at Lake Tagish, subject to a refund of same
at the port of Fort Cudahy when the goods pass outwards thereat, or upon the certifi-
cate of an officer of the -United States or of the Canadian customs that the said goods
have been landed in the United States within six months from the date of the intran-
situ entry.

The duty deposited in such cave is to be endorsed on the entry and certified by the
customs officer in charge, and the duplicate of the entry duly certified and marked with
the customs stamp, is to be delivered to the person making the deposit of duty.

4. A report of each entry intransitu shall be forwarded by mail without delay, by
the customs officer at the sending port to the collector of customs at Fort Cudahy,
for the collection of duties on the goods entered intransitu and not duly exported.

5. The articles usually classed as travellers' baggage are to be passed free, without
entry.

OTTAWA, 17th December, 1897.

N.B.-The foregoing regulation applies to goods intransitu via Chilkoot and White
Pass, as above, and also via Stikine River and Dalton Trail, when duly reported in-
wards at the Canadian frontier port on the Stikine or on the Dalton Trail or on the
Chilkoot or White Pass.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 18th February, 1898.

The undersigned, Minister of Customs, has the honour to submit for the consider-
ation of His Excellency the Governor General in Council, the annexed letter from the
Alaska Exploration Company, dated 17th February, 1898, for free entry of Canadian
goods carried in American bottoms from San Francisco to the Yukon District via St.
Michaels and the Yukon River.

WM. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.
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OTTAWA, February lTth, 1898.
To the Honourable WILLIAM PATERSON,

Minister of Customs,
Dominion of Canada.

HONoURED SIR,-In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of the
Alaska Exploration Company incorporated under the laws of the state of California,
United States of America, August the 11th, 1897, I was directed to proceed to the
Dominion of Canada to purchase a complete stock of merchandise, including provisions,
wearing apparel, hardware, and other articles, the same to be shipped in bond by rail to
San Francisco, California, thence in American bonded vessels to points in the North-
west Territories, Dominion of Canada. I proceeded to carry out these instructions and
so far have made contracts to about the amount of $150,000 and the probable extent of
my purchases at this time would be in the neighbourhood of $400,000. I have within
the past few days learned that by the interpretation of the Canadian coasting laws such
goods shipped in the manner as described above would be liable to the payment of
Canadian duties when landed. Realizing that unless your department and the govern-
ment would take into consideration the condition of affairs, the congestion of transport-
ation facilities and other circumstances which make it impossible at this late day to
arrange any other mode of transportation or the securing of any British vessels to sail
from British ports, the impossibility of at this time building any craft to ply the waters
of the Yukon River under the British flag, that some provision could possibly be made
for this season at least, so that I could proceed to make the balance of my purchases
and arrange for the shipment of the same into the North-west Territories in time for
the coming season. Under any and all circumstances there is no question but that
there will be a great scarcity of food supplies during the coming winter, and that each
and every transportation company, although taxed to its utmost carrying capacity, will
be unable to transport the necessary amount of food stuffs and supplies. Therefore, I
would respeetfully ask you to present this question to your very honourable colleagues
for the purpose of arriving at a conclusion as to whether they would insist that Canadian
productions and manufactures carried by our company on the route contemplated would
be compelled to pay duties, and which would mean that we should be compelled to
cancel all purchases made and necessitate the purchase of merchandise in the United
States in lieu thereof. This matter is not presented to you in any way as a threat or
menace, as my instructions were to buy everything in this country that was produced
or manufactured here, provided there was not too great a difference in the cost, now if
Canadian duty was to be added to the cost of Canadian productions it would simply be
against any business policy to pay the difference in cost as against American manufac-
tured goods, and which would only have to pay the same duty as under the present law,
strictly interpreted, would require of Canadian goods. I would state that my purchases
have not been confined to the cities in Canada alone, and append herewith a list of
those people with whom I have already made arrangements :-

Lockerby Bros., Gault Bros. & Co., McIntyre Sons & Co., Dominion Cotton Mills
Co., Dominion Woollen Mills Co., Laing Packing and Provision Co., William Clark,
J. W. Windsor, Thomas Davidson Manufacturing Co., Skelton Bros. Manufacturing Co.,
E. A. Small & Co., H. A. Nelson, Sons & Co., Lyman & Co., Evans, Sons & Co.,
Montreal.

Baldwin Condensed Milk Co., Baldwin's Mills, Ontario.
Truro Condensed Milk Co., Truro, N.S.
John Palmer, Fredericton, N.B.
J. W. Graham, Belleville, Ontario.
Sanford Manufacturing Co., Hamilton, Ontario.
Ever Ready Dress Stay Co., Windsor, Ontario.
W. Boulter & Sons, Picton, Ontario.
J. B. Laliberte, Quebec, Quebec.
I might go on giving the names of those with whom I would make business

arrangements with, but as above stated, name only the few with whom I have already
done business, showing the diversity of lines of Canadian goods which are required, and
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I respectfully ask that you give the matter kind consideration so that I may be able to
act as your honourable ministry may decide. In conclusion will say that our company
has a cash paid up capital of one million dollars ($1,000,000), all purchases being paid
for at the time of delivery, and that the principal stock in the corporation is held by
the Exploration Company of London, and of which the Rothschilds are the principal
shareholders.

With profound respects,
I am, your very obedient servant,

LOUIS A. PHILLIPS,
for the Alaska Exploration Company.

EXTRACT from a Report of the Comnittee of the Honourable the Privy Council approved
by His Excellency on the lst ilarch, 1898.

CUSTOMS.

That under regulations to be prescribed by the Minister of Customs, goods pur-
chased in Canada (duty paid or the produce of Canada) he admitted free of duty, into
the Yukon Provisional District, when carried by water via St. Michaels and the Yukon
river f rom a port in Canada or the United States, notwithstanding that the transpor-
tation by water is partly or wholly by a foreign vessel ; provided, however, that the
Department of Customs be satisfied as to the identity of the goods.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

(Memorandum.)
CusToMs DEPARTMENT, CANADA,

OTTAWA, 21st February, 1898.

TEMPORARY regulations re entry of Canadian goods into Yukon District during season of
1898, when carried in Foreign Vessels via St. Michaels.

1. Referring to Memorandum No, 966b, dated the 9th February, 1898, re entry of
goods into Yukon District and Stikine, collectors of customs in the Yukon Provisional
District are hereby instructed that goods purchased in Canada (duty paid or the
produce of Canada) may be admitted free of duty into the said district during the year
1898, unless otherwise ordered, when carried by St. Michaels and the Yukon river, from
a port of Canada or of the United States, notwithstanding that the transportation by
water is partly or wbolly by a foreign vessel, subject, however, to the following regula-
tions prescribed by the Minister of Customs:-

(a) A manifest or invoice, duly certified, and containing a particular description
of the merchandise by package, marks, nunbers and contents shall be presented to the
customs officer at the Canadian port of entry in the Yukon District.

(b) When the goods are shipped from a port in British Columbia, the certificate
of a Canadian customs officer may be endorsed on the manifest or invoice, to the effect
that the goods described have been shipped duty free from a port in British Columbia
(the same as in section 5a of memo. No. 996b.)

(c) When goods purchased in Canada as aforesaid are forwarded through the
United States, it is directed that the manifest or invoice shall have thereon a certificate
of the Canadian exporter or his agent attested before a custons oticer in Canada as
near as may be in the form and to the effect set forth hereafter in schedule Form lc.

(d) The identity of the goods shall be established to the satisfaction of the customs
officer at a port of entry in the Yukon District and shall be attested by the oath of the
importer or his agent.
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2. Although one invoice only is required for Canadian customs purposes, it will be
advisable for parties purchasing goods in Canada to provide themselves with invoices in
duplicate duly certified so as to avoid trouble and delay in passing entries, in case of
lost or strav invoices.

3. Customs officers in the Yukon District are required to examine the marks and
numbers of the packages landed, comparing the same carefully with the invoices and
Opening such packages as may be necessary for examination.

4. The foregoing regulations are temporary, apylying only to the entry of Canadian
goods via St. Michaels and the Yukon River, and ceasing to apply to any such Canadian
goods carried in foreign bottoms after the season of 1898.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

Forn 1 C.

Certificate (from Canadian exporter or his agent) for the Yukon trade via St.
Michael, during 1898.

I, ........................ do solemnly declare and certify the foregoing to be
the true and correct invoice of goods, duty paid or the produce of Canada, with the
,marks and numbers of the packages in which shipped per . .......................
to..................and as sold by the said.........................on account
of. .................

The said invoice being dated at ...................... .... and amounting
to ..... ........................ dollars.

Sworn to at ............ (Signature)......................

th is . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . *
day of.....,...... 1898.
Before me,

Customs Officer. (Customs Stamp)

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,

To His Excellency, OTTAWA, 27th January, 189b.

The Governor General in Council.

Upon the reference f rom council of a copy of the despatch from Sir Julian Paunce-
fote to Your Excellency, asking to be supplied with copies in duplicate of the laws and
regulations controlling the navigation of the rivers Yukon, Porcupine, and Stikine, for
presentation to the United States Secretary of State, the undersigned begs to recommend
that this application be transferred to the Department of Customs.

Respectfully submitted,

CLIFFORD SIFTON,
Minister of the Interior.
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(Sir Julian Pauncefote to Lord Aberdeen.)

BRITIsH EMBASSY,
WASHINGTON, 13th January, 1898.

His Excellency,
The Earl of Aberdeen.

My LORD,-I have the honour to inform Your Excellency that I have been
requested by the United States Secretary of State to furnish him with a copy of the
laws and regulations controlling the navigation of the rivers Yukon, Porcupine and
Stikine in British North America.

In order to enable me to comply with this request and for convenience of reference
in this Embassy, I should be obliged if J miglit be supplied with copies in duplicate of
the above named laws and regulations.

I have, &c.,

JULIAN PAUNCEFOTE.

To His Excellency,
The Governor General in Council.

The undersigned, Minister of Customs, having had under consideration Privy
Council Reference No. 645 K., being copy of a despatch from Her Majesty's Ambassador
at Washington to His Excellency, dated the l3th January, 1898, requesting to be
furnished with copies of the laws and regulations controlling the navigation of the
rivers Yukon, Porcupine and Stikine in British North America, for reference and for
preseitation to the United States Secretary of State,-has the honour to submit the
following docum3nts, viz.:-

Two copies of regulations as to foreign trading vessels, approved by Order in
Council 25th July, 1888, together with coasting trade-general regulations, approved
by Order in Council, 25th July, 1888.

Two copies of " The Customs Act " (of Canada).
He respectfully recommends that His Excellency be moved to transmit the above

mentioned regulations and Acts to Her Majesty's Ambassador at Washington, with the
statement that trading vessels of the United States may navigate the waters of the
Yukon, Porcupine and Stikine rivers in Canadian territory on compliance with the
said regulations re foreign trading vessels and under the provisions of said Customs
Act, which are at present in force, subject, however, to such amendments of the said
Act and regulations hereafter, from time to time, as may be deemed necessary, and
that particular attention be directed to the provisions of sections 1, 2, 3 and 7 of the
regulations re foreign, trading vessels.

WM. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.

Customs Department,
Ottawa, 18th February, 1898.
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GOVERNMENT HOUsE, OTTAWA,
WEDNESDAY, 10th day of November, 1886.

PRESENT:

HIS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR GENERAL IN COUNCIL.

On the recommendation of the Minister of Custons and under the authority of the
3rd sub-section of the 230th section of the Act of Parliament of Canada, 46 Victoria,
chapter 12, known and cited as " The Customs Act, 1883, "-

His Excellency in Council has been pleased to order and it is hereby ordered, that
all foreign vessels trading on the coast and entering the harbours of Canada fron sea or
inland waters, shall be, and they are hereby governed by the following rules

1. Foreign vess;els may transport cargo and passengers from a foreign port and land
the same at two or more Canadian ports, clearing froi each in succession until all of
said cargo and passengers are landed.

2. Foreign vessels may take cargo and passengers from two o more Canadian
ports and transport the same to a foreign port, clearing from each in succession, but
taking final clearance for such foreign port at the last Canadian port which they enter
on such voyage.

3. Foreign vessels shall not take freight or passengers at one Canadian port and
land the same at another Canadian port, and the master or owner of any vpssel found
to have violated this rule shall be subject to a penalty of $400 for each such offence
and the vessel may be detained until the same is paid.

4. Foreign vessels bringing cargo or passengers from a foreign port may, after land-
ing the sane, be permitted to clear light to another Canadian port for the purpose of
loading cargo for a foreign port, and may clear from port to port to complete such cargo,
taking final clearance as above.

5. Foreign vessels may tow other vessels or things from a foreign port to a Cana-
dian port, but if they drop or part from any such vessel or thing in Canadian waters,
they shall not again take such vessel or thing in tow for the purpose of moving the
same further in Canadian waters.

6. Foreign vessels may tow other vessels or things from a Canadian port to a
foreign port, but h Lving parted from such vessels or things, or any of them in Canadian
waters, they cannAt again take such vessels or things in tow to move them further in
Canadian waters; but this and the preceding rile are not to apply to an accidental
parting of such vessel by breaking hawser or other temporary damages.

7. Foreign vessels shall be entitled to the forezoing privileges only on condition of
strict compliance with the pro, isions of the " Customs Act, 1883, " respecting reporting
inwards and outwards on entering and leaving Canadian ports by the masters of such
vessels.

8. Where vessels bring cargo or passengers f rom a foreign port consigned to more
than one Canadian port, the masters of such vessels must make a full report of the
whole contents at the first port of entry and distinguish therein the items to be there
landed and the ports at which ail other items are to be landed. Such report must be
made in duplicate, with an additional copy for each succeeding port at which there are
goods to be landed; and the collector or proper officer of customs shall mark each item
in such report with the entry numbered, if entered, and in case of any item landed and
placed in sufferance warehouse without entry, it shall be marked with the letter " L " in
said report: duplicate copies to be filed at said first port of entry, and the others to be
carried with the vessel, and one to be filed at each succeeding port of entry.

9. As required' by Section 234 of the Act 46 Vict., chap. 12 before cited, the fee
of 50 cents for each vessel not over 50 tons and $1.00 if over 50 tons shall be paid by
each such vessel on reporting iriwards, and the same on obtaining clearance outwards,
at each port she enters above the port of Montreal.

10. For any violation of the requirements of these regulations the master or owner
of any such vessel shall be subject to a fine of $400, or such other fine or penalty pro-
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vided by the Act 46 Vic., chap. 12, before cited, as may be applicable to the case, and
the vessel may be detained until such fine or penalty is paid.

11. Vessels fitted for and engaged in the deep sea fisheries are not included in these
regulations.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk, Privy Council.

PRIVY CoUNCIL, CANADA.

Sir J. Pauncefote to Lord Aberdeen.

His Excellency the Earl of Aberdeen.

MY LORD,-With reference to my despatch No. 8 of the 20th ult., with which I
transmitted to Your Excellency a copy of a note from the United States Secretary of
State, asking for information as to the Canadian regulations affecting American stern-
wheel steamers navigating the waters of the Yukon River within Canadian territory, I
have the honour to state that I am in receipt of a further note from Mr. Sherman re-
calling my attention to his previous inquiries, and asking in addition to be informed
whether the laws and regulations of the Dominion concerning the transportation of
American stern-wheeled steamers built in sections and transported by way of the
Stikine River to Lake Teslin will be similar to those relating to vessels transported in
sections by the Dyea route.

Mr. Sherman observes that it is understood by the Treasury Department that
American vessels are not allowed to engage in the coasting trade between Canadian
ports in British Columbia.

In view of the urgency of the matter, he begs that he may be favoured with an
early reply, and I have informed him that I would recommend the subject to Your
Excellency's immediate consideration.

I have, &c.,

JULIAN PAUNCEFOTE.

To His Excellency
The Governor General in Council.

The undersigned, Minister of Customs, having had under consideration Privy
Council Reference No. 695K, being copy of a despatch, No. 18, from the British Am-
bassador at Washington to Your Excellency, in relation to an inquiry made by the
United States Secretary of State as to whether the laws and regulations of the Domin-
ion concerning the transportation of American stern-wheel steamers built in sections
and transported by way of the Stikine River to Lake Teslin will be similar to those
relating to vessels transported in sections by the Dyea route, has the honour to report
that American stern-wheel steamers built in sections and transported by way of the
Stikine River to Lake Teslin will be dealt with in the sane manner and under the
saine regulations as in the case of similar vessels transported in sections by the Dyca
route.

The undersigned would respectfully recommend that a copy of this report, if
approved, be forwarded to the British Ambassador at Washington, for the information
of the Secretary of State of the United States.

WM. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.

Customs Department,
Ottawa, 18th February, 1898.

A. 1899
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CUSTOMS, CANADA,
VICTORIA, B.C., February 14th, 1898.

JOHN MCDOUGALD, Esq.,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of two telegrams, dated the
Ilth instant, which read as follows:-

" United States troops, not under arms, destined for Alaska, accompanying relief
expedition, are permitted to pass through Canadian territory. Their arms and muni-
tions of war may also be carried through Canadian territory as baggage, free of duty,.
without entry. Please instruct officers at the frontier accordingly."

"Referring to telegram of this date with reference to United States troops, not
under arms, passing through Canadian territory to Alaska, add to instructions contained
therein, that such United States troops shall be in civilian dress while passing through
Canadian territory."

Officers of customs on frontier instructed accordingly.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. R. MILNE,
Collector.

CUSTOMS DEPARTMENT, CANADA,
VICTORIA, B.C., 16th February, 1898.

JoHN MCDoUGALD, Esq.,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

Sir,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter dated 2nd instant.,
confirming your telegram of that date which reads as follows :-

" Consult with Major Perry and instruct officers to pass duty free supplies and out-
fit of Alaska relief expedition upon declaration by official in charge that supplies and
outfit are bona fde part of relief expedition despatched by United States Government
f rom Portland early this month ; instruct officers however that if any United States troops
under arms accompany the expedition, permission must not be given for such troops to
enter Canada.

" Proposed sending expedition supplies partly by Dalton trail and partly by White
or Chilkoot pass. Appoint police officer in charge on Dalton trail as customs officer
with full instructions under your survey. Am writing."

To which I replied as follows :-
" Copy your telegram 2nd instant sent to Major Perry overtook him at Nanaimo

en route to Skagway. Recommend that Comptroller White name police officer for
customs on Dalton trail."

I have the honour to be, &c.,
A. R. MILNE,

Collector.

CUsToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, Ist March, 1898.

D. W. DAvis, Esq.,
Collector of Customs,

Fort Cudahy, N.W.T.

Re Ca7adian goods entering the Yiukon via Porcupine River.

SIR,-You are hereby instructed to pass free of duty all Canadian goods (the pro-
duce of Canada or duty paid) arriving at Fort Cudahy or Dawson via the Porcupine
River, if their identity is attested to by the owners or their agents to your satisfaction.
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No special regulations have been formulated with respect to goods arriving in the
Yukon District via Porcupine River, as the conditions attending transportation on this
route are not as yet well known here. It is probable, however, that the United States
officers at Circle City will give parties coming from the Porcupine River a clearance for
Dawson, showing the direction from which they arrive. You might request the officer
at Circle City to mark the clearance in this way, for your information. If there is a
Canadian customs officer at Rampart House, parties might furnish him with a list of
their goods, which he could examine and certify as having passed downwards in transit
to Dawson.

I have the hononr to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Comissioner.

WASHINGTON, 15th February, 1898.
His Excellency,

The Earl of A.berdeen, P.C., &c., &c., &c.,

My LoRD,-In reply to Your Excellency's telegram of the 2nd instant with reference
to my telegram of the 9th inst., as to the regulations issued in the United States on the
transit trade and navigation of the Yukon and Porcupine rivers, and to the possibility
of including the Stikine River in such regulations, I have now the honour to transmit a
copy of a communication from the United States Secretary of State in reply to the
inquiries made by Your Excellency and inclosing a series of treasury regulations.

I have, &c.,
JULIAN PAUNCEFOTE.

DEPARTMENT OF STATE,
WASHINGTON, 14th February, 1898.

YOUR EXCELLENCY,-

In the note which you addressed me on the 9th inst. you (1) ask for an official
text of the Regulations respecting the passage of Canadian goods through Alaskan
territory recently issued by the secretary of the treasury; (2) for the United States
regulations concerning the navigation of the Yukon and Porcupine rivers; (3) suggest
that the use of the words " British Columbia " does not cover precisely the territory
under consideration; (4) request that regulations concerning the Stikine be definitely
decided as soon as possible.

As I had the honour to inform you on Saturday last, I immediately upon receipt
of your note referred a copy of it to the secretary of the treasury, who, in compliance
with your requests (1) and (2) has been pleased to furnish a copy of the regulations
governing the entry and transportation of merchandise destined for the Klondike
region and North-west Territory of British Columbia, via the United States subports of
Juneau, Dyea and Skagway or other custom's ports in Alaska, and a copy of the regula-
tions concerning the navigation of the Yukon and the Porcupine rivers and their
tributaries. These regulations you will find enclosed herewith. You will see that the
apparent error to which you referred in the use of the words " British Columbia " in
the latter regulations, has been corrected by the addition of the words "or North-west
Territory."

Touching your request that regulations concerning theStikine be definitely decided
as soon as possible, the secretary of the treasury advises me that while his department
concurs in the view of the Dominion Government as to the desirability of the prompt
adoption of regulatiors concerning the Stikine River, whether it prove to be a fact that
the "larger traffic " be by that route or by other routes, it has been necessarily delayed
in the preparation of such regulations by several considerations; first, the general sub-
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ject of the regulation of traffic through Alaska is now under consideration by the
Congress of the United States, and his department is reluctant to issue further regula-
tions which may be materially modified by legislation;

Second, his department on 31st January informed me that as it was engaged in the
preparation of regulations for the free navigation of the Yukon, Porcupine and Stikine
rivers as far as they are in American territory, it is desired to obtain as soon as practic-
able, information as to the regulations which the Canadian Government proposes for
the regulation of those rivers in so far as they are in Canadian territory.

This desire I had the honour to communicate toyou on the 5th inst. The Treasury
Department deems the information asked for important in the preparation of regulations
governing the navigation of the Stikine River.

JOHN SHERMAN.

To His Excellency, the Governor General in Council.

The undersigned, Minister of Customs, having had under consideration P. O.
Reference, No. 705k, being copy of a despatch from Sir Julian Pauncefote, dated at
Washington, 15th February, 1898, and transmitting a copy of a communication from
the United States Secretary of State in reply to inquiries by Your Excellency, together
with a series of treasury regulations, has the honour to recommend that Your Excellency
be moved to acknowledge the receipt of the said despatch, together with the treasury
regulations inclosed, and to inform Her Majesty's Ambassador at Washington, that a
copy of the regulations under which the Yukon, Porcupine and Stikine rivers, so far
as they are in Canadian territory, may be navigated, was transmitted to him on the
3rd March, 1898.

The said Minister further respectfully submits that Her Majesty's Ambassadorîat
Washington, be also requested to communicate the following representations to the
government of the United States for their attention at the earliest opportunity:-

(1.) That Mtajory Perry telegraphs from Union, British Columbia, on 2nd March,
1898, to the effect that the new bonding regulations of the United States have not
been put in force at Dyea and Skagway, on the ground that there is no accommodation
for the United States customs inspector, and that two such inspectors are required
for the Canadian customs stations on Chilkoot Pass and White Pass, while only one
inspector has been authorized to be employed.

(2.) That the Canadian Government will provide office accommodation for the
customs inspector of the United States at the Canadian customs stations on Chilkoot
Pass and White Pass.

WM. PATERSON,
Customs Department, Minister of Customs.

Ottawa, 5th March, 1898.

Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Aberdeen.
9th March, 1898.

Full information as to transportation, customs and navigation regulations adopted
by your government for Alaska is desired. Please send this as soon as possible.

It is presumed that if equitable regulations as to transhipment are conceded, your
Ministers are prepared to grant any reasonable facilities desired by the United States
government.

CHAMBERLAIN.
Privy Council. Referred to customs.

JOHN J. MCGEE,
lth March, 1898.
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To His Excellency the Governor General in Council.

The undersigned Minister of Customs, having had under consideration P. C. Refer-
ence 765k, being a despatch from the Right Hon. Joseph Chamberlain to Your
Excellency, asking for full information as to transportation, customs and navigation
regulations adopted by the Canadian Government, for Alaska, has the honour to report
that the regulations contained in the following documents herewith submitted have
been adopted, and apply to transportation, customs and navigation in Alaska and
Canada, as therein set forth, viz.:-

(1.) Coasting regulations together with regulations respecting foreign trading vessels,
approved by Order in Council of 25th July, 1888.

(2.) Memo. No. 966b, issued by the Customs Department of Canada, 9th February,
1898, respecting entry of goods into the Yukon district and Stikine, and containing
also regulations for carrying goods of the United States and other foreign goods in
transit through Canada, from Juneau, Alaska, to Circle City or other points in Alaska,
United States, via Chilkoot or White Pass.

(3.) Memorandum issued by the Customs Department on the 21st February, 1898,
re temporary regulations, re entry of Canadian goods into Yukon District during season
of 1898, when carried in foreign vessels.via St. Michaels.

(4.) Customs Act.
(5.) Customs Tarif.
The undersigned further reports that copies of the regulations as to foreign

trading vessels were transmitted by Your Excellency on the 3rd instant, to Her
Majesty's Ambassador at Washington, with the statement that trading vessels of the
United States may navigate the waters of the Yukon, Porcupine and Stikine rivers in
Canadian territory, on compliance with the said regulations re foreign trading vessels
and under the provisions of the Customs Act, which are at present in force, subject,
however, to such amendments of said Act and regulations hereafter, from time to time,
as may be deemed necessary, and that particular attention be directed to sections 1, 2,
3 and 7 of the regulations re foreign trading vessels.

He respectfully recommends that a copy of this report, if approved, together with
the documents herewith submitted, be transmitted to the Right Hon. the Secretary of
State for the Colonies, for the information of Her Majesty's Government.

WM. PATERSON,
Customs Department, Ottawa, Minister of Customs.

12th March, 1898.

(Sir Julian Paunce/ote to Lord Aberdeen.)

WASHINGTON, 26th February, 1898.
Governor General,

&c., &c., &c.

My LoR,-I have the honour to inclose herewith, copies of an act recently passed
by Congress and approved by the President establishing the conditions under which the
Alaskan coasting, trade and passenger traffic may be engaged in by foreign vessels
and authorizing the Secretary of the Treasury to issue the regulations inclosed in my
despatch, number 21, of the 15th instant.

I have also the honour to inform Your Excellency that a report of the discussion on
the bill and of Mr. Frye's statement that the bill related entirely to Alaskan waters
together with his explanation of the object and effect of the various clauses will be
found in the Congressional Record of Thursday, 10th February.

I have, &c.,
JULIAN PAUNCEFOTE.
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(Memorandum.)
HOUSE OF COMMONS, OTTAWA, 17th March, 1898.

The Hion. Minister of Customs,
Ottawa,

SlR,-On looking over the regulations issued by the Treasury Department at
Washington, on February 2nd, 1898, concerning the navigation of the Yukon and the
Porcupine rivers and their tributaries, I do not find definite regulations prescribed in
regard to traffic down the Porcupine River from Canadian territory and thence up the
Yukon via Fort Yukon and Circle City to Fort Cudahy, and vice versa.

This traffic will be principally carried on in flat open boats, floating down stream
or propelled by oars, or hauled up stream along shore.

The route of this traffic is roughly indicated on the sketch in the margin, the dist-
ance from the Canadian frontier on the Porcupine River to the Canadian frontier on
the Yukon River via Fort Yukon, being probably fromu 200 to 300 miles.

The Hudson Bay Company have a post at Rampart House in Canadian territory
east of the 141st meridian, which would be a suitable place where parties coming down
and going up the Porcupine could report and obtain customs clearance.

I will be obliged if you will take this matter up and ascertain the conditions which
the Treasury Department at Washington required to be complied with in carrying on
the traffic before mentioned between Canadian territory on the Porcupine River and
Canadian territory on the Yukon River via the said rivers by way of Fort Yukon, in
river steamers or open boats.

An early answer is urgently requested.

Yours respectfully,

FRANK OLIVER.
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RETULJRN
(86)

TO AN ORDER OP THE HOUSE OF COMMONS, dated the 19th April, 1899, for copies
of all correspondence from the 1st July, 1896, to the present date,
between the Canadian government and the Imperial authorities, and
between the Canadian governîment and the office of the Righ Commis.
sioner for Catiada, in London, relating to the cattle embargo.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

DEPARTMENT oF AGRICULTURr,
OTrAwA, 5th May, 1899.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, under date the 19th April, 1899,
asking that the proper officer do lay before the House, copies of all correspondence from
the 1st July, 1896, to the present date, between the Canadian government and the
IIperial authorities, and between the Canadian government and the office of the High
Commissioner for Canada, in London, relating to the cattle embargo, in so far as per-
tains to this department.-N:l.

A. 1899
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RETRURN
[87]

COPY of ORDER IN CoUNcIL of the 7th October, 1898, providing for appoint-
ment of Mr. William Ogilvie as a Commissioner, under the provisions of
Chapter 114, R S C, to investigate the charges and complaints referred
to in such Order in Council ; copy of the Commission issued under the
Great Seal of Canada, appointing Mr. Ogilvie such Commissioner; copy
of his Report of the 27th April, 1899, and copies of the three Public
Notices referred to in such Report and attached thereto.

JXTRACT from a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Privy ouncil, approved
by Ris Excellency on the 7th October, 1898.

On a report, dated 7th October, 1898, from the Minister of the Interior, stating
that he has had inder consideration a communication dated at Dawson, Yukon·
Territory, 25th August, 1898, addressed to the Right Honourable Sir Wilfrid
jauirier, Premier of Canada, signed by G. T. C. Armstrong, as Chairman, Percy
cDougall, Secretary, and a number of other persons professing to have been duly

aPPointed a Minerb' Committee at a mass meeting of the miners of the Yukon Ter-r tory, in which communication it is alleged that many of the government officials
ave forfeited their claim to the people's confidence and respect by theirconductand

notion in certain matters.
The minister observes that the committee allege that the gold commissioner's

office is practically closed-and had been for considerable time-to the miners who
ad not the means and desire to bribe the clerks in order to obtain knowledge of th

records which o-ght to be public. It is further charged that wholesale information
With regard to unrecorded ground is conveyed to certain individuals outside the
.?ce Who obtain mon to stake and record the ground in consideration of an interest
inl the same.

The minister further states that it is charged that dissatisfaction has arisen with
r5ePect to docisions in claim contests, particularly owing to the Crown prosecutor

hi While retained as advocate by one of the contestants, was giving legal advice to
'.pe gold commissioner. The Dominion lands agent is openly charged with seriousreaches Of trust and maltasance in office, and some of the officiais connected witht
the recorder's office are alleged tu be incompetent.

. The minister further submits that it is stated in the communication that hard-
ehP have been caused to many of the claim owners owing to the want of experi-

eOe 0f the mining inspectors.
.The committee represont, that the crown timber agent has granted such con-

'esions and laid down such stringent regulations that only a fow parties have the
Jirivilege of supplying cordwood this coming winter. On account of this and other
r Oasons set forth in the communication, a copy of which is hereto attached, the

m'lmittee ask for the appointment of a commission of enquiry.

in The minister represents that in his opinion it is highly important that a full
fVstigation should be made into the charges and complaints set forth in the said
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communication, and into any others that may be preferred. The minister, therefore,
recommends that under the authority of Chapter 114 of the Revised Stututes of
Canada, entitled "An Act respecting Enquiries concerning Public Matters," a
commission do issue appointing William Ogilvie, e-quire, the commissioner of 'he
Yukon Territory, a commissioner under the said Act to inquire into the charges
and complaints set forth in the said communication, ani into~ any other charges or
complaints that any person in the Yukon Territory may desire to prefer against the
officiais of the government of Cana<Ia in that territory, and to report thoreon, and
upon all other matters incidental thereto.

The committee of the Privy Council submit the above recommendationi for Your
Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McG-EE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

DAWSON, Y.T., CANADA,
August 25th, 1898.

To the Right Honourable SIR WILFRID LAURIER, M.P.,
Premier of Canada.

Sir,-We, the Miners' Committee, duly appointed at a mais meeting of the
miners of the Yukon Territory, bog leave to submit to your notice the following
statement, feeling assured that tho goverànient of which you are the head, has
only te know of the state of things here, apijertaining to the administration of the
laws and mining regulations, to take immediate steps for their remedy.

Many of the governmeint officiais have forfeited their claims to the people's
confidence and respect by their conduct and action in certain matbers, thus leading
to strained relations which ought not to exist where the pOp!O have every desire to
be loyal and law abiding.

The gold commissioner's office is practically clo-ed-and bas been for a con-
siderable time--to the miner who bas not the means or desire to bribe the clerks in
order to obtain knowledge of the records whiclh ought to be public. It is an undis-
puted fact that those with money obtain easy access, concessions and valuable
information. The gold commissioner allowed the clerks to work overtime for those
who were willing to pay them for so doing. This naturally led to many evils which
have developed into a scandal, and the system is a great detriment to the camp.
Wholesale information with regard to unrecorded ground is conveyed to certain
individuals outside the office who obtain men to stake and record the ground in con
sideration of an interest in the same, thereby defrauding the miner wio cannot
obtain correct information by legitimate meanis.

AIso it is felt to be unfair that those conneeted with the administration, who
have opportunities of acquiring special knowledge, should be allowed to compete
with the miner in securing desirable ground.

With respect to decisions in claim contests, much dissatisfaction has arisen;
this particularly owing te the fact that the Crown prosecutor, being the only person
te whom the gold commissioner could look for legal advice, permitted himself at
the same time to be retained as advocate by onle of the contestants.

The same gentleman, in his capacity as Dominion lands agent, is openly
eharged with serious breaches of trust and Malfeasance in office in that favouritism
has been shown to persons by whom he had beon retained as attorney, in the letting
of valuable franchises and leatsing of government lands.

Injustice has been and is done, and grent dissatisfaction thereby occasioned,
owing te the incompetency of some of the officiais connected with the recorder's
office.

The mining inspectora' want of exp'erience and conversance with the most
ordinary matters of mining, cause hardships to many of the claim.owners.

2
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The crown timber agent has granted buch extraordinary concessions and laid
down such stringent regulations that only a few parties have the privilege of sup-
plying the town with cordwood this coming winter.

Grave and serions consequences must result in a country where cordwood is a
necessary of life.

The feeling engendered in the country is widesproad, deep and bitter; and until
the officials are either publicly exonerated or removed, a better feeling cannot exist.
The welbeing and prosperity of the camp suffers in consequence.

Therefore, we respcctfully petition for the appointment of a commission of
enquiry, having power to subpei 1a and protect its witnesses, many of whom have
been forced by. the attitude of the officiais into becoming technical bribe-givers, and
Who would not come forward fearing their interests might suffer.

We do so only after long aud seriofts consideration, impelled by the conviction
that such is our plain duty.

We have the honour to be, sir, your obedient servants,
GEORG E T. C. AR MSTRONG, Chairman,

Ireland.
PERCY McDOUGALL, Secretary.

England.
J. KNIGHT SMITH,

West Australia.
DONALD MAcGREGOR,

Canada.
C. J. HICKEY,

Ireland.
WM. GALPIN,

England.
1). G. FRASER,

U. S. of America.
GARRON READ,

New South Wales.
CHARLES WORDEN,

U. S. of America.
FRANK J. DUNLEAVY,

Australia.
E. LEROY PELLETIER,

Canada.
O. N. McCUEN,

U. S. of Americ.
JOHN CAMERON,

British Columbia.
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(Aberdeen.)
CANADA.

VICTORIA, by the Grace of God, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and treland,
Queen, Defender of the Faith, etc., etc., etc.

To WILLIAM OGILviE, Esquire, of Dawson City, in the Yukon Territory, in our
Dominion of Canada, and to all to whom these presents shall comue or whom the
same may in any wise concern,

GREETING.

Whereas it appears from a report from our Minister of the Interior of Canada
that ho has had under consideration a communication dated at Dawson, Yukon Ter-
ritory, 25th August, 1898, addressed to the Right Honourable Sir Wilfrid Laurier,
Premier of Canada, signed by G. T. C. Armstrong, as Chairman, Percy Macdougall,
becretary, and a number of other persons professing to have been duly appointed a
miners' committee at a mass meetingof the miners of the Yukon Territory, in which
communication it is alleged that many of the government officials have forfeited
their claim to the people's confidence and respect by their conduct and action in
eortain matters. Our said minister further observes that the committee alleges
that the gold commissioner's office is practically closed, and bad been for a consider-
able time to the miners who bad not the means and desire to bribe the clerks in
order to obtain knowledge of the record which ought to be public. It is further
charged that wholesale information with regard to unrecorded ground is convoyed
to certain individuals outside the office who obtain men to stake and record the
ground in consideration of an interest in the same. Our minister further states that
it is charged that di-satisfaction bas arisen with respect to decisions in claim con-
tests, particularly owing to the Crown prosecutor, who, while retained as advocate
by one of the contestants, was giving legal advice to the gold commissioner. The
Dominion lands agent is openly charged with serious breaches of trust and mal-
feasance in office and some of the officials connected with the recorder's office are
alleged to be incompetent. Our said minister further submits that it is stated in
the communication 'that hardships have been caused to many of the claim owners
owing to the want of ex perience of the mining inspectors.

The committee further represent that the Crown timber agent has granted
such concessions and laid down such stringent regulations that only a few parties
have the privilege ofsupplying cordwood this coming winter.

On account of this and other reasons set forth in the communication referred
to-a copy of which is hereto attached-the committee ask for the appointment of
a commission of inquiry.

And whereas we deem it expedient that inquiry under oath should bo riade
with respect to the truth or untruth of the foregoing charges, statemernts and con-
plaints.

Now know ye, that we, by and with the advice of our Privy Counicil for Canada,
do by these presents nominate, constitute and appoint you, the maid William Ogilvie,
of Dawson, Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, to be our commissioner for the
purposes of such investigation and inquiry into the matters and things hereinbefore
mentioned and set out.

And we do horeby under the authority of the Revised Statutes of Canada, chap-
ter 114, intituled "An Act respecting inquirie3 concerning public matters," confer
upon you our said commissioner the power of summoning before you any witnesses
and of requiring them to give evidence on oath, orally or in writing, or on solemn
affirmation, if they are persons entitled to affirm in civil matters, and to produce
such documents auj things as you our said commissioner shall deem requisite to the



Ogilvie Commission of Inquiry.

full investigation of the matters into which you are hereby appointed to examine,
inquire and investigate.

To have, hold, exorcise and enjoy the isaid office, place and trust unto you the
said William Ogilvie, together with the rights, powers, privileges and emoluments,
unto the said office, place and trustof rightand by law appertaining during pleasure.

And we do hereby require and direct you to report to our said Minister of the
Interior the result of your investigation, together with the evidence taken before
you and any opinion you may see fit to express thereon.

In testimony whereof we have caused these Our Letters to be made Patent and
the Great Seal of Canada to be hereunto affixed.

Witness, Our Right Trusty and Right Well-Beloved Cousin and Councillor the
Right Honourable Sir John Campbell Hamilton Gordon, Earl of Aberdeen, Viscourit
Formartine, Baron Haddo, Methlie, Tarves and Kellie, in the Peerage of Scotland,
Viscount Gordon of Aberdeen, County of Aberdeer, in the Peerage of the United
Kingdom, Baronet of Nova Scotia, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished
Order of Saint Michael and Saint George, &c., &c., Governor General of Canada.

At our Governmeuit louse, in our city of Ottawa, this seventh day of October,
in the year of our Lord one thousanîd eight hundred and ninety-eight, and in the
sixty-,eeond year of our reign.

By command.

ATTEST, P. PELLETIER,
E. L. NEWCOMBE. Acting Under Secretary of State.

Deputy of the Minister of Justice,
Canada.

YUKON PROVISIONAL DISTRICT, CANADA,
CoMMISsIONER's OFFIcE, DAWSON, Y. T., 97th April, 1899.

Hon. CLIFFORD SIFTON,
Minister of the Interior,

Ottawa. .

Sir,-I transmit horewith the evidence submitted before me as royal commis-
sioner under Letters Patent of 7th October, 1898, for the investigatton ofthe charges
made in a certain letter or momorial transmitted to the Right Honourable Sir
Wilfrid Lauri' r, Premier of Canada. This memorial was signod by a committee
appointed, it is alleged, by a mass meeting of iners.

I may say that word of my appointment as royal commissioner reached me
>oon' after (ho river set, but the commission itself did not arrive until the close of
the yoar; and Mr.Clement, the legal adviser, did not arrive until the 1lthof January;
so that I could not take up the investigation of the charges earlier than the later date.
When ht' arrived, the work belre nie as commissioner of the Yukon Territory was
?,o urgent that I could not immediately take the matter in hand; but as soon as the
stress of work would permit it was taken up.

The first step was a meeting in the court-house, 6th February, 1899, for the
purpose of receiving charges and arranging with those interested in the prosecution
as to the manner ot procedure.

At this meeting the commission was read; a general discussion took place
between those bringing charges, their advocates and the commisioner, under the
advice of the legal adviser, Mr. Clement.

The details of tht, discussion were taken somewhat at length by Dr. Brown,
Clerk of the Council, Private Secretary to the Commissiorner, and one of the steio-
graphers to the Royal Commission.
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The result of this meeting was the issuance of the following printed notice:-

PUBLIC NOTICE.

"T" WJIOM IT MAY CONCERN:

"Any parly or parties having any charges to make against any government
employee or official within the scope of the commission for the investigation of the
conduct of the officials hero under Letters Patent, dated 7th October, 1898, must
presenL such charges in writing, giving as Specifically as possible the nature of the
charge m:êde and against whon, if the latter is known. Such statements or charges
will be received at the commissioner's office up to and including the 13th day of
Marc-h. The public are requested to act on this intimation and to put in their
charges or statements as spoedily as posiblo.

"Fehuar 7th 189.""WILLIAM OGILVIE,"February 7th, 1899." ", Commissioner.",

One hundred copies of the above notice were struck off and posted up at as
nany points as possible in the country. In pursuance of the understanding arrived
at at the first meeting, a series of charges was submitted by Mr. Armstrong, who was
chairman of the miners' committee aforesaid, and Dr. P>ercy McDougall, who was
secretary of the said miners' committee.

Also several charges were submitted hy E. C. Allan, proprictor of a newspaper
known as the Klondike Nuqget, in Dawson.

These gentlemen were asked when they would be ready to procued with the
iúvcstigation and asked for time for considuration and decision on that question,
which was granted. They asked what facilities would bo aflorded them in the way
of procuring evidence, and were assured that every proper and reasonable aid would
be extended to them in that direction.

To oblige Mr. E. C. Allan of the Nugget, and Mr. George, the editor who was
associated with him, I gave them blark subpænas with which tu summon witnesses.
These wore signed by myseilf as commissioner, so that they might serve them with.
out anly hindrance whatsoever. The only stipulation made in this connection was
that they keep the commissioner duly informed of the witnesses summoned as soon
atter the summons was served on them as possible. They also asked permir.sion to
enter the gold commissioner's office to examine records on the questions they bad
raised. This privilege was accorded thom, and I gave them letters to the gold com-
missioner asking him to extend that privilege to them, but to sce that the examina-
tion ot the documents was made under the supervision of a clerk of the office.

Outside of the charges above stated, a copy of which is attached, only one other
charge is made. This was made by a man named F. W. McWhirter, but was after-
wards withdrawn by him, as it was found to be simply a mistake made by a clerk in
the office. The facts were, shortly, these:

A manî applied for a claim in a piece of ground whi<b he considered vacant and
alleged to be upwards of 1,200 feet in extent. The clerk to whomn lie applied, Mr.
Bolton, informed him that there was no vacant ground iii that place. He went away
dissatistied and shortly afterwards returned with evidence to show that there was
that amount of ground vacant. During this interval it was found that, this ground
had already been located and recorded. Mr. Bolton being new in theoffice, through
ignorance had the first time misinformed the man. When he again presented him-
self for recoid ho was informed that the ground was already loc.tud and receorded.
When ho aked at what time, they told him in March, his application being made
ii the month of June, I believe. Wben he was told this he immediately juniped at
the conclusion that there was something wrong.

Investigation showed that Mr. Bolton was entirely ignorantof theground being
located and recorded when he made his first statement to Mr. McWhirter, but had
learned the facts in. the case before Mr. McWhirter returned. Mr. MeWhirter was
somewhat loath to aîccept this explanation, bnt finally did, and exonerated the
officiais froni any duplicity in tho matlter.
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Another quertion was afterwards submitted by a miner in regard to a claim on
Bonanza Creek, but ;t w: more in the nature of a mistake than anything else, and,
I believe, was explained to his satisfaction.

Dr. Isidore McWilliam Bourke, who bas resided here for some monthe,
challenged the tit le of a company to certain claims on Bonanza and other creeks,
and because the conpany vas not properly recorded and had not a Company's
Miners' Certificato, he, witli the aid of one or two of bis friends, jumped two or three
of the company's claini, for which they had paid a good price.

Mr. J. C. McLaren, who represented the company, which is known as the
Klondike Gold Company. Limited, in order te overcome the difficulty of his company
not being registered iii Canada and not having a miners' license, had the claims
recorded in his own name under a power of attorney from the company.

The doctor was quite sanguine of obtaining one or two of the company's best
claims on Bonanza Creek in theseventies below, jumped them and brought a contest
before Mr. Fawcett to acquire title.

Mr. Fawcett decided that Mr. McLaren's title was good, much to the dissatis-
faction of the doctor. Shortly after my arrival here Dr. Bourke appealed to me for
justice in the matter, carefuil concealing the fact that he had had a contest before
M r. Fawcett; at toast he never referred to it in any way. He submitted his view
of the case to me and was; promised that the matter would be looked into. This I
hnd not time to do and was being delayed by more important work until the royal
commission arrived, wien the doctor considered it a case to be tried before it. He was
told before bis case would be entertained he would have to charge fraud, malfeasance
or improper conduct, which he did not hesitate to do, putting it under the head of
undue friendship between Mr. Fawcett and Mr. McLaren. It will be seen from
Mr. McLiaren's evidenco that he had a letter of introduction to Mr. Fawcett, but
never met him but once before asking for a favour, if it can be called a favour,
which Mr. Fawcett granted him, that is, that ho be allowed togroup four successive
claims which he had procired, and to do ail the representation work of the four on
one-a very natural request, if not strictly in accord with the letter of the mining
regulations. Mr. Fawcett took it upon himself to grant it. and I do not think that
any one was seriously injured in bis doing so except Dr. Bourke, who appears te
have been very much disappointed in not securing the claims.

I think it will be found on reading the evidence submitted that the doctor's
charge against Mr. Fawcett for wrongdoing in this connection was not sustained.
The evidence presented did not show even ordinary intimacy between Mr. McLaren
and Mr. Fawcett, and no attempt was made to show that anyimproper consideration
paszsed between them. So that, in my opinion, the charge in this connection falls
to the ground.

The first sitting of the commission for the investigation of charges was held on
the 22nd of February, the earliest date possible under the conditions. Much interest
was mnanifested by those bringing the charges for an early sitting, but when the
matter was thrown entirely on their own hands, I may say there was more delay
than anticipated.

The first day was devoted to investigation of charges of corruption against
officials in the gold commissioner's office for having accepted bribes for admission
înto the office. The result was that a doorkeeper named Villeneuve, who was
employed as a special constable in the North-west Mounted Police service, and who
had been for some time a dog-driver, bad accepted money for admitting people out
of their turn into the offiee. No one else was implicated in any way except that

orne of the evidence showed that clerks had received pay from outsiders forattend-
ing to work donc before and after office hours. This was so usual an occurrence
that it was readily admitted, no one attempted to deny it.

The charge of having improperly closed Dominion Creek was then taken up
against Mr. Faweett. The evidence taken in that connection showed that Mr.
Fawcett was not responsible for the closing of the creek in the mariner charged
against him. The testimony submitted shows that ho had closed the creek in
November, 1897, owing to the numerous complications that arose through different
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applicants having staked over each other, there having been several points of
beginning for the staking of claims on the creek. Different parties started from
these several points and went on regardless of any one else's doings and staked the
Same ground, and in many cases were recorded for it. Of course, there could only
be one owner for such ground-the first staker and recorder.

Before work could proceed on tho creek, Mr. Fawcett determined it was
necessary that in all these cases an investigation should be held and the title to the
claim ascertained in that way.

As he was very busy in the offiee, and as there were numerous cases to be
investigated, ho determined to close the creek until such time as ho could take the
matter up. This was done and approved of by the thon commissioner, Major Walsh,
and the creek, as a matter of fact. still stands closed within the limits mentioned in
the evidence, that is, from upper discovery to one hundred and twanty below lower,
which comprises about one hundred and fifty claims, I understand.

Against this charge Mr. Faweett also exonerated himself in so far as any corrupt
act on his part was concerned. There was not a tittle of evidence to show that ho
benefited in any way from the closing of the creek, and he showed conclusively
that it was absolutely necessary to do so in the public interest.

A charge was brought by the people of the Nugget against Mr. Fawcett for
having improperly issued a permit to prospect to Mrs. hmma Koch.

The evidence shows that Mr. Fawcett misunderstood this woman, who didn't at
the time she npplied for the permit use very good English. The act of granting the
permit was. we will admit, improper, bat there was nothing te show that Mr.
Fawcett in any way benefited hy it, or any of bis friends, Mrs. Koch being an utter
stranger to him.

Another charge brought by the oditor of the ENugget was the case known
ns the Miner-Kelly case; in this case it was alleged that Mr. Fawcett through undue
friendship for Mr. Alex. McDanal 1, commonly known, as the Bonanza King, secured
the payment of $2,000 which it wasi alleged was due Mc Donald on a certain claim
and that ho did so imprnperly. The transaction in connection with this case
occurred after the 25th of Agiist.

Here 1 nay digresýs to say that the question of competency te hear charges
preferred after that date was thoroughly discussed between the legal adviser, Judge
Dugas, and myself, with the result that it was decided that any charges occurring
after the 25th of August, that is, the date of the memorial presented to Ottawa by
the miners' comniittee, could not, under the commission issued to me, be properly
taken up.

When this was announcoed to the public the gentlemen representing the miners'
committee, that is, Dr. McDougal and Mr. Armstrong, withdrew from any further
prosecution or oxamination of charges; and the two gentlemen associated with the
.Nugget did the same, which to a great extent torminated the labours of the
commission.

This was accounted for by those gentlemen in this way: they alleged if they
were net allowed to continue the investigation indefinitely, they would be much
hampered, as many of the witnesses te transactions occurring before 25th August
had gone out of the country or were net available.

Several charges were laid against Mr. Fawcett which that gentleman demanded
to be cleared up, and as the Miner-Kelly case could not be taken up under the terms
of the commission to me, it was agreed upon by the parties concerned that the
ovidence of the witnesses should bo taken down in the usual manner, and that after
being transcribed to type, it would be read over carefally to them, and they would
make, after any corrections they wished, a statutory declaration that it was true.
In this vay we determined to proceed as far as the investigation of the Miner-Kelly
case was concerned, or any other case occurring after the 25th of August which
any one might elcct to go on with.

The facts ofthe Miner-Kelly case are shortly theso:-
A man named Birt owed Alex. McDonald the sum of $2,000; Birt didn't repre-

sent his claiim, so that MIcDOnald's $2,000 was likely to be lost te him if Birt's title
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to the claim lapsed through non-representation. McDonald consulted Mr. Fawcett
as to the best way of securing his 82,000. What the conference between them was,
we do not know, but Mr. Faweett alleges there was nothing moto than a few
questions asked, and that he held the opinion that through Birt's titie to the claim
lapsing, McDonald's did too. McDonald was absent from the country at the time
of the sitting of the commission, and consequently his evidence could not be obtained.
To prolect McDonald's $2,000, his brother Donald McDonald relocated the claim on
the 1st of September. Mrs. Miner and Mrs. Kelly were there at the same time, ail
three staking the ground simultaneously, or nearly so; this brought about a dispute
as to which of the three was the original staker.

A contest was involved, and you will see from the evidence that Mrs. Miner
and Mrs. Kelly were advised thut the claim was not legally responsible for the
$2,000 after Birt's title lapsed.

Mr. Kelly, the husband of Mrs. Kelly, one of the interested parties, determined
to settle the matter in a business way, and approauched MoDonald's agent with a
proposal to this effect, that they, Mrs. Miner and Mr3. Kelly, would assume the
liability of the 82,000 on condition that Donald McDonald dropped the conteet, and
that Alex. McDonald take an option on the claim for the amount of 830,000 providing
he could sell them while in Europe; and that if ho suceoeded in selling them ho was
to pay $14,000 to the credit of Mrs. Miner and a like amount to that of Mrs. Kelly.
An option was taken by McDonald on the two claims and the document was sub-
mitted during the trial.

The two women in this case, Mrs. Miner and Mrs. Kelly, persisted in the state-
ment that Mr. Fawcett insisted as one of the conditions of their recording the claims
that they should puy McDonald his 82,000; this Mr. Fawcett denies. I paid consid-
erable credence to the ovidence of these two ladies, until I found them very reluctant
to admit that they knew Mr. Kelly had made the arrangement as set forth on their
behalf; this they were loathe to admit, and, I may say, it had to be dragged out of
them. This, to a certain extent, discredited their statenont in my mind.

Mr. Kelly, I migh t say, was very straightforward in giving his evidence, as will
appear from his statements, and he considered ho had done quite a smart act in
inaking the deal ho did ; as ho put it, risking 8 1,000 in his case to secure $14,000.

These are the facts shortly as placed before the commission in the manner
stated.

I may say that the statements written down in this case wore submitted to the
various witnesses for their perusal, and for the purpose of taking their declaration
thereto. Somo of them, especially Mrs. Kelly, objected to this very strongly, alleg-
ing that the statement as it appeared in type was not as she put it. Mr. Kelly, on
the other hand, admitted tha,, with a few trivial corrections, the statements were
exactly as he believed ho had made tbem. Mr. and Mrs. Miner have made statu-
tory declaration as to their evidence. I have, therefore, transmitted the ovidence
as it was taken down by the court stenographers, Dr. Brown and Mr. Shopard, and
typewritten by them, with thoir statutory declaration attached as to its being a true
record of the evidence given by the various witnesses.

If you should deem it necessary, I wili bave the declaration made by the varioue
witnesseos, as far as they will go, but as the case doos niot seriously implicate Mr.
Fawcett, the only person chargod in the question, I think the evidence as submitted
is quite sufficient as it stands, to show the facts of the case. You will also see that
sone inquiry was made into the laying over of Mr. Alex. McDonald's royalty, and
an oxplanation furnishied for the same. All the evidence submitted in this connec-
tion was tha.t furnished in the letters between Major Walsh, Mr. McDonald and Mr.
Fawcett.

There appears to have been no wrong-doing in this, at least none was made
manifest, Major Walsh taking the view that it would be impolitic to exact Mr.
McDofnald's royalty, as it would put him to cousiderable hardship if he was com-
pelled to puy it, and later on, hi paying it would benefit the country as much as if
he had paid it last spring.

With the exception of a few rambling charges made by Dr. Bourke, before
mentioned, this was all that came before the commission for investigation to date
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This gentleman (Dr. Bourke) is somewbat testy in his nature, and is apt to
take offense where none is meant, and it was found extremely difficuit to keep him
within due bonnds; in fact it was not done, and couldn't very weil be done, owing
to the doctor's hot and cholerie disposition. Atone time I had to threaten him with
committal for contempt for abusing two parties in court, Mr. Wm. Galpin and
Colonel McGregor, who attended as members of the original committee who signed
the momorial to the Right Honourable Sir Wilfrid Laurier. and took an active
interest in the proceedings after Mr. Armstrong and Dr. MeDougali bid with-
drawn.

The doctor (Bourke) conceived that these gentlemen were interfering with his
rights in the way of bringing charges, when he immediately proceeded to berate
them. The warmth of hie language cannot be judgeJ from the typewritton state-
ments. One would have to bear it uttered to realize the full force of it.

In the course of a few days now I wili continue the investigation with regard to
the charges made against Mesors. Wade and Norwood who recently arrived in the
country. and will transmit as soon thereafter as posmible a short report on the
result of such investigation.

I have the honour to be, sir.
Your obedient servant,

WILLIAM OGILVIE,
Commissioner.

PUBLIC NOTICE.

To ALL wHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Any party or parties having any charges to make against any Government
employee or official within the scope of the commission for the investigation ot the
conduct of the officials here, under letters patent dated 7th October, 1898, muet
present such charges in writing, giving as specifically as possible the nature of the
charge made and against whom, if the latter is known. Such statements or charges
wili be received at the Commissioner's Offce up to and including the 15th day of
March, 1899. The public are requested to act on this intimation and to put in their
charges or statements as speedily as possible.

WM. OGILVIE,
Commissioner.

february 7th, 1899.

A. 1899
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PUBLIC NOTICE.

To ALL WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

By letters patent under the great seal of Cantida I havo been appointed IIer
Majesty's Comimissioner to investigate and inquire into certain mutters and things
in such lotters patent referred to. The scopt of the investigation will appear from
the preamble as follows:

Whereas it appears from a report of our Minister of the Interior of Carada that
he had under consideration a communication, duted at Dawson, Yukon Territory,
25th August, 1898, addressed to the Right Honourable Sir Wilfrid Laurier, Premier
of Canada, signed by G. T. C. A rmstronig, as chairman. Porcy McDougali, secretary,
and a number of other persons profossing to have been duly appointed a miners'
committee at :: mass meeting of the minere of the Yukon Territory, in which com-
muiication it is alleged that many of the governmont officials have forfeited their
claim to the people's confldenee and respect by their couduct and action in certain
matters. Our said minister further observes that the committee alleges that the
gold commissioner's office is practically closed, and has been for a considerable
time, to the minera who had not the means and desire to bribe the clerks in order
to obtain knowledge of the record which ought to be public. It is further charged
that wholesale information with regard to unrecorded ground is conreyed to certain
individuals outside the office, who obtain men to stake and record the ground, in
consideration of an interest in the same. Our minister further stateu that it is
charged that dissatisfaction bas arisen with respect to the decisions in claim con-
tests, particularly owing to the crown prosecutor, who, while retained as advocate
by one of the contestants, was giving legal advico to the gold commissioner. The
Dominion lands agent is openly charged with serious breaches of trust and malfeas-
anee in office, and some of the officials connected with the recorder's office are
alleged to be incompetent. Our said minister further submits, that it is stated in
the communication that hardships have been caused to many ot the claim owners
owing to the want of experience of the mining inspectors. The committee further
represents that the Crown timber agent has granted such concessions and laid down
such stringent regulations that only a few parties have the privilege of supplying
cordwood this coming winter. On account of this and other reasons set forth in
the communication referred to, a copy of which is hereto attached, the committee
ask for the appointment of a commission of'inquiry.

And whereas we deem it expedientthat inquiry under oath should be made with
respect to the truth or untruths of the foregoing charges, statements and complaints.

Public notice is hereby given that on Monday, the 6th day of February, 1899,
at the hour of Il o'clock in the forenoon, I will ait at the court bouse in Dawson
for the purpose of fixing a time within which charges following within the scope of
the letters patent are to be laid before me, and let all persons desirous of prosecuting
any such charges then appear and they shall b heard either in person or by counsel
as they may prefer.

After the expiration of the time to be fixed for laying charges before me I shall
proceed to fix a time and place for the investigation of such charges, of which time
and place due and public notice will be given.

Dated at Dawson, this 25th day of January, A.D. 1899.
WM. OGILVIE,

Commissioner.
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PUBLIC NOTICE.

To ALL WHOM IT MNAY CONCERN:

Attention is drawn to the provisions of Chapter 33, 52 Viet., entitled, " An Act
to make further provisions respecting inquiries concerning public iatters, " assented
to 20th Maich, 1889. Sections '_, and 3 of the said chapter read as follow:-

"Such commissioners shail have the same power to enforce the attendance of
such witnesses, and to compel them to give evidenue as is vested in any court
record in civil cases.

"No witness examined before such commissioners or before any commissioners
appointed by the Lieutenant Governor in Council of any province of Canada to conduct
any inquiry into and concerning the good government of such province, or the con-
duct of any part of the public business thereof, or the administration of justice
iherein, or in reference to any municipal miatter shall be excused from answering
any question put to him on the ground that the answer thereto may criminate or
tend to criminate him; but no evidence so taken shall be admissible against any such
witness in any criminal proceeding, except in the case of a witness charged with
having given false evidence at any such inquiry or with having procured, or
attempted or conspired to procure, the giving of sueh evidence."

Any party who has any evidenc to give touching any charge against any
public official, will see from the above cited sections that they do noteriminate them-
selves; that iseany true evidence that they may give is not admissiblo against them.

The only way they can criminate themselves, is by giving false evidence before
the Commissioner for such investigation.

This applies to any evideuice submitted to myself as Commissioner appointed to
investigate charges against officials in the Yukon Territory by Letters Patent dated
7th October, 1898.

WILLIAM OGILVIE,
Commissioner.

A. 1899
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COPY
[87a]

Of CoMMIsSIoN which issued in favour of William Ogilvie, Esquire, under the
provisions of Chapter 114, R.S.C., to hold an investigation and take
evidence under oath with regard to certain charges made against
officials of the Dominion Government in the Yukon Territory; and
copy of the evidence taken under such Commission.

CouvT Housz, DAwsoN, Y.T., 6th February, 1899.

The commission for the investigation of charges against the Yukon officiais of
certain alleged malfeasance of the officialis of the Yukon Territory, opened this day
at 11 a.m.

WILLIAM OGILVIE, Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, presided.

Assisting him were W. H. P. Clement, acting as legal adviser to the commis-
sioner, and J. N. E. Brown, acting as secretary.

There were present, Mesers. G. T. C. Armstrong, chairman of the Miners'
Committee; Percy MoDougal, seoretary of the Minera' Committee; and probably
one hundred other persons.

The secretary, Dr. Brown, read the Royal Commission aloud. The following is
a copy of it

ABERDEEN.
E. L. NzwcomBE.

CANADA.

VICTORIA, by the Grace of God, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Ireland, QuEN, Defender of the Faith, &c., &c., &c.

To WILLIAM OGILVI, Esquire, of Dawson City, in the Yukon Territory, in
our Dominion of Canada, and to alil to whom these presents shall come, or whom the
same may in anywise concern.

GRETIN.-

WaEREAs it appears from a report from our Minister of the Interior of Canada
that he had under consideration a communication dated at Dawson, Yukon Territory,25th August, 1898, addressed to the Right Honourable Sir Wilfrid Laurier, Premier
of Canada, signed by G. T. C. Armstrong, as chairman, Percy McDougal, secretary,and a number of other persons professing to have been duly appointed a miners'
cOnmittee at a mass meeting of the miners of the Yukon Territory, in which com-
Diunication it is alleged that many of the government officials have forfeited their
claim to the people's confidence and respect by their conduct and action in certain
'matters. Our said minister further observes that the committee alleges that the

87a-2



42 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 87A.)

gold commissioner's oeffic is practically closed, and has been for a considerable
time to the miners who had not the means and desire to bribe the clorks in order to
obtain knowledge of the record which ought to be public. It is further charged
that wholesale information with regard to the unrecorded ground is conveyed to
certain individuals outaide the office who obtain men to stake and record the groind
in consideration of an interest in the same. Our minister further stated that it is
charged that dissatiefaction has arisen with respect to decisions in claim conteste,
particularly owing to the Crown prosecutor who, while retained as advocate by one
of the contestante, was giving legal advice to the gold commissioner. The Dominion
lands agents is openly charged with serious4 breaches of trust ani malfeasance in
office, and some of the officials connected with the recorder's office are alleged to be
incompetent. Our said minister further submits that it is stated in the communica-
tion that hardships have been caused to many of the claim owners owing to the want

.of experience of the mining inspectors. The committee further represents that the
Crown timber agent has granted such concessions and laid down such stringent
regulations that only a few parties bave the priviloge of supplying cord-wood this
coming winter. On account of this and other reasons set forth in the communica-
tion referred to, a copy of which is hereto attached, the committee ask for the
appointment of a commission of inquiry :

And whereas we deem it expedient that inquiry under oath should be made
with respect to the truth or untruth of the foregoing charges, statements and com-
plaints:

Now know ye that we, by and witb the advioe of our Privy Council of Canada
do by these presents nominate, constitute and appoint you, the said William Ogilvie
of Dawson, commissioner of the Yukon Territory, to be our commissioner for the
purposes of such investigation and inquiry into the matters and things hereinbefore
mentioned and set out. And we do hereby under the authority of the Revised
Statutos of Canada, chapter 114, intituled "An Act respecting inquiries concerning
public matters," confer upon you, our said commissioner, the power of summoning
before you any witnesses and of requiring them to give evidence on oath, orally or
in writing, or on solemn affirmation, if they are persons entitled to affirm in civil
matters, and to produce such documents and thinge as you, our said Commissioner,
shall deem requisite to the full investigation of the matters into which you are
hereby appointed to examine, inquire and investigate :

To have, hold, exercise and enjoy the said office, place and trust unto you the
said William Ogilvie together with the righte, powers, privileges and emoluments
unto the said office, place and trust ofright and by law appertainingduring pleasure.
And we do hereby require and direct you to report to our said Minister of the
Interior the result of your investigation together with the evidence taken before you,
and any opinion you may see fit to express thereon.

in testimony whereof, we have cause these our letters to be made patent and
the great seal of Canada to be hereunto afflxed. Witness; Our Right Trusty and
Right Well-beloved Cousin and Councillor The Right Honourable Sir John Campbell
Hamilton Gordon, Earl of Aberdeen, Viscount Formartine, Baron Haddo, Methlic,
Tarves and Kellie, in the Peerage of Scotland; Viscount Gordon of Aberdeen, county
-of Aberdeen, in the Peerage of the United Kingdom ; Baronet of Nova Scotia ;
Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order of Saint Michael and Saint
George, etc., etc., Governor General of Canada.

At Our Government Hlouse, in our city of Ottawa, this eeventh day of October,
in the year of Our Lord, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-eight, and the sixty-
second year of Our Reign. By Command.

P. PELLETIER,
Acting Under Secretary of State.
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The commissioner said that nearly half a year had elapsed since the 25th of
August, the date on which the petition of the miners' committee had been forwarded
to Ottawa; that the commission had been issued from Ottawa on the 7th of October;
that the sitting of the commission had been delayed by reason of the delay of the
mail and the non-arrival of the legal adviser.

Some of those charged with malfeasance and impropriety were not in the coun-
try, and some of them were on their way in and it was probable that it would be
necessary to await their arrivai before any charges against them were settled.

Mr. Woodworth, appearing for the miners' association, said that there were
several matters referred to in the commission that were not particularly definite, as
it only referred in a general way to the bad management of the gold commissioner's
office and the malfeasance of government offcials.

The first allegation was, that the officials had forfeited the confidence and
respect of the public. Now, whether they, the officials, were to blame for that loss
of confidence and respect was not alleged.

The next statement was, that the gold commissioner's office was prictically
closed. The evidence in connection with that point would have to be of a general
nature.

The third allegation as noted in the commission was that relating to the bribing
of clerks. He had known of instances where that had been stated himself in which
le had every reason to believe that tho clerks were bribed. This matter was
conveyed to him in his own general business. He had asked these persons in two
or three instances himself if they would appear before the commission. He wants
to know if there was to be any safety accorded to these witnesses if they appeared.

The commissioner siated that the amendment to chapter 33 stated that :
" No witness examined before such commissioners or before any commissioners

appointed by the Lieutenant Governor in Council of any province of Canada to
conduct any inquiry into and concerning the good government of such province, or
the conduct of any part of the public business thereof, or the administration of
justice therein, or in reference to any municipal matters, shall be excused from
answering any question put to him on the ground that the answer thereto may
criminate or tend to criminate him; but no evidence so taken shall be admissable
against any such witness in any criminal proceeding, except in the case of a witnes
charged with having given false evidence at any such inquiry, or with having
procured, or attempted or conspired to procure, the giving of sncb evidouce."

Mr. Woodworth continuing, said that more definite evidence could be obtained
With regard to the matter that money had been given to those who had been able
to obtain information "on the aide." The miners' committee desired to have a day
or two that they might thoroughly thresh this matter out.

The next charge as to the Crown prosecutor having taking up one side of a
case in the gold commissioner's office while the gold commissioner was employing
bin, would have to be met thoroughly.

The question regarding accusation of the Dominion lands agent would also
hlave to be inquired into, as would also evidence regarding incompetency of officials
il the gold commissioner's office. Opinion evidence wonld have to be given.
Whether that was satisfactory or not ho did not know. Mr. Ogilvie said that this
would not be satisfactory to himself or to the public.

Mr. Woodworth stated that the matter of incompetency had caused a hardship,
and evidence would be given from the miners to that effect.

He didn't know that the minera' committee were ready to go on to-day. Hie
*as not retained for them, but had been asked to bring the matter before the com.
mission this morning. He thought there would be a great many witnesses called
Who would give opinions, and that they would give reasons for these opinions. He
ited a case where such evidence had been given; a case in which he, himself, had

stated to the best of his knowledge and belief what his opinion was, and indicated a
Way where more information could be got at firat source.

HIe presumed that in regard to the gold commisioner's office, they would be
Permitted to Cali any clerks in that office.
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Mr. Ogilvie, the commissioner, stated that any documents would be put at the
plaintiffs' disposal. He had only one desire and that was to get the matter cleared
up as far as possible.

Mr. Woodworth stated that the formulators of the charge would be prepared to
bring their evidence before the commissioner at the end of a week, or any day the
commissioner might like to fix. Mr. Ogilvie inquired if Mr. Woodworth was
appearing for the miners' association ?

Mr. Woodworth replied that ho was speaking for the chairman of the minera'
committee-Mr. Armstrong, Mr. MoDougal, Mr. MoGregor and othere.

The commissioner stated. that they would have to formulate their charges, and
present them so that the accused persons might receive notice of such, and be pre-
pared to defend themselves. As soon as ho received these charges formulated
specifically, ho would notify the accused, and appoint a day of bearing the cases.
Mr. Woodworth stated that most of these charges were against certain offices; that
there wàs only one person montioned particularly and he had given up the office
which ho held, and that was the Crown prosecutor and Dominion lands agent, at
that time. As to the other charges against office, it might be that evidence would
ho brought up that would not refer to any one person, .but he would not say now
what it would ho. If there had been any charge against a person, which would have
been considered a criminal offence that would have been investigated in the criminal
court before now. It was more a plea against incompetency and mismanagement
than against any individual. He would like the prosecution not to be carried out
against any particular individual. He could name four or five himself, but ho believed
any information by which the commissioner couldget the accused would be entirely
privileged. He submitted that the accused officialis might be called upon first, and
that the committee might formulate their charges more distinctly after that. He
thought they should appear as public servants and taken as " not guilty," that was
the way they would have to take them in order to incriminate them by what they
say; and if it incriminated them, the sooner the botter.

The commissioner asked if Mr. Woodworth meant to have the accused appear
to accuse themselves ?

Mr. Woodworth said that ho would call upon them to give information, on
which they would largely depend to proceed with the charges. Mr. Woodworth,
continuing, said that the gold commissioner's office was wholly closed ; that no
Derson could get any information in cases where the loaning of money was at stake;
that it took a long, long time to get any information, and to get that, they were
required to pay $2.50 for each abstract.

The commissioner stated that if they would give a shadow of foundation for
what was required of anything of which they wished to prove, any documents
would be at their disposal.

Mr. Woodworth said that more than a shadow would be given in a short time;
h. thought a week would ho sufficient.

Mr. C. W. C. Tabor inquired if, in this examination, the regular laws of evidence
would apply?

The commissioner replied that they would.
Mr. Tabor said, the matters of opinion would not be considered evidonce.
The commissioner replied that not unless it were a question of expert opinion.

As to the question of incompetency it was largely a question of opinion. Wbat
one person would consider incompetency, another one would not, that would
depend largely upon bow one's mind was biassed. What might be to a man's friend
competency, might ho to a man's enemy a charge of incompetency.

The commissioner repeated that if any witness or documents were wanted from
the gold commissioner's office, they would be forthcoming. He stated in regard to
the charge against the Crown prosecutor and the Dominion lands agent that that
gentleman was not here, and it would be necessary to see that ho was represented
by somebody, and the person so representing him would have to have the charges
in order to take them into consideration and submit rebuttal evidence.

Thon, there were two of the old mining inspectors charged. These men, he'
had been informed, were on their way in, and ho thought it would be as well to wait
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for their arrival before their cases were taken up. The complainants might outline
the general evidence and the names of witnesses, that they might hold them.

The commissioner asked if there were any other complaints to be handed in ?
Robert McWhirter presented a verbal complaint against the gold commissioner's

office. He was asked to submit it to the secretary in writing some time during the
week.

Mr. Armstrong aiked what would be done by the commissioner with charges
he had received which were not formulated specifically by complainants at the
commission ?

The commissioner reported that such hints and intimations as he had received
privately would be deait with afterward, if not taken up before.

Mr. Woodworth asked as to who would bear the expenses of bringing witnesses
before the commission ?

Mr. McGregor asked if, before a royal ccmmission, the pay of witnesses was
not arranged for?

The commissioner replied that nothing in the correspondence had provided for
the expenses of bringing witnesses, but he said that a record might be kept of the
witnesses' fees and necessary expenses, and this would be submitted for the conside-
ration of parliament; that the commission having been issued since the sitting of
the last parliament that there had been no vote made for this purpose. He said,
however, the commission could summon witnesses, but could not promise them
anything for expenses; that witnesses must coie, if called on, and answer any
question they were asked; they could not refuse to answer but that they would not
be incriminated by any evidence they night give.

Mr. Percy McDougal asked how far it would be possible for the court to inquire
without going into specific charges? He said that Mr. Fawcett had held an investi-
gation of which he gave to the public notice last January, of charges made against
clerks at that time in bis otice, chiefly against Mr. Craig and Mi. Bolton, and that
With respect to the investigation nothing reached the public. He submitted that it
Would be proper Io cali Mr. Fawcett, Mr. Bolton and Mr. Craig, and probably the
gentleman whose charges instigated the inquiry before this commission, and to find
out the whole truth of that investigation at that time, and to ascertain whether the
rumours that reached the public were true or not.

The commissioner replied that Mr. Fawcett would settle that matter in a few
Iseconds; Mr. Fawcett had informed him that no charges were made, and that there
Was nothing to investigate ; he closed the office and asked the public to come for-
Ward, and nothing was produced, and he could do nothing. There was a petition
t hen sent in by the publie asking him to open the office. If the above facts were
reported to him eorrectly, there was nothing to investigate.

Mr. McDougal replied that the report that reached the public, was that the
accused clerks were suspended.

The commissioner stated that the matter would be settled by calling Mr.
Pawcett.

Mr. MeDougal inquired if the public might investigate all the documents in the
office to ascertan if anything were wrong in the matter?

The commissioner replied that that was hardly relevant to the persons accused,
but he was willing to allow them to do so.

Mr. McDougal asked if, in an investigation of this sort, it would not be better
to cali Messrs. Bolton, Hurdman and Craig hefore the court and ask them questions
as to how they supplied matter to the public during office hours.

The commissioner stated that if Mr. McDougal's sugestions were followed and
these men brought before the commission, and they were charged with improperly
giring information to the public, they might reply that they had not.

Mr'. McDougal said then witnesses would be called.
The commissioner replied that what he wanted to know was what the charges

were to begin with, that he could not proceed with a vague*general charge against
the office. What was wanted was something specific.

Mr. McDougal said the whole matter would have to be brought up piece meal.
The commiesioner replied that the court must have something to begin with.
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Mr. McDougal said that once the charge was made that information was given
to the public during office heurs, they would be able to bring in the clerks before
them.

The commissioner replied that any necessary witnesses might be brought in,
that the whole matter of giving information to the people before, after and during
office hours, would be inquired into-and anything else within the scope of the
commission, anything unlawful or improper on the part of any official; but as to
investigating them generally in a general way, that would be a vague proceeding.

Mr. McDougall asked how the commission would proceed with regard to
char ges which had been put in for private investigation?

The commissioner reulied that some parties were very urgent that their
charges should be heard. If these were not included in the other charges which
were submitted they would be heard separately.

Colonel McGregor, secretary of tho mineri4' association, said ho wished, on
behalf of himself and his associates of the committee, to say that they had no desire
or wish to incriminate any persor unless such person wero guilty. If they were
guilty it would be a publie interest that they should be proved; if they wore inno-
cent, that sbhould be proved also. The fact was deplorable, nevertheless, that the
relations between the administrators of the government of the Yukon Territory with
the publie had been very strained during the past seuson. Their desire was, and
they had no other motives, to have those matters investigated and cleared up. The
conditions of this country were very unique, of which everybody was aware, and he
felt sure that the parties at headquarters did not understand to the extent they
should, the conditions of affaire in the Yukon. The stampede to the Yukon has been
characterized, and properly so, as the greatest of the kind that has ever taken place
in the history of mining camps, and the result was, that the situation that existed
during the past season bore wus not apprehended as it should have been. Never
in bis experience had there been a multitude of people congregated together so dis-
satisfled and discontented as they were on that scene in the Yukon. The result was
that there was a series of meetings held and the appointment of this minera' com-
mittee. He was satisfied that the community should be grateful to the committee,
to a certain extent, for the influence it had had in appeasing the turbulent element
in the camp. They had given promises in the meetings that they would make
every effort to secure a botter condition of affaire, consequently they had gotten up
a memorial and sent it to the premier at Ottawa. As a result of that it appeared
that they were now about to have an investigation. If they had net acted as they
had, the result might have been more serious.

Mr. Armstrong asked if any stated time had been laid down when the finding
of the commission should be sent to Ottawa?

The commissioner replied that a time had been set, by which the finding should
be reported, but, owing to the delay in the receipt of the royal commission, it would
be impossible to get through by that date.

Mr. Armstrong asked if the records in the gold commissioner's office would be
open to them ?

The commissioner replied, yes, if they would state the area they wished to
investigate.

Mr. Armstrong stated the records in the office wero not open to the public. He
asked if the records in the office did not belong to the public.

The commissioner replied that under conditions they did.
Mr. Armstrong asked under what conditions they were not available.
The commissioner replied that those laying the charges would be permitted to

search sucb documents as bore on the question, but would not be allowed documents
that did not bear on the question.

Mr. H. Ridley said that ho appeared on behalf of the Nugget, which had
taken considerable interest in the charges made against the officials in the gold
commissioner's office, and ho wished to file one bill of charges against one of the
officials, and asked permission for a little time to file further charges against other
officials there. He had not heard, not being present at the opening of the investi-
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gation, what course it was to take, whether or not they were to be in a position to
go on at once, or were to be allowed a certain amount of time.

With reference to the charge which he was filing, he was ready to go on almost
any time. He would probably file other charges on behalf of bis cliont during the
course of the day, and 8till others duriug the course of the ivestigation, if allowed.
If the commission would state when they were to go on to prove the charges, they
would have the witnesses ready.

The commissioner said that the defendant would have to be notified so as to be
able to prepare a defence.

Mr. Ridley said that they would be ready to go on in about a week. He then
handed in the following charge:-

Before the Hon. William Ogilvie, Investigating Commissioner.

In the matter of the investigation into the acts of Thomas Fawcett as gold commis-
sioner in and for the Yukon Territory-Complaint.

The complaint alleges as follows:-
1. That Thomas Fawcett did wilfully manipulate his powers, real and assumed,

in the matter of closing and opening of Dominion Creek bench claims, to the
defrauding of the miners and the benefit of officials and their friends.

2. That at the time pending the issuance of permits to prospect as per his own
notice of llth July, 1898, at 10 a.m., he did wilfully deviate from his said notice and
issue a permit to Mrs. Emma Koch.

3. That Mr. Fawcett was unfair and unjust to the miners through his office in
that when, through ignorance on the part of said miners, or through incompetence
on the part of the gold commissioner's offine, two applications were entertained for
the same ground and both parties paid the entrance fee of S 15,-the fee of the inisled
and unsuccessful applicant was refused to be returned to him.

Mesars. Charles K. Zorn and Andrew Nelson were both allowed to record the
same claim No. Il above on all gold. The gold commissioner refused to return the
money to elson although the claim went to Zorn.

4. That Mr. Fawcett did use his official powers for the benefit of personal friends
and to the prej udice of free miners, as in the case of the Dominion Creek claim of Mrs.
Miner, when he compelled her to pay Alexander McDonald the sum, of two thousand
dollars before allowing her to record a claim she had staked.

5. That while the public was being denied access to the records or any informa-
tion regarding unrecorded ground, Thomas Fawcett did prepare and cause to be
prepared more or less complete lists of vacant ground, which ho distributed to friends.

6. That an entrance fee was chaged and collected to his office.
Dated at Dawson, Y.T., this 6th day of February, 1899.

The Nugget-Complaint.
B. C. AL L EN.
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ROYAL COMMISSION.

The proceedings of the second day of the inquiry under the royal commission
were held in the Court-house, Dawson, commencing at 11 o'clock, 22nd February, 1899.

Dr. J. N. E. Brown and F. M. Shepard were sworn in to do the stenographic
work.

Mr. OGILVIE.-The court is now open for the hearing of charges under the
royal commission.

Mr. PERCY MCDoUGAL.-The representatives of the miners' committee want to
bring evidence to show that money was paid to gain access to the gold commissioner's
office. We are anxions to see where the blame is attached and find out to whom
that blame is due.

Mr. ARMSTRONG.-I wish to define our position somewhat. We don't wish to be
understood as prosecutors alone in this heariug of charges. We understand that
you are holding a commission to inquire into matters of public interest in this ter-
ritory, and we wish to give our time and help'in this investigation without any fee
or recompense of any sort.

There is a matter which I wish to cal your attention to, that is, the matter of
expenses. You have told us there is no arrangement in regard to expenses; but I
would call your attention to the fact that many of the miners, especially those residing
outside of Dawson on distant creeks, have no money whatever, and very little food,
and that they have no cabins in Dawson and no friends to whom they can have
recourse; and that to call such men into Dawson is an absolute piece of crulty, and
we are put in a position to ask these mon to come and help the government to make
an inquiry into matters of government interest. This seems to us an act of
crulty. I would ask you to make an order that witnesses might apply for such
expenses as might be necessary for their maintenance during the times they are
before this court.

The CoMMIssIoNEi.-There is no authority in the commission as I told you
before-nothing about paying expenses, and if I did what you suggest I might be
held responsible myself. That I cannot afford.

Mr. MODouGAL.-Could not the council nake some provision for this?
The CoMMIssIoNE.-No, this matter the council cannot deal with. It has

only to deal with local matters. What 1 suggested was, that these men keep track
of their expenses and put in the accounts which will be submitted to Ottawa.

Mr. ARMsTRONG.-But these men have no money now; how can a satisfactory
commission of inquiry be held without paying the men their expenses ?

The COMMISSINEE.-If I trespass beyond the point of this commission 1 may be
held personally responsible.

Mr. ARMsTRoNG.-Then the only thing to do is to recognize the commission as
limited and work within the limitations as best we can.

The CoMMIssIoNE.-I will help in every way I can.
Mr. McDoUGAL.-Is it not understood that under a royal commission the

witnesseb' fees are paid ?
The ComMIssIoNER.-That question I cannot decide at pr-esent. Were are con-

sidering that. There is no mention made in connection with expenses at all; it is
not referred to in the remotest way.

There is another question I wish to call attention to, the commission can only
take cognisance of charges made previous to the 25th of August last, when the
memorial of the miners' committee was written here, which refers to charges solely
before that day, and according to the commission we cannot take cognisance of
anything after that date. The question has been raised as to whether we shall hear
charges afterthat date.
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Mr. MODoUGAL.-Has a decision been given?
The ComMIssIoNER.-Not yet. The question will have to.be threshed out among

the lawyers. The memorial which the miners' committee drew up referred, of
ocurse, to things which had already transpired and did not anticipate what was to
corne.

Mr. MODOUGAL.-Is not this a commission of general inquiry into official acts
in this country?

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Yes, as far as that memorial went; the memorial is cited
almost in full in the royal commission, and the memorial refers to what had trans-
pired, not what was to follow. The question bas been raised by legal gentlemen,
and will be raised probably before this commission, whether or not we go on and
investigate anything that transpired aftor the 25th of August.

Mr. ARMsTRNG.-That will have to be threshed out.
The CoMMIssIoNERa.-I have the matter under consideration with the legal

adviser and will let you know.
Mr. ARMsTRoNG.-If the government don't wish to get at the matter ?-
The CoMMISsIONER.-This question bas been raised by legal gentlemen. The

government is not at fault at ail. You issued a memorial to Ottawa, saying that
certain things had occurred. This memorial did not anticipate what was to occur.

As to the matter of witnesses coming in. as I told you, I will take that into
Consideration and suggest that they keep track of their expenses and submit the
aCcount to me, which I will forward to Ottawa. This is ail I can do.

Mr. MODoUGAL.-The need for relief in such cases is immediate, as I would call
to your attention, a number of the men called in have no shelter.

HERBERT E. A. RoBERTsoN.-I appear in behalf of the miners' association, and
infer that the charges to be investigated will be those which occurred prior to the
date of the memorial.

The COMMIssIoNER.-I said the question had been raised. I did not say what
Would be done. I suppose some of the detendants will have legal representatives
here, and the moment you bring in any question relating to charges made since the
25th of August against any defendants, their counsel may object to it.

Mr. RoBERTSON.-I am sorry to say I have not a copy of the commission.
The CommissIoNER.-The commission is here and you can read it.
(Mr. Robertson takes the commission and reads.)
Mr. RoBERTSN.-As I take it, the object of the commission is simply that you

should examine into the state of affairé in the gold commissioner's office from its
inception up to the present and the closing of the commission. I would take that
to be the meaning,. as there are no specific charges made. The charges by the
Ininers' committee were small, while they were very general; and certain things
having been alleged against offleers unknown, in most cases undoubtedly, with the
exception of one or two officers, most of them had been blameless. I don't know
but what they ail may have been who were there. I hope for their own sakes they
all have been. I would suggest that the scope of the commission is large enongh to
allow for all charges to come up under the commission.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-My own desire is to make the inquiry as full and complete
a possible so there will be nothing left to be said, except what may be said by
certain people who would talk anyway. I am simply saying that objection bas
been raised and that will have to be thought of. Suppose any charges are preferred
against an official since the 25th of August, that may be objected to. The question
Will have to be settled whether or not the commission should inquire into any thinge
that have transpired since the 25th of August.

Mr. ROBERTsoN.-In this matter I have some seven or eight charges; and in
certain cases they ail occurred later than the 25th of August, and the result will be,
if these are not allowed, that it will balk the commission.

The ComInfssIONER.-Suppose you take up those charges that occurred before
the 26th of August, and go on with them until the question is settled. Personally,I want to make the commission as full and general as possible. Iam stopped
though through a legal techniclity.
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Mr. McDoUGAL.-I don't see how it is possible that any legal adviser could hold
that the commission should not have the greatest possible width.

The CoMMIssIoNR.-The commission was issued for investigating certain specific
charges. If I go beyond that, I would have to go on under the ordinary rules of
evidence as an ordinary commissioner, not as royal commissioner. The fact that
any wrong acts committed since the 25th of August are not allowed under the royal
commission, need not stop investigation o." the same, but under such an investigation,
witnesses need not answer any questions criminating themselves; under this com-
mission they have to. The only way they criminate themselves is by perjuring
themselves, so you may go on and take up charges that occurred previous to that
date, and when such charges are taken up and evidence given implicating any clerk,
we will give him notice.

Mr. RoBERTSN.-I have some half'dozen charges here. They read as follows:-

In the matter of the royal commission, dated the 7th day of October, A.D. 1898
directed to William Ogilvie, esquire, for the purpose of inquiring into wrongs
alleged to have been committed by government officials in the Yukon Territory,
and in the matter of Thomas Fawcett, Frederick Wade, A. Hurdman, E. D.
Bolton and William Wright.

1. George Armstrong and Percy McDougal charge Thomas Fawcett that he,
Thomas Fawcett, did unlawfully use his official position as gold commissioner for
the Yukon Territory, and in the exercise of such power did cause a record and grant
to be issued on the lst day of August, A.D. 1898, to one Alexander McDonald, of
cleek placer mining claim number 16 " b," below lower Discovery on Dominion
Creek, in the Indian River mining division of the Yukon Territory in substitution,
he, Thomas Fawcett, well knowing that the said McDonald had never staked the
claim so granted.

2. The said George Armstrong and Percy MoDougal also charge Thomas
Fawcett that ho, Thomas Fawcett, was negligent in regulating admission to the
gold commissioner's offce in that, though informed that money was paid to the em-
ployoe% in the offce to obtain information and precedence, yet he, the said Thomas
Fawcett, refused to hold an inquiry.

3. The said George Armstrong and Percy McDougal also charge Thomas
Fawcett and Frederick Wade with abusing their position as government officials by
granting a lease of part of the public highway, known as the Dawson Water Front,
to Messrs. Morrison and McDougald, they, the said Thomas Fawcett and Frederick
Wade, well knowing that the same was part of the public domain and reserved by
statute from sale or lease.

4. The said George Armstrong and Percy McDougal also charge Frederick
Wade that he, Frederick Wade, did in the spring of 1898, while in the employ of the
government of Canada, obtain an interest in the Klondike Suspension Bridge,
ùnlawfully and corruptly, by guaranteeing a monopoly to the promoters thereof and
guaranteeing that no license for another bridge would be issued or for a ferry. That
he used his position as a government employee for his own benefit and not for the
benefit of the public.

5. The saicd George Armstrong and Percy McDougal also charge A. Hurdman
that he, A. Hurdman, did, in the month of August, 1898, sell a list of unrecorded
grund between Fox Gulch and 19 Gulch, to One C. J. Nelson, for the sum of ten
dollars, and further, that he, the said A. Hurdman did, in the month of September,
1898, withhold information regarding unrecorded ground from one Henry A.
Frederick until the said Henry A. Fred erick had paid to him the sum of five dollars.

6. The said George Armstrong and Percy McDougal also charge William Wright,
that he, Wfiliam Wright, did unlawfully accept the sum of seventy-five dollars for
information supplied by him to certain parties; and that he the said William
Wright did accept a half interest in a certain claim for imfor-oation supplied, and
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that he William Wright did receive the sum of ten dollars for a list of unrecorded
claims.

Dated at Dawson, Yukon Territory, thist 21st day of February, A.D. 1899.

GEORGE ARMSTRONG,
PERCY MoDOUGAL.

Mr. MoDoUGAL.-We will call evidence to show that money was paid for
access to the gold commissioner's office.

The CoMMISSIoNER.-That was charged in memorial sent to the government.

Mr. E. J. MERTAUGH was called and sworn.

Examined by Mr. Percy McDougal:

Q. Yon are a miner ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. When did you come into this country ?-A. Landed here the 11th of June,

1897.
Q. This is your second winter ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You have been mining on the varions creeks here ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You are the owner of a valuable bench claim on Bonanza ?-A. Yes.
Q. You had some difficulty getting into the gold commissioner's office ?-

A. Yes, sir.
Q. What date was that ?-A. I don't know the exact date, it was about the last

of July ?
Q. Of wbat year ?-A. This year, 1898.
Q. Describe to us what doors there were in the gold commissioner's office ?-

A. Well, the only door I tried to get in was the first door-facing the river.
Q. What other door is there ?-A. The other door is a aide door at the corner

facing down the river north.
Q. Is there another door on that aide ?-A. There is another door there into

the gold commissioner's private office.
Q. Marked private ?-A. I think there was a notice on one door that it was

private. I would not be sure.
Q. Which door did you try first ?- A. I was about 10 or 12 days trying the

door next to the river.
Q. What success did yon have there ?-A. Well, I could not get in there. I

had got a number to get in once; didn't happen to be present when the number was
called, and spent some time trying to get another number or in the door.

Q. Were there many people waiting to get in?-A. Yes, air, all the time a
Crowd of people waiting. It would average, I suppose, about 50 or 60 at that time.

Q. Did many get in of that crowd ?-A. I didn't see many get in that door.
Q. Any distinction between those getting miner's licenses and those trying to

get in the ordinary way ?-A. There were men got in while I was waiting there
Who said they wanted to do some other business beaside recording claims. I don't know
what their business was.

Q. From whom did you get the number ?-A. A policeman. I don't know hie
Dame.

Q. Do you see him in the court? A. Yes, I see him.
Q. Finding out that there was difficulty in getting in the front door, what did

you do then ?-A. I went to the side door. 'Was told by a friend that I could get in
that way.

Q. s Who was that?-It was Mr. Olson, an old partner of mine for years in the
States.

Q. What means did you take te effect an entry by the aide door ?-A. I went
around and watched a constable and saw that people were going in and I went up
and offered the man at the door $5. Told him I was tired of waiting at the other
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door and wished to get in. He took the $5 and told me to wait there ton minutes,
and in ton minutes he opened the door and told me to come in.

Q. Would you recognize the man again ? Can you see that man (pointing to
Mr. Levere Villeneuve) ?-A. That is him, that dark gentleman with the moustache.

Q. Did you know bis name?-A. No, I never did.
Q. What money did you pay ?-A. It was a $5 bill.
Q. Did you see anybody else hand him money ?-A. I seen men talking as if

they might bave paid money, but I don't know. Didn't see any one hand money to
him.

By the Commissioner:

Q. When did you learn this door-keeper's name ?-A. I never learned his name.
Q. You simply recognize the face and figure ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You don't know bis name ?-A. No, sir, then I think be had a policeman's

uniform on.
Q. In which door did you obtain an entrance at that time?-A. That was the

door facing down the river close to the corner.
Q. The front or side door? That was the door you paid $5 at?-A. Yes.
Q. That was all that you ever paid ?-A. That waa ail that I ever paid to get in.
Q. That is the only man you ever had any conversation with attached to the

offce ?-A. That is the only man I ever paid or offered to pay.
Q. You were directed to do that by your friend ?-A. By the man who had

been my partuer before that.
Mr. McDouGAL.-Could ho be asked where Mr. Oslen is?
Mr. CommissioNER.-Mr. Olson went ont last fall but I expect ho is in the

Atlin County now. I don't know, he promised to write me.
Q. You have no knowledge where ho is at present ?-A. No, sir.
The CoMMIsSloNER, addressing Mr. Villeneuve.-Would you, Mr. Villeneuve,

like to ask the witness any question ?-A. I don't think he saw me at the time. I
think ho is making a mistake.

The CoMrIssIoNER.-You can ask him any question, Mr. Villeneuve, but you
need not make any statement uutil you are in the witness box.

Mr. VILLENEUVE.-I have no question to ask him.
The CoMMEsSINER.-When will you ho ready?
Mr. VILLENEUVE.-I will be ready this afternoon as soon as the court is ready.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-Be ready at 2, don't hurry yourself, if you want more time.
Mr. VILLENEUVE -I guess I will ho ready then.

TuoMAs MARwicK, called and sworn.

By Mr. Clement;

Q. Yon are a miner in tbis country ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. When did yon corne here ?-A. I came 14th June, 1897.
Q. This is your second winter bore ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Have you mined on the varions creeks here ?-A. Only on Bonanza.
Q. Are you the owner of a bencb claim on Bonanza, No. 53 ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. You had to renew that claim during last year ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you remomber on what day yon came into Dawson to renew that claim?

-A. On the 14th of August.
Q. What day did you come in ?-A. On Sunday.
Q. Did any one come in with you ?-A. Yes, Mr. Murdoch.
Q. Is ho your partner ?-A. No, he is not.
Q. Did yon have any diffeulty in getting into the gold commissioner's office

to renew that claim ?-A. Yes, we bad.
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Q. What did you do ?-A. I waited about.
Q. What day did you try first to get in ? You didn't try on Monday ?-A. I

came in on Sunday, and I tried on Monday at the tront door.
Q. Did you try at the side door to get in ?-A. Well, yes I did.
Q. You tried to get into the office on Monday ?-A. Yes.
Q. Tried on Tuesday ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. On Wednesday ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Wore thore many people trying to get in at that time you were trying to

get in ?-A. Yes, quite a few.
Q. Did many of them get in ?-A. Yes, quite a few men got in. Those who

wanted minera' licenses.
Q. Was there a special call made for them ? Of thoso who did not, how many

do you think got in on Monday ?-A. That I could not say, I am suro.
Q. Were there any numbers being given out at that time ?-A. Thoy said they

weore going to but never did.
Q. Did you get a number?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you see any men with numbers ?-A. I cannot say I did.
Q. Was there any order of admission to the office? Did those who came first

take precedence over others ?-A. Yes, they stood in line, and the men got in first
who were nearest to the door.

Q. Did you try to get in the aide door ?-A. Yes, I tried there too.
Q. Did you see anybody get in the aide door ?-A. There were a few getting in

there once in a while.
Q. Did you find out how they managed to get into the aide door ?-A. No, I

did not.
Q. Did you ever speak to the men who got in the aide door ?-A. No, I cannot

Bay I did.
Q. Do you recognise the man, Villeneuve, as the man who allowed yon to pass

in at the aide door?-A. This gentleman here ?
Q. Yes ?-A. Yes, I believe he is the man.
Q. Did you get in at last ?-A. Well, I paid $10, and got in.
Q. Well, to whom did you pay that money ?-A. I paid it to Joe Magill.
Q. Who is he ?-A. He is a man who is working down town.
Q. Where was he working ?-A. He was working in a law office.
Q Whose law office ?-A. That I am not sure of. I could not say whose office

he was working in.
Q. Were you acquainted with Mr. Magill at that time you paid him this moey ?

-- A. Yes.
Q. Where did you meet him ?-A. The firat time on the creek, he was working

alongside of me.
Q. I mean with reforence to getting into the office, when did you, first meet

him ?-A. I met him 17th August, in the evening.
Q. Where was that ?-A. At the Oatley Sisters' dance hall.
Q. That was the 17th of August, Wednesday evening, after trying three days

to get into the office?-A. Yes.
Q. What conversation took place between you and Mr. Magill at that time ?-

A. Well, he asked me when I was going up the creek. I told him I did not know,
that I could not get into the gold commissioner's office.

Q. What did he say then?-A. He said ho would get me in for .10.
Q. Did you make any arrangement then to get in on his representation ?-A.

No, sir, not right there, no.
Q. Did you finally get the pass thon ?-A. The next day I met Mr. Hlagill. He

Went too.
Q. Did you meet him by arrangement ?-A. Yes.
Q. What did you do then ?-A. We came to the gold commissioner'a office and

lMr. Magill got the pasa.
Q. You walked from town up to the office ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Then what happened ?-A. I stood outside and Mr. Magili went inside.
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Q. Whicb door did he go through ?-A. He went in the door on the far corner
next to the hill.

Q. That was on the north side of the office and away from the river ?-A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Was that door marked in any special way ?-A. No, not that I know of.
Q. It was marked private ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Was Mr. Murdoch waiting at that time on the 18th, when you went with

Mr. Magill to the office ?-A. Yes, I believe he was.
Q.How long did Mr. Magill stay in the office ?-A. Ho was not in very long,

ton minutes possibly.
Q. Did lie corne out at the same door ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What happened thon ?-A. He gave me a pass, and I went down and paid

him for it.
Q. You went down town with him ? Where did you go to pay the money ?-

A. The New England saloon.
Q. Did you pay in money or dust?-A. In dust.
Q. Weighed out in the New England saloon and this money got the pass ?-A.

Yes, sir,
Q. What was the pass like ?-A. It was simply a little slip of paper about 3

inohes long and 1 inches wide.
Q. Any writting on it ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What was said on the pass ?-A. Please admit bearer at one o'clock.
Q. Was there any signature ?-A. Yes, but I could not read it.
Q. Did yon try to cipher it?-A. Yes, but could not.
Q. Did anybody else try ?-A. Yes, there was another party tried, but could not

read it.
Q. The initiais or the signature?-A. The signature.
Q. Will you look at this piece of paper? Was the pass anything like that at

ail ?-A. No, sir, it was not like that.
Q. Iad it the offce stamp as this one bas ?-A. No, sir.
The CoMMIsIONR.-Will you let me see that? (The commissioner examines

the piece of paper.)

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. After weighing ont the gold dust what did you do then ?-A. Well, I went
home to dinner and came back at one o'olock and went to the office.

Q. You waited outside until the door opened ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. The door was closed during the dinner hour?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. it opened after the dinner bour and you went in ?-A. Yes
Q. Were there others waiting?-A. Yes, quite a few.
Q. When you went in at the door how did you effect an entrance ? Was there

anybody at the door ?-A. Yes, sir, there was a door-keeper.
Q. Who was it ?-A. It was that gentleman there (pointing to Mr. Villeneuve.)
Q. You could swear to him as being the door-keeper ?-A. Yes, I believe I

could.
Q. What did you do with the pass when you got admission ? How did you

present it ?-A. I handed it to the door-keeper.
Q. Then you got in without difficulty ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you see others presenting similar passes ?-A. I seen them presenting

passes, or numbers 1 don't know which.
Q. How many people were gathered at the side door at the time you vent into

the gold commissioner's office on 18th August ?-A. There was about 20 or 30
waiting.

Q. Were the passes kept or given back ?-A. They wero kept.
Q. That was the Thursday, the 18th of August ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. On the 19th did you go again to the office of the reorder's ?-A. Yes.
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Q. For what purpose did you go ?-A. Well, I went to get a pass for Mr.
Murdoch.

Q. About what time did you go to the office with Magill ?-A. About noon I
should judge.

Q. Was Murdoch waiting near the office at that time ?-A. Yes, ho was some
place around.

Q. Did you see him ?-A. Yes, I saw him.
Q. At which door did Magill get into the office ?-A. Well, he went in at the

sarne door as ho did before.
Q. That is to say, the side door ?-A. Yes, the private door next to the hill.
Q. Did ho come out again soon ?-A. Yes, ho came ont again soon.
Q. What had ho thon ?-A. He had a paso.
Q. What was done with the pass ?-A. He gave it to me and I gave it to Mur.

doch.
Q. Thon what did you do ?-A. Weil, I went down town and paid him for it.
Q. Did you pay in gold dust or in money ?-A. I paid in dust.
Q. Where was that dust weighed out ?-A. In the New England saloon.
Q. What was the consideration for the dust, what did you pay it for ?-A..

paid it for this pass.
Q. What was the pass like? Was it like the other you had ?-A. Yes, something

the same.
Q. That is to say, there was writing on it ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What did it say ?-A. Admit the bearer at one o'clock.
Q. Was there a signature ?-A. Yes.
Q. initials ?-A. No, the signature, but I could not read it.
Q. Du you think the hand writing was the same ?-A. Yes.

By the Commissioner:

Q. The same as what ?-A. The same as the one I got the day before.
Q. When you presented those passes to the door-keeper where were the clerks

Who regulate the business in the recorder's office ?-A. They were standing at their
wickets.

Q. Could you see them from your position ?-A. I could not say for certain.

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. When that side door opened, several of you to whom passes had been given,
entered the office, is that so ?-A. I didn't enter the aide door.

Q. You when into the front door when yon presonted the paso ?-A. Yes, when I
Presented my pass I went in the front door.

Q. When it was open after the dinner hour ?-A. Yes.
Q. Others went with you ?-A. Yes.

By the Commissioner:

Q. When Mr. Magili obtained this pass did ho intimate from whom ho got it ?
-A. No, sir.

Q. Didn't associate the name of any clerk of the gold commission's office with
that at all ?-A. No, sir.

Q. Yon have no knowledge thon from whom Mr. Magill got the pass ?-A. No,sir, I have none whatever.
Q. He took your $10 and gave you the paso? Who ho got it from you don't.

know ?-A. No, sir, I do not.
Q. When yon obtained entrance, the door-keeper didn't exact any more from

yOu ?-A. No, sir, I handed him the pass and went in.
Q. Mr. Murdoch personally was in the same predicament ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. So the door-keeper was not guilty in your case at ail ?-A. No, sir, the door-

keoper waa not guilty as far as I know.
19
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Q. You don't know ?-A. I have no knowledge of the man who signed the
passes, no, sir.

Q. Can you associate the hand writing in any way with the hand writing on
this bit of paper ?-A. No, it is not the same writing at all.

. Q. You can in no way indicate who issued that pass ?-A. No, sir, I have no
knowledge at all who issued the paso.

To Ma. MAoILL.-Do you wish to ask the witness any questions ?-A. No, sir.
To WITNE8S.-At the time you did mot understand Magill to have any connec-

tion with the gold commissioner's office ?-A. At the time I didn't know he had.
Q. You simply understood he was using the influence ho alleged he had to get,

your entrance to the gnld commissioner's office ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And you paid him $10 for it ?-A. Yes, sir,
Q. And you cannot associate any clerk in the gold commissioner's office with

this transaction ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Magili didn't give you to understand that ho had to divide with anybody to

get this pass ?-A. No, sir, ho did not.
Q. So that, really, you eau make no charge against any clerk in the gold com-

misioner's office personally ?

By Mr. McDougal :

Q. Did Magill tell you that he had given suoh passes to anybody else before ?-
A. No, sir. In fact, he was quiet about the whole matter. No, he didn't seemu to
talk about it.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You recognise Mr. Villeneuve as the doorkeeper, but, as you have said before
he had no connection with this transaction to your knowledge ?-A. No, sir.

JoHN MuaDocH, being duly sworn, testified as follows

By Mr. Mc Dougal:

Q. You are a miner in this country, Mr. Murdoch ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Have you mined on the various creeks here ?-A. On Bonanza.
Q. You own a claim on Bonanza?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Which is that ?-A. The one just above Mr. Mertaugh's, further up the

creek
Q. When did you come into the country ?-A. In June of this year.
Q. You mean 1898 ?-A. Yes; I came In with Mr. Mortaugh.
Q. What date did you come into Dawson to renew this claim?-A. About the

1ith or 15th of August, I couldn't say the exact date; it was on Saturday.
Q. You came in with Mertaugh ? A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you have any difficulty in getting into the gold commissioner's office ?

-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you try on Monday ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you try on Tuesday ?-A. Yes, sir, Tuesday.
Q. And Wednesday ?-A. Yes, sir, Wednesday.
Q.And Friday, the 19th, you got in, did you ?-A. I think that was it; I got

in the day after Mertaugh got in.
Q. You tried both doors ?-A. Yes.
Q. While you were trying to get in there what did you see at the front door ?

-A. Well, there was a crowd standing there, waiting their turn.
Q. Did many of them get in ?-A. I heard the door-keeper come out once or

twice and ask if any body wanted miner's licenses; several got in that way.
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Q. Did many go in that way ?-A. They must have got in some way, the office
seemed to be full all the time.

Q. Do you know of any other way in which people got in ?-A. Well, some got
in on numbers.

Q. Did your over get a number ?-A. I never see any numbers given out.
Q. You got no number ?-A. No, mir.
Q. What was the general subject of conversation in the crowd ?-A. Well, I

couldn't tell you, I am sure.
Q. There was a good deal of joking about the way things were being conducted

in the gold commissioners' office, wasn't there ? Did vou hear anything said
about paying to get into the office ?-A. Well, I heard something of that.

Q. Did you see anybody going in at the side door at the time yon were waiting
to get in the office ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever try to get in that way?-A. Well, I had no puas.
Q. Who prevented you from going in at that door ?-A. Villeneuve.
Q. Do you recognize him ?-A. Yes, certainly.
Q. Who were the people who wore allowed to pass when you requested an

ontrance ?-A. Well, some had little slips of paper; they went in.
Q. Did any one show you a slip of paper ?-A. No.
Q. You saw passes presented and accepted ?-A. Yes, I also asked the door-

keeper why I couldn't get a pass; he said it was those who went in before dinner
and didn't get through with their business got passes to come back in after dinner.

Q. Did ho give you a pass ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Wore you standing outside the gold commissioner's office when McGill

went in the office to get the pass for Marwick on 18th Auguat?-A. I didn't see him.
Q. Would you know McGill by sight ?-A. I didn't know him at that time, no.
Q. Did you know him before that date ?-A. No.
Q. Yon didn't know him before August at all ?-A. Woll I saw him in August.
Q. Did you see him to know that ho was Mr. McGill before the 19th of August ?

-- A. Not to my knowledge.
Q. Well on the 19th you knew that some one was to get a pass for you ?-A.

WeIl, yes, Mr. Marwick had got i the day before. I tried one day longer and got
tired losing lots of time. I had rather give ten dollars than wait for a month.

Q. Did you see Marwick go to the office to get the paso for you ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was ho accompanied by anybody ?-A. Yes, McGill.
Q. You know him to be McGili ?-A. Yes.
Q. What did McGill do ?-A. Marwick stepped around the corner and McGill

went into the office; came out in a few minutes and went over to Marwick and gave
him a littie slip of paper. Marwick came back and gave me the pass, and thon went
up town and paid him for the paso.

Q. Did you pay any money to McGill ?-A. Marwick paid the'money.
. Q. Did ho tell you ho had paid the money ?-A. I heard him say he paid him
in the New England saloon-I didn't see him pay him.

Q. What door did McGill entir the commissioner's ofce ?-A. At the private
door.

Q. Have you ever paid Marwick ton dollars since then ?-A. I have never
actually handed him ton dollars but I bave given money-he has had money from
me all the time.

Q. On the 19th you got the pas. ?-A. Yes.
Q. Will you have a look at the pass on the table and see if it looked anythinglike that ?-A. I couldn't say anything about it. Whon I got it I simply opened it

and didn't look at it closely.
Q. Did you see what was on it ?-A. I saw " admit behror " and signature.
Q. What was the signature ?-A. I couldn't identify the signature.
Q. Did anybody else try ?-A. I used it very shortly after I got it.
Q. Did it have the btamp of the gold commissioner's office on it ?-A. That I

conidn't øsy.
Q. When you got the pass, what did you do with it ?-A. I waited until the

door opened.
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Q. Which door ?-A. lt was the door neareet the river.
Q. How many got in ?-A. Perhaps eight or ten in at the same time.
Q. All the people presented passes ?-A. I guess they ail presonted passes. I

seen some of them.
Q. You don't know whether they ail paid ?-A. No.
Q. You presented your pass ?-A. Yes.
Q. To whom did you present your paso ?-A. To Villeneuve, the door-keeper.
Q. You are quite certain ?-A. Yes, sir, quite certain.
Q. Were the passes given back or kept ?-A. Mine was not given back to me.
Q. What was the object of your giving the passes to the door-keeper when the

door opened ?-A. Yes, quite a little at that time.
Q. Where were the officials who conducted the business in the recorder's office

when you got inside-were they at their desks ?-A. Well, I wouldn't swear they
were.

Q. When you got in after handing the pass to the door-keeper could you see
any of the officias?-A. I couldn't say, it was just close after dinner, and it may
have been they were not there.

Q. You have no positive knowledge of that?-A. No; I don't remember.

By the Commissioner:

Q. When Mr. Marwiek got you this pass, did ho tell you who ho got it from ?-
A. Well, he told me ho got it from McGill.

Q. Did ho lead you to believe that any clerk or official in the gold commis-
sioner's office issued it?-A. Not as far as I know.

Q. You had no knowledge whatever who had signed the pass ? Could you
associate in any way any clerk in the gold commissioner's office with the issiaing of
that paso ?-A. No, sir; I could not.

Q. Do you recognize Mr. McGill as the gentleman who was instrumental in
getting you that pass ?-A. Yes.

Q. You say there were people admitted on passes. Do you know, as a matter
of fact, whether or no these passes, or practically orders, took precedence over
people being admitted in the usual way ?-A. I don't know.

Q. Y.>u know yours was a pass, and what the others were you don't know ?-
A. No, sir; I don't know.

Q. Can you associate that piece of paper in any way with the piece you went in
on ?-A. No, sir; I didn't look at it closely.

Q. Can you recognize the handwriting ?-A. I cannot recognize the handwriting.
Q. Are you positive that the signature on your pass was a name and not an

initial ?-A. Weil, even that I couldn't- swear to; because it was right before the
door was oponed I got it, and I just glanced at it.

Q. You really don't know whether any official in the gold commissioner's office
received one cent for that pass or not ?-A. No, sir.

Q. When you were admitted, did the door-keeper have any objection ?-A. No,
sir; when I presented the pass ho let me in.

Q. Did ho receive any further payment from you when ho took the pass?-A.
No, sirl.

Q. You have positively no knowledge as to who issued that pass in the gold
commissioner's office, supposing it had been issued there ?-A. No, sir.

Mr. Fawcett, are there any questions you wish to ask the witness ?
Mr. FAwonEr.-No. The door was not under the case of the commissioner at

all. As for the side door, it was there for everybody to go in. Naturally, no one
was allowed to pass through the recording part.

By the Commiuioner:

Q. When you received this pass, was it intimated to you to whom you were to
give it when you went in ?-A. No; I was going to re.locate, and went to the qlerk
especially for that.
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JOE A. MOGILL, being duly sworn, testified as follows

By Mr. McDougal;

Q. What is your occupation, Mr. McGill ?-A. Stenograpier.
Q. Where ?-A. In the office of Burritt & McKay.
Q. Have you known Mr. Marwick for some time ?-A. Since the latter part of

November, 1897.
Q. You have beard the evidence of the last two witnesses ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Have you any explanation to offer the court ?-A. No, none whatever.
Q. Is that evidence true or not ?-A. Well that is for the commissioner to decide.

I am sure I am not here to decide whether it is true or not.
Q. Is that evidence true or not ? I want you to answer.-A. Well, yes, part of

it is true I suppose-I cannot remember.
Q. To what extent is it true ?-A. I cannot remember.
Q. You got a pass for Mr. Marwick didn't yon ?-A. Yes, I got a pass for him

into the gold commissioner's office.
Q. Did you meet Marwick in town on that occasion or did he corne to your

office ?-A. I met him several times-I don't remember exactly.

thatQ. Did he come into your office on 17th August?-A. I don't remember as to

Q. Had you any particular arrangement with him about getting this paso ?-A.
No, none whatever.

Q. Howdid you cometoget itfor him?-A. Well, I methim on thestreet, I.think,
and he said that he had been loafing around two or three days trying to get into the
gold commissioner's office, and ho asked me if I could get him in. I told him I thought
I could.

Q. Did any other conversation take place then in regard to your ability or
inability to get him the pass ?-A. Well, I don't remember.

Q. Were you accustomed to getting passes for people to get into the gold com-
lnissioner's office?-A. No, sir, never had done it before.

Q. When did you give Marwick this pass ?-A. The next day.
Q. Where did you get the pass ?-A. I wrote it out and gave it to him.
Q. Where did you write it ?-A. In the gold commissioner's office.
Q. Did you see anybody present when you wroto that pass ?-A. I guess all the

clerks, or most of them were there.
Q. Did any one see yon sign the pass ?-A. I don't know whether they did or

not.
Q. Did you put the office stamp on the pass ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did it have the office stamp on it ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you get any money for that pass ?-A. Yes, I got ton dollars for it.
Q. Did you have any arrangements with the door-keeper so that you knew that

the pass would be accepted ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Then why was the pass signed by you accefted by the door-keeper ?-A.

I don't know.
Q. To the best of your knowledge you didn't know when you wrote the pass

Whether it would be received or not ?-A. No, I didn't.
Q. You simply gave him the pass and trusted to luck that it would be accepted ?

A. Yes.
Q. Mr. Marwick then paid you for the pass ?-A. WelI, we came up town and

'Vent into the New England saloon and he paid me for it there.
Q. Then he paid you for the pass afterwards, did ho ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. How did you come to go to the gold commissioner'8 office to write that pass ?

-A. Well, I had to go there frequently on business, and I went there possibly
thinking it would give it more weight.

Q. What did you go there for ?-A. Weil, as an employee of a law firm, I bad
to go there to copy papers and record bills of sale.

Q. Then, as an employee of a law firm, you had the run of the office ?-A. Well,I don't know as yon would call it the run exactly, but we had the privilege of copy-
23
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ing papers and recording bills of sale, searching titles, making copies of instruments,
&c., and the like.

Q. When you went down to the gold commissioner's office with Marwick which
door did you go in ?-A. I think I went in through Mr. Faweett's private door.

Q. Was Mr. Faweett in his office at the time ?-A. He may have been ; I
couldn't iay. Sometimos ho was there and sometimes ho wasn't.

Q. Were there many people there at the time waiting to get into the offc ?-
A. Yes, quite a number outaide.

Q. People who wanted to record claims to get miner's licenses had to pay to
get in if they wanted to transact business speedily, did they ?-A. Not that I know
of-I couldn't say.

Q. Did you give passes to anyone else ?-A. No one.
Q. These are the only two passess you have issued ?-A. The only two I have

ever issued, yes, sir.
Q. What was written on them ?-A. I think it was " Please admit bearer, J.

A. McGill."
Q. Have you ever seen a pass similar to the one on the table? (Shown pass).

-A. Never seen that.
Q. Have yon seen a paso similar to that?-A. 19o, sir.
Q. Will you write a pass similar to the one you wrote on that occasion ?-A. As

well as I can remember. (Witnesa writes puas.)
Q. What does that say ?-A. Ploase admit bearer, J. A. McGill.
Q. Is that ail that was on it ?-A. I think &o; there might have been, and oblige.
Q. .I that your signature ?-A. It is not now, it was at that time. Yen car notice

a change in the signature. I used to write Joe A. McGili. I now write J. A. McGill.
Q. Is that the way you signed the other paso ?-A. I think it was; I am not

sure. Possibly, and oblige, was on it.
Q. But that is the signature as well as you can remember ?-A. As near as I

can remember.
Q. Did you consider the signature illegible ?-A. No.
Q. Did you in any way try to make it illegible ?-A. I might have doue so-

I might have tried to disguise it a littie.
Q. Did you write that pass in Mr. Faweett's private room ?-A. No, sir. I

wrote it at the desk where the bench claim window is now, or the information bureau
is now.

Q. Did you write both passes there ?-A. I don't remember about the second
one; I presume I did.

Q. Why did you write them there; bocause you got ton dollars for them?-A.
Of course I wanted to give it effeet.

Q. Had you any means of knowing that the passes would be accepted by Mr.
Villeneuve, the door-keeper at that time ?-A. No, sir, at that time there were two
door-keepers une outside and one inside.

Q. Did you ever see Villeneuve passing any minera into the office ?-A. Dozens
of times.

Q. You saw him taking passes ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you know whether other people were engaged in the same traffie in

selling passes to the minera ?-A. No, sir, I do not.
Q. Will you swear that you didn't know any other person engaged in issuing

passes ?-A. Yes, sir, I swear it.
Q. You swear that you never gave any other passes for money?-A. Yes I

swear.
Q. Whon did you get Murdock into the offiee ?-A. Weil, I went outaide and

met hiln and gave him the pass.
Q. And ybn say you didn't have any arrangements with any one in the office

that this-pass would be received ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Had you Any reason te believe that it would?-A. Well, I thought they

would not know the difference in the orowd. I didn't suppose they would examine
ail of the'r.
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Q. What was your opinion about these passes; did you know by whom they
were given ?-A. Not the slightest idea.

Q. Did you ever see any of these passes ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Why did you think you were qualified to issue passes ?-A. I did not think

I had any special qualifications.
Q. Do you think a blank piece of paper would have done just as well without

having writing on it ?-A. It may have.
- Q. Did you consider the door-keeper was not tufficiently intelligent to descri-
minate between an authentic and an unauthentic pass when tbere was a great crowd
pushing in at the door ? You swear that you think that if a blank piece of paper
were presented to that door-keeper a person would get into the office ahead of
miners who had not passes ?-A. They might have, I couldn't 'say.

Q. And you had no idea that the door-keeper would accept your pass ?-A. I
was simply running a bluff on him.

Q. Did you write these two passes in the presence of the clerks in the office ?-
A. Yes, they were in the office at the time.

Q. Was Mr. Fawcett present ?-A. No, I think not.
Q. Did any one see yon write them ?-A. I don't know.
Q. Who was there?-A. Well I wrote them at the desk I think between Mr.

Fortune and Mr. Hurdman.

No. Q. Did you ever tell anybody in the office that yon were writing passes ?-A.

Q. Did you ever inform the clerks of the gold commissioners's office that you
had given passes?-A. No.

Q. Did you have any conversation with the clerks about having issued
passes in any way ?-A. No never had any conversation with any one about it.

Q. Did you ever have any conversation with Villeneuve about passes ?-A. I
have never spoken a dozen words to him in my life.

Q. Will you swear that these two passes are the only two passes you ever
issued ?-A. Yes.

Q. How man times have you been in the gold commissioner's office?-A. I
suppose five hundred timea during the last summer.

Q. And these are the only two passes you have issued ?-A. Yes.
Q. On the 18th of August when yon got the passes for Marwick what occured

when you went to Mr. Fawcett's room ? Did you notice Mr. Fawcett in his
room?-A. I don't remember that I did; I couldn't say.

Q. But this would be rather a particular occasion, you remember that you swore
that these were the only two passes you ever issued. Wouldn't that be suffloient to
mark this occasion as a memorable one in your mind ?-A. I did not go into the gold
commissioner's office for that purpose; I was going there at the time on other
business. I have had five hundred people that bave intercepted me and asked me to
get passes for them ; I never did it except on these two occasions.

Q. Who suggested this system of issuing passes to miners for money to you ?-
A. I suggested it to Marwick. He asked me if I thought I could get him into the
gold commissioner's office. I said I thought I could.

Q. Did you think it right for you to charge a friend ter. dollars to get him into
the office ?-A. Yes, I would charge him twenty dollars, if I could get it.

Q. Had you done other business for Marwick ?-A. Yes.
Q. He was a particular friend of yours and you thought it right to charge him

ten dollars to get him into the gold commissioner's office ?-A. Yes, he said ho
Would rather pay it than to lose the time.

Q. On your visits to the office did you meet other people there than the officiais
in the office ?-A. I met barristers and solicitors and others employed by them.

Q. They were there for the same purpose as yourself-that is, copying docu-
ments, searching titles, &c. ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did you see any one outside of the office ?-A. Yes there was always a great
crowd out there waiting to get in.

Q. Did you see any lawyers waiting outside ?-A. No, sir, I can't remember.
25



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 87A.)

Q. Did you ever get any information out of the office from the fact that you
went there and practically had the run of the office as to unrecorded ground ?-A.
Yes, I have.

Q. To go back to 18th August; when you went to the office you say you don't
remember whether you went in through Mr. Faweett's private room or no?-A.
No, I don't remember.

Q. But do you remember that you wrote the passes in presence of Mr. Fortune
and Mr. Hurdman; was there any one else thore ?-A. I think Mr. Fortune and
perhaps Joe Clark.

Q. When you wrote this pass, you don't know whether they saw it or not ?-
A. No, I couldn't say. I was copying there nearly every day. I don't know
whether they knew w'vhat I was doing or not.

Q. Where did you write the pass that you wrote on the 19th ? Do you remem-
ber whether you wrote the paso in the samu place?-A. No, but I suppose [ did.

Q. Wouldn't the fact of your writing this pass, for which you were going to
get ten dollars, impress this occasion on your mind ?-A. It may have. I don't
remember particularly; I only remember the one occasion.

By the Commissioner

Q. Mr. MeGill, you have stated that you had ready access to the gold com-
missioner's office as clerk in a law office ?-A. Yes.

Q. You have already stated that you issued these two passes, but none before
nor since ?-A. Yes.

Q. Will you please explain whether you ever had any conversation directly or
indirectly with any one in any way connected with the gold commissioner's office
that would lead yon to believe that these passes would be honoured ?-A. No, sir.
Never did.

Q. Did you ever have any arrangements to divide with any one in the office ?-
A. No, sir.

Q. Did you have any reason to believe that your pass would be recognized as
authentic ?-No, sir.

Q. You swear positivoly ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You just thought you would run a bluff on the constable at the time ?-A.

Yes, sir.
Q. When you wrote this pass didn't you undorstand that you were casting

aspersion on the employees of the gold commissioner's office ?-A. No, sir; I didn't
think of it in that way.

Q. There was no understanding between you and the door-keeper ?-A. No,
sir, I never spoke a dozen words to him during my residence in Dawson.

Q. Didn t you think you were running a dangerous game ?-A. 1t might be a
dangerous game if it was to be continued.

Q. You never did anything since of the same kind ?-A. No, sirIneverdid;I
wouldn't have done it on that occasion only that Marwick was a particular friend of
mine, and I had done other work for him, drawing up papers and worked with him
on the dumps during the summer.

Q. And it never occurred to yo that you were stultifying the officials in the
government offices in doing thia ?-A. No, sir.

Q. You didn't consider that you were in any way compromising them ?-A.
No, sir .

The CoMMIssIoNER.-IS Mr. Marwick present ?

Mr. MAnwicx recalled.

Q. Will yon please look at thait paso, the one written by McGill, and see if you
eau mu any way associate it with the pass that you presented to the door-keeper ?-
A. (Witness looking at paso.) That looks something very much like it.

Q. Your impreossion is that the band writing looks similar ?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. As far as you know it may have been an exact copy ?-A. Yes, sir, as far as
I know it may have been an exact copy.

Q. You won't swear positively that it was not?--A. I won't swear to it posi-
tively at alil.

Q. Did Mr. McGill in any way lead you to believe ho was playing a game of
bluff in this transaction ?-A. No, sir.

By Mr. McDougal:
Q. At the time you got the pass from McGill did you think it was McGill's

pass; do you think ho made the pass?-A. I didn't have a second thought.
Q. Never thought about that aspect of the case; you looked at it and tried to

read it?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you ever had dealings with him which would allow you to see his

hand-writing before this?-A. No, sir, not before this.
Q. Before you got the pass from McGill you bad dealings with him, had you

ever seen bis hand-writing ?-A. Well, no, I can't say I did.
Q. Will you read that pass which you have before you ?-A. "Please admit

bearer 1 p.m."
Q. What is the signature?-A. " J. A. McGill."
Q. Was the other signature like that, or more or less illegible ?-A. It was not

near as plain as that is.
Q. Did it appear to you that the hand-writing was concealed ?-A. No.
Q. It was badly written ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was your pass signed by the full name or only initiais?-A. Weil, there

was initiais and then the name.
Q. Did McGill whon ho presented the pass to you, did ho tell you in what way

you were to use this pass when you got to the office ?-A. No.
Q. Did ho teil you to prosent it to any special person ?-A. No.
Q. Simply gave it to you and said you would get in on it ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you have any conversation as to how this pass should ho used ?-A. No.
Q. Suppose if that pass had been handed to you, do you think yon would have

been able to read it as well as you do now; say it had been handed to you outside
and you didn't know who wrote it?-A. Well, I could read theabove letters plainly
enough. The signature-

Q. You would have been able to docipher that without any knowledge of what
it was ?-A. Well, without any knowledge of the signature I don't believe I could.

By the Commisioner:

Q. At the time of the issuance of this pass which you used, you never in any
Way associated Mr. McGill with having himself issued a pass to you?-A. No, sir.
. Q. You swore before yon never in any way had reason to believe that any clerk
i the gold commissioner's office had issued it?-A. No, sir.

Q. As a matter of fact you d id not know who issued the paso ?-A. I don't know.
Q. Your impression is that it resembles the writing you saw, or that I under-

stood you to say you saw, on the pass?-A. Weil, sir, it resembles something the
sane; yes.

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. You said before you showed the pass to several people and they couldn't
read it?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. In comparing the writing of that pass with the writing on this pass do you
think there is any reason to suspect--or would you be forced by similarity to say
that this is the sane hand-writing? Are tbey so similar that you are bound to
recognize them the same ?-A. No, [ don't recognize them-in fact, I can't. The
hand-writing looks something the same.
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Q. Can you see any similarity to the signature on the one you got?-A. Well,
no, I can't.

By the Commissioner:
Q. You saw no similarity between that signature and the signature given

you on the pass referred to ?-A. No, sir; the signature doesn't resemble the other
at all, but the hand-writing on it does-it is something similar, the signature is
different.

Q. Well, you say you showed the pass to several persons and they could not
decipher it; you mean they couldn't decipher the signature or the hand-writing -
A. The sigpature alone.

Q. The rest of it they could read ?-A. Yes, sir.

Mr. MCGILL recalled.

By the Commissioner:
Q. Is that signature the same as the one you used on the pass that you said

you gave to Mr. Marwick?-A. Well, I don't know, I might have written the
other one a littile worse than that.

Q. Weil, the general form was the same ?-A. Yes, the general form was the
same, " J. A. McGill."

Mr. MARwIcK recalled.

By the Commissioner :

Q. I understood you to say before, Mr. Marwick, had yon any reason to believe
at the time that any clerk was going to issue this certificate to you ?-A. WelI, no, I
had no reason to believe.

Q. Mr. McGill didn't attempt to lead you to believe that; you simply took the
pass without asking who issued it, or how it came to you, and used it?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Yo went on assuming that it had been issued from the gold commissioner's
office ?-A. Yes, sir, that vas my impression.

Q. And really you didn't know how it came about?-A. No, sir, really didn't
know how it came about.

Mr. BuaRITT, of the firm of Burritt & MoKay.-May I ask the witness, Mr.
McGili, a couple of questions, the name of our office having been mentioned in the
case ?

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Yes, Mr. Burritt.

By Mr. Burritt :

Q. For whom were you transacting this business with Marwick and Murdock?
-A. It was business between myseif and therm.

Q. It had nothing to do with the office of Burritt & Mackay?-A. No.
Q. Never had any instructions to do business ot' that mort ?-A. None.

Mr. L. F. MURDocK recalled.

By the Commissioner:
Q. Look at that piece of paper and tell me what you think of it?-A. Well,what cap I think of it? (Witness reads) " Please admit bearer 1 p.m."
Q. You say you had a pass by which you obtained entrance to the gold coi-

missioner's offlee on the 19th of August last?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Can you associate that piece of paper with the pasn you used?-A. No, I
could not at this time. I looked at the pass very cursorily. You see I got it just
before the door opened so 1 can't identify it.

Q. You swore that you read what was on the pass ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You may not have paid much attention to it ?-A. Yes; I can't identify the

hand-writing.
Q. Then you can't say that resembles the document you had ?-A. No; whether

it resembles it identically I could not say.
Q. If an exact copy ?-A. If an exact copy I could not say; I don't remember

it well enough to say positively.
Q. Anything in the signature that struck you ?-A. No; I noticed that the

signature was not very legiblo.
Q. Were you in the court-room when McGill was writing it ?-A. Well I was

outside; I know he wrote it; I supposed it was his.
Q. Had you any connection with Mr. McGilI at all in this transaction ?--A.

None whatever; i didn't even get the pass from him.
Q. Were you acquainted with Mr. McGill?-A. No, sir; I believe my first know-

ledge of him was when he. came down with Marwick to get this paso.
Q. Were you introduced to him?-A. No; Marwick went up town to get him,

then he came down, and I judged it was McGill.
Q. All you know of the pass is that you got it from Marwick, and that you

believed he got it from McGill; you only believed that because Marwick told you
so ?-A. No, I saw McGill go into the office and saw him come out and cross over
to where Marwick was waiting. The two then walked down a little way and
Marwick came back.

Q. Did you see him hand it over ?-A. No.
.tQ. Did Marwick tell you McGill gave him the pass ?-A. WeIl, he went to get
it; that was understood.

ALYRED E. ICE, being duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Air. McDougal;

reQ. When did you come into this country?--A. About the 17th of June I got

Q. Where did you come from ?-A. Fdmonton.
Q. Have you been recently resident at the Dome iRoad House ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you have occasion during the summer to do business at the gold com-

misloner's office ?-A. Yes.
Q. Any difficulty in getting it?-A. Yes, considerable difficulty.
Q. Describe the difmculties ?-A. Well simply I had to wait, that was alil.
Q. How long did you have to wait?-A. I think about four days trying to

get in.
Q. What was the occasion ofyour trying to get in ?-A. I wasgetti ng a miner's

certificate in t'e first instance, and afterwards I tried to get a bill of sale recorded.
Q. Did you ever pay monoy to get into the office ?-A. No.
Q. Did you ever get a pass in ?-A. No.
Q. Is your name " Jim Lee " ?-A. No, my name is Alfred E. Lee.
Q. Did you ever use any influence with the door.keeper ?-A. No.
Q. You simply got in in the ordinary course of business ?-A. Yes, sir.
The Coxurs8ioNER.-There must be a mistake in summoning this witness.
Mr. MoDoUGAL.-I would like to call Mr. C. Horn to give evidence on this

point.
The CoXmrssIoNER.-You may call him any time before the l5th of March.
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Mr. LEE.-I would like to say that I have come a considerable distance. I
heard you say, sir, that the matter of expenses would be brought up; would like to
know what official I could send in my claim to.

The CoMMIssoNz.-Send the account to me personally; I will transmit it to
Ottawa. As I told you before, I cannot say what will be done about it. You may
get it and yon may not.

Mr. McDOUGAL.-You might leave the question of money received until this
afternoon.

LEVERE VILLENEUVE, being duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. What is your occupation, Mr. Villeneuve ?-A. I am supposed to be a dog-
driver.

Q. Are you a special constable of the North-west Mounted Police ?-A. Y,s.
Q. How long have you been in the force ?-A. About fourteen months now.
Q. How long have you been in the country ?-A. Since last March, last year.
Q. Were you ever in the country before ?-A. Yes, I was in this country before

about seven years ago.
Q. During the greater part of the summer you were on duty in the gold com-

missioner's office. What was the nature of your duties there ?-A. I was supposed
to sweep the office and keep the office in order.

Q. In the office you generally wore the uniform of the North-west Mounted
Police?-A. No; just as I am here.

Q. Were you generally dressed as you are now in the gold commissioner's
office ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you ever wear the uniform of the North-west Mounted Police ?-A. No,
we are not supposed to wear it.

Q. Did you wear it during the summer?-A. Yes, I had a stable jacket some-
times when it was warm.

Q. Did you generally wear a brown coat very similar to the uniform of the
North-west Mounted Police ?-A. No, sir.

Q. What is a atable-jacket like?-A. Something similar to that (pointing to a
member of.the North-west Mounted Police).

Q. You said you never wore the- uniform similar to the North-west Mounted
Police?-A. I said I wore it sometimes when it was warm, but did not wear it all
the time.

Q. But you didn't wear it?-A. Yes, I wore it a few days in the summer.
Q. But most of the days in the summer did you wear a coat like that officer?

-A. No, sir.
Q. Did yon generally wear a dress similar to the one which you wear now ?-

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Well, what length of time were you on duty in the gold commissioner's

office ?-A. About six months.
Q. When did your term of duty begin ?-A. I don't remember now.
Q. About what time; was it before the river opened or not?-A. It was after

the river had opened.
Q. The river opened in the early part of May ?-A. I think*it was alittle before

the high water.
Q. Were you on duty for most of the time until lately, from the middle of May ?

-A. Yes.
Q. Did vou regulate the entrance of miners at the various doors of the office ?

-A. I bad nothing to do with the doors.
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Q. Did you ever take a pass from any of the miners at the door ?-A. Yes; I
used to take them from the special constable at the door.

Q. Did you ever receive in your own hands a pass from aiy of the miners to
get in ?-A. Yes.

Q. You sometimes regulated the entrance through the door ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. How many doors were there ?-A. One for part of the summer, and for part

two doors.
Q. Is one of these doors nailed up now r-A. Yes the side door at the corner.
Q. What distinction was made between getting in the front and the side door

around the corner ?-A. The side door was for the business up stairs.
Q. But was there not a time when the side door did not admit to the upstairs

department ?-A. Tho side door. No, sir, because there was no door.
Q. Did you over receive passes from miners to get into the office?-A. Well,

that I can't say, I don't remember.
Q. Did you frequently receive passes ?-A. I received passes sometimes.
Q. Did you reccive a large number of passes every day ?-A. Pretty nearly

every day when I was at the door.
Q. Were all these passes the same, or were they different ?-A. All different;

there were some passes I did not look at. As soon as T saw anything like passes I
Put thom in my pocket.

Q. Did you do anything with theni after ?-A. Yes, I burned them.
Q. Were the passes different?-A. Yes, differently written.
Q. During August did you ever refuse any passes ?-A. Yes, at the beginning

I refused passes.
Q. Why, because there was no stamp on it? At first you only receive passes

With the office stamp on ?-A. Yes.
Q. But does passes on which the office stamp was have a signature on them ?-

A. Yes.
Q. Are they similar to the passes shown ?-A. Yes.
Q. Were those you first admitted in the early part of the summer like that ?-

A. No.
Q. Did they all have the office stamp on them?-A. No; they had to be

Stamped; they were stamped after hours. Some people were left in the office and
Wanted to get a pass from Mr. Hurdman to get in after dinner or to get in the next
fnorning, because people that were waiting so long at the door-I think it nothing
but right for them to have the right to have the first show when to come in again.

Q. Were these passes good for over dinner and over night ?-A. Well, the
passes were supposed to be good for one day; some passes come in behind every day.

Q. You refused some passes?-A. No, sir, at the beginning I did; I was told
not to refuse a pass.

Q. Who told you not to refuse a pass?-A. I was told that from the clerks in
the office.

Q. Which clork ?-A. Mr. Hurdman.
Q. Did you receive any instructions froin Mr. Fawcett about acceptation or the

rejection of passes ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Who gave you instructions as regards passes ?-A. I think Mr. Hurdman.
Q. Did any of the other clerks give you instructions ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you use your own di.scretion about letting people in ?-A. No, I had

nothiug to do; it was like that I told you. I helped attend to the door when I had
nothing to do. I was supposed to be there to sweep the office, to keep the office
clean and to carry messages.

Q. Just tell us why you refused some passes?-A. Because I didn't know
Whether I had to taire thoe passes or not.

Q. Now, you say at the beginning of the summer that you refused sone of the
Passes and that yon accepted thom after?-A. Yes; when I was told at the office to
take passes, when mon came with passes to let them in.

Q. Did they tell you te let any man in who came with a'pass ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who told you that?-A. Mr. Hurdman.
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Mr. TABoa.-There is a charge against Mr. Hurdman; I am his solicitor and I
object to any evidence that will tend to implicate him.

The CoMMIssIoNEn.-Tbere is a general charge against officiais.
Mr. TBo.-This evidence should be adduced on charge. It is only right that

gentlemen against whom any evidence is adduced should be present.
The COMMISSIONER.-I was going to suggest that to Mr. McDougal. It was inti-

mated several times that when, during the course of the examination of the witnesses,
any officiais were referred to in that way we should stop and bring the officials
here.

Mr. McDoUGAL.-I would like to continue the examination without introducing
Mr. Hurdman's name.

Mr. TAÂBa.-I have seen a charge against Mr. Hurdman, but ho is not charged
in respect to this. If they are going to issue a charge against Mir. Hurdman they
must produce ovidence to take the charge up.

Mr. MoDoUGAL.-In opposition to this statement of my learned friend I beg to
submit that this commission is not absolutely limited to the investigation of specific
charges. The great reasons for which commissions are granted by government are
that clues may be given, and that clues may be followed up. If witnesses refer to
officiais in court every opportunity should be given to the gentlemen whose names
are implicated to procure their defense; but I submit that it is not neeessary to bring
up specific charges.

The CoMMIsIONEa.-AS I told you before, I am prepared to go as fur as I
possibly can to have these questions settled once and for all, but at the same time I
think you wi!l understand that it is necessary for Mr. Hurdman to be here if any
statements are made tending to incriminate him.

Mir. TABO.-YOU know that after the late elections there were a num ber of
these royal commissions throughout Canada, and I fail to know of one commission
where charges were laid and charges were investigated in which the charge had not
to be specific in its terms, and to stand or fali on the evidence adduced. It is simply
an outrageous thing in the interests of the public and the liberty of the citizen if a
man can be brotight here and charges fished for and evidence adduced without bis
knowing what the evidence is to be against and what the charge is. If they have a
charge, lot them lay it and we will produce evidence against it.

The ComissIoNza.-I agree with you, but ut the same time in this case there has
been so much dissatisfaction with the official workings here that personally I would
like to see it as conclusive as possible.

Mr. TABo.-But I submit that it can. never be conclusive unless these charges
are laid in that way; besides we must conserve the interests of the public. We know
we have a mixed community and we know wbat the public are when they think
they are wronged. There are rumours and rumour on rumour. One story is repeated
over and over, until it is the size of a mountain; thon some person takes hold and
makes a sworn charge. Mr. Hurdman is a clerk in this department. You know, sir,
the family ho comes from. H1e has the family name to protect as weil as his own,
and I submit that these charges must corne in some form in which they can be
answered, and that evidence can be adduced to show wbether ho is guilty of any-
thing.

The CoMxmissioNEa.-Suppose witnesses like this make statements which tend to
criminate Mr. Hurdman, wouldn't they be compelled to go and put in specific
charges ?

Mr. TAwOR.-But what are these witnesses here for?
The COMMIssIoNEn.-I suppose that if officials are referred to as in the last

evidence that it would be allowable to go on and take evidence.
Mr. TABoR.-I submit that if Mr. Hurdman is to be brought, something definite

must be obtained against him. I think I am perfectly justified in laying this before
him.

Mr. GEoRGE.-I am opposed to this. This is a matter I am vitally interested
in. I think Mr. Tabor -takes a monstrous position and I can hardly keep my seat.

Mr. TABOR.-W hat position ?
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Mr. GEoRGa.-I will define my position to think, as this investigation proceeds,
if there are any charges filed against any one particular official in this government,
and as soon as a witness' name is mentioned in connection with these cases, the
examination muât stop then and there. It seeme a strange position to take, if no
Dame can be mentioned by the witness unless there is a special charge on your table
against that man as in the case of this witness who has mentioned Mr. Hurdman's
Dame, or the narne of any one without being specifically charged.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-I don't think Mr. a r takes that ground.
Mr. TABoRi.-This is the miners' association.
A VoIcE.-No, sir.
Mr. TABo.-Were the miners' association.
A VolcE.-No, no; a committee of the miners.
Mr. TABo.-On the representation of this Miners' Association to Ottawa.
Mr. ARMsTRONG.-I object-the miners' association was not in existence when

the petition was sent to Ottawa.
Mr. TABOR.-However, these gentlemen who after were the miners' association

represented certain facts they supposed. At least they laid certain charges. On
these representations this commission was issued. Now they come before you with-
out a charge unless they can trump them up in this way.

Mr. MoDougAL.-I beg to submit we have put in eight charges this tnorning.
Mr. TABoR.-When the commission met the other day it didn't know where

they were.
Mr. MCDouGAL.-I objeot to that entirely.
Mr. TABoR.-I heard a paper read by Mr. Woodworth-the fact of the matter

la they are on a fishing expedition to get evidence against my client.
Mr. ARMsTRoNG.-Is not a commission of inquiry of necemsity a case of fishing

-- can't we ask a witness where and how he got passes and when ; if he brought in
a clerk's name must that clerk's name not be mentioned unless we bring in a charge ?
Suppose we didn't bring in a charge, is his name to be left out?

The CoMMISSIoNER-If this witnesS charges Mr. Hurdman, Mr. Hurdman should
be present.

Mr. McDoUGAL.-The commission is certainly one of inquiry; and when offi.
cials in a casual sort of way are mentioned in connection with any acts,'let the com-
Mission of inquiry gather up information on it and make charges, and notice be given
to the gentlemen named so that they may prepare a proper defence; but If we are
prevented from mentioning the name of any clerk lu a casual examination it seems
to b. to hamper the business of the examination materially.

The CommIssIoNu.-It is one o'clock now and we will adjourn nd ask Mr,
Rurdman to be present after dinner.

Mr. ARMsTRONG.-guppose any other olerks are mentioned.
The CoMmIssIoNEn.-We can have them sent for.

The Commission then adjourned until Wednesday afternoon.
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WEDNESDAY AFTERNOON.

INQUIRY OPENED AT Two O'CLOCK.

The CoMMISSIoNER.-Mr. Villeneuve take the stand, please.
Mr. McDouGAL to Dr. BRoWN.-Will you kindly produce the pass that Mr.

McGill signed this morning.
Mr. TABoR.-Mr. Commiesioner, before this case goes on, may we have an

understanding as to how far this commission warrants you investigating the charges
subsequent to the date of the commission, or the date of these letters.

The CoMMIssIoNi.-From the reading of the commission itself it would not
appear to be quite clear. (Here is the commission.)

Mr. CLEMENT.-(Reading the commission) The commission recites a memoran -
dum of the charges contained in the memorial, some of them of a very general
nature, and continuing states (reading) " that persons professing to have
been duly appointed a miners' committee at a mass meeting ot the miners
of the Yukon Territory, in which communication it is alleged that many of the
government officials have forfeite: their claim to the people's confidence and
respect by their conduct and action in several matters." Then come a part of the
charges of a generai nature against the offieers, after which it goes on to say " we
deem it expedient that an inquiry into the nature of them should be made with
reepect to the truth or untruth of the foregoing charges, statements and complainte,
and to appoint you, the said William Ogilvie, of Dawson, commissioner of the
Yukon Territory, to be our commission for the purpose of such investigation to
inquire into the matters and thinge above mentioned and set out."

Mr. TABoR.-That is charges laid down prior to the date of the commission,
and of the letter of 25th August.

Mr. CLEMENT.-The charges contained in that letter, nothing subsequent.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-We might go on under the ordinary rules of evidence and

take up charges subsequent to that date, but a witness, could not be compelled to
answer any question tending to criminate himself, where under the royal commis-
sion he could be compelled to answer; under the ordinary rules of evidence the
witness might object to answer the question.

Mr. TABoR.-Can any charges be brought against any person which referred to
any act done subsequent to the date of the commission or of the Jetter?

The CoMMIssIoNER -gIt distinctly states that no charges shall be maintained
except prior to the date of the letter.

Mr. MCDOUGAL.-I beg to submit that the charges referred to in the letter
continued for a period of some eighteen months and many of them had a direct
bearing upon acte which have been committed since 25th of August, and subsequent
to the date of the letter. I submit then that the scope of this inquiry is very
limited indeed.

The COMMIssINER.-This didn't ask for an investigation of the conduct of the
officials after that date. I am quite willing to go on and continue this investigation,
but I do not know how long you would .want me to continue it. You muet under-
stand that before we can go on under the ordinary rules of evidence, there muet be
something to contest about, and they, the government, did not anticipate what was
to take place after the date of the commission. I must express my disappointment,
as I thought after all the statements that had been made, that all one had to do was
to pull the trigger when the charges were presented here. Now we find confronting
us more or less fishing after charges. I am quite willing to go as far as I possibly can,
but I cannot exceed the law.

Mr. TÀBoR.-Your commission defines your power.
34
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The CoMMIssioNER.-The moment I go beyond this point, the attorney repre-
senting some party may step in and say " that I caànot go further." under the Royal
commission.

Mr. McDoUGAL.-I object tu our actions being referred to as fishing for charges.
The COMMISsIONER.-I did not èay yon were fishing for chargos--I said there

was more or less fishing.
Mr. MoDouGAL-It is a difficult matter to conduct the prosecution of this

investigation. There are practically three or four men working and giving their
services gratuitously to get at the truth of these matters, and it is necessary that we
should make some inquiries in order to find out and assist the government in the
prosecution of these charges.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-I am in this position, that no legal gentleman representing
any culprit, if you wish to cail him so-would permit answers to questions relating
to acts after 25th August.

Mr. TABoa.-You are not authorized to ask these questions and object to his
answering them.

Mr. McDoUGAL.-May I have a copy of the letter which is attached to the
memorial to Ottawa?

The CoMMIsIoNER.-Certainly.
Mr. MODOUGAL reads :-" Many of the government officiais have,forfeited their

claims to the peoples' confidence and respect by their conduct and action in certain
actions, thus leading to strained relations which ought not to exist where the people
have every desire to be loyal and law-abiding."

Mr. MODOUGAL continues:-In my opinion, if we can prove that since the 25th
of August officiais have committed actions which have tended to forfeit the peoples'
confidence and respect, then it is a matter bearing upon the question.

The COMMIssIoNER.-I am notarguing the question. I amtelling you thedilemma
in which I am placed in taking up charges against an official after that date. I am
saying he might object.

Mr. ARMSTRoNG.-Have you given a decision on the point?
The CoMMIssIoNER.-No, not yet.
Mr. ARMsTRONG.-I would like you t0 take into consideration this point:

whether or no the scope of the commiésion is to be limited to what took place
before we wrote the letter, or to the date on which the commission was issued, or
up to the present time ? I would suggest that this inquiry is not into charges which
May or may not be made, but an inquiry into the conduct and acts of officiais in this
country. I would put before you the views of the Deputy Minister of the Interior.
(Mr. Armstrong reads a copy of a letter, printed in the Victoria Colonist, December
13th, 1898, said to have been written by the Deputy Minister of the Interior to Sir
Charles Hibbert Tupper.) He then read the following:-

"SIa,-You are no doubt aware that statements have b"een made very freely in
the press for some months past, impugning the conduct of officiais charged with
the administration of the affairs of the government in the Yukon District. Some
time since a statement signed by certain persons claiming to represent a miners'
institute or committee was placed in the hands of the Minister of the Interior, and
thereupon a commission was issued to Mr. William Ogilvie, the commissioner of the
dimtrict, authorizing him to make an investigation into the truth of the statements
made in the complaint, and also to inquire into other complainte that may be made
respecting maladministration by officers of the government. It is apprebonded
that great difficulty will be encountered in making the investigation, by reason of
the vaguenebs of the charges which have been made, and the difficulty of getting
information as to any specific acts of wrong doing, should such have taken place.
As a public man, resident in British Columbia, it is possible that you have been the
recipient of information that would be of value to the department and to Mr. Ogilvie
In conducting the said investigation, and 1 am therefore directed to request that, if
you are in possession of any information whatever showing or relating to any
specific acts of malfeasance of office on the part of any officer of the government in
the Yukon District during the past two years, such information may be torwarded
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to the department, in order that it may be sent to the commissioner for examination
and report.

" I have the honour to be, sir,
"Yonr obedient servant,

" JAMES A. SMART," Deputy Minister."

Mr. ARMSTRONG continuing said: I would argue that the meaning in the mind
of the government when they issued orders to you was that it should be a fuit com-
mission extending up to the date on which it was boing held, and I would state
before going any further that our position is this: that we ai e assisting the govern-
ment; we have pointed out how wrong things were here, and that the only way to
right them was to got a commission of inquiry. I woild argue that the mind of the
government in regard te this commi<sion is such as [ have pointed ont. Of course
we could not go on if wt were not allowe-l to investigate wrongs which had trans-
pired subsequent to the 25th of Auguist. Why should we be shut out? In other
words, why would any wrongs which were committed since the 25th of August
pass unchallenged? I would submtit that bofore we go any further that you give a
definite ruling on that point.

The ComXIssIONEa.-Suppose I rie that we go on indefinitely ?
Mr. TABoE.-Unfortufnately, Mr. Commissioner, under this commission you are

not empowered with any psychological authority to find out what the views of the
Governor General in Council were. This is signed by Lord Aberdeen as well as by
Mr. Newcombe and Mr. Pelletier as acting Under Secretary of State. Your powers
are clearly defined in this commission as to investigation, namely: the charges of
complaints prior to the date Qf this letter. There is ample scope for inquiry into
what took place prior to the 25th of August. These complaints have been going on
ever since I have been in the country, and a good while before. When that letter
was written these gentlemen had some object in penning it. If they made sncb
serions charges as they did, they must surely be able to take those up. I think the
scope of the commission is limited entirely to that, and I submit that any charges
brought up after that date for inquiry under tho royal commission are illegal.

The CoxtMssIoNER.-This aspect of it, however willing I am to-
Mr. TABoR.-It is a waste of your time, Mr. Ogilvie, and costs the country a

good deal of moncy without any appreciable resuit.
The CommIssIONR.-We will go on with these charges, the dates of which

occurred before the 25th of August. I will decide later on about succeeding
charges. I have no desire to throw anything in the way at all. The law applies
as much in this case as in any other.

Mr. A. F. GnoGE.-Mr. Commissioner, this has se mach bearing on oUr own
case that I will be exeused if 1 say a fèw words. It appears to me that the motive
which actuated the transmission of these letters patent was to clean up the good
name of Canada, which yon cannot do if you say that nothing which has been
committed since the 25th of AugUst last, is not subject to your investigation. I
submit to you that you will leave it wotse thén when yeu started in with it, if yon
rie in sieih a way.

The ComxIssioNza.-It is not my ruling, it is the law. I will hold a consultation
about the matter.

Mr. AaRIsT]RaNG.-When will you decide?
The coMMIssIÔNI.-I will decide to-night.
Mr. AuxsTONG.-While at the time we had the most roason for an Investigation

we kept no notes, and many of the witnesees cannot be got at. We shahl have ne
dicffiulty, hWwever. in any euse te substantiate the charges in our lettér; but it is
a question of the bre«dth of this inquiry. It seemt to narrow it down if it in to etop
at any one date.

The ComutsIoNER.-It might go on tilt next sUtihntr.
Mr. TA-on.-Another coimission might be Issued.
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The CoMmissIoNE.-Yes, we can go on with the chai &es prior to the 25th of
August.

Mr. ARMsTRONG.-Another point. I understand that when that commission
was issued, it was expected to arrive in here a couple of months later.

The CoMMIssIoNE.-I expected it to arrive sooner than it did.
Mr. ARMsTRoNG.-I would suggest that as it did not arrive for some time, later

charges after the 25th of August might be considered. It is now months since
then. ,¶

The COMMIssIONE.-Many cases of course might arise since then, but the
words of the commission seem te refer wholly te what transpired before that date.
I do not know what the intention of the doputy minister was as quoted in the letter
which Mr. Armstrong road. Whether there or not he simply expressed his
private views.

Mr. LEVERE VILLENEUVE was then re-called and examined.

By Mr. McDougal:

If such a pass as that were presented to you at the door of the gold commtis
sioner's office last summer, would you have admitted the bearer? (Here Mr. Brown
handed the witness a small piece of paper, purporting to be an old pass). A. I
don't know the date.

Q. Would you have admitted the bearer?-A. I wouldn't know the difference
between them.

Q. You cannot read it ?-A. No.
Q. Anything that looked like that would you have admitted ?-A. Yes.
Q. Can you read at all ?-A. No.
Q. You say Mr. Hurdman gave you instructions to admit people into the office?

-A. Well, no, I didn't say it.
Q. Well, that was what yon were understood to say?-A. Ididn't mean to say

that. I meant te say that there was people left in the offce when the closing tirne
came. I was given so many passes from Mr. Hurdman, the object of the pass was
when they were coming too thick.

Q. You only issued a number of passes; and they were only over night and
over dinner passes ?-A. Yes, that was what I understood.

Q. Yon had no meaus of distinguishing between one pass and another?
-A. No.

Q. They were ail the sarne to you ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you seen a pass like that? (Showing him a emaller one.)-A. Yes.
Q. Did you make any distinction between them that had the office stamp and

those which bad not ?-A. ' There weIe sone the gold commissioner himself signed
and that had no stamp.

Q. You are not able to read ?-A. No.
Q. How did yen know they came from the gold commissioner's office ?-A. I

Was told se.
Q. Who would present them te you?-A. The men outside.
Q. Would a man get in who handed you a pass and said it was from the gold

commissioner ?-A. Yes.
Q. The other men who had no paso waited ?-A. They had a list and came in

according te number.
Q. Did sorne men wait a week ?-A. No; I couldn't say.
Q. You know some waited many days ?-A. That was what they told me.
Q. During part of the summer you accepted only part of the passes with the

omee stamp on them?-A. Yes; there was a stamp on some of them, and there
were somte of themn without a stamp on them.
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Q. Did you refuse some without stamps?-A. Yes, I refused them ail summer
when they were coming too thick to give a chance to the mon outside who had
numbers.

Q. Do you know McGill; the witness that was produced this morning ?-A. I
know his face; he was in the office often.

Q. Did ho over have any conversation with you about lotting people in on
passes ?--A. No, I never spoke to the man.

Q. Tell us exactly what Mr. Hurdman told you about letting people into the
offie :-A. Well, Mr. Hurdman told me to lot the mon get in with the passes from
the office.

Q, If it bad the office stamp on it do you mean ?-A. Yes.
Q. Which passes were usually refused ?-A. I was to refuse no passes only

when they were coming too thick.
Q. Suppo-e they were not coming too thick, only the right number; which

were you to refuse ?-A. Well, I did not refuse any.
Q. You accepted ail ?-A. Yes.
Q. Would you have accepted a piece of paper with any handwriting on it at

ail, any shape ?-A. Yes.
Q. You were told to let persons with pieces of paper in ?-A. No, I was not

told, I was doing it myself.
Q. You had no authority to let people in ?-A. Well, I had no authority ; I was

taking it on myself.
Q. Did you ever give these people a piece of paper out yourself?-A. No, I

never did.
Q. Will you swear you never gave any pieces of paper ?-A. No, I would not

swear to it.
Q. Did you ever let friends in out of their turn without a pass ?-A. No
Q. Did you ever receive money for admitting people into the office ?-A. No.
Q. You heard the evidence of the witness this morning-Mr. Mertaugh; was

that false evidence Y-A. I do not know the man.
Q. Mr. Mertaugh swore ho paid you five dollars to get into the office ?-A. I

no not remember.
Q. Well, will you swear that ho did not give you five dollars for nothing ?-A.

I do not know the man; no man ever gave me five dollars for nothing.
Q. He wanted to get into the office and said ho waited there for sevoral days

and paid you five dollars to get in ?-A. Never gave it to me.
Q. Did any one else give yon money to get in ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you ever get any money for accepting passes ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did yon ever get any money in connection with people getting into the

office ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Why was the side door nailed up ?-A. It was nailed up whon we got

through in the fall.
Q. Did you ever destroy passes that you received ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you ever give passes to anybody ?-A. No.
Q. You destroyed their passes?-A. Yes.
Q. Did Mr. Fawcett ever reprimand you for the way in which you conducted

the admission into the office; did ho ever give you a lecture ?-A. No.
Q. And none of the clerks gave you a lecture for doing it badly ? Did not they

ever talk to you about the way you let the people into the office; did they say
nothing to you ?-A. No. I went to Mr. Pawcett once and asked him if I had charge
of the door; he told me I had no business at the door.

Q. Did you often admit people without passes in before other people who were
waiting outside ?-A. -I do not understand you.

Q. Did yon often let people into the office without passes; did you refuse some
people when they had passes 7-A. Yes; I refused some with passes getting into
the office when there was a great crowd at the door.

Q. Suppose some people came with passes, and some without, you sent thos
away without ?-A. No, because they had their name on the list. They had num-
bers on tho list.
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Q. Those, if they came before their turn and had no pas, yon sent t.em away?
-A. No, sir; sent them away because they had no number and no pass to give in.
I kept a list and gave it to tbem to put their names on.

Q. You kept a list of the names of those who came in? Why did you do that
if Mr. Fawcett told you to have nothing to do with the. door ?-A. To know how
many people wanted to get into the office.

Q. You said you had no business with the door ?-A. Like I told you before;
when I had nothing else to do I used to help the constable on the door.

Q. Did you keep the list all the time; did you take most of the passes during
the time that the passes were presented ?-A. Yes; passes were passed to me.

Q. You were the man that took the passes ?-A. No; the man outside, but the
passes came in to me.

Q. You decided whether many got in or not ?-A. No.
Q. Who decided that?-A. The man outside.
Q. Can you give us the name of some of the men ?-A. No; they were there

turn about.
Q. Who was there the most frequently ?-A. They were there turn about-all

the boys.
Q. Tell us the names.-A. I don't know the names.
Q. Still you handled all the passes that came into the office. What instructions

did you get about passes-which to receive and which to refuse ?-A. I didn't get
any instructions for that.

Q. You used your own judgment ?-A. Yes.
Q. You swear you never received money at the door for letting men in ?-A.

Yes.
Q. You swear yon never received money for a pass ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you wouldn't recognize the difference between one man's pass and

another ?-A. No, sir.
Q. What can you recognize on one of these passes ? (handing him a pass).-A.

Only the stamp, and when there was no stamp they were not handed to me.
Q. The only thing you could recognize was the stamp. The difference between

the two men's passes, one bad the stamp and one hadn't. You always accepted a
pass if it bad the stamp ?-A. Yes.

Q. You would refuse a pass without the stamp ?-A. Well, it was like this:
When there were too many waiting I had to. When a man opened the door and
passed me a pass, if there was any room in the office, he used to go in.

Q. Did Mr. Hurdman ever talk to you about which passes you were to accept
and which to refuse ?-A. No.

Q. He simply said take all ?-A. No, he never said to take all the passes.
Q. What did he say ?-A. Nothing; if I said that I didn't mean it.
Q. What instructions did he give you ?-A. Mr. Hurdman ? I asked him if I

would take the passes to let men in who bad passes inthe evening, that they might
come in first in the morning. Mr. Hurdman told me, yes. It is nothing but right,
I thought, that these men should come in first.

Q. Did Mr. Hurdman know you couldn't read ?-A. I don't know. I never
told him I was not able to read.

Q. Did you carry the passes to Mr. Hardman to decide who was to go in ?-A.
No; there was too much excitement in the office.

Q. You used your own authority in the matter of letting people into the office.
Never had any instructions from Mr. Fawcett except to say you had nothing to do
with the door ?-A. Yes.

Q. Why didn't you follow Mr. Fawcett's instruction not to take passes ?-A.
Weil, when the man outaide presented me with a little piece of paper and said this
man la correct, " let him in," I had to take it.

Q. But you were told not to have anything to do with the door ?-A. Well, I
was not suppoeed to be there, but when this man was busy and I was doing nothing,
.and he wanted me to help, I was there standing to help him.

Q. Really ydu had more to do with the door than the policeman ?-A. No, sir.
89
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Q. The passes came to your hand and you said you accepted those that had the
office stamp on ?-A. Well, when the office would be too full I had to say to the
policeman so-that the office was too full.

Q. You gave instructions to the policeman about the passes ?-A. No, sir, I was
inside, and there every day.

By Mr. Armstrong:
Q. Did you ever take money from anybody while thero; did you take money

from any one while on duty there; you never did ?-A. No.
Q. Were yon e'ver brought up before Captain Starnes for takin'g money ?-A. No.
Q. You never confessed to Captain Starnes that you had taken money. Did you

know a man called Donnely. Did you ever receive four dollars Irom him ?-A. No,
sir-hold on now-Donnely ? What kind of a man was he?

Q. You never took money from Donnely ?-A. No.
Q. You never told Captain Starnes you got money from him ?-A. No.
Q. When you get passes to allow people in what did you do with them ?-A. I

burnt them.
Q. Did anyone check them over to sec that they were proper or not ?-A. No,

sir.
Q. Yon couldn't read ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You accepted any pass ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. Anybody who handed you a pass when there was a crush at the door you lot

them ir.?-Oh, yes.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Your duty was to sweep the office. Did you ever stand on the outside and
admit people? There was a policeman outside of the door to admit people into the
cifice whon there was room inside ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you ever stand at the outaide of the door ?-A. No. sir; except when
the policeman was away I had to take his place, maybe for five or ten minutes.

Q. Standing inside, ail you had to do was to admit the people that the outaide
policeman told you to let in ?-A. Yes.

Q. When the ofce was full what did you uo?-A. I used to tell him the office
Was full.

Q. The door was closed thon ?-A. Yes it was always closed.
Q. How long have you been on the police force ?-A. I think about fourteen

months.
Q. You say there were several policemen on the outaide of the door admitting

people; do yon know any of them ?-A. I am short of memory; I don't remember
their na:me; I know them by their faces; more than half of them I don't know
their naine.

Q. Don't you remember one particular man who stood outside the door at any
timt ? There is a few here; a man by the name of ?-A. Yes, I remember
him.

Q. You remember him admitting people outaide of the door ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you remember any more ?-A. I don't remember tbe-n by their name.Q. Would you remember them if you saw them ?-A. Yes.
Q. Could you pick out a policeman and aay that man stood at the door once?-

A. Yes.
Q. Would money be offered you inside the door to gain admittance; would

people offer you money to get in ?-A. That is when 1 was standing outside or as I
went home to meals, yes.

Q. Do you remember how many people ?-A. No, I didn't take any attention
to any man who offered me money.

Q. Did yon ever see anybody trying to get in offering the outside man money ?
-A. No, ir

Q. You have no knowledge of the outaide door-keeper being offered money to
get in ?-A. I never saw it.
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Q. You swear positively you were never paid money to get in?-A. No sit.
Q. You heard the witness here swear that ho paid you five dollars and that Sou

lot him in ?-A. Yes.
Q. You swear that it was not true ?-A. I swear that ho was mistaken.
Q. That ho didn't puy you five dollars ?-A. No ho didn't pay it to me.
Q. Did you ever have any understanding with Mr. Hurdman; did Mr. Hurd-

man ever instruct you who was to bo admitted and who was not ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did any of the clerks ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Or Mr. Fawcett ?-A. No, sir.
Q. And the only way you could recognize one pass from another was from the

fact that it had the office stamp on it ?-A. Yes, that was the way I recognim d lthe
passes, by the stamp.

Q. For the reason you can't read ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Can you read any kind of print ?-A. No, I can't read at all; I can write my

own name, that's all.
Q. Can you not read print ?-A. No, sir.
Q. How did you come to write your name ?-A. That's because I tried so often

to do it; I can't spell my name.
Q. You write it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Had you any knowledge of anyone taking money to gain access to the

office ?-A. No, sir; there was a good deal of talk going on about it, but I never
was paid.

Q. Mr. Hurdian simply told you to admit those who couldn't be attended to
previous to the dinner hour, or the evening before ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. You said you had a list; now if you can't read how did you know who to
admit; can you read numbers ?-A. Yes, I can read numbers.

Q. When a man came and said his name was Jones; did you ask him his num-
ber ?-A. Well, when the policeman was not there I would call out the numbers and
they came with the numbers. I knew there were many people anxious to get in.

Q. Did you look to see that the number on the ticket corresponded with your
number ?-A. They bad no tickets; they wrote their names on the lista opposite the
number.

Q. Those who had no number had no ticket?-A. No.
Q. Then anybody might get in ?-A. That didn't make any difference to me.
Q. You didn't care as long as they said that was their number, you let them in ?

-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You are positive you never got anything for doing it; never got anything

for admitting anyone ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You only knew the name of one policeman who stood outside ?-A. I remem-

ber bis name because I knew him well.
Ma. ARMsTRoNG.-I would like to ask Captain Starnes in regard to this man.

By the Commisioner:

Q. Did Captain Starnes ever ask you whether you got money at the door or
not ? Captain Starnes never spoke a word about anything like that to you ? Ho
never had you before him nnd asked yon about it ?-A. No.

Q. You never were scolded for it, or anything of that kind by Captain Starnes,
or any other officer of the mounted police ?-A. No, sir.

Q. Captain Starnes, will you testify without being subponeed?
Captain STARNE.-Yes, sir.
Mr. ARUsTRoNG to Captain STARNE.-Do you know Villeneuve ?-A. Yes.
Q. Has ho ever been suspended by you; you never spoke to him about taking

money at the gold commissioner's office ?-A. No, not about him; the only time
such a thing was ever mentioned was once during the summer; on a certain date it
was mentioned in the newspapera that somebody had paid money to get into the
gold commissioner's office, and I investigated to find out who was on duty on that
date. Constable Ferris came and paraded before me and denied having received
any money, and when it was brought to the notice of Mr. George, of the Nugget, I
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thipk ho said it was a mistake and said ho was not the man. As far as Villeneuve
goes, I know nothing about it.

Q. No knowledge of it ?-A. No.
Q. Did ho ever report to you that ho ever accepted money at the door ?-A.

No, sir.
Q. At ail events you never had him before you for misdemeanour ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Never had any conversation with anyone about it ?-A. The only conversa-

tion was with Mr. George, and that was about Constable Ferris. Mr. George at that
time said it was an error, and that Constable Ferris had nothing to do with it.

Q. You didn't speak about Villeneuve ?-A. I know ho was on duty at the time,
but the matter was never brought to my notice.

Q. Yon didn't say anything about Villeneuve to Mr. George ?-A. No, sir.

By 3(r. Fawcett:

Q. Do you remember if I called your attention to the notice in the paper ?-A.
I think I spoke to you; I knew it came out, and Constable Ferris was exonerated,
that's all I remember about the case.

A. P. GnoRGE, sworn.

By Mr. Armstrong:

Q. You are editor of the Nugget ?-A. Sonething in that capacity.
Q. In relation to Villeneuve, who was in charge of the door of the gold commis-

sioner's office, have you heard any report of his taking money ?-A. I would like to
tell you that in my own way. Well, there was a misunderstandiug by someone-
not on my part. The man named John Donnely complained, or reported to me of
having pald four dollars to a policeman on one occasion to get into the gold com-
missioner's office to record something, and signed his name to it; it was in the nature
of an affidavit and was published. Some days after Captain Starnes called me in
and asked me about the facts of the matter, and said that Constable Ferris was the
only constable on duty on that date, and that ho (Ferris) had indignantly denied
having taken a cent from anyone. In a further conversation with the captain, ho
went on to tell me that there was a dog-driver there, and that he was what possibly
might appear to have been a uniformed man as he had brass buttons, brown canvas
coat, and might easily be mistaken by a person not a elose observer, and ho went
on to say that ho had cross-questioned this dog driver and that ho bad confeased
taking money-four dollars, and that ho had given him a short suspension and let
it go, but said ho wanted the policeman's name cleared up. We got Donnely and
questioned him ourselves, and when put on the stand before ourselves Mr. Donnely
was not sure that it was the dog driver and not the policeman. When I explained
that both wore brasa buttons and were uniformed, he amended his statements and
signed hie name, and it was published broadcast that it was this dog driver (the
name was not mentioned) and not the policeman who had taken the four dollars.
That statement went unchallenged, and I made the change by virtue of what t
learned from the captain. That is just exactly, captain, as I understood you. I
would suggest to you that my training is especially to remember anything like that,
that may escape another person.

The CoxxIssioNER.-There was no name mentioned ?
Mr. GnoRGe.-No, sir; ho described a man to me; I don't know if ho did

mention Villeneuve.
Captain STANz.-This man was in charge there; the man permanently there.

There has been a misunderstanding unfortunately, but this is exact; he was the
constable there; at the time he was not under my orders; I don't remember the
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conversation with Mr. George except as far as relates to Constable Ferris; I cannot
remember anything about Villeneuve except that he was there at the time. For
some time we had two constables at the door, anc Villeneuve was more of a
messenger to the commissioner at the time than under my orders. The policemen
went as guards and were detailed daily, while the dog driver had been told off by
order of the commissioner of the Yukon Territory to the gold commissioner's office.

Q. You never had Villeneuve before you on that charge; you never reprimanded
and suspended hirm on that charge ?-A. No.

Q. Positive of that ?-A. Positive of that.
Q. Villeneuve never confessed anything in that direction to you ?-A. No, sir;

there must have been a misunderstanding. I remember the conversation with
Mr. George about Constable Ferris. The moment I saw the name of a policeman
gazetted I took steps to ascertain the truth of the matter. Constable Ferris asked
to parade before me; he said he was on duty on that date and that he had taken no
money.

Q. lie did this before he had been notified ?-A. Yes; I was making inquiries
about it this very morning from Corporal Reed. He told Reed he wanted to parade
before me. He saw in the paper that a man was accused of taking money to let
some one in. He said ho was on duty on that date and took no money; after that
I met Mr. George and told him that. In this way if a man Lad done so I wanted
simply the information so that I could put him under arrest and investigate the
matter. Mr. George said a few days after he found out it was not the constable.
As far as Villeneuve is concerned, I don't know that I gave him any orders at ail at
the time. He was appointed permanently to the gold commissioner's office by
Major Walsh.

The CoMMIssioNER to Mr. GEoRGE.-This man Donnely that you refer to, are you
acquainted with him ?-A. No more than that he was in our office.

Q. Have you any knowledge as to his whereabouts at the present time ?-A. I
would subpena him if I had; the last I heard of him ho was in the Indian River
District. Not being able to get into the office he lost his claim, and I understood
left the country.

Mr. ARMBTRNG.-Is it usual to take as an auxiliary policeman, a man who
cannot read ?

Captain STARNE.-Well, for dog-drivers it doesn't matter much. He was a
special constable at the door, but engaged as a dog-driver, and later was detailed as
a messenger to the gold commissioner's office by order of the commissioner of the
Yukon Territory.

The CoMMIssIoNE.-Well, Captain Starnes, ordinarily, constables are supposed
to be possessed of some sort of an education, while a special constable may be
employed for special purposes ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. It doesn't follow that they must be able to read and write ?-A. No, sir;
where a man is employed as a special constable ho is emptoyed for a special purpose;
if he can till that purpose that is ail that is required of him.

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. Villeneuve was engaged as a dog-driver ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And bis duty was detailed as janitor in the gold commissioner's office ?-A.

Yes, sir.
Q. Was he in any way detailed to attend to the doors to let people in ?-A. Not

as far as we are concerned; the order to me was to send him as a messenger or
servant into the building.

Q. Suppose he had been guilty, would it have been in your power to have bad
him before you ?-A. I think I would have considered it my duty; yes, sir.
Villeneuve was under the instructions of the gold commissioner's office. It was
Major Walsh, thon commissioner for the Yukon, I received orders from. He
Was to carry messages for the officiais in the building and take care of things
generally at first. A constable had been asked for to volunteer as a messenger and
to attend to the office generally. I couldn't get a man for the purpose; I wanted
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to find who the man would take bis orders from. The policemen wanted to know
who they would report to. They wanted one person. I couldn't get them to
volunteer. Not supplying a policeman I got orders to detail Constable Villeneuve
for the general work in the office. There was at the time there the land office, the
commissioner of the Yukon Territory's office, clerk of the court, the mining
inspector's and the gold commissioner's offiee.

m Q. In matters of detail whom would ho get bis instructions from ?-A. I don't
know.

Q. Did there seem to be no definite well arranged plan for giving him instruc-
tions?-A. His instructions were to report to the gold commissioner's office and
take orders in the building.

Q. Would constables be able to give Villeneuve instructions ?-A. Constables
had nothing to do with him.

Q. Had Villenenve any right to give instructions to constables ?-A. Of course
not.

Q. Was Constable Reed ever on duty at the gold commissioner's office ?-A. No.
Q. Can you give a couple of iuen's names who were on duty with Villeneuve ?

-A. Almost ail the men were stationed in turns on duty there during the rush-
that is on the outside of the building.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Did you keep any account, so to speak, of who was stationed at the door ?-
A. Yes, we kept a roster,

Q. You could tell us, now, then, who was at the door on any particular date ?-A.
1 think so. The sergeant.major details so many mon every day- so many for
escort for prisoners, s0 many for guard, &c.

Q. In that way we can learn who was on duty on any particular day ?-A.
Yes, sir.

FRANK GIBBoN, being duly sworn, testified as follows:

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. Are you engaged in mining on Dominion Creek?-A. Ycs, sir.
Q. Were you formerly a clerk in the gold commissioner's office ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. During what months were you in the office?-A. From the latter end of

July to the 16th or 17th of October.
Q. While you were in the office you knew pretty well what was going on in

the office?-A. Well, I attended to my own work in the office.
Q. You knew pretty well what took place in the office ?-A. So far as my own

work was concerned; I attended to the books.
Q. You were aware that there was a state of congestion in the office, and miners

had to wait to gain admission ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Had you any instructions as to the admission of minera into the office ?-A.

No, sir; they had to take their tdrn. Lists were gotten out and allowed them in,
in the right order.

Q. There were several systems during the summer; one system replaced
another ?-A. Yes, sir, one or two.

Q. There were numbers given ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Before that there waa indiscriminate getting in the office ?-A. Well, I

couldn t say.
Q. Who gave the numbers ?-A. That I couldn't recall; perbaps Mr. Bolton, I

think he was the principal clerk.
Q. You don't mean that Mr. Bolton gave passes ? Any pasa given from Vill-

eneuve to Bolton ?-A. I believe so.
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Q. You know that Villeneuve had a good deal to do with the regulations conLected
with the admission of miners to the office?-A. Yes, as far as I understood.

Q. He was more connected with it than the policeman ?-A. Yes, to the best of
my knowledge.

Q. He practically had in his hand the regulation of miners to the office ?-A.
Yes, as far as I know.

Q. You know that Villeneuve got money at times for giving people precedence?
-A. I never saw Villeneuve receive money.

Q. You knew ho did ?-A. I had an idea, I couldn't swear to it.
Q. Yon practically knew ?-A. I couldn't swear to it.
Q. Yon say that you had an idea that ho did ?-A. YAs.
Q. But you wouldn't swear it ?-A. I couldn't prove my statement.
Q. You know that besides the matter of giving out numbers there was a system

of getting in by passes ?-A. Yes.
Q. What is your knowledge as to the way passes were given out ?-A. I think

Mr. Fawcett could give out passes to any special case whenever a man gave him an
explanation that ho had been waiting in town several days and was rather unforta-
]Date in missing his number.

Q. Who else besides Mr. Fawcett could issue passes ?-A. I am not aware of
anybody, now.

Q. Did you write passes ?-A. Never.
Q. Did Mr. Hardman ?-A. Not that I know of.
Q. Did you ever write passes for John Dunlevie ?-A. I don't know; I never

saw him.
Q. Do you know Mr. McGill ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did ho ever write passes ?-A. Not that I am aware of.
Q. What was done with passes after they were given to Villeneuve ?-A. Well,

I don't know whether he kept thom or not; it was not my branch of the depart-
Ment.

Q. Do you know who gave Villonenve authority to admit bearers of passes ?
Who told V illeneuve to admit men who had passes ?-A. I don't know; I couldn't:say.

Q. He claims te have got instructions from Mr. Fawcett to have nothing to do
with the door, and on another occasion ho said Mr. Hnrdman told him to do this, and
that at one time ho was to receive only passes that had the stamp on, and at another
lo passes at all. Well, now, do you know about that distinction in instructions ?-A.

No, I never gave it any consideration; never gave any consideration to passes
Whatever white I was in the office.

Q. On one occasion in August last did you obtain permission for me to get into
the recorder's office ?-A. I believe I did.

Q. You beckoned me through the crowd and obtained permission for me when
the door opened after the dinner hour ?-A. I did that on my own responsibility.

Q. Why did you mildly remonstrate with me for not giving money to the door.
keeper ?-A. 1 don't know that I remonstrated; I might have asked you why yo
didn't astk him to have a drink or something of that kind.

Q. No mention of money ?-A. I don't recollect; I made it a rule not to do so.
If I had a friend in particular I didn't want to bother Mr. Villeneuve to any Oxtent;
wel-

Q. I might bave inferred this ?-A. I never knew him to accept money. I oniy
heard from hearsay that ho did, and I didn't know if I mentioned it to any one except
Perhaps to an acquaintance. I might have asked you to offer him a drink.

Q. You admit you remonstrated with me for not giving him money?
Mr. TABOR.-What time was this ?
Mr. MODouOALL.-August 12th, about.
Mr. GIBBON.-I don't remember.

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. Did yon notice I didn't pay the door-keeper, or did -ho teli you?-A. Mr.
Villeneuve never mentioned it to me.
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Q. How did you get to know of the fact that ho didn't get money ?-A. I am
not aware of the fact.

Q. Why did you remonstrate with me. for not giying ?-A. I don't remember of
removstrating with you.

Q. You can't remember with me?-A. No.
Q. But you admit you may ?-A. No, I don't admit I may; I might possibly

have done so; don't remember anything; I am only taking your word for it.
Q. You state that you were absolutely ignorant of the fact that they were

written in the odice by the clerks for admission into the office ?-A. I have never
seen any written.

Q. You swear yon are ignorant of the fact that passes were issued over the
signature of the clerks in the gold commissioner's office ?-A: I am ignorant to
this extent-I nover saw any and cannot prove any.

Q. Have you seen passes similar to teh one on the table ?-A. Never seen any
in particular; such passes as these were found in the hands of Mr. Villeneuve.

Q. Do you remember to have seen them; can you explain why you didn't see,
them ?-A. Yes, I had my own duty to attend to.

Q. Do you know the handwriting on the piece of paper ?-A. I couldn't tell
the handwriting. I know the initiais, it is Joe Olark's, I think.

Q. What authority do you think Joe Clark wonld have to issue a paso of that
sort ?-A. None, whatever, as I know of.

Q. There were no instructions issued to you by Mr. Fawcett for giving passes ?-
A. Not in a case such as this.

Q. You would imagine this is an unauthorized pass ?-A. I don't know.
Q. Who else would have authority to issue passes ?-A. I suppose Mr. Bolton

would have the privilege.
Q. Would Mr. Hurdman ?-A. I am not aware of the fact.
Q. Are you aware of the fact that Mr. Hardman issued over dinner and over

night passes ?-A. No.
Q. The constables who assisted Mr. Villienevue, did they have anything to do

with the regulation of the entrance and admission of miners ?-A. Well, I was
always under the impression Villeneuve was principal, and certainly others at times,
particularly when there was a rush on-the constables from the barracks.

Q. You never saw many handing passes to Villeneuve ?-A. Never.

By the Commisioner:

Q. Mr. Gibson, what time did you enter the service of the gold commissioner's
office ?-A. About the 16th or 17th of July.

Q. What dutie did you assume ?-A. I went out with Mr. Gibbons, the surveyor.
Q. And you were not in the gold commissioner's office ?-A. No; for a couple

of days.
Q. What time did you enter the gold commissioner's office ?-A. I think about

Saturday.
Q. What duties did you assume?-A. Kept the books and kept the accounts.
Q. Was Mr. Villeneuve on duty in the building when you went there; did you

know him at that time ?-A. Not prier te going into the office.
Q. You got acquainted with him wben you went into the office ? What did

yon understand his duties to be?-A. To regulate the miners coming into the offioe.
Q. Did yon know that ho stood ontside of the door and admitted them ?-A.

At times ho stood outaide of the door and distributed numbers, but mostly ho was
inside of the office.

Q When there was a special rush on the latter end of August or beginning of
September, where did ho get the numbers ?-A. I can't say; I presume they were
given to him by one of the head clerks, as he is not able to write.

Q. Were the numbers on lists or on separate pieces of paper ?-A. Separate
slips of paper.
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Q. Mr. Villeneuve's duty was to call out the numbers ?-A. Yes; he would
admit a batch of applicants, close the door, and when they gotlthrough, would lot
them out and admit another batch.

Q. Quite so, and that was the procedure was it?-A. Yes.
Q. Doing his duty in that way, have you any certain knowledge of his having

been offered money ?-A. I know-I believe ho bas been offered money, but cannot
Say whether he bas accepted it or not.

Q. Are you positive ?-A. Yes, pretty well positive.
Q. Are you just as positive that he bas accepted money; you don't know but

that he did accept it?-A. No.
Q. You don't know ho didn't. Have yon any knowledge of any clerk in the

office having at any time issued passes for the consideration of receiving payment
for tbem ?-A. No, not that I am aware of.

Q. That notice there, you recognize as being the handwriting of'a man named
Clark ?-A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Clark was there at that time ?-A. Yes.
Q. What is the date of that ?-A. August 24th.
Q. Mr. Clark left the office soon after that?-A. Yes.
Q. And you have seen his bandwriting frequently ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you recognize that as his handwriting?-A. Well, if anybody asked me

outside of the office I would not have recognized it, but when 1 see Mr. Clark's
initials, I recognize it.

Q. You know his initials ?-A. I see it is "J. C.," and presume it stands for
Joe Clark.

Q. Well, then, really yon don't know of any collusive understanding between
any one in the office and any one outeide whereby these passes could be secured ?-
A. No, I don't know of anything definite.

Q. Do you know anything at all? I suppose they could have secured passes by
asking Mr. Faweet-I mean improperly or by paying for them ?-A. No, I cannot
prove anything to that extent.

Q. Would you swear that yon know nothing of uch ?-A. No, I wouldn't swear
positively; I only bave my opinion they might have done so.

Q. if yon have a doubt on the subject would you give me cause for your doubt ?
-A. Well, simply the reason is this: I have heard people say they have bad passes,
and I have had them say to me " give us a paso, old man-you can easily fix matters
there-for old acquaintance sake-so-and-so bas got a pas;" and they may have
znentioned the naine of come one in the pas@. I didn't take particular notice who it
was in the majority of cases, but they only tried to do them a favour. That is the
only theory I can go on for thinking they may have got passes, because they told
Ine eo.

Q. You did suspect clerks in the office of having issued these passes improperly ?
-A. I don't know whether improperly or not; they might bave had the privilege
of doing so.

Q. Was there any intimation on the part of the clerks of having had authority ?
-A. No, not at all; I do not think any of the clerks did accept money for letting
people through the door.

Q. Did I understand you that the suspicion yon entertained was only that the
passes were simply to oblige friends or acquaintances, and that they had never
received any consideration, pass or no pase ?-A. Not for letting any one in the door,
not by any means.

Q. Yon swear that positively ?-A. I am pretty well certain of it.
Q. Then you admit that passes may have been granted ?-A. Yes, I admit that

they may have been.
Q. You have nu reason to believe that they were granted for consideration ?-

A. Not for consideration.
Q. When did you leave the office ?-A. I left the latter end of October.
Q, You were in about three months ?-A. Yes.
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Q. You have no positive knowledge of any collusive understanding between
any one outaide and inside the office as to granting passes in an improper manner ?-
A. 1o.

Q. Might have been granted as a matter of friendship or courtesy; might bave
heard it suggested that Villeneuve got money?-A. Yes, air.

Q. You have no knowledge of it ?-A. No, sir; I didn't know Villeneuve one
way or the other. As far as money is concerned, if ho did receive money I know
the clorks didn't receive money.

Q. Did yon ever have an intimation that led you to believe that ho received
money ?-A. Perhaps I did.

Q. Why did yon imply that ho had recoived money?-A. I did notimply that ho
bad received money-1 made a mistake in the first instance in them asking him to
offer a drink-one way or another.

Q. When Mr. -McDougal as a friend of yours came to you and suggested getting
him into the office, did you intimate to Mr. McDougal in any way that Villeneuve
was open to consideration in the matter?-A. Well, I didn't want to give extra
trouble; but at the same time I thought ho might for bis courtesy in obliging him
to make it good to Villeneuve.

Q. Did you consider in making that suggestion to Mr. McDougal you might be
compromising Villeneuve, and that you were putting him in a bad ligbt before the
public in making any such hint as that ?-A. I didn't think I was at the time, but I
think so now; it was, however, the other way about.

Q. Yon didn't think you were compromising Villeneuve as an employee of the
government ?-A. No, not for a moment.

Q. You swear positively that you have no knowledge of Villenetive having
received money for such services as that ?-A. Yes.

Q. It seems very strange that you never gave the matter consideration that
you were compromising a government official by doing that. These things were
eized with a great deal of avidity bore, and they gave rise to a great deal of

annoyance and heart-burning; people believed them. These charges are readily
believed; much more readily than the denials, so you see the consequences are here
te-day.

By Mr. MeDougal:

Q. Will you describe to us the trouble the door-keeper was put to in admitting
me three minutes before the dinner hour was up ?-A. No trouble in particular I
expect. If I wanted to get some one else in ho might have thought I was pestering
him.

Q. Why did you mention trouble as a reason for suggesting to me that I should
have given a consideration to Villeneuve ?-A. I can express no reason in particular.

By Mr. Armstrong:

Q. You said you knew money was offered-offered to Villeneuve or the clerks?
-A. No, I can't prove that it had been offered to Villeneuve or the clerks.

Q. You said before you knew?-A. I am pretty well certain, but I cannot
prove it.

Q. Pretty well certain-you said yon knew; but now you are pretty well
certain ?-A. Well, I heard some people say that they had doue so, but I did not
know if it was true.

Q. Who are they ?-A. I cannot recolleot now.
Q. Couldn't identify them ?-A. I might identify them; yes.
Q. You never saw money offered any clerk ?-A. No.
Q. You swear that?-A. I will swear; I have seen money offered clerks for

recording bills of sale and that sort of thing.
Q. Have you ever seen money offered to clerks ?-A. Not for bribery; no.
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By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. Mr. Gibson, in connection with the door, do you know who made the
arrangements for admitting people at it ? Rave yon any personal knowledge as to
how these passes were given ?-A. No, I surmised they were given through one
of the officials.

Q. But you have no personal knowledge of these passes from the clerks in the
Offiee-no personal knowledge of the thing yourself; you surmised they wero given
by myself or then ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. You hadn't any information; never gave it any thought?-A. None what.
Over.

Mr. MODOUGAL called and made the following statement: During the summer,
one day, I wished to got into the office to renew a claim in which a couple of other
uen were interested; they put it in my hands to renew. I could n't wait about the front

door for sevoral days, and so I asked Mr. Gibson, with whom I got acquainted-
Mr. TABOR.-WaS thiq the 12th of August?
Mr. MoDoUGAL.-I asked Mr. Gibson to got the claim renewed; I thought ho

Could do it without my going to the office. He said I would have to attend to give
ly signature and ho said ho could get me in. I went to the office at the time named,

Just before the opening of the door, after the dinner hour. Gibson was outside and
met me there, and he went in. Thon ho came out of the door, and beckoned me
through the crowd of mon waiting at the door. I wont in and did my business, and
didn't pay any mnoney to Villeneuve, who seemed to be the man who had the control
of the door. This was the side door at the north side of the office nieur the river.
When I came out I thanked Mr. Gibson for getting me into the office. He remon-
Strated with me for not giving a consideration to the doorkeeper for the priviloge of
getting in beforo my turn.

By the Commiuioner:

Q. You obtainod entrance before the door was opened to the general public?-
A. A few minutes before the opening of the door after the dinner hour; it was the
side door.

Q. You obtained access before one o'clock ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. When ho remonstrated with you, did ho intimate, or say positively that it

was a custom to give the door-keeper a consideration?-A. That is my under-
étanding of hie remarks that I sBhould have done so. I don't know whether ho
expressly stated that I should have done so bocause it was a custom; but ho remon-
Strated with me for not doing so without the question ooming up in any other way.

Q. But he didn't lead yon to believe that. hie impression was that it was the
Oustomary thing ?-A. Yes, he led me to believe so, by remonstrating with me for
not having done so.

Q. Ris remarks didn't go any further than that. He didn't-say it was the usual
thing ?-A. I can't recollect.

Q. Simply remonstrated with you porsonally without giving you to understand
In words that it was the oustomary thing?-A. Yos, that is as far as I recollect.

By Mr. Tabor: *

Q. Did you have any business in the office that day ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you transact that business; how long did you wait ?-A. I saw Gibson

almost immediatoly.
Q. Did yon wait any time before that ?-A. I had been up to the office, and saw

the condition of thinge, and knew by seeing that many people that it was almost
impossible to get into the office.

Q. You transacted your business after you got in?-A. Yes.
Q. And you took that way of going before the miners waiting outside?
Mr. MCDOUGAL then left the box.
Mr. MoDouGAL.-I would like to examine Mr. Hurdman.
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Mr. TABoa.-Before Mr. Hardman is examined, I would like to know upon
what point; whether it is to be oonfined entirely to this matter, because there are
charges before you, Mr. Commissioner, now. There may be other charges; if other
chargos be laid, I object to his examination at the present time.

The CommissIoNER.-Kr. Hurdman, I take it, is to be examined relative to this
door-keepi ng, and the issning of passes.

Mr. TA&Oa.-Confined simply to the issuing of passes and the conductof thedoor.
keeper, as far as he knows.

ALBERT HURDMAN, being sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. McDougal;

Q. You are a clerk in the gold commissioner's office ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. How long have you been in that office ?- A. Since some time about the first

of June.
Q. What were your duties during the summer ?-A. During the latter part of

the summer I was platting down bench claims.
Q. I suppose you knew pretty well what was taking place in the office ?-A.

la my own department.
Q. In regard to thu admittancoe of minera into the office, you had a general

knowledge ?-A. No, not at all; my work is very confining; I always go through
the back door even in the summer. I didn't know how they ran the nuiber syste m
or how the minera got in.

Q. Didn't understand the system ?-A. No, I didn't.
Q. You think you would know as much as Mr. Gibson did ?-A. I don't know

what Mr. Gibson did; I would know more about the passes I gave. The mon who
were not able to put through their business, who had lost their turn by not getting
in, and not able to finish their business before me at closing time, we gave passes to
return and be allowed in first again.

Q. Were these passes for the dinner hour, or extended from day to day ?-A.
Dinner hour and evening; any persons who were not through at my wicket I gave
them a small slip to admit them again.

Q. What was on the slip ?-A. Pasu the bearer, A. T. H., sometimes; please
imit the bearer.

Q. How many of these passes would you give in a day ?-A. Sometimes as high
as twelve and fourteen.

Q. Was the office stamp on them, ?-A. No, the office stamp was not always on
my dosk.

Q. Yon never used the office stamp?-A. Yes, I did occasionally, but not as a
regular thing.

Q. Did you know Villeneuve could not read ?-A. No, I couldn't swear to it.
y. Did you give Villeneuve instructions as to the admission of miners into the

offoe?-A. No, sir, it was not my duty to give him. instructions.
Q. Did you know there were several kinds of passes which were authentic ?-

A. It was my impression that they gave passes to those who didn't get through
their business.

Q. Did you know that Villeneuve accepted money for admitting people ?-A.
Certainly not.

Q. You know he lot batches of people in without passes ?-A. I know he let
them in.

Q. Did you evergive him instructions as to what people to let in and who
not?-A. No, I can't remember that I did so; there was quite a crush during the
summer.

Q. Have you seen a pass similar to the one on the table ?-(Mr. Hurdman
showed the pass)?-A. No, I don't remember.

50

A. 1899



Ogilvie Commission of Inquiry.

Q. Whose signature is that ?-A. I suppose it is Joseph Clark's; I don't know.
Q. Did you see a large number of these pases given to Villeneuve ?-A. I

never saw him receive these passes ta my knowledge.
Q. ln fact you were in total ignorance about te passes of the office ?-A. Not

at all.
Q. You only understood the passes you yourself gave ?-A. Certainly.
Q. Did you know Mr. Fawcett bad told Villeneuve to bave nothing to do with

the door ?-A. No, I didn't know anything of it.
Q. In whose hands did you imagine the regulation and admission through the

doors was? During the stampeding, in the constables'?-A. I was very ignorant
about the matter. I always came in through the back door, and I went out that
way, and knew nothing about the management of the front.

Q. You were aware that men came in out of turn ?-A. No; I suppose those
who bad passes came in-not being able to transaet their business before dinner or
the evening before they got passes to admit them.

Q. Did you think every man who got a pase was the man who had been already
in, and not another to transact bis business ?-A. I didn't give instructions.

Q. Did you ever give a pass to a friend ?-A. Not out Of bis turn; I may have
in a case or two where a person showed me I was mistaken and proved himself right;
I went in and got a pass and gave it to him on that account. I think there were
one or two cases where I misunderstood their description of the claim.

Q. When you got a pass, from whom did you get it ?-A. I wrote it out on the
same slip.

Q. Had any clerk in the office the liberty to write ont a pass ?-A. I cannot
say what any clerk could do; I had only liberty to write a pass for a person who
came in to do business before me and lost bis turn.

Q. Did you bave any definite instru ctions from Mr. Fawcett about the admission
of people in or out of turn ?-A. No, none at ail.

Q. Apart from your instructions in the gold commissioner's office to give
passes in the way you have said, could it at any time happen ibat a pass would be
written and han-ded to some one outeide who used it?-A. I don't know that.

Q. It was possible to do so; any person inside the office could write a pass to
let any one in. Suppose Mr. Clark wrote the pass and gave it to some one outside
of the office, there was nothing to prevent any one from coming in on it. You
are aware that Villeneuve could not read ?-A. So I am aware now; I didn't know
it before.

Q. So you see there was nothing to stop any man who bad a pass from gaining
access to the office ?-A. You are stating a situation; I know nothing about the
front door; i don't see the drift of your question.

Q. Did you know Mr. McGill?-A. Yes.
Q. Did yon recognize his band writing on that piece of paper ?-A. (Witness

looks at the pas.) Don't think that I would know Mr. McGill's writing; I can't
say I recognize it.

Q. Mr. McGill had full access to the offioe; he could enter the office at any
time?-A. I am not aware of that.

Q. Did McGill ever write on your desk?-A. Often; he came in as most of the
lawyers' clerks did.

Q. Hle had access t the b.ooks of the office ?-A. No, not more than anybody
else did.

Q. But did they have more access than an ordinary miner would hav'e ?-A. I
couldn't answer that; he didn't to my books.

Q. He admitted te me in the box that h. had accoe to the records?-A. I can
only answer for my own book@; be had no more than anybody else.

Q. You don't remember whether you saw Mr. MoGill in your office on August
18th? On that date h. wrote out at your desk a pais for a man to enter the office,
and he reoeived money for it. Was that entirelywithout your knowledge ?-A. Yes,
air.

Q. Yon were not aware that he was in the habit of writing passes ?-A. I didn't
know of it.
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Mi. MOGILL.-There was no evidence to show that I was in the habit of writing
passes; I swear that I never issued but two passes.

Mr. McDoUGAL.-I simply asked him if ho was awaro that you were in the
habit of writing passes.

Mr. McGILL.-I understood you to say that I was in the habit of writing passes.
Q. Are you aware why the side door was nailed up?-A. No.
Q. Was it on account -?-A. I told you I was not aware.
Q. Would you sum up for as the instructions with regard to the entrance of

miners into the gold commissioner's office ?-A. I am not aware of any instructions,
no more than that the police acted to keep the people from crushing in until they
got thoir numbers; and often wondered how they worked the numbers; I was work-
ing early and late at my desk.

Q. Did any clerks have special authority over Villeneuve ?-A. Not to my
knowledge.

Q. As far as you know ho had authority to do what ho liked ?-A. I couldn't
Q. Yoù don't know that there were any restrictions on him?-A. I suppose

there was as ho was a constable in office.
Q. You are not aware of the instructions to Villeneuve?

By the Commissioner:
Q. You entered the office in June, Mr. Hurdman ; about what date ?-A. I

think about the 4th of June; I was in the office once or twice about the fourth of
June.

Q. Did you thon assume the duties that yon are still carrying out?-A. No, sir;
I was writing up records, entering bills of sale and the like.

Q. Whon did you assume the duty as clerk of the Hillside claim?-A. I was
given charge of it when Mr. Fawcett left the recording.

Q. About what date was that ?-A. I cannot remember whether it was in July
or not.

Q. At what time was this system of passes in vogue ?-A. That I can't
remember; for a long time I wondered how the front door was worked; we never
went through that way unless the crowd was mostly gone.

Q. You stated that before ?-A. I often wondered how the thing was worked.
Q. You don't know ?-A. No, I don't know; that's a fact, I don't know.
Q. Any special cases whore you issued passes to people; that is, cases where a

man was not able to get through his business before the dinner hour or closing
time came, you gave thom passes for entry after dinner hour or in the morning ?-
A. Yes, sir.

Q Did you expect these passes to take precodenco over others ?-A. Well, I
expected them to corne and finish their business.

Q. But what did you put on these passes?-A. "Please admit bearer," and
put the date. I remember on oee occasion of admitting fourteen, and on the
passes for these I wrote: " Please admit bearer, A.F.H."

Q. Would it be possible for one or more of these tickets to be sold during the
night and given to Villeneuve in the morning, and some people gain admission
improperly in that way ?-A. It is quite possible.

Q. Did it dawn on yo that during the summer some people came in that way?
-A. That is only a suspicion.

Q. You made no provision for the return of your own pass to yourself ?-A. It
was just to replace the number that a man gave to get in.

Q. You had no check on who came back ?-A. No check at all.
Q. As a matter of fact, out of a dozen passes you gave out to admit minera

there might have been half a dozon others corne back fraudulently on other
business. It was just those in the front of the line who got passes ?-A. I didn't
ask the business that they came upon; I simply gave them passes.

Q. Did it ever occur to you to have kept a check upon themx to see that the
purposes for which the passes were given were the purposes for which the parties
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got i n, and see that they came back to you? These passes might have been
trafficked in ?-A. No, it didn't; the people before me had had their number that
had been let in, and their number taken where they had waited for some time, and
the paso was simply to replace their number.

Q. Yes, but was there not a number on the pass?-A. No.
Q. You simply gave these passes to these men, say, at one o'clock, and you

gave them passes to come back in the morning, but didn't take any means to
detect whether these were the same people ?-A. You see, I seldom give passes to
people; always to Villeneuve to give them.

Q. Mr. Villeneuve might have admitted anybody by your pass in the morning ?
-A. Yes. there was no reason why he couldn't.

Q. The pass was not surrendered until the man applied for re-entry ?-A. He
didn't give up the pass until he went in.

Q. For all you know the pass might have been exchanged a dozen times. It
might be possible-you took no check ?-A. I didn't consider I was in a position to
do so; I didn't consider it part of my duty.

Q. You are aware Villeneuve was door-keeper or acted in that capacity ?-A.
He was janitor.

Q. Have yon any reason to believe he ever accepted fees to give admission
improperly out of turn ?-A. I don't think so. I could swear that no one ever told
me that Mr. Villeneuve had; I never knew him to receive money; never had any
reason to think he had received it.

Q. Can you say the same of any other door-keeper who was there ?- A. Yes,
sir, as far as my knowledge is concerned.

Q. Have yon any reason to believe that any other clerk in the office had any
collusive understanding with any one outside who would trafflo in such passes as
these ?-A. I have no reason to believe so; I have no personal knowledge of that;
it has reached my ears that such was done; that I don't know anything about.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. You were very busy?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. The books you kept no one else knows anything about but yourself?-.-A. I

don't think any one else could make head or tail of them-the rush was se great, I
had to much work to do; when I got the data that is in theml it was rather a dis-
connected affair, and I have never had time to get on the creeks and make them
continuous.

Q. Therefore in your press of business you paid 'little attention to what was
going on in the office ?-A. I couldn't.

By the Commissioner:

Q. In how many cases did you get a Dominion Land Surveyor's plot of the
land aplied for ?-A. Only in cases where there was--

Q. What per cent ?-A. I have not the faintest idea; I never got time to think.
Q. Are they few or many ?-A. I could not give you any idea.
Q. Have yon no ides of what per cent approximately ?-A I cannot give any

Idea; but it is very small.
Q. Now, in taking a description from minora, did you ever get two descriptions

Covering the same piece of ground ?-A. Very often.
Q. Does it transpire often you get two descriptions for one piece of ground ?-

A. They come up almost one a day, and it happens in the junction of oreeks, or a
Pup of a creek, that the land at the junction may be described from both, that there
inay be two bench claims or two hill-side claims come up together, and I would net
know that the point was so narrow.

Q. You simply took the description the minere gave yon in such cases ?-A. I
imnediately made a note that there was doubtiul ground there.
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Mr. McGILL recalled.

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. You told us this morning that you made out passes for Marwick and Murdock
on 18th and 19th August ?-A. That's so; I made out two passes and gave them
both to Marwick.

Q. Did you walk up from town to the gold commissioner's office on both occa-
sions ?-A. I can't swear positively; I eertainly must have been in the gold com-
missioner's office.

Q. Why ?-A. I swore this morning that I wrote them in the gold commis-
sioner's office.

Q. Why did you write the passes in the gold commissioner's office ?-A. Why?
Because he was paying me for them.

Q. Why not write them in your own office ?-A. I have no office of my owu.
Q. Why did you take considerable trouble to write them ?-A. I didn't; I went

up in connection with business.
Q. Did you walk up with Marwick ?-A. I believe I did on one occasion; I

don't remember the other.
Q. It was simply by chance that you wrote the passes in the office ?-A. Well,

I had business there, the day I wrote one of the passes there; that's all I remember.
I don't remember whether I wrote both in the gold commissioner's office; I cannot
swear positively to the second occasion.

By Mr. Armstrong :

Q. Was it not for the better deception of Marwick that you wrote them out in
the office ?-A. No, I can't say that.

Q. You swear it was purely an accident that you wrote them in the office ?-
A. I had other business there and wrote it at the time.

Q. Did Marwick know you wrote out these passes yourself?-A. I don't know.
Q. You didn't care whether he thought so or not ?-A. Nô, sir.
Q. You didn't know the man at the door couldn't read ?-A. No, sir, I didn't

know who was at the door.
Q. Did you know at the time that your authority would be accepted ?-A. Not

at all; most of the policemen knew me, and as I understood it, there were two

policemen at the door, and these passes persons said that they wanted to get claims
renewed.

Q. You are not surprised the passes passed muster; did you give the pass to
befriend Marwick or for the sake of the ten dollars, or both ?-A. Well, it was to
befriend Marwick.

Q. Why did yon take the ten dollars-you did it for money ?-A. I did it for
friendship and took the money.

Q. When you found out that your passes were honoured in that way, why didn't

you continue ?-A. The desire left me very suddenly.
Q. Were you ever approached by others ?-A. Yes, a large number of people

asked me to get them information and passes, and a great many other things.

Q. Were any of these people friends of yours who asked for passes into the
office ?-A. I don't remember any of them that asked me now.

Q. Did you think any of them was as great a friend to von as Marwick ?-A.
I have friends that I am better acquainted with than Marwick, but don't remember
any of them asking me for a pass.

Q. Did you ever give a pass to a friend without money ?-A. No, sir; these
were the only two passes I ever issued for money or without money.

By the Commissioner :

Q. Did you stipulate with Marwick before giving bim this pass that he was to
pay you for it ?-A. I believe I did.

Q. That was understood then that he was to pay you for it ?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Wheu did ho pay you ?-A. He paid it to me after ho had been to the office,
in one of the saloons ; i only remember the one occasion ; I don't remomber the
second ; I presume it was in the gold commissioner's office from what Marwick said
after I came out of the gold commissioner's office ; Marwick walked up to me and I
presume I wrote the second in the gold commissioner's office; I don't remember
whether I was paid for it.

Q. In one case you remember distinctly that you got paid for it. If you had
not been offered pay would you have let him in ?-A. I could not have insisted if ho
wanted to get in without it. I would have got him in just the same.

Q. Who suggested the payment first ?-A. Mr. Marwick.
Q. He proposed payment ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And paid you when you succeeded in getting him in ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Mr. Marwick said ho had waited around three or four days ?-A. Yes, ho

had been waiting around the last three or four days, and as ho was working bench
clainis at the time ho said ho would be willing to pay to get in.

Q. You thought you would try a bluff ?-A. Yes; I just wrote out a little note,
"Please admit the bearer," and gave it to him.

Q. If you had been caught at that you would have had a surprise ?-A. I made
the order read one o'clock, so that ho would be there to go in with the crowd, and
less notice would be taken of the note.

Q. Suppose the order had been returned, would you have exacted payment ?-
A. Most assuredly not. I considered I had saved him from considerable trouble by
gaining admission for him.

Q. Ie suggested paying you if you got him admission ?

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Had you previously done any work for Mr. Marwick ?-A. Yes, I worked
at the same dumps on Bonanza Creek last winter.

Q. Had you helped him in any other way ?-A. A great many times since.
Q. Prior to this in any other way ?-A. Yes, got mail for him-inquired for

mail for him and his partner-mail delivered here to Weatherly. I have bis receipt
in my pocket for it.

Q. You didn't try to make your name illegible ?-A. No, I can't say I did; I
acribbled the order; didn't take any pains with it.

Q. Just your ordinary signature ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. But you swore this morning that you tried to make your hand illegible ?-
A. I said I thought it might b. more illegible than ordinary.

Q. Didn't you swear that you tried to make it very illegible ?-A. The evidence
here will show it.

Mr. MoDouoAL.-I would like to call Mr. Fawcett and hear what Mr. Craig
and Mr. Bolton have got to say.

The ComxmIssIoNza.-You can hear Mr. Fawcett now with reference to the issu-
ing of these tickets.

Mr. FAwoETT.-Before giving ovidence in this, I would like to know if this is
,one of the six charges before taken up. I object to giving evidence unless it is one of
these six charges. As the questions come up I will give my evidence.

Mr. MoDoUGAL.-In this case we wish to examine Mr. Fawcett with especial
reference to the issuing of passes.

Mr. FAWOETT.-There is a charge which covers this question.
The CoMMIssIoNE.-If they wnnt to hear evidence now, it will save hearing

it then.
Mr. FAwoETT.-If my charges are under full investigation now I can give my

evidence now.
The CoMxIssIoNE.-The way those charges are brought in-.
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Mr. FAWCETT.-In this case I am defendant, and as long as I am defendant all
the evidence which these gentlemen have should be put in, and when they have
given all the evidence they can call, it will be time to put in my evidence.

Mr. MoDoUGAL.-The case that we call to-day cones under the charges we
addressed to you to hear, and in this sitting of the court we bring evidence to show
that money was paid to gain access to the office; we wish to call Mr. Fawcett to.
give evidence to that fact.

The CoMmissioNER.-Dead the charge.
Mr. MoDougal roads charge No. 2 of a list eubmitted by Mr. Armstrong and

Mr. Percy McDougal:
" The said George Armstrong and Percy McDougal, also charge Thomas Fawcett,

that he, Thomas Fawcett, was nogligent in regulating admission to the gold con-
missioner's ofice, in that, though informed that money was paid to the employees
in the offce to obtain information and precedence, yet he, the said Thomas Fawcett,
refused to hold an inquiry."

Mr. FwoETT.-I don't see why I should be called without I am accused of this
charge.

The CommissIoNE.-Do you refuse to come unless we formally subpoena you?
Mr. MODoUGAL.-I think Mr. Fawcett was subpænaed in connection with the

Nugget's charge for Friday.
Mr. FAwoETT.-I beg to have the advice of the legal adviser.
Mr. CLEMENT.-I simnply advise Mr. Commissioner.
The CoMmissIoNER.-I don't see why Mr. Faweett should object as far as the

issuing of these tickets are con cerned.
r. FAWCETT.-AS far as that goes, there is nothing to object to; at the same

time these charges are personal.
The CoMmIssIoNER.-That's all they ask for now, in regard to what you know of

the issuing of the passes. That is all I understand they want you for. As to per-
sonal charges, they will take them up later on.

Mr. McGILL.-May I go now ?
Mr. MoKA.-In behalf of our office, I should like to know if Mr. McGill may

go; he hasn't been there all day ?
The CommissioNuE.-Do you want him again?
Mr. ARMsTRNG.-Not this evening.
Mr. MOGILL.-Will I be subpænaed again ?
The CoMmissIoNER.-If we want you, we will subpona you; you can go to-day,

but don't leave the country.

Mr. THoMAs FAWOETT sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. McDougal :

Q. You were until recently gold commissioner; you held that office for almost
a period of two years ?-A. Yes, I held it since April, 1897.

Q. You had control of all the departments in the office ?-A. I had control of
all the departments in the office.

Q. The constables didn't come under your control ?-A. They didn't.
Q. Did Villeneuve come under your control ?-A. He did not.
Q. How was that ?-A. Villeneuve was placed there by the Yukon commissioner,

and got bis instructions from him.
Q. He could do anything he liked in defiance of your orders ?-A. If ho did

anything wrong I would bave complained to his own superior officer.
Q. You would have complained te his superior officer; did you ever give him

instructions personally ?-A. No; no special instructions.
Q. Just passing instructiona ?-A. I might have advised him sometimes.
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Q. Did you ever tell him not to bave anything to do with the door?-A. I
think that was pretty well on in the fali then.

Q. You knew Villeneuve was practically regulating the admission into the
office ?-A. I didn't know; I knew the door was in charge of the police.

Q. Didn't you know he was looking after the door there ?-A. He was during
the rush, but there was nothing to prevent accoss to the office before that time.

Q. Did you ever reprimand Villeneuve in his manner of conducting the
admission to the office ?-A. I may, but I am not certain that 1 did.

Q. Did you know that there was a regular system of passes?-A. I know that
passes were given to those who had not finished their business in the evening to
admit them the next day.

Q. Over-dinner, or over-night passes ?-A. Yes.
Q. Could any clerk issue one of these?-A. Only the clerks doing business;

only the two.
Q. Who were those ?-A. Mr. Hurdman and Mr. Bolton.
Q. Did you ever issue passes yourself ?-A. I did sometimes; sometimes gave

an order to admit a man myself.
Q. What sort of a pass did yon make out ?-A. My orders would simply be

4 admit so and so," with my name.
Q. Did you put the office stamp on them? Have you ever seen a pass similar

to the one on the table ?-A. No, I don't know that I have. I don't know that I
ever saw any of the passes after they went out of my hand.

Q. When you gave passes, what did you imagine would happen to them ?-A.
When I gave an order for admission at the door I expected the constable to receive
the order.

Q. Did you know Mr. Villeneuve could not read ?-A. I did'nt know that passes
went through his hands; during the rush there was a constable who could read.

Q. But you are aware, as a matter of fact, that Villeneuve regulated the
admission at the door?-A. I am practically aware that ho did not.

Q. Is it your opinion that Villeneuve had very little to do with the ontrance at
the door?-A. It is my opinion that he had little to do with the entrance as far as
admitting people who bad passes was concerned.

Q. You did not tell him at any time to discriminate ?-A. He had no right to.
Q. You can't say from positive knowledge how he used bis time ?-A. I cannot

say from positive knowledge what ho did.
Q. Did you give him repeated instructions about the regulations for admission

to the door ?-A. I didn't give him instructions at all; I left it entirely with the
constables at the door.

Q. You thought the constables had the regulating of the wbole matter of
admission thiough the door ?-A. Yes, that was done to prevent crowding; people
filled the office so that the clerks could not write.

Q. What instructions did you give to the staff in the office ?-A. It was the
duty of the police to see that the office was not too much crowded; the Yukon
Commissioner was there at the time, and of course ho is the superintendent of the police.

Q. Mr. Hurdman and Mr. Boulton could make arrangements as they liked ?-
A. They had no authority over the door.

Q. Had they not the power to issue the passes ?-A. To those who had been in
the office and had not completed their business.

Q. Did you know the clerks issued these passes every day ?-A. I didn't know.
Q. But you know they issued passes to friends ?-A. No, I didn'tknow; I don't

think they did it.
Q. Was it ever rumoured to you that money was given to the door-keeper for

ontrance into the office?-A. It was rumoured to me, but the positive charge I saw
in the paper; I took the paper and showed it to Captain Starnes.

Q. Until then you were in complete ignorance of this matter ?-A. Until then
I ouly heard these rumours, but I had no time to pay any attention to them.

Q. Did you ever make it your business to inquire into the fact, whether the
door-keeper did or did not take money ?-A. That was not under my jurisdietion to
inquire into the door-keeper's doings.
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Q. It was the business of other people to punish the door-keeper ?-A. I had no
authority from the police. If I had complaints te make I made them to the officer
in command; I think on one occasion I did.

Q. Apart from this occasion yen didn't make any complainte ?-A. There was
one occasion which I did.

Q. What occasion ?-A. It was one occasion on which I issued an order to
admit a gentleman to the office which was not honoured.

Q. Why was it not honoured ?-A. I cannot answer; I complained against
them.

Q. Who refused them ?-A. Policeman at the door.
Q. And complaint having been made, who did you refer to ?-A. Ileft the matter

with a superior officer. That was the only case in which I had any complaint to
make.

Q. Was it Villeneuve who refused that man ?-A. I don't know.
Q. You are aware that Villeneuve cannot read ?-A. I don't know. I know he

cau sign his name in a way.
Q. Do you consider him a man of very inferior intelligence ?-A. He is an

ordinary man.
Q. Do you think he bas power to discriminate between authentic and non-

authentic passes ?-A. I think he might. I tbink a man of bis kind would tell more
by a man's face than a pass.

Q. He would judge more by bis face then he would by a pass ?-A. I think ho
would recollect; those passes that bore the office stamp he could tell by that.

By Mr. George:

Q. Mr. Fawcett, you are aware that there was a tolerable state of congestion in
the office, and many of the miners were waiting day after day, and were not able to
get in ?-A. Yes.

Q. And that their time summed up in dollars would amount up to the hundreds?
-A. I don't know that, because I think many of them were there because they had
nothing else te do.

Q. Did you ever make a full investigation of the matter of the inability of the
minore to get into the office?-A. I made it possible for as many to get in as we
could possibly handle.

Q. How did you effect that ?-A. By facilitating the work in every possible
manner.

Q. How did you facilitate it in any way?-A. On one occasion I opened an
office in another building to facilitate matters.

Q. But you were not in touch with these people who required admission to the
office ?-A. I could not be in two places at once.

Q. You didn't know what was going on ?-A. I considered I had enough to do
without attending to the gentlemen who had charge of the door. They were in
charge.

Q. Do you know 4LeGill?-A. I have seen him a good many times.
Q. le had free right to pass through the private office. The private office was

there for everybody to walk in-those in connection with law firms had a right to
pase through it-they had to go in there to secure copies of certain documents, such
as bills of sale, and te search for title. It would be very easy for them to get access
to records of vacant ground ?-A. I don't see what that has to do with the question.

Q. Still, that is a fact?-A. I may say, as far as getting the records of vacant
ground, the records would not show them about vacant ground. It would show what
ground was recorded.

Q. Did you sce Mr. McGill passing through the office while you were there ?-
A. He passed through a number of times.

Q. Was it ever complained to yon that men were in the habit of making passes
to get money ?-A. No; no complaints were ever made to me. There was some
talk about it, but when I came to inquire-the only definite case I ever saw, was the
one I spoke of to.day.
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Q. In other words, you never investigated the pass system ?-A. There was no
pass system.

Q. You are not aware that a large number of people got in with passes ?-A. I
am not aware there was a pass system. I know that numbers were sometimes given.

Q. You are not aware whetber it was or was not in vogue, a large percentage
got in without passes ?-A. I am prety sure they didn't.

Q. Why ?-A. Because I think it happened occasionally-when their business
was not comploted before leaving the office.

Q. Did you bear the evidence of Marwick and Murdock, that on the 18th of
August, twenty or thirty people got in with passes, and that ho saw the passes of
somo of those people. He saw the passes given up to Villeneuve, and the next day
Marwick says that perhaps half a dozen people got in at the front door with passes ?
-A. That might have been the case, only I think he exaggerated the number; the
entrance to the office will hold a good many persons, and Mr. Villeneuve was told to
accept passes from Mr. Hurdman for those who wanted to see him, and also from Mr.
Bolton.

Q. Would it be possible-for any one to write passes in Dawson and these passes
be accepted by the door-keeper; you have no knowledge ?-A. I have not; the door
was left in charge of the constables.

By the Commissioner;
Q. You never gave the clerks any instructions as to this ?-A. I don't know.
Q. What they did, they did of their own will ?-A. Yes.
Mr. TBOia.-Will Mr. Hurdman have to come te-morrow morning ?
The COMMIssIoNE.-If we want him we can send for him.

Mr. T. RIONEY called and sworn.

By Mr. McDougal:

,iQ. Did you ever pay money to get into the gold commissioner's office ?-A. 1 es,
sir.

Q. To whom ?-A. To the door-keeper.
Q. Do you recognize him in court ?-A. Yes, that gentleman there (pointing to

Mr. Villeneuve).
Q. How much money did you pay him ?-A. Two dollars.
Q. What date was that ?-A. The latter part of July.
Q. Describe the circumstances ?-A. Well, I was at the office for three or four

days previous and got a check. There were four or five people before me. I went
two or three mornings expecting I would be first in the line waiting for my number
to be called, and for one that went in the front door, ten would go in from the aide
door; some one told me I could get in the side door and I concluded to try it, s0 I
asked the door-keeper if I could get in that way. He said " yes," but not to go in
with the rush the first thing in the morning. I said all right, and after the first
rush was over in the morning, why, there was a gentleman presonted some sort of
paper and wanted to go in. He would not lot me in but stood in the doorway to bar
it. I handed him two dollars after ho refused this gentleman permission. He took
down his hand and let me walk through.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Do you recognize that man in court ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Point him out. (Mr. Villeneuve stands up.) l that the gentleman ?-A.

Yes, sir.
Q. Positive ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You have seen him frequently since ?-A. I have not seen him frequently

since; I did before this happened, but not frequently since, because i may say that
was the last business I had in the gold commissioner's office.

Q. You have no doubt but what he is the man ?-A. Not a particle.
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By Mr. Fawcett:
Q. You said juast now in your evidence that for one that went in the front

door eight or ten got in at the aide door. Is that so ?-A. I inderstood it was so.
Q. Was it so, or was it not so-you gave that in yourevidence ?--A. Well, I tell

you one thing, I went there firat thing in the morning and there were fifteen or
eighteen people waiting.

Q. Hlow long were you waiting at the gold commissioner's office trying to get
in ? How many hours altogether did you wait?-A. I stood eight or ton hours all
told, because I was working and couldn't stay there from morning till night.

Q. You got a number ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Thon you found when you returned that your number had been called ?-

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Isn't that the cause, that you happened to be away when your number was

called ?-A. I asked for a number at one time, and a soldier at the front door gave
me a number; I asked him how they were working those numbers and ho told me.
I went after four that night and got a number and was there the next morning.
They were calling the numbers but I was working and had to go away and went
back at odd times.

Q. Wore you standing to see the people enter at the aide door ?-A. I was at
the window.

Q. Were you in line or looking in at the window ?-A. I was in line, and then
I went and looked in at the window.

Q. Did yon see who were going in at the aide door ?-A. I could see when the
door opened.

Q. What door?-A. The door right near me.
Q. Do yon know for what purposei these persons went into the offce at the

aide door ?-A. I knew there were lots of people went in but don't know for what
purpose.

Q. Did they go in that door to get a miner's license ?-A. Well, I know one
man who went to that door to get a miner's license.

Q. Do you know what ho was admitted for ?-A. He was not admitted at all.
Q. Thon you know a man who was not admitted ?-A. Yes, sir, ho asked to go

and was refused.
Q. Do you know why ho was refused ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You don't know why; you don't know whether the place was crowded or

not ?-A. No, air.
Q. Did you ever think they went in for other purposes-for bills of sale, and to

search titles, and that sort of thing ?-A. No, sir.
Q. As a matter of fact, you did not know why people went in at the aide door?

-- A. I knew if I bad had auy business there I would not have got in.
Q. Why were you at the office ?-A. I wanted information.
Q. Did you know of any other way of getting information besides going into

the office ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Never struck you that you could get it by letter ?-A. No, sir.
Q. That will do.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You didn't go in for business except information ?-A. Yes, sir, I went to ask
about two benches on Sulphur.

Q. That is what you went in for ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And what was the object any other person had in entering the offce by any

door, you don't know. You know you paid two dollars to get in to the door-keeper?
-A. Yes, air.

Q. When you stood at the window you could see into the gold commissioner's
office ?-A. Yes, sir. Except when the door was opened, which swings back and
shuta the window.

Q. Were there any people inside the office ?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. You could see the small door opening and many going in ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did this man, Villeneuve, stand inside the door or outside ?-A. He stood

on the inside as far as I could see; he opened the door and let them in and shut it.
Sometimes he came out and stood at the front of the door holding the knob in his
hand.

Q. You simply went into the commissioner's office to get information regarding
vacant ground ?-A. Yes, to see if a bench claim on Sulphur was recorded.

Q. And you thought it perfectly right that you should have equal precedence
with a man who wanted a bill of sale?

Mr. FAwETT.-What he thinks isn't evidence.
Mr. ARMSTaoNG.-It has been hinted that ho couldn't take precedence over a man

who wanted a bill of sale.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You never thought of writing a letter ?-A. That never occurred to me.
Where I came from, to record a deed, we always sent it by mail.

Q. You sent the deed by mail?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. In this place the mail is irregularly delivered is it not ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. At that time in the summer if you sont a letter you would have had to get

the answer through the post office ?-A. I don't understand.
Q. If you sent a letter asking for ground to be recorded and sent it through

the post office, you miglit have to wait a considerable time ?-A. i probably would.
Q. You took the quickest way to get information ?-A. Yes.
Q. When you did get in, did you have any difficulty in getting information ?-

A. No. sir, there were only probably six or eight ahead of me.
Q. You came on in regular turn; there were several in there before you went ?-

A. Yes, sir.
Q. I suppose you left some people there ?-A. Yes apparently as many when I

came ont as when I went in.
Q. Was the office pretty well filled while you were in ?-A. No, sir, it was not

crowded; there might have been twelve people in the office.
Q. Twelve all told ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You can't say there was any delay in giving you the information asked for

When you had asked for it ?-A. No, sir, the gentleman looked over his books and
gave me the desired information.

Q. No hesitation about it ?-A. No, sir, he didn't give me as full as I wanted; I
asked him certain questions and he said he hadn't time to look it up.

Q. What were the questions ?-A. The first thing I asked him was as to
Whether a bench on Sulphur was recorded. He took the book or diagram, looked
at it, and said it was recorded. I said: "sla the lower half of such and such
recorded ?" He said: "Yes," and gave me the name of two people who had
recorded it. I said: "When was it recorded ?" He said: "It would take too
long to look that up."

Q. Who was that clerk?-A. The one that the benches went to. I don't know
his name.

Q. You would recognize him if you saw him ?-A. Yes.
Q. You don't know him by naine ?-A. No, sir.

By -ir. Armstrong:

Q. So you only succeeded in getting information about recorded ground, and
the clerk told you he was too busy to tell you when it was recorded. You told us
yOu had a partner; did he pay any money to get into the gold commissioner's
office ?-A. Yes.

Q. How much did he pay ?-A. Five dollars.
Q. Where is he ?-A. In Dawson.
Q. What is his name ?-A. John Roderbush.
Mr. ARMTROG.-I would ask, Mr. Commissioner, that he be subpoenaed.
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The witness then described' where his partner lived.
Mr. McDoUGAL.-There were two men subpænaed-a Mr. Birch and a Mr. Cobb.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-They couldn't be found.
Mr. MCDoUGAL.-I would like to call Mr. Bolton.

Mr. E. D. BOLTON, being sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. You have been employed in the gold commissioner's office of this territory?
-A. Yes, air.

Q. How long ?-A. Since about the middle of July, 1897.
Q. What various duties have you filled at different times ?-A. Principally

working in the office posting books and attending to records.
Q. What was your firat duty ?-A. That was my first duty.
Q. Later on were you attending to the bench claims ?-A. Yes, for a short time.
Q. Later you became mining recorder?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You know pretty well what was going on in the office during last summer;

you know the office was congested ?-A. It was crowded, certainly.
Q. It was very difficult for minera to get entrance into the office ?-A. No,'not

necessarily, if they went about it in the right way.
Q. Was the way explained to them?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. In what way ?-A. By being there at the proper time, getting their namo

on the list, and being there about the time the list was called for them, and get into
the office.

Q. Was there a regular system given out to them by which they might under-
stand the method of getting into the office ?-A. Yes; I think the system was
explained by the door-keeper.

Q. By a voice ?-A. Yes, at different times.
Q. He would tell them what they ought to do, but there was never any notice

posted, or system devised, explaining to the people how entrance could b. effected ?
-A. No notice was ever posted.

Q. What system was explained by the door-keeper ?-A. I know he had a list
to put names down.

Q. You do not know how he got his instructions?-A. No, sir.
Q. You never gave him instructions ?-A. I might have given him instructions

simply to put names on the list, and note them when their turn came.
Q. You did not consider yourself responsible for the admission of minera into

the office ?-A. No, sir.
Q. At any time you liked yon could give him instructions?-A. I could advise

him; I had no authority to give instructions; it was simply advico.
Q. Have you any idea in whose control the door-keeper was ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Yon understood he was door-keeper; he was there to perform menial func-

tions ?-A. He was there to perform the duties of door-keeper.
Q. He was generally called a "janitor" in the office, wasn't ho?-A. I never

heard him called that.
Q. Are you aware that Mr. Fawcett issued instructions to him to have nothing

to do with the door?-A. No, sir.
Q. Would Mr. Fawcett have the ordering of this man's actions in matters of

detail in the office?-A. I don't think he would.
Q. Do you think ho would be under the supervision of Major Walsh ?-A. I do

not know, I am sure.
Q. Would any of the clerks be able to give him instructions ?-A. I don't think

so; they might advise him, that's all.
Q. Then ho practically used his own discretion in letting people into the office?

-A. I think ho did.
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Q. Is ho man of great intelligence ?-A. I can't say of that.
Q. As to the matter of passes-you knew passes were issued ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you ever give a pass te a friend to get in ?-A. Not that I know of,

unless they were there during the day and could not get through with their business,
and wanted to come the next day.

Q. Did you give over-dinner passes ?-A. I think I have.
Q. Over and above these passes, you never gave any ?-A. Not that I know of.
Q. You would swear that?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you know whother other clerks gave passes for admission into the office ?

-A. No, sir.
Q. Who would be supposed to give passes ?-A. I do net know, I am sure; it

was done by different boys in the office; there were lines leading up to the different
wickets. If there were five or six men in front of a wicket before dinner or before
four o'clock they would give them passes to corne into the office after dinner or next
mormng.

Q. There were three wickets at which clerks wero admitted to give passes?-
A. Yes; the clerks gave passes to men at their separate windows.

Q. Mr. Fawcett and yourself said there were only yourself and Mr. Hurdman
who would be entitled to issue such passes; is that a fact ?-A. I don't know; I
know each man had charge of a lino.

Q. I suppose each clerk could issue a pass if he chose ?-A. That is if they
were doing business at his own wicket.

Q. If h wrote a pass, I suppose McGill's would be as effective as these passea
would be ?-A. I don't know I am sure; the door-keeper received the passes.

Q. Was there any check of what passes he received; and what passes he
refused; did you put the office stamp on the passes you gave ?-A. I think some
Were stamped, others were not; sometimes the stamp was up stairs.

Q. Did you ever give instructions to the door-keeper as to what passes he was
te receive ?-A. Net that I remember of.

Q. In other words the door-keeper had no instructions about passes-about
making a distinction between the authentic and unauthentic passes?-A. I never
remember giving him any instructions.

Q. Did yen over sign passes similar te the one on the table?-A. I think I
have; yes.

Q. Was it that kind of a pass that was issued by Hurdman and yourself?-A.
Similar te that.

Q. That would be considered an authentic pasas?-A. Yes, sir, I think so.
Q. Did it always bear a signature ?-A. Sometimes, and sometimes not; I can't

remember that.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Do you recognize that as the office pass?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you recognize the writing? Whose writing is that?-A. I think it is

lMr. Clark's writing.
Q. You are familiar with it?-A. Yes, I know his writing.
Q. In the matter of numbers did you have a regulation as to giving out num-

bers for admission into the office ?-A. Not that I remember of.
Q. Who had the regulation of giving out the numbers ?-A. I think it was the

door-keeper.

had. Q. le had practically full dis :rotion in the matter of numbers?-A. I think ho

Q. We wore given to understand tbat you were sort of court in the matter ?-A.
Sometimes if they got into discussion I tried to straighten it out as well as I could.

By M3r. Armstrong:

Q. You said that the door-keeper-I suppose you mean Villeneuve-had a list
on which ho put names. I want .o know a little more about that. You say that
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you had something to do with the management of that?-A. He went out and put
the names on the liste, that is all I know.

Q. Did ho write down the names himslf?-A. Sometimes they signed their
own names on them.

Q. Sometimes ho wrote the names himself?-A. Yes, I think so.
Q. You bolieve that he could writo?-A. I wouldn't swear to it.
Q. How about that?-A. Well, I saw him with a pencil in his hand going

through the movements of writing; wouldn't swear to it.
Q. Never seen him writing ?-A. No.
Q. Never seen him with a book in his hand?-A. Not that I remember.
Q. You don't know whether he could write or not ?-A. No, sir, I couldn't say.
Q. Didn't it strike you as rather ridiculous to give the issuing of passes to a

man that couldn't read ?-A. I wouldn't swear that ho cannot read.
Q. Don't you consider it rather extraordinary that the door-keeper was under

no authority of any one, as far as we can make out; no one seems to have been
responsible for the man ?-A. I don't know; I had nothing to do with Villeneuve at
the door; it was not my position to inquire whether ho could read or write.

Q. Did you ever admit any person at the door of the office out of his turn ?-A.
Never that I remember of.

Q. Never received any money from any one for letting them in ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Do you know Joseph McGill?-A. Yes, air.
Q. Have you seen him in the recorder's office?-A. I have seen him there

sometimes.
Q. Frequently ?-A. No, not of late.
Q. During the summer, at the time that the congestion at tbe gold commission-

or's office was greatest and the miners could not get in, he had the run of the office
to do his business ?-A. I don't know that he had.

Q. He practically admitted that ?-A. I couldn't say; I have seen him in the
office at different times.

Q. Would he be able to see the documents which contained the recording of
claims ?-A. I don't know that he ever did.

Q. Do you think that he would have accesa to these books ?-A. It might be
possible.

Q. Was his work done under supervision, or was he free to use the books ?-A.
I don't think that he was free.

Q. What means wore taken to overlook hie dealings with the books?-A. I
never saw him looking at the books.

Q. Did yon ever see him writing in the clerks' part of the office ?-A. Yes; I
have seon him writing.

Q. I suppose many of the other lawyers' clerks were admitted in the same way?
-A. Yes.

Q. They also had access to all the books ?-A. I think they had; some of tbem
had, I know.

Q. Were you aware that some of the mon wrote passes, and then made a business
of selling them for money? Was that ever reported to you ?-A. No, sir.

Q. You were absolutely ignorant that any of the clerks in the recorder's office
made money ont of admitting people out of thoir turn into the office ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are yon entirely ignorant that Villeneuve took money for admitting
people into the office ?-A. I don't know of hia taking money.

Q. Did you ever remonstrate with Villeneuve for hie method of admitting
people ?-A. I didn't see him admit people; I could not see the door most of the time
from where I stood.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. How many books did you use in making the records during the summer in
taking applications ?-A. One, I think.

Q. Did people come and examine them while you were busy in the office ?-A.
No, sir.
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Q. Did you use that book all the time during the day ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you know how many books Mr. Hurdman used in conneftion with the

bench claims ?-A. He used two.
Q. Did ho use them altert.ately ?-A. He used one, principally.
Q. Do you know how long ho was using that one before ho began to use the

other ?-A. Well, the emall book after that time-it was very seldom it was referred
to.

Q. Do you know whether they had stopped making any records in the small
book and took to using the large book before Mr. Hurdman began? -A. Yes, sir. I
commenced using the large book; I don't know of any entries made in the small
book after the large book was used.

Q. You don't know whetber he used the small book?-A. I don't think so.
Q. Would he have possession of that book while the office was open ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did Mr. Hurdman have all the work he could do, and more ?-A. Yes,
Q. I suppose it would be possible for any one to see this book during office hours ?

-A. No, sir; I don't think it would.
Q. It would be possible for any one to do what Mr. McDougal has referred to ?

-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you know Villeneuve was door-keeper, or a constable detailed for that

purpose ?-A. Well, he was not the only one; for a whilo, on the outside, there was
a differert one for a tew days.

Q. Do yon know if Villeneuve was detailed daily for certain duties, and was
placed in charge of the door ?-A. I think there was an outside man in charge of
the door for some time.

Q. You don't know if he regulated the number or not ?-A. 1 couldn't say that.
Q. You don't know anything about how that was doue?

By the Commissioner :

Q. When did you begin issuing certificates ?-A. It was in the summer some
time.

Q. What caused the issuance of these certificates ?-A. What led up to it was, a
number of people in the office would be in the office at 4 or 4.30 p.m. not through
with their business, and they would be given a ticket to come back the next morn-
ing and finish their business.

Q. When you issued these tickets in your case did you keep any check on the
number yon issued at any time ?-A. I kept a rough check.

Q. Could you tell at any date how many checks yon issued ?-A. No, sir, I
couldn't.

Q. What check did you keep on the tickets yon issued ?-A. Just from memory;
just remembered seeing go many.

Q. Then, practically, you kept no check at all ?-A. I had an idea within one
or two.

Q. Did yon have any means to identify the parties to whom yon gave these
checks ?-A. It was impossible to do that.

Q. Were you always certain that the parties who presented the checks were the
parties who got them the evening before ?-A. Yes.

Q. Always?-A. Not always, but in certain cases; if I recognized a man in the
office as getting a pass I would know him in the morning usually.

Q. You might have been imposed on?-A. Certainly; it was almost impossible
to keep people from imposing on one.

Q. The checks were never returned to you ?-A. They were given to the door-
keeper.

Q. As a matter of fact, did yon see them after they left your hands ?-A. I saw
some of them.

Q. Was that through arrangement or was it simply an accident ?-A. Some-
times ho would bring a number of them, lay them down, and after they would be
burned.

Q. By who?-A. By the man at the door.
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Q. Who was the man at the door?-A. I cannot remember any particular one;
often the passes were issued the night before and he would give them back to me
and i would burn them.

Q. When ? In the morning after the people were admitted ?-A. I have done
that on several occasions.

Q. Do you remember that Villeneuve was always door-keeper or was there
some one else occasionally ?-A. He was not always there.

Q. Do you remember any other door-keeper?-A. I don't remember wbo they
were.

Q. Do you remember any door-keeper on any occasion ?--A. Not just now; I
don't think of any.

Q. Have you any knowledge of any door-keeper having received any money ?-
A. No, sir.

Q. You are positive of that ?-A. No personal knowledge.
Q. Do you know if ever any clerk issued any of these passes for money ?-A.

No, I don't.
Q. That you are positive of?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. How many clerks were entitled to issue these passes; you were recording

ordinary claims ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You were entitled to issue them when there was an overcrowd of people that

had to be attended to ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Who else?-A. The bench claim man, Mr. Hurdman.
Q. Who else ?-A. I suppose Mr. Clark.
Q. What were his duties ?-A. His duties upstairs were-he was taking

applications for re-locations.
Q. Were there any other persons that had a right to ?-A. I don't think so.
Q. Well, then, there was no understanding in the office? There was no rule laid

down as to who could and who could not give these passes ?-A. No, sir, not that I
remember of ; I simply understood that the clerks doing duty at the differoent wickets
did so, each man like myself.

Q. And personally you never took any means of determining whether or not
you were imposed on in any way by passes ?-A. No, sir.

Q. As far as you know, any person would gain admission on these passes ?-A.
He might if given to another person.

Q. When you gave a pass to an individual what did he do with it; what means
did you take to insure his returning in the morning ?-A. To get in on the pass that
was given him ?

Q. What means did he take to get recognized ; did he give his name to the door-
keeper going out and have a number assigned to him or what ?-A. I could not say.

Q. Yon don't know what means he took; simply went away with the pass and
presented it in the morning. Would that admit him apart from his being called ?
-A. Well, of course, they were generally numbered.

Q. That is what I want to get at; in what way ?-A. 1, 2, 3, &o.
Q. How were they numbered ?-A. They were numbered as they were given.
Q. Who numbered them ?-A. Sometimes I did-each man ioeued the passes to

the men at his wicket.
Q. Suppose you got a list of numbers of passes that you numbered, and listed

it on a system of numbers, to whom did you give that list ofnumbers ?-A. I hadn't
any list; Villeneuve was the man who had the list at the door. Sometimes it was
drawn to bis attention that a man was the first to get in in the morning.

Q. Was there any means taken to acquaint these men of the fact that they
would be admitted the next morning?-A. It was pretty hard to.

Q. You never laid down any system with the object in view that those who got
the passes should use them ?-A. It was pretty hard to do that in the case of such
a rush.

Q. You took no precaution of that kind; never took any precaution to know
that the personp resenting himsedf with the pass was the person who recoived it ?-
A. No, sir.
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Q. You took no precaution to insure that certainty ?-A. It was very bard to
take that.

Q. I suppose it would be difficult, but you didn't do it ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you ever hear of any traffic in passes ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Were you not aware of any door-keeper other than Villeneuve ?-A. No,

sir, I am not.
Q. You cannot say at any particular time there was any other man there ?-

A. No, sir.

By Mr. McDougal :

Q. When did you start this system of passes ?-A. I don't remember that.
Q. You can give an approximate idea-last summer ?-A. Yeo, sir.
Q. As early as September ?-A. Yes.
Q. You think the system was not in vogue before October ?-A. I think so.
Q. You wouldn't swear ?-A. It was in vogue before October, to the best of my

knowledge.

By Mr. Armstrong:

Q. I take it that men who were there at any time in order that they might have
precedence before men outside were given passes to get in, and sometimes left in?
-A. I don't know.

Q. Sometimes you gave passes and allowed them to go away ?-A. Yes, somo-
times.

Q. As a rule you remembered these passes ?-A. We remembored them some-
times.

Q. You kept a list of them ?-A. Not always-sometimes.
Q. Sometimes. You said a moment ago you didn't keep any list ?-A. I don't

know that we kept a list in writing, but we kept track.
Q. You kept a list which was not in existence ?-A. We kept a memo. of

numbers.
Q. What sort of momo ?-A. We issued a certain number of passes.
Q. You could tell how many passes were issued each day ?-A. Couldn't say.
Q. As a rule you didn't know the men who came to your window ?-A. I always

identified three or four of them.
Q. Only three or four ?-A. Well, you can't identify twenty-five or fifty.
Q. Did you let every man get in; did you not state that you kept no check

on the numbers you issued ?-A. It was impossible to keep a check.
Q. Did you keep an account of the number of passes you issued ?-A. Just

roughly; of course those who were in the office at four o'clock were allowed passes
to come in the next morning.

Q. You burned the passes given by yon ?-A. Sometimes.
Q. Did Villeneuve give yon any passes to burn ?-A. I think he did.
Q. Would you swear ho did ?-A. I think ho did.
Q. Would you swear ho did ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. I want you to tell me about minera' licenses; those who wanted these were

allowed in preference to men with other business, were they not ?-A. Sometimes
we were more crowded at times than others; if there were not many people in to
get licenses any man that came could get in.

Q. What had a man to do when ho came to get a miner's license?-A. Say
what ho wanted.

Q. Had ho to sign a book?-A. If ho wanted to get a license, yes.
Q. He signed a stub in the license book ?-A. That's all, I think.
Q. He always signs the stub ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. Io it an invariable rule for a man getting a license to sign a stub ?-A. Yes,sir, either by power of attorney or order, but if a man cannot write his own name

another signs it for him.
Q. What do you mean by « order " ?-A. Power of attorney.
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By the Commissioner:

Q. You say sometimes another man signed for him ?-A. If a man could not
write, the man behind him signed his name and he would make his mark.

Q. He would make his mark ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Armstrong:

Q. Supposing a man came to get a license for another man, could ho get it ?-
A. Not that I know of; I have never issued miners' licenses.

Q. Who has charge ?-A. Different people.
Q. Have you ever had charge of that work ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You can't tell me the names of any clerks who had charge of it ?-A. Yes,

Mr. Wright.
Q. You were head clerk in the office ?-A. Not that I know of.
Q. Who/was ?-A. I don't think there was any; I never was appointed head

clerk.
Q. You were on equal standing ?-A. Well, I never was appointed hoad clerk.
Q. You tacitly bad that position, though ?-A. No, sir, I did not.
Q. You wore head clerk in that your salary was higher than the others ?-A.

No, my salary was not.
Q. On the 20th could you tell me who issued miners' licenses?
Mr. TAnoa.-Mr. Commissioner, have you arrived at any decision with refer-

ence to the date yet ?
TiHE COMMIssIONER.- yes.

By the Commissioner to Mr. Bolton:

Q. I asked you if you knew of any traffie in these passes; do you under-
stand what I mean ?-A. Yes, sir, I heard there was, but it never came to my
knowledge.

Q. What did you hear ?-A. I heard there wero passes issued outside of the
office.

Q. Outside of the office ?-A. Yos.
Q. Have you any reason to think that a person who got a pass handed it over

to another to use it ?-A. It occurred to me sometimes that it might be done.
Q. Ilave you any reason to believe that it has been done ?-A. Yes, I have.
Q. Give your reason, please ?-A. It would only be natural it would be done.
Q. Have you any reason to know of any particular case: to think that you

have been deceived ?-A. No, not in any particular case.

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. But you swore in answering me that you never hoard that there was such
a thing as traffcing in passes ?-A. I don't think I did.

Q. But you swore to me that you never hoard so ?-A. 1 don't think I did.
Q. Can the evidence be looked up to see if ho stated that ho never heard there

was trafflcing in passes?
Mr. BoLToN.-I had knowledge of hearing of such a thing.
Mr. TÀBoR.-How many times have witnesses to be asked questions over and

over again ? there are rules laid down by the highest authorities; that rule should
apply bore. There are two gentlemen examining at the same time and asking the
same thing over and over again.

The CoMMIssioNEa.-I notice some questions are asked over and over again.
Mr. MODoUGAL.-It is a curious state of things, according to law, if a person

who bas sworn one thing, and I rise to ask if ho has sworn whether that was positive
or not; I should like the evidence looked up.

Stenographer referring to notes found the question referred to was "Did you
over hear of any trafc in passes?"-Answer "No, sir."
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By Mr. McDougal:

Q. You were then aware that people-at least it was brought to your knowledge
that certain people did traffic in passes?-A. It was not brought to my knowledge.

Q. Did yon take means to stop that, or did you let things go on just a% they
were?-A. 1 wasn't running the show.

Q. In fact you were not responsible for everything done in the office ?-A. I was
not responsible for it.

Q. Who was responsible for the general admission of miners into the offica ?-
A. I am not bore to answer for it; I don't know I am siure.

Q. Do you mean thrt you refuse tu anbwer, or that you don't know ?-A. There
were half a dozen people who were in charge of the offices; there were offices up
stairs-the land office and other offices which I had nothing to do with at all.

Q. Was there some confusion in the minds of the clerks as to who was in
charge?-A. I carnot tell you what was in their minds.

By the Commiuioner:

Q. In what way did this knowledge come to you of the traffic in passes ?-A.
Some person told me on the street.

Q. Had yon ever beard of any specific case, or was it simply intimated to you
that there was such a traffic?-A. Just simply intimated I may say.

Q. These were the only passes you issued ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Had you ever heard of anybody issuing passes outside of the office-irres-

ponsible parties ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Have you knowledge of any one other than those entitled to issue passes

doin so ?-A. No, sir.
. Just those entitled to issue them?-A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. What are your office bours, Mr. Bolton ?-A. About 9.15 a.m. until 4 p.m.
Q. You remained in the office working very often after four ?-A. Generally

there until five.
Q. You can't get through your work during office hours?-A. No, sir, we

cannot.
Q. Yourself and Mr. Hurdman, I understand, have bad more than you could do;

therefore in the issuing of passes, and matters of that description yon would have to
do it as hurriedly as possible ?-A. Yes, very hurriedly.

Dr. RoBINsoN, called and testified as follows:-

By Mr. Mcl>ougal :

Q. How long have you been in this country ?-A. I landed about the 24th of
May last.

Q. You have just heard Villeneuve bwear that ho never accepted money at the
door; would that htatement be true or not?-A. It would not.

Q. Do you know Villeneuve?-A. I know him by sight.
Q. Do you see him now ? Which is ho ?-A. (Dr. Robinson points Villeneuve

Out.) That is the man.
Q. Did you ever pay him any money for admission into the office ?-A. I gave

him one dollar. .
Q. Describe the transaction ?-A. I wanted to get into the office; it was much

crowded; t'bey were giving out numbers. I went down one afternoon and rapped
at the side door. I asked Mr. Villeneuve if ho would give me a number. I took a
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piece ot paper in which I had folded a dollar, the last dollar I had, and handed it to
him.

Q. That was Villeneuve ?-A. Yes.
Q. le took the dollar, and what did be say ?-A. I don't know that ho said

anything; I came next morning to the door about 8.30.
Q. Did the door open just atter nine? Did you get in ?-A. I went in with the

crowd at ihe side door.
Q. That is to say on the north side of the office ?-A Yes.
Q. This side you mean ?-A. The river side, not the sidfe this way.
Q. Did other people get in when the door opened at nine o'clock ?-A. Yes,

there were three or four ahead of me; yes, they got in the side door until after ton
o'clock.

Q. Do yon know how people got in who were not with you ?-A. No.
Q. Were you in the office from nine until you did your business ? What time

was that ?-A. About ten-thirty.
Q. Daring that time what did you observe ?-A. I observed that the front door

didn't open.
Q. Nobody entered the front door fron nine until ton thirty, and a large crowd

of miners stood outside of the door ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did it appear to you that the clerks were very busy ?-A. Yes, ail busy.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. What date was that ?-A. It was about-I don't know, I could find ont.
Q. You could tell what month it was in ?--A. August.
Q. You will have to find out the date to know who was on the door, because in

Auguht the police were in charge of the door. This gentleman will have to refresh
his mind?-A. Your son was with me. I wanted him to go with me to seo how
things were, so ho could give the information to you.

Q. Did my ion have that information ?-A. Yes, I told him you ehould know of
this.

Q. That is what you told him ?-&. Yes, and told hi ho could give you the
information.

Q. I must cali my son.

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. Your object in speaking to Mr. Fawcett, jun., was that ho might pay this
money and know what was going on at the office, that ho might enlighten his
father, so that stops might be taken to improve the means for admission into the
office ?-A. Yes.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Was that the object of your seeking admission ?-A. No, sir, I wanted to
get into the office.

Q. Did you feel that your were brit>ing Villeneuve when you gave him that
money?-A. I didn't feel that I was bribing Mr. Villeneuve. I thought the money
was well eained.

To Mr. FAwOBTT.-Have you the means of finding out?
Mr. FAWOETT.-YOS, sir; we want to find out the time.
The CoMMIssIoNEE.-Ou swear that it wats Villeneuve ?
Mr. PAWOETT.-He bas sworn that the front door didn't open until 10.30; that

is what I want to investigate.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-You are positive that you gave pay to Villeneuve ?
Mr. RoBINSN.-Ne took it in his hands. I cannot tell whether ho dropped it

or not.
Q. You don't know whether he knew it ?-A. I rapped. at the door with a piece

of silver; that was ail I did; I was a ohump to give a bill.
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Mr. FAwoEi.-I don't know anything about that; it is a matter of keeping the
door closed until 10.30, and it is a matter about which we wili have to further inves-
tigate.

By Mr. Armstrong:

Q. When you were admitted the next morning you supposed Villeneuve had
discovered the dollar ?-A. No, sir. I walked in and he didn't pay any attention.

By Mr. McDougal:

Q. The conversation you bad with young Fawcett; was that after being in the
office ?-A. Yes, after.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Were there a number of people around the door in the afternoon; that is
the door which led upstairs ?-A. Yes.

Q. You went through the door that went up stairs ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. There was quite a number of people there in the spring ?-A. A big jam.

By the Commisioner:

Q. Were yon aware that there was a policeman outside of the door ?-A. No.
I knew there was a policeman at the door when I went in.

Q. Do you know their names ?-A. No.

Mr. H nRRY W. CBB, being duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. McDougal;

Q. How long have you been in this country ?-A. I came on the 10th of June.
Q. Have yon had much business at the gold commissioner's office ?-.

Prequently.
Q. Did you know it was almost impossible te get in ?-A. I did.
Q. Did you pay money to get in?-A. I did.
Q. To whom did you pay it?-A. To the doorkeeper.
Q. Could you recognize him in court?-A. I thinki could.
Q. Can you point him out ?-A. (The witness pointed te Mr. Villenenve.)
Q. Is that the man ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. How much did you pay him ?-A. I slipped two dollars into his pocket.
Q. Did he scem to know that the dollars bad arrived there?-A. I don't know

about that.
Q. Did he let you in?-A. Yes, sir, he let me in the door.
Q. How did yon come to get into the offlce?-A. Well, I couldn't afford to stand

Outeide.
Q. Did you hear any other people complaining?-A. I heard something of the

kind; I thought if I could get in I had better.
Q. Why did you think you could get in by paying money ?-A. I heard it

iitimated.
Q. Did your partner get in in the same way by paying money ?-A. No, sir, I

don't think so.

By the Commisioner:

Q. You said just now you gave money for admission into the office ?-A. Yes;he was on the inside when i entered.
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Q. You had got inside before you gave the money ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Why did you give it to him when you were in ?-A. He let me in; I had

seen him several times; he knew me. I went te the side door; he said you can't
get in. I asked him if he could not let me in. He said yes, so I went in.

Q. He said you couldn't, and then when yon asked him he said yes; what did
you understand by that?- A. I understood ho wanted something outside of that te
let me in.

Q. Are you sure he knew ?-A. He turned his right side towards me afd I
slipped the money into his pocket; I don't think he saw me give it te him at the
time I put it into his pocket.

Q. On which side of the coat ?-A. The right side.
Q. Yeu gave it te him gratis; he didn't ask • you for it ?-A. No, he didn't aek

me for it.
Q. You did give it te him corruptly ?-A. I gave it te him as a matter of

friendship.
Q. You gave it te him because you thought it necessary te do so ?-A. Well,

yes, I didn't think I could afford te wait around ail day; 1 was willing te give two
dollars rather than stand outside.

Q. Yeu are positive that was the man ?-A. That was the man into whose
pocket I slipped the two dollars.

By Mr. Armstrong:

Q. Did you slip two dollars in the ýeft pocket or the right; do you think he
felt your hand ?-A. No.

Q. Wby did be turn around ?-A. I don't suppose he wanted te stand there all
day; I said I put two dollars in his right pocket; ho was standing one way and I
the other. (The witness showed the relative position of the accused and himself
and the movements they went through.)

Q. When you came te the door did you think if you gave him something he
would let you in ?-A. I thought so.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You only thought so ? Had you any previous knowledge of hie doing that?
-A. Only beard it on the streets in rumour.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. What date was this ?-A. I couldn't tell yon.
Q. Approximately ? -A. I think it was about the last Of August.
Q. Yeu say he lot you in before he got the money ?-A. I didn't pay him until

I was inside; I simply gave him the money.
Q. As fai as you know ho knew nothing about it ?-A. He muet have known

something.
Q. Why ?-A. Well, when a man turne his right side te you, and edges up te

you he is apt te expect something.
Q. How many people were there at the time ?-A. Weil there were a number

in the office.
Q. Yeu were clo'e to him ?-A. I was net far off.
Mr. TABo.-Have we had your ruling, sir, regarding the point as te 'whether

you will admit evidence on charges subsequent te the 25th of August ?
The CommIst3oNER.-Do you want it now? I have consulted with the legal

adviser bore and have come te the conclusion that I can only bear charges under
that commission that occurred before the 25th of August. If there is any way in
whicb I can go on and bear others, I am quite willing te do so,-if there is any legal
method-and further I intend to refer the matter te the minister and ask for another
commission or an enlargement of this.

Mr. TAÂo.-As I read the commission, Mr. Commissioner-
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The CoMMIssIoNER.-It is clear in the commission. I can not legally administer
an oath to witnesses giving evidence on charges after that date, neither can I
subpena witnesses.

Mr. MoDoUGAL.-Is there no appeal from the decision of that legal point?
Can we bring before Judge Dugas the legal points involved in that decision?

Mr. CLEMENT.-No. The wording of the commission is perfectly clear. There
is not a scintilla of doubt about it. You can't get over it.

Mr. MCDOUGAL-There is no appeal?
Mr. CLEMENT.-NO.
Mr. McDouGAL.-I know little of law, but it dosen't appear to me that the

meaning of that document excludes the examination of evidence as to misconduct
that occurred after'the 25th of August. Now, these charges were made in the letter;
have been made since; are still made; and made every day, and the examination
should be made into matters into which the commission refers. There is nothing
referred to as to time at ail. The document does not say that the charges prior to
that shall be examined, but that an examination shall be made into the statements
and complaints. They refer to certain actions made from day to day, and made
still, and it is utterly impossible to read it any other way than that this investigation
should consider charges u to the present time.

The COMMIssIoNER.-Unforfunately it is otherwise.
Mr. TABOR.-YOUr judgment has been given Mr. Commissioner. It is highly

irregular. (Refarring to Mr. McDougal's remarks).
Dr. I. McWM. BOURKE.-Before you give judgment, sir, I should wish to ask if it

applies to otherb who bring charges in the same position as the miners' committee.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-Certainily it does.
Dr. BoURKE. -You addressed two letters to me in which you expressed yourself

as having information that people bringing charges must charge fraud. Have you
arrived at the opinion that people should be excluded from court if they don't charge
fraud.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-It must be some misconduct on the part of the officiais, but
if it is a case of contest for title it will not be heard.

Dr. BoURK.-You rule that there must be fraud ?
The CoMMIssINER.-There must be some specific statement of misdoing, and

Yniedoing is fraud.
Dr. BouRKE.-That is a distinction.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-It is a distinction.
Dr. BoURKE.-In the letters from you, you said one must charge fraud or fraudu-

lent conduct.
Mr. TABoa.-Miedeeds or malfeasance-one or the other.
Dr. BoURKE.-Am I to understand that we have no appeal to the judgo for his

ruling in this matter?
The CoMMIssIoR.-That is what the legal adviser says.
Dr. BoURKE.-It we apply to the judge for a mandamus, would you hold to his

decision on the point?
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I don't think I would be compelled to.
Mr. CLEMENT.-NO.
Dr. BouaKE.-I have not had an opportunity of inepecting the commission, and

I Would ask for the privilege of inspection of the document.
The CoMMIss[oNR.-It was read here, and the essential part of it published.
Dr. BoURKE.-I was not here when it was read; I was not engaged in the case,

and so did not hear it.
The CoMmissIoNE.R.-The essential part of it has been published.
Dr. BoURKE.-I apply to read the document.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-YOu may read it now if you wish.
Dr. BouaRE.-And also any instructions that would throw any light upon it.
The commissioner hande Mr. Smart's letter to Dr. Bourke.
Mr. TABoR.-Your ruling is final, Commissioner?
The CoMMIssIONER.-I cannot take it up. If there is any other way that it can

be legally done, I would go on, but I have been advised that I cannot legally admin-
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ister an oath referring to charges after the 25th of August. As I remarked, I might
be legally stopped.

Mr. TABOR.-There are two acts provided for commissions-one general act and
one private-for examination under oath. One of these was issued last, year, and
referred to the acts of civil servants. It may be a questionable point, whether this
very commission would be entitled to inquire into the acts of civil servants, because
there is another act provided for it.

The CoMMIssoNER.-That is a misfortune.
Dr. BoURKE.-I see, sir, in that letter of instructions to you, that it says your

commission is " to inquire into and report upon charges preferred against goveranment
officials in the Yukon Territory."

The CoMMIssIoNER.-That refers to the commission.
Mr. GEoRGE.-I would ask you if your decision, that you have just renderéd,

also confines the charges to those specific allegations in that document forwarded to
Sir Wilfrid Laurier by the committee of mineis?

The CoMMIssIoNER.-I don't think so. The commission is pretty wide, and the
memorial is wide, so that anything coming bofore the 25th Auguet can be brought
in under it, but the commission clearly points out that it is to that memorial and the
charges therein set forth and referred to that I am to take note of and investigate.

Colonel MciEaoR.-I have no desire to induce the commissioner to go beyond
the province of tho document in hand; but I am satisfied that it is not filling the
mi6sion for which the commiss.ion was granted if it is limited to that date. I
am speaking as onE of the members of the erstwhile miners' committee that sent
the memorial on which the commission was granted in response. I have no know.
ledge. of law. But the way I understand the royal commission (and I have had
some experience in commissions; probably not so much as some of my learned
friends); the way I understand it was the commisaioner that was to investigate into
charges was not limited to the date of the commission, but up to the time that
his labours would be considered to be comi leted.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-I wish it had been so.
Colonel McGREo.-I feel satisfied that if it is not done so it will not be satis-

factory. The miner's committee are not seeking charges, but allegations and
charges are seeking them from early morn to night. The miners' committee are
not the only body that is doing this. I think the Nugget is doing a good deal;
and the outside press is full of it; and the London Times as well-all make these
charges fully as strong as the miners' committee has maie them. I don't wish the
miners' conimittee to be placed in the light of the prosecution of these charges. The
whole community is prosecunting as much as they are. At the same time I feel sat-
isfied that if the commission is limited to that date, it will not give satisiaction.

The CoMMIasIoNER.-Why was the niemorial made ? Yon represented certain
conditions existing before the 25th of August. Why did you make a memorial if
yon were not prepared to go on as far as that date ?

Colonel McGREGoa.-Several months have elapsed since that time, and a great
many parties who were in and could be brought as witnesses, and to whom the
charges referred, have left the country, and there is a new order of things.

The CoMMIssIONE.-My legal adviser has advised me that 1 cannot legally
administer an oath in any transaction that occurred after that date; and if I do I
might get into trouble.

Colonel MOGREoo.-I have no desire to iiduce you to go beyond your power.
The CoMnissIoNEa.-If there is any other legal way to take the investigation up,

I will do so, and will urge the minister by the next mail to extend this commission,
or have a new one. Regarding the letter that was read yesterday by Mr. Armstrong
-that is only the deputy minister's opinion, and perhaps under the instructions of
the minister. Even the minister doesn't always utter the law. Even the minister
cannot override the law. I am sorry I am stopped.

Colonel McGRaGoR.-I have never had anydesire that charges should be proved
against the officials; but to give general satisfaction. I am speaking on behalf of
the committee of which I wus one. Ail I can say is that that order does not satisfy
the committec.
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The CoMMIssIoNER.-I regret that as much as yOu do, and perhaps more.
Colonel McGaEGoa.-I do not desire to incriminate officialm. If they are guilty,

it is botter for the community to know it. If not, it is better for themselves to be
cleared from the charges which bave been made against the whole official body.

The ComMIssIosEa.-Stili this memorial speaks of a number of thinigs:-the
closing of the commissioner's office; the cloeing of Dominion Creek; charges
against the mining inspector-that is simply a matter of opinion; charges against
Mr. Wade; and the post office is referred to, Ail these matters can be gone into;
it will take soome time to settle them. At far as I can I will assist yen to go on; if
any other legal way can be adopted I will use it. L will consult the legal adviser,
and if there is any other way we can go on under oath, or by statutory declaration,
I will do so. Meantime I will ask the minister for another commission or an exten-
sion of this.

Mr. ARMSTRNG.-I would point out that the post office was not mentioned in
the petition.

Dr. BoURKE.--I beg to recognize the force of what you say, Mr. Commissioner.
I see you have no other course. I am satisfied of that. I presume that charges
up to that date will be beard.

The CoMmissIoNEa.-Yes.
Mr. McDýoUGAL.-YoU ask why we wrote the memorial. - It was not that an

inquiry might be made into the veracity of the minera' committee, but to get a
royal commission to inquire into the way official business was done in this country,
and it appears to be by the whole wording, a desire to find out whether the minera'
committee was a body of men who wish to speak the truth.

The CoMMIssINER.-Certainly.
Mr. McDouGAL.-The commission rather assumes an aspect of a commission

that wisbes to inquire into the conduct of the minera' coiimittee rather than into
the conduct of public officiais.

The CoMMIssioNR.-I beg your pardon-I have assisted you in every way I
could by doing anything which was suggested.

Mr. McDoUGAL.-Can you be burprised that any one cannot carry on a prosecu-
tion which commences, say 25th February, before which no matters can be brought
up which occurred after :5th August ?

The CoMMIssIoNEa.-It may be surprising, but ail I can say is I am quite as
inuch surprised and disappointed as you are. I regret it, but I wili take such steps
by any legai met hod I eau te go on with the investigation, and if you wish I shail
ask for au enlargement of the commission, or a new one to end on such a date se
that eveiybody will be sat isfied. I cannot override the commission; there is no use.

Mr. GEORGE.-I would like te express myself now, as on Friday morning. We
bave ail hoard, sir-, you express the desire to make the fullest kind of an investiga-
tion. We believed you, and do yet. Nevertheless, since your commission bas been
ho grossly limited-

The CommissIoNER.-Not grossly, Mr. George, be careful of your language.
1r. GEoRGE.-Badly limited-the word was probably ill-chosen-that we are

Sorionsly hampet ed. In ignorance of your limitation, in the public interests, we had
been encouraged to make ehargei which we cannot investigate, and it is a very
Unpleasant matter for the officials charged. For instance, I will give yon an illustra-
tion-Mr. Fawcett is bore, by invitation of yourself, and bas been charged of
extorting money from people before recording claims. This occurred subsequent to
the date of the memorial--

The CoMMIssIosEa.-I would rather, Mr. George, that yen do net refer to these
matters at present.

Mr. GEoRG.-I was going to suggest that it was a hardship against Mr. Fawcett
in preferring charges which we cannot investigate.

The CoMMIssINER.-It is an unfortunate occur'ence that it is so. I am very
sorry. I would net have raised the point.

Mr. ARMSTRONG.-I don't wish to argue about that. I recognize your point. I
wish to state on behalf of myself and the minere' committee, Lhat wbat we hoped
and applied for was a oommission of inquiry into the oonduct and acte of officials
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here-a commission to hear charges and hear the defence, and to adjudicate their
wrong. We consider it a limited commission; and in this limited sense that we
cannot hear charges against officials after a certain date, notwithstanding the late
arrival of the document, it is time thrown away in taking part, and we have decided
to withdraw our charges. We have no desire to go on. As chairman of the com-
mittee, we wish to withdraw under that commission. I would suggest that you ask
for a parliamentary commission.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-The parliament would have to decide that.
Mr. MCDOUGAL.-I would like the legal adviser to give a ruling if we cannot

appeal from your docision.
Mr. CLEMENT.-I don't rule; I simply advise the commisEioner.
The CoMMIssioNER.-You can object to my ruling, and apply for a mandamus to

go on.
Mr. McDoUGAL.-YOu said you thought it was impossible to go on.
Mr. CLEMENT.-I gave that as my opinion.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-You can appeal to the judge, and if you can succeed, and

ho is able to order me to go on legally, I will be mo3t happy to do so. I don't think
anyone eau say that I stood in the way except in cases of contest. Those I objected
to and d, yot, but as far as uny allegation made in this document is concerned Iam
quite willing to go on and do everything in my power. You have only to make
a suggestion to have it carried out, if there is any legal way in which I can do so.
I will consult with the legal adviser and others, and any possible way in which
evidence can be taken legally I will take it. I will write the minimter at once and
urge him strongly to give another commission or to have this one enlarged. One is
.as easy as the other.

Mr. ARMSTRC NG.-Will yOu suggest that something be said about expenses ?
The CoMMissioNER.-I have pointed thut out already. I am disappointed that

you are not ready to go on.
Mr. ARMSTRONG.- YOu will see that many men have loft the country; we could

bring similar cases that have occurred since and have witnesses on the spot. It
doe>n't matter to us about the commission being extended to July or with no
limitation with regard to it. We may not be in the country. We nay be too busy
to attend to it. Wu have other business to attend to instead of attending a com-
mission that rune on until July. We cannot afford it. Furthermore wu think the
commis>ion should inquire, not listen to charges we shall bring.

The CoMMîssIoNER.-HLere these allegations are made, and I think it is your
duty to put in charges or evidence sustaining the charges you bave made.

Mr. ARMsTRoNG.-I think, sir, it is in the interest of the government to find
out whether these charges are true or not. Let the Government find out, not
simply listen to our charges.

The CoMMIssioNER.-There have been charges made to me and I will go on
witb them even if you drop out. You have made serious charges, and the govern-
ment acting under your statement bas issued this commission. Now you drop
them. The public may take a different view from that yon hold in the matter. I
am sorry that you dropped it. However, I will go on and do the best I can. There
are certain charges laid which I will take up. I was under the impression you had
referred to the post office here, but you have not. I didn't expect the commission
would satisfy everybody. People have thoir opinions and will stick to them. I
will have to make other arrangements.

Mr. ARMsTRoNG.-We withdraw from it on account of the limitation.
The COMMIssIoNER.-You have incurred theresponsibility of making statements

which you refuse to substantiate.
Mr. MoDouoAÂ.-No, we don't. but I submit this is not a proper commission

of inquiry.
Mr. CL EMENT.-YOU are talking nonsense.
The CoMMIssIoNE.-You shouId have some respect for yourself Mr. McDougall,

if you have none for other people. Your opinion does not rule in this country I an
glad to say. It would be better if you would restrain yourself. You come into the
government offices and insult people who are quite as intelligent and respectable as
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you are, Mr. MoDougal. I should like you to have some degree of propriety before
this Commission.

Mr. McDouGAL.-The point bas been raised in court, sir.
The CoMMIsIoNER.-Expross yourself in proper terms, or I will listen no more

to your remarks.
Mr. McDoUGAL.-I am quite prerared to take the consequences.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I will give you a lesson in civility unless you conduct your-

self in a proper manner.
Mr. MouoUGAL.-1 am prepared to have any lesson in civility.
The CoMMIssioNEa.-After this restrain yourself when you are addressing any

person. Il you have any charge to make against the purport of the commission do so
in a proper manner.

Mrl. ARMSTRNG.-We have already withdrawn.
Mr. GEoRGE.-On behalf of the .Nugget I think the powers of the commission

should be extended. Your powers will be widened when it is properly represented
at home. At the sane time if we could prove the taking of one thousand dollars
after the 25th of August it would substantiate our charges which were made before
the 25th ; but it is so limited that it will appear that it is not doing us as ample
justice as we would like. In bohalf of the Nugget we would withdraw from the
case.

The COMMtssIoNE.-Âre you prepared to adopt any other y -tem? I would
like to have the charges go through. I am sure Mr. Fawcett wou d too.

Mr. FAwcETT.-I would like to see the charges go on. The charges are false.
Mr. GEORGE.-We have consulted over it since we learned how the land lay. I

think if you make representations of your limitations the commission will be
widened, air, and we will be given the opportunity we desire.

The CoMMIssioNERa.-Mr. Fawcett cannot remain bere in the country. I would
rather if you could go on. Mr. Fawcett would rather have it go on. There is the
question of the closing of Dominion Creek. I am going on with that even if
you are not hore. If the miners' committee withdraw I will have to go on inde-
pendently and ask eomebody to represent the opposition in this case. You will see
that Mr. Fawcett is charged with the opening and closingof Dominion Creek in
your petition. It occurred before that. The date is prior. The statement that
officiais here have lost the confidence of the people would include that. Besidos you
have in your own charges, already preferred, made it your first charge, I think you
will see, in lookirg over your lit.

Mr. GEoiRGE.-But don't you see the predicament we are in? We cannot secure
immunity for our witnesses; we cannot compel them to answer.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-As far as Dominion Creek is concerned-as far as I under-
Stand Mr. Fawcett's case, I don't think any witness wili hesitate. I don't suppose
yours will.

Mr. GEoRGE.-Some of mine will. This information I dragged out from them
involuntarily.

The CommissIoNER.-You eau draw your own inferences; if they don't think
they have a proper case to state and the trnth to tell.

Mr. GzoRGE.-I think it would be, sir, unwise on your part. I am sorry but it
Would be unwise.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-It is for you to decide. The public impressions are that
the truth comes ont better under oath.

Mr. GEoRGE.-The truth comes out more under oath, and if you put a man where
You can't swear him legally it lessens your investigating capacity. So in justice to
ourselves we withdraw from the case.

The CommIssIoNER.-I wîil have to go on in an informal way. Your witnesses
Will be subpoaned. They will have to corne forward to testify and I wili be most
happy to bear their statements.

Mr. FAwcETT-I am very anxious. It is a hardship for me to wait here any
longer than I have to. I would have been willing to have gone on before now.I
Was bound to stay and see this-through. As I stated the charges are altogether
Without foundation and I want an opportunity to prove it.
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The CoMmissIoNER.-If the witnesses are bore, such of them as are wiliing, wili
be asked to give statements, even if not under oath. 1 wili have to investigate the
question of the closing of Dominion Creek. It is alleged that Mr. Fawcett closed it.
I don't see why you should hesitate. That is one of your specific charges put in by
both the .Nugget and the miner's committee.

Mr. GEORGE.-YOU bee no one charge itself sufficient to warrant the Nugget's
attacks on officiais, or the writing of the memorial to our parliament, and therefore if
that Dominion matter was the only trouble in this country we could not file a list of
charges.

The ComImssIoNE.-There are so many charges made here that if you prove
them ail you will prove a good deal. There are so many things alleged in this
memorial that if you withdraw the public will have its own opinion. The govern-
ment will look ut it in the same way. There was a commission to enquire into the
charges made before the 25th of August. The memorial says " that many of the
government officiais have forfeited their claims to the people's confidence and respect
by their conduct and action in cet tain matters." Well, they must have occurred
before that date, the 25th of August, or the statement would not have been made.
" Leading to strained relations which ought not to exist where the people have every
desire to be loyal and law-abiding. The gold commissioner's office is practically
closed." Why not go on with these charges?

Mr. GEoRGE.-The reason why we cannot continue in this case is that the evi-
dence we can secure may be from witnesses whose testimony would apply to a date
later than the 25th of August, as was shown by the last witinesses.

The CoMMIssIONEB.-If the question of date was not raised ?
Mr. GEoaGE.-There would be some on0 raise the question.
The CoMMIssIoNEa again reads from the Memorial :-" Also it is felt to be un-

fair that those connected with the administration should have opportunities of
acqniring special knowledge thould be ailowed to compete with the miner in soeur-
ing desirable ground. " Then there is an allegation made against the Dominion
lands agent, and the Ciown timber agent. I don't see why you can'tgoon. If you
refuse to go on and ask for another commission, it may be said that an opportunity
was given to you to prove charges up to a eertain date, and you had never taken
advantage of it. When are you going to quit ? If you don't take advantage of the
present opportunity it is an evidence of want of good faith; I think the government
will realize it at once.

Mr. GEoRE.-It is six months since the minera' meeting was held.
The COMMISsIoNER.-If you don't wish to go on here that setties it. I will do

what I bave told you. You have been given an opportunity and won't take advant-
age of it.

FRiDAT MORNING, 24th FEERuARY, 1899.

Charge No. 2. submitted by E. C. Allan, was taken up, which read asJollows:

" That at the time pending the issuance of permits to prospect, as appeared in
his own notice of 11th July, 1898, at 10 a.m., he did wilfully deviate from his said
notice and issue a permit to Mrs. Koch. " (Referring to Mr. Fawcett.)

The CoMMIssoNER.-Thore is a case, too, on the list against Mr. Fawcett in con-
nection with Mrs. Koch; are you ready to go on with that case, Mr. Fawcett?

Mr. FAwcETT.-I do not remember the lady. Io Mr. Allan in court?
The CoMMissioNE.-I don't see him.
Mr. FAwcETT.-To this charge I give the direct negative.
Mr. GEoRE.-You will support your direct negative by sworn testimony.
Mr. FAwoEr.-The charge is true inasmuch as I deviated from the said notice,

for at the time this permit was given no arrangement had been made by the council
78
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with reference to issuing permits, and no notice had ever been made public or passed.
The facts of the mattor are these: From the beginning there was a ditference between
myself and the commissioner in reference to the closing of Dominion Creek bills
and benches. People had been perimitted by myself to prospect these hils and have
their applications at the office, nothing preventing them from renewing their certi-
ficates except that the returns of survey had not yet come in and these returns
would aid in identifying these hills to bhow where they were; pending that, every-
thing that was necessary to be done had been done with reference to persons pros-
pecting receiving their claims, so that on that account I had objected to this notice,
or this so-called legislation if you wish, stating that Dominion Creek hill and benches
were closed and reudily objected to that on the ground which I have stated, because
had they been closed it would have prevented those whom I had permitted to pros-
pect from having their claims put on record, and thrown their claims open with the
rest, so that after going on and prospecting with my permission they would llave
no protection whatever; probably many of them would lote their claims.

So that this lady comes to me on the 27th of May (I think some time then) one
morning after I bad had information about the closing of these bille and she says,
" Major Walmh says [ have to have a permit to prospect on Dominion hills, creeks
and benches." Well, I told ber I knew about no permits ; I bad heard nothing
about any permits. About an hour after, Major Walsh came to me and said "I think
we will issue permits for Dominion Creek, hils and benches;" that was the first
intimation I had had of any permits being issued. " Ali right," I said. Of course
I came to the conclusion that they concluded I was about right, and to prevent a
hasty stampede they had accordingly decided to give a permit to any one who came.

About an hour later Major Walsh's cook comes back and says, "Major Walsh
says 1 have to have a permit." I was very busy at the time, and unthinkingly wrote
on a piece of paper " This will permit the bearer to prospect any section of ground
on Dominion hills and benches, and as neur as I can remember, shortly atter bhe
came to get a permit for ber husbind or some other friend. I told ber to bring me
a written order from Major Walsh saying that a permit should be granted. I bad
had time to think the matter over a little. Major Walsh came down a few minutes
later and he said: " Did you give Mrs. Koch a permit ?" I replied, " she came and
told me you said she was to have a permit." He says, "I will have to get it from
ber; we will have to appoint a time for the issuing of these permits, and there will
have to be public notice given."

So he departed and I expected, as he and Mrs. Koch seemed to be particular
friends (I think she cooked for him) I thought she would get the permit from bim.
The end of it was that Mrs. Koch got nothing on her permit; she got no claim ; she
has received no claim yet on account of that permit. That is the full explanation of
the matter.

By the Commisioner:

Q. Have you got a copy of the notice ?-A. I have a copy of the notice which
the council passed with reference to the issuing of permits.

Q. What is it?-A. I wilIl find it in a minute ; it is a notice of a meeting prior
to that hold on the 27th of June.

Q. What was resolved at that meeting ?-A. I don't know whether it was
passed on that evening or not; but I think it must have been, or, on the ovening
following. The date is not given but it says: " A meeting to discuss the questions
of administration. Present: Major Walsh, commissioner of the Yukon district, and
Messra. Fawcett, Wade, Bliss and McGregor, T. D. Pattallo, secretary to the com-
miSsioner. Agreed. that on the oponing of Dominion hench claims for location, per-
mits to be issued to prospect the ground, after which the claims may be recorded if
the work bas been done to the satisfaction of the mining inspector.

" Agreed, that notice be given on Thursday, 30th int., to the effect that per-
missidn to prospect bench claims on Dominion Creek will be iseued at the office of
the gold commissioner on and alter 1oth July, 1898. T. D. Pattulo, secretary of
the commissioner, Yukon district."

19
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The date 10th July, bas been changed to the 11th.
Mr. FAWCETT.-I don't know but what that was the last meeting of the council.

By the Commiuioner:

Q. I would like to ask you a few questions about the history of Dominion Creek;
when was the creek closed-not the hills and benches ?-A. The 15th day of Novem-
ber was the last date on which any applications were taken.

Q. What year?-A. 1897.
Q. Why was it closed then ?-A. Just before this I had learned that a great

many claims were being relocated over othere that had been put on by description,
but the last of the group that I heard of was just below second Discovery -Lower
Discovery; when it was recorded number two consisted of some three c laims, and
A, B'and C were recorded.

Q. This was number 2A, B and C ?-A. Yes, 2A, B and C, I think, in this
locality. I am speaking from memory now. That number or one of the others
adjoining. The owners of the claims covering all these came in and told me of it-
that the claims covered their ground. The next thing I leurned was that there was
no number "3 " and that there was no number "2"; some one toit me so. After 1
found that people were staking fractions over claims, which in this case as sub-
sequently proved to be true by the survey, as, out of three full claims as applications
that were recorded, there is only one fraction of a fow tet. About number "27,"
below Upper Discovery, the saine thing was going on. When I found that this was
going on, that there was no means in the office of finding out whether in staking
these fractions, or even in staking the claims, that they were not staking over
grounÙ already occupied, I came to the conclusion that the only thing I could do
was to receive no applications until the creek was surveyed, and that is what [ did.

Q. You closed it ?-A. I closed it.
Q. The date of closure you have given; did you immediatoly report that to

Ottawa ?-A. Yes, and also to Major Walsh.
Q. Was it endorsed by Major Walsh ?-A. It was.
Q. He approved of the creek being closed ?-A. Ho was called in evidence on

that same point in August up in court that would have been blocked on the ground.
The question was brought up and at least one of the attorneys took the ground that
the creek was never legally closed, so Major Walsh was called in. Major Walsh in
bis instructions had power over the mining regulations, and ho was called in
evidence. He was asked " Were yon aware that Dominion Creek was closed ?" He
said " Yes." Then ho was asked "l Did you approve of it?" He said " Most cer-
tainly I did."

Q. That was given in evidence ?-A. That was given in evidence in the case of
Nelson vs. Donnely, and on which reply bas since been received.

Q. Had you any written instructions from Major Walsh to that effect ?-A. I
might have had a letter but I don't recollect at present, but I know ho approved of
what I had done. I have written instructions with reference to that remaining
closed. There is a letter at preent-

Q. That it was closed ? Did you permit prospecting to go on on the bill-sides?
-A. There was no recording or prospecting on the hill-sidos until the spring, until
the men were over their surveying.

Q. Then they began to prospect?-A. Yes.
Q. When ?-A. In April-the first prospecting was in April.
Q. You received these applications didn't you in the office?-A. Yes, we noted

them.
Q. Didn't put them on record ?-A. No, because we were not in a position to

designate them properly until the ground was surveyed.
Q. Was that privilege of prospecting and making applications for record

abrogated ?-A. No, sir, that was open to every one.
Q. Was it afterward abrogated ?-A. It was under the resolution that dedlared

the hills and benches closed.
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Q. Read the resolution; this question will come up again likely but I want to
understand it.

Mr. Fuwcett reads from the minutes of a meeting held in the commissioner's
office. Dawson City, 30th May, 1898, to discuss questions of administration:

" Any locations made on a creek after it has been closed will not be recognized
or put on record; this includes bill and bench claims as well as creek claims.

"Dominion Creek having been closed since the middle of November last it has
beern decided that the creek shall remain closed until further notice. This decision
applies to bill and bench claims, as well as to creek claims."

Mr. FAwcar.-I may say that this was moved by Mr. McGregor in council,
and he gave as bis reason for bringing up this resolution that he had told people
on the creeks that the hill, were not open, and said he was not going to be made a
fool of, and so he presented this resolution.

Q. You were present at this meeting-A. I was present.
Q. Did you object?-A. I did.
Q. On what ground?-A. On the ground that men hal gone out there under

my permission and had prospected, staked their claims, made applications at the
offlce, and their applications bad been accepted, and I thought that this would
simply throw them out, undoing the work I had done. It was no longer the rule
of the gold commissioner; I was over-ridden by the council. That occurred on
the 28th of May, and the creek was considered closed then.

The ComirssioNEE.-Does any person wish to ask any questions? Mrs. Koch
should be hore. I expected ber bore; we will bave to make inquiries where we
can get ber. I don't know if she is in the country.

Mr. FAWOTT.-I know the Nugget"made a great splurge over this permit.
The ComirssioNER.-Do you wish to call in any other witnesses ?
Mr. FAwcTT.-There is no member of the council here.
The COMMISsIONER.-When Mr. McGregor comes in it may be necessary for you

to put this evidence in before you go out of the country. All the evidence bore is
on one side; if the other parties do not appear I cannot help it. I will summon
them and if they are not bore to reprosent themselves we will have to take the
evidence submitted. I am not going to stop the investigation; i am going on as
far as lies in my power and invite the public to assist. If there is any fraud or
malfeasance I invite all to assist me in finding it out. I will do all in my power
within the scope of the commission.

FRNK BUTEAU.-Oii behalf of the miners I wish to ask yon a few questions.
I was a member of a committee whichwent to see you last summer, some time in
July. You will recollect that we asked you the question why was Dominion Creek
closed. Do you recollect what you answered ?

Mr. FAWOTT.-I think I answered, 1 don't know; that was regarding the hills
and benches. That is the proper answer.

By the Coinmisioner:

Q. Why did you give that answer ?-A. Becanse I didn't know-the hills and
benches.

Q. You knew it was olosed, but didn't know why ? That was an ambiguous
answer. Did you explain to Mr. Bateau the facts of the case ?-A. I didn't think I
had time.

Mr. BUTEAU.-WO were four; one of the others was Frank Dunlevie.
The CoxmssIoNE.-There is a charge against Mr. Fawcett for having wilfully,for the benefit of himself and friends, closed Dominion' Creek, and the question

relates to one Mrs. Eçpma Koch. I wanted to understand what were the cicum-
stances which led up to Mrs. Koch's connection with Dominion Creek under the
investigation for charges against Mr. Fawcett, having wilfully for himself and bis
friends closed Dominion Creek. I think you, Mr. Buteau, had better not ask your
questions now, you can be heard at that time when that case comes up.

Mr. BUTEAT.-The matter of permits was among our questions; also we asked
him the reason why he issued permits to prospect claims. He said "gyes." We said
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" why did you do so ?" He said " a lady came to my office and said she had been
sent by Major Walsh for a permit." He said ho wrote her a permit.

Mr. FAWcCTT.-He is telling it right.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Did you say that you wouldn't issue another after that ?-A. Yes.
Q. Without having a written order from Major Walsh ?-A. Yes.
Q. That's proper.
The third charge made by Mr. Allan of the Nugget was thon taken up.
" That Mr. Fawcett was unfair and unjust to the miners through his office, in

that, when through ignorance on the part of eaid miners, or through incompetence
on the part of the gold commissioner, two applications4 wore entertained for the same
ground and both parties paid the entrance fee of fifteen dollars, the fee of the misled
applicant was refused to be returned to him.

" Messrs. Charles K. Zorn and Andrew Nelson were both allowed to record the
same claim, number 11 above on Ail Gold. The gold commissioner refused to
return the money to Nelson, although the claim went to Zorn."

Mr. OHARLzs K. ZoRN, called and sworn.

By the Commissioaer:

Q. What bave you to say, Mr. Zorn ?-A. Last winter, I think, about this time,
I Iearned tbat a fraction, 11A below on Ail Gold which I had bought from a party
named Henckman. Well, I learned that it was overstaked by another party. I
looked at it and found that a man had restaked called Andrew Nelson, about two
months after that. I went to town and wanted to find that man; I found him, ho
was on 11 below Hunker. I went up and told him aboutit, regarding the papers and
transfer. He says, " yes, I restaked that fraction." I said, " we had botter fix that
up, there is a mistake somewhere." I went down and asked Mr. Fawcett and every-
thing was ail right. He soon found out that the clerk had made a mistake in the
book. It was put in 11A above, instead of 11A below. That was a sure case. He
said the property yon bought belongs to you; you shall have it back. He gave me
a written note that the property belongs to me, and the man told me ho wanted hie
fifteen dollars and his right back. They gave him his right back, at the same time
Mr. Fawcett was a little slow in giving him his fifteen dollars back. I said, I will
pay that, I am sick and tired of waiting and want to go back te Hunker, and I said
I will pay the fifteen dollars myseif. 1 paid the man fifteen dollars and gave him in
writing what Mr. Fawcett gave me when ho gives the rigbt back, and I paid him
the fifteer, dollars. The man was satisfied; ho bas since died in St. Mary's Hospital.
The Nugget got hold of it and I bad to come over clean from Sulphur again. I
would rather give the whole fraction than be bothered with it. [ bave paid five
dollars for my road-house expenses, and I wili have to pay another five dollars back.

Q. You didn't authorize the Nugget t3 bring me into this action? You didn't
ask them to bave the case investigated ?-A. I was asked about it, and finally when
I came down in the office I read the paper, then we bad a kind of talk about it, and
ho asked me, and I told the case then as I tell it now.

Q. You didn't authorize the Nugget or any one to bring this action ?-A. Not
at all.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Mr. Faweett, do you want to ask him any questions?
Mr. FAwoETr.-No; ho bas told the thing correctly.
Mr. ZoR.-Now, [ wish I didn't go there at ail, bocause that time already I

paid fifteen dollars. I would rather pay fifteen dollars just to get done with it.
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Mr. FAwoErr.-(Addressing the witness) Didn't 1 explain why 1 didn't give
the fifteen dollars?-A. No, I don't remember. You know very well I sent my wife
and she couldn't straigbten the matter out with you and I had to come myself; it
was migbty bard to get into that office; finally I got in, and I was glad to be out
and paid fifteen dollars.

Q. Did you tell this matter to the Nugget ?-A. Of course I did, wben they
asked me; I didn't go around the bush.

Q. They wcre hunting for information, and you told them on one occasion I
kept tifteen dollars which I should not have exacted ?-A. Yes; I would take that
right now; I would pay my road expenes with it. I would rather have paid it
twice in order to get rid of coming down here; the whole piece of property isn't
worth it.

Mr. FAwcErTT.-What Mr. Zorn has told you in connection with this case is
about true. The Nugget charges the office with incompetency in recording the saine
ground twice, but the records show two different descriptions. A fraction number
11A above-that was the description given by a gentleman who recorded the claim,
and it stood that way on the records. Subsequently it was found that this claim
recorded by Mr. Henckman was number 1IA below, not above.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Have you any knowledge of how the mistake came to be
made ?

Mr. FAwCETT.-Here is the application (sbowing the application). It was
afterwards corrected in the office. That was the original application, and after it
was ascertained in a month or so, Mr. Bolton bas scored that out and written the
correction below, and the same was in the record, and the records show that

By the Commiwsioner;

Q. Just here would you explain who took that application. It was taken by
myself in the first place. Have you any reason to think you misunderstood the
applicant when he said " above" rather than " below " ?-A. I have no reason to
think so; I was always careful to read the applications before the man signed it
and made affidavit to it.

Q. As nearly as you con recollect you believe he told you 11A above; you read
it over to him ?-A. Yes; be swore to it as 11A above and subsequently found ont
that it was 11A below, and 11A below was recorded by this other gentleman. Mr.
Zorn purchased this claim; it was on record before. It was ]]A below; iA below
was subsequently recorded by another party. in the record there was no confliot,
but later on they found these were both on the same ground, and of course it was a
'natter for contest, in which case the party bringing the conteet would, under the
regulations, be liable to a fee of twenty dollars, which would be returnable to him if
he won his case, and the other man wuuld lose his fifteen dollars in any case.

Q. Who was the other man ?-A. Andrew Nelson; so they arranged the thing
between themselves, and wanted the recording fee back, and Mr. Nelson to have bis
right restored. His right was restored, but the returns having been made to Ottawa,
the stub showing that fifteen dollars bad been accounted for, I couldn't return it
Without taking it out of my own pocket.

Q. Did you report on the matter to Ottawa ?-A. I have not done so because I
had a eontest on, and the fifteen dollars would have gone on in case one of the
parties had lost his case. It was a matter never referred to Ottawa as to whether
grants of this sort were returnable.

Q. In case where a man made an application in good faith erroneonsly, would
You--?-A. In every case wbere returns were uncompleted I bave allowed a
man bis money back, but where returns have been forwarded and the money
accounted for it was out of my band, and I could not return the money unless I paid
it personally. There bas never been any money paid back to any person after
returns have been made; there are no regulations in connection with it; but I may
8ay in connection with this action, that had I always insisted on the twenty dollars
fee to be deposited with the complaint, the government would have had a great deal
more money thai they bave now, because until the question came up about the
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beginning of Auguet last as to the legality of these complaints without a fee, the
complainte were taken and investigated without any fee; so that there were no fees
collected until about that time-so that instead of the government gaining by these
transactions they would have lost taking it altogether. It is only my opinion that
fees would not be returnable.

Q. Did the contestant deposit hie twenty dollars?-A. No.
Q.He lost, did ho ?-A. Neither of them lost, because they arranged the matter

between themselves without bringing it into court. They had paid fifteen dollars
for an application fee. There are two certificates issued, as the records in Ottawa
will show. That money is accounted for, but there was no deposit of twenty dollars
exacted.

Q. So they still stand in debt to the government five dollars ?-A. Yes.
Mr. Zoa.-You remember very well when I came in the office Isays, " Andrew

Nelson wants his fifteen dollars back." I told you that I bought the property of a
man who recorded once and paid for it, and I told him it was your duty to pay
fifteen dollars.

Mr. FAwOeTT.-The question was put before you to make the arrangements
between yourselves.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Yen took these applications, and on the payment of fifteen dollars granted
certificate ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. And where the certificate is granted the money is accounted for always ?-
A. Yee, sir.

Q. It was transferred to Ottawa and you couldn't pay it without taking it ont
of your own pocket ?-A. If I had taken steps at the time and referred it to Ottawa
it might have been payable now.

Q. Yon didn't take those steps ?-A. No, I don't think the money would have
been available because the twenty dollars contest fee would have been exacted.

Q. You didn't exact money for a protest?-A. No, I wanted to give every facility
to the people who had a complaint; I didn't exact the money until I had to-until
the question as to the legality of the proceedings was brought up.

The CoMMIssIoNE.-I offered Mr. George every facility in my power to go on
with this investigation. I say this by way of explanation. If we cannot go 9fn
one way we can another. Mr. Fawcett wishes to go out of the country and wishes
to vindioate himseolf as far as he can. Naturally in a contest of this sort there are
two side--; both sides are right. There was never a contest yet in which both sides
were not right even after the contest was decided, and in this case 1 am going on
to investigate the matter as far as I can. If Mr. Fawcett submits his statements
the other side may take the consequences. I do not know what Mr. George had
in hie mind when he formulated this charge so that I am unable to present hie
view of the case.

I think, if it is convenient to the witnesses here we will adjourn a hearing of
this case until this afternoon and I will try to see Mr. George and learn what views
he holds; we are disappointed in not having him to examine the witnesses on the
facts he supposed he knew; I do not know how to put his case for him.

The question is the closing of Dominion Creek to the public; that matter I can
understand. I amo a surveyor and can understand why it was done. I have had
something of the same kind to deal with myself; in this case I do not know what
Mr. George's statements were to be, or what hie contention4 were to be. Whether
Mr. George comes or not the statements of tbese parties wili be taken; I will take
their statement as far as I cati. It is only due to Mr. Faweett against whom this
charge has been made. For him to go ont of the country without having put his
view of it at least would be unfair; it would be unfair to refuse him a hearing.

Mr. TABoR.-In arguing that there should be no investigation of charges made
subsequent to the 25th of August, I do not do so with any idea ot shielding any-
body; I merely want to know the legal way in which evidence can be taken and
the prosecution gone on with. Mr. Fawcett and the other gentlemen were anxioas
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that these things should be investigated; they do not want this cloud resting on them.
A great deal that has been said has been founded on rumour, and an investigation of
this sort is the only way to get at things of that kind. I do not want the impression
to go abroad that I make this objection for the purpose of shielding these officials.

The COMMIssIoNER.-I think we all regret the occasion for this.
Mr. TABoR.-I think you join with me in regetting that it had to be raised;

and I think everybody else does; the fault is not with us, the fault is with the
gentlemen who issued the commission; it was an oversight.

The CommissIoNER.-There is a charge here Mr. Fawcett, that you closed
Dominion Creek. You gave at some length statements in connection with that in a
previous case. Mr. George is not here and he laid the charge; the same charge is
repeated by the aforetime president and secretary of the miners' association as
well; they are not here. I see some of the members of the miners' association
here; are they willing to participate in this examination of Mr. Fawcett? I see
Mr. McGregor, Mr. Galpin, Mr. Buteau. Are you willing, Mr. MeGregor, to coun-
tenance this procedure ?

Mr. McGREGoR.-On behalf of myself, and some of the minere associated with
me, I regret to be compelled to decline; I am not conversant with the matter-with
that part of the catalogue; these other parties who were here yesterday were
botter up in this question.

The CoMMIssioNER.-Are you willing to stay and ask any questions of the
witnesses you may see fit ?

Mr. McGREGoR.-I have no objection as far as that is concerned, but, as I said
yesterday, I beg leave to express disapproval of the commission being limited
to the 25th of August, as in doing so it would cripple the workings of the commis-
sion and consequently would not fulfil the purposes for which it was granted. The
spirit of the commission I consider cannot be carried out by limiting the time to
the 25th of August. It is nearly six months ago, and since that a great many of
the people in connection with these charges have left the place. I do not wish to
make any comments on the matter; I feel satisfied that the fault is not with the
commission bore; that they are willing to do their utmost in investigating as far
as in their power lies, but I cannot say whether it is with us or with the powers
at Ottawa, but there has been a blunder made somewhere. We cannot suppose that
if wrongs have existed before the 25th of August they have stopped at that
date, and if we could have brought evidence that was fresh in our minds by
investigating actions which had transpired since then it would have been more in
accordance with our ideas. If the commission had been issued and reached here in
reasonable time it would have altered the situation considerably; six months is
quite a long time.

The CommIssIoNzR.-As to this particular charge, that does not apply; Mr.
Pawcett is charged with crime; the clorks are all here in the office or the vicinity.
I don't think any objection would apply to this particular charge; it is a very
Serious one.

Mr. McGREGoR.-I do not know anything about this case.
The CoMMIssINER.-Mr. Fawcett is here, and the clerks are here, and the

minutes of the council are here, which can be examined. Unfortunately only one
Of the members of the counoil is present, Mr. Fawcett.

The resolutions are here, and if you call them into question the original
documents are here, and it is simply a mater of proof. As far as the question is
c0ncerned it is a public question. I don't see that the objection would apply that
the witnesses have gone from the country. Mr. Fawcett, take the book and we
Will hear your explanation, and if anyone wants to ask any questions they maydo so.
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Mr. TaoMAs FAWOETT, sworn:-

Mr. GALPIN.-You referred just now, Mr. Commissioner to the minera' asso-
ciation. I want you to understand that these charges are not made by the miners'
association. We agreed at this big mass meeting that we would bring certain
charges before you and ask you to investigate them. There were two charges
brought by us and they have fallen through. This was a committee, not the minera'
association. I am here to watch, as one of the miners, and shall be pleased to see
Mr. Fawcett exonerated if innocent, and if any of the officials are guilty, would
like to see them punished.

The CoMMssoNE.-I am aware of the fact that this memorial was presented
by a committee of minera, but it is usual to talk of it as the minera' association.
It is so usual to talk of it as the minera' association that the terms seem to be
synonymous. I know the minera' association did not prepare this memorial, but
a committee of the miners, but the minera' association sprung out of that committee.
Now two members of the association (I don't know whether they did it with the
authority of the association) preferred charges-the late president and secretary.
They put in charges for investigation; they were bore until yesterday pushing
them; I thought to a certain extent they repretented the miners' association

A VoicE.-No.
Mr. GALPIN.-They did not corne under that light. Mr. McGregor, Mr. Arm-

strong and Mr. McDougal were members of the minera' committee that sent the
memorial. They did not repreent the minera' association in this matter.

The CommIssioNE.-Am I to undermtand that the miners' committee is in no
way connected with the minera' association.

Mr. GALPIN.-In no way; the committee has never been consulted about it; I
understood they were to prosecute.

Mr. MoGaEoa.-There were no arrangements. Mr. MeDougal undertook to
prosecute the case of the payment of money for entrance into the gold commis-
sioner's office. I don't think it was the intention of the members that he should
continue all through.

The CoMMIssIONE.-So that really there was no connection between the
association and these two gentlemen in this matter at least. The two chargea
made alluded to, Mr. Galpin.

Mr. GALPIN.-The charges wore brought before the present committee; these
were the two; as far as they were concerned they were unproven.

The CoMMIssINER.-I was quite aftisfied with the result; it was conclusive.
You are still willing as minera to take an interest in the proceedings and to help
to get at the truth, and incidentally as members of the minera' association as well.

You have at some length, Mr. Fawcett, explained the reason why Dominion
Creek was closed in the case of Emma Koch; will you go over the same ground
again and anything additional regarding the matter?

Mr. FAWOETT.-I would call attention to the reporta of the council nf 30th
May, 1898:

"Dominion Creek having been closed since the middle of November last, it has
been decided that the creek shall remain closed until further notice. This decision
applies to hill and bench claims as well as to creek claims."

The CuimissioNEa.-We would like to know the reason why the creek was closed
firt?

Mr. FAwETT.-In 1897?
The CoMMIssoNER.-Yes; please go over some of the general statements again.
Mr. FawOETT.-I had learned from persons whom I considered reliable that

claims were being staked over others that were already recorded under different
descriptions; that the same land was being applied for and recorded by different
parties; that is, there were a great many claims which had at first been put on by
description, as second, third or fourth below some tributary adjoining the creek at a
certain point not defined to any place where that tributary came in. That was when
I first arrived in the country. I took the description as near as I could, and after
probably a month I found that there was no way of being positive as to whatground
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was recorded unless recorded under some particular number, and even then numbers
would be duplicated.

By the Commissoner:

Q. That was owing to the vagueness of the descriptions ?-A. Yes, the people
didn't number their stakes; they make their description refer to the confluence of
certain creeks, or the nearness to other natural objects. Of course, descriptions of
that kind are not reliable. At a later date I found ground recorded in that way was
being staked over, or recorded under certain numbers, and in every case that came
up before the creek was closed it was found claims overlapped others which were
on record, and these claims were cancelled. Finding this doue to a great extent, I
found it necessary to close the creek, and I accepted no more applications for that
part of the creek which I thought might be covered by any claims.

Q. That is, any disputed claims ?-A. Yes, or by any claim at all; anything
that would cause conflict. It was supposed at that time that the wl'ole of Dominion
Creek was practically recorded. There was nothing known about this wide tract or
this lower portion, which was only begun to be worked about lst January and sub-
sequently recorded-that part which was never closed. I had practically closed
Dominion altogether on the 15th of November. Until about the beginning of Janu-
ary I placed a limit to the closed portion.

Q. Why did you do that ?-A. Because it included that portion where there were
cases of conflict, or cases of the possibility of conflict.

Q. Afterwards you opened a part of it ?-A. I closed it until I knew that all
chance of confliction would be excluded in a certain portion, and below that I opened.

Q. You felt the portion that you opened was safe ?-A. Yes.
Q. Would you define that closed portion now ?-A. From Upper Discovery to

No. 120 below Lower Discovery; that is the interval between the two discoveries
and No. 120 below. On account of the complication, certain numbers were left out.

Q. That was your distinction ?-A. Yes, from Upper Discovery to No. 120
below Discovery. Although it is known as No. 120 below, there are only thirty-six
below Upper Discovery; the way the complication arose was that some people num-
bered from Lower Discovery and subsequently numbered from Upper Discovery to
below Lower Discovery.

Q. They began at Lower Discovery and numbered upwards ?-A. Yes, num-
bered upward to No. 13 above Lower Discovery and down for certain numbers.

Q. So that the same ground was in places covered twice ?-A. Yes.
Q. And in places below Lower Discovery covered twice ?-A. Yes.
Q. Were there cases where the same ground was applied for twice ?-A. Yes, I

am sure in cases the same ground has been applied for many times over.
Q. On account of this complication you closed the whole creek on November,

1897. Then yon opened part of it ?-A. After I found that ail conflict would be
confined within certain bounds I opened the rest. I left considerable space on the
creeks between the closed portion and the open portion.

Q. During the cloEed period were there any applications made for hill-side
claims ?-A. None, not until April last.

Q. When did you order a survey of the disputed part ?-A. It was in April
before the surveyors got away; that was the first work for the surveyors after they
arrived from Fort Yukon, as it was the most important.

Q. When did they begin ?-A. I think about the middle of April.
Q. When they began operations people began applying for hill-side claims ?-

A. I think some had been prospecting, and inq uired of me if the hill-sides were
closed before that, in the spring, and of course they were answered in the negative.

Q. You permitted them to go on and prospect ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did many people go ?-A. Yes, quite a number.
Q. Did many apply for claims?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you receive these applications ?-A. The applications were received and

noted, but no record granted pending the returne of the survey, so that a proper
description could be made.
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Q. It would be easy for you to show from the records how many such applica-
tions had been made?-A. It would be; there was a notice published informing
them when finally the hill-sides were thrown open.

Q. Would you look for that notice?- -A. I think I have a copy in my pocket.
(Witness shows copy of the notice.)
Q. This is a copy of the records as noted in the bench claim book when the

creek was thrown open. These were noted and reservod, and are marked by dotted
ines showing that these were noted previous to the closing of the hill-sides?-A.

Yes they were noted and surveyed.
Q. Would you kindly tell us when the hill-sides were closed and how (commis-

sioner lookingat notice? This I suppose, inclosed by dotted lines are claims reserved
from relocation when the creek was thrown open? The survey was made about the
middle of April ?-A. Yes, and completed about the lst of Junc.

Q. That is completed the survey of the disputed portion ?-A. Yes, having
completed the survey of the disputed portion.

Q. After you had the returns for the survey in, what did you do then ?-A. The
returns of the survey were not completed until after that-in July sometime when
the hills were finally opened. Mr. Cautley was making the returns, and they were
not in a state sufficiently complete to make use of until after a groat many things
had transpired. The survey simply covered the creek claims, not the bill-side claims
at all.

Q. When the roturns of the survey were in did you take any proceeding with
regard to the settlement of disputes of creek claims ?-A. While the survey was
being made I sent Mr. Cadenhead to take evidence on 'thp creek with reference to
all disputes; evidence was also taken by Mr. McGregor, mining inspector, and
many disputes were settled by these gentlemen. Some, of course, of those who had
recorded on the surveyed portion had with them a copy of the records on Dominion
Creek, and in a great many cases those who had received subsequent locations never
brought on any contest at ail; they simply knew they had no case from the evi-
dence. They were simply ruled out. Of course, there were more claims for which
certificates were granted such as No. 23 below Upper Discovery which was found
not to exist, and sold.

Q. This might call for further investigation ?-A. But there was no rule for
investigating matters of that kind where no ground existed, so that they didn't
come up except in the case of Nelson vs. Donnely, and another case where there
were two claims for the same ground, in which it was given to one of them after-
wards. I don't remember the case now; there were two cases before me.

Q. Those were contests on Dominion ?-A. Contests on Dominion after the sur-
vey arising out of the survey and ont of information obtained in that way.

Q. Can you state how many of these hill claims are allowed between Upper
Discovery and No. 120 below ?-A. I don't recollect, but there is a lot of them.

Q. Can you furnish me with a list?-A. Yes; I will bring a copy of the list.
Q. Then in the meantime prospecting was going on in the hill-side ?-A. Yes

prospecting on the hill-sides, and some parties who came in brought sketches from
the surveyors locating in the office their claims.

Q. Did you grant a record for ,those ?-A. Practically they had ail the pro-
tection they needed; their applications were taken.

- Q. You considered the application received tantamount to a record ?-A. They
were protected as well that way as on record; any further applications would not
be received even if the record was not granted.

Q. When was that priviloge stopped on the hillides ?-A. The 30th of May.
Q. What led to it ?-A. A resolution by Major Walsh and his council.
Q. How was that council constituted ?-A. The commissioner was the council

himself, but there were other members of the administration whom he invited in
for consultation; he sometimes sent written requests that we should call upon him.
On this occasion there were present Messrs. Wade, Bliss, McGregor, myself, and
Mr. Pattullo who acted as secretary for whatever was done.

Q. Do you recognize that as his report ?--A. I recognize Mi. Pattullo's signa-
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Q. Would you read the part of it relating to the closing of the creek ?-A.
Mr. Fawcett reads:-

" Any locations made on a creek after it bas been closed will not be recognized
or put on record. This includes hill and bench claims as well as creek claims.

"Dominion Creek having been closed since the middle of November last, it has
been decided that the creek shall remain closed until further notice. This decision
applies to hill and bench claims as well as to creek claims."

These council meetings were held after the office was closed; during the office
hours al! the officials wero busy and Major Walsh himself was open to the public.
These meetings, therefore, took place in the evening.

Q. Did you object to that being done ?-A. I did.
Q. Why ?-A. Because a great many miners had gone to the hills with my per-

mission and staked their claims, made applications and had the applications accepted
as far as protecting of claims, so far as we could pending the returns of the survey.
I considered I had granted them a right, and this motion was taking the right away
from them, that is why I objected; I would not have had any objection had that
not been the case, I did object on that ground.

Q. Your objection was overruled ?-A. I was in the minority.Q. How long did that remain closed in accordance with the resolution ?-A. I
brought up this matter on several subsequent meetings; I carried the bench claims
book up with me about two weeks later, and showed the commissioner that it would
be an injustice to these people who had gone out with my permission and staked
this ground and had their applications accepted, if their ground should be taken
away from them in that wav. and that, in my opinion, tbey would have ground for
complaint. The commissioner seemed to acquiesce in this. Mr. Pattullo in the
meantime turned to this resolution and he said " I think that was disposed of two
weeks ago " and read these clauses I have just read. Major Walsh said " certainly,
that was disposed of; we can't take cognizance of it any more; we can't be doing
and undoing 8o that practically settles that."

Q. Well, then, were the hill sides open after all ?-A. The were open upon the
publication of that notice (pointing to the notice.)

Q. What led to the issuance of this notice ?-A. There was a good deal trans-
pired between; there was a notice posted in June notifying the people that after a
certain date permits would be issued.

Q. What date ?-A. I think it must have been about the end of June, or some-
where near this; it was to have been posted on the 30th of June or the lst of July,
stating that permits would be issued on the llth.

Q. Have you a copy of that notice now ?-A. No. The firet time I noticed that
notice with my name in large print was when I saw the notice posted up. My
Objection to the whole thing was, their considering that I didn't say anything that
Would seem to be in favour of my idea that there was no occasion for closing the
bill Bides.

Q. Was that your signature ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you issue it?-A. Well on one occasion Mr. Pattullo came with a notice

asking me to sign it; it was in relation to closing the hill sides, but I objected on the
ground that I considered there was no basis for the hill sides being closed; I stili
laintained my objection to what had been done in council as gold commissioner, and

I refused to sign the notice. Major Walsh sent and summond me before him, and he
gave me a very strong reprimand. As near as I can remember h. said: " Mr. Faw-
cett I want you to understand that it is impertinent on your part to question any-
thing that has been decided in council, and when I sent that notice for you to sign,I want you to eign it." On the spur of the moment I signed this notice without read-
ing it.

Q. Were you not simple in not reading it ?-A. Yes, I was simple; I acknow-
ledge this.

Q. Don't you think you should have kept a copy for your own protection ?-A.I never thought of the thing at all.
Q. Don't you think' you should have made a copy of it before you let it go?-A. Well I neyer thought anything would arise out of it. I didn't think any blame
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or weight would be attached to me. I had no idea there was to be any change in
what Major Walsh seemed to be so resolute in passing. When I signed that I thought
I was carrying out what was passed in council.

Q. What was in this notice ?-A4 It stated that on and after 11th July that
permits to prospect bench claims on Dominion Creek would be granted-for pros-
pecting and staking, and I think there was something that applications would be
accepted if approved of by the mining inspector.

Q. Do you think it possible to obtain a copy of this notice ?-A. I think it
should be at the printing office; I am not sure whether it was printed at the Sun
or the .Nugget office.

Mr. GALPIN.-It was printed at the Sun office.
Mr. TABoR.-Mesers. Wade, Clark and Wilson have one.

By the Commiuioner :

Q. It is necessary to procure a copy of that notice ; would you procure a copy
of it Mr. Fawcett? That notice you say was posted about the 30th of June ?-A.
Yes, I think it was posted about that time.

Q. Was the intention of that notice carried out ?-A. No, it was not carried out
for this reason, I was under the impression that these people who had been permit-
ted by me to take their claims and practically recorded them, would make a great
noise if they were deprived of their claims there, and on issuing this notice, which
I think was about the 6th of July, or about then, I saw that the whole responsibility
seemed to rest upon my shoulders, the notice being over my name, and to relieve
the responsibility from mrself I wrote a letter to Major Walsh. A copy of that
letter I have with me which I will t in evidence.

The commission then adjourned for lunch.

NOTICE.

The notice recently issued regarding permits to be given on 11th July, 1898, is
hereby cancelled, and the following substituted therefor:-

HILL AND BENCH CLAIMS

ON DoMINION CREEK ARE Now OPEN POR LOCATION AND PROSPECTING BY
ALL FREE MINERs.

Those claims shown in the appended sketch, with one exception, will be open
only to those who made application for them prior to the completion of the survey,
which application was filed at the office of the gold commissioner.

Dated at Dawson, Yukon district, this Sth day of July, A.D. 1898.
By order.

THOMAS FAWCETT,
Gold Commissioner.

Hon. J. MoRow WAL8IE, DAwsoN, 7th July, 1898.

Commissioner for the District of the Yukon,
Dawson.

SIR,-Having considered, from different standpoints, the proposed method of
Fpening the hill and bench claims adjoining that portion of Dominion Creek between

per Discovery and 120 Below, through the issue of permits, thus giving those
who have but recently arrived, and others who have never prospected, an equal
chance of hequiring a claim with those who during the winter and early spring
staked their claims with my permission, spent in some cases a considerable amount

90
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in packing over their supplies, also weeks of hard labour prospecting, and who, on
appearing at the office to record their claims had their applications noted, and were
informed that they would be permitted to record as 8oon as the returns of the sur-
vey were so far completed that the position of the ground staked by them could be
exactly determined in relation to the adjoining creek claims. Some of those persons
complain very strongly, and I tbink with good reason, and with both law and equity
on their side, that if they are deprived of the claims which they consider theirs by
right of staking and prospecting, through the permit system, they having to take
their places in line with those who have been watching an opportunity of acquiring
the benefit from their labours by making the journey more speedily than they are
able to make it from Dawson, that they intend to carry the issue to Ottawa, and
that they have had the assurance of their counsel that their case is a good one. I
think myself that if the proposed plan is carried out it will work great mischief
before the last is heard of it. I further think that on constitutional grounds it will
be conceded that when the creek or hili claims are thrown open for location and
recording, and other permit than the miner's license granted them under the mining
regulations is not required, to allow them to stake and prospect on any ground
where they are not prevented by the mining regulatione. Even now I am of the
opinion that it would be advisable to protect the claim of those whose applications
were accepted at the office, allow them to record without further staking. or give
them ample time to redate their stakes, and proclaim the balance of the hillsides
open for prospecting and recording. It would be an easy matter to have the
proclamation posted at this office and at the post office about the time announced
for issuing the permits, and there could be no complaint that the people had not
received due notice of the opening, the proclamation taking tbe place and answer-
ing the same purpose as the permits.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOMAS FAWCETT,
Gold Commissioner.

FRIDAY AFTERNOON.

THE ROYAL COMMIssION OPINED AT 2 O'CLOCK P.M.

Mr. FAWCTT's evidence continued.

By the Commisioner:
Q. You stopped at the resding of that letter which you put in as an exhibit.

Was that letter productive of anything ?-A. It was delivered on the morning of
the 8th.

Q. Delivered to whom ?-A. To Major Walsh, when he came to the office about
10 a.m. or 11 a.m. He sent for me shortly after. His secretary came and told me
that Major Walsh wished me to attend at his offce. I went to the office, and Mr.
Wade was there. Mr. McGregor was sick at the time, and Mr. Walsh says: "I have
just received this letter from Mr. Faweett, and I am inclined to think, as he does, that
permits are not required." Mr. Wade brought up the question. He says Mr.
McGregor was the person who brought this resolution about, and I think he should
be consulted in the matter, and the Major sys: "I1 think I can answer for Mr.
McGregor; anyway I will go and see him." He sent his secretary to see him. He
returned shortly, sud I was requested by the Major (Mr. Wade not objecting in any
way to the procedure) to prepare a notice on the linos of my letter and submit it to
him. This was in the forenoon of the same day on which the letter was type.
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written. And the notice I prepared was the notice I put in as exhibit. I have not
a copy with me in court, but the notice on the upper part is somewhat similar to
the other notice; it was prepared on the lines ol my letter.

(Taking the second notice): The words "The notice recently issued
regarding permits to be given on the 1lth July is hereby cancelled" refera
to the first notice; as far as I remember I put no date on it myself; the typewriter
put a date on the notice. Of course what I had in my mind was that this notice
would not be printed and would not be published on the date on which the permits
would be given, and after when people came for permits they would be confronted
with the notice; that is what I had in my mind, but it happened otherwise.

Q. What was the date of the issuance ?-A. Dated "Dawson, Sth July. By
order. Thomas Fawcett, gold commissioner."

Q. Woll, there was a clause there, " These claims are now open ?"-A. Well,
had this been published on the date which I expected, on the date on which the
permits were to be given, posted up on that date, then no one would have had any
grievance, because instead of getting permits they would see they had permits
already-they were open at the time.

Q. According to the purport of that notice they were open on the date they
were printed ?-A. That was my understanding of it; this was printed before I
intended it.

Q. How did you understand it ?-A. I handed it to Major Walsh simply as an
exhibit to show the form of the notice that I thought would be fixed up on the
morning of the 11th at the office.

Q. Did you mention that after to Major Walsh ?-A. I didn't; because I sup-
pose I felt a little intoxicated at having succeeded in my contention.

Q. You didn't notice that according to the terms of the notice that claims were
then open on the 8th of July ?-A. It didn't strike me.

Q. Why and how was it the public didn't think that the claims would be thrown
open until the 11th ?-A. Well; I knew that the public were looking for this infor-
mation to be given, and these were the ones reserved.

Q. You say there were three days, so that those who had knowledge could take
advantage and those who were ignorant would not know the creek was open until
the 1lth ?-A. Certainly; I have already considered that that was a blunder and an
oversight. I submit that it was an oversight primarily on my part, but I had nothing
to do with getting it published. As far as I was concerned I submitted that notice
merely as an exhibit to Major Walsh as to whether it would be extended or not. The
date was put on by the typewriter himself, not by me.

Q. You didn't date it at ali ?-A. I didn't date it at all.
Q. And the executive part of it you left to others ?-A. Yes.
Q. Well, under that notice had you any knowledge of any one taking advantage

of the terms of it?-A. Well, at least, I heard some one saying people were starting
for Dominion.

Q. Any before this was published ?-A. The night of the 8th.
Q. Was that published on the 8th ?-A. It was published on the morning of the

9th.
Q. Well, then, were they starting on the night of the 8th ?-A. So it was

reported; people were on the trail, and over there already, thinking it would open
on the 1 lth. Did you have any knowledge of any one ?-A. I have no knowledge.

Q. You didn't instruct any one ?-A. None, and no one in connection with the
office started.

Q. You gave no advice ?-A. No.
Q. Didn't suggest to any one to take advantage ?-A. No; there were two men

working on my party who started about two o'clock on the 9th.
Q. How did the public come to the knowledge that noti;es were to be up before

that time ?-A. I don't know.
Q. That is all you know of the history of the case ?-A. As far as I can

remember. I know that Mr. Swinehart was in on the afternoon of the 8th July;
saw Major Walsh and had a conversation with him when I was upstairs. I think it
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could ho ascertained from him that the notice was published by Major Walsh's
instructions, and arrangements made by him and not by me.

Q. Do you remember your attention being called to the fact that notice was
given to throw the claims open at the moment it was posted up ?-A. That was my
understanding; that the moment the notice was posted up the claims were thrown
open, but I didn't expect it would be posted up before the 11th. I understood as
soon as these notices were posted up these claims were thrown open and not before,
and as this was to take place if the permits it sbould not have been posted before the
11th; that was my understanding; that it was posted up before the Ilth was a
matter over which I had no control and no knowledge.

Q. When did you learn it was posted up before the llth ?-A. I saw one of
the police carrying a bundie down on Saturday morning and posting them up; that
was on the morning of the 9th at nine o'clock.

Q. On the morning of the 9th theso notices were posted up for the first
time ?-A. One at the office for the first time.

Q. And your expectations were that they would not be posted up until the
1lth ?-A. That was my intention, and my expectation.

Mr. GALPIN-I would like to explain the position I took: if you had been here
last summer, sir, there was about three or four thousand mon all hot on this very
question. They appointed a committee to make an investigation, as they had heard
several rumours about the throwing open of these claims. I was on that committee
and am hore to-day to carry out a promise I made to them that I would look into
the matter to the best of my ability and find out why the muddle arose. Mr.
Pawcett, how long would it take for a man to go and stake a claim on Dominion
and corne back to Dawson and make application ?

Mr. FAWCETT-That would depend upon the ability of the man; the shortest
timae I think would be twelve hours.

By the Comnminioner:

Q. What would an average time be ?-A. It would be hard to make it in one
day; if they were not strong it would take two.

Q. Do you think it possible to go out and corne back in twelve hours ?-A. I
think not; I think twenty-four hours would be the shortest time.

Q. By twelve hours, you mean one trip ?-A. Yes.
Q. Going out and coming back you think would be about twenty-four hours?

-A. I think at least. Monday morning was the first time they appeared at the
Oflice to record.

Q. Leaving Friday ?-A. Leaving Saturday; of course the office wasn't open on
Sunday; they might have been ready for anything I know.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. This previous notice, a copy of whicb is not bore, was sent, I
believe. ail over the country? It was sent to Stewart River and I know of
People who came down from Stewart River to get a permit. They got here just as
this notice appeared saying that no permit was required. Now, Mr. Fawcett tells
Us that that was dated 8th July. I think the paper says so. That was on Friday.
They were not printed I believe until Saturday. On the 8th, on Friday, I suppose
fr. Swinehart had them, and what was to provent Mr. Swinehart from sending out

'a number of people on Friday when ho had the manuscript in hand. Could Mr.
Pawcett tell us if one of the council did send ont anybody, giving them information
that these were thrown open ?-A. I don't know; I don't know if Captain Bliss was
on that council.

Q You don't know whether Captain Blies gave that information to anybody ?
A-. No.

Q. Was Captain Bliss on the council ?-A. Yes.
Mr. GALPIN- Ihink I should have mentioned that I bought a claim on

minion from a person, a man who bas since left the country. Ie said that he
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was given information by Captain Bliss, and says others as well knew of it, and he
met people going back; this was before the notice was put up.

The CoMaIssIoNza.-That is only a statement; we can't take it as evidence.
Mr. GALPIN.-Applications were received on Jnly 13th. That would give little

time to go and come back even though they knew on the 9th. The application for
the claim I have was received on the 14th.

Mr. TABo.-You say this was given as an exhibit to Major Walsh and it should
have been returned te you ?

Mr. FAwcTT.-Not necessarily; it was made by Major Walsh's instructions for
him.

Q. Yeu just simply sent it to him for his approval ?-A. It was his order,
practically.

Q. Heý had control of it after that ?-A. Yes.
Q. You signed your name ?-A. I eigned my name.
Mr. GALPIN.-I May say a deputation of miners went to Mr. Fawcett to

inquire if he signed the paper under Major Walsh's instructions.
Mr. FAWOCTT.-I might say for Mr. Galpin's information that the reason why

no more was done with reference te the charges that were made against me was
that I had demanded an investigation but it never came. I have documentary evi-
dence te prove that I had demanded an investigation into the charges made in an
extra edition of the Nugget referring to the affair which appeared on the night of
the 9th. The reason why I gave no public information in reference te the matter
was that I had demanded and fought for an investigation. If found necesary I
have the letters to prove; I can furnish a copy of these letters.

Mr. TABoR.-I submit it is no more than fair te Mr. Fawcett that these letters
ehould go in.

Mr. FAwOcTT.-If you wish te know whether I knew of any parties who had
information, I think I knew of a person who I subsequently heard had information
who went and staked a claim and left Dawson on the evening of the 8th.

Q. Who is he ?-A. Mr. Carbeno.

By Mr. Frank Buteau:

Q. I believe you said some time ago that you closed Dominion Creek yourself?
-A. Yes.

Q. I wish te ask on what autbority 9-A. I have explained that in court.
Q. Did you swear the minere went te your office when they were recording this

round ?-A. Most certainly; every miner who was permitted te record a claim
ad to take his oath.

Q. Did you think this closing of the creek claims was a good reason because
they lapped over one another ?-A. Most certainly; I did net wish te be issuing
grants to two or three.

Q. When you recorded claims up and down, you saw they were numbered "1,"
"2 " and " 3 "-it didn't make any matter if a man lapped over another-would the
first have a right to the ground to your mind ?-A. Had all the claime been nuni-
bered 1, 2 and 3, &c., it would have been different, but some were put on by descrip-
tion and net by number.

Q. When a man came to you and asked te record a claim, certainly be did more
or less, did you bave two or three posts on each corner of the claim-then you re-
fused te record the claim ?-A. I didn't refuse te record until the creek claim. were
closed.

Q. Because they were lapping over each other ?-A. Because I closed it. On
the same day this ,notice was posted up the Nugget issued an extra sheet in which
it went as far as any sheet could possibly in the line of abuse of myself. That ws
the case of what I am coming up te; that is why I asked for an investigation-be-
cause of the charges it made against me personally, and of corruption against the
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office and administration, I considered grounds for investigation, and for that reason
I wrote a letter to Commissioner Walsh of which this is a copy:-

Hon. J. MoEROW WALSH, DAWSON, 9th July, 1898.

Commissioner for the Yukon District.

Sin,-I have the honour to enclose herewith a copy of an extra edition of the
iondyke Nugget in which I consider myself, my staff, and the administration of

may offlice most falsely and criminally slandered. In the article above referred to you
are quoted as having made the statemente as follows " The Administration of affaire
on Dominion Creek have been a mess from start to finish and I am sick and tired of
the whole business." " That the gold commissioner is incompetent to fil the office
he now holde " &c.

The article is designed to create and has created the impression that the "gold
commissioner " is responsible for the muddle of affaire on Dominion Creek benches.
I desire to know if the above quotations are correct, also if not will you have the
kindness to correct over your own signature the false impressions which have been
Oonveyed ?

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOS. FAWCETT,
Gold Commissioner.

Ma. FAwOe.TT.-To this is Major, Walsh's reply:-

TÊoxAs FAwOTT, Esq., DAwsoN, lth July, 1898.

Gold Commissioner,
Dawson.

SIE,-Your letter of the 9th inst. with newspaper clipping inclosed received, and
ti reply I beg to state that I never have and never will take any notice of news-
Paper remarks either concerning myself personally or concerning the administra.
tion of affaire under my control. The article you marked off quoted me as saying,
"The administration of affaira on Dominion Creek have been a mess from start to
fnish and I am sick and tired of the whole business." What I did Bay was that the
affairs of the creek had been in a mess from start to finish and that i was sick and
tired of the whole business. I made no sucb statement that the gold commissioner
is incompetent to fil the office be holda nor does the paper quote me as so saying.
I did not east any refection upon you or anybody in your office, but merely. expressd
the condition of the creek.

I will, however, call upon the paper to-morrow to correct the statement that I
had spoken of the " administration " of the affaire of the creek. Further than this
I Will enter into no discussion nor take any notice of what the paper may say and
I.Would advise you to do likewise, as there is nothing to be gained in creating
discussion.

Your obedient servant,
J. M. WALSH,

Commissioner.

Not satisfied with that, I wrote a further letter on the 10th as follows:-

DAwsoN, 10th July, 1898.
DIAZ MAJOU WALsH,-I thank you for your reply to my letter of yesterday

evening. I notice that I did not go far enough in asking for vindication, and muet
therefore apologise for this second letter.
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The Klondike Nugget makes a malicious attack on my character-basing the
ground of the attack on the proclamations which were issued from the office. I
think you will remember that I was not responsible for the first order. Whether
the order arranging for the issue of the permits was a good or bad provision, I am
not prepared to say, but you will remember that I did not issue that order, but only
signed it in obedience to your instructions.

It is true I am primarily responsible for the oversight in the second order in
having the notices bear an earlier date than the 11th instant, at the tirme the permits
wei e to be issued. The idea in my mind at the time they were written was to
have the notices posted on the morning of the 11th at the time the permits were to
have been issued. Considering the continuous rush it is not surprising that for the
time being the matter had been overlooked.

You will pardon me for desiring that when you call on the newspaper proprietor
to correct the other mis-statements, you wili also inform them that the first order
was not issued under my instructions. That the dating of the second, while the
primary responsibility rested on me, yet you had also overlooked the fact and per-
mitted it to appear in print without correction

The third notice, [ maintain, merits commendation and not censure.
I am, dear Major Walsh,

Your obedient servant,
THOMAS FAWCETT,

Gold Commissioner.

To that letter received no reply. It was therefore followed by another letter,
as follows:-

Hon. J. MoRRow Watsu, DAWsoN, 13th July, 1898.

Commissioner of the Yukon District,
Dawson.

SIR,-I desire to draw your attention to the fact that a newspaper called the
Klondike Nugget, published at Dawson, on the 9th day of July, 1898, bas in its
columns preferred a charge of corruption against the gold commissioner's office
staff and mal-administration against the gold commissioner himself.

One statement contains the following:-" The gold commissioner's office bas
been conducted in such a manner as to give evidence of much crooked work."

"Information official, &c., bas been given ont on the quiet by some one to
friends."

" For three days the knowledge of the intended action of the gold commissioner
was handéd about with admonitions of the utmost secrecy."

" A high official bas given a friend the tip, &o., &o."
Such offences as those alleged above are criminal, and the members of my staff

demand an investigation. If such is denied them, they have expressed their deter-
mination to leave the office. I also demand, in justice to Canada itself, that a1
investigation take place.

I further desire that statements found in an issue of the same paper dated 12th
July, 1898, which reads as follows, be investigated:-" Rulings have been made and
reversed before the person interested could leave the office." " Men have corne in
miles and miles to record and have not been permitted to do so, yet within a feW
hours new rulings would let other men record the same ground." "Important paperO
have been deposited with the office as required by law and lost without even a record
of them."

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOS. FAWCETT,
Gold Commissioner.
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I sent these letters by special messenger, so that they would be delivered into
Major Walsh's hand, and here is a reply to the last two letters:

To TRoMAS FAwOETT, DAwSON, 13th July, 1898.

Gold Commissioner, Yukon District.

SIR,-I am in receipt of your letter of this date, calling my attention to certain
statements contained in the Klondike .Nugget of the 9th and 12th instant, with refer-
ence to the management of your office and demanding on your own behalf and that
Of your staff, that an investigation be made into the charges made.

If you will name the person whom you desire to conduct the investigation,
there is nothing to prevent your proceeding with it at once.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. M. WALSH,
Commissioner, Yukon District.

This is the reply to my last two letters. I have not a copy of the reply made
to that letter, but I remember that the reply was that as the charges were of a
nature criminal in themeelves, I thought the only person, and the most satisfactory,
to investigate these charges, would be Chief Justice McGuire, who was here at the
timae, and therefore I asked that Chief Justice McGuire be appointed a commissioner
tO investigate the charges. In answer to that, on 14th July, I received the
following:-

DAwsoN CITY, 14th July, 1898.
~o TaoxAs FAwoETT, Esq.,

Gold Commissioner, Dawson City.

Sia,-I am in receipt of your letter of this date, requesting that the proposed
'fivestigation of the charges against the managing of your office be conducted by
tudge McGuire. If Judge McGuire will consent to act, you are, of course, at liberty

proceed.
I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,
J. M. WALSH,

Commissioner, Yukon District.

It seemed a strange thing that I had to proceed to investigate charges of cor-
ption a ainst mysef, that I had togo as plaintiff. I submitted this letterito Chief

'etice uire, and he said, "l Surely that isn't what Major Walsh means." I asked
Ohief Justice McGuire if he would act as commissioner. H. said ordinarily ho
'Wou'ld not, but he considered so great was the injustice of the charge that under theCircurnstance, if appointed, he would come, and gave me a letter to that effect,Whieh is here:-

T'18- PÂWOETT, Esq., DAwsON, l4th July, 1898.

Gold Commissioner, Dawson.

Ie--I am willing to act in the proposed investigation of charges against the
thiemibers of your staff, which you inform me they insist upon having, in order that
pbY Inay have an opportunity of meeting and answering any charges that may be
PIeferred. The statute provides a means of appointing me a Commissioner and
Oathfrring upon me authority, as such, to summon witnesses and take evidence upon
Oat:. As judge merely, I cannot take such evidence on oath, except in some pro-
ceeding regularly before me in court. This inquiry would not be one in court, and
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it would be useless to proceed unless the evidence were given under the sanction of
an oath. If armed with these powers, I am willing to undertake the investigation.

Yours, &c.,
J. N. McGUIRE.

I at once communicated to Major Walsh that the judge was willing to come if
appointed, and requested Major Walsh to appoint him. To that I received the fol-
lowing letter :-

DAWsoN CITT, 15th July, 1898.
TnoMas FAWOETT,

Gold Commissioner, Dawson.

SiR,-Your letter of yesterday received. I have already stated that if Judge
McGuire is willing to act, the inquiry you desire can be proceeded with. I havenot
the power, however, to appoint Judge McGnire a commissioner. Although wide
powers are given me by my commission, this is not one of them. If you will address
your request to the Honourable the Minister of the Interior, so that it may be
placed before the government at Ottawa, I will see that it is forwarded at once. Or
if you prefer it, you can, of course, communicate with him directly.

Your obedient servant,
J. M. WALSH,

Commissioner, Yukon District.

That ended up our opportunity for an investigation, and that of course ended
our hopes of answering the charges made against us at that time. So that it is easily
understood under these circumstances why the gold commissioner took no part in
exposing, or saying anything about what had been done.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-You were expecting an investigation ?
Mr. FAwoTT.-We didn't care to prejudice our case by making any statements.

That is the reason we wanted one. We wanted an opportunity to disprove them all.

By the Commissioner :

Q. That part of Dominion Creek which you closed is still closed ?-A. Still
closed.

Q. Still conteste on there ?-A. Yes.
Q. And likely to be ?-Yes.

By Mr. Mcaregor.;

Q. What part of Dominion Creek is that ?-A. From Upper Discovery to No.
120 below.

Q. Who closed that?-A. I did.
Q. Still remains closed ?-A. Yes.

By the Commissioner:

Q. I suppose you have explained that a hundred times ?-A. Yes.

By fr. Galpin:

Q. Does Mr. Fawcett know that before this notice could have effect with the
public on the outside, that private information was given to somebody ? Does he
know that people were out stampeding before this notice was put up in town?-A•
I don't know, I beard they did; I believe they did, and am going to call a witnes
who will probably know something about the matter.
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Mr. SWINEHART, called and sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Dawecett:

Q. Would you tell us what you know of this affair ?-A. .Why, my statement Is
very short and only came up, I may say, by ihe way of expInaation as a result of a
statement put in the .Nugget in which Major Walsh seemed to attribute the muddle
on Dominion Creek to Mr. Fawcett. I knew about these circulars that were gotten
out; that was on the morning of the 7th or 8th of July. Major Walsh sent for me
and requested to see me some time during the forenoon or early afternoon. I called
at his request. He said he was thinking about getting out some permits for the
purpose of granting permission to people prospecting on the hill side claims on
Dominion Creek. He desired them gotten out in book form and asked how long it
would take; it was, I believe, the intention to open it on 11th July. I think the
circular before that was dated to throw it open on 11th July, if my memory serves
me right. That is, permits would be granted on 11th July. He asked how long it
would take to do this. I told him I thought I could get them ready. He said, since
considering ho believed he had changed hie mind and would not get out permits.
He desired to consult, I think ho said, with some council (at least Fawcett was one),
in regard to throwing them open before that without any permit at all. If I would
call back about four in the afternoon that day or the next, at least on the day this
was sigied, the 8th of July, he would let me know which he wanted printed, whether
he would get out something like this or have a permit book printed. I called about
that time in the afternoon and he said he had decided to throw the ground open
without issuing any permits at all, and showed me a copy of this with the map.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Who was it signed by ?-A. Signed by Mr. Fawcett. He asked me what I
thought of the matter, whether I thought that would serve as well as issuing permits
and do away with considerable inconvenience to the office. I looked at it. About
that time, or a few minutes before, Mr. Fawcett came in himself. Mr. Fawcett
Stood there and heard the conversation, and when he asked me what I thought of it,
I told him I thought it would be a free-for-all-race, that if prior location had any-
thing to do witb it-the first man there and back was the lucky man; they could
all start and go. I fancied at that time, or during the first conversation, that ho
Would open it on 11th July. On reading this notice I made the remark that I was
sorry I didn't have a miner's license, for if I had had I would have been tempted to
go on the stampede myself. I remember quite distinctly of laughing and saying I
Would take advantage of the date. I didn't get any license and didn't go. Nothing
further was said; I took it for granted. I made the remark when I saw it to Mr.
Roward, the compositor, that as there lad been something said of trouble over
Dominion Creek there would probably be more after this was issued, and the reason
I remember these little remarks so well is because an issue of the Nugqet came
Out condemning the actions of Mr. Fawcett. However, I printed the notice without
Mking any questions about it; it didn't concern me. He asked me if I could have
it by three next morning; I told him I tbought not; with the facilities of the office
it would take some little time Ionger. I said not later than seven. He replied, have
them by three if possible. I handed it in, and work began immediately after supper.
I agreed to get them off working all night. Soon after or about the time work
bean on it there was a policeman came in-at least a man wearing the uniform of a
Polceman,-and asked if the circulars for throwing open the ground of Dominionbenches wvere issued, that were handed me by Major Walsh. I said no. le said he
had been designated to take the notice out to the creeks.

Q. Did he say who designated him ?-A. I think not; at any rate I had noticed
the date; and supposed there would be some trouble over it, and said ho would have
to get a written permission to me from Mr. Fawcett or Major Walsh before I wouldturn them over. He went away, and had hardly gone before another came and
Wanted to know when he could come. I said "come at three and if not done then,
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you may wait." I knew i would bave them done according to agreement, but I said
he must bring a written order. He went away and came back and brought a letter
which I knew bore the signature of Major Walsh. He said "Here's a letter from
Major Walsh to see that copy," in fact he went to ask me to show it before; there
was some irregularity about it he thought. I told him he must have a written order
from Major Walsh before he could see it. When I got it I tore off the notice from
the foot, and put this in my pocket (pointing to part of the notice). The printers
were at work on this part of it. He said, " that is not what I want." I said " what
do you want to know." He said, "tho Major wanted to know the date." I said,
" the date of what "? He said, "the date of the notice." I was quite inquisitive as
I suspected as much. I showed him the date. "Very well " he said. " I wish you
would say to Major Walsh," I told him, "it is not too late to change the date if he
desires to make any change." There was a little time, a number of hours after that.
I said I would like him to come back and say if the Major wishes any change. -He
came back and said Major Walsh said "let it go as it is." He bore a letter from
Major Walsh alseo; and took the bills the next morning at any early hour.

Q. Did you take the letter in? Did you read it ?-A. Simply glanced at it.
Q. Do you know any of its contents ?-A. No; I know it was Major Walsh's

writing and signature.
Q. Do you think you could have read the signature ?-A. Yes, I think I was

suspicioning some one and didn't want to be quite so inquisitive in the matter. The
reason why I ask Mr. Carbeno the question was this: not long afterwards there was
a rumour that the cook and Indian guide had received a tip, and had gone on the
8th to Dominion, on which date I will say there were two or three hundred people
went. I stopped Major Walsh one day at the office, and with the usual newspaper
inquisitiveness askea him if there was any truth in the report that he had given any
information to any one, and that they had gone out on the evening of the 8th to
Dominion. If my memory serves me right it was Friday evening. He said " No;
besides my cook cooked my dinner on Saturday night." He knew positively that
would be the 9th. More than five months afterwards I saw Mr. Pattullo and asked
him the same question; he said no, the cook left on Friday night. He cooked the
dinner and left immediately afterwards. At that I believe I had stated that an
investigation was due, and that the Midnight Sun would make an investigation. I
followed up that affair, and would have followed further as you know until yon stated
there would be an investigation and dropped it. I went on and got a great deal of
information link by link. These might have coupled with others and made a complete
chain. There seemed so much uneasiness on the part of Major Walsh after I had
asked him this question, and said in the paper had Major Walsh the power to dismiss
Mr. Fawcett which he claimed he had, and which he stated to me, that he should
dismiss him, or discontinue making the statement ooncerning the gold commissioner.
He saw by that that there was some suspicion on my part, which was all due to my
having investigated it. He sent me a statement typewritten; I believe Mr.
Pattullo brought it to me. I had it a number of weeks after and only destroyed it
when the sale of the Midnight Sun took place, in which letter he said Mr. Carbeno
states as follows, and he went on and stated when Mr. Carbeno left, and when he got
to Dominion, and the time when he returned, and that he had got his information
through one of the police servants; and some other statements pertaining to the
question I had asked him. It was net signed by Carbeno, and I doubted it being so.
This is the first time I have seen Mr. Carbeno since, and that is the reason I asked
him what I did, Major Walsh asked me if I had got the statement; I said I had. He
said it was just as stated in that note; I thought not, and expected to keep it and
give it to you, Mr. Commissioner, but it was lest in that way. Also, as I said, it was
not signed.

Q. You are positive it was not signed ?-A. No signature. Mr. Carbeno states
as follows, and written with Mr. Pattullo's typewriter.

Q. IHow do you know it was his typewriter ?-A. Well, it looked like it; where
there is only a few you can tell the difference.
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By Mr. Fatocett:

Q. Do you know the name of the policeman ?-A. No, I don't know any of them.
Q. Did any one in connection with my office carry to your office orders for

printing any of these notices ?-A. No, air; there was one person came from your
office bearing a letter from you respecting that some little change be made in the
diagram, which was made; I questioned him very closely to know if he had the
authority to change it. It was some of these changes down here (pointing to the
notice), a change showing a claim which was closed and was on there as being
opened.

Q. Would you remember who that cler k was that went down with the letter?
-A. I wouldn't; I think it was Mr. Hurdman.

Q. You don't remember the time of it ?-A. It was in the evening.
Q. Those five policemen you say called on you that afternoon, can you recollect

any of their names ?-A. I don't believe i knew but one, and don't know the name.
Q. They all alleged they came from Major Walsh ?-A. Yes.
Q. This letter yon didn't retain?-A. No. sir.
Q. You took it for granted that Major Walsh had written it ?-A. I knew ho

had written it becaume I bad a number of communications from him and didn't even
read it; ho exhibited the letter and I took bis statement that it was so. Had I had
as much suspicion as I have now I would have taken that.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. When did you receive that notice from Major Walsh?-A. I think I told the
commissioner; about four o'clock in the afternoon on tho 8th of July; I believe it
was on Friday.

Q. You received that notice in the afternoon on Friday; hdw long would it take
you to print a thing like that?-A. It took until about four or five in the morning
after it was in the hands of the printers; their work was cleared up, and they were
ready after supper. They began at seven, and they were set at it and had it ready
the next morning before seven.

Q. Did you send ont men to paste them up ?-A. No, air.
Q. What did you do with them ?-A. I gave them to one of the policemen who

bore a letter from Major Walsh.
Q. What time was this ?-A. About six in the morning, Saturday. I was not

up myself; they told me when I went to bed that it would be out by three, but it
was out before seven-I want to make myself clear about issuing them-it was
Saturday morning. I would swear that they were not out before thiee o'clock by
Statements which came to me from my employees. When I went to bed that night
I was familiar with the work and knew that they would not be ready until after
three.

Q. You say that Major Walsh consulted you; didn't it seem rather strange that
yOu should print notices dated the 8th not to be posted until the 9th ?-A. I saw
It the moment I had it in my banda that it was thrown open, and was at the time
it was given to me and before, it was opened the moment it was signed.

Q. You heard previous witnesaes tell about one hundred and fifty having atarted
On Priday; I am bere to represent a committee of a mass meeting to ask questions.
One .question was this: Did some people beside police come to your office that
evening and discuss these questions with yoD ?-A. No, air.

Q. Did you have a young lady in your office by the name (a foreign name)-I
will not mention it?-A. You mean Miss Poincet who worked in my office.

Q. Yes, air; did yon tell Miss Poincet that she ought to go out ?-A. No, air.
Q. You say you would have gone out yourself ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. You would like to oblige a friend in that way ?-A. I should myseif.
Q. Did you, or did you not tell Misa Poincet she was fooliah abe didn't go ont?

A. i think I told a number of tbem to go out and stake, not only here because
they had been talking ail along. T should have gone asI stated, but I had no miner's
1icense at the time. It was no secret at all that afternoon to my knowledge.
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Q. On the afternoon of Friday ?-A. On the afternoon of Friday; I knew it was
opened; I heard it on the street before I saw this in Major Walsh's hands.

Q. You heard that some information had leaked out through the newspaper
offices-through the printers?-A. I don't know that it didn't leak out through the
printers before seven o'clock in the evening.

Q. But still the public didn't know this until Saturday. Evidently a great
number of people knew on Friday ?-A. Yes, two or three hundred I believe knew,
I believe, before it reached me.

Q. Did you inpart any information to any one before this was printed ?-A.
No, sir; only those who saw it in the office-couldn't be any more than two or
three.

Q. You say it was reported to you on the street before you got this?-A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Can you state anything positive about that ?-A. No, it is only rumour; I
say it was this rumour about Major Walsh baving sent Mr. Carbeno out.

Q. Yon just heard that the order was to that effect ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. That the claims are now open ?-A. Yes; I will state now that I would have

gone myself bad I known what was on Dominion benches.
Q. Did any of your staff go that night ?-A. No, sir, I think I could say posi-

tively.
Q. Wouldn't they give information to their friends?-A. No doubt of it; but

they couldu't very early.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Were these regular uniformed policemen ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Had they policemen's trousers on ?-A. Yes, sir.
The CoMMIsSIoNERa.-Mr. Carbeno, will yon stand up. Can you give the names

of those men who accompanied you out to Dominion Creek.
Mr. CARBENO.-The COllum boys.
Q. Can you say if they are in thé country ?-A. No, sir, they are not; they

went out with Major Walsh. There was a man named Marseille; he didn't come
into Dawson with us, he went out from Bennett.

Q. Do you know if he staked a claim elsewhere ?-A. He staked a claim on
Phil Walsh Crcek, below the Big Salmon.

Q. Have you any personal knowledge that he was in the same contract that
you were ?-A. Yes, the same agreement was drawn up.

Q. And he had likewise to give a three-fourths interest ?-A. He drew up an
agreement on the typewriter, as I remember it, and Marseille got an agreement.

The CoMMIssIoNE.-I understand that there are witnesses in the court-room
who were subpæned. In order that you may understand my position. I may say
that I gave blank simmones to the editor of the Nugget, and some to Mr. Arm-
strong and Mr. MODougall, in order to allow them to summon, themselves, any
witnesses they might desire, and I was to be furnished with a list of those names.
I have not been furnished with them yet. There may be pome witnesses summoned
and I don't know it. If there are any such witnesses in the court-room I would like
to know.

DENNIS PULFORD sworn.

By the Commisioner:

Q. Who summoned you ?-A. I have been summoned by Mr. George, but I have
nothing to say.

Q. To illustrate the case, Mr. Pulford, Mr. George told me that yon entered his
employ last fall in the Nugget office and stated you had certain information which
you would impart. He tried for some time to get it from you, but yon would not
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give it. You came back and told him you knew of some clerk in the gold commis-
sioner's office who had twenty-one interests, the inference being that they were
improperly obtained, and for the sum of two thousand dollars you would divulge
what you knew of them?-A. That is a lie-part of it.

Q. State what you did say?-A. About three months ago, in the month of
November, I entered the employ of the Nugget office to get information against the
gold commissioner's offiee.

Q. Was that stipulated ? You were employed for that purpose ?-A. I
was to get $250 per month while I worked for the Nugget. And I got some
information which I sent out of the country to Ottawa. I found the Nugget
was run by Americans and I thought they were not entitled to the information.
That as for my saying that I wanted to charge them $2,000 for the information, it
is a lie.

Q. That is what I understood him to say, and he is not here ?-A. I would like
to see him.

Q. Now, $2,000 or not; do you know anything about any interest being impro-
perly obtained by any clerk in the gold commissioner's office-you will have to
anhwer, you know ?-A. Well, I can't answer.

Q. Why ?-A. Because I forgot it. I have sent the information to Ottawa.
Q. Did you write it ont ?-A. No.
Q. Did you acquire it yourself ?-A. Yes.
Q. Well, if·you acquired it, you could give some idea of the nature of it, couldn't

you ?-A. I can't remember anything now.
Q. Yon can't remember anything now. Do you mean to say you refuse to tell?

Is that the construction yon wish me to place on your answer ? If you know any-
thing and were willing to give it to the Nugget, I don'. sec why you are unwilling to
give it here. You have to answer the question ?-A. At the same time I worked for
the .ugget I received instructions to work against the Rugget. 1 am bound by oath
lot to explain it to you and I refuse to give any ans'wers to you.

Q. Explain how you came to take that oath. You say you are bound by oath
nÎot to reveal these matters. Who imposed that oath on you ?-A. I can't mention
that either.

Q. You can't ? We would like to get it, if it is possible to get. I don't wish to
employ rough measures. I simply wish yon to tell al you know. You are not exon-
Orated from answering any question ?-A. That is all I know, sir.

Q. Yet yon say you were employed to work by the Nugget people and also
enployed toworkagainst them. What am I to infer from that? What is the public to
to infer ?-A. I was employed by the Young Men's Conservative Association of
Ottawa-received instructions from the association to find ont who was at the back
Of it. That is the situation I ara placed in.

Q. Did yon tell Mr. George that a clerk in the gold commissioner's office had
about twenty-one interests-did you make that statement to him ?-A. No, sir.

Q. You swear positively you didn't ?-A. I will swear to that.
Q. It may have been that Mr. George stated it as having come from some one

else. Did you tell any one connected with the Nuqqet office ?-A. I don't know if
Mr. Armstrong is connected with the Nugget office or not.

Q. Mr. Armstrong who was president of the miner's association ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you tell him that ?-A. Yes, I admitted that to him. It was only hear-

Say On My part.
Q. You have no personal knowledge of that. Have yon any personal know-

ledge of any other criminal act on the part of any employee in the gold commis-
sioner's ofce ?-Yes, sir.

Q. Will you tell us what it was?-A. I can't tell, sir.
Q. Why?-A. I simply have to refuse, that's all.
Q. Simply have to refuse. Suppose we do not submit to the refusal and insist

On an answer, unless you can give some legal cause for not answering ?-(Noansiwer.)
Q. Yo have to answer, Mr. Pulford, or take the consequences. I don't wishte be barsh ?-A. I will have to take the consequences.
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Q. Well, you won't answer?-A. No, air.
Q. You won't tell who imposed this oath ?-A. No, sir.
Q. We will have to treat you for contempt of court. These things are being

said and if you know anything positive, we wunt to know it. There is no better time
or better place to make it publie than here. Think seriously if any public official
commits wrong in connection with his official duty; it is due to the public to know
it, since you have been subpænaed. I suppose you know you can bo imprisoned until
you do answer. That I don't wish todo?-A. I will have to take the consequences.
I bave to refuse to answer.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. I would like to state my position; I don't know you. I have met Mr. Arm-
strong; he is president of the miners' association and I am rather an active member
of it. We exist to deal fairly witb both aides. I said this morning that if the
officials were guilty we want to bring them to book; if innocent, we want to see them
proved innocent. I understand that you have been to Mr. Armstrong and told him
that you know of something wrong. We want positive information. We have had
rumours enough. You told Mr.Armstiong that you knew one clerk with twentv-one
interests in claims. Now you told the commissioner that you had no definite infor-
mation, that you got it op rumour. L that so ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. It is an admission that he had no authority for saying what he did. You
state that you were in the employ of the Young Men's Conservative Association ?-
A. Not exactly, not employed.

Q. But got word from them?-A. Instructions to keep my ears and eyes open
in this country.

Q. I think we all came here for the same purpose. Can you tell the object of
this Young Men's Conservative Association ?-A. I don't think there is any need of
going into details.

Q. I should like to know; you are an Englishman ?-Yes, I am.
Q. The curious part is you say the Conservative Association had sent you to

keep your eyes open, and especially to look after the Nugget?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you not go into the Nugget office and offer your services ?-A. I offered

them.
Q. Did you say $250 per month; may I ask if you have been paid ?-A. Have

not been paid; have not received a single cent.
Q. Done nothing to earn it ?-A. No, sir; I went there once and went back

agan.
Q. They were disappointed in your professions in what you professed to do ?-

A. I think they were.
Q. By telling Mr. Armstrong to only tell the Nugget it was after you had this

information ?-A. Mr. Armstrong was in with Mr. George before I told him about
the interests; the three, Mr. Armstrong, Mr. MeDougall and Mr. George, are
very great friends.

Q. Yes, and their object is the same as mine; if there is anything wrong in
connection with any of the officials here we want it cleared up. You, as an English-
man, or a Canadian, you wouldn't want to see any one suffer unjustly?

By the Commissioner:

Q. Now, if you know of any case where there was a direct treachery with the
public; you say you know of a case ?-A. Not treachery, no.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. I caul it treachery to the public giving information on the side. Anybody
should get information at the office front window without going to the back door
for it; I thought you could tell us one who went around the back way to get
information ?-A. I didn't have to go in the back way.
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Q. Figuratively the back way ?-A. I said I knew of something wrong and
sent it out of the country where it will be used down below for the same thing this
commission has used it here. I refuse to answer any questions.

Q. When you had this information given did you take any pains to see if the
other side was right?-A. I didn't take any pay from anybody; I didn't take pay
from any one in the office, or any employee of the government.

Q. You took information given to you, and didn't take pains to find out about
the other side? A. Certainly I took pains or pay to find out if it was true.

Q. No pains-trouble ?-A. You say pains-I say pay.
Q. What I meant was any trouble exercised to sift the matter to see if it was

true?-A. Certainly, and in my opinion it was perfectly true.
Q. You sent the information to Ottawa; you knew the miners committee had

asked the government at Ottaswa to send a commission here ?-A. That was none of
tny business.

Q. But you know the miners' committee had asked for a commission to be held
here ?-A. No, I did not know of it. 1

Q. Were it not for your principles you would have referred the matter to the
court bore ?-A. I don't know whother I would or not.

Mr. FAwoTT.-Have you any information regarding the closing of Dominion
Creek, a question we were investigating this afternoon ?

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. You sent this information to the Young Men's Conservative Association ?-
A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. You are a member of this association in Ottawa ?-A. Well, yes, I am in
One way.

Q. For political reasons you are doing this, I suppose ?-A. Yes.
Q. You are in the pay of that association ?-A. I refuse to answor that.
Q. Well, in this case, where you are unearthing this fraud as you state, did you

take very much pains to determine the truth of it?-A. I sifted it thoroughly to
the bottom,

Q. What way did you sift ?-A. Making inquiries.
Q. You simply took the statement of those about you ?-A. No, sir.
Q. fow did you do it; by what means did you matisfy yourself it was true ?

You can surely say that while on the-
Mr. MoGREGOR.-The man is conscientious.
The CoxxissIoNER.-We are here for the purpose of getting all the information

We can, and if you have given the information to Ottawa, why not furnish it here ?

By Mir. Galpin:

Q. Perhaps the man is in the employ of some secret service ?-A. I have got
1nyself into a funny situation unexpectedly; it would not have been if it hadn't
have been for certain parties around here a couple of months ago. I cannot explain
anytbing more, and refuse to answer any more questions, and will take the con-
sequences.

Q. You may earn a thousand dollars for the Nugget?-A. 1 have traced Mr.
George's character since ho landed in America and I thin k-

A Vooi.-Is not he a native of America?-A. No, ho is an Englishman. as far
as the Nugget approaching me with money, I didn't get any from the Nugget or
any one.

The CommIssioNER.-There has been no insinuation in that way; I simply told
you what Mr. George told me. It may appear to be a breach of confidence if you
are under the obligation of secrecy, but my reason in speaking as I did was to give
you an idea as to what he would ask you had ho been bore. Well, Mr. Pulford, I
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must commit you for contempt if you don't answer; if you hesitate to answer or
refuse that is ny only course.

Mr. GALPIN.-Can't Mr. Pulford tell Mr. George to come ?
The CoMMissIoNE.-We will subpæna Mr. George if Mr. Pulford wishes 1t;

Mr. George might refuse.
Mr. TABOR.-These matters may have transpired afterthe 25th of August; if

so it may be ontside of your jurisdiction, Mr. Commissioner.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Well, Mr. George would have to object on that ground. Do yon know what
time this occurrence took place; this transaction to which you refer ?-A. During
the summer and this fall.

Q. Can you assign any date to any one of them around July, August, Septem-
ber and October ?-A. Some of them in July, some in August an< September.

Q. Are you positive that some occurred before the 25th August last ?-A. I
couldn't swear to that.

Q. Are you under the impression that they did ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. Would Mr. Pulford answer the question if Mr. Gearge were here ?-A. I
refuse to divulge any information to Mr. George; I will answer no questions he
may put; I will answer any questions he may put, but will not give any infor-
mation.

Q. Would you like to ask him any questions ?-A. No. I want to know what
he subpœnaed me for.

By the Commissioner:

Q. As he is not here I informed you ?-A. Well, one-half is false, and one-half
is true.

Q. When he came to ask me for a subpoena he told me your name; he then,
without any request on my part told me how you had acted. Ho stated the fact to
me that you knew of a clerk who has twenty-one interests, presumably obtained in
an improper manner. Now, if you have any knowledge of any clerk in the gold
commissioner's office, or any one in any other government office who thus acquired
any claim or any property in the territory I would like to know it. It is most
desirable; if you have Kent it to Ottawa already I don't see why you refuse now; if
you sent it to Ottawa it will be used. You sent it under oath did you ? I don't see
why you hesitate as it is for the public benefit in one case as well as the other. I
am not going to discuss the philosophy of the case with you; you know why we
want it; we would all like to have it ?-A. I will have to refuse.

Mr. Pulford was then committed for contempt ot court.

Mr. STEPHEN WILKINsON, being duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By the Commissioner :

Q. You have no knowledge of who subpænaed yon ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You do not know cn whose behalf you appear ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Was there anything said to you as to what you were required for ?-A. He

said ho didn't know; I told him that I didn't know of anything that was criminal at
all.

Q. You have no knowledge of anything criminal on the part of any public
official, or any wrong doing ?-A.-Well, I don't know as you would consider it that
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way; I have bad some trouble with them; I don't know whether it was intentional
or accidental; there was nothing criminal.

Q. Would you tell us what trouble there was ?-A. Weli, on the 23rd July
Mr. FAwcETT.-The evidence of this case was taken in court-a case of contest.

. By the Commissioner:

Q. Did you lose your case ?-A. I was summoned bore before the case was con-
tested.

Q. Have you anything to say ?-A. After the evidence was taken i was sum-
moned; the decision was not given; I went out of court in the gold commissioner's
office when the summons was handed to me.

Q. When were you summoned ?-A. I was summoned last Tuesday evening.
Mr. TABo.-I was on that case: it was simply a question as to the boundary

of the creek claim. Mr. Fawcett had originally decided that boundary, and Mr.
Senkler refused to interfere with Mr. Fawoett's former decision, and this gentleman
had staked inside the boundary of the creok claim, and judgment was given against
him.

Mr. WILKINSN.-There was a mistake made.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Whose fault was it?-A. It was the recorder's; I told him it was on the left
Bide of the creek going up ; didn't know anything about right and left limite at the
time. I supposed he knew it was the left limit; it is on the right.

Q. The limits are decided in going down the stream ; for instance you would say
Dawson was on the right side or lirmit of the Yukon; the mistakes in that way are
quite common ?-A. I showed the man where I wanted to record, he says that is on
the right side, and [ says that is where I want to record, and told him the name of
the man on the adjoining claim; it was after hours.

Q. Did you pay hinm anything extra for doing it ?-A. Yes,sir, my lawyer gave
him five dollars extra every time he examined the books, but saw there was no
ground there. I went down on Monday morning again.

Q. What date ?-A. The 25th of July; then I asked Mr. Fawcett when we
Went in, to explain the nature of the grounrd, and I told him it was a bench claim.
Re said, a creek claim cannot hold a bench, and 1 asked him about posts that were
there, but he said they did not cut any figure. I said, can I record on this benoh
claim. Yes, he said, the creek had no right to hold it, and then when I asked him.
if I could go in at that time, he said no I would have to go to the door and come in
in regular turn. That was on Monday. Monday I got a ticket and stayed there
Until Thureday, and there was no show of getting in; 1 was there every evening to
tO see how long it would take me. The number at the door didn't seem to get any
less, and on Thursday about noon there was a friend of mine came down wbo was out
prospecting. He went in; I asked him how he got in, he said, " by paying a dol ar,
1 got in the side door, that is the way I always do." Well, I never paid any more
attention to my ticket thon. I went in the side door.

Q. Did you pay the dollar ?-A. I told the door-keeper I wouId settle when 1
came out, but when I came out I didn't see him.

Q. You didn't break your word ?-A. No, sir, the same man was not there; I
expected to pay him.

Q. Would you recognize the man ?-A. No, sir.
Q. So you have good reason for not paying him now ?-A. No, I didn't pay him

-I went in the aide door.
Q. Do you think there is anything more than negligence by putting you on the

Wrong side. of. the creek ?-A. I think ho understood me to say it was on the left
limit. I understood that was the way of it. I think it might have been.

Q. Do yon wish to allege any corrupt or improper motive ?-A. No, sir, ail I
wish to say is that I paid five dollars to bim for working overtime; I paid it to the
lawyer. We didn't get there till late. He said we could come next morning before
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office hours. Me and my lawyer went in together next rmorning before time ; and
ho looked over the books again and that is when I pointed ont where I wanted to
record. He said thon to come in after the office opened and I could record;
thon he handed him five dollars more. I think Mr. Fawcett was only four or five
feet away.

Q. Will you give the lawyer's name ?-A. Mr. Lisle; i gave Mr. Lisle the
money.

Q. Did he give it to Mr. Bolton ?-A. Yes, sir; I rather think Mr. Fawcett saw
it; ho was standing right there when ho handed it to him.

Q. We will have to have Mr. Lisle up in the morning?-A. I don't think it was
criminal; it was not bribery, but merely pay for overtime work, that was all. I
thought it was no more than just.

Q. Did you pay twice ?-A. Yes, five dollars in the evening and five in the
morning.

Q. He didn't make any charge ?-A. It was our ofer.
Q. Why didn't you go back the first time ?-A. Well, Mr. Hurdman gave me a

check to come in when 1 wanted to. I went and got the lawyer, and we went in.
Mr. FAwczTT.-If 1 saw him giving Mr. Bolton any money 1 would not know

but what it was the recording fee.
Q. You have no knowledge of this, Mr. Fawcett ?-A. None.
WITNEs.-I don't know whether Mr. Fawcett saw it or not; ho was standing

close by.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. You appeared at first not to know why you were called up; we understand
now. Have you been to the Nugget office ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did you tell the Nugget your story about this case ?-A. Well, I didn't tell
them all about it; that was a week or two ago.

Q. Can you remember and tell us now what you told the Nugget ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Who was it you told ?-A. I don't know.
Q. Did the person take notes at the time ?-A. No. When I went to the office

I said I want this kept contidential; I don't want it published - I went in to subscribe
for the paper.

Q. You went in to get a paper?-A. I went in to get a paper and I got talking
about it; didn't think it any harm to tell about it. Facts are facto, and I didn't
consider it bribery at all, and Mr. B.lton-

(J. Mr. Hurdman is the man, you said Bolton ?-A. That is a mistake, it was
Mr. Hurdnan.

Q. You gave Mr. Hurdman five dollars ?-A. No, sir; Mr. Lisle gave him the
five dollars both times.

Q. Did you instruct Mr. Lisle to do so ?-A. I told bim we ought to pay for
overtime; ho didn't say whether ho would make a charge or not. I said it was no
more than right-that if ho accommodated as to pay him, and instructod Mr. Lisle
to pay this.

Q. Were you present at these mass meetings in town ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You never heard of the miners coming to us if they had any complaints ?-

A. No, sir.
Q. You say Mr. Hurdmnan gave you a check to come in ?-A. I said i wanted

to came back; ho gave me a check when we came back.
Q. Did you se a long line at the gold commissioner's office waiting to get in

and with your little check did you pass by the whole lot and get in. Mr. Hurdman
gave you that note-

By Mr. Tabor;

Q. Did you get any in the first place ?-A. I told the doorkeeper I would pay
him when I came back. I says I have been two or three days and the number gets
bigger every day.
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Q. You didn't get through your business wheu you were in that time you got
the check ?-A. Mr. Hurdman said he hadn't the time.

Q. You got a check to return when you came back; any other checks given ?-
A. No, air.

Q. What time of day was it in ?-A. It was during office hours.
Q. Thesnext time you came back you entered through the door, so he took the

check from you ?-A. No, air.
Q. Have you the check yet ?-A. I put it in my vest pocket; I don't know

whether I have it or not. I don't think I ever gave it up.
Q. Did you show it to Mr. George, of the Nugget ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you give it to the Nugget ?-A. No, air.
Q. Did you underatand by that check that you could paus in any day ?-A. No,

just to transact my business.
Q. Did the crowd grumble ?-A. No, they didn't say anything. I saw several

going in in the same way.
Q. It was a perpetual check ?-A. Just for that one day. I told him I wanted

to get a lawyer. ie said: " I will give you tickets so that you eau get in." It was
to get my lawyer and bring him back. I had been in once and wanted to go back
that evening. I said I was there ever since Saturday, and that was Thursday and
didn't get away till Saturday morning.

Q. How many times did you obtain admission on that ticket ?-A. I think
three or four times on that ticket. In the first place I got my certiflcate. I wanted
it on the lower edge of "14" between fourteen and fifteen, and he put it on the
edge of " 13 " and I went back and had that altered. He said to leave it there, and
he would fix it in the evening. I went back the next morning.

Q. You had made a mistake ?-A. No, ho had made a mistake; he changed that
to the left limit.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. Did I understand that you staked this claim; if you had not lost this yon
would have given this information ?-A. I had given the information before the trial
came off; I am trying to get it. I expect to take it to Ottawa.

Q. Did you know the minera' committee had formed an association to sift these
cases ?-A. No, I live on Bonanza; I didn't know anything about it. I bave been up
there all winter. I have not been bere only on business.

INVESTIGATION OF THE CLOSING OF DOMINION HILLS, CREEKS
AND BENCHES.

R. B. CRAIG, being duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Do you recollect anything about the closing of Dominion Creek; at what
time it was closed ?-A. In November, 1897.

Q. Do you know the cause that led up to the closing of the creek?--A. On
account of a number of complaints that were made by mine owners there of having
their claims staked over and recorded by others.

Q. Do you recollect any particular cases ?-A. "6 " Above, 11 A Below Lower,c'23" "26 " "26A " and several other fractions on the creek.
Q. Do you know of any other particular reason for suspecting in the office that

there was a complication of numbering below Second Discovery ?-A. Weil, some
recorded claims by description only. Others recorded as below Lower Discovery.
Others agin claimed that the stakes between the Discovery were burned off; pro-
fessed to have designated claims from Upper Discovery and recorded as such.
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Q. Do you know what part of the summer the claims were put on by descrip.
tion ?-A. It would be from the middle of June to Augusit, 1897.

Q. What was the method after that; what were people required to do after
that ?-A. To have numbers run from the Discovery, from either upper or lower.

Q. Were any applications accepted after the 15th of November ?-A. Not to
my knowledge.

Q. Did Mr. Fawcett instruct you to accept none after the 15th of November ?--
A. Yes.

Q. Are you aware that the reasons you have stated were the reasons he had for
closing the creek ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever consult together on the question ?-A. Yes, more than once.
Q. As to the best method of preventing complications and confusion ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did that order of closure include the whole creek?-A. No, from Upper

Discovery to 120 Below; ihat was the limit.
Q. At what time did you determine that limit ?-A. At the time it was closed;

the order didn't originally close the hill claimi and was afterwards amended.
Q. Was it after the date of the closure you refused to accept any applications?

-A. In this closed part.
Q. Did you always give the reason ?-A. The reason that the creek was closed

until surveyed.
Q. Do you know when the survey was made ?-A. The surveyor went out there

the latter part of last spring-April or May.
Q. Well, notwithstanding the closure of that part of the creek applications were

received and noted ?-A. Filed up to a certain date.
Q. You gave no record ?-A. No.
Q. Did you give those who asked for filing protection in any way ?-A. Yes

their applications were filed pending the arrivai of the field-notes.
Q. You assured them their rights would be protected ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you know what you were doing ? When was that privilege stopped ?-

A. I think it was-I forget the exact date. It was shortly before the survey party
returned the privilege of filing on the hill-sides.

Q. Are yon sure about it ?-A. No.
Q. The privilege was stopped ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was there a reason given ?-A. By order of Major Walsb.
Q. That is the reason which was given to you; per8onally you don't know ?-

A. No, I don't know aunything about it.
Q. After that date you received no applications on the hill-sidee ?-A. No.
Q. Do you know when the privileges were restored again ?-A. To record on

the hill-sides?
Q. Yes ?-A. There was a proclamation issued; I can't say as to the date.
Q. I suppose you are aware of the stampede to Dominion Creek during the

summer-the month of July last ?-A. Yes.
Q. Well, you have heard it stated that tips were given ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was there any improper information given from the office? Have you any-

personal knowledge of any such information been given ?-A. None.
Q. None yourself?-A. None; none to give.
Q. Any one go for you; any one directly or indirectly ?-A. No.
Q. Did you intimate in any way to any one that such a thing could be done ?-

A. No.
Q. You have no personal knowledge of any one in the office doing it ?-A. No.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. Did you have any information as to a considerable tract of Dominion Creek
being below the claims that were recorded at the time it was closed ?-A. The infor-
mation we had was that the closed portion'would almost take in the whole creek.

Q. That was the information we had ?-A. Yes.
Q. The only portion that was closed was that in which we considered complica-

tions would arise ?-A. Yes, to 120 below Discovery.
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By the Commisioner:

Q. Do you remember the number of claims in that lowest zone of the creek ?-
A. Recorded, do you mean ?

Q. No, the total number from Upper Discovery to 120 below ?-A. Well, there
were so many gaps in the numbers, I couldn't.

Q. Have you any knowledge if the numbers were consecutive. There were
120 ?-A. No, there would be 120 consecutive, not counting fractions; that is if
there were no gaps.

Q. You couldn't say ?-A. No.

E. D. BOLTON, being duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Had you any knowledge, Mr. Bolton, of Dominion Creek being closed ?-A.
Yes, sir.

Q. At what time was it closed ?-A. Well, it was in September or October.
Q. That is the nearest you can recollect ?-A. I would not want to place it

any nearer than October.
Q. You don't know that any applications were taken after that ?-A. None

that 1 know of.
Q. What were you doing then ?-A. I was working at the books, posting up

the cash book and putting on quartz claims and bench claims.
Q. At that time you had nothing to do with the recording of the placer claims?

-A. No, sir; nothing at the time.
Q. Do you know of any reason which led up to the closing of Dominion Creek?

-A. Yes, si r.
Q. What were they, as far as you know ?-A. People here didn't seem to have

nuch idea of distance; they didn't seem to describe their claims correctly. One
would describe bis claim as being "Sarah,' when he could not locate it definitely,
and subsequent claims would be described as adjoining that claim. Of course we
could not locate the claim " Sarah " very definitely at ail.

Q. Dn you know what complications arose on account of them being numbered
Up and down from two Discoveries ?-A. Yes, sir; they over-lapped.

Q. Have you any information as to their over-lapping ?-A. Yes, sir. Another
thing, changed the two sets of numbers below Lower Discovery-one below
Lower Discovery and another number below Upper Discovery. Those numbeis
Would conflict.

Q. Do you know of any over-lapping of claims near the two Discoveries or just
below ?-A. Yes; I think three or four claims below Lower Discovery. There is
a place there, I think, where there is one claim thrown out.

Q. Yon don't know how many were thrown out?-A. No, sir.
Q. From the information you had at the office, was there any reason to believe

that any considerable part of Dominion Creek remained uncovered at the time it
was closed ?-A. No, sir; by what I could learn it covered most all of Dominion
Creek. People didn't seem to know much about that part of the creek below 120.

Q. You don't know why 120 was placed as the limit ?-A. No, sir; I could not
tell that.

Q. Do you know how far the claims were numbered down-those that were
recorded ?-A. I think about 90; I have one described No. 90. 1 am not sure.

Q. So that by claiming 120, what would that show ?-A. That would cover all
the ground that was in any way disputed; that is, if there was any ground left
below that without a description, we thought it would be included in that ground
down to 120.
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Q. With reference to this claim called "Sarah," have you any knowledge of
how far that world be from the 2nd Discovery ?-A. Well, it is below Lower Dis-
covery, but how far, I don't remember.

Q. Yon don't recollect the distance ?-A. I think it was about two miles below.
Q. With reference to the bill claims, did you accept any applications after the

creek was closed for hill-side or bench claims ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Not last spring ?-A. No, sir. Well, you mean after-
Q. During the time the creek was closed, did that also, in your estimation and

the understanding of the office, as far as you know, exclude the hill-sides?-A.
No, sir.

Q. Last spring were there any applications received-noted in the office for
claims on the bill aides ?-A. Yes, they were kept track of.

Q. Did you note them?-A. I did some of them.
Q. W hat did you note ?-A. Simply took a memo, and a sketch of the creek,

where the man's claim was and pencilled his name beside the claim.
Q. You made a sketch of it ?-A. Yes.
Q. When did that terminate ?-A. About let June.
Q. Have you any reason to know why that was done ?-A. Well, I think the

counoil met and they decided from that date the hill-sides on Dominion Creek would
be closed.

Q. That was the information you had. Of course you didn't know what took
place in the council ?-A. No, I thought the council closed it.

Q. Did you know anything about the opening of it ?-A. I was very busy thon
at the wicket at which we recorded claims and had very little time.

Q. When did you first know that the hill claims were opened ?-A. That morn-
ing when the notices were posted up.

Q. Was that the firet you heard of it?-A. No, I heard of it-it was just a
report the night before.

Q. You heard the report the night before ?-A. Yes, that they were going te
be opened.

Q. At the ofice ?-A. Down town.
Q. That is, you heard of it ?-A. Yes, sir.

By the Commisioner:

Q. Did yon say you personally received any applications for claims on the ihll-
sides before the per!od of their closure ?-A. Yes, sir. people came and gave a
description of where their claim was, and it was plotted in the bench claim book,
and pencilled it.

Q. Did yon give the applicants reason te believe the fact of your doing that
would give them any protection ?-A. Well, they were promised as a rule that the
ground would be held for them after the survey, and of course the shape in which
Dominion Creek was, in the way the numbers were running, sometimes it was
impossible to give a correct description, because some of the claims had two numbers,
and there was a space in which there were no numbers at all.

Q. The reason you did not grant the record of these, was because of the con-
flict?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. You took these applications, assuring the people who made them, that when
the question of boundary was decided and you were positive, you could give them
record ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you informed the people so who applied ?-A. Yes.
Q. That they would be protected ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Notwithstanding that they bad not obtained record ?-A. That they would

be protected.
Q. You say yon learned about 1st yune that the privilege was stopped ?-A.

Yes, sir.
Q. Did you know how it came to be stopped ?-A. No, with the exception that

Mr. McGregor came to me one day and he asked me, I think it was before the 30th
of May, he said that the Dominion Creek benches were closed as well as the creek.
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Q. He thought they were ?-A. Yes, I told him-I just described to him the
method we had of parties staking and noting their applicatious until a time when
the surveyors would report on Dominion creek. Shortly after that, the notice came
out that no further staking would be allowed on the hill-sides on Dominion Creek.

Q. When did you first learn that this privilege was stopped ?-A. Just at the
time the notice was posted.

Q. Did Mr. Fawcett instruct you personal!y?-A. He may have, I could not
remember now.

Q. Don't you remember the date ?-A. No, I got instructions from some one, I
don't remember whom.

Q. The first time you knew that privilege was stopped you got notice ?-A. Yes.
Q. Wasn't it likely that Mr. Fawcett would have informed you of the result?-

A. Yes, Sir, in ail probability he did; I don't remember his coming to me and saying
so. People in the ofice thon were very unsettled on account of the water.

Q. Do you remember when the privilege was restored again ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. How soon after it was stopped was it restored ?-A. Let's see, it was about

the 9th or IOth of July, some place along there.
Q. How long was it closed ?-A. It would he about from the lt of June; it

would be nearly six weeks.
Q. During that time you refused to receive any other applications for hill-side

claims ?-A. Yes, a number of people came who didn't know of these being closed
and I refused.

Q. Did you tell them why ?-A. Yes, air, i said it had been deeiUed the hill-sides
were closed.

Q. When it was restored I suppose you remember reference being made to a
stam pde to the hill-sides and benchos on Dominion ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. What time was that ?-A. I think it was about the night before.
Q. What date ?-A. Let's see,- the day before the notices were posted up, the

evening before.
Q. Did you ever see a copy of the notice ?-A. Yes, sir.
(Witness shown the notice.)
Q. Would you recognize it if you saw it ?-Yes, air. Yes, that is the notice.
Q. When did you tiret know of that notice ?-A. Well, the first time I knew

was the morning it was posted up; that is the first time I saw or knew of it.
Q. You say it was before intimated to you that that was going to be done?-A.

Yes, sir.
Q. How was tbat intimated to you ?-A. It was down town; some fellow came

to me and asked me, he said, " I hear that the hili-sides on Dominion are going to be
opened." I told him I didu't know, I hadn't heard anything about it before, nor
didn't know. He said one thing, I would not be sure of, but I think he asked me
if the stakers who had already staked would be protected; and I told him I thought
they would. By that, I suppose ho thought that those who had aiready staked
would, in all probability, stand some chance of losing their claims when the creek
Was opened.

Q. Did ho present himself to you as one who had staked ?-A. I think he
did. Of course, it is quite a while ago, and I don't just remember about it.

Q. You would not swear that is what he asked you ?-A. No, sir.
Q. At that time you swear positively that you didn't know as a matter of fact

that they wére opened ?-A. No, air.
Q. That was the evening before the notice was posted ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. Did you ever have any conversation with anyone with reference to the

subject ?-A. I might bave, but don't remember.
Q. You have heard it stated generally that "Lips" were given-information

improperly given. Did you give any such information ?-A. No, sir, I didn't. I
U4ight have, told some person on the street that evening that this man had told me,
just simply hearsay, that is all.

Q. While as an officer of the gold commissioner's office, you swear you had no
knowledge of this until you heard it on the street?-A. No, sir, I had no knowledge
of it.
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Q. You are positive you gave no one information ?-A. No, sir, I had none to
give.

Q. Did yon get any one to go out and stake ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you go yourself?-A. No, sir, I never staked a claim myself.
Q. Wh*y ?-A. We are barred from staking claims.
Q. As an official ?-A. Yes, my letter from Mr. Deville stated that I would not

be allowed to record claims.
Q. Then you have no personal knowledge of any information having gone from

the gold commissioner's office to people in that connection ?-A. No, air, I have
not.

Q. Before t.he notice ?-A. No, air. When I went into the office in the morning
I saw one of these notices and looked at it to see what it wae.

Q. That was the first time you had any positive assurance that the claims were
again open ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you gave no information ?-A. No, sir.
Q. For any one's benefit ?-A. No. sir.
Q. Did they know ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Directly or indirectly ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Not until after the notices were posted up ? Of course then it was public.-

A. Yes.
Q. Now, there are a great many charges. This is a question not relevant. There

are a great many charges of officials having acquired interests. Have you any objec.
tions now to stating whether you obtained any interests in such a way as that ?-A.
No, sir, 1 never acquired any in that connection.

Q. Directly or indirectly?-A. If I did, I didn't know it.
Q. Did you or did you not?-A. No; I bave not any interests in Dominion

Creek.
Q. You have none at all on Dominion Creek ?-A. Not in that way; none in

any other way as far as-
Q. You were juat referring to this matter in quesLion; we will continue this

matter while on it, and find out what you have and how you got it.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Any such claims as you marked as reserved are such claims shown on that
iist?-A. Yes, those that have been applied for are shown on that list.

Q. They were already reserved ?-A. Yes, air.

By the Commissioner:

Q. For the stakers who staked originally ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. You believe that was a correct list ?-A. No, sir, I don't know whether it
is a correct list or not.

Q. Did you know who compiled that sketch map ?-A. No, sir, I was told that
Mr. Cautley did part of it; I don't know whether he did or not.

By Mr. Galpin :

Q. On the night of the 8th, there were 150 people, Mr. Bolton, went on that
stampede before the notices was made publie. Can you tell the court, from your
own knowledge, how that information leaked out ?-A. No, sir.

Q. You don't know how it leaked out ? -A. No, sir.
Q. You say you heard it on the street before the notice was made public ?-A.

Yes.
Q. Who told you ? Were they miners ?-A. I could not tell that; there was

juat this man in particular, some person else may have told me, but I don't know
who it was.
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Q. You heard from several people?-A. Just one man in particular that I
remember of, that is all.

Q. Can you tell us who that was ?-A. No, air.
Q. Can you inform us how the information leaked ont ?-A. I don't know how

it leaked ont.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You coull not give us the name of the person ?-A. I would give it if I
could. I don't know who it was.

Q. That is the only case you remember ?-A. Yes. I was down town for a
few minutes that evening.

Q. You had no knowledge of this notice until that time ?-A. Not until the
morning when [ saw it at the office.

Q. You stated a while ago that Mr. McGregor was the first to call your atten-
tion to this matter. That was at the time the matter was settled by council ?-A.
No, sir, it was before it was settled. I think it was one time he was on Dominion
Creek and he came to Dawson and spoke to me about it.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. Mr. Fawcett said one of the clerks went down to the office and altered one
part of the plan, was it you, Mr. Bolton ?-A. No.

The CommIssIoNEE-It was Mr. Swinehart said that one of the clerks went
down to the office and altered part of the plan.

Mr. TABoR-Which plan ?-A. Plan on the notice.
Mr. GALPIN-Was it you who *rent down ?-A. No, sir.
Q. I don't think Mr. Swinehart mentioned,-he was not sure about it.
The CJoMMIssIoNE-If there is any one in court who knows of improper infor-

mation being given in regard to this stampede to Dominion Creek, I would be glad
if they would say so. 1 am sure the public would be glad too. We all want to
know wbether there was anything improper about this or not; if there was, it is
only right it shnuld be made public. If no one responds, we will take it for granted
that they know nothing.

R. W. CAUTLEY, being duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. Were you aware that on Dominion Creek there was no limitation against
the staking of hill-claims?-A. No.

Q. As a matter of fact, did people stake them ?-A. Some people did.
Q. Did you note any stakes you saw there ?-A. None other than the creek

Stakes.
Q. You did't take note of the stakes on the bill-claims ?-A. None whatever.

"I1KQ. When did you first learn that there was a limitation ?-A. I couldn't say;
I had no idea it was closed at the time we came in.

Q. You had no idea while on the creek ?-A. The first definite infurmation I
got that the creek was closed was when the notice declared that it was open ; that
Was negative information.

Q. Had you any information when preparing the notice to declare it open ?-
A. The notice publistied on the 9th of July,I drew up under instructions, and
Mnade the plot showing these claims that had been applied for previous to the closing
of the creek.

Q. Where did you get your information ?-A. From the bench claim book.
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Q. What did you find in the bench claim book?-A. Trere was a double line
drawn to represent the creek, and cross lines to represent the boundaries of the
creek claims, and beside this on the right and left aide respectively were marked
claims with the names on them.

Q. Was the sketch you prepared a copy of that ?-A. It was, as far as I ean
tell, a copy of that; the trouble is a good part of it had been made prior to the sur-
vey, and as you know the survey showed that the creek was not as had been
recorded, particularly ut the junction of "36 " below upper and "13" above lower.

Q. As far as the information we had at the time on record that was a correct
record of the applications ?-A. Certainly, to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Q. Rad you knowledge of the time when this was to be open when you were
drawing this sketch ?-A. Yes; Major Walsh told me Friday morning when he
asked me to make a sketch.

Q. What time did you begin operations of surveying part of the creok ?-A.
We left here, if I remember rightly, on the 9th of April, but we didn't start opera-
tions until about the 22nd.

Q. At that time were you aware that the hill-side claims were open to location?
A. I was not aware to the contrary.

Q. Were you aware that applications were being received and placed on file?
-A. 1 didn't know applications were being made.

Q. Wore you aware that it was closed ?-A. No.
Q. Then in fact you knew nothing of that part of the creek ?-A. Exactly.
Q. Nothiug about it ?-A. Nothing about the hill or bench claims.
Q. Were you instructed before you proceeded to the work of survey as to what

part of the creek proper had been closed ?-A. Mr. Gibbon was in charge of the
survey; personally I was told the part closed was between Disoovery and one hun-
dred anu twenty below Lower Discovery.

Q. When you completed part of the survey, hadn't you charge of part of it?
What part of the work did you do?-A. Mr. Gibbon did very little more than run
,the base lines; I ran almost all the end Unes.

Q. As a matter of fact, you made a survey of nearly all the claims in that zone?
-A. Well, the base line was run by Mr. Gibbon.

Q. You surveyed the claims, while Mr. Gibbon didn't-you showed the bouand-
aries of the claims ?-A. Yes.

Q. So practically you surveyed the claims ?-A. If you look at it in that way,
Mr. Gibbon very seldom determined any claim boundaries. Mr. Cadenhead, the
land surveyor, was also out there to inspect the posta and test their genuineness,
and Mr. Cadenhead and Mr. Gibbon consulted with me and would mark those that
were genuine, which were to be taken.

Q. These were the creek posta ?-A. Of course. Ail I had to do in the matter
was to run at right angles opposite the base lines through these creek poste marked
by Gibbon and Cadenhead-usually Cadenhead.

Q. Then, as a rule, you had nothing to do with the adjustment of any boundary;
you simply took the posts as marked for you ?-A. Nothing whatever, except in a
few cases where my opinion was asked.

Q. You know nothing about the adjustment of these boundaries ?-A. No, I
took no evidence.

Q. As a matter of fact you knew nothing about the adjustment?-A. No.
Q. If people asked you a question could you answer it ?-A. Yes.
Q. What I wanted to bring out was if you personally conducted any of the

investigation between disputants in any particular case?-A. No.
Q. While you were adjusting any boundaries in that way did you attend to

boundaries between hill-side claims ?-A. No.
Q. When did your operations start ?-A. On the 29th May.
Q. You were a little more than a month on the creek ?-A. Yes.
Q. How long did it take you to complete your returns ?-A. Well, I made the

plan in June; I worked at it until the 11th of July, when I was instructed by Mr.
Fawcett to take applications for hill-side claims.
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Q. Had you any personal knowledge of the closing of the hill-side claims; you
stated before you hadn't ?-A. No, I hadn't.

Q. During that interval of the returns from the survey from the lst of June to
the 11th July did you receive any applications at ail in the offine ?-A. None
whatever.

Q. Your work was partly keeping up returns and acting as a surveyor ?-
A. Yes, sir.

Q. No connection with the office ?-A. None whatever.
Q. You received no applications until the 1lth of July ?-A. No.
Q. None under Mr. Faweett's orders ?-A. None under Mr. Fawcett's instruc-

tions.
Q. Were you aware of some sort of misunderstanding about the hill-side claims

being closed and opened and closed again ?-A. Yes.
Q. Were you aware of that directly or indirectly ?-A. Indirectly; it was

common talk.
Q. As an employee of the government you knew nothing about it ?-A.

Oecially, no.
Q. As a resident of Dawson you heard of it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you any reason to believe that what you heard was authentic ?-A.

No, except that -
Q. At the time you heard it had you any reason to believe the information given

you was authentic ?-A. No more than street talk.
q. That can only mean that it came from Major Walsh or Mr. Fawcett ?-A.

Q. It was intimated by your notice that they had information ?-A. That I
can't remember.

Q. WelI, I suppose, you are aware of the fact that there was a stampede to
Dominion Creek; do you know the date of that stampede ?-A. I think it was on
the 9th. I can't remember. I tbink it was on Friday and Saturday.

Q. You compiled the sketch which was put on that nutice-the sketch of the
ground already applied for and filed ?-A. Yes.

Q. Would you recognize the sketch if you saw it or a copy of it ?-A. Yes.
(Ilear the witness is handed the printed sketch.) That is the sketch I made-a
copy of it.

Q. Do you believe it a true copy ?-A. I can't positively remember; it is the
Sanme with one exception; I think there was a mistake in the original order in the
copy, that was why that clause was put in.

Q. When was that clause put in ?-A. It was put in when the proof was
brought up from the printing office.

Q. It was stated yesterday there was a correction made, and the impression of
the witness was that a clerk of the gold commissioner's offie had gone to the printers
to correct this sketch, because it was imperfect, and it was co rrected. Do you know
anything about that ?-A. I took the original to the office, and 1 made another visit
to the printing office, but forget what I did; I think it was in connection with the
Proof. I made two visits to the printing office, but I don't know whether it was on
the same day or the next day.

Q. Do you remember why the first visit took place ?-A. I was asked by Major
Walsh to make this original, and then I took it down to have it printed.

Q. Did you do that ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. You visited the printers for the purpose of having that sketch printed ?-A.

es, I am under that impression.
Q. Are you not positive ?-A. I can't remember, it is so long ago.
Q. At that time were you aware of the nature of the content.s-the printed part

above ? Did you read it over ?-A. I can't say.
Q. You can't say you had seen the notice ?-A. No.
Q. Can you say when you saw it first ?-A. Well, of course, I saw it on Saturday.
Q. Not poeitive you saw it befpre that ?-A. Not positive.
Q. It has been learned, as you know, that information was improperly given to

outsiders, and a stampede occurred before this notice was made public; haveyou any
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knowledge to the effect that that was actually so ?-A. I know there was a great
deal of stampeding before the notice was made public; also that I was asked by
people whether or not the claims were thrown open on the hill-sides of Dominion
Creek on Fiday.

Q. By people ?-A. Yes, on Friday.
Q. Have you any recollection of the names of any of these parties ?-A. No;

they were asked. in the ordinary way that any clerk is asked a thousand questions
-Overy day.

Q. You don't remember any particular incidents of inquities of that kind ?-
A. No.

Q. Well, when you were asked these questions about this matter, what sort of
answer did you generally give ?-A. I told them I didn't know, which, of course,
was not true, but it was the only thing 1 could do at the time.

Q. Why did you consider it was not true ?-A. Because Major Walsh distinctly
told me that wou;d be done.

Q. That is your reason why you told them you didn't know ?-A. Yes.
Q. What was your object in telling them ?-A. I suppose to conceal the truth.
Q. ilad you any purpose in the concealment of the truth ?-A. Well, seeing

that the public notices were not published, it would have been improper for the fact
that these claims were to be thrown open on the following day should be spoken of.

Q. That was your reason ?-A. It was an official rea-on.
Q. You had no authority to make it public ?-A. By no means; in fact I was

expressly told not to inake it public.
Q. That is why you denied knowing it?-A. Yes.
Q. This is a very delicate question. Did you directly or indirectly give any

information to any one by which you were benefited ?-A. No.
Q. You understand the nature of the question ?-A. I think so.
Q. You gave no information to anyone directly or indirectly by which you

expected to benefit yourself and friends ?-A. I did not.
Q. Have you any knowledge of any clerk in the gold commissioner's office, or

in the employ of that office, having go given information ?-A. I have not.
Q. You are positive of that?-A. Positive.
Q. For yourselt you didn't ?-A. For myself, I didn't.
Q. And you know of no other person in the gold commissioner's office having

so done ?-A. Of no other person.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. This was the first work yon did in the gold commissioner's office on the
lth of July?-A. Yes, on the 1lth of July.

Q. That was the first work yon did in connection with the gold commissioner's
office?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were surveyor for the office, but not in the office ?-A. Not practically
speaking.

Q. You were not part of the office until you did that ?-A. No.
Q. You did that under Major Walsh's instructions ?-A. Yes, he came to my

room and asked me to do it.
Q. By his order you took it to the printer's office ?-A. I can't say.
Q. You stated tbat before, I think ?-A. If I stated it, it must be so.
Q. Well, there is one question I want to clear up; you went to the printing

office on the 9th?-A. I went back a second time; I would be there on the 8th
or 9th.

Q. Do you recollect whether or not you were aware at the time of this* second
visit, that this notice had been printed and posted up ?-A. I don't recollect.

Q. Yon don't remember whether it was, or was not ?-A. No, sir.

Mr. FAwOTT.-Perhape Captain Starnes will say something, as policemen's
names have been mentioned in connection with the stampede.
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Captain STARNEs, being sworn, tostified as follows:-

Q. Captain Starnes, it was alleged bore yesterday by a witness, that several
policemen went to Mr. Swinehart's office, the editor of the Midnight Sun, and asked
nim if these notices were printed, alleging that they had been instructed by Major
Walsh to go and got them, that they were deputed to post them up. and that ho
refused until they brought a written order from Major Walsh; that his impression
Was that ut least five members of the mounted police force so presented thomselves;
finally one came with a written order; have you any explanation to offer ?-A. I
know before the notices were printed, I was sent for by Major Walsh about nine
o'clock in the evening.

Q. What date?-A. The day before the notices were printed; I wouldn't be
Sure of the date.

Q. Would you recollect that was a copy ?-A. All I recollect seeing was the
Sketch part. Weeks aftor I saw soveral on the trees and posted on the street. It
Was about nine o'clock when I went to Major Walsh's camn on the other end of the
tOwn. He told me he wanted me to supply two men early in the morning to post some
notices which would be ready at the Sun office some time during the nig ht; that
Corporai Wilson was to be given a certain number of them. Corporal Wilson at
the time had been specially detailed by Major Walsh's instructions; ho acted under
bis instructions practically and worked with him and Mr. McGregor in connection
With the gold commissioner. I had nothing to do with him at the time ho was
working that way. He was sometimes in town and sometimes on tne creek, and
Worked with Major Walsh or Mr. McGregor.

Q. They were taken from uideryour control ?-A. He was detailed under Major
Walsh, except as far as discipline went; as far as the work went I had nothing to
Say to him. Major Walsh asked for two men to paste up these notices in town, and
Wished a certain number given to Wilson who would go up to Dominion to post
then there; at the same time ho wanted the others posted in town, starting at the
oth01 r end towards St. Mary's hospital. I left the Major's camp and went to the Sun
091ce and asked if the notices were ready. On the way back i called on Corporal
Wilson, in charge of the town station, and gave him orders tQ have two men ready
at six in the morning to post the notices, and in the meantime to go with me to the
Sul office and see if they were ready. We went to the Sun office and were told
that the notices were not ready.

Q. What hour was that?-A. Ton p.m. Mr. Swinehart told me that the sketch
part was ready, but the other part was not ready yet, and I didn't See it any how;
,did not know what the notices were about. The only thing I had to do with the
notices was to have them put up. I told Corporal Belcher to go back during the
night and get those notices and as soon as they were printed to hand over so many
to Corporal Wilson and keep the balance and have them posted up; they were to be
POsted up about five o'clock. The ones posted in town were not to be posted up
Iuntil Corporal Wilson had left for the creek. There was some dela an he didn t
.eave Until about nine a.m. They were posted up later. Corporal Belcher was
'nstructed to post them up.
. 9. He may have sent other mon to the Sun office from time to time to find out

hy were ready ?-A. I went once myseif, and thon brought Belcher and gaveim instructions to see when they would be ready and to have them posted. They
WOuld have been posted up the first thing in the morning only Corporal Wilson
brought instructions from Major Walsh not to have them posted up until Corporal
Wilson had gone out.

Q. These are the only two mon yon bave knowledge of as being in any way
o]nnected with them?-A. Yes, sir; there were two men detailed to do the posting

in the morning.
Q. Can you trace who theso men were who were detailed for that duty ?-A.

think I could.
Q. You instructed Corporal Belocher to do it-through him you did it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who ho employed you don't kiow ?-A. No, air; it is not my duty; ho is

hrld osponsible and gets the mon to do it.
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Q. At the same 1 ime ho keeps record so that you could tell who they were-
you could trace them now, and Corporal Wilson would probably know ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you knov at the time what the nature of this notice was?-A. I had
some iden.

Q. How did you get that idea?-A. Got it on the street; everybody was talking
about it.

Q. What day was that; the day before ?-A. I don't know exactly what day it
was; didn't take any interest in that kind of business, but I heard it during the day.

Q. What hour?-A. In the afternoon I heard something about some benches
having been opened on Dominion; I didn't know anything about Dominion and
didn't pay much attention. I didn't see the notices until after they were posted
except that I saw the lower plot.

Q. You didn't understand the position of affaira until you saw this notice ?-A.
No, sir.

Q. You are aware that thero was a stampede to the creek ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You have heard it stated that a great many got improper information and

joined in that stampede ?- A. Yes, sir.
Q. Have you any personal knowledge how that information leaked out ?-A.

NO, sir.
Q. Know nothing of it?-A. No sir-it was general talk on the street the day

before.
Q. Why did it come to be general talk, do you know?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you participate in that stampede in any way?-A. No, sir.
Q. Didn't ask anyone to go out there ?-A. No, sir.
Q. To give you an interest ?-A. No, sir.

By Mr. Tabor :

Q. Major Walsh had control of the mounted police ?-A. Yes.
Q. He came in with powers over the mounted police ?-A. Yes.
Q. He was superintendent of the force, and you had to obey his instructions ?-

Yes.
Q. Did you have any instructions from Mr. Fawcett ?-A. No.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. I suppose you saw the notices that were posted stating that permits would
be issued on the 1 lth before that ?-A. No.

Q. You didn't know that any particular time was mentioned as to when the-
claims would be open. or that all this conversation you heard related to the Monday
and not to the Saturday ?-A. No. Al I heard on the streets was that something-
was to be done on Dominion, and the people were excited over it.

Corporal WILSON aworn.

By Inspector Starnes:

Q. You remember the time this notice was posted up, opening up the bench
claims on Dominion ?-A. Which one do you mean?

Q. The second?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What were your duties at the time ?-A. I was on Major Walsh's staff, to-

post these notices up.
Q. Just tell the commissioner what you know of the posting of these ?-A. There

is nothing to tell except that I posted them up; they did not come until the 9th;
they were dated the 8th, but did not come out until the morning of the 9th.
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Q. Where did you post them ?-A. There were some of them posted up in town,
and some were posted all the way from here to Dominion Creek, by myself and
another constable.

Q. Did you go to the Sun office on the evening of the posting of these ?-A.
Yes, sir.

Q. For the purpose of getting these 1-A. Yes, sir, on the evening of the 8th.
Q. Did any other conptable go there?-A. Not that I am aware of. On that

evening I was told they would not be ready until morning.
Q. By whose instructions did you go ?-A. To Dominion Creek?
Q. To Dominion Creek and the printing office?-A. Major Walsh's and Mr.

Faweett's, togethor.
Q. What were you employed at most on those days ?-A. Inspecting the mines

and collecting royalty.
Q. As far as your duties went, did you not take any orders at the time from the

Officer commanding the police ?-A. No, sir.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You were deputed by the officer of the mounted police to receive orders
fromi Major Walsh, then the commissioner of the Yukon territory, and commander
of the mounted police here ?-A. It was an order read out in the local orders that I
had been employed on the local staff until further orders.

Q. That was a general order?-A. No, a local order.
Q. Were there any others associated with you at that timo?-A. I had Constable

McAlpine at the time I posted them up.
Q. At that time were there any speciaily appointed to assist you ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Had you the privilege of requesting any constable of the force to assistyou?
. Yes, sir.
Q. How many ?-A. Any number. I was told by Major Walsh, when these were

firt taken over, that if I wanted any constables I could have them and ho would
give orders.

Q. Did you post up the notices previous to this?-A. I didn't, but I sent a
sPeelat police to post them up.

Q. What constable did yon send ?-A. I think it was Flett.
Q. Is ho still here?-A. No, he is out of the force; I think ho is in town.
Q. When did you receive notice of this one having being posted up?-A. I think

was the 7th or 8th of July, I don't remember which, that these were going to be
printed.

Q. flow long before these were printed were you apprised of the fact that they
Were to be printed ?-A. That day, or the day before.

Q. How long before ?-A. I am sure it was not over a day; it might have been
the day before, or the next day.

Q. Before you saw the notice, had you any knowledge of what the notice was
to be ?-A. Well, [ had an idea it was to throw Dominion Creek open.

Q. He told you the nature of the notice, as well as told you that you were to
Post it ?-A. Yes, sir, I think that ho told me.

Q. Are you positive of that?-A. Yes, ir.
Q. What time was it that yon got that information?-A. Well, sir, I cannot

say whether it was the sane day or the day before.
Q. You are positive it was before you saw the notice ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. When were you going to get the notice ?-A. On the evening of' the 8th.
Q. About what hour?-A. About 10 o'clock.
Q. Did you go to the printer's office about that time ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you ask the printer for the notice ?-A. Hfe said they wouldn't be ready

until about five or six in the morning.
Q. -Did you go again before five or six in the morning ?-A. I think I went

some6where between 11 and 12.
Q. Did you go between five and six ?-A. No, sir, it was about 5.30 when I got
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Q. Had you a written order to secure these notices, from Major Walsh ?-A.
Yes, sir.

Q. You showed Lhat to Mr. Swinehart ?-A. To whoever was there.
Q. Did Mr. Swinehart refuse to show you the notices?-A. I didn't ask him for

the notices; I asked him if they were ready.
Q. What did he say ?-A. No, it was Mr. Carpenter, it was not Mr. Swinehart

at ali.
Q. Do you remember of seeing Mr. Swinehart in the office ?-A. I don't

remember.
Q. Were there any constables associated with you in this ?-A. None excepting

McAlpine.
Q. Did ho go to the office and ask ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Ho helped to post them up ?-A. That's ail.
Q. You didn't authorize him to go to the office and ask for them ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Are you aware ho knew the naturo of them before he posted them up ?-

A. I don't think ho was; I don't think anyone knew.
Q. Was there any other corporal assisting you in this work ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Any other corporal take part of these notices and post them up ?-A. Cor-

poral Belcher. He was in charge of the town patrol at the time ho posted them
around town.

Q. You have heard of the stampede to Dominion Creek in connection with this ?
-A. Yes, sir, I know they were two or three days ahead, some of them.

Q. Are you aware that it is generally known that these claims were open, even
before the notice was published ?-A. I don't think anyone knew for certain.

Q. Did you hear around town that the claims were to be thrown open ?-A.
Well, I heard several stories, but I didn't believe thom because I didn't know myself,
and so didn't take any stock in the stories.

Q. Yon say Major Walsh informed you that would be done ?-A. Yes, that wa3
the day before ho informed me; in the first place they wouidn't be opened until the
11th-the first notice said they wouldn't be opened until the 11th.

Q. Then when you got the second notice to post np--?-A. I didn't know
when tbey would be posted.

Q. You didn't pay attention to the wording of the second notice ?-A. I noticed
it was daited-I noticed it was dated the day before it was printed.

Q. Did you notice anything else particular in it ?-A. Nothing out of the way
but this one exception. I made inquiry what this one exception was.

Q. What was that-" with onu exception those claims would be reserved ?"-
A. Yes, sir.

Q. It bas been charged that information was improporly given that led to that
stampede. Do you know if any information bas been given by public officials or
employees ?-A. No, sir.

Q. Had you any knowledge of the doings of the gold commissioner's offce at
that time ?-A No, I was not in the gold commissioner's office.

Q. Were you acquainted with any of the clerks e uployed thore ?-A. I knew
tbem ail, but was not very well acquainted with them.

Q. Did you have any conversation with any of them relative to the opening of
these claims ?-A. No, sir.

Q. You are positive of this ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. It is also stated, or alleged that parties who gave that information gave it in

that way. Did you impart any information for your own bonefit in that direction?
-A. I reccived nothing from any one.

Q. No information to any one whereby you would profit ?-A. No, sir.
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Mr. LIBLE called and sworn.

Q. There was a Mr. Wilkinson, I think his name is, here yesterday, who stated
that you had been with him in the gold commissioner's office on two occasions in the
evening and in the morning. The first occasion after office hours, and the second
before office hours; and that you had, on behalf of Mr. Wilkinson, paid five dollars
on each of these occasions for over-time work, as ho termed it ?-A. Certainly I did
pay Mr. Hurdman money; it was either five or ten dollars on two, three or four
occasions: it was for work done after office hours and not for work done during
office hours. It was for extra work, and there is no donbt that the office work there
Was congested at the time that it was impossible to get anything done; I waited
there bours together to get into the office; I was perfectly willing to pay the officials
five or ton dollars for perfectly proper work for my accommodation. On several
Occasions I paid Mr. Hurdman in that way for that purpose. It was work that I
should have got donc in the usual way, but for myaccommodation, in order to avoid
waiting there day after day, and hour after hour, I asked him to accommodate me
after office hours.

Q. In connection with that I would like to ask you this-do you believe, from
what you say, that there was uny attempt on the part of the officials to make this
Overtime imperative ?-A. I never saw it.

Q. You never had that impression ?-A. Never-there was nothing that led me
to think so.

Q. Further, you will state, as you have stated, that you never gave any official
there anything for work done during office hours ?-A. Certainly not; I might say
that on one occasion I wanted him to do something for me during office hours; I
asked him to do it thon. He said ho hadn't timo there were so many people around.
I said I can get it after four; ho said " Yes." I offered him five dollars. This was
during office hours. He said, " 1 can't take anything during office hours." I gave
the money to him afterwards.

Q. When you got the work donc?-A. I never made that bargain with him; it
Was simply voluntary.

Q. Did you consider what you received worth what you gave ?-A. I would pro-
bably double the amount I gave then at the present moment, during the present
Week I would have paid over and over again for business in the office. '

Q. Did you consider at the time that it was irrugular?-A. No, I didn't think
80; it was the only way to get work done.

Q. Didn't yQu think it was compromising the clerk ?-A. I can't say that I did;
if Yeu wish me to give my candid opinion, my complaint is not againet the officials
here but against thegovernment for suffering such meagre accommodation when so
mrany people were here requiring to do business with the officers; and not half
onough officials te do the work.

Q. Your impression was that yon wore doing nothing improper in paying for
the overtime work?-A. No; my impression was that it was a commun practioe.

Q. Yeu don't know that it was a common practice only from report ? How-
eVer, in this case, you paid Hurdman five dollars ?-A. I forget what I paid him;
I paid him several times; I believe once ton and soveral times five for overwork,but i didn't pay him during office hours.

Q. Did Mr. Hurdman ever ask you ?-A. Nover.
Q. It was entirely voluntarily?-A. Yes.
Q. You considered the work you paid for worth the money ?-A. Yes, I often

Would have given twenty dollars.
Q. Yo only paid him aftor office hours for work done; during office hours?

YOU never had any question that you were his client ?-A.. Not the slightest.
Q. If ho was available you secured bim ?-A. Ye.
Q. Did you ever pay auy one else ?-A. No; only Mr. Hurdman. I suppose

that was because my business was principally in Mr. Hiurderan's department; I
believe I once asked Mr. Bolton to do something after office hours. I do'n't know if
there was anything mentioned. He declined to do it; ho said ho wouldn't work
after office heurs.
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Q. You didn't make a direct intimation to hima that you wanted him to work?
-A. I know I went there and ho couldn't do something for me which I asked him.
I asked him if he coulil do it after four if I gave him bomething for it-something
to that effect; ho said " no " ho couldn't do it after four.

Q. That is the only other instance that you recollect, and you were refused
that?-A. I was refused that.

Dr. BouRK.-The gold commissioner says that to get copies of the original
documents ho must be paid. Would you give instructions ?

The CoMMIssoNE.-If you cite the documents; you will not be at liberty to go
all over the office.

Dr. BOURKE.-I gave him a list o certain documents and ho refused to let me
see any original documents whatsoever without a permit.

The COMMIssIoNER.--The documents will be produced in court.
Dr. BOURKE.-If the documents are not given to me before hand it will mean a

delay of the court; that is a matter I cannot control; it will be your own time that
is taken up.

The CoMmissIoNER.-The documents will be here but we cannot give you a per-
mit to ransack the gold commissioner's office.

Dr. BouRKE.-I only asked for documents connected with my case.
The CoMMIsIONER.-The gold commissioner says ho caught you looking over

papers that were in no way connected with your case.
Dr. BoURKE.-I beg to state that that is a direct falsehood; it is by suppression

of the truth a direct falsehood; the charge is aade and I will take it up at once
defending myself, the gold commissioner has acted rudely. He only gave me two
bundles of papers, there are the only two I looked at, ho made no exclusions; ho
stated you and Mr. Fawcett were displeased at my making a scarch. These were
of use to me and I received information from them and it will be used at the proper
time.

The CoMMIssIONER.-Mr. Fawcett and I annoyed? I don't know on what
authority ho said that; I suppose we are all annoyed.

Dr. BoURKE.-I suppose so.
The CoMMIssIoNRi.-We will adjourn any further hearing of this until Monday.
Mr. TABoR.-Until Monday of next week?
The COMMIssIoNER.-That is Dr. Bourke's case. The evidence he bas asked for

will take some time to collect.
Mr. TABoR.-You will have power to impound documents in court if they per-

tain to anything that occurred before the 25th of Auguat.
The COMNissioNE.-They will b ordered into court. I have already had a

charge laid against one man that ho bas gone around peddling information which
ho received in the gold commissioner's office; that has been made to me.

Mr. TABoR.-Would you allow people to go into the gold commissioner's office?
The CoMMIssioNE.-I have the power to order the documents brought bore,

but don't think I have the power to over-ride the gold commissioner's office, and
allow it to be ransacked against bis will. In one case I gave this order with the
above results. I don't connect Dr. Bourke with that, but the charge has been named
and the person named; the man has been selling information. I don't know how
true it is; I am going to have it looked into.

FOR THE RELBASE OF DENNIS PULFORD, FOR CONTEMPT OF COURT.

Mr. GWILLt.-Mr. Commissioner, I appear on behalf of Dennis Pulford, com.
mitted for contempt the other day. You have ruled that no matters occurring sub-
sequent to the 25th of August shall be inquiied into under the present commission.
He is ready to purge himself, and answer any questions.

The CoMMIsINE.-I asked him if some of the, occurrences occurred before
the 25th of August-

Mr. GWILLM.-I went through the matter with him very carefully, and he
informed you that ho could not give answer to questions which occurred prior to
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the 25th of August. He is quite willing now, I think, to do so. I went over the
matter carefully with him yesterday afternoon, and ho is willing to tell anything
that ho knew that happened before the 25th of August.

Mr. TABox.-I remember very distinctly, I raised the point myself.
The CoMMIssIONER.-Mr. Tabor said that I hadn't the authority to raise points

on rnatters which occurred subsequent to the 25th of August, so I-and I asked
Mr. Pulford pointedly if these occurrences transpired before the 25th.

Mr. GwILLI.-I don't think that was the fact of the question; it doesn't ap-
pear in the question.

Dr. Baow.-When Mr. Bolster came for that portion of the evidence referring
to Mr. Pulford's acquittal, I dictated that portion of it which terminated where the
Commissioner first stated tbat Mr. Pulford would be committed for contempt, just
before Mr. Galpin began questioning the wituess, thinking this would be sufficient;
but I looked over subsequent evidence. It was found that certain additional ques-
tions were asked Mr. Pulford regarding what ho knew. This part of the evidence
ehould probably have also been submitted to Mr. Gwillim.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-I pointedly asked him if anything had occurred before the
25th August; say, in June or July.

Mr. GWILLIM.-The witness might make a general answer to that question, and
nlot be guilty of contempt. In committing a person for contempt, it muet be for the
Person refusing to answer some specifie question. He refused to answer the question
for which ho was committed; but there was nothing to connect this question with
subsequent ovents. Your general question, whether any of these things occurred
before the 25th of August, wouldn't be sufficient to render him guilty.

The CoMmIssIoNER.-I asked hiin if ho knew of twenty-one interests held by a
Clerk in the gold commissioner's offlee, and ho said ho did. I asked him if ho could
lame the clerk, and I asked him if ho knew of any of interests being improperly

Obtained ? .
Mr. GwILLIM.-i think it was hardly a fair question to ask him, because when

SInan is deprived of hie liberty, it should only be done as the result of a distinct
refusal on some specific question, which ho could describe. As you understand, lie
Ws worked up. Not a very pleasant thing to be placed in such a position in court.
Re might have answered your question. I asked him to thînk over the matter.
Your action has given him time to reflect. I think the easiest way is to ask him
again. If you ask him, i would give the man a chance, and ask him questions
referring to matters which happened before the 25th of August. He tells me ho is
quite willing to answer any question on matters which occurred before the 25th of
August.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-He didn't state that in the box, but we can have him
appear bore again.

Mr. PULFORD sworn:

By the Commissioner:

Q. Mr. Pulford, I asked you the other day if you knew where the clerk in the
&(ld commissioner's office had twenty-one interests, presumably improperly obtained.

hat was your answer ?-A. I heard it from a rumour.
The OoMIssioNER..-That is what I understood. You didn't say you just

heard it.
Mr. GWILLIM.-I asked hirm if ho knew it, and ho said, yes.

By the Commisioner:

Q. You have no personal knowledge of any other criminal act on the part of anofficial ?-A. Yes, air.
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Q. And that you knew of twenty-one interests improperly obtained ?-A. They
might have been.

Q. You say now you just heard it through rumour ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Would yon give the name of the clerk that rumour was associated with ?-

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Who was it ?-A. Well, it was not a clerk in the gold commissioner's office;

it was an official.
Q. Would you give his name?-A. It was Dr. Thompson.
Q. I wanted to know who the officiai was, and you led me to understand it was

an officiai in the gold commissioner's office. Have you any objection to answering
this question ? Have you any positive knowledge about any officiai improperly
acquiring any proporty before the 25th of August?-A. No, sir.

Q. I asked you the other day if you had any knowledgo of that kind. You said,
yes, you had; some of it was hearsay. My impression was that it was positive ?-
A. No, sir; it was not positive.

Q. That was the impression you loft on my mind, and a good many others
present ?-A. I can't vouch for the impression.

Q. When I asked you about the twenty-one interests, I asked you if it was 'an
officiai in the gold commissioner's office? Now you say it was Dr. Thompson. You
had no positive knowledge leading yon to believe it was any one in the gold commis-
sioner's office, acquired improperly any interests in claims before the 25th August ?
-A. No, sir, I have not.

Q. Have you any positive knowledge as to any wrong doing on the part of any
officiai in the gold commissioner's office, on or before that date ?-A. 1 heard one
thing, but not the gold commissioner's office.

Q. But it is the gold commissioner's office I am asking about ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Have you any positive knowledge about any other government official being

guilty in any way ?-A. No, not positive of it.
Q. Whatway did you acquire this information ?-A. After the 25th.
Q. Of these things before the 25th ?-A. I just beard them.
Q. Would you be willing to give the name of any informant ?
Mr. GwILLI.-The man has been in jail, Mr. Commissioner, and he is very

careful not to incur the wrath of the court again-

By the Commissioner:

Q. I think that is a fair question. If he is willing to give the name of any
informant, I think it is legitimate. We want to know these matters ?-A. I can't
exactly tell you the name of the man who told me this matter, because I don't
rememberit. Not now; I can't think of his name. If I was given two or three
days to find him, I could bring him into court.

Q. Have you any objection to answering what the information related to?
Mr. GwILLIN.-I object. This is hearsay evidence.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-Well, if we can get a clew, what it relates to -
Mr. GwILLlM.-I think the same rules of evidence should obtain bere as obtain

in other courts-of-law. You can't take what every Tom, Dick and Harry tells, nor
believe ail aorts of stories. I have heard ail sorts of stories.

The CoMmussIoNEa.-Suppose we take the trouble to abcertain what these are
worth ?

Mr. GWILLIM.-YOU might go on for a month or two if you did that.
The CoMMISSIONER.-If wO hear Mumours, I think we might ostabliah whether

they are worthless or not.
Mr. GwILLI.-If the same rules apply in this court, with regard to witnesses,

as apply in others, anything that is not evidence I object to.
The CoMmIssIoNE.-In this case we will ask the witness the question, even

though it isn't a case of evidence.
Mr. GwILLIX.-I would like to have my objection entered in the book.
The CoMMIS8IoNEE.-It is as important to establiah that fact as any other.
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Mr. GwLLI.-Well, I take the responsibility of instructing the witness not to
answer. Please note my objection.

The CoMMissIoNER.-Yes, certainly.
Q. Now, sir, yon may answer the question. Who was the official?-A. It was

regarding Mr. Willison, in the timber office. I may say, it seems to me ho gave
instructions to some man to go up the river. There were quite a few rafts 8stuck on
bars in the river during the summer. Ho gave instructions to three or four men to
go up the river, to find out if these mon had permits, and to bring the rafts to
Dawson. If they did, ho was to get a share of the proceeds. If I can find this man,
and I can easily find him, I can bring him into court.

Q. If you find him will ho know? Will you?-A. I think I can find him very
easily. I don't know his name.

Q. Do you know if ho had any help ?-A. He was in with four mon, and found
it a littie raw for him, and ho stopped it.

Q. That is the only thing of which you can speak at present?-A. Yes, sir.
The CO3MISalNER.-I don't think I have any more questions to ask you.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. I was responsible for a good many questions asked the other day. Do you
remen ber my asking you distinctly about the information you obtained ? You said
you sent it to Ottawa?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. To the Young Men's Conservative 'Association. I beg to know if that was
before the 25th ?-A. No, sir, after the 25th of August.

Q. I asked you if you sent the information to Ottawa. You said yes, to the
Young Men's Conservative Association. We didn't mention the dates then ?-A. It
was after the 25th.

Q. That's ail I want to make clear.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I don't think I have any more to ask you. That person

you refer to, if you can find him, I wilil have him examined, to see if he knows
anything positive of the thing which you speak of; and if it happened before the
25th of August, we will have it investigated.

Mr. GwILLI.-Is the witness released ?
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I don't see the need of keeping him any longer. If ho

had been as frank the other day as ho is to-day, I don't think ho would have
been conmitted. I think. ho was a little mixed up. - I think, perhaps, that the
fact ho was three days in prison, gave him time to reflect. He is discharged.

(NOTE.-Witness speaks very broken English.)

Mr. TABoR.-I think Mrs. Koch might take the stand in the meantime.

Mrs. Kocu, being duly sworn, testified as follows:-

At this time I could hardly talk. I hoard in my restaurant that Dominion
Would ho thrown open, and it would be a good thing to stake. Everybody had the
fever at the time, so I got it too. I maie up my mind to go and try to get a claim
On Dominion. On the morning of the 28th of June, word was sent me very early in
the morning by Dr. Arabella Merrill. I shall not go out without a permit. It
needs a permit. Do I have to tell who sent the news ? It was from the Indian of
Major Walsh, Ambrose Serett, ho heard the Major talking in the tent over it, so IWent to the office and asked where the gold commissionor was. This is the gentle-
man (pointing to Mr. Faweett).

Q. Mr. Fawcett, you mean ?-A. Yes, I went and asked him for a permit to
stake on Dominion. Mr. Fawcett didn't answer me right straight. I asked him
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again, and ho asked me who told me. I said (whispering) "a friend." And
he could not understand, and ail the gentlemen around were laughing over me, and
I went and whispered to Mr. Fawcett, "somebody, the gentleman told me you don't
need any permit." I came home and said it was too good news, it must be some-
thing. Dr. Merrill was there and the rest. I said, please to go to the Major and
ask him; we want to go out and stake; ask for a permit. He would lot us go out
for uothing, being only two women; would tell us true, so Dr. Morrill went and
asked if it needs a permit. He said, "yes, I will go and instruct the gold commis-
sioner." That is ail I can remember. He went down and came up again, and said,
"yes, it needs a permit." The doctor came and said it needed a permit, and I went
there again. I told the gold commissioner I needed a permit. I got a permit, and
was staying in the building. Major Walsh's brother, Philip, came in, and I said,
" Mr. Philip, see what I have got." He opened it; ho said, " where did you get it
from," I told him I went to the gold commissioner and ho gave it to me. He said,
" you are very lucky, I wish I could get it." He went up to his brother. A short
time after that I went to the Major; still in the building. I asked him for a second
permit for my friend from the gold commissioner. I thought everybody got a per-
mit; I thought, I am abead, because a woman can run quicker than a man; I asked
him-I don't remember correct what the gold commissioner answered me, but I
remember, "no." I saw thon that the Major was coming dowii the stops, every
muscle in his face twitching. Went into the office and called Dr. Merrill from the
window, where she was getting a miner's license. Thought she will get a permit,
too. He called her up. He said, " tell me, doctor, you have a permit ?" She telle
him, " I don't get a permit. My friend, Mrs. Emma Koch, got permit." He eaid,
"<heavens I this is a miestake. One permit will throw open the whole of Dominion."
And Dr. Merrill came down and we were both very down-bearted, because I threw
my restaurant over and sold everything I had. i don't know what to do. I was
thinking I don't want to make trouble for any official. If it is wrong I will offer
the permit back. So I got a letter written to the Major if it is wrong or any
trouble, ho will please take back hi@ permit, but if it is possible and lie can help a
poor woman along, he shal lot me have a permit, but if it makes any trouble toend
for it by 8 o'clock. If not, I wili go to Dominion and stake, and thon after I stake
1 will flght for it. So I went over on Dominion and staked. I came home very
sick. At the time there wore not many ladies up the creek. My ! 1 was sick. I
did pick nuggets off of the ground. I saw pretty nuggets and lots of gold. Now, I
thinke I am rich. I don't know what to do to record, because I don't know the law.
I don't know anything whatever, so I came home, and after a day or two's rest, I
heard stories ail around that dozens of ladies went to the Major and the gold com-
missioner, and made it hot for him, for every lady wanted to stake on Dominion.
Every lady i showed the permit to told Major Walsh and wanted to stake on
Dominion. I went to the gold commissioner to record a claim. He said ho would
not. I told him ho has to. He said not. He didn't want to record it. Told me ho
would not do it for his best friend. I went to the Major and made it just as hard
for him. He told me permit was open for Dominion. Told him I staked and I
wanted my claim. I went from one to the other and did not get it.

Q. But didn't you get it recorded after?-A. Yes, I got it recorded.
Q. The claim?-A. Yes.
Q. That is ail you have to say ?-A. Because the Major told me permit was open

on Dominion.
Q. Do you remember when your application was accepted ?-A. On the 11th.
Q. Did you say anything to Mr. Fawcett about Major Walsh when you were

getting a paper ?-A. No, I only told in a whisper, because the Major didn'ttell me.
Dr. Merrill needs a permit.

Q. You are quite sure, Mrs. Koch, that Major Walsh's name was not mentioned
at ail any time you were with Mr. Fawcett ?-A. Not in the other times, when I
asked him, I told him in a whisper and h could not understand.

Q. Did yon tell him where the friend got the order?-A. No, I didn't at this
time; I only told him I was quick back like lightning to ask him. I don't remember
how it was. I know I needed·a permit. That is where the mistake comes in, I think.
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By Mr. Fawcett :

Q. After you came from Dominion, do you remember Major Walsh came to my
ofice to see if I would record ?-A. No, you are mistaken. I went to Major Walsh and
begged him if he can do anything for me case; I want'd a claim. Said " No, no."
I said I will fight. He said he is ready to fight. Then later 1 was crying and he
felt sorry. He said he would come down and talk to you in the office, and he sent
me down. He came down then.

Q. That is right, but was your application taken at the office; do you remem-
ber who took your application on the lth ?-A. Where everybody bas to go in line
I went, too.

Q. You got the claim some time after that ?-A. A long time after that.
Q. After they had all been investigated ?-A. Yes, air, I think I was the last

one to get a claim.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-Does any one else wish to ask the witness any question?

Mr. R. B. ORAIG, being duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. Do you remember anything about this lady coming for a permit to me ?-A.
I don't recognize her, but I remember such a case as she speaks of, distinctly.

Q. You remember something about. it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do yon remember Major Walsh coming to me that morning after the lady

came for the permit ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you recollect what he said ?-A. He said he thought the most simple

solution of the difficulty would be to issue permits for a specific time for parties to
prospect-something to that effect.

Q. Do you recollect her coming a second time ?-A. She came for a permit the
second time, and, I believe, got one.

Q. Do you remember ber conversation on that occasion?-A. I don't know that
I noticed it particularly. I was working at the time at an adjoining desk. I recol-
lect she spoke low.

Q. Do you remember of her asking for a friend ?-A. I remember of ber asking
for a friend, but I thought that was at a later date.

Q. That was your impression ?-A. The application for the friend was refused;
Whether her own was or not, I don't know.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You don't know of any understanding between Mr. Fawcett and Mrs. Koch
about this permit, why it was given ?-A. Not unless it was given on Major Walsh's
suggestion.

Q. Rave you any reason to know it was given on his suggestion ?-A. I know
Major Walsh came to the office to see Mr. Fawcett shortly before this lady came
back the second time.

Q. Did he specially mention this case ?-A. No, I don't think he did. I think
he merely meutioned that the easiest way to seule the matter wus to issue permits.

Q. Without referring to any particuiar case?-A. I don't think he referred to-
any particular case.

(The Commissioner, addressing Mr. Fawcett.)
Q. You made a statement the other day, Mr. Fawcett, to the effect that Mrs.

Koch got nothing by this permit?-A. Yes, I was under the impression that her
claim was not recorded. She tells me it is. I know I had ber application ; that iï.
Why I was under that impression.
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Q. You were mistaken in making that statement ?-A. Yes.
Q. She is on record ?-A. She likely is.
Q. This record would verify her statement ?-A. I have not looked at that.
(Addressing Mrs. Koch.)
Q. Have you got your certificate with you? Have you the papers for your

claim ?-A. Yes.
Mr. FAWETT.-That was my impression. I had the application and thought

it had not been put on file yet, with the rest, and my impression was she had not
recorded the claim. i know she didn't receive record until after they were all
investigated by Mr. Cautley. (Mrs. Koch here shows her certificate showing that
she had recorded 29th August) ?-A. After Mr. Cautley went up to Dominion and
made the investigation of the stakes, I put it down.

By the Commissioner:

Q. It was clear or she would not have got it. Have you any witness, Mrs.
Koch ?-A. Yes.

Col. MCGREGOR.-I want to ask Mr. Fawcett some questions.

Mr. FAWcETT, being sworn, testified as follows:-
Mr. Tmaoa.-Before the questions are asked, if they involve matters Mr. Faw-

cett does uot know, he will have power to look into the matter?
The COMMIsSIONER.-If he asks for time we will have to stop proteedings.
Mr. TABo.-It may involve search; Mr. Fawcett may have to ask for stay.

By Col. McGregor:

Q. Do you know Alex. McDonald, whose name has been before the commission?
-A. I do.

Q. Has he been, to your knowledge, largely interested in mining properties ?
-A. He has.

Q. He has had some good claims ?-A. Yes, a great many.
Q. Has the royalty due on the output of his claims been collected ?-A. I don't

know; I have no account of the royalty submitted to me; I know some of it has
not, but what was collected, I don't know.

Q. Has the time elapsed that the royalty should be paid ?-A. Not to my know-
ledge; I don't think it has. I don't quite understand the question.

Q. Has the time elapsed for the collection of the royalty ? What was the regu-
lation ?-A. That the royalty must be paid; that regulation is still in force.

Q. Any set time for it to be paid?
The COMMIssIONER.-This question is going to be taken up later on, and will be

thoroughly gone into.

By Col. McGregor:

Q. Can you tell how did the said Alex. McDonald get a grant of 16 B on
Dominion ?-A. I can.

The CoMissioNE.-That is another question that is going to be taken up and
will be examined into.

Dominion of Canada,
Yukon Territory,

To WIT:

We, J. N. E. Brown and F. M. Shepard, duly sworn stenographers of the Royal
Commission, do solemnly swear that this is a true and correct transcript of the
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evidence taken before William Ogilvie, Esquire, sitting as Royal Commissioner, for
the investigation of charges preferred against officialsocf baid territory on the follow-
ing dates, to wit:

February 6th, 22nd, 24th, 25th, 27th, 28th and March 6th, 7th, 8th and 11th,
1899.

J. N. E. BRowN.
F. M. SHEPARD.

Sworn befort, me at Dawson, in the
Yukon Territory, the 27th day
of April, 1899.

W. H. P. CLEMENT,
Commissioner.

TESTIMONY RELATING TO MATTERS WHICH TRANSP[RED SUBSE-
QUENT TO 25TH AUGUST, 1898.

Explanation:-The following testimony relating to matters which transpired
subsequent to the 25th of August, 1898, and which it was ruled did not come within
the scope of the commission, was taken on the different sittings of the commission
as the witnesses appeared.

Mr. GEoRGE.-Have you given yoar ruling, sir, regarding taking oaths and
examining events subsequent to the 25th of August?

The CoMMIssIoNER.-No.
Mr. GEoRGE.-Didn't you put a man under oath on a matter subsequent to the

25th of August yesterday ?
The CoMMIssIoNER.-He stated that a certain allegation was fot quite as he

Would have put it himself. We asked him if ho was willing to swear to that, that
Was all.

Mr. GEoRGE.-Didn't you allow the testimony ?
The CommissroNEi.-He was put under oath as to that question, that was

all. He stated that the charge as put in was not quite proper, not quite as
he would haveeput it. I asked him if ho was willing to state wherein it differed
from the way ho put it. I asked him if ho would do it under oath. That had
nOthing to do with the investigation, but was simply regarding the proper
Inanner in which this should be put. He was agreeable to take the oath. The
investigation was not gone on with at all further than that. He said the charge
was not proper.

Mr. GEGRGE.-This was testimony against my charge made under oath but not
for that.

The COMMIssIoNR.-No. No test imony was taken either for or against your
charge. It was simply that your charge was not put properly. I asked him wherein
it was im roper.

Mr. GEORGE.-I would like to state my position; some of these witnesses have
to come a long way, and have been put to lots of trouble, and the case has beenbrought up against their wishes by me in the firet place. * They are still willing,
thOy tell me, to go on and swear in the matter if your care to hear it.

The CoMmIssIONE.-I would be very glad to hear it if there is any legal way in
which we can do it. As to examining Mr. Miner, yesterday, it was simply with
reference to the fact of the charge, that is all.

Mr. GEORGE.-But his evidence, didn't it amount virtually to the acknowledg-
rnent of the charge?

The CoMMIssIoNE.-No, not virtually.
Mr. GEORGE..-Well, if we are willing to waive the legality of it, will you
The CoMMIssINER.-If they are willing to go on and give testimony underOath. I doun't see any objection myself.
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Mr. GEoRGE.-They do desire it. They desire to be heard under oath.
The CoMMiSSIoNER.-If Mr. Fawcett and bis counsel are willing.
Mr. TABoia.-I am not adverse to it, but I don't see how it con be done.
The CoMMSIONE.-(After consulting with the legal adviser,) the only way

that we can see to do, is to have the evidence written out and signed as a statutory
declaration.

Mr. TnBo.-It is not the fault of the people bore that the commissioner cannot
try these charges. It was made out in Ottawa and founded on the memorial and
passed the council in that way. The charges were embraced in the Commission;
it was likely prepared by a clerk in the Department of Justice and submitted to the
Privy Council in that way. No one here is to blame for it. If we could investigate
this matter as it should be I would be agreeable, but I cai't see how it can be done
and an oath can be administered and witnssres summoned.

'The CoMMISsiONER.-My impression is, from advice received, that an oath under
these conditions would be illegal; that it would not be binding.

Mr. GloioE.-As I understand the situation I can't argue with the legal gen-
tleman advising you, but my idea of the matter is, sir, that the oath is not compul-
sory on anything subsequent to the date of these letters patent. If the oath is taken
and they are not forced to take it-but voluntarily,-it seems to me it could be
doue.

The CoMMISSIoNEi.-But there is a proper tribunal. I could not administer the
oath; it is beyond my jurisdiction. I. suggested to Mr. Kelly that we would do it

in that way-that they should reduce all their statements to writing and Sign them,
and declare that they were t rue, which is virtually in law the same as an oath. But
they might refuse to answer any question. The cross examination would not be as
complete as it would be if taken under oatb.

Mr. GEoRGE.-I would suggest, sir, that they & o before a justice of the peace.
Mr. Harper's court is open, and witnesses could give a statutory declaration.

The CommissIoNz.-Mr. Harper would not try this, except in a preliminary
way.

Mr. TAB 'a.-The great difflculty, Mr. Commissioner, with statutory declara-
tions is, that justice can't be done. There is no opportunity of cross examining of
witnesses as we can in court of law.

The CommissioNE.-Mr. Kelly volunteered to state all he knew.
Mr. TÂBO.-That is all right fron Mr. Kelly's standpoint, but there is the

matter of cross examining to bring out the other side. I know this case. I was
solicitor in this matter first, and am aware of the facts of the case. It is not a matter
there is any necessity for concealment about. I am sorry it cannot be taken up as
it sBhould be.

The COMMissIoNER.-You are not more sorry than I am. It is regrr table that
there is no legal way of continuing the investigation. I would like to go on. At
the same time I don't wish to put myself in a compromising position, and perhaps
incur a penalty for doing something for which some people might be vicious enough
to bring action against me.

Mr. GEoRG.-These witnesses are in court and are willing to be cross examined.
Wouldn't Mr. Fawcett be pleased to have it go on ?

Mr. FAwcTT.-Indeed I would.
Mr. TÂBoR.-When we come to cross examine witnesses and they are aware

that their oath is not valid, where are we ?
Mr. CLEMENT.-The witness will go into the box and make a statement and you

cross examine him. Al that is reduced to writing, and he makes a solemn declara-
tion before the commissioner of the Yukon Territory that it is the truth. That is
the only way I think it can be done.

Mr. TABoR.-The examination and cross examination reduced to writing and
verified by declaration ? That wilt be all right.

Mr. CLEMENT.-It is not under Royal Commission, merely by Mr. Ogilvie as
executive bead of the Yukon Territory.

Mr. TABoa.-The questions and answers all put down and verified by the wit-
ness himself.
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The CoxxIssIoNEa.-The witness will verify his statement by a statutory
declaration.

Mr. TABoR.-Ami counsel for Mr. Fawcett and others, and they have ex-
pressed a willingness to do this, the witnesses, without being sworn, are examined;
their testimony is reduced to writing and read over to them, and theytake a solemo
declaration that it is true all that is said, both in the direct and indirect examination.
Would the witnesses be willing to go on ?

Mr. KZLLY.-If my opinion is of any value, I think, until we have proper legal
authority, nothing can be gained in going on with the investigation in this way-by
volunteering statements that don't come up in the regular manner.

Mr. GEoREG.-It will be legal.
The CommIssIoNEa.-In the meantime, Mr. Fawcett stands charged.
Mr. FAWcETT.-I will have to take action. I am charged with criminal

offences.
Mr. T&Bo.-I think, Mr. Kelly, this would be exactly the same; it would have

the same effect as if you were taking the oath, almost, before the commissioner.
Your evidence would all be taken and you would verify it before a commissioner or
justice of the peace.

Mr. KLL.-I don't wish to intervene and act as a block to any part of the
investigation. If all parties seem to be satisfied, I will drop the objection. If I
objected, it would seem that I had some motive for concealment.

Mr. TABo.-There is an objection to another commission. Mr. Fawcett is
desirous of going outside, you know; we would like to dispose of it at once.

The CommIssIoNER.-Mr. Fawcett has demanded an investigation. He mustbe
Oonsidered. Ris statement will have to be heard. If the other side is not here, we
WilI have to forward his statement to Ottawa as a statutory declaration. I want it
distinctly understood that all the witnesses are agreeable to go on in that way. I
think that will answer every purpose. Are all the witnesses present? I would
hate going on a certain time, and then have witnesses object. There bas been one
hitch and I don't want another. If both sides are determined to go on, I will give
them every assistance; I am sure that all will, but there is no use of two or three
witnesses being called and then the investigation stopped by a legal objection. See
the witnesses and see what they are determined on.

Mr. GeoRGE.-They have agreed.
Mr. KELL.-I bave not spoken to the other witnesmeî yet.
Mr. GEOaGE.-Can I ask another question ? Rave you ruled in any way that

it i incompetent to take evidence against any one who is absent?
The CioxiessIoNxa.-Well, if there is any probability of their being here and

they are expected here, I would rather delay it until they are here.
fr. GEoEGE.-I was referring 'o Mr. Fawcett.

The CoxxissroNa.-Mr. Fawcett will probably be able to make hie explanation
Outside, as in the case of Major Walsh, whose name came up, he i not here. Were
le expected, I would not have heard a word of it.

Mir. GEORGE.-I was not thinking of that.
The Coxmissioeza.-He is not expected or I would have heard it. Mr. Faw-

'eett demande an investigation of the Dominion Creek case, as he was charged with
mfore or les criminality in closing it. It is unfortunate that this examination was
flot held long ago, but when that memorial was written, I suppose it didn't occur to
the writers and signers of it, that they required that the oommission!would be
limited. They expected that the commission would go on indefinitely.

Col. McGREGoE.-It never occurred to them.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-The people at Ottawa simply took what was reported to

them. The charges that have been preferred, I think mont of them occurred before
that date.

Mr. TABoa.-If, in future, any charges are in contemplation against Mr.
awcett, they should be put in such a shape now, that Mr. Fawcett could be

advised of them, even if he is out of the country at the time. If a new commission
8 imsued, it can't begin for several monthe. He should be notified of these

charges, in case he might think it necessary for him to be heard to refute them.
133874-10
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These charges must ho in the minds of the people about to bring them. It is only
fair te the man who is to be charged with things now happening in connection with
the gold commissioner's office, as his work is terminated. He should know if the
commission is to be held two or three mdnths later, even if ho is on the outside, so
that ho may take action if he deems it worth while.

The CoxmissioNER.-I don't know how we cau fix that. If they don't wish to
put charges in, there is no way of compelling them.

Mr. TABO.-Of course charges can be brought until another commission is
issued-that ii the trouble. Of course I am speaking from a legal standpoint. It
is not usual to bring a charge against a man, unless he is warned in some manner.
There is always some provision. There is another question. If another commission
is iseued, it might be made to permit the examination of witnesses out of the
country.

The CoMMISsIONER.-That might be done. No doubt the commission might
be arranged in that way.

Mr. CLEMENT.-I think so.
The CoMMI-sioNER.-In that case, suppose we wibh to examine Major Walsh,

could I deputize some one to examine him ?
Mr. C(LEMENT.-No, he would have to be specially named in your commission.

It would be necessary to have a uew commission with these wide powers.
Mr. KELLY.-Did I understand Mr. Fawcett to say that in case the-,e statements

were not made, he would bc forced to bring criminal action?
Mr. FAwcETT.-The charges are of a criminal nature, se they must bc

investigated.
Mr. KELLY.-That was my understanding of it. In consultation with the wit-

nesses, they don't desire that they should defend themselves in any criminal action,
and stand ready to make statements of what they know concerning the case.

Mr. FAWCET.-I am charged with a criminal charge, malfeasance of office and
probably worse. It is only right that I should take steps to defend myself.

Mr. KELLY.-YOu muet admit, that we, as witnesses, have had nothing to do
with ihis investigation. It seems hardly fair that those who are not the principals
should bring these forward.

Mr. FAWETT.-I suppose there certainly would be no objection to the
witnesses going abead.

The CoMMissioNE.-Arc you willing to go on and give statements, sign them
afterwards, and willingly declare them to be true ?

Mr. KELLY.-Yes.
The CoMMissioNuR.-We will take the matter up after lunch.
Owing to the fact that the circumstances which led up to charge 4 by Mr. E. C.

A Ilan had'transpired since the 25th of August, it was ruled that the case could not
be heard before the Royal Commission, but as the witnesses had been summoned by
the complainants and had come in a long distance, and Mr. Faw3ett having been
accuscd, contended that some sort of an investigation should be made, the commis-
sioner agreed that ho would take up the case, but not as Royal Commissioner ; ho
would simply take evidence and submit it to the witnesses for their affirmation
eubsequently. The charge reads as follows:-

" That Mr. Fawcett did use his official powers for the benefit of personal friends
and to the prejudice of free miners, as in the case of the Dominion Creek claim of
Mrs. Miner, when ho compelled ber to pay Alexander McDonald the sum of two
thousand dollars before allowing her to record a claim she had staked."

By the Commissioner:

Q. Are Mr. and Mrs. Miner in court ?-A. Mr. MINER : Mv wife is sick and is
not able to be here.

Q. Could she be present to-morrow ?-A. I think likely she could be present
to-motrw1?
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Q. The other witnesses in the case are bere, I believe. We would, liko to have
them all here if possible. Are you anxious to go on to-day ?-A. Mr. and Mrs.
Kelly wish to go on.

Q. Do you understand the circumstances in connection with the case? A charge
was made by Mr. Allen, representing the Nugget, against Mr. Faweett. You were
subpæuaed as witnesses. They have withdrawn from the prosecution of the charge.
Are you willing to go on with the charge, Mr. Miner ?-A. I don't know that I have
anything to do with the case only as a witness; if I am called under oath I will tell
what I know, otherwise not. If I am not examined under oath I don't want to give
my evidence.

Q. Do you object to be put under oath ?-A. No.
Q. Mr. Kelly, have you any objections to taking the oath ?-A. If the principal

in this affair has withdrawn, I believe the whole thing is unproductive of any good.
If the principal in the case who subpænaed me is not here, I object to a voluntary
statement of any character. I was subpoenaed over your signature, and from the
nature of it I looked upon it as a command, and neglected my business and brought
my wife here who is not well. My affaira are in a bad shape, and I would like to
go back, but if called here to testify about that transaction 1 ara ready to do so, but
I don't want to volunteer any statements. I would like to know who call me here.

Q. The commision was issued and nothing was said about pay for anybody in
connection with it. Parliament made no appropriation for it. I don't promise you
anything. If you send in an account in triplicate of your expenses, I will transmit
it to Ottawa. That is all I can du for you, you may get pay, you may get nothing.
I wili.have an investigation of some sort; it. you do not appear, so much the worse
for yourself ?-A. I understood that it has been said that this investigation has been
brought on at my request; a friend of mine told me that. I went to Mr. George to
ask him who caused him to bring this investigation on. He said no one, he simply
bronght it on himself. I asked him wherc he got the information. He said h.
heard it; it was general information. I object to my business being made publie
uniess I wish to make it public, but if I am commanded by the court, I will obey,
and if so, soon, as I would like to get back to business.

Mr. MINE.-If the case is prosecuted any further it will have to be amended.
The CommasIoNEE.-Then read over the charge (see above).
Mr. KELLY.-It ie erroneous; it would have to be amended as regards the

82,000.
The CoMIussIoNER.-Have you any objection to stating where it is erroneous.

Please go forward to the box and do that.

Mr. MINER, sworn.

The Commissioner reads the charge (see above).

Q. Where is that erroneous ?-A. It is erroneous as to the being compelled to
pay 82,000; there were two claims staked, and it should be that he compelled both
applicants, Mrs. Miner and Mrs. Kelly, to assume the mortgage before they allowed
them to record, assuming a mortgage of $1,000 each.

Q. Do you mean that it is erroneous that he compelled them ?-A. -That he
gave it as his ultimatum that he would not record unless this compromise was made.

Q. You understood that ?-A. Yea, air, that he gave this ultimatum that he
Would not record either one. It embraces two claims-the whole 500 feet--one creek
claim on Dominion.

Q. Would you please give us a statement of your knowledge of the affair,
giving it as near as you can ?-A. I became acquainted in Augnst some time through
Mr. Kelly, of a claim not having been represented-13 above Discovery on Dominion,
as the man who had staked the claim originally had gone out of the country, and
Mr. Kelly said there had been no work done at all. H. told me he was going to
get bis wife to stake one-half and my wife had better stake the other. They came into
the Collntry together. They went over about the I8th of August. They lived in a
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cabih there with Mr. Kelly on the benches. They stayed there until the ground
was open on the 1st of September, and on the night of the 31st of September they
staked and came into tOwn as soon as they could.

By Mr. Kelly:

Q. May I ask a question : Whetber Mr. Miner meant to state that it was on the
night of the 31st of August, or the morning of the lt of Septem ber that the staking
was don. ?-A. i mean the lst of September.

By the Commissioner:

Q. It was after mid-night ?-A. Yes, when they came to town Mrs. Kelly's
application was received, being the lower half.

Q. It was not known then whether the upper halves would b. held by the crown
or thrown open ?-A. it was decided that if the upper halves were thrown open,
my wife's application would be allowed. At the same time, as I understand it,
Donald McDonald was on the ground and staked immediately after they did. They
claim to have staked before him. They were on the ground anyway. e staked the
whole 500 feet. From conversation with the- ladies, I don't èuppose it is necessary
to repeat it, as they will b. heard as witnesses when they came to ask for record,
Mr. Faweett told them there was an indebtedness on the ground, that they could not
record; and whon they wanted to know why it was, he told them there was a
mortgage held by Alex. McDonald of 82,000, that would have to b. satisfied. before
anybôdy could record the ground. Thoy remonstrated a great deal and I think,
your bonour, that application was made to you.

Q. The two ladies came to ask me about a quotion of this sort ?-A. They
went several times to Mr. Fawoett. McDonald had gone ont. He said some com-
promise must be made with McDonald's agent. If that indebtedness was settled
and satisfactory to Mr. McDonald's agent, ho would record. Finally as a last resort,
two days I think before their recording, I went to see Mr. Fawcett, the only time I
had seen him, I told him a compromise could be made. Kelly and I had both seen
the agent, and asked him if it could b. compromised, would be record the ground.
He said certainly, so a compromise was made and the mortgages were signed. I
was in bis office when the mortgage was signed. He gave a note to Mr. Craig up
stairs, requesting him to record the ground for us. Mr. Craig went away, and in
ten minutes came back again.

Q. Were you present when ho remonstrated with the ladies ?-A. No, sir, this
merely was hearsay with me. I was present when they signed the mortgage down
stairs and when they recorded up stairs.

Q. Do you know how that mortgage was arranged ?-A. It was simply a mort-
gage on the ground.

Q. Do you know between whom the question was arrangod ?-A. It was
arranged between McDonald's agent and Mr. Kelly and myself, in behalf of the
ladies.

Q. You know that personally ?-A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. Were you ever in the office with the ladies whon the matter was talked
over ?-A. No, sir.

Q. .The evidence you bave given with roferetice to what took place is merely
heaba&y ?-A. J ust what the ladies told me, excepting at the time I appeared in the
office before you.

Q. When you appeared in the office before me, how was it mentioned, the matter
of giving this mortgage, who mentioned it, yon or 1 ?-A. There was nothing that
I remember of said about the mortgage. I asked you if the matter of the indebt-
edness between Mr. MoDonald, or what yôu nlaimed McDonald had, was. settled
betweétk bis agent, if you would record.

136

A. 1899



Ogilvie Commission of liquiry.

Q. Wasn't it a matter of contest ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Was there no other application besides the ladies for this ground ?-A. As I

understood it, Donald McDonald, for 500 feet.
Q. Had you any knowledge it was for 500 feet ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What knowledge ?-A. Because when the ladies applied for thoir applica-

tions they saw his at the same time. He was in about the same time; they saw it
on the records. They told me it was, and said it was the only case of 500 feet on
record.

Q. Had you any knowledge there was a 500 feet claim there ?-A. We had no
knowledge at that time.

Q. Have you any knowledge that there never was 500 feet?-A. We have, since.
At that time there was about 480 feet.

Q. I suppose the application will show for it.self. Ail yon know is, you never
saw the application, and what you are saying is merely hearsay?-A. I saw the
application, but I don't know what it called for.

Q. You merely say what you were told ?--A. If it called between the stakes,
it called for 500 feet. I think I know the s4takes.

Q. Did you see the application ?-A. Yeo, sir.
Q. Did you see what it called for ? Didn't you tell Mr. Craig his was the only

application of 500 feet? What do you mean by saying you didn't see the applica-
tion ?-A. I don't know if I can tell.

By the Commissioner:

Q. That is all you know of the affair ?-A. That is ail 1 know of the affair.

Mrs. MARGARET KELLY, being duly sworn, deposes and says:-

By Mr. George :

Q. Where was you about one or two minutes after midnight of lst September
last year ?-A. I was staking this claim.

Q. What claim ?-A. 13 above on Dominion, above Upper Discovery.
Q. Above Upper ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you succeed in staking the claim ?-A. Yes.
Q. You came to Dawson ?-A. Yes.
Q. You applied at the proper place for record ?-A. Yes.
Q. What happened there ? Was your application accepted ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was not there a reservation of the acceptance that you had to wait a certain

timne before it was recorded?-A. I understood that there was ton days for examina.
tion of title.

Q. Mr. Craig told you so ?-A. Mr. Fawcett took my application. I was informed
that I bad to wait ton days before I could record. I understood that was so. I had
to wait.

Q. At the end of ten days did you apply to him for record ?-A. Yes.
Q. And what did ho tell you ?-A. I went Saturday thé 9th and they had not

bad time to look this affair up. He said I bad come within the ton days.
Q. The 9th was Saturday ?-A. Yes,. as far as I can think.
Q. You went a*gain on Monday ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you see Mr. Fawcett personally ?-A. NO; I was told to go up to Mr.

Craig.
Q. Who told yon ?-A. I don't know, some of the officiais there. They said ho

Was looking after that part of the business.
Q. Did you ask Mr. Craig for a certificate of record ?-A. I asked hi m if I

could record, and ho said that it would take about two or three weeks to make out
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the papers, and that they would publish the names of those that would be allowed
to record withont any contest.

Q. What happened thon ? id you go to see Mr. Faweott personally ?-A. I
went to sec Mr. Fawcett the day that Alex. McDonald went out; I don't know what
dey that was; it was in the morning and th3 boat left in the afternoon.

Q. You don't remember the date ?-A. I believe after the two weeks were up.
Q. Yon went to sec Mr. Fawcett ?-A. Yes.
Q. What did Mr. Fawcett tell you ?-A. Well, I asked--I told him I would

like to understand about this claim 13, the particulars; Mr. Fawcett told me there
was a mortgage of $2,000 against this claim.

Q. He told you there was a mortgage of $2,000 against this ground ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did ho tell you in favour of whom ?-A. I asked him if it was recorded, and

he said yes. I asked him what time and ho said some time last winter.
Q. Did ho tell you the name of the party in whose favour the mortgage was

supposed to bo ?-A. Ho told me tbat Alex. McDonald held it against this ground.
Q. Did ho in any way infer that you would have to pay, assume, settle or square

up this account before you- A. I asked Mr. Fawcett how ho could hold Crown
lands for such debts. There was no represonting work done and if Alex. McDonald
had this claim against the ground why it was not represented to make this claim
good (Mr. George-I sec), and ho told me if I got this ground I would have to
assume the indebtednoss.

Q. I see, I see; ho told you to get that ground yon would have to assume the
indebtedness ?-A. That if I got the ground [ would have to assume the indebtednoess,
and it was thon 1 asked him how that would be, Mrs. Miner had staked one-half and
and I the other? He said, weil, you can split the mortgage and each one assume
81,000.

Q. Did you do that, Mrs. Kelly ?-A. Well, not thon. I asked Mr. Fawcett if
then, I said you won't allow antything to be done with this ground until this was
satisfied, and ho told me no.

Q. And ho told you no?-A. Yes.
Q. Afterwards you did exocute a mortgatge on that ground, did you?-A. Yes.
Q. In favour of Alex. McDonald ?-A. Yes.
Q. For the sum of *1,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who did you band that to afi ter you had executed this mortgage for $1,000

-did yon give it to any one ?-A. Mr. Dougherty took the mortgage and said he
was going up to place it on record.

Q. Who is ho ?-A. I don't know what position he holds undor Alex. Mc Donald.
Q. Thon Dougherty wae present when von saw Mr. Fawcett and decided to pay

that money ?-A. Mr. Dougherty had these papers made out. Re brought the
papers to Mr. Fawcett himself.

Q. All in the private office together ?-A. Yes; Calder, Dougherty, Mr. and
Mrs. Miner and myself.

Q. Yon signed it in Mr. Faweett's offiee ?-A. Yes, I read the paper over and
it was signed there.

Q. Mfr. Faweett knew you signed it ?-A. Yes, ho was sitting right there.
Q. Did ho allow yon to record your claim after this ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was understood ?-A. Yes.
Q. Thon you got a note up to Mr. Craig? Mr. Faweett gave Mr. Dougherty a

note up to Mr. Craig ?-A. Yes.
Q. Mr. Dougherty is one of Alex. MoDonald's- A. I believe ho is sitting right

back of you (witness p>inting to Mr. Dauigherty.)
Q. Yes, I know Mr. Donghorty?-A. I never spoke to the gqntleman.
Q. You didn't know anything about him and didn't owe him anything ?-A. No.

By Mr. Tabor:
Q. Mrs. Kelly, you say you staked the lower one-half, did yon not ?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, when yon came to Mr. Fawcett (I am confining myself to the conver-

sation you had with Mr. Fawcett) was anything said about any one else having
staked the ground ?-A. No, nothing said.
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Q. Anything said about any one else having an application in ?-A. No.
Q. Did you find ont if any one else had an application in ?-A. -lhere was

another party who had 500 feet staked, but ours was the only 250 feet staked.
Q. Did you set any other app!ication made by any one else ?-A. No, I didn't

see any application.
Q. How did you come to go to Mr. MoDonald or Mr. McDonald's agent about

this note ?-A. I didn't go.
Q. You didn't settle the matter yourslf?-A. No.
Q. Who did ?-A. Mr. Kelly and Mr. Miner.
Q. Then you didn't see the mortgage until you were in the office?-A. No.
Q. You are quite positive about the conversation that took place with Mr.

Fawcett, that he told yon that yon would have to assume this note for $2,000 before
you could record that piece of ground ?-A. Yes, that was the way 1 understood it.

Q. He said if you got this piece of ground you would have to assume this
indebtedness?-A. Yes.

Q. Anything about a contest?-A. Nothing about a contest. I didn't think
there was any cause for a contest, as we were the only 250 feet stakers.

Q. After you signed the mortgage wes there any agreement made in the office
with Mr. Dougherty outside of the mortgage, no agreement while you were in the
office that this mortgage as given was to do away with any other claim that there
would be no contest ? You then went up to the recording window, Craig's record-
ing window ?-A. I didn't see any window; there was no window there. It was the
bench claim office, up stairs.

Q. And Mr. Dougherty, did ho present the letter or note Mr. Faweett gave him ?
-A. Yes.

Q. What happened then ?-A. Mr. Craig left the office then and went down
stairs, and was gone a long time before he returned.

Q. Did ae say anything before he left ?-A. No, sir; he read the note and went
down stairs.

Q. Did he go to lunch ?-A. No, air.
Q. He came back ?-A. Yes.
Q. And recorded the claim for you ?-A. Yes, he made us sign this note. He

wrote underneath Mr. Faweett's note, that we were willing to pay this 82,000. I
asked Mr. Craig why we had to sign that, and he said that was to hold up his end
of the business.

Q. i see, I see, that was his end ?-A. Yeu.
Q. And Mrs. Miner signed this note which Mr. Fawcett had given Mr. Dougherty

after he wrote underneath that you were willing to pay this money ?-A. Yes, we
signed the note.

Q. Did you read it before you signed it ?-A. No, Mrs. Miner read it; it was
read to me.

Q. By Mr. Craig ?-A. No, Mrs. Miner drew it over and read It.
Q. You signed something you did not se. ?-A. It was turned over so that we

Could juât see the place for the signatures and a little bit of the last end of it.
Q. Your claim was recorded and is now mortgaged for $1,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. I will ask you Mr. Kelly, did you contruct any indebtedness with Mr.

McDonald against that ground ?-A. I understood it was the firot staker, Mr. Burt.
Q. Yop didn't have anything to do with Mr. McDonald Y-A. I understood this

rmortgage Alex. McDonald had on a year before; and when I recorded I turned to
Mr. Craig and Dougherty and said how will this mortgage b> settled ? There must
b. something done to it. I wanted to see what could be done with it before I left
the offiee. Mr. Craig said there was no mortgage on the elaim, he said there was
nothing against the claim. I said I understood there was a mortgage. He said
there ié only a note; you know a note cannot be reeorded, he suid.

Q. W hile you were signing the mortgage was anything said about this doing
away with a contest ?..A. Not that I remember; I don't know that there was amy
Contest.

Q. Afterwards, you gave an option to Alex. McDonald ?-A. Yes, sir.

139



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 87A.)

Q. This option. (showing witness optio'n paper) do you remember it? For
815,000 ?-A. Yes, that is it.

Q. So this option was agreed upon at the time of the signing of the mortgage ?
-A. Not that I know of.

Q. When was it agreed upon?-A. Some time after.
Q. It was signed the 19th of October ?-A. We recorded on the 1lth of October.
Q. This is the mortgage you gave.(handing the witness the instrument)? It

is rather dilapidated ?-A. Yes, I remember it being torn.
Q. This is dated the 11th, the other on the 19th (showing the instruments); you

say nothing about the option ?-A. I had nothing to say about it.
Q. Mr. McDonald has your claim for sale on that option ?-A. Yes.
Q. You still own your claim, Mrs. Kelly ? -A. Yes, sir, as far as my know-

ledge goos.

By Mr. George:

Q. What was that you remarked a while ago when yon went to Mr. Craig-
"he said, why there is nothing against this claim ?"-A. We were standing right
there and it was after we had our ground.

Q. Well, what did you understand him to mean?-A. I thought it-should be
changed then, in some way changed so that we could have it transferred. I didn't
know how it could be done, but something should be changed right there. It was
thon that 1 understood that there was no mortgage-about five minutes after I
roceived the ground.

Q. You understood from Mr. Craig thore was nothing against the claim?-A.
Yeti.

Q. While Mr. Craig was down seeing Mr. Fawcett presumably, did you take a
glance at any papers that were on Mr. Craig's desk at that time ?-A. There were
some papers there tied togother.

Q. Was there anything like a list of applications for claims ?-A. That is what
Ijudged it to be. Our names were on this list.

Q. Was there any name also on this list germane to this subject ?-A Why, I
thought it was Donald McDonald's name. Mrs. Miner read the name, too.

Q. I see; and what did he apply for?-A. I understood it was for 500 feet.
His stakes were tor 500 feet.

Q. Since Mr. Tabor introduced this, I want to ask you à question. Note the
reading of this. Can you subscribe to it at this pre-ent moment? (Mr. George
reads from the mortgage.) It goes on to recite " that Margaret M. Kelly is a party
of the first part, witnesseth, whereas the said party of the first part is justly indebted
to the said party of the second part in the sum of 81,000." Is that a true statement
of affairs, rs. Kelly ?-A. I cannot see how it could be unlesu at the time we
recognized that this was a legal indebtedness.

Q. You had not owed, or borrowed or contracted any debt with him?-A. No;
I bad no dealings with Alex. McDonald.

Q. Will you state positively that by preventing yon recording your claim until
you had signed this document they forced you to sign your name to an incorrect
statement of facts ?-A. I signed that before I was a[lowed to record.

Q. And it is incorrect ?-A. I owed nothing at that time, when I'signed the
mortgage nor when my application was in.

By the Commisioner:

Q. You remember in company with Mrs. Miner of calling on me, Mrs. Kelly
I have forgotten what date, but I remember that two ladies called on me, whom I
remember as Mrs. Miner and Mrs. Kelly. Yon asked me a question, do yon
remember what it was ?-A. I cited this case to you without giving you any names.
I.gave you the particulars, and asked if this Crown land could be held under such
circumstances.
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Q. What did I say to you? I told you I didn't see how it could be so. As I
recollect your question it was to this effect: Supposing a person owning a claim
and had mortgaged it and the claim was allowed to lapse through non-ropresenta.
tion or in any other way, what the mortgage would be worth, is not that the nature
of the quotion yon asked me ?-A. Yes, at that time I didn't know there was any
mortgage.

Q. You didn't tell me the particular case, but simply stated a hypothetical one.
What did I say to you?-A. You said you thought it should be represented to
protect this man's right.

Q. The words I used were these, " that I didn't consider the mortgagee's title
any better than the mortgagor's, so that if one lapsed the other lapsed unless the
mortgagor took steps to have his interests representud." Was that before you saw
Mr. Faweett or after ?-A. That was after I found this mortgage ws on the ground;
that was after I saw Mr. Fawcett, when he told me and when I asked him about
recording and said, you won't bave anyth'ng done to this ground until this is
satisfied, and ho told me, no; and I came to you.

Q. I told you that I always asked peoplo to put in written statements of facts,
I remember, becanse it was the first time that p9int had been raised. I was ignorant
of the law, but took a commonsensé view of the matter and told you what I thought
abould be done. You didn't stato the facts to me at that time; you didn't give me
the history of this case ?-A. Woll, no, you told us we should put in our afdavits
or make written statements. My husband was on the creek at the time and I wanted
to consult with him. I said I would rather see my husband first.

Q. Then you went away, and somehow you effected a settlement of this case
without seeing me at all afterwards ?-A. I didn't.

Q. 1 believe other parties with you-did you effect this settlement or wore you
a party to the closing of the settlement ?-A. No; my husband acted, I presume, for
lue. I had nothing to do.

Q. Then you knew nothing about this settlement ?-A. Nothing.
Q. When you went to the office to record the ground,' you state that Mr.

Fawcett refused to record until Alex. Me Donald was satisfied ?-A. Ho told me
Alex. McDonald didn't want the ground; all he wanted was that this debt should
be paid.

Q. And any further arrangement that was made you are ignorant of?-A.
tUntil I signed those papers in the office.

Q. At whose instigation did ynu sign the mortgage ?-A. This was arranged
between my husband, Mr. Miner, Mr. Calder and Mr. Dougherty.
. Q. Who requested you to sign the mortgage ?-A. I understood'if I didn't signit I couldn't get the ground.

Q. Who requested you to sign it ?-A. Well, the paper was read there and that
was the understanding, because I could not get the ground any other way.

Q. Did you go there intending to sign such a document ?-A. Yes, air, because
I could not get the ground on any other arrangement.

Q. Was there an arrangement made before you went to the office ?-A. Yes,
there must have been.

Q. Have you any knowledge of the transaction ?-A. No, nothing but hearsay;
no more than what was told me.

Q. Who asked you to sign-did Mr. Fawcett?-A. No; he was there, though.
Q. At whose request did you actually sign that document?-A. Why, no one

that I know of. Mr. Dougherty gave me the paper and said that that was the
lhort e, and showed me where to sign.

.Was your husband present ?-A. No, sir; h. was on Dominion Creek.
Q. Did your husband know you intended to sign such a document ?-A. Yes,air, he did.
Q. Was he agreeable to your signing it-?-. He was.
Q. Have you any knowledge that he was a party to this arrangement-this

ettlement of t he case, as you may call it? Have you any knowledge that he was a
party to that ?-A. Mrs. Kelly-In what way ?
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Q. That this mortgage was to be given ?-A. Why, I said that the settlement
was made between them, for us to give the mortgage.

Q. Betwoon whom ?-A. Mr. Dougherty and themselves; they were the ones
that settled that part.

Q. Who were the ones, Dougherty, Miner and Kelly ?-A. I don't know if Mr.
Calder was there, I believe he was. I am not sure.

Q. You understood they made the arrangement. and in accordance with that
arrangement you were to give this mortgage ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. You signed it with your husband's knowledge and approval of it ?-A. Yes,
air.

Q. You said Mr. Craig said there was nothing against the claim ?-A. Yes, that
was wbat I understood him to say.

Q. Well, how did he come to say that ?-A. Because when I asked about the
mortgage and spoke about it boing on the claim, he said there was nothin-g against
the ground. That was what I understood him.

Q. What did yon infer from that ?-A. Well, I turned to Mr. Dougherty and
asked him about a mortgage, and he said, as I understood, there was a mortgage on
this ground. It was thon, ho, Craig, told me it was a note and he said, " you know
a note cannot be recorded."

Q. Did you know who this note was against ?-A. I have seen the note, Mr.
Miner has scen it.

Q. You don't know ?-A. I understood it was the first staker of this claim, No.
13, H. L. Bart. That is what I understood from what they told me.

Q. You understood he gave the note for S2,000 ? -A. Yes. when Mr. Craig told
me there was nothing against the claim, I turned to Mr. Dougherty and asked about
the mortgage and he told him I understood there was a mortgage on the ground.

Q. As to any knowledge as to how this mortgage came to be given and taken
you don't know, only that you signed it?-A. That is all, and that is the reason
because I couldn't get the gronnd under any other consideration.

Mrs. ELIZABETH MINER was next called and cautioned by Mr. Clement that her
evidence would be taken down in shorthand, reproduced in long hand and that she
would be asked to make a solemn declaration that it was the truth.

By Mr. George;

Q. Mrs. Miner where were you just a little after midnight on the 3lst August
the 1st of September ?-A. Staking the upper half of No. 13 above on Dominion.

Q. Did you come to Dawson then and apply for record ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Who did you apply to ?-A. Mr. Fawcett.
Q. And what did ho teli you?-A. fe told me my application would not be

taken for the upper half until Mr. Ogilvie came; they didn't know but what it would
be held for the Crown.

Q. So that ho took your money and considered you the drst applicant ti case
that Mr. Ogilvie thought that the apper half would be thrown open ?-A. Yes, air.

Q. You didn't bother him until Mr. Ogilvie did come in ?-A. I don't know
whether Mr. Ogilvie was in then when I applied to Mr. Faweett or not.

Q. What did ho tell you at that time ?-À-. About ton days after they aocepted
my application.

Q. About ton days after he aceepted your application; did he gay anything
about waiting for a certificate of record ?-A. No, ho juat received my application.

Q. You went after to get a certificate of record ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who did you see then ?-A. Mr. Faweett.
Q. Did he grant you a certificate of record ?-A. Not at that time.
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Q. What was his reason for not ?-A. He told me there was a mortgage against
the ground.

Q. There was a mortgage against the ground ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. Did that surprise you at ail ?-A. Yes, I thought it rather odd.
Q. Dia ho tell you the amount ?-A. Yes.
Q. How much ?-A. 82,000 againet the whole claim.
Q. He said $2,000 against the whole claim ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did ho suggest any way of getting around that mortgage ?-A. Yes, sir, ho

said we couldn't get the ground unless we assumed the mortgage.
Q. He said that you couldn't get the ground unless you assumed the mort-

gage ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. Have you since assumed tbat mortgage ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And got the ground ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. To whom did you make out this mortgage ?-A. To Alexander McDonald, 1

understand.
Q. For what amount?-A. $1,000.
Q. After assuring you that you could not have the ground until that indebted-

nesa was asaumed, when yon assumed it what happened the day yon assumed and
signed the mortgage ?-A. We recorded afterwards.

Q. Where were you when you signed the moitgago ?-A. In Mr. Faweett's
office.

Q. Was ho present ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. He didn't know what yon were doing ?-A. I think ho certainly did.
Q. Did ho take any interest in the proceedings ?-A. Yes, sir, ho was there and

saw the papers, and told me unless we did take the mortgage we could not get the
ground.

Q. You sat down in hie office and signed the mortgage for that amount-what
happened then-where did you go to record ?-A. Went up stairs to Mr. Craig.

Q. Did you take anything in the form of a message from Mr. .Pawcett?-A.
Yes, a note.

Q. To Mr. Craig ?-A. Yes; I didn't, but Mr. Dougherty did.
Q. What happened then-Mr. Craig recorded the claim ?-A. Yes, ho årst went

down stairs before ho recorded.
Q. When ho was down stairs did you see any papers lying in front of you?-

A. Yes, sir.
Q. What did it appear to bc ?-A. It appeared to be an application list of the

different claims on Dominion-a libt of applicants.
Q. Did you notice your name on it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Mrs. Kelly's?-A. Yes.
Q. Did yon notice any applicants for the same ground you were applying for?

-A. Yes, Donald McDonald'a.
Q. What had ho applied for according to that list ?-A. 500 feet.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Mrs. Miner, I think I have seen yon before in regard to this matter. Mrs.
Miner, in the conversation you had with Mr. Faweett, do you remember if anything
Was said about any one else having staked a claim ?-A. No, ho didn't say anything
to me about any one staking it.

Q. Did ho aay anything about a contest ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Now, you say that Mr. Fawcett said tbere waa a mortgage of $2,000 against

the elaim ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. And you would have to assume $1,000, and Mrs. Kelly $1,000 ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Mrs. Kelly with you ?-A. Yes.
Q. As a retult of that, what did yon do-did yon make any arrangements your-

self??-A. No, air.
Q. Well, how did yon come to sign this mortgage ?-A. Went to Mr. Fawcett's

office and signed it.
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Q. You had not seen any one in the meantime about it?-A. No, sir.
Q. How did you know the mortgage was there ?-A. My husband and Mr.

Kelly knew about it, and we had to asume the mortgage.
Q. I may say that I acted for Mrs. Miner in her contest for this claim, and am

placed in rather an awkward position (addressing the commissioner.) I advised you,
Mre. Miner, that you didn't have to pay the mortgage; that thore was no legal
claim at law ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, you spoke about seeing a list? Do you remember if that was the list
you saw, (here Mr. Tabor handed Mrs. Miner a list containing the names of appli-
cants for certain claims on Dominion Creek) would you know the list if you saw it?
-A. I could not say whether this is the list or not. It does not look like it; I saw
500 feet on it when I looked at it.

Q. Ris application had been taken for 500 feet?-A. I didn't see it, no.
Q. You could not swear that was it?-A. No, sir.
Q. Would you swear it was not the list?-A. I could not do that, I could not

say it was not it, I couldn't say it was.
Q. If that was the list why did you think you saw 500 feet on there, could you

locate 500 feet on any part of it if it were the right list ?-A. No, I couldn't.
Q. You say this mortgage was signed in r. Faweett's office, did you propose

to sign that paper ?-A. Yces.
Q. You had an appointment with Mr. Dougherty, or whoever brought it up ?-

A. Yes.
Q. The papers were all ready and you signed it there ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you read it over before you signed it ?-A. I think I did.
Q. Are you sure about that ?-A. I am not sure.
Q. This is dated the 11th of October, now, after that again, you gave an option

to Alex. MoDonald on the claim for $15,000 (copy of the option paper was shown)
and Mr. McDonald has it outside ?-A. Yes.

Q. Mrs. Miner I undorstood you lost the claim ?-A. Yes.
Q. How was tat?-A. A man from No. 14 staked down on the claim after-

wards, thon the claim proved short. He said bis claim was short.
Q. There was a contest for it?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Who did the contest come bofore ?-A. Mr. Senkler.
Q. And how much of your claim was left ?-A. I think about 60 or 65 feet.
Q. Did you see any note or paper signed by Burt to Alex. McDonald ?-A. It

seems to me I saw a note; it was a slip of paper.
Q. Dîd you read it ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Was the note assigned to you after the mortgage was given ?-A. No.
Q. What became of the note ?-A. 1 don't know.
Q. Yon had it when you saw it ?-A.. I think Mr. Miner got the note.
Q. Did you see the note at any time after; was that at the time the mortgage

was signed or after ?-A. After.
Q. Wbere did he get it?-A. He got it from the Alaska Commercial Co., I

think.

By Mr. George:

Q. There is a mortgage bore executed, Mrs. Miner, in which it speaks of Elizabeth
Miner, your name, as a pai ty of the first part, and it goes on to say,-Witnesseth :
Whereas the said party of the first part is justly indebted to the party of the second
part in a sum of $1,000 in gold coin. Wben yoe subscribed your name to that,were
you indebted to Mr. McDonald in any sum whatever ?-A. I don't know the gentle-
man.

Q. Didn't owe him one penny that you know of?-A. No, sir.
Q. And the only thing that could have made you put your name at the bottom

of it, was the fact that you could not get your claim withont it-unless you assumed
the indebtednes ? Io it not a fact that this note of one Burt-by the way, do you
know Burt ?-A:. Yes.
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Q. la it not a fact that this note from Bart to McDonald, it was agreed, should
be transferred to Mr. Miner ?-A. That is what we supposed when we gave the
mortgage.

By The Commissioner:

Q. When you were ont on the morning of the lat of September, did you notice
any other person staking the same ground ?-A. No, air; I was on the upper half.

Q. Did you notice any one in that vicinity staking ?-A. Some one came and I
saw them staking.

Q. Did you notice who they were ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You have no knowledge of any one having staked beaides yourself ?-A. A

Mrs. Kelly, on the lower half.
Q. You remember coming to see me about this case. I asked Mrs. Kelly some

questions which you heard; were the statements correct, as you recollect them ?-
A. i think, as near as I can recolleet, they were.

Q. Now, Mr. Tabor bas stated that he advised you that you were not liable for
this money. After he told you that, and after what I told you, why did yon assume
it without a contest? You were not liable for it.-A. That was after we aassumed it.

Q. It was after you assumed it you sought advice about it ?-A. We had to
assume tbe debt to get the claim.

Q. You had not when I saw you ?-A. I didn't do the talking to you; it was.
Mrs. Kelly.

Q. I don't know which addressed the questions to me. I told you it was my
impression that the mortgagee had no title; that MoDonald had no claim; that the
title lapsed from non-representation, and i asked you to make an affidavit to that
effect. You never came near me afterwards about it. I remember Mr. Kelly one-
day.-A. I made the affidavit out.

Q. Mr. Kelly came to me and made another disposition of the question, and I
atill told him I was of the same impression. Did you enter into any arrangements-
as to sign this mortgage-did you arrange the mortgage yourself?-A. No.

Q. You knew nothing of the understanding that was arrived at before the
mortgage was signed ?-A. No.

Q. Did yon ign this mortgage with your husband's knowledge and consent?-
A. Yes, air.

Q. Did you understand that there was some arrangement made with reference
to the question between your huaband and others before you signed the mortgage ?
A. I supposed there was.

Q. Did you understand it ?-A. I understood that if I didn't give the mortgage
I couldn't get the property.

Q. Did you understand y.our husband bad made an arrangement with other
interested parties to dispose of this question by giving this mortgage ?-A. I sup-
posed he had.

Q. And there was no contest ?-A. i would be allowed then. I wanted the.
property, and unless I took the mortgage I could not get it.

Q. You signed the mortgage, still believing that they had no valid claim ?-A.
I didn't know; I was told by Mr. Fawcett it was on record. I supposed that it had
been recorded.

Q. Supposing it had, you had no legal advice that it was not valid.-A. I didn't
know I could get the .property unless 1 got it through Mr. Fawcett.

Q. It was not necessary for Mr. Faweett-if h asked you to do anything-
improper, the law does not compel you to do it. You said you were not aware of
any one else staking on the claim except Mrs. Kelly ?-A. I didn't Ree Mr. McDonald;,
I suppose he was there,

Q.-You suppose he was there ?-A. I didn't see him thut night. I know he.
was around somewhere on the ground.

Q.. How did you know that ?-A. Ho came and talked to me.
Q. Where ?-A. At the cabin where I was.
Q. When ?-A. Several days before.

145



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 87.)

Q. Did ho tell you ho intended to stake the ground ?-A. No, sir, he told me
hie brother had bought it.

By Mr. George:

Q. In your conversation with Donald McDonald two or three days before the
1st day of September, what was it, Mrs. Miner, that ho said about the ground and
his brother Alex. and the gold commissioner's office, try and remember it ?-A. He
said his brother had bought the property.

Q. Did ho know that you were waiting there in a cabin until the 1st of Septem-
ber, waiting to Etake the claim?-A. I don't know. He said several things that
would make me think he probably knew.

Q. Referring to this lit, Mrs. Miner,.you don't identify this list as the one you
saw ?-A. No, sir, I could not say that it is.

Q. In fact, it might have been a memorandum that you saw from which this
list might have been compiled ?-A. It might have been. I know I saw 500 feet
on it.

Q. You will make an affidavit to that effect ?-A. Yes.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Mrs. Kelly, would yon say if you noticed any other person on the ground
for the purpose of staking it except Mrs. Miner while you were there ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q.Who did you notice ?-A. Donald McDonald and two ottier men with him.
Q. At the time you were staking, ho was staking too ?-A. He was cutting a

stake while I was driving mine.
Q. You believe ho staked a few minutes after you staked ?-A. Yes, sir, I believe

ho staked it.
Q. In what manner did ho stake ?-A. I understood ho staked 500 feet. He

told me so.
Q. He told you he staked 500 feet?-A. He staked the original claim. At that

time it was supposed to be 500 feet. The old stakes were there.
Q. He staked the whole ?-A. Yes, so ho told me.
Q. Are you aware he did so from marks on the stake?-A. No.
Q. Donald McDonald who staked at that time is the Donald McDonald referred

to in the evidence as a brother of Alex. McDonald ?-A. Yes, I thought it was
strange ho was staking his brother's ground on the lst of September.

By Mr. George:

Q. You repeated to the commissioner that you saw Mr. McDonald staking that
night-Donald MoDonald; did ho go to see you about that any time since ?-A. Yes.

Q. When he told you yon could not have the claim, did ho tell yon anything
about the gold commissioner's office or anything of that kind ?-A. In what way ?

Q. Did ho say anything about your chance of getting the claim ?-A. If I didn't
consent to, his brother Alex. would get the claim.

Q. Not himseolf that was staking it ?-A. No.
Q. Did he give you any reason for thinking so; was anything said about having

things fixed ?-A. I understood from the way ho talked that I would have to consent.
I told him I had staked my 250 feet, and if ho had this power ho would get the claim.

Q. What, power to get part of it? He meant ho hadpower to geLt part of it?
-A. No, ho told me ho wanted to get one-half, and ho said if I didn't consent to
what ho proposed his brother would get the claim.

Q. What was it ho proposed-you might as well tell it?-A. He wanted my
husband or myself to restake the ground, they would divide between themselves
and leave Mrs. Miner out.

Q. That was Donald MeDonald's proposition ?-A. I said my husband had used
his right, I had not. I had staked 250 feet and if ho had this power ho would have
to deal with Mrs. Miner.
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Q. Since the matter bas been brought out, of Donald McDonald staking the
claim, I will question you a little. Did M r. Fawcett say that Donald McDonald had
a lien on this claim ?-A. I never heard anything about it after that.

Q. There was nothing to show you that he had a lien on the ground ?-A. No,
1 never saw any title at ail.

Q. Mr. Fawcett didn't refer to tbat ?-A. No.
Q. That didn't enter into consideration when Mr. Fawèett said you couldn't

have the claim until you paid the money to Alex. McDonald ?-A. HIe said if you
get this ground you will have to assume the indebtedness.

Q. That was to Alex. McDonald ?-A. Yes.

EDWARD P. MINER was reminded that his evidence would be referred to him
which be would have to affirm.

Mr. MINER.-The questions and answerà may be amended up to the time it is
read-if anything occurs that is wrong ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. George:

Q. Mr. Miner, where were you after midnight of the Slst of August last ?-A.
Here in town.

Q. Were you expecting some one in from Dominion?-A. Yes, I was expeeting
may wile.

Q. When did she arrive ?-A. She arrived somewhere, I understand, about 10
o'clock. I didn't see her until about three.

Q. Did yon go with her to the gold commissioner's office ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you ever go with her ?-A. Yes, wben she recorded.
Q. You were in Mr. Fawcett's private office ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was Mr. Fawcett present ?-A. Yes.
Q. What had led you to be there that morning-firet I will ask you, was there

a mortgage signed by your wife that morning ?-A. Yes.
Q. Relate the circumstauces, Mr. Miner, leading up to the tigning of that

maortgage ?-A. My wife had been several times to the commissioner's to try to get
the ground she had staked, and her application had been accepted, but before she
could record she told me that she could not on account of an indebtedness against
the claim, which was a mortgage Mr. Fawoett told ber Alex. McDonald held. Until
that was settled she could not record. She and Mr. Kelly and I had several talks
Over it, and the women wanted us to do the best we could so that they could record,
60 we took it into our hands to make a settlement.

Q. I would like to know what you did. Relate just what happened ?-A. Mr.
Kelly did most of the business. This was in Mr. Dougherty's office-Alex.
McDonald's office.

Q. You went up to see about the mortgage on it ?-A. Nu, to see about a mort-
gage that was to be given. After counsel it was decided that we should assume the
rindebtedness.

Q. Who decided it ?-A. Myself and Mr. Kelly and Mr. Dougherty and Calder.
We had to wait for Mr. Calder to come in. Mr. Dougherty had asured us that as
soon as Mr. Calder came in he would agree. We were to assume the indebtedness,
which I understood was a mortgage held on note; that was to be transferred to us.
The women were to give a mortgage in lieu of that on the ground thev staked.

Q. While you were in this office of McDonald's, did they tel] yo they hadn't
beld a mortgage on the ground ?-A. No, sir.

Q. What were they to do for yon in consideration of your wife's signing the
mortgage ?-A. Release the ground. They were to turn the indebtedness beld by
Mr. McDonald against one H. L. Burt to us.

Q. And ou finally decided that that was the only way you could get the
und, and tii easiest way was the best?-A. We decided the easiest way was the
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Q. That you would rather pay $1,000 than lose the ground ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. Were you present yourself to see your wife sign the mortgage at Mr.

Faweett's office ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You saw ber sign it ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you know wbether or not it was read to her?-A. I think not. I think

it was not read aloud; I had road it previously, and told ber it was ail right.
Q. Did 3 ou see a note given to any one to carry up stairs to Mr. Craig ?-A.

Yes, sir, Mr. Fawcett wrote a note sfter the mortgages wore signed and gave it to
Dougherty. We all went up stairs together.

Q. Mr. Miner, I will ask you to throw your memory back, and say if you
recollect the contents of that note ?-A. 1 saw the note over Mr. Dougherty's
shoulder while he was standing thero. I didn't know what it was for. I think
when Mr. Craig was getting his list of applications or making the applications ont,
there was some move in which L saw the note, but didn't puy attention to it then.

Q. Can you repeat the contents of that note ?-A. I am not positive; it was
addressed to Mr. Craig saying, that these women bad signed a mortgage of $1,000
each on claim No. 13 above Upper, Dominion. You will allow them to record; that
is the best I think I can do.

By Mir. Fawcett :

Q. While yon weoe up there at Mr. Craig's window, did you see any other
documents similar to that (showing the list of applicants for claims on Dominion
Creek) ?-A. What I testified "yes" to, I want to amend a little. I said appli-
cation, not thinking that I meant a list of applicants.

Q. Your evidence of yesterday, we can ignore it altogether. Did you see a list
resembling that?-A. No, I didn't at that time.

Q. It was a list-a piece of paper like that?-A. I thought there were two or
three sheets lying there. All that there was on it was a few names at the top. My
wife was looking at it. I don't think it amounted to anything. I didn't puy much
attention to it. I saw Mr. McDonald's name there, but didn't notice the tize of his
claim. It bas como to my memory since that I heard the women speaking of it
at that time.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You don't know yourself ?-A. No.
Q. Have you ever been to Dominion since to know how much he staked ?- -A.

Yes, several times. As far as I can make out he staked 480 feet. His notice reads
on the lower stake (I claim 500 feet up streamn for mining purposes, signed
Donald McDonald), and on the upper stakes (I claim 500 feet down stream for
mining purposes, and signed Donald McDonald).

Q. Did any one in your presance claim that Donald McDonald had a mortgage
on that claim ?-A. No, sir.

By Mr. George:

Q. I will ask you if you owed Alex. McDonald any sum of money, 81,000 or
lems?-A. Not one dollar.

Q. So that in advising yoir wife to sign that mortgage of 81,000 against the
claim implying that she owed Alex. McDonald 81,000, as in the wording of the
document, you knew she did not -A. Yes, sir.

Q. You thought that was the easiest way out, and besides ?-A. That partly
in lieu of that wo were to reccive the indebtednees that, was held by Mr. Mc-
Donald, that if it ever did amount to anything we could collect, so as to have it
assigned to us.

Q. You had seen the note of Burt to McDonald ?-A. No, air.
Q. How were you convinced ?-A. I was convinced there was an indebtedness

of $2,000. I was told.
148

A. 189)



Ogilvie Commission of Inquiry.

Q. And if you ever could collect that from Mr. Burt, it was to go to you ?-A.
Yes.

.Q. But it was not optional for you people to pay this $1,000, whether you
received it from Burt or not ?-A. It had to be paid anyway.

Q. Did you ever get that note ?-A. Yes, sir, I got the note. It was left for
me. I called on Mr. Dougherty after this mortgage was signed. We found then
there was no mortgage out, so I called for what evidence of indebtedness there was.
Mr. Dougherty told me it was with Mr. McDonald's papers at the Alaska Commer-
cial Company's buildings. The book-keeper there, Mr. Walters, had it in his posses-
sion, and for quite a while ho could not find it. It was left for me addressed in an
envelope. When I received it I found it was worthless, as it was made out to Mr.
McDonald and it was non-transferable, so I went to Mr. Dougherty's office to get a
transfer made, and he said ho nor Calder had no power to make transfers of notes,
so 1 left it thon with Mr. Dougherty.

Q. So, to this day, that transfer bas never been made of Burt's indebtedness to
McDonald, to yoursolf ?-A. No, sir.

Q. When did yon first hear, Mr. Miner, that there was no mortgage on that
claim ?-A. I first hoard, just after they recorded.

Q. Who said so ?-A. I heard Mr. Craig say so.
Q. Do you remember the wording ?-A. He said, "Thore is nothing against

that claim."
Q. And when you come to find out, there was nothing ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. As far as you know to-day, there is nothing against the claim ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You were never shown that there was anything against the claim ?-A. No,

sir. The note was only a promissory note, I think, due after thirty or sixty days.
Q. If you can think of anything else material to the case, you can can recall it.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Mr. Miner, was there anything said during the negotiations taking place
between you and McDonalls about a release being made of any claim that Donald
McDonald might have ?-A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know if ever such a release was made ?-A. Never made, as far as I
know.

Q. You don't know Donald MoDonald made sncb a release ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you know ho had any claim against the claim?-A. No, ho didn't,

according to law, bucause ho wanted 500 feet, which was not according to law.
Q. You say yon didn't see this list at all ?-A. It was out. Tho list I saw was

out. I don't think this one is the same, unless it was ruled and added to since.
Q. Now, this note-have you still this note ?-A. No, air, I returned it to Mr.

Dougherty.
Q. Why ?-A. Because it was of no earthly use to me; it was only payable to

Alex. McDonald. I wanted, if there was any indebtedness, to have it assigned to
me, but ho said be couldn't do it.

Q. Now, you state you simply made this agreement with Mr. McDonald for
the purpose of getting the claim ?-A. For the purpose of getting the claim, as I
understood from the ladies that Mr. Fawcett had given it as bis ultimatum that this
indebtedness would have to be met before they could record.

Q. Yon went yourself to see Mr. Fawcett ?-A. Yes. I told him we could make
arrangements with Mr. McDonald satisfactory to bis agent. He was asked then
if there would be anything in the way of recording. He told me no.

Q. This was after you saw Mr. McDonald's agent ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. How often did you see Mr. McDonald's agent ?-A. I think I saw him twice.

It is not the office now. It was the office then; I believe when we were negotiating
with Dougherty, ho had bis office in the Alaska Commercial Company's store.

Q. What proposition did you make to them when yon went in ?-A.-I didn't
make any proposition in the first place, it was Mr. Kelly who made the proposition.
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Q. What was the nature of the proposition you were talking over ?-A. We
were to assume this indebtedness against the claim, and the women would be allowed
to record.

Q. What indebteduess was there ?-A. $2,000.
Q. What nature of security was mentioned ?-A. I always supposed, but I

would not swear, that he said a mortgage. 1 supposed it was a mortgage.
Q. You don't know whether the nature of the security was mentioned or not?-

A. No, sir.
Q. Who drew the papers; did you see them again after that ?-A. I didn't

see them until just before going into Mr. Dougherty's office before going to Mr.
Faweett's office.

Q. Did you conetir with the others to the arrangement that had been reached?
-A. Yes, sir, we all went together, the ladies and myself.

Q. Did you authorize Mr. Dougherty to draw those papers?-A. I gave my,
consent to it, yes, air.

Q. You didn't see him again until you met him at Mr. Fawcett's office.-A.
No, I met him in his own offmee*frst, and went with them to Mr. Faweett's office.

Q. Any conversation thon about the claim; any further agreement made ?-A.
Nothing as far as I know.

Q. Nothing about this mortgage ?-A. No, air.
Q. You don't know whether Mrs. Miner read this mortgage ?-A. I don't know;

I told ber it was all right.
Q. Did you hear anything in Mr. Faweett'a office about any contest ?-A. No,

sir.
Q. Did you know whether Mr. McDonald was going to release his claim when

you gave this mortgage ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you ever hear he did release it ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You don't know wbether he did ?-A. No, air.

By Mr. George:

Q. Supposing that instead of your wife telling you the ground was held from
ber recording by reason of a mortgage against it, she had urged Donald McDonald's
position, that there would be a law-suit for the claim, would you have thought that
worth paying $1,000 for ?-A. No, sir, because I knew the stakes were 480 feet
apart, and meant for a 500 foot claim, which was illegal and which would not be
allowed in contest.

Q. You know for a fact that you never required that Mr. McDonald releas
whatever claim he had ?-A. No, air.

Q. He has it to-day ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was no part of the consideration ?-A. No, sir.

By the Commissioner :

Q. Did you bave any knowledge of what this document was before you entered
into this agreement ?-A. What document?

Q. The security that Donald MoDonald said Alex. McDonald had ?-A. No, sir;
after I signed.

Q. When you did see it, did you think it worth anything ?-A. Nothing.
Q. You didn't tbink it worth anything if given to you?-A. I would have had

to get a lawyer's advice. 1 didn't know how long that note was for, and the man
had nothing in the country; ho had nothing to the best of my knowledge.

Q. As far as your knowledge is concerned, it was a lega note ?-A. Yes, air, it
was drawn in Mr. McDonald's hand-writing that is, the hand-writing I have always
taken for his; signed by H. L. Burt.

Q. During these negotiations had you any conversation with Donald McDonald?
-A. I have never mot him.

Q. So ho was no party to this transaction at all ?-A. No, air.
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Mr. GoRG.-Mr. Commissioner, since Donald McDonald's statement of claim
has been brought up in this case, I would like to recall Mrs. Kelly.

Mrs. KELLY recalled.

By Mr. George:
Q. Mrs. Kelly, did you consider Donald MoDonald's possible claim to this

ground of any moment ?-A. Why, no. I told him if he had this power and
influence, he had better go ahead and try and get it.

Q. Would you have given him $1,000 to get rid of him ?-A. No.
Q. Was it ever mentioned ?-A. In what way ?
Q. Was Donald McDonald to release any hold upon this ground when you

assumed the mortgage ?-A. No, he never spoke of his claim at all.
Q. You never knew he was an applicant for the claim ?-A. No, sir. He told

me he staked the 500 feet, and therefore I didn't consider him to be a contestant.
Q. As far as your knowledge is concerned, he didn't enter into these negotia-

tions at all ?

Mr. GEoRGE then addressed Mrs. Miner:
Q. Mrs. Miner, Donald McDonald's claim upon this ground of having staked it

somewhere about the same time as yourself, did you consider it of any validity ?-
A. No, sir.

Q. Did you consider his suit dangerous to you ?-A. Did not know anything
about it.

Q. Would you have given a mortgage of $1,000 on anything you possessed to
get over his claim to this ground ?-A. No, sir.

Mr. KELTrI called and cautioned.

By Mr. George :

Q. Where were you, Mr. Kelly, on the midnight of the 31st of August ?-A. I
was on the upper end of claim No. 12 adjacent to No. 13 waiting for the hour to
stake with my wife carrying the timber.

Q. Did she stake ?-A. She did.
Q. Did you accompany her to Dawson ?-A. As far as the mouth of Hanker;

she came down in a boat from there with her witness, Mrs. Miner and a boatman.
Q. Did you ever accompany her to the gold commissioner's office ?-A. No, sir,

not in relation to this question, or, in fact, at all.
Q. Did you ever go to the gold commissioner's office regarding this question ?-

A. Yes, in company with Capt. Miner on one occasion.
Q. Did Mr. Fawcett give you any reason for not recording for your lady ?-A.

We went there to ask a question. I asked Mr. Fawcett if McDonald's interests were
satisfled if there would be any objection to the ladies recording. He said not in the
leat.

Q. Who did you mean, Donald McDonald or Ale. ?-A. I didn't mention either
name.

Q. Did you ever hear Mr. Fawcett say there was a mortgage on that claim ?-
A. I did not.

Q. Did you ever, Mr. Kelly, measure the piece of ground that Donald McDonald
otaked over there ?-A. Yes, I have stepped it off and measured it in a rough way.
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Q. Is it 500 feet ?-A. Somewhere in the neighbourhood of 480; it is rough
and hard to travel over the ground.

Q. In negotiating this matter, you advised Mrs. Kelly to sign this mortgage ?-
A. I did.

Q. Did you know it was a mortgage on the ground for $1,000-what led to the
negotiations, if you will permit me to begin at the beginning ?-A. To show where
my offices came in-I was on the creek attending to my duties No. on 22, the claim I
staked, wben I received a note from my wife stating that there was $2,000 against
the ground which would have to be met before she could record, and she didn't
know what to do; thought I had better come in. I came in and there was a council
held betwen the ladies, Mr. Miner and myself. Ways and meanus were discussed
by which we could best arrive at a solution of the difficulties ahead of us. I met
Mr. Donald McDonald and Mr. Alex. McDonald and used all my pursuasive powers
to get them not to put any obstruction in the way of her recording. I am personally
acquainted with Alex. McDonald, and thought I hand some slight influence. We
were interested in mines together. Anyhow, to be brief, why, I advised all bands
the best way out would be to pay this indebtedness; that they, the ladies, should
give their note in lieu of the ether note, to bear no interest, and to mature on the
lt of July, on condition that they withdraw ail opposition to us acquiring the
property, and Alex. would take the property out with bis other property and handle
it. That that would be the best way to settle the matter; it would be botter than
to litigate in the case. Donald McDonald avowed it would be, in fact, we had a
number of conversations about it. Donald at no time ever indicated he would give
up his right or interest. I could not do any business with Donald, so I called on
Aler. McDonald and Mr. Dougherty and submitted this proposition to them; he
thought it was a favourable one and would be accepted.

Q. When you were going to McDonald's office, did they tell you or the women
about the mortgage ?-A. I only knew of the mortgage through the ladies.

Q. Did you take it for granted ?-A. Yes, I supposed it to be a fact.
Q. Don't you think you ever referred to it ?-A. I told Mr. Dougherty I would

accept to take up that note and mortgage, issue our notes and mortgage Bo as to
give them the same form of security, only I objected to paying interest.

Q. You would take up one note and mortgage and give another note and
mortgage. Then he assured you there was no mortgage ?-A. Mr. Dougherty never
mentioned the mortgage in one way or another.

Q. He must have known you were mistaken ?-A. I don't know.
Q. If you had known there was no mortgage on that ground would you have

advised your wife to have paid $1,000 ?-A. I believe, sir, I would. I was pressed
for time, and I concluded if we got the property on that proposition I had made, we
were making a fair business transaction, and I think I would have advised her to do
so. I don't know whether she would have accepted my advice. She bas opinions
of her own.

By Mr. Tabor :

Q. Was this settlement made, Mr. Kelly, and the agreement made to take the
property out at the same time ?-A. The whole thing was taken into consideration
at once.

Q. Al the options were not executed until afterwarde ?-A. They appeared at
a later day, afterwards. I remained in town only long enough to negotiate a
settlement.

Q. Was anything said about the note being handed over ?-A. Yes, it was under-
stood the note was to be handed over to us after our notes were isued.

Q. You were to have the note for what it was worth ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And collect it if you could ?-A. If it proved of any value it would be our

property.
Q. You have had a number of conversations about the matter ?-A. Yes.
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By the Commissioner:

Q. With whom did you deal in making this proposition ?-A. I dealt with both
Donald McDonald and Alex. I considered Donald was controlled largely by hie
brother but I tried to operate on both of them. I recognized Alex. as the strong
man. I had to recognize Donald, but I could not do business with him.

Q. How did you finally arrange it ?-A. I finally arranged it in this manner:
that the ladies were to assume notes for $1,000, payable next July, without interest,
and the notes secured by a mortgage on the ground to be paid out ofthe sale money
in case he made a sale. If not, we were to have the privilege of going on the
ground. We would operate the ground and if valuable it would be paid out of the
clean up. If the notes were good, well then the note would hold the security.

By Air. Tabor:

Q. Your wife finally executed this mortgage under your advice ?-A. She did, I
believe.

Q. Did she read it ?-A. I cannot say, although I was present when the writing
was drawn up.

Q. Stili, she acted under your advice ?-A. Yes, sir, she sent for me for that
purpose, and she was guided by my advice.

Q. The fact that there was a mortgage on the claim did not influence you in the
arrangement you came to ?-A. I lumped the positions together, looking over
everything. I tried to arrive at the truth of ail the statements. I wanted to
remove the opposition at one settlement if I could. I didn't enter into a verification
of every story I heard.

Q. Did Donald McDonald piess his own claim?-A. With me he did in a crude
manner a time or two.

Q. He pressed his own claim ?-A. Yes.
Q. How ?-A. He used ail manner of arguments ho could and finally said hie

brother Alex. would beat me anyhow and get the ground. He suggested to me at
one time, during the time the notices came out, that the upper halves were then
open to applicants who had made application in a regular manner Donald had read
that and considered it. I think he had staked the lower J. He called on me and
made a proposition that I and he wculd return and ro-stake the ground, ho the
lower î and us the upper and leaving the Miner woman to look out for herself.

Q. You read that second notice-you could take two or three meanings out of
it ? It was a question what the meaning of, " that the othor half would be thrown
open " meant. You considered you made a pretty good bargain ?-A. I thought it
was a clever thing..

Q. If Mr. McDonald succeeds in selling this claim, then you will consider you
have come up pretty well ?-A. Yes, if I get any part of the $14,000.

Mr. TABo.-Yes, I see, that is, your wife.

By the Commissioner :

Q. Do you remember of calling to see me about this question ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. That was before you entered into this arrangement was it ?-A. Yes, before

I visited McDonald's representative.
Q. Da you remember what yon asked me at that time ?-A. I recollect I laid a

case before you and asked your advice as to whether it would be the cheaper way
Out of that for me to make a transaction of the nature I laid before you, that was to
remove atl indebtedness on the part of those who laid claim to have an interest in
the ground, and I could come into possession of the property for $1,000. I asked
You if you did not think it botter than litigation, as 1 considered it would cost more
than .1,000, for attorney's fees. I thought it would be the part, of conservative busi-
ness to make a compromise. I believe that was the substance of the statements I
made to you.
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Q. You asked if I would recommend that as a business transaction ?-A. You told
me, if I remember rightly, that if that was the way I looked at it, it would possibly
be the better way-possibly the cheapest and the best way to solve the difficulty.

Q. I didn't advise you to pay it ?-A. No, in fact, I was careful not to ask your
official opinion.

Q. You put that question to me and I said possibly that is the cheapest and
quickest way out of it. It was represented to me that you represented me in a
different light, therefore, I ask you these questions ?-A. Since that has arisen, I
may ask, if I have not been placed before you in a different light as being the insti-
gator of this?

Q. I understood that you reported that I advised you to do this, when the facts
of the case are that yon asked me if it would be a good business deal to do this ? I
did not advise you to do anything. I would not give advice at all. Then you said,
did I not consider it a good business proposition ? I said I believed it was the
quickest and easiest way to get rid of the difficulties, if the claim was worth the
price. Yon said the claim was worth the price, and to use your own words,
" Damned well worth the price." i remember your words quite well. I wanted to
know if that was before you effected the arrangement ?-A. Yes, immediately before
I effected the'arrangement.

By Mr. George :

Q. That last question suggested one or two things which it will bo well to
elucidate. If the same kind of a proposition comes, that your wife writes you that
certain property that she ought to get for nothing is held by a mortgage of $1,000,
according to the gold commissioner, you will advise her to pay it ?-A. Under
exactly the same circumstances, I would, and do exactly the same. My time at that
time was fully taken up; I had been employed and was beginning operations on my
claim which I considered valuable; I had men who were strangers and demanded
my constant attention. I had a long way to travel down here and there was no
quick means of coming from Dominion or going back, and I had to lose a week each
time I came, and it would soon amount to a great deal. Under these same circum-
stances again I would do exactly the same.

Q. You don't think you would ever start a prosecution in the matter if by fraud-
ulency $1,000 was exacted from you in the future?-A. If I had told a man after
making a good deal that I should not prosecute him after I had given him $1,000,
although I was wrongly deprived of the $1,000, I would stay by my word. I would
lose my $1,000 rather than break my word.

Q. The principle of this matter would not enter into your consideration ?-A.
The 81,000 was well spent in getting rid of the McDonald opposition.

Q. Do you think, without the collusion of the gold commissioner, the opposition
of the McDonalds would have been of any moment?-A. That is a question Ibolieve
you should not ask me. I don't know of my own porsonal knowledge whether the
gold commissioner had any collusion or not. To get rid of this opposition was worth

1,000, becanse my wife told me there was an indebtedness of $2,000 on the claim.
Donald McDonald had stated he would never give up. Alex. refused to with-
draw. I didn't see much of Alex. He was busy getting ready to go out.
There was only one thing, either to fight or compromise. I conciuded the cheaper
way was the better.

Q. You worked with the McDonalds and others-worked with the McDonalds
with fruitless results until the $1,000 was paid ?-A. I had to pay $1,000, the only
way I could bring about a satisfactory settlement for our interests.

Q. Did you not think of appealing to the gold commissioner ?-A. No, I didn't
think of appealing; I knew it was no use to appeal against the McDonalde, and I
wanted to finish it up.

Q. Did you ever express your opinion that it was useless to appeal to the gold
commissioner ?-A. That was a question that came up before every man in the
camp. Very few men could oppose themselves against Alex. McDonald in this
camp. It would not be even running. Every one knows a man with lots of money
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has lots of influence. If Alex. McDonald antagonized a poor man, as I am, where
there was any property in dispute, I considered he would have a difficult contest.
So, rather than antagonize him, I thought it better that the $1,000 be paid.

Q. It was the principles of the case that were involved. You took it as a finan-
cial consideration, as a business proposition ?-A. I never looked into the merits of
it at the time. I did not question Mr. Fawcett about it.

Q. Did it ever occur to you that Mr. Fawcett had power to overrule these
McDonalds and give the claim to your wife; didn't that occur to you ?-A. Well, if
it did occur to me, it never occurred to me ho would use it.

Q. Then, why would it not have been the best way to do as others did ?-A.
Simply because it was too expensive.

Q. Had they not already advised you that they had been there and it was use-
less?- A. My wife told me that, certainly.

Q. If there had been a chance to save $1,000 you would have done so ?-A. I
don't mean to say that I would give $1,000 up by intimidation.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Did you make inquiry as to the validity of the claim of Donald McDonald?
-A. No, because ho was an applicant for it.

Q. Did you take any steps to ascertain what his application was worth ?-A.
No, siir, I didn't take any stops to ascertain what his application was worth. I con-
sidered our application being prior I knew it was the right of a free man in a free
country to have a hearing wheLher the case has merit or not, and I believed that we
having staked first, having arrived at the office firet, having the application received
first, ours was the botter chance, but I knew from hie utterance that he subsequently
meant to antagonize us at every turn he could, and consequently it was that alone
that brought up this compromise scheme in my mind.

Q. Not because you feared his opposition ?-A. I feared the expense of the
opposition.

Q. As a business question, you thought it cheaper to compromise than to
contest ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Consequently you took no steps to go into any contest?-A. I didn't want to
enter into a contest.

Q. Did you take the matter into advice at all ?-A. No, only what my experi-
ence gave me.

Q. You never thought of any collusion between the gold commissioner and
McDonald ?-A. I am an imaginative person, and ofton times thought of things which
it would be an injustice to speak of.

Q. Did that influence you in the settlement of this question, that the gold com-
missioner would favour the McDonalds?-A. McDonald's opposition in the camp had
weight.

Q. How so ?-A. His resources were so large. Indirectly he has been openly
spoken of as being a bard man to oppose.

Q. This was simply a business transaction with you ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you considered it the quickest way to settle the question ?-A. I thought

I was paying for it in that way; I thought it was the quickest way. Mr. Fawcett
lias always extended to me personally since my acquaintance with him, every evid-
once of sincere friendship; I became acquainted with him on the trail. I always
got information when it was posible; in later days when I couldn't get any I didn't

o in. I had not the time to wait. I didn't go in the side door. Whenever I met
Mr. Fawcett he always expressed his pleasure of seeing me; there was no reason
why ho should discriminate.

. Q. There was no thought of his discriminating against you that decided you in
this course of yours ?-A. No, it was not that.

Q. Did you entertain any doubt that yon would get fair play if you entered into
the contest?-A. I believed, your honour, if I entered into a contest it would be so
expensive I would have te quit. In that way it would not be fair play because I
could not last in the game.
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Q. That is not a direct answer to the question; had you reason to think that
Mr. Fawcett would be partial to the McDonalds and impartial to you ?-A. No, I
had no reason or positive reason.

Q. Did that consideration have any weight with you in entering into this
arrangement ?-A. No, I don't believe it did.

By Mr. George:

Q. Mr. Kelly, on this same point I ask you do yon consider yourself under
oath for one minute. It is a solemn thing to take an oath; I ask yon now to con-
sider yourself under oath. Didn't yon at the time you advised this arrangement
with your wife and these other people, didn't you know in your inmost soul that
your chances with McDonald and Fawcett, that tribune, would not amount to any-
thing; didn't you consider it so ?-A. I considered that Mr. Fawcett's court would be
a primary one only in a case of that kind, whether he gave the decision for or
against. I felt that it would go further if F antagonized the McDonalds who had
plenty of means. It would only open the breach further and it was desirable not to
do so. If his decision was adverse to us, we had not the means to go further; so if
for any 81,000 the whole matter could be settled, I thought it better to do so and
get back to business again.

Q. I will not ask you, Mr. Kelly, to antagonize the McDonalds by making a
straight answer.

The CoMMissIoNER.-You should not cast any aspersions, Mr. George.
Mr. TABOR.-He bas no right to asperse bis own witness' character.
Mr. GEoRGE.-I have not.
The CoMMIssIoNE.-You have if you intimate that he has not given the right

answer.
Mr. GEoRGE.-I have put the question to him three times, and want either an

answer, yes or no. It is either true or it is not true, and ho could say so without
equivocaion.

The COMMIssIoNER.-I think he said so.
Mr. GEORGE -In a round-abQut way.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-Ge told you, and I don't think the answer should be put

in any other form, that if Mr. Faweett's decision was adverse ho would have to stop;
if in his favour Mc Donald would appeal, and he bad not the money to go on with
the appeal.

Mr. GEoaGE.-That was not the question I asked-of course if the commission
was properly running as it would-

Tho COMMISSIONER.-It is properly rUnning. You are allowed every possible
latitude, and I don't see why you should grumble.

Mr. GEoRE.-I beg to suggest to you that this man is not under oath.
The COMMIsstONER.-If he states anything that is untrue he is liable to the same

penalty. Ho can refuse to answer if he chooses.
Mr. GEoRGE.-That is material though; I want to impress you with my sincerity

that "yes or no" answer would have done.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I don't doubt his sincerity because ho don't answer as you

wish. You must not try to asperse his character.
Mr. GEoRGE.-I didn't.
The CoMMIssIoNE.-You did-I consider it aspersion in my opinion.
Mr. TABoR.-I think Mr. Fawcett bas gone largely out of his way in this investi-

gation. We can clear this matter up, and I don't think these remarks by the
prosecution are called for. It was simply a matter of dollars and cents, in bringing
this matter before McDonald's agents.

Q. You didn't, Mr. Kelly, wish to run the expense of a trial in carrying on the
case ?-A. I couldn't even if I wished it.

Q. That was the only means to effect a settlement and to get possession of that
property ?-A. Our condition was such that we had no money to fight anything.

Q. That was your sole reason for advising that sort of a move?-A. Yes, sir.
Mr. GEoRGE.-l don't know that Mr. Craig is here.
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The CoMMISSIoNER.-Mr. Craig is here.
Mr. GEORGE.-I would like to get Donald McDonald's application.
Mr. TABo.-It is before the court.
The CoMMIssNE.-Any documents that are wanted, we will get them.
Mr. GEoRGE.-As I stated this morning this case was brought on in this way

largely for the satisfaction of witnesses who have come in so far. Wu failed to go
on with it under the royal commission, as you know, and we have only questions
from the witnesses what they give voluntarily. There are other witnesses I would
like to have got from a distance but was unable to do so, and so will submit the case
to you, not having any further evidence to submit.

The CoMMISSIoNER.-Will you remain and hear the defence ?
Mr. TABOR.-We are in the samo position as the prosecutors with reference to

taking evidence. No one has an advantage.

DOMINION OF CANADA
YUKoN TERRITORY

To WIT: )
1, Edward P. Miner, of Dawson in the Yukon Territory, miner, do solemnly

declare:
1. That the paper writiiig hereto annexed contains, from page 9 to 15 and from

page 35 to 43, a correct transcript of the questions put to me and my answers
thereto, upon the investigation before William Ogilvie, Esquire, commissioner of
the Yukon Territory, of a certain charge against Thomas Fawcett, formerly gold
commissioner of the Yukon Territory, the particulars of which said charge appear
in the said paper writing hereto annexed.

2. That the answers so given by me to the questions aforesaid are the truth,
the whole truth and nothing but the truth.

And I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing it to be true and
knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under oath, and by virtue
of the Canada Evidence Act, 1893.

E. P. MINER.
Declared before me at Dawson,

in the Yukon Territory, this
17th day of April, A.D. 1899.

D. H. P. CLEMENT, J.P.

DOMINION OF CANADA
YUKoN TERRITORY,

To WIT.

I, Elizabeth Miner, of Dawson in the Yukon Territory, married woman, do
solemnly declare:

1. That the paper writing hereto annexed contains, from page 26 to page 27
and on page 43, a correct transcript of the questions put to me and my answers
thereto, upon the investigation before William Ogilvie, Esquire, commissioner of
the Yukon Territory, of a certain charge against Thomas Fawcett, formerly gold
commissioner of the Yukon Territory, the particulars of which said charge appear
in the said paper writing hereto annexed.

2. That the answers so given by me to the questions aforesaid are the truth,
the whole truth and nothing but the truth.

And I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing it to be true and
knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under oath, and by virtue
of the Canada Evidence Act, 1893.

ELIZABETH MINER.
Declared before me at Dawson,

in the Yukon Territory, this>
17th day of April, A.D. 1899. )

D. H. P. CLEMENT, J.P.
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Mr. FAwCETT, called and cautioned that what he stated would be submitted to
him in writing for his affirmation.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. You remember Mrs. Miner and Mrs. Kelly coming to you with these
applications ?-A. I remember in the first place taking applications, myself. 1 took
applications on the first morning of September, and I think I took Mrs. Kelly's
application, and noted Mrs. Miner's application for the upper half of the same claim.

Q. You didn't take Mrs. Miner's application ?-A. No.
Q. What part of the office were you in ?-A. I went up stairs to assist. I don't

know after that, if I took any applications.
Q. What did you tell them when they put in their application ?-A. There was

a notice posted up that, ton days after the applications, records might be accepted;
in the meantime, applicanta would hold their claims.

Q. How soon after that did you take Mrs. Miner's; her application would be
taken some ten days afterwards ?-A. I don't know.

Q. You did not take it ?-A. No.
Q. When did you see them again ?-A. Pretty nearly the end of the month.
Q. What happened then ?-A. They came to see me at the office then, I think.
Q. State what took place ?-A. I don't remember, the records were ail made

up stairs. Any one coming to me, if their applications were accepted-to my
recollection it was about a month before the claims were all listed. On the first
day there would be about half a dozen applications. Mr. Landerkin went through
the records, and from information he got in the records, he made a list of the claims.
This is a sheet of the list (showing the list), they were all listed in that way.

Q. Did yon have that sheet when Mrs. Miner - ?-A. I would have that
sheet. When people came in for information, I sent them to Mr. Landerkin, and he
would send to me the information contained on that sheet with reference to any
claim.

Q. Do you remember whether Mrs. Miner and Kelly came to you the last time;
had they any complaiut to make about a claim?-A. I think they wanted to secure
record.

Q. What did you do ?-A. After receiving the iuformation I found that the
claims were contested.

Q. What did you find ?-A. I found there were three applications for the
claim.

Q. Who was the other two ?-A. Mr. McDonald, and I think also the ladies.
From what I had formerly heard about this matter, Mr. Alex. McDonald had been
to me about this claim before, and he said a man named Burt, who was owner of the
claim, owed him $2,000, and all the security ho had was this claim, and wantea to
know if he could represent on the ground for the claim or the renewal of the claim.
Finding it had not been represented, I told him no. I think, at the time, he
tendered a fee. Mr. Craig will remember that.

Q. That was Alex. McDonald ?-A. Yes, he tendered a fee for the claim. This
was not accepted. I told him ho could not renew. le wanted to know how he
might secure the claim. I told him I thought it could only be done under order in
court. My impression when he told me at the time, was, that the security was a
mortgage on the claim. I didn't search the records. He spoke of having some one
stake the grounds, of remaining on the ground and staking the ground on the lt
of September, and, of course, I told him he would have to take chances with other
applicants, with other contestants. I think that that was the arrangement that was
made. I think that is what I told the ladies when they applied to me to record the
claim. I think I told them about this other matter of Mr. McDonald securing and
staking on account of the $2,000.

Q. Did yon tell them, Mr. Fawcett, there was a mortgage on the claim from Mr.
McDonald ?-A. I understood that, when he told me ail the security he had was
this claim.
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Q. Do you know whether Joseph Clark was taking applications at that time ?-
A. He was. I appointed him recorder at the time of the opening of the claims on
the lst of September.

Q. Did Mrs. Miner or Mrs. Kelly make any - ?-A. I think you will find
Mrs. Kelly's application taken by myself for the upper half of No. 12 or the lower
half of No. 13 (I think it is No. 12), it was one of the first in the office. Turning
the list up, I find Mrs. Kelly has an application here for the lower half of No. 13.I
see it is taken by myself; 1 have noted that Mrs. Miner is an applicant for the upper
half. At the time, I had èxpected the commissioner would have been in before the
opening of the claims. I waited his arrivaL to know if the government would hold
half of the ground tht own open at that time.

Q. Is it your recollection, Mr. Fawcett, that you spoke about a contest ?-A.
Most certainly, I told the ladies it was contested, because the information I would
have was information I had from that sheet.

Q. You took your information from that sheet ?-A. Most certainly. That
would have named all the applicants for the claim.

Q. Have you ever seen the affidavit of Alex. McDonald-it is a curious fact it is
notsworn to ?-A. It is one of Mr. Clark's; it was a defect; Clark was guilty of
this mistake. I didn't find it out until the other day. The witness was sworn.

Q. The witness to Mr. McDonald's statement is sworn ?-A. Mr. McDonald has
signed the affidavit, but Mr. Clark has omitted to sign his own name, an omission on
Mr. Clark's part.

Q. At least that is the presumption ?-A. This is sometimes done; I have some-
times forgotten myself.

Q. Now, do yon remember of Mrs. Miner coming to you again at any time ?-
A. I never remember of Mrs. Miner coming alone. Mrs. Kelly and Mrs. Miner
usually came together, and, if I remember, Mrs. Kelly did ail the talking. .

Q. What was the conversation you had with tbem the second time ?-A. Any
conversation I had with the ladies I recollect was simply with reference to what
they wanted. The claim was contested, and until the matter was settled the claim
could not bo granted.

Q. Do you recollect never having said anything about there being S2,000 ?-A.
I don't recollect anything about $2,000. I perhaps did mention to the ladies as a side
issue that that might be of some weight, but I would not say that it had anything to
do with the contest.

Q. Do you think it is likely ?-A. My opinion is that it would not have
preverted. It would have altogether depended on the other. Of course I told the
ladies that it would be impossible to receive the claim without a contest, without a
hearing.

Q. Did you suggest any settlement to the ladies ?-A. I don't know.
Q. Do you remember Mr. Miner came to you ?-A. I rem3mber Mr. Miner

came with Mr. Kelly. They made a proposition to me with regard to a settlement,
and asked me if the contests were withdrawn by McDonald, would there then be
anything to prevent the ladies from receiving their record. I told them no.

Q. Ie this the application made out in the office-No. 70 ?-A. That is the
application taken by Clark.

Q. That is McDonald's signature-what does ho apply for there ?-A. 250 feet;
that is stated in the application.

Q. What part ?-A. The lower part, the part covered by Mrs. Kelly's application.
Q. Have you any other application from McDonald for 500 feet ?-A. Never saw

any for 500 feet, the only application ,is for 250 feet.

By the Commissioner:

Q. What le the date of that application ?-A. The 3rd day of September.
Applications were received for ton days after the first of September. Mrs. Miner'S
-I think it is not in that list. It came at a later date ; however, the note I made
on the margin of Mrs. Kelly's application, protected Mrs. Miner's right.
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Q. Do you remember anything taking place about a settlement in this matter
betweon McDonald, Mrs. Miner and Mrs. Kelly ?-A. I don't know anything of the
settlement. i was not prosent whon it was made. There was no settlement made
in my office except when Mr. Dougherty and Mr. Calder and Mr. Kelly and Mr.
Miner and the ladies came in and said the contest had been withdrawn, and the'y
were giving a mortgage for security on the indebtedness.

Q. Do you know whother any papers wore signed that day ?-A. I think they
were signed there on my table.

Q. As a cousequence of their signing those papers, what did you do ?-A. I
gave thom a letter to Mr. Craig and said that the matter had been arranged and the
contest was withdrawn.

Q. On whose authority did you issue this ?-A. On the authority of Mr.
McDonald's agent and the applicants themselves.

Q. Did Mr. McDonald's agent instruct you that the matter was settled ?-A.
They were there and told me that it had been arranged.

Q. On what Mr. McDonald's agent ?- A. On being assured that the contest had
been withdrawn they had arranged the matter outside of the office. 1 was not
going to bring on the contest.

Q. Is that all you know about the matter ?-A. That is all I know about the
matter.

By Mr. George:

Q. Mr. Fawcett, I will admit to you first that the answers to this cross-question-
ing is only voluntary on your part, and I will appreciate it if you will answer.-A.
I will answer any question.

Q. I realize you don!t have to. We will start at the last end of the testimony.
You gave a letter for them to take to Mr. Craig, stating that they might record ?-
A. Yes, Mr. Craig had before him a list showing that the claim was contested, and
that order from me was that this contest was withdrawn.

Q. We would like to know what decided you to lot them record ?-A. The
agreement of the gentlemen themselves, the contest being withdrawn.

Q. Had withdrawn the contest-was there a contest on the records-who with-
drew it ?-A. Nobody in my presence.

Q. Has it been withdrawn ?-A. Mr. McDonald's representative told me-
Q. Have you anything to show that it is withdrawn ?-A. Nothing, the time is

over for contesting.
Q. Was Donald McDonald in your presence that morning and said ho had with-

drawn it ?-A. 1 don't remember.
Q. Then you don't know but what he will come back and start an action ?-A.

I think he won't, the time would be passed after the grant had been issued. In fact,
I had confidence in those who represented Mr.McDonald. They told me thecontest
had been withdrawn.

Q. I want to make this point, that while you sent a note to Mr. Craig that morn-
ing so that they might record, " and that was the best we could do " or something
to that effect, you at the same time had not seen Donald McDonald ?-A. I took the
word of his agent.

Q. You mean Alex. McDonald's private secretary and agent was there and was
satisfied to call it off ?-A. I don't know anything about the arrangement. Mr.
Dougherty can tell you more than I can.

Q. I asked you, didn't ho tell you that he was satisfied to lot it go ?-A. I told
you just now that both Mr. Dougberty, Mr. Calder and the others said the arrange-
ment was made and the contest was withdrawn.

Q. And Dougherty told you ho was satisfied ?-A. They told me there that the
contest was withdrawn and arrangements were satisfactory-that all opposition was
withdrawn, that they had concluded everything.

Q. Had concluded everything for $1,000 ?-A. Whatever the consideration was;
of course that made no difference.
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Q. If Alex. McDonald's agent had not said that, you would not have allowed the
ladies to record ?-A. I could not if there had been no withdrawal of the contest; it
would not have been settled to this day.

Q. There was no application for it ?-A. As long as there three applications for
it could not be recorded.

Q. Did you know on that morning when they were talking in your office-did
you know there was a mortgage on the ground ?-A. I didn't know there was no
mortgage at that time.

Q. Then when you turned to Mr. Dougherty and asked him if he was satisfied,
you werq not reforring to a mortgage ?-A. No, I was referring to the whole con.
test.

Q. You wanted to say as you started in ?-A. I have given in my evidence, that
my opinion was, the mortgage would not have been worth-

Q. You wanted to see that it was paid. I will ask you as an honest man,- that
if Dougherty had not intervened and told you ho was satisfied, you would have
refused to record for the ladies ?-A. As long as the contest was not withdrawn I
could not record. As far as my recommending the payment of the mortgage when you
in your paper insinuated that some one had paid 82,000, I didn't know what that
referred to. I had to ask some one who knew more about it than i did.

Q. I think that we will leave that part of it out. You still suppose that at that
time there was a $2,000 mortgage against the property-did Dougherty show you any
power of attorney for Donald McDonald?-A. Well, Dougherty represented the
McDonalds. The brothers were together. I had it from Alex. MoDonald that he
got his brother to stake; they were interested together in it.

Q. What was bis object in staking for Alex. McDonald?-A. Well, he staked
the claim for his brother to help him.

Q. When Craig came to your office after theso parties had gone to his office to
record with your sanction, in writing a note saying yo had done the best you could,
did he not tell you there was nothing on record regarding the mortgage ?-A. I
don't recollect that ho wrote to me. I don't think he did. He bas since told me.

Q. What brought that to his mind, when did he tell yon ?-A. Not very long
ago. I went to ask for the mortgage to bring it into court.

Mr. TABoR.-I submit he could not tell.
Mr. GnoaG.-He suggested I come and find out.
Mr. FAwoTT.-Mr. Craig is here; I was going to ask Mr. Craig.
Mr. GEoRGE.-That is an important point-when ho bad learned that there was

no such thing as this mortgage.
Mr. FAwcETT.-I have told you.

By Mr. George:

When did you say ?-A. When I went to get the documents to bring them to
this court a little while ago. Then Mr. Craig told me the mortgage was not on
record.

Q. (Showing Mr. Fawcett a list of claims on Dominion Creek) Can you tell
When a document bas been changed?-A. Sometimes I can.

Q. This document bore, purporting to be a record of the application of Donald
McDenald,--is that the only one over in your office?-A. Yes.

Q. Quite positive of that?-A. I ar sure unless some person wrote another. I
never saw any other. You can find that out from the gentleman who took the
records; the first time I hunted it up was to bring it here. I could attest the hand-
writing myself. I am familiar witb it.

Q. When a miner goes out to stake a claim and the law says 250 feet, how much
should he stake ?-A. 250 feet.

Q. Suppose a staker wrote on his stakes 500 feet or 100 feet, would it affect the
validity of bis claim ?-A. If he brought it to a contest it would.

Q. Se it would result that if a man claimed any more than the law prescribed,
it would certainly affect the decision in your court ?-A. Yes.
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Q. So that the testimony of the witness who stated that Donald McDonald wrote
on hie lower post, " I claim 500 feet up stream," and on the other stake, " claim
500 feet down stream," that would invalidate this document ?-A. That would
have to be proved in court; he swore to staking 250 feet.

Q. Well, if ho came to you after staking 480 feet and called it 500 feet and swore
that ho had staked 250 ho would be liable to the penalty of perjury ?-A. I suppose
ho would be guilty of perjury if ho made a false oath.

By Air. Tabor:

Q. I think that is a hypothetical case ?-A. Yes.
Q. How long was this case pending from the time Mrs. Miner-?-A. The

list had just been prepared and theirs were among the firet listed.
Q. Did you suggest to them to fix a date for a contest with Donald McDonald ?

-A. There was no dates fixed at that time. Many of the dates were not yet fixed;
just came up casually.

Q. I will ask you to explain to the court, Mr. Fawcett, how was it that Alex
McDonald came to you and asked your advice about these matters ?-A. He asked
my advice about many matters.

Q. You.were good friends with Alex. McDonald ?-A. Yes, and friendly with
people generally, except those who abuse me.

Mr. GEoRGE.-The Nugget, for instance.
Mr. FAwCETT.-I don't think any one, as far as I know, had reason to charge

that I have not been friendly. I have given advice when I could give them any.
Q. So Alex. McDonald came to you to relate his business troubles ?-A. He

didn't state any of bis business troubles.
Q. It was trouble ?-A. I su ppose if you call it so.
Q. He said Mr. Burt owed him some money ?-A. He mentioned the circum-

stances.
Q. Is it customary for you ?-A. I don't know whether it is or not.
Q. This ho told you, other ho didn't ?-A. I don't recollect.
Q. Io it not a tact that ho needed you to help him out ?-A. I know ho came to

me to get a claim renewed, io bis money would be secured.
Q. Would the renewal of the claim secure his money ?-A. If the government

had granted him a certificate for it, certainly.

By Air. George:

Q. I want to show the motives in this: I will ask you if Mr. McDonald's agent
came to you and asked if ho had botter represent the claim ?-A. He didn't, no. He
may have spoken te me and wanted to know if ho could acquire the claim in that
way.

Q. And by your advice, didn't you advise him no; to let it go until it lapsed?
-A. No, I didn't advise him to do that, that was hie own idea.

Q. Did ho tell yon there was a mortgage on that for $2,000 ?-A. I understood
it that way.

Q. You told the ladies so, as soon as they paid the $2,000 ?-A. I gave them
liberty to record the claim as soon as the contest was withdrawn.

Q. Had Donald MoDonald withdrawn his contest ?
The CoMMIsIoNE.-We will have to have Donald McDonald here ?
Mr. GEoRGE.-Is ho in Dawson, Mr. Dougherty?
Mr. DouanEaT.-He is on Eldorado.

By Mr. George:

Q. Mr. Fawcett, did you hear the ladies state that you never mentioned a
contest?-A. I did.

Q. Did you hear them ètate positively that you mentioned mortgage ?-A. I
think the ladies were mistaken. They may bave thonght the mortgage was meant
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when I spoke of contest, which of couise it was; I don't think the ladies
intentionally stated what was not correct.

Q. The main facts are admitted that when they assumed the $2,000 indebtedness
everything was off and they were allowed to record ?-A. I have said half a dozen
times over that when the contest was over they would be allowed to record.

By the Commi8sioner:

Q. Mr. Fawcett, do you remember my coming to your office one day while I
was still living in the barracks and submitting this case to you, stating that I had
been asked this question-as to the validity of the mortgagee's title if the mortagor's
title elapsed ?-A. I have some recollection of discussing the question.

Q. The question was referred to me in the way I referred it to you. I went to
your office, sat beside you, and told you everything without mentioning names; I
stated the facts and gave you my impression of what should be done, in order that
your hands might be strengthened, and I undorstood you to agree with me; that in
this case that if the names of McDonalds were substituted for the unknown parties,
you'would have no claim to the mortgage. That was my view ?-A. That was what
you stated to me, although I thought it was a matter which had never come up in
court; it would have to be decided; it had never come up.

Q. I wanted to know if you agreed with me, and your opinion and mine was
that Alex. McDonald in this case had no claim. That was brought up as a side
issue in connection with the other ?-A. I remember discussing the matter. I
don't think Alex. McDonald's case was mentioned.

The CoMMissIoNER.-That impresses itself on me because it was the first time I
had been asked the question.

Q. Do you remember some time later of seeing a statement in the Nugget
where high officials had benefited to the tune of $2,000, and asking me who was
alluded to, and I said I didn't know? We walked together and i said I will tell
you what it is, it is that case of Alex. McDonald's that is referred to and I asked
you what you knew about it. You said nothing?-A. I recollect it perfectly.

Q. I said that it is the only thing I can think of to which it might refer.-A.
I expected so.

Mr. GEORGE.-You have brought up a point which entitles me to ask another
question.

Q. You contend, Mr. Fawcett, that you were holding Mr. Donald McDonald's
contest ?-A. Most certainly.

Q. It struck you as a just thing to do that the payment of Alex. McDonald's
mortgage would call off the Donald McDonald contest ?-A. Not at all, the brothers
were doing business together.

Q. You said you didn't know of the mortgage ?-A. No; the commisuioner just
stated to you that he considered it of no validity.

Q. It didn't occur to you that Donald McDonald had presented bis contest to
secure the amount of the invalid mortgage that had run out?-A. I thought that
was the intention; I thought it was the intention to secure the money some how.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Do you think it was invalid ?-A. No.
Q. You had, then, a conversation with Mr. McDonald ?-A. Yes.
Q. When he came to renew the claim?-A, Yes.

Mr. R. B. CRAIG called and cautioned.

By Mr. Tabor;
Q. What are your duties ?-A. Miniig recorder.
Q. What have been your particular duties since September ?-A. I have been

acting as recorder part of the time, and part of the time copying records.
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Q. Have you re-located claims ?-A. Part of the time.
Q. Have you had different applications for the same claim?-A. Yes.
Q. What did you do with those when you had more than one application for

the one claim ?-A. It romains for contest in court to decide which will have the
ground.

Q. Did you ever grant a claim to more than one applicant ?-A. No.
Q. Do you recognize that sheet, Mr. Craig? (Showing him a list of Dominion

Creek claims.)-A. Yes.
Q. What is that ai list of ?-A. That is a list of some of the claims applied for

on Dominion Creek, posted in the order in which they came in.
Q. Who makes the list ?-A. Mr. Landerkin.
Q. Have you any other list than that?-A. No other list.
Q. Was it usual for you to have application from the gold commissioner in

reference to these cases ?-A. Yes, sometimes the people called on him and ho called
up stairs for the particulars of the case.

Q. Do you remember of his sending for information regarding claim No. 13
above on Dominion ?-A. I don't remember him ever sending to me for information
about it. 1 remember it being talked about several times.

Q. If ho sent to you, what information would you send him?-A. That there
were three applications for the original claim.

Q. Did Mr. Fawcett ever make application to you if there was a mortgage
against that claim ?-A. He asked me recently if there was a mortgage on it.

Q. When was that ?-A. About a week or ten days ago.
Q. What did you reply ?-A. There was none.
Q. Now, Mr. Craig, do you remember when this claim was eettled-the exact

date ?-A. I remember the occasion but don't remember the date.
Q. What do you remember about the occasion of the settlement of the claim ?-

A. I remember Mr. Kelly came to me with Donald McDonald, and Mr. Kelly was
spokesman. He said that it had been decided to compromise the matter by assum-
ing the debt which the former owner, Burt, owed Alex. McDonald, in order that
the two ladies might get their grants and bond the property to Alexander, who was
going to London to sell the claims.

Q. Donald McDonald was there too ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did Donald McDonald withdraw his contest ?-A. He said so to me.
Q. Well, do yon remember the record being granted to Mrs. Miner ?-A. Yes, I

granted ber certificate.
Q. State the circumstances ?-A. There was nothing unusual. I remember them

bringing a note from Mr. Fawcett; they had evidently been to him. I had seen
McDonald myself outside with Mr. Kelly in front of the office.

Q. Do you remember the contents of the note ?-A. I read it at the time; I
don't know the contents now. On the strength of the note and the information I
received from Mr. McDonald I issued the grant.

By Mr. George:

Q. I was not listening as closely as I might have been. Did you notify Mr.
Fawcett that there were three applicants for this piece of ground ?-A. I don't
know that I did.

Q. How did Mr. Fawcett know it ?-A. He possibly received information from
Mr. Landerkin who was assisting him.

Q. Is this the record Landerkin compiled from those applications you see there ?
Yeu understand the records in the office ?-A. I think so.

Q. Can you tell me how many applicants for No. 13 there are ?-A. Three.
Q. How many applicants for the lower j ?-A. Two.
Q. How many for the upper J?-A. One.
Q. No contest on the upper J ?-A. No.
Q. Would yon see any reason la the records for denying a claim for that upper

S?-A. 1 see there are 3 applicants for the original claim.
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Q. There is no contest on the upper j is there ?-A. The contest affects the
whole claim, 500 feet if there was 500 feet.

Q. Why?-A. Because three staked at the same time.
Q. Who claims the upper j ?-A. Elizabeth Miner.
Q. There was a contest against her recording the claim; it would be a lie-?

-A. I would not be responsible for what any person told Mrs. Miner.
Q. You would not have told her ?-A. I might have told her there was a claim

on the original.
Q. Why would you have told ber, tell me, as an expert, and myself an outsider

looking for information, tell me what had the contest between Mrs. Kelly and
Donald McDonald, as shewn in the records here, to do with Mrs. Miner being refused a
record ?-A. I don't understand you.

Q. Did Donald McDonald claim the upper J ?-A. No, the lower J.
Q. Then that does not affect Mrs. Miner ?-A. Does not affect her claim to the

upper J, no.
Q. There is no contest on the upper J; no, not from Donald McDonald, have

you ?-A. There is no contest.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Was it your custom to consider that both these claims were contested if
there was a contest on ?-A. It depended upon the information I received when
tracing the tities to original claims. We migbt have information that there was
very little ground there; perbaps only 250 feet of ground. Other information of
that kind would collect, and that would influence the issuing of the grant or the
holding of the grant.

Q. You dîdii't issue grants for ý of the claims unless you were perfectly sure as
you could be from the information you were able to secure. In this case here, it is
a special case. You didn't know about the claim ?-A. I was told by the owner of
No. 14 that they had staked over him: 250 feet.

Q. So that would have a very decided bearing on the question you knew it at
this time?-A. I was told so by Nicholson, the owner of 14.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Was that why you informed Mrs. Miner that ber ground was contested ?-
A. That would be one of the reasons.

Q. Are you positive that is one of the reasons ?-A. Perhaps It was not men-
tioned, but it was in mymind and influenced what I might tell ber, if I had told her,
I don'tremember that Mrs. Miner called on me except when I took her application,
and also when I took her certificate.

Q. You never gave her information ?-A. I may have.
Q. She would be one of thousands who called for information; you are not

Positive she didn't ?-A. Not positive.

By Mr. George :

Q. There is another subject brought up by that question of Mr. Tabor's which
is important to cover. You knew at the time that 14 claimed more ground ?-A&. I
knew that 13 had etaked over him.

Q. When you got this note from Mr. Fawcett to record that ground for Mrs.
Miner, what did you think of it ?-A. I recorded it.

Q. You did as the note told you. You didn't Cali Mr. Faweett'e attention to
the fact that there was no ground there ?-A. I don't think I did.

Q. You didn't think it of sufficient moment ?-A. I ws not aware of it; could
hardly be. I suppose there would not or I would not have received the note.

Q. The contest which since occurred was not the contest Mr. Fawcett claim he
told the ladies was on ? This contest was not in existence; you mentioned the con-
test.-A. I mentionel it as a reason that might influence my decision.
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Q. That contest was not in existence at the time she recorded ?-A. I know
the fact that I was acting with information.

Q. You must admit that there was no contest before Mrs. Miner recorded ?-A.
I could not admit anything I don't know.

Q. Between Mrs. Miner and 14?-A. I don't know if ià was on them.
Q. This would not be on Mrs. Miner if she had not recorded.

JAMEs E. DoUGHERTY, called and cautioned regarding the oath.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. What is your business, Mr. Dougherty ?-A. I am Alexander McDonald's
private secretary and agent.

Q. You have been in court all the afternoon, have you not?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Tell us what you know about this matter ?-A. Well, shortly after Mr.

McDonald went out, Mr. Kelly came into my office, which was thon in the A. C.
Company's store, and said he had been trying to effect a compromise between Alex.
ander McDonald and Donald McDonald in regard to claim No. 13, above Upper
Discovery on Dominion Creek.

Q. Who did you say this was who came in to see you ?-A. J. T. Kelly.
Q. And what took place ?-A. He said: " I am aware of the fact that Mr.

McDonald has now taken a contest from Dominion Creek to Ottawa, and as I am in
no position to cope with Mr. McDonald, in a financial way, even though the contest
was favourable to us in Mr. Faweett's tribunal, 1, on behalf of Mrs. Kelly and Mrs.
Miner, wish to make you a business proposition, and have Mr. Donald McDonald's
contest'withdrawn."

Q. Was the business proposition made then ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What was the proposition ?-A. He stated that if you and Mr. Calder, on

behait of Mr. A. McDonald and Mr. Donald McDonald, will withdraw the contest,
we are willing to assume Mr. Burt's note; and also, we will, when Lhe claims are
recorded, place a value on them and give them to you to send outside, or place them
in the bank in deed of escrow, and send them to Mr. McDonald for sale. Mr. Calder
and myself talked the matter over and thought it a very good business proposition,
and concluded to accept it.

Q. Do you know how that contest came up? Do you know how that contest
arose between Donald McDonald, Mrs. Kelly and Mrs. Miner ?-A. I had some
knowledge that they both had staked the claim.

Q. Do you know how Donald McDonald came to stake that claim ?-A. Yes.
Q. You judge it was Mr. Alexander McDonald advised him, in order to protect

bis interests to go and stake that claim? Who was Mr. Calder acting for? A.
Alexander McDonald.

Q. You were both acting for Alexander ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Was the settlement of this contest Alexander's or Donald's business?-A.

Alexander's business.
Q. As a result of your conversation with Mr. Kelly, what took place?-A.

Well, I told him that I would wait and see Mr. Calder, that as far as 1 wa con-
cerned it appeared to be a very good business proposition and I would approve
of it.

Q. And what did you do? A. We accepted it; Mr. Calder and 1. Mr. Kelly
did all the talking, and when we met again I told Mr. Kelly that I had seen Mr.
Calder and that we would accept their proposition.

Q. What was this $2,000 ? Why was this consideration ?-A. That was a note
that Mr. Burt owed Mr. McDonald on the claim.

Q. And how was this settled ?-A. It was settled by a mortgage and a note on
the claim.
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Q. Who drew the moitgage ?-A. I drew it.
Q. Where was it settled ?-A. It was settiel in my office in the A. C. Com.

pany's at that time.
Q. Where was the mortgage signed and executed ?-A. It was signed in Mr.

Faweett's office.
Q. And all the arrangements leading up to the settiement with the exception

of the signing of the mortgage was made in your office ?-A. Yes, sir, in my office
in the A. C. Company's store.

Q. Who were you negotiating chiefly with in regard to this settlement ?-A.
The negotiating and arrangements were principally made with Mr. Kelly; he
appeared to act as agent for Mrs. Kelly and Mrs. Miner.

Q. When this mortgage was executed in Mr. Fawcett's office were you present ?
-A. Yes, sir.

Q. You say you drew this mortgage ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What was this mortgage given as a consideration for ?-A. That was to

secure a debt owed by one Burt.
Q. Why did Mrs. Kelly and Mrs. Miner sign this ?-A. Well, they wanted us

to withdraw Mr. Donald McDonald's contest, and said that they would agree to sign
this mortgage.

Q. And did Mr. Donald have anything to say about the withdrawing of this con-
test?-A. He was sick up on Eldorado at the time; and he, merely acting directed
by Mr. Alex. McDonald, the same as any other man, to go over there and look
after that interest, why, we acting as superior agents, went to work and closed the
deal.

Q. Then you say these options were given as a part of the agreement to-?
-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do yon remember the price of the option that was fixed ?-A. I think
815,000 as near as I can remember.

Q. Was that fixed at the time ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Were you present when these options were signed ?-A. No, sir. I think I

suggested Messrs. Clark, Wade & Wilson to draw them up for them; I was very
busy.

Q. Wade, Clark & Wilson are McDonald's solicitors ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Were these recorded ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Who recorded them ?-A. I recorded them.
Q. They were hatided to you after they were executed ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Now, about signing these instruments; do you remember any letter given

by Mr. Fawcett to any one at the time this mortgage was signed ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What was it ?-A. There was a note given to me, I didn't read its contents;

I handed it to Mr. Craig, up stairs.
Q. Iow did Mr. Fawcett come to write that note ?-A. That [ couldn't say.
Q. Had you said anything to Mr. Fawcett about the settlement of this matter?

-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What did you tell Mr. Fawcett?-A. I believe Mr. Fawcett-Mr. Calder

and I went personally to Mr. Fawcett and told him we bad withdrawn Mr. Donald
McDonald's application to the aforesaid claim.

Q. When was this; this same date ?-A. I think it was that dayor the day after
when I talked it over.

Q. Was it when this was being signed ?-A. I would not be positive; it is to
long ago since it happened.

Q. And on your representations of the fact did Mr. Fawcett give you that note ?
-- A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you do with the note?-A. I banded it t: Mr. Craig.
Q. And what was done there ?-A. Well, I don't know; I didn't wait; I went

off about my business.
Q. Did you make any statement to ir. Craig ?-A. No, sir. I handed bim the

note, and took the mortgage to the next window-
Q. And you recorded the mortgage then ?-A. Yes, sir.
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By the Comnissioner:

Q. You say thore was a note given by Burt; J. L. Burt to Mr. Alex. McDonald
on this claim; what do you mean by saying it was given on the claim ?-A. Well,
it was un indebtedness owed by Burt to McDonald. It was simply an ordinary note
of hand; it didn't mention anything as security; I don't remember about the note;
it was taken and afterwards it was lost for some time-some weeks before we found
the note. I didn't know myself if it was a note or a mortgage or what it was at the
time the deal was made.

Q. At the time the deal was made you were ignorant of the nature of the
security ?-A. I knew there was a note or a mortgage, I didn't know which. I don't
know whether it was on record or how it stood.

Q. Was the indebtedness connected with this claim of Burt's in any way? You.
have since seen the note? Was there any allusion to the claim ?-A. No, there was
not. It was simply an ordinary promissory note; that is a note similar to the one
given subsequently.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Do you know, Mr. Dougherty, what Mr. McDonald's custom was about hi&
mortgages? Did he always put thom on record at once ?-A. No, mir, he didn't, he
was very careless about that; sometimes he did and sometimes he didn't. It was a
very difficuit matter to keep track of the papers and deas ho used to make in that
way; sometimes he would carry them in bis pocket for weeks and months and some-
times lose them.

Q. Was there any arrangement made with regard to this date at the time this
agreement was entored into-the mortgage note ?-A. I believe July lst.

Q. Was there any arrangement made with Kelly in regard to this debt of Burt
to McDonald ?--A. Yes, sir, he agreed to transfer the note.

Q. What became of it ?-A. 1 bave it.
Q. How is that note made out ?-A. As near as I can remember, it is an ordi-

nary promissory note.

By the Conmissioner: •

Q. Hadn't we botter submit the note ?-A. It is a non-negotiable note made out,
to Alex. Mc Donald.

Q. You have no authority to transfer it ?-A. No, not until he comes in.
Q. Your authority does not go that fur ?-A. No, sir.

By Mr& George.

Q. Mr. Dougherty, your position is as private secretary and agent to Alex.
McDonald ?-A. Private secretary and agent.

Q. You are empowered to speak for Alex. McDonald-what position do you
hold with reference to Donald McDonald ?-A. Wel, in conjunction with Mr. Calder,
we have the entire handling of Mr. Alex. MoDonald's property.

Q. Yourself and Mr. Calder and Donald in handling Alex. McDonald's property
-who is superior ?-A. Mr. Calder.

Q. But still you can speak for Donald McDonald, or both of you eau ?-A. Both
of us can.

Q. When you went in that day-on the day you secured the mortgage from
these ladies, you told Mr. Fawcett what ?-A. We told him that we had withdrawn
Mr. McDonald's contest.

Q. What McDonald wus this ?-A. Alex. McDonald's brother.
Q. What was the contest on ?-A. Contest on placer claim No. 13 above Dis-

covery on Dominion Creek. I don't know whether it was 500 feet.
Q. I thought you could speak for Donald McDonald ; if you didn't know what

ho did apply for, I don't want your evidence?-A. He applied for placer claim No.
1 above Upper Discovery. 168
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Q. Did ho apply for the whole 500 feet ?-A. I could not say.
Q. If you saw it in black and white would you cay 250 ?-A. If I saw it in black

and white I could.
Q. Do you know his signature ?-A. Yes.
Q. What did he apply for ? (presenting a copy of the application).-A. Accord-

ing to this, the lower half of Placer Creek claim No. 13 above Upper Discovery on
Dominion Creeir.

4. I will a-k you, as representative of Alex. McDonald and Donald McDonald,
what contest, what right, what lien, what mortgage you had on the upper half of
No. 13 above Upper Discovery on Dominion ?-A. What lien we had on the claim ?
Mr. Alex. McDonald sent him to secure that claim just the same as ho would sond
me out to collect a debt that was owed.

Q. Did ho secure it ?-A. He did; it was being contested the same as a bill;
and was refused to be paid.

Q. What did he securo if ho only applied for the lower half ?-A. He applied
for it.

Q. What hold did be have on the upper half ?-A. I don't know what he applied
for. f know ho staked a claim there.

Q. When you asked Mr. Fawcett to refuse to record for Mrs. Miner, you asked
him to do so thinking you bad some lien on this that you now see you have not
got?-A. We had a lien on it at that time.

Q. What did you have on it ?-A. We bad Mr. McDonald's obligation.
Mr. GEoRGE Bays: I don't know if I am oi, or if some one else is. I declare I

will have to be helped out here.

By the Commissioner:

Q. I think you have substituted names; you asked him really, " when ho asked
Mr. Fawcett to secure this interest," did you not mean Mr. McDonald instead of Mr.
Fawcett ?-A. 1 meant Mr. Fawcett. I want so know what McDonald's agents or
friends had to do with the upper half of No. 13, hnd they a inortgage on it, had they
a note on it, had Donald McDonald staked it or applied for it, or what kind of a lien
or hold had they on it?

The CommIssIoNE.-It appears to me quite plain, the note was only a promis-
sory note, and Donald McDoua!d had applied for half of the claim. I understood
that in the beginning.

By Mr. George:

Q. I am asking, do you know anything against the upper half?-A. I don't
know. All I know was there was a claim there, and it might be 500 feet and it
might be 250; as a general rule the claims between the discoveries on Dominion
Creek are generally short.

. Q. Did you have any hold on the upper half, yes or no-take it up one way or
the other-did you have a mortgage on it? did Donald stake it? did he claim it?
You are speaking for him, yon are his special superior agent ?-A. I could not tell
without soeing the claim, what ho did stake.

Q. What did he ay ho staked ?-A. States lie staked the lower half of No. 13
above Upper Discovery.

Q. Did ho claim to have anything else?-A. No.
Q. Can yon tell why Mr. Fawcett prevented Mrs. Miner recording the upper

half-wby did ho make her pay $1,000 for the upper half, do you know of any
reason? Yon don't offerto tell it-every body else would like to know this.-A.
Well. I know of no reason without Mr. Fawcett knew the ground was not there.

Mr. GEoRGE.-We will have to let that go.

By the Commissioner :

Q. Do you know, Mr. Dougherty, we would like to set this question at rest-
do you now consider that Donald McDonald had any legal right or title to be con-
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sidered a claimant for the upper half of this claim No. 13?-A. Not according to
the application.

Q. You consider that now, fron the knowledge you have now ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. When did you come into possession of this knowledge ? -A. Well, not until

I saw the application.
Q. When did you see the application ?-A. A few minutes ago.
Q. Well, from the knowledge you have now, you don't consider Donald Mc-

Donald had any claim to the upper half of that original claim, the only claim, if any,
was on the part he applied for ?-A. The part ho applied for, yes, sir.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Iad you over any conversation with Mr. Fawcett relative to him not letting
any one have this ground until the money was paid ?-A. No, sir.

Mr. GEoaoG.-I supposed it was Alex. that had the conversation.
Q. But you did know that inmediately you appearod on the scene and told Mr.

Pawcett that you withdrew ail the McDonald contest or fight, thon they
allowed Mrs. Miner to record, and yo went with her and saw ber record ?-A. No;
I went up stairs and handed a note to Mr. Craig.

Q. You wore not looking until she gave you this $1,000 ?-A. No, sir.
Mrs. KELLY.-Can I ask two questions ?
Q. If Mr. Dougherty has not any claim on the upper half, how can ho claim the

lower half, when ho staked improperly? Ho staked where Mrs. Miner staked.
How can ho have a lien on my part?

The CoMMIssioNER.-That would all have to be threshed out.
Mrs. KELLY.-He cannot colicut, thon, can ho, under these conditions?
The CoMmissIoNER.-Better ask some one else; consult some1 lawyer. I am not

hore to give opinions.
MIs. KELLY.-I see he staked 250 feet by the application, whon ho really staked

480 feot.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Had you gone on with the contest that would have come out ?-A. I think
wo shall go on with it. Have you decided thoir right to any part of the claim?

The COMMIsIoNER.-This is no contest; it is a clearing up of this question.

ALEXANDER CALDER, boing duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Tabor :

Q. State as shortly as yon can what you know about this matter ?-A. I don't
know very nuch about it.

Q. Did you have anything to do with the agreement ?-A. Yes, I signed it, if
my signature was of any accounit according to the way it was givon.

Q. What is your position ?-A. I am Alexander McDonald's agent; I hold bis
power of attorney to a certain extont.

Q. What agreement did you make, and with whom, in regard to this question
in dispute?-A. Weil, Mr. Kelly had nogotiated with Mr. Dougherty, and I was
made to understand that they were going to settie the thing between thom, and
they would assume the indebtednoss, and Donald McDonald's claim to the claim
would be withdrawn. We agreed to that. We went over to the gold commissioner's
office and we presonted our view, and were willing to do so.

Q. Did you know what the agreement was?-A. No, I can't go into details
about it. I knew well enough that Donald McDonald had put in a claim for it, and
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Alexander McDonald; I don't know how the thing was handled; I know there was
an indebtedness of some kind against the claim.

Q. Did you know how Donald McDonald came to stake the claim?-A. Well, I
was being made to understand that his brother sent him over to stake the claim.

Q. Why ?-A. I suppose so that ho would have a chance to get his money out
of the claim.

Q. What was this indebtedness, and to whom ?-A. It was a man naned Burt.
I know the man when I see him.

Q. What was the nature of the security ?-A. I understood it was a note. I
saw the note, but i actually can't tell you about it.

Q. Do you know how much Mr. McDonald claimed of No. 13?-A. Well, no, I
don't know how much he claimed.

Q. You don't know what the contest was about ?-A. Woll, I don't know how
many feet ho clairned. I know well enough to understand ho went ovei there and
staked.

Q. You knew this contest was on ?-A. I knew ho was talking of contesting the
claim.

Q. And this agreement was for the purpo-e of withdrawing this contest ?-
A. Yes.

Q. Did you have to consent to it ?-A. I did not have to, but agreed to.
Q. And you say you went with Mr. Dougherty to the gold commissionor's office

and agreed to have the contest withdrawn ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you see any of those papers ?-A. Well, I can't say anything at ail

about it.
Q. Wore you there when the mortgages were signed ?-A. That I cannot say

for sure.
Q. You didn't see Mr. Kelly at all ?-A. Yes, I spoke to Mr. Kelly, but I forget

exactly what we wero talking about, but ho did most of the talking with Mr.
Dougherty.

Q. You did not arrange anything Mr. Kelly ?-A. I understood the whole
thing, sure, and understood that Kelly was agreeable to it.

Q. You didn't understand it from Kelly,just from Dougherty?-A. Toa certain
extent. I didn't go into details with Kelly about it. We considered the thing was
sottled, and we would settle it that way.

Q. The terms of the agreement that were arrived at, you only know from Mr.
Dougherty ?-A. Yes.

Q. You didn't consult with Kelly about that ?-A. I can't say for sure. I think
we had been talking it over, but can't say for certain what conclusion we came to.
I heard it from a conversation we had about it.

Q. You consented to the withdrawal of the application by Donald McDonald ?-
A. I consented that the claim of McDonald-on that disputed ground on Dominion
Creek-that we would withdraw it on the conditions. I suppose in some way to
secure that indebtedness.

Q. Had you power to do that ?-A. I suppose we had.
Q. That ground was only staked to eecure that claim?-A. Yes, I suppose so;

that was the way I understood it, and I understand it.
Q. Do you know whether McDonald withdrew his application ?-A. Well, he

withdrew it verbally; I don't think he had given writing. I was made to under-
stand ho withdrow it. I am quite confident of it. I am sure enough of it, ho will
never put in any claim.

By Mr. George:

Q. You say, Mr. Calder, you have power of attorney for Alox. McDonald ?-A.
Unless I have lost it, and I don't think I have.

Q. You say you consented to lot Mr. Fawcott record this claim for these ladies?
-A. Well, 1 didin't understand it that way. I didn't give consent toword it in that
way.
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Q. Wel, we only have your word. He wouldn't record until you did consent.
You don't want to be understood you had no strings on Mr. Fawcett ?-A. Well,
surely never had ; never thonght I had, and know I haven't.

Q. Had you any on Donald McDonald ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Can you talk for him ?-A. I can about this matter; I know well enough

that according to this agreement ho would trouble no more.
Q. He won't go back on yon, you say ?-A. No.
Q. You afterwards valued this claim between yon at $15,000-$30,000 for the

two halves? -A. That is, I suppose, tho price set on the claim.
Q. Can you give away a 830,000 claim by your consenting, that Donald

McDonald has no hold on ?-A. Well, I don't know that; I don't know what I
could do. If I could have done anything like that I wouldn't do what I could; I
could not do it.

Q. Yon did ? that is more of it.-A. If I did the thing that way-
Q. Have you power of attorney from Mr. Donald McDonald ?-A. No.
Q. Is it not a fact that when you signed that note in behalf of Alex. McDonald,

yon really signed in bebalf of Donald McDonald ? Who were you signing for ?-A.
I was signing, as power of attorney, for Alex. McDonald.

Q. So that when you went in that morning before Mr. Fawcett and signed-
A. Indeed, I cannot tell yon whether it was morning or afternoon.

Q. Well, say that day.-A. You say day? I don't know the day either.
Q. Well, it was some time?-A. Why, it was during tho day time.
Q. You went there before Mr. Faweett and gave your consent. Did Mr.

Faweett have to ask your consent ?-A. Well, no; ho didn't ask my consent.
Q. Was ho waiting for your consent ?-A. I don't know whether ho was or not.
Q. He was holding the ladies off until ho got your consent?-A. I don't know.
Q. You are the representative of Alex. McDonald ?-A. Yers, sir.
Q. From testimony we have, when ho got your consent, ho immediately

recorded for the ladies, or allowed it?-A. I don't know about that.
Q. What induced your consent ?-A. My consent?
Q. Yeu had been refusing before this ?-A. No, sir; I bad not talked about it

until thon.
Q. Until your consent was wanted ?-A. No, sir; when my consent was asked

for I couldn't see any reason. There might have been, but if there was I didn't seo
them ut the time.

Q. You gave your consent in behalf of Alex. McDonald whom you represented ?
-A. Yes.

Q. Why was Alex. McDonald's consent necessary ?-A. I don't know whether
it was or not.

Q. But suppose it were, you gave it ?-A. Sure, if ho had, why, I don't know
whether ho had or not.

Q. Before you gavo consent you took care that 2 mortgages were placed to
your credit ?-A. Well, I suppose I was made to understanri that there were mort-
gages drawn up.

Q. In favour of whom-of Donald or Alex. UcDonald?-A. The mortgages were
in favour of Alex. McDonald.

Q. WelI, what has all this to do with Donald, who was supposed to have a con-
test on the claim ?-A. Well, I suppose being his brother, Alexander's brother,
Alex. had sent and advised him to go over and stake tho claim.

Q. A brotherly arrangement ?-A. Yon can call it what you like.
Q. I wanted to find out whether it was necessary, before our gold commissioner

could do anything, ho had to get your consent ? That is a question that hasn't come
to you yet, and you can't explain-it--why Mr. Faweett had to get your consent to a
piece of your business ?-A. You will have to answer that question yourself; I am
trying to tell you ail I know.

By the Commisioner:
Q. Was there any understanding between you and Donald McDonald and Mr.

Dougherty, that you were to represent Donald McDonald in any way ?-A. Weil,
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there was no particular understanding, but the land boing staked at the time, we
took it on ourselves to act for him in that case, that we know well onough that the
man would withdraw any claim he should bave or had on that claim, on such con-
ditions referred to.

Q. l there an understanding between Donald McDonald and Alex. that you
have not any knowiedge of?-A. Well, I didn't hear that talked of. Of course, I
am not in possession of any direct knowledge of that, air, whether there is or not.

Q. You heard Mr. Dougherty state some time ago that he reprosented Donald
McDonald ?-A. I thought I understood that. I suppose he does, or has an under-
standing with him.

Mr. GEoRGE.-He says ho was acting for Alex. McDonald ?
The COMMIssINER.-No, I understood ho reproesented Donald McDonald as well

as Alex.

By Mr. George:

Q. Now, Mr. Calder, you will please tell us what interest Alex. McDonald
had in this claim? I don't mean that he would like to have it or want to have it,
but what tenable hold had ho on the claim at that time ?-A. Well, to be honest
about it, I don't think it is in my power to ex plain it to you any more than which
has been done already by some people standing bore. Upon my word, I can't
describe it any botter than any of the people who stood in this place to-day, what
claim he ad. You know the claim as well as 1 do.

Q. It is sometimes hard to drive a railway spike, you have to bit it several
times; I am hammering in another nail. It takes a whole lot of nails to bury a
man. I want to tind from yon what hold he had on that claim, that Mr. Fawcett
held it until his agent was satisfied ?-A. I don't know, unless it was this indebted-
ness he held against the claim; the man had probably skipped the country owing
McDonald 82 000. He went out of the country but bas come in now.

Q. This claim in dispute was formerly owned by Burt ?-A. That is the way I
understand it.

Q. Yon know the regulations here-didn't that claim revert to the Dominion at
that time; wasn't it Dominion ground when the ladies staked it ?-A. Yes, that is
what it was considered to be.

Q. There was no mortgage, no note, no lien, no indebtedness or anything of
that kind on that Dominion ground ?-A. I don't understand it is.

Q. So virtually, Alex. McDonald had no claim on that ground. I will ask you
once more if you can give any reason why your consent was necessary, acting as
representative of Alex. McDonald, before our worthy gold commissioner would
record for certain ladies ?-A. Well, I don't know what to say in regard to that.

By the Conmisioner:

Q. Mr. Calder, I asked Mr. Dougherty a while ago a question and I will ask
you the same-if you, at the time this transaction occurred, had known the facts as
yon know them now. would you consider that Alex. McDonald had any claim there
at ail ?-A. Well, no, [ can't say I could.

Q. Would you have considered he had any claim knowing what you know
now ?-A. No, no claim against the claim.

Q. When did you come into possession of that knowledge? -A. Just bore in
court. I didn't think the matter over very seriouely any time before now; never
thought in my if'e I would have to give any account of it.

Q. Knowing what yon know now, do yon consider Alex. McDonald hiad any claim
on No. 13 ?-A. No legal claim.

Q. I think that le what Mr. George wanted to get at; Mr. George said some.
thing like that.

173



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 87A.)

By Mr. George:

Q. Now, ground was vacant Dominion ground; why was it necessary for Mr.
Fawcett to get your consent? I want to got an answer to that. Why would any
person before ho would record it to theso ladies ? Is it not a fact ?-A. I don't
know, I hear everybody say there were three people contesting for the ground, and
there was the ground. I should think there would be reason for Mr. Fawcett not to
record it until it was sottled.

Q. You have seen the records produced. There were two people contesting for
the lower half and one for the upper. Would there be a contest on the upper half ?
-A. No, not as I understand it.

Q. So really, there was no contest on the upper half was there, no matter what
other thore might have been ?-A. Thore didn't seem to bc.

Q. Now, thon, you will consent to tell me whether thore vas a great friendship
between M r. Fawcett and Mr. Alex. McDonald ?-A. Indeed, I don't know.

Q. Is it not a fact that he went to Mr. Fawcett with bis troubla ?-A. I am not
aware of it.

The CoMM[ssIoNEa.-This las no bearing on the question.

By Mr. George:

Q. It nover entered my hoad that any of the $2,000 went into Mr. Fawcett's
pocket. I didn't claim that was a consideration. It was claimed it was for friend-
ship's sake. I took particular note of it; it is a very pertinent point. Do you
know if Mr. Fawcett came to McDonuld's place of business ?-A. Never saw him
there.

Q. Do you know of McDonald running to Fawcett's ?-A. Well, 1 have seen
him on a fow occasions going to the recording office.

Q. You knew he had consulted him about these claims ?-A. No, not in par-
ticular.

Q. You hoard Mr. Fawcett testify to it?-A. Yes, I understand he did by
evidence given to-day.

Q. Mr. Alex. McDonald never gave you to understand ho stood in with Mr.
Fawcett ?-A. No, sir.

Q. Never gave you to understand ho was regarded with favoui there ?-A. No,
si r,

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. You say you understand that this man staked this-that Donald McDonald
staked to secure a claim for Alexander ?-A. Yes, that im the way I understood it.

Q. Acting thon, therefore, simply as Alexander McDonald's agent in the matter ?
-A. I don't know whether ho was his agent or not.

Q. I am leading up to what caused you to give your consent. Do you under-
stand ho was his agent; that he was acting under his instructions; that he advised
him or something like that, or told him to go over and stake that claim ?-A. I
didn't hear Alexander McDonald say so himsolf, but I understood it in this way.

Q. Of course this is not very good evidence, but so much of this sort of evidence
has gone in, a little more will have to be brought out to counteract what bas been
submitted by the other side. Thon, it was your understanding that Alexander
McDonald was an interested party in that claim, having sent his brother out to
stake ?-A. Yes, ho was interested in somebody getting bold of the claim that he
should be able to get his money back.

Q. And therefore you consider Alexander McDonald was an interested party ?
-A. Yes, sure.

Q. It was that tbat led you to give your consent and take the action you did ?-
A. Certainly.

The CoMmissIoNEr.-In this case I want to make a suggestion; it will take
some time to typewrite al] this. I don't wish to bold those people bore until then to
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make their statutory declaration; and would suggest that they may go home, and I
will send it out with some one to take their declaration, have them carefully read it
over and sign it before him, if that is agreeable to all parties.

Agreed.

Mr. LANDERKIN, called and sworn, testified as follows:

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. What are your dutics, Mr. Landerkin ?-A. Clerk in the gold conmissioner's
office.

Q. What particular duties do you perform ?-A. lu the rolocation department
since it opened.

Q. What have you been doing ?-A. I have been tracing records.
Q. Anything else in particular ?-A. Nothing else in particular.
Q. Do you trace ?-A. The record applications wore taken and handed to me

and 1 put them on a shoet, on a list.
Q. Have you any of the lists in court ?-A. I have.
Q. Are thoe the lists ?-A. This is the list in question (showing the list).
Q. Did you make t'-is list ?-A. I did, sir.
Q. How did you make that ? -A. These applications are taken and put on

hero so that 1 could get the applications for the same claims as close together as I
could while I traced them ?

Q. Where did you get your information from ?-A. From the records.
Q. From the applications ?-A. No, from the rocords; it is a condensed detail

of the applications.
Q. You took those applications yourself?-A. Yes.
Q. Wore thore any other lists of these made ?-A. Not by me.
Q. Did you ever Wee another list?-A. No, not of an official capacity.
Q. Lat us know how you got this prior application ; where did you get the

applications fi om ?-A. Fion the records.
Q. Just us they came in ?-A. Evory night.
Q. You made the lists from them ?-A. Yes.
Q. You knew this claim "13" above Discovery on Dominion; you made this

list ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you ever know of any other list of that claim ?-A. Never.
Q. Any other liais in the office except that one; did you ever have five

hundred feet marked on this sheet at any timo?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you over see any slip of paper with those claims on, with a claim showing

five hundred feet ?-A. To the best of my rocollection, I nover did.
Q. Thero are three applicants for that claim; is this your writing " Contested

in court" ?-A. It is, sir.
Q. What i this rei writing. Road it out ?-A. It is "number 3972 renewed

14th July, 1898."
Q. Did McDonald and Gates know what this renewal meant?-A. Well, at the

tine that was put down I made an error; it should have been a renewal for 3972
for thirteen below; where B was made I took it for A above.

Q. Whon did you put that renewal on ?-A. I cau't aay.
Q. Iow long after making the list ?-A. 1 can't give you the slightest idea; I

put it on at the time I four.d it.
Q. That claim beside boing conteated, it is marked renewed ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. The contest in court might have been due to the applicant's coming in, and

if we are to conteat it there would bo a contest with three applicants for the one
portion-two for the lower half. "Renewed" boing put on there, why shouldn't
it ?-A. If that hadn't been put on the application would not bo considered at all.
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Q. You can't remember the date which was put on it?-A. No, sir, I couldn't
give you anything accurate at ail.

Q. Well, with the information contained there, if you saw a sheet marked that
way what conclnsion would you arrive at ?-A. Would say this application was hope-
less; if 1 saw that marked there I don't know exactly what I would do.

Q. If you had that list and an inquiry was made with regard to that claim,
what would you answer ?-A. I would say that it was renewed and contested; that
on the lower half there would be two applications about the same time, and I would
say they would have to contest it in order te get it.

Q. If Mr. Fawcett sent to you for information regarding that claim what would
you say ?-A. I would send him the information I have on that shoot.

Q. That Margaret Kelly and Donald McDonald are applicants for the lower
half?-A. That claim if renewed would not be open to contest.

Q. That is if the whole claim would be renewed ?-A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. George:

Q. Will you lot me see that shoot, Mr. Landerkin, please. I don't quite under-
stand this racket. If I heard your answers I did not come to a definite understanding.
We will go over the ground again. It is marked across the face, " Contested in court."
Who marked that?-A. I did.

Q. You know when you marked it ?-A. I don't.
Q. Do yon know when you made out this list?-A. During the latter part of

September.
Q. You compiled it from the applications; these are what we had on ovidence

yesterday ? Don't yon know that Mr. Craig kept a merno. of it on a slip similar to
this ?-A. I don't know anything that Mr. Craig did.

Q. Don't you know that this was bis method ?-A. He koeps no record, not for
ns.

Q. When this list was partly completed there wore only from four te six names
on the list, and before any of those red ink linos were drawn across it did Mr. Craig
have it in his possession?-A. Mr. Craig never had it in bis possession at ail.

Q. So, Mr. Landerkin, if several witnesses f rom three to six came in and claimed
to have seen thoir names thore and recognized their applications on a sheet of about
that size which contained no more names with no red inking, would it be that list?
-A. I can't tell you what other people could sce.

Q. It is very plain there is no reason why yen should answer it ?-A. This list
was never taken into Mr. Craig ; the list was made out by myself and almost con-
tinually in my charge, so that if these people swore that they saw the list on Mr.
Craig's desk containing their names I think it was not this list. If they swear that
it was my hand-writing-

Q. No, they don't, they claim it was not this list; they are trying to make out this
is the onty list ever made. The evidence in court to-day is, my witnesses declare that
thoir names was on a list similar to this before the red-inking was put on, and that
they saw MoDonald's application for five hnndred feet; thoy say they never sa w this
list at ail-some other?-A. I don't know anything of that list at ail.

Q. Low many feet did Donald McDonald apply for there ?-A. Two hundred
and fifty feet according to that.

Q. Did be ever apply for any more according to this list. There is no orasure
there ?-This is the way it was put down-then if a sheet like tbis laid on Mr.
Craig's desk at any time showing that Donald McDonald applied for five hundred
feet it would not be this list ?-A. Certainly not.

Q. You would say another list?-A. I can't say anything about it.
Q. It was not this list.-A. That is the only list that has anything to do with

the office.
Q. It says two hundred and fifty feet for McDonald ?-A. Lower balf of the

claim.
Q. Did this list ever say five bundred feet ?-A. Never. It hardly ever gives

the length of claims. There is no erasure here.
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Q. Have you charged it?-A. No.
Q. This is not Mr. Craig's memo ?-A. Mr. Craig had nothing to do with that

sheet at ail.
Q. If the list stated five hundred feet it was not this liât, wa8 it -*A. It was

not.
Q. Well, if it was not this list ?-A. Weil, I am not going to say that was a

list; I know nothing about your list.
Q. That has nothing to do with Mr. Craig's memo?-A. Nothing ut al]; it is

my work.
Q. This would not be laying onoMr. Craig's desk ?-A. Liable to be laying any

place; it would be away often times to be read over.
Q. It was some other list, that is what I want. You say this list was completed

before it first left your hands?-A. That liât never left my bands.
Q. You stated that a while ago, and then made the admission that there bas

been another list in the office; what do you mean; can you swear to that ?-A.
With a littie explanation I can; that sheet is the only sbeet that bas anything to
do with the recording, there might be a thousand sheets but they don't count.
That is the only-

Q. You want to count that; so there is only an officiai sheet ?-A. You have
been irying to get another sheet; that is a report, not anything else.

Q. You said that there was never another list in that office. That was con-
trary to what a number of witnesses were going to swear to ?-A. I didn't take any-
thing back.

Q. You will swear there never was another list in that office but this ?-A. No
other that I made ont.

Q. There was never any other list in the office but this? -A. There is no other
list in that office that I made, in my handwriting.

Q. There is no other list in the office that you made out?-A. That is the only
one I made ont.

Q. Mr. Cr aig may have had almerno. with the firet three names on there ?-A.
Yes, sir; he may have had it on his desk, but it would have had nothing to do-

Q. People may have seen such a list ?-A. People see strange things.
Q. It is simply this, I don't want witnessee discredited by something you

swear to?-A. What I have sworn to, I will stick to.
Q. Stay right witb it ?-A. I intend to.
Q. I am labouring under a delusion; I misunderstood you if you maid there was

more than one liet?-A. That is the only liât I ever prepared, and the only one
that official notice bas ever been taken of, so that if the people saw other lists I can't
help what they see.

Q. I wilI explain; that evidence so secured was very valuable to Mr. Fawcett
when you eay there was io other list in that office, for the simple reason that some
of the witnesses have testified here that they saw the lists and that Donald
McDonald's claim was for five hundred feet, which I simply wanted to show is not
this liât; so that if you now say there is no other list in the office you are going
contrary to three witnesses ?-A. There are other lists in the office, but this is the
only officiai liât.

Q. Then nothing that is not official is in existente; I suppose I am dead
because I am not on an officiai liet ?-A. Oh no; if you brought in another list with
the particulars you describe.

Q. You didn't know that Mr. Craig did not have a memo. sheet with these names
on ?-A. I don't know.

Q. So you take back that part where you say there never was such a thing; I
want you to take that back, it is important ?-A. What did I say ?

Q. You eaid thero had never been another list in that office ?-A. Not an
officiai one.

Q. Weil, you might have one ?-A. I say there was never another official
record; that is the only officiai record.
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Q. What is the meaning of this red ink marking here; that is the claim was
renewed July 14th, 1898, for McDonald and Gates number 3972 ?-A. That was put
down in mistake.

Q. Th'at was your writing; no one told you to put that in thor ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Will you explain how the mistake occurred ?-A. I can demonstrate it to yon.
Q. What McDonald was that ?-A. I don't know what McDonald.
Q. Won't it show his name ?-A. Thore are two or three McDonalds in the

Klondike, I think.
Q. Come over and I will show yon ?-A. It is an orror on my part (the witness

looks at the paper). That in intended for "<13" below Discovery ou Domimion.
The ' B" was taken for "A."

Q. So wo fmnd the record marked by a mistake, and I am supposed to believe that
it was a mistake, and credit Mr. McDonald and W. C. Gates. Alexander McDonald
is marked on this recoid as owningthis claim?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Ho didn't; did ho from the record ?-A. When I found that "13" A
was renewed I maiked it down 13A.

Q. You said that was a mistake ?-A. I know, but ho renewed that claim.
Q. Ho didn't renew that claim?
Mr. Tanon.-Ho hasn't said Alex. McDonald is the man-McDonald and Gates.
Q. Did McDonald and Gates renew this claim ?-A. 1 don't think so.
Q. No, it was some other claim, wasn't it?-A. Yes.
Q. McDonald and W. C. Gates never had hold of this claim or a cineh or a pro-

test on it ?-A. I think they wero interested in "13 " abovo and "13 "below Upper
Discovery and that is the roason the mistake was made.

Q. What makes you think that; that ho was interested in "13" above in the
present records. Do your records show that ho was interested in "18 " above ?-
A. I faney so.

Q. You are beginning to fancy a little?-A. McDonald had interests in "13"
above.

Q. What did you see that made you think so; it is important?-A. Well, I
would have to see the records before 1 answer it; I cannot carry the details of the
whole departmont.

Q. You don't know whether you ever did or not?-A. No, I don't positively.
Q. You don't know whether ho did or not ?-A. I don't know positively.
Q. You know this was put there by mistake?-A. Certainly, I put it there

myself.
Q. Why is it not crossed ont-do you lot the records go that way ?-A. Cer-

tainly: if I went to scratch that out it would look bad; we can explain that mistake
to any one who wants to know.

Q. It is on record that this man, Alex. McDonald, renewed that claim; knowing
it to be false, yo never corrected it?-A. I didn't know it was false until it was
granted in October.

Q. Didn't know it was false ?-A. No, sir.
Q. What action did you take when you found it was false; did you apprise Mr.

Fawcett of the fact; vhen a serious mistake of that kind is made, don't you go to
your superior ?-A. I don't know what I did.

Q. Did you never make any effort to correct the mistake ?-A. You must under-
stand that I have not got charge of a department, but I am responsible for my own
pen.

Q. Yo lenave that Io memory to correct at a future date ? You never corrected
it, nor nover deemed to correct it for fear of suspicion ?-A. Oh, no.

Q. Yon said you did awhile ago?-A. Yes; I knew if I was to go to work and
scratch that out, it would not look as well as to leave it there.

Q. It would be a whole lot truer ?-A. Woli, no, because when you get that red
ink thore, you must turn up the stub and find out this mistake.

Q. That is not true ?-A. No, it could not be the truth.
Q. Yon would not orase it because it would roflect; you let a false record stay

on record ? Were there nany such in the gold commissioner's office ?-A. I can't
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speak as to that. I didn't understand when you were talking to Mr. Tabor; I think
I understand the condition of that now.

Q. But I want to get emphatically from you, did Donald McDonald ever have a
contest on the upper half of that claim ?-A. Well, that is a question I can't answer.

Q. From your record ?-A. I don't know.
Q. You don't know ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You ara getting stupid again?-A. I was born thatway and could not help it.
Q. How many applicants were there for the lower half ?-A. Tvo.
Q. Iow many for the upper half?-A. One.
Q. What two for the lower ?-A. Mrs. Kelly and Donald Mc Donald.
Q. And for the upper half?-A. Mrs. Miner.
Q. Then froin this record, did McDonald have any contest on the upper half?

-A. I am sure I cannot answer. There are hundreds of contests I cannot get a
record on.

Q. (To the Commissioner.) Will you insist on an answer, Mr. Commissioner?
I asked him, from this record, if Donald McDonald had any contest for the upper
half of this claim. H1e says, I don't know. From this record,-this is the only
record.

Mr. TABOR.-IIe has made bis answer; he says he does not know.

By. Mr. George:

Q. I don't want you to go back to memory, dim and distant. This Monday
morning, (you look at your own writing) and tell me who are the two claimants for
the lower half of that claim, please ?-A. Margaret Kelly and McDonald.

Q. And the upper half?-A. Elizabeth Miner.
Q. Only one?-A. One claimant.
Q. Then, from that record, did Donald McDonald have any contost on the upper

half?-A. When you come to remember that if there were contests, that sometimes
it takes three or four months -

T Q. Mr. Landerkin, I think - ?-A. I am doing the best I i ; I don't know;
that is positively true.

By the Commissioner:

Q. What Mr. George wants, I fancy, from that record, would Donald McDonald
haveany claim to the upper half ?-A. I would only be too happy to give informa-
tionbut I don't know.

Q. But you can give your apression from that rtcord as to whether Donald
McDonald contested the whole claim-do you kuow as a matter of fact ?-A. Idon't.

By Mr. George ;

Q. I wili put it in a different form. Are there any grounds for contest, of the
upper half with Donald McDonald ?-A. Well, on account of the claim being marked
"renewed " there would be.

Q. That is not Donald McDonald. Mr. Landeikin, before I oit down, don't you
think there is something wrong somewhere, when they employ a man who is so
wholly infogged as to his records, who cannot ariswer a simple question put to him
four times, which any one could do by a simple "yes " or "no?" A. At that time
there were hundreds of applications, and I had to do it all myself.

Q. Did you see Mr. Fawcett this morning?-A. le came and got me.
Q. Wbat did ho say ?-A. He said, " I want you to tell all you know about that

case."

By the Commissioner:

Q. Mr. iLanderkin, taking that record, suppose you bad no previous knowledge,
what would your impression be ?-A. I would say there was a contest in the case.
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Q. Admitting the red ink lines were not there; take the original document-to
look at that sheet now, that this application for 13 above, the claim being marked
"renewed ?"-A. There would be no -

Q. Suppose there was no red ink there ?-A. There would be no contest for
that portion.

Q. Did Mr. Fawcett ever come to you for this record ? Were you ever present
when Mr. Fawcett, Mrs. Miner and Mrs. Kelly were there ?-A. No, sir.

Q. Do you remember on that occasion ot Mr. Fawcett sending to you for infor-
mation regarding that record at that tinhe ?-A. No, Mr. Fawcett sent up inquiries
about these claims, sometimes about five and six times a day; as soon as people
came in I answered thom.

Q. Yon don't remember sending word to him about this claim ?--A. Well, I
might have.

Q. You don't remember consulting him about it ?--A. Never talked with him
about it. He may have asked for particulars about 13 above, and I have given them
to him.

By Mr. George:

Q. Have yon any way of letting me know vhen you put this red ink on that
date relating to the renewal; that was put on before the other ?-A. I can't tell.

Q. Are they both in your writing ?-A. Yes.
Q. You can't tell ?-A. No, sir.

By the Commissioner :

q. Couldn't you refer to the stub ?-A. When I came to look for 13 above, when
I ran across it, I marked it on the sheets. I have no reference to the date, or time
or anything else.

By Mr. George:

Q. Well, probably you could come near the date, was it the first of last August ?
-A. I could not give the slightest idea.

Q. Can't you come near ?-A. No.
Q. Was it yesterday ?-A. I don't know.
Q. Laat week ?-A. I don't know.
Q. A month ago?-A. I don't know when I did it. It might have been a month

ago; I could not say it was more than a month ago.
Q. That is nearer to it; it was between the lst of September and the 27th of

Februat'y some time ?-A. I don't remember, nor I cannot give you the information.
Q. Could you secure it from the office ?-A. I cou Id not. When I go over this

book and find 13 applied for and look for 15 or 20 or some other number, and go
tbrough and mark it down-

Q. Gan you recall any little instance ?-A. Positively, I know nothing farther
about it; I may have put it on the next morning or any time.

Q. You can give an idea from this as well as I can. You don't know that Mr.
Fawcett ever saw this record ?-A. I don't know what lir. Fawcett saw.

Q. Yon don't know he ever sent to yon for information regarding this claim?
A. I would not say positively he did or did not.

Q. You don't know ho did ?-A. No, sir.
Q. These answers are short ?-A. I don't know if I could fix it.

By Mr. Tabor :

Q. Do you remember that claim being granted ?-A. It was marked issued in
October.

Q. Did you put in October on that sheet of the grant ?-A. No, sir.
Q. On that claim I mean-it was put on prior ?-A. Yes.
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Q. There were no marks after it was granted ?-A. No. The grant was on the
11th of October.

Q. Tell us whose writing that is ?-A. Mr. Craig's.
Q Would that be your indication that the grant was issued ?-A. It would be

an indication.
Q. Would that prevent you putting further record on that claim ?-A. I am not

putting any further marks on. I have not had anything fu rther to do with that than
with any other claim, and can't recall the circumstances.

Q. That, you say, would be an indication that the grant was issued ?-A.
Marked " issued ? " yes.

Q. Would you put any further memo. showing that a mark was there ?-A.
That mark would show me there was nothin, further to do with it.

Q. As far as the office is concerned that claim is vetoed on that sheet ?-A. It is
past with me.

Q. Thon it is not on record any longer now ?-A. You got the commencement
of it there and you came up-. -

Q. I mean these wouhi not be made on the record books. The entries you have
on this sheet would be no abstract or title?-A. When that is issued, the original
owner's record is cancelled and scratched ont, and these names put in their places.

Q. That is the grantee's name ?-A. The re-locator's.
Q. As far as this beirg a record is concerned in the offiee, it is a record no

longer ?-A. The claim is settled.
Q. I)o you see what I mean ?-A. I see what you mean. I am sure I don't

know what contests a record and what does not.
Q. That would be beyond your province ?-A. Yes.
Q. I suppose if Mr. Fawcett sent up to you for the standing of that claim, you

would send him-?-A. These particulars: the date of the original record, those who
applied for it, whtt they had applied for and when they applied for it, whether
represented or not and if the claim was renewed.

Q. Thon you would send it down ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did Mr. Craig ever have this list ?-A. Yes, ho worked more or less with it,

being mining recorder ho had to refer to it.
Q. Would ho ever use it if a record was made to him-would ho apply for the

list to look over ?-A. Ye-, ho would just take it.
Q. Did ho ever ?-A. Well, I can't say.
Q. Did you ever remember him seeing this list ?-A. Never any particular

occasion.
Q. Did you ever see him using them on any particular occasion ?-A. Cortainly,

when ho was working as nining recorder, ho had to refer to these lists-to them all.
Q. Were you close to Mr. Craig at work, sitting near one another ?-A. Weli,

in September I was in the corner room by myseif, Mr. Craig and Mr. Cautley were
outside.

Q. There is some little information you can give us if you will, wili you if you
can ?-A. I will.

Q. When did you find out your mistake?-A. That is another date I cannot
remember.

Q. You are very bad on dates ?-A. I am.
Q. By the way, as an employee of that ofice, can you secure that date ?-A.

Well, as I was saying how these stood before, and the date down there, 14th July,
that is the date the claim was renewed. That was simply an oversight.

Q. But you could not have put this on here 14th July ?-A. No. I would like
you to look at 13B and see how closely it resembles 13A (Mr. George looks at the
writing).

Mr. GEoRGE.-Yes, it could be taken either way.
WITNEss.-That is how the mistake occurred, and I made it.
Mr. GEoRGE.-Your mistake is weil explained, I could make A or B very easily.Q. You say in compiling this list, you saw Donald McDonald's application, didn';

you ?-A. Yes, it passed through my hands.
87a-13
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Q. And what did it say ?-A. Just for the lower half.
Q. Do you remem ber ?-A. It must have stated what I have marked there.
Q. You swear his application stated the lower half ?-A. I won't swear anything

like that, becauEe I have not looked at the application since I put it on the shett.

By Mr. George :

Q. Here is his application: I don't know that this is a material fact. Tell me
se an employee of that office, if a person comes in and applies to re-locate, say No.
13 on Eldorado, what does Mr. Craig do, or the office do ?-A. Well, they ask him
if they saw the old stakes, and what was on them and what they staked, and they
tell him to come and fiud out if the claim has been opened.

Q. How do they find out ?-A. Several ways. They see the date it was recorded,
and if it has been renewed, represented or laid over.

Q. Suppose ho finds that it was being worked and had been renewed and the
time had not elapsed, what would he do with the application ? Suppose an applica-
tion cornes to re-locate 13 Eldorado, and Mr. Craig goes to the books and finds out
that it is being worked and bas been renewed and the time had not elapsed, what
will he do with the application ?-A. He will say it is not open for re-location.

Q. The fact that he accepted Margaret Kelly's application, and the fact that he
considercd Elizabeth Miner's application, should show that that claim bad never
been renewed, shouldn't it?-A. Well, Mr. Craig could read his own writing better
than I could.

Q. That is the custom of the office ?-A. Yes, to see if the claim is open. At the
time these applications were taken, the crowd was so fast and furious, they could
not get at that the way they can now.

Q. They were liable to take applications from everybody ?-A. Yes, liable to
take everybody's word.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Al this evidence bas to go to Ottawa, as you are aware, and will be widely
read over, I suppose. There is just one thing I wish to have explained for the
benefit of the public outside: 13 A, what doyou mean by that expression ?-A. Well,
it means 13 above Discovery.

Q. 13 B?-A. 13 below Discovery.
Q. There are cases where there are no discovery claims on the creek, are there

not ?-A. Yes, there are claims numbered consecutively from one end to the other
just known as 1, 2, 3 and so on.

Q. There are cases in some creeks where a claim is called 13 A, what does that
refer to ?-A. That would mean a fraction where there is no discovery claim, and
it was written with a capital A, that frequently occurs.

Q. But in this case, you put a capital letter instead of a smail ?-A. Capital A
stands for a fraction.

Q. I ask those questions for the information of persons not as conversant as we
are with these things. You cornpiled these records from the applications that were
taken in the office ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know who took these applications ?-A. They were taken by Mr.
Cautley, Mr. Craig and Mr. Clark and occasionally by Mr. Fawcett.

Q. After they had taken them what did they do with them ? I want the office
procedure, so people will understand ?-A. I got these everymorning, and I entered
them up and traced them as far as I could.

Q. You got what documents were taken in the day before ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. What did you do when you traced them out ?-A. Any particulars I found

against them I marked and entered them on these sheets.
Q. Were you ever asked by any clerk in the office for these sheets to look over ?

-A. Well, wben I was working with these kheets and making them out, they were
free to everybody in the office.
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Q. Do you remember of ever being asked by the clerks to have them-these
sheets-for inspection ?-A. No, si:.

Q. Would a clerk be likely to come and take it from you ?-A. Yes, ho would
take it from me and no questions were asked about that.

Q. If he did that, would that surprise you ?-A. No.
Q. You would take no note of that ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Suppose that occurred, what would you infer ?-A. 1 could hardly say.
Q. Were you aware that Mr. Fawcett ever sent for you to present these sheets

for his information?-A. Mr. Fawcett may have asked me about these sheets, but
I don't recolleet.

Q. You simply compiled them ?-A. I compiled them and answered all questions
as they came to me.

Q. Well, if the applicant came to you and asked you a question, would you pro-
duce any for their inspection?-A. I would produce it for myself and tell them how
it stood.

Q. If a clerk came to you with the same question, would you produce the sheets
for the clerk's inspection ?-A. I would let a clerk look ut it for himself.

Q. Would you be likely to write "contested in court" there after this thing
occurred ?-A. Well, honestly, I don't remember.

Q. Have you auny personal knowledge that these transactions were examined
into; and such arrangements being made as to inquiring into this ?-A. No, sir, I
know nothing about this.

Q. Did you hear of Mrs. Miner and Mrs. Kelly ?-A. I don't know them.
Q. Have you recollection of having any arrangemeut of any kind in the office

made by Mrs. Kelly and Mrs. Miner?-A. Not to my recollection.
Q. Then you might have written this after the affair was settled, in ignorance

of the fact that the claim was granted ?-A. I might have done that. You see, I
don't recollect the time I marked -I might have marked it in September or
February for anything I know.

Q. Suppose you feil across this record here in the course of your examination for
other facts, as you said a while ago, you remember you said we were looking for
something elso when you ran across this, would you be apt to write that down ?-
A. Well, in a case of that kind, coming acrosa a claim renewed and granted, I
would inquire, and in that case speak to the recorder saying that there was a dupbi
cate certificate out for a piece cf property.

Q. But if the record was granted, you would not be likely to write tliat
"contested ?"-A. I fancy I would write " renewed " if the claim wasgranted to the
same person.

Q. Did you write that, " contested in court ?"-A. I don't know.
Q. You would not, or would you have written that ?-A. I don't remember.
Q. Is there no way you can think of how you can trace it up-just think the

matter over, and if in any way you cai approximately come forward, will you do
that later on ? Think the matter over, and if in any way you can fix the date of
the entry (" contested in court ") let us know.-A. I don't know if I could get at that.

Q. As far as you know, this document might have been used by M r. Craig ?-
A. Oh, yes.

Mr. FAWcarT recalled:

(Mr. George showing witness a paper.)

Q. Did you ever see this before yesterday ?-A. I have seen it in Mr. Landerkin's
room several times.

Q. According to this evidence you told these ladies there was a contest ?-A. I
did.
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Q. Where did you get, that information ?-A. By stories; I sent a note to Mr.
Landerkin for the information and the information came down.

Q. You wouldn't know if there was a contest if you didn't do that ?-A. No,
sir, ut that time the office was so guarded that I wouldn't trust to my memory.

Q. And he notified you that the claim bad been renewed ?-A. I got informa-
tion that Mr. Landerkin bas put on that sheet.

Q. I am trying to get at it whether that was put on it at the time?-A. It inust
have been.

Q. You satisfied yourself that the claim was renewed 14th July, 1898, for
Alexander McDonald and Gates ?-A. I had information that the claim was contested,
and would have whatever information was there.

Q. Well, Mr. Fawcett, you did have that information in your possession ?-A.
Most certainly, I got the information at the time.

Q. That the claim had been renewed ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. When you consented to the recording of these ladies' claims, you still knew

it was renewed to some one else ?-A. I guess I likely did, but the parties who got
the reuewal were the ones who got the claims.

Q. McDonald represented Gates-McDonald represented Gates and Dougherty,
McDonald ?-A. McDonald represented them as far as that went; whatever he said
was to be relied on.

Q. You didn't see Gates ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You didn't see McDonald ?-A. My opinion was that the renewal of it was a

mistake, wbich would make a contest more difficult.
Q. You knew at tho time that was a mistake ?-A. Certainly I did ; but that

could only be determined in court. I knew that it hadn't been represented, there-
fore couldn't have been renewed.

Q. So, immediately, when Landerkin told you the claim was renewed, ho knew
it was false ?-A. I was afraid it was renewed, and knew that that would make com-
plications still greater; because if the Government had made the grant, it would
have made an additional complication to the difficulty, as it always does.

Q. And Alex. McDonald told you it hadn't been represented ?-A. Yes, I knew
from Mr. McDonald it hadn't been represented, but I didn't know àt the time it
hadn't been renewed. It was some time early in July when McDonald was talking.

Q. Can a claim be renewed if it is not represented ?-A. Yes, some of them-
this was one of the lay-over claims; laid over for Burt before ho went out.

Q. Laid over for Burt ?-A. Laid over; for ho went out of the country. He
went out because ho hadn't supplies, as well as a great many people.

Q. By whose consent ?-A. By my consent; because ho was out of supplies.
Q. Did you make a habit of doing that ?-I did. I sent out every one I could

influence, and held their claims over for them-in the ummer of 1897.
Q. This claim lapsed in the summer of 1898 ?-A. That would bo laid over to

middle of June to the lst of July. In some cases the time was extended, when 1
recoived letters from parties, if they were on the outside, and prevented from com.
ing in.

Q. You knew that that was renewed illegally ?-A. I knew it would lead to an
added contest.

Q. How ?-A. I knew it wouldn't be granted without its being called off.
Q. You said a while ago you knew that that was renewed illegally ?-A. I don't

know. I didn't say illegally. Ilt wouldn't have been renewed without iny permission.
Q. Is that what you said a while ago ?-A. The question of illegality didn't

come up a while ago.
Q. You stated that you could only give renewals ?-A. I didn't state that;

they seldom came to me.
Q. Who gave renewals ?-A. Mrs. Minnick, after she came into the office and

became familiar with the work.
Q. Wasn't there a contradiction in what you said, that you had held that

claim over for Burt, and refused renewal?-A .I had refused renewal to Alem
McDonald; said it was laid over for Burt; and refused him laying over.
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Q. Have you an official record of them being laid over ?-A. There is the list.
Q. If that claim was laid over for Burt, how is it that you entered in for some-

one olse ?-A. I suppose it was open with the rest for receiving applications.
Q. Who opened it ?-A. It was opened by proclamation.
Q. You are avoiding the issue ?-A. They were opened by mybelf. Wasn't that

sufficient ?
Q. That's a lot better ?-A. Well.
Q. You said yon held that over for Burt ?-A. I told you I did. It wa held

over until July; or if letters had been received f rom persons, that they could not
represent it hy the 1st, the time was extended aifter that.

Q. You held them over until July ?-A. Ail held until July-as a matter of fact
they wero held until the 1st of Septem ber.

Q. Did he want you to renew in his own name?-A. Yes, sir; he wanted to
know il it could be done in that way.

Q. He didn't have sufficient influence?-A. No, sir, nor anybody else; that was
not the way business was done by the gold commissioier.

Mr. TABOR.-YOu have no right to discredit your own witness.
Mr. GEoRGE.-If you think I put Mr. Faweett on the stand to help him out-
Mr. TABoE.-I submit that such charges should not be made to one's own

witness. Such remarks ho don't sufficiently understand.
The CoMMIssioNER.-It doesn't hurt very much; he was not making vory much

out of it. I have no power to interfere in this.
Mr. FAWCZTT.-I have no objection.
Mr. TABoR.-I object simply on the ground that it isn't a proper method o'f

conducting an examination. But if Mr. Fawcett doesn't object-
Mr. FAwcETT.-I don't mind.
Mr. GnoRGE.-Rather like it, as you are not getting hurt.
Mr. TABOE.-I am accustomed to a difforent mode of procedure.

By Mr. George:
Q. When people came to you for important information, and yon told them

there was a contest, didn't you try to verify that ?-A. Mr. George, [ verified it
from a clerk in charge of that part, from the information that was sent by Mr.
Landerkin. It was his duty to furnish such information to myself and the office.

Q. That was put up for your benefit?-A. For the benefit of the office, myself
with the rest.

Q. You told them that thore was a mortgage against the ground ?-A. I toid all
about that in my evidence on Saturday. I said that I gave that as a reason, prob-
ably, why McDonald tbought he had the right to the ground. It was a question
for the court to transcribo the evidence.

Q. You said McDonald's agent told you the contest had been withdrawn ?-A.
I did not, nor the agent, but the parties ihemselves.

Q. I asked you, Mr. Fawcett, if you remember what documents they signed in
your presence; you claim not to know.-A. L don't know; I didn't write them. I
understood they signed the mortgage. I understood that.

Q. Yon were perfectly cognizant of the fact they sizned the mortgage, because
Kelly asked if they arranged among themselves, so that the contest woutd be with-
drawn--A. The ladies didn't tel] me.

Q. Who did?-A. It was Mr. Kelly himself who did most of the talking.
Q. Did you allow one aide of the case, after things were ail square ?-A. Mr.

Dougherty told me. I think Mr. Calder was in, too; I think they were together in
the office.

Q. Now, thon, you say you are prosenting the whole of the evidence.-A. I
think you will find this evidence was given on Saturday.

Q. We are now producing a lot of evidence with regard to the contest about
that claim which you didn't give on Saturday. Are you in the habit of, when there
are half a dozen litigants after one claim, letting one person come to you and calling
it square ?-A. No.
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Q. You did it this time ?-A. I had good reason to believe that the matter was
ail right.

Q. Did you know hg could speak for Donald McDonald ?-A. I believe he could.
I know Donald McDonald was staking for bis brother.

Q. W ho told you ?-A. Alex. told me he sent bis brotbor.
Q. That is who Alex. McDonald told you ho was going to send ?
The CoMMissIoNE.-Didn't you state that three or four times ou Saturday?
Mr. GEoRGE.-Mr. Fawcett didn't; Mr. Calder did.
The CoMmissIoNzR.-Mir. Fawcett stated positively, I would say, that Alex. Me-

Donald did send him to stake thisclaim, to protect himsclf. It might not appear in
the notes.

Mr. FAwCETT.-I know he spoke of it.

By Mr. George:

Q. How many contestants ail together are there for the ground, Mr. Fawcett?
-A. There would be, according to that record, only Mr. McDonald and Mrs.
Kelly. The renewal would be the only contest with Mrs. Miner. But I don't know
that Mrs. Miner's case ever came up; for Mrs. Kelly did the talking in the office. I
don't know that Mrs. Miner told her case at ail. Mr.. Kelly did the talking. The
ladies came together.

Q. What was the number of contestants ?-A. Three contestants, I suppose; if
the renewal would have beei granted, Alex. MeDona.d and Gates would have been
contestants; that would have been five.

Q Was there ever another contestant named Clark ?-A. Never heard of any.
Q. Never heard of Clark as a contestant fora claim?-A. No, sir, I didn't.
Q. He came in with a claim to stake ?-A. I never heard of it.
Q. On Mr. Dotglierty's say-so yon disposed of the five contestants ?- A. I have

answered that question about a dozen times with reference to the withdrawal of the
contest.

Q. This is important. Did he produce any evidence showiug he could talk for
Gates ?-A. I knew Ale. McDonald represented Gates. Alex. McDonald was not
present, but I knew that Daugherty & Calder were Alex. McDonald's agents.

Q. Who told you so ?-A. Alex. McDonald and Morrison both told me.
Q. So, virtlually, in the person of these gentlemen, you had Alex. McDonald

before you ?-A. Yes.
Q. And as soon as he, through bis agents, lifted his bar to the recording of this

claim, you consented ?-A There was nothing to prevent the ladies from recording
the claim after the contest was withdrawn.

Q. What contest ?-A. The contest you see on this sheet.
Q. What was Donald McDonald ?-A. I understood from these gentlemen that

Donald -cDonald had withdrawn the contest-that wus part of the contest. It was
the most important part of the contest, as I understood the thing. Of course, the
renewtal woulu have to be cancelled after the thing had gone through court. It
would have had to have been cancelled if there had been a trial.

Q. And until Alex. McDonald, through his agents, had signified bis consent to
your conduct, you wouldn't have recorded for those ladies ?-A. [ couldn't possibly
do so; while the claim was contested in that way, it could not have been recorded.

Q. Didn't you tell Alex. McDonald you would see he would get that claim ?-A.
I didn't.

Q. You never decided to protect bis interests ?-A. [ never decided to promise
any one to protect any interests.

Q. Never?-A. I didn't.
Q. Did you know, when ho came to you, and he told bis troubles, what ho was

after ?-A. Ho didn't tel many troubles at ail.
Q. You said yesterday ho did. I asked you if ho was in the habit of coming

to you with bis troubles-if ho came with bis financial diffleulties. Yoiu said yes to
the question ?-A. I think you will find a different answer. It is too long to go back
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to the evidenco. I think you will find, when the evidence is written out, the
evidenco is not that.

Q. Thon yo don't know anything about the man named Clark ?-A. I don't
know.

Q. I told you what you had testiSed yesterday, that Mr. Nicholson had a contest
on it?-A. I didn't -ay anythitig about Nicholson's contest.

Q. Did you know anything about it ?-A. N'.
Q. Was there a contest in your office at that time for Nicholson ?-A. There

wasn't.
Q. Thon any one who testifies to that fact, testifies falsely?-A. At that time

Mr. Craig said that ho heard sonething about it, but didn't say that there was any
contest 011 it.

Q. He said he knew ail the time this was anything ?-A. I didn't.
Q. If you had you would never have granted certificates for the upper half.

The records didn't say anything about it ?-A. Certainly not.
Q. How did Mr. Craig know?-A. Merely by hearsay; that was the only infor-

matioi ho could have.
Q. And you mean to say that the fuct that McDonaild had $2,000 in the ground

never influenced your mind ?-A. Ilt didn't influence me in the least. It wouldn't
if I had had the 62,000.

Q. Never had the loast influence ?-A. It didn't.
Q. Didn't he say that he thought it would have, when he told you about it?-

A. Perhaps ho did; I don't know; I can't say. My opinion is it hadn't.
Q. Wouldn't that have been rather under-handed and rascally, if you had acceded

to McDonald's request, and granted that claim to him without representation?-A.
I might have done so by mistake. If I had thought it had been represented, pro-
bably I would have granted it.

Q. It would have been a piece of rascality if you did ?-A. It wouldn't be
rascality if I bad done it.

Q. It would have been a piece of rascality if you ha i recorded it ?-A. If to
McDonald, I suppose it would have been.

Q. Wasn't it rather hard of him to spggest that you would do anything of that
kind ?-A. Ho didn't suggest it; he merély wanted to know if such a thing could be
done. That is different from a suggestion.

Q. You vetoed it right there, and didn't agree to protect his interests ?-A.
No, sir.

Q. Whatdid you menu by " this is the best we can do" ?-A. I don't remember
about that. I expect I gave Mr. Craig orders that he might record the claim.

Q. You heard Craig's evidence ?-A. I hoard siomo evidence about 500 feet claim,
but I have reason to question. It seems rather remarkable in a person to look over
a note and tell its contents three or four months after it has occurred.

Q. A short note of that kind is very easily memorizod.

DONALD McDONALD, being sworn, testified as foliows:-

By Mr. Tabor :

Q. What is your business ?-A. Outside, you mean-farming.
Q. In this country ?-A. I follow the mines.
Q. You are a brother of Alex. McDonald's ?-A. Yes.
Q. You remember staking a claim on Dominion Creek last fall ?-A. I do.
Q. What claim ?-A. "13 " above Uppor Discovery.
Q. How did yon corne to stake that claim ?-A. Well, Alex. told me to go there

and stake it; ho said the first man who staked it ([ don't recollect his name now).
He told me ho loaned him two thousand dollars ind he wanted to secure it on this
claim ; ho had promised Alex. the money ont of the claim.
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Q. Is that the reason he gave you for staking ?-A. Yes.Q. When did you go out there ?-A. Well, it was to be thrown open the first
of September at midnight, but I went out a few days before that, about twelve days
somewhere there. Ho told me to keep working on the claim and when it came the
first of September to restake.

Q. Did you restake ?-A. I did.
Q. Just tell us how you restaked ?-A. I drove the stakes at the lower end and

claimed five hundred feet up stream, and thon I put in other stakes again and claimed
two hundred and fifty feet up stream, and on the other stake claimed two hundred
and fifty feet down stream.

Q. How did you coine to stake in that way ?-A. It was not known whether I
could stake it all or one-half; I staked it both ways so that I could claim it both
ways after coming in bere.

Q. You staked it that way to protect yourslf?-A. Yes.
Q. After you staked it what did you do ?-A. Well, I came to town and claimed

the lower half.
Q. Did you make application ?-A. Yes.
Q. Where did you make application ?-A. At the barracks.
Q. At the gold commissioner's office do you mean ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who was your witness ? Do you remember?-A. Duncan Cummings.
Q. Is that your application (pointing to the application)?-A. Yes, that's it.
Q. Were you sworn to that application?-A. Yes.
Q. You claimed two hundred and fifty feet, the lower half. Was Mr, Cummings

with you ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you see him sign this ?-A. I don't know if I saw him signing that; I

wouldn't swear one way or the other; I didn't pay any attention to him.
Q. Was ho sworn ?-A. Yes.
Q. This was his signature (pointing to the record) ?-A. Yes.
Q. This was dated 3rd of September ?-A. I don't recollect.
Q. What hour did you stake ?-A. 12 sharp-after twelve I mean.
Q. Did you have anything more to do with that claim af ter that, Mr. McDonald,

after putting in your application ?-A. That is all I done to it.
Q. That is all you bad to do ? Did you have nothing to do with the settling of

the dispute of that claim ?-A. Kelly and I had some words over it; I don't recollect
what the words were. I didn't pay any attention to the words.

Q. Whose was the claim after it was staked ?-A. After I staked it ?
Q. Yes ?-A. Well, I was supposed to have it if I would give Alex. $2,000.

Alex. was holding the claim for $3,000 against the person who staked it.
Q. Did Alex. appear to settie anything with regard to that claim-to settie any

contest with regard to it. Do you know anything about an agreement made after-
wards ?-A. No, I don't.

Q. Do you understand what I mean ? You know of an agreement between
Kelly and Alex. ?-A. No, I don't.

Q. Did Alex. McDonald have power to settle any disputes ?-A. Certainly; I
would be agreeable to what Alex. would settle on this claim; certainly I would be
agreed to it.

Q. If Alex. McDonald settled this between you and Kelly ?-A. I would be
satisfied ; ho only sent me over, as I said. He wanted to secure the claim for his $2,000.

Q. Did you ever sign any written settlement after, do you know-to Alex. or
to an one ?--A. No, I didn't.

Q. If Alex. settled it you would be willing to sign a release withdrawing a con-
test?-A. Certainly if Ale. would be satisfied-if Alex. got his $2,000. It was just
a question for Alex.

By Mr. George:

Q. Mr. McDonald, do you say on the night of 31st August you were engaged
in staking this claim ?-A. A little after midnight on the lst of September. I was
told to, sharp after twolve.
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- Q. Did you ?-A. I did, as far as I know.
Q. Was there any one staking at the same time as you, or ahead of you ?-

A. Well, I seen Kelly there, and a woman there; I was told it was Mrs. Kelly; I
expect it was. Sho was there.

Q. You saw her driving stakes, didn't you ?-A. Well, I could'nt swear that I
<did; it was in the night.

Q. You have done considerable staking, have you not ?-A. Not a great deal.
Q. Supposing you and another party were staking a claim, could you drive

cwice as many stakes as another party ? Who would get tlrough first?-A. Oj
course they could drive half as many sooner than a person could drive twice as
mnany.

Q. It looks that way if you had an equal start. Why did you make the accond
lot of stakes so smail for ?-A. Because they happened to be small.

Q. So small that they haven't been seen yet-the size of a lead pencil?-A.
Bigger, so a person could tind them.

Q. How far from the big stakes ?-A. Close up to them.
Q. You never applied for five hundred feet ?-A. No.
Q. Who did you go to when you came to town ?-A. Well, that fellow was in

the office that Alex. knew last summer, named Morrison. He gave me a letter to
come down, and I showed the letter to a man out around there, and asked whether I
would get this man to direct me, and he swore myself and Cnmmings there and
then.

Q. Did you go to the office ?-A. Well, it was supposed to be the office; that
was up town, not at the barracks; somebody from the barracks down there where
they record.

Q. You didn't go to the gold Commissioner's office to file your application for
that claim ?-A. I understood that was the man where I had the letter to go to.

Q. Don't you remember the name ?-A. I can't be sure, unless it was Oraig.
Q. You would know the man again if you saw him?-A. I think I would.
Q. Tall fellow ?-A. Perhaps I would know the man and perhaps I wouldn't.
Q. In the gold commissioner's office-up stairs or down stairm in the gold com-

nissioner's office. I will explain, Mr. Commissioner, that for some little time they
recorded Dominion Creek claim in another building. Do you know (addressing the
witness), where the gold commissioner's office is to-day?-A. I couldn't go to it,
but I could go to that building whero I recorded. If that was the recording build-
ing I could go there; three buildings from the barracks, north. It was adjoining
the main building.

Q. That is all you know about the claim? What did he say?-A. He didn't
say much about it.

Q. Didn't he tell you there was a claim in for it?-A. I knew myself there
would be another application, becanse I saw them over there; I supposed they were
restaking it; I supposed that. He didn't say anything about it.

Q. You only claimed two hundred and fifty feet ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. That didn't give you any contest on the upper half at all ?-A. No; only the

two hundred and fifty feet.
Q. How did you come to fix that up ?-A. Well, I was told to go over there; I

was living at the Forks. I met my brother, and he sent me from the Forks. H1e
didn't tell me anything about it. He didn't tell me whether I 3ould stake the half
or the whole. Some said I could and some said Icouldn't. I staked both ways.

Q. I mean, after you recorded or filed your application, how much did you
apply for ?-A. I think I applied for one-half.

Q. So you had no application in for the upper half?-A. No, not any; I just
threw it away. There was no contest on it at all, when I found I could only hold
one-half, after going down.

Q. Your brother looks after these cases for you ?-A. Well, I would be satisfied
with what he would do.

Q. You didn't have to ?-A. Well, I would be satisfied if he got his two thou-
sand dollars.
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Q. You said that your brother Alex. had been promised that money out of that
claim by the first man who staked it?-A. That is what ho told me.

Q. How did ho know who would be the first man to stake it ?-A. I couldn't tell
you; I didn't ask him. It looked a. though ho had had some arrangement with
somebody to secure that two thousand dollars.

Q Ho told you he was promised his money out of that claim ?-A. That is
what ho told me. I have only Alex's. word for it.

Q. I will ask you, as a man familiar with this country, and been over it a great
deal, who is the only man who could have promised him the money out of this
claim ?-A. I couldn't say.

Q. He told you positive ?-A. Yes, ho did.

By the Comnissioner:

Q. I think you are misunderstanding each other; I think that Mr. McDonald
thinks that Mr. George refers to the man who first located the claim; that is, the
man who btaked it first of all. Do you know his name ?-A. No.

Q The man who owned it first ?-A. Yes.
Q. You were thinking of one thing and ho was thinking of another.

By Mr. ('eorge:

Q. This is important. You say Alex. was promised his money out of the
claim by the man that staked it first, that is Burt ?-A. Burt, that's the name.

Q. Hle had been pronised by that man ?-A. Yes.
Q. You say that Alex. McDonald was holding the claim tesponsible for

83,000 ?-A. Well, he told mu ho was promised the money ont of it.
Q. He said that Burt promised him that?-A. Yes.
Q. Well, after that lapsed last July, wbat about that?-A. I can't answer the

question as to how it would be after that. He tolul me to secure it so that ho could
get his money. Of course, the restaking was supposed to hold it for another nine
months.

Q. All yon wanted to get out of it was what your brother loaned--the money
to Burt ?-A. No doubt ho loaned the money; I believe ho did.

Q. Yon folks wanted that certain loan of it ?-A. We would be satisfied with
that.

Q. Secured it with a mortgage ?-A. I cannot tell you that.
Q. You said that your agreement with Alex. was that you wore to have

the clim, and you were to give him $2,000 ?-A. That is tho way I understood. .
Q. No matter who got the claim, ho was to get 62,000 ?-A. If I got the claim I

was to give him $2,000.
Q. To throw up his interest ?-A. Yes.
Q. You considored ho bad a hold on it-an initorest in the claim ?-A. I don't

know that ho had any more than this $2,000.
Q. No more than that; ho had that much ?-A. As far as I know, of course I

couldn't swear; ho said ho loaned this man $2,000, and the man promised him the
money out of this claim.

Q. Did you ever go to any one in this town and say they could talk for you,and
sign nway your rights to anything you have; you never went to Mr. Dongherty and
told him to sign away your rights; you have claims of your own?-A. Yes, sir, Mr.
Doug&herty cannot sign me away. Of course, ho is Alex's. agent here. ;, i:a-!mT

Q. Not yours ?-A. I was also Alexander's agent in staking these claims. WI
Q. That doesn't make Mr. Doughorty your agent now; you have a claim of

your own somewbere-where ?-A. On Scroggio Creek.
Q. Can Mr. Dougherty give away your claim on Scroggie Creek and you get

nothing for it?-A. Not likely ho can.
Q. You wouldn't have it, would you?-A. It isn'tlikely; if it woregood I would.
Q. If you had claimed " 13" above Upper Disceovery you had some kind of hold

of it atter staking it and filing application on the lower half ?-A. Dougherty could
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give that away. I would be satisfied if my brother would get the two thousandb
dollars to let the claim go.

Q. You never authorized Dougherty to do that thing ?-A. He never asked me.
Q. You bave nover put your hand te a single piece of paper liberating that

contest. Do yon know that you have at this moment as much right to that claim,
as you over had ?-A. No.

Q. So you have never withdrawn the contest ?-A. No, unless my brother got
the two thousand dollars.

Q. That wouldn't make any difference. You haven't withdrawn it?-A. No.
Q. By word of mouth, scratch of pon or pencil, or anything elso?-A. No.
Q. Now, Mr. McDonald, your application that you road here and indontified is

fur the lower half; it dosen't touch the upper half at ail ?-A. The application I
made hore in the office ?

Q. Yes ?-A. No, I didn't toueh it.
Q. Then, if somebody filed an application to have the ground to-day, on the

strength of your contest which you didn't have, it would be a false presumption ?-
A. I can't tell you; of course my brother was promised the money out of this-
claim.

Q. Who by, Burt ?-A. Wel', ho was donc with that in July.
Q. That's all right, but whether the two thousand dollars would hold all the

claim or not you didn't know ?-A. I don't know; i couldn't say anything about the
upper half.

Q. Did you ever have any conversation with Mrs. Kelly on the creek just
before the staking ?-A. Yes, I ueod to talk to her now and again; if she was Mrs.
Kolly-and Mrs. Miner in the cabin on the side of the hill.

Q. Do you remember saying thut it would not be of any use for them to stake,.
that Alex. would have the claim anyhow ?-A. Probably I did; perhaps I didn't.

Q. You don't remember the convermation ?-A. No.
Q. You won't swear yo don't?-A. I wouldn't swear one way or the other.
Q. That it was no use for them to stake that Alex. would got the claim ?-A.

I wouldn't swear one way or the other.
Q. Did you ever make a proposition to Mrs. Kelly to go with you and freeze

the miners' out?-A. No, nover that I remembor of.
Q. You have forgotten that ?-A. Not that I remember of.
Q. You never went to any other cabin and spoke to Mrs. Kelly about that?-

A. Not that I remember of.
Q. You bave torgotten that you ever made a proposition with the Kellys that

you would divide up on the whole claim, and freeze the Miners out?-A. I said
sornethirg to Kelly myself, but I never said a word to her.

Q. If it would not hurt your feelings, we would like to know about this ?-A.
Offer to Kelly.

Q. Yes ?-A. The rumour went arouni town that a man could hold a whole
claim; I told him ho had bettor stake the other half, and I would go with thom.

Q. Ani where would Mrs. Miner be ?-A. I don't know whore she would be.
Q. So Alex. McDonald told you ho was holding the claim, which was respon-

sible tor two thousand dollars. That is a question you didn't answer. How can
he hold a claim responsible ?-A. I don't think ho was holding it; I think I said lie
was promise l it.

Q. Did any one else promiso him but Burt ?-A. No one else told him.
Q. Reverting back to another point there; you wero agreeable to what Mr.

)ougherty did whenî ho allowed them to record thoir caims because Alex.got the two
thousand dollars. You are agreoablo ?-A. If ho gets the two thousand dollars I
am.

Q. Supposing the mortgagee should be defeated, you wouldn't be, would you; yon
would stili claim your right to forcing contest, wouldn't you ?-A. I don't know
whether I would or not.

Q. But if more than two thousand dollars came out of this claim; suppose three
thousand dollars, you would' t'hrow the extra thousand away; you would want it.

191



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 87A.)

for you rself, wouldn't you ?-A. It is most likely; I would take two thousand dollars,
for that matter.

Q. Yes, I suppose so. And you wouldn't let Mr. Dougherty sign that money
away. Supposing six thousand dollars came out instead of two, yeu wouldn't give
him power to sign that away ?-A. No.

Q. So the contest is still pending as far as you are concerned if they don't do
what is right?-A. If Alex. doesn't get his two thousand dollars I don't know
whether I would or not; it would strike me I would hold it if I could.

Q. You are familiar with the mining regulations here as you are an old miner.
You have been around so much you could give me information on this score; you
say you went up there to stake as Alex. McDonald's agent. Can a man stake
through his agent by the regulations?-A. He sent me to go for him and told me to
keep watch and stake when it would be thrown open.

Q. You said yon went up as his agent, and you staked as another man's agent?
-A. I staked it for myself, not as his agent; he sent me to stake it for myself, and
to give him two thousand dollars out of it.

Q. And keep the rest yourself?-A. He didn't say.
Q. And the suit is still pending; I was forgetting something Mr. McDonald.

TIheru was one point I want a little information on. You put in some real smal.
stakes for the two hundred and fifty feet ?-A. Yes.

Q. Do you know the legal stakes in this country ?-A. No, I don't.
Q. You can reod and write, don't you ?-A. Not very well.
Q. You have read the regulations through, have you not ?-A. No more than

what I was told ; of course I can read and write some.
Q. Can you give me any idea of the size of the two hundred and fifty feet

stakes; we will suppose they were about a foot long. How wide across the base?
-A. I didn't measure it.

Q. 1v was flat?-A. Yee.
Q. On two aides ?-A. Just on the one side.
Q. Was the fiat aide an inch and a-half across?-A. Yes.
Q. Just enough to hold your name ?-A. Yes, a little more than my name.
Q. How many stakes did you put around the claim, Mr. McDonald, did you put

four stakes ?-A. Certainly.
Q. And tour little stakes making eight ?-A. Yes.

By Air. Tabor:

Q. Do you remember the name of the man before whom you took this ?--A. No.
Q. Would you remember it if you heard it ?-A. No, I don't think I would; I

didn't know, I got the letter. The letter was put in an envelope. This man took
the money.

Q. Who paid the money for recording ?-A. I did.
Q. If your brother had wanted yon to give a bill of sale for that claim would

you ?-A. I would.
Q. Without bis paying you any money?-A. I would, if he asked me.
Q. If your brother is perfectly satisfied with the agreement entered into, this is

satisfactory to you ?-A. Yes, I would be satisfied with it.
Q. Satisfied with anything your brother would do in regard to that case?-A.

Ytes.
Q. Satisfied to withdraw the contest ?-A. Yes.
Q. So you remember being with Mr. Craig in company with Kelly, and telling

him the contebt was withdrawn ?-A. No, if such took place I don't know; I don't
rentember.

Q. You don't remember of seeing Mi. Craig yourself?-A. I don't think so; I
wouldn't swear if lever saw the manor not; I wouldn't swear one way or the other.
I didn't see him that I know of. Yes, I seen him once I believe.

Q. Rad you any convei-sation with regard to thie claim at the time?-A. No,
not with Craig.
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Q. Then if Alex. McDonald is satisfied to the contest being withdrawn, you are?
-A. If Alex. authorizes them to withdraw the contest there is no contest; not if h-
is satisfisd with it.

Q. You remember meeting Mr. Craig at the gold commissioner's office ?-A.
I do.

Q. Were you with Kelly thon ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you remember thon telling Craig you wore satisfied with the agreement ?

-A. Kelly and I were talking over it there about staking the claim; of course I
don't remember very well the words we said, but we wanted to have the claim, and
coming down again when we loft the platform he wanted to throw dice to see who
would got the claim; I wouldn't do tnat.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You said a moment ago that yon planted four stakes at the corners; do you
mean to say that you planted stakes on the four corners of the claim ?-A. I staked
that at the lower corner.

Q. Now, how many stakes did you put in at the lower end ?-A. Two on each
corner-on each side of the creek.

Q. Did you plant one in the middle?-A. Yes, one in the middle for two hun-
dred and fifty feet, and two at the upper end of five hundred.

Q. That is five stakes you planted altogether; wouldn't it be eight ? You put
in four at each end of the claim and one in the middle?-A. Two middle ones, and,
two at the upper end.

Q. Why did you put in all those stakes ?-A. I staked at first as a five hundred
foot claim because I was told that we had to stake five hundred feet.

Q. Did you believe that it was required to stake it at the corner of the claim
under the rogulations ?-A. How do you mean ?

Q. Do you know what the regulations require you to do to stake a claim ?-
A. No more than I was told.

Q. Why did you make any difference in the size of the two sets of posts? You
say that the 250 foot posts were smaller than the others?-A. Well, I don't know
if I had anything in view in making them smaller or not.

Q. How did it happen that they were all smaller than the five hundred feet
posts ?-A. Well, of course, I made the stakes in the day time and drove them in at
night. I made one set smaller and the other set bigger; of course, I bad nothing
in view for it.

Q. Nothing in view ?-A. No more than when I came down here that I would
make inquiry whether I could hold it or not.

Q. Just simply to protect yourself in either case ?-A. Yes.
Q. When yon were staking it, had you any other thought in your own mind ?

-A. Nothing except staking it for the two thousand dollars.
Q. For your trouble ?-A. He said I might have it if I would give him two

thousand dollars. That was the undorstanding I had; I was to give him two
thousand dollars and have the claim.

Q. You went there because ho told you; ho wanted to be protected for the
two thousand dollars ?-A. He told me it would be thrown open at midnight on
the 31st August.

Q. I wanted to know why you made the differente in the stakes ?-A. I had
nothing in view for doing so;. it was done without any purpo3e.

By Mr. George:

Q. Did Cummings see you put the little stakes in ?-A. Well, I suppose ho did.
Q. Do you remember making an affidavit to the effect that you had planted

legal stakes for the two hundred and fifty foet? You remember taking the oath?
-A. Yes.

Q. And you didn't know what a legal stake was, and you swore you put legal
stakes in ?-A. I thought as long as my name was on it that was all that was-
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required; that it would be a legal stake as long as it bad the name and number of
feet and the number of the license and the date.

Q. You wouldn't think the size eut any figure? You don't remember that
your witness saw you stake the two hundred and fifty feet ?-A. Yes, of course ho
saw me stake; he was there.

Q. Did he seo you stake the five hundred feet ?-A. Peihaps he saw me stake
both.

Q. Was he with you when you did it ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you vouch that he saw you stake the two hundred and fifty feet ?-A.

Yes.
Q. He must have »es you if you did it. On your word, did you stake two

hundred and fifty feet that night, or one week after ?-A. On that night and Saw
no other stakes.

Q. And Cumminga saw you ?-A. Yes.

By the Commissioner :

Q. And you have not been on that claim since ?-A. No.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. For your information I may read clause "5" of the affidavit with regard to
legal stakes:-

" That I (or we) did on the day of mark out on the ground,
in accordance in overy particular with the provisions of the mining regulations for
the Yukon District, the claim for which I (or we) make this application, and in so
-doing I (or we) did not encroach on any other claim or mining location previously
laid out by any other perion."

The COMMISSIoNER.-I think there are very few legal stakes. I never suw but
four, and I made those myself.

Mr. TABoa..-I know there was a great deal of litigation in British Columbia
over this.

Mr. GEoRGE.-I have several more witnesses that I cannot bring; there is Mr.
Cummings, that witnessed Mr. McDonald's staking, I was going to ak-

The CoMMIsSIoNR.-Do you know wheie Cumming6 is ?
Mr. GEoio.-No, sir, I don't.
Mr. McGREGoR.-He lives near the mouth of the Bonanza.
Mr. TABoR.-We would be very glad if ho was in.

Dominion of Canada,)
Yukon Territory,

To wit:

We, J. N. E. Brown and F. M. Shepard, both of Dawson, Y.T., stenographers,
do solemnly declare that the paper writing hereto annexed is a correct transcript of
the questions put to the various witnesses therein named and their answers thereto,
upon the investigation before William Ogilvie, Esquire, commissioner of the Yukon
Territory, into a certain charge against Thomas Fawcett, late gold commissioner of
the Yukon Territory, the particulars of which charge appear in said paper writing.

And we take this solemu declaration conscientiously believing it to be true and
knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under oath, and by virtue
of the Canada Evidence Act of 1893.

J. N. E. BROWN,
F. M. SHEPARD.

Declared before me at Dawson,
Yukon Territory, this 27th
day of April, 1899. 1

W. H. P. CLEMENT,
A Oommisaioner, &c.
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ROYAL COMMISSION.

Hearing of charges preferred by Dr. Bourke before the Royat Commission, Mon-
day morning, 6th March, 1892-Morning Session.

Dr. BoURKE.-[ hope yoU will eXCuse Me if I make any serious mistakes, I am
not used to conducting matters of this sort. On a previous occasion I understood
you to tay, if possible, you would find a meanb by which you would carry on the
investigation of matters occurring after the 25th of August. I would be glad to
know if there is any change of the date ?

The CoMMIssIONE.-In the case of Mrs. Miner and Mrs. Kelly, that occurred
since the 25th of August, the witnesses made their statements without being sworn;
the evidence will be read over very carefully to them after it is tranacribed, and
they wili be required to make a statutory declaration that it is true.

Dr. BOURKE.-The same thing would hold good in any other case?
The CoMMIssoNEi.-If you wish to go on under these'ines, 1 have no objection

to look intu matters that occurred after the 25th of August.
Dr. BouRKE.-There is another point I want to trouble you about. I would

like to know if we are to have your permission to have the documentary evidence
taken from the official records, or papers written by the officiais since the 25th of
August, put in?

The CoMMEssIoNER.-If the olher parties have no objections, I have not.
Dr. BouaKE.-I wish to ask if Mr. Faweett bas any papers taken from bis

office-one in bis own hand writing ?
Mr. TABo.-It depends on what it is about.
Dr. BoUiRKE.-We have heard the same remarks before from this gentleman.

He don't want to be bound by the 25th of August. He was ready to have every-
thing brouight forward. I ask that the letteas be read in court.

Mr. TABoR.-I object to that; I appear for Mr. Fawcett; what I say should be
satisfactory, however, we will be governed by the circumstances of the case. i don't
object and I don't think Mr. Fawcett will.

Dr. BoURKE..-You made the ruling that nothing was to be taken up that
occurred after the 25th of August. It possibly might end some of the matters I
have referred to, and I wish to say that I have the greatest respect flor Her Majesty's
courts, nobody bas a greater respect for that than I have. If I should err in the
beat or anything in that way it is not intended. No person in this country bas
greater respect for authority than I bave. The difficulty it put me into is this: I
may touch on matters which occurred since the 25th of August, which is against
your ruling, while Mr. Fawcett is advised by bis counsel to follow only the strict
lettor of the law; I cannot object; I don't object, but the public and the press will
not be satisfied.

The CoMMIssIoNE.-We have nothiing to do with the public or the press. I
cannot go on any other way.

Mr. TABoa.- said I would be governed by the circumstauces of the case.
Dr. BoURKE.-There was another question I would like your opinion ulon;

whether or not we would have anthority to compel witnesses to attend on matters
that transpired after the 25th of August ? It may be necessary that we should want
other documentary evidence from the gold commissioner's office-letters in Mr.
Fawcett's own hand-writing.

The CoMMIssIONER.-Mr. Tabor says he will be governed by the conditions. If
jyou submit your case ho will know. If your requests are reasonable and proper
there will be no objectione.\

Dr. BoURKE.-Iu that case I apologize for saying what I bave. Will the pro-
ceedings be carried on by swearing witnesses or affirming?
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The CoMMIssIoNER.-They may swear or affirm as their training bas taught
them.

Dr. BouRKE.-I was not in court all the time and from what you remarked I
didn't understand the nature of a procedure that seemed strange; I didn't under-
stand this-I see it now.

The COMMISSIONER.-Are you ready to go on Mr. Fawcett?
Mr. FAwcETT.-I would like to know the charge.
Dr. BoURKE.-Your honour, correct me if I am out of order. What I claim is

this: That while Dominion Creek was closed against the public, Mr. Fawcett did
recommend in writing to Major Walsh that a claim on that creek be given to Alex.
McDonald, claim No. 16 bolow Upper Discovery, because Alex. had made a bad deal
with somebody else.

Mr. TABoR.-I don't know Mr. Commissioner whether we have a record of the
papers or not.

Dr. BoURKE.-I submitted a request for all the papers to be brought into court.
Mr. TABOR.-HOW could we understand that; I didn't know Dr. Bourke wanted

them. As I statei the other day, I don't know what we are after here, I would like
Dr. Bourke to let me know definitely what the charge is.

The CoMMISsIONER.-I Will put it tO you shortly; Alex. McDonald bought a
claim, put it on record and paid money for it, afterwards on a contest he was thrown
ont; ho was allowed to record 16 below Discovery on Dominion Creek as a compen-
sation for the injustice perpetrated on him through false records in the office.

Mr. TABoR.-I understand that, but I didn't know that Dr. Bourke was bringing
this charge, this is the first intimation we have had of it. What I would like to
know is what charge does Dr. Bourke prefer against Mr. Fawcett ?

Dr. BOURKE.-If yOu have the three letters I have written you-
The CoMMIssIONER.-I might say this, that letters have been coming in from

Dr. Bourke almost every day. I have asked him for some sort of a definite statement,
but he bas never submitted it.

Dr. BoURKE.-I think Mr. Tabor will get all the information he wants in my
letters of charges of the 13th, 16th, and I think the 20th of February.

Mr. WoonwoRT.-It seems as far as the things I am called on to prove are
more matters of public record; and if the cases are taken up separately, I would be
kept here two or three days doing no good. I would like to get my evidence in
this morning. I am put to a good deal of trouble by being kept away from my
business.

The COMMISSIONER.-Mr. Fawcett was aware of these charges, I think; Mr.
Tabor was not. The trouble is we began wrong. I didn't insist enough on having
a definite charge-a definite written statement. Many people didn't know how to
put them in formally, so now I have to put up with it. They are coming in from
Dr. Bourke every day, and have been for the last ton days.

Dr. BoURKE.-For the last ton days 1 have not made any charges. I have
asked for documents to prove these charges; documents which every effort bas
been made to keep from me.

The COMMIssIoNER.-I don't know who made an effort to keep them from you.
Dr. BoURKE.-I will be happy to prove that before you, if Mr. Senkier is

present, from his own mouth.
The COMMrssIONER.-It Mr. Tabor ready to go on with the investigation of 16 A.?
Mr. TABoR.-I understood you were going to investigate these iriatters, and

these charges which he bas preferred, and also with regard to the laying over of the
royalty, and ask for an explanation from the officials here.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-No one bere can explain why it was done.
Dr. BOURKE.-I can explain why it was done, so can Mr. Fawcett.
The COMMIsIONER.-It is only a one-sided investigation; some of the people are

bore and some are in Ottawa.
Dr. BouRKE.-We are ready to go on.
The CoMmissIoNE.-We are happy to give you all the assistance that we can.
Dr. BouRKE.-If there is any objection to hearing Mr. Woodworth, perhaps we

might hear Mr. Fawcett's statement.
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The CommIssIoNER.-Mr. Fawcett may take the stand.
Dr. BoURKEc.-Very good, sir. Mr. Faweett, have you the letter ?
Mr. FAwCETT.-This is the only letter, one to Major Walsh, I have, in which

Mr. McDonald made application for three claims on Dominion Creek, and recom-
mended that he have one claim, and the reason why.

Dr. BoURKE.-The letter of the first of August ?-A. Yes, sir.

THoMAs FAwCETT, sworn.

Mr. FAWCETT.-Mr. McDonald had acquired by purchase claim No. 18 and 26
below on Dominion, below Upper Discovery; and 1 think also a claim on one of the
tributaries. Claim No. 18, had been, through some mistake not of the office, recorded
by two different persons.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Who recorded it ?-A. I forget. I have not the name of the first one. One
application was taken at Forty-Mile the other by Mr. Davis; and the second applica-
tion, that bearing the second date, was granted to Mr. Clair. Mr. McDonald
purchased from Mr. Clair. We had no records compiled at that time. There were
no records in existence until after the party came from Selkirk and Mr. Craig went
to work and compiled them.

Q. What date was that ?-A. September or the latter part of August. In
searching to find out what had been recorded here Mr. Craig had to go over and
copy a list of the claims at that time; he had to get them from the stubs in the
books and in a great many cases there were no stubs. Some of the transactions bad
been put on forme; the only thing to do was to go over the applications to find out
what was recorded, this was a very laborious proposition. I have explained how
there was two applications for this claim and both recorded. The second was granted
firet, but the other application arrived from Forty-Mile bearing a prior date, and, Mr.
Clair not being found, his application was not cancelled until after it bad been sold to
Mr. McDonald, who was an innocent purchaser. Mr. McDonald also purchased No.
26 below Upper Discovery. At that time the survey was made it was found there
was no No. 26. He also purchased a claim on a tributary, which he lost also, as it
didn't exist, so he made application to Major Walsh, asking for these in lieu of three
claims he lost; the letter was referred to me and I recommended that the claims he
had purchased from Mr. Clair, (that had been recorded twice in the office), should
be replaced, and that his claim for one in lien of that be recognized; but with
reference to the others that he had no rights other than what the men had them-
selves; that is, their claims were found not to exist, so in reply to the letter applying
for three claims,-the letter to Major Walsh, I sent the following:

(Mr. Fawcett reads letter).

" Dated, lst August. I have the honour to recommend that the placer claim
shown on the government plot as 16B below Lower Discovery on Dominion Creek
be granted to Mr. Alexander McDonald in lieu of claim purchased by him from one
A. Clair who, through an oversight in the office, had been granted a certificate for
a claim which had been recorded prior to Clair's application," and the ground being
government ground it was given to cover up the loss of the claim which he had
purchased from Clair-that is claim No. 16B below Lower Discovery.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Who is the letter addressed to ?-A. It is addressed to Hion. J. Morrow
Walsh.

Q. What is the date ?-A. Dated, firet of August.
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By the Commissioner :

Q. You say there was a letter from Major Walsh to you asking-
Mr. FAwÇETT.-From Mr. Mcl)onald to Major Walsh, not to me, asking for

thrce claims in lieu of three claims.
The CoMMIssIONER.-And Major Walsh referred the matter to you?
Mr. FAwCETT.-Yes, reforred the matter to me. I recommended that ho bc com-

pensated for the loss of three by giving him one, ho having purchased the right of
the second applicant. This, I may say, was corifirmed by Major Walsh and the
claim given.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Is that lotter from Mr. McDonald to Major Walsh here ?-A. It is not here;
I have not the letter in my possession.

Q. You do not know if the letter is in existence or not ?-A. Major Walsh will
probably have it.

Q. What is the letter from Major Walsh to you ?-A. He brought Mr. Mc Don-
ald's letter to me, and told me to give it to him in writing, whicl I did.

Dr. BoURKE.-Mr. Fawcett, as I understand you, this transaction occurred in
September, 1897?

Mr. FAWCETT.-The claim was staked the first of June, 1897.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. What was the date that it was recorded on?-A. In August, I think, 1897.
Q. 1897 ?-A. Yes, 1897.
Q. And thore was nothing done about doing justice to Mr. McDonald fora year?

-A. There was nothing known about the claim No. 26, and these others which he
had lost. Nothing about this being out of existence until after the return of the
survey.

Q. About 16 B?-A. 16 B was closed. Dominion was closed from Upper Dis-
covery to 120 below Lower Discovery.

Q. About what date ?-A. 15th of November, 1897.
Q. Was that a government claim or opened to the public ?-A. They were all

government claims.
Q. Was it one of the alternate ten claims ?-A. Al were reserved for the gov-

ernment before that.
Q. I don't tbink you understand my question, I will make it clear. Al this

land was intended to be opened to the public, was that so?-A. No, sir; none of it,
as far as we knew, between 120 below and Upper Discovery.

Q. Has it been opened since ?-A. No, sir.
Q. How does it stand now ?-A. It stands now as government ground.
Q. The matter is in dispute ?-A. I don't think it is; I don't know.
The CoMMISsINER.-The ground was closed on account of so manycomplicated

applications, until those who had undoubted right are found, the Crown holds it.

By Dr. Bourke :

Q. I understand the matter; it may be possibly opened; that which you call
Crown land may possibly be opened to the public; how about that which bas been
given to McDonald ? In your experience as gold commissioner, have you had other
cases in which there were two claimants recorded the same ground ?-A. Yes, many
of them.

Q. And what was the practice in your court?-A. The practice was that the
first staker held the ground.

Q. Ie that still your practice ?-A. Yes, that would be the universal practice
acknowledged in any court; it would in my own.
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Q. Well, if Alex. McDonald was only a poor man and he made a bad bargain,
would ho receive this exceptional treatment ?-A. Ho didn't receive exceptional
treatment.

Q. You said in other cases whore there were two claimants for the same ground
it was given to the first staker. In this case Clair was the second staker ?-A.
Hie was the second claimant and sold the ground te Mr. MoDonald.

Q. That was a civil proceeding between McDonald and Clair; yen step in
and take Alex. McDonald's private affaire; I want your reasons ?-A. i have given
my reasons full enough; that is ail the reason I shall give.

Q. I take it thon as the substance of Mr. Fawcett's statement, that any other
case in which there wero two people recorded, the person recording first is the only
person recognized. Is that se ?-A. I didn't say that.

Q. Well, I asked you if ho wouldn't have the best right te the claim ? Is that
so or not ?-A. My impression is that ho would have the best right to the claim, but
I didn't say the other man would loso the claim.

Q. Can you give a case in which he didn't lose the claim ?-A. I don't hold the
records in my head.

Q. Can yon give me a case where two mon recorded and the second man got
the claim ? Will you furinish cases ?-A. My judgments are ail on record; they
are matters of record which yon can acquire.

Dr. BouRKE.-I can inquire in the record in your office ? Are we going to
waste time ? J insist on an answer ? J asked you if you could refer to other cases
in which you have treated other people in a similar way ? I appeal te his honour
to have that evidence brought into court, and compel you to show it to us. I will
ask your honour te do so ?

The COeuxImssloNEa.--We will have the records of the court brought in.
Mr. FAWETT.-There are plenty of cases, I have none of them in my head.
Dr. BoURKE.-J don't want to trouble any one, I simply want te ask yon a fair

question; you can bring them in to-morrow or any other day; I only want the facts
te come forth; thore are many cases in which people lest claims.

By the Commissioner :

Q. Were there any cases of that kind contested ?-A. Yes, sir. We will go over
these conteste and have the judgment in every case where there are two applicants.

Dr. BoURKE.-As far as that goes until we got this evidence into court, if yen
examine Mr. Woodworth, as far as ho knows in the matter to-day. we will return te
it to-morrow at 10.30.

The CoMMissoNEa.-Mr. Fawcett will take some time te prepare, whenever ho
is ready we cari go on with the hearing of the case.

Mr. FAwCETT.-I can give Dr. Bourke cases in which a man bas lest the claim.
The CoMmissioNER.-To show that Mr. McDonald didn't stand alone in these

peculiar circumstalces.
Dr. BoURKE.-That is ail.
Mr. FAWCETT.-There was an arrangement in one case where the original staker

didn't stake hie claim, but the purchaser was given the claim, although contested by
another party; this was on the recommendation of Chief Justice MeGuire.

Dr. soURKE.-You have just put an idea into my head. Yeu spoke about stak-
ing the clain. In this case, as a matter of fact, you acknowledged that you gave
McDonald 16 B below; but didn't you know ho didn't stake the claim ?

Mr. FAWCETT.-MOSt certainly. I said it was government ground. It was

given in lieu of those ho lest.
Dr. BoUaKE.- 1 it the practice of the government te step out of its regulations

and give him this ground withont his going on it?
The COMMISIONER.-It is a part of the governmont policy that no man shall

suffer through any act on the part of an official. If you were put wrongly unto a
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claim and lost it, tle government would consider that you were entitled to some
compensation, and the only way would be to give you somue other claim.

Dr. BoURK.-Very proper. That will open many applications to the govern-
ment here, air, I am afraid.

C. M. WOOIWORTH, called and sworn, testified as follows:-

I would say that I know nothing particular about this " 16 " below except this:
That from the time of my coming in here, until the present time, I considered this
talk about Dominion Creek being closed as a fraud on the public, Mr. Walsh and
the Minister of the Interior being to blame for it. It was not closed, and nover was.

By the Commissioner: .
Q. That is hardly evidence.-A. That explains why I took the stepe I did; the

facts I know are very little. These claims were applied for by clients of mine, 16B.
-two claims, I think, 16A and 16B, below Lower Discovery. My clients were
refused record at the gold commissioner's office.

Q. Who were they ?-A. I think one of the names was Fillion; the papers are
at Ottawa.

Q. That ie the trouble with these cases; the papers are not here, so that we are
completely in the dark about them.-A. I might explain why it is. I asked theni
to take the application at the office and I would send the copies to Ottawa, if they
wouldn't grant the ground, and they said if I put them on the shelf they would
pitch them off, although I was treated with more courtesy than other people. There
were quite a number of claims at that time, and when we came to one Bolton said,
they covered this 16B. I am not so sure that it did. He had written on the face
something like this: "This claim will not be granted unless especially granted hy
the Minister of the Interior." Thore was one and he said ho would not write any-
thing on it. fie said thut the claim belonged to Alex. McDonald. I tbought he
was telling the truth, so I asked him if Alex. McDonald had staked the claim, and
ho said, no; and I asked him whether ho was so poor the government had helped
him ont. He said, no, ho had a check or two. He said ho had acquired a claim on
Dominion which didn't turn out-I tnink these were bis words-and the govern-
ment had given him this one, so I had no further talk with him.

Q. And ho alleged Alex. McDonald staked it?-A. No, ho said ho didn't stake
it. I sent the application to Ottawa.

Q. For your client?-A. For my client; if they were specially recommended.
by the Minister of the In terior.

Q. Did you get any reply ?-A. No, I may say that from that time to this a
reply would be about due now judging from the way I have been getting other
mail. I think it is a terrible long time when you consider that it is nearly six
months. My applications were made several months ago; it would take several
months to get out and some time for consideration.

Q. I that ail you know ?-A. Nothing further, but I know that McDonald bas
transferred the caims to other parties.

By Dr. Bourke :
Q. What date did your clients make application and receive this infor'mation at

the office ?-A. I cannot say the exact date; before the 4th of September, 1898, i
believe. I believe about the 25th of August.

Q. It may appear to be out of order, but I am anxious to help; I think Mr.
Woodworth has got certain information which ho declines to make public as to the
condition of affaire and the way people were treated and how they feit, and we-
would be glad if ho would make a further statement on ail ho knows in the matter.
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Mr. TABoR.-That depends on the date; was it before the 25th of August?
Dr. BoURKE.-He has already lot it out.
Mr. WooDwoRTH.--I said what it is, I am an advocate for Dr. Bourke in some

other matters before the court; we have had private conversations in the course of
-our business, and he has said to me do yon know of the existence of corruption in
the gold commissioner's office. He asked me if I would tell him what they were.
I would not; he told me he would make me before the royal commission. I said I
wouldn't tell the royal commission, and he asked me why, and I wiIl give the reason
why. I went and asked these clients who told me some of the matters and had
stated them to me so often that I almost knew them myself, and I asked them if
they would go before the royal commission and they objected. I asked them to let
me say what I knew of it and they wouldn't agree. My mouth is practically sealed;
I am here as an advocate.

By the Commissioner:

Q. And you refuse to answer ?-A. I wish to be perfectly frank; it is a trying
case if I am to be dragged before this commission; if I were asked to defend a
murderer and he told me how he-committed a crime and what his reasons were, and
I should be brought up before a royal commission and be forced to tell all he told
me it would make it so that no such man could be defended. It is an important
case.

Q. I will consider the matter and see whether or not your objection wili stand ?
-A. If I am compelled to answer I will do so, but want to test the matter.

Q. If we can compel you to answer we wilt; if not, that ends it. I don't know
to what extent you are privileged in that matter; I will take advice on it. There
is no use wasting time discussing it now. Have you any knowledge of these facts
other than as a solicitor ?

Dr. BOURKE.-Is there a clerk in your office that can give information ?
The CommssoNER.-lave you any information other than a solicitor?
Mr. WooDWORTI.-I cannot bring anything to mind as a solicitor, in which I

have. If I lad, I would be very glad to answer because my feelings have been out-
raged in the way in which things have been done; it is an awkward situation for
me.

The CommissioNER.-It is an awkward situation for me ; the public may not
understand this; if I don't force you to tell what you know they will think I am in
the swim as much as the rest. 1 will take the matter into consideration and advise
on it.

Dr. BoURKE.-Can we have Mr. Woodworth's clerk? What is his name Mr.
Woodworth ?

Mr. WoonwoRTI.-My clerk will have instructions to answer no questions that
he acquired through my business, or any secrets that ho may have learned in con.
nection with my office except anything that he may know himself. I will claim for
him the same privileges that I have for myself.

By the Commissioner:

Q. That is another question I will have to take advice on. Who is your clerk?
-A. There is Mr. Victor H. Smith ; I have had several clerks in my office.

Q. How long has Mr. Smith been in your employ ?-A. He was taken in after I
got well from my illness, so that it would be in 1899.

Q. He would likely be useless ?-A. Unless somethiSg he knows himself.
Dr. BouRKE.-About some claim on Hunker, eh?
Mr. WOODWORTr.-You had better ask him.
Di. BouRKE.-Have him subponaed, Dr. Brown; if the commission cannot get

anything more out of you, I don't think I can.
The CommIssIoNER.-If we want any more we will send for you.
Mr. WOODWORTH.-I think it is a matter that connerns the whole bar and

would like to see the matter investigated.
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The CoMMIssoNER.-You can advise with your learned brethern and I will
with the legal adviser.

Mr. Woonwoa-Tr.-I wouldn't mind serving a short term of imprisonment if I
am wrong.

ALEXANDER MOFARLANE, being called and sworn, testified as follows.-

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Mr. MeFarlane, about this claim "16 " below Discovery on Dominion, you
have said that this ground was never paid for?-A. No, it was a grant from the
governmont.

Q. About the claim he bought from Mr. Clair, was that paid for?-A. No, he
bought it from me.

Q. Was it ever paid for ?-A. Part of it.
Q. How much ?-A. One thousand dollars.
Q. Did you give any of it back ?-A. No, ho bought it for thirty-five hundred

dollars;-one thousand cash, part in notes, and part on bed-rock. The notes I
turned over to Petcher. I think the claim was "13 " below upper. I know some-
thing about "18", it was Clair's claim, I bought it from Clair for twenty-eight
hundred dollars, and sold to McDonald for thirty-five hund red. Ho paid one thousand
dollars cash to me and I paid Clair one thousand. Ho gave notes for $1,550,-and
the balance on bed-rock. I think the sale went through in November-in Novem ber
1897, the whole thing. Shortly before I went outside ho came to me one day and
told me that there was another owner to that claim.

Q. Who?-A. Alexander McDonald; I said I thought that was unfortunate.
He asked me to pay back the monoy and return the note. I returned one of the
notes and said the others were out of my possession, and I would instruct the
holders of the notes not to turn them over to any body, so that if Alexander
McDonald did not get anything out of it ho wouldn't lose anything. I told him that
as far as the thousand dollars was concerned the matter was settled, and if ho got
no claim we wouldreturn him that. A few days before ho went out this last time I
spoke to him again about it, and ho told me ho had never received any compensa-
tion from the government and he was going to Ottawa about it. After I found out
about this I put him down for a liar--

By the Commissioner;

Q. It was not a case of forgotfulness ?-A. No.

By Dr. Bourke :

Q. You didn't return the thousand dollars ?-A. No; I returned him one of the
notes I had, and the other notes were in such a shape that none of them could be
turned over to innocent holders. MeDonald simply paid one thousand dollars; in
fact he broached me on the subject and wanted to got this thousand dollars, alleging
ho got nothing. He told me point blank that he got nothing, so I hope ho doesn't
get the claim.

By the Commissioner:

Q. That remains to be decided ?-A. He doesn't deserve any sympathy.
Da. BoURKE.-I am glad you made that unguarded remark, but my opinion is

of the matter that it should have been sifted to find out if ho paid ont this money to
that amount; it was not right to-

The COMMIssIONER.-You are here to state the facts.
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A. I have no objection; I am stating the facts. And Alex. got a present of
that claim.

Mr. MCFARLANE.-Of course the authorities did not know that ho had this
money; they were not to blame I suppose.

Dr. BoUaKE.-I thank you very much. Will you have Mr. Pawcett recalled ?

By Mr. Tabor;

Q. (To Mr. MeFarlane) If this claim is substituted for the other claim you will
try to get your rioney ?-A. You bot.

Dr. BoURKE.-I want to atbk Mr. Fawcett if he took steps to see that Mr. Mc-
Donald was to be at no loss. Did he protect his interests ?

Mr. FAwCETT.-In what way, I don't understand you ?
Mr. TABoR.-Can we go on?
Dr. BoURKE.-Allow me to bring it up to-morrow morning ?
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I am quite willing it should be deferred; you may bring it

up agaim.

DAWSON CITY, 13th February, 1899.
WM. OGILVIE, Esq.,

Commissioner, Yukon District.

SiR,-I beg to charge Mr. Thomas Fawcett. late gold commissioner, with
having permitted Th'e Klondike Goldfields Co., Ltd., to avoid payment of miner's
license permitting thom through their servant, Mr. J. J. McLaren, record and deal
with claims No. 49 above Bonanza, 58 Hunker, j No. 16 on Sulphur below, No. 11,
12 & 13 Star Gulch, 21 Bryant Creek, 2 Moosehide, * share 5 Eldorado, bench, J, 81
Bonanza below, and with extending unusual privileges to the said company (not
conceded to miners gencrally) and contrary to the mining rogulations-by grouping
aforesaid claims, and also with extending a similar privilege to the claims of
Messrs. Healy & Constantine.

Further, with not satisfying himself that the work for representation had been
carried out, with refusing record of restaking above mentioned claims, stating that
ho would protect the owners and prevent such record whilst ho was gold commis-
sioner. It will be necessary to have a summons sorved on Mr. Alexander Mc.
Farlane, Bank Building, 3rd street, as a witness, and also to notify him to preserve
and retain in his custody any documents as wel as notes, decrees or copies of same,
of whatever description, having any roferonce to or mention of transactions of
business of any kind between or relating to the Klondike Goldfields, Limited, and the
New Goldfields of British Columbia, and Mr. J. J. McLaren, James Dougherty,
Frederiek Morton Stevens and any other person or persons, and any or oither of
them relative to or in any way concerning the aforesaid claims.

I also request that a summons as witness, and a similar notice as to documents,
&c., to be sent on Mr. J. J. McLaren, lately resident of Mr. Pat Galvin's moat store,
first avenue.

Also that a similar sunmons and notice as to documents be served on the
manager Bank British North America here. I request that a similar notice as to
documents be served on Mr. Thomas Fawcett and particularly with reference to the
claims of Messrs. Healy and Constantine and any letters private or otherwise ho
may have received from any governmont officiais in relation thereto.

I have also to request that I be furnished with an order to permit of ail original
documents and books of whatever kind and copies of saine relative to the aforesaid
claims, as well as any correspondence, notes, dairies or letters or copies of same in
any way relating to the hereinbeforo mentioned claims and parties. and particularly
with respect to any correspondence with the government on the subject of grouping
placer claims, whether in the possession of the gold commissioner or any other
official in the Yukon district.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

ISIDORE McWm. BOURKE, M.D.
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(Extractfrom a letter dated Dawson, 16th February, 1899.)

WU, OGILVIE, Esq.
Commissioner, Yukon District.

However, I add to my charges that Mr. Fawcett did with regard to them wil-
fully deviate from the instructions in the mining regulat ions, that ho was unfair and
unjust in the matter of restaking claims specified, that ho used bis official powers
for the benefit of friends, the parties mentioned, and to the prejudice of free miners.

ISIDOICE McWILLIAM BOURKE.

(Extractfrom a letter dated Dawson, 2tAth February, 1899.)

Sia,-In my letter to you of the 16th, please read instead of "l However, I add
to my charges that Mr. Fawcett did with regard to them wilfully manipulate bis
powers, real and assumed, and did wilfully deviate from the mining regulations, that
ho was unfair and unjust in the matter of restaking claims specified, and that he
used his official powerm for the benefit of friends and to the prejudice of free minera,"
the following: However, add to my charges that Mr. Fawcett did wilfully manipu.-
late his powers, real and assumed, and did wilfully deviate from the instructions in
the mining regulations, that ho was unfair and unjust in the matter of restaking
claims and otherwise, and that ho used his official powers for the benefit of friends
and to the prejudice of free miners.

ISIDORE McWILLIAM BOURKE.

Mr. TAÂoR.-A to this letter you are going to put in ?
Dr. BoURKE.-l th*nk it should be on record, the charges [ made in three

different letters. I don't think there is any occasion to have them read; I think
these letters might be put on record.

Mr. TABoB.-I don't understand sucb requests; if these are public charges they
should be-

Dr. BoURKE.-I bave no objection at all.
The COMMISSIoNER.-They will accompany the report to Ottawa.
Dr. BoURKE.-Thore are some things in these letters that I don't want to read

again. The case is now, as far as I can see, the question of the royaity in the
case of Alex. McDonald.

Mr. TABon.-I would like to have a complete record of 16A produced in court.
The CoMMIsSIoNER.-This claim of Alex. McDonald's.
Mr. TABoR.-Yes and also the other claims ?
The CoMMIssIoNz.-Mr. Fawcett wili look after that.
Mr. FAWCETT.-YOS, sir.
Dr. BouRKE.-I would like to ask Mr. Fawcett a few questions in connection

with the royalty; I will ask that the papers be produced in court. Mr. Senkler was
asked to produce these documents; I was not allowed to examine them in his office.
I handed your letters to Mr. Senkler and asked him if ho would look for the papers.

Mr. FAwCETT.-I might say I had two copies of the Order in Council; I loaned
one, but didn't receive it back, and the other I gave to Dr. Brown.

Dr. BouRK.-Allow me to explain. Would Mr. Fawcett tell us, in as few
words as possible, what wei e bis powers here as gold commissioner, and let them be
put oit record.

Mr. FAWcETT.-They were unlimited, as far as I know, as to the administration
of the Act.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Thon, Mr. Fawcett, am I to consider that your powers were unlimited for
evil as well as for good. If you did wrong, were your powers unlimited ? I bave

204

A. 1899



Ogilvie Commission of Inquiry.

reason for asking for this; it is not a joking question at all ?-A.- I don't think any
one had unlimited powers to do evil.
. Q. You were told in this leter that as long as you didn't do anything exceed-
ingly bad, Smart and the others would support you ?-A. That was a private letter,and whoever allowed Dr. Bourke to have access to that lotter, whicb was a private
letter from the surveyor general, is culpable. It is a very serious matter.

The CoMMss5oNER.-H6 got a letter to look up papers himself. I don't know
vhat letters he looked at. Mr. Sonkler objected to his doing so, saying that he was
loking over papers not relating to the question.

Mr. FAWcETT.-Wait until I make a farther explanation.
Dr. BouRKE.-I beg to state that the only papers I saw were two files of Jetters

handed to me by Mr. Senkler. I was given two files. sud two only. I was not
extended the courtesy to sit at a table, and I took a bench. I did nothing wrong.

The CoMmissioNER.-Mr. Senkler says that Dr. Bourke was looking over papers
that did not concern him. Ho said you were looking over papers that you had no
right to.

Dr. BoURKE.-I will bave that brought out, that he put an impediment against
la". I don't see how you can be justified, whether in a private or public letter, that
You can do wrong to a certain extent.

-Mr. FAWCETT.-I don't care whether it id private or publie, the letter will bear
nie out that I was not allowed to do anything wrong. The letter referred to is
wlitten by Captain Deville. It was not given to me as instructions.

By the Commissioner :
Q. Was it a privato letter ?-A. It was a private letter from the surveyor

general to me. He was my chief. He was a gentleman for whose opinion I had
great respect. These were references to matters of administration for which there
were no provision in the regulations. At that time, besides being gold commissioner,

Iad the powers of administration in my appointment.
Dr. BOURKE.-You had great powers, I think, from that letter ?
The COMMIssIoNEa.-Allow Mr. Fawcett to complete his statements.
Mr. TABOR.-I understand Mr. Senkler objected to Dr. Bourke on the ground

that he had no authority to go into that office.
The CüMmlssIoNE.-If I wanted documents, I would have to summon them in

the regular way.
Dr. BouRKiE.-I don't object, but I don't want my name brought in as having

done anything wrong.
The COMMIssNER.-I asked Dr. Bourke to say what particular things he

Wanted. I sent -à letter to Mr. Senkler to hunt theso letters up. Mr. Senkler is a
very' busy man. Since the rush of mails, the officials have had more than they
cOuld do. There is great dîfficulty in getting some documents, as some of them are
lot bore.

Mr. FAWOETT.-The letter not being ofcial, it would not be right to make it
Public. It was a private lotter giving me advice.

Dr. BOURE.-I have got extracts from that letter, sir. I asked that the letter
be handed to you, and asked for a copy to be produced in court. Well, sir, I will
ask that the letter be impounded.

The CoMMI8sIoNER.- When did you first see this letter ?

By Dr. Bourke:
Q. The firet time I made the inspection on your order. Was that concerned

with any charge you had laid before me ?-A. Certain matters before the 25th.
Q. Was it connected with any specific charge you made?
Mr. FWCETT.-No, sir.
Dr. BouaRE.-There was a distinct statement about the royalty. The lettersaid that the royalty should be collected weekly.
Mr. FAwcETT.-That is Mr. Smart's letter.
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Dr. BouRKE.-I initialed this letter. Hle suggested that the royalties be col-
lected weekly. That was a letter on the official file-open to the publie-that is
not a private letter.

Mr. FAWOITT.-No, that is not a private letter, that is among my instructions;
in the other letter the surveyor-general heard it in a letter that these regulations
had been passed.

Dr. Bouxz.-You will see earlier in that letter. sir
IMr. FAWCETT.-YOU will see that it speàks of certain regulations ho thought

was passed.
The CoMMIsSIoNER.-Will you read it, Doctor?
Dr. BoURKE.-I don't think ; it is something-
Mr. FAwETT.-It is not the letter I thought he referred to. There is nothing

in that letter.
The CommIssIoNEa.-No quarrelling in court.
Mr. TABoR.-I aM going to raise the point of the 25th of August. I want to

know if this charge is prior or subsequent to the 25th of August ?
Dr. BouRKI.-It is prior.

By Mr. Tabor;

Q. Is this the royalty question?-A. Yes; the letter is of the 25th of July.
Mr. TABOR.-I might as welt object to anything occuring after the 25th of

August.
Mr. Et TEAU.-Can we hear this letter; I would like to hear it?
The COMMISsIONER.-(After reading Mr. Deville's letter.) There is nothing

particularly objectionable for the public to hear. I will read it aloud.
Dr. BoURKE.-May I ask questions as you read ?

(Private.)
26th July, 1897.

THoMAs FAwcETT, Esq.,
Gold Commissioner,

Dawson City,
Yukon District, N.W.T.

DEAR MR. PAWCETT,-Yon have learned by this time of the tremendous excite-
ment created by the arrival of the Yukon steamers; it is not confined to America,
but is universal, and is the general topic of conversation the world over. Tho least
scrap of nuws from the Yukon is eagerly scanned by tne public, and it was a disap-
pointment to me not to receive anything from you and only a few words from
Ogilvie. I am glad to hear that you have safely arrived, and also that Ogilvie had
not yet left. Ris assistance will be invaluable to you in the difficult circumstances
in which you are placed.

As I expected, the people over there are. much exercised about you; as they put
it, the question is whether they are going to " run " you or whether you will " run"
them. I hope yon have dissipated their doubts by this time.

What is to become of the crowd now rushing to the Yukon, and wliat will
happen during the winter, is a matter of great concern and anxiety to the minister
and myself. I had long conversations with him on the subject; we will try to open
a way for people to comee out during the winter, but the time is so short that we
may not succeed. He often questioned me about you, and seemed relieved when I
told him that you and Ogilvie were our two best mon, and that our business was
safe in your hands.

There are two rules whichi, from my experience of the service, I would advise
you to adopt.

First. Never ask for rulings from the department; make them yourself. When
a matter comes before you which is provided for in the law or regulations, you
cannot be much wrong in adhering to the law. If not provided for, make the ruling
yourself ; report it to the department with you.r reasons, and act upon it at once. You
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wilt perceive that this course has many advantages. In the first place, the ruling will
be more satisfactory to you, and is more likely to be right than if made bore. In
the next place, it will be more satisfactory to the public, because there will be no
delay, and you may tell those who are not pleased that they can if they like apply
to Ottawa to have your ruling reversed, but that in the meantine you will be
governed by it. Unless you are very far wrong, and I do not think that possible,
yon may be sure that Mr. Sifton and Mr. Smart will stand by you.

The second rule is never to ask for instructions. If there is time, report what
you think necessary to do and propose doing, giving your reasons; it is almost sure
to be approved. If you have not time, do what you think necessary without waiting
for instructions, but report at once to the department. Of course, I am not giving
you instructions, but mereiy advice.

We wili want a very full report for publication nextyear. Iamsendingyouby
this mail a copy of Carlyle's report on British Columbia, which may give you some
ideas for making your own report. Put in plans, sketches and anything necessary.

Another thing needed is to improve our maps of the district. By cross-examin-
ing prospectors, you night obtain considerable information.

1 am sending you twenty-five copies of our Yukon pamphlet. The maps in it
may prove useful.

When you write to us, do not forget to put in a few words about Landerkin. I
will communicate thom to his father and he will be pleased.

28th JULY, 1897.

Since writing the above I have received your letter of the 16th ultimo; strangely
enough it arrived several days after letters dated the 22nd. I note what you say
respectinig the renewal fee of $100, but the objection does not impress me as a very
strong one. If a man cannot make $100 out of his claim to pay the renewal, I
would think that ho need not take a license; nobody will jump him.

Now for the news. Since you left I have continued to urge action upon all of
Ogilvie's recommendations, and I am glad to say that council have at last taken up
the matter in earnest, so much so that some of the decisions are rather unexpected.

They are:-
1. Eighty mounted policemen to be drafted out of the force in the North-west

Territories and sent immediately to the Yukon district.
2. Sufficient buildings for their accommodation to be erected and sufficient sup-

plies procured.
3. A post at the most convenient point north of the 60th parallel Lake Tagish

to be established, well equipped with proper accommodation; about twenty mon to
bo stationed there. The other policemen to be stationed ut points where it may
hereafter bo decided that their services wili be effectual.

4. A monthly mail route shall be established; shelter shall be erected at a dis-
tance of fifty miles apart, if necessary. The necessary dogs and supplies to be
purchased. The road to be chosen by the surveyor general and the Comptroller of
the North-west Mounted Police, subjet to the approval of the minister.

5. Estimates of the cost of construction of telograph linos; narrow gauge rail-
way and wagon road to be procured at once over the route from the head of Liynn
Canal to the waters connected with the Yukon, also as to navigation of Lynn Canal
in winter.

6. Provisions for registration of titles under the Territories Real Proporty Act,
and appointment of registrar to be made at once.

There are two more recommendations which I have not on my copy. One of
them I forgot, but the other one is to reserve every alternate claim to the government.

The newspapers further say that a royalty of 10 per cent is to be collected on
the claims yielding not more than $500 and 20 per cent upon those yiolding more
than $500. I did not see that in the list of counçil's recommeudations, and it may
simply be a newspaper's yarn.

The policemen are to start at once and will build their own posts over the mail
road. McArthur will indicate the way over the coast range and locate the road to
Fort Selkirk, marking it so that it may be followed in winter.
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The Mounted police post is to be between Lakes Tagish and Marsh, and to be
connected by telegraph with Skagway. I hardly think that the telegraph will be
built this year.

A magistrate is to be appointed; he will probably be also registrar.
The grant of $2,000 of the provincial government for the Stikeen Teslin road

has been wasted upon the old Hudson's Bay trail via Tahitan River, which we know
to be impracticable, and as we will spend ail our money upon the winter road noth-
ing will be done this year in the direction of Teslin Lake.

I would like to have some good characteristic photographs for illustrating your
next report. They should show not only the places of interest but also mining
scenes. With a winter mail I suppose there will be no difficulty in forwarding
the report so that it may be published early in the spring. Make it very full and
give ail the information you can.

Sincerely yours,
E. DEVILLE.

P.S.-Just heard from Ryley that the changes in the mining regulations are
correctly stated. The royalty is to be collected weekly.

30th July, 1897.
(Memorandum.)

Re winter communication with the Yukon District.

The object which it is desired to accomplish is, in the first place, to keep open
mail communication during the winter by dog trains, and in the second place, to
provide if possible shelter at intervals along the road so as to enable people to come
out of the country.

Our knowledge of the district is too imperfect and the present condition of
affairs there too unfavourable, to permit definite instructions being given; it is an
absolute necessity for the success of the undertaking that the choice of the route,
the selection of the posts and everything else be left euntirely to the discretion of the
officer in charge.

According to our information it would appear that the route alorg the river is
objectionable because it is too long and because the ice is too rough and the valley
too much broken for travelling. It seeims preferable that the trail should strike for
the open country inland after crossing the coast range, having for objective point
Fort Selkirk or some point lower down the Yukon.

The crossing of the coast range in winter is Ihe dangerous part of the trip. It
is said that the storms are terrific and a man who is caught runs the risk of losing
his life unless lie can reach shelter in a short time.

The most direct route is through Dalton's pass, but if our information can be
relied upon, the height is about 5,000 feet and a glacier at the top is the mark of a
heavy snow-storm. Whether such a pass would be practicable in winter is extremely
doubtful.

A pass up the main Chilkat landing to the head of Lake Arkell, is said to be
used by Indians and may be found favourable.

Another alternative is the White Pass, Captain Moore is said to have completed
the trail to the head of Lake Bennett so that cattle and horses can be driven over.
Dr. Dawson reports an Indian trait from the west arm of Lake Bennett to Lake
Arkell. Should these repoi ts prove correct, the White Pass, in the light of our pre.
sent knowledge, appears the most favourable for the following reasons:-

1. The daugerous crossing of the coast range is only 19 miles against 70 or more
by any of the Chilkat Passes. Once on the north side of the range a dry climate
with light snow-fall makes travelling comparatively easy.

2. Arrangements could be made with Captain Moore and the other parties
interested in opening the road to erect shelter for travellers and keep depots of pro-
visions thus relieving the government from this part of the work.
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A post might easily be established at the foot of Lake Arkell which may be
reached with pack hor-ses over the Chilkat Pass and Dalton's trail, or by going up the
Tahkeens with a boat or across fron Lake Bennett if a trail can be opened. Of
course if no trait can be opened, there is no need of a post.

From the foot of Lake Arkell to the Yukon below Fort Selkirk would be 180
miles. Whether time would permit to put up shelter there is not certain. Even
without such shelter, it is believed that communication being assured between the
coast and the foot of Lake Arkell, the trip to Fort Selkirk or below would not present
any serious difficulty.

This scheme cannot be carried out without at least 24 pack horses and they
would have to be forwarded immediately. Should the scheme prove impracticable,
the horses will be useful for packing supplies over the pass. Indeed from recent
reports, it appears that no freight will be moved from Dyea unless pack horses are
imported.

Mr. McArthur must by this time have a tolerably complote knowledge of the
topography of the coast range and will be available to locate a trait in any direction
desired.

E. DEVILLE,
Suveyor General.

Mr. FAwÇeTT.-These are not instructions but merely advice.
The CoMMIssIoNE.-That was a private letter giving private advice to Mr.

Fawcett.
Dr. BoURK.-What is your explanation of your running the country or they

would run you ?
Mr. TABOR.-I don't see what this bas to do with the case.
Dr. BoURKE.-I think we want to get at the facts.
Mi. TABOR.-It is an highly irrelevant question and should be ruled out.
Dr. BoURKE.-As a matter of fact there is an opinion given here-" Don't nail

his ears to the pump " and unless you do something very wrong indeed you may be
sure of support here. That is what it mearts. What construction do you put upon
that Mr. Fawcett, do you feel safe in what you did ?

The CoMMissIONE.-You are wandering considerably.
DR. BouRKE.-What effect bad that?
Mr. F4wcETT.-None whatever.
Dr. BouRKE.-I would ask that this letter be impounded in court; this letter I

think which was written in July, 1897.
Mr. FAwcETT.-The letter did not reach me tilt the latter end of February.
The CoMMISSIoNER.-Wiitten in July, 1897 and reached you in February, 1898.
Dr. BoURKE.-As to the royalty; what regulations did yon make as to the

collection of royalty? You were here with full powers.
Mr. FAWCETT.-The regulations were posted up.
Dr. BoURKE.-I have never seen them. Can you give us a rough substance of

what they were ? How often was it collected ?
Mr. FAWCETT-EVery two weeks. Twice a month on Bonanza and Eldorado,

and one on Hunker.
Q. Any exception made by you to that rule ?-A. None.
Q. None whatever, not even in the case of Alex. McDonald ?-A. No.
Q. Do you know whether McDonald paid his royalty money ?-A. I don't

know. The inspectors looked after that, and Major Walsh. I made the rules for the
collecting of the royalty, but the collecting was looked after by the government.

Q. Did you receive a letter on the 20th of July ?-A. There was one on file,
yeo. Q. Do you remember last Monday in court saying in substance as follows:-
That you knew McDonald had not paid all his royalty ?-A. Yes, I didn't know how
much.

Q. Do you remember the contents of that letter ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you remember that McDonald bas until next May ?-A. The letter is the

proper evidence; the letter is in court.
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Q. I would like to know if McDonald got an extension of time-
Mr. TABoR.-I object, Mr. Commissioner, to the question. I would like to have

the letter produced.
Dr. BoURKE.-I want the letter produced. Did ho write to you ?
Mr. FAWOETT.-He sent a letter to me. I think this is something that ho wrote

(Mr. Fawcett looking for the letter) I fail to find the letter, and it is my impression
that they did write to me at this time. I have not a copy of it.

Mr. TABoR.-f wish ail the letters to be put in.
Dr. BoURKE-Now, Mr. Fawcett, I wish you would consider vory carefully the

answers yon are going to make. Whon you were asked the other day as to the
amount Alex. McDonald was indebted, don't you think it was your duty to give the
court fuil information, to the extent as far as you know as to what had been granted
to Alex. McDonald ? You knew of that letter, Mr. Fawett-

Mr. FAWCETT.-That letter states it was granted.
Dr. BoURKE.-He was given an extension of time from September to May, 1899.

You might have told the whole truth.
Mr. TABOR.-Mr. Fawcett was going to give that when it came up.
The CoMMIssIoNE.-ColonIe MeGregor mentioned the matter the other day, and

I said we would go into that matter later.
Dr. BoURKE.-On Monday I was referring to (I will refer to the shorthand's

notes as to Mr. Fawcett's evidence). On that occasion I think I ehallenged Mr.
Fawcett as not giving the court his entire knowledge.

Mr. FAwcETT.-The court bas had the information before.
Dr. BoURKE.-The court has everything in its purview; you are bound to state

everything yon know. The whole truth in alt that you are asked.
Mr. TABOR.-I would like to know what Dr. Bourke is trying to get at?
The CoMMIssIoNEa.-I am waiting to hear that myself.
Mr. TABo.-What charge is Mr. Fawcett being examined on, and up to vhat

date are the questions asked of him ?
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I have no recollection of these questions having been raised

by Colonel MPGregor.
Mr. TABoR.-I object to this taking up the time of the commission.
The COMMISsIONER.-If Dr. Bourke ignores all that bas been said heretofore let

him examine him now.
Dr. BoURKE.-I have had it pointed out that Mr. Fawcett is willing and anxious

to tell ail ho knows.
Mr. FAwCETT.-I am willing to try now.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. You know of this letter from Mr. Walsh to you, and yo know that Alex.
McDonald got time. I suppose there is no other case like this ?-A. No, not that I
know of.

Q. No other case of extension ?-A. I don't know; this is the only case that came
under my notice.

The CoMMIssIONEa.-You might explain by what process and what authority the
two mining recorders were authorized to collect the royalty, and how the matter
was taken out of your hands. Explain that shortly and I think it will facilitate
matters.

Mr. FAWOETT.-I think there is a letter some place that I have from Major Walsh
asking me te give the mining inspectors full instructions with reference to the col-
lection ofroyalty. These instructions were given in writing and rules were pasted
up. They were subsequently changed by Major Walsh after ho arrived from Ben-
nett.

Dr BoURKE.-So that now the gold commissioner is the man to hold responsible
for these rules ?

The COMmissIoNE.-Acording to an Order in Council, I will state for your
information that Major Walsh had power to amend the mining regulations.
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Mr. FAwoETT.-After bis arrival he relieved me of the dutyof lookingafter the
royalty; ho took charge of it himself ?

Dr. BoURK.-That was very good of him; it is very good that these things
should be threshed out, thoroughly. Are you aware of the case of Jenkin Llewellyn ?

Mr. FAWCETT-NO. I have hoard Of it.
Q. Do you know that ho was an innocent man imprisoned for not paying

royalty, while that rich man Alex. McDonald was let go? Is that the way justice
should be discharged ? It is well that this should be investigated.

Mr. TABoR.-I was counsel for Mr. Llewellyn; ho was not put in prison for not
paying royalty; I am making this statement as his solicitor. He was exonerated on
that case, and the reports were falte, anyway, until ho made a false statement, but
he had paid all bis royalty and was let out. I don't want these misleading state-
men ta to go abi oad.

Dr. BoURKE.-Did Alex. McDonald get an extension of time until 1899 ?
The CoMMIssIoNER.-The matter has been roported long ago to Ottawa to find

out how mach royalty ho owes, as we can't find out.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. As far as you are concerned I am sure that everything bas been done pro.
perly, but in this case what the public are interested in is in knowing who allowed
these things to bo done in this way?-A. You see Major Walsh had power to amend
the mining regulations, and you heard Mr. Faweett's statement that Major Walsh
took ihe power out of bis bands and ordered these matters.

Dr. BoURKE--I want this to go on record, and ask that this letter in which
Major Walsh hurriedly referred to McDonald's difficulties to meet his engagements.
I want the government to know McDonald's position as a practical speculator; a
man who holds government royalty to speculate with while a poor man who can-
not pay for bis sluice-boxes is locked up.

The CoMMIssIoNEr.-The government knows that months ago.
Dr. BouaKE.-The public want to know.
The COMMIssIoNER.-The government bave been asked if there is any way to

fix the amount of royalty due by Alex. McDonald.
Mr. FAwcETT.-I asked Mr. Dougherty the same thing.
The CoMMISSIoNER.-We can collect it; it is a simple matter if you know the

amount.
Dr. BoURKE.-Then the innocent purchaser will suffer; I would like to call Mr.

Jenkin Llewellyn, sir.

(Conßidential.)
DAwsoN CITY, N.W.T., 20th July, 1898.

ALEXANDER MCDoNALD, Esq.,
Dawson City, N.W.T.

DEAR SIE,-I have just received your letter of to-day with regard to the royalty
and the manner in which it would affect your interests if collected at once. I fully
realize the value of all your mining interests and of the work you have devoted to
their development, and also appreciate the fact that besides expending large sums
of money in this way, you have also reinvested largely in this territory, instead of
simply removing the gold from the mines and sending it outside.

I believe from what you say, and from what I have learned from other sources,
that to insist on the payment of the royalty on your total output at once might be
embarrassing to you.

I am sure the Canadian government recognize the value of your services in
developing the country. I would not care to do anything which might seriously
interfere with you.

I do not see anything unreasonable in your proposition to pay one-half of the
royalty in September next and the other half in May, 1899. I will write the gold
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commissioner instructing him that you are to have the time mentioned in which to
make your payments. I ar yours truly,

J. M. WALSH,
Commissioner of the Yukon.

(Confidential.)
CoMMssIoNER's OFFIcE,

DAWsoN, 22nd July, 1898.
THOMAS FAWCETr. Esq.,

Gold Commissioner, Dawson.

DEAR SIR,-I inclose a copy of a letter I am forwarding to Mr. Alexander
McDonald, in reply to a communication from him applying for an extension of time
for the payment ot royalties due by him this season. You will please be guided in
accordance therewith, and give the necessary instructions to the inspectors of
mines.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. M. WALSH,
Commissioner, Yukon District.

HoN. J. ORROW WALSH,). DAWsoN, 22nd July, 1898.

Commissioner of the Yukon District,
Dawson.

SI,-I beg to acknowledge receipt of your favour of to-day, inclosing copy of a
letter forwarded by you to Mr. Alex. McDonald. I have noted the contents of said
inclosed copy and will govern myself accordingly.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOMAS FAWCETT,
Gold Commissioner.

JENKINS LLEWELLYN sworn.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. You have a claim on Gold Hill ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You have owned a claim on Gold Hill?-A. Yes, sir.
Q At any rate there were certain steps taken against you, by the government,

regarding the payment of royalty, and as a result of those steps you had to appear
here in Dawson; and as a result of matters here you were discharged.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. What date ?-A. About the 5th of December.
Dr. BouRKE.-I can't go against that. The facts are being concealed.nevertheless.
Mr. TABo.-The records are called upon.
The CoMIissIONER.-Did this happen before the 25th of August ?j

By Dr. Bourke :
Q. It was a case brought to illustrate tbis principle purpose. I arm right. What

time was he discharged ?-A. Second of December, I paid the royalty.
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Q. And what was the dispute ?-A. I started working the 17th of August, and
doue the last work on the first of December.

Q. It was about the royalty accruing after the 17th of August, that the
dispute arose ?-A. It was before the 25th of August.

Q. At any rate the facts are that the dispute arose about the payment of
royalty, and the count went into the 17th of August; on that count we released it?
-A. Yes, sir.

Dr. BouRKE.-I have had no question about this. I had no conversation with
you. Be careful how you answer this question. Truly state your opinion. I under-
stand that since this transaction ofyours, that owing to thia affair and other troubles,
you have bad to sell a valuable claim, and give it up.

Mr. TABOR.-I object. This is an arrangement between partners, and all that
happened since the 25th of August.

The COMMISSIONER.-If that sale occurred after the 25th of August--
Mr. TABoR.-It occurred after the trial.
The COMMIssIoNER.-The evidence is all on record.
Dr. BoURKE.-If I can't put in evidence-
The CoMMIssIoNE.-If you have the records of the case, they are a part of this

case.
Dr. BoURKE.-I consider the evidence of this man very important, to show that

man can be frightened out of his claim; that is the point.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-You have made no charge.
Dr. BoURKE.-If I have done anything wrong, your honour, you must excuse me.
The CoMMIssi0NER.-Yon must give notice, doctor. You must not spring things

on us in this way.
Dr. BoURKE.-These points crept up. I have bad little experience, and it is

difficult for me, but I bow to your ruling.
Mr. TABoR.-This thing went through the police court. Mr. Llewellyn was

committed for trial and honourably acquitted, and I don't think we should rake
that up all, and, besides, it came off since the 25th of August, as the records of the
court will show.

Dr. BoURKE.-Nobody is throwing any imputations on Jenkins Llewellyn
for himself losing a claim in that way.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-fave you any objections to the facts produced, as an
illustration of the principles ?

Dr. BOURKE.-I wont press the point.
Mr. TABOR.-Mr. Llewellyn doesu't want it himself; the records are open; the

whole thing happered after that day.
The CoMMIssIoNE.-I don't see why we can't get at the facts from the records

in court.
Dr. BouRKE-I ask that they be produced as a part of this case.
Mr. FAwcETT.-Well, that isn't bringing any case against any one in the office.
Mr. LLEWELLYN.-NO, I am making it against the parties who use your name,

saying they had just left you, and that you told them 8o and so.
Dr. BOURKE.-Of course I can't go behind the 25th of August; you have ruled

on that. This mai bas lost beavily through this matter.

APTERNOON SESSION, MONDAY, 6TH MARCH, 1899.

Dr. BoURKE.-It has come to my notice since I was in court here that there
are matters which should be brought to your notice concerning dlaims which should
be beld over,-Bench claims opposite Nos. 18, 19 and 20, Eldorado. As far as the
information has reached me, it appears that these were held over for certain parties;
these parties were not in the country at the time they were recorded. I would like
very much to have the person who im on No. 18, and who is present in Dawson
called and arrangements be made for the papers relating to these clailns to be pro-
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duced in court and Mr. Hurdman be told of the statements I have made and produce
the original records.

The CoMMIsIoNER.-If you will submit it in writing, doctor--
Mr. TABoR.-If it occurred before the 25th of August.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-Do you believe there was any fraud or malfeasance con-

nected with this matter ?
Dr. BOURKE.-The matter of fraud is a very serious matter, as I take the English

language from the dictionary; if a man charges fraud and cannot substantiate his
ohargo, ho exposes himself to a civil action.

The CoMMISsIONER.-I don't think it would, under the commissioner.
Dr. BoURKE.-I arm only protected from criminal action as I understand it

under the commission; I suppose there are people who would take action if I were
to expose myself bore. I have already intimated that there are people making
charges here who were not called to make charges of fraud.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-I didn't say that you must charge fraud; malfeasance or
wrongdoing of any kind, may be charged.

Dr. BouRKE.-From the lotter that was read this morning it should be the rule;
it was not wrong only as far as this matter is concorned. It is not for me to charge
fraud ; it is for this inquiry to judge. I don't pretend ; I don't want to say that any
man is guilty; it is only for you to-

The CoMMissIoNER.-But the commission was to investigate the wrongdoing, not
the officiai routine. The officiai routine may ho ail wrong, and we might admit
that. But the question is as to the wrongdoing.

Dr. BoURK.-I said nothing against official routine that I am aware of.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I don't think I am called upon to investigate officiai

routine, and say this system was better than another.
Dr. BoURKE.-The facts of this case are, that Major Walsh's son, who was never

fin the country, and-
The CoMMIssIoNE.-Son never in the country? Never had one, I believe.
Dr. BouRKE.-It is a wise dog that knows his own father. I shouldn't be sur-

prised if ho had a son, from what I have heard of his conduct here.
T be CoMMISsINER.-That's nothing.
Mr. TABoR.-These charges refloct seriously upon the character of peopie who

are not present. They may be enigmatical in sense, but for thatý reason they are
the more dangerous; they should ho put forth in a specific way in writing, so that
we could take them up and know what we are doing. Of course this commission
kas not the power to judge; it can only report to Ottawa its findings.

Dr. BOUaKE.-I want no judgment; I don't expect it.
The CoMMIssioNER.-If there is any reason to believe there is wrong-doing-
Dr. BoURKE.-I asked for a Bubpoena and that the documents connected with

Nos. 18 and 20 should be produced. I cannot tell who has done wrong. I have
been told, and I believe it was true, by different witnesses, that not two months'
representation could be shown. I think, however, the facts will come ont from the
witnesses present hore. You see I cannot be responsible; I want to put this
evidence in.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Subpæna the witnesses.
Dr. BoURKE.-The witness is here. I cannot ho responsible for anything I

hear.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You say you believe there is something wrong about it ?-A. I can say I
believe there is something wrong about it.

Q. Will you put that in writing ?-A. Yes.
Mr. TABoa.-These questions coming out in open court are more statements of

hearsay. I don't think it is fair to mention all those things. If Dr. Bourke has
statements to make let him put them in writing, and they will ho investigated. It
is easy for him to stand up in court and make these statements; they come ont,
every one bears it, and the rumour is started, and where is the end of it?
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The CoMMIssIoNER.-If this was an ordinary court of law he would not dare to
say these things. I think, Dr. Bourke, you should make some definite statement.
You can go as far as to say that you believe there is wrong doing. This making
rambling statements of bearsay causes a good deal of unpleasantness and entails a
great deal or work, and means perhaps nothing.

Dr. BOURKE.-May perhaps amount to nothing.

By the Comnissoner:

Q. Any lawyer knows you would have to make charges specifically; you could
not ramble ail over the country. You would have to confine yourself to what yon
put in writing ?-A. I will put these facts on record tonight; I am making these
statements that they may go-

Q. Put your statements in writing. We require something with which to go
on; and refrain from making a general rambling statement, because if you don't I
will have to stop you.-A. Up to the present, however, I cannot feel I have been
guilty--

The COMMIsSIoNER.-We will admit you haven't.
Dr. BoURKE.-I ask you to pull me up sharp if I say anything I should not say.
THE COMMIssIoNER.-Mr. Galpin asked a question before adjournment.
Mr. GALPIN.-Mr. Commissioner, the question I wanted to ask I will ask now.

it would have come properly after you had read that letter. I, like some other
gentlemen present, feel very indignant that Mr. Fawcett should have such charges
preferred against him in open court by Dr. Bourke's statements, and I was ail on
the qui vive on account of these etatements which are brought out in the letter,
because Dr. Bourke had said, I believe from the letter that he had in the office, that
Mr. Fawcett's powers were unlimited for evil as well as for good, and read a private
letter from the Surveyor-General in which it states " you may do anything so long
as you do nothing very bad."

Dr. BoURKE.-I beg to state--
Mr. GALPIN.-Why make such etatemonts and put us ail on the qui vive; when

the letter is read, it does not reflect on Mr. Fawcett at ail. If there is any wrong
doing I want it brought out, but I don't want to hear these rambling statements. I,
for one, want to sec something specific brought out, and that proved, and the guilty
parties severely punished.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-I don't want any more rambling statements of that sort.
Dr. BouRKE.-Well, you shut me up-you shut my mouth and pulled me up.

On that point I muet keep silent until to-morrow morning, but I object to this unpaid
advocate coming into court--

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Make no reflections in court.
Dr. BoURKE.-When I am shut up from speaking myself and I sit down and the

matter is deferred until to-morrow morning, you allow a gentleman to jump up and
ask ex-parte questions.

The CoMmissIoNER.-Dr. Bourke, bo careful and don't make use of terme so
stupid and foolish.

Dr. BoURK.-I beg pardon; I am perfectly satisfied ; I obey the directions.
Mr. GALPIN.-You are rather misleading us.
Dr. BoURKE.-If everybody comes here and is allowed to speak--
Mr. TABoR.-Mr. Galpin bas stated his standing here, and he has stated that he

appears in court on behalf of the miners' committee.
The CoMmissIoNER.-His standing is ail right.
Mr. GALPIN.-We want to bear something specific.
The CoMMissIosER.-He and Colonel MeGregor are here in the interests of the

miners' association.
Dr. BouRiK.-If Mr. Galpin is connected with that, I think a red-herring has

been drawn across the course by these two men; moreover, the fact that Colonel
McGi-egor was trying to get this out of my hands by his statements in court--

The CoMMIsSIONE.-They are not.
Dr. BoURKE.-These are two nice minera.
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Mr. MCGREGoR. -You must
The CoMMIssIoNER.-You must use proper language Dr. Bourke. If you don't

behave yourself I will have to commit you for contempt.
Mr. McGREGo.-I have no connection with Mr. Galpin here, or anybody with

regard to it. i only heard that question asked several times on the start and I
didn't consuit with anybody.

Tho COMMISSIONER.-C01. McGregor brought the question up without asking
anybody. I told him then that the matter would be investigated further, and that
1 had already reported it to Ottawa to find out what Alex. McDonald owed the
governaent.

Dr. BoURKE.-What I complained of is that when I make charges in writing, a
gentleman pretending to represent the miners, stands up in open court and without
putting his pen to paper is heard. lie has no charge on paper. That gentleman
raises a false scent, and advantage is taken of it to read the letter, and then state to
me that this vill be investigated and that the commissioner will take my place in
investigating the charge.

The CoMMIssioNE.-I told you I would investigate it. Mr. Galpin and Mr.
McGregor made charges in writing.

Mr. GALPIN.-We heard so many rumours thatwe were determined to look into
this matter. We are here in the interests of theminers; we signed the memorial,
so you see we have something to do with this.

Mr. A. MCFARLANE.-I have been here a long time; surely to goodness
something cati be done. There is an attorney on one side, and if the miners'
association have any representative let them speak through their advocate. I
can't afford to stay here all day.

Mr. GROTScHIER, called and sworn.

By Dr. Bourke :

Q. Mr. Grotschier, I believe you have been the agent for Morrison and Mc-
Donald ?-A. Yes.

Q. Collected rents?-A. Yes.
Q. Are you aware of any title they have to that property ?-A. Never looked

into the title.
Q. Are you aware of any title ?-A. Al I know about it is, Mr. Morrison told

me he had rented the water front, and asked me if I would lease it out in lots, and
collect rents.

Q. Did he rent the water front from the government?-A. Yes.
Q. Who were the representatives of the government he rented it from ?-A.

Wel, that's a question I can answer only from information, and believe, as far as I
know, the authorities were the land commissioner, Mr. Wade and Mr. Fawcett.

Q. What amount of that money has been paid to the government ?-A. $2,500
per month.

Q. What amount went to Morrison and MoDonald, or other people ?-A. I first
want to know if you have got any right to inquire into that.

Q. I wish to elicit the fact that apparently, in this case, Morrison and Me-
Donald are the lessees, but behind Morrison and McDonald were other parties; in
fact it is hinted to me that officials are the real holders of the. lease ?-A. I am
agent for these parties. I want to know if he has a right to ask me these questions.
I don't know that I have a right to give out their private business. If compelled
by the commissioner to answer, I will answer.

Q. We believe that. You say that money was distributed ?-A. I am simply
paying it over to Morribon and McDonald. I have my receipts.
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By the Commissioner:

Q. The question is, he wants to know to whom you paid the rents ?-A. I paid
Morrison until he left, and tsince then I have paid Findlayson, of the Bank of British
North America. i think E. O. Findlayson.

By Dr. Boure;

Q. Do you remember the statement being made of a government official taking
a large sum of money for this water front, on the eve of bis departure from this
town ?-A. I never saw any money paid to any officer of the government except to
Mr. Willison, who gave hi.s receipt for the rent.

Q. Do you swear you never told me personally, and you have repeated that
down in the government bouse, and on the streets lately, correcting me as to the
name of the person who admitted that ?-A. Put your question in the right way. If
I paid anything-

Q. Who was the person, and what was the man's name ?-A. I told you one
time that I was approached by McDonald, and he asked me to give him money. I
said I had none. I had paid over the rent and had not collected any more. He said,
I gave McGriegor $2,000. I said I have nothing to do with that; but that was Mr.
McDonald's, not my doings.

Q. You swear distinctly ?-A. When I say a thing, I know every word of what
I say.

Mr. BoURKE.-I will have to ask that I be sworn.
Mr. GroTSCHIER.-That is what I told you.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Didn't you tell me that McDonald was quite angry when he found that this
money was taken away ?-A. Never.

Q. You are under the wrong impression ?-A. I have a perfect memory on the
point, you can depend on that. I know everything that is the truth; don't forget
that, Dr. Bourke.

Q. McDonald told yon he gave McGregor S2,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. If McDonaid gave it out of his own pocket, he wouldn't tell you ?-A. You

will have to ask McDonald about that.
Q. Doesn't it appear very funny for you to say there was no more rent for him?

-A. What I said was, I haven't got any more funds, because I hadn't collected any
more. It was early in the month.

Q. What had you done with what you had received previously ?-A. The first
of the month I turned it over to Mr. Morrison, and I had not collected any since I
turned it over.

Q. What month was that in ? I will ask you to .how me the receipt for the
money?-A. Is he entitled to see the receipt, Mr. Commissioner?

Q. Did you pay over the sum of $2,500 several months to the government ?-
A. Until a certain time-until you fellows commenced to kick and wouldn't pay
your rent.

Dr. BoURKE.-Everybody knows that.
Mr. GROTSCHIER.-I wasn't going to advance it ont of my own pocket.
Dr. BoURKE.-About this money you speak of, it appears to me that McDonald

must have come to you, and you ha known that McGregor had the $2,000.
Mr. GRoTSCHIER.-I believe every one in court undeietood it. I told you that I

told Mr. McDonald I hadn't any more money on hand. I had paid S2,500 to Blis,
who is in charge of the office there at present, and I had no more money on hand.
HFadn't collected any more money. When Morrison came in a few days after, I had
deals with him.
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By Dr. Bourke :

Q. The only time Alex. McDonald spoke to you about money was thon ? You
will admit that McDoniald gave the $2,500 ?-A. That's what McDonald told me; yes.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Did McDonald allege that that was payment on account of rent ? -A. That's
what he said to me. I was instructed to pay it over there.

Dr. BouRKE.-My evidence is rebuttal, but if yon think it is worth while, I
don't want to press it on the court, but if yo think it is worth while, I will put in
my testimony againsthis.

By Dr. Bourke :

Q. Do you remember the last occasion when I had difficulty in court here with
Morrison and McDonald ? I asked you why they had two sets of solicitors, and yo
stated the reason why. Do yon remember the reason why ?-A. Ye..

Q. What was that reason ?-A. That they had two sets of solicitors ? I con-
sidered that it was necessary, that's ail.

Q. It was yon that considered the second set necessary ?-A. You are going at
something that you bave no business to.

Q. Why was that necessary--
The COMMissIoNER.-Is that relevant ?
Dr. BoUKE.-It is very relevant. I am at a great disadvantage. As far as I

am informed, there are other parties bohind Morrison and Mc Donald enjoying the
fruits of this water front. That is what it means to me. I want to know who these
parties are. I want to throw light on that question.

Mr. GROTSCHIER.-Go on and find out for yourself ? I told you who distributes
the money.

Mr. TABo.-I don't want to interrupt, but I wouldn't like to seo this question
of Dr. Bourke's put in for many reasons. It is irrelevant He can get information
as to Mr. Grotschier's knowledge in a direct way. H1e is not cross-examining Mr.
Grotschier. He should put direct questions.

Mr. GROTSCHIER.-I will tell you what I know about what yon asked me.
Dr. BouRKE.-I wanL to get at the truth; that's ail 1 want. I don't want to

make any reflections upon you, or any one here. I want yon to tell all yon know
about the matter. I want yon to tell the whole truth. I want you to tell it under
oath; the whole truth, and nothing but the truth.

Mr. GRoTSCHIER.-He asked me why I had two sets of solicitors. I thought
Burritt & McKay very slow in getting these things in shape, and came to the
conclusion to hurry the matter up; and so it was done.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Who were the other solicitors ?-A. Clenient, Pattulo & Ridley.
Q. You hadn't any other motive ?-A. That's ail; I had to hurry up and get

done. If it stood until the first of May everything would be taken away, and we
would be responsible to the government for the amount.

By Dr. Bourke :

Q. Does Mr. Findlayson distribute this money, as far as you know ?-A. I pre.
sume he does. I have an order from Morrison to pay the money over to him. I paid
it over to him, with the exception of some on hand.

Q. Yon don't know what Findlayson done with it ?-A. I don't know what
Findlayson does with it.

Dr. BouRKE.-That's all I want to know. We will have to have Mr. Findlayson.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-Put in your request in writing.
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Mr. TABoR.-Did Mr. Findlayson have anything to do with this matter prior te
the 25th of August ?

The CoMMIs IoNER.-Mr. Tabor objects to Mr. Findlayson being examined,
unless ho was connected with this prior to the 25th of August.

M'. GROTscHIER.-I have a receipt, and I can inform your honour the first time
I paid the money.

The COMMissIoNER.-You can subpæna Mr. Findlayson.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Do you in any way know anything about anybody baving any pecuniary
interests in the water front ?-A. From hearsay. i have no evidetce; nothing I
can produce positively.

Q. Do you be'ieve there were such people ?-A. Oh, yes, I do.

By the Commissioner :

Q. If you had had any evidence, you would have given it to me long ago ?-
A. Yes, sir.

The CoMMISSIoNER.-I think you have repeated about the same as you told me.

By Mr. Tabor;

Q. You say you beieve there is. How can you believe that is only from heur-
say ?-A. There is one man here interested.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Who is ho ?-A. Morrison.
Q. Is any other person able to throw any light? Have you any reason te

believe that there is any other person able to throw light on it?-A. No, I don't
know.

Q. Any suspicion?-A. No, excepting Dougherty; that's the only one.

By the Commissioner:

Q. This Morrison, is ho any relative of the other Morrison ?-No; this is A. H.
Morrison.

Q. What creek is ho on ?-A. 24 or 25 below upper, Dominion.
The CommissioNER.-It will take some days to gethim.
Dr. BoURK.-I asked to have subpœnas for Pattullo & Ridley.
The COMMIssIoNaR.-Do you think Messrs. Pattullo & Ridley know anything

more than what they have learced through conducting these suits?
Dr. BoUtRKE.-I think they would be able to indicate, if they will, the parties

bchind Morrison and McDonald, and if they have been directed by them.
Mr. TABoa.-What they would give would be very littie. Any knowledge they

acquiro would be through being employed as solicitors.
Dr. BOÎiRKE.-I would like to see what they know, and what they don't know.

Mr. FAwcETT being duly sworn, testified as follows:-
Mr. TABo.-Is this charge against Mr. Fawcett, this water front; is it a specifi

charge ? I would like to have ail these charges read; I am totally ignorant of them.
Dr. BoURKE.-It comes under clause 3 of the general charges charging that

Mesors. Fawce.t and Wade did abuse thoir position as government officials, by
granting a lease of part of the public bighway, known as the Dawson water front.

Mr. TABoR.-This involves a fine point in law. The letting of this water front,
as far as I sece, although I have not looked very thoroughly into the case. Dr.
Bourke's charge of the abusiug of their powers is a question for a court of law to
decide.

Dr. BoURKE.-I was not making charges that he " manipulated his powers, real
and assumed, and he wilfuliy deviated from the instructions in the mining regulations."'
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Mr. TABOR.-BUt I want the charge about the water front. He tells us ho had
bis powers extended; you haven't mentioned the water front.

Dr. BOURKE.-He is charged with granting a part of the publie highway, known
as the water front, to Morrison and McDonald.

Mr. TABC.-He never knew of this charge.
Dr. BOURKE.-We can put it off to any time you like.
Mr. TABo.-Thursday, Friday and Monday, I shall be in court.
Dr. Bi-URKE.-It is for the commissioner to decide that.
The COMMISsIONER. - As Mr. Morrison is to be brought in from the creck, we

might as well postpone this until we shall have more specific charges.
Mr. TABo.-Because, Mr. Commissioner, people at Ottawa will be called upon

to decide, and all the evidence will be taken down and transmitted to Ottawa on no
charge.

The CoMMissIoNER.-We have had a number of charges. One man put in a
charge which the clerks took down, and when he came forward to explain it was
withdrawn. Many people who had charges to make wore not in a position to make
them in regular form; they could not hire an attorney.

Mr. TABo.-I would like to hear the charge, and to see the papers and evidence
adduc ed on that charge.

Dr. BouRKE.-On the 9th April, by letter, Mr. Fawcett, in conjunetion with Mr.
Wade, granted improperly, or promised to grant, a lease of the public highway in
Dawson. On a public high-road, known as First Avenue, in Dawson; surveyed and
laid down as tiuch by Mr. Wm. Ogilvie, as surveyor, and approved by the Minister
of the Interior, and granted to the public as such, and ho, knowing the fucts, Mr.
Gibbons comes on that highway and divides that highway into lots, and rent is
collected on them illegally; and, further, is collected illegally on them at the present
date, and the government continued to colicet that money for that.

Mr. TABoR.-I have no objection to that going in the charge.
he CoMMIssIoNER.-Mr. Gibbons is at Stewart River; ho went there on a peti-

tion from people to survey the town site; and to bring him down would b. incurring
a great expense, and soriously discommode the people there. His plan of survey,
signed by himself is here, and is an authentic doc.rment. Don't tbink anybody will
deny this. It can be produced under instructions.

Dr. BoURKE.-I would like to have that produced.
The COMMIssIoNER.-Wili you want that plan ?
Dr. BouRKE.-If it is admitted, I want the instructions.
The ComMIssioNER.-Suppose we produce the instructions, Mr. Fawcett will

enlighten us on thut subject.
Dr. BoURa.-With reference to that letter of the 9th of April, to Morrison and

McDonald, signed by Clark and Wade, I would like to have that letter read.
Mr. FAWCETT.-In ex planation of this matter, I may add that at the time word

had come in from Major Walsh, that ho would return east without returning to
Dawson, so that until the commissioner should ho appointed, there would ho no one
except myself to represeut the minister. Mr. Wade was here as Dominion land
agent. After Major Walsh came in, of course, I was relieved of the duties of acting
for the minister. Mr. Wade, as Dominion land agent, attended to all the terms of
this letter, and for the minister I signed it.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. What authority had you to act ?-A. I had authority to act for the Minister
of the Interior.

Q. I would like that to-morrow. Are you aware it was a high road ?-A. Yes.
Q. Are you aware that it was an indictable offence ?-A. We will pass that over.
Q. This ground was unoccupied prior to that being loased. I want that ques-

tion put with your permission. Nichol on High-ways says it is an indictable
offence tg grant obstructions in a public high-way. He is here as the minister's
representative, and I will ask him now, ulthough I know ho is protected, and the
government at Ottawa will protect him for what ho did.
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The CoiMIsstoNER.-Le has answered the question. He thiught it was a high-
way.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. He might know?-A. I don't know.
Mr. TABoR.-Only in a certain sense.
Dr. BotRK.-I won't press the question. I believe that is the only way the

publie have of proceeding by indictments. Mr. Fawcett, I understand you to say
that you wouldn't raise the question.

The CoMmissioNE.-If you raised this question, ià might eut two ways. Mr.
Faweett's opinion, as to whether or not it is an indictable offence, is not a fact to be
noted. Conditions might rnodify even that. Some people might be on and be
indictable; and others on and not be indicted.

By Dr. Bourhe:

Q. Are you aware of any other person having any interest, whatever, in this
property; in any way receiving any mot ey ?-A. No.

Q. Were thei e not any other tenders made for this ?-A. I think several. I
don't remember what they were.

Q. Who decided the question of giving this to McDonald ?-A. Mr. Wade; and,
of course, I approved of this myself.

Q. There was an appearance of tenders, and you gave it to McDonald and
Morribon without saying anything about the other tenders ?-A. I heard that thore
were other tenders, but didn't know what they were. I know there was one for
$10,000.

Q. Did you know that McDonald and Morrison were the highest bidders?-
A. I did as far as I know. It was represented to me that they were.

Q. Who represented that to you ?-A. The land agent.
Q. Thon you took no part except signing the lease ?-A. Practically signing

the lease.
The CoMmissIoNER.-You bigned itas for the minister of the interior; asadminis-

trator. The Dominion land agent reported to you, and you accepted his report, and
signed it to make a legal lease.

Dr. BOURKE.-I believe I amn correct in stating, that it isn't necessary for a
ease of that sort to be signed by the lieutenant governor in couneil, and not by any

other agent.
Mr. FAWCETT.-The lease makes provisions for that.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Is there a lease, Mr. Fawcett ? Was there ever a lease ?-A. I think there
was Do lease. There was an acceptanco of the letter I wrote, with the conditions
that it was a privilege of the government to withdraw this right, to retain the
ground for the use of cutom-houses and governnient offices. I don't know if there
was another lease or not.

By the Commisioner:

Q. The whole transaction was rather informally carried out ?-A. Yes; neither
Mr. Wade nor myseif had faith as to whether it would stand, or not, and that was
the reason for the provision of granting a month's notice.

Q. Had you any notice thut Ladue's application had been accepted ?-A. None
whatever.

Q. When did you learn that it had been accepted ?-A. Not until fall. Not
until about the time you came in. In fact, it was generally reported that it would
not be.

Dr. BoURKE.-This high-road was practically leased to Morrison and McDonald,
and the government collected their share of it.
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Mr. FAwCETT.-SUppOSO I may say that the front was occupied, and the build-
ings moved back.

The CoMMISSroNER.-It was occupied since Dawson was Dawson, and they were
moved back 60 feet.

Dr. BouRKE.-That is very important; I am glad to have that evidence from
you. If that is overhauled--

The CoMMIssIoNER.-- They never had a right, but they settled there.
Mr. FAwCETT.-If I had had my way, I would have had it cleared off in the-

spring; that was my intention. People had been notified ; part of them before Mr.
Wade arrived, as Dominion land agent.

By the Commissioner:

Q. As a matter offact, the front was occupied ?-A. Yes.
Q. And then to what extent did they occupy the high-road ?-A. There was

quite a number of buildings on it.
Q. Were they ever removed at all ?-A. Farther back to allow 60 feet.
Q. Thon they were atlowed to romain after that ?-A. Yes, it was leased to

them.
Q. They had no right. Never had ?--A. Positively many of thom refused to:

move.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. As I understand you, you swear that they remained there, and paid for
remaining there ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did you allow thom there, and consider they had a right to romain ?-A.
They were allowed to remain until such time as the lease should be withdrawn.

Q. Were they so notified? Were they notified not to build on the bank ?-A.
The letter tells you that.

Q. They never saw the letter ?-A. The conditions of each man's lease tells
that.

Q. What about people who never signed a lease ?-A. I can't tell now about
them.

The COMMISsINER.-I think you are trying to get evidenco for your case, on
the water front, Dr. Bourke.

Dr. BoURKE.-Small favours would be thankfully roceoived.
Q. Did you have a letter from Mr. Wade, dated the Rlst March, 1898 ?-A. He

brought a letter to my office.
Q. Did you ever have that particular letter ?-A. I don't know.
Q. I will ask you to produce your letter to Mr. Wade, of lst April, 1898?-A.

The only letter I bave on my file is one of 9th April; the letter I read.
Q. There is a letter to Wade. I had a copy of it in the office the other day-the

lst ot April. What was that about ?-A. That was about the townsite above the
cemetery.

Q. I would like Captain Hansen's letter of 28th July, to Major Walsh, with
reference to the water front. Can you tell us what happened ?-A. Major Walsh
ws in your office. It was one of the letters asked to be brought down to the office.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Is this letter in connection with the letting of the water front ?-A. Yes.
Q. There was some correepondence about it. There was some stops taken to

remove them. Steps were taken by the A. C. Co. Do you remember that was donc ?
-A. I don't know; Major Walsh was here before that.

Dr. BoURKE-l won't trouble you unnecessarily at all.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-Wo might have the letter.
Mr. TABoR.-I don't sec how a letter of that sort can be of any use, if, as Mr.

Fawcett says, Major Walsh was bore.
Mr. FAWCETT.-I had nothing to do with the administration affairs at that timo.
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Mr. TABoR.-I understood you, that Mr. Wade had powers over the Dominion.
land.

Mr. FAwCETT.-Mr. Wade had.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Mr. Wade's duties were to advise with you; but did he have the deciding ?
-A. Yes.

Q. Your duty was to sign ?-A. Yes, only to sign on Mr. Wade's advice.

By the Commissioner;

Q. Did you ever think you would be justified in refusing to act on Mr. Wade's
advice ?-A. I thought not. Mr. Wade acted under Order in Council, and I had a
right to bow to whatever he recommended would be right, and would be safe in go
doing.

Q. You never thought you had a right to object to his course ?-A. No; of
course there was some things I wouldn't have done.

J. B. PATTULLO, called and sworn, testified as follows:-

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. I want to ask you if you will tell the court, if you know of any one, other
than Morrison and McDonald, having any interest in the water front in any way, or
if any one instructed you to nt for them; or if you know of any person receiving
any monetary consideration for it, excepting Morrison and McDonald? Just make
a short btatement.-A. We only came into the case about two or three weeks ago,
and subsequent to the parties acquiring the lease. As to any terms in the case, we
only received instructions to collect rent. On that poiit, anything that I have
received bas been received as an attorney, and I think I must claim the privilege of
an attorney, and refuse to disclose anything I have received from my clients. I
think, however, what I say will indicate the position I stand in. The only instruc-
tions we have received have been to collect rents, and it would not be necessary to,
give me any information for that purpose.

By the Commissioner:

Q. As I unders'ood you, the only instructions were from Mr. Grotschier him-
self, and they were for the purpose of collecting the rent ?-A. I decline to give any
information; I received it entirely as an attorney.

The CoMMIssioNER.-I have been advised that that objection hoids good, that
unless the parties to the dispute, themselves, are agreeable to baving it divulged, the
attorney is exonerated. Mr. Grotschier would be the man. He bas given his testi-
mony, and told us all he knew; or, at least, he said ho did.

J. W. WILLISoN, being sworn, testified as follows :-

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. You are aware that rents are being paid for buildings on tho water front on
First Avenue ?-A. No, sir, I am not.

Q. Are you receiving any money from the rentals ?-A. I ht ve received some;
yes, sir.

Q. Have you taken any steps to receive further money ?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Then practically you are taking steps to compel the payment of rent for the
water front ?-A. Yes.

Q. While knowing practically that this is an illegal action?-A. I don't know
as to that.

The CommIssIoNE.-You are getting evidence for your case.
Dr. BOURKE. - I apologize; is First Avenue a public highway ?-A. I believe @o.
Q. To the best of your belief is it infringed upon by the buildings upon the

water front; the public highway as laid ont by Mr. Ogilvie ?-A. To the best of
my belief it is infringed upon. The best of my belief is that one hundred feet from
the edge of a navigable stream is exempt from being built upon.

The CoMMIssIoNE.-I will make a statement; at the time this application was
filed by Ladue for one hundred and sixty acres nothing was reserved by the govern-
ment. The one hundred feet reserved was made by Order in Council last July. At
the time this application was received Joseph Ladue's one hundred and sixty acres
was laid out from the river bank. I don't see that Dr. Bourke's question is relevant.
You are inquiring into property on the street.

Dr. BouRKE.-No ; the government is collecting money here, for a public high-
way.

The CoMMIsoNER.-Get off it thon; it would be settled most quickly that way.
Dr. BouRKE.-I intend to retire three feet, and will certainly have to do so. If

it is not relevant the parties here have no reason for continuing to collect money for
a public bighway; that is the point that appears to me.

The CoMMissIoNER.-That is a question for the court to decide.
Dr. BOUaKE.-We are simply here to investigate the rightness or the wrongness

of the letting of it. This is one of the cases within the scope of the commission.
The officials here did an improper act in the exercise of their powers and they don't
want to give any reason-that must be ascortained from the evidence. They gave
Morrison and McDonald a lease of the water front and I want to know why.

The COMMissoNER.-Your questions are not leading up to that ; Mr. Willison
knows nothing about that.

By Dr. Bourke :

Q. When did you come in ?-A. Since yon came in.
Q. How long before ?-A. Since June ; that contract was made in March.
Q. I want to get at the fact why this continues whon the government knows it

was wrong ?
The CoMMIssIoNER.-Primarily you want evidence for your own case; secondly,

you want to know whether any one is associated with Morrison and McDonald.
Confine yourself to that.

Dr. BoURKE.-Do you know anything of that, Mr. Willison ?
Mr. TABo.-When did they become associated; when did this charge take

place ; before the date--
The CoMMIssoNER.-I understood Dr, Bourke, although he hasn't put it defini-

tely, to be of the opinion that the government officials were interested in this deal,
and that they must have been interested at the time of the consummation of the deal.

Mr. TABoR.-Why didn't he ask Mr. Fawcett whether he was interested in the
deal or not; he could have said yes or no.

Dr. BoURKE.-If I can ask Mr. Fawcett I will; have you ever had any consi-
deration in any way ?-A. I have not.

Q. You will admit it was a favourable one for Morrison and McDonald ?-A. I
don't know.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-I don't think you will admit it now.
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JAMEs DoUGHERTY, being called and sworn, testifies as follows:-

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Are you aware whether Morrison and McDonald were the sole recipients of
the benefits derived from the rents of the water front: or is there anothor p erson
interested in any way whatever ?-A. I don't know; I have nothing to do with the
water front at ail.

Q. Who has ?-A. Mr. Grotschier. My business is confined strictly to the mines;
I know nothing about the water front.

Q. I must apologize for bringing you bere.
The CoMMIssioNER.-The most important person is not in the country; he is so

far away thero is no use wishing him bore; I wish ho were bore.
Mr. TABOR.-I think Mr. MeFarlane can give some evidence on the water-front.

ALEXANDER MCFARLANE, called and swoin:-

By Mr. Tabor :

Q. Were you bere in the fall of 1897 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Had you anything to do with the water front at the time ?-A. No, nothing

more than I tried to get a location on the water front. I asked Mr. Fawcett about
it. It was pretty well on in the fall. I wanted to build on the water front. He
refused. He said it was agaiist his wish to have the water front taken up in that
way. There were a large number of buildings there and he would like to have them
removed; ho thought it would ho inflicting a great hardship on them and he would
not let me have it. I didn't get it. I spoke to him several times on the subject.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You never got on ?-A. I would have stopped there if I had; I know his
wishes were that the water front should ho cleared.

Dr. BoURKE.-In regard to what Mr. Grotschier said to me to pay money to
Mr. McGregor, I am willing to give my testimony.

The CoMMIsSIONER.-As Mr. Grotschier admitted that it was hearsay-
Dr. BouRKE.-The fact is stated that ho actually took from Mr. Grotschier's

office two thousaud dollars.
The GOMMIsINEE.-I hoard this statement of Mr. Grotschier and I went to see

him about it. I came to the conclusion ho knew nothing. Alex. McDonald made
certain statements to him in a loose way and I wanted him to make bis declaration,
but I found nothing in it. I was going to bave the parties that he implicated
examined, but I found it was simply hearsay and it was no use taking the declaration
of a man on what ho had beard.

EDWARD O. FINDLAYSON, being called and sworn, testified as follows:-

By Dr. .Bourke:

Q. I want to ascertain if in any way you have received any knowledge that
money received from Alex. McDonald for the water front bas in any way gone to
people interested in the office; if tbey have any pecuniary interests in it ?

Mr. TABOR.-I object.
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Mr. FINDLAYsoN.-I know nothing at ail about it; ail I know is since Mr. Mor-
rison left, and that's not very much. I had nothing to do with anybody except
Morrison and McDonald. I have no knowledge of any one else being connected
with it.

.By the Commissioner:

Q. You understand that it has been implied that some of the government officials
are interested. What we want to arrive at is the fact that the moneys received
by Morrison and McDonald have been diverted for the benefit of any other person ?
-A. 1 have no reason to think that; I have nothing to do with the moneys, and
had nothing to do with them before he went out, and very little since. What I have
done was simply to pay the representatives of McDonald and Morrison; before that
I had no knowledge.

Q. Who are the reprosentatives ?-A. I paid to Calder, who has the power of
.attorney.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Mr. Calder would be the witness to tell us something? -A. I know what has
gone to McDonald's own account. I paid the money to Calder.

TUESDAY MORNING, 7th March, 1899.

The CoMM[ssIoNER.-Now, we want Mr. Calder's testimony this morning on the
water front affair.

Mr. CALDER, sworn, testified as follows:-

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Are you aware of any person or persons in any way receiving any pecuniary
benefits from the rents received from the water front except Morrison and
MoDonald ?-A. No.

Q. You never heard of such a thing?-A. No, sir.
Q. What becomes of the rent received from the water front; what is done with

them ?-A. I received some inoney from the Bank of British North America paid in
to thom, and I got some which was delivered to the Alaska Commercial Company,
and the rest of it was given to the employees of McDonald.

Q. On your own knowledge, direct or indirect, do you know of any person who
had any interest in the money that was collected on the water front in any way
other than these two mon ?-A. i don't know anything at ail about it.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Do you know what Dr. Bourke wishes to know ? I will explain what the
-question is: it has been aileged that Alex. McDonald and Ronald Morrison got
through improper intervention on the part of some of the governmcnt officials, that
water front, and that these officials are interested in the rents; that they get a share
of them.-A. If such a thing is, I don't know anything about it.

Q. You don't know anything about it?-A. No.
Q. You received the rents and paid them ?-A. Sure, if necessary, I can get

the receipte for every nickel of if.
Q. You eau show where every cent went?-A. I can.
Q. But as far as you know, none of it has been paid to any government official'?

-A. Not at ail to my knowledge; never did.
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By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Let me ask one question. There appears to have been 62,000 loaned by
McDonald to Mr. Wade before he went out, do you know anything about that ?-
A. No, sir. I probably might have heard some talk of it, I heard it yesterday;
that is the first I had any knowledge of it.

Q. At any time are you aware that the amount of the money paid into the bank
was 82,000 less than you expected ?-A. No, iir.

Q. That is the whole amount?-A. I don't know. But ail I had to do with, I
-can give an account of.

Q. But can you tell if it all went through your bands ?-A. I don't know
whether the whole amount did or did not.

Q. How can we find that out ?-A. I can't tell you.
Q. Are there any books that would show what became of the water front money ?

-A . I don't know.
Q. Whether it was all paid or not ?-A. Any accounts that Mr. Grotschier had

would show what money was paid in. Mr. Grotschier ought to know. If anybody
ýelse should know anything about it, Mr. Grotschier should, because he knows more
about it than 1 know.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Have you ever heard this talk about some of the government officials being
interested in the water front deal ?-A. Weil, no, I didn't bear. I couldn't say that
1 did.

Q. Did you hear anything at ail ?-A. Upon my word, I might have heard some
talk, as I suppose everybody has heard some talk.

Q. You have no positive knowledge ?-A. No, sir.
Mr. FAwcETT.-For a moment I would like to ask Mr. Calder about the Alex.

McDonald royalty question. I want to ask him a question.
The CoMMIssIONER.-You are still under oath, Mr. Calder.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. Do you know that Alex. McDonald's royalty was laid over for a time; the
payments of it ?-A. I have no positive knowledge.

Q. Do you believe it was laid over ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you any knowledge of any other person's royalty being laid over ?-A.

No, i have not. The only question of laying over the royalty was this letter.
Q. You have no knowledge of any other case ?-A. No, noue whatever,
Mr. FAWCETT.-That is ail.

WATER FRONT CASE.

Mr. GEoRGE, being called and sworn, testified as follows:"

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Will you be good enough to tell us what you know about the water front;
you are conversant with everything. Tell the court all you know. I think that is
the best way ?-A. I should judge that any information at my disposal which you
would be interested in, would be that regarding an interview I had with Mr. Wade
regarding the water front. He was very frank in a great many matters, and, as is
my wont, I put many impertinent questions. I remember one question dittinctly:
" Mr. Wade, what part of this money did you get of this water front ?" le said :
41I got no share of it." I waited a while and repeated the question again: "Isthere
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any of this money coming to you?" He repliod (by the way, I would like to pro-
face my remarks by saying that this was a publie interview; it was for the press; I
had my note-book and pencil in my band at the time). He replied, none, unless a
certain feo ho had received from Mr. Alexander McDonald could be considered in
that light of a division of the profits. I got him to make me a statement of what
that fee consisted. He said ho had immediately after his decision which gave Mor-
rison and McDonald the water front, he had been retained by Alex. McDonald for
bis attorney for one year and had been given a handsome bonus as a retainer fee. I
asked him what the amount of the retainer feo was but ho didn't tell me; I asked
him if it was $10,000, and while ho didn't say (I don't recollect whether ho said yes
or no) ho left the impression on my mind that that amount was the retainer fee.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-The amount can be ascertained.
Mr. GEoRGE.-I am not arguing the case, I am merely giving facts. I asked

him if ho had done any services for that beyond giving the water front lease to these
gentlemen; bis reply to this I am not quite positive of, but to the best of my recôl-
lection, ho said as yet ho lad not rendered any services. I think that is ail.

Dr'. BoURKIE.-All I want is what people know; I have no questions to ask you.
The CoMMIssIoNE.-Did you ask him prticularly if this was a retainer, or

whether it was for services to extend over a poriod of time ?
Mr. TABR.-Presumably-
Mr. GEORGE.-I looked ut it and laugbed, and said Mr. Wade's explanation would

be satisfactory to a number of peoplc; by the way,I never published that interview.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I just wanted to know that point if it was for special ser-

vices, or"a year's services.
Mr. GEoRGE.-That's ail I know; he claimed it for a retainer fee for one year's

services.
Q. The amount he didn't state ?-A. My impression was that it was 810,000,

and that the space of time between the retainer fce and the space of time the
retainer fee was given Mr. Wade and ho awarded the water front lease to Morrison
and McDonald was within a few days of one another.

The CoMMIssioNER.-That is a separate subjeet for investigation. I suppose the
papers will show exactly the dates and amounts of ail that.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Do you know, as a matter of fact, that Wade, Clark and Wilson are
McDonald's attorneys ?-A. No, sir, Mr. Wae-

Q. You don't know that the firm did his business ?-A. No, sir.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-As the question bas been brought up we will have to try

to get at the facts.
Mr. TABo.-It is a well known fact that they are.

Mr. FAWcETT recalled.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. About this water front, Mr. Fawcett. I understood you to swear yesterday
that you were aware this was a highway, a public road ?-A. I didn't swear to
that.

Q. I will ask you a question: wore you aware when these papers were made
that it was a highway ?-A. It was government proprty.

Q. You were not aware it was a road ?-A. If a road, it was government
property.

Q. And I also understood you to say that there were people on the bank, and
that is partly the reason you gave it ?-A. There were quite a number of people on
the bank.
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Q. You gave a lease of that bank, with the people on it, to Morrison and
McDonald ?-A. I authorized it in so far as to put my name to the lease to make it
a legal document.

Q. I don't understand you 2-A. I put my name on the lease to make it a legal
document. It was prepared by Mr. Wade as the Dominion lands agent, and I was
the representative of the minister here.

Q. Did the fact of you representing the minister entitle you to sign leases ?-
A. I had that authority.

Q. I should like to see it ?-A. I had aathority as administrator to authorize
the acts of the Dominion lancs agent.

Q. I ask for these papers, and ask you- ?-A. The commissioner told you
there was an Order in Council.

The COMMISSIoNER.-I will produce the Order in Council. I have sent for it
and it will be here as soon as the messenger comes.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. As to this letter you received from Mr. Deville. Tnere is a suggestion in
the letter, "don't forget to put in a word about Landerkin." Who is ho ?-A. Son
of a member of parliament.

Q. You were to put in a few words because he was the son of a member of
parliament ?-A. He was sent out with me.

Q. This son of a member of parliament, what office does he hold here now,
what occupation ?-A. I don't know that that bas anything to do with the question.
It ie an improper question.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-I don't think that Mr. Landerkin's position has anything
to do with the water front.

By Dr. Bourke:

He is the son of a member of parliament, and I won't say anything more.
The next point I should like more information on is this: "whether they are going
to run you or whether you will run them." What was the result of that pieee of
advice ?-A. You had botter consult " them " to find out.

Mr. TABOR.-Are we examining on the water front ?
The CoMMISSIONER.-1 am tired calling Dr. Bourke to order. I think the

shortest way is to o on.
Mr. TABoR.-Heavens and earth 1
Dr. BoUKE.-I will not press that any further, if the evidence is not acceptable

to the court.
Mr. TABoa.-I don't think Dr. Bourke should be allowed to run all over.
Dr. BouRKE.-You are used to those sort of tricks; I am not. " Unless you are

very far wrong, and I don't think that possible, you may be sure that Mr. Sifton and
Mr. Smart will stand by you "

The CoMMIsSIoNER.-Will yon please state, Dr. Bourke, what that has to do
with the water front deal ?

Dr. BoURKE.-There are other charges in connection with the water front---
The CommissIoNER.-When the other charges come up we can bring in this

question; let us confine ourselves to the water front.
Dr. BouRKE.-If I have done anything wrong, your honour, I will apologize.
The CommissIoNER-The report is being so broken up that it will be almost

impossible to keep it in proper shape.
Dr. BouRKE.-I am quite ready to proceed with the water front. You took 1no

stops thon except merely to legalize as far as you considered necessary :Mr. Wade's
action in this matter ?

Mr. FAWCETT.-I did not.
Q. You didn't consider you were called upon to make any inquiry-simply to

affix your signature to the matter?-A. That is all; Mr. Wade was the Dominion
lands agent.
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'Q. You took no responsibility whatever ?-A. Al I had to do was to put my
mname to the document.

Q. As a matter of fact it was a public highway, and you bad incurred a very
serious responsibility and nobody is more aware of tt than (Dr. Bourke addressing
the commissioner) your honour at the present moment.

The COMMISIONER.-Are you through asking questions with respect to the
water front ?-A. Yes, sir.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Mere is Mr. Gibbon's plan. (Showing plan.)

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Is that plan drawn on the road which you surveyed and which was dedicated
to the public ?-A. It was drawn on First Avenue as I marked it on the ground.

Q. I would like to see the directions under which he drew it; I understand he
acted under instructions.

The CoMMIssIoNEa.-His instructions-he simply acted under the instructions
of the Dominion Lands Act at the request of Mr Ladue. I had instructions to
make the surveys in a general way; I had none about Dawson townsite.

Dr. BouRKcE.-The Ladue people say they have the townsite?
Mr. FAwcETT.-I may say in answer to this question that Mr. Gibbon was acting

under my instructions.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. I am very happy to hear it; you gave instructions in writing ?-A. Just
verbal instructions; that was at the solicitation of Mr. Wade, the Dominion lands
agent; he was to adjust it so that we could know where to move it back to.

Q. That already done and staked it ?-A. It was not.
Q. That had already been done?
The CoMMIssIoNER.-You misunderstand each other; Mr. Fawcett is referring

to this appropriation of the water front to McDonald and Morrison, and you are
referringlto First Avenue.

Q. Well, Mr. Fawcett, did you give him verbal or written instructions ?-A.
Verbal.

By the Commissioner:

Q. In which way is your question directed? To the wholo townsite, or to the
water front especially?-A. Merely to the water front.. And this is not the map.

Mr. FAwcETT.-There is the name on it-Mr. Gibbons' map.
Q. That is not the map I referred to.-A. This shows the ground on a large

scale; it is laid down there and Mr. Gibbons bas drawn on the road.
Q. This lease is issued by the direction of the gold commissioner and Mr. Wade,

and as I say an illegal act bas been committed-I won't say wilfully.
The COMMIssIoNER.-We wont argue that here; that is a question to be decided

by competent court. We only take charges of malfeasance.
Q. It is on record that this was laid out by Mr. Gibbons, approved of by the

Minister of the Interior, and he and the officials bore would not be ignorant of these
facts.

Mr. FAwcETT.-This map is the first official map that went to Ottawa showing
the town.

Q. Did Mr. Ogilvie lay this out; was it approved of by the Minister of the
Interior ?-A. I think Mr. Gibbons' map was the first that was sent out. These are
the facts as far as they bave come to my knowledge, that Mr. Gibbons only went
over Mr. Ogilvie's stakes. Mr. Gibbons survoyed the whole town; ho laid out the
water front.

The CoMMISSIONE.-I laid out First, Second and Third Avenue, and I blocked
out as far as Sixth Avenue; I only went back as far as Third Avenue with the
survey of lots.
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Dr. BoURKE.-Mr. Ogilvie has stated that Mr. Gibbons only went over and
marked his stakes where they were-

The CoMMIssIoNE.-Perpetuating my survey of 1897.
Mr. FAwcETT.-He gave Lis notes to Mr. Gibbons.
The CoMMIssioNER.-The question is, is there any fraud connected with the

water front deal?
Dr. BoURKE.-I am not charging fraud against anybody; that is for other parties

to settle.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-The acts may have been illegal; that is for the court to

decide.
Mr. TABOR.-I would like to get through; were you governed by this map in

letting the water front?
Mr. FAwCETT.-This, I think, was drawn after. It was decided to let the water

front-that line (showing the line drawn across the map). There were no stakes
on this side.

Dir. BouRKE.-Do I understand that the long line was put on afterwards ?-A.
Yes.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Was there an older map than this ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Who surveyed this ?-A. Mr. Gibbons.

Miss B. MULROoNEY, being called and sworn, testified as follows

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. We. are trying to find out, Miss Mulrooney, the facts; we want to ascertain if
any parties to your knowledge in any way participated in rents received from the
water front beside McDonald and Morrison. Have you any knowledge direct or
indirect on the subject?-A. No, sir, I have not.

Q. You never heard who received the water front rente ?-A. Alex McDonald.
Q. Nobody else ?-A. Not that I know of.
Q. A gentleman in court informed me yesterday that you would be able to give

information upon this, so I felt bound to act upon that information; I want to
apologize for the trouble of bringing you here. I have no further questions.

The CoMMissIONER.-Here is the other plan of the water front made especially;
there is no date on it.

Dr. BouRKi.-That shows it divided into lots.
The CoMMIssINER.-That is the one that was made for the gold commissioner's

office; the plan I spoke of.
Dr. BoURKE.-It is unsigned by any one.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-The survey was made by Mr. Gibbons.
Dir. BouRKE.-Is this the original or a tracing ?
The CoMMIssINER.-That is a tracing.
Mr. FAwCET.-The original would only be a pencil map.
The CoMMIssioNERa.-This was really an amendment to the original map; there

is another map, the one that was sent to Ottawa and which I thougbt I had, but it
didn't show this water front divided into lots.

Dr. BouRKE.-Does that extend over the whole front of Ladue.
Mr. TABoR.-That extends from Sixth street.
Dr. BoURKE.-Doe8 that cover part of Harper's eighteen acres?
Mr. FAWCETT.-That covers from Harper street to Sixth street.
Mr. TABoR.-The lower part of that below Third street was abandoned.
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Mr. JAMEs CRAN, being sworn, testified as follows

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Did yon tell me, sir, when I went to your bank, that, from my letter, Mr.
Fawoett had acted crookedly ? Do you remember making that statement ?-A. I
believe I do.

Q. And in further conversation when I stated to you he act.ed contrary to
mining regulations, that you said " you know they are not adhered to ?"-A. I
don't remember that remark.

Q. You won't swear ?
The COMMIsSIONER.-Mr. Cran, Dr. Bourke sent a long letter te me, asking that

certain witnesses produce certain documents. Not understanding it fully myself, I
attached a copy of the letter to each summons, calling attention to the terms of the
letter, so that they could be guided by it.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. And then you gave me a very apt quotation: " To him that bath shall be
given, and from him that hath not shall be taken away even that which he hath."
Did you quote that to me with regard to the mining regulations ?-A. Very likely.
I don't remember.

Q. I don't wish to trouble you any more. I am sorry to take this advantage.
It was too good to let go by. I want to arrive at the point, what documents, to
your knowledge, are in your bank to show that there is in existence a company
called the Klondike Goldfields, Limited ?-A.. I think we have their power of
attorney to Mr. McLaren.

Q. Have you any agreement drawn up between the people who apparently con-
stitute this company, or who acted on it ?-A. No; there may be a prospectus of
the company. I don't remember.

Q. I am inclined to believe that you have documents for several companies.
Now, I should like to know if these documents come to you under cover, and if you
are able to know what they are; or sealed, and you don't know what they are ?-A.
I don't know if they are sealed or not. I never looked into that.

Q. I presume Mr. McLaren is the only person who can tell ?-A. Y es, they are
his papers.

Q. There is an account of this company in your bank ?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, about last June, did this company pay, perhaps, £15,000 for certain

claims here?-A. I don't know. I didn't arrive here until the middle of August.
Q. From what you know on your books ?-A. There was no account down in

the bank, in the name of the company, until September.
Q. There was no account in McLaren's narne before that ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was there as large an amount as some £ 1,400 or £1,500 ?-A. I don't remem-

ber. I don't think so.
Q. Will you kindly send a clerk here, at a later period, when Mr. McLaren

will have arrived here, with any papers which will show the accounts of Mr. McLaren
and bis company in their transactions ?

Mr. TABOR.-Any account held after the 25th of August, I object to. The
witness said the account was established in September.

Dr. BOURKE.-Mr. Fawcett is still hiding under the gown of his neighbour.
Mr. TABOR.-Anything previous to the 25th of August, I shal ask that, as far

as your bank can give any information, you will send an officer who will give it.
Q. To your knowledge, does this company own any claims 74, 75, 76 and 77

Bonanza ?-A. I don't know.
Q. Have you heard it?-A. I have not.
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Q. What position does Mr. McLaren hold in it? Representing it, holding
power of attorney; or the independent power of attorney for these claims ?-A.
don't know. He has power of attorney from the company.

Q. You know there is a company?-A. I do.
Q. And Mr. McLaren has the acting power of attorney ?-A. Yes; I have it in

my possession.
Q. The facts are these: Mr. McLaien has certain power of attorney. Has he

any claims of his own here, to your knowledge ?-A. I don't know.
Q. Has he a private account of his own ?-A. I don't know. He may have.
Q. You see the drift of what I wanted was, I should like ail the information on

these points, as far as you conveniently can give them. Have you received any
letters giving instructions as to how you were to treat Mr. McLaren ?-A. No letters
in that direction.

Q. Then the power of attorney is the only thing you have?-A. The only thing
we have in that respect.

Q. Do you hold the original records of this claim ?-A. Not that I know of; but
they may be held for safe keeping; but I don't know.

Q. Are you familiar with the value of claims in this district ?-A. Moderately;
Oh, yes.

Q. There are claims here on Moosehide. Would you be inclined to invest $15?
-A. Not fifteen cents.

Q. I believe yon are right. Bryant Creek ?-A. I know nothing of it.
Q. Star Gulch ?-A. I know nothing of that.
Q. Then I can receive no more testimony until Mr. McLaren comes at two

o'clock.

Mr. FAWCETT, boing called and sworn, testified as fol'os:-

By Pr. Bourke:

Q. The last time I was in the other court, yesterday week, I understood you to
swear that in no case you had granted protection to anybody; is that so?-A. I
don't remember anything about it.

Q. In your position as gold commissioner have you ever extended any excep-
tional treatment to any person or company ?-A. No, no exceptional protection; I
would call it exceptional treatment.

Q. Yo have not granted special privileges to any special claims ?-A. No, I
have net.

Q. I asked you the other day, after I had heard and then believed that yon
didn't wish to take advantage of any technicality, if you had any objection te cer-
tain papers and letters being produced, and especially letters in your own hand-
writing. Have yeu any objection to these letters being produced now ?-A. I have
not any letters which will have anything to do with the subject of the investigation.

Q. The letter I want is a letter in reply to a letter you wrote to Mr. Ogilvie.
That is the letter I want to have read, and in that letter you make statements about
special favours and privileges and protection. I want that letter read although it
came after the 25th of August.

Mr. TABOR.-I object.
Mr. FAwcETT.-I don't know anything about it.
Q. Will you sustain the connsel's objection or override it ?
Mr. TABOR.-I object; I have not done so, and I intend to adhere to that.
Dr. BOURKE.-I find myself in a diffilult position. I have a letter in my

possession, written on the back of a letter to you in which Mr. Faweett refers to me
as being insane. I can prove, insane or not, that he hides behind his counsel's gown.
I won't ask him any more questions.
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Mr. TABo.-I object to these statements of Dr. Bouike; it is uncalled for
You have tried to make Dr. Bourke understand as well as any one could that this
commission bas not power to examine into anything of that sort; in faet, Mr. Com.,
missioner, I can say that you bave no power to heur evidence even if taken under
affidavit at this royal commission.

The CoMMissIoNEE.-That was the agreement arrived at. We stated the first
time this came up that we would not hear anything after the 25th of August.

Dr. BoURKE.-I bow to the court.
Mr. TABo.-I object to Dr. Bourke's heat and uncalled for statements. I

think Dr. Bourke's statements should be Dublished in extenso.
Dr. BouRKE.-I am perfectly willing that they should be.
Tho CoMMIssIoNEa.-If this letter you refer to is required to sustain charges

brought against Mr. Fawcett which occurred before the 25th of August I think it
might beproduced.

Mr. TABoR.-I have no objections.
The CoMMIssioNEa.-Although written since the 25th of August.
Q. When was this deal ?-A. 23rd of July.
Mr. TABoa.-We bave no date for anything; I demand the production of Mr.

Faweett's letter and Mr. J. J. McLaren's letter.
The CoMMISSIOER.-Would it not be as well to submit the facts, and send in

the letter afterwards?
Dr. BoURKE.-The facts are these: thero i8 a company in existence, and I

would like to have produced Mr. Fawcett's letter of the 23rd of July; I have a
copy of it if you wili allow me to read it, and ask Mr. Faweett's explanation Ibr
these.

Mr. TABo.-I would liko the letter to be summoned and see a copy.
Dr. BoURK.-We cannot go on any further without it.
The CoMMIssioNE.-We might adjourn.

TUESDAY APTERNOON, 7th March, 1899.

JAMzs J. MOLAREN called and sworn.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Mr. McLaren, I believe you are the representative of the Klondike Gold
Fielda Company, Limited ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did you write a letter on the 23rd of July to Mr. Fawcett ?-A. I have not
a copy of the letter here, but I have Mr. Faweett's reply.

Q. Can you produce the letter in court?-A. I forgot to bring the letter.
Mr. BRowN.-Mr. Fawcett has the letter.
Mr. TÀBoR.-Will you read the letter ?
Mr. McLaren reads bis letter to Mr. Fawcett and Mr. Fawcett's reply.

To the Gold Commissioner, DAWSON, N.W.T., 23rd July, 1898.

The Yukon District,
Dawson.

DzAR Sia,-As the legal representative of the company owning claims 74, 75,
76, 77 below on Bonanza, and 11, 12, 13 on Star Creek, I write for the purpose of
asking you to grant us a special permit in connection with the working thereof.

It would be very advantageous to us, from a mining point of view, to be allowed
to operate these two separate groups as consolidated property, that is to say that
those daims on Bonanza should be regarded as practically one claim, but requiring
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four times the amount of labour prescribed by the regulations as necessary to hold
one claim, and similarly with throe times the prescribed amount in the case of the
Star property.

In other words, what we ask for is a free band to dispose of our labour in any
manner that may seem best, without regard to the boundary lines between the
individual claims.

It is unnecessary to point out the advantages of concentrating our force on one
part of the ground instead of burrowing unsystematically in different places.

Such a point as the one asked for would be of great benetit to my company, and
might in my opinion add a littie indirectly to the prosperity of the industry iii your
district.

Trusting you will see your way to grant us this.
I have the honour to be, sir,

Yours faithfully,
J. JORDAN MoLAREN.

MINING DIVISION OF TRoANDIK.
MINING REORDER's OFFICE,

DAWSON, Yukon District, 26th July, 1898.
J. JORDAN MOLAREN, Esq.,

Dawson, Yukon District.

SI,-Yours of the 24th instant, requesting that permission be granted to con-
solidate placer mining claims Nos. 74, 75, 76 and 77 below Discovery on Bonanza,
also 11, 12 and 13 on Star Creek, for the purpose of working said claims to the
best advantage, was duly received by me.

Although no provision is made in the mining regulations for working in that
way, I can easily understand that snob permission would be a very great advantage
to you, and could not but be advantageous in every wav. You may therefore con-
sider that this application meets with my approval, and work done in a minerlike
way necessary for working these groups of claims to the best advantage will be
considered representation.

I have the honouîeto be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

Gold Commissioner.

Q. Are you still the representative of the company in this country ?-A. Yes.
Q. Are you the person who deposited any papers concerning the company in

the bank for safe custody ?-A. I am so far as I know; yes.
Q. Did you receive a subpona to produce ail papers connected with this com-

pany in court ?-A. I have the papers here; al the papers material.
Q. Have you a copy of the agreement which granted the power of attorney to

you ?-A. No, it is in the bank.
Q. Why, in the bank ?-A. The manager of the bank was subpoenaed to do

this. He has them there.
Q. He does not know what was in them-you knew what was in them ?
The CoMMIssIoNE.-They can be readily supplied.
Dr. BouRK.-We will not argue.
Q. Yon knew Mr. Stevens in London ?-A. No.
Q. Ever meet him ?-A. No.
Q. Ever meet Mr. Daughtry ?-A. Yes.
Q. Where, firet ?-A. in Victoria.
Q. Have you ever been in London ?-A. Born there.
Q. It was Mr. Daughtry who asked you to work for the company ?-A. I was

appointed in London.
Q. Practically, may I take it from you, that until matters were placed in your

bands at Victoria, that yon knew nothing about the affairs of the company ?-A.
Nothing, whatever.
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Q. Do you know whether that company is a limited company as it expresses
itself to be ?-A. Yes, liruited liability.

Q. Registered in England ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you know the nominal capital ?-A. £350,000.
Q. Do you know what amount of money was paid for claims in this country ?-

A. About $75,000.
Q. And there was about £5,000 paid on the first completion of the transaction ?-

A. That was a deposit. That was not paid on the property.
Q. Paid as part of it when the transaction was complcted, and the £15,000 paid

approximately, say ?-A. Yes, that is about it.
Q. Has your company ever had a Canadian charter ?-A. That I can't say;

that would be the duty of the London people to get, I guess. I think Sir Charles
Tupper is on the board, and ho has attended to that in Ottawa.

Q. As far as you know, bas there been a Canadian charter ?-A. They have not
written to me.

Q. Was there a miner's license got ?-A. No, not for the company, unless they
got it out there.

Q. You are the sole representative here, and Sir Charles Tupper didn't write as
to what was to be done ?-A. Yes, they write what is best to be done.

Q. We would like to have these letters in court.-A. I have letters fron the
secretary.

Q. Any letters or any papers I should be glad to have the opportunity of
inspecting. As far as you know, and I am informed in the gold commissioner's
offiee, they don't hold a miner's license. You do possess a miner's license, taken out
last June ?-A. Yes.

Q. And are yon aware that there was an agreement between this company in
London, consisting of Mr. Daughtry and Mr. Stevens, relative to claims, acting out
bere through the Bank of British North America, and under your general name
and Mr. Daughtry's; and when they came here they were to be recorded in the
name of the Klondike Gold Fields Co., Limited, or some such arrangement- that
was the arrangement made?-A. Yes.

Q. Quite clear ?-A. Yes.
Q. Why-not placed in the nante of the company ?-A. Because there was con-

siderable difficulty in getting a miner's license.
Q. You couldn't get a miner's license?-A. I suppose I could, if I had tried

hard enougb.
Q. Through not getting a miner's license you broke the laws, and your com-

pany traded under their servants' name, contrary to the laws?-A. I am not break-
ing the mining regulations.

Q. According to the law a company is bound, and everybody in its employ, to
have a miner's license. I suppose you are conversant with that fact ?-A. I am not
aware of it.

Q. You say you transferred these claims, which should have been held in the
name of the company, in your own name, to avoid taking out a license ?-A. If I
had written back asking leave to transfer it to me in bore, I don't see whose name
it would be in while I was waiting for an answer.

Q. I suppose you did your best. There is no imputation on you as having done
anything unbecoming a gentleman or dishonourable; don't think that. I merely
recall the point that this company here, which you have honestly told Mr. Fawcett
was a company, and you told Mr. Fawcett in that letter that you were the servant
of that company and yon wanted a certain thing done. You didn't get a mining
license, and put the property in your own name ?-A. Yes.

Q. How did you sign cheques and transfers on the company ? I would like to
see one of your cheques ?-A. They are in the bank.

Q. How did you sign ?-A. I signed the Klondike Gold Fields Co., Limited,
per Attorney, in my own name.

Q. Do you know you exposed yourself to a penalty of two hundred dollars
.every time you signed a cheque of that company.
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The CoMMIssIoNER.-Those cheques were bore this morning; i asked him to
send a clerk up this afternoon. We can recall him again.

Dr. BoURKE.-I don't want to press the point; don't matter to me how ho signs
the cheques. Now, sir, I want to further question; you have been some short time
in the country and I will ask you the value of certain claims?-A. I couldn't answer
any question like that.

Q. As far as these go the value will be- ?-A. You can't make me; I can't
see very clearly through black muck

Q. I have a reason for your answering this question; is there a value to the
claims on Moosehide ?-A. Mr. Commissioner', is there any reason why 1 should
answer this; I haven't the smallest idea.

Q. At the present state of the market, are they worthless ?-A. I don't know;
I have not been to Moosehide.

Q. As far as your opinion goes are they worthless ?-A. I don't like to commit
myself.

Q. I beg pardon; I won't press you. You are aware of one or two facts I told
you about this company being in existence. When did you arrive at that know-
ledge. Where are all the papers which show the agreement of the company; in the
bank ?-A. Yes, the papers are in the bank.

Q. I will ask His lonour that they may be produced in court.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I understood they were to be brought over this afternoon.
Q. As you praclically admitted what I want I don't think I need ask you any

further questions relative to Mr. MeFarlane bore. I have no other questions to ask
him.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. What company do you represent ?-A. The Klondike Gold Fields Company,
Limited, of London.

Q. Now, when you addressed that letter to Mr. Fawcett in this matter, had Mr.
Faweett any idea that you represented this company ?-A. I don't think so. I think
I had a letter of introduction; I would not be sure of that. I only seen him once
before that.

Q. When you signed for the company there, you were just writing your own
name ?-A . Yes, air.

Q. He could not infer what that company means ?-A. I don't think he could,
unless ho had a great memory and saw my name in the letter of introduction.

Q. low did you acquire possession of these claims ?-A. By purchase.
Q. You purchased them in your own name ?-A. Yes, air.
Q. Took out certificates in your own name ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Any question of your representing the company at that time ?-A. No.
Q. Did any of the clerks know that you were representing the company?-A.

I don't know; Mr. Craig might have known it; I know him pretty well.
Q. Did they know you were acquiring these claims for the company ?-A. Mr.

Craig would, perbaps. I don't know.
Q. Who put the transfers through?
Dr. BoURKE.-I am glad to hear that we will have to have Mr. Craig bore.

By Mr. Tabor :

Q. You don't know who put the transfers through ?-A. Not the slightest idea.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. These answers are rather contradictory. In that letter of the 23rd of July,
when ho makes application for these claims, Mr. McLaren states, " They were the
property of my company, and I am its servant," and now ho wants us to infer from

is reply which perhaps ho doos not mean, do you mean these claims are not the
property of the Klondike Gold Fields Co. ?-A. No, they are their property.
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Q. I un ierstood you to say they were not ?-A. No, they belong strictly to
them.

Q. And you spoke also of a letter of instructions which you had received from
Mr. Fawcett before?-A. " Iitroduction " to Mr. Fawcett.

Q. [ didn't catch what you said, you had received no letter from Mr. Fawcett
previous to the 23rd of July ?-A. Not written one or recoived one.

Q. Had not received one ?-A. This is the first one I ever received, and this is
the reply to it.

Q. When you bad your previous interview, was any suggestion as to what you
were to write to Mr. Fawcett-previous to that you had an interview with him ?--
A. I don't know if I had. I got my letter of introduction, and that was all there
was. It is clearly understood these claims were regibtered for the sake of con-
venienco, and are still the property of the company.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Mr. McLaren, I would like you to explain the difficulty in the way of
getting a miner's license for the company?-A. It is simply hearsay. To tell you
the truth, I never tried very hard at the office to get one. I understood the matter
had to bo referred to-I never had a legal opinion upon it. I understood it had to
be referred back to Ottawa, and all that time the property would be practically in
nobody's hands during the intervening poriod. I never tried to get one, although I
intended to get a license as soon as I knew how it would be done.

Q. You don't know yet, what obstacle there was in the way of getting a
license ?-A. No, I only know what Neville Armstrong told me.

Q. Had ho got a license for a company?-A. I don't know.
Q. You didn't make any effort ?-A. I didn't try particularly hard, as I was

told here we had to get it through in a birry; it had to get through by the lst of
July. We didn't have time to get these. We got in here about the 10th of June.
We had to get them in somebody's name.

Q. Then, as a matter of fact, you don't know what the difficulties were ?-A. I
have not the slightest idea.

Q. It may bc the simplest thing in the world for all you know ?-A. I was
scared from what he told me.

Dr. BouRKE.-Relative to Mr. Craig, it appears that an official in the office
knows a good deal about this matter, and although I had determined not to ask for
another witness during this inquiry, still, if you think it advisable to hear him, I
ask that Mr. Craig ho sent for.

The ComMrssiosza.-We can send for M-r. Craig.
Mr. TABo.-It is a waste of tine.
The CoMMIssoNEa.-If I don't send for him he will say that I am standing in

the way of justice.
Dr. BoURKu.-I never heard bis name mentioned in connection with it until this

moment. Mr. Fawcett, you have heard this letter of the 23rd; this letter in which
the gentleman apprires you as explicitly as one man can toit another, that ho is the
servant of a company, and the company owns these claims. and ho is asking for cer-
tain privileges for the company, and it now appears, and you heard the statements
of this gentleman, that that company has been acting ultra vires, and it should have
a miner's license and it bas not one.

Mr. FAwcXTT.-What did you wish me to answer?

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. When did you issue ?-A. i didn't know there was such a company. I have
no porsonal knowledge of such a company.

Q. We might not prove the sun is shining, but thero is good reason for thinking
it is. I understand the company has a Canadian charter ?-A. I had no notice to
that effect.
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Q. You have heard this gentleman swear that these claims were not his, and ho
was doing it for a company, and the company is working under the cover of its
servants ?

Mr. FAWOETT.-I cannot speak as to what the gentleman has sworn to.
Q. You simply say you knew nothing about it?-A. I have no official know-

ledge that the company bas such a charter.

By Dr. Bourke:
Q. I will now read a letter which you received from Mr. Ogilvie, and the

reply on the back of it. (See letter) ?-A. Perhaps, I believe there is such a com-
pauy, but I have no official knowledge of such company. I cannot recognize such
a company without official knowledge.

Q. If you had any suspicions without official knowledge that there was a com-
pany like that, don't you think it was the duty of the gold commissioner to have
the company go forward and pay down $100 ?-A. I don't think the gold com-
missioner has power to grant licenses to companies he does not know exist.

Q. You have power to grant grants ?-A. Not necessarily.
Q. If a man comes with a bill of sale, I suppose you would go out of your way

to group claims for him?-A. I think the claims were naturally grouped.
Q. Weil, sir, we will come to that point in a minute. I may say in explana-

tion of this that in my writing this letter on the lst of December to Mr. Ogilvie, it
was incorrectly copied. The letter was paged 1, 2, 3, 4 and the 2nd page of the
writing being on the 3rd page of the sheet. I found by looking it over and reading
it through tho copy that had been sent me from Mr. Ogilvie's office, that the letter
had been copied consecutively and that it made rather a hash ont of it. I wrote a
second letter to you calling attention to this mistake and returning the letter for
correction, the copy having been mislaid.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. That was in reference to your application for No. 76 below on Bonanza ?-
A. Yes, still, it is evidence in this case ; because I staked No. 76 and becanse I hap-
pened to be one of the parties interested, that is no reason why the evidenco should
be excluded from court. This is a general letter to myself and Mr. Morgan who is
interested in one of the other claims, No. 75, I think.

Q. You restaked 76 and Mr. Morgan restaked 75, Dr. Bourke ?-A. I restaked
the upper part of 77. What led me astray was the fact that these were registered
in the office books in the name of McLaren, and that the talk about the company
was a blind in the matter. Now I know better; that it was a company, and that is
why that was done.

(Dr. Bourke reading extract from letter) I am wrong there. I shonld have
said 7 claims instead of 14; as far as 7 goes I am correct.

Mr. FAWOETT.-The other 7, some were represented and some were not.
Dr. BouRK.-The inquiry was prornised the 2nd of November and now it is

the 7th of March.
The CommIssIoNEa.-And it is not off yet.
Dr. BoURKE.-No, it bas not come off.
The ComxIssIoNER.-I inquired and found I had no authority to examine

witnesses under oath.
Dr. BouRKi.-I apologize thon. " Hope deferred maketh the heart sick."

Actually now, I don't know.
The ComMIssIoNER.-I realize that fully.
(Introduction of letter marked as Exhibit Z.)

To Honourable Wx. OGILVIE,
Commissioner, Yukon Territory. DAwsoN, 8th NovEBER, 1898.

DEAR SIa,-Referring to our interview of the 2nd inst., we beg to say that on
lt September, 1898, we restaked claims No. 75 ad 77 below discovery on Bonanza
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creek, and applied for record but was refused; we asked to bave a record kept of
our tender of the money and application. Mr. Fawcett stated that the claims
belonged to an English company, and that he bad granted an extension of time to
bring in machinery. Wo are now informed that no company legally registered in
England owns these claims, nor have they been registered as such, but in the name
of a McLaren company; asked if he had made any condition to be fulfilled by them
he replied, yes they were to bring in machinery; asked if ho had stipulated any
description or quantity of machinery ho replied, no, I suppose it is to be mining
machinery; asked if he would extend the same privilege to an ordinary miner, he
replied, No. This company owns a lot of claims. Asked, is an ordinary miner
then to be treated differently from a company, ho replied we must protect Enylish
capital. Mr. Fawcett further stated, I have been bothered by a lot of lawyers
about claim No. 76, Bonanza. Dr. Bourke remarked iii that case there was a
pretence of working on it, but nothing had been donc on No. 75 or 77, Mr. Fawcett
replied, well, they are working them now; as a fact a partner of Mr. Daughtry has
been living on No. 76 and informing every one that he ropresented the company's
claims, Nos. 74, 75, 76 and '7, a nomince of a Mr. Stevens, who, with a Mr.
Daughtry, originally tried to sell these claims. We are also informed that an
extension of time bas been granted to Mr. McLaren on 14 claims, meaning a loss
to the public of about ton thousand dollars, that should have been spent in paying
for representation, even claims in which he held only a part interest were held
over in marked contrast to the treatmont of the owner of a solitary claim. After
our applications became known, communication was made to Mr. Fawcett, and now
the caims are being worked on -1 lays" signed by Mr. Daughtry.

On lst November, Dr. Bourke called on Mr. Fawcett, who stated that ho had
given an extension of time to next spring to the supposed English company, and that
Mr.Fawcett bad arranged this; beyond building a cabin on No. 76, no work whatever
has been donc. Witnesses to these facts will be produced at the inquiry you
promise which we have to request will be on oath with power to us to cross-examine
and be represented legally if necessary. Noextension was granted to Mr. McLaren
till the 25th of August, within 5 days of the expiring time for working and the
claims had then virtually lapsed. We therofore trust that we may be recorded as
the owners of the claims we staked.

Yours faithfully,
EDWARD E. P. MORGAN,
ISIDORE MC WM. BOURKE, M.D.

Dr. BoURKE.-I consider, sir, the questions are out of the ordinary ; I didn't
know the authority you had from Mr. Deville to do what you liked.

The CoMMIsSIoNER.--I don't know about any such instructions ; please drop that
private letter.

Dr. BoURKE.-Now, Mr. Fawcett swore ho never did anything of the sort.
Mr. FAwcETT.-I have not; I know that fifteen thousand dollars have been paid

for this claim, and for my part intend to seo that some sort of protection is offered
to those who pay their money, Dr. Bourke. Those who jump the claims will not
get them while I am gold commissioner.

Dr. BouRKE.-I understand that if you hadn't done so he would have never
come to you. Now, we here have the facts-the grouping of the claims which was
distinctly contrary to the regulations and your admission in your letter though there
are no provisions for it in your regulations; and you grouped these claims granting
this special favour, allowing this company to work without a license. Now, these
are the principal points I have to make in this case. I don't know that I need take
up the time of the court by asking any more questions as the facts have been palpa-
ble before us. They appcar to befacts which I hope will bo put carefully on record.
I should like to ask Mr. Fawcett one more question, which is this: Can he furnish
us with incident8 where ho bas grouped other cases?

Mr. FAwdETT.-These are alriady grouped in consecuLive numbers.
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Dr. BoURKE.-That was your only reason for grouping them ?
Mr. FAwCETT.-YeS, that's what I cali grouping.
Dr. BoURKE.-If another man had four or five claims in that way would you

allow him to group them ?
Mr. FAWCETT.-YeS, I would allow it.
Q. Is that according to regulations ?-A. That's according to my ruling; I

wouldn't say it was against the regulations.
Q. Will you swear it is strictly against the regulations to allow a man to work

four claims ?-A. When groupei together it is considered one claim.

By Dr. Bourke :

Q. That may be your ruling; I want to have your statement that it is comply-
ing with the regulations if a man can make one claim out of four ?-A. If they are
grouped they are considered as one claim.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-I think this is a matter perfectly within the competence
of the gold commissioner in the administration of the mining law.

Dr. BOURKE.-Of course I don't pretend to be an authority, but it is a matter on
which the general publie can express their feelings and will express them strongly
if they are to be over-ridden. We see the authority, and we know it; it is a very
serious matter for the publie.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-It depends on which side you look at it.
Mr. TABoR.-It depends on whether it is more important to have English

capital or any other speculation.
Dr. BouRKE.-lere is a case in which two individuals buy certain options for

twenty thousand dollars; they make an agreement to monopolize for three hundred
and fifty thousand pounds, and they are going to float in the English market such
claims as are found on Star Gulch and Moosehide and share up between them this
Daughtry and Stevens.

Mr. TABOR.-I object.
The CoMMISSIoNER.-It won't do any harm.
Dr. BoURKE.-I ask Mr. McLaren to produce this; these are the facts.
Mr. MOLAREN.-I won't produce it.
Dr. BoURKE.-I am sorry I am not supported here; I think I ought to be when

I ask for a production of a docament proving facts; I ask to have that produced.
The ComMissioNER.-Are you through with Mr. Fawcett?

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. I would like to ask Mr. Fawcett a few questions if you are through, in regard
to the representation of mining claims, the gold commissioner has absolute authority
as to how they should be represented ?-A. Yes, I have-he bas.

Q. As to the manner ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then it would be within your power to do, as is often done, and is the cus-

tom with other countries, to allow claims to be grouped together where they are
represented by a certain amount of work?-A. 1 believe it would be the case; I
think it would be in the interest of the claims as well as in the interests of the
country. They could be worked more economically in that way.

Q. What understanding did you have with this company at any time ?-A. I
had no knowledge except what I heard from time to time through acquaintances.

Q. Did you have any information from Mr. McLaren ?-A. Mr. McLaren called
at my office when he came in first, and I think I had a few minutes' conversation
with him.

Q. Did you know he was representing that company?-A. I knew ho had some-
thing to do with this agreement.

Q. Did you know how the claims were ?-A. I didn't know how the claims
were.

Q. Had he official records showing the claims ?-A. The clains, 1 think, were
sold to Mr. Daughtry. 241
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Q. You recollect Mr. MoLaren's letter ; now, what do you suppose hie meant by
representing a company there?-A. That the same person or persons owned the
claims and went to work them together.

Q. In granting that request, you thought you were working within your powers
in doing what you did ?-A. Yes, I believe I was, and I believe so still.

Q. Did yon think you were doing anything particularly heinous or any crime in
doing that ?-A. Most certainly not.

Q. Is that an infraction of your regulations or your powers?-A. Not that 1
know of.

Q. Now, it appears the gist of the matter is that Dr. Bourke and some of his
friends made application for some of these claims?-A. Yes.

Q. When ?-A. In September, I think.
Q. What condition were the claims in at that time ?-A. They had been laid

over by that letter-held over.
Q. That letter is dated the 26th of Jaly ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Was this the only permission you gave in regard to these claims?-A. Welil,

that is the only letter with reference to these claims.
Q. You didn't know anything about the filing of these deeds?-A. I didn't know.
Q. If a man representing on them came in to record claims in his own name ?-

A. I don't know about the record ing of deeds; that comes under another depart-
ment.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. One question, Mr. Fawcett, it is relative to the value of Moosehide Creek;
are they worth anything ?-A. I don't know; I have no knowledge; I didn't know
Mr. McLaren had any claims there.

Dr. BouRKE.-I won't trouble you any further; the facts are practically ad-
mitted. I don't think I will have to trouble you any more. I don't wish to occupy
your time for a moment more. I am ready to go on with the next case subject to
the decision of your honour.

The CoMMIssIoNE.-That is for us to say.
Dr. BoURKE.-I am ready to go on, that is if yeu decide. If you don't wish to

go on-
The CoMMissIoNER.-I don't see any occasion; I think you made a lot of serious

charges unnecessarily when you had one of the witnesses on the floor.
Dr. BoURKE.-If I have, I apologize most respectfully, sir I didn't understand

it. I apologize, and I also apologize to Mr. McLaren. I sec that 1 was wrong.

ALEXANDER MOFARLANE, called and sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Did you have anything to do with the transfer of these papers ?-A. Yes; I
put through the transfer in June last from the different owners to Mr. McLaren.
I was also present when all the money was paid over.

Q. How were these papers recorded ?-A. I think I handed then to Mr. Craig,
and got the certificates a couple of days after. I think we had to wait about a wee
as the office was crowded.

Q. Were the certificates taken out in your name ?-A. No, Mr. McLaren's.
Q. Do you know anything about these claims since ?-A. Yes; I have seen the

certificates of representation.
Q. How were they represented ?-A. Represented in the ordinary manner;

four men working on one claim. They worked considerable for three months, and
are still working merely to carry out the law.

Q. Four men ?-A. Yes.
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Q. You heard this letter read in court-the letter of the 23rd of Mr. MoLaren's.?
-A. I considered the arrangements made in regard to the claims on Bonanza wore
much botter both for the miner working there and for the development of the
ground than this single arrangement of represontation, because in most cases
representation by a single man is a farce, practically speaking, for the devolopment
of the ground.

Q. You have had some experience in mining in this country?-A. Quite a bit.
Q. Can a single man work alone ?-A. He can; but it is slow work. He bas to

go down and climb up the ladder and hoist up bis dirt.
Q. You gave Dr. Bourke information regarding this matter ?-A. He got infor-

mation from these papers. I don't know what benefit there was in it.
Q. How did ho get them ?-A. He came to my office one day and asked to see

them. I knew then-ho told me ho had jumped a claim on Bonanza belonging to
this company-relocated, I should say-

Dr. BOURKE.-That's a nicer word.
-and he asked me if I had papers. I said I had. He asked me if I would show them.
I said I didn't like to, but»as ho wanted to satisfy his curiosity, I said I would let
him have them, on the understanding that he was to keep them to himself; not to
use them for himself, or in any way benefit bimself by them. He didn't. But some
time before this came out ho came to se me again, and askod me to lot him have
thom. I did so. The next thing I heard about it was this affair. I spoke to him
on the matter, and said I thought it hardly a fair proceeding. He said that I didn't
tell him thon that it was in confidence. I thought it was unfair on the part of Dr.
Bourke to make use of knowledge gained in that way.

Q. The claims have been represented u) to date ?-A. These claims have been
represented as nearly, I venture to say, as they can be, although the representation
was not due on them until lst September for the year before, while Mr. Daughtry was
on the outside. Now alil of them have been represented. I don't think representation
is due on them for probably fifteen months.

Q. Have any renewals been taken out ?-A. I don't know as to that; Mr.
McLaren knows. The affidavits of representation have had to be filed. I don't
remember exactly the numbers. I think 49 above, 58 on Hunker, 16 on Sulphur,
and 21 Bryant Creek have been filed. If I remember aright the Bonanzo Oreek and
Gold Hill claims have been filed.

Q. Yon don't know what bas been taken out ?-A. I do not.
Dr. .BouRK.-You mention two occasions on which you showed me the papers.

The last time I went you were in bed. On that occasion I brought the papers and
put them in your bands and you said: "Remember now that is in confidence," but
on that previous occasion when you gave me the papers you said nothing of the sort,
and you left me sitting in your office for an hour or two and never made any con-
dition; I don't think there cGuld be any misunderstanding on that; I am clear and
distinct. The second occasion yon did, but I had this information, and you gave me
this permission to see the papers and loft me in your office and said you would return
shortly. I waited an hour or two when I at last called the porter and got him to
lock up your room. At time you handed me the records; i took notes. On the
second occasion you spoke to me; I knew what you had told me already. I simply
wanted to confirm myself on a little point; i wanted to know the name of th$ com.
pany and went away without the information I wanted. If you rake your memory
back you will find I am correct ?-A. I never showed the papers to anybody else;
as to showing the papers-

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Is this a question in connection with this case ? If not, we
might defer it.

Dr. BouRKE.-Let me explain one word: if you refer to these papers being
private, they have actually been lying for tnonths on this table for anybody to come
in and see for there was no door on bis room, so by the way ho left them lying
around they could not be very private.

The COMMIssIONER.-My opinion is that if Dr. Bourke hadn't jumped the claim
this thing would not have come up.
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Mr. R. B. CAi&, called and sworn, testified as follows:-

By Dr. Bourke :

Q. I merely wanted to ask you one word relative to these claims of Mr.
McLaren's, or the claim of the Klondike Gold Fields Company, Limited. Mr.
McLaren leads me to uniderstand that there was some difficulty in bis registration
of these claims belonging to the company-some difficulty in the registration of the
claims in the name of the company-because they hadn't a charter and couldn't
get a license ?-A. The claims were registered in Mr. McLaren's name.

Q. You were aware of this at the time ?-A. I may have heard of it.
Q. You were aware of this difficulty ?-A. I wouldn't swear to it now.
Q. It is nothing personal to you, it is Mr. McLaren's dropping the observation

that led me to infer that the matter had been talked of between you previous to the
recording of Mr. McLaren who bas given bis evidence most straight, registered
them in bis own name while you bad some inklingof this matter prior to the record.
ing ?-A. I don't know that I had.

Q. Would you swear that you hadn't ?-A. No, I wouldn't swear; I have said
so already.

WEDNEsDAY MORNING, 8th March, 1899.

Mr. MOLAREN recalled (still under oath) testified as follows:-

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. I called upon you to produce any document relating to any business you had
with the Klondike Gold Fields Company, Limited ?-A. 1 object to that, Mr. Ogilvie.

Q. An attorney has power to call for any papers ?-A. Where they are relative
to the case; this is a matter between the company and myself. The only objection
I have is simply from principle; I have no objection to any one seeing the papors.

Mr. TABoR.-I think the fact of Mr. McLaren's identity with the company bas
been suffIciently established, and these are papers that have no business in the case.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Iow are we to know that ?
Dr. BoURKE.-They have, your honour.
Mr. TABo.-They may have in this case, because they are papers which

empowered him to act.
Dr. BoURKE.-I want the papers produced in court.
Mr. TABoR.-There is no necessity to produce them; Mr. McLaren doesn't want

to lose them out of bis possession.
The COMMISSNE.-He would like to inspect them.
Dr. BoURKE.-YOn rule so; if I didn't consider the papers absolutely necessary

I would not ask for them. He is willing to give bis statements but not willing to
put them in.

The COMMIssIoNER.- I don't see any cause for anxiety about them; there may
be a further inquiry possibly, as you have said, and if it is a matter of evidence they
should be produced.

Mr. TABoR.-Suppose we put the papers in court, is Dr. Bourke prepared in any
way to prove them; can Mr. McLaren prove them; can any ore here prove them?

The CoMMISsIoNER.-We would simply have to take it for granted that they
represent themselves to be what they are as we have no way of proving the signa-
ture of the different parties to the papers if Dr. Bourke wishes to push us to this
extremity.

Dr. BouaKE.-I wish you to produce tho power of attorney.
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Mr. McLAREN.-I want to understand if I am compelled to show them. If you
will retain these papers in your possession for a reasonable time, say six months, I
certainly don't intend to make an application to the court to take them from you.
May I take it from you just to save time?

The CoMMIssIoNER.-You may sit down Mr.McLaren while Dr. Bourke reads it.
Dr. BouRuKE.-(Looking at power of attorney.) The seal of the company is

sufficient proof as to its powers.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. You accept the seal then ?-A. Yes, as far as that point goes. You don't
wish me to read it aloud ?

The CoMMIssIoNE.-Exercise your own discretion.
Mr. TABOR.-YOU admit this then to be correct?
Dr. BoURKE.-I see it is certified by the Consul General of the United States;

that proves its authenticity.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. You admit the authenticity of this document?-A. Yes.
Q. According to this document bave you received any directions from the com-

pany beyond the original directions to place shares in any other names; the original
directions were to place these shares in the name of the company when they arrived
here ? Was that so ?-A. I had nothing to do with staking for the company.

The CoMMissIoNEB.-In what way is this connected with Mr. Fawcett's wrong-
doing ?

Dr. BouRKE.-I want to prove that this company were acting here without a
license, and Mr. Fawett-

The CoMMISSIoNEa.-Mr. Fawcett has admitted that.

By Dr. Bourke;

Q. Will you let me see the agreement between Mr. Stevens and Mr. Daughtry ?
-A. I don't show that; that I can't let you see.

Mr. TABoR.-Dr. Bourke is going into evidence which is evidently between Mr.
McLaren and the company; this has nothing to do with Mr. Faweett's wrong
doinr. BoURKE.-It has to do with the formation of the company, and Mr. McLaren
has explicitly stated all that has been done has been done for the company.

The COMMIssINER.-I can't see any necessity for it myself.
Dr. BoURKE.-Of course, if the court rules that I shan't see this agreement-
Mr. CLEMENT.-I would rule against the production of this agreement.
The CoMMIssIoNER,-The existence of the company is admitted, and Mr.

McLaren, as agent, has admitted they hadn't a license; the whole thing may be
illegal.

Dr. BouRK.-This is not the question I am raising; there is other correspond-
ence relative to this company which I would like produced in court.

Mr. McLAREN,-I will not; it is merely private and personal.
Mr. TABOR.-It has nothing to do with Mr. Fawcett.
Dr. BoURKE.-I want you merely to note that correspondence has been declined.
Mr. TABoR.-I must object; these instructions have nothing to do with Mr.

Fawcett's wiong-doing.
Dr. BoURKE.-The directions have a good deal to do with-
Mr. TABo.-We have admitted everything necessary to Dr. Bourke's case;

why should we now be required to hand in papers not necessary to the case at ail.
The CoMmIssIoNER.-I can't see in what way the doings of the company are

connected with Mr. Faweett's wrong-doing.
Dr. BoURKE.-Simply noted. I want that noted.
The COMMIssIONER.-This is ail going down; this information will not be ruled

out if it is necessary to the case.
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Mr. TABo.-I suppose Mr. Hudson may go back to his duties; he brought a
letter ?

The CoMMISsIoNER.-But if Dr. Bourke demands it.
Dr. BoURKE.-I may be entirely wrong about that part of my case; I shan't

continue any further upon it.
The COMMIsIoNER.-I am very sorry that this is the way we feel but I can't

help it. Is that all of your case ?
Dr. BoURKE.-Well, I am not going to offer any more evidence in this case.

GIVING ALEX. McDONALD CLAIM ON DOMINION.

The COMMISSIONER.-YOIu were asking for Order in Council to show on what
authority Mr. Fawcett acted.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Yes, it would be well to put that on record. Do you know, Mr. Fawcett,
the date of the Order ii Council ?-A. I think in May, 1897.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-There is an Order in Council, Mr. Fawcett, that Mr.
Bourke wishes to see.

Mr. FAwCETT.--e can read it over if he wishes.
Dr. BoURKE.-It might save time, sir. (Mr. Fawcett handing Order of Council

to Dr. Bonrke.)
Mr. FAwCETT.-It is an Order in Council about one-third of the way over.
Dr. BOuKE.-That does give Mr. Fawcett administrative authority, I sec

distinctly.
The CoMMissIoNER-It was under that Order in Council that ho was acting

while he was here.
Dr. BoURKE.-I would like to see the papers relative to the claims given to

other people. Have you these, Mir. Fawcett?
Mr. FAWCETT.-I have here the opinion of Judge Maguire under which I acted

in subsequent casee. That is Judge Maguire's decision in a similar case, in which
the purchaser was recognized, although the claim was cancelled.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. What claim did McDonald get?-A. 16 B on Dominion.
Q. But that refers to another claim on Dominion ?-A. Yes, that is a case which

1 submitted to Judge Maguire. I have here the procipes, which I submitted to
Judge Maguire, in regard to claim 160 below on Dominion, and this is the judge's
reply.

Q. This refers to Murphy. How was Murphy connected with McDonald ?-A.
That is a similar decision. I was giving you my authority for doing things of that
sort.

Q. The judge did that in the case of Murphy and you-was Mr. McDonald's case
one of an innocent purchaser ?-A. Yes.

Q. Was it included in your list of re-locations ?-A. No, it came up subsequently.
Q. That seems to be a solitary case.-A. Well, yes, it was the case referred to.

I submitted this to Judge Maguire for his opinion, so that I might in future be
guided by it. It was the only case that came, up to this time.

Q. You would not call that to apply to case where the inan bad not paid for the
claim at all?-A. I don't know anything about paying for the claim; that has noth.
ing to do with the case at all.

Q. That had nothing to do with the case at all ?
The CoMMIssIoNEa.-Stenographers will not need to take that down. We are

not going to take notice of these statements.
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Dr. BoURKE.-Your remarks are applicable to both of us ?
The CoMMissIoNER.-I meant it to apply to both of you, Dr. Bourke.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. You placed before me an opinion of Judge Maguire's about a solitary case in
which a man named Murphy was interested and Chief Justice Maguire expressed an
opinion in that case and you, as I understand you, took that as a basis on which to
guide you in future ?-A. Yes.

Dr. BoUR.KE.-I should like to know, if, according to regulations, Judge Maguire
would be the proper authority to follow in a case of that kind?

By Mr. Bawcett:

Q. Section 58 of the mining regulations, which reached me about the same
time, refers to this clause which states, "that no free miner should suffer from any
acts of omission or commission or loss on the part of any government official if such
could be proven ?"-A. If such can be proven, as I take matters, that come up for
inquiry, as in the case of 16 B and those which came up subsequently, I took those
judgments as a guidance.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Did you take any steps to see that Alex. McDonald had paid anything for
16 B?-A. I knew it was on record; it was transferred on the records.

Q. Did you satisfy yourself that Alex. McDonald had applied for this 16 B on
Dominion ?-A. It was on record that 18 had been transferred and also 26 below
Upper Discovery.

Q. Did you make any inquiry to find ont if 16 B was more valuable than 18 ?-
A. I judged it would not be nearly as valuable.

Q. Was 16 B on record at the time, and the record issued ?-A. No, sir. There
was a man claimed he had 32, but his evidence was not sustained-as the record
papers in his possession-he had the papers for 32 which afterwards proved to be
Phil Miller's claim.

Q. What was done ?-A. Nothing yet.
Q. What was h'e told ?-A. He was told if it was in the looality of 32 he would

get it.
Q. You didn't recommcnd it?-A. Yes, I did. It was put on by description

and not by number.
Q. Did Mr. Miller get the claim ?-A. Mr. Miller had the claim. It was awarded

to him during the survey and bis title was confirmed. It was No. 32.
Q. You are quite certain that 16 B is on the sameground as No. 32 ?-A. No,

sir.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. I should be glad to know if there are any other cases in addition to that in
which a claim was awarded in lieu of laims that did not exist ?-A. This is the only
case in which a claim was awarded. It was awarded in lieu of 18 and the other
claims which were found not to exist.

Q. Yesterday you said you would be able to give some claims for other blanks ?
-A. Well, in this case, this gentleman was given a claim-Murphy was given his
claim, althongh it was proved in bis case the man had not staked it conclusively,
yet he could not get it because the other man had purchased.

Q. It is true that a certain fraction was promised if it had not been sold to
Parish ?-A. It may have been recommended by me. Probably I did, and he has
not anything yet. I think I reconimended that Parish be entitled to something
although I am not certain of it. iis name was found on other stakes on 16 B and
on this fraction. I have Mr. Cadenhead's notes. He was over there taking evidence.
It was staked on 12th June, and in the name of the man who staked 16 B, but he
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was not an tpplicant for it, although he may be now. It was not recorded. He
staked as 16 and Mr..Parish's name appeared on one stake. Mr. Cadenhead's notes
are here which I have and his report. This states, " The claim which was staked
13th June by C. J. Kearney, he put no number on the posts, but marked a post
which was not on the claim. (Mr. Fawcett.-He also gives a sketch in his notes of
the posts showing the numbers further on.) His name has been cut off and the
upper posts replaced by him, but I am satisfied that the notice is in Kearney'swrit-
ing. On one of the lower posts is a notice by G. R. Parish with the No. 16, August,
'97. Parish has recorded 32. le claims this groand now. When lie came over to
the creek in May, 1898, he began looking for his claim."

Mr. FAwcETT.-These are Mr. Cadenhead's notes.
Dr. BouRKE.-I don't dispute the document at all.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. These are the only cases ?-A. This is the only case of that kind under these
regulations which just reached me, I consider I was bound to recognize the claim,
which had been granted in the office and which had been given to the two persons
and purchased. If it had not been purchased by Alex. McDonald, I don't think the
second staker's right would have been recognized.

Q. It would not be recognized ?-A. No.
Q. As a matter of fact it was not ?-I don't think in that case, although it might

have been the fault of the office in allowing him to record it lie would have had his
right restored. I dont think he would have been granted any claim in particular.

Q. He could stake a claim elsewhere ?-A. Because lie stated in his application
that the claim had been staked on the 12th or 13th of June, and lie re-staked it on
the 16th of August.

Q. When you say a person's rights are restored, you mean he can stake else-
where ?-A. Yes, he re-staked 14th August.

Q. In other cases, except McDonald's, you admit that where a man had got
record through a mistake and didn't get a claim, he got his right back, but not a,
claim elsewhere ?-A. Yes. Unless he committed a fraud in making the application
if he gave true information in reply.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-You mean a bona fide applicant?
Mr- FAwOETT.-If he said this claim was staked before, and his claim has

expirec. and he was given the ground, and he said he had staked on such a date,and it was afterwards found that another man had recorded, he was given the
ground.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You referred to McDonald's applying for three claims ?-A. Yes, lie applied
for three claims on account of 18 and 26 which were thrown out at the time of the
survey, it being found that it was staked by Edward Dion and Clare and another
claim on a tributary; lie wanted the three claims.

Q. Did lie purchase these three claims ?-A. Yes, I understand he purchased
them from the owners.

Q. You understood that ?-A. I understood that.
Q. You have not the documents to show he did ?-A. I have not the documents.

After the creek was closed we would not accept any more transfers on Dominion.
In two cases the purchasers he purchased from were improper applicants.

Q. You threw them ont ?-A. I threw them out.
Q. You considered he should have no redress ?-A. Major Walsh thought so,

I didn't. In the case of 18, Clare was improperly recorded for the claim. That
was an omission in the office; it was an oversight.

Q. You considered the office being responsible for the record he was entitled'
to as good a claim as lie lost ?-A. Yes.
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By the Commissioner:

Q. I want to understand your position because it bas never been brought out
clearly to me. I heard it put in this way, that because he had a right, it was the
fault of the office, in the other cases it was the fault of the individuals ?-A. Yes,
I don't think hewas entitled to any more than that.

The CoMMISSINER.-That is all 1 want to know.
Mr. TABoR.-In this opinion of Judge Maguire's, that was a solitary case.
Mr. FAwcETT.-That was a case of an innocent purchaser who had acquired an

abstract at the office for 160 on Dominion, and on the strength of the abstract had
purchased the claim from a man named Murphy. In May there was a gentleman
brought a suit to cancel the claim who had gone and re-staked it and brought action
to cancel it. He brought evidence to prove that this Brown had recorded this claii.
At the time he made affidavit he staked it, he was on Eldorado working. The man
ho was working for came in as a witness and brought his time book to show that in
going to Dominion to stake the ground he was only absent one day. Well, that was
conclusive evidence that he had not gone to Dominion to stake.

Q. You accepted that as conclusive ?-A. Yes, it was reasonable to suppose
that it was impossible for him to go over in one day and back and record, and there
was an affidavit to his having staked on the 8th, while on the Sth, 9th and
loth he was working on Eldorado as shown by the time book of the man ho was
working for. That was conclusive that ho was lying, so the claim was cancelled so
far as he was concerned. Three months subsequent to the date of his recording an
abstract by one of the conveyancers in town was got at the office, and went to show
that this man owned 160 below on Dominion, and on the strength of that abstract
he purchased-Murphy purchased it for a valuable consideration.

Q. Purchased from Brown ?-A. Yes, so that when the matter came up for
bearing, I concluded that although Brown had acquired the claim illegally and ho
would be liable to have the claim cancelled and probably criminally prosecuted, at
the same time Murphy having purchased it through reprosentations at the office,
the claim was given to him.

Q. And you believe ho was ignorant of this information ?-A. Certainly;
because they acquired an abstract at the office, I thought ho was entitled to the
claim and it could not be takein away from him, so I submitted the question to
Judge Maguire and this is his opinion:

THomAs FAWCETT, Esq.
Re Placer Claim 160 Below on Dominion.

DEAR SIR,-I have read the evidence sot out and annexed hereto, and upon that
it seems to me that while there is sufficient there to satisfy the court that Brown
committed a fraud in his application, and by such fraud ho obtained a mininggrant
issued to him, which would, I think, justify the government in cancelling the said
grant as far as ho is concerned, still, it appears from the affidavitsof George Murphy,
while the said grant was still in full force and undisputed, and so far as appears in
good faith for a valuable consideration, without notice of any fraud or irregularity
or defect in the obtaining or issuing of said grant, and, moreover, relying on an
abstract of title duly delivered to him by the proper officer for that department in
that behalf without any connivance with or participation in the fraud of said Brown,
bought and paid for said grant and received a bill of sale thereto. Quite subsequent
to all this, an attack is made upon the grant to Brown. Looking at the grant and
abstract of title, it seems to me that these amount to a representation on the part of
the Crown that it had given to Brown certain rights, and upon this representation
the purchaser Murphy, as ho is entitled, I think, to do, relied and completed his
purchase and secured an assignment of Brown's rights, that is that title to the pro-
perty which the Crown so represented Brown then had.

It seems to me that under this state of facts the Crown is estopped from cancel-
ling said grant as against Murphy, or at least it ought not to do so.

F. H. MAGUIRE.
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Of course, Judge Maguire's opinion coincided with my own. That was my
opinion before.

Q. You had no decision on the question before ?-A. No.
Q. Did you use that opinion of Justice Maguire's as a guidance ?-A. Yes, I

used it as a guidance.

By the Comniissioner:

Q. In rectifying mistakes of the officers already found in the documents of the
office ?-A. Yes, I made use of it for that. That is one of the reasons I asked for it
in writing. I had it typewritten and attached to the evidence, and have since left
it with Mr. Senkler as he requested to have it. There have several questions hung
on. that opinion of recent bearing.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. The man who contested this claim, was he the regular applicant?-A. Yes'
the regular applicant. He went and staked it properly and came over and offered
his fee to record it, and although the other man had not staked it, the subsequent
innocent purchaser was protected.

Dr. BOURKE.-YOUr honour, the case is this: I am informed by Mr. Rice that
to his knowledge Mr. Fawcett allowed certain favours to friends. I would like to
have that investigated. I understand there were substantiai favours shown to Alex.
McDonald by allowing him two months' representation instead of three months;
that the men who represented "18 " and "20 " on Dominion were only present on
that claim two months, at the end of which time, having, as I am informed, received
some authority from Mr. Fawcett he withdrew the men and put them on another
claim and cut them down from eight hundred dollars to five hundred dollars. These
are practically the facts as they have been told to me.

Mr. FAWOETT.-That is the first I have heard of it; it is a very simple matter
and had better be cleared up.

Mr. FAwCETT, sworn, testified as follows:-

I may state that all those who owned claims on the closed part of Dominion
Creek were permitted to renew them without representing them at all; that those
who went to work, who consulted with me, I told them that on account of the
matter being all mixed up, if they didn't go to work there at all their claims would
be protected, and they would be allowed to renew their claims without any work
whatever on account of the creek being closed.

Q. Do you know that Mr. McDonald had been doing any work there?-A. Yes,
I know some of them had been working there; I didn't stop an5 of them working
who were working, but told them not to interfeire with the landmarks.

Q. Was there any public notice to that effect ?-A. No, sir, not that I know of.
Q. There was nothing said to the publie? No notice that they need not repre

sent their claims ?-A. They wero not forbidden to work on them; those who con-
suited me were advised that they should not interfere with the land marks, that's all.

Q. No public notice given ? It was merely tho parties who came to see you
that you informed of your idea, wasn't it?-A. Well, I might have stopped some of
them working on claims in dispute; I sent a notice to stop them.

Q. And where there was no claim in dispute I suppose you didn't stop them ?-
A. It made little difference whether they did any work or not; they were allowed
to renew their claims, except that part of the creek which was absolutely closed
and not open to anybody.

Q. To get a right to any claim they were allowed to renew until the complica-
tions sbould be settled ?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Alex. McDonald came frequently to your office ?-A. Not any more
requently than others. I think there were friends who came much more frequently.

Q. Do you think he would have paid $500 if he had information that he didn't
have to represent these claims ?-A. I don't know anything about it.

Q. Was it not necessary for the public to know anything about this ?-A. Well,
if it was right they could work for themselves. I didn't prevent them, if they
wished to.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. This was for the protection of the claim-holders there ?-A. Yes, sir.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. When was the survey completed ?-A. In July, 1898.
Q. Did any one have a title until the survey was completed ?-A. Yes; those

where there was no dispute were allowed to renew, and any title they had would be
protected.

Q. If the title was not good, and they renewed, would you have protected
them ?-A. That I can't say.

Q. Until the survey was completed the title would not be clear ?-A. No;
they wero not allowed to record transfers after it was closed until the survey
decided the boundaries of the claims, and if the title was not good I wouldn't take
any responsibility, on the part of the government, for the title, while the creek was
in that condition.

Dr. BOURKE.-With your honour's permission, am I to understand that having
made a charge against Mr. Fawcett on the abuse of his powers, that it is neceesary
to have a new charge made on every new statement ?

Tho CoMMISSIONER.-There should have been a specific statement to that charge.
Mr. TABR.-It is impossible to come into court and make a defence unless we

know what the charge is, and if the charge is made there must be something specific.
In almost ail these cases documentary evidence is necessary and it requires some
time to look them up.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-It is easy to understand the situation.
Mr. TAiioR.-We want the ordinary rules of law to apply.
Dr. BouRKE.-There are some other points I am going to allude to with regard

to the granting of an extension of time to various people. There is a case of a claim
of Judge McGuire who left this country not to return.

The COMMISSIONER.-Mr. Fawcett will have to be sworn.
Mr. TABR.-I object to this evidence going in.
Dr. BoURKE.-As to the extension of claims I don't think I mentioned Judge

McGuire's name, but there are Judge McGuire, Colonel McGregor, Mr. Wade and
other officials.

Mr. TABoR.-I suppOse you charge improper conduct in granting extension of
time on these claims.

Dr. BoURKE.-The whole matter was included in the list of claims laid over ; I
asked for these lists on two or three occasions and I couldn't get them.

The CoMMissIoNER.-They are getting the lists as far as they can.
Dr. BoURKE.-There is Mr. Wade, Mr. McGregor and also Mr. Leighton of the

Pioneer Trading Company, and a great many more.
The CoMMIssIONER.-If you have any more, put them in.
Dr. BOURKE.-Of course I cannot get hie papers; I have been hampered in

getting these papers.

By .Dr. Bourke:

Q. I want to ask Mr. Fawcett: on one or two occasions you gave an extension
of time, and Judge McGuire, as it appears froin correspondence in the office, got an
extension on a number of claims ?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. How many ?-A. I think four.
Q. I should like to ask you the reason you had for extending that privilege to

Mr. McGuire ?-A. Judge McGuire said by letter that he was going out of the
country on government business and asked for an extension until ho returned or
other arrangements were made, which was granted; the privilege didn't extend one
year.

Q. There was no work done ?-A. I don't know; it was nowly located; I think
the claims had just recently been clear.

Q. Would the same answer apply to Mr. Wade?-A. Yes, the same answer
applies to Mr. Wade; he applied for quite a number of claims; those claims that he
acquired himself I granted him an extension on, but those that he got through other
persons I did not-he represented them. He said ho was going out on government
business.

Q. Did ho say government business ?-A. Yes, I knew ho was Dominion lands
agent.

Q. Did ho mention it ?-A. lie did not need to; ho was a government official.
Q. So that every governmont official that went away went on government busi-

ness. He said it was government business that took him away ?-A. I don't know
whether he mentioned it in his letter or not.

Q. As to Mr. McGregor ?-A. He was called away.
Q. I admit that ?-A. He applied on the evening that ho left.
Q. That was a case I didn't put on my list; I won't say any more about it ?-

A. He was called incidentally and I noted the claim for protection.
Q. What about Mr. Loighton ?-A. He was recommended by Mr. Woodworth

in which there wore severai claims laid over-
Q. Why were they laid over ?-A. They wore laid over in the same way that

Mr. McLaren's were; the same as any other claims were laid over.
Q. Is it not a fact that Mr. Leighton was a man who had an option on these

claims and was trying to sell them ?-A. He represented them; I think ho owned
the claims.

Q. I should like to have a letter written by Mr. Woodworth produced in court;
it is unfortunate it cannot bo found; I can say it was mentioned that he held options
on these claims, if I am not mistaken ?-A. I don't know about that.

Q. That letter I saw was on filo?-A. There was a group of claims protected
all together and other claims applied for not protected.

Dr. BoURKE.-I asked for a list of these claims.
Mr. FAwCETT.-I can give you a list of Mr. Leighton's claims in my lay-over book.

(Mr. Fawcett reading from lay-over book.) " From 7 to 13 on Cariboo, 44 A, 44 B,
45, 45 B, 46 B, 47 A, 47 B, 48 A, 48 B, below Discovery on the right bank, hili claims
on Hunkor." These are claims mentioned in this letter.

Dr .BoURKE.-Sixteen claims?
Mr. FAwcETT.-Yes; there is another group bore I think belonging to the same

company-" 33 A, 34 A, 35, 35 A, 36, 36 A, 37 A, 37 B, 37 C, on Hunker." I think
the most of these arc repi esented.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. You spoke of a company; what company? What reason have you to use the
word company ?-A. Well, when a group of claims is brought in like that I gener-
ally suppose that more than one person is interested; I suppose there is a partner-
ship arrangement of some sort.

Q. That may be, but I tako it in the case of an official it didn't matter how
many claims he had, he was entitled to representation to them ?-A. It did matter;
in the case of an official I only laid over those he acquired himself.

Q. Any officiai, if ho wanted to go ont for any reason ho was allowed represen-
tation on these claims?-A. That's all.

Q. You told me there was no exception to that practically in which you
refused?-A. I don't think any one went out for himself.

Mr. TABoR.-It was stated that they went out on government business.
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Dr. BoURKE.-That was not Chief Justice McGuire's reason why he left the
district; I can't understand how he went out on public business.

The CommissIoNER.-Can you prove it was not his reason ?
Dr. BouRKE.-He told me he did not intend coming back.
Mr. TABo.-Judge McGuire is still judge of the Territorial Court.
Dr. BoURKlE.-We will put that to one side. Even if he went out on govern-

ment business, is it necessary that the goverument official, because he is a public
servant, is not expected to represent his claims; I will put it like that ?

Mr. FAWCETT.-I am not going to argue this question; all claims thatwere laid
over -

Q. They were not asked to reprosent them as ordinary citizens ?-A. They
were laid over for one year.

Q. Because they were government officials ?

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Whon were these claims laid over ?-A. Just before the 25th of August.
Dr. BoURKE.-He always brings in the 25th of August.
Mr. TABoR.-I am anious to legalize these proceedings; that is the reason I

mention this.

(Mr. Fawcett reading Mr. Woodworth's letter.)

DAwsoN, N.W.T., 15th August, 1898.
THomas FAWCETT, Esq.,

Gold Commissioner of the Yukon District,
Dawson, N.W.T.

DEAR SIR,-Mr. Montagne Leighton, who bas had a desk in my office for some
time, bas been busily eugaged in securing property on Hunker and other creeks,
and bas gone to considerable expense in securing options to purchase property in
various parts of the Indian River and Troandik mining divisions. Ho hopes to
secure for his company, which is about formed in England, other valuable properties
in this district. In Johannesburgh, where he formerly was, he was in the law
office of Mr. Leonard, and seems to have been intimately acquainted with Mr. Rhodes,
Barney Barnato and Wernher, Beit & Company. I believe it is the intention of bis
company, which is about to secure its charter, to enter into hydraulic working of
other property and mines acquired in this region on a very large scale.

Mr. Woodford, mining engineer, and others, have spoken very favourably of the
properties in question, and from Mr. Leighton's business connections, I have no doubt
but wbat he will secure a very large amount of English capital. I understand that
he is petitioning for an exemption from representation and assessment work on these
properties, until his company is formed in England and they have time to commu-
nicate with me, wbich would be, as I should judge, in the spring of 1899. J cheer-
fully recommend bis petition for your consideration, and believe that it would be in
the interests of the country that the prayer thereof be granted.

Yours truly,
C. M. WOODWORTH.

Dr. BoURKE.-Is there a reply ?
Mr. FAWCETT.-I don't think there was any reply.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. If there is any doubt about this I would like to send for iNr. Woodworth; he
can give some special information on this point. In the meantime you can tell us
where you gave an extension ?-A. I don't know where an extension has been given;
I think most of them have been represented.
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Q. Will you kindly have the representation papers produced. On Saturday it
is necessary to have them produced in court ?-A. I know the gentlemen working
for Mr. Leighton were working on the crook.

Q. I don't know anything personally; I can only bring ovidence after it reaches
my ears; perhaps the best thing would b to have these lettors of representation put
In on Saturday when they can be given as evidence, and Mr. Woodworth be asked to
attend.

The CoMmissIoNEE-Mr. Woodworth will be asked to attend on Saturday
morning.

Mr. TABoR.-You have evidence that these claims were renewed ?
Mr. FAWOETT.-Thore will probably be evidenco in the office. Would you

have evidence before renewal of the represontation ?-A. Just depends upon when
they were renewed; if renewed prior to August thore would be representation
affidavits.

Q. Were all these new claims ?-A. Well, all those hill claims wore located last,
summer; they would be all right within nine month-.

• Q. Did you have any other applications besides this from -Mr. Woodworth in
regard to these claims ?-A. I think Mr. Leighton hinself intorviewed me; I don't
recollect about the matter. You remember the rush last summer; I had very
little time.

Q. You don't know if these claims were laid over ?-A. I don't know; I know
thoy were noted hore as protected in some way.

Q. There is no name given here in connection with them ?-A. I think they
were these claims that Mr. Leighton represented in some way.

Q. What was the usual custom in laying over claims; did you have a rule as
regards the laying ovor of claims ?-A. No, the only rule I was governed by was
that if claims were held over under somo special circumstances there must be enough
work done on some part of the ground to cover the whole grant.

Q. In laying over claims had you any rule ?-A. There were many laid over
but it was only in cases of sickness or some other extenuating circumstances; if a
man presented a doctor's certificate that it was necessary for him to leave the country
it was given.

Q. If a man left the country on business you miglt lay his claims over?-A. I
might; it depended on the circumstances.

Q. In this present case if the claims were to be disposed of in London, or a
company formed, would you give a lay-over on that ground ?-A. Well, if simply
an option the claims would have to fultil the conditions on which claims were held,
although I might note the claimsas boinggrouped and the claims would be protected,
at the same time each individual claim would have to be reprosented in some way as
all other claims have to.

Q. What do you meanu by saying that you had these noted; what does that
notation mean ?-A. That for some reason or other they were bld over not subject
to jumping in the ordinary way; thero would have to be some inquiry about them;
for instance, if any one wanted to relocate any of them in the list, inquiry would be
made as to whether all these claims wore vacant and if grouped was not being
worked, because if grouped in that way the understanding would be that the parties
working them owned all those claims and bad been given the right to work on one
claim, and work from one end.

Q. You don't really know what that signifies thon ?-A. That's all I know; I
know in reference to that that Mr. Leighton was interested in these claims in this
way. That is all I remember about it just now.

Q. If some one jumped one of these claims for non-represontation and it was
found to be unrepresonted-?-A. It would have been open for restaking in that
way without inquiry.

Q. I mean, would you search to find out in the record as to that; did you keep
a copy in the office ?-A. That is the only record; this is the original record; this
is the book in which I kept the applications for lay-overs.
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By Mr. Tabor:

Q. From the notation there-this is the book where you noted the applications
for lay-overs; did you have any other method of notation ?-A. They were noted in
the records opposite the claims, but they became so numerous that finally I noted
them all in this book.

Q. Your power is absolute regarding the lay-over of claims ?-A. I think so.
Q. And for what you consider good and sufficient reasons you laid over claims?

-A. I don't think there was any limit to the gold comnissioner's power in regard
to these claims; I infer as much in reply to a letter to hold over Mr. Constantine's
claims.

Q. Do you know Mr. Leighton ?-A. I met him once.
Q. You are not on terms of friendship with him ?-A. Not at all.
Q. It was a question of official routine and you would be governed in that way?

-A. I don't know Mr. Leighton at all; whatever I did for Mr. Leighton I would
have done for any one else under the same circumstances.

Q. As I understand you, when a company has got a number of claims yon
allowed them to group their claims?-A. Yes, I allowed them to work from one
end; they might work the whole group from one end. If they had twenty, thirty
or forty claims altogether, I would allow them to work ail from the lower end.

Q. That is in accordance with the regulations as they now stand ?-A. As to
the matter of the extent of the gold commissioner's powers -

Q. In accordance with the mining regulations ?-A. Yes; I think you can con-
sider ail the groups as one claim.

Q. Still, the mining regulations say the only way in which they can be grouped
is where four or five miners record and pay a special fee ?-A. But there is a pro-
vision for holding a larger amount of ground.

Q. I should like to know of that provision; is it in the mining regulations?-
A. Yes, the hydraulic mining regulations will cover it; the mining regulations we
are guided by here.

Q. (Showing pamphlet.) The quartz, and these last regulations governing placer
mining are what you used for your guidance in this district?-A. Yes; there were
placer and quartz, and there is a clause which applies to the regulations for the dis-
posai of Dominion lands containing minerais other than coal land.

Q. So you would be justified in taking them as applicable to placer mining ?-
A. Yes.

Q. The principle is exactly the same; we are not to decide that question here.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-If it COmes up we will just look it ever.
Dr. RoURKE.-May I have a loan of this copy ?
The CoMMIssIoNER.-You may keep that.
Q. Now, if I may ask a further question-
Mr. TAnoR.-It is a questien of law.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-Mr. Fawcett might feel justified in applying this principle

to placer mining.
Mr. TABOR.-It is a question of partnerships; perhaps I am going outside of the

case, but it is merely a legal question; it is a case of four or five minoes assuming
claims in conjuiction.

The CoMMISSIoNER.-It comes within the placer mining regulitions.
Mr. TABoR.-It gives the right to form partuerships and also the same rights to

one individual.
The COMMISSIONER.-And put all the labour on one claim. Mr. Fawcett will

read clause "39 " of the regulations, which may serve to throw some light on the
question.

Mr. Fawcett reads 39 and 40 of the regulations governing placer-mining:-
" 39. A claim shall be deemed abandoned and open to occupation and entry by

any person when the same shall have remained unworked on working days, except-
ing during the close season, by the grantee thereof or by some person on his behalf
for the space of soventy-two hours (72 hours means three consecutive days of twenty-
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four hours each) unless sickness or some other reasonable cause be shown to the
satisfaction of the mining recorder, or unless the grantee is absent on leave given
by the mining recorder, and the mining recorder, upon obtaining evidence satis-
factory to himself, that this provision is being complied with, may cancel the entry
given for a claim.

"40. If any cases arise for which no provision is made in these regulations,
the provisions of the regulations governing the disposal of mineral lands other than
coal lands, approved by His Excellency the Governor in Council on the 9th of
November, 1889, or such other regulations as may be substituted therefor, shal
apply."

The CommIssIoNER.-I want to get Mr. Fawcett's impression of the force of
these regulations.

Dr. BOURKE.-That's satisfactory; in the clause Mr. Fawcett read it speaks of
other than coal land@, and such as may be substituted therefor of 21st March, 1898.
I would like to ask if there has been anything substituted for this. May I look at
that for one second with your permission (Dr. Bourke taking copy of regulations)
I don't suppose there is any use in arguing.

The CommIssIoNER.-Are the facts all in?
Dr. BouRKE.-That is all I want to ask Mr. Fawcett to-day.
The CommIssIoNER.-That closes your case to-day ? I suppose then we had

better adjourn until Saturday.

SATURDAY MORNING, llth March, 1899.

Dr. BOURKE.-I understand there are one or two witnesses not present. I
would like to ask one or two questions. On the 20th February you wrote a letter
to me intimating that as far as you could you would take note of facts that occurred
after the 25th of August. This having occurred about the 7th of October, or since
the 7th of October, I would like to ask-as it is a question of some importance-
have you decided that you cannot go into this matter?

The CoMMIssIoNER.-We found that it was impossible to go on after the 25th
of August.

Dr. BoURKE.-The second question I would like to ask is, that it be read out
from the shorthand notes the statement for which I was threatened with contempt.
(One of the stenographers reads the notes leading up to the threatening of Dr.
Bourke with contempt.)

Dr. BouRKE.-With all due respect to the court, sir, I wish to say that I cannot
see that I, as an advocate here, practically speaking, have used in any way words
which would have committed me for contempt of court. I, of course, didn't have
the least intention of doing so, and I say it emphatically, but I would bring to your
attention the fact that-and everybody in this court room would admit it-that there
was a gross contempt of court committed here by Mr. Galpin when be called me a
liar. I consider it a far more gross offence for Mr. Galpin to call me a liar.

Mr. GALPIN.-Called him a liar ?
Mr. TABoR.-I didn't hear that.
Dr. BoURKE.-It will be afterwards
The CommIssIoNER.-I remember calling you both to order, but I don't remem-

ber any such thing. When you began to criticize Mr. Galpin, calling him "I nice
miner," you said, " They are two nice miners." They were both two of the signers
of the original memorial to Ottawa and had a right to take an interest, as they were
two original signers of that document. It was my understanding that they were
entitled to some consideration, and when you began to reflect on them as being "nice
miners," I called upon you to stop, and if you would not you would be committed.
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Dr. BoURKE.-I don't think that the words "nice miners " is sufficient to justify
your threatening to commit me for contempt of court.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Everything depends on the way it is said. I don'tremem-
ber him calling you a liar at ail.

Mr. GALPIN.-I don't remember it. I would like to be sworn and make my
statement. These statements get abroad.

Dr. BOURKE.--I asked for some papers, sir, on the lath of February, but, unfor-
tunately, I understand that Mr. Fawcett has-it has been intimated to me that he
has taken these out of your jurisdiction-some of the original papers; is such the
fact ?

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Not that I know of.

By Dr. Bourke:

Q. Are the papers available for my inspection now, or not ?-A. If you wish to
inspect tbem in connection wtth any charge. I spoke to Mr. Senkier about getting
the papers you asked for. He told me yesterday you asked for a lot of documents
and be didn't know where they were. You asked about certain claims above on
Discovery and below on Hunk~er Creek; you didn't state the numbers.

Q. 16 B?-A. I understood Mr. Senkler was going to send you a letter·saying
that you didn't state where these claims were. It is very material.

r. BoURKE.-I would like to have a distinct knowledge whether or not he bas
taken any papers out of court except that book of lay-overs. That was his own note
book. If this is the way I am hampered there is no other course. i decline to act.
I will have nothing more to do and will have to withdraw from the commission. Of
course, I will answer any questions. If I am asked to make a sworn statementlI
place myself at your disposal.

The CoMMIsIoNER.-I don't see any good a sworn statement will do.
Dr. BoURKE.-Then, with your kind permission, I will withdraw from the

court.

By the Commisioner:

Q. Do I understand that you withdraw from the case entirely ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Ail right, doctor.
Mr. TABoR.-Does this include the sessions ?
Dr. BoURKE.-My information I have is from a very good source, which you

would not question.
The CoMMIssIoNE.-I have listened to good information for the past few days.
Dr. BoURKE.-I have learned here that if a man comes forward to assist you to

get information, and if all his witnesses don't give testimony, then that is thrown
in his teeth as a matter of reproach. I brought good testimony as to Alex.
MoDonald not paying for his claim.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-That is on record.
Dr. BouRKE.-Well, everything that has come to my knowledge I brought'up';

I exaggerated nothing, and now [ am reproached for doing so because these people
cannot, or perhaps will not, state what they know.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Again you are reflecting on people you have no business to reflect upon.-
A. If I did this-if I did anything wrong, I am sorry for it.

Q. You withdraw then ?-A. Certainly, under the circumstances.
Q. Some of the officials are coming in, against whom charges have been*laid.
Mr. TAnoR.-Are the records in the commissioner's office now? > elm
The COMMIssIoNER.-I w'ill look the list up. Some of these charges I intend to

take up, particularly that question of 16B and the royalty question. There are two
or three other questions I wish to take up as soon as the officials arrive, because
they are entitled to be present. However, if not, we will go on and do the best we can
without them. 2R
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Mr. TABOR.-You wish to know in what capacity I appeared here. I may tell
you I appeared here for Mr. Fawcett, Mr. Bolton and Mr. Hurdman.

The CoMMissIoNER.-When ariy charge comes up in connection with these
gentlemen, you will be notified. There are charges here that will have to be gone
into in a general way. If these other three men, Messrs. Bliss, Wade and
McGregor, come in, the question with which they are connected will be taken up
when they arrive.

Mr. TABOR.-I think Mr. Wade is capable of acting for himself.
The CoMMISsIoNER.-Of course we are open to receive charges until the 15th of

March, and if any more come in I will do nothing before that time. Whatever
charges are laid must be in some specific way. 1 won't take any more rambling
disconnected charges. There must be something specific. They must be put in
proper form, but this calling on a man every tive minutes to answer a new charge
must be stopped.

DoM[NIoN OF CANADA,
YUKoN TERRITORY.

To wit :

We, J. N. E. Brown and F. M. Shepard, duly sworn stenographers of the royal
commission, do solemnly swear, that this is a true and correct transcript of the evi-
dence taken before William Ogilvie, Esquire, sitting as royal commissioner for the
investigation of charges preferred against officials of said territory on the following
dates, to wit: February 6th, 22nd, 24th, 25th, 27th, 28th, and March 6th, 7th, 8th
and 11th, 1899.

J. N. E. BIROWN,
F. M. SHEPARD.

Sworn before me at Dawson, in the Yukon Territory, the 27th day of April,
1899.

W. H. P. CLEMENT,
Commissioner.

Louis CARBENO, called and sworn.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. Where were you on the 8th of July ?-A. Well, I was in camp until about
10 o'clock.

Q. Where ?-A. It would be at the hospital.
Q. In what capacity were you working ?-A. I was working for Major Walsh.
Q. Were you there all that day ?-A. Yes, sir, I was.
Q. On the evening of the 8th of July ?-A. Until evening.
Q. Where were you later on in the evening ?-A. I was up Bonanza.
Q. For what purpose ?-A. Going up to Dominion.
Q. Why were you on the way to Dominion ?-A. Because I was informed that

it was going to be opened on the 9th.
Q. Informed when ?-A. About 5 o'clock in the afternoon.
Q. On what date ?-A. The 8th.
Q. Where did you acquire the information ?-A. I received that from one of

our dog-drivers.
Q. Who ?-A. McBeth.
Q. ls he here now ?-A. Yes; he is an Indian,
Q. And he told you it was open ?-A. Well, he didn't tell me; it was rumoured

about the camp. I asked Major Walsh's brother if the creek was going to be
thrown open on the 9th, and ho said he thought it was.
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Q. Where was MeBeth at this time ?-A. He had been down the street.
Q. Where was ho when ho gave you this information ?-A. In camp.
Q. Whero was McBeth ?-A. He had been down the street, and ho came back

to camp.
Q. Was Major Walsh present ?-A. No.
Q. Was McBeth working for Major Walsh ?-A. Yes.
Q. And ho told you that the creek would be opened on the 9th ?-A. He said

he heard it would be opened on the 9th.
Q. That was on the afternoon of the 8th ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did ho tell you how ho came by that information ?-A. No, sir.
Q. When did you stake your claim ?-A. I staked it on the 9th about 10.30.

By the Comnis8ioner:

Q. In the morning ?-A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. You subsequently recorded that claim ?-A. Yes.
Q. What time did you start ?-A. At 10.30 on the ovening of the 8th.
Q. Would anybody have any interest in giving you any information as to this

creek being opened on the 9th ?-A. No, not tbat I know of, except Major Walsh's
brother.

Q. What interests had he ?-A. He didn't have any interests. I suppose it was
hie interest, in one way, to give me information.

Q. What arrangement was thure between you and Major Walsh or any of hie
brothers with reference to any claims you might stake ?-A. There was a document
drawn up between him and hie brother to give me a three-fourth interest in any-
thing I got in the country, providing ho paid all my expenses, and the working of
any ground I took up in the country.

Q. Would you recognize that agreement if you saw it ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Would you tell me if this is the document ? (Showing an agreement between

Louis Carbeno and Lewis Walsh) which reade as follows:-

PORT ARTHUR, 23rd September, 1897.
This agreement made this day, between Lewis Walsh, known as the party of

the first part, and Louis Carbeno, of the town of Brockville, known as the party
of the second part,

Witness that in consideration of the party of the first part furnishing the
party of the second part with an outfit, and paying all expenses necessary for
the working of any claim that the party of the second part may discover or
take up in the Yukon district, in the North-west Territories, the party of the
second part hereby agrees to give to the party of the first part a one undivided
three-quarter interest in the said claim, roserving to himeelf a one-quarter
interest.

LEWIS WALSH,
LOUIS CARBENO.

Witness,
PrL. WALSI.

Q. That is your signature ?-A. Yes, sir; that is the agreement between me
and Lewis Walsh.

Q. Where was that made ?-A. That was drew up and signed at the Big Salmon
last winter.

Q. Where was it drawn up ?-A. In Port Arthur.
Q. When did you sign it ?-A. Last winter; there was another agreement

-which hie brother drew up and I wouldn't sign it.
Q. Phil. Walsh drew it up ?-A. This was made at Port Arthur and forwarded

to Big Salmon. 259
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Q. Why was it dated the 24th of September ?-A. That was the date on which
we made the arrangement.

Q. You were at Port Arthur on the 23rd of September?-A. Yes; that was
dated then.

Q. You didn't sigu it tilt last winter. Who was the witnesses ?-A. Phil.
Walsh.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You staked the claim in the way you said ?-A. Yes.
Q. What did you do with that claim ?-A. I turned it over as I agreed.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. According to that agreement you made for part of that claim, did yon-
A. Yes, sir.

Q. To whom did you convey that ?-A. To Phil. Walsh.
Q. Is that something like the bill of sale? That is the bill of sale ?-A. Yes,

sir.
Q. That was given after this agreement which yen signed ?-A. Yes, sir.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Why did you give this to Philip Walsh and not to Lewis ?-A. Because
Major Walsh instructed me he did not want Lewis' name brought into the office,
and it would be just as well to have the property made over to him. I told him
that it was not proper; that the agt eement would net stand law and 1 couldn't get
anything, and asked him te make out another agreement. He argued the point
and I told Mr. Pattullo and Pattullo drew that agreement up; he said it would be
all right and I went to work and signed it.

Q. What consideration did you receive ?-A. Not a cent.
Q. What were you to receive for the three-fourths; you were to receive one-

fourth instead of what belonged to you ?-A. He was to look after it, and pay any
expenses of any mine I took up.

Q. Had this agreement been made before you left down east?-A. We talked
the agreement over, but the agreement hadn't been drawn up, and it bad te be
signed at the Big Salmon.

Q. Did you think at that time that this was a fair agreement ?-A. I didn't.
Q. Why did you sign it ?-A. Because I was in a position and I couldn't very

well get out of it; I didn't want to go out of the country.
Q. If you had refused, what would have been the result ?-A. I wouldn't have

been permitted te go; I would bave had to have gone out.
Q. What position did you hold ?-A. He promised me the position I have now

-cooking for the officials, and I suppose if I hadn't signed that document I would
not be in the position I hold now.

Q. Who promised you ?-A. Major Walsh.
Q. Do yon think you would have been in the same position now if you hadn't ?

-A. No, I don't think I would; nothing said about that.
Q. Was there any compulsion of any kind used to make you sign that ?-A. He

laid in his tent not over fifteen feet away; he knew it was wrong and I knew it was
wrong.

Q. He didn't in any way try to compel you to sign it ?-A. No.
Q. What reason bave you for saying that you did not think you would be bere?

-A. I said I wouldn't have held the position I am holding now if I had not signed
it.

Q. What were you doing then ?-A. Cooking.
Q. How much were you getting ?-A. $60 a month.
Q. What now ?-A. $100 per month.
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Q. When did you get an advance in your wages ?-A. Last August; but ho
told me he would give me one hundred and twenty-five, then he eut it to one hun-
dred. I said I would take the hundred and stayed in.

Q. You don't mean to connect bis saying that with this bill?-A. No; I told
his brother when they drew it up it was not right.

Q. What value would you place on the consideration you got for this ?-A. The
agreement was that we were to reccive a prospecting outfit.

Q. What value would you pluce on the outfit you got ?-A. Well, I couldn't say
very well; my expenses the governmerit paid coming in. What I spent on the out-
side of that-I mean on this trip to Dominion and back.

Q. The government paid you wages and living expenses so that has nothing to
do with the case ?-A. I think about $40 or $50.

Q. You would place the value of an outfit to stake a claim at forty or fifty
dollars. Weil, before you left the camp to go on that trip did you ask Major Walsh's
permission ?-A. I did.

Q. Did you tell him what you were going for ?-A. I told him I was going to
Dominion Creek.

Q. What did ho say ?-A. Ho said yes.
Q. Did you tell him you were going to stake ?-A. I did not.
Q. Do you think he knew ?-A. Yes, he would not think I was going for a

walk; that was in the evening about eight and ton o'clock.

By Mr. Tabor:

Q. Did any other officials go with you?-A. Yes, one, an Indian; and when I
had gone five or ten miles I was joined by another Indian.

Q. Were these Major Walsh's Indians ?- A. Just the two of them.
Q. Who were they ?-A. Two of the Cullum boys.
Q. In saying an outfit worth forty or fifty dollars, what do you mean?-A.

Going to Dominion Croek and coming back.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Have you any personal knowledge of the standing of these Indians; were
they going to stake on the same terms as you did ?-A. Yes, going on the same
terms; I don't know whether they signed a contract or not; I know there was an
agreement, but I am not positive about the contract.

Q. Similar to yours?-A. Similar to mine.
Q. Did they transfer a three-quarter interest to Philip Walsh as you did ?-A.

Yes; you will find duplicates there in the recording office.
Q. Have you any other knowledge of any other person on behalf of any official

of the government ?-A. No, sir, I have not.
Q. No knowledge of any other but yourself and these two ?-A. No other; that

is all that went or came.
Q. Were these men employed in the camp ?-A. They came in with us.
Q. Were they employed around the camp ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. They would have to get permission from Major Walsh, the same as you did ?

-A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. You say you waited until 10.30 on the Sth July, Friday night. Will you tell
us how many people you overtook, or overtook you, before you got to stake the
claim ?-A. Twenty or thirty; there was quite a lot of people who passed us, but we
pasaed the whole outfit.

Q. Do you think any were ahead of you ?-A. Yes, a few.
Q. How many, do you think, started that evening ?-A. There must have been

150.
Q. And that was before the knowledge was made public?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. That is all I want to know.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. Did you ever make a statement which was typewritten to Major Walsh that
you didn't receive information, and didn't start ont ta Dominion Creek on the night
of the 8th, you never did ?-A. No, sir.

By Mr. Galpin:

Q. Had you any one with you who had on policeman's dress ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Did you see any one dressed as a policeman in the morning coming back?-

A. Yes.
Q. Was ho a policeman ?-A. Yes.

By the Commissioner:

Q. We were discussing a little time ago how long it took to go o Dominion
Creek and back. How long did it take you?-A. I left for Dominion at 10.30
Friday evening; went to Dominion and staked and came back to Mr. McCormick's
that night-Saturday night at 9 o'clock. Didn't leave there until 10 o'clockSunday,
and arrived here about 4 o'clock Sunday afternoon.

By Mr. Galpin :

Q. When did you come to the office to record ?-A. Monday morning.
Q. What time ?-A. About three in the afternoon.
Q. At the side door ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Took your turri ?-A. Yes, the same as anybody else.

By Mr. Swinehart:

Q. Did he ever make out a statement for Pattullo or Major Walsh regarding
this matter when the rumour came up after Major Walsh gave him a tip. It was
reported around town that he went out and located as a result of information that
he had received. Did ho make a statement and give it o Major Walsh or Pattullo
to hand to the Midnight Sun ?-A. No, sir; I never did.

Q. Did they ask you any questions ?-A. Never.
Q. You are positive of that ?-A. I am positive.
Q. Never made any statement ?-A. Never was asked to do so.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. In your examination yesterday, Mr. Carbeno, in answering one of the ques-
tions, you stated that yon thought that yoùr present position was the result of sign-
ing that agreement, or something to that effect ?-A. Yes.

Q. Was there not part of the evidence in that connection which you forgot to
give us yesterday ?-A. I forgot to say that other paperswere drawn up and I would
not sign thom.

Q. When was this ?-A. Coming up on board the "Quadra."
Q. You would not sign them, why?-A. I said the papers were not legal, and

would not sign tbem until I got legal ones. That afternoon I was called to Major
Walsh's state-room, and ho asked me if I had made an agreement at Port Arthur
before I loft.

Q. Yon said you did ?-A. He said, " Why didn't you sign the papers?" I said
I didn't because they were not legal. He said, " If yon don't sign those papers when
this boat goes back, I will send you back on it." That was all that was said until
we got to Big Salmon, thon other papers came on and therefore I signed them.
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By the Commissioner:

Q. Why did you consider tho.;' papers illegal?-A. Because they were iot
drawn up by a lawyer. He drew them up with a lead pencil.

Q. Who ?--A. Phil. Walsh.
Q. Where were they drawn up ?-A. On board the "l Quadra " whe3n evo came

out.
Q. You had made an agreement with Lewis Walsh, at Port Ar-thur ?-A. Yo-,

sir.
Q. Why wore these not signed at Port Arthur ?-A. Because ho said he had

not time.
Q. The document is dated the 23rd. It is the document we have here ?--A. No.

The document he drew up on board the " Quadra " was not the same as I agreed to
it.

Q. What was the nature of the terms ?-A. He left it where I was to be paid
my expenses in coming into the country, and furnish me with an outfit.

Q. How could that be, when the government was paying your expenses ?-A.
That was stated in the agreement before I left.

Q. That was understood at Port Arthur-that they were to pay your expenses
to come into the country ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. At the same time you were employed as a government servant. Don't you
think it was inconsistent to offer to pay your expenses if yon came in as a govern-
ment employee ?-A. Well, I was giving the way it was agreed to.

Q. Then this lead pencil document admitted that ?-A. Yes, it is in this way
only. (Mr. Carbeno reads the document.)

The Comm1SSIoNER.-There is no reference there for your expenses to be paid
into the country. It would grant the expense of working the claim, but not the
expenses in connection with your entry here.

By Mr. Fawcett:

Q. You refused to sign this lead pencil document on board the " Quadra? "-
A. Yes, sir,

Q. And you were told if you didn't you would be sent back ?-A. Yes, sir; and
I said I would not sign any until a proper one was drawn up.

Q. When you signed this at Big Salmon did it seem strange to you that it was
dated at Port Arthur ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the actual date of the signature ?-A. I could not exactly tell you.
I think it was in June some time.

Q. Three months after the agreement had beon entered into ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Was there any cause-was the question mentioned at all? Was it dated at

Port Arthur-why not at Big Salmon ?-A. Well, [ didn't ask any questions; they
brought in the document and [ signed it, that was ail. I saw the signature and 1
knew it came from him.

Q. Whose signature was it?-A. Lewis Walsh's. His signature is on the
bottom of it.

Q. Have you reason to know his signature ?-A. Yes, I will swear to it.
Q. You have no reason to assign why the document was dated 23rd September,

and executed at Big Salmon some time in June ?-A. No.
Q. This agreement you entered into at Port Arthur ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. This document you refused to sign, on whose behalf was that made ?-A.

Lewis Walsh's.

263



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 87A.) A. 1899

DOMINION OF CANADA,
YUKoN TERRITORY,

To wIT:

We, J. N. E. Brown, and F. M. Shepard, duly sworn stenographers of the royal
commission, do solemnly swear that this is a true and correct transcript of the
evidence taken before William Ogilvie, Esquire, sitting as royal commissioner for
the investigation of charges preferred against officiais of said territory on the follow-
ing dates, to wit: February 6th, 22nd, 24th, 25th, 27th, 28th and March 6th, 7th,
8th, and 1lth, 1899.

J. N. E. BROWN.
F. M. SHEPARD.

Sworn to before me, at Dawson, in the Yukon Territory, the 27th day of
April, 1899.

W. H. P. CLEMENT,
Commissioner.
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Ogilvie Commission of Inquiry.

COPY OF FURTHER REPORT
[87b.]

Dated the 27th May, 1899, of William Ogilvie, Esq., Commissioner appointed
under the provisions of Chapter 114 R.S.C., and by Commission issued
thereunder, under the Great Seal of Canada, to hold an investigation and
take evidence under oath with regard to certain charges made against
officials of the Dominion Government in the Yukon Territory.

THE CoMMIssIoNER'S OFFIEo,

The Honourable DAwsoN, Y.T., 27th May, 1899.

The Minister of the Interior,
Ottawa.

SIE,-I transmit herewith, the evidence submitted before me as Royal Com-
missioner in the charges made against Mr. Wade, so far as brought before my
notice.

Mr. Wade brought one matter up, that is, the question of granting to one
Edward McConnell, the right to build a bridge across the Klondike River, about two
miles above its mouth, at a point known as the Upper Ferry. It had nover been
brought to my notice that anything improper was alleged against Mr. Wade in con-
nection with this grant or permit, but ho asked to have the ovidence submitted on
that point, to which I agreed and had Mr. McConnell summoned.

You will see from the evidence submitted, that Mr. Wade is entirely acquitted
of all charges made against him in connection with the leasing of the water front
to Morrison & MoDonald; the question of the permit to Howard & Roberts to build
a bridge near the mouth of the Klondike River; the question of the bridge at the
Upper Ferry granted to Mr. Edward MoConnell and othors ; the charge that he had
blackmailed the saloon keepers; and there was also a charge against Mr. Wade in
connection with Monte Cristo Island. The evidence shows no criminal act on that
gentleman's part, unless the act of an official staking and recording a claim can be
considered criminal; but in so far from having done it in an improper manner, ho
shows himself, that he did it openly and after consultation with the minore them-
selves. Mr. McGregor was exactly in the same position as far as he is concerned
with this matter. The evidence goes to show that the island at present, at least, is
considered worthless. This may or may not be considered a mitigation of the fact,
though it would not be of the intent-if there is any wrong in it.

The charge against Mr. McGregor that ho improperly received $2,000 from
Mr. McDonald in connection with the water-front lease, was 'also disposed of; not
an iota of evidence was produced to show that Mr. McGregor had any connection
with that matter at all.

As to the charge against Mining Inspector Norwood, I may say that I was
somewhat surprised. Miss Nellie Cashman, who, by the way, bears a very good
reputation in this country, though she has been a frontiers-woman for upwards of
thirty years, made an affidavit before Mr. Fawcett last fall, a copy of which is
transmitted with this report. This affidavit you will see reflects somewhat
seriously on Inspector Norwood.
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As soon as Miss Cashman learned that she would be required to substantiate
the statements made in the affidavit, she began to beg off, pleading with me that she
knew nothing about the matter, that she had been misled, &c.

You will see from the evidence she gives, that it is a complete refutation of the
charge against Inspector Norwood, and that those who had supported her in it,
simply had her own word.

It is not necessary to say any more than this on that matter. As far as I know
at present, this closes the labours of the commission, though it may be, there are
one or two charges of not much importance to be investigated as soon as I can find
time to do so.

Before concluding, it may be asked: How did these rumours get started and
become so generally credited ?-In reply, I may state, that there is a large per-
centage of the population here who are watching for the chance to make some-
thing. If they are forestalled by some one else, they immediately jump to the con-
clusion that there has been something crooked between that some one else and the
officials by whom the transaction was consummated. It has not been necessary
here to do more than insinuate that some official, or officials, have been guilty of
corrupt acts, to have it, within a few hours generally so reported, and I regret to
say, generally so believed, notwithstanding that there may not be a tittle of evi-
dence in support of the charge.

Transactions that have been actuated by the purest and highest motives, have
been attributed to the very worst. Of this I have personal knowledge and
experience. In concluding, I may say, that with such a class there cannot exist
(in their minds at least), any honest government at all, for reasons that are obvious
enough not to need mention.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

WILLIAM OGILVIE,
Commissioner.
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COPY OF THE EVIDENCE
[87c.]

Which accompanied the Further Report of the 27th May, 1899, of William
Ogilvie, Esq.

ADJOURNED SITTING OF THE ROYAL COMMISSION FOR THE
INVESTIGATION OF CIIARGES AGAINST OFFICIALS HELD AT
PIONEER IALL, DAWSON, Y.T., TUESDAY MORNING, 9rn MAY, 1899.

The CoM,IssIoNER.-We have met bore for the purpose of further investigating
charges against officials, or the further investigation of charges against Mi. Wade
as land agent, in connection with the leasing of the water-front to Messrs. McDonalU
& Morrison. We intended to have them here this morning but it seems they could
not be summoned,-through some fault or other the summons did not reach them.

There was a charge against Captain Norwood, which we intended to take up
this morning, made by Miss Nellie Cashman. Miss Cashman made a statement
under oath before Mr. Fawcett; we intended to go on and investigate that charge.
I saw Miss Cashman on Friday and she begged to get off; she said she was sick and
wanted to go to Dominion Creek, she was mistaken, or something to that effect;
she rambled a good deai; I gathered that much that she had beer. mistaken; she
didn't want to appear at all. I told her emphatically that she would have to appear
and if she was mistaken she would have to make a publie avowal of the faet. She
said she was sick and wanted to go out to Dominion Creek; I told ber if she was
sick it was rather a bad time to think of going to Dominion Creek, but she seemed
to think ehe would be all right if she got out to Dominion Creek to recuperate. I
had a summonsserved on ber right away notifying her to appear here this morning,
but she has gone off to Dominion Creek, and now it will be nocessary to have ber
brought back. Morrison & McDonald will also have to be surnmoned, and after
consulting with Mr. Wade's representative and Captain Norwood we have decided
to postpone the matter until a week from to-morrow, that is, Wednesday, the 17th of
May. I will put the summonses in the hands of the police and have them brought
bore by legal process if necessary, so we will adjourn until to-morrow a week.

Mr. CLARKE.-We are placed in a veryembarrassing position. I mightsayright
bore, Miss Nellie Cashman not appearing, we are placed in a very embarrassing
position; we have our witnesses bore already; they are here now prepared to keep
ber in lino on some questions we propose asking ber. It is a very great hardship
on Captain Norwood; he bas been waiting hore for nearly a month just for this thing
to come off, but we cannot proceed without Miss Cashmam being here, as we wish
te test the accuracy of some statements she has made. I would suggest, therefore,
that legal process be adopted and that she be brought right hore. I don't think
that she ought to be subjected te the hardship or remedies that are generally
employed because she is a woman, but on behalf of my client I insist that you have
her brought, here so that this matter may be sifted.

The CoMMIsSIONER.-I think everybody sympathizes with you in that.
Mr. CLARKE.-Will you tell the witnesses that are here now that they are

expected to be bore on Wednesday week or will they have to be summoned again ;
The CoMMIssIoNER.-I will have them all notified to be here at ten o'clock on

Wednosday a week from to.morrow. There was a man named Cunningham who
was associated with Miss Nellie Cashman on this charge, we ought to have him.

Mr. CLARKE.-I don't know that his evidence is very material.
7
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The CoMMIssIONER.-I asked Miss Cashman to givc me the information where
he could be found the other day, but she would give no information.

Mr. CLARKE.-It is possible that perhaps the policeman may find him.
The CoMM[sSLoNER.-I will instruct him to that effect, and find ont where

Cunningham is; we will have Miss Cashman bore, and if she is mistaken she must
acknowledge it publicly. I am very sorry that she thought best to go to Dominion
after I summoned her.

Mr. CLARKE.-I don't suppose anybody but a woman would have done it.
The COMMIssINER.-I had her summoned and thought she would know what

her responsibility was; I told ber that she would have to come any how.
Mr. CLARKE.-You have done your best in issuing that summons. I saw Mr.

Morrison yesterday. I think McDonald was here, too. I think I saw him on the
street.

The COMMIssIoNE.-Mr. Dougherty says they are out on the creeks. I saw Mr.
Morrison yesterday and was talking with him. I asked him about it and he smiled
and avoided the question. I said I was under the impression you wore summoned.
He smiled, but didn't say whother he was or not. I don't think there will be much
trouble in getting him, so we will adjourn until a week from to-morrow.

The Royal Commission for the investigation of charges against officials having
adjourned from time to time, met on the 17th day of May, 1899, to take up charges
which had been made against F. C. Wade, . H. Norwood and J. D. McGregor, who
were out of the country during the former sittings of the commission.

Mr. CLARKE.-I suppose, Mr. Commissioner, the first thing to do would be to
define the charge.

The CoMMissoNER.-Perhaps we had botter swear the stenographers first.
Mr. CLARKE.-Weil, yes, if they are not already sworn.
The stenographers, J. N. E. Brown and F. M. Shepard, doclaring themselves

still under oath, the commission was declared open.
The CoMMIssioNER.-Then you had better define your charge, Mr. Clarke.
Mr. CLARKE.-I had much rather you would define it, Mr. Commissioner, and

let the stenographers take it down in that shape, as I am acting for the defondants.
The COMMIsSIONER.-There never was any definite charge; they merely came

out during the evidence while the investigation was going on. The charge against
Mr. Wade being in connection with the water-front, was that ho had leased it im-
properly, and it was further intimated that ho had an interest in the lase ; that was
about ail the charge against him, and Mr. MeGregor was connected indirectly with
the statements made by Mr. Grotschier. The statements ho made under oath
differed somewhat from the statement ho had made publicly on the street, but they
were thought sufficient to take them up.

Mr. CLARK.-WO have the statements made by Mr. Grotschier in the commis-
sion as to the leasing of the water-front.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-Yes, we have the evidence bore. I suppose we might call
the witnesses.

Mr. CLARK.-I suppose that all the evidence that could be procured at the time
was submitted. It might be well to have it read. It occurs at page 51 of the
evidence.

The CoMMIssIoNER.-You might read the ovidence.
Mr. (ILARK.-(Reading from the ovidence.) "Q. Who was the porson and what

was the man's name ?-A. I told you one time I was approached by McDonald, and
ho asked me to give him money. I said 1 had none. Ihad paid over the rent and
had not collected any more. He said I gave Mr. McGregor $2,000; I said L have
nothing to do with that, but that was McDonald's not my doings."

The CoMMIssIoNER.-You might mention that that was in answer to a question
by Dr. Bourke.

Mr. CLARK.-Yes, that was in answer to Dr. Bourke's question, and appears
on page 51 of the evidence.
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The CoMMIsIoNER.-They were brought up incidentally during the examination.
It was while this question of the water-front deal was on. There was no direct
charge made but there were several charges brought out by Dr. Bourke in his
rambling way, and we thought it only fair that all should be heard.

Mr. CLAR.-There only seems to be some side remark with reference to Mr.
Wade in the evidence.

The CoMMIssoNER.-No, the charge against him was of improperly leasing the
water front for a consideration and it was intimated that ho had an interest in it.

Mr. CLARK.-Then I will call Mr. Morrison. There is no witness for the pro-
secution, I suppose.

The CoMMIsIoNER.-All the evidence we have is here. (Evidence before Com-
mission.)

Mr. CLARK.-Mr. Wade suggests that you cail these witnesses- for the prosecu-
tion as ho does not want it to appear that we are calling Mr. Morrison and Mr. Mc-
Donald in our interest.

RONALD MORRISoN, affirmed and examined:-

By the Comnissioner.

Q. You are a partner of Mr. McDonald in this water-front lease ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you remember what time you secured it ?-A. A year ago the lst of May.
Q. What was the consideration that you gave for the lease ?-A. We paid the

Government $2,500 per month.
Q. Who was in partnership with you in that deal ?-A. Mr. McDonald.
Q. Do you know of any other ?-A. I do not.
Q. Was there no other person had an interest in it ?-A. Alex. Morrison had an

interest in it-I thought you were referring to the other man.
Q. What was his interest ?-A. H1e had one-sixth of the lease.
Q. Did ho pay one-sixth of the rental ?-A. Yes.
Q. He had one-sixth interest in the profits?-A. Yes.
Q. Any others connected with it ?-A. Not that I know of.
Q. Have you ever heard it said that Mr. Wade and other Govornment officials

had an interest in this transaction ?-A. Well, if what I know to be a fact-
Q. You have heard that said ?-A. Yes, town talk.
Q. Do you know whether there was any truth in that town talk ?-A. I don't

think so.
Q. Do you know so ?-A. Well, as far as I know, there was nothing in it.
Q. As far as your knowledge and belief goes, there is no foundation for such

assertions ?-A. Just as much truth as there is that we paid any money to get that
lease.

Q. Answer the question ?-A. There is no truth in the statement that we paid
any money to get that lease-that is answering your question.

Q. After the lease was given, did you know of any Government official having
any interest in the profits ?--A. I did not.

Q. You have no personal knowledge?-A. Not from my own knowledge, I
don't know of any.

Q. Do you think that you could definitely answer the question that, from
your knowledge of the transactions and proceedings would justify you in saying
there was no such dealing ?-A. Not that I know of.

By Mr. O. H. Clarke :

Q. You had an acquaintance with the business connected with the water-front,
you handled the funds ?-A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Now, did the firm of McDonald & Morrison ever give anybody the profits of
that water front ?-A. I don't know, unless McDonaid was generous enough to do so.

Q. Now, Mr. Morrison, there have been some charges made about Mr. Wade in
connection with this water-front. Prior to the lease of the water-front, had you
any conversation you now recollect, with Mr. Wade with reference to the letting of
the contract or the lease, or in any way connected with the water-front ?-A. Well,
wo wanted

Q. Did you ever have any conversation with Mr. Wade, first; we will get to
the other afterwards ?-A. Well, I don't remember that Idid.

Q. No recollection of having any conversation with Mr. Wade prior to the
letting of the water-front ?-A. No, I have no recollection. I was introduced to
Mr. Wade about the time I got the lease.

Q. About the time you got the lease-that would be some time about the lht of
May ?-A. Yes.

Q. Now, if you have any recollection of any conversation, you are certainly in
a position to say whether there was any agreement between you and Mr. Wade, if
he was to profit in any way ?-A. No, there was no such agreement made at all on
my part; and of course Mr. McDouald can speak for himself.

Q. Mr. Wade has no interest in the water-front whatever ?-A. If he had, he
never got it from me, I am sure. It seems to me if a man is interested, he should
get some noney if there is any money made out of it.

Q. I will put it a little broader: did you ever, before or after the lease of the
water-front, have any arrangement with Mr. Wade with reference to the water-front
lease, or did he ever get any profits, directly or indirectly, from that lease ?-A.
The only talk I had with Mr. Wade was drawing up the lease of the water-front.
He said he didn't want to have anything to do with the water-front lease in the
drawing up of it; that he would get some one else to draw up the papers, or words
to that effect.

Q. Do you remember at that time that Mr. Wade made some reference about
not wishing to do anything for which a charge would be made, as he was
engaged on a salary by the Government ?-A. Yes, i believe he said sonething of
that kind ; and he would turn it over to some one else. He said he paid $25 or 850
for making the lease.

Q. Did you ever -?-A. I will put it myself. I never gave Wade a dollar
out of the water-front, directly or indirectly, to the best of my knowiedge and belief.

Q. No arrangement at any time ?-A. Not at vil.
Mr. O. H. CLARKE to the CoMMIssIoNER.-If you can make any suggestions,

Mr. Commissioner, to make it any wider, we will be glad, as we want the denial as
full and complete as possible.

The CoMMissIoNER.-He has denied it as fully as he can.
Q. Do you remember a stipulation made by Mr. Wade when you engaged him

to do your business, that he was to have nothing to do with the water-front-as to
the drawing of the lease ?-A. He made such a statement.

Q. So he was afraid some complication might arise-that was the tenor of the
conversation-he was afraid of a complication arising, therefore he wished to avoid
it ?-A. Yes, on account of him being Crown Prosecutor he didn't want to have
anything to do with it.

By the Commissioner:

Q. I suppose you have heard that Mr. Wade was solicitor of the firm of
McDonald & Morrison, retained by you ?-A. Yes, I am aware of the fact.

Q. Give us the date that he was retained ?-A. Well, I don't know the date.
Q. Was it before or after the water-front lease ?-A. I don't know whether it

was before or after.
Q. It has been intimated that that was a consideration extended by McDonald

& Morrison for bis services in connection with the water-front ?-A. Well, there is
about as much truth in that as in a great many other statements, and there is no
truth in it-that is, as far as I know.
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Q. Could you assertain what time ho was retained as your solicitor ?-A. Yes,
I could tell you if I had the contract.

Q. You don't know whether it was before the deal or after ?-A. No, I could
not say.

Q. You solemnly state that it had no connection with the water-front deal ?-
A. None whatever, matter of business, that is all. I never even thought of that
until J came in this spring, and heard it talked of.

By Mr. O. R. Clarke :

Q. Who nogotiated with Mr. Wade, who engaged him as solicitor for the firm of
McDonald & Morrison ?-A. J went to Wade, once or twice

Q. You did all tho negotiations ?-A. No, Mr. McDonald put the finishing
touches on.

Q. Did you have any nogotiations with him at the commencement?-A. J wert
to sec Wade the first time.

Q. During the course of those negotiations, was the water-front question ever
discussed ?-A. No, iot at all ; it was not mentioned.

Q. Is there any connection betweon the solicitorship and the water-front at all,
-that is, any monetary connection- any connection whatevor botween the water-
front question and the solicitorship ?-A. No.

Q. Never mentioned any ?-A. No, no-another business entirely, and J posi-
tively state when I went to Mr. Wade first in relation to him looking after the
business, that there was no such thing talked of as the water-front-that notorious
water-front.

By the Commissioner

Q. What was the roason you engaged Mr. Wade as your solicitor ?-A. Well,
we bad reason to believe that )Ir. Wade understood bis business, and we were told
so by competent mon who were good judges ; of course we wanted to get the best
in Dawson.

Q. And you went to Mr. Wade accordingly ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. O. H. Clarke :

Q. You had large interests that required protection-I mean legal protection,
and it was necessary to have some able solicitor to look after them, and that was
the only inducement?-A. Yes, that was the only consideration and inducement.
If there was any other consideration I don't know anything about it.

Q. I don't know if you know anything about this charge against Mr.McGregor.
The charge is, that he profited in some way by the water-front lease, and thot ho
obtained $2,000 on one occasion from Mr. McDonald, as bis share of the water-front
spoil?-A. I don't know anything about that at all.

Q. You don't know anything about his getting that ?-A. I do not; J bard it
talked about on the streets. I didn't pay any attention to it.

The CoMMISSIoNER. -Another question : When you were a party to the engage-
ment of Mr. Wade, had you any idea that bis services, owing to his position in the
Government, would bonefit the firm of McDonald & Morrison ?

Mr. O. H. CLARKE.-Irrespective of bis legal mervices ?
The CoMMIsSIoNER.-He has virtually denied that before.
Mr. MoRRISoN.-No, there was nothing of that kind thought of; nothing of

that kind thought of in the engagement of Mr. Wade. I engaged Mr. Wade on
account of his ability.

By the Commissioner:

Q. His Government position here didn't enter into consideration at all ?-A.
Well, his Government position bore and bis business-those were two different pro.
positions.



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 87B.-87c.) A. 1899

The CoMMIssIoNER,-I wanted you to say if yon had that in your mind.
Mr. WADE.-I am not responsible for what he had on his mind.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-That was given as one of the reasons that Mr. Wade was

retained.
Mr. MORRIsoN.-What I thought and heard is different from what I know.
The CoMMIssIoNER.-That is all I have to ask you.

ALEXANDER MODONALD, called and made affirmation

By the Commissioner :

Q. You have heard Mr. Morrison's evidence ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do yon concur with what he has said ; do you agree with what he states ?

By Mr. Clarke :

Q. As far as you are aware ?-A. Yes, as far as I am aware.
Q. When yon engaged Mr. Wade, did your engagement have any connection

with the water-front lease ?-A. No.
Q. Who did you make the agreement with ?-A. I put in a tender for the

water-front $2,500 per month, to the best of my recollection. Morrison and 1, both.
Q. You had certain conversations with Mr. Wade before this lease was consum-

mated ?-A. No, not that I recollect of.
Q. Have you any personal knowledge that Mr. Wade was in any way, directly

or indirectly, interested in the profits of this lease ?-A. I don't know, or cannot
believe that he ever benefited at all ont of the water-front. I never paid him any-
thing.

Q. You never agreed to pay him any profits ?7-A. No.
Q. Never agreed to pay anybody else for him ?-A. No, sir.
Q. Mr. Alex Morrison was interested in the lease, too ?-A. Yes.
Q. lis interest, as Mr. Ronald Morrison stated, was one-sixth ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. So from your personal knowledge you cannot say that Mr. Wade had any

interest, directly or indirectly, in the profits of this lease ?-A. Not any.
Q. When ho was retained as your solicitor had you made this arrangement ?-

A. I forget whether that was after the water-front or before; to the best of my
recollection it was after. I could not say for sure. I can't recollect about these
dates.

Q. He was not retained because of the water-front arrangement at all ?-A.
There was nothing said about it that I can recollect.

Q. Your retaining him as solicitor had nothing to do with the water-front ?-
A. Notany.

Q. Mr. Morrison had first commenced negotiations with Mr. Wade in engaging
him as solicitor for you ?-A. Yes, I think Mr. Morrison went to Mr. Wade first to
see the best terms he could make.

Q. And yon consented to the arrangements ?-A. Yos.
Q. In any conversation yon had with Mr. Wade in connection with the lease of

the water-front, did the question of your engaging Mr. Wade as your solicitor come
up for discussion with it at the same time ?-A. No, if so, I would have recollected
something about it.

Q. Were they ever connected in your mind ?-A. No.
Q. The solicitorship had no consideration in connection with the water-front ?-

A. No.
Q. You put in a tender for this water-front?- A. Morrison and I did, yes.
Q. I don't know as as yon remember it, but there is a letter in answer to this,

I will read parts of it.
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(The following is the letter.)
DAWsoN, YUKON DISTRICT, 9th April, 1898.

Messrs. IR. MORRISON and ALEX. MCDONALD,
Dawson, Yukon Territory,

Canada.

DEAR SIRs,-Your letter of 28th March ult., containing your offer to lease the
river front of Dawson opposite the Ladue survey, leaving ail streets, alleys, and
steamboat landings free and clear, and paying at the rate of $2,500 per month, was
duly received.

On behalf of the Dominion Government we are willing to lease the front applied
for, but on terms somewhat different from those you propose.

In the first place we think that the lease should be for a period of one year,
but with power to the Dominion Government, the gold commissioner, or the Domi-
nion lands agent to terminate it on giving one month's notice to the lessees. The
rent to be charged for the year will be 830,000, or should the lease be terminated
at any time within the year, the lessees will be required to pay at the rate of
$2,500 per month for the time they remain in occupation. Payment is to b
made in Canadian legal tender or gold dust at $15 per ounce.

The portion of the front to be leased will extend from the southern line of Har-
per street produced to the Yukon River to the northern boundary lino of Sixth street
produced to said river. The easterly boundary of the strip will be First avenue,
which will maintain a uniform width of oixty feet, and the westerly boundary will
be the Yukon River, First, Second, Third, Fifth and Sixth streets, each fifty féet in
width are to be allowed to extend to the river, and will be reserved out of said
frontage strip. There will also be reserved thereout for public steamboat landings,
wharfs, customs-house, and other publie purposes, Fourth street and a strip of said
front 125 feet in width extending from the south side of First Street in front of block
C and extending 125 feet north from the north side of Fourth street in front of block
D, also reserving in front of block D and E for saw-mill purposes such room for
timber chutes not to exceed three in number and an aggregate width of sixty feet
and to be reserved at such points as the gold commissioner and Dominion lands
agent may designate within one week from the execution of the contemplated lease.
The lessees also to agree to reserve out of said river front from time to time dur-
ing the existence of the lease any portion thereof, not to exceed 100 feet that may
be required by the Dominion Government for government offices.

The lessees will also be required to construct a board sidewalk along First
street, opposite bloeks A and B, and to construct public privies with pits on the con-
tinuations of First, Second and Third streets, said privies to be placed over pits, éo
far removed from the river bank as to avoid ail danger of contaminating the water
of the river.

Plans for the sidewalks and privies are to be at once submitted to the gold
commissioner and to be to his satisfaction.

Yours truly,
THOS. FAWCETT,

Gold Commissioner.
F. C. WADE,

Dominion Lands Agent.

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. This letter was received in answer to the tender you put·in ?-A. I think so.
Q. Was anything done by you to assist your tender other than putting it in and

receiving this ?-A. That is ail.
Q. You didn't do any log-rolling to have your tender accepted ? You put in a

pretty good figure; do you know the next highest tender ?-A. No, mine was
$2,500 per.month.

Q. Do you remember what Dunsmore, Spencer & McPhee's was ?-A. No.
13
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Q. To your knowledge, did Mr. Wade profit in any way by the water-front
lease ?-A. Not from me. What money I gave Mr. Wade, it was for bis other
services.

Q. None of your money ever went to pay Mr. Wade or any of the officials ?-
A. Not that I know of.

Q. None of your money ever went to pay M r. Wade or any of the officials of
the water-front deal?-A. No.

Q. Did you ever before or after the water-front lease, have any agreement with
Mr. Wade, that he sbould get a dollar out of the water-front lease ?-A. No, sir.

Q. At that, or any tinie ?-A. No, not at any time before or after. I had made
a contract with Mr. Wade, I think it was after the water-front was lot, I am not
sure.

Q. To your knowledge, none of the officials have made anything out of the
water-front lease?-A. No.

Q. Certainly, didn't make it out of the firm of McDonald & Morrison ?-A. Not
out of mine.

Q. We will go to the charge against Mr. McGregor. About that $2,000-you
have heard it stuted that $2,000 was paid to Mr. MeGregor by you ?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Will you explain to us why that $2,000 payment was made ?-A. Well, last
summer I sold a lot to Mr. McGregor close to the pioneer drug store; he gave me
$2,000 for it.

Q. Where was it paid ?- A. I didn't sec it weighed. I gave it to Tom Chis-
holm to weigh, I asked him how it came out. He said it ran two bits over and
above. A short time before Mr. McGregor left, I spoke to him about the lot, and
I said if he was going out if ho liked I would take it back; I have forgotton, it
might have been a day or two before ho left. He said I might have the lot, so I
gave him back bis money. That was all.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Where did you get that money to pay him back ?-A. I got it about the lat
of October-rent out of the water-front.

Q. Mr. Grotschier Ewore you asked him for that money; do you renember if
you got for he paid Mr. McGregor ?-A. He was our agent attending to the collec-
tion of the moneys of the water-front. I got it from him. It was my own; I turned
it over to Mr. McGregor. It seems to me I told him I was going to give it to him,
or told him to give it to him. I forget which way I put it.

Q. Was that in consideration for the water-front lease ?-A. No.
Q. Was that payment on account of the water-front lease ?-A. No.
Q. It was insinuated that Mr. McGregor got this $2,000 from you on account

of this water-front lease ?-A. I heard that talk.
Q. Is there any truth in it ?-A. No.
Q. When you asked Mr. Grotschier for that money, do you remember what he

said ?-A. I don't recollect.
Q. Do you remember him saying to you that he had no money ?-A. I don't

know.
Q. Do you remember telling him you had paid McGregor $2,000 ?-A. I don't

recollect.
Q. Do you remember that you admitted the payment of $2,OOO, and asking Mr.

Grotschier to keep it quiet. Would you swear positively there was no conversation
of that sort ?-A. I think I would recollect something about it.

Q. You don't recollect anything of that at ali ?-A. No.

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. There was nothing of that said in the evidence of the commission; you have
no recollection of any such conversation ?-A. No.

A. 1899
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Mr. F. C. WADE, Eworn and examined:

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. Yon might just explain, Mr. Wade, all you know about this affair ?-A. Well,
Mr. Commissioner, it would be much easier if I had a file of papers which I left here
when I weit out, papers I left under private cover, addressed to yourself. I have
only a copy of this letter which was written to McDonald & Morrison, se I will
have to remember as far as I can what occurred.

Q. What are yon referring to ?-A. Papers in connection with the water-front
lease. I may say, when I came in here, I came in advance of Major Walsh.

Q. What was the date of your arrival ?-A. 26th of February. I came with
instructions from the Minister of the Interior not to act as Dominion lands agent
exactly, but to take over what is called the land application book. However, I found
that Mr. Fawcett was tremendously overburdened with work, as a large portion of his
staff had been sent to Fort Yukon during the previos winter. There were just two or
three clerks in a small office; it was agroed that though I was not appointed, I
would take over the work and assist him to that extent; I then took over as far as
he could give me authority, the administration of the Dominion Lands here. Just
at that time we learned that an immense number of people were coming in from the
outside; the only piece of available government land not applied for, was what was
called the government addition at the nortb-cast end of the town, that is outside the
police reserve, which I regarded as sacred and reserved for military and police pur-
poses; that was the only land available. It was necessary to obtain a large amount
of land at once, for residential purposes and to accommodate storekeepers and mer-
chants and others who would corne. At that time Dawson was all in one street;
there was no drainage, and everything back of Front street was covered with deep
water and nigger-heads where it was impossible to place stores or residences. I de-
termined on two concurrent courses of action ; I recognized the fact that while this
was pending, Ladue, Day, Menzies and other town site applicants were selling
their properties at very great prices, almost prohibitive prices, and [ was determined
that, if possible, the incoming crowd of people would ho saved from that sort of
thing; I wanted property for residences and for mercantile purposes. I had a sur-
vey made of the government addition for residences; ascertained the prices of sur-
rounding sites, the Ladue, Smith, and sent ont valuators to value the government
addition for residential purposes. I told them to value it as low as they could, be-
cause I thought the prices that were asked for the Smith and Ladue properties
were too high. After receiving these valuations, I cut this in two so that
the incoming people could get residences at a reasonably fair rate. That
was for residents' accommodation. Then I turned my attention to getting
accommodation for merchants. I found the water strip here. I knew as a
matter of law that the gold commissioner, who represented the Minister of
the Interior, under his commission, had the power to rent that strip of land for
mercantile or any other purpose. I ascertained subsequently that along this water-
front was a shoal, so it was useless for steamboat purposes; it was useless for any
other purpose unless for scenery, which was not to be preferred to actual substan-
tial benefits to be conferred on the town; having ascertained that it was all shoal
there, and no harm could be done as far as river landing or wharfs were-concerned,
I examined and found it was covered with tents and shacks of all possible kinds--
anybody who was here knows that. A number of fruitless efforts were made to get
them off. I recognized that it would be covered with tents and supplies and every-
thing of that kind, and that there was a great lack of water, a great deal of dirt,
bad sanitary conditions, under any circumstances, and that it would be better to
rent that to any persons who would pay the government a good rental. We would
have sidewalks upon the streets, we would have five or six hundred people doing
business, and thus benefit the town in every way. So I went to work and leased
that front; in doing so, I consulted with Mr. Fawcett, recognizing that he was to a
certain extent a pioneer bere, and knew more about Dawson than I did; 1 consulted

15
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with him as to the advisability of leasing the water-front. He agreed with me as
to the advisability of leasing it. I consulted with hin as to the question ofinviting
tenders by public notice. We both agreed that that was not advisable for this
reason: at the time we were under the impression that the lessee, whoever ho might
be, would have to go to work and build these buildings to accommodate the sub-
lessees, whoever they might be. In fact, we were going to require that the lessee
should put up substantial buildings, and build sidewalks and put in sanitary con-
veniences and so on. It was therefore necessary to deal with a responsible party;
for that reason it was agreed not advisable to call for public tenders, but simply to
let it be known that the water-front was to be leased :-that is, let it be known
throughout the town so that financial people would get notice of it. We decided on
that course of action, and we had a survey made of the strip that we were about to
lease. In the first place, I consulted Mr. Fawcett as to how much it would be noces-
sary to reserve for steamboat purposes, and ho agreed with me that 125 feet in front
of the old companies would be sufficient. Afterwards, in making the survey, I
stipulated with the successful contractors that 50 feet more should be added, thus
making 175 feet. Subsequently 1 learned a great number of steamboats were on
their way up the river and realized more fully than Mr. Faweett that more land
would be needed, but I went to the successful lessees after the lease had been granted,
and asked them to consent to cutting out from their lease that portion that had been
leased that was on the edge of the deep water where it would be useful for steam-
boat purposes; McDonald & Morrison could have held us; being requested, they
granted this privilege of retaining the land along the deep water immediately, and
made it easier for us to get over. Now, I have given you the reason which impelled
me to lease the water-front. When it came to leasing, it has been reported, as you
know, that it was leased without tender or anything of that kind. As a matter of
fact, there were a number of tenders there contained in the file of papers which
must be somewhere in your custody, though you cannot find them at the present
time. There were a number of tenders put in; at any rate, the originals are on file
in the Department of the Interior at Ottawa, and can be made use of by the com-
mission there I suppose; as to the dates and amounts of these tenders, they can be
found in the file of papers; I cannot give them but by referring to Major Walsh's
report. I see ho has recited them, but ho does not give the date. (Mr. Wade thon
read as follows; from Major Walsh's report.)

LEASE OF WATER-FRONT.-DAWSON.

I also found on my arrival at Dawson, that Mr. Wade and Mr. Fawoett, as the
representativos of the Dominion Government had leased to Messrs. R. Morrison and
A. McDonald, for $30,000 por annum, part of the water-front of Dawson. Before
the terms of the lease were settled with Messrs. Morrison & MoDonald, tenders
for the water-front had been made to Messrs. Wade and Fawcett. Mr. W. Bourke
had offered to pay quarterly, a rent of $3,000 per annum; Mi. D. Keizer had
offered an annual rental of 87,500 for the whole front, or one of $120 for each lot of
25 feet; Messrs. Dunsmore, Spencer and McPhee had offered an annual rental of
$25,000 payable monthly in advance; Mr. John Cameron had offered a monthly
rental ot 2,050, and Messrs. Morrison & McDonald had offered one of 82,500 per
month, or 830,000 per annum. A part of the tract, about 100 feet frontage, which
it was proposed to reservo as a site for government offices, and ail of the front
which extends from a point fifty feet to the north of Third street to the Smith
addition tu Dawson, being ail that afforded sufficient water for steamboat landing
purposes, were excepted from the land covered by the lease. It was granted for
but one year, and even this short term may be terminated by one month's notice
from the government.

The transaction being one which I considered to be most satisfactory from
every standpoint, I at once gave it m.y approval. As to the dates, I cannot give
them from memory, but they run over a number of days.
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Q. Yon can state positively whether there was a tender higher than
Morrison & McDonald's.-A. Certainly. There was not. The first application by
Bourke could not be entertained under any circumstances. It was entirely too
smail to be considered. We went on taking these tenders until we got a tender of
$1,800 per month. I questioned Mr. Fawcett-not as legal adviser, because thore
was no question of law arising in the inatter whatever, but simply as my senior
bore and a man who had been bore longer than I had been. I consulted him until
we got a tender from Morrison & McDonald of $1,800 per month which seemed
a big rental for a little piece of ground. I did not suppose there was a man in
Dawson that would pay snch a rental-that the rental would ever reach such mo
figure. I submitted this to Mr. Fawcett, not for legal advice, as I have said, but for
his approval. He wrote across that offer that he approved of that as being a suffi-
cient amount for the rental of the water-front. It seemed to me a very large amount.
However, I decided to wait a little longer after I got these other offers mentioned
in the report of Major Walsh. I got the offer of Dunsmore, Spencer and McPhee of
$25,ooo. I thought that was a very decent offer. I was on the point of' closing
the tenders when McDonald & Morrison tient in a letter, which should be bore,
and to which this (showing the above letter) is the reply, in whih they offered
$30,000. I cannot remember what day of the week that was; I think it
was Saturday. The figure had gone cean beyond anything that Mr. Fawcett had
anticipated; he thought it was getting too high. 'I consulted with Judge McGuire,who was here at the time. He thought it was very exorbitant. I said I felt like
closing, but decided to leave it a day or two. Isaid we might as well leave it over;
possibly another offer might come in. I did not accept their offer as they made it.
In fact, I state now that I made Morrison & McDonald on behalf of the Govern-
ment of Canada enter into, for their point of view an extremely precarious lase.
After I got their letter I wrote thom this one which I have referred to.

(Mr. Wade bore read the entire letter.)
Owing to the lack of a number of papers which should be bore, I cannot give

ail the evidence I would desire on the point. Thon McDonald & Morrison were
put in this position: they were bound to take that lease for a year. The govern-
ment was only bound for a month, and could terminato the lease at any time. It
was, therefore, in the interets tof the Government of Canada and not in the interests
of Morrison & McDonald. They were to keep the streets open necessary to go to
the river; they were to establish public sanitary conveniences, and to build side-
walks, and so on.

I have told you the reason why I lot the wator-front; and that it wai lot by
tender, and so on.

Now, as to the other question, as to whether I ever received a dollar out of the
water-front, I want to be most explicit and emphatic. A long time bas 'elapsed
before I have bad the opportunity of Loing so. I have been industriously slandered
throughout Eastern Canada for a large portion of a year. Every dirty political pen
and every mean pen that could be used to do me harm bas been used. This is the
first opportunity I have had of stating the facts under oath, and I say now, that
noither previous to the granting of the lease of the water front, or at the time or
since, did I ever have any arrangement to recoive one dollar from McDonald &
Morrison, nor have I ever received one dollar in connection with the lease of the
water-front. This is the first opportunity I have had of saying so under oath.

As to the question of a retainer, Mr. Commissioner, I admit that I was retained
by Morrison & McDonald to look after their legal business. That was the resuit
of negotiations after the leasing of the water front. The retainer was purely for
my legal services. At the same time I recoived a retainer or yearly salary from
Morrison & McDonald, I received numerous retainers-really yearly salaries-
from other prominent people in business bore, including the N.A.T., Mr. Patrick
Galvin, the A. C. Company, at or about the same time, just showing what practice
was then; bosides there was Engellman, Col. Bowie and others. And I need not
mention thom ail. The retainers which I received for my legal services would look
large in tne east; but, at any rate, they were the current retainers bore; and I
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received them from l1l Lhese people; and I was no more to give legal services to
McDonald & Morrison than to any other of the people I have mentioned. Such a
thing never entered =j mind, nor the minds, I am sure, of Morrison & McDonald.
Never dreamt of such a thing. Considering the volume of law business of McDonald
& Morrison-the largest in the Yukon, the retainer was reasonable and was for
legal services only.

Thore is one other thing: for to prove that that was for legal services, I would
call your attention to this fact, that in Juiy of last year when my partners came in
from Eastern Canada-Mr. Clark and Mr. Wilson, I divided equally with thom the
unearied portion of that retainer. Now, if there was anyof this paid for anything
else beside legal services, it is hardly likely I would do anything like that.

That is ail I have to say, unless you have something to ask me.
Mr. WADE.-I would like to point out that Mr. Fawcett in his evidence refers

to me as acting as his legal adviser. I will read it over:
"By Mr. TABO.--Q. Mr. Wade's daties were to advise with you; but did he

have the deciding ?-A. Yes. Q. Your duty was to sign ?-A. Yes, only to sign on
Mr. Wade's advice.

"By the ComMIssIoNER.-Q. Did you ever think you would be justified in refus-
ing to act on Mr. Wade's advice ?-A. I thought not. Mr. Wade acted under Order
in Council, and I had the right to bow to whatever ho recommended would be right,
and would be safe in so doing. Q. You never thought you had a right to object to
this course.-A. No; of course there are some things I would not have done."

There is a part of this evidence with which I cannot concur. I have pointed out
that exhibit (1) is signed by Mr. Fawcett as well as myself; and I would point out
that ail papers concerning this lease-all the correspondence is signed by Mr.
Fawcett tirst and myself next-Mr. Fawcett as gold commissioner and myself as
land agent for the time being.

In answer to Mr. Fawcett's remarks I may say I had no powers over Dominion
Lands except as I have formerly pointed out. I took over the application book under
instruction from the Minister of the Interior. Anything else I did was for Mr.
Fawcett personally. I had no Order in Council giving me powers over Dominion
Lands at any time. I do not see why Mr. Fawcett was bound to follow my advice
as I never was his legal adviser or to anybody else in the Yukon.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Any government official ?-A. Yes; I mean any governmont officiai. I was
Registrar of Lands tinder the Torrens systen and I was Crown Prosecutor. I had
my Commission as Registrar; outside of that I acted as Ciown Prosecutor. I was
nobody's legal advisor; nor am I aware of ever having advised Mr. Fawcett on any
question of law. The only time ho ever was advised on a question of law was at the
time of the Dominion Creek difficulty or muddle as it was called. In this I was not
consulted by Mr. Fawcett at all; I believe lie was advisod by somebody, I do not
know whom. But I certainly object to Mr. Fawcett saying ho was bound to do
anything bocause I was appointed by Order in Council ta advise him, or anything of
the kind. To that extent I disagree with Mr. Fawcett's evidence. Ho may have
misunderstood, and assumed I had powers I did not have. But certainly that portion
of the evidence I disagree with.

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. He was discussing there the water.front lease, was he not ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you have any conversation with reference to the consideration that Mor

rison & McDonald were giving for the water-front lease; did ho give any opinion
on it?-A. He bighly approved of the offer of $18,000; was surprised at that.

Q. What did he say at the offer of 830,000 ?-A. Of course that was acceptable
in every way, shape and form. He thought it very large. We ail thought 'it
extremely large.
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Q. Did ho say too high ?-A. Well that was the impression ho gave me-it was
too high. We all thought so, Judge McGuire thought so, too.

Mr. WADE.-I saw a paper when I came in over the trail-some paper here,
the Sun or the Miner, which threw the blame on me entirely, and a leading editorial
laid the blame on Mr. Wade entirely. I would point out in Major Walsh's report
what ho says as to that:

" The transaction being one which I considered to be most satisfactory from
every standpoint, I at once gave it my approval."

I want to point out that my action was approved of by the commissioner and
also by the Department of the Interior as well. I want that made public; and if
there is any blame attached to the letting of the water-front, I am prepared to defend
it from the point of view of public policy; I considered it so thon, and consider it se
to-day. Again I want to point out that my action was approved of by the commis-
sioner, Major Walsh, and by the Department of the Interior at Ottawa.

JAMES G. MOGREGOR, sworn and examined

By Mr. O. H. Clarke:

Q. You heard this evidence of Mr. Grotschier's road, Mr. MoGregor, in
which ho said $2,000 was paid him by McDonald ?-A. Yes.

Q. Explain this?-A. I have no other explanation except the explanation
already given; I bought the property from McDonald, gave him $2,000, and when
I was going away ho wanted it and I took the money back,

Q. The same lot ?-A. Yes.
Q. Could you specify the number of the lot ?-A. Yes, it was the lot where the

hardware store was burned, across from the Bank of British North America.
A VoIcE.-Lot 10, in block 1.
Q. There was an agreement between you and McDonald for the sale of that lot.

Was that agreement full?-A. No. I was to give a note; when I bought the lot I
intended to build on it, but things looked bad and I didn't know whether it would
be bettor to drop it or to hold on to it.

Q. And you availed yourself of McDonald's offer to take back the $2,000?-
A. Yes.

Q. You paid Mr. McDonald 82,000 prior to this when you bought the lot ?-
A. Yes.

Q. How did you pay the money?-A. In dust.
Q. Where did you get that gold dust?-A. I had an order from Major Walsh

for money I bad paid out for the government on the way in; I paid out almost from
the day I started.

Q. Iow did that happen ?-A. I think the expedition only had $6,000 to pay
expenses and ran short, and Captain Norwood and I had to finance it all the way
through.

Q. You got an appropriation of money you advanced from Mr. Fawcett ?-A.
Yes.

Q. Was that sufficient to pay the 82,000 ?-A. No.
Q. From whom did you get the balance ?-A. Mr. Lewin.
Q. In D>awson ?-A. Yes.
Q. In his place of business ?-A. Yes.
Q. Where did you pay the $2,000 te McDonald ?-A. In his office.
Q. Were you present when it was weighed out at Chisholm's ?-A. No.
Q. Now, Mr. McGregor, did you ever profit in any way by this water-front

lease ?-A. No.
Q. Directly or indirectly?-A. No.

19
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Q. Did you ever get a promise that you were to profit from Morrison &
McDonald, or any other person ?-A. No.

Q. Did you ever enter into any agreement Y ith McDonald & Morrison, look-
ing towards profit, either before or after?-A. No.

The CoMmissioNE.--One question: You never had anything to do with the
water-front, directly or indirectly ?--A. No.

EDWARD LEwIN, sworn and examined.

By Mr. O. H. Clarke:

Q. Do you remember the occasion referred to by Mr. McGregor ?-A.*Yes.
Q. When was that ?-A. About a year ago. I opened the Dominion on the 10th

of May.
Q. Did you ever lend him any money ?-A. Yes.
Q. How much ?-A. 8600.
44. What for ?-A. To pay for a lot from Alex. McDonald.
Q. Did you know at the time of the transaction what lot it was ?-A. No, I

don't know.
Q. Did you see the 82,000 weighed out ?-A. No.
Q. How did you know Mr. McGregor wanted the money to pay for this lot ?-

A. He told me so.
Q. That is all you know about it ?-A. Yes.

D. W. DAvis, called and sworn:-

By Mr. Wade :

Q. You are custome collector ?-A. Yes.
Q. And have been for some years ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you are Conservative in politics ?-A. Yes.
Q. You remember that last fall, sometime before 18th August, when I went out-

side, St. Mary's hospital was very short of money ?-A. I do.
Q. The government gave a grant of $5,000 to it ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you and I were requested by Major Walsh to try and raise some money

by subscription ?-A. Yes.
Q. We raised some $4,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. How did we raise it?-A. From the gamblers, principally.
Q. What did we do with it ?-A. Turned it over to Father Judge.
Q. You and I travelled together when we were collecting this money; did we in

any way attempt to intimidate the gamblers ?-A. No, not that I know of.
Q. Just describe how we asked them; what we told them ?-A. We told them

that we wanted to raitse the money, and I know that we were not refused from the
highest to the lowest.

Q. No threat of any kind used ?-A. No, at the least 1 never heard of it.
Q. I know this is not in the charge, but I bring it up here, because Sir Charles

Hibbert Tupper, in a speech before the House of Commons, saye he had been told on
most reliable evidence, I might read it. (Reading extract trom speech.)

"HRe had been told on most reliable evidence that Wade had blackmailed saloon-
keepers of Dawson on pretense of taking up subscriptions for a hospital. He would
go into a saloon and tell the keeper that he had been assessed so much for the
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hospital, and if he did not pay it his license would be cancelled and bis place closed.
He hoped Wade would come to Ottawa, so that he might refute this and other
charges."

Q. What do you say to that, Mr. Davis?-A. I say that is a lie.
Q. You say it is a lie?-A. Yes.
Q. As a matter of fact, were any of the hotels licensed at that time ?-A. It was

before the licenses were issued.
Q. As a matter of fact, we never mentioned it to the hotel-keepers, only to the

gamblers. I don't know as I wish to ask any more questions. I just wanted to
answer this for the reason that I bave not had an opportunity before to answer Sir
Charles H ibbert Tupper. Of course, I am not aware as to where ho got his evidence.
He may have been gloriously stuffed for ail that I know, but, so far as bis statements
are concerned they are second-hand and are ail absolutely false. Sir Charles Hibbert
Tupper bas been so extremely careless in making statements of this kind, without
foundation against a mnan of position and reputation, that I feel justified in saying
that in repeating these statements, owing to his negligence and carelessness, ho was
guilty of foui falsehood. What we did say was, "that the hospital was short of
funds; Father Judge was $25,000 behind," and what we doue was purely for chari-
table purposes. We went to the gamblers and said to them, "here, boys, you make
your money easy; you make it ont of the mining people; the hospital is for the
benefit of tho miners; Father Judge is $25,000 short; understand this is no tax, we
make no threats, we promise nothing; you are supposed to bu big hearted fellows
and we want five hundred dollars a piece for the hospital," and they freely gave us
five hundred apiece which we turned over to Father Judge. We collected four
thousand dollars and at the same time presented Major Walsh's cheque for five
thousand dollars, making nine thousand dollars. And while I am about it I would
like to call attention to another paragraph in Sir Cha-les Hibbert Tupper's speech
referring to myself; ho says: (Reading from speech.)

"l Referring to Crown Attorney Wade, he said that the gentleman had called
upon him and asked whether charges would be made against him this season (they
probably mean session there, probably a misprint). He had replied that there
would be, whereupon Wade had started for Dawson. (Laughter and applause.)"

This same paper which contains this speech is the one that last year attacked
me and accused me of going out to avoid Mr. Ogilvie's investigation, and now I am
attacked on the ground that I have come in to meut it. Well, I can say that Sir
Charles bas been plainly misreported for I never called on him in my life; I do not
'know him by sight; I do not know where ho lives; I know he is a member of
Parliament at Ottawa and a titled member of the House ot Commons; beyond that I
know nothing of him, except this, that I sent word to him, through his brother, Mr.
W. J. Tupper, of Winnipeg, that I was willing to wait an investigation at Ottawa if
there were any charges against me. There was so great a delay in answering this
message that i had, in the meantime, made arrangements togo to Dawson, but didn't
do so without first sending word to Sir Charles Hibbert Tupper, through bis brother
W J. Tupper, that if an investigation was to be ordered at Ottawa, I would most
cheerfully attend to it. Sir Ilibbert bas carefully omitted this-the only important
fact-from his statement made in Parliament. He has also failed to point out that
the communication referred to was private and confidential. I then came in here to
attend this investigation now being conducted, sir, by you and your royal commission.

The CoMMIs8IoNER.-o-There bas been no charge made about the bridge, but I
suppose you are quite willing to have it gono into. There is nothing in the evidence
referring to it.

Mr. CLARKE.-No, nothing at ail.
The CoMM IssoNE.-I might state it wa intimated or reported here that Mr.

Wade bad, for a consideration, assisted Howard and Roberts in obtaining a charter
to build a bridge across the Klondike River.

Mr. WADE.-Here is the permission given by Mr. Fawcett, it might be put in
as " Exhibit B". the original is with the Minister of the In terior. I ean identify
that as a copy if you like.
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"Exhibit B."

We, the undersigned residents of Dawson City, North-west Territories, do
hereby humbly petition for and pray to the Honourable Gold Commissioner of the
Troandik District, Yukon Division, of the Dominion of Canada, for the exclusive right
by character to build, construct and operate for the benefit of the public, a
certain bridge or way from " Klondike City," so called, across the Troandik River,
in a northerly direction to the certain island at or near the mouth of the aforesaid
Troandik River; thence a substantial way or trail, so called, across the aforesaid
island, in a northerly direction, thence a bridge or way across the aforesaid
Troandik River in a northerly direction to the north bank of the aforesaid Troandik
River, the location of said terminus to be determined by your humble petitioners,
to be within three hundred (300) feet on either the easterly or westeraly side of a
certain building or tent, more particularly known and described as the "Klondike
Ferry Saloon." Your humble petitioners would further respectfully agree that the
bridge or bridges would be constructed by cables suispended from opposite banks
and in a manner not to interfere with the necessary navigation of the aforesaid
Troandik River. The aforesaid bridge or bridges would bo exclusively used for
foot travel, aforesaid walk to be an appropriate width of five (5) feet. Your humble
petitioners also pray for the exclusive right to build, construct and operate, in con-
nection with the aforesaid bridge or bridges, a bridge or way around a particular
bluff on the south bank of the aforesaid Troandik River near the aforesaid
"Klondike City," to connect with a trail, so called, to be constructed to Bonanza
Creek, said creek flowing into the afore>aid Troandik River.

Toward the granting of a charter for the construction of these improvements
for the public welfare your petitioners humbly pray.

Dated this seventeenth (17th) day of February, A.D. eighteen hundred and
ninety-eight (1898), at Dawson City, North-west Territory.

J. R. BHOW ARD.
MILO ROBERTS.

As it is in the public interest that sucb a bridge as that described in the above
application should be at once constructed over the Klondike River, and it will be
impossible for the applicant to obtain a charter from the proper quarter in time to
commence the necessary work, I hertby grant the permission prayed for in the
petition, with the right to charge tolls that shall not be excessive, on the distinct
understaiding that if in any way hereafter this permission bas to be withdrawn or'
any one else receive permission of a like nature from any other quarter, and the
applicant suffers damage thereby, the applicant will be without recourse against
the Government of Canada.

THOS. FAWCETT,

Dated at Dawson City, 11th March, 1898. Gold Commissioner, &c.

JOHN R. HOWARD, sworn and examined:-

By Mr. O. H. Clark :

Q. Do you recognize this document, Mr. Howard ? (Hianding him Exhibit B.)
Mr. WADE.-I might identify it as a copy of the permission that was granted.

By the commissioner:

Q. Mr. Howard, with whom did you confer when you arranged the terms of
this; did you consult anybody?-A. Yes, I had a party named Day. I don't know
his first name.
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Q. Was ho the applicant for the Day addition?-A. I thf.nk ho was working
for the Alaska Exploration Company.

Mr. WADE.-You see, Mr. Commissioner, that was drawr up before I came to
the country.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Did Mr. Wade have anything to do with the bridge ?- A. No, sir.
Q. Did you ever consult him on the matter?-A. Weil, 1 tried to get the gold

commissioner's office with it. I spoke to Mr. Bolton and told him to give it to Mr.
Wade, and probably I might get there.

Q. Did you get to see Mr. Wade ?-A. Yes.
Q. What followed that ?-A. He looked at it and told me to leave it there, and

ho would take it over to Mr. Fawcett.
Q. Was Mr. Wade employed by you to look after the securing of this?-A. No,

sir, ho was employed by me in sending it out to the North-weat Territories.
Q. Who drew up these papers for you-this petition ?-A. Mr. Day.
Q. Did you employ any one else in getting up the application and petition ?-A.

No, sir.
Q. Did you ever pay Mr. Wade anything in connection with this at ail ?-A.

Well, I gave him $.0 at one time, I think, and two ounces in dust.
Q. You gave him $50 at one time, and at another two ounces in dust, that is, in

ail about $80 ?-A. Something like that.
Q. For what ?-A. He told me the papers had to go to the North-west Terri-

tories, Regina or some such place, and it had to go through the hands of lawyers
there, and it would cost me something.

Q. Did you understand from him that your privilege could only be granted at
Regina?-A. I cannot remember very distinctly how it was. He told me I would
have to apply to the North-west Territories-Regiria, as near as I can remember.

Q. You paid him $80 for managing the applications at Regina for you ?-A. I
think about $80.

Q. [s that ail you ever gave him ?-A. Yes.
Q. Had he any interests in the profit, of the bridge?-A. No, sir.
Q. Directly or indirectly ?-A. No, sir.
Q. You never weie to pay him anything at ail, before or after ?-A. No, sir.

Not unless there were further expenses connected with the papers.
Q. When Mr. Bulyea came in, had you any arrangements with him?-A. No, I

never knew him.
Q. Never saw him?-A. Saw him, but never spoke to him.

By Mr. O. H. Clarke:

Q. You simply retained Mr. Wade as your attorney to make an application to
the North-west TCerritories for this charter ?-A. Yes, I think that was it; ho told
me ho would make an application at Regina, and get a charter for the bridge.

Q. And ho charged you this for bis bervices ?-A. Yes, he told me ho would
expect me to pay the costs.

Q. That is the costs for putting it through ?-A. Yes.
Q. Has ho ever rendered you a bill for the coste ?-A. No, whon ho went out I

tried to get it from him.
Q. That matter bas never been disposed of yet ?-A. No, sir.
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MILo ROBERTS sworn and examined:-

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. You heard what Mr. Howard has said in answer to questions asked him. Do
yon believe what ho said is true ?-A. So far as I know.

Q. Do you know that this money was paid ?-A. Just what ho told you.
Q. Have you any knowledge of the business arrangement betwoen Mr. Howard

and Mr. Wade, other than hearsay?-A. No, sir.
Mr. WADE. -There were some charges made against me regarding Monte

Christo Island.
The CoiMIssIoNER.-There has been nothing said about that to me as con-

missioner.
Mr. WADE.--l think it important that the commission settle the matter; this

charge was made on the o.utside; it was the first charge made, and included Mr.
McGregor and myseif.

The CoMMàssiNER.-That is a matter for you to bring up yourseÌf.
Mr. WADE.-Yes, Mr. Commissioner, I will state what was said. It was stated

that Mr. McGregor and myself had gone out there at midnight and that we had
swooped downon the island and practically staked al[ the claims on the island. This
island has been described as " The Official Island." It was stated that in so doing,
we had robbed the miners and prevented them from recording, and that Mr. Mc-
Greger and myself had suddenly made ourselves rich, and that my claim was worth
$60,000. In answer to that charge, I want to say, that we started for Monte Christo
Island in the morning in full day-light; there were no deeds of darkness about the
matter at alil.

Q. What time of the year was this?-A. In March. Previous to going to
Monte Christo island, I had been asked by a miner, who was a friend of mine, to go
up and stake a claim. I asked if i might bring a friend along, and arranged with
Mr. MeGregor to go along with me. We were received by my friend, Mr. Burland,
and others, they mhowed us their map which they had made two days before, in
which they had reserved a place for me tostake. Se that was far from staking
against the interests of the miners; I was staking on the invitation of the miners.
who, two days before had made this map and asked me to stake. I staked a claim
and Mr. McGregor staked a claim; they were ail staking that day. So far were we
from monopolizing the island, we had only staked two claims out of sixteen staked
at that time. We certainly never valued our claims at $60,000. As a matter of
fact, the date of the renewal of those claims has gone by, and only one claim has
been renewed. I would like to catl Mr. Hurdman, who has a list of the claims on
Monte Christo Island, the dates on which they-were staked, and the number of them
-,onewed.

ALBERT F. HURDMAN, sworn and examined:-

By Mr. Wade :

Q. You are a clerk in the gold commissioner's office ?-A. Yes.
Q. You have a list showing the claims on Monte Cristo Island and the dates of

staking, and the number of renewals ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. How many claims were there staked on that island ?-A. Twenty-three.
Q. On what date did I stake ?-A. The date of your record is 2 1 st March.
Q. I staked the day before, that is, 20th March. Do you know as a matter of

fact how many claims were !eft unstaked after we got through on that date ?-A.
Three, but they all could have been staked on that date.

Q.'We only staked 2 claims ont of the 23, leaving 21 for the miners ?-A. Yes.
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Q. Is Monte Cristo considered valuable at ail ?-A. There is no inquiry in the
office about it.

Q. Have any of these claims been renewed ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. How many ?-A. One.
The COMMISSIONER.-Who renewed that one?
Mr. WADE.-I was the foolish party myself, Mr. Commissioner. I found out

from Mr. Hurdman I was alone. Ail I have said applies to Mr. McGregor as well
as myself.

Mr. McGREGoR.-1 think there were 12 staked on that date, and the balance
were staked afterwards.

Mr. WADE.-We left 11 unstaked claims after we got through. If there is auy
other matter, I would like it gone into. Mr. MeConnell is here, and ho might be
examined in regard to the bridge.

The CoMMissIONER.-I have not heard his name mentioned in connection with
this during the work of the commission.

Mr. WADE.-If thore is any charge that any one knows against me, I would
like to have it brought forward now. Mr. MeConnell is hore, and I tender his
evidence if you have anything to ask him.

EDWARD MCCONNELL, sworn and examined.

.By the Commissioner;

Q. In connection with your application to build % bridge across the Klondike
River, at the Upper Ferry. did you ever have any conforence with Mr. Wade ?-A.
My partner, Mr. Hamilton, did.

. Where is Mr. Hamilton ?-A. On the outside.
Q. Have you any definite knowledge of the conversation, or can you state its

purport or intention ?-A. It was in regard how to get the charter for the bridge,
or something to that effect. Merely advice.

Q. It was a more form of consultation as to a particular proceeding ?-A. Yes.
Q. Outsido of that, bad you ever anything to do with Mr. Wade in connection

with your bridge or ferry ?-A. No, sir.

By Mr. Wade:

Q. Did I ever get a dollar from you or your partners in connection with that ?-
A. No, sir.

By the Commissioner:

Q. No connection directly or indirectly ?-A. None.
Q. Past, present or future ?-A. I can't speak to the future, but there has been

none in the past, nor is there now.
Q. The charter was to extend over three years. As far as the charge against

him goes, have you any knowledge that he is interested in the matter ?-A. I know
ho is not. If there bad been any money paid out I would know of it, as I paid out
all moneys, but I don't think my partners would give him any.

Q. He got nothing ?-A. Nothing whatever.
Mr. WADE.-I would ask if there is anybody else who has anything to say.
The commission then adjourned until afternoon.
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WEDNESDAY, 17TH MAY, 2 O'cLocK, P. M.

The Royal Commission adjourned to the cabin of Miss Nellie Cashman, who was
too ill to attend court.

The COMMISSIONER.-WO came to hear from you, Miss Cashman, with regard to
affidavits made by you charging Capt. Norwood with something like corruption last
fali, in connection with a claim on Little Skookum.

Miss NELLIE CASUMAN, sworn and examined

By the Commissioner:

Q. Would you state as shortly as you can, the facts as you know them ?-A. It
was sometime in August-I don't know the date. I bought a claim, me and my
partner, on Littlo Skookum, from Mrs. Frances Johndreau.

Q. What time ?-A. I think it was the latter part of July.
Q. When did you first visit the claim ?-A. I visited it in July.
Q. When did you go there again ?-A. I went in August.
Q. Was Capt. Norwood there on the second visit ?-A. No.
Q. When was Capt. Norwood there with you ?-A. The latter part of August.
Q. What happened ?-A. Mr. Fawcett gave me a note to Capt. Norwood, stating

that Mrs. Johndreau had a prior location to the claim.
Q. First location ?-A. Yes, and at the time she entered the claim, Mr. Russell

that claimed the ground which was in dispute, did not take bis side lines because he
was not there-did not bave the ground located.

Q. When did yon first visit the claim with Mr. Norwood ?-A. The latter part
of August.

Q. What did you go with him for ?-A. I went to take this note that Mr. Faw-
cett gave me stating that I had filed a location and that I was entitled to the full
claim.

Q. Did he go?-A. Yes, he went himself and surveyor.
Q. Who was the surveyor ?-A. Mr. Barwell.
Q. You have alleged in your affidavit that Mr. Norwood either proposed or it

was understood that for a consideration you could have the disputed ground ?-A. I
beg to be excused.

Q. What did yon say?-A. I said they had surveyed the claim into a "V"
shape.

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. Who surveyed it?-A. Mr. Barwell.
Q. Was he your suveyor ?-A. Yes.

By the Commissioner:

Q. Did you employ him ?-A. Yes, paid him $20. I told him, when I made an
arrangement with the young man who drove the stakes for this lady, he had made
a mistake-this Smythe. When be saw bis mistake, one of bis partners brought it
to his memory-that was not where he showed him Mrs. Johndreau had staked.
When he started to show the location of the stakes, ho told him to throw down the
stakes and go to the office and give bis affidavit there.

Q. Had that anything to do with the charge against Mr. Norwood ?-A. I have
not got to that yet; when we went to court Mr. Norwood didn't go, but Mr. Barwell
did, and after the affidavit was taken it was given over to Capt. Norwood.
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Q. Did ho bring it back ?-A. I could not swear; but when Capt. Norwood went
back to drive the stakes, ho gave the other party some of the ground and a small
portion of it to me, and atter we left the ground, went over to the hotel at the Forks.
I went up stairs to see the Capt. and asked him if it would change him any to give
a friend of his in town an intetest; he asked me then if I would not tako some
ground on the other end; to do it was nothing but common country luck, and I told
him. no, and left him to himself and came down stairs. There was no more said
about it until I came to town.

Q. What happened thon ?-A. In the ineantime I left the Forks, asked some
parties where Capt. Norwood was, and they said ho had gone to Dominion; and it
only took me three and a hal* hours to come to town, and 1 called on Miss Mulrooney
and asked ber if she heard from Capt. Norwood. She said, ' yes." I said, " what
was the message?" She said he told her to get an interest from us.

Q. Interest in what ?-A. In the claim. I don't think it was the truth, for Miss
Mulrooney couldn't ceommunicate with Capt. Norwood, but I can solemnly swoar 1 was
in town and nleveir saw Capt. Norwood go to the telephone before ileft. He left
before me, as I understood, by the boys.

Q. How do yon implicate Capt. Norwood ?-A. When I was speaking to you,
heretofore, J never brought this to memory.

Q. Did you give him an assign ment of any interest ?-A. I told her I would see
my partners, as I had no authority to deed over any interest until I saw Crowly and
Cunningham.

Q. Do you know where Mr. Cunningham is?
MR. CROWLY.-He is in town; I will get him.
Miss CASHMAN.-I came to see Mr. Crowly and made the proposition; I said

the only way to get the ground possibly, was, without going to court-t think it
would be better to make over an interest.

By the Commissioner:

Q. To whom ?--A. To Miss Mulrooney.
Q. Why to Miss Mulrooney?-A. Because this is the proposition I made her,

I did not make it to Capt. Norwood.
Q. Did she tell you she was acting for Capt. Norwood ?-A. She did, but she

could n't.
Q. The facts are, that instead of Capt. Norwood making an offer to you, you

made an offer to bim?-A. No, not directly.
Q. You did when you asked him if it would change his opinion ?-A. Well, we

did not settie it. my
Q. Well, you admitted ?-A. Ad mitting and swearing to it is a different thing.
Q. Now, you state you made a suggestion ?-A. No, just in behalf of ber.
Q. J don't understand?-A. I askd him if it would change him if I gave her an

interest in the claim.
Q. Why did you say her.-A. Well, I thought she bad influence and would use

it with him.
Q. What reason had you for thinking so ?-A. Because I heard many people

talking about it. You can hear anything, but you can't vouoh for thOm alil.
Q. You went on horesay ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. Miss Cashman, you said in the first part of the examination, you asked
Capt. Norwood if it would make any difference if you gave an interest of that
claim to a friend of bis, did you use those words?-A. I said a friend in town.

Q. You made other remarks ?-A. No.
Q. Did Capt. Norwood make any reply ?-A. No.
Q. Did you think ho heard you?-A. No, I believe I was a victim of Ail Fool's

Day.
27
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Q. What I want to get at, was, in the course of the conversation, you might
have made a remark ho didn't hear; do you think ho heard this?-A. I could not
swear ho understood it.

Q. Did ho evince any understanding at ail ?-A. No.
Q. Did ho make any explanation ?-A. No, sir, not a particle.
Q. Do you sincerely believe ho was influencod" by anything you said?-A. I

don't believe it; I will state afterwards something to show you ho was not. When
she made out the bill of sale, I could not swear whether it was Miss Mulrooney or
the gentleman who had charge of the building, but when she made the bill of sales
I didn't read it. I brought it to Crowly to road it. It was made out for ail the
claim, for ail the right and title to the ground; consequently if Mr. Norwood had
an interest he wouild not bo hoggish onough to take it ail; it would not be very much
inducement for Miss Mulrooney, there would not be a thing for ber; I presume,if Miss
Mulrooney could have taken the share she would have done so. I took the bill of sale
before I read it; it was for the whole claim. If you can oroduce the bill of sale
to-day, it will correspond with my evidence. Afterwards he went to work and put
it quarter interest; " My God," ho said, 'one interest at a time is enough." I said
nothing more; there was no harm done. He put it down one quarter and expressed
himselt' by saying it was cheaper to do it that way than to take it to court. I said
ail right. I took it back to ber. She accepted it.

Q. And what became of the bill of sale?-A. I suppose it was destroyed, very
likely when she found I was in earnest. I know she was laughing at m- and making
fan of me.

Q. She didn't treat the thing seriously at ail ?-A. No, she didnt.
Q. Did she give yon anything ?-A. No.
Q. Where did you meet her?-A. In the office.
Q. You talked to her in the office ?-A. She was joking me about many things.
Q. Making pleasantry?-A. Yes, she is well capable in transactions of that sort.
Q. You believed she meant it when she didn't?-A. It was later on when L got

acquainted more that I found out.
Q. What was the first consultation that passed between you-you said, " Miss

Mulroonoy, bow are yon ?"-A. Yes.
Q. Did you tell ber yu had been at the Forks?-A. Yes, I just came down.
Q. Did you make any remark about where you had bpen ?-:A. I said I had

corne from the Forks. She could not possibly get authority from the gentleman,
because they told me ho had gone to Dominion, and ho could not get back from
Dominion in three and one-half hours-the length of time it took me to come down.
I am quite a traveller wheti I arn well.

Q. That was the last telephone station ?-A. Yes.
Q. They could not get a message to Dominion, there was no such thing?-A. I

could not swear whether there was or not; I was never over to Dominion.
Q. You told her you were at the Forks-who introduced the subject?-A. Really,

I could not say.
Q. You don't know whether it was she or you ?-A. I could not swear.
Q, You said ber, first ?-A. I think I must. I asked ber if she hoard from Mr.

Norwood. Yes, I think L did.
Q. Did she smile?-A. She did.
Q. She said you were to give her an interest?-A. Yes.
Q. And him?-A. No, no; her.
Q. No such agreement?-A. Never was any agreement.
Q. Then you said-A. She said, yes. There was an interest to be conveyed

to her; she said she had heard from him, but she could not have at the time. If I
had been prudent 1 would have calied her down.

Q. Did it occur to you that she didn't hear ?-A. No, I was tired and displeased,
not having the ground.

Q. Did you know you had lost the ground?-A. Yes, eurely.
Q. Why should you give an interest if ho had not earned it ?-A. Well, when I

saw the evidence given, I could not think otherwise after the survey.
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Q. Thon, when you stated that she said she heard from IMr. Norwood she was
to have an interest, what did she say ?-A. I told ber I could not myself, but would
have to see my partners.

Q. Did you tell ber you had made an arrangement ?-A. She knew I had not
made an arrangement; you would judge she must have known.

Q. Did you give ber to understand you had not?-A. Certainly, I could not do
otherwise, because I did not.

Q. You wanted her to do so-to use ber influence with Capt. Norwood and you
would give ber thi" interest for that purpose-was an interest distinctly mentioned
ail the way through, or a claim ?-A. No, it was an interest.

Q. When you came back with the bill of sale, did you say anything about a mis-
take ?-A. I did.

Q. To her?-A. To her, yes.
Q. What did she say ?-A. She laughed.
Q. Did yon say anything ?-A. No.
Q. Jurt laughed ?-A. Yes, she seemed to treat the whole matter as a joke. I

was displeased and thought it was kind of strange she was laughing at me.
Q. You never got any benefit at ail ?-A. No, I lost the ground.
Q. You got what Capt. Norwood said ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then, you are prepared to swear, Miss Cashman, that you never understood,

nor did Capt. Norwood understand that ho was to get any interest to influence him
in his action in regard to this claim ?-A. I could not swear otherwise. I was dis-
pleased at the time, but soon afterwards I knew she was playing a joke on me and
also on him.

Q. You mean to say, after sober consideration, you are convinced in your mind
that thore wab no wrong action on bis part in connection with this claim ?-A. Not
a particle.

Q. And after sober consideration, you have corne to the conclusion that Misa
Mulrooney was treating this as a joke ?-A. Yes.

Q. She never treated it in a business-like, solemn manner ?-A. No. I asked
her where the bill of sale was, and she said she bad thrown it into the flames.

Q. Do you sincerely believe, knowing you are under oath, that this offer you
made Capt. Norwood, in any way influenced him ?-A. I believe it did not.

By the Commissioner:

Q. In making out this assignment of you and your partners to Miss Mulrooney,
what sum did you mention, or did you mention any?-A. $1. .

Q. What did you understand you were giving it for? For influence with Capt.
Norwood to got the ground, to get a judgment in your favour?-A. Yes.

Q. When you made this offer to ber and suggested that sho take an interest in
the claim, did she lead yon to bolieve she had any influence with the captain ?-A.
Yes, she said she thought she bad; she said she would talk to him.

Q. Did you take her seriously thon ?-A. I did, but she was laughing.
Q. What do you bolieve now ?-A. I believe she was fooling me. I think she

i capable of doiig that to anybody; I don't think she meant to do anything wrong
towards me.

Q. When the assignment was altorod to one-fourth interest, did you sign it?-
.Yes.

Q. What became of it?-A. I have nover seon it since.
Q. She never put it on record ?-A. No, not to my knowledge.
Mr. CLARKE.-It is not on record.
Q. Simply gave it to her to influence Capt. Norwood in giving judgment in

your favour in this dispute ?-A. I knew if he gave it in my favour, I would be
getting only what belonged to me.

Q. That is nothing to do with the question ?-A. Weli, that is the way I looked
at it. I would not take a foot away from anybody; I said probably ny witness
made a mistake when ho went to the grounid.

Q. Did she intimate that sho triod to influence Capt. Norwood Y-A. Never did.
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Q. Did you ever ask her ?-A. Yes, and she langhed at me.
Q. So you would say, that even on ber part, no effort was made to influence

Capt. Norwood ?-A. No.
Q. Tho only attempt was made by yourself when you asked him if an interest

would influence him any ?-A. Yes.
Q. Yon don't know that she used any influence on your behalf ?-A. No, sir, I

could not swear to it.
Q. You say there was some common report about Miss Mulrooney and the cap.

tain. Have you any reason to believe that Capt. Norwood had ever been receiving
interests in claims through Miss Mulrooney?-A. No, I don't believe he did.

Q. Have you any reason to believe ?--A. Nothing except from rumours. If you
are a saint in Dawson, yon would be made a devil before you got through; if you
carry a Bible in your arm you are a fraud. Commou sense teaches that. I have
been in mining camps for thirty-five years, and if I had common sense, I would not
have bothered Miss Mulroonoy. I think she was putting up a job on me.

Q. Do you know personally that Miss Mulrooney and Capt. Norwood were ever
concerned in speculations of that kind ?-A. No, I could not swear te it.

Q. Then, ail you know then, of the relations between Miss Mulrooney and Capt.
Norwood, is based on rumours ?-A. Yes, on rumours that I heard.

MINING RECORDER'S OFFICE,
DAwsoN, 22nd August, 1898.

DAwsON CITY,
DiSTRICT OF YUKON,

To WIT:

Miss NELLIE CASIIMAN makes oath as follows

I went to Capt. Norwood with the commissioner's letter, and he, Capt. Norwood,
told me he would take a surveyor to look up the boundaries. He took the surveyor
accompanied by myself and my nephew and Mr. Smythe who was with Mrs. John-
dreau when the claim was first located. The stakes had been renewed from where
they originally stood, and the surveyor seemed against us. I was afraid I would
not get justice, so I told Capt. Norwood I supposed I would have to give an interest
in the claim to Miss Mulrooney to get justice, and he laughed and told me I would
get justice, that he wouldn't give me the worst of it. When I arrived at Dawson, I
asked Miss Mulrooney if she had any word from Capt. Norwood in reference to this
claim in dispute und she said yes. That I was to make out the bill of sale and I
would get the ground according to the affidavit made by Mrs. Johndreau. Miss
Mulrooney made out the bill of sale for one-fourth interest, conveyingz the interest
to herself, and I signed the bill of sale. My partners also signed it. When I handed
her the bill of sale, I said Miss Mulrooney you will get quite a sum of money out of
this in the spring and she said she held the property for the captain (meaning Capt.
Norwood). After the bill of sale was made out, the surveyor went a second time
accompanied by my nephew, but I was not present.

NELLIE CASHMAN.

SwoRN before me at Dawson, Yukon Territory, this 22nd day of Auguet, 1898.

NoTE.-This was written out by Thomas Fawcett (late gold commissioner) and
was sworn to before him, but he did not sign the Jurat.

W. o.



Ogilvie Commission of Inquiry.

JOHN CROWLY, sworn and examined:-

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. Mr. Crowly, you beard Miss Cashman's testimony in her cabin about the
proposition made to Capt. Norwood, and ber conversation and dealings with Miss
Mulrooney; are they true ?-A. Well, true to a certain extent; I know about what
happened as far as I am concerned.

Q. State what you know ?-A. It bas been hearsay and supposition with me. I
have not met either of these two parties; I don't know if they had anything or not.
I was allowed a certain amournt down for a consideration. I was supposed to go
according to dictation.

Q. Were you present when Miss Cashman made this suggestion to Capt. Nor-
.wood?-A. No, I was not; I never met Mr. Norwood. I was sick most of the time.

Q. You were not present on this occasion, when Mr. Barwell was there making
a survey ?-A. No, sir.

Q. You didn't hear anything of this request Miss Cashman made of Norwood?
-A. No, sir.

Q. Did you hear anything of the dealing between Miss Cashman and Miss Mul-
rooney?-A. No, sir.

Q. What do you know ?-A. I was asked to give up a certain portion; I was not
supposed to know much about jt. I bad one-half originally, which was sliced to one-
third and then to one-quarter.

Q. When Miss Cashman brought this document, what was the purport of it ?-
A. The document was supposed to be to Miss Mulrooney, giving ber a certain inter-
est. I could not swear whether it was for an interest or for a whole claim; I remem-
ber it being rectified, niaking it a one-quarter interest. Thero was no interest
specified in the bill of sale.

Q. In the bill of sale was there any consideration made ?-A. $1.
Q. Was there any other consideration understood ?-A. Not that I am aware of.
Q. What did yo~u think you were doing when you were asked to sign a docu-

ment like that?-A. I realized I was giving up my portion, one-fourth interest.
Q. Why?-A. Well, I understood thatthis interestwasgoingto Miss Mulrooney,

and she was to do something regarding the moving of our boundaries.
Q. Who led you to believe Miss Mulrooney would do this ?-A. Miss Cashman.
Q. All you know is what Miss Cashman said ?-A. Yes, only hearsay.
Q. You bad never any conversation with Capt. Norwood or Miss Mulrooney;

all you know is what Miss Cashman told you ?-A. Yes, sir.

THOMAS J. CUNNINGHAM, sworn and examined:-

By Mr. O. B. Clarke:

Before Mr. Cunningham gives his evidence, as he was not present, it might be
wiso to have the evidence read over.

The CommissioNER.-It is pretty long, and I will summarize what sho said.
Mr. Cunningham, we have just taken Miss Cashman's evidence at her cabin; she

said something to this effect: That she was interested in a claim purchased from
Mrs. Johndreau; that others were interested as well as herself in it; that there was
a dispute about the boundaries; that the matter was referred by Mr. Fawcett, to
whom Miss Cashman applied, to Capt. Norwood for the hearing of evidence in the
case; that Mr. Barwell, the surveyor, was taken up there by Miss Cashman and
made a survey of this claim, and it was found that this survey did not extend their
claim as they believed it would; that Miss Cashman asked Uapt. Norwood if an
interest in the claim would influence him or change his opinion-
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Mr. CLARKE.-An interest 10 a friend in town, Mr. Commissioner.
The CoMMIsIoNER.-Yes; that after she had had this conversation with Mr.

Norwood, she came to town and saw Miss Mulrooney; that Miss Mulrooney led
her to believe that she could get her an interest in the claim by influencing Capt.
Norwood. iNow, she (Miss Cashman) says Miss Mulrooney was fooling; that an
assignment of an interest in the claim was made out, by whom she does not know;
that on reading it over it was dibcovered it was for the whole claim, and she refused
te make the assignment-in full; that is substantially what was said. Upon being
questioned, she said she thought Miss Mulrooney was plaving a trick on her-was
fooling her--a joke, as she called it, and stated that Miss Mulrooney was capable of
playing such pranks. Now, you have an outline of what ber statements were-how
far do you know them to be true ?-A. That is as far as I know; 1 had no dealings
with either one of them.

Q. Yen heard Mr. Crowly's evidence ?-A. Yes; I have no more to say than lie.
las. i was not present.

Q. Yon don't know anything further about the matter?-A. No, only what Mr.
Crowly said.

Q. You know uothing positive about it: only what Miss Cashman told you ?-
A. That is all I know.

Miss BELINDA MULROONEY, called and sworn:-

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. Do yen know Miss Cashman ?-A. Yes.
Q. Do you remember her coming into the hotel sometime in August last with

-reference to this claim we have mentioned to.day? -A. In August ? I don't know
what month.

Q. Just give as nearly as yen can the substance of the conversation. I might
state what she said : she said she came in and that she informed you that she had
been at the Forks, after the usual salutations, and she asked you if you had heard
from Capt. Norwood. You said you bad, and that he had told you to get an interest
from her. You have the bill of sale ?-A. Yes (presenting the bill of sale).

Q. What date was that bill of sale ?-A. This bill of sale is dated the 8th of
August.

Q. Just explain te us what took place in that interview as near as you can
recollect.-A. lt does not appear to me that it should be dated in August. The
interview we had was at Nellie Cashman's restaurant where I was eating, if I
remember right. To go into the matter, I could not tell you anything of the con-
versation, because I regarded Miss Cashman's conversation with little interest. It
was ber custom to ask me to become a partner of hers, thinking i had a certain
amount of interest with regard to fractions and the like. She wanted me before she
purchased this claim as a partner. I told her that I could not go in asher partner-
then, when she found she could purchase this claim at a very small price, she sug-
gested that I then be a partner, on the strength of which she borrowed a few dollars
from me which she had to send to some relative. She asked me then how te make
out the form of a bill of sale. I started, but I said te myself, " 1 don't want any-
thing te do with this," and left it half made out, as you will see, Mr. Commissioner,
by looking at the writing. She took the trouble to finish it, got some lawyer and
took an affidavit te it; handed me the bill of sale, and after that bill of sale was in
my possession she tried te insist on my getting Capt. Norwood to move some stakes,
as she wanted to take in part of some other claim. After that conversation I threw
the bill of sale to the bottom of the safe. i didn't want to bother Capt. Norwood
about it. I was afraid-of insulting him with it.
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Mr. CLARKE.-Now, this bill of sale was evidently made out on the 8th of
Adgnst. Yon will notice the affidavit of execution bas been sworn before Mr. Burritt,
unless Mr. Burritt was mistaken, that was the date it was executed.-A. This bill of
sale I attempted to malre-there is my handwriting at the beginnivig of it; this last
part is not my handwriting; Miss Cashman finished the bill of sale and took it to
some lawyer who made an affidavit.

Q. That was on the 8th of August ?-A. So it appears in the bill of sale; in my
mind, it cannot be that, for my house was not running at the time the bill of sale
was made out.

Q. When did your bouse start running ?-A. On the 27th; after that I remember
she was in the bouse a good deal and tried to bave me use the telephoneto the Forks.
Two or three times I took down the 'receiver and spoke some words into it and
placed it back again, just to get rid of her; it was nonsense to me to be candid.

Q. You say itwas some time in July-about the 27th of July that you first saw
Nellie Cash man ?-A. It must be before that, because I was at her house at the time
she wa't after me to take an interest in this claim. She wanted me to purcbase it
first. I could not have been eating at her place after my own opened; certainly
that bears the wrong date if I remember right.

Q. Perhaps you got the two confused-how long after the time that you started
to make it out was it signed ?-A. I think, in October.

Q. Not a long time ?-A, No.
Q. It would not be delivered to you much later than the 8th of August, Miss

Mnlrooney ?-A. My impression was that it was before.
Q. Would you be confident in saying it was not delivered after that ?-A. No.

The only thing is, that it cou Id not be long after the time I was eating in her restau-
rant; I was not in the habit of eating in Miss Cashman's restaurant after my own
was opened.

Q. Whatever interviews took place with Miss Cashman, took place outside the
hotel ?-A. Well, it was in regard to that we talked in her restaurant. She wished
me to get Mr. Norwood to m've some stakes.

Q. Whattime?-A. About the end ofAugust, I believe-27th August we opened.
She t-aid she bad come from the Forks, I remember.

Q. This time you say she came to you and asked the captain to move some
stakes, was that after you reteived the bill of sale or before ?-A. After I had
received the bill of sale.

Q. When she gave you the bill of sale what did she say?-A. She said she
wished to be a partner of mine on the strengtb of knowledge she expected I had
witb regard to these fractions and other things.

Q. And she thought you would earn your share in the partnership by getting
Capt. Norwood to move the stakes ?-A. Yes, get assistance in that way.

Q. Did you receive the bill of sale seriously ?-A. No, if I bad, I would have
recorded it. Fortunately I found it. The only thing that created my interest in
the matter, was a few letters asking me to give it up as it would avoid a lot of
trouble. I have kept the bill of sale as I beheved there was some object in getting
it away from me.

Q. Were they signed ?-A. Yes, by Messrs. Cunningham or Crowly, I don't
know whicb.

Q. Have you kept the letters ?-A. I believe I have one of them at my bouse.
Q. You could produce one letter ?-A. I think so.
Q. It was then yon saw the i mportance of preserving the document ?-A. Yes,

I hunted it up and kept it. I didn't record itbecause Ididn'twish the partnership.
Q. Did you ever speak to Capt. Norwood about this? Did you ever show him

the document ?-A. No, not until this matter came up.
Q. And therefore Capt. Norwood bas no claim in that, whatever ?-A. He

didn't know I was interested in it until this trouble occurred.
Q. Did you ever, in any way, attempt to induce Capt. Norwood to interfere ?-

A. No, not in any shape or form; I would not insult him with such a proposition.
33
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By the Commissioner :

Q. Miss Cashman staîted that you assigned the whole claim, but afterwards it
was changed to a one-fourth interest; now I sec in your writing a one-fourth interest,
is that the original ?-A. That is ali I had to do with it.

Q. She must have been mistaken in saying that the whole claim was mon-
tioned ?-A. She is mistaken in the whole matter.

Q. When you atccepted one-fourth interest, you stated that it was with a view
to partnership to obtaini the bonefit of your knowledge of fractions ?-A. To obtain
the benefit of my knowledge of fi actions that she believed wero adjoicing her claim
and other fractions sho wished to get.

Q. Did she intimate in any way that she wishod also the benefit of your influ-
once with Capt. Norwood ?-A. No, I didn't speak to Capt. Norwood until after the
bill of sale, when she came to me and wanted the captain to move the stakes.

Q. At the time of the bill of sale his name was not mentioned ?-A. No, nothing
until after it was over with. This the captain was expected to do, on account of
the friendship that she believed existed between bim and me.

Q. You never tried to influence Capt. Norwood in the matter ?-A. Not in any
shapu or form.

Q. Havc you reason to think Capt. Norwood could be influenced ?-A. No.
The CoMMIssIONER:-l am very sorry our time bas been taken up with such a

trifie.

Mr. H. H. NoawooD, sworn and examined:-

By Mr. Clarke:

Q. State as near as you can, Capt. Norwood, what you know about this case ?-
A. Well, I don't recollect any of the dates, but I think it was some time the latter
part of August when Miss Cashman came to me at the Forks, and brought a lettor
to me from Mir. Fawcett. This was instructing me to turn over this property to
Miss Cashman; that Mrs. Johndreau had staked and had a prior claim to it. 1 told
Miss Cashman at the time I could nct do anything until I got a surveyor. Three or
four days afterwards she came to me with Mr. Barwell. I went up with two or
three witnesses, I think this gentleman hore, Mr. Cunningham, was one. There was
a Mr. Smyth, in particular, who bad- restaked the claim and had an order from the
gold commissioner, so I went out on the hill and told him to locate the first stake
he put in. He went to find the up-hill up-stream stake. He found it and said that
was the flrst one ho put in, and what ho started from. I told him to find the second
one, and ho went down stream and found the second ; the other two ho could not
find. I told him to put thom in as near as ho could put them-as near as ho could
remember. He did so. I had the surveyor measure, and, if I remember right, it
was 87 feet from the initial stake to the second, which left 13 feet short of a 100
foot claim. I wanted this evidecce to decide by. I told the surveyor to take the
affidavits of the record and staking to the office. Whon I came back to the office
and looked over the evidence, I found that he had made an affidavit to the effect
that he had staked the claim and had gone toward Russell that distance. I said I
could not give him any more ground, because the size of the claim was limited ; ho
was 13 feet short.

Q. Limited by the stakes ?-A. Yes. In the meantime, Russell, who owned
the adjoining claim, asked me to move the stakes and give her the 13 feet. I said
she didn't have to do it, but ho insisted, and I did. I gave ber 100 feet square, and
told the surveyor to measure it. Afterwards, they wanted to start the survey from
Discovery stake on the other side. I could not do it after the evidence ho gave as
to where ho staked. In the meantime Miss Cashman came to me. I didn't pay
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much attention to her; I have forgotten whether she offered half, quarter or three-
quarters, or the whcle of it; anyway, I paid no attention to it whatever, nor did I
decide any different than if she had never offered anything. I never know until I
came back who she gave the intorest to, or why she had. I don't know one thing
about it.

Q. Then Mr. Barwell came up and surveyed the claim?-A. Yes.
Q. ie was employed by Miss Cashman ?-A. Yos, she brought him there.
Q. On her own surveyor's survey, she was only entitled to the ground you gave

her ?-A. Yes, and the evidence put in in regard to the staking of it, but afterwards
I added 13 feet from the man adjoining.

Q. Now, you say you had forgotten about this offer; is that a customary
thing ?-A. In some ways it was not, in some ways it was. If I went up to the
office to give a miner's license after hours, or went to any trouble, he wanted to pay
me for it; I think it was on account of their being so good hearted.

Q. Have you always refused these offers ?-A. 1 want it put down, that I never
accepted a dollar for any official work.

Q. Now, in this particular case, I want it made very elear, were you privy in
any way in this mattor ?-A. I never knew one thing about it; 1 never knew the
trarisfer was made.

Q. Did you over accept anythingfrom Miss Nellie Cashman, or did.you arrange
for anything?-A. No.

Q. To be paid then or any other time?-A. No, I did not.
Q. And you are innocent entirely of this whole transaction ?-A. Yes. I knew

there was some charge against me before I went out last fall, but ILdid not know who
it was made it.

Q. Did you ever see this conveyance ?-A. Not until I saw it at the botel, when
this case was going to be brought up, ton or twelve days ago.

By the Commissioner:

Q. You don't remember that I mentioned this matter to you before yo went
out last fall, when you asked me for leave of absence?-A. I remember there was a
charge made against me; I don't remember you ever telling me who made it. You
told me in a letter which I have, that I had got property through Miss Mulrooney's
name.

Q. I mentioned the party's name in the conversation ?-A. I don't remomber it.
Q. You have heard what Miss Mulrooney s-vid about never having approached

you in that manner? Did she ever approach you in any way to influence you in
this matter ?-A. No, not in any way, shape nor form.

Q. Did you ever lead her to believe she could influence you?-A. I certainly
did not.

THE CoMMIssIoNER.-I must say, the gentlemen a«cused have explained their
positions most satisfactorily. I don't thinlc I can be blamed for saying the accused
have acquitted themsolves fully and fairly.
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DOMINION OF CANADA,
YUKON TERRITORY,

To Wit.:

We, J. N. E. Brown and F. M. Shepard, both of Dawson, Y.T., stenographers,
do solemnly declare that the paper writing hereto annexed is a correct transcript of
the evidence taken before William Ogilvie, Esquire, sitting as Royal Commissioner,
for the investigation of charges preferred against officials of said territory on the
following dates, to wit.: 9th May and 17th May, 1899.

And we make this solemu declaration conscientiously believing it to be true
and knowing that it is of the same force and effect as If made under oath, and by
virtue of the Canada Evidence Act of 1893.

J. N. E. BROWN.
F. M. SIIEPARD.

Declared bnfore me, at Dawson,
Yukon Territory, this 3Oth
day of May, A.D. 1899. 1

W. H. P. CLEMENT,
Commissioner.
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RETURN
[88.1

To AN ADDRESS OF TIE SENATE dated the 22nd May, 1899, for:-

1. The original contract entered into between the Government and the
proprietors of the Drummond County Railway and the Grand Trunk Railway
Company.

2. The present contract or agreement entered into between the same
persons or companies.

3. A statement of all moneys paid to the proprietors of said railways
from the date of the non-ratification of the first contract to the 31st March,
1899.

4. An account of the earnings and working expenses of the Drummond
County Railway from the time of it being first worked in connection with the
Intercolonial Railway to the 31st March, 1899.

5. And also, an account of the total amount of money paid the Grand
Trunk Railway Company for station accommodation, running powers over its
line, for bridge extension, or for any purpose whatever in connection with the
extension of the Intercolonial Railway system to Montreal.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

This agreenient, made this fifteenth day of May, in the year of our Lord one thou-
sand eight hundred and ninety-seven

Between the Grand Trunk Railway Company of Canada, hereinafter called "The
Company, " of the first part, and Her Majesty Queen Victoria, represented herein by
the Honourable the Minister of Railways and Canals of Canada, who is herein referred
to as "the Minister," Her Majesty so represented beiig hereinafter called or referred
to as "lHer Majesty," of the second part.

Whereas, Her Majesty proposes extending the Intercolonial Railway, a government
railway of Canada, from Chaudière Junction, in the province of Quebec. to the city of
Montreal, in said province, with termini in that city;

And whereas, Her Majesty has made arrangements with the Drummond County
Railway Company for the lease of all its railway now completed, or hereafter to be com-
pleted, between Chaudière Junction and Ste. Rosalie in the said province of Quebec;

And whereas, for the purpose of carrying out the said extension the said company
is willing that, for the conducting of the business and traffic of the Intercolonial Rail-
way, Her Majesty shall have an undivided one-half share or leasehold interest in the
company's railway and property between and including Ste. Rosalie and St. Lambert
station at the eastern end of the Victoria Bridge, together with the use of the company's
railway and property between and including Ste. Rosalie and Bonaventure station in
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the city of Montreal, the use of the Victoria Bridge across the River St. Lawrence and
of the terminais and connections hereinafter more particularly described, together with
an undivided one-half interest in and use of the bridge across the Chaudière River, and
of -o much of the tracks and line of the said company in connection therewith as are
hereinafter described, ail of which right, title, property, interest and user -hall be used,
enjoyed and exercised to the saine extent as if the said railway and property were owned
by Her Majesty, in the manner and upon the terms and conditions herein contained ;

And whereas, this agreement has been executed subject to confirmation by Act of
Parliament as hereinafter provided and also by the shareholders of said company;

And whereas by order of the Governor General in Council dated the twenty-fourth
day of March, eighteen hundred and ninety-seven, authority is given to the Minister
subject to the sanction of Parliamuent to enter into a contract with the company for the
acquisition of the above rights and interests;

Now, this indenture witnesseth that the expression " Joint Section," wherever used
in this Indenture shall mean the Company's line and connections at Ste. Rosalie, and
the whole line and branches and appurtenances hereby demised from Ste. Rosalie to St.
Lambert and the Victoria Bridge, together with the terminals at Bonaventure station
in the city of Montreal and at Point St. Charles, and intermediate points between Point
St. Charles and the Bonaventure station, and the connections and junctions of the com-
pany's lines with other lines of railway and the Chaudière Bridge and connections,-
except when the meaning shall conflict with the context or otherwise plainly expressed
terms of the clause in which the same is used. That the said company in consideration
of the rents, convenants, conditions and agreements hereinafter contained and reserved
hath given, granted, demised and leased and by these presents doth give, grant, demise
and lease unto Her Majesty, her successors and assigns al], an undivided one-half share
interest, right and title to ail the company's line of railway roadbed and property from
and including Ste. Rosalie station in the county of Bagot, in the province of Quebec to
the Victoria Bridge, and also the undivided one-half right, share, title or interest in the
company's line of railway from a point on the western side of the Chaudière Bridge at
the proposed junction of the Drummond County railway with the compan\ 's line, and
including the Chaudière Bridge, and to, and including the switch at the
easterly side of the Chaudière Junction station, being the same rights and
privileges agreed to be leased to the Drummond County Railway by the com-
pany, with the full and unlimited right and privileges such as the company
itself enjoys of running the engines. vehicles, rolling stock and trains of the said Inter-
colonial Railway, either separately or combined and as frequently and at such times as
its business and traffic may require and in both directions over any and every portion of
the said company's railway hetween and including the said points aforesaid and the use
of the Victoria Bridge across the River St. Lawrence as it at present exists or as it nay
at any time during the subsistence of this lease be improved, reconstructed, enlarged or
extended, and over the company's line and lines of railway over the said Victoria
Bridge and into the Bonaventure station in the city of Montreal and the other terminal
points, junctions and connections, of the company on the said Island of Montreal here-
inafter more particularly described, together with the full and unlimited right and
privilege of having the business and traffic of the Intercolonial Railway done in and
about the stations and premises of the said company upon any portions of the company's
Une hereinbefore described and of the terminals and connections herein mentioned and
all intermediate stations and premises of the company and in and about and upon ail
stations, tracks and sidings, branches or extensions belonging to or leased by the c>m-
pany or connected with the tracks of the compaiy, together with the full and unlimited
right in Her Majesty of constructing stations, tracks, branches and sidings, and con-
necting said tracks, branches and sidings, with the main branch and leased line of the
company at any point or points between and including Ste. Rosalie and Montreal, on
the terms and conditions hereinafter contained for the term of ninety-nine years from
and after the first day of November eighteen hundred and ninety-seven, with the right
of renewal as hereinafter provided. The construction of such stations, tracks, branches
and sidings, with the main branch and leased lines of the company as herein provided
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for shall, however, be made under the supervision and subject to the approval of the
chief engineer of the company, which right of approval shall be reasonably exercised.

To have and to hold said rights and privileges unto Her Majesty, her successors
and assigns from and after the first day of November, eighteen hundred and ninety-
seven, for the term of ninety-nine years, yielding and paying therefor to the said com-
pany, its successors and assigns, a yearly rental of one hundred and forty thousand
dollars ($140,000), such rent to be payable in equal sums monthly, that is to say, eleven
thousand six hundred and sixty-six dollars and sixty-six cents ($11,666.66)
on the first week day of every month in each year or a proportionate sum
for any fractional part of a month, the first payment to be made on the first week day
of the month next following the day on which Her Majesty goes into possession of the
said leased lines and property and begins to run trains over the saine:

And these presents are made upon and subject to the provisions and conditions
hereinafter expressed and contained for the due performance and observance of all of
which, on the part of each of them to be done and performed, Her Majesty and the
company bind thenselves and each of them respectively, their successors and assigns,
that is to say :-

First :-That Her Majesty shall and will during the continuance of this lease or
any renewal thereof pay to the Company the rent hereby reserved in the manner and at
the times hereinbefore nentioned without any deduction whatsoever, save for the
reasons and on accouit of the happening of any or either contingency or contingencies
hereinafter mentioned.

Second:-That the company shall and will keep up and maintain at all tines iii
good repair and in a thorough efficient working condition the whole of the railway
tracks, bridges, switches, sidings, signals, buildings of all kinds, platforms, water-tanks,
water supplies, telegraph lines and appliances, fences, crossings and all other appurte-
nances and appliances belonging to the company's railway between and including Ste.
Rosalie and Montreal, and of the terminals and connections herein described and
between the Chaudière Bridge and connections, the right and privilege of using which
is included in this demise.

Third:-That Her Majesty shall and will pay to the company a share of the cost
of maintenance of this railway between and including Ste. Rosalie and Point St. Charles,
and Chaudière Bridge and connections, including tracks, bridges, switches, sidings,
signals, appliances of all kinds, platforms, water-tanks, water supplies, fuel stations,
fences, crossings and all other appurtenances and appliances it has the right and privilege
of using which is included in this demise, such share of the cost of maintenance to be
in the proportion that the combined engine and car mileage of the Intercolonial Rail-
way trains running over the above mentioned sections of railway bears to the total
combined engine and car mileage over the above mentioned sections of railway during
each month; every engine. passenger and freight car counting each as one car, and
from Point St. Charles and west to Bonaventure station including the yards, such share
of the cost of maintenance as aforesaid to be in the proportion that the combined
engine and car mileage of the Intercolonial Railway trains running over the above last
mentioned railway section and yards bears to the total combined engine and car mileage
running over the above last mentioned section of the railway during each month ; but
notwithstanding anything herein mentioned, the cost of maintenance of the Victoria
Bridge shall not include the cost of maintaining any part or portion thereof except that
which shall be used by the Intercolonial Railway and the company, and for that class
of railway purpose, which cost of maintenance shall be apportioned as aforesaid.

Fourth:-That Her Majesty shall have the right for all purposes of the business
and traffic of the Intercolonial Railway, under the reasonable rules and regulations of
the company, to the full and unlimited use and the full and unlimited access thereto, as
the same is or may be enjoyed by the company itself, of, to and from all engine houses,
car houses and sheds, fuel sheds, water-tanks, station houses, freight and ticket offices,
warehouses, freight sheds, baggage rooms, dining rooms, and all furniture and fittings
appertaining thereto ; all weighing scales and baggage and freight trucks ; all tracks,
sidings, branches or extensions either belonging to or leased by the company at Montreal,
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including the terminals and other connections of the company at Point St. Charles and
intermediate points between Point St. Charles and Bonaventure station, and of the
connections with other railways as the same now exist or as they may hereafter be built,
rebuilt or improved, upon terms as herein specified.

Fifth:-That if any of the said buildings or accommodations or facilities or any-
thing appertaining thereto be destroyed by fire or other casuality, either in whole or
part, Her Majesty shall have no claim against the company for damages on account of
loss of accommodation, but Her Majesty shall have, free of any other charge than the
aforementioned rental, a proportionate share of such accommodation as the company
may be able to provide for the use of its business and traffic and of the new*accommoda-
tion so soon as the same may be provided, and reconstruction shall be proceeded with
of such buildings and accommodation by the company at its own cost with all reasonable
despatch.

Sixth :-In all cases of collision between the trains of the parties hereto, the party
whose men or trains are at fault, and are or shall be found to have been the occasion
of the collision shall be held responsible to the other party for all damages done or
resulting f rom such collision, and in case the proper officers of the two parties hereto
cannot agiree as to which of the parties was at fault and was the cause of the collision
or as to the amount of damage done then the questions arising in respect thereto shall
be referred to arbitration in the manner hereinafter prcvided for the settlement of
differences and disputes as to the other questions and each of the parties hereto who
shall be found responsible under this clause or under clauses similar thereto shall
idemnify the other and hold such other liarmless and lefend the other from and against
all claims, cost and proceeding resulting from or growing out of such default on their
part and the party so adjudged liable to pay the other any damages in respect thereof
shall abide by and perforn the award of the arbitrators and such award shall be in all
cases final and terminate the controversy between the parties.

Seventh :-In case of injury to persons or property not in transit carried on the
trains of either party hereto or of damage by fire caused by the operation of the trains
upon the said joint section or upon lands adjoining the same, the claims arising shall be
adjusted and settled by the proper officers of the compan ý and in payment thereof the
party in fault shall pay the full amount of liability, provided, however, that in the event
of its being impossib:e for want of evidence to fix the liability on one of the parties
hereto the amount of liability including costs shall be borne by the two parties in the
proportion which the nuinber of cars of the Intercolonial Railway bears to the total
number of cars passing over the said joint section at the point where the injury has
occurred during the current month in which the damage or injury happened. In case
of injury occurring to persons or property on the trains of either party the proper officer
of the party on whose train the said injury occurred shall settle the same in all cases of
settlement under this clause. The release executed shall be made to include and free
and discharge both the parties hereto from all and further liability to the claimant.

Any loss or damage to person or property on the trains of either of the parties
hereto which may be caused in any manner whatever by the negligence or the fault of
any person or persons in the joint employ of the parties hereto while in the working of
said railway hereby demised or the terminals thereof, shall be paid by the party upon
whose train such loss or damage occurs and such party shall save the other harmless
and indemnify the other from all claims, costs, or proceedings for or in respect to such
loss or damage.

Eighth :-That each of the parties hereto shall be responsible for accidents or casua-
lities upon or to its own trains or for damages that may occur to live stock or to persons
walking on the track, if there be any liability therefor and which shall result by reason
of or on account of any imperfection of track or misplacement of switches or from any
other cause otherwise or except collision with the trains of the other party and any such
last mentioned accident or casuality shall not give the other party a right of action or
claim against the other it being the intent hereof that each party shall be responsible for
its own trains and for the conduct of its own employees and shall generally be so res-
ponsible except when the other party is in fault.

A. 1899



Intercolonial Railway Extension.

Ninth:-That the company shall and will furnish free from any other charge than
the aforementioned rental at stations and sidings between and including Ste. Rosalie
and Montreal and terminals and yards aforesaid, standing room for the rolling stock of
the Intereolonial Railway and for other rolling stock which may be brought by the
trains of the Intercolonial Railway.

Tenth :-That. the parties hercto shall enjoy in all respects equal rights to the said
tracks, buildings and improvements used in common unless wherein restricted in this
lease, and the trains of Her Majesty shall in every respect be treated by the officers,
agents aid employees of the company as trains of a similar class of the company, and
the higher class trains shall have equal preference over trains of the lower class belong-
ing to either of the parties, and Her Majesty shall have a perfect right tg run all classes
of trains, passenger, mixed, freight and other trains over the said joint section, subject
only to the restrictions and regulations prescribed and provided for in this lease. In
case of doubt between the trains of the company and Her Majesty of the same class,
under the established rules the trains of the company shall have the preference. The
main tracks are as far as practicable to be kept unobstructed for the use of both of the
parties hereto.

Eleventh :-In preparing the time tables the company shall and will, as regards the
trains of the Intercolonial Railway, arrange the time of arrivais and departures from
ail stations between and includiing Ste. Rosalie and Montreal, and the speed of said
trains, in accordance with the reasonable request of the Intercolonial Railway officials,
made from time to time.

Twe/fth :-That the station masters, freight agents, ticket agents and baggage mis-
ters of the company on the said joint section shall as far as the business and traffic of
the Intercolonial Railway is concerned to ail intents and purposes but subject to the
payment of a share of their wages as is hereinafter provided, be the employees of the
Intercolonial Railway and shall from time to time in regard to such business report
directly to and receive and carry out the instructions of the proper officials of the Inter-
colonial Railway.

T/'irteenth :-That the company shall and will cause the station masters, freight
agents, ticket agents and cther joint employees at all stations between and including
Ste. Rosalie and Montreal to be strictly neutral as between the Intercolonial Railway
and the company and to waybill freight and sell tickets by whichever of these routes
may be indicated or desired by shippers or passengers.

Fourteenth :- That ail business and traffic secured by agents of the Intercolonial
Railway or carried in its trains shall be the business and traffic of the Intercolonial
Railway.

Fifteenth :-That the Intercolonial Railway shall have the right to carry in and on
its through trains traffic to and from and between all points on the line of railway
extending from Ste. Rosalie to Montreal, both inclusive, and in the conducting of its
business between and including these stations shall have the right of conducting this
business in as full and complete a manner as the company itself.

That the rates and fares charged between points on the joint section shall be those
established by the company and to and from points on the Intercolonial Railway shall
be the same by the company and the Intercolonial Railway.

Sixteenth:-That the Intercolonial Railway shall have the right to carry in and on
its through trains to and from all points on their line of railway between and including
Ste. Rosalie and Montreal all traffic coming from or intended for Montreal, or coming
from or intended for any point on the Island of Montreal, or coming from or intended
for any and all other points, and to enjoy the same rights and privileges in regard to
such business as the company itself bas and enjoys in similar business from and to such
above mentioned points.

Seventeenth :-That all moneys collected in the vehicles and trains of the Interco-
lonial Railway Company at any and all points between and including Ste. Rosalie and
Montreal shall belong to and be deemed to have been earned by Her Majesty, and the
company shall not be entitled to receive any portion thereof ; and that all money
collected and received by the station masters, freight agents, ticket agents, baggage
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masters and any and all persons who may from time to time be authorized or instructed
by the proper officials of the Intercolonial Rail way to collect and receive money between
and including Ste. Rosalie and Montreal for Intercolonial Railway business and traffic,
including among other things car rental, storage of freight in cars and storage of goods
in the company's warehouses and freight sheds, or collected and received for any other
business in any way connected with the Intercolonial Railway, belongs to Her Majesty
and shall be deposited in bank to the credit of the Receiver General of Canada, or
remitted to the cashier of the Intercolonial Railway, or otherwise disposed of as the
Minister may from time to time direct.

Eighteenth:-That local tickets issued by either of the parties hereto for passage
between and including Ste. Rosalie and Montreal or any intermediate station shall be
accepted on all trains of either party hereto between said points, and the party who
issued the tickets shall, on presentation of the ticket so used and collected, pay to the
party who carried the passengers the full amount received for the said ticket.

Nineteenth :-That Her Majesty shall pay to the company a share of the salaries
and wages of the underm-ntioned persons at stations on the said joint section and
terminals for their services in connection with Intercolonial Railway business and traffic
when such services are rendered, as follows:-

Train despatchers, station masters, telegraph operators, track men, in the pro-
portion that the number of the Intercolonial Railway trains using the premises hereby
demised bears to the total number of trains using the said premises; ticket agents,
baggage masters, baggage porters and policemen, in the proportion that the nuinber of
Intercolonial Railway passenger trains using the premises hereby demised bear to the
total numiber of passenger trains using the same; freight agents, freight clerks, freight
checkers, freight porters and watchmen, in the proportion that the tonnage of the
Intercolonial Railway freight handIed by porters bears to the total tonnage handled by
all porters on said premises ; all such proportionate part of the salaries of the superin-
tendent, train master, road master and assistant engineer as the mileage of the joint
section bears to the total mnileage of road under jurisdiction of the officials named shall
be divided between the parties hereto in the proportion tiat the number of cars of the
Intercolonial Railway bears to the total number of cars passing over the joint section
and also a share of the cost of running, shunting and switching engines, and of the
wages of yard masters, shunters, switchmen and car checkers at each station between
and including Ste. Rosalie and Montreal, and the terminals, junctions and connections
aforesaid and the Chaudière section, in the proportion that the number of cars arriving
and departing from the station used in the business and trafflic of the Intercolonial
Railway bears to the number of cars arriving and departing therefroi. Her Majesty
shail also have the right and privilege of having her cars loaded or empty taken by the
company to the company's junctions with connecting lines, factories, warehouses and
works which may be provided with standing accommodation from the tracks of the
conpany at Montreal including Point St. Charles, St. Henri, and intermediate points,
and Bonaventure station, and the connections or junctions with the company's line, and
over and upon the said joint -ection.

Twentieth:-That the engines, -ehicles, rolling stock and trains in connection with
the business and traffic of the Intercolonial Railway shall be manned exclusively by
officials and employees of the Intercolonial, who, while on the railway and premises of
the company on the said joint section, shall be subject to the reasonable rules and regula-
tions of the company and the directions of the officials of the company so far only as
the movements of the engines, vehicles and trains are concerned.

That ler Majesty shall and will be responsible for any mileage on foreign cars
carried over the joint sections by the Intercolonial Railway trains, which shall for the
purpose of calculating the mileage charges be the cars of the Intercolonial Railway.

Twenty-firt :-That the company shall and will house the engines of the Intercolonial
Railway, and shall and will, if required, turn and clean them and fit them for the road,
and supply them with fuel and water and small stores at all points, connections,
junctions and terminals, as aforesaid, where it performs such services for any of its own
engines, and Her Majesty shall pay to the company the actual cost to the company of
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the labour and material used therein and therefor; provided that Her Majesty may, at
any point or at ail points on the premises above mentioned, or at any time or times,
perform the whole or any portion of the above services with the employees of the Inter-
colonial Railway and with the supplies thereof without being liable to any charge
therefor by the company.

7'wenty-second:-That the company shall and will, if required to do so, at any or
all stations on said joint section, clean the passenger train cars used in the business and
traffi of the Intercolonial Railway, and heat and supply them with water, ice, fuel and
.smali stores, and Her Majesty shall pay to the company the cost to the company of the
material, labour and stores used in such services: provided that Her Majesty may, at
any point or points on the premises above mentioned of the company, and at any time
or timnes, perforn the whole or any portion of the above services with the employees of
the Intercolonial Railway, and heat and supply said cars with water, ice, fuel and small
stores at her own cost without being liable to any charge therefor by the comnpany.

Twenty-third:-That the company shall and w ill, from time to time when
requested to do so by the officials of the Intercolonial Railway, make temporary repairs
upon the engines and other r lling stock used in the business and traffic of the Inter-
colonial Rilway, such reps irs to be made pronptly with ail reasonable despatch, and
Her Majesty shall pay the company the actual cost to the company of the labour and
materials used in such repairs.

Twenty-jourth:-That the company shall and will carry passengers on through
tickets, and freight on through waybills, from and to points on its railway and leased
and controlled lines to and from points on the Intercolonial Railway and its leased and
connecting lines so as to avoid re-ticketing and re waybilling.

Tu enty-fifth:-That Her Majesty shall at ber own cost supply al] stationery,
forms antd tickets required for through business at ail points between and including Ste.
Rosalie and Montreal.

Twenty sixth :-That all rates and fares shall be divided on the basis of mileage,
except where such division would act unfairly by reason of one line of railway having a
largely preponderating mileage, in which case the division of rates and fares shall be
settled on a fair and equitable basis by mutual agreement, and, in default of agreement,
by arbitration as hereinafter provided.

'I'eenty-seventh:-That the company shall and will at its own cost, at all times,
keep on sale at ail stations and agencies of its railway and of its controlled and leased
lines of railway an adequate supply of tickets for all points on the Intercolonial Rail-
way, its leLsed lines and its connections, reading over the Intercolonial Railway from
Montreal, and the bagg;age of passengers using any such tickets shall be checked
through to its destination over the Intercolonial Railway from Montreal.

Twety eighth :-That the conpany agrees upon the application of the general
passenger agent of the I ntercolonial Railway to place and keep for sale and sell at all
stations and agencies on its railway, and leased and controlled lines of railway, any
tickets that may be asked for reading to points on the Intercolonial Railway and its
connecting hnes via Montreal and to treat such business with all fairness and inipar-
tiality.

Twenty-ninth :-That Her Majesty shall have the same privilege of displaying
advertisements of the Intercolonial Railway route at all the stations of the company
as the company itself, and the Intercolonial Railway route and its connections with
the company's railway shall be shown in ail the published tine tables of the company.

Tihirtieth .-- That if the company shall at any time lease or in any way grant to
any railway company, or Lo any person or persons whomsoever, either with or without
payment, any running powers, rights or privileges, on or in any way connected with
the railway premises of the company hereinbefore described, between and including Ste.
Rosalie and St. Lambert, the company shall pay to Her Majesty one-half of ail the
income it now receives or may hereafter receive for any running powers, rights or
privileges, now granted or hereafter to be granted between the aforesaid points of Ste.
Rosalie and St. Lambert. As to the other portions of the company's line herein
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demised the company hereby reserves to itself al[ revenues fron any source whatever
arising from the use thereof.

Thirty-first:-That Her Majesty shal have and enjoy for the business and traffic
of the Intercolonial Railway of every kind whatsoever the same rights and facilities
and in as full a manner at and within the terminal and other premises of the company
at Montreal, at the terminals at Point St. Charles and intermediate points, and all the
approaches and tracks thereto, as tihe company now has or at any time mnay hereafter
have and enjoy for its own business and traffic.

7'itirty-second.-That the company shall supplv for the sole use of Her Majesty, if
and when requested, a suitable ticket office in the Bonaventure station, or \N herever the
main depot of the company may in future be situa ed in Montreal, as accessible and in
every way as convenient as the company's own ticket office in the said Bonaventure
station or main depot at Montreal, for the sale of tickets, to be provided and main-
tained by Her Majesty at her own expense.

Thirty-third:-That Her Majesty and the company shall each furnish to the other
promptly, each and every month, all the information neces-ary to the ascertaining and
checking of the rates, fares, charges and shares of costs and other returns to be made as
under these presents, and Her Majesty and the company mutually agree to give the
necessary facilities, including access to the books and papers to the auditors of the In-
tercolonial Ratilway and of the company respectively to enable theim to verify the
accounts under this agreement.

That al] traffic balances, charges and shares of costs, and other returns to be made
under these presents, shall be made monthly, and Her Majesty and the company
mutually agree to promptly audit and pay each to the other each month the total
amount chargeable against the other for the month immediately preceding.

Thtrty-fourth: -That Her Majesty shall not be responsible for the acts or defaults
of servants of the company, or for the deficiency or ot.herwise of the company's
machinery or appliances, and the company shall not be responsible for the acts or de-
faults of the servants of Her Majesty or for the deficiency of the nachinery or appli-
ances of the Intercolonial Railway.

T/tirty-fifth:--That if at any time hereafter the business or tratlic shall, in the
opinion of the parties, hereto necessitate or warrant the laying of double tracks between
and including Ste. Rosalie and St. Lambert, or the making of more extensive yard im-
provements at Point St. Charles or intermediate points between that point and Bona-
venture station, or the layirg of additional tracks b tween such points, or shall warrant
or necessitate any further expenditure for the proper and efficient conduct of its busi-
ness, and the company shall lay the said tracks or m tke the said improvements or
make the said expenditure, ler Majesty may have the full and unlimited use of all or
any such work in the same manner and to the sane extent as if the said work had
been included in the premiscs hereby leased, the right, use or privilege in which are
demised hereby, and if Her Majesty should determine to use any such works or im-
provements, and the Minister should so declare, such works and improvements are
hereby understood and agreed to form part of the leased premises, and Her Majesty
shall pay annually for the use of any such works and improvements five per cent upon
one-half of the actual cost to the company of the construction of said works and im-
provements ; but in case of all bettermetts or of additional works on such joint
section which the company may be required to make under the provisions of any
statute or of any order of the railway committee of the Privy Council, or other compet-
ent authority, Her Majesty shall pay the interest upon one-half the cost thereof at the
rate aforesaid.

Thirty-sixth:-That the company will and does hereby covenant with Her Majesty,
her successors and assigns, that it lias, subject to existing encumbrances, the right to
demise and lease the rights and privileges hereby demised and every part. thereof.

Thtirty-seventh:-That if it should be found in pactice that any right or interest of
either party has not been fully protected or provided for by this agreement ii accordance
with the true object and intent thereof, then both parties shall negotiate and agree upon
in an equitable manner a new and other clause to provide for such omission, and each
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party shall give and execute to the other any and all further documents in writing that
may from time to time be required for the better securing of each of their rights and
privileges under the said contract and for the better carrying out thereof.

Thirty-eighth :-That the company shall and will, if during the term of this lease
Her Majesty well and faithfully perforins all the covenants and agreements herein
undertaken by Her Majesty to be performed, at the expiration of this lease, on request
by the minister, execute and deliver to Rer Majesty, her successors and assigns, a
renewal of said lease for a second term of ninety-nine years, and shall at the expiration
of second teri, upon like faithful performance on the part of Her Majesty, make, exe-
cute and deliver, a further renewal for a third term of ninety-nine years, and so on for
ever, with the same covenants and conditions as are contained herein, subject to such
limitations and modifications as may be mutually agreed upon between the parties or
settled by arbitration according to the teris of this agreement.

Thlirty-ninth :-That these presents are subject .o the confirmation thereof by the
Parliament of Canada and by the shareholders of the company.

Fortieth :-That notwithstanding anything contained in any agreement between
Her Majesty and the company heretofore made and now existing, all traffic offered the
company at any point on its lines west of Montreal which the shipper desires to ship via
the Intercolonial at Montreal shall be billed by the company for shipnent in such man-
ner, and the company shall deliver all such traffic to the Intercolonial Railway at
Montreal and passenger tickets for aiy point on the Intercolonial Railway east of
Montreai, shall be sold by the company's agents at all stations and agencies on its lines
west of Montreal on request via Montreal by the Intercolonial Railway, and such ticket
holder shall be entitled and shall be permitted to take the trains of the Intercolonial
Railway at Montreal for such points easterly on the Intercolonial Railway.

Forty-first :-That in respect of all traffic originating throughout the company's
systen west of Montreal and offered for shipment for any point on the Intercolonial
Railway via the Intercolonial at Montreal, the company shall not ask, impose or exact,
any rates or tIls from the p int of shipnent to Montreal which shall discriminate or
tend to discriminate in favour of the company and against the Intercolonial Railway
taking or receiving such business à-t Montreal, or which shall induce such shipment via
the company's lines to Lévis or Chaudière for delivery to the Intercolonial at either of
such points in preference to Montreal.

Forty-second:-That in order to facilitate and develop the business of tlhe Inter-
colonial Railway and the company, every effort shall be made to cause close and suitable
train connections to be made at Montreal between the trains of the company west of
Montreal and the Intercolonial Railway.

Forty-third:-That through rates and fares shall be agreed upon and made from
time to time for tratic to and from all points on the Intercolonial Railway, including
the Unes hereby demised, and all points on the company's railway, including alil lines
leased ly them, and such rates and fares shall, as regards traftic to and from all points
on the Intercolonial Railway, and to and f rom all points on the company's lines and
leased lines, be divided on the basis of mileage, except where such division would act
unfairly by reason of one Une of railway having a largelv preponderating mileage, in
which case the division of rates and fares shall be settled on a reasonable and equitable
basis by mutual agreement, and in default of agreement, by arbitration as herein pro-
vided.

Forty-fourth :-That as regards traffic shipped to and from Europe and the British
Isles through Halifax per Intercolonial Railway, the rates of the company for the car-
riage of such tradic east of Montreal shall not be higher per passenger per mile, and per
ton of freight per mile, than the amount per passenger per mile, and per ton
of freight per mile, charged by the company on similar classes or descriptions of
trafic carried by it for others to and froi the same places, and intended for or coming
froni the same place in Europe or the British Isles. In ascertaining such rates of freight,
all drawbacks or deductions allowed are to be taken off before fixing the rates.

Forty-fifth :-That the foris of all through bills of lading, also the forms of receipts
for goods passing over the said lines respectively, shall be such as from time to time are
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agreed upon by the officials of the parties hereto, or in default of agreement, settled by
arbitration.

Forty-sixth :-Her Majesty shall have the right to deduct f rom the rentals herein
agreed to be paid to the comnpany any sum or sums of money which may be or here-
after becone due by the company to Her Majesty, and for the payment of which the
company is in default.

Fort,'-seventh :-That should any difficulty arise between ler Majesty and the
company under any clause of this agreement, or respecting the carrying out of the same
according to its true intent and meaning, such differences shall from time to rime, as
the same may arise, b- referred to the award and determination of three arbitrators,
one of whom shall be ntominated by the Minister, one by the company, and the third by
the two so nominated ; provided always, that if either party should for one month after
notice that the other bas nominated its aroitrator, omit or refuse to make a nomination,
or if the two nominated should refuse or omit to nominate thé, third, then the Chief
Justice of the Supremue Court of Canada, or in his absence or refusal or inability to act,
the Senior Puisne Judge present in Ottawa and willing to act, may on the application of
either party on notice to the other nominate the required arbitrator.

Forty-eighth .- In case of the death or refusal to act of aniy arbitrator, or if for any
other cause the office of any arbitrator becomes vacant, his successor shall be nominated
in the same manner as is provided for his appointment in the first instance, unless the
parties otherwise agree, and in case such successor be not nominated by the party
entitled to nominate him, within one month after the happening of the vacancy, and
after receiving notice requiring him to mnake such nomination, then the said Chief Jus-
tice, under the circumstance aforesaid, or the Senior Puisne Judge willing to act, may
on the application of either party, nominate such successor.

Forty-ninth:-The arbitrators so chosen shall, within one month after the last
appointment, proceed to determine the matters referred, and they, or a majority of them,
shall make and publish their award within one month thereafter, or within such further
time as they shall in writing appoint, such extension of time to be made by a majority
of the arbitrators, and the award of a majority of them shall be final.

Fiftieth .- Nothing herein contained shall in any way merge or effect the claims or
rights of Her Majesty, if any such there be, as they now exist against the company or
the property of the company other than that which is the subject matter of this agree-
ment.

In witness whereof these presents (in quadruplicate) have been signed by the
Honourable the Minister of Railways and Canais, pursuant to Order in Council dated
the 24th March, A.D. 1897, and the Seal of the Department of Railways and Canais
has been hereto affixed, and the company has hereto affixed its corporate seal, and these
presents have been signed by the general manager of the company, the day and year
first above written.

GRAND TRUNK RAILWAY COMPANY OF CANADA.
By

Witness to the execution by CHAS. M. HIAYS,the Grand Trunk Railway General Manager.
Company.

R. S. LOG AN.

Witness to the execution by
the Minister of Railways and
Canais and by the Secretary. ANDREW G. BLAIR,

Minister of Railways and Canais.
J. E. W. CURRIER.

L. K. JONES,
Acting Secretary.
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This lease and agreement made and entered into the fifteenth day of May, in the
year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and ninety-seven:

Between the Drummond County Railway Company, hereinafter called "the
company," of the first part, and Her Majesty Queen Victoria, represented herein by
the Honourable the Minister of Railways and Canals, hereinafter referred to as " the
Minister," of the second part.

Whereas Her Majesty proposes to extend the Intercolonial Railway into the city
of Montreal, with its terminal in that city, and in order to such extension it is proposed
to acquire from the company its lines of railway, branches and projected lines, and
other rights, interests, and property, upon the considerations and conditions hereinafter
more particularly set forth.

Now, this indenture witnesseth: That the said company in consideration of the
rents, covenants, conditions and agreements hereinafter reserved and contained, hath
given, granted, demised and leased, and by these presents doth give, grant, demise and
lease unto Her Majesty, her successors and assigns, al] its certain line of railway and branch
lines extending from Ste. Rosalie, a point on the Grand Trunk Railway, in the province
of Quebec, to a point on the western side of the Chaudière River, where the said line of
railway connects with and joins the Grand Trunk Railway, together with the roadbed,
station houses, tracks, side tracks, switches, approaches, bridges, buildings, tanks, coal
sheds, cattle guards, and all other fixtures and appurtenances appertaining and
belonging to the said line of railway, together with its branch line of railway and
connections, extending from St. Leonard to Nicolet, and all and singular the property
(other than the rolling stock, and equipment of every kind and description belonging to
the said company and connected with its said railway), and all rights and privileges
which the company may have, or may be entitled to have or enjoy, with respect to
running powers over and upon the Grand Trunk Railway, across the Chaudière bridge
and up to the present western terminus of the Intercolonial Railway, and all the right,
interest, privileges and concessions, acquired by the company fron the said Grand
Trunk Railway Company over and upon the said last nentioned line and bridge.

To have and to hold all the said described railway and appurtenances of every kind
and description, and the said rights and privileges unto Her Majesty, her successors
and assigns, from and after the first day of November in the year of our Lord one
thousand eight hundred and ninety-seven, for and unto and fully ended the term of
ninety-nine years frorm then next ensuing.

Yielding and paying therefor yearly and every year for the said term the sum of
seventy thousand dollars of lawful money of Canada, in half yearly instalments of
thirty-4ive thousand dollars each on the first days of May and November in each and
every year during the term aforesaid.

And these presents are made upon and are subject to the provisos and provisions
hereinafter expressed and contained, for the due performance and observance of all of
which on their part to be done and performed, Her Majesty and the company bind
themselves, their successors and assigns, and each of them respectively bind themselves,
that is to say :-

First :-That Her Majesty shall and will, during the continuance of this lease,
subject to the happening of any or other of the contingencies herein mentioned, well and
truly pay to the company the rent hereby reserved in the manner and at the time herein
before mentioned, without any deduction or reservation whataoever.

Second:-That the company for the consideration aforesaid will build and finish
according to the Intercolonial Railway standard the uncompleted portion of its main
line at or near Forestdale to the western side of the Chaudière River, subject to the
satisfaction and approval of the government railway engineer, on or before the first
day of November, one thousand eight hundred and ninety-seven, and will lay the
roadbed of the said uncompleted portion of its line hereby agreed to be constructed
with new steel rails of not less than seventy pounds weight per yard for the sai
distance, and as part of such construction will make all proper and necessary con-
nections with the main line of the Grand Trunk Railway at or near the west end of
the Chaudière bridge to the like satisfaction of the engineer of government railways,
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and will, in connection with the said construction, construct and finish all proper and
necessary station buildings, stations, sidings, switches, tanks, buildings, coal sheds,
cattle guards, crossings and other necessary appurtenances, as required by the minister,
and to the satisfaction of the engineer of government railways, and according to such
plans as shall be furnished on the request of the company by the Department of Rail-
ways and Canais, so that the said line of railway hereby demised, or intended so to
be, shall be fully completed and ready for use and occupation by Her Majesty on or
before the date aforesaid.

Third.-That the company will, in the construction of the uncompleted portion of
its line, construct the same to the satisfaction of the government engineer and with
a uniform grade of 52·80 per mile and in addition on the line already constructed will
reduce the grades at Carniel Hill and at the St. Francis River to a maximum grade of
52-80 per mile.

Fourth :-That it is hereby covenanted by the company with Her Majesty, that
the company wili and does hereby covenant and agree that Rer Majesty will be put
into possession of the completed railway on or before the date aforesaid free and clear
of any existing encumbrance of any kind; that any trust mortgage heretofore executed
upon the company's property, or bonds issued], will, before Her .%1 ajesty shall take over
and enter into possession of the said line, be wholly cancelled and extinguished, so far
as such trust mortgage or issue of bonds shall affect or encumber the railway hereby
demised; that any unsettled claims for right of way on the said line of railway or
branches thereof sha!l be fully paid and satisfied ; that any conveyance of suchi right of
way upon any portion of the said line of railway or branches thereof not yet executed
by the o 'ners thereof and delivered to the company shall, previously to the acceptance
of this lease, be duly executed and delivered by the persons having title to said right
of way ; and any unsettled claims or demands of any kind or description which may
prejudice or affect the title which Her Majesty is hereby acquiring to the company's
property shail be fully paid, satisfied and discharged, and further, that in the event of
any claim for right of way, or in the event of any debt or demand of the company being
hereinafter preferred against Her Majesty, which ought to have been paid or satisfied
by the company in pursunce of this agreement, if denanded Her Majesty may, on pay-
ment thereof, deduct the amount of such claim out of any rents due and payable under
this lease.

Fifth :-That at the expiration of the term hereby agreed upon, and at the termina-
tion of this lease, the said company's line of railway, and branch line and all the appur-
tenances thereto belonging and any improvement therein and additions thereto, which
shall have been made by Her Majesty during the terni of this lease, and all the rights
and privileges of every nature and kind whatsoever appertaining to the said railway or
belonging to the said company, shall then become the absolute property of Her Majesty
and is hereby declared to be then vested in H er Majesty, her successors and assigns,
free and clear of any right, title or interest whatsoever of the company therein or
thereto, as fully and completely as if this demise were in terms an absolute conveyance
in fee simple of the roadbed and railway property of the company to Her Majesty, ber
successors and assigns as aforesaid.

Sixth :-That the company shall have no right or title to make or execute any
trust conveyance of, or to issue any bonds or to create any lien upon, the line of railway
hereby demised at any time after the execution of this indenture, except and only so far
as it shall be necessary in order to assign, dispose of or transfer, the rental or consider-
ation payable hy Her Majesty under this lease and agreement to the company, subject
to the conditions herein set forth; and upon the issue of any bonds or the execution of
any trust conveyance charging the rental payable hereby to the company for the
purpose of securing principal and interest of any sum secured upon such transfer Her
Majesty will pay such rental, subject as aforesaid, to the trustee named in such trust con-
veyance, in so far as She is liable to pay the rent hereby reserved under this indenture.

Seventh :-That Her Majesty will continuously maintain a.id operate the railway
hereby demised during the term of this lease and agreement, and will hold the company
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harmless and indemnified against any and alil claims arising f rom the operation and
maintenance of the said railway during the said term.

Eighth :-That Her Majesty will purchase the rolling stock and the railway supplies
of the company at a valuation to be agreed upon between the company and the
Minister.

Ninth :-That Her Majesty will not be bound to take over the said railway, nor
shall the rental hereby reserved begin to accrue to the company until the said line of
railway and branches thereof shall be wholly completed to the satisfaction of the
Minister or the Erigineer of the Department of Railways, and ready for use and
occupation for the purposes of the Intercolonial Railway.

Tenth :-That the company will at all times, at the request of the Minister, make
and execute all conveyances, assurances and writings, whatsoever which Her Majesty
may require for the better and further assuring of Her Majesty, her successors and
assigns, the property hereby demised and every part thereof.

Eleventh :-That in case the said line of railway is iot completed and ready for
occupation by the first day of November next, but shall be ready for occupation and
shall be taken over by Her Majesty at a later date, the rental payable on the first semi-
annual date fixed for the payment of the rent hereby reserved shall be the proportion
only for such term.

Twelfth :-That it is hereby declared and agreed that these presents are subject to
confirmation by Act of Parliament of Canada and by the shareholders of the company
respectively.

Thirteenth :-Nothing herein contained shall in any way merge or affect the
claims or rights of Her Majesty as they now exist against the company, and its property
other than that which is the subject matter of this agreement.

In witness whereof these presents (in quadruplicate) have been signed by the
Honourable the Minister of Railways and Canals, pursuant to order in council dated
the 24th March, A D. 1897, and the seal of the Departinent of Railways and Canals
has been hereto affixed, and the company has hereto affixed its corporate seal, and
these presents have been signed by the president of the company, the day and year
first above written.

THE DRUMMOND COUNTY RAILWAY COMPANY.

Witness to the execution by
the Drummond County
Railway Company. 1

J. E. W. CURRIER.
J. N. GREENSHIELDS,

President.
Witness to the execution by

the Minister of Railways
and Canals and by the
Secretary. J

J. E. W. CURRIER.
AND'W, G. BLAIR,

Minister of Railways and Canas.

L. K. JONES,
Acting Secretary.

This indenture made this First day of February in the year of Our Lord one
thousand eight hundred and ninety-eight.

Between the Grand Trunk Railway Company of Canada, hereinafter called
" The Company " of the first part, and Her Majesty Queen Victoria, represented herein

13
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by the Honourable the Minister of Railways and Canals, of Canada, who is herein
referred to as "The Minister ," Her Majesty so represented being hereinafter called or
referred to as "Her Majesty," of the second part.

Whereas Her Majesty purposes extending the Intercolonial Railway, a govern-
ment railway of Canada, from Chaudière Junction, in the province of Quebec, to the
city of Montreal, in said province with terminals in that city:

And whereas Her Majesty has entered into an agreement with the Drummond
County Railway Company, for the lease of all its Railway now completed or hereafter
to be completed between Chaudière Junction and St. Rosalie in the said province of
Quebec :

And whereas for the purpose of carrying out the said extension the company was
willing that, for the conducting of the business and traffic of the Intercolonial Railway,
Her Majesty should have an undivided one-half share or leasehold interest in the com-
pany's railway and property between and including Ste. Rosalie and St. Lambert Station
at the Eastern end of the Victoria Bridge, together with the use of the company's
railway and property between and including Ste. Rosalie and Bonaventure Station in
the city of Montreal, the use of the Victoria Bridge across the River St. Lawrence and
of the terminals and connections hereinafter more particularly described, together with
an undivided one-half interest ia and use of the bridge across the Chaudière River, and
of so much of the tracks and line of the said company in connection therewith as are
hereinafter described, all of which right, title, property, interest and user were to be used,
enjoyed and exercised to the same extent as if the said railway and property had been
owned by Her Majesty, in the manner and upon the terns and conditions contained in
the agreement of the 15th May, A. D. 1897, hereinafter recited :

And whereas by order of the Governor General in Council, dated the twenty-
fourth day of March, eighteen hundred and ninety-seven, authority was given to the
Minister, subject to the ganction of parliament, to enter into a contract with the
company for the acquisition of the above rights and interests:

And whereas by a certain agreement made between the company and Her Majesty
and bearing date, the 15th day of May, 1897, subject to confirmation by Act of Parlia-
ment as therein provided, and also by the shareholders of the company, the company
did, in consideration of the rente, covenante, conditions and agreements therein
reserved and contained, give, grant, demise and lease unto Her Majesty, her successors
and assigns, all and singular, the said rights and interests, for the term of ninety-nine
years from the first day of November, A.D. 1897, as upon reference to the said agree-
ment will more fully and at large appear:

And whereas the Parliament of Canada, at the session thereof, held in the year
60-61 Victoria, 1897, did not confirm the said agreements with the Drummond County
Railway Company and the company:

And whereas provision is made in the appropriation Act of said session of Parlia-
ment, 60-61 Victoria, 1897, for the temporary leasing by Her Majesty's Government of
Canada, from the company, of the above-mentioned rights and interests:

And whereas by a certain other agreement made between the company and Her
Majesty and bearing date, the first day of February, 1898, subject to the confirmation
by Act of Parliament as therein provided, and also by the shareholders of the company,
the company did, in consideration of the rents, covenants, conditions and agreements
therein reserved and contained, give, grant, demise and lease unto Her Majesty, her
successors and assigns, all and singular, the said rights and interests, for the term of
ninety-nine years from the first day of March, 1898, as upon reference to the said
agreement will more fully and at large appear:

And whereas the company is willing to lease the said rights and interests, for the
term hereinafter mentioned, upon the terms, covenants, provisions and conditions of the
said last mentioned agreement with the company of the first day of February, 1898,
save as to the rent to be paid therefor, in so far as the terms of said last mentioned
agreement can be made to apply, as if the said terms, covenants, provisoes and condi-
tions were incorporated herein ; and upon the undertaking on the part of Her MajestY
that, at each successive session thereof and until the final ratification of the contract
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aforesaid by Parliament Her Majesty's Parliament of Canada wili be asked to appro-
priate a sufficient sum to cover the annual rental in the said contract reserved to permit
of the extension and renewal of this lease until the ratification of the said agreement:

Witnesseth that the company in consideration of the rents, provisoes and condi-
tions bereinafter reserved and contained, hath given, granted, demised and leased and
by these presents doth give, grant, demise and lease unto Her Majesty, her successors
and assigns, all and singular the rights, titles, interests, property and franchises in said
last mentioned agreement of the first day of February, 1898, more particularly described,
together with the supplemental traffic arrangement on the terms and conditions herein-
after contained from and after the first day of March next, until and including the
thirtieth June, 1898, with the right of renewal as hereinafter provided.

To have and to hold the said demised premises unto her Majesty, her successors and
assigns,from and after the first day of March, 1898, up to and including the thirtieth day
of June, 1898, yielding and paying therefor to the company, its successors and assigns, a
rental proportionate to a yearly rental of one hundred and forty thousand dollars ($140,-
000) which rental shall hereafter be payable in equal sums monthly, that is to say,
eleven thousand six hundred and sixty-six dollars and sixty-six cents ($11,666.66) on
the first week day of every month, or a proportionate sun for any fractional part of a
month, the first payment to be made on the first week day of the month of March
next.

And these presents are made upon and subject to t:e provisoes and conditions
hereinafter expressed and contained for the due performance and observance of which,
on the part of each of them, Her Majesty and the company bind themselves and each of
them respectively their successors and assigns, that is to say:-

1st. That all of the terns, covenants, provisoes and conditions contained in the
said agreement with the company, dated the Ist day of February, 1898, are hereby
adopted and made to apply and extend to this present agreement, in so far as they can
do so, as if the said ternis, covenants, provisoes and conditions were incorporated and
embodied in this present indenture.

2nd. That Her Majesty shall and will ask her parliament of Canada, at the ensuing
session thereof, for an appropriation sufficient to enable Her Majesty to continue this
lease for another year upon the same ternis, provisoes and conditions as are herein con-
tained pending a ratification by her said parliament of the said agreement.

Provided always, and it is hereby understood by and between the parties hereto that
if at any time during the term hereby granted or during any such continuation thereof,
Her Majesty's parliament of Canada should ratify and confirm the said last mentioned
agreement, and the shareholde s of the company approve the sane, then these presents
or any renewal on continuation thereof shall cease and be and become null and void, and
immediately upon such ratification and confirmation the said last mentioned agreement
shall be binding upon the parties hereto as if these presents or any such renewal or
continuation thereof had never been entered into.

In witness whereof these presents (in quadruplicate) have been signed by the Honour-
able the Minister of Railways and Canalis, and the seal of the Department of Railways
and Canals, bas been hereto affixed, and the company bas hereto affixed its corporate
seal, and these presents have been signed by the General Manager of the company, the
day and year first above written.

GRAND TRUNK RAILWAY COMPANY OF CANADA.
.By

Witness to the execution CHAS. M. HAYS,
by the Grand Trunk Rail- Generai Manager.
way Company :-

R. P. LOGAN.
Witness to execution by the ]AND'W. G. BLAIR

Minister of Railwayseand Minister of Railways and Canais.
Canals and by the Secre- L. K. JONES,
tary. Secretary.

J. E.LW. CURRIER.
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It is hereby agreed by and between the parties to the within lease, that the said
lease shall be extended one year from the thirtieth of June, eighteen hundred and ninety-
eight, upon the same terms, provisoes and conditions therein contained in accordance
with the Order in Council, of the 18th day of August, 1898.

Witness our hands and seals, this eighteenth day of August, eighteen hundred and
ninety-eight.

THE GRAND TRUNK RAILWAY COMPANY OF CANADA.
By

Signed, sealed and delivered CHAS. M. HAYS,
in the presence of :- General Manager.

B. P. LOGAN.
(SEAL.)

Signed, sealed and delivered AND'W. G. BLAIR,
by the M inister and Sec- Minister of Railways and Canals.
retary of Railways and L. K. JONES,
Canals, in the presence of : Secretary.

WALTER S. DoULL.
(SEAL.)

This indenture made (in duplicate) this twenty-fifth day of February, in the year of
our Lord one thousand eight hundred and ninety-eight, between the Druinmond County
Railway Company, hereinafter called "The Company," of the first part, and Her
Majesty Queen Victoria, represented herein by the Honourable the Minister of Rail-
ways and Canais, hereinafter referred to as " The Minister " of the second part.

Whereas Her Majesty proposed to extend the Intercolonial Railway into the city
of Montreal, and in order to such extension it was and is proposed to acquire from
the company its line of railway and branch line and its other rights, interests and
property hereinafter mentioned.

And whereas the company consented to lease to Her Majesty its said line of rail-
way and branch line from Ste. Ro alie to Moose Park and also its pro.jected line from
Moose Park to Chaudière, ail in the province of Quebec, and its other rights interests and
property for the term of ninety-nine years, with the understanding that the same should
then become the absolute property of Her Majesty, and the Governor in Council having
authorized the Minister to enter into such lease with the company subject to ratification
by Parliament, the company did in and by a certain agreement bearing date the 15th
day of May, 1897, and expressed to be subject to confirmation by Act of Parliament
and to the approval of the shareholders of the company in consideration of the rents,
covenants, conditions and agreements therein reserved and contained demise and lease
unto Her Majesty the said line and branch and projected line and the said other rights,
interests and property for the term of ninety-nine years from the first day of November,
1897, the same then to become the absolute property of Her Majesty.

And whereas the Parliament of Canada at the session thereof held in the year 60-
61 Victoria, 1897, did not confirm the said agreement of this company, but at said
session granted a subsidy in aid of said projected line which has been since built by the
company.

And whereas provision is made in the Appropriation Act of said session of Parlia-
ment, 60-61 Victoria, 1897, for the temporary leasing by Her Majesty's Government of
Canada from the company of the above mentioned rights and interests.

And whereas Her Majesty (with the sanction and authority of the Governor in
Council) and the company have agreed to enter into this indenture for the temporary
lease of the said line of railway from Ste. Rosalie to Chaudière and all its lines, branches
and other rights, interests and property.

Witnesseth that the company in consideration of the rents, covenants, conditions
and agreements hereinafter reserved and contained hath demised and leased and by
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these presents doth demise and lease unto Her Majesty, her successors and assigns, all
and singular the line of railway and branches and rights, interests, property and
franchises in said last mentioned agreement of even date herewith, and all rights and
privileges whiich the company has with respect to running powers over and upon the
Grand Trunk Railway across the Chaudiere bridge and up to the western terminus
of the Intercolonial Railway, more particularly described, from and after the first day
of March next, until and including the thirtieth day of June, 1898.

To have and to hold the said demised premises unto Her Majesty, her successors
and assigns, from and after the first day of March, 1898, up to and including the
thirtieth day of June, 1898, yielding and paying therefor to the company, its successors
and assigns rental for the term hereby granted, up to and including the said thirtieth
day of June, 1898, at the annual rate of seventy thousand dollars ($70,000) per annum,
the said rental to be payable in equal sums monthly on the first day of every month,
the first payment to be made on the first day of April next.

And these presents are made upon and subject to provisoes, covenants, conditions
and agreements hereinafter expressed and contained for the due performance and
observance of all of which on the part of each of them Her Majesty and the company
bind themselves and each of them respectively, their successors and assigns, that is to
say :-

First :-That Her Majesty shall and will ask her parliament of Canada at the
present session thereof, for an appropriation sufficient to enable Her Majesty to continue
this lease for a year from the thirtieth day of June next, upon the same terms, pro-
visoes and conditions as are herein contained.

Second :-That it is agreed by the said company that it shall be optional with Her
Majesty, her successors or assigns, subject to the ratification of parliament, at any time
during the tern hereby granted or any renewal or continuation thereof to purchase the
said line and branch lines and the said other rights, interests and property (not includ-
ing rolling stock) absolutely and free from all incumbrances at and for the price or sum
of one million six hundred thousand dollars, ($1,600,000) from which sumi is to be
deducted all amounts paid or entitled to be paid under the Subsidy Act, 60-61 Victoria,
chapter 4, and all amounts remaining unexpended or unpaid by the company in improv-
ing the said railway upon the works hereafter specified.

Third:-That the company shall and will immediately, or as soon hereafter as the
season will admit thereof, lay out and expend a sum of money amounting to not less
than one hundred thousand dollars, ($100,000) upon such portions of the said line of
railway and upon such works thereon and in such manner as may be indicated by the
Minister of Railways, or in case the works or any part thereof are not proceeded with
as rapidly as the Minister may require, then the government may perform and carry out
all or any part of such works on the said railway, expending the amount aforesaid, and
shall then have the right to deduct the amount so expended from the rental payable
hereunder as fast as the same accrues until the said sum of one hundred thousand
dollars ($100,000) or such portion of the said amount as has been laid out and expended
by the government on said railway has been fully repaid to Her Majesty.

And the company covenants that it will at any time hereafter, upon the request of
the Minister of Railways and Canals in behalf of Her Majesty make, do and execute or
cause or procure to be made, done and executed all and every such further and other
lawful and reasonable acts, conveyances, transfers, assignments and assurances in the
law for the better and more effectually vesting and confirming the premises hereby
leased, or intended so to be, and of the rights of way of said railway, in the event of
said option of purchase being exercised, in and to Her Majesty as shall by Her Majesty
be reasonably devised, advised or required.

And the company further covenant that in the event of said option of purchase
being exercised by Her said Majesty, as aforesaid, the company shall and will convey
its said line of railway and branches, and its other rights, interests and property to Her
Majesty, her successors and assigns absolutely, free from all and every charge or
incumbrance whatsoever.
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And the company further covenants that the company will, upon request by the
Minister of Railways and Canals, on behalf of Her Majesty, renew this present inden-
ture upon the same terms, conditions, covenants and agreements herein contained until
the thirtieth day of June, A.D. 1900.

In witness whereof these presents (in duplicate) have been signed by the Honour-
able the Minister of Railways and Canals pursuant to Order in Council, dated the 25th
day of February, 1898, and the seal of the Department of Railways and Canals has been
hereto affixed, and the company has hereto affixed its corporate seal and these presents
have been signed by the president of the company the day and year first above written.

Witness to the excution by the
Drummond County Railway
Company.

J. E. W. CURRIER.

Witness to the execution by the
Minister of Railways and
Canals, and by the Secretary.

J. E. W. CURRIER.

The Drummond County Railway Coy.
By

J. N. GREENSHIELDS,
President.

SEAL.

ANDREW G. BLAIR,
Minister of Railways and Canals.

L. K. JONES,
Secretary.

SEAL.

It is hereby agreed by and between the parties to the within lease, that the said
lease shall be extended one year from the thirtieth of June, eighteen hundred and
ninety-eight, upon the same terms, provisoes, and conditions therein contained except
that in accordance with the Order in Council of the 18th day of August, 1898-the
expenditure to be made under the provisions of the 3rd clause shall only apply to the
balance of the work referred to-if any.

Witness our hands and seals this thirtieth day of June, eighteen hundred and
ninety-eight.

Signed, sealed and delivered in
the presence of :-

ANNA GALBRAITH.

Seal.
Signed, sealed and delivered by~

the Minister and Secretary
of Railways and Canals, in >
presence of

WALTER S. DOULL.

The Drummond County Company
Per

J. N. GREENSHIELDS,
President.

ANDREW G. BLAIR,
Minister of Railways and Canals.

L. K. JONES,

SEAL. Secretary.

STATEMENT of all amounts paid to the Proprietors of the Grand Trunk and Drummond
County Railway Companies from the date of the non-ratification of the first Con-
tract to the 31st March. 1899.

The Grand Trunk Railway Company...............$ 215,470 67
The Drummond County Railway Company .... ..... 2,824 37

Total ................ ............. $ 218,295 04
Amount credited account of Drummond County Rail-

way improvements, 13 months rental at $5,833.33
per month...............................$ 75,833 29

Total payments and credits............ .$ 294,128 33

COLLINGWOOD SCHREIBER.
OTTAWA, 25th May, 1899.
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An account of the earnings and working expenses of the Drummond County Rail-
way from the time of its being first worked in connection with the Intercolonial Rail-
way to the 31st March, 1899, cannot be prepared, as the accounts of the operating of
the railway are kept as a whole and not by any particular section or sections.

OTTAWA, 25th May, 1899.
COLLINGWOOD SCHREIBER,

STATEMENT showing amounts paid the Grand Trunk Railway Company for station
accomodation, running powers over its line, for bridge extension, or for any purpose
whatsoever in connection with the extension of the Intercolonial Railway system to
Montreal, to 31st March, 1899.

Joint use of Grand Trunk Railway, Ste. Rosalie to
M ontreal ..................................

Half wages of Car Inspector, St. Hyacinthe ..........
Wages of pilots, &c., of I. C. Ry. trains between Ste.

Rosalie and Montreal........................
Cleaning, turning and watering engines............
W ages of enginemen,............................
H ire of engines.................................
Small stores for engines................. .. .....
Cleaning, heating cars, fuel, &c ....................
Proportion of operating joint section ..............
Proportion of cost of ties, stationary .................
Repairs to locomotives...........................
Coal supplied to I. C. Ry. engines..................
Damages to stopblock by I. C. Ry..................
Proportion of cost of Nunn's signal .............. ,
Hire of G. T. Ry. passenger cars, ........... ......
R epairs to cars .................................
Difference in value of rails renewed on joint section...
Allowance for proportion of general office expenses,

rent, fuel, light, stationery, &c .................
Proportion of cost of renewals of bridges on joint

section .....................................

$151,666 71
300 00

913 77
2,523 94

95 41
3,155 00

55 96
3,699 02

43,791 71
186 57
319 64

3,002 40
1 50
5 99

180 00
195 27

2,176 28

1,000 00

2,201 50

Total......................... $215,470 67

COLLINGWOOD SCHREIBER.
OrrAWA, 25th May, 1899.
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RETURN
[88a]

In answer to an ADDRESS oF TiE SENATE, dated the 22nd instant, calling for
copies of any or all supplemental agreements and traffie arrangements
entered into between the Railway Department of Canada and the Grand
Trunk Railway Company, in connection with the contract entered into
between the aforesaid parties for the extension of the Intercolonial Rail-
way to the City of Montreal.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

EXTRACT fron a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council approved
by His Excellency on the 25th February, 1898.

On a memorandum, dated 25th February, 1898, from the Minister of Railways and
Canals, recommending that he be authorized to enter into an'agreement with the Grand
Trunk Railway Company of Canada for the temporary leasing, from that company, of
certain specified rights and interests in their railway and property, requisite to the
proper conduct of the business and traffic of the Intercolonial Railway into and in the
city of Montreal, the term of such tenporary lease to be from the lst March, 1898, to
the 30th June, 1898, inclusive ; the rent to be paid by the government to the company
to be proportionate to a yearly rental of $140,000.

The Minister submits a draft of the said proposed agreement marked "A" and
recommends that he be authorized to sign the same.

The Minister further recoinmends that as supplemental to the said temporary
agreement with the Grand Trunk Railway Company, the general traffic manager of the
Intercolonial Railway be authorized to sign- the traffic agreement, a draft of which is
herewith submitted marked " B" in respect of the business to be done between the
company's railway and the Intercolonial under the said lease, which said agreement will
also be signed by the general traffic manager of the company.

The comrnittee subnit the above recommendations for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

This supplemental and traffic agreement made this first day of February, in the
year of Our Lord one thousand eight hundred and ninety-eight.

Between Her Majesty, represented herein by the General Traffic Manager of the
Intercolonial Railway, of the one part, and the Grand Trunk Railway Company of
Canada, represented herein by the General Traffic Manager of the said company, of the
second part.

Whereas an agreement bas been entered into between the Grand Trunk Railway
Company of Canada and Her Majesty Queen Victoria, of even date herewith, for the
leasing of the said company's line between Ste. Rosalie and the city of Montreal.

And whereas, for the better interpretation of certain clause in said leasing agree-
ment, the parties hereto, represented as aforesaid, have agreed to enter into this supple-
mental and traffic agreement, which shall be taken to be incorporated in and read as
part of the said leasing agreemen t.

Witnesseth that the said parties contract and agree each with the other as follows:
Notwithstanding anything contained in any agreement between Her Majesty and

the company heretofore made and now existing, it is agreed between Her Majesty and
the company that during the continuance of the contract to which this is a supplement,
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percentage divisions via Chaudière Junction shall be suspended, and that with respect
to all trafflo originating throughout the company's system, or connections west of
Montreal, and offered for shipment to any point on the Intercolonial Railway, or
reached by its connections, Montreal shall be the junction point, and the company
undertakes to route all traffic destined to points on the Intercolonial Railway and its
connections, via Montreal and the Intercolonial Railway.

All business originating in the city of Montreal, or on the Montreal joint section,
destined to points on the Intercolonial Railway, shall be considered Intercolonial traffic,
it being agreed that in connection with that consideration, the Intercolonial Railway
will give all the traffic from its system and connections that it can control, destined to
New England points, or any other point east of Ste. Rosalie reached by the Grand
Trunk system and its connections, to the Grand Trunk Railway at Chaudière Junction,
the Intercolonial Railway being allowed Aston mileage.

Traffic destined to points in the United States reached via the gateways of St.
Johns, P.Q., Rouses Point, N.Y., Huntingdon, P.Q., and Massena Springs, N.Y., to be
delivered to the company at St. Lambert.

All business originating on the Montreal joint section, destined to points on the
company's lines east of Ste. Rosalie shall be considered " Company's " business, and all
traffic originating on said section destined to Intercolonial Railway points, shall be
considered " Intercolonial " traffic.

All business originating on the company's lines east of Ste. Rosalie, or on the
Intercolonial Railway between Ste. Rosalie and Lévis, inclusive, to be interchanged at
Chaudière Junction, Aston Junction or Ste. Rosalie Junction, or at such other junction
point as may be hereafter opened, the understanding being that such business is to be
forwarded by both lines via the shortest route between the point of shipment and
destination.

Her Majesty further undertakes to route via Montreal all unconsigned west bound
traffic controlled by the Intercolonial Railway or its connections, destined to points
west thereof reached by the " Company " and its connections.

In connection with import and export traffic via Halifax or St. John, or any other
port in the maritime provinces that may be hereafter selected, it is understood that
during the life of the agreement that the Intercolonial Railway will accept 425 miles
on Halifax, and 375 miles on St. John, the St. John rates to be the same as those quoted
by the Canadian Pacific railway to and from that port or West St. John, and the same
as quoted by the Grand Trunk Railway to and from Portland; the Halifax rates to be
one cent per 100 lbs. on all classes and special class over the rates to and from St.
John or Portland, on both exporte and imports, the company to have as its proportion
the mileage as per the various groups west of Montreal

In the event of the Intercolonial Railway making arrangements with steamship
companies to ply between the ports of Halifax, St. John or any other port in the
maritime provinces that may be hereafter selected, and European ports other than
those covered by the Grand Trunk service from Portland, from time to time, the com-
pany to publish such through rates from its stations west of Montreal as are effective
via other competing routes to all or any of such ports, such traffic to be divided on the
regular grouped percentage divisions.

In witness whereof these presents (in quadruplicate) have been signed by the
General Traffic Manager of the Intercolonial Railway and by the General Traffic
Manager of the Grand Trunk Railway Company of Canada.

Witness to execution by General
Traffic Manager, Intercolonial A. H. HARRIS.
Railway.)

J. H. UNDERWOOD.

Witness to execution by General
Traffic Manager, Grand Trunk GEO. M. REEVE.
Railway Company.

J. E. DALYMPLL
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This indenture made this first day of February, in the year of our Lord one thou-
sand eight hundred and ninety-eight.

Between the Grand Trunk Railway Company of Canada, hereinafter called " The
Company " of the first part, and Her Majesty, Queen Victoria, represented herein by the
Honourable the Minister of Railways and Canals, of Canada, who is herein referred
to as "The Minister," Her Majesty so represented being hereinafter called or referred
to as "l Her Majesty," of the second part,

Whereas Her Majesty purposes extending the Intorcolonial Railway, a government
railway of Canada, from Chaudiere Junction, in the province of Quebec, to the city of
Montreal, in said province with terminals in that city :

And whereas Her Majesty has entered into an agreement with the Drummond
County Railway Company, for the lease of all its railway now completed or hereafter to
be completed between Chaudière Junction and Ste. Rosalie in the said province of
Quebec :

And whereas for the purpose of carrying out the said extension the compauy was
willing that, for the conducting of the business and traffic of the Intercolonial Railway,
Her Majesty should have an undivided one-half share or leasehold interest in the com-
pany's railway and property between and including Ste. Rosalie and St. Lambert
station at the eastern end of the Victoria bridge, together with the use of the com-
pany's railway and property between and including Ste. Rosalie and Bonaventure
station in the city of Montreal, the use of the Victoria bridge across the River St.
Lawrence and of the terminals and connections hereinafter more particularly described
together with an undivided one-half interest in and use of the bridge across the
Chaudiere River, and of so much of the tracks and line of the said company in connection
therewith as are hereinafter described, all of which right, title, property, interest and
user were to be used, enjoyed and exercised to the same extent as if the said railway
and property had been owned by Her Majesty, in the manner and upon the terms and
conditions contained in the agreement of the 15th May, A.D. 1897, hereinafter
recited :

And whereas by order of the Governor General in Council, dated the twenty-fourth
day of March, eighteen hundred and ninety-seven, authority was given to the Minister
subject to the sanction of Parliament to enter into a contract with the company for the
acquisition of the above rights and interests:

And whereas by a certain agreement made bet% een the company and Her Majesty
and bearing date, the 15th day of May, 1897, subject to confirmation by Act of Parlia-
ment as therein provided and also by the shareholders of the company, the company
did, in consideration of the rents, covenants, conditions and agreements therein reserved
and contained, give, grant, demise and lease unto Her Majesty, her successors and
assigns, all and singular, the said rights and interests, for the term of ninety-nine years
from the 1st day of November, A.D. 1897, as upon reference to the said agreement will
more fully and at large appear:

And whereas the Parliament of Canada, at the session thereof, held in the year
60-61 Victoria, 1897, did not confirm the said agreements with the Drummond County
Railway Company and the company :

And whereas provision is made in the appropriation act of said Session of Parlia-
ment, 60-61 Victoria, 1897, for the temporary leasing by Her Majesty's government of
Canada, from the company, of the above mentioned rights and interests:

And whereas by a certain other agreement made between the company and Her
Majesty and bearing date, the first day of February, 1898, subject to the confirmation
by Act of Parliament as therein provided and also by the shareholders of the company,
the company did, in consideration of the rents, covenants, conditions and agreements
therein reserved and contained, give, grant, demise and lease unto Her Majesty, her
successors and assigns, all and singular, the said rights and interests, for the terw of
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ninety-nine years, from the first day of March, 1898, as upon reference to the~said agree-
ment will more fully and at large appear:

And whereas the company is willing to lease the said rights and interests, for the
term hereinafter mentioned, upon the terms, covenants, provisions and conditions of
the said last mentioned agreement with the company of the first day of February, 1898,
save as to the rent to be paid therefor, in so far as the terms of said last mentioned

agreement can be made to apply, as if the said terms, covenants, provisoes and con-
ditions were incorporated herein; and upon the undertaking on the part of Her

Majesty that, at each successive session thereof and until the final ratification of the
coatract aforesaid by Parliament, Her Majesty's Parliament of Canada will be asked to

appropriate a sufficient sum to cover the annual rental in the said contract reserved to

permit of the extension and renewal of this lease until the ratification of the said
agreement.

Witnesseth that the company in consideration of the rents, provisoes and con-
ditions hereinafter reserved and contained, hath given, granted, demised and leased and

by these presents doth give, grant, demise and lease unto Her Majesty, her successors
and assigns all and singular the rights, titles, interests, Droperty and franchises in said
last mentioned agreement of the first day of February, 1898, more particularly described
together with the supplemental traffic arrangement on the terms and conditions herein-
after contained from and after the first day of March, next, until aud including the
thirtieth June, 1898, with the right of renewal as hereinafter provided.

To have and to hold the said demised premises unto Her Majesty, her successors
and assigns from and after the first day of March, 1898, up to and including the
thirtieth day of June, 1898, yielding and paying therefor to the company, its successors
and assigns, a rental proportionate to a yearly rental of one hundred and forty thousand
dollars ($140,000) which rental shall hereafter be payable in equal sums monthly, that
is to say, eleven thousand six hundred and sixty-six dollars and sixty-six cents ($11,-
666.66) on the first week day of every month or a proportionate sum for any fractional
part of a month, the first payment to be made on the first week day of the month of
March next.

And these presents are made upon and subject to the provisoes and conditions
hereinafter expressed and contained for the due performance and observance of which,
on the part of each of them, Her Majesty and the company, bind themselves and each
of them respectively, their successors and assigns, that is to say -

First :-That all of the terms, covenants, provisoes and conditions contained in the
said agreement with the company, dated the first day of February, 1898, are hereby
adopted and made to apply and extend to this present agreement, in so far as they can
do so, as if the said terms, covenants, provisoes and conditions were incorporated and
embodied in this present indenture.

Second:-That Her Majesty shall and will ask her Parliament of Canada, at the

ensuing session thereof, for an appropriation sufficient to enable Her Majesty to continue
this lease for another year upon the same terms, provisoes and conditions as are herein
contained pending a ratification by her said Parliament of the said agreement.

Provided always, and it is hereby understood by and between the parties hereto

that if at any time during the term hereby granted or during any such continuation
thereof, Her Majesty's Parliament of Canada should ratify and confirm the said last
mentioned agreement, and the shareholders of the company approve the same, then these
presents or any renewal or continuation thereof shall cease and be and become null and
void, and immediately upon such ratification and confirmation the said last mentioned
agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto as if these presents or any such
renewal or continuation thereof had never been entered into.

In witness whereof these presents (in quadruplicate) have been signed by the
Honourable the Minister of Railways and Canals, and the seal of the Department of
Railway and Canals has been hereto affixed, and the company has hereto affixed its
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corporate seal, and these presents have been signed by the General Manager of the
company, the day and year first above written.

Witness to the execution by)
the Grand Trunk Railway
Company.

R. S. LoGAN.

Witness to execution by the
Minister of Railways and
Canals and by the Secre-
tary.

J. E. W. CURRIER.

GRAND TRUNK RAILWAY COMPANY OF CANADA.
By

CHAS. M. HAYS,
General Manager.

AND'W. G. BLAIR,
Minister of Railways and Canals.

L. K. JONES,
Secretary.

It is hereby agreed by and between the parties to the within lease, that the said
lease shall be extended one year, from the thirtieth of June, eighteen hundred and ninety-
eight, upon the same terms, provisoes and conditions, therein contained, in accordance
with the Order in Council, of the 18th day of August, 1898.

Witness our hands and seals this eighteenth day of August, eighteen hundred and
ninety-eight.

Signed, sealed and delivere
in the presence of

R. S. LOGAN

THE GRAND TRUNK RAILWAY COMPANY OF CANADA.
By

d,> CHAS. M. HAYS,f General Manager.

(SEAL.)

Signed, sealed and delivered,]
by the Minister, and Secre-
tary of Railways and Can-
als, in the presence of J

WALTER S. DOULL.
(SEAL.)

AND'W. G. BLAIR,
Minister of Railways and Canals.

L. K. JONES,
Secretary.
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RETURN
[891

To an ADDRESS of the HousE OF COMMONS, dated lst May, 1899 :-For copies
of all petitions addressed to His Excellency the Governor General by
members of the Turner Administration, in the Province of British
Columbia, respecting the conduct of His HFonour the Lieutenant Governor
of that province, and praying for the appointment of a Commission to
inquire into the samo, together with all papers and correspondence con-
nected with said petition ; and also copies of all papers and correspon-
dence in any way relating to the action of His Honour the Lieutenant
Governor of British Columbia in dismissing the Turner Administration
in the said province.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

To the Honourable J. H. TURNER,
Premier of the Province of British Columbia.

SI,-In my letter to you of the 14th July last, regard ing my refusal to approve
of certain Minutes of Council therein mentioned, I stated that I could not look upon
the result of the general elections for the province, held on the 9th of the same
month, as other than adverse to your administration, and an expression of want of
confidence on the part of the electorate. You were informed by the same letter
that pending the Cassiar election I would not embarrass you in administering the
ordinary business of the country, but that, unless I could be shown that yon had the
support of a majority of the members elected to serve in the Legislative Assembly,
I would not accept the advice of yourself and colleagues in regard to new appoint-
mente, or in regard to special expenditures of money, except in cases of urgent
necessity in the interests of the province. I said pending the Cassiar elections, not
that the result there, whether favourable or otherwise to your administration, would,
in my opinion, reverse the verdict of the electorate, but because I did not wish to
take any decided action thereon until the writs had been returned from every con-
stituency in the province. Since writing that letter, however, the representations
made by yourself and colleagues, and hereafter referred to, in regard to the expendi-
ture of various sums of money, have influenced me to the extent that I shall no
longer await the return of the Cassiar writs before acting on what I consider the
verdict of the electorate, as it may be that further delay in calling in a ministry in
whom I would have full confidence, would prejudicially affect the interests of the
rovince. It was recommended by the Honourable the Chief Commissioner of
ands and Works, and urged upon me by yourself and the Honourable Attorney

General, that the moneys voted for roads, bridges, school-houses, etc., should forth-
with be expended in Vernon, Cowichan, Cariboo and Kamloops, and warrants have
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been sent up for my approval covering, in some instances, nearly the whole of the
amounts voted for the said localities. On the recommendation of the Chief Com-
missioner also, I have been asked to approve of a special warrant for a considerable
surn for the Nelson Court-house, additional to the sum already voted for that build-
ing. The Executive Council advised me to approve a minute authorizing yourself
and the Honourable the Attorney General to execute forthwith a contract on behalf
of the government granting a subsidy to the Columbia and Western Railway
Company. And in conference had on the 2nd instant with yourself, the Honourable
the Attorney General and the Honourable the Provincial Secretary, the necessity of
at once placing a large sum at the disposai of the government agent in the Cassiar
district for the building of trails and roads through that district, and for the assist-
ance and relief of a large number of men in that district who could be employed in
such work, was urged upon me, and it was strongly contended that to withhold that
sum now would be to retard the exploration and development of a rich mining
section of the province. Now, in these cases, as you are aware, and in others not
mentioned, I have withhold my approval, as I considered them outside of routine
business, and in none of them could I see that a delay of a few weeks would make
any material difference to the localitiesconcerned,or to the province at large. And,
in a few other cases, not mentioned, I approved of certain expenditures as recom-
mended. But at the same time I fully realize that my owu judgment as to the
expediency of such expenditurea may be at fault. And I fully realize also that this
is an exceedingly important period in the development of the province, and that
lack of proper expenditure in certain localities might indeed retard that develop-
ment. Consequently, impressed as I am with a deep sense of my responsibility to
the Crown, and my duty to the people of the province, and convinedi that yourself
and colleagues are no longer endorsed by the electorate, and have not tho confidence
of the Legislative Assembly, I have decided to no longer delay in calling for other
advisers. For, as I would not feel justified in granting you another dissolution and
appeal to the etectorate, and as after a careful study of the situation I am convinced
that you could not command a majority in the assembly, I shall not put the province
to the delay, or to the expense, of a special session of the legislature merely for
the purpose of formally demonstrating what has been already sufficiently demon-
strated to me by the general elections. I deem it my duty, therefore, to ask, and
I do hereby ask, that yourself and your colleagues band in your resignations as
advisers to me, and as members of my Executive Council.

Dated at Government House, Victoria, B.C., this 8th day of August, 1898.

THOS. R. McINNES,
Lieutenant Governor.

GOVERNMENT HOUSE,
VICTORIA, B. C., August 19th, 1898.

To His Excellency
The Governor General of Canada,

Government louse, Ottawa.

Your ExcELLENcY,--By telegram of the 9th instant I had the honour of notifying
the Secretary of State for Canada that i had called upon the Hon. Robert Beaven to
form a new ministry, by telegram of the 12th instant that Mr. Beaven had asked to
te relieved of the task, and that Mr. Charles Semlin had undertaken it, and by
telegram of the 15th instant that I had sworn in Mr. Semlin, Mr. Joseph Martin and
Mr. Francis Carter Cotton as members of my Executive Council, and that they had
been gazetted to office the same day. I have now the honour of reporting to Your
Excellency the circumstances connected with the dismissal of my late ministry, the
calling upon the Hon. Robert Beaven to form a new Ministry, and the subeequent
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callingupon Mr. Charles Semlin toundertake the same task. I have the honour also
to inclose herewith copies in duplicate of all official correspondence relative to the
dismissal of my late ministry, and the calling upon Mr. Beaven and Mr. Semlin as
aforesaid. My reasons for dismissing the Hon. J. H. Turner and his colleagues, who
formed my late ministry, are detailed in the letters from myself to Mr. Turner,
dated respectively the 8th August instant and the 15th August instant, and inclosed
herewith. The general elections for this province were held on the 9tb day of July
last. As stated in my said letter of the 15th August instant, I d id not at any time
receive a report from Mr. Turner of the result of the said elections. It is true that
the elections for Cassiar district were not begun until the 30th of July last, and the
results there have not even yet been fully received, but from a variety of circum-
stances set forth in my said letter of the 15th August, instant, I did not consider
that the result there could materially or legitimately affect the verdict of the elec-
torate of the province, as given at the said general elections of the 9th July last. Not
having an official report from Mr. Turner as to the result of the said elections, I
relied on the practically unanimous report given by the press, which showed that
on the said 9th of July last there were elected fifteen government supporters, two
who classed themselves as independent government supporters, and nineteen mem-
bers opposed to the government. Throughout the province there was a majority in
favour of those opposed to the government of about fifteen hundred votes. Such a
result, in an assembly of only thirty-eight members, I considered as adverse to Mr.
Turner's ad ministration, and on the 14th July last 1 wrote Mr. Turner to that effect,
not having received a report from him. Inasmuch as our mode of government is
by political parties, it appeared to me that a Lieutenant Governor, while occupying
a position above parties, is nevertheless bound to take cognizance of parties, and
tbeir relative standing, and bound moreover to take cognizance of the fact, when his
ministers, on being granted a dissolution and appeal to the electorate, are not
endorsed by the electorate. At such a time I considered that the words of Lieutenant
Governor Robitaille peculiarly applicable, where, in his letter of the 30th
October, 1879, to the Hon. H. G. Joly, Premier of Quebec, refusing
to grant him a dissolution, and referring to the exercise of that prerogative
he states that a Lieutenant Governor "is responsible toward the Crown for all politi-
cal troubles and financial damage from which he might save the province, and does
not save it." And I, moreover, considered that such a time called for the vigilance
of the Lieutenant Governor, and the exercise, if necessary, of reserved powers, in
preve nting the revenue of the province from being expended for political party pur-
poses, and in preventing the will of the electorate, as expressed at the general elec-
tions, from being thwarted by corrupt expedients of a defeated administration. Pro-
tests have been entered in the courts against thirty-four of the thirty-six members
elect. I decided, however, to await the return of the Cassiar writs before calling on
Mr. Turner and bis colleagues to forthwith meet the assembly or resign. Under
these circumstances, pending the return of the Cassiar writs, I decided to apply to
all recommendations of my late ministry what I conceived to be the underlying
principle of the precedent set by His Excellency the Governor General, immediately
subsequent to the Dominion general elections of 23rd June, 1896, as far as it would
be applicable to the narrower sphere of a provincial government. Accordingly, I
refused to make new appointments to office, except in cases that appeared to be
matter of course, as the appointment of a notary public, where statutory conditions
had been complied with, or in cases represented to be urgent, as the appointment of
Mr. F. G. Fauquier to be a gold commissioner. I aiso refused to approve of war-
rants for payment of money in matters not of routine, except where appearingto be
urgently needed in the public interest. This course was decided on, moreover, to
prevent the expenditure, by a defeated administration before meeting the assembly,
of the five million dollar loan made available at the lat session of the assembly for
subsidizing railway companies inthe province. Instead of acquiescing in this course,
however, ny late ministry besieged me with applications for warrants in matters
not of routine. Added to this I had resons of a cumulative character, indicated in
my said letter of the 15th August instant, leading me to doubt the good faith of the

8
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advice given to me in the matter of these warrants. I could not look upon the per-
sistent application for a special warrant, atter the general elections of the 9th July
last, for tifteen thousand dollars, for the relief and assistance of men in the Cassiar
District, preceding the elections there, as made in good faith. And notwithstand-
ing that this special warrant was refused, the goverament agent in the Cassiar dis-
trict proceeded to employ men there, just prior to the elections, on trails, and on
their now demanding to be paid, my new ministry have had to assume the responsi-
bility of paying thom, and I yesterday, on their recommendation, signed a special
warrant for fifteen thousand dollars for that purpose. Nor could I consider as other
than an expedient to carry the elections in the Cassiar district the application to
have the polling days for certain polling stations in the said district, mentioned in
my said letter of the 15th August instant, extended from the 30th July last and 6th
August instant, to the 1st September next, thus making three polling days for the
same district, at intervals of a week and a month from the first. The writs would
not have been returned until October. I did not consider as made in
good faith the application for the expenditure of ten thousand dollars, cover-
ing nearly the whole of the amount voted for roads and trails in the
district of the defeated minister, Hon. G. B. Martin, who was protesting
the election of his opponent. And had 1 allowed the late ministry to
complete the contract, subsidizing the Columbia and Western Raiiway Company, I
could not consistently have withheld my approval from the granting of other sub-
sidies so allowing the expenditure of at least part of the aforesaid five million dol-
lars loan by the ministry before meeting the assembly. These refusals on my part
led to strained relations with my late ministers, and to what appeared to be unbe-
coming expedients on their part to obtain my approval of money warrants. And
when, in my final interview with them, on the 2nd August instant, I was advised
that the Attorney General could issue warrants on his own recommendation, and
when the Attorney General himself read me the section of the Revenue Act, here-
under quoted, in support of this contention, I decided that I should not ask
them to call a special session of the legislative assembly, to demonstrate their
right to administer the publie business of the province, but having no further confi-
dence in the good faith of their advice, and not knowing to what extent the Attorney
General was prepared to go in the matter of issuing warrants on the treasury on his
own recommendation, I deemed it my duty to call on other advisers. The following
is the section, pursuant to which I was advised that the Attorney General could
issue warrants on the treasury, without my approval:

"'Revenue Act" chapter 166, section 41, es. a, Revised Statutes, British Columbia.
"If upon any application for a warrant the auditor bas reported that there is

no parliamentary authority for issuing it, then upon the written opinion of the
Attorney General that there is such authority, citing it, the warrant may be issued
and shall be sufficient authority to the auditor to authorize the payment out of the
treasury to the amount so ordered to be expended."

And the following is the section of the Constitution Act referred to by myself in
my said letter of the 15th August instant:

"Constitution Act" chapter 47, section 8, Revised Statutes, British Columbia.
"No part of the revenue of this province shall be issued out of the treasury of

this province, except in pursuance of warrants under the hand of the Lieutenant
Governor."

I felt that the result of the general elections of the 9th July last, together with
the distrust felt in the good faith of the advice of my ministry, and in particular the
advice given by the Attorney General, created a situation that not only justified, but
required the calling upon other advisers. I relied upon the statement made by Sir
M. Hicks Beach, Secretary of State for the Colonies, in his despatch of 3rd July,
1879, to the Governor General in the matter of the Letellier case to the effect that
" there can be no doubt that the Lieutenant Governor of a province has an unques-
tionable constitutional right to dismiss his ministers, if, from any cause, ho feels it
incumbent upon him to do so." And also upon the principle enunciated in Todd's
Parliamentary Government in the British Colonies, second edition, at page 616, to
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the effect that "It is the bounden duty of a governor to dismiss his ministers, if he
believes their policy to be injurious to the public interests, or their conduct to be
such, in thoir official capacity, that ho cen no longer act with them harmoniously
for the public good. But before a governor proceeds to this extremity, at least to-
wards a ministry having the confidence of the assembly, he should be assured that
he can replace them by others, who will be acceptable to the country, and to the
assembly, as well as to himself, and who will be prepared to assume full
responsibility for his act in effecting the change of governmont," But although
it appeared plain to me that I should call on some one else to form a minis-
try, it did not appear plain upon whom I should call. Mr. Semlin had
been the admitted leader of the party opposed to Mr. Turner's administration, prior
to the general elections of the 9th July last. After the said elections, however, the
said party met in convention and were unable to decide on a leader, being fairly
divided between Mr. Semlin and the Hon. Joseph Martin. Under these circum-
stances I decided to call upon the Hon. Robert Beaven, the former leader of the
said party, a former premier of the province also, and a man of over twenty-five
years' experience in its public affairs, and of unblemished reputation. Mr. Beaven,
however, failed to reconcile the leaders of the contending factions under himself,
and I accordingly had an interview with Mr. Martin, and later with Mr. Semlin, as
to the situation. As a result of the said interviews, I called upon Mr. Semlin to
form a ministry on the 12th August instant, and, on the 15th August instant, I had
the honour of administering the oath of office to Mr. Semlin as momber of the Ex-
ecutive Council and Chief Commissioner of Lands and Works, to Mr. Martin as
member of the Executive Council and Attornev General, and to Mr. Francis Carter
Cotton as member of the Executive Council and Minister of Finance and Agricul-
ture. On the 17th August instant, the oath of office was administered to Dr. Robert
E. McKechnie as member of the Executive Council, and to-morrow I am to admin-
ister the oath to Mr. J. Frederick Hume as member of the Executive Council
and Minister of Mines and Provincial Secretary. There are two matters in connec-
tion with the case not set out in the inclosed correspondence, as they involve
questions atone of responsibility to Your Excellency. I had thought at first of
applying to the Honourable the Secretary of State for instructions as to whether or
not I should dismiss Mr. Turner and his colleagues. But on consideration it
appeared clear to me that to do so in this case would be to transfer to Your Excel-
lency's advisers a responsibility which they could not be expected to assume, and
the expediency of which they could not be put in a position to promptly and
adequately judge of. And it moreover appeared that to do so would set a precedent
for what would be in effect a transfor of the prorogative of dismissal from the
lieutenant governor to Your Excellency's advisers. And therefore, while not over-
looking my responsibility to Your Excellency for such action as i should take, I
decided not to consult the Secretary of State. The second matter above referred to
is the insinuation in Mr. Turner's letter of the 9th August instant, inclosed here-
with, that negotiations were set on foot by me, through the medium of my rivate
secretary, with Mr. Turner, in regard to taking Mr. W. W. B. McInnes, M.P., into
his cabinet. I would point out to Your Excellency that the fact of having a son
who takes an active part in political life in this province lays me open to imputa-
tions of partiality from partizans of any political faction affected adversely by
action or want of action on my part. To Your Excellency I state that at no time,
directly or indirectly, did I cause such negotiations as aforesaid to be set on foot,
and at no time bas my course in respect of the late ministry been affected or influ-
enced by its possible outcome in respect of Mr. W. W. B. McInnes, M.P., or any
other person whatsoever. And I respectfully submit ta Your Excellency that the
attitude I adopted toward my late ministry, whether right or wrong, was consistent
and unwavering from and after the 13th day of July last, when the resuit of the
general elections of the 9th of the same month became known. Mr. Turner, in his
letter of the 9th August instant to me, makes the statement that at the time of his
dismissal negotiations were pending between himself and Mr. W. W. B. McInnes,
and asks me to reconsider my letter of dismissal. Mr. Turner intimates that ho
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considered me as party to these negotiations, and naively expresses bis surprise at
my letter of dismissal by saying, " I was surprised to receive Your Honour's letter,
inasmuch as it placed an entirely new complexion on the wholo situation." Had I
been so renegade to the duties of my position as to be involved in these alleged
negotiations, such action as I took on the 8th August instant would certainly not
have been taken. I trust, Your Excellency, that on this point it will not be neces-
sary to say more. I have the honour to refer Your Excellency again to the inclosed
correspondence for further details in the case.

Ail of which is respectfully submitted.

I have the honour to be Your Excellency's obedient servant,
THOS. R. MoINNES,

Lieutenant Governor.

VIcToRIA, B.C., 15th October, 1898.

The Honourable R. W. SCOTT, Secretary of State,
Ottawa, Ont.

SiR,-I have the honour to forward herewith the memorial of James Baker,
Charles E. Pooley, David MacEwen Eberts, and the writer asking that a royal
commission be appointed to inquire into certain charges made by His Honour Thos.
R. McInnes, the Lieutenant Governor of British Columbia.

Colonel James Baker bas not signed the memorial, but a copy bas been for-
warded to England for bis signature, which will be sent to you at a later date.

I have, &c.,

J. H. TURNER.

To the Right Honourable Sir John Campbell Hamilton-Gordon, Barl of Aberdeen;
Viscount Formartine, Baron Raddo, Methlic, Tarves and Kellie, in the Peerage of
Scotland; Tincent Gordon of Aberdeen, County of Aberdeen, in the Peerage of the
United Kingdom, Baronet of Nova Scotia, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most
Distinguished Order of St. Michnel and St. George, etc., etc., Governor General of
Canada.

The petition of John Herbert Turner of the city of Victoria, merchant, late
Premier and Minister of Finance, and Minister of Agriculture for the province of
British Columbia, James Baker, of Cranbrook, East Kootenay, Lieutenant-Colonel,
late Minister of Mines of the province of British Columbia, Charles Edward Pooley,
of the said city of Victoria, barrister-at-law. late member of the government of
British C olumbia without portfolio, and David MacEwen E berts, of the same place,
barrister-at-law, late Attorney-General of the said province, humbly showeth:-

Your petitioners were members of the Government of British Columbia until
the 8th day of August, A.D. 1898.

Appended to this petition is the correspondence which passed between your
p etitioner John Herbert Turner and the Honourable Thomas R. McInnes, Lieutenant
Governor of the said province, relative to the dismissal of the government of which
your petitioner John Herbert Turner was Prime Minister.

Your petitioners crave leave to draw Your Excellency's attention to the follow-
ing language of Alpheus Todd, LL.D., C.M.G., in his work on the Parliamentary

6

A. 1899



Dismissal of Turner Administration.

Government in the British Colonies, 2nd edition, page 37, where, referring to the
office of a governor, he says: -

Should a governor exceed his rightful powers, or commit any act to which exception could
be justly taken, an appeal is always open to the sovereign, through the Secretary of
State, and to the Imperial Parliament, which is the grand inquest of the nation for the
redress of all grievances.

It will be in Your Excellency's recollection that in 1887 the Governor of the
Mauritius was suspended from office pending the investigation by a royal commis-
sion of inquiry into charges preferrod against him.

Your petitioners would also refer to a despatch, dated 3rd Jaly, 1879, from Sir
M. Hicks-Beach, Her Majesty's Secretary of State for the Colonies, to His Excellency
the Marquis of Lorne, then Governor General of Canada, and particularly to that
portion of the said despateh which reads as follows:-

There can be no doubt that the Lieutenant Governor of a province has an unquestionable
constitutional right to dismiss his ministers, if, from any cause, he feels it incumbent
upon him to do so. In the exercise of this right, as of any other of his functions, he
should of course maintain the impartiality towards rival political parties which is
essential to the proper performance of the duties of his office ; and, for any action he
may take, lie is (under the fifty-ninth section of the British North America Act),
directly responsible to the Governor General. (Todd's Parliamentary Gov. in the
Colonies, 2 ed. p. 606.)

The Right Honourable Sir Wilfrid Laurier in 1878 expressed the following
opinion:

It would certainly be the duty of the Dominion Government to interfere in order to redre ss
a wrong which the people could not theinselves remedy.-(Hansard, 1878, p. 1918.)

And again in 1879 he spoke in debating the case of the dismissal of the Lieu-
tenant-Governor of Quebec as follows:

Now as regards the Lieutenant Governor under the constitution, the law says that he shall
be removable for cause; but what can a cause be ? I believe that these causes of
removal can well be offences of a personal character, but never offences connected with
the discharge of duti,,s of an official character. If, for instance, the Lieutenant-Gover-
nor by some grossly dishonourable conduct brings the Crown into contuiely, this and
similar offences might be causes for removal; but if he sticks within the circle of his
funetions, however tyrannical his acts inay be, he is not removable, because he is
covered by ninisterial responsibility. He is amenable to the people who can set him
right if they believe him wrong and undo what he has done.-(Vol. 1, Hansard. 1879,
p. 327.)

Your petitioners are not unmindful that a Colonial Governor may be sued in
the courts, whether the causes of action spring from liabilities incurred in his
private or public capacity, as has been decided by the Judicial Committee of the
Privy Council. (Sec Hill v. Biggs, 3 Moore P. C. 465; Musgrave v. Palido, 5 L. R.
App. 102.) Nevertheless the facts hereinafter referred to, your petitioners submit,
are properly the su bject for royal commission.

Your petitioners, invoking Your Excellency's supervision under the 59th
section of the Biitish North America Act, desire to refer to certain acts of the
Lieutenant Governor of British Columbia. In doing this they have no wish to
remove from the provincial arena any purely political question arising out of their
dismissal, and for which ministers of the Crown can fairly be held responsible,
your petitioners being well satisfied to abide by the wishes of the people of the
province of British Columbia constitutionally expressed in the usual manner.

Your petitioners, nevertheless, feel compelled to draw Your Excellency's
attention to the conduct of the Lieutenant Governor of a personat character, in
regard to which ordinary constitutional methods available in the province afford no
adequate means for fully vindicating the personal honour of your petitioners, which
bas been impugned by the Lieutenant Governor.

Your petitioners would again adopt the language of Todd, where he says:-
The circumstances under which a governor would deenm it discreet and advisable to have

recourse to his reserved right of dismissing a ministry must be determined by himself, with
due regard to the gravity of the proceeding, and to the responsibility it would entail upon
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him to the Crown. But this prerogative right can only be coustitutionally exercised on
grounds of public policy, and for reasons which are capable of being explained and
justified by an incoming administration to the local assembly, as well as by the
governor hinself to the Imperial authorities.

Upon a change of ninistry it is essential that the gentlemen who may be invited by the
governor to forn a new administration shall unreservedly be informed by him of the
circumstances which led to the resignation or dismissal of their predecessors in office ;
and that they shall be willing to accept entire responsibility to the local parliament
for any acts of the governor which have been instrumental in occasioning the resigna-
tion of or effecting the dismissal of the outgoing ministry. For it is an undoubted
principle of English law that no prerogative of the Crown can he constituitionally
exercised unless some minister of state is ready to assume responsibility for the samne.-
(Todd's Parliameutary Gov. in the Colonies, 2 Ed. Pages 817-818.)

Your peiitioiers charge that the Lieutenant Governor did not observe that
candour due to bis ministry, but was guilty of misrepresenting the roasons which
induced him to summarily and suddenly request the resignation of your petitioners.

Your petitioners forther charge, that the Lieutenant Governor made and
published false statements, respecting the conduct and character of your petitioners.

In support of these charges, refèrence is made to the correspondence appended
hereto.

On the 14th of July, the Lieutenant Governor wrote to your petitioner, John
Herbert Turner:-

I cannot look on the result of the general elections for this province, held on the 9th inst.,
as other than adverse to your administration, and an expression of want of confidence
on the part of the people. At the same time as the Cassiar elections are still pending,
I do not wish in any way to embarass you in administering the ordinary business of
the province. Unless, however, I become convinced that you have the support of a
majority of the new legislative assembly, I cannot accept the advice of yourself and
colleagues in regard to new appointments to office, in regard to any special expenditures
of mnoney not provided for in the current estimates, unless shown that an urgent
necessity exists for the same in the interests of the province.

At this time, the ministerial members elect all told numbered 17, while on the
8th of August, though the election in Cassiar was not concluded, it was notorious
that the result was Ussured in favour of the government, so that there virtually was
a House of 19 ministerialists and 19 oppositionists.

In any event, in the letter of the 14th July, it is elear that the Lieutenant
Governor was acting on the assumption that the leader of the government should
have the support of a majority of the new assembly, and that if not he would
consider it bis duty to eall upoi some oue who had.

Should the election in Cassiar go against the government, then upon this
ground he would feel justified in calling upon the opposition to form a government.

But by the 8th August, it was clear that the parties would be a tie in the new
assem bly.

No suggestion reflecting on the character or honour of your petitioners had
been made at any time by the Lieutenant Governor. His Honour thon called for
the resignation of your petitioners, and in bis letter to the Premier on the 8th
August, wrote:-

This action I have taken in view of the result of the general elections held on the 9th of
last month.

(The Cassiar eloctions were still pending) and after referring to requests which
the ministry had made for approval of various minutes, the Lieutenant Governor
added:-

Now in these cases as you are aware, and in others not nentioned, I have withheld my
approval, as I considered thenm outside of routine business, and in none of them could
I see that a delay of a few weeks would make any material difference to the localities
concerned, or to the province at large. And in a few other cases, not mentioned, I
approved of certain expenditures as recommended. But at the sanie time I fully realize
also that this is an exceedingly important period in the development of the province,
and that lack of proper expenditure in certain localities might indeed retard that devel-
opinent. Consequently, imipressed as I am with the deep sense of my responsibility to
to the Crown, and my duty to the people of the province, and convinced that yourself
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and your colleagues are no longer endorsed by the electorate, an i have not the confidence
of the legislative assembly, 1 have decided to no longer delay in calling for other advisers.
For, as f would not feel justified in granting you another dissolution and appeal to the
electorate, and as, after a careful study of the situation, I am convinced that you conld
not command a majority in the assenbly, I shall not put the province to the delay or
to tbe expense of a special session of the legislature merely for the purpose of formally
demonstratimg what has already been sufficiently demonstrated to me by the general
elections. 1 deem it my duty, therefore, to ask and I do hereby ask, that yourself and
your colleagues hand in your resignations.

Again, in a letter bearing the same date, addressed to the Hon. Robert Beaven,
after informing him that ho bas relieved your petitioners fron their functions as
his advisers, the Lieutenant Governor wrote:-

This action I have taken in view of the result of the general elections, held on the 9th of last
month.

It should be observed in this connection that Mr. Beaiven was not a member of
the assembly elect, but had been defeated in the general election. He was not a
leader of any )Olitical party, nor had he any following whatever among the members
elect.

And on 13th August, the Lieutenant Governor, in a letter to Mr. Charles Semlin,
hereto appended, wrote as follows :-

SiR,-For reasons intimated in letters of the 14th and 25th July last, and 8th August,
instant, from myself to the Hon. John Herbert Turner, Premier of this province, I
asked himself and colleagues on the latter date to hand in their resignations as niy
advisers and members of my Executive Council, informing them that I had decided to
call on other advisers without further delay.

And in his letter of August 15th, the Lieutenant Governor says
In my letter of the 14th July, above referred to. I left it open to you to show that you still

had the confidence of the legislative assembly.

Having given these precise reasons for his action, your petitioner, John Herbert
Turner, on the 9th of August, deemed if his duty to send to the Lieutenant Governor
a communication of that date, appended hereto, in which ho asked, for the constitu-
tional reasons set out therein, a reconsideration on the part of the Lieutenant
Governor of his request for the resignations of your petitioners.

On the 15th of Augustthe Lieutenant Governor, in a communication addressed
to your petitioner, J. Il. Turner, undertook " to enter into certain details respecting
the grounds " to show his "I lack of confidence," and in this connection the following
extracts from the said communication are made:-

During several interviews with you, 1 informed you that, while I had every respect for your-
self personally, I had little or no confidence in some of your colleagues, and this, to-
gether with the verdict of the electorate on the 9th July last, made it impossible for me
to unreservedly accept the recommendations of the Executive Council * * *
It was borne in upon me, however, from that timne on, that I was not being advised, to
quote fromt the words of Lieutenint Governor Angers, " wisely, disinterestedly and faith-
fully." * * * On a subsequent occasion I had a batch of warrants in connection
with routine inatters sent up for my approval, fastened together in the manner that I had
been instructed that nmy signature on the last sheet would cover the preceding sheet.
There was a large number of them fastened together in this way, but I inspected them all
individually before signing the last sheet. To my surprise I found inserted therein, in
different places, six or seven warrants in blank. As I did not propose to approve of
blank warrants, I cut themn out. This was about the 19th .uly last. I have since
waited for some information in r ard to or some inquiry for those warrants in blank,
but none has been forthcoming. e was asked to sign a warrant placing $15,000 at the
immediate disposal of the government agent in the Cassiar district for the assistance
and relief of nien to be employed in the construction of trails and roads through the
district. I refused. This led to the long and unpleasant interview of the 2nd
August, instant, had with yourself, the Attorney General and the Provincial Secretary,
in the course of which I was informed that, failing my sanction, the Attorney-General
pursuant to powers vested in him by section 41, sub sections (a) and (b) of the Revenue
Act, cap. 47, of the Revised Statutes, B.C., could have the warrant issued on his recom-
mendation without my signature. To convince me of this, the Attorney-General there-
upon produced the said Act, which lie had brought with him and had marked, and pro-
ceeded to read the said sections. I told him I was glad he could do it without me, and
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so take the responsibility of mny shoulders. But it was so novel an idea to me that,
after the interview, I looked up the sections aforesaid myself, and I also looked up
section 8, chapter 47, of the Revised Statutes, known as the Constitution Act, and
found that the Attorney-General had misinformed me. Had this contention of the
Attorney General been correct, the Attorney General would have had considerable con-
trol of the treasury. As far as I am aware, however, the Attorney General did not
attempt to exercise his powers in this respect. I could not avoid the conclusion that
I was being nisled for the purpose of influencing nie to sign the warrant under
discussion."

So that the responsibility assumed by the coming governmont was definite, and
limited to the question of probable parliamentary support.

Your petitioners would first observe that this statement, and the preceding
statements, are obviously inconsistent, and cannot all be true.

Your petitioners charge that the latter statement is maliciously false.
And, first, your petitioner, John Herbert Turner, for himself, denies that the

Lieutenant Government at any time expressed his want of confidence in bis col-
leagues or in any one of them.

And all of your potitioners say that no explanation respecting the blank war-
rants was ever requested, as it could have been promptly and satisfactorily given.

Your petitioners, John Herbert Turner, David MacEwen Eberts and James
Baker (the Attorney General and Provincial Secretary referred to) deny that on
the 2nd August or at any time they or any of them informed the Lieutenant Gover-
nor that failing bis sanction the Attorney General could have the warrrant issued
on the Attorney Goneral's recommendation-without bis signature.

Your petitioner David MacEwen Eberts (the Attorney General referred to)
denies that in reading the section of the Act he intimated to the Lieutenant Gover-
nor so monstrous a proposition.

The section reads as follows:-
41. No money shall issue except upon the certificate of the auditor that there is

parliamnentary authority for the expenditure, save only on the following cases: 
"(a) If upon any application for a warrant the auditor has reported that there is

no parliamentary authority for issuing it, then upon the written opinion of the
Attorney General that there is such authority, citing it, the warrant may be issued,
and shal be sufficient authority to the auditor to authorize the payment out of the
treasury to the ainount so ordered to be expended.

"(b) If any public work or building require an immediate outlav for the repair
thereof, or any other occasion arises when any expenditure not foreseen or provided for
by the legislature is urgeutly and immediately required for the public good, then,
upon the report of the Minister of Finance that there is no parliamentary provision, or
that the vote is expended, or upon the report of the minister having charge of the
particular service in question that the expenditure is necessary, the Lieutenant Governor
in Council may order a special warrant to be issued for the amount estinated to be
required, and issuance of such warrant shall be sufficient authority to the auditor to
authorize the payment out of the treasury to the amount so ordered to be expended or
paid."

Your petitioners indignantly repudiate the dishonourable insinuations contained
in the paragraph above quoted.

The public press in British Columbia, from such a statement, very properly
infer that for the dishonourable conduct suggested in this paragraph your peti-
tioners were dismissed from office; whereas, as your petitioners have shown, no
such roason was given or insinuated either when they were requested to resign or
when Mr. Beaven or Mr. Semlin were invited to form a cabinet.

Your petitioners, therefore, humbly pray that Your Excellency may be pleased
to be caused to be issued a royal commission of inquiry into the charges above
preferred, and they are ready and anxious that the powers under such a commission
may be of such a character that so far as your petitioners or their characters are
concerned, the inquiry may be unlimited-and unrestricted.

And your petitioners in duty bound will ever pray, &c.
J. H. TURNER.
CHAS. E. POOLEY.
,D. M. EBERTS.
JA MES BAKER.
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The following correspondence relative to the dismissial of the Turner ministry,
and His Honour's choice of new advisers, was officially made public yesterday in an
extra of the British Columbia Gazette:

PROVINCIAL SECRETARY's OFFICE, 26th August, 1898.
His Honour the Lieutenant.Governor directs that the following correspondence

relative to the dismiesal of His Honour's late advisers, and to the appointment of
their successors, be publiehed for general information. By command.

J. FRED. HUME,
Provincial Secretary.

AT GOVERNMENT HOUsE, VICTORIA, B.C., 13th July, 1897.

The Hon. the Provincial Secretary,
Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-Referring to the order in council received this moi ning by His Honour
the Lieutenant Governor, for approval, dated the 8th inst., wherein the several
jurisdictions of Messre. Alexander Sproat, S. M., and John Kirkup, S. M., are settled·
and defined, and wherein is also incorporated a recommendation that Mr. Frederick
George Fauquier be appointed a gold commissioner in and for the Ainsworth min.
ing division of Weet Kootenay, and a stipendiary magistrate in and for the county
of Kootenay, at a salary of $125 per month, I am directed by His Honour the Lieu-
tenant Governor to say that so much of the order as settles and defines the jurisdic-
tion of Messrs. Sproat and Kirkup, as aforesaid, must be made the subject of a
separate recommendation. I inclose the order herewith for amendment, as in-
dicated.

I have the honour to be, sir,
T. R. E. MoINNES,

Private Secretary.

AT GOVERNMENT HoUsE, VICTORIA, B.C., 14th Joly, 1898.

To the Hon. J. H. Turner,
Premier of the Province of British Columbia.

SIR,-Referring to a letter of my private secretary, dated yesterday, and addres-
sed to the Honourable the Provincial Secretary, returning a recommendation of
the executive council, made in the matter of the appointment of Frederick George
Fauquier as a gold commissioner and stipendiary magistrate, unapproved by me, I
have the honour to explain to you my reasons for so doing, as well as to indicate the
course I propose to follow for the present in regard to such recommendations. I
cannot look on the result of the general elections for this province, held on the 9th
inst., as other than adverse to your administration, and an expression of want of con-
fidence on the part of the people. At the same time, as the Cassiar elections are
stili pending, I do not wish in any way to embarrass you in administering the
ordinary busiuess of the province. Unless, however, I become convinced that you
have the support of a majority of the new legislative assembly, I cannot accept the
advice of yourself and colleagues in regard to new appointments to office, in
regard to any special expenditures of money not provided for in the current
estimates, unless shown that an urgent necessity exists for the same in the intereets
of the province. I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,
THOS. R. MoINNES,

Lieutenant Governor.
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AT GOVERNMENT IloUsE, VICTORIA, B.C., 25th July, 1898.

To the Hon. J. H. Turner,
Premier of the Province of British Columbia.

SIR,-I have returned unapproved to the Hon. the Provincial Secretary the
recommendation of the Executive council that the dates of holding the elections in
the Cassiar clectoral district be altered from the dates already fixed by the returning
officer for the district, viz., the 30th day of July ard the 6th day of August, to the
lst day of September, in respect to the following polling stations: Hazleton, Lorne
Creek, Glenora, Telegraph Creek, Dease Creek, MeDame Creek, Teslin Lake and
Lake Bennett. I have carefully considered the reasons urgod on behalf of so doing
by the minister, the Hon. the Provincial Secretary, but, having in view existing
political conditions, as set forth to you in my letter of the 14th inst., I do not consider
these reasons as adequate, and cannot, therefore, approve the recommendation.

I have the honor to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOS. R. McINNES,
Lieutenant Governor.

To the Hon. J. H. Turner,
Premier of the Province of British Columbia.

SIR,-In my letter of the 14th July last, regarding my refusal to approve of
certain minutes of council therein mentioned, I stated that I could not look upon
the result of the general elections for the province, held on the 9th of the same
month, as other than adverse to your administration, and an expression of want of
confidence on the part of the electorate. You were informed by the same letter
that, pending the Cassiar election, I would not embarrase you in administering the
otdinary business of the country, but that unless 1 could be shown that you had the
support of the majority of the members elected to serve in the legislative assembly,
I would not accept the advice of yourself and colleagues in regard to new appoint-
ments, or in regard to special expenditures of money, except in cases of urgent
necessity in the interests of the province. I said pending the Cassiar elections, not
that the result there, whether favourable or otherwise to your administration,
would, in my opinion, reverse the verdict of the electorate, but becaus'e I did not
wish to take any decided action thereon until the writs had been returned from
every constituency in the province. Since writing the letter, however, the repre-
sentations made by yourself and colleagues, and hereafter referred to, in regard to
the expenditure of varions sums of moncy, have influenced me to the extent that I
shal no longer await the return of the Cassiar writs before acting on what I consider
the verdict of the electorate, as it may be that further delay in calling in a ministry
in whom I would have full confidence, would prejudicially affect the interests of the
province. It was recommenddd by the Hon. the Chief Commissioner of Lands and
Works, and urged upon me by yourself and the Hon. the Attorney General, that the
moneys voted for roads, bridges, school-houses, etc., should forthwith be expended
in Vernon, Cowichan, Cariboo and Kamloops, and warrants have been sent up for
my approval, covering, in some instances, nearly the whole amounts voted for the
said localities. On the recommendation of the Chief Commissioner also I have been
asked to approve of a special warrant for a .considerable sum for the Nelson court-
bouse, additional to the sums already voted for that building. The Executive
Council advised me to approve a minute authorizing yourself and the Honourable
the Attorney General to execute forthwith a contract on behalf of the government,
granting a subsidy to the Columbia and Western Railway Company. And in confer-
ence, bad on the 2nd inst., with yourself, the Honourable the Attorney General, and
the Honourable the Provincial Secretary, the necessity of at once placing a large
sum at the disposal of the government agent in the Cassiar district, for the building
of trails and roade through that district, and for the assistance and relief of a large
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number of men in that district, who could be employed in such work, was urged
upon me, and it was strongly contended that to withhold that sun now would be to
retard the exploration and development of a rich mining section of the province. Now,
in these cases, as you are aware, and in others not mentioned, I have withheld my
approval, as I considered them outside of routine business, and in none of them
could I see that a delay of a few weeks would make any material difference to the
localities concerned, or to the province at large. And in a few other cases, not
mentioned, I approved of certain expenditures as recommended. But at the same
time I fully realize that my own judgment as to the expediency of such expendi.
tures may be at fault. And I fully realize also that this isan exceedingly important
period in the development of the province, and that lack of proper expenditure in
certain localities might indeed retard that development. Consequently, impressed
as I am with the deep sense of my responsibility to the Crown, and my duty to the
people of the province, and convinced that yourself and your colleagues are no longer
endorsed by the electorate, and have not the confidence of the legislative assem6ly,
I have decided to no longer delay in calling for other advisers. For, as I would not
feel justified in granting you another dissolution and appeal to the electorate, and as,
after a careful study of the situation, I am convinced that you could not command
a majority in the assembly, I shall not put the province to the delay or to the
expense of a special session of the legislature, merely for the purpose of formally
demonstrating what has aiready been sufficiently demoinstrated to me by the general
elections. I deem it my duty, therefore, to ask, and I do hereby ask, that yourself
and your colleagues hand in your resignations as advisers to me, and as members of
my executive council.

Dated at Government House, Victoria, B.C., this 8th day of August, 1898.

THOS. R. McINNES,
Lieutenant Governor.

At GOVERNMENT HOUSE.

To the Hon. ROBERT BEAvEN. VIcTORIA, B. C., 8th August, 1898.

Victoria, B.C.

Sir,-I have the honour to inform you that, by letter of even date herewith, I
have relieved the Hon. J. H. Turner and his colleagues from their functions as my
advisers and members of my Executive Council. This action I have taken in view
of the result of the general elections held on the 9th of lest month. This is probably
the most important period yet known in the development of the resources of the
province, and during the month that bas elapsed since the said general elections, [
have deeply felt the need of advisers in whom I could place full confidence, and
whose recommendations I could unhesitatingly approve. And knowing your
thorough knowledge of the special needs and requirements of the province, and
having in view your long and honourable experience throughout a quarter of a «en-
tury in the administration of its affairs, and regarding you, moreover, peculiarly fit
to reconcile its contending political factions, I hereby call upon you to assume the
task of forming a ministry, and to once more act as chief adviser to the representa-
tive of the Crown.

THOS. IR. McINNES,
Lieutenant-Governor.

Mr. Beaven has the honour to informI His Honour the Lieutenant Governor that
he accepts the duty proposed to him in His Honour's letter of even date, and will pro-
seed with the formation of a new administration.

VICTORIA, B.C., Sth August, 1898.
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Mr. Beaven thanks His Honour the Lieutenant Governor for the confidence
reposed in him by the commission placed in hi@ hands of forming a new administra-
tion. Under existing conditions, Mr. Beaven deems it the proper course to ask His
Honour to relieve him of further duty in the matter.

VICoORIA, B.C., 12th August, 1898.

To His Honour the Lieutenant Governor VICTORA, 9th August,1898.

of British Columbia.

Sia,-On the 14th day of July lastyou advised me, by a formal communication
that you regarded the result of the general elections as adverse to my administra-
tion. You added that " as the Cassiar elections are still pending," you did not wish
to enibarrase me in administering the " ordinary business of the province."

On the 25th of July you declined to act upon the recommendation of the execu-
tive council respecting the date for holding the elections in Cassiar electoral district,
in respect to certain polling stations, " having in view existing political conditions."

The elections in Cassiar being still in progress, I have now to acknowledge the
receipt of a further communication from Your Honour, dated the 8th day of August,
instant, in which you say you shall no longer await the return of tho Cassiar writs
before taking action on what you "consider the verdict of the electorate." You
recite certain recommendations for expenditure of accounts voted by parliament,
which you consider "outside of routine business," and you say that in these you
saw " that a delay of a few weeks " would make no material difference.

Your Honour goes on to observe that unless you became convinced that I had
the support of the majority of the legislative assembly "yon could not accept the
advice " of myself and colleagues in regard to "new appointments to office, or in
regard to any special expenditures of money not provided for in the current
estimates, unless shown that an urgent necessity exists in the interests of this
province."

Your Honour, however, proceeds immediately to inform me that, as your own
judgment in these matters may be at fault, and being convinced that i and my
colleagues are no longer "endorsed by the electorate," you have decided to "no
longer delay in calling for other advisers;" and Your Honour concludes by asking
that I and my colleagues hand in our resignations as advisers to you, and as
members of your executive council.

This communication was received by me at the hour of 12 by the clock on the
8th day of Auguet. At 3 o'clock in the afternoon of that day, Mr. Beaven, a
defeated candidate in the general elections not yet concluded, was announcing that
he bad been sent for by Your Honour to form a government, and the evening paper,
the Daily Times, made a similar announcement.

It is impossible for me to assume that Mr. Beaven or the paper mentioned were
justified in making such statements. Nevertheless, the fact that they were made
may become important in connection with the responsibility Your Honour proposes
to undertake.

Permit me to add to the above record of correspondence facts which I submit
are of great importance in connectioD with the present situation.

Appropriations for the fiscal year were fully voted.

MEMORANDA APPROVED SINCE THE 14TR JULY, 1898.

July 15th.-Unexpended balances of appropriations for the fiscal year ending
30th June, 1898, extended to 30th September, 1898.

July 15th.-Grant in aid of the Woman's hospital, New Westminster, $750.
July 15th.-82,500 placed at the disposal of the Chief Commissioner for making

good deficiencies in re estimates of cost of construction of public achool buildings in
country places.
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July .19th.-Fixing the juriediction of Messrs. Sproat and Kirkup as gold com-
missioners.

July 19th.-Mr. F. G. Fauquier appointed a gold commissioner.
July 19th.-Sanctioning payment of $1,000 and $4,000 to the treasurer of the

Provincial Exhibition to held at New Westminster.
July 19th.-Mr. Richard Russell appointed a notary public.
July 19th.-Requisitions for the fiscal year ending 30th June, 1898.
July 19th.-Requisitions for the fiscal year ending 30th June, 1898.
July 19th.-Applications from Messrs. Webb, Henderson and others, for lase

of mining ground near Boston Bar, in the Fraser River.
July 19th.-Application of C. Black, for lease of mining ground in the Omineca

district.
July 19th.-Applications of John Baker, Edwards and others, for leases of

mining grounds in the Omineca district.
July 19th.-Applications of Kavanaugh, Berlin and others, for leases of mining

grounde in Omineca district.
July 19th.-Applications of Ray, Bethune and others, for leases of mining

grounds in the Omineca district.
July 23rd.-Allowing the County Court (Victoria) Vacation Rules, 1898.
July 23rd.-Requisitions, schedules A, B and C.
July 26th.-Authorizing expenditure on behalf of four children (McKittrick)

to be sent to the British Columbia orphanage.
August 1st.-Requisitions, 29th July, 1898, salary warrants.
August 2nd.-Ruling as to the true intent of subsection (g) of section 8, of the

Minerai Act Amendment Act, 1898.
August 2nd.-Special warrant, $417.50, to cover expenses in re investigation

of allegations made by the Victoria Times against the department of lands and works.
On Monday, 18th July, 1898, Mr. T. R. E. McInnes, Your Honour's private sec-

retary, called on me at my office in the treasury. He spoke of the letter of July
14th from the Lieutenant Governor to me, in which the Governor gives bis reasons
for not signing Fauquier's appointment, etc. He (the private secretary) said that
he had written that letter. He said that Your Honour considered that the result
of the elections generally was against the Government, and therefore no new appoint-
ments should be made, and no special warrants drawn. He then went on to say
that there was a method by which I could secure a strong government, that owing
to the fact that some parties who had taken a very active part against the govern-
ment in the late elections, being somewhat nervous now about the real position of
affairs in the province, particularly with respect to the preponderance of Mainland
influence and the consequent danger of the rights of the island being neglected,
they, or he, had arrived at the opinion that it would be well to back me up by
support from some of the members who had been elected to support the opposition;
and h. desired to let me know that bis brother, W. W. B. McInnes, M.P., could
carry out an arrangement of that kind. He (W. W. B. McInnes) was prepared to
reeign his seat in the Commons and enter into local politics. He was really a friend
of mine, and fully supported most of my policy, more particularly that of railways,
agriculture and finance. He would, however, want a seat in the cabinet, and if I
were inclined to give him that he was quite sure he could bring over two of the
present opposition islarid members to my support in addition to his own. This
would give me, in the event of Cassiar being favourable to my government, at least
21 or 22 government supporters, and I should, he thought, have little difficulty in
getting over one or two more, thus securing a good working majority.

A few days after Mr. W. W. B. McInnes called at my office and discussed the
situation on the lines suggested by his brother, Your Honour's private secretary, and
confirmed the statements mado by the latter.

Mr. W. W. B. McInnes subsequently had other interviews with me on the sarne
subject in my office, and negotiations have practically continued until the present
time. Your Honour will observe that such representations from such a quarter
neocessarily required serious consideration on the part of the government, and I was

15
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surprised to receive Your Honour's letter, inasmuch as it placed an entirely new
complexion on the whole situation.

I shall not at this juncture comment upon all the incidents above related, nor
do I propose here to examine the particular opinions of the candidates at such elec-
tions as have been held, indeed I am at loss to know how this can accurately be done
by any one, but I will call Your Honour's attention to several phases of the situation
certainly as notorious as any of the incidents of the political contests to which Your
H1onour refers.

Mr. Semlin, Mr. Cotton and Mr. Martin were the leading opponents of the
government.

Certain gentlemen elected, while not pledged to support the present adminis-
tration, have not agreed as to which of these gentlemen will obtain thoir support in
the formation of the ministry.

No ordinary political party hnes were adopted by any of the candidates.
I am not aware, and have no reason to believe, that of the gentlemen so far

elected a majority have in any way indicated their resolve to support a direct motion
of want of confidence in the present administration.

There are at present 17 election petitions filed questioning the return of 17
gentlemen supposed to have been elected to oppose the present administration. It
is for the courts to determine whether any or all of these gentlemen have been duly
elected.

Suggestions such as these might be multiplied. They ail go to show that it is
at least doubtful whether, regardless of the vote of the district of Cassiar, the " con-
sidered judgment of the country," is adverse to your present advisers.

It is, however, my duty to point out to Your Honour that the course you pro-
pose is without precedent in constitutional government.

Sir Charles Tupper, it is true, challenged the constitutionality of the action of
His Excellency in making such restrictions as the above, and on the grounds men-
tioned in a memorandum under the circumstances, and he forthwith resigned; but
there does not exist a case in parliamentary governmnent, in English or Canadian
history, where the Crown, or Governor General representing the Crown, asked for
the resignation of a ministry because of the result, or supposed result, of a general
election, even when the full returns were officially announced.

Under these circumstances, while neither my colleagues nor I personally desire
to hold office contrary to the will of the people, we feel bound, in the interest of con-
stitutional and parliamentary government, to claim the right to await the verdict at
the hands of their representatives duly elected and in parliament assembled. We,
moreover, respectfully question the course Your Honour has chosen to adopt before
the general elections are concluded, and while the legality of so large a number of
elections already over is challenged in the courts of this province. Under the cir-
cumstances I feel it my duty to ask Your Honour to reconsider the communication
addressed to me on the 8th of this month.

The authorities fortunately are so strong upon the subject that I feel convinced
that on reconsideration Your ionour will be inclined to withdraw the communica-
tion of the 8th inst.

I claim the right on the part of your advisers to remain in office until a new
parliament has met and given a definite division upon the morits. In the language
of Lord John iRussell, the assembly is "the legitimate organ of the people, whose
opinions cannot be constitutionally ascertained oxcept through their representatives
in parliament."

Your Honour will not question that in dealing with the subject in hand
recourse must be had to the usage of the Crown in the mother country, and that it is
your duty " to endeavour to ascertain and to imitate so far as may be consistent
with" your position and responsibility as a Lieutenant Governor. (See Todd's
Government in the Colonies, page 324.)

In the language of Lord Dufferin, your "guiding star" is and ought to be the
parliament of this province.

"Parliament is the voice of the people." (Todd's Parliamentary Government
of England.)
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Primarily it is the bounden and solemn duty of a ministry when defeated at the
polis to meet parliament before tendering resignation, and this has been the practice
in England down to a recent date, subject to but few exceptions.

The present leader of the government in the Bouse of Commons in England,
when the ministry of which ho was a member was defeated in 1892, met parliament
after the general election, and did not resign until defeated on the debate on the
address in roply to the Queen's Speech from the Throne.

Mr. Balfour, on that occasion, said :-" In meeting parliament, we are strictly
following the best precedent." Let me, however, draw Your Honour's attention to
recent Canadian precedents.

The government of Mr. Mackenzie was defeated on the 17th September, 1878, at
a general election, by an overwhelming majority. It was in the next month that
Mr. Mackenzie decided to resign. Lord Dufferin did not suggemt this course. On
the contrary, Mr. Mackenzie excused himself for taking it. To meet parliament
under the circumstances, he wrote, was the course " in accordance with the English
practice," but, he went on to urge, as a justification for not doing so, " there are two
precedents of recent date in favour of a resignation before the meeting of parlia-
ment." Even in this case, where the popular verdict gave a majority of 80 against
him, the Globe newspaper said: " It is true Mr. Mackenzie knows nothing of the
strength of the respective parties until that be tested by a division of the House of
Commons," and again: "fHe has the legal right to hold office until the usual time
of the meeting of parliament, and to do ail the acts that a ministry in the possession
of a majority could do."

In the case of Sir Charles Tupper's ad ministration, in June, 1896, over which
much difference of opinion has existed, Lord Aberdeen did not dream of suggesting
the resignation of that ministry. The ministry had been defeated at the polis. Ail
the returns were in. Not a single election petition had been filed. The parliament,
which had terminaqed by effluxion of time in the preceding April, had voted no
supplies for the fiscal year beginning in July.

His Excelleucy did not, however, refuse to act upon the advice of his defeated
ministry. On the contrary, ho approved of some of the appointments to office
between 23rd June and 1lth July.

He withheld bis approval only from ail recommendations which involved-
1. The oreation of new offices or appointments.
2. The creation of vacancies for which no provision had been made by parlia-

ment, and which had existed for more than one clear fiscal year.
3. Superannuations (and the consequential appointments) for which applications

had not been received.
Ail other executive acts for which supplies were voted were approved, and it

was not suggested that His Excelloncy would withhold his approval from any
recommendations necessary to curry on the Queen's government until the voice of
the people was made known through parliament.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. H. TURNER,
Premier.

GOVERNMENT BoUsE,
VICTORIA, B.C., 12th August, 1898.

Mr. CHARLES A. SEMLIN,
Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-For reasons intimated in letters of the 14th and 25th July last, and 8th
August instant, from myself to the Hon.*J. H. Turner, Premier of this province, I
asked himself and colleagues on the latter date to hand in their resignations as rny
advisers and members of my executive council, informing them that I hiad decided
to cali on other advisers without further delay. On the same day I called on the
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lion. Robert Beaven to form aministry. In callingupon him I was of course aware
that ho was no longer a leader of the ascendant party, with which yourself and
the Hon. Joseph Martii are prominently associated. But as on the best information I
could obtain it was made to appear to me that there was no recognized lender of the
party since the general elections of the 9th ultimo, it being divided into two factions,
supporting the claims respectively of yourself and Mr. Martin to the leadership, and
having in view Mr. Beaven's former leadership of the said party, his long and dis-
tinguished services to the province and his great and widely recognized ability as a
financier, so much needed in the present financial condition of the province, I sent
for him on the 5th instant for advice as to the political situation and the chances of
his being ablo to reconcile the rival, or supposed rival, factions of the ascendant
party and to for'm a ministry acceptable to it. As a result of that interview the sub-
sequent action of«calling upon him on the 8th instant was taken. Since then I have
had an interview with Mr. Martin and ho assures me that I was quite misinformed,
that no division exists in the ascendant party and that he looks to you as the leader
of it. Mr. Beaven bas made a similar report to me, to the effect that Mr. Martin
looks to you as the recognized leader. Under these circumstances, accordingly,
there no longer exists the advisability that at first appeared, on the facts reported to
me, of calling upon the old leader to assume the task of forming a ministry and
reconciling factions. I have the honour, therefore, of calling upon youiself, as the
now admitted leader of the ascendant party, to act as chief adviser to the represen-
tative of the Crown and to form a new ministry.

THOS. R. MoINNES.

VICTORIA, B.C., 12th August, 1898.
To His Honour TaoMAs R. McINNEs,

Lieutenant Governor of the Province of British Columbia.

Sîa,-l have the honour te acknowledge the receipt of a communication from
you of even date, calling upon me to form a new ministry and to act as your chief
adviser iii regard to the public business of the province. In accepting yonr cali, sir
I beg to thank yo for the high honour conterred, and respectfully assure Your
Honour that I will endeavour to carry out your wishes to the best of my ability and
as promptly as circumstances will admit,

I have the honour to remain, &c.,
C. A. SEMLIN.

GOVERNMENT HOUsE, VIcToRIA, B.C., 15th August, 1898.

To the Hon. J. H. Turner, M.P.P.,
Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your communication
dated the 9th instant, which has received due consideration on my part. I regret
that it compels me to enter into certain details, respecting the grounds if my lack
of confidence in yourself and eolluagues as advisers, which, from personal respect
retained for yourself, I had hoped to avoid. I certainly expected, that, upon receipt
of my letter of the 14th Jiily last, and my subsequent refusai to approve of your
recommendations, other than in matters of routine, you would have put affairs in
order, so as to tender your resignation to me at an early date. i had thought
resignation to be the only proper constitutional, as well as dignified, course for a
ministry to adopt, which had thus been given to understand that iG no longer
enjeyed the confidence of the representative of the Crown. Yourself and colleagues
took a contrary course, however, by seeking to initiate new business, and asking me
again and again to sanction undertakings that were not of routine, and that r could
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not consider urgent. As to the general eloctions, apart from casually telephoning
to me on Monday morning, 11th July last, that you were "stili ail right, the result
so far being 15 to 15," you made no report to me whatever, and I was left to rely
on the press reports. Time has since shown that the press reports were ontirely
correct, but in my letter of the 14th July, above referred to, I left it open to you to
show that you still had the confidence of the legislative assembly. However, you
did not see ft to make any report whatever to me as to the general elections, and to
this day I have not recoived one from you. But you said to me at an interview,
had shortly after the resuit of the elections held on the 9th July last were published.
that you would not have a majority in the assembly, and in my last interview, had
on the 2nd of August last, with yourself, the Attorney General and the Provincial
Secretary, the same statement waà made by the Provincial Secretary, admitting the
result of the Cassiar election would be favoarable to your administration. During
several interviews with you, I informed you that, while I had every respect for
yourself personally, I had little or no confidence in some of your colleagues, and
this, together with the verdict of the electorate on the 9th July last, made it im-
possible for me to unreservedly accept the recommendations of the executive council.
As above stated, I would have preferred not entering into details of why my con-
fidence in yourself and colleagues, as advisers, was gradually weakened, but your
communication of the 9th instant, above referred to. leaves no other course now
open. At the last session of the legislative assembly, the redistribution bill was
brought into the assembly without having been explained to me by yourself or the
Attorney General. As the formai consent of the Lieutenant Governor is always given
and required prior to the introduction into the assembly of buch a measure as the
redistribution of the electoral districts of the province, the Lieutenant Governor
should be consulted in regard toit and its provisions, and the effect of them explained.
In the short time at my~disposal, I was left to review the bill alone. In doing so,
not having the assistance of yourself or the Attorney General, I did not master it in
detail, but on noticing that one clause allowed voters from any part of the province
to go to Cassiar and record their vote, without it being required to have resided
even a day in the district, and knowing that the Cassiar elections always take place
from a month to two months after the goneral elections for the rest of the
province, and that there was nothing to prevent those who had voted at the
generat elections going, or being uent, to Cassiar a month or so later to vote
there, I sent for .you to give me an explanation. You informed me that you
knew very little about the bill, that it was in the hands of the Attorney Gen-
eral. I then told you that unless you eliminated the objectionable clause, you
would endanger the sanctioning of the bill. Thereupon the Attorney General
waited upon me, and he, in the course of representations made on behalf of
the said clause, justified it by alleging that similar conditions existed in remote
electoral districts of Ontario. This I knew of my own knowledge was not the case,
and I so informed the Attorney General. The next day, after au all-nighL session of
the assembly, from which members vainly opposing this clause retired, as a protest,
in a body, the Attorney General withdrew the said clause. But ho did not explain
to me, nor did I know at that time, that while Cassiar was being granted an additional
member, having only 298 names on the voters' list, far more important and populous
sections of the Kootenaycountry were being given little or no representation. I was
subsequently appealed to by the people and press of the Kootenay districts not to
sanction the bill, and even to dismiss the ministry responsible for it. Although
sympathizing with their natural indignation, I did not consider the circumstanees
sufficient to warrant so grave an action on my part. It was borne in upon me, how-
ever, from that time on, that I was not being advised, to quote from the words of
Lieutenant Governor Angers, " wisely, disinterestedly and faithfully." What was I
to think of these and other proceedings then and thereafter taken in regard to Cassiar,
a district having a special section of the Provincial Elections Act governing it, a
section unique, at least in these days, for the way in which it lends itself to manipu-
lation at the hands of the government and its agents ? In case you should be as
unfamiliar with the clause as you were with the objectionable clause of ths Redistri-
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bution Bill, I quote Provincial Elections Act, chapter 67, section 53, -Revised Statutes
B.C., 1897: -

" In the electoral district of Cassiar, the returning officer shall fix the day for
the holding of the polls in each polling station in the district. The day so fixed need
not be the same for all the said polling stations, but the returning officer shall, in his
discretion, fix the holding of the polls at each polling station the nearest practicable
day subsequent to the day tixed for the nomination of the candidates aq aforesaid, not
more than 20 days after the date of nomination."

On Saturday, the 23rd of July laet, I was asked on the recommendation of the
Provincial Secretary, to extend the election days already fixed by the returning
officer for Cabsiar district for the 30th day of July last and the 6th day of August
instant, to the 1st day of September next, in respect to certain of the polling stations
there, to wit: Hazieton, Lorne Creek, Telegraph Creek, Glenora, Dease Creek,
MoDame Creek, Teslin Lake and Lake Bennett, thus making three polling days for
the district, at intervals of a week and a mouth. This I refused to do by my letter
to you of the 25th of July last, and again refused on separate interviews had with
me on the same day by the Provincial Secretary and the Attorney Gieneral; and, at
your request, made an appointment for 12 o'clock the same night to discuss the
matter, which appointment you neither kept nor afterwards referred to. Sinco the
9th July last, Orders ir. Council were frequently placed before me with a request for
immediate approval, as the subject matter was such as to admit of no delay, and great
hardship would ensue if they were not thon approved. In such cases as I looked
into, I found that such haste was not necessary, or that matters had been left to the
last possible moment before being sent up to me, and that my approval was sought
to be carried, so to speak, by surprise and by storm. I moreover continually found
Orders in Council on subjects which I had expressly intimated that I would not
approve, thrust in again amoug orders on routine matters, in such a way that in
some instances I was nearly led inadvertently to sign them, and in one instance-
the placing of $2,500 at the disposal of the Chief Commissioner for constructing
country school-houses-I did sign the warrant, having previously rofused to do so.
I decided to let it go, however, as approved, as it may have been urgently needed as
represented. On the 15th July last you asked me to sanction the payment of 8750
to the Woman's hospital at New Westminster out of the fund provided for destitute
poor and sick. It occurred to me that this fund was intended for isolated cases of desti-
tute and sick persons, as wherever assistance was intended for hospitals and charitable
institutions, they were specifically mentioned by name. I told you that I thought this
would be a perversion of the fund, but being advised otherwise by yourself and the
Attorney General, I sanctioned the payment. I an since advised that this was a
perversion of the fund. On a subsequent occasion I had a batch of warrants in
connection with routine matters sent up for my approval, fastened together in the
manner in which I had been instructed that rny signature on the last sheet would
cover the preceding sheet. There was a large n.umber of them fastened together in
this way, but I inspected them all individualiy before signing the last sheet. To my
surprise, I found inserted therein, in different places, six or seven warrants in blank.
As I did not propose to approve of blank warrants, I cut them ont. This was about
the 19th July last. I have since waited for some information in regard to or some
inquiry for those warrants in blank, but none has been forthcoming. I was asked
to sign a warrant placing $15,000 at the immediate disposai of the government agent
in the Cassiar district for the assistance and relief of men to be employed in the
construction of trails and roads through the district. [ refused. This led to the
long and unpleasant interview of the :înd August, instant, had with yourself, the
Attorney General and the Provincial Secretary, in the courtse of which I was
informed that, failing ny sanction, the Att orney General, pursuant to powers vested
in him by section 41, subsections (a) and (b) of the Revenue Act, cap. 47, of the
Revised Statutes, B.C., could have the warrant issued on his recommendation,
without my signature. To convince me of this, the Attorney General theroupon
produced the said Act, which ho had brought with him and had marked, and pro-
ceeded to read the said sections. I told him I was glad he could do it without me,
and so take the responsibility off my shoulders. But it was so novel an idea to me
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that after the interview I looked up the sections aforesaid mysolf, and I also looked
up section 8, chapter 47, of the Revised Statutes, known as the Constitution Act, and
found that the Attorney General had misinformed me. Had this contention of the
Attorney General been correct, the Attorney General would have had considerable
control of the treasury. As far as I am aware, however, the Attorney General did
not attempt to exercise bis powers in this respect. I could not avoid the conclusion
that I was being misled for the purpose of influencing me to sign the warrant under
discussion. A week has elapsed since you were dismissed by a formal demand for
your resignation. To my great surprise, you have attempted to evade that dismissal,
and have forwarded to me a document of controversial nature, above acknowledged.
The references therein to an alleged conversation with my private secretary are
impertinent, and if such conversation took place as alleged by you, it would only
be another of the strangely imnroper courses you have of late seen fit to pursue.
The questions raised therein as to constitutional law I shall not discuss with you.
You have allowed yourself to make certain insinuations therein which might have
been expected from a mere partizan, or from a certain irresponsible section of the
press, but which I had not expected from you, and wbich I hesitate to attribute to
you, although over your signature. I have heard of defeated litigants who ascribed
the action or decision of a court to the relationship existing between the judlge and
the counsel appearing before him, but it is a new thing to me that a prime minister
should insinuate that a Lieutenant Governor's action is due to a relationship existing
between himselfand a public man representing a constituency in the Dominion par-
liament. I shall make no reply to it, other than to say that since the 13th of July
last I have consistently and repeatedly intimated to you by letter, interview and
action, that my confidence in yourself and colleagues as advisers was gone. I could
not let the fear that my action. whatever it might be, would be subject to peculiar
misrepreEentation, tie my hands or deter me from following such course as my duty
to the people of the province appeared to demand. You end your communication
by the extracrdinary request that I reconsider the dismissal given to you on the 8th
August instant. Such a request, emanating from you after what had transpired,
and in the face of the insinuations contained in the former part of the same commu-
nication, betrays either such a lack of knowledge and propriety on your part, or
such readiness to advice me tu a venal course of action, as to fully demonstrate your
unfitness to act as chief adviser to the representative of the Crown. The prerogative
of dismissal was exercised by me on the 8th August instant, when yourself and
colleagues, by a formal demand for vour resignation were rclieved from your duties
as advisers to me, and dismissed as members of my executive council. Such action
is not subject to reconsideration.

TIIOS. R. McINNES,
Lieutenant Governor.

Mr. Turner gives to the press the following reply to the letter of the Lieutenant
Governor just quoted :

VICTORIA, B.C., 26th August, 1898.
His Honour T. R. McINNES,

Lieutenant Governor of British Columbia,
Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-I have the bonor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 15th
inst.

I have purposely delayed my reply to this communication in the belief that on
reflection you would see fit to recall it. It was impossible for me to suppose, that
after time for reflection, such extraordinary statements, innuendoes and insinuations
would not be recalled.

A considerable period havingpassed in which Your Honour has had ample time
for reflection and no further communication baving reached me, I must assume that

you intend to adhere to the statements and reasons set forth in this 'communication
and to abide by its consequences.



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 89.)

I must promptly challenge the many inaccuracies, the misinterpretation of
motives and obvious perversions which pervade your communication.

Your Honou r states: "I certainly expected that upon receipt of my letter of the
14th of July and my subsequent refusal to approve of your recommendations, other
than in matters of routine, you would bave put affairs in order, so as to tender your
resignation to me at an early date. 1 bad thought resignation to be the only proper
as well as dignified course for a ministry to adopt which had thus beeti given to
understand that it no longer enjoyed the confidence of the representative of the
Crown."

This statement indicates, it seems to me, the cardinal error into which Your
Honour has fallen.

It bas been, from time immemorial, the honoured privilege of ministers of the
Crown to advise Her Majesty or her limited agents upon affairs of state. This
privilege bas been enjoyed by virtue of the will of the people, shown by their chosen
representatives.

To enjoy the confidence of Your lionour, is one thing, to enjoy that of the people,
another. This latter element Your Honour would fain eliminate, but I beg to point
out that the spirit of the age is contrary entirely to any such course.

Personal antipathy of the Crown has never been the basis of interference with
the people's will. Theoretically Your Honour may refuse to accept theiadvice of
ministers respon-ible to the people, but practically such a course is fraught with
grave danger and will be watched with increasing vigilance by a people, proud of,
yet jealous of any infringement of their liberties.

Before a subject may be honored by becoming an adviser of the Crown and
constitutionally a minister, he should have received an expression of confidence
direct from the people. Without this a representative of the Crown is not justified
in receiving him aa an adviser, nor with it in rejecting him by reason of personal
dislike, otherwise there would be interjected the private opinion of the Crown's
representative between the people's will and its full fruition.

During the period between the issue of writs for elections and the official returns
of the resuits of the elections it is not usual nor indeed possible to accurately advise
the representative of the Crown officially.

YourlHonour, however, in this instance, without official inquiry or advice, merely
upon press reports and rumours, and before the pronouncement of the people, acted.
lad Your Ilonour waited the final returns you would bave been advised of an
equality of representation exi4ing between members chosen in favour of or against
the then government.

The precipitate action of Your Honour precluded any such official or proper
advice and placed the representative of the Crown in the peculiar position of disre-
garding the people entirely in an attempt to place over them in control of their
privilegos, a person whom they had twice signally defeated.

The suggestion that, " I and my late colleagues sought to initiate new proceed-
ings and asked Your Honour again and again to sanction undertakings that were not
of routine " is as unfair as it is incorrect. I do iiot feel warranted in saying more
in a communication to a representative of the Crown.

Your Honour's letter of the 14th of July did not lead me to believe that I did not
enjoy your confidence and the intimation " that you wouki not accept the advice of
myself and collcagues in regard to iiew uppointments to office or in regard to special
expenditures of money not provided for in the current estimates unless shown that
an urgint necessity existed for the same in the interests of the province " having
regard to the constitutional usage and practice during a general election and while
the results were as yet unknown, could not by any fair interpretation be construed
as having Euch effect.

I concluded from your letter of the 14th of July, conversations with Your Honour
from time to time, and the fact that subsequent to that letter Your Honour had signed
a number of orders in couneil referred to in my letter of the 9th inst., that on the
conclusion of the Cassiar election I ought to report to Your Honour the result, where-
upon in due course Your Honor would have either convened the legislature imme-
diately or permitted the business of the province to have been carried on by myself
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and my colleagues until the usual period for its assembling when the action to be
taken would bave been determined, by the representatives of the people in parlia-
ment absembled. Such a course would bave accorded with the practice and spirit
of Our constitution. It, however, became impossible, by Your Honour's attempt to
govern and control the destinies of the people.

Your Honour states: "I informed you that while I had every respect for your-
self personally, I had little or no contidence in some of your colleagues." Your
Honour may have entertained a thought of that kind but during ail my interviews
Your Honour most carefully concealed the fact. Upon one occasion Your Honourdid
say that one or two of my colleagues were not popular, but certainly nover did Your
Honour state that you had not confidence in them. Your [lonour states, that this,
coupled with the vote of the 9th of July, mude it impossible for you to unreservedly
accept the recommendations of the executive council. For the first time I have
learned and from a representative of the Crown, that a sound, sufficient reason for the
existence of a " lack of confidence " by the representative of the Crown in an execu-
tive council may be that some of its members are "lnot pl)opular." Your ionour
cannot fail to notice the conflict between sach a suggestion and Your Honour's action
in the circumstances. The populariy or unpopularity of a minister may often
weigh with a small unthinking element, who place private feelings above public
weal, but I do not wish to believe this inîfluenced Your Honour, a representative of
the Crown. Broader, more liberal and enlightened experience teaches that the people
enjoy greater liberty when a government is judged by the good or evil effect of its
laws and administration, rather than by the ephemeral popularity of some of its
members.

Your Honour's action has discovered to the people the vast power reposed in a
representative of the Crown and shows its danger when not judiciously exercised.

Modern electors had fancied their will, the sovereign will, the governing power
in the stale and a condition of willing acquiescence and content prevailed.

It may be wise to awaken dormant issues in order to raise the people to a
realizinig sense of the limitations upon their powers, but I humbly and sincerely
suggest otherwise, if it is desired to foster, conserve and support the good feeling,
trust and confidence usually existing between fier Majesty's representative and her
subjects. To do otherwise would be calamitous.

Let me take, in order, the various inatters in detail referred to in Your Honour's
communication:

The Redistribution Bill-Your Honour states that you were never advised of
its contents either by myself or the Attorney-General, either before or after its
introduction into the louse. Surely Your Honour's recollection upon this subject
has failed. Your Honour did confer with me upon the clause mentioned, but I
never informed Your Honour that "I knew little about the bill." What I did say
was that the Attorney General was in charge of the bill and would be better able to
explain the effect of its provisions than I.

Immediatoly I requested the Attorney General to wait upon Your Honour and
he thereupon left the House, which was in session at that hour, to confer with Your
Honour, and upon his return informed nie that Your Honour thonght it better to
omit a portion, being the then clause 18 sub section (b) of the bil. The proposed
clause was struck out. The Attorney General informed me that Your Honour was
averse to the clause as Your Honour thought that possible advantage might be taken
of it by dishonest electors.

Your Honour was not told that similar conditions existed in remote electoral
districts in Ontario, but it was mentioned to Your Honour that Algoma, in Ontario,
at one time occupied a position similar to Cassiar, in British Columbia, as to means
of access and communication, and that the elections there were not held at the time
of the general elections. This I believe to be the fact.

The further reterence of Your Honour that the clause allowed voters " from any
part of the province to go to Cassiar and record their votes, without its being
requisite to have resided even a day in the district, and there was iothing to prevent
those who voted at the geieral elections going or being sent to Cassiar a month or
so later to vote there " would apply with equal force to different polling divisions
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in the same constituency when voting takes place on one and the sarne day, if, as it
must be assumed, in order to found such a statement, a voter undertakes te perpe-
trate a fraud. The Provincial Elections Act, however, provides that no person at an
election is entitled to vote in more than one electoral district, without subjecting
himself to severe penalties, and this provision applies with equal force to Cassiar as
to the other parts of the province.

Your Honour is in errer in stating that "after an all-night session of the assem-
bly irom which members, vainly opposing the clause, retired as a protest in a body,
the Attorney General withdrew the said clause."

There was an all-night session of the House when the Redistribution Bill was in
committee. The debate arose on section 2 of the bill and not the section Your
Honour refers to. The reason for the ietirement as given was on account of a
decision of the chairman which upon appeal to the House was affirmed. A refterence
even to the then opposition pres. at such time will contirm this statement. The
clause Your Honour reters to was struck out upon the motion of tho Attorney
General, who in the course of his remarks said, " It had been hurled across the floor
of the louse by the opposition members that the government had introduced sub-
section (b) of section 19 for their own advantage. He would assure the honourable
gentlemen that the draughtsmen of the bill had no such idea in their heuds. The
idea was to conserve to those who were registered voters in other parts of the
province, and who had left their homes to go te Cassiar to assist in the dcvelopment
of that great country, their rights of franchise. The government had been actuated
only by the best of motives and as soon as it was sugzested that the section had
been proposed for unfair purposes, every supporter of the government had agreed
rather than stand under the suspicion of what had been intimated, to let the Act
remain as it was by striking out the above tubsection."

The then Attorney General informs me that the question of an additional member
for Cassiar was fully discussed with Your Honour tpon the occasion referred to and
the reasons therefor, which were that at that time a large population had gone into
the dihtrict, that there was every reason to believe that extensive and important
public works in the nature of railways were about to be constructed and the rapid
development of Cassiar's great and diverse intereste. Your Honour's reference to
Cassiar as " a district having a special section of the Provincial Elections Act cover-
ing it, a section unique in theýe days for the way it lends itself to manipulation at
the hands of the government and ils agents " amazes me, coming as it does from a
representative of the Crown. It betrays a sad lack of knowledgo of the statute law
of the land. I pass over the absolute!y unwarrantable, undignified and base motives
ascribed. I consider them unworthy of comment. I propose to deal with the section
in controversy. Your Honour may iot be aware that a section almost similar in
wording bas been upon the statute-books of British Columbia since 1873. I beg
also to direct Your Honour's attention to a further fact which of course bas escaped
Your Honour's memory, viz.: that an almost similar section prevails in the Dominion
Election Act.. For the first time bas it been suggested that it is an iniquitous pro-
vision, "for the way it lends itself to manipulation at the bands of the government
and its agents."

Your Honour would not have made such a statement, I am sure, had these his-
torical facts been before yon; and yet a similar law was passed by the parliament of
Canada, consisting of the House of Commons and Senate, of which latter honourable
body Your Honour was a member for years. Such has been the law since.

Your Honour must have at least known at one time of' the existence of such a
law, if not now familiar with its import. I do not find, nor am I aware that Your
Honour, as an active, painstaking and " non-partizan " member of the Senate, at any
time ever drew attention to this iniquitous section in the Dominion elections law.
Wherefore, may I ask, this sudden realization upon the part of Your Honour of the
iniquity of such legisiation ? Must I assume that, as a representative of the people,
it would not be wise to ascribe improper motives to the peop'o, while as a representa-
tive of the Crown, greater freedom of individual thought in permissive?

With regard to the recommendation to extend the period for the polling already
fixed by the returning officer for Cassiar from the 30th of July and the 6th of August
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to the 1st day of September, in respect of certain polling stations specified, which,
speaking generally, were the polling stations remote from the coast, as Your flonour
is aware.

The days fixed by the returning officer, under section 53 of the Provincial Elec-
tion Act, were the 30th day of July for Rivers Inlet, and in all otherpolling stations
the 6th day of August. The nominations were held at Port Simpson, 500 miles
north of here, on the 15th day of July. The returning officer took the first steam-
boat to Victoria, in order to have the ballots printed and other matters arranged
with reference to the outlying polling stations, such os Teslin Lake, Lake Bennett,
etc., which could be more quickly reached by the direct steamer from Victoria to
Wrangel or Skagway than by the coasting steamer from Victoria. which was slow
and only touchel at Port Simpson fortnightly. The roturning officer informed the
executive that he bad, under said section 53, fixing the polling day on the 6th of
August (the longest period he could give under the Act), for the outlying places, and
he was of the opinion that that time was too short in which to instruct deputy
returning officers, forward ballot boxes, papers, etc. It was upon this representation
the Order in Council, drawn under the authority of section 20 of the Redistribution
Act, 1898, and which had been on the statute-books for years, was placed before you
for signature, the purport of which was (as you allege) to extend the polling days
at the most outlying stations, namely, Hazleton, Lorne Creek, Telegraph Creek,
Glenoru, Dease Creek, McDame Creek, Toslin Lako and Lake Bennett, to the first
day of September, and let the dates fixed for the places on the coast, namely, Rivers
Inlet. and those at the mouths of the Skeena and Naas rivers, adjacent to the can-
neries, stand as they had been fixed by the returning officer, namely, the 30th July
and the 6t·h August.

Your Honourwill remember that you were absent in Vancouver on the 21st and
22nd days of July, returning here on the evening of the latter day. The next morn-
ing the Order in Council was before you. It was necessary to have the matter defi-
nitely settled immediately, as the roturning officer was returning north on the first
available steamer, the "Princess Louise," which was to sail on the evening of the 25th
of July, touching at Rivers Inlet, Port Simpson, etc. The 24th was a Sunday, and
Your Honour well knows how your time was taken up on the 25th, from early morn-
ing till late at night, atending on functions given in honour of His Excellency the
Governor Goneral. 'Tis true you did, by letter on the 25th, refuse to sign the Order
in Council, and that on the same day, at Government House, while the function in
honour of His Excellency was going on, in an interview with the late Provincial
Secretary, you again refused; and again on the same evening, in an interview with
the then Attorney General, lasting some time, you again refused, though it was
pointed onr to you clearlythat the power existed in the Act, in which you acquiesced,
and that the Order in Council was only placed before you on account of the position
of affaire placed in our possession by the returning officer to the effect that ho did
not think his instructions, ballot boxes and papers could possibly reach the outlying
places in time for the days already fixed by him for holding the elections.

You were engaged the whole of the evening of the 25th at the drill shed, where
the function was held in honour of His Excelleney. It is true you were good enough
to say you would see me after the ceremony at the drill shed, but learning from the
Attorney General between 11 and 12 p. m. that you still refused to sign the order
in council, I immediately went over to the " Princess Louise " to tel[ the returning
officer that the days fixed by him must be carried out. having previously informed
him that an Order in Council would be obtained to extend the time for holding the
polls at the outlying places. The matter seemed to me one of vital importance, and
as the steamer was sailing at 12.30 p.m. of the 25th. and as that was the only stea-
mer the returning officer could return on prior to the day fixed by him for the first
poli at Rivers Inlet, I was very solicitous about having the matter arranged so that
no hitch would happen in the election then pending. From the C. P N. wharf I
telephoned to Government House, and was informed that you had gone to the stea-
mer with His Excellency, and as I was detained some little time, waiting for the
returning offlcer to come down, it got to be after midnight, and, taking into conside-
ration the very long day you had gone throught, I considered I would be trenching
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too much on Your Honour's good nature to attend at Government House, which I
could not possibly reach till well towards 1 a. m. I regret exceedingly the incident
of my non-attendance, and desire to assure you that it bas always been my desire to
accord you every courtesy, on account of your high official position.

Your Honour refers to the advice given with reference to the paymen, of 8750
to the Woman's hospital at New Westminster as a "perversion of the fund." A
strong tern clearly, and one that should not have been used without caretul consi-
deration and an absolute assurance of its accuracy.

Let me recail the facts to Your Honour's notice. I informed Your Honour, in
the presence of the then Attorney General, that during the late sesion of tho house,
a deputation of ladies of charity from New Westminster had waited upon the execu-
tive and requested aid for the relief of poor sick women cared for in the Woman's
hospital at that place. Believing that a good deal of good had been donc by the
ladies in charge of the hospital in relief given to the poor sick, and more good
would and could be donc if financial aid were givon, and taking into consideration
that thore is no woman's ward in the public hobpital thuru, the executive pronised
assistance from out of the fund voted "iii ai. tf the destitutîe, sick and poor."
Accordingly Your Honour's sanction was asked for the payment of $750 for such
purpose. If to apply $750 out of a fund voted gener.illy in aid of " destitute, poor
and sick," for the purpose of relieving poor sick would be a perversion of the fund,
I confess I am not ashamed of such a perverbion, but I do not believe, and I am
advised that it is not a perversion, but, upon the contrary, a lawful appropriation of
the fund. If I and my colleagues have advised misappropriation of public funds in
this intance, we have also committed a similar error in the cases of Greenwood City,
Rossland and New Denver, where there are no public hospitals, but where. the poor
sick are cared for by private hospitals, and paid for out of this fund. May I take
the liberty of asking Your Honour who advised in this matter, and was your adviser
a person responsible to tbe people for advice tendered ? If not, was it either a
dignified or proper course for Your Honour to seek official advice frem non-represen-
tative or non-responsible sources, behind the backs of and without the knowledge of
your responsible ministers ?

Permit me to recite the opinion of Sir Oliver Mowat in a somewhat similar
case. Not a lawyer in parliament has challeniged this opinion:

" An order in council of 31st May last, authorized the payment to the Quebec
and St. John railway of $6,000, in order to further encourage the operations of the
company in the promotion of immigration, which the order in council recites had in
the past proved of great value, and by an order in council of 13th July, it was pro-
vided that this pavment sbould be made a charge upon the vote for general immi-
gration purposes.

" Upoi the passing of the latter order in council, a cheque for the amount of
the grant was issued against the vote referred to.

"The auditor general previously to such cheque being issued had pointed out
what ho conceived to be objection to the proposed payment, and at bis suggestion,
the matter was referred to the Treasury Board.

" Under the circumstances, you ask my opinion, as Attorney General, under sec-
tion 32 (a) of the Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act, as to whether there is, or is
not, parliaientary authority foi the proposed payment.

" The auditor general states lis objection in bis letter to you of the 4th ultimo,
as follows:-

" 1. There was no legal obligation because the government never authorized
the expenditure before it was made, was never even applied to for authorization, or
notitied that the expenditure was about to be made.

" 2. There was no moral obligation. The company could have no reason to
expect that it would be reimbursed any portion of the outLay, because it was made
with the expectation that the benefit to the company's business would repay the
outlay.

" The sole question with which I have to deal in this report is the question of
law, whother under the section of the Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act above
referred te, there is parliamentary authority for the payment.
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"The 'parliamentary authority' is the vote for 'immigration expenses.'
"I think that the government may expend this vote for 'immigration expenses'

in such manner as they may think best adapted to promote immigration. The
question then becomes one of policy for the government to consider, and for which
the government is responsible to parliament. I see no reason why they may not,
as a matter of law, grant ont of the vote for immigration expenses a reward for past
meritorious, usefuL work, or a subsidy to encourage future work, if they think such
a grant or subsidy would be promotive of immigration, and I think that their
action therein is subject only to their answerability to parliament.

"Iam, etc.,
0O. MOWAT, M.J.

"The Secretary, Treasury Board."

This takes me down to the interview of the 2nd of August, which Your Honour
describes as long and unpleasant. at wh ich you say the then Attorney General advised
that 'failing of sanction to certain warrants, which were warrants dealing with
usual routine matters " that under and by virtue of section 41, subsections (a) and
(b) of the Revenue Act, the warrants could be issued on his own recommendation.
The section reads as follows:

41. No money warrant shal1 issue except upon the certificate ofthe auditor that
there is parliamentary authority for the expenditure, save only in the following
cases:

(a.) If upon any application for a warrant the auditor has reported that there
is no parliamentary authority for issuing it that upon the written opinion of the
Attorney General that there is such authority, citing it, the warrant may be issued
and shall be sufficient authority to the auditor to authorize the payment out of the
treasury to the amount so ordered to be expended.

(b.) If any public work or building require an immediate outlay for the repair
thereof, or any other occasion arises when any expenditure not foreseen or provided
for by the legislature is urgently and immediately required for the public good,
then, upon the report of the Minister of Finance that there is no parliamentary pro-
vision, or that the vote is expended, or upon the report of the minister having charge
of the particular service in question that the expenditure is necessary, the Lieuten-
ant Governor in Council may order a special warrant to be issued for the amount
estimated to be required, and the issuance of such warrant shall be sufficient
authority to the auditor to authorize the payment out of the treasury to the amount
so ordered to be expended or paid.

Why were we there ? Because Your Honour had refused to sign the warrants
we had placed before you. Your Honour says the Attorney general was of opinion
the warrants could be paid without yon signature. Why did we go to you and ask
you to sign them? Such an opinion was not given by the Attorney General. ls
it not the very truth that we went to see you in your office at the government buil-
dings because you had informed the Auditor General a short time before that there
was no necessity for you to sign warrants for sums already voted by parliament,
and that it was never done at Ottawa.

Your Honour states that you bad batches of warrants sent up to you fastened
together in the manner in which you had been instructed that your signature on
the last sheet would cover the preceding sheets; that a large number so fastened
together you inspected individual'y before signing the last sheet, and found to your
surprise, inserted therein, in different places, six or seven warrants in blank; that
you have waited for information in regard to or some inquiry about these warrants
in blank, but none has ever been forthcoming.

Possibly you have not made yourself acquainted with the manner of Drocedure
with respect to what you term warrants; they are requisitions, and the system is
such that if by chance, among a large number of sheets, a blank one got in, it could
be of no Us6, and I should hardly think it possible that Your Honour would sign a
blank sheet.
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These requisitions before being passed by the executive are examined and
checked off by the auditor general, and they are all numbered, and the amounts where
not finished on one sheet, carried forward to the next and added up. It is this final
sheet that should be signed by Your Honour, but in addition all these blank requisi-
tions are inclosed in a folder, and on this a memorandum from the Minister of
Finance with a list of all the requisitions that are inclosed with the number of each,
also the number of the vote under which they are paid and the amount of each.

The memorandum is signed by the president of the council and subsequently by
Your Honour, and is the order in council authorizing the amount as set forth on it
to be paid. No other requisitions can be paid save such as appear in this order.

The following is a copy of one of such orders:-
On a memorandum dated the 17th day of May, 1898, from the Honourable the

Minister of Finance, submitting the following requisition:-

SCHEDULE A.

1141 II. Civil Government salaries vote No. 20, Tunstall, $40.
1147 Civil Government salaries vote No. 20, Bowron, $44.
1165 V. Public Institutions, No. 50, Tunstall, $785.94.
1170 VII. Ad. of Justice, No. 75, Wellburn, 8175.49.

SCHEDULE C.

112 Advance to sub-account (Robson) 86,000.
The committee advise approval.

President of Executive Council.

Approved 21st May.
Lieutenant Governor.

On the return of the parcel of requisitions and orders signed by Your Honour
it goes to the auditor general. If any requisitions that complied with the order in
council were short the auditor general would report, but seeing that they must cor-
respond with the memorandum that accompanies them and none can be paid that
do not appear on that memorandum; further that a blank requisition would be
useless, 1 fail to sce the point of Your Honour's remarks on this subject.

The allegation in general terms in, " that you continually found orders in council
which you had refused to sign returned to you thrust in with orders on routine
business," contains such an innuendo and suggestion as to make it obvions that Your
Honour was but striving after a reason to warrant Your Honour's unparalleled course
of procedure, and that you did not hesitate to seek justification therefor at the
expense of the character of your ministers regardless of the facts.

I content myself by saying that in no single instance was there even a thought
of, let alone an attempt at such a course as Your Honour, without definitely alleging
it, would fain induce the people to infer.

In conclusion, I have only to congratulate Your Honour upon recognizing,
though tardily, that your action in dismissing your ministers was as arbitrary as it
was unwarranted, although I cannot congratulate Your Honour upon the attempt to
cover retreat by endeavouring to fasten upon my colleagues and myself charges as
untrue as they are base.

Had Your Honour succeeded in carrying out your original intention, the fiction
of responsible government in British Columbia would have been at an end, and the
will of the people of as little moment in affairs of state as that of subjects under an
autocratic despotism.

I sincerely trust that no ill may arise from the awakening which must follow
such an act and ail evil consequences may be happily averted.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. H. TURNER.
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OTTAWA, 22nd October, 1898.
The Hon. J. HB. TURNER,

Victoria, B.C.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of 15th
October, accompanied by a memorial from yourself and other petsons named therein,
asking that a royal commission be appointed to inquire into certain charges made
by His Honour Thomas R. McInnes, the Lieutenant Governor of British Columbia.

Your letter and the memorial will at once be forwarded to His Excellency the
Governor General in Council.

I have, &c.,
R. W. SCOTT,

Secretary of State.

DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE,
OTTAWA, 13th December, 1898.

The Hon. THomAs McINNES,
Government House, Victoria, 13.C.

SIR,-In October last a communication was received fron the Hon. J. H.
Turner, of Victoria, accompanied by a memorial signed by that gentleman and bis
colleagues in the late government of the province of British Columbia, addressed to
His Excellency the Governor General, asking that a royal commission be appointed
to inquire into certain charges which, it is alleged, you have made in your official
capacity reflecting on them. The letter and memorial were transferred to Ris
Excellency the Governor General in Council.

Before considering what action, if any, it might be deemed proper to adopt, I
have been requested to forward a copy of the memorial from Mr. Turner and bis
former colleagues to you for any observation or commente yon might think proper
to make on the statements contained in the memorial referred to.

I have, &c.,
R. W. SCOTT,

Secretary of State.

GOVERNMENT HOUSE,
VIcTORIA, B.C., 19th January, 1899.

The Hon. the Secretary of State,
Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-In compliance with your despatch of the 13th ultimo, I have the honour
to inform you that 1 yesterday foriyarded to Ris Excellency the Governor General,
my reply to the charges contained in the memorial of the Hon. J. H. Turner and
certain of his colleagues in the late government of this province, referred to in your
said despatch.

1 may add that my answer was delayed, as a reply to certain passages of the
memorial could not very well be given until after a meeting of the legislature of
this province. 1 h &c.,

TIIOS. R. MoINNES,
Lieutenant Governor.
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PROVINCE OF BRITIsH COLUMBIA, GOVERNMENT HousE,

To His Excellency VICTORIA, B. C., 18th January, 1899.

The Governor General of Canada,
Ottawa.

YouR EXOELLENCY,-By a despatch from the Honourable the Secretary of
State, dated the 13th ultimo, I was informed that a memorial from Mr. J. H. Turner
of this city, and his colloagues in the late government of this province, had been
addressed to Your Excellency, asking that a royal commission be appointod to
enquire into certain charges, which it is alleged that I made in myoffiuial capacity,
reflecting upon them. The Secretary of State says: " Before considering what
action, if any, it might be deemed proper to adopt, I have been requested to forward
a copy of the memorial from Mr. Turner and his former colleagues to you for any
observations or comments you might think proper to make on the statements
centained in the memorial referred to."

I have the honour, therefore, in compliance with the above despatch, to submit
to Your Excellency the following observations and comments in respect to the said
memorial.

I.

The petitioners do not invoke Your Excellency's supervision in regard to the
constitutionality of my action in dismissing them. They express themselves as
" well satisfied to abide by the wishes of the people of the province of British
Columbia, constitutionally expressed in the usual manner." (Memorial, p. 2.)

Your petitioner, Mr. Turner, has already indicated what he means by the
phrase " constitutionally expressed in the usual manner," as in his letter to me of
the 9th August last, appended to the memorial, he quotes with approval the
language of Lord John Russell, saying the assembly " is the legitimate organ of the
people, whose opinions cannot be constitutionally expressed except through their
representatives in parliament." Ho also quotes from Todd's Parliamentary Practice
in the British colonies to the effect that " parliament is the voice of the people."
Since my present ministry assumed office, on the 15th August last, six by-elections
have taken place for the legislative assembly of this province, with the result that
five out of the six were favourable to the present administration, and of these five,
four went by acclamation.' And on the 5th day of January instant, the legislative
assembly of this province met for the firt time since the dismissal of your petitioners.
A speaker was elected without a division. On the following day the first division
occurred, the occasion being the second reading of a bill introduced by the
Attorney General dealing with certain election petitions. The result of this division
was that the government were sustained by a vote of nineteen to thirteen. The said
bill subsequently went through committee and passed its third reading. Other
bills introduced by the government, have since passed the assembly, and yesterday,
the 17th instant, the address in reply to the speech from the Throne was adopted
without any amendment having been offered and without any division taking place.
Your Excellency will therefore observe that my ministry, who assumed responsi-
bility for my action in dismissing Mr. Turner and his colleagues, have the confidence
of the legislative assembly of this province.

In view of the above facts, I submit those passages of the memorial wherein
controversial points are raised as to the constitutionality of my action, are, for the
purposes of the memorial, clearly removed from discussion by the petitioner's
statement, and are therefore irrelevant and call for no reply.

II.

Your.Excellency will observe that your petitioners confine their complaint
to:-

" Tho conduct of the Lieutenant Governor of a personal character, in regard to
which ordinary constitutional methode available in the province afford no adequate
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means for fally vindicating the pereonal honour of your petitioners, which has been
impugned by the Lieutenant Governor." (Memorial, p. 2).

Your petitioners thereupon quote two passages from Todd's Parliamentary
Practice in the British colonies, the first irrelevant for the purpose of the memo.
rial, because bearing only on the constitutional aspect of the dismissal, the second
equally irrelevant, but which I here quote, as it is made the basis of one of the
charges which follow.

" Upon a change of ministry it is essential that the gentlemen who may be
invited by the Governor to form a new administration shali unreservedly be in
formed by him of the circumstances which led to the resignation or dismissal of
their predecessors in office, and that they shatl be willing to accept the entire
responsibility to the local parliament for any acte of the Governor which bas
been instrumental in occasioning the resignation of, or effecting the dismissal of the
outgoing ministry. For it is an undoubted principle of English law that no prero-
gative of the Crown can be constitutionally exercised unless some minister ot state
is ready to assume the responsibility for the same."

On this your petitioners base their first charge as follows:-
" Your petitioners charge that the Lieutenant Governor did not observe that

candour due to his ministry, but was guilty of misrepresenting the reasons which
induced him to summarily and suddeuly request the resignation of your petitioners."
(Memorial p. 3.)

My reply to this charge is:-
1. This charge, if true, could be made only by my ministry, and not by your

petitioners.
2. It is not true, for I did unreservedly inform the gentlemen invited to form a

new administration of the circumstances which led to the disinissal of their prede-
cessors in office, detailing them as they are detailed in the letter of the 15th August
last to Mr. Turner, appended to the memorial, and the gentlemen bo invited to form
a new administration were " willing to accept the entire responsibility to the local
parliament," for my action which was " instrumental in effecting the dismissal of
the outgoing ministry," and I did observe that candour due my ministry, and was
not guilty of misrepresenting the reasons which induced me to "summarily and
suddenly request the resignation of your petitioners," and not only to my niinistry,
but to the gentlemen who first undertook the formation of a ministry after the
dismissal of your petitioners. In proof of this I here quote from an interview
with Mr. Robert Beaven, published in the Victoria Times of the 15th August last.

" Asked this morning if he could tell the public the circumstauces leading up
to his undertaking the task of forming an administration the Hon. Robert Beaven
replied as follows:-

Yes, I can. A week ago I received the following letter froin His Honour
the Lieutenant Governor (here follows the letter of the Sth August last
from myself to Mr. Beaven, appended to the memorial.) I at once made
an appointment to meet His Honour, and did so. It transpired that the
action which resulted in the dismissal of the Turner government was of a
cumulative character and that other circumstances than those referred to in
His Honour's letter, more immediately connected with ministerial advice and
conduct brought about a different condition of affairs, and that the delay which
must bave occurred from calling a session might result in great injury. This feature
of the case is onc upon which the press and general public are entirely in the dark.
I understand that it is considered contrary to official etiquette to make known the
full details at the present time. I can say this much, that in one instance alone,
had the Lieutenant Governor accepted Mr. Attorney General Ebert's advice, and
his construction of the Revenue Act, as explained to me by His Honour, an impor-
tant check which the Constitution Act places on the payment of money out of the
treasury would be a dead letter, and the power of the members of the government
of the day over the money in the treasury would be practically unlimited. This is
a power which the best of governments to iny mind should nlot possse, and which
the Constitution Act expressly prohibits. It was very evident that the relations
between the Lieutenant Governor and the Turner administration were of a char-
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acter that could not have continued. The circumstances connected with the
ministerial action and advice as disclosed by the correspondence, and as related by
Ris Honour to me, brought me to consider that prompt action was essential, and
that it became a duty to endeavour if possible to assist in averting a Crisis in
provincial affairs."

But if, by the above charge, your petitioners mean that I did not observe can-
dour due to them, and that I was guilty of misrepresenting to them the reasons
which induced me to "summarily and suddenly " request their resignation, then:-

1. I submit that a Lieutenant Governor is under no constitutional obligation to
give all or any of his reasons for a dismissal to an outgoing ministry, but only to an
incoming ministry prepared, if called upon, to state and defend such reasons in
parliament.

2. The differences between your petitioners and myself in regard to redistribu-
tion, parliamentary support, signing of special warrants, extension of election days
in Cassiar district, and issuance of warrants on the recommendation of the Attorney
General were all discussed nevertheless, and discussed unreservedly on my part, at
interviews mentioned in my letter of the 15th of August last, to Mr. Turner, ap-
pended to the memorial. In the matter of the blank warrants only 1 did not request
an interview with your petitioners, but having cut them out from among those with
which they were sent to me, I awaited an inquiry. No inquiry, however, was made.
Your petitioners say that had I requested an explanation respecting the blank war-
rants "it could have been promptly and satisfacturily given." Mr. Turner in his
letter to me of the 26th August, appended to the memorial, suggests rather than
gives the explanation as follows:-

Possibly you have not made yourself acquainted with the manner of procedure with respect
to what you tern warrants ; they are requisitions, and the systen is such that if by
chance, among a large number of sheets, a blank one got in, it could be of no use.

I am ready to take this explanation that it was a matter of accident, only
observing that it was seven, and not one, that got in by chance, that these seven
were inserted in different places, and in no respect differed from the other sheets,
except that the spaces for filling in amounts were blank. In view of concurrent
circumstances, and not knowing that it was a mistake, I preferred to await an
inquiry, or explanation, rather than to suggest an improper motive by asking for
an interview in regard to them.

3. This bringe me to the other charge, which is as follows:-

Your petitioners charge that the Lieutenant Governor made and published false statements
respecting the conduct and character of your petitioners.

In support of this Your Excellency is referred to the correspondence appended to
the memorial, which is the correspondence forwarded witb my report to Your
Excellency on the 19th August last and published in the Official Gazette of this pro-
vince, of the 26th August last, together with an additional letter addressed by Mr.
Turner to myself aiso dated the 26th August last.

In answer to this charge I submit:-
1st. It is too vague to be definitely answered, and it is too vague < to draw

Your Excellency's attention to the conduct of the Lieutenant Governor of a personal
character." In such a serious matter as invoking Your Excellency's supervision
in regard to conduct of mine of a personal character, I submit that the memorial
should have definitely and unequivocally stated what the false statements were
which it is alleged that I made and published concerning the conduct and character
of your petitioners, as well as when and where they were made and published, I
shall deal with this charge, however, as definitely as its vagueness will permit.

2nd. This charge is contained in a petition purporting to be the petition of John
Herbert Turner of the city of Victoria, &c., James Baker, of Cran brook, &c., Charles
Edward Pooley and David MacEwen Eberts, of the said city of Victoria. But it is not
the petition of the said James Baker, inasmuch as he rias nut signed it, and so he is
improperly made a party to it, wvithout'any apparent authority from himself, and in
this respect is in no different position from Mr. George B. Martin, alo a member of
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my late ministry, who bas neither signed nor joined in the memorial, and tb'e said
Charles Edward Puoley is no proper party to the merorial inasmueh as lie is in no
part of the said correspondenco, upon which this charge is batOd, mentioned or
referred to, nor was ho present at any of the interviews mentioned in the said cor-
respondence, and so cannot possibly be, within the purview of the memorial, one
concerning whose conduct and character I have made and publihed false state-
monts.

3rd. Such charges as are contained in the said correspondence are there made
officially to your petitioner, Mr. Turner, respecting the officiai conduet of himself
and the colleague- therein mentioned. And the said correspondence wats subse-
quently, on the advice of my present ministry, officially published. This I submit
can in no sense be construed into " conduct of the Lieutenant Governor of a personai
character," nor was this in any sense a personal publication by me of the alleged
false statements; the publication was an officiai act " covered by ministerial respon-
sibility," to use the words of Sir Wilfrid Laurier, quoted by your petitioners.

4th. The alleged falso statements respecting the corduct and character of your
petitioners are contained, it at ail, in the letter of the 15th August last from myseif
to Mr. Turner, appended to the memorial. Now, I submit to Your Excellency that
now/ere in this letter is there any statement " impugning the personal honour " of
your petitioners, or concerning thoir personal conduct or character. Although it is
notorious that certain memhers of my late ministry, your petitioners, were attacked
in the press of Canada and Great Britain for the alleged use of their officiai positions
in furtherance of private enterprises of a speculative character, yet neither in My
interviews had with them, nor in officiai correspondetce, nor otherwise, did I advert
to it, or make any statements concerning this; nor concerning the fact that one of
the members of my late ministry, one of your petitioners, acted as legalcounsel to a
railway corporation in this province in suits adverse to the government of which ho
was a member; nor concerning any other phase of the conduct or character of
your petitioners of a personal nature. But I admit that my said letter of the 15th
August last does contain statements reflecting on the officiai conduct of Mr. Turner
and Mr. Eberts. Your Excellency will observe that my written communication with
Mr. Turner, prior to said letter of the 15th August, make no mention of complaints
on my part as to the officiai conduct of himself and colleagies, but Mir. Turner's
letter to me in reply, dated 26th Augutî last, and appended to the memorial, clearly
thows that every phase of their official conduct, of which complaint is made in my
letter of 15th August, was discussed at officiai interviews between us, either alone or
in conjunction with some of his colleagues, with the exception of the matter of the
blank warrants, and in two cases only is there any substantial variation as to the
purport of the interviews. I here quote the first case:-

Lieutenant Governor to Mr. Turner, lôth August, 1898.

During several interviews with you I informed you that while I had every respect for
yourself personally, I had little or no confidence in sone of your colleagues, and this,
together with the verdict of the electorate on the 9th July last made it impossible for me
to unreservedly accept the recommendations of the Executive Council.

AMr. Turner to Lieutenant Governor, 26th Augu8t, 1898.

Your Honour may have entertained a thought of that kind, but during ail my inter.
views Your Honour most carefully concealel the faut. Uponi one occasion Your Honour
did Say that one or two of my colleagues were not popular, but certainly never did Your
Honour state that yen had net confidence in them. Your Honour states that this, coupled
with the vote of the 9th July, made it impossible for you to unreservedly accept the recoin-
nendations of the Executive Council. For the first time I have learned, and from a repre-
sentative of the Crown, that a sound, sufficient reason for the existence of a lack of confidence
by a representative of the Crown in an Executive Council may be that some of its meibers
are not popular.

Even these statements agree in this, that there was, at an official interview with
my chief adviser, a discussion respecting "one or two" of his colleagues. J reaffirm
that it was concerning the confidence I felt in them, that is as advisers, and not con-
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cerniDg their popularity. But I submit to Your Excellency that to issue a Royal
Commission to inquire into the intrinsic probability of that discussion having turIned
on my want of confidence in, or on the popularity of, one or two of Mr. Turner's col-
leagues would be futile.

Tho other case of conflicting statements is the only serious one and is the only
case respecting which the memorial makes anything like a distinct or specific charge.
It is that of the Attorney General, Mr. Eberts, having informed me that in certain
cases, by virtue of a section of the Revenue Act (sec. 41), ho could have a warrant
issued for the expenditure of money, without my tignature. Referring to this, your
potitioners, after quoting that part of my said letter of the 15th August dealing there-
with, say at the close of the memorial:-

Your petitioners charge that the latter statement is maliciously false.
Your petitioners, John Herbert Turner, David MacEwen Eberts and James Baker (the

Attorney General and Provincial Secretary referred to), deny that on the 2nd August, or at
any time they, or any of them, informed the Lieutenant Governor that, failing his sanction
the Attorney General could have the warrant issued on the Attorney General's recommenda-
tion without his signature. And your petitioner, David MacEwen Eberts (the Attorney
General referred to), denies that in reading the section of the Act he intimated to the
Lieutenant Governor so monstrous a proposition.

Your petitioners indignantly repudiate the dishonourable insinuations contained 4i the
paragraph above quoted,

The public press in British Columbia, from such a statement, very properly infer that
for the dishonourable conduct suggested in this paragraph your petitioners were dismissed
from office; whereas, as your petitioners have shown, no such reason was given or insinuated
either when they were requested to resign, or when Mr. Beaven or Mr. Semlin were invited
to forni a cabinet.

I would first ask Your Excellency to observe, as points of agreement, disclosed
by the above and by the said correspondence, that there was the interview of the
2nd August; that your petitioners had previously endeavoured to obtain my signa-
ture to a special warrant for 815,000 to be expended in Cassiar district, prior to
the elections there; that the subject matter of the said interview was the issuance
of the said special warrant; that at the interview I again refused to sign the war-
rant; and that the Attorney General, Mr. Eberts, then read me a section of the
Revenue Act, containing the following:

If upon any application for a warrant the auditor has reported that there is no par-
liamentary authority for issuing it, then upon the written opinion of the Attorney
General that there is such authority, citing it, the warrant may be issued, and shall be
sufficient authority to the auditor to authorize the payment out of the treasury to the
amount so ordered to be expended.

Mr. Eberts " denies that in reading the section of the Act he intimated to the
Lieutenant Governor so monstrous a proposition." But why did Mr. Eberts read
me that section, as ho admits he did, at that interview and under the eircumstances
stated ?

And I would further point out to Your Excellency that to one not learned in
the law and not recollecting certain sections of the Constitution Act of this province,
such a section very roadily conveys the meaning, prima facie, that the AttorneY
General has a power over the treasury in certain cases, and that bis written opinion
may be sufficient authority for the i6suance of a warrant, and " shall bo sufficient
authority to the auditor Io authorize the payment of the trensury to the amount so
ordered to be expended."

And so I understood Mr. Eberts' construction of the said section. Your
petitioners say:-

" No such reason was given or insinuated either when they were requested to
resign, or when Mr. Beaven or Mr. Semlin were invited to form a cabinet."

This is not true, as Your Excellency will observe by the above quoted interview
with Mr. Beaven, published in the Victoria Times of 15th August last, wherein Mr.
Beaven says that a week prior to this, upon bis waiting upon me in response to my
letter of the 8th August last, the above circumstances were related to him by me.
And in respect to the allegation of malice on my part, I wish to observe that so far
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was I from wishing to publish charges reflecting on my late ministry, even of an
official character, that I refrained from inserting in official coirespondence the com-
plaints I had against them, although they had formed the subject of interviews

etween us and, as shown by the published statement of Mr. Beaven, they had been
related to gentlemen undertaking the formation of a new administration. But the
nature of Mr. Turner's letter to me of the 9th August, appended to the memorial,
the insinuations therein contained that I was concerned in an intrigue to secure the
entrance of a relative into his cabinet, that negotiations for that purpose were still
in progress, and that I had botter reconsider the letter asking for the resignation of
himself and colleagues, left me, I considered, no alternative, in justice to myself, but
to give a detailed official statement of the complaints I had against the conduet of
your petitioners. And I submit to Your Excellency finally that the momorial 'con-
tains no specific charge, nor does it cite facts in support of any charge, sufficient to
warrant the issuance of a Royal Commission of inquiry as asked for by your
petitioners.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

I have the honour to bo
Your Excellency's obedient servant,

THOS. R. McINNES,
Lieutenant Governor.



Boundary between Alaska and Canada.

PROTOCOL No. LXIII
(99)

Of the Joint High Commission, Washington, respecting the Boundary
between Alaska and Canada.

WASHINGTON, 18th February, 1899.

The Joint High Commission assembled pursuant to adjournment at the Conference
rooms, at 10 o'clock, a.m., all the members being present except Lord Herschell and
Hon. John W. Foster, who were detained by illness, and Sir Richard Cartwright.

The protocol of last meeting was read and approved.
The question of the boundary between Alaska and Canada was again taken up for

discussion.
The British Commissioners represented that the Commission having been unable to

agree on that question, it should be referred to arbitration. They therefore made the
following propositiQn as a basis to be proceeded upon in framing a treaty.

Article 1.-An arbitral tribunal shall be immediately appointed to determine the
boundary line between the Territory of Alaska and the Dominion of Canada within the
limita defined in Article III.

Article II.-The tribunal shall consist of three jurists of repute, one on the part of
Great Britain, nominated by the members for the time being of the Judicial Committee
of Her Majesty's Privy Council, one on the part of the United States, nominated by
the President, and of a third jurist to be selected by the two persons so nominated, or
in the event of their failure to agree within three months of the exchange of ratifica-
tions of the present treaty to be selected by

In the case of death, absence or incapacity to serve of either of the two arbitrators
nominated as aforesaid, or in the event of either of such arbitrators omitting or declin-
ing or ceasing to act as such, another jurist of repute shall be forthwith substituted in
his place. If such vacancy shall occur in the case of the arbitrator nominated by
Great Britain, the substitute shall be appointed by the members for the time being of
the Judicial Committee of Her Majesty's Privy Council. If such vacancy shall occur
in the case of the arbitrator nominated by the United States, he shall be appointed by
the President. In case of death, absence or incapacity to serve of the third arbitrator
selected as aforesaid, or in the event of such arbitrator omitting or declining or ceasing
to act as such, another jurist of repute shall be forthwith substituted in his place, who
shall be selected by the two other arbitrators, or in the event of their failure to agree
within one month of such vacancy occurring, by

Article III.-The tribunal shall determine and delineate on suitable maps, the
boundary line between the territory of Alaska and the Dominion of Canada from the
southernmost point of Prince of Wales Island to Mount St. Elias, in accordance with the
treaty between Russia and Great Britain of 23rd February, 1825.

Article I.-In deciding the matters submitted, the arbitrators shall ascertain all
facts which they deem necessary to a decision of the controversy, and shall be governed
by the following rules, which are agreed upon by the high contraeting parties as rules
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to be taken as applicable to the case, and by such principles of international law not
inconsistent therewith as the arbitrators shall deteimine to be applicable to the case.

RULES.

(a.) Adverse holding or prescription during a period of fifty years shall make a
good title. The arbitrators may deem exclusive political control of a district, as well
as actual settlement thereof, sufficient to constitute adverse holding or to make title by
prescription.

(b.) The arbitrators may recognize and give effect to rights and claims resting on
any other ground whatever valid according to international law, and on any principles
of international law which the arbitrators may deem to be applicable to the case, and
which are not in contravention of the foregoing rule.

(c.) In determining the boundary line, if territory of one party shall be found by
the tribunal to have been at the date of this treaty in the occupation of the subjects or
citizens of the other party, such effect shall be given to such occupation as reason,
justice, the principles of international law, and the equities of the case shall, in the
opinion of the tribunal, require:-

Article .- The arbitrators shall meet at within sixty days after the delivery of
the printed arguments mentioned in Article VIII., and shall proceed impartially and
carefully to examine and decide the matters submitted to them as herein provided on
the parts of the governments of Her Britannic Majesty and the United States of
America, respectively

Provided always that the arbitrators may, if they shall think fit, hold their
meetings, or any of them, at any other place or places which they may determine.

All questions considered by the tribunal, including the final decision, shall be
determined by a majority of all the arbitrators.

Each of the high contracting parties shall name one person as its agent to attend
the tribunal and to represent it generally in all matters connected with the tribunal.

Article VI.-The printed case of each of the two parties accompanied by the
documents, the official correspondence, and other evidence on which each relies, shall be
delivered in duplicate to each of the arbitrators and to the agent of the other party as
soon as may be after the appointment of the members of the tribunal, but within a
period not exceeding months from the date of the exchange of the ratifications
of this treaty.

Article VII.-Within months after the delivery on both sides of the printed
case, either party may in like manner deliver in duplicate, to each of the said arbitrators
and to the agent of the other party, a counter case and additional documents, corres-
pondence and evidence, in reply to the case, documents, correspondence and evidence as
presented by the other party.

If in the case submitted to the arbitrators either party shall have specified or
alluded to any report or document in its own exclusive possession without annexing a
copy, such party shall be bound, if the other party thinks proper to apply for it, to
furnish that party with a copy thereof, and either party may call upon the other,
through the arbitrators, to produce the originals or certified copies of any papers adduced
as evidence, giving in each instance notice thereof within thirty days after the delivery
of the case, and the original or copy so requested shall be delivered as soon as may be
and within a period not exceeding forty days after the receipt of notice.

Article VIII.-It shall be the duty of the agent of each party within months
after the expiration of the time limited for the delivery of the counter case on both
sides to deliver in duplicate to each of the said arbitrators and to the agent of the other
party, a printed argument showing the points and referring to the evidence upon which
his government relies.
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The arbitrators may, if they desire any further elucidation with regard to any
point, require oral argument by counsel upon it, or a written or printed statement or
argument, but in such case the other party shall be entitled to reply either orally or by
written or printed statement or argument, as the case may be.

Article IX.-The arbitrators may, for any cause deemed by them sufficient, enlarge
the periods fixed by Articles VI, VII, and VIII, or any of them, by the allowance of
thirty days additional.

Article X.-The decision of the tribunal shall, if possible, be made within three
months from the close of the arguments on both sides.

It shall be made in writing, and dated, and shall be signed by the arbitrators who
may assent to it. The decision shall be in duplicate, one copy whereof shall be delivered
to the agent of Great Britain for bis government, and the other copy shall be delivered
to the agent of the United States of America for his government.

Article XI.-The arbitrators shall keep an accurate record of their proceedings and
may appoint and employ the necessary officers to assist them. They may also employ
any scientific experts whose assistance they may deem necessary for the discharge of the
duty entrusted to them.

Article XII.-Each government shall pay its own agent, and provide for the
remuneration of the counsel employed by it, and of the arbitrators appointed on its
behalf, and for the expense of preparing and submitting its case to the tribunal. All
other expenses connected with the arbitration shall be defrayed by the two governments
in equal moities.

Article XIII.-The high contracting parties engage to consider the result of the
proceedings of the tribunal of arbitration as a full, perfect and final settlement of al]
questions referred to the arbitrators.

The Commissioners of the United States announced that they accepted the proposals
made as the basis of adjustment, but desired an amendment in relation to the arbitral
tribunal and a modification of rule " C " to make it conform to the present local condi-
tions in Alaska.

They then presented the project of articles as modified, which was as follows:-

Article 1.-An arbitral tribunal shall be immediately appointed to determine the
boundary line between the Territory of Alaska and the Dominion of Canada within the
limits defined in the following Article III.

Article II.-The tribunal shall consist cf six impartial jurists of repute, three on
the part of Great Britain, nominated by the members for the time being of the Judicial
Committee of Her Majesty's Privy Council, and three on the part of the United States,
nominated by the President.

In the case of the death, absence or incapacity to serve of either of the arbitrators,
nominated as aforesaid, or in the event of either of such arbitrators omitting or declin-
ing or ceasing to act as such, another impartial jurist of repute shall be forthwith
nominated in his place by the same authority which appointed bis predecessor.

Article III.-The tribunal shall determine and if practicable delineate on suitable
maps the boundary line between the Territory of Alaska and the Dominion of Canada
from the southernmost point of Prince of Wales Island to Mount St. Elias in accordance
with the treaty between Russia and Great Britain, dated February 28-16, 1825, and
the Treaty of Cession from Russia to the United States, dated 30th March, 1867, or as
the same shall be established by said tribunal under the rules hereinafter provided.

8
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Article IV.-Before deciding the matters submitted the arbitrators shall ascertain
all geographical, historical and other facts which they deem necessary to a decision of
the controversy, and shall be governed by the following rules, which are agreed upon by
the high contracting parties as rules to be taken as applicable to the case, and by such
principles of international law not inconsistent therewith as the arbitrators shall de-
termine to be applicable to the case.

RULES.

(a.) Adverse holding or prescription during a period of fifty years shall make a
good title. The arbitrators may deem exclusive political control of a district, as well
as actual settlement thereof, sutficient to constitute adverse holding or to make title by
prescription.

(b.) The arbitrators may recognize and give effect to rights and claims resting on
any other ground whatever valid according to international law, and on any principles
of international law which the arbitrators may deem to be applicable to the case, and
which are not in contravention of the foregoing rule.

(c.) In considering the " coast " referred to in said treaties mentioned in Article
III, it is understood that the coast of the continent is intended. In determining
the boundary line, if territory of one party shall be found by the tribunal to have been
at the date of this treaty in the occupation of the subjects or citizens of the other party,
such euect shall be given to such occupation as reason, justice, the principles of inter-
national law and the equities of the case shall, in the opinion of the tribunal, require:
and all towns and settlements on tide water, settled under the authority of the United
States and under the jurisdiction of the United States at the date of this treaty, shall
remain within the territory and jurisdiction of the United States.

Article .- The arbitrators shall meet at within sixty days after
the delivery of the printed arguments mentioned in Article VIII, and shall proceed im-
partially and carefully to examine and decide the matters submitted to them as herein
provided on the parts of the governments of Her Britannic Majesty and the United
States of America respectively.

Provided always that the arbitrators may, if they shall think fit, hold their meet-
ings, or any of them, at any other place or places which they may determine.

All questions considered by the tribunal, including the final decision, shall be
determined by a majority of all the arbitrators.

Each of the high contracting parties shall name one person as its agent to attend
the tribunal and to represent it generally in all matters connected with the tribunal.

Article VI.-The printed case of each of the two parties, acompanied by the
documents, the official correspondence, and other evidence on which each relies, shall be
delivered in duplicate to each of the arbitrators and to the agent of the other party,
as soon as may be after the appointmrent of the members of the tribunal, but within a
period not exceeding months from the date of the exchange of the ratifications
of this treaty.

Article YII.-Within months after the delivery on both sides of the
printed case, either party may in like manner deliver in duplicate, to each of the said
arbitrators and to the agent of the other party, a counter case and additional docu-
ments, correspondence and evidence, in reply to the case, documents, correspondence and
evidence as presented by the other party.

If in the case submitted to the arbitrators either party shall have specified or
ahded to any report or document in its own exclusive possession without annexing a
copy, such party shall be bound, if the other party thinks proper to apply for it, to
furnish that party with a copy thereof, and either party may call upon the other,
through the arbitrators, to produce the originals or certified copies of any papers
adduoed as evidence, giving in each instance notice thereof within thirty days after the
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delivery of the case, and the original or copy so requested shall be delivered as aEta e
may be &nd within a period not exceeding forty days after the receipt of notce.

Article VIII.-It shall be the duty of the agent of each party within
months after the expiration of the time limdted for the delivery of the counter çase on
both sides, to deliver in duplicate to each of the said arbitrators and to the agent of
the other party, a printed statement or argument showing the points aad referring to
the evidence upon 'which his Government relies. The other party may sabmit reply
thereto.

The arbitrators may, if they desire further elucid&tion with regaud to &ay point
require oral argument by council upon it, or a written or printed statementor arguet,
but in such ease the other party shall be entitled to reply either orally or by written or
printed statement or argument, as the case may be.

Article IX.-The arbitrators may, for any cause deemed by tkem sufii<"en4 eniarge
the period fixed by Articles VI, VII, and VIII, or aay of them, by the allowwoce of
thirty days additional.

Article X.-The decision of the tribunal shall, if possible, be mome within three
months fron the elose of the arguments en both sides.

It shall be made in writing, and dated, and shaH be signed bythe arbikerat.s who
may assent to it. The decision shall be in duplicate, ee oopy theeo shal be deiMvmed
to the agent of Great Britain for his Government, and the other oopy shall beelivered
to the agent of the United States of America for his Gormmnt.

Article XI.-The arbitrators shall keep an accurate record of their proceedings,
and may appoint and empioy the necessary officers to assist them. They may a&no
employ any scientific experts whose assistance they may deem necemsary fer *e as-
charge of the duty entrusted to them.

Article XII.-Each Government shall pay its own agent and provide for the
remuneration of the counsel (if any) employed by it, and of the arbitrators appointed
on its behalf, and for the ex ense of preparing and submitting its case to the trrnal.
Ail other expenses connected with the arbitration shall be defrayed by the two Oov-
ernments in equal moieties.

Article XIII.-The high contracting parties engage to consider the resuit of the
proceedings of the tribunal of arbitration as a full, perfect and final settlement ,f ail
questions referred to the arbitrators.

A recess of the Joint High Commission was then taken until tbree o'clogk p.m.
Upon re-assembling the British Commissioners stated that they were absolutoly unable
to accept the modification to their proposition suggested by the Amwerian Commission-
ers, and gave the reason of their dissent as follows

The British Commissioners, having conaidered the amendwegts suggesed to their
proposal of yesterday for a reference to arbitration of the Alaska-Canadian boundar
line by the United States Commissioners, regret that they are unable to agree to the
same for the following reasons:-

1. Because the suggested amendment to Article II does not provide a tribunal
which would necessarily, and in the possible event of differences of qpinion, fiaBy dis-
pose of the question.

On the 11 th of February, the British Commissioners submitted that, in their
opinion, " such provision can only be made in the terms of the protocol (in default of
agreement as to the boundary) by an agreement for some steps to be taken which will,
if taken, necessarily result in a delimitation of the whole boundary." They adhere most
strongly to this opinion, and cannot depart from it.

2. Because the suggestion in sub-section C, of Article IV, that " all towns or
settlements on tide-water, settled under the authority of the United States and under
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the jurisdiction of the United States at the date of this treaty, shall remain within the
territory and jurisdiction of the United States," is a marked and important departure
from the rules of the Venezuela boundary reference, which provided that all equities
arising from possession or other facts alleged by either of the parties to the reference,
should be left for the consideration and determination of the arbitration, and be given
by them such weight as reason, justice and the principles of international law and the
equities of the case should require. The words added by the United States Commission-
ers claim that an eftect should be given to their occupation of land in British territory,
which justice, reason and the equities of the case do not require.

The British Commissioners further object to the declaration added to the first part
of rule (C), as follows:-

" In considering the 'coast' referred to in said treaties mentioned in Article III,
it is understood that the coast of the continent is intended."

While it was probably only intended by this clause that the line should be drawn
upon the continent, the language used is open to misconstruction.

Holding these views, the British Commissioners are of the opinion that no useful
end will be served by further pressing, at the present time, the negotiations, and must
refer the matter to their Government.

In the exchange of views in respect to the constitution of the arbitral tribunal,
which followed this communication, inquiry was made by the United States Commis-
sioners whether the British Commissioners had considered the question of selecting an
umpire from the American continents.

To this it was replied that they had considered it and thought it most objectionable
in view of the policy long maintained and recently re-asserted by the Government of the
United States towards the other countries on the said continents. The selection of an
umpire by any such nation would not in their opinion offer the guarantee of im-
partiality which is the first qualification requisite for the discharge of the duties
entrusted to him.

In view of the reference of the subject to their Government, as announced by the
British Commissioners, the Commissioners of the United States regarded it unnecessary
to make any further observations upon the subject of the Alaskan boundary.

They then proposed that the Joint High Commission should proceed to a determi-
nation of the remaining subjects of difference named in the original protocol. They
regarded it as unwise to further defer the adjustments so nearly concluded after full
consideration. Several subjects were so far advanced as to assure the probability of a
settlement. If, then, all differences except one could now be adjusted, would it not be a
most commendable advance in neiglibourly friendship? Could not our respective gov-
ernments be trusted to settle the principal remaining difference by direct negotiations ?

The United States Commissioners further regretted the suspension for any long
time of the negotiations in view of the progress already made in solving the differences.

They therefore urged that the Joint High Commission should advance to a con-
clusion their negotiations upon the remaining subjects as early as possible.

The British Commissioners replied that all such questions should be deferred until
the boundary question had been disposed of, either by agreement or reference to arbi-
tration. The manner in which they would be prepared to adjust some of the other im-
portant matters under consideration, must depend in their view upon whether it is
possible te arrive at a spttlement of all the questions which might at any time occasion
acute controversy and even conflict.

The Joint High Commission thereupon adjourned until Monday, 20th February
at ten o'clock in the forenoon.

A. 1899



AB3STRACT 0F RLEPORTS
(103c, e, fand h.)

Of Commissioners appointed to inquire into and report upon charges preferred against any employee of the Government; in answer to an Address of the Senate, dated 28th April, 1899, and compiled from Sessional Papers Nos. 103c, 103e, 103/, 103h, presented to the Senate during the Session of 1899.

Name, Residence and Designation of each Commissioner. Location of Inquiry.

Railways and Canals Departnent.

* H. James Palmer, Stipendiary Magistrate ...................... Cape Traverse and Charlottetown,P.E.I.1

Post Office Departnment.

C. J. Seager, Police Magistrate, Goderich, Ont.......... .Niagara Falls, Ont. ................
M. O'Gara, Barrister, Ottawa, Ont..... ............ ..... Ottawa 't.. . ...... .......
Henry Aylmner, Sherbrooke, Que............ ............. Magog, Que............... ......
Hon. Judge Senkler, Kingston..... ................... Kingston, Ont .... ... .......... ..
E. Il. McAlpine, Barrister, St. John, N.B......... ...... ....... St. John, N.B .......................

Inland Revenue Department.

W. McDiarmid, Barrister, Lucan, Ont........................ Ailsa Craig, Ont....................
J. E. Bedard, Advocate, Quebec.................. ............ Quebec ..... ........................

. . . ...... ... ...... ....... . if .... ..... ... .............

Jean Prévost, Advocate, St. Jérôme, Que.......... ... . ........ St. Jérôme and Ste. Thérèse. .........

Yukon Territory.

William Ogilvie, Dawson City, Y.T . .... .... .... ............ Dawson City . ................. .....

Indian Affairs.

Horace Harvey............................................ Calgary, Blackfoot Reserve........
tHugh O'Leary, Q.C., Barrister..............................Atherley, Ont......... ...........

Date of
Commission

Appointment.

Subject Matter of Commission. Official's Name. Official Position and Location. Report of Comomissioner.

Feb. 4, 1897.. Charges of active partisanship... ....... Edward Crosby ........ Station Agent, Cape Traverse..... .. .. . ...... Charges proved..
George R. Bagnall....... Clerk in office of Superintendent, P.E.I. Railway. .
H. W. Anders<n........ Mechanical Foreman, P.E.I. Railway ..... ..

... .... Active partisanship.......................Hector Simpson ........ Railway Mail Clerk.......... . ............. Charges not proved..
Sept. 30, 1897.. Various charges ........ .. . . . .. P. B. Dunn............ Clerk, Supt.'s Office, Railway Mail Service ...... Not proved..........
Nov. 30, 1897.. Active political partisanship................Wm. Peters..... ..... Mail Clerk......... ....................... ........
May 25, --.. Insubordination and misconduct ... ........ J. E. Hopkirk...........Clerk in Post Office Inspector's Office.............. ..... .. ..-..
Jan. -, 1898.. Active political partisanship................R. J. Wilkins..... .. .. Railway Mail Clerk. ............ . . ....... Proved ........... ....

Sept. 9, 1898.. Active and offensive partisanship.Daniel Coughlin ........ 'Assistant Inspector, Weights and Measures . ... Not proved.... ........
May 6, 1897.. , t John Sexton ... ..... Excise Officer ....... ..... ..... ............

t 6,1897.. ....... F. X. Chabot..... .. . Sub-collector, Weights and Measures. ........... ..... .......
June 24, 1897.. .......... .. David Desroches.. ..... Collector, Inland Revenue .... . . ............ Charges proved..........

Oct. 7, 1898.. Mismanagement and corruption of office...... Thomas Fawcett........ Gold Commissioner......................Not proved ......... . ..

Feb.
Dec.

Chas. A. Lebel, Restigouche, Que...... ................ ........Restigouche, Que ................... uly
W . J. Chisholm ............................. ... ..... ..... Prince Albert, N.W .T ................ June

J. A. Macrae, Inspector of Indian Agencies .... .... ... ........
St .......... ....

Geo. L. Chitty, Timber Inspector............................
T. P. Wadsworth, Inspector, Indian Agencies................
Hon. D. Laird, Indian Commissioner.........................
E. McColl, Inspector, Indian Agencies...... . ................
J. B. Brosseau-............ ...... ..............................

Regina Jail.

T. C. Johnstone, Regina, N.W.T. . ............................
. C in ......... .... ..... ...........

F. C. Wade, Barrister, Winnipeg ..... ........ ............. .

3, 1897..
1, 1896..

13, 1898..
8, 1898..

Supplying diseased beef ...... . ........ W. M. Baker........Acing Agent, Blackfot Reserve.............. Charge not proved
Maladministration of office and political parti- D. J. Mclhec.........ndian Agent . . .......

s9anship.
Political partisanship.....................
Drunkenness and harsh treatment of Indians..
Dnnk and disorderly..... ................

Richibucto,. .N.B.... ...... ..... .. ......Richibuicto, N.B ................ ... Mar. 23.,189.. General incapacity.......... ............ ..
Southampton, Ont..................Nov. 19, 1896.. Abuse of office during election, 1896
Parry Sound, Ont............. ..... April 15, 1897.. rregularities in office....................
Saddle Lake, N.W.T................May 5, 1897--lDrunkenness......................
Middlechurch School ..... ............ an. 19&26,1899Improper conduct.......................
Berens River, Man.... ............ Feh. 22, 1897.. Immorality.............................
Pierreville, Que...................................Improper conduct......................

Regina, N.W.T..................... . Jan. 26, 1897. . Malfeasance in office.....................

.eb 26, 1897.. Imoaiy . .. ... ...

t n ..................... Feb 926,1897.. Ofns n ....................
Stony Mountain, Man ....... ......... Feb. 9, 1899.. Offensive partisanship ....... ... ...........

Dr. J. A. Venner.
W. J. O'Donnell ........
H. Keith............

Indian Agent and Medical Attendant.... .......
Farm Instructor. Carlton Agency ....... .......
Indian Agent ......... .

Charge proved....
Dismissed....
Not proved...........

No. of
Days

Occupied.

Rupert Pratt ..... ..... i...r'l ..e. -
W. D. Carter ..... ..... IndianAgent, Richibucto, N.B...........
John Crov:e................ t Saugeen.................. Charges proved.
Thomas Walton .... .... . .... Disissed............
John Ross............Sadde Lake.........................
Rev. J. H. Fairlie ... Principal, Rupert's Land Industrial Sh.l.......
Angus Mackay.........Indian Agent, Berens River..................Ne (efinite information..
W. C. Boucher ................. I..n............. .............. Tendered resignation lwe

fore trial and d ismissed.

T. B. Bennet..........JailOfficiai, Reginaiut,.....................Charges proved.
James McK . Saugeen-...... . ............ .. ,

Officiais in genral..Chaplain and Guard ........................ harges prvedi ne
case eny.

Per ien Total No.
Allowance of Paid Commis- of Wit-
Commnissioner. simner. nesses.

$ ets.

10 00

.. ........ .

10 00

Nil.

et
et

et

$ ets.

36 00

49 85
72 77
94 73

267 50

Nil.

6 40
204 90

221 10

5 90

113 94
58 70
58 62

No return.
31 90

137 55

1,108 75

Total Paid
Witnesses and

others.

$ cts.

25 00

No.
of Baiiiffs New Officials Appointed.

and
Constables

J. (G. Dagg.

... ........ .......... J. M cDougall.

... ........ ..... ... Rev. F. M. Finn, Pro-
testant Chaplain.

* Omitted from tabulated statement of 1898. † No action taken on report. Rev. Mr. Fairlie, dismissed. § Number of days not given.

..............
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Name
of

Commissioner.

E. J. Meredith ..

James Noxon....

0. K. Fraser.... .

D. A. Lafortune..

E. M. Bill. ..

Names
of

Employees.

Sundry persons,
Kingston Peniten-
tiary Investigation.

if et . .

Sundry persons, St.
Vincent de Paul
Penitentiary.

Sundry persons, Dor.
chester Penitenti-
ary Investigation.

Chas. Murphy.... iJames Devlin. .. .

Judge McGuire.. Sheriff Hughes.....

$ cts.

3,730 1,006

3,240

2,340

650

20

904

39

Names of
Employees re-

moved.
à 4

$

1,060

216 29

8 14

Jas. Devlin was
dismissed from.
office on report
of othei Com-
missioners.

0. E. Hughes...

Office.

61 Dep'y Warden
71 Surgeon.......

Storekeeper...
Asst. Storek'pr
Engineer.. ...
Steward......

Warden .....
Surgeon! . .
Clerk of Works
Asst. Engineer
Keeper.......

et ..... .
Guard........

Teamster.....

Grounds of
rex•oval.

1

500 1 .................

Salary.

$
1,500
1,800

1,000
600

1,300
900

2,800
1,400
1,000

500
530
600
500
500
400

... J. A. Duchesneau.
308 L. A. Fortier....

...... G. A. Pratt. ....
E. Leclair ........

... D. Ouimet ........
C. Desjardins.....
D. Uuson .........

... L. Gagnon ...

... E. Marin .. .......

W. H. Derry (a
above).

G. Neelson ......

These Reports will be found in the Annual Report of the Minister of Justice for the year 1898.

103c, e, f and h-2

67 Warden ...... .
64 Surgeon.

.. . Ch. Trade Inst'r.
29 Asst. Engineer..
37 Guard .
28 t
24 , ...
45 , ..........
42 et .........

.... ............ .

Engineer .......

Sheriff..........

D.
468 D

.T.
...... T.

... ...W

Remarks.
Names

of Successors Office.
appointed.

O'Leary ..... 46 Deputy Warden.
r. D. Phelan..... 45 Surgeon.........

W. Bowie ..... 58 Storekeeper ...
A. Keenan..... 35 Asst. Storekeep'r
. H. Derry...... 52 Engineer... ...
H. Martin. ... 41 Steward........

Salary.

1
1,500
1,800

700
600

1,000
700

2,000
1,500
1,000

500
500
500
500
500
500

This Investigation is still in
progress.

Copy of Report herewith, at
p. 295-318 of Report of

inister of Justice, 1898.

This Report was laid before
the House last Session
and was printed.

In accordance with
Co mmissioner's
report.

This Report will appear in
Report of Minister of
Justice, 1898, and will
also be printed by Order
of the House of Com-
mons.

Wm. Sullivan...
05 Dr. Strange.....

P. O'Donnell ...
89 N. P. Wood.....

8 Jas. Devlin.....
J. Weir .... ...

T. Ouimet ......
M. H. Gaudet..

00 R. O. Labelle...
E.· Trudeau. .. . .
N. Plouffe.... .
E. Prévost .....

75 G. Monette ...
J. Desloges.....
J. Leblanc .....

1
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STATEMENT A.-Return, in so far as the Department of the Interior is concerned, called
for by an Address of the Senate of the 28th April, 1899.

Name of each Commissioner appointed by Order
in Council or otherwise, since 9th April, 1897,
to inquire into and report upon charges pre-
ferred against any employee of the Govern-
ment whether permanent or tenporary, of
offensive partisanship, or of any misconduct
whatever.

*E. W. Burley ..... ........... ......

Wn. Ogilvie.............-..............

* Report not yet furnished.

103c, e, f and h-3

The amount paid to each
Commissioner s i n c e
9th of April, 1897, in
fees, per diem allow-
ance, travelling ex-
penses and incidentals
of all kinds.

8 ets.

150 00

Nil.

Remarks.

Allowance for expenses.
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STATEMENT B.-Return, in so far as the Department of the Interior is concerned, called for by an Address of the Senate of the 28th April, 1899.

Name, Age, Office and Salary of each Emplo
Outside Service of the Government, wh
permanent, who, since 9th April? 1897, has
office by dismissal, superannuation or oth
a report of a Commissioner or otherwise.

Naine.

W. R. Rowan ......
Mrs. K. Guilmette..
Miss F. Sutherland .
R. Graburn.........
Miss G. E. Turnock.
Mrs. M. R. Scott ...
J. Haslam Green....
Ransom Dolbear...
Mrs Livingstone....
M. O. R. Jarvis.....
W. T. Jones.......
R. S. Sherwood ....J.Grant Mackay ...
A. J Baker.
R. . M. Ridley....
C. W. Peterson.....
Williami Laurie .....
John Dobbin
T. B. Ferguson. .. .
P. N. Barker. .
G. A. Montgomery..
A. T. Abbey . .....
G. W R. Almon.. ..

Robert Gunne.....

. Brokovski.
C. E. Phi
Chas. W. .ne ...
George J. Cox . ...
W. S Cottingham . .
T. S. Higginson.....

t George A. Stewart.
Michael Fee.
Louis Schmidt.
John Walker.
John Dyke.....
Thos. Grahame.A. F. Grant ......
Peter Fleming......
E. M. Clay .........

Ji M. Gordon ..... .. 41

.H. Hiam ....... 65

. J. Wood..... ... 35

Office.

Clerk,

et
et
If

Land Board Office,

If

yee in the Inside or Amount
ether temporary or of
been removed from Superalnua
erwise, whether on tion or

Reason for Retirement, &c. Gratuity

granted.-- --- ---

Winnipeg

fi . .
et.
fi.

95 Y 1 1 . .

Clerk, Doni. Lands Office, Minnedosa
Forest Ranger, Winnipeg.... ....
Clerk, Dom. Lds. Office, Westaskewin
Registration Office, Calgary...
Dominion Lands Office, Brandon...

et If Kamloops..
Clerk, Supt. Mines Office, Calgary..

Registration Office, Regina..
Doni. Lands e e ..

le il Calgary..
Inspector, Land Titles Offices ......
Registrar, Regina.............
Clerk, Registration Office, Regina..

i Dom. Lds. Office, Edmonton.
Agent, Dom. Lds., Yorkton........

Y Battleford......
Clerk Y, Regina..... ....

I il NewWestminst'r
Homestead Inspector, Winnipeg....
Clerk, Dom. Lands Office, Brandon.
Crown Tiber Ag't, N.Westminster.

Supt., Rocky Mt. Park, Banff.....
Forest Ranger, Winnipeg...... ...
Asst. Agent, Prince Albert.........
Caretaker, Cave and Basin, Banff...
Govt. Immigr'n Agt.,Liverpool,Eng.

i . t n Glasgow, Scot.
3rd Class Clerk, Interior Dept .....
Immigration Agent, Dundee, Scot..

et e Halifax, N.S..

Insp'r, Dom. Lands Immigr'n Offices

Dom. Lands Agent, Brandon......

Immigr'n Agent, Birmingham, Eng.

Salary.

e cts.
650 00
400 00
400 00

1,095 00
480 00
500 00
600 00

1,095 00
500 00
800 00
700 00
80000
730 00
540 00
720 00

1,000 00
800 00

800 00
1,200 00
2,000 M
1,600 00

800 00
1,000 00

900 00'

1,200 00
600 00
900 ()0

1,200 00
1,650 00

1,200 00
î 00 0o

1,095 00
720 00

3,200 00
2,151 62

910 f00
1,200 00
1,20 00

Abolition of Land Board Office.

Economy.............

Abolition of office.........
Economy ................
Efficiency ..........
Economy................

.

Efficiency and economy.

Economy.............

"i ··.......... ........
« ..-...................

" ....... .. . . . . .
Political partisanship.

Resigned as resuit of investiga-
tion into affairs of his office.

Efficiency and economy .......
Now caretaker, Post Office. ...
Neglect of duty..........
Efficiency ...............

I and economy........
"f e ........

11-health. ...................
Office abolished ....

e irregularities.........

2,000 00 Economy ..... .............

1,400 00

1,200 00

Efficiency ...... ... .........

Office abolished...............

GratuitY.

$ ets.
212 50
166 66
166 66
273 75
20000
250 00
15000
273 75
208 33
20000

300 00
182 50
135 00
180 00
20000
20000

30000
1,000 00

40000
20000
25000
225 00

30000
10000
22500

- Naine, Age, Office, Salary or Remuneration of any and every Person appointed in
the place of, or as a consequence of, every such removal.

Naine.

James Paisley .....

Age.

Kelso Hunter....1.........

H. W. Newlands....

Malcolm McKenzie..

J. M. Sutherland....

R. F. Chisholm .....
Miss A. Telfer......

... ..... Janies Leamy...

35

36

41

Unknown.
27

52

Office.

Clerk, Dominion Lands Office, Brandon ........

Clerk, Registration Office, Regina .... ........

Insp'r, Land Titles Offices, and Registrar, Regina

Clerk, Registration Office, Regina ....... . .

Transferred froin Winnipeg Office to take charge
of agency.

Agent, Dominion Lands, Battleford... ....
Clerk f Y Regina.............

Crown Timber Agent, New Westminster........

300 00 1Howard Douglas ... .... ..... Superintendent of Rocky Mountain Park, Baniff.

3,200 00
2,151 62

537 15
30000

D. D. Galletly......
A. F. Jury.
H. M. Murray .....
A. R. Morisset .....

....... ... .John A. Kirk
Superannua-

tion.
785 32

39200
per annum.

............

E. F. Stephenson....

W. C. de Balenhard.

Unknown.
49
47
23

60

41

60

Salary or
Remuner

ation.

$ ets.

900 00

600 00

2,000

800

1,200

500
360

1,500 00

1,200 00

Caretaker, Cave and Basin, Banff ............. 720 00
Immigration Agent, Liverpool, Eng.....-.... 1,800 01 Y 1 Y Glasgow, Scot ........ .. 2,000 00
Temporary Clerk, Interior Department ......... 400 00

Immigration Agent, Halifax, N.S .. ..... .... 1,200 00

Performs the duties of Inspector in addition to .
those of Agent without extra remuneration.

Acting Dominion Lands Agent, Brandon, trans- 1,000 00
ferred from Yorkton Agency.

6s retired on 31st August, 1897.

* Formerly an Agent and Assistant, two at $900=$1,800, were employed, now, one Agent at 81,200, asssistant removed to Brandon office.† Mr. Stewart, from the date of his appointment to the lst July, 1897, was paid at the rate of 81,800, when his salary was reduced to 81,200. He w
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ABSTRACT OF REPORTS, &c.-Continued.

STATEMENT of Persons appointed in the place of Persons removed or as a consequence of 8uch removals in the Inland Revenue Department, Inside and Outside Service,between 9th April, 1897, and 14th June, 1899.

Name. Office. Locality.

C. A. Brodeur....... Acting Collector of Inland Revenue ....... Valleyfield.....
A. S. Valleau...... i i " ..... Deseronto, ont
J. A. McAloney .... Deputy I V ...... Nanaimo, B.C.
J. A. McAloney .... Asst. Inspector of Weights and Measures.. e
J. A. McAloney .... Inspector of Gas....... ...............
Thomas Clarke. Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue . Pembroke, Ont.

. N. Poirier " " "e .... 'Three Rivers, Que
Wm. Egan t " " ·.. Renfrew, Ont.
J. L. Archibald..... Excise Officer ..... .................... Rat Portage, Ont
C. T. Dickson....... Collector of Inland Revenue.... ........ Kingston, Ont.
E. Davy....... ... .Asst. Inspector of Weights and Measures.. Charlottetown, P.E.I..
J. H. Dawson . . Excise Officer ............... ........... Nakusp, B.C ..
R. W. Fletcher...... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue... . Calgary, N.W.T.
Wm. Dustan.. Inspector of Weights and Measures..... . Pictou Division.
Jacob Heppler...... Inspector of Gas .. .......... ... .... Listowel, Ont.
Victor Fortier ...... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue..... Ste. Thérèse, Que.
nenri Langlois...... Asst. Inspector of Weights and Measures.. Montreal, Que.

eorge Barnes . Deputy Collector cf Inland Revenue .. Rat Pol tage, Ont.
J. J. Cogrove.. Preventive Officer.................... Toronto, Ont

.P. BGecamp ... District Inspector of Inland Revenue.... Montreal, Que.
eorge Watson ..... Excise Officer.. ... ... ..... .. .... Collingwood, Ont .

Thomas Howell..... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue..... Kamloops, B.C .
•" J. Behan ......... Asst. Inspector of Weights and Measures.. Kingston, Ont.
•, J. Behan........ Inspector of Gas..... ............. ..

P. A. Hughes. . 2nd Class Clerk ................. ... Ottawa, Ont
XV. I. Britton .. Acting Excise Officer .... ........... . Gananoque, Ont
T. L. Haig .. . il ... ... .· · · · · · · · · · · .. Revelstoke, B.C
A. A. Andrews...... Excise OîFcer .Montreal, Que.
P. A. Osborne ...... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue ..... Edmonton, N.W.TL. E. Hudon .. 2nd Class Clerk....................... Ottawa, Ont. ..
J. D. Fowler.. Inspector of Gas .. ................. .. Fredericton, N.B
E. B. Parkinson ... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue ... Vancouver, B.C.

J

T
J
T
A
F
C
J
F
A

R
E
J
M
j

Salary.
Tenporary

or
Permanent.

$ cts.
.... Commission. iTemporary.

42 300 00
42 35 00
42 100 00
56 40000

36 500 00
52 400 00
.. î 500 00
49 1,400 00
54 900 00
... Commission.
431 600 00
40 1,00 00
67 100 00
30 600 00

800 00
43 500 00
45 1,000 00
43 1,800 00
... Commission.

400 00
600 00
400 00

30 1,100 00
... Commission.
. . 200 00
27 600 00
39 460 00
31 1,100 00
44 200 00
35 800 00

Permnanent
TeînPorary.

Permanent
Temrporary
Permoanent

Temporary.
Permayîetit

Tenirs)rary"
Pernanient
Teînorary
Perulialent
Temporary

PerMaineýnt
Temlporary

Permianent

Temprry.
Permnnt.

mn. Cargil. . 34 .
amles Lawless ..... Caretaker... .... ......... ... .. .. Kingston. Ont............ 264 00 Teilipo
. A. Costigan...... Collector of Inland Revenue ...... ...... Ottawa, Ont.

H. Rousseau .... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue Granby, Que.3 00 00
McGuire .. ....." Ottawa, Ont ...... 4
P. Whitehead.... " fi ..... Strathroy, Ont. 44 650

homas Male....... Inspector of Gas......... .....-.... Listowel, Ont.........48
N. Deland ..... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue .... St. Johns, Que........36 650 00
W.W. Swannell .... fi ..... Nelson, B.C .V

.t B.dfrsoi . i ... .. Sherbrooke Division..2 ooù rn
D. McNiven ", " .. .. Virden, Mani...... 37 25000
G. Fauquier ..... Excise Officer ......... .............. .. Nakusp, B.C .
J. Macdonald.... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue ..... Picton Division 50 600 00 Tera
N. Bouchette .... Private Secretary... .................. Ottawa, Ont.........35
H. Hinchey...... Excise Officer ...... ... ............... . 26 600 00

.R. Frankland.... First Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue. 'Toronto, Ont....... 26 300 00
C. Smith ........ Inspector of Weights and Measures . Orillia, Ont...........50 600 0

rs. C. E. Williams. Caretaker.. .......... ....... ......... Charlottetown, P.E.L. .. 60 Teinp
. MacPherson...... Acting Collector of Inland Revenue...... North Sydney, C.B ... Commission.
H. Falconer...... Excise Officer Toronto, Ont ........

011i iBasinet . Acting Collectro*f* I«n'lan«d Revenue .3Joliette, Que.4 600 00 fa

37....5 1600 00 Perna

DEPARTMENT 0F INLAND REVENUE,
OTTAWA, 84th June, 1899.

rarv
nein .

rary .

nent .

rary.
nent.

rary.

nent.

Date
of

Appoint-
ment.

1- 5-97
8- 5-97
1- 6-97
1- 6-97
1- 3-98
5- 6 97

8- 7-97
24- 7-97
25- 9-97
1-10--97

15- 3-97
1-11-97

20-10-97
1-10-97
1-11-97
1 11-97
1-11-97

12-11 -97
1 -l 97
4 11-97
1- 1-98
9 12-97

24-12-97
24-12-97
24-12- 97
4-12.97

22- 2- 98
3- 2 98
1- 1-98

16- 2 98
il- 2_98

1- 4-98
2- 4 -98
5 4 9q
1 7-98
2 5-98
1_11-98
9 5-98

25- 5-98
1- 6-98

25- 5-98
30- 5-98
11- 7-98
22- 8-98
27-10-98
1-11-98

16-11-98
1- 6-99

22-12-98
9- 1-99
1- 2-99

29- 4-99
10- 5-99

In Place of.

A. D. Danis, services dispensed with ....
R. Rayburn t " .
W. K. Leighton t i .....

te t .f .....
H. L. Good " i .....
U. H. McKinna I t . ....

C. C. Bernier, resigned....... ..........
P. Devine e .. . ..... ...

IJ. W . Colcleugh, dead . . .......... .
F. Rowland, superannuated..............
J. Redden f ... ..... *..
F. G. Fauquier, services dispensed with..
Thos. Dowling, retired .................
John McKay, superannuated ...........
A. St. G. Hawkins, services dispensed with
D. Desroches I t .
G. T. Darion, deceased... .. .........
J W. Colcleugh " ............

Remarks.

Appointment confirmed, O.C., 12-7-97.
't Il 8-1-98.

il I 12-7-97,
at salary of $600.

Appointmentconfirmed, 0.0., 13-7-97.

Promoted.

Transferred from Excise.

Appointment confirmed, O.C., 8-1-98.

J. L. Vincent f ..... ...... .... Promoted.
W. A. Hogg, services dispensed with.....
E. H. Jonues, resigned...... .... ....... Appointmentconfirmed,O.C., 11-12-97.
Win. Whitteker, superannuated ......... -- -- 24-12-97.
Wm. Burrows t ... .. t fi 24-12-97.
i George Brunel, deceased.........
John Ormiston, left linits..........
.1. 1). Grahanie, resigned .............
M. McClanaghan, superannuated.
A. D. Osborne, resigned.............
A. Clement, resigned .... .......
S. A. Purdie, deceased ..............
E. Harvey, resigned................ Promoted.
E. B. Parkinson, promoted ..........
E. Garvin, services dispensed with.
M. Battle, superannîuated... .. ... . Transferred from Winnipeg.
F Gatien, deceased. ...................
J. .Esmonde, deceased.. .. ..........
J. F. Taylor, resigned................
J. Heppler, deceased............ .....
O. N. E. Boucher, services dispensed with
R. Blundell t t .. Appointment confirmed, O.C., 27-6-98.
J. Gatien, deceased .............. .....
W. F. Scarth, services dispensed with....
J. H. Dawson t · ·
M. A. McDonald et I ....

A. Clement, resigned.... ................ I
F. P. A. Lett, deceased ....... ......... Transferred from N.W.M. PoliceDept.
. Bennett, superannuated .. ........
T. Todd, services dispensed with.........
Mrs. R. MeMahon, services dispensed with
A. J. Hanilton, removed................
J. M. Rogerson, deceased .............
R. M. Leprohon, superannuated ......... Promoted.
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ABSTRACT OF REPORTS, &c.-Continued.

STATEMENT of persons removed from Inland Revenue Department-Continued.

Residence Temporary Date
Name. Office. Inlandor eAge Salary. or ofInadRevenue ary or o

Division. Permanent. Removal.

$ ets.

Jas. Reddin ....... Inspector of Weights and Measures . C.... Charlottetown, P.E.I., 74 1,200 00 Permanent . 15- 5-97 IS
R. A. Lawlor....... Collector of Inland Revenue..........'Chatham, N.B........ 44 j 1,0 00 1 .- 5-97
R. A. Lawlor. . . Inspector of Gas. ....................... Moncton, N.B ....... 44 300 0 .. 1- 5-97
W. B. Scovil.. ..... Inspector of Weights and Measures ....... King's, N.B .... .... 72 800 00 l .. 1- 5-97
James Egan ....... ... London, Ont ........ 66 1,200 00 n .. 1- 5-97
A. Code.........".. " . .... Ottawa, Ont.... .... 67 1,3000 0 , . . - 5-97
G. I. Bolster ....... " "l .... Orillia, Ont......... 61 1,000 00 I, .. 1- 5-97
R. T. Huggard .. " " · ·I... Winnipeg, Man....... 62 1,200 00 te .. 1- 5-97
R. T. Huggard ..... Inspector of Gas. . ....... .. ......... . . 62 200 00 .. 1-- 5-97
G. T. Dorion ....... Asst. Inspector of Weights and Measures.. Montreal, Que........ 50 8000 0 t .. 1- 5-97
A. D. Danis ...... Acting Collector of Inland Revenue .... Valleyfield, Que 58 Commission. Temporary. 30- 4-97
R. Rayburn . .... . "f ..... Deseronto, Ont . . .. . 8- 5-97
A. Hudon ........ Excise Officer ..... ..................... Montreal, Que. 54 1 5-97
U. H. McKinnon ... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue...... Pembroke, Ont ...... 51 800 00 .. 6- 6-97
W. K. Leighton .... " " " Nanaimo, B.C ....... 42 300 and n .. 31- 5-97

itand Measures commission.
W. K. Leighton .... Asst. Inspector of Weights ae ... 42 350 0 .. : 31- 5-97
P. Devine .. . Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue . Renfrew, Ont. ..... 38 400 00 I .. 25- 7-97
C. C. Bernier .... • " " ...... Three Rivers, Que .... 44 200 00 .. 1- 7-97
James Kelly...... Preventive Officer ............... . .. St. John, N.B .. .... 36 1,000 00 i .. 1- 7-97
J. J. Cosgrove ...... " "f ... .............. .. Toronto, Ont ......... 46 1,000 00 Temporary . 1 7-97
J. A. Thomas .. Excise Officer ... ..... . e. London, Ont ....... ... 500 te .. 16- 7-97
Charles Allison ..... Inspetor of Weights and Measures ..... Yarmouth, N.S. 75 1,000 00 Permanent . 1- 7-97
M. McClanaghan ... Excise Officer ....................... Montreal, Que....... 37 850 00 n .. 1- 8-97
Wm. Bryson. . Messenger. . ........... ........ ... .... St. Catharines, Ont ... .... 240 00 Tenporary. 31- 8-97
D. Desroches Collector of Inland Revenue.......... Terrebonne, Que ... 58 700 00 Permanent. 31-10-97
F. Rowland . .......... . .. ... Kingston, Ont ...... 58 1,600 00 , .. 1-10-97
F. G Fauquier.. Excise Officer . .. ........... ......... Nakusp, B.C ......... . 200 00 Temporary. 1-11-97
John McKay. Inspector of Weghtsand Pictou, N.S ....... 68 900 00 Permanent. 1-10-97
Thomas Dowling ... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue .. 9Calgary, N.W.T.7... - 67 1,000 00 21-10-97
J. S. Reilly .. .. Excise Officer ................-... .... Montreal, Que.... . 3 7 1,0 50 1-11-97
A. St. G. Hawkins.. Inspector of Gas......... ............. Listowel, Ont ........ 47 100 00 .. 1-11-97
J. L. Vincent District Inspector of Inland Revenue ..... Montreal, Que...... . 62 2,500 00 .. 1-11-97
Thomas Todd . Asst. Inspector of Weights and Measures.. Toronto, Ont . ....... 65 600 00 .. 1,11-97
J. W Colcleugh Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue.. Winnipeg, Man ...... 47 500 00 , .. 1-10-97
Wm. Whitteker... Asst. Inspector of Weights and Measures.. Belleville, Ont... .... 63 600 00 , . 1-11-97
Wm. Burrows ...... Inspector of Gas..... ... .. ·... .-... Kingston, Ont. . . 68 400 00 e . 1-11-97
E. H. Jones ........ Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue...... Kainloop, B.C ..... 41 400.00 n .. 1-12-97
W. A. Hogg.. ..... Excise Officer..... ...... ..... .- --.-- Collingwood, Ont..... 40 Comnission. Temporary . 31-12-97
George Brunel....... 3rd Class Clerk................. ... Ottawa, Ont..........51 1,000 00 Permanent. 1- 1-98
J. F. Taylor....... Excise Officer.... ... ......... London, Ont........43 850 00 .. 21-12-97
A. D. Osborne ...... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue...... Edmonton, N.W.T 68 200 00 .. 1- 1-98
S. A. Purdie . . Inspector of Gas ................ .... Fredericton, N.B..... 67 200 00 .. 1- 2-98
John Ormiston..... Excise Officer... .................... Gananoque, Ont ... .... Commission. Temporary. 4-12-97
J D. Graham ... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue. . . . Revelstoke B.C ... . . i.. 20000 l .. 1- 1-98
Jacob Heppler . Inspector of Gas . .. ............... . Listowel, ônt ........ 68 100 00 Permanent. 1- 2-98
A. Clement . 2nd Class Clerk ....... .... .......... Ottawa, Ont.......... 29 1,100 00 , .. 15- 2-98
F. Gatien....... .. Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue ...... Sherbrooke, Que ...... 48 1,000 00 , . . 1- 3-98
E. Harvey .......... l .... Vancouver, B.C. . .. 31 900 00 , .. ! 1- 3-98
R. L. Good . Inspector of Gas....... ............. Nanaimo, B.C....... 34 100 00 , .. 1- 3-98

E. Garvin ........ Caretaker ......... ... .............. Kingston, Ont........ .... 200 00 Temporary. 1- 4-98
M. Battle ........ Collptor of Inland Revenue...... .. ... Ottawa, Ont......... 9 1,600 OU Permanent. 1- 7-98
0. N. E. Boucher... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue .... St. Johns, ue.. ..... 46 835 OU , .. 1- 6-98
R. Blundell ." . ... Nelson, B. .... .... 38 600 .. 15- 5-98
M. Kell . ...... Culler ....................... Montreal, Que . ..... ... Fees........ Temporary........
W. F. Sartb...... Deputy Colle.ctor of Inland Revenue ... . Virden, Man ... . ..... Commission. t .. 11- 7-98
W. F. Best ....... Public Analyst... ............ . St. John, N.B........ 41 Fees........ Permanent . 27- 6-98
J. H. Dawson .... Acting Excise Officer ............ ....... Nakusp, B.C ......... .... Commission. Temporary . 22- 8-98
P. P. A. Lett...... Excise Officer...... ............. ....... Ottawa, Ont..... ... 35 750 00 Permanent. 1-11-98

1O3c, e, f and h-6

How Removed. Cause of Removal.

uperannuated ...... .. Age ....... ................. i
. Economy...... ...............

S . ... .. ........................
u e ni .............. .. .. ..........
v e .... . ... i e .......... o i c .. .......
ie ..... ... on ..................

u er .. f . A . .. ......... ......

Death. ...
Services dispensed with..

n n . .
Superannuated......... Ill-health............ ........
Services dispensed with.. oitica sanship ............

e~I fi. .. ... ...-.--.-.

if t -g . ..... . . .. .
Resigned....

Il . .. . . . . . .
Retired with gratuity . .. Economy..... ............
Services dispensed with..

e il . .
Superannuated .. .... .... Age................

Det... .... ... Ilhat............

Services dispensed with..
eh .. Political partisanship ....... ....

Superannuated........ Ill-health .....................
Services dispensed with..
Superannuated ..........
Retired with gratuity . Age... .....................
Services dispensed with. . Intemperance ...............-....

il e . . 1
Death ...... ... ....... .
Services dispensed with. . Political1 partisanship ...........
D eath ...... ...........
Superannuated...... . . Economy and efficiency ..... ... . .

et .......... If age ..... .... .. ....
Resigned........... ..
Services dispensed with..
DeathU. .... si...........
Resignedu................

I. 
.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Death..............
Services dispensed with.. Left the limits ............... ..

R ig e ... .. .... .... ..
Death . .... ... .... ....

Resigned..............
Services dispensed with.. That Inspector of Weihts and

Measures should perDorm the
duties.

et if . Unsatisfactory service ...........
Superannuated .. ........ ..,...... ....... ............. ..
Services dispensed with.. Irregularities in accounts ........

te le .. Intemperance .. ........ .... ... .
Death............... ..
Services dispensed with..

Regiped.. ............
Servce dspensed with.. Irregularities in accounts ........
Death ........ ......... 1

Gratuity
or

Superannuation
Allowance.

8 ets.

432 00 per annum.
420 00 f

88 00 i
432 00 n
468 00 t
360 00 n

56000 e

400 00 n

118 05

360 00
187 00

715 24

216 00
144 00

1,200 00



ABSTRACT OF REPORTS, &c.-Concluded.

STATEMENT of persons removed from Inland Revenue Department-Concluded.

Name. Office.
Residence

or
Inland Revenue

Division.
Salary.

$ ets.

M. A. McDonald ... Collector of Iluand Revenue ........... Cape Breton, N.S. ... 46 750 00
J. R. Esmonde ..... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue .... Ottawa, Ont......... 52 1,200 00
W. J. Christie...... Collector of Inland Revenue.............. Calgary, N.W.T ...... 42 1,500 00

W. J. Christie ..... Inspector of Weights and Measures....... l ..... 42 200 00
A. Clement ........ Private Secretary........................ Ottawa, Ont.......... 30 600 00
J. M. Rogerson..... Excise Officer .................. ........ Toronto, Ont.......... 69 1,200 00
Mrs. R. McMahon.. Caretaker...... .............. .... .... Charlottetown, P.E.I. 96 00
R. N. Leprobon .. . Collector of Inland Revenue ............. Joliette, Que.........66 1,000 00>
E. Rowland ....... Excise Officer ........................... London, Ont.......... 69 850 00
W. L. Heron.... ... ist Class Clerk .......................... Ottawa, Ont.......... 56 1,800 00
Charles Curless..... Chief Preventive Officer ................ Grand Falls, N.B..... 51 1,200 00
J. M. Yates........ Excise Officer . ..... ... .. .......... Guelph, Ont.... .... 53 850 00
W. L. Hamilton . . District Inspector of Inland Revenue .. Belleville, Ont........ 57 2,500 00
James Bennett .... Deputy Collector of Inland Revenue . .. Toronto, Ont ....... ;. 71 1,500 00
J. L. Archibald .... Excise Officer........... ............ ... Rat Portage, Ont...... .... 50 00

A. J. Hamilton..... Acting Collector of Inland Revenue .... North Sydney, C.B .. ... Commission.

DEPARTMENT OF INLAND REVENUE,
OTTAWA, 14th June, 1899.

103c, e, j and h.-7

Temiporary
or

Permanent.

Permanent.
eporar..

Temporary .
Permanent.

ar ..
Temporary .

Date
of How Removed. Cause of Removal.

Removal.

1-10-98 Services dispensed with..
1-11-98 Death .. .. .........
8- 7-98 Services dispensed with.. Declined to obey departmental

8- 7-98 le instructions.

8- 7-98.... .. . .1-11-98 Resigned..
1- 2-99 Death..................
1- 1-99 Services dispensed with.. Incapacitated through accident...
1- 5-99 Superannuated.......... [11-health .......................
1- 3-99 Death.... ........
1- 4-99 i ........
1- 5-99 Services dispensedwith Economy..................
1- 5-99 Superannuated........ Il-health....... ...........
1- 5-99 Death ... ... .... ....
1- 5-99 Superannuated.......... ........... ...........

12-11-97 Services dispensed with.. Only employed until a permanent
appointment was made.

1- 2-99 Removed by Customs De-
partnent.

Gratuity
or

Superannuation
Allowance.

$ ets.

476 00 per annum.

476 00

840 00



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 104.)

RETURN
[10 4]

To &X ADDRESS of the HOUSE oF COMMONS dated the 19th April, 1899, for
copies, of all statements, claims, memoranda, correspondence, telegrams,
etc., with the Government of Prince Edward Island and a delegation
from that province in March last, consisting of the Honourable Hector
C. Macdonald, Jas. W. Richards and Benjamin Rogers, in regard to

questions at issue between the Government of Prince Edward Island and
the Dominion of Canada.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

GOVERNMENT floUsE,
PRINcE EDWARD ISLAND, 29th Dec., 1898.

The Honourable the Secretary of State,
Ottawa, Ont., Canada.

SIR,-I have the honour to inclose herewith a certified copy of a Minute of my
Executive Council passed by my government on the 15th instant respecting a further
claim on the Dominion government as will appear therein.

I have, &c., &c.,
GEORGE W. HOWLAN,

Lieutenant Governor.

EXTRACT from approved Minutes of the Executive Council of the province of Prince
Edward Island, of the 15th December, 1898.

Re Further claim against the Dominion government in consequence of recent de-
cision of the Imperial Privy Council regarding fisheries and fishing rights in the territorial
waters, favourable to the provinces.

The council in committee having had under consideration the subject of the above
claim recommend that the following minute be transmitted to His Excellency the
Governor General in Council:

" Ordered that in view of the decision of the Judicial Committee of the Privy
Council, dated the 26th May, 1898, on the question relating to the fisheries and fish-
ing rights in the territorial waters of the several provinces of the Dominion of Canada
the government of Prince Edward Island desires to amend claim No. 4 of the memorial
of the delegates appointed by this government in March last to submit to His Excellency
in Council, certain claims which it is alleged this province has against the government
of Canada, by adding thereto the following:-

" That the province of Prince Edward Island is entitled in its own right to
receive from the Dominion government that portion of the moneys awarded by the
Halifax Commission under the provisions of the Treaty of Washington, to which it

104-1
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would have been entitled, had the amount of compensation for tie privileges enjoyed by
American fishermen in the territorial waters of the province of Prince Edward Island
been separately determined and awarded by the said commission. This province also
claims to be entitled to interest on the said portion from the time the amount of the
award was paid to the federal government."

Certified,

ARTHUR NEWBERY,
Approved, Clerk Executive Council.

GEORGE W. HOWLAN,
Lieutenant Governor.

DOMINION OF CANADA.

PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

To His Excellency the Right Honourable Sir John Campbell Hamilton Gordon, Earl of
Aberdeen, &c., &c., &c., Governor General of Canada in Council:

The memorial of the undersigned, delegates appointed by the government of the
province of Prince Edward Island to submit to Your Excellency in Council certain
claims which that government believe they have against the government of Canada,

Respectfully showeth:-
That from time to time, during 1873, negotiations were carried on with a view to

the union of Prince Edward Island and Canada.
On behalf of Prince Edward Island, these negotiotions were, in March, 1873, con-

ducted by Messrs, Laird and Haythorne, and later, in May of the same year, by Messrs.
Pope, Haviland and Howland. They resulted in this province becoming a part of the
Dominion on 1st July, 1873, upon terms which,»so far as they affect the matters we wish
to bring before Your Excellency in Council, are hereinafter set forth.

In the opinion of your memorialists, the terms upon which this province became
part of the Dominion were based upon incorrect data, inasmuch as the delegates who
conducted the negotiations on the part of this province were unintentionally nisled as
to the working out of the basis upon which those terms were arrived at, in view of the
fact that the estimated expenditure of $65,000,000 upon the Intercolonial Railway, the
Canadian Pacific Railway and upon canals, as hereinafter mentioned, and which consti-
tuted an important part of the basis of union, was far and away below the actual
amount expended upon those works from which this province, owing to its insular
position, has not derived and cannot hope to derive any benefits commensurate with those
derived by the other provinces of the Dominion. And further your memorialists say
that the terms of union as agreed upon have not been fully carried out, and they
submit that this province is entitled to be remunerated for the loss sustained by reason
of the non-fulfilment of those terms.

In order to put Your Excellency in Council in possession of the facts and of our
reasons for the course we are taking, we wish to submit the particulars hereinafter stated.

We are aware that the opinion prevails with many from the larger provinces that
there is no sound basis for these claims. In Prince Edward Island, however, there is a
deep-rooted and very strong convicLion that they are not only just and equitable, but
that they are based on very solid foundations. We ourselves are very strongly of that
opinion and are desirous of having them submitted to arbitration. Our claims are
either just or they are not just. If the former they are surely entitled to fair consider-
ation; if the latter it would be well to know the fact and have these disturbing
elements eliminated from our provincial politics. It will be impossible to satisfy the
public mind in Prince Edward Island unless the validity of these claims be thoroughly in-
vestigated. Should a reference be allowed by the Dominion government we would
suggest that the commission consist of one arbitrator to be appointed by the Dominion
government, another by the government of Prince Edward Island, and the third by
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Her Majesty the Queen. It seems to us fair to submit these matters to an independent
commission with power to go fully into them, hear all the evidence bearing on the sub-
jects at issue and make a report to both governments. The report of this commission
would form the basis for a settlement of the matters in question between this province
and the federal government. This proposition is, we submit, a reasonable one and
ought to be satisfactory. Should legislation be necessary to give it effect there should
be no difficulty in passing a statute through the Dominion parliament and a like one
through the legislature of this province for that purpose.

We are instructed, in view of all the facts, to request that all questions in dispute
be referred to an impartial arbitration appointed in the way already intimated or in
such other way as may be agreed upon.

We may be asked what claims we have to submit. Many members of your govern-
ment and of the Dominion parliament and already familiar with certain of these claims.
We may classify them under the following heads:-

1. A claim for non-fulfilment up to the present time of the terms of confederation
with respect to efficient and continuous steam communication, winter and summer, with
the mainland.

This was one of the strongest inducements to the people of Prince Edward Island
to enter confederation. For some years after the union no real effort was made to
carry out this part of the compact. A steamer named the " Albert" was placed on the
route, but she was utterly unfit for her work. Subsequently the steamer "Northern
Light " took her place and remained there for several years, and for the past nine years
the "Stanley," a much better vessel, has been employed in the effort to carry on the
service. This she has done with some measure of success, but one steamship is not
sufficient to efficiently carry on a service which is of a most arduous and difficult nature.
Each year the vessel employed has from various causes been prevented from crossing
continuously, when with the assistance of a second boat the service might have been
performed in a reasonably satisfactory manner. In support of our contention that the
service has not been so carried on we refer to the reports in the department of Marine
and Fisheries.

By reason of the non-fulfilment or failure to carry out the terms of confederation
Prince Edward Island has sustained much damage, and we contend that this is a sub-
ject which can only be satisfactorily adjusted by arbitration.

2. A claim arising from the fact that the basis upon which we entered confedera-
tion was founded upon incorrect promises. When this province became a part of the
Dominion the terms of admission were arranged by delegates. Messrs. Laird and
Haythorne, delegates from this province to Ottawa, in March, 1873, when conducting
the negatiations already referred to, made a provisional arrangement for the admission
of this Island into confederation which was not agreed to by the province.

In the following May, Messrs. Pope, Haviland and Howlan completed the terms
upon which we entered coifederation. The basis of the agreement was the same in
each negotiation, except that in the ternis agreed to by Messrs. Pope, Haviland and
Howlan, an additional $5 a head was allowed.

It was at that time known that the debt of Prince Edward Island per capita was
much less than the debt per capita of the Dominion, and in settling the ternis of union
Prince Edward Island was allowed to come in with a debt based up9n the debt per
capita of the whole Dominion taken at the then net debt of the Dominion with certain
estimated expenditures added. This basis was not changed in the final settlement, when
we were allowed an extra $5 a head for a reason to be mentioned later. In arriving at
the amount of debt to be allowed Prince Edward Island, and which was taken on the
basis of the then net debt of the Dominion, namely, $82,187,072 (see Statistical Year
Book for 1898, page 341) and estimated expenditure of $65,000,000 on the Intercolonial
Railway, the Canadian Pacific Railway and the canals, and $14,000,000 for other pur-
poses, in all $79,000,000, which was the amount estimated for these various expendi-
tures, making a total of $161,187,072, we were allowed $45 per head upon which to
come in. This per capita debt was arrived at by dividing 3,600,000, the then
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estimated population of the Dominion, into the said sum of $161,187,072. The result
would have been slightly less than $45, but that was the amount agreed upon.

When in May, 1873, the final terms were arranged (owing probably to our isolated
position) we were allowed $50 a head, being $5 a head more than upon the original
basis, and upon these terms we came into the union. The $45 was arrived at as above
mentioned by dividing 3,600,000, the then estimated population of the Dominion, into
the net debt with the $79,000,000 added.

As we have already indicated, the estimated expenditure over and above the net
debt of 1873 was to be $79,000,000. This amount was made up as follows

Capital expenditure on canals (including Bay Verte
Canal) estimated at..........................$25,000,000

Capital expenditure on C.P.R., estimated at........... 30,000,000
Capital expenditure to complete I.C.R. estimated ...... 10,000,000
Sundry other expenditures estimated at .............. 14,000,000

Making a total of ................ $79,000,000

The actual capital expenditure on the Intercolonial, the Canadian Pacific Railway
and on canals, subsequently to 1873, enormously exceeded the estimated $65,000,000,
as shown by the following statement made up from the departmental reports of the
Dominion.

STATEMENT.

Capital expenditure on canals since
1873 ....................... $48,074,894 83

Amount estimated in 1873 when
settling terms of union....... .25,000,000 00

Excess ............. ......... $23,074,894 83
Capital expenditure on Canadian

Pacific Railway since 1873. .. $61,652,074 28
Amount estimated to complete in

1873 when settling terms of
union..................... 30,000,000 00

Excess ..................... $31,652,074 28
Capital expenditure on Intercolonial

Railway since 1873......... $30,297,143 89
Amount estimated to complete in

1873 when settling the terms
of union .......... ........ 10,000,000 00

Excess......... .......... 20,297,143 89

Total excess under these three heads ............ $75,024,113 00

(For all the above see Public Accounts for 1897, page LXVIII.

We contend that in addition to the $65,000,000 estimated expenditure on the
Intercolonial, the Canadian Pacific Railway and on canals, this sum of $75,024,113,
being the excess of actual expenditure over the estimated expenditure of $65,000,000
as above shown, should be added to the net debt of $62,187,072, making a total of
$222,211,185, which divided by the then estimated population of Canada would have
given $61.72 instead of $45 per bead to this province. This would make a total debt
at which this island would have been entitled to enter confederation, calculating it on
the basis of the then net debt of the Dominion and the amount actually spent on the
Intercolonial Railway, the Canadian Pacific Railway and the canals, of $5,802,976.12
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(the population of Prince Edward Island, according to the census of 1871, being 94,021).
Deduct the amount allowed at the rate of $50 per capita ($4,701,050), we get a balance
of $1,101,926.12, which, on the basis of the net debt and taking into account the actual
expenditure since 1873 on the Intercolonial Railway, the Canadian Pacifie Railway and
on canals, should, we submit, have been allowed us in calculating the difference of debt
upon our entering confederation, but which was not so allowed. Had it been known,
or even conjectured, that this enormous additional expenditure would have taken place,
we contend that there can be no question but that we would then have been allowed a
very much larger debt per head on coming into the Dominion, which was about to
incur such enormous expenditures of money for purposes which were of little or no
benefit to our province.

We, therefore, submit that this province, in addition to the interest already allowed
for difference of debt, should also have been allowed interest on this $1,101,926.12, and
that the calculation of such interest should be made a subject of reference to arbitration.
Upon the final settlement of the terms of union, it was agreed that we should be paid
interest at the rate of five per cent on the difference between the actual debt of Prince
Edward Island and the allowed debt of $4,701,050. At first we were actually paid
interest on $2,F 21,883. (See Journal of House of Assembly, Prince Edward Island,
1874, Appendix " K ") which sum was subsequently reduced owing very largely to the
cost of building Prince Edward Island Railway having been charged against this
province. Even yet we are allowed interest on a remaining balance of $775,791.83.
(See Prince Edward Island Public Accounts for 1896, page xxxiv.)

We contend that, in view of the enormous extra expenditures not contemplated at
the time we entered the Dominion, on the Intercolonial Railway, the Canadian Pacifie
Railway and on canals, as set out above, the difference of debt allowed us was absolutely
and absurdly inadequate.

This contention was in effect admitted by the government of Canada, as shown by
a report of a committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved by the Governor
General on 22nd March, 1887, and subsequently ratified by the Parliament of Canada.

3. In addition to the extra expenditures on the Intercolonial Railway, the Canadian
Pacifie Railway and on canals, set out in paragraph 2, an enormous sum of money was
spent in purchasing, building and subsidizing railways in other provinces. This expen-
diture was in pursuance of a policy adopted by the Dominion government subsequently
to 1873, and was not contemplated at that time. As an instance we refer to the
building of a railway through Cape Breton.

At the time when the terms of our entering confederation were arranged, it was
estimated that a sum of some $14,000,000 would be spent by the Dominion on matters
other than the Intercolonial Railway, the Canadian Pacifie Railway and on canals,
which would not be of benefit to Prince Edward Island, and this $14,000,000 was taken
into consideration in making up the $79,000,000 already mentioned. This sum of
$14,000,000 was greatly exceeded. The departmental reports show the following
expenditure:

Subsidies to railways, &c., since 1873, not then con-
templated....................... ........ $41,077,487 33

Deduct the $14,000,000 estimated for various pur-
poses.................................... 14,000,000 00

Excess ........ ................. 27,077,487 33

(See report of the department of Railways and Canals for year ending 30th June,
1896. Also for expenditure for 1896-7, see Public Accounts for the year ending June
30th, 1897, page 1.)

We respectfully submit that we are entitled to have this expenditure taken into
consideration, and that our province should be credited with a proportional share of
this expenditure.

We built and paid for the Prince Edward Island Railway. Cape Breton and
Prince Edward Island are two islands lying near to each other in the gulf of Saint

5



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 104.) A. 1899

Lawrence. We respectfully submit that on no principle can it be justified that the one
island should have to pay for its road out of its local resources, while the road through
the other was paid for out of the resources of the Dominion.

The contentions advanced in the two preceding clauses numbered two and three
were in effect admitted by the government of Canada as shown by a report of a com-
mittee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved by the Governor General on 22nd
March, 1887, and subsequently ratified by Parliament.

We beg to refer to that report, of which the following is a copy

1843-1886.

EXTRACT from a Report ol the Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved
by His Excellency on the 22nd March, 1887.

The committee of the Privy Council have had under consideration a memorial
dated 27th September, 1886, from the government of Prince Edward Island relative to
the financial arrangement existing between that province and the dominion of Canada.

The sub-committee of Council to whom the memorial was referred state that they
have duly considered the statements therein contained and they have also had a con-
ference on the subject with the Honourable W. W. Sullivan, the premier of the island
government, and after due consideration they beg to recommend to Council that for the
reasons hereinafter set forth an additional annual subsidy of $20,000 be granted to
that province, and that the authority necessary to carry this recommendation into effect
be obtained from Parliament at the coming session.

The reasons which have led the sub-committee to make these recommendations to
Council are as follows :-

1. From the insular position of the province they are of opinion that the construc-
tion of the Pacific Railway and of the Intercolonial Railway bas not affected it to the
same extent as it has the other provinces, and the island bas not had the benefit of the
advantages which accrued to the other provinces f rom these lines and on this ground it
is entitled to some consideration.

2. The sub-committee think also that consideration should be shown on account of
the expenditure for the construction of the above named railways having been greater
than was anticipated at the time these works were taken into contemplation, and the
terms upon which Prince Edward Island entered the union having been in a great
measure based upon the estimates then formed for the completion of these roads.

3. The subsidies granted to the other provinces up to the present time in carrying
out the railway policy of the government in the way of assistance to local railways have
not as yet been made applicable in any way to Prince Edward Island, and that
province bas not received any benefit from the carrying out of this policy, whereas on
the contrary the other provinces forming the union have in this manner been largely
benfited.

The committee, concurring in the reasons above set forth and the recommendations
based thereon, advises that a grant be asked from Parliament of $20,000 for the
purpose above mentioned.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

Should the excess of $27,077,487.33 expended on capital account for purposes
other than the Intercolonial Railway, the Canadian Pacific Railway and canals, be
added to the excess of expenditure on the Intercolonial, the Canadian Pacific Railway
and on canals, as we think it should, it would bring the total excess of expenditure on
all these points up to $102,101,600.33, which, calculating in the same way, would give
us an additional debt upon which to come into the Dominion (over the allowed debt)
of $6,875,755.73, at $73.13 a head. On that basis we contend that we should be
allowed an aggregate $2,174,705.73, instead of the $1,101,926.12, beyond the sum
actually alhowed.
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FISHERIES.

4. We contend that Prince Edward Island is entitled to receive a considerable
sum on account of moneys awarded by the Halifax Commission under the provisions of
the Treaty of Washington.

In making this claim we do not at present propose to contend that the province is
entitled to the full amount which would have corne to it, had it remained an inde-
pendent colony during the whole period covered by that award, as happened in the
case of Newfoundland. We are perfectly aware that the provisions of the Treaty of
Washington in this connection did not, technically speaking, come into effect until
1st July, 1873, the day Prince Edward Island became a member of confederation. We
do contend, however, that so far at least as Prince Edward Island was concerned, it
practically came into effect in July, 1871. It was signed on the Sth May, 1871, and
in that year the government of Prince Edward Island by Order in Council (ratified by
the legislature of the island on the 29th June, 1872) at the urgent request of the
imperial government admitted the American fishermen to the privileges to which they
would be entitled under the treaty when the treaty should be ratified. In this con-
nection we beg to cite the Order in Council made by the government of Prince Edward
Island, and also extracts froin other orders and documents as follows:-

EXTRACT jrom Order in Council of Prince Édward I8land Government dated the 24th
day of July, 1871.

" Ordered, That that such relaxations and regulations as it is in the power of the
government of Prince Edward Island to adopt be agreed to with a view to the
admission of American fishermen for the present season to the liberty which it is
proposed to secure to them by the Treaty of Washington, 1871, and further

" Ordered, That the Consul of the United States of America at this port and the
several custom-house officers be notified of the foregoing order."

EXTRAcT /rom a Minute of the Éxecutive Council of Prince Êdward Island, dated
2nd February, 1872.

" That the government of this Island did, on the recommendation of Her Majesty's
imperial government, on the 24th July last, issue an order as proposed by Mr. Fish
giving effect to the treaty within this island and admitting American fishermen to the
free use of its fisheries during the season of 1871 ; that American fishermen at once
availed themselves of this valuable privilege during the season of 187] were not
molested in the prosecution of the fisheries around the shores of this island. That the
United States Consul resident here was duly notified of the relaxations made in favour
of American fishermen, and that Sir Edward Thornton was at the same time informed
by telegraph by Lieutenant-Governor Robinson that the proposals of Mr. Fish were
agreed to by the government of this island, that the government of the United States
accepted all the advantages thus conferred upon their fishermen during the whole
season of 1871."

EXTRAcT fron the Special Report of the Fisheries Protection Service of Canada, 1886,
page XIX.

"At the request of the United States Government, Canada anticipated the time
proposed, and in April, 1873, admitted American fishermen to the use of the privilege
specified in the treaty in advance of the date fixed upon by legislative enactment.
American fishermen at once availed themselves of the freedom of Canadian inshore
waters. Similar concessions were made in July, 1871, by the legislature of Prince
Edward Island (which province did not at that time form part of the Dominion) and by
the legislature of Newfoundland, although the full privileges granted by the United
States under the treaty were not accorded to Canada and Prince Edward Island until
1st July, 1873, and in the case Newfoundland not until 1st June, 1874."
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Evidence as to the value of the fisheries for 1871-1872 was presented before the
Halifax commission. The Orders in Council of Prince Edward Island already referred
to, and the statute passed by the legislature of that colony on the 29th June, 1872, re-
lating to this matter were given in support of the case of Her Majesty's government.
In the answer on behalf of the United States government (Appendix B, page 124) it is
stated as follows:-

"It is further important to bear in mind that the fishery claims of the Treaty of
Washington have already been in formal operation during four years, one-third of the
w-hole period of their continuance, while practically both fishing and commercial inter-
course have been carried on in conformity with the treaty ever since it was signed in
May, 1871. After that date the provincial authority desisted from the system of seiz-
ures and other molestations by which foreign fishermen had been previously annoyed."

It was also urged on behalf of the Unted States government that it was the duty
of the commissioners to "treat the question practically and proceed upon the basis of
the status actually existing when the Treaty of Washington was adopted," according
to "the practical extent of privileges enjoyed by American fishermen " at and before
that date.

In the British reply (see page 174) to the United States' answer, it is stated " That
the value of the British catch in 1872, the year before the treaty took effect as regards
customs duties, amounted to more that double that of 1869, while the value of 1875 was
considerably less than that of 1873."

The above references are to the American edition in three volumes of the report of
the proceedings before the Halifax commission.

We do not d<-em it necessary to multiply citations to establish our contentions that
the value of the fisheries for the seasons of 1871 and 1872, before the formal coming
into effect of the Treaty of Washington, was considered at the Halifax commission.
The above references show that both the British and United States cases recognized
that fact. This then must have influenced the commissioners to some extent at least
in arriving at the amount of their award. They expressly state in their award that it
was made after " having carefully and impartially examined the matters referred to them
according to'justice and equity."

Is it conceivable if they did this that they did not allow for the use of the fisheries
in the territorial waters of Prince Edward Island for the years 1871 and 1872, years
during which at the urgent instance of the imperial government, the colony of Prince
Edward Island had allowed to the United States fishermen the enjoyment of those
valuable privileges I

We, therefore, submit that at least such part of the Halifax award as should fairly
be credited to the two years prior to our entering the confederation belongs to Prince
Edward Island and should, with interest from the time when it was received by the
federal government, be paid over to or placed to the credit of our province. We re-
spectfully submit that this is a matter which might very properly be referred to an
arbitration such as that we have suggested.

MINoR CLÂIMS.

Piers.

(a.) Remaining piers to be taken over. These are fully set out in a minute of
Council of the government of Prince Edward Island, dated 19th March, 1884, and
placed before the Dominion government at that time. Some of the piers mentioned
have since been taken by the federal government, but several still remain in the hands
of the provincial government, and we contend ought to be taken over. This is a mat-
ter which has on several occasions been before the government of the Dominion, and
we submit that it is a proper subject for arbitration in orider to have it finally disposed
of.

(b.) There are other minor claims which this province believes it has against the
Dominion government, but which we do not at present propose to go into in detail.

8
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As an illustration, we instance a claim we make for a refund of the amounts paid to Mrs.
Whelan, widow of the late Hon. Edward Whelan, extending over a period of some thirty
years, and which, though given in the way of an annual grant, was in reality a pension
and we contend should be repaid us by the Dominion government.

The judges of the Supreme Court receive smaller salaries than are paid to judges in
the other maritime provinces. In order to make up the deficiency they are now and
ever since confederation have been allowed certain fees which should go into the
provincial treasury. We claim that the salaries of these judges should be made equal
to those paid in the other maritime provinces and that the fees should not continue to
be diverted from the provincial treasury in order to make up the deficiency.

In view of the facts already mentioned, your memorialists respectfully request that
Your Excellency in Council may be pleased to direct that all the matters above set forth
and all other subjects requiring adjustment between Prince Edward Island and the
Dominion be referred to an arbitration commission for investigation and settlement.

And as in duty bound your memorialists will ever pray.

Dated at Ottawa, in the province of Ontario, this 18th day of March, A.D. 1898.

A. R. WARBURTON,
Premier of Prince Edward Island.

J. W. RICHARDS,
Member Prince Edward Island Government.

H. C. MACDONALD,
Attorney General, Prince Edward Island.

28th March, 1899.
Hon. D. FARQUHARsON,

Premier, Prince Edward Island,
Uharlottetown, P.E.I.

My DEAR SIR,-With reference to the memorial submitted to this government by
the Hon. Mr. Warburton, your predecessor, and other delegates from your province, on
the subject of the claim of that province, against the Dominion of Canada, and which
memorial you, subsequently, in a personal interview with a sub-committee of council,
strongly supported, I desire to say that I have, in conjunction with my colleagues, given
it and your oral argument in support of it every consideration.

In compliance with my promise to you, I desire now to state the conclusions we
have reached. The claims presented embrace:

Tht. A claim for damages for the non-fulfilment of the terms of confederation with
respect to the efficient and continuous steam communication between the island and the
mainland.

I gather that your complaints on this point relate chiefly to the early days of Prince
Edward Island confederating with the Dominion, and that there is not much serious
ground of complaint for the past nine years, since the "Stanley " has been built and
placed upon the route. You will, I am sure, have learned with pleasure, that since the
receipt of the memorial we have recommended to Parliament and obtained a vote of
$180,000 to construct another steamer to assist the "Stanley" in maintaining the
efficiency of the service in winter, and that the Marine Department has entered into a
contract for the construction of a new steel steamship, larger and stronger than the
"Stanley," which new boat will be ready to go on the winter service, together with the
"Stanley" at the close of the coming summer's navigation. I feel sure you will recognize
in the prompt and energetic action taken on this subject, our earnest desire to do every-
thing that is reasonably possible to carry out fairly, and in good faith, that term of the
Confederation Act relating to the maintenance of "efficient and continuous steam com.
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munication." I believe it will be found that no pains or expense bas been spared to
make the new steamer a success, even greater than the " Stanley, " and I indulge the
hope that the people of Prince Edward Island will find that the disabilities under which
they labour during the winter months have been materially minimized by the action we
have taken.

2. "Claim arising from the fact that the basis upon which Prinoe Edward Island
entered confederation was founded upon incorrect promises. "

I gather from the memorial that the substance of your complaint under this head
is that a very much larger sum has been expended on the canals and railways of the
Dominion than was anticipated when the terms of union were agreed upon, that in
addition large sums have been expended by the Dominion in subsidizing the construction
of railways in other parts of the Dominion, in which expenditure Prince Edward Island
has not shared, and that you think the compensation of $20,000 annually, which was
voted and paid by the Dominion to your province since 1887, substantially on the
grounds on which your memorial claims further compensation, is altogether inadequate.

Without attempting at present to argue the matter, I desire to point out that my
colleague, Sir Louis Davies, who especially represents your province in the cabinet, bas
been pressing very strongly upon us the necessity of immediately constructing a branch
line of railway in Prince Edward Island, from Charlottetown to Murray Harbour, in-
cluding a bridge over the Hillsboro River. The surveys and plans of this road and
bridge have already been made by the orders of the Minister of Railways, and the ques-
tion of entering upon its construction can now be discussed and determined. As the
proposed plans contemplate a railway and ordinary tratic bridge combined, it will of
course be necessary, in case its construction is determined on, for the local government
to contribute a reasonable sum towards its cost. I understand Sir Louis Davies bas
had a good deal of correspondence with you and your predecessors on this point, and
that the government of the province bas passed an Order in Council agreeing to con-
tribute $10,000 annually as its share towards the cost of the bridge in case the Parlia-
ment of Canada should authorize its construction, while it is contended your fair share
should certainly not be less than $12,000 annually. I do not presume at present to
discuss these details, but I desire to point out to you that the claim you have made in the
memorial, for a re-adjustment of your financial terms of union, on the ground of alleged
under-estimate of expenditure upon the Intercolonial Railway, Canadian Pacific Rail-
way and canals, &c., would even from your standpoint present an altogether different
aspect if the Dominion was to undertake the construction of this railway and bridge.
Until some final determination is reached upon this point, and the amount of the ex-
penditure actually ascertained, it would be quite impossible for any one to pass any
reliable judgment upon the validity of your claim, either in whole, or in part. I am
not without strong hopes that we will be able to reach a favourable conclusion, and
make the necessary recommendations to Parliament this session. The question bas
already received some discussion in Council, which will, I hope, soon be resumed.

3. "A claim for moneys awarded by the Halifax commission under the Treaty of
Washington."

As I understand the claim preferred in the memorial, it is based upon the as-
sumption that the arbitrators embraced in their award compensation to Canada for
fishing privileges accorded to the fishermen of the United States before the 18th clause
of the Treaty of Washington came into effect. But facts are otherwise. No compen-
sation was awarded for any period of time anterior to the 1st July, 1873, the date fixed
by proclamation for the said clause to come into operation. The privileges extended
under that Treaty to the United States fishermen began on lst July, 1873, and lasted
12 years, or until July, 1885. The award covered that period of time ard no other.
The arbitrators could not award compensation for privileges extended by the then
Dominion of Canada, or the province of Prince Edward Island to American fishermen
before the 18th clause of the Treaty came into operation. It is doubtless true, as the
memorial states, that Prince Edward Island, at the request of the imperial government,
admitted American fishermen, for two years before the treaty came into force, to the
same privileges which the treaty when it came into operation accorded them. But the
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province did so under the belief, and acting upon the assumed assurance that the United
States would in return remit to the fishernen of Prince Edward Island the duties then
charged upon all mackerel imported into the United States. The unfortunate fact that
these duties were not remitted, although the privileges accorded were accepted, forms
no claim whatever against Canada, which was not a party to the transaction. The
main point, however, is that the award of the arbitrators neither did nor could take the
period anterior to the 18th clause of the treaty coming into effect, into consideration,
and did not and could not award anything for that period. I submit, therefore, to you
that so far as the argument of the memorial is based upon the assumption that Canada
ever received any moneys whatever from the United States for the privileges accorded
by the province of Prince Edward Island to American fishermen for the two years
before the 18th clause of the Treaty of Washington began to operate, it must entirely
fail.

As to the claim you by a subsequent memorial presented for a share of the Halifax
Fishery Award, on the ground that the recent decision of the Privy Council determining
the property rights in the fisheries to be in the provinces and not in the Dominion, I am
advised by the Minister of Marine and Fisheries that the legal questions which arise out
of this decision are many and important, and that it would be very desirable, in his
opinion, to have a " case " agreed upon between the Dominion and the maritime pro-
vinces with a view of having these doubtful questions of property rights in the sea coast
fisheries settled and determined by the Supreme Court. It seems to me that until this
is determined, it will be quite impossible to enter with any profit upon a discussion of
the right of any province to share in the capital of this award. Parliament long since
determined against any such claim, and since then bas devoted the interest upon the
amount of the award to the payment of bounties to the fishermen with the object of
better developing the fisheries. If the courts should determine that the maritime pro-
vinces have the same property rights in the fisheries within the three mile limit as the
province of Ontario bas in the great inland lakes, such determination might well justify
Parliament in reconsidering its previous position with respect to the claim made for a
distribution of the award amongst all the maritime provinces. But I would not wish to
be understood as prejudging the question, and you will, I am sure, appreciate the
impossibility of my giving any definite answer to the prayer of this additional memorial
until these important legal questions are settled.

4. With respect to the claim that the remaining piers of the province should be
taken over and paid for by the Dominion, I believe I am correct in saying that a very
thorough inspection of all the wharfs of the province was inade some years since by the
Public Works Department with a view of determining which of then from their magni-
tude and importance might justly be deemed " piers " within the meaning of the terms
of union, and -taken over as its property by the Dominion. The number then taken over
and paid for was very large, and I believe that since the present government came into
power a new survey and inspection resulted in three or four more of those wharfs being
taken over and paid for by the Dominion. As far as our present information goes, I arm
advised we ought not to go any further in this direction, as we think we have already
generously interpreted on this point the terms of union. But if you can show any special
case of omission, I am sure the Minister of Public Works will gladly consider it.

As to the claim presented for a refund of an annuity paid by the province to the
widow of the late Hon. E. Whelan, prior to and since confederation, on the ground that
it was in reality, though not technically, a pension, I will, it you put the facts in full
before me, with any argument you choose to support them, refer the whole matter to
the Minister of Justice for his opinion, and in case we are advised that this is a good,
equitable claim, I feel satisfied we would then recommend it to Parliament.

Your daim that the legal fees should be paid to and received by the provincial
treasury and not diverted, as at present to the judges of the Supreme Court of the pro-
vince to supplement their salaries, is one that bas already received consideration at our
hands. Fan advised that it is now and has been always open to the provincial legis-
lature to provide by statute for the payment of these fees into the provincial treasury.
This, no doubt, would be resented as an injustice by the judges, but as I am advised you
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have the power now, and always have had it, to declare that these fees shall go to the
treasury, and not to the judges, I do not think that because of the non-exercise of your
powers in this regard any clainm arises against the Dominion. I will bring this matter
at once to the attention of the Minister of Justice, and the rest of my colleagues, with
a view of seeing whether it is incumbent upon us to make proper provision for the
salaries of the judges in lieu of these fees which no doubt the province has a right to
receive as part of its local revenue, and if I am advised that it is so, I think you may
safely conclude that we will make the necessary recommendation to Parliament, and so
clear the way for the payment into your treasury of these fees.

Yours faithfully,

WILFRID LAURIER.

A. 1899
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RETURN
(106)

To AN ORDER OF THE HOUsi OF COMMONS, dated the 24th April, 1899, for the
number of jubilee stamp plates engraved, and their denominations and
cost of such plates, cost of jubilee stamps per 1,000 complete; also, the
number of plates engraved for the Greater Empire stamp, and the cost
per plate, with the cost per 1,000 stamps complete.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary ot State.

The number of jubilee stamp plates engraved and their denominations:

No. of Denomina-
plates. tions.

1 .... .... ... .. .... . ... . ... .... ... .. .. . ... . ... e .
4........... .... ............................. 0c
2.......................................... 2c.

10 ........................................... 3c.
i.....,............ .................... .... 5c.
I ... .. . . .. .. . .. . .. .. . ... .. . .. . .. . . . .. . .. .. 6c.
I......................... ....... .... .... 8c.
i................ ........................... 10c.
1........................................... 15c.
1........................... ...... 20c.
1.................... ....................... 50c.

. .......................................... $1
1. ......................................... $2
1.... ...................................... .$3
1 .... ... .. . . .... ... ... .... ...... ... .. . ... .. $ 4
1 ...... .......................... .... ........ $ 5

Total... 29

There was no special or extra charge made for those plates, the cost per thousand
(20c.) complete of those stamps including all charges whatsoever.

The cost of jubilee stamps per 1,000 complete was 20c. (twenty cents).

THE TWO CENT IMPERIAL STAMP.

The number of plates engraved for the 2c. Canadian Imperial Stamp was 12
(twelve). There was no charge made for engraving these plates.

The cost per thousand of this stamp complete was 45c. (forty-five cents.)

106
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Of names and salaries of all persons appointed to or promoted in the Civil
Service during the calendar year 1898, laid before the House of Commons
pursuant to subsection 2 of section 58 of the Civil Service Act.
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RETURN of the names and salaries of all persons appointed to, or promoted in the
Department of Agriculture during the calendar year 1898.

Name

Inside Service.

Dat

1898

Caron, A. E . ............. July
Chittick, F. C ............ t,

Taché, A .... ............. t

Outside Service.

Leckie, A. A., V.S..........
Pethick, W. H., V.S........
Mackay, N. E., M.D........
Jones, G. C., M.D.........
Macoun, Wm. T........ .

Jan.
May
Nov.

May

e. Office.

1.. First Class Clerk ..... ..............
1.. Second Class Clerk ..................
1 .. t, t, . . . ., .

1.. Vet. Surgeon, Charlottetown, P. E. I..
1. t Central Bedeque,P.E.I.
1 Inspecting Physician, Halifax..... ..
1.. Asst. Insp. i et ........
1.. Horticulturist, Cen. Exper. Farm ...

Appointed
Salarv. or

Promoted.

$ cts.

1,400 00 Promoted.
1,100 00 e
1,100 00 i

150 00
500 00

1,000 00
80000

1,200 00

Appointed.
91
te
91
te

RETURN of the names and salaries of all persons appointed to, or promoted in, the
Department of Inland Revenue during the calendar year 1898.

Name.

J. H. Langlois..............
G. M. Francis ...........
J. A. McAloney.. .........
John Breen.................
A. Larue. ............
A. A. Andrews.............
F. A. Oborne.............
A. Clement.... ............
L. E. Hudon. ..............
J. D. Fowler...........
J. A. McAloney .. .........
J. B. Beaulieu........ ....
H . Jarvis.............. ....
William Cargill.. ..........
L. A. A. J. Comte... ......
Cornelius Neville. .......
W. W. Watson...... .......
E. H. Rousseau........... .
A. Blair.............. .....
D. B. Stevens...........
J. J. Behan.... ............
J. P. Whitehead............
Thomas Male...............
A. N. Deland..,... ........
Chas. B. de Grosbois........
F. W. Swannell.............
Miss Margaret TyrrelL.
.J. D. McNiven.............
Hector Levêque.... ........
Walter McEwan Conklin....
Herman J. Dager ..... ..
Angus J. Macdonald .......

George C. Lawrence.........
R. E. Bouchette.........

Date.

1898,

Jan.

Feb.

Mar.

April

May
A

June

Sept.
Oct.

Office.

8.. Asst. Insp. Weights and Measures....
8 .. t e ....
8.. ifn ....

3.. Deputy Collector Inland Revenue....
3.. Third Class Exciseman..... ... ...
3.. Deputy Collector Inland Revenue....

11.. Private Secretary...................
il.. Second Class Clerk ...............
11. . Inspector Gas and Gas Meters.

1.. te t
9.. Third Class Exciseman........ .....

19.. Asst. Insp. Weights and Measures ..
19.. Deputy Collector Inland Revenue....
19.. Third Class Exciseman...........
13.. Deputy Collector Inland Revenue.
13.. , n ....
13.. , , ....
13.. l , ....
29.. il t
2.. Asst. Insp. Electric Lighting.........

13. .Deputy Collector Inland Revenue....
10. . Inspector Gas and Gas Meters......
10 Deputy Collector Inland Revenue ...
18.. 4 t ....
27.. ' i . .
27.. Assistant Analyst... ... .... ......
27.. Deputy Collector Inland Revenue....
27.. Porter and Messenger.......... .....
30.. Third Class Exciseman........... .
10.. Deputy Collector Inland Revenue....
10.. Il . .
13.. Inspector Weights and Measures......
17.. Private Secretary.... .. ...... .

2

A. 1899

Appointed
or

Promoted.

Appointed.
et

te

Salary.

$ ets.

80000
500 00
350 00
600 00
700 00
500 00
400 00
600 00

1,100 00
20000
100 00
500 00
50000
600 00
500 00
900 00

1,200 00
500 00
100 0n
400 00

No salary.. .
650 00
100 00
65000
50000
600 00
550 00
25000
30000
500 00
800 00
60000
800 00
60000



Civil Service Appointments.

IRETURN of the names and salaries of all persons appointed or promoted, &c.--Con.

Name.

Terrance McGuire ..........
J. B. Bishop ...............
J. C. Smith.................
John Casey ................
James W. Sparling..........
P. Thomas......,...........
W. J. Christie.......... . .

E. B. Parkinson ............
W. J. Christie.............
P. Tirimins. ...............
G. N. Hobbs................
Cornelius Neville...... .....
G. A. Bayard ..............
X. Saucier ................
R. Thomas.................
R. S. R. Wardell........
A. F. Brain.... ...........
H. Foster. ..............
A. C. LaRivière ............
P. J. Scullion...............
L. B. Hurst ...........
T. H. Hayhurst...........
H. N. Orr................
T. H. Verner ...........
P. Thomas.............. ...

Date.

1898.

Oct. 26..
Nov. 9..

S24..
28..

Dec. 17..
1 17..

April 13..

Mar. 19..
April 13..

fi 13..
Nov. 16.,
Oct. 26..
Nov. 16..

fe 16..
t, 16..

16..
16..

et 16..
16..
16..
16..

Dec. 17..
1 f 17..1.

Office.

Deputy Collector Inland Revenue....
Third Clasm Exciseman............
Asst. Insp. Weights and Measures....
Preventive Officer...............
Deputy Collector Inland Revenue ....
Inspector Weights and Measures.

Deputy Collector Inland Revenue ....
Collector Inland Revenue.........
Third Class Exciseman...............
First t . ..... .......
Deputy Collector Inland Revenue....
First Class Exciseman................

Il f .. .... ... . ..
et,

Second t . ...........
t if . .. .... ....

fin ...............

F irst , ...... ........
Second l ...............

in et n ...............
Ifn ........... .. .

Acting Collector Inland Revenue .....

RETURN of the names and salaries of all persons appointed to or promoted in the
Department of Justice, during the calendar year 1898.

New

Rank.

Appointments.

Date of
Salary. Appoint-

ment.

Hector Verret . . . . . . Conjoint private secretary 400 and 600 Feb.
Solicitor General.

John Duncan Clarke Private secretary Minis- 600 and 400 IJuly
ter of Justice.

Remarks.

3.. Salary increased from $200 to $600
from 1st July, 1898, which sum
is paid out of contingencies.

1.. Paid at the rate of $900, from lst
J.uly, 1898, out of contingen-
ces.

Salary.
Appointed

or
Promoted.

Appointed.

Promoted.

il
fi

et
et

. 1

11

$ ets.

800 00
1,500 00

500 00
850 00

1,100 00
850 00
850 00
850 00
850 00
750 00
750 00
750 00
750 00
871 25
750 00
750 00
750 00

1,100 00

Name.
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RETURN of names and salaries of all persons appointed to or promoted in the Post
Office Department during the calendar year 1898.

Name.

Landerkin, James Henry....
St. Antoine, Jos. F..........
Huot, Philéas. . ...........
Maltais, Guillaume......
Lussier, Jos. Henry.
Therrien, Jacques Arthur...
Rocheleau, Jose;h ........
Young, Robert St. Barbe....
Young, James Henry.. .....
Kelly, James Joseph........
Culross, Wm. Bain..
Taylor, Thomas Edward ....
McAulay, David...... ...
Bilodeau, Edmond... ....
Nadeau, Ernest... ......
Lallier, Joseph ...... ..
Forest, Sévérin.........
VanDusen, Edgar Thornton
Candlish, Charles Wm ....
Goodwin, F. E...........
Black, Wm. Lorenzo.. .
Jessop, Walter Geo.
Graham, Richard Moffat...
Harvey, Win. Madison....
Hollister, Chas. Joseph......
Murray, Kenneth Alex .....
O'Connor, Robert Emery....
Allan, James Bain.... ...

Oetside Service.

Da

189

April
May
Sept.
Jan.
Feb.
Mar.

il
June
Feb.
Mar.

fi
Nov.
June
Mar.
April
June
Dec.

il

Nov.
Feb.
June
Mar.
May
April
Nov.
June
Dec.

Pennock, W. H ............ Dec.
O'Neil, H ........... . f
Milligan, W. G...... ....... June
Lemon, W. E............. i
H all, 8.............. ...... N ov.
Costello, P. J...............
Colton, J. F ... ............
Furvis, J. L............
Little, H . R ................
O'Sullivan, D. . .... .....
Emerson, . ... ......... ...
Villeneuve, M ....... ... n
Simard, E. A. ......... t
Richardson, W.............. f
Freel, E. J.................. e
Cheyne, A. J. ........
Ferguson, A. M.........
Reynard, M. C.............. e
McKinnon, M..........
Evanson, F. S .... ......
Madore, J. A............. June

Inside Service.

O'Brien, W. D..... ..... .. July
Rochester, F. K ........ ..
Smith, W m............. ...
Greenfield, R...........

Office.e.

8.

29..
20..
16..
15..
15..
9..
9..

15..
15..
1..
9..

28..
27..
1..

13..
22..
17..
17..
17..
28..

292. '

27..
1..

10..
1..

28..
22..
17..

17..
17..
27..
27..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..
9..

15..

Appointed
Salary. or

Promoted.

Third Class Clerk............... ..
Letter Carrier..................

Third Class Clerk..............
Letter Carrier..................

te .... . . . . . .. . .
fi . . .. . . . .. . . .

Third Class Clerk.............
Letter Carrier......... ........

A. 1899

$ cts.J

400 00 Appointed.
36000 e
36000 1
400 00 e
360 00)
360 00 e
360 00 i
400 00 e
360 00
360 00 n
360 00 e
36000 I
300 00
30000
30000
300 00 e
300 00 e
300 00 f
300 00 i
300 00 i
300 00 e
300 00
300 00 e
300 00 i
480 00
300 00
300 00
300 00

1,200 00 Promoted.
900 00 t
900 00 e
900 00 f
960 00 i
960 00 I
960 00 i
960 00 f
720 00 i
640 00 i
640 00 i
640 00 e
600 00
720 00 n

720 00 e
720 00 i
720 00 f
640 00 i
720 00 t
600 00 i

1,200 00 f

1,400 00
1,100 00
1,500 00 i
1,100 00 fi

.. .. . ........ ...

Railway Mail Clerk.........
i if .. . . . . . . .

t, t

et .. .. .. ..

Firt C.s Clr.......... ....
If t t .. .

irtCasail wa Mil ... erk.......

If t . . .. . .. .

F r t tl s tl r .. . . ..t. . .

Second I

et il .. .

t t tet

ft tt .. . .

Assistant Inspector...............

Firrt Class Clerk...............
Second fi . .. .. .. .
Fir-t fi . . . . .. . . . .
Second il . . . . . . . .. .



Civil Service Appointments.

RETURN of names and salaries of all persons appointed to or promoted in the Privy
Council Office during the calendar year, 1898.

NaMe. Otice. Salary.

$ ets.
Doorkeeper.................... ....... 600 00

RETURN of names and salaries of all persons appointed to or promoted in the Depart-
ment of Public Works during the calendar year, 1898.

Appointed
Name. Date. Office. Salary. or

Promoted.

Inside Service. 1898. $ ets.

Robert Errol Bouchette.......... April 13 .. Second Class Clerk 1,100 00 Appointed.
>Edmund Hebert Laschinger..... June 15.. .. 1,100 00 e
Alfred Geo. Kingston... ... ... July t... Chief Clerk Accountant.. 1,800 00 Promoted.

*Transferred with same rank and salary to the inside service of the Post Office Department from lst
July, 1898, O. C., No. 193,281, 27th June, 1898.

RETURN of appointments to or promotions in the North-west Mounted Police, during
the calendar year, 1898.

Name. Date.

Inside Service. 1898.

duPlesiss, Léonidas, J. T. A ..... Jan.

Outside Service.

«Constantine, Charles. .. ......
Wroughton, T. A., V.s.......
Wood, Zachary Taylor........
Demers, Francois J. A........ .
txdeCow, Douglas McG., M.D....
†Madore, Godefroy, M.D......

Sept.
Mar.
July
June
July

et

1. .. .

1....
1....
1... .
3. ..

15....
15....

Office.

Second Class Clerk .....

Superintendent .........
Insp. & Vet. Surgeon ...
Superintendent..........
Inspector... .. . .. ....
Assistant Surgeon.

Appointed
Salary. or

Promoted.

$ cts.

1,100 00 Promoted.

1,400 00 Appointed.
1,00000 e
1,400 00 e
1,000 00 et
1,000 00 e
1,000 00 t

*Confirmed in rank by 0.C., 22nd Oct. 1898. †Temporarily for service in the Yukon.

108-2
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RETURN of appointments to, or promotions in the Department of the Interior during
the calendar year, 1898.

Appointed
Date. Office. Salary. or

Promoted.

1898. $ cts.
J. T. Lithgow ........ . . ... . July 14.... Conptroller Yukon Ter.

ritory .......... ... 1,500 00 Appointed.
G. U. Ryley........................(Chief Clerk. ............ 1,800 00 Promoted.
C. J. Steers.... ........... . Second Class Clerk...... 1,100 00
H. H. Rowatt ............ ..... ....... . . ....... 1,100 00

RETURN of appointments to, or promotions in the Department of Militia and Defence
during the calendar year, 1898.

Name.

Major L. F. Pineault....

Lt. -Col. D. A. Macdonald

Lt.-Col. Geo. Guy ....

J. W. Borden...........

Date. Office.

1898.
Dec. 7 Deputy Minister .....

...... Chief Superintendent
of Militia Stores.

July 1 First Class Clerk ......

S1 Chief Clerk and Ac-
countant.

Salary.

$ cts.

3,200 00

2,800 00

Appointed
or

Promoted.

Appointed. .

, .... ...... ,

1,400 00 ............

2,400 00 ............

Remarks.

Re J Col. Panet,

Present rate (instead of
81,800) by O.C., 22nd
June, '98, from 1st Oct.
'97.

O.C., 22nd June, '98.

Present rate (instead of
$1,800) from Tst July,
'98, by 0.C., 30th June,
'98.

GEOLOGICAL SURVEY DEPARTMENT.

RETURN of names and salaries of all persons appointed to or promoted in this depart-
ment during the year, 1898.

Appointed
Name. Date. Office. Salary. or

Promoted.

1898. $ ets.
James M. Macoun............. July 1.... Assistant Naturalist, Technical 1,500 00 Appointed.

Class.

OTTAwA, 7th January, 1899.

GEO. M. DAWSON,
Deputy Head and Director.
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RET URN
(109)

To an ÂJDDRSS of the .OUEi O F Ommoi s,,dated the 14th March, 1898, for
copies of all correspondence, reports, Orders in Council and instruttiois
in reference to the admission of foreign countries to commercial privi-
leges under the so-called preferential clause of the tariff of 1897.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

OTTAwA, 24th April, 1897.
lBon. WM. PATERSON,

Controller of Customs,
Ottawa.

SIR,-Belgian merchanta esMàhiiahed in Montreal have just telegraphed me stating
that they expect various ,kinds, of gouds from Belgium, and requesting me to inform
them if the preferential tarif granted to England since yesterday will also be applied
thereto, in accordance :with. Article 15 of the Treaty of Commerce concluded between
Belgium and Great Britain.

I will, therefore, be very much obliged if you will let me know whether these goods
will be admitted into Canada ata.rduction of oneýeighth on the tarif applied to other
countvies.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THE CONSUL GENERAL OF'BELGIUM.

(Gopyt of T'elegIim)

MONTREAI 28th April, 1897.
Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.
Canadian goods practicaly .admitted free into Netherlands. Will you allow itis

products at once to enter on the same treatment as English, provided certificate origin
accompany invoice ? Answer wire.

CONSUL GENERAL BOISSEVAIN.

(Copy of RePly.)
OTTAWA, 28th April, 1897.

CONSUL GENERAL BoissEvAIN,
Montreal, P.Q.

Please send Netherland Tarif for examination.
JOHN McDOUGALD,

Commissioner of Customs.
109-1

e2 Victoria. A. 1899
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MONTREAL, 28th April, 1897.
Hon. W. PATERsoN,

Controller of Customs,
Ottawa.

SIR,-Messrs. Hermann H. Wolff & Co. of this city have informed me that they
have passed on 23rd inst., at the Montreal Customs House, goods, German produce,
viz., one case of plush, signed H. H. W. & Co., 5803, valued Marks 761.65, on entry
66791, and a case of silks, No. 561, valued at Marks 1329.10 on entry 66790, and that
they have requested the collector of customs of Montreal to allow them on these goods
the same reluction of one-eighth of the duty of 35 per cent as given on British goods,
passed through the Montreal custom-house on the same day.

The collector of customs, however, by letter No. 502 of 27th inst., has declined to
grant the reduction, acknowledging at the same time that British goods enjoy the said
reduction.

The Customs Collector has not expressed any doubt as to the goods being Gtrman
proluce, and besides, Messrs. Hermann H. Wolff & Co. are able to prove this by the in-
voices of the manufacturers, viz. :-Johannes Girmes & Co. Oedt, near Crefeld, for the
plushes, and H. E. Schniewind at Elberfeld for the silks (satins).

Referring to Article VII of the Treaty of Commerce, between the German
Zollverein and Great Britain, of May 30th, 1865, saying : that in the colonies and
foreign possessions of Her Britannic Majesty the produce of the States of the Zollverein
shall not be subject to any higher or other import duties than the produce of Great Bri-
tain and Ireland, I have the honour to request you to cause the said goods to be granted
the reduction given to British goods.

Kindly acknowledge recept of this letter.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant.

LENTZE,
Imperial German Consul for the Dominion of Canada.

CusToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, April 29th, 1897.

The Imperial German Consul
For the Dominion of Canada,

Montreal, P.Q.

S1R,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 28th
instant, addressed to the Hon. Controller of Customs, asking that he would cause the
products of the States of the German Zollverein to be granted the reduction given to
British goods through the Montreal custom-house on the 23rd instant.

In reply, I amC directed to state that the Resolutions introduced into the House of
Commons respecting the reciprocal tariff, provid:-.

" That when the customs tariff of any country admits the products of Canada on
terms which, on the whole, are as favourable to Canada as the terms of the Reciprocal
Tariff herein referred to, are to the countries to which it may apply, articles which are
the growth, produce or manufacture of such country, when imported direct therefroin,
may then be imported direct into Canada, or taken out of warehouse for consumption
therein at the reduced rates of duty provided in the reciprocal tariff set forth in
Schedule " D."

"(a.) That any question that may arise as to the countries entitled to the benefits
of the reciprocal tariff shall be decided by the Controller of Customs, subject to the
authority of the Governor in Council.

"I(b.) That the Controller of Customs may make such regulations as are necessary
for carrying out the intention of the two preceding sections."

The Hon. Controller of Customs is not satisfied that the Customs Tariff of Germany
or the German Zollverein is such as to entitle the country to the benefits of the recipro-



Preferential Tariff.

cal tarif, but he will be pleased to receive any information that you may wish to fur-
nish on that subject.

The Hon. Controller is advised that the treaty to which you refer relates to a con-
dition of affairs which does not arise under the tarif resolutions now before the House
of Commons.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

(Translation.)
OTTAWA, 30th April, 1897.

HON. WM. PATERSON,
Controller of Customs,

Ottawa.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 29th instant,
in which you inform me that Belgian goods are not entitled to the benefits of the pre-
ferential tariff in favour of English goods, notwithstanding the formal expression of
Article 15 of the Treaty of 1862.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

G. DE FANCOUVAL.

MONTREAL, 3rd May, 1897.
HON. WM. PATERSON,

Controller of Customs,
Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-Confirming my letter of the 27th ulto., and acting on telegram from the
Commissioner of Customs, I send you with this mail Netherlands Customs Tariff for
examination, in which I have marked its most salient features. The principle upon
which it is based is to have all raw materials free, also agricultural products; lumber,
etc., all articles which are in a half finished state 3 per cent and all manufactured
articles 5 per cent ad valorem.

A glance will suffice to convince you that if any country is entitled to the benefit
of the reciprocal clause in the new tarift it is the Netherlands, and if such is your
decision I should be greatly obliged indeed by an immediate answer.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

K. BOISSEVAIN,
Consul General of the Netherlands.

MANCHESTER BUILDING, MELINDA STREET,

To the Honourable 
TORONTo, 5th May, 1897.

The Controller of Customs.

Sia,-There are certain things regarding the application of the Manority Tariff
which we do not understand, and would take it kind if you would explain to us.

In the case of the United States, for instance: If the government asks to have a
specific line of merchandise admitted under the Manority Tariff, agreeing to admit it at
the Canada rate of duty, is there provision under the new tariff for such an arrange-
ment without regard to other lines of merchandise or natural products ? Our under-
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standing of the tarif would bëar this cohstruction, seeing that you have the power to
treat with countries outside England, subject to the approval of the Governor in
Cuncil.

Meantime, we remain
Yours respectfully,

R. FLAWS & SON.

(Copy of Telegram.)
MONTREAL, May, 1897.

Controller of Customs,
Ottawa.

Ieferring to my letter third instant, my home government cable to know your
decision. Kindly answer wire.

K. BOISSEVAIN,
Consul General for Holland,

(Copy Of Reply.) OTTAWA, 8th'May, 1897.
BOISSEVAIN,

Consul General for Holland,
Miontreal.

Controller has not decided regarding application of reciprocal tarif to Nether-
lands. Question under consideration, but cannot be determined for some time.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

CUSToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTT.Awk, 13th May, 1897.

K. BoissEvAIt, Esq.,
Consul-Qeneral of the Netherlands,

Montreal, P.Q.

Si,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 3rd instant,
with copy of the Netherlands Customs Tarif, and also your telegram dated the 7th
instant.

I sent you the following message by telegraph, on the 8th May
" Controller has not decided regarding application of reciprocal tarif to Nether-

lands. Question under consideration, but cannot be determined for some time."
The tarif resolutions have not yet been enacted into law, and the honourable

controller is unable to indicate when their application to the Netherlands will be
decided upon.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

EXTRACT from a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved
by His'Excellency on the 28th June, 1897.

The Minister of Trade and Commerce submits the annexed report from the
Controller of Customs, stating that he has decided that the customs tarif of New South
Wales is such as entitles articles which are the growth, produce or manufacture of that
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country to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff resolutions submitted to the House of
Commons on the 22nd April, 1897, subject to the limitations mentioned in schedule
"D " of the said tarif resolutions, and that he has so directed all collectors of customs.

The committee submit the action taken in the matter by the Controller of Customs
for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. MCGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAwA, 22nd May, 1897.

The undersigned, Controller of Customs, has the honour to report as follows:-
That on Thursday, the 22nd day of April, ultimo, the Minister of Finance

submitted to the House of Commons certain resolutions for the revision of the customs
tariff.

That it has been the practice, without any special statutory authority, to give
effect to tariff changes from the time the tariff resolutions are laid on the table, subject
to amendment until the tariff bill is finally assented to.

That in accordance with such practice, he has given instructions to all collectors of
customs to act upon the said tariff resolutions at once.

That one of the said tariff resolutions makes provisions for a reciprocal tariff in
the following terms:

" That when the customs tariff of any country admits the products of Canada on
terms which, on the whole, are as favourable to Canada as the terms of the reciprocal
tariff herein referred to are to the countries to which it may apply, articles which are
the growth, produce or manufacture of such country, when imported direct therefrom,
may then be imported direct into Canada, or taken out of warehouse for consumption
therein at the reduced rates of duty provided in the reciprocal tariff set forth in
schedule 'D.' "

"(a.) That any question that may arise as to the countries entitled to the benefits
of the reciprocal tariff shall be decided by the Controller of Customs, subject to the
authority of the Governor in Council."

"(b.) That the Controller of Customs may make such regulations as are necessary
for carrying out the intention of the two preceding sections."

That said tariff resolutions provide, " That the foregoing resolutions and the
alterations thereby made in the rate of duties of customs payable on goods imported
into Canada shall take effect on and after the 23rd day of April instant."

That the undersigned has decided that the customs tariff of New South Wales is
such as entitles articles which are the growth, produce or manufacture of that country
to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff, subject to the limitations mentioned in schedule
"D " of the said tariff resolutions, and has so directed all collectors of customs.

He submits his action in this matter for the approval of His Excellency the
Governor General in Council.

W. PATERSON,
Controller of Customs.

(ffemorandum.) CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,

To Collector of Customs. OTTAwA, 22nd May, 1897.

RECIPROCAL TARIFF-NEW SOUTH WALES.

Referring to memorandum No. 895b, dated 23rd April, 1897, respecting the reci-
procal tariff, you are hereby instructed that the Honourable Controller of Customs has
decided that the customs tariff of New South Wales is such as entitles articles which
are the growth, produce or manufacture of that country to the benefits of the reciprocal
tariff, subject to the limitations mentioned in schedule D of the tariff resolutions.
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Entries of articles, the produce or manufacture of New South Wales, imported
direct therefrom may be accepted under the same regulations as the products of Great
Britain and Ireland, on and after this date.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

MONTREAL, 21st June, 1897.
JOHN MCDOUGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

SIR,-Would you kindly inform our firm if the matter of one-eighth preferential
benefit has met with the approval of the Minister of Customs, regarding goods purchased
in Japan ? We are dealers to a very large extent, and are informed and believe that
Japan has no greater duty than 10 per cent upon imported goods into their country.
Would you also let us know if the minister has considered trade relations with Japan,
and if not in what way the matter should be brought before him I This is of most
importance to us, and we trust to be favoured with your early reply.

We have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servants,

E. T. MASON & CO.
L. J. TROTTER, Agent.

OTTAWA, 4th August, 1897.
The Honourable

WM. PATERSON, M.P.,
Controller of Customs, Ottawa

SIR,-I have the honour to transmit to you, herewith, copy of a lettr which the
Secretary of Sate has received from the Japanese Consul General at Vancouver, B.C.,
requesting that the products of Japan may be treated as falling within schedule "D "
of the Canadian Customs Tarif, 1897. Mr. Scott has informed Mr. Nosse that the
question of the application of the benefits of the reciprocal tariff is a matter for your
decision and that he has brought his request before you.

I have the hononr to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOSEPH POPE,
Under Secretary of State,

IMPERIAL JAPANESE MAJESTY'S CONSULATE FOR CANADA,
P. O. Box 86, VANCOUVER, B.C., 27th July, 1897.

Hon. R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State, Ottawa.

SiR,-I have the honour of requesting you in the name of His Imperial Japanese
Majesty's government that the Canadian government will issue necessary instructions to
the collectors of customs to treat the products of the empire of Japan imported into
Canada according to the schedule " D " of the Canadian customs tariff, 1897. Apart
from the fact that there exist the most-favoured-nation clauses between Japan and
Great Britain, the Japanese products are entitled to the favour of the said reciprocal
tariff, on two reasons, firstly : the present tariff in Japan is far below that of Canada;
secondly: Canada's extending the said favour to the Japanese produce will materially
help the growth of trade between the two nations.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

T. NOSSE,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul General.
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(Copy oj Telegram.)

MONTREAL, 31st July, 1897.
The Honourable

Controller of Customs.
Ottawa.

Am without answer to my letter No. 329 of the 3rd May, and my telegram of the
8th May, regarding the admission of Netherland products under reciprocal clause.
Kindly give me your decission in writing if possible to-day.

K. BOISSEVAIN,
Consul General.

(Copy of Reply.)
OTTAwA, 31st July, 1897.

K. BOIssEVAIN, Esq.
Consul General of the Netherlands,

Montreal, P.Q.

Minister of Customs absent. Question of admission of Netherlands under reci-

procal tariff cannot be determined until his return here about last of August.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

OTrTwA, 9th August, 1897.
To Collectors of Customs:

You are hereby instructed that the benefits of the reciprocal tariff of Canada under
"The Customs Tariff, 1897," extends to the following countries, until the lst day of
August, 1898, viz.:-To Belgium, Germany (Zollverein).

Until the 1st day of August, 1898, articles which are the growth, produce or
manufacture of any of the said countries, when imported direct therefrom, may be entered
for duty or taken out of warehouse for consumption in Canafa, at the reduced rates of
duty provided in the reciprocal tariff set forth in schedule " D " of the " Custom Tariff,
1897," subject to the limitations therein contained and to the regulations made with
regard thereto.

The excess of duty paid since the 22nd day of April, 1897, on articles imported as
aforesaid f rom the countries hereinbefore mentioned will be refunded if the claim there-
for with satisfactory proof of the origin and value of such articles and of their direct
importation, is made in the usual form through the collector of customs at the port
where such duty is paid.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 1lth August, 1897.

Collector of Customs,
Port of ...............

You are hereby instructed that the benefits of the reciprocal tariff of Canada under
the " Customs Tariff, 1897, " extends to the following countries until the 1st day of
August, 1898, viz.:-to France, Algeria and the French Colonies.

Until the 1st day of August, 1898, articles which are the growth of any of the said
countries, when imported direct therefrom, may be entered for duty or taken out of
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warehouse for consumption in Canada, at the reduced rates of duty provided in the reci-
procal tariff set forth in Schedule D. of " The Customs Tariff, 1897, " subject to the
limitations therein contained and to the regulations made with regard thereto.

The excess of duty paid since the 22nd day of April, 1897, on articles imported as
aforesaid from the countries hereinbefore mentioned will be refunded, if the claim there-
for with satisfactory proof of the origin and value of such articles and of their direct
importation is made in the usual form through the collector of customs at the port
where such duty was paid.

Nothing in the foregoing instructions shall be held as affecting the right to enter
articles under the " French Treaty Act, 1894, " but any articles entered at a reduced
rate under the said Treaty Act shall not be entitled to a further reduction of duty under
the provisions of the reciprocal tariff.

(Copy of Telegrcm.)

MONTREAL, llth August, 1897.
Controller of Customs,

Ottawa.

I am informed Germany and Belgium thus far are the only nations admitted to the
reciprocal tariff. Under article and in the French Treaty, France has an undoubted
right to an identical treatment. I beg to insist that orders to that effect should be given
at your earliest convenience, the said orders to apply to duties to be henceforth collected,
and also to the refunding of the extra duties collected on French goods since April 23rd
last. Kindly acknowledge receipt of present telegram.

KLECZKOWSKI,
Consul General for France in the

Dominion of Canada.

(Copy of Reply.)
OTTAWA, 1lth August, 1897.

Consul General for France,
Montreal, P. Q.

Instructions have been issued extending Canadian Reciprocal Tariff to France,
Algeria and the French colonies, and authorizing refund of excess duties since twenty-
second April.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

MONTREAL, 1lth August, 1897.
502, Board of Trade.

SIR,-On information received by several Canadian importers of Swiss goods, that
the customs authorities in Toronto and here respectively have yesterday collected the
full rate of duty (not allowing the 12J per cent reduction) on their goods imported from
Switzerland, and as I understand that on the admission of Belgium and Germany the
benefit of the reciprocal tariff must be extended to all countries entitled in Canada by
treaty to most-favoured-nation treatment in tariff matters, I most respectfully ask the
the commissioner of customs to let me know in what position my country is respecting
the tariff.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your most obedient servant,

ED. SANDREUTER,
Vice Consul for Switzerland.
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MONTREAL, 12th August, 1897.

Si,-I beg to acknowledge the receipt of your telegram of the 1lth instant by
which I am informed that "instructions have been issued extending Canadian recipro-
cal tariff to France, Algeria and the French colonies, and authorizing refund of excess
duties since 22nd April."

I have the pleasure to thank you for the above communication by which satis-
faction is given to our claims under Article 2nd of the Franco-Canadian arrangement of
February 6th, 1893.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

A. KLECZKOWSKI,
Consul General for France in Canada.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
L. J. TROTTER, Esq., OTrAWA, 13th August, 1897.

Agent, Messrs. E. T. Mason & Co.,
17 St. Nicholas St., Montreal, P.Q.

SIR,-Referring to your inquiries as to the extension of the reciprocal tariff to
the products of Japan, I beg to inform you that the question will be considered by the
Hon. the Minister of Customs on his return to the city next month.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 13th August, 1897.

HON. T. NO8SE,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consulate for Canada,

P.O. Box 86, Vancouver, B.C.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt through the Hon. the Secretary
of State, of a copy of your communication of the 27th ultimo, requesting in the name of
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's government "that the Canadian government will
issue necessary instructions to the collectors of customs to treat the products of the
Empire of Japan imported into Canada according to the sechedule " D " of the Canadian
Customs Tariff, 1897."

In reply, I have the honour to inform you that your request will be submitted to
the Hon. the Minister of Customs for his attention on his return to the city early next
month.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

(Copy of Telegram.)

MoNTREAL, QUEBEC, 14th August, 1897.
Hon. WM. PATERsoN,

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

Is it your government's intention to exclude Austria-Hungary from list of countries
enjoying preferential tariff in opposition to favoured-nation-clause of treaty with Great
Britain of December 5th, 1876 7

ED. SCHULTZE,
Imperial and Royal Austro-Hungarian Consul.
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(Copy of Reply.)
OTTAWA, 14th August, 1897.

ED. SCHULTZE,
Imperial and Royal Austro-Hungarian Consul,

Montreal.

Your telegram will be submitted to the government and considered at next meeting
of Privy Council.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

MONTREAL, CANADA, 14th August, 1897.
To the Honourable Wm. PATERSON,

Minister of Customs, Ottawa.

SiR,-I have the honour to inform you that several importers have notified me that
their recent importations from Austria had been refused the same preferential treatment
by the customs authorities here as their importations from Germany made at the same
time, and personal inquiry at the collector of customs' office elicited the fact that no
instructions had been received by him so far to apply the preferential tariff to manu-
factures and goods of Austro-Hungarian origin.

I therefore had the honour to send you a message this morning inquiring if in
opposition to the favoured-nation-clause of my government's treaty with Great Britain
of the 5th December, 1876, your government intends to exclude Austria Hungary froma
the list of countries now enjoying the preferential tariff and beg to request you to kindly
favour me with an early reply.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

ED. SCHULTZE,
Imperial and Royal Austro-Hungarian ConsuL

CUSTOMS DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 17th August, 1897.

ED. SANDREUTER, Esq,,
Vice-Consul for Switzerland,

502, Board of Trade, Montreal, P.Q.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 11th
instant, making inquiry as to the position occupied by Switzerland in regard to the
admission of goods shipped from that country to Canada under the terms of the
reciprocal tariff.

In reply, I beg to state that no instructions have yet been issued to collectors of
customs for the admission of goods from Switzerland under the reciprocal tariff.

The Hon. the Minister of Customs is at present absent from Ottawa, but is expected
to return about the end of this month, when your letter will be submitted to him and
directions obtained as to the action to be taken in the matter.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.
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KINGSTON, 20th August, 1897.
The Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-Will you kindly instruct the collector here regarding the reciprocal
tariff on goods the produce of Spain. We have a shipment of raisins which we desire
to enter at the custom-house at once under the above tariff.

Kindly let us hear from you by return mail and oblige.

Yours truly,

GEO. ROBERTSON & SON,
John Nicolle.

(Copy of Telegram.)

KINGSTON, Ont., 24th August, 1897.
The Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

Kindly reply immediately to our letter twentieth inst. very important.

GEO. ROBERTSON & SON.

(Copy of Reply.)

Messrs. GEO. ROBERTSON & SON, OTTMWA, 24th August, 1897.

Kingston, Ont.

Reciprocal tariff is not yet extended to Spain.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Commons.

(Copy and Translation.)

The Hon. the Minister of Customs, 24th August, 1897.

Ottawa.

Mr DEAR SIR,-I have this morning received from my government at Berne,
cablegram, as follows -

(Translation.)
BERNE, 24th August, 1897.

To Consul for Switzerland,
Montreal.

"Received letters-London legation informs on the 17th August, that Canadian
government has been invited to treat Switzerland as Germany and Belgium- e now
think reductions are applied to us, inquire and wire." COMMERCE.

I shall be glad if you will send me by return post if possible, sufficient information
to enable me to cable a reply to the above.

Will you also send me for the use of my government a copy of the Revised Tariff
in French and in English I

I have the honour to be
Yours faithfully,

D. L. REY,
Consul Suisse.

Montreal.
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SWEDISH AND NORWEGIAN CONSULATE,

Hon. WILLIAM PATERSON, QUEBEC, 25th August, 1897.

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa, Ont.

SI,-Learning that the benefits of the Reciprocal Tariff of Canada under "The
Customs Tariff, 1897," has been extended to the foreign countries, Germany (Zollverein),
Belgium and France, Algeria and the French colonies, I have, with reference to
Article IX of the treaty between His Majesty the King of Sweden and Norway on the
one part, and His Majesty the King of the United Kingdoms of Great Britain and
Ieland on the other, arranged and concluded in London, under date 18th of March,
1826, and ratified in Stockholm the 6th, and in Windsor the 10th of April following,
respectfully to request that the benefits thus extended to the above mentioned foreign
countries may, in like manner, also be extended to the Kingdoms of Sweden and
Norway.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

W. A. SCHWARTZ,
Consul of Sweden and Norway.

(Copy of Telegram.)
August, 1897.

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

Please reply to letter of 24th, my government awaiting answer.

REY,
Swiss Consul.

(Copy of Reply.)

OTTAWA, 31st August, 1897.
REY,

Swiss Consul,
Montreal, P. Q.

Instructions issued extending reciprocal tariff to Switzerland and for refunding
excess duties paid.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

(Copy of Telegran.)

E. SCHULTZE, Esq., OTTAWA, 31st August, 1897.

Austro-Hungary Consul,
Montreal, P. Q.

Instructions issued extending reciprocal tariff to Austro-Hungary and for refunding
excess duties paid.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.



Preferential Tariff.

(Copy of Telegram.)

OTTAWA, 31st August, 1897.
W. A. SCHWARTZ, Esq.,

Consul for Norway and Sweden,
Quebec, P. Q.

Instructiôns issued extendig'reàiprocal tariff to Swden'ànd for réfúnding excess
duties paid. 'JOHN McDOUGALD,

Comnissiofner 6f Customs.

CUsTòms DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 1st September, 1897.

COLLECTOR OF CUSTOMs,-You are hereby instructed that the benefits of the
Reciprocal Tariff of Canada under the Customs Tariff, 1897, extends to the following
countries, until the 1st day of August, 1898, viz :-

Argentine, CôluMrbia, Lussia, Venezuela,
Austria Hungary, Denmark, *Sweden, Switzerland.
Bolivia, Persia, Tunis,

Until the first day of August, 1898, articles which are the growth, produce or
manufacture of any of the said countries, *hen imported direct therefrom, may be
entered for 'duty or taken out of warehouse for consumption in Canada, at the reduced
rates of duty provided in the reciprocal tatiff set forth in Schedule 'D " of the Oustoms
Tariff, 1897, subject to the limitations therein contained and to theo regulations made
with regard thereto.

The excess of duty paid since the 22nd day of April, 1897, on articles itnported as
aforesaid from the countries hereitnbefere mentioned, will be refunded, if the dlaim
therefor, with satisfactory proof of their origin and value of such articles and of their
direct importation, is made in the usual way through the collector of customs at the
port where such duty was paid.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Cu8toms.

SWEDISH AND NORWEGIAN CONSULATE,
QUEBEC, lst September, 1897.

JOHN MCDOUGALD, Esq,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-I have the honour to Own receipt of your telegraphic dispatch reading thug :
"Instructions issued extending reciprocal tariff to Sweden and for refunding excess
duties paid :" awaiting conformation by mail, and of course assuming that the same
privilege is also extended to Norway.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

W. A. SCHWARTZ,
Consul for Sweden and Norway.
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(Memorandum.) CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 4th September, 1897.

Collector of Customs,
Port of..........

Re RECIPROCAL TARIFF OF CANADA.

Referring to memoranda Nos. 895b, 921b, and 925b, you are further instructed
that the benefit of the reciprocal tariff extends until the 1st day of August, 1898, to
Belgium, Germany, France, Algeria, the French colonies, Argentine, Austria-Hungary,
Bolivia, Columbia, Denmark, Persia, Russia, Sweden, Tunis, Venezuela and Switzerland
as well as to Great Britain and Ireland.

Until the lst day of August, 1898, the products of Great Britain and Ireland,
Belgium, Germany, France, Algeria, the French colonies, Argentine, Austria-Hungary,
Bolivia, Columbia, Denmark, Persia, Russia, Sweden, Tunis, Venezuela and Switzerland,
when imported from any of the said countries and entered for duty or taken out of
warehouse for consumption in Canada, since the 23rd day of April, 1897, and prior to
the 1st day of August, 1898, shall be subject to the reduction of duty provided for in
the reciprocal tariff set forth in schedule D of " The Customs Tariff, 1897," and under
the limitations mentioned in said schedule D.

The excess of duty paid since the 23rd day of April, 1897, on products imported
as aforesaid from the countries hereinbefore mentioned, will be refunded, if the claim
therefor, with satisfactory proof of the origin and value of such product, is made in
the usual form through the collector of customs at the port where such duty was paid.

Nothing in the foregoing instructions shall be held as affecting the right to enter
articles under the " French Treaty Act, 1894," but any articles entered at a reduced
rate under the said Treaty Act shall not be entitled to a further reduction of duty
under the provisions of the reciprocal tariff.

The declaration prescribed in the regulations and instructions of the 9th July, 1897,
(Memo. No. 925b) is required to be made by the exporter and annexed to the invoice of
articles for entry under the reciprocal tariff, and until the 1st August, 1898, articles
from all the countries above mentioned may be entered on the same invoice, and the
origin of all the products entered on such invoice may be attested to in one declaration
(if more than one) on the form heretofore prescribed, the names of the countries being
written in succession in the blank space reserved for origin of products.

The declaration required may also be made by the exporter or his agent before a
collector of customs, or magistrate, or justice of the peace, as well as before the persons
designated in former instructions.

Importers claiming entry under the reciprocal tariff -for goods f rom the countries
aforementioned, are required to file with customs collectors in Canada a certificate of the
United States customs entry for irnmediate transportation or a bill of lading, showing
through transportation for such goods carried in transit through the United States and
imported into Canada.

JOHN MCDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

CUsToMs DEPARTMENT,

OTTAWA, 7th September, 1897.
LIONEL J. TROTTER, Esq.,

Agent, Messrs. E. T. MAsoN & Co.,
17 St. Nicholas St., Montreal, P.Q.

SI,-With further reference to your inquiry, in regard to the admission of pro-
ducts from the empire of Japan under the reciprocal clause of the customs tariff of 1897,
I am directed by the Honourable the Minister of Customs to state that it is not at pre-
sent intended to extend the benefits of the Canadian reciprocal tariff to Japan.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.
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CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
7th September, 1897.

Hon. T. NOSSE,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consulate

for Canada, P.O. Box 86, Vancouver, B.C.

SIR,-With further reference to your inquiry, in regard to the admission of pro-
ducts of the empire of Japan under the reciprocal clause of the customs tariff of 1897, I
am directed by the Honourable Minister of Customs to state that it is not at present
intended to extend the benefits of the Canadian reciprocal tariff to Japan.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,

W. A. SCHWARTZ, Esq., .OTTAWA, 7th September, 1897,

Consul for Sweden and Norway,
Quebec, Que.

SiR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the lst. inst.,
respecting the extension of the Canadian reciprocal tariff to Sweden and Norway.

The reciprocal tariff bas been applied to the products of Sweden, as will appear
by the instructions issued to collectors of customs, per memorandum No. 943b. of
4th September, 1897, of which copies are herewith closed.

Norway is not named in these instructions, and I understand it is a Kingdom dis-
tinct from Sweden. If it is claimed that Norway is entitled to the benefits of the
reciprocal tariff, your views in that respect, together with the documents which may
be submitted in support thereof, will be laid before the Honourable the Minister of
Customs without delay.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JoHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

CusToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAwA, 7th September, 1897.

K. BOIssEVAIN, Esq.,
Consul General of the Netherlands,

Montreal, P. Q.
SIR,-With further reference to your inquiry in regard to the admission of pro-

ducts from the Netherlands under the reciprocal clause of the Customs Tariff, 1897, I
am directed by the Honourable Minister of Customs to state that it is not at present
intended to extend the benefits of the Canadian reciprocal tariff to the Netherlands.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 109.) A. 1899

His ImpErAL JAP&NESE MAJESTY'S CONSULATE FOR CANADA.
VANCOUvER, B. 0., 7th September, 1897.

HON. WILLIAM PATERSON,
Minister of Customs,

Ottawa, Ont.

SrR,-I had ·the henour of, some time ego, addressing to the Secretary of State,
ùpon the question -of the tapplication of the benefits of the reciprocal tarif to the
Japanese:productseimported into Canada.

I have now the honour of requesting you to issue necessary orders to the various
collectors of customs at an early date, authorizing them to treat the products of the
Empire of Japan under the reciprocal tariff set forth in schedule " D " of the Customs
Tariff, 1897.

According to the Customs Act, clause 17, which says " when the customs tariff
of any country e.dmits the products of Canada on terms which, on the whole, are as
favourable to Canada as the terms of the reciprocal tariff herein referred to are to the
countries to which it may apply, articles which are the growth, produce or manufacture
of such country when imported direct therefrom may then be entered for duty or taken
out of warehouse for consumption in Canada, at the reduced rates of duty provided in
the reciprocal tariff set forth in schedule " D " to this Act," the products of Japan,
when imported directly into Canada from Japan are entitled to the benefit of the
reduced rates of duties.

I have no doubt that your government will give the decision in favour, of the
Japanese goods against that of any other nations.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

T. NOSSE,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Oonsul Generat for Canada.

CusToms DEPAitTMENT,
OTrAwA, 8th September, t897.

The undersigned, Minister of Customs, has the honour to report to His Excel-
lency the Governor General in Council, that further instructions respecting the entry of
goods under the reciprocal tariff were issued by the Department ôf Customs on the
4th September, 1897, (Memorandum No. 943b) as per copies inclosed herewith.

He recommends that His Excellency be moved to transmit copies of these instruc-
tions, together with the instructions of 9th July, 1897, to the Right Honourable Her
Majesty's Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies.

W. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.

MONTREAL, September 9th, 1897.
To the Honourable Minister of Customs,

Ottawa, Ont.

HONOURABLE SIR,-I received a communication from the Commissioner of Customs
dated the 7th instant saying that it is not your intention at present to extend the
benefits of the reciprocal tariff to the Netherlands. I thank you for pronouncing
yourself upon the point in question and have duly reported to my government.

'Wishing, however, to ascertain more fully your views on this subject, I should be
obliged if you could see me at your office some time next week. I shall be in Ottawa
on Monday or Tuesday, and would be obliged if you could appoint an hour on either of
those days, and let me know at your convenience.

I have the honour to be,
Your obedient servant,

K. BOISSEVAIN,
Consul General of the Netherlands.
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SWEDISH AND NORWEGIAN CONSULATE,
QUEBEC, 9th September, 1897.

JOHN McDoUGALD, Esq.,
Commissioner of Customs

Ottawa, Ont.

SIn,-I have the honour to own receipt of your letter of the 7th instant with en-
closures in reply to my respects of the Ist instant, informing me that the reciprocal
tariff has been applied to the products of Sweden, but not to Norway, being a kingdom
distinct from Sweden; and requesting my views upon the subject communicated to you,
with the documents supp:rting the claim that the same privilege should be extended to
the products of Norway.

In reply, I beg to refer you to the Treaty between His Majesty the King of Sweden
and Norway and His Majesty the King of Great Britian and Ireland dated 18th of
March, 1826, by which (article IX) the most-favoured-nation clause equally as much
and in the same sense, has been extended to the products of Norway, as to those of
Sweden.

It is perfectly correct that they are distinct kingdoms each for itself, but in the
relation to foreign countries they are represented by the saine authority in the person
of Ris Majesty the King and acts as one.

Awaiting your reply,
I have the honour to be, sir,

Your obedient servant,
W. A. SCHWARTZ.

OTTAWA, 10th September, 1897.
K. BoISSEVAIN, Esq.,

Consul General of the Netherlands,
290 Guy Street, Montreal, Que.

DEAR SIR.-I beg to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 9th instant, stating
that you will be in Ottawa on Monday or Tuesday of next week, and asking me if 1
would appoint an hour on either of these days when you could have an interview with me.

In reply, I regret to state that I will not be able to meet your wishes, as I leave
here to-night for western Ontario, and will not return until the latter part of next
week. I hope to be in Montreal before the end of this month, and will be pleased to
discuss the matter with you when there. I will advise you of the date of my visit, 80
that you can make arrangements te meet me. Trusting this 'will be satisfactory, I
remain,

Yours truly,
W. PATERSON,

Minister cf Customs.

CUsToms DEPARTMENT,
OTTAwA, 13th September, 1897.

W. A. SCeWARTz, Esq.,
Consul for Sweden and Norway.

Quebec, P.Q.,

SI,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 9th
instant, respecting the right of Norway to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff.

The Hon. the Minister of Customs is absent f rom Ottawa, but on his return, in the
course of a few days, your letter will be laid before him for his consideration.

I have the honour to be,«sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner
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- HALIFAx, N.S., 16th September, 1897.
JOHN MCDOUGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

DEAR SiR,--We understand that the reciprocal tariff extends to Spain and were
so informed by customs authorities here the first part of this month, but to-day they
have shown us your memo. No. 943b., file No. 30090, pointing out that as Spain is
not specifically mentioned they would not be able to allow any benefits on goods imported
from that country. As we expect some imnports from there soon, and are of opinion
that they wôuld be entitled to the one-eighth preference clause of tariff, we would ask
you to kindly notify collector of custons at this port to this effect should our contention
prove correct.

Yours very truly,

SEETON & MITCHELL.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,

OTTAWA, 20th September, 1897.
MESSRS. SEETON & MITCHELL,

Halifax, N.S.

GENTLEMEN,-Referring to your letter of the 16th instant, I beg to advise you
that Spain is not included in the list of countries to which the reciprocal tariff applies.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

Through Collector of Customs,
Halifax, N.S.

HIs IMPERIAL JAPANESE MAJESTY's CONSULATE FOR CANADA,
ANCOUVER, B.C., 22nd September, 1897.

SIR,-I am in receipt of an official dispatch, under date of the 7th September,
1897, from Commissioner of Customs, conveying your statement, in answer to my
previous dispatch to you, that it is not at present intended to extend the benefits of
the Canadian reciprocal tariff to Japan.

I have again the honour of stating that according to the definition of the schedule
"D " of the customs tariff, there is no doubt that the products of the empire of Japan
are entitled to the full benefits of the reciprocal tariff, and I see no reason why these
bene6ts are withheld against Japanese products.

I have, therefore, the honour of asking you again that you will take necessary
steps at an early date to have the Japanese products placed on the reciprocal list of
the customs.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

T. NOSSE,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul General for Canada.

18
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CusToys DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 22nd September, 1897.

Collector of Customs,
Port of St. Catharines, Ont.

RE RECIPROCAL TATIFF OF CANADA.

You are hereby instructed that Norway is included with Sweden in the list of
countries intitled to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff, as set forth in memo. No. 943b,
dated 4th September, 1897.

JOHIN McDOUJGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

Copy sent to Victoria, Vancouver, New Westminster, Nelson, Calgary, Winnipeg,
London, Toronto, Kingston, Hanilton, Brantford, Woodstock, Guelph, Berlin, St.
Catharines, Ottawa, Brockville, Montreal, Sherbrooke, Quebec, Three Rivers, Frederic.
ton, St. John, Moncton, Charlottetown, Yarmouth, Halifax, Sydney, Pictou, Truro.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 22nd September, 1897.

The undersigned, Minister of Customs, has the honour to report to His Excellency
the Governor General in Council.

That the consul for Sweden and Norway, at Quebec, claims that the products
of Norway, as well as those of Sweden, are entitled to the benefits of the Canadian
reciprocal tariff, under the treaty with Ris Majesty the King of Sweden and Norway,
dated 18th of March, 1826.

That in the dispatch from the Right Honourable Secretary of State for the
Colonies, dated 26th June, 1897, there was transmitted a list of countries claiming in
Canada, by treaty, most-favoured-nation treatment in tariff matters.

That Norway does not appear in such list of countries, although Sweden is
mentioned therein.

The undersigned therefore recommends that His Excellency the Governor General
be moved to cable to the Right Honourable Secretary of State for the Colonies, as
follows :-

" la Norway entitled in Canada to most-favoured-nation treatment in tarif
matters under treaty of 18th March, 1826, or by other treaty 1 Norway is not in your
list of such countries transmitted this year, although Sweden mentioned."

W. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.

CusToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 23rd September, 1897.

W. A. SCHWARTZ,
Consul for Sweden and Norway,

Quebec, P.Q.

SIR,-With further reference to your letter of the 9th instant, respecting the
right of Norway to participate in the benefits of the reciprocal tariff, I have the honour
to inclose herewith copy of a circular to collectors of customs, advising that Norway is
included in the list of countries entitled to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff, as set
forth in memorandum No. 943b, dated 4th September, 1897.

Excess duties paid on products of Norway since the 23rd April last will be
refunded, on production of satisfactory proof of the origin and value of such products,
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if claim be made, in the usual way, through the collector of customs at the port where
such duty was paid.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

HALIFAX, N.S., 23rd September, 1897.
JOHN MCDOUOALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

DEAR SiR,-In reply to your letter of the 20th instant, file No. 30090, we take
the liberty of asking you if Spain is not entitled to the reciprocal tarif, how it was that
last season (in Oct. 1896), nuts from Spain were allowed entry under terms of French
Treaty Act and rebates of duty were allowed on same goods imported in October, 1895 I
This proves conclusively that under-favoured-nation clauses in treaties Spain was
entitled to same privileges in Canada as was France, under the French Treaty Act, and
under terms of said treaty we cannot see how goods of Spanish origin can be debarred
from participating in the reciprocal tarif. We would ask you to give your further
attention to this matter, and if our contention is right to so instruct collector at this
port.

Yours very truly,

SEETON & MITCHELL.

SWEDISH AND NoRWEGIAN CONSULATE,

JOHN McDOUGALD, 
QUEBEC, 24th September, 1897.

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 23rd instant,
with inclosures, and informing me that Norway has been included in the list of countries
entitled to the benefits of the reciprocal tarif, and that excess of duties paid on products
of Norway since the 23rd of April last will be refunded, on production of satisfactory
proof of the origin and value of such products, if claim be made, in the usual way,
through the collectors of customs at the port where such duties was paid.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

W. A. SCHWARTZ,
Consul for Sweden and Norway.

EXT R ACT from a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council approved
by His Excellency on the 25th September, 1897.

That the minute of the Treasury Board of the 4th September, 1897, establishing
regulations and defining the conditions upon which the benefits of the preferential or
reciprocal tarif under the provisions of " The Customs Tarifi, 1897," shall be extended
to certain countries therein mentioned, be approved and adopted.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.
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(Annex to P. C. 2760, 25th September, 1897.)

CUSTOMS.

The Treasury Board submit for favourable consideration the following regula-
tions:-

Whereas under the provisions of " The Customs Tariff, 1897," the benefits of the
reciprocal tariff have been extended to the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Ireland since the 23rd day of April, 1897.

And whereas in accordance with a decision of the law o¶icers of the Crown,
instructions have been given to the collectors of customs througout the Dominion, to
extend to Belgium, Germany and France the benefits of the said reciprocal tariff.

And whereas under an Order in Council approved on the 26th August, 1897,
instructions were authorized to be given to the several collectors of customs throughout
Canada to extend the benefits of the preferential tariff to Argentine, Austria-Hungary,
Bolivia, Columbia, Denmark, Persia, Russia, Sweden, Tunis, Venezuela and Switzerland,
and also to repay any excess duties that may have been levied since the passage of the
Tariff Act on importations from countries entitled to the benefits of the preferential
tariff.

And whereas it is expedient to further define the conditions upon which the bene-
fits of the preferential or reciprocal tariff shall be extended to the aforesaid countries
and the time f rom which the excess duties levied on the said products shall be computed
for repayment:

Therefore His Excellency, by and with the advice of the Queen's Privy Council for
Canada, is pleased to make the following regulations respecting articles entered under
the reciprocal tariff:-

The products of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland, Belgium,
Germany, France, Algeria and the French colonies, Argentine, Austria-Hungary,
Bolivia, Columbia, Denmark, Persia, Russia, Sweden, Tunis, Venezuela and Switzerland,
when imported from any of the said countries and entered for duty or taken out of
warehouse for consumption in Canada, since the 23rd day of April, 1897, and prior to
the 1st day of August, 1898, shall be subject to the reduction of duty provided for in
the reciprocal tariff set forth in Schedule " D " of " The Customs Tariff, 1897," and
under the limitations mentioned in said Schedule " D, " and the remission of the duties
on the said products in excess of the duties provided under the reciprocal tariff, from
the 23rd April, 1897, to the lst day of August, 1898, is made and the repayment of
such excess duties collected is authorized.

CUSTOms DEPARTMENT,

Messrs. SEETON & MITCHELL, OTTAWA, 27th September, 1897.

Halifax, N.S.

GENTLEMEN,-Referring to your letter of the 23rd instant, I have the honour to
state that the privileges accorded to France under the French Treaty Act were extended
to Spain by Order of the Governor in Council.

The right of Spain to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff have been considered, and
that country has not been included in the list of countries (approved by Order in Council)
to which the reciprocal tariff is extended.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.
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(Copy of Telegram.)

K. BOIssEVAIN, Esq., OTTAWA, Sept. 29th, 1897.

Consul Gen. for the Netherlands, Montreal, Que.

Hon. Mr. Paterson will be at Customs House, Montreal, to-morrow, all day, and will
be pleased to accord you an interview there.

Private Secretary.

HALIFAX, N.S., 1st October, 1897.
JOHN McDOUGALD, EsQ.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-Your letter of the 27th ult. is before us, (file No. 30090) and we trust
you will pardon us for again referring to the matter referred to therein.

You say that by Order of the Governor in Council the privileges accorded to
France under the French Treaty Act were extended to Spain. This being a fact, we
would most respectfully ask you how under Article II of French Treaty, Spain can be
excluded from the benefits of the Reciprocal Tariff, France being named in the list of
countries to which said reciprocal tariff does apply 1

We would respectfully ask you to bring this matter to the notice of the Minister of
Customs, and remain

Yours very truly,
SEETON & MITCHELL.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 5th October, 1897.

T. NOssE, Esq.,
Consul General for Japan,

Vancouver, B.C.

DEAR SIR,-In the absence of the Hon. the Minister of Customs I beg to acknow-
ledge receipt of your letter of the 22nd ultimo, with reference to the application made
by you to have J apan admitted to the benefits of the preferential tariff, and to inform
you that I will place the same before the Minister immediately on his return to the
city.

Yours truly,
Private Secretary.

(Copy of Telegran.)
TOoNTro, 10th October, 1897.

JOHN McDOUGALD, EsQ.,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

Is crockery, glassware, from Bohemia, Hungary, Austria, same duty as Germany?
Wire. Collector holding entry.

McMAHON, BROADFIELD & CO.

(Copy of Reply.)
OTTAWA, 16th August, 1897.

MCMAHON, BROADFIELD & CO.,
Toronto.

Application of reciprocil tariff to Austro-Hungary under consideration of Govern-
ment.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.
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MONTREAL, 13th October, 1897.
HON. W. PATERSON,

Comptroller of Customs,
Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-We are receiving a number of invoices of fruit fron Denia, Spain,
each of which is accompanied with a declaration attesting that the goods are the
produce of Spain, and in letters shippers say that they expect to get the reduction of
one-eighth preferential duty mentioned in schedule " A."

Wili you please inforn us if Spain is included in the prefereitial arrangement, as
it is quite evident that such is the impression at Spanish ports? Consignments we have
received through London firms make the same request. It would seem, therefore, that
the sanie impression is current there.

Yours truly,

THE ROBERT REFORD CO., LTD.,
ROBERT REFORD,

President.

OTTAwA, 14th October, 1897.
The ROBERT REFORD Co., Ltd.,

23 and 25 St. Sacrament Street,
Montreal, Que.

GENTLEMEN,-In reply to your letter of the 13th instant, I beg to state that Spain
is not one of the countries included in the prcierential arrangement.

Yourt truly,
WM. PATERSON.

MONTREAL, 19th October, 1897.
Honourable W. PATERSON,

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-Referring to our recent interview at the customs house, allow me to once
more briefly state the position of my government on the matter of the admission of the
products of Holland under clause 16 of the customs tariff.

Three months ago I submitted for your examination a copy of the customs tariff of
the Netherlands. Ever since then I have been asking for a decision on the point in
question. In this interview referred to you admitted that on the whole the Nether-
lands tariff is more favourable to Canada than the Canadian tariff is to Holland. In
fact there is no denying that, the figures too plainly speak for themselves. Having
complied then with the express terms of the law as laid down by the Canadian parlia-
ment, we only ask that the law be applied. We do not ask any favour, but are of
opinion that where we are entitled to a certain privilege by virtue of an Act passed by
the Legislature of Canada, this privilege should be granted by the executive. When
the time come,, if it ever does come, that the Canadian people through its representa-
tives in the louse of Commons express a wish to curtail the trade with Holland, it
will be time for my government to consider whatever action may be called for. So far
this has not been done, and for Holland to have its commerce with Canada impeded, be
it only to the extent of a single dollar, in entire disregard of the Act which happens
to be favourable to its expansion, is, to say the least, extremely vexatious.

I mentioned to you as one reason why the attitude of your government against the
government at the Hague should not be of a vexations nature, the fact that this govern-
ment can make or mar, check or speed the tide of emigration. Personally, I have gone
to some trouble to bring about Dutch emigration. The Honourable Mr. Sifton would,
if necessary, confirm this to you.
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I can assure you that in several instances lately my efforts at introducing Canada
to public notice in Holland have been met in the local press by the remark that the
Canadian government was not acting in good faith to Holland. Your action in
ignoring our incontrovertible claims to admittance under the reciprocal tariff was most
severely criticised, and in the interest of emigration I am anxious to have this antago-
nism cease.

I herewith confidently leave the matter in your hands, sir. You promised to bring
it up at the first meeting of the cabinet ; I shall be much pleased to hear at as early
date as possible that you have been authorized to carry out the provision of the Customs
Act by admitting goods from Holland under the reciprocal clause of the tariff.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

E. BOISSEVAIN,
Consul General of the Netherlands.

OTTAWA, 21st October, 1897.
K. BoiSSEVA1N, Esq.,

Consul General of the Netherlands.
Montreal, Que.

SI,-I have your letter of the 19th instant, in reference to the request made by
you that Holland be admitted to the benefits of the preferential tariff of the Dominion,
and have carefully noted what you say.

I can only say to you now that I shall take the first opportunity of bringing the
matter before my colleagues for their consideration.

Yours truly,

W. PATERSON,
Controller of Customs.

MEMORANDUM.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 22nd October, 1897.

Collector of Custons.

CONSOLIDATED AND AMENDED REGULATIONS RESPECTING
THE ENTRY OF GOODS UNDER THE CANADIAN

RECIPROCAL TARIFF OF 1897.

Memoranda Nos. 895 B., 921 B., 943 B., 945 B., and other instructions respecting
entries under the reciprocal tariff of 1897 are hereby cancelled and this memorandum,
which is a consoidation of the said memoranda and instructions, with certain amend-
ments, is substituted therefor.

Persons making entry of goods under the Canadian reciprocal tariff of 1897 are
required to furnish a separate invoice of the articles entitled to such entry, with a
declaration annexed thereto, signed by the exporter or bis agent, in the presence of a
subscribing witness, as set forth in the form in Schedule "Il H " hereto.

If invoices are made out at lower prices for goods exported directly to Canada than
the fair market value at the same time and place for such goods when sold for home
consumption in the country whence so exported, in all such cases the invoiceg are also
to show clearly, in a special column, or by addition thereto, sueh fair market value, as
aforesaid, for the goods described therein.

The exporter's declaration as to the origin of the goods is in all cases (except as
hereinafter mentioned) to be produced and filed with the invoice, and its production

24



Preferential Tariff.

to be noted by Customs Officers in Canada on the entry form-otherwise, the general
rates of duty will be collected, without reduction, until the exporter's declaration, as
aforesaid, is furnished.

Customs entries under the reciprocal tarif should be taken separately on the usual
form.

The declaration of the importer or his agent, as to the origin of goods will be
accepted, in lieu of the exporter's declaration, in the case of articles which have been
entered for warehouse (in bond) in Canada prior to the issue of these instructions, and
as to goods valued at less than $10 for the whole importation wher hereafter offered for
entry, subject, however, in all such cases, to the approval of the collector after examin-
ation of the goods by a customs officer.

Articles from all the countries entitled to the benefits of the Reciprocal Tarif may
be entered on the same invoice, and the origin of all the products entered on such in-
voice may be attested to in one declaration, on the form prescribed-the names of the
countries (if more than one) being written in succession in the blank space reserved for
origin of products.

Importers claiming entry of goods under the Reciprocal Tariff are required to file
with Customs Collectors in Canada a certificate of the United States Customs Entry
for Immediate Transportation, or a Bill of Lading, showing through transportation when
such goods are carried in transit through the United States and imported into Canada.

Note particularly that the Reciprocal Tariff does not apply to the following articles,
viz. :-Ales, beers, wines and liquors; sugar, molasses and syrups of all kinds, the
product of the sugar cane or bect root ; tobacco, cigars and cigarettes. (See Schedule
"D," Reciprocal Tariff.)

Articles which are the growth, produce or manufacture of the United Kingdom of
Great Britain and Ireland and of the- other countries mentioned in Schedule " E "
hereto, when imported direct from any of the said countries and entered for duty or
taken out of warehouse for consumption in Canada, shall be subject to the reduction of
duty provided for in the Reciprocal Tariff set forth in Schedule " D" of " The Customs
Tariff, 1897," and under the limitations mentioned in said Schedule ")," froin the date
when admitted to Reciprocal Tariff benefits, as shown in Schedule " E " hereto.

Until the 31st day of July, 1898, the products of all the countries mentioned in
Schedule " G " hereto, when imported from the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Ireland, or any of the countries mentioned in said Schedule " G," and entered for duty
or taken out of warehouse for consumption in Canada since the 23rd day of April, 1897,
shall be subject to the reduction of duty provided for in the Reciprocal Tariff, set forth
in Schedule " D" of " The Customs Tariff, 1897," and under the limitations mentioned
in said Schedule "D."

The excess of duty paid on products imported as aforesaid from the countries to
which the Reciprocal Tariff applies, will be refunded, if the claim therefor, with satis-
factory proof of the origin and value of such products, is made in the usual form
through the Collector of Customs at the Port where such duty was paid.

Nothing in the foregoing instructions shall be held as affecting the right to enter
articles under the " French Treaty Act, 1894," but any articles entered at a reduced
rate under the said Treaty Act shall not be entitled to a further reduction of duty
under the provisions of the -Reciprocal Tariff.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

SCHEDULE "D," RECIPROCAL TARIFF.

'On al the products of countries entitled to the benefits of this Reciprocal Tariff,
under the provisions of Section 16, the duties mentioned in Schedule A shall be reduced
as follows:-

"On and after the 23rd April, 1897, until the 30th day of June, 1898, inclusive,
the reduction shall in every case be one-eighth of the duty mentioned in Schedule A,
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and the duty to be levied, collected and paid shall be seven-eighths of the duty
mentioned in Schedule A.

"On and after the 1st day of July, 1898, the reduction shall in every case be
one-fourth of the duty mentioned in Schedule A, and the duty to be levied, collected
and paid shall be three-fourths of the duty mentioned in Schedule A.

" Provided, however, that these reductions shall not apply to any of the following
articles, and that such articles shall in all cases be subject to the duties mentioned in,
Schedule A, viz.:-wines, malt liquors, spirits, spirituous liquors, liquid medicines and
articles containing alcohol ; sugar, molasses and syrups of all kinds, the product of the
sugar cane or beet root; tobacco, cigars and cigarettes."

SCHEDULE "E."

LiST of Countries entitled to the benefits of the Reciprocal Tariff, under the provisions
of Section 17 of " The Customs Tarif, 1897" (Canada), and date of admission.

Names oF Countries. Date when admitted to Reciprocal Tariff Benefits.

United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland. 23rd April, 1897.

New South Wales. 22nd May, 1897.

British India. 24th Septeimber, 1897.

SCHEDULE "G."

LisT of Countries from which, temporarily, articles may be entered for duty, under the-
Canadian Reciprocal Tariff rates, since the 23rd day of April, 1897, to the 31st.
day of July, 1898.

NAMES OF COUNTRIES.

Belgium.
Germany.
France, Algeria and the French

Colonies.
Argentine.
Austria-Hungary.
Bolivia.
Coluaibia.

Denmark.
Persia.
Russia.
Sweden and Norway.
Tunis.
Venezuela.
Switzerland.

SCHEDULE "H."

FORM OF DECLARATION.

I, the undersigned, (partner or duly authorized agent
of the firm of) of do solennly and truly
declare that t;.e articles described in the annexed invoice (marked ) shipped to

per in packages as detailed below, are bona fide the
produce or manufacture of ; that the said invoice contains a full
and true statement of the fair market value when sold for home consumption of the
said goods at the time and place of the exportation thereof direct to Canada; that such
fair market value includes any bounties, drawbacks, royalties, rents or charges that may
have been or are expected to be allowed or paid on the said goods, or is payable on
patent rights or because of the lease of such goods, or for the right of using the same,
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and that no different invoice or account thereof bas been or will be furnished to anyone
by me or on my behalf.

Descripto
No. and Description of Packages. Marks. Numbers. o

Goods.

Signed at on the day of
189

(Signature)
In the presence of
(Witness)
(Address)

Addenda.

EXTRACT from a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council
approved by His Excellency on the 5th November, 1897.

The committee of the Privy Council have had under consideration the annexed
report from the Minister of Customs, dated 4th November, 1897, respecting the admis-
sion of articles which are the growth, produce or manufacture of the Netherlands to the
benefits of the reciprocal tarif, under the Customs Tarif, 1897, and concurring in the
same, submit it for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTÂAw, 4th November, 1897.

The undersigned, Minister of Customs, bas the honour to report to His Excellency
the Governor General in Council.

That section 17 of " The Customs Tariff, 1897," provides as follows, viz.:-
" When the customs tariff of any country admits the products of Canada on terms

which, on the whole, are as favourable to Canada as the terms of the reciprocal tarif
herein referred to are to the countries to which it may apply, articles which are the
growth, produce or manufacture of such country, when imported direct therefrom, may
then be entered for duty, or taken out of warehouse for consumption in Canada, at the
reduced rates of duty provided in the reciprocal tariff set forth in schedule D to this
Act."

"2. Any question arising as to the countries entitled to the benefits of the recip-
rocal tariff shall be decided by the Controller of Customs, subject to the authority of
the Governor in Council."

"3. The Governor in Council may extend the benefits of the reciprocal tariff to
any country entitled thereto by virtue of a treaty with Her Majesty."

"4. The Controller of Customs may make such regulations as are necessary for
carrying out the intention of this section."

That the undersigned has decided (subject to the approval of the Governor in
Council and to take effect when so approved) that the customs tariff of the Nether-
lands is such as entitles articles which are the growth, produce or manufacture of that
country to the beneits of the reciprocal tariff, subject to the limitations mentioned
in schedule D of the said customs tariff, 1897.

27
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He submits his action in this matter for the approval of His Excellency the
Governor General in Council.

WM. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.

EXTRACT fron a report of the Committee of the Honourable the Priy Council, approved
by Hiù Excellency on the 5th November, 1897.

The committee of the Privy Council having had under consideration the annxed
memorandum from the Minister of Customs, dated 4th November, 1897, respecting the
admission of articles which are the growth, produce or manufacture of Japan to the
benefits of the reciprocal tarif, under the customs tariff, 1897, and concurring therein,
submit the same for your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

CusToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 4th November, 1897.

The undersigned, Minister of Customs, has the honour to report to His Excellency
the Governor General in Council.

That section 17 of " The Customs Tarif, 1897," provides as follows:-
" When the customg tariff of any country admits the products of Canada on terms

which, on the whole, are as favourable to Canada as the terms of the reciprocal tarif
herein referred to are to the countries to which it may apply, articles which are the
growth, produce or manufacture of such country, when imported direct therefrom, may
then be entered for duty, or taken out of warehouse for consumption in Canada, at the
reduced rates of duty provided in the reciprocal tariff set forth in schedule D to this
Act.

"2. Any question arising as to the countries entitled to the benefits of the recipro-
cal tariff shall be decided by the controller of customs, subject to the authority of the
Governor in Council.

" 3. The Governor in Council may extend the benefits of the reciprocal tarif to
any country entitled thereto by virtue of a treaty with Her Majesty.

" 4. The Controller of Customs may make such regulations as are necessary for
carrying out the intention of this section."

That the undersigned has decided (subject to the approval of the Governor in
Council, and to take effect when so approved) that the customs tarif of Japan is such
as entitles articles which are the growth, produce or manufacture of that country to the
benefits of the reciprocal tariff, subject to the limitations mentioned in schedule D of
the said Customs Tarif, 1897.

-He submit. his action in this matter for the approval of His Excellency the Gover-
nor Genoral in Council.

WM. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.

MEMORANDUM.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWÂ, 5th November, 1897.

Collector of Customs.

You are hereby instructed that Japan and the Netherlands are included in the list
of countries entitled to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff, under the provisions of sec-
tion 17 of the Customs Tariff, 1897,-to take effect on and after the 5th November,
1897.
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Articles which are the growth, produce or manufacture of Japan or the Netherlands
are subject to entry under the same regulations as like articles from the United King-
dom of Great Britain and Ireland, as set forth in memorandum 949 B., dated the 22nd
October, 1897.

Japan and the Netherlands are to be added to the list of countries mentioned in
Schedule " E " of the said memorandum 949 B., on and after the 5th November, 1897.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner of Customs.

(Copy of Telegram.)

VANCOUVER, B. C., 5th November, 1897.
Hon. Wm. PATERSON,

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

Kindly wire if your government has decided to extend preferential tariff to.
Japan.

T. NOSSE,
Japanese Consul.

(Copy of Telegram.

OTTAWA, 5th November, 1897.
K. BoIssEvAIN, Esq.,

Consul General for the Netherlands,
290 Guy Street, Montreal.

Have written you to-day that the Netherlands have been admitted to the benefits,
of the preferential tariff.

WM. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.

(Copy of Telegram.)

OTTAWA, 5th November, 1897.
T. NOSSE, Esq.,

Imperial Japanese Consul,
Vancouver, B.C.

Have written you to-day that Japan has been admitted to the benefits of the pre-
ferential tariff.

WM. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.

OTTAWA, 5th November, 1897.
T. NossE, Esq.,

Imperial Japanese Consul,
Vancouver, B.C.

SIR,-Referring again to your letters respecting the admission of Japan to the Pre-
ferential tariff, I have the honour to advise you that it has been decided to admit Japan.
to the benefits of said tariff, from this date.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

WM. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.
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OTTAwA, 5th November, 1897.
K. BoissEvAIN, Esq.,

Consul General of the Netherlands,
290 Guy Street, Montreal, Que.

SI,-Referring again to your letter of the 19th ultimo, I have the bonour to
Inform you that it has been decided to admit the Netherlands to the benefits of the

preferential tariff, from this date.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

WM. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs.

CONSULATE GENERAL OF THE NETHERLANDS IN CANADA.
MONTREAL, 6th November, 1897.

Bon. W. PATERSON,
Minister of Customs,

Ottawa, Ont.

Sia,-I beg to acknowledge receipt of your letter of 5th, informing me that the
Netherlands have been admitted to the benefits of the preferential clause from that
date.

I beg to point out in this connection that f rom the date the tariff went into force
goods have been imported from Holland and merchants have applied to me for infor-
mation regarding the rate of duty to be levied on such gocds. I considered the claims
of Holland for admission under the preferential clause so little liable to doubt or dis-
cussion that I took it for granted that your decision in the matter would be reached
within a few days after I submitted the Holland tariff for examination. The Canadian
,merchants were, therefore, led to believe f rom one day to another that the reduction
would apply, and on the strength of this assumption ordered goods f rom Holland. I
wish to point out the hardship to these merchants, also to their suppliers in Holland, if
you do not make your decision retroactive. I would, therefore, most respectfully ask
that applications for refund of duty be favourably considered.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

K. BOISSEVAIN.

OTTAWA, 9th November, 1897.
K. BoISSEvAIN, Esq.,

Consul General of the Netherlands,
Montreal, Que.

SI,-I have your letter of the 6th instant, asking that the decision admitting the
Netherlands to the benefits of the Canadian preferential tariff be made retroactive.

The Order in Council admitting the Netherlands to the benefits of the said tariff
specifically states that such admission shall take place from the date of the order. I
cannot, therefore, comply with your request. My powers as minister and the powers of
the department are only administrative.

Yours truly.

WM. PATERSON.

A. 1899
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HALIFAX, N.S., 5th November, 1897.
Hion. WM. PATERSON,

Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

SiR,-As a,;ents for several mercantile huouses in Spain, we have the honour of
addressing you on the subject of the rights of Spain under the French Treaty Act.

By an order of the Governor in Council the privileges accorded to France under
the French Treaty Act were extended to Spain.

Under said order, France having been granted the benefits of the reciprocal tarif,
we would ask that the same benefits be granted also to Spain, for by article II of
French Treaty Act, which reads " Any commercial advantage, especially in tariff mat-
ters, shall be enjoyed fully by France, Algeria and the French colonies," under which
France is granted the benefits of the reciprocal tariff, and Spain has been granted by
'Order in Council the same benefits as France, the reciprocal tariff must also apply to
Spain.

We therefore beg to request that Spain be included in the list of countries to which
the reciprocal tariff shall apply, and that our collector of customs be notified of this at
as early a date as possible, for we have large shipments of raisins, &c., from Spain now
about due here, and it is necessary that the question be settled soon.

We have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

SEETON & MITCHELL.

TORONTO, 6th November, 1897.
JoHN MCDOOGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-We have learned that Japan bas just been admitted to the benefits of
the reciprocal tariff. Kindly let us know if these benefits will be applied to all the
merchandise which bas been imported since 23rd April, 1897.

Yours truly,
K. ISHIKAWA & CO.

(Copy of Telegram.)

MONTREAL, 8th November, 1897.
JoHN MCDOUGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa.

Why does preferential clause with Japan only come into force on 5th of
November, whereas Belgium and Great Britain from 23rd April ? Wire at once reply
to 17 Nicholas Street.

L. J. TROTTER.

(Copy of Reply.)
OTTAWA, Sth November, 1897.

L. J. TROTTER, Esq.,
17 St. Nicholas Street,

Montreal, P.Q.

Reciprocal tariff only extended to Japan on 5th November. Extended to
Great Britain 23rd April, and to Belgium same time temporarily under treaty. Canada
not under treaty with Japan.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.
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CUSTOMS DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 10th November, 1897.

MEssRs. K. ISHIKAWA & CO..
24 Wellington St., West, Toronto, Ont.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 6th
instant, inquiring if the benefits of the reciprocal tarif will be applied to all the
merchandise which has been imported into Canada from Japan since 23rd April, 1897.

In reply, I beg to advise you that the benefits of the reciprocal tarif were ex-
tended to Japan on the 5th November, 1897, and do not apply to the produce of Japan
imported prior to the said date.

I inclose herewith for your information copy of memorandum No. 950 B.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient seivant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

CUSTOMS DEPARTMENT,
OTTAwA, 11th November, 1897.

MESSRS. SEETON & MITCHELL,
Halifax, N.S.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour te acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 5th
instant, te the Honourable the Minister of Customs, claiming that the advantage of the
reciprocal tarif should be extended te the products of Spain.

The minister has carefully considered your letter, together with the matters referred
to therein, and he directs me to state that Spain is not entitled te the benefits of the
reciprocal tarif under the provisions of any treaty, and it is, therefore, not intended
te admit Spanish products te entry under the reciprocal tarif.

It has not been claimed or established that Spain is entitled to preferential treat
ment under section 17 of the Customs Tarif, 1897, by virtue of the Spanish tarif
being as favourable in its terms as that of Canada.

As te the Order in Council of the 3rd March. 1896, directing "that Spain be
added te the list of countries having a right to participate in the advantages conceded
te France under the so-called French treaty,"-this department holds that the
"advantages " referred te in the Order in Council are limited to the provisions of article
one of the said French treaty, and that the advantages mentioned in article two of
the treaty cannot be extended to Spain without the authority of parliament.

The authority of parliament has not been so obtained and the reciprocal tarif
does not, therefore, apply te Spanish products.

Under these circumstances the Honourable Minister of Customs is unable te
comply with your wishes in this inatter.

I have the honour te be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

HIs IMPERIAL JAPANESE MAJESTY'S CONSULATE FOR CANADA.
VANCOUVER, B.C., 15th November, 1897.

Hon. WM. PATERsON,
Minister of Customs, Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-I have the honour te acknowledge the telegram and letter both of the 5th of
November, 1897, stating that Japan has been admitted te the benefits of the preferential
tarif frum the said date.

A. 1899
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In reply, I beg to state that contents were at once wired to the Japanese govern-
ment who, I am sure, will most heartily appreciate this important decision being made
for the benefit of Japan trade.

I have no doubt that the outcome of this substantial and friendly concession toward
Japan will result in the increase of trade between the two nations.

I have the honor to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

T. NOSSE,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul.

IMPERIAL AND ROYAL AUSTRO-HUNGARIAN CONSULATE,
MONTREAL, CANADA, llth November, 1897.

The Hon. Wm. PATERSON,
Controller of Customs,

Ottawa.

SiR,-I have the honour to inclose herewith a copy of the customs tariff of Canada,
1897, in which, according to the promise made during my recent interview with you, I
have recorded the rates of duties and reference numbers of the Austro-Hungarian cus-
toms tariff for such articles which are exported from Canada and which alone would
come under consideration at the discussion showing that the benefits of the reciprocal
tariff should be extended to Austro-Hungarian products and manufactures as confirming
that on the whole the terms of the Austro-Hungarian tariff are as favourable to Canada
as the terms of the reciprocal tariff of Canada are to Austro-Hungary.

The articles which would principally form the exports from Canada to Austria-
Hungary, should the project of a direct steamship communication, to which I had the
honour to refer in my letter to you of the 28th of January last, ever materialize, would
be fish and products of the fisheries, ores and mattes and other products of the mine, and
lumber, the latter article being admitted into Austria-Hungary free of duty. However
with the present condition of home production and consumption for agricultural pro-
ducts in Austria-Hungary it is only a question of time when regular imports of agricul-
tural products as well will be required, taking into consideration that even now several
shipments of wheat have been made f rom New York to Trieste, and, as according to
Article VII of the tariff regulations, the minister is empowered to temporarily take off
the duty on grain in case of unfavourable harvests there can be hardly any doubt that as
soon as regular imports of grain are required, the duties thereon will be entirely
removed.

With the inferred establishment of direct steamship communication, Austria-Hun-
gary should become a good market for Canadian products, and I therefore have the
honour to most respectfully request your kind consideration of the rights and privileges
9 f the Austro-Hungarian monarchy to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff, even should
for the present all go to the one side, but in view of gaining for Canadian products for
the near future an entirely new and desirable market.

I am obliged to add that according to article III of the Austro-Hungarian cus-
toms regulations the products and merchandise from countries who treat Austro-Hun-
garian products and merchandise less favourable than those from other countries are
subject to an additional duty of thirty per cent, and on free goods a duty of fifteen per
cent ad valorem will be levied.

I have also the honour to respectfully draw your attention to the flow of immigra-
tion from the Austro-Hungarian monarchy of a most desirable class of settlers and would
say that such immigration might be seriously retarded should my country be denied the
benefits of the reciprocal tariff.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

ED. SCHULTZE,
Imperial and Royal Consul.
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OTTAWA, 18th November, 1897.
EDWARD SCHULTZE, Esq.,

Imperial and Royal Austro-Hungarian Consul,
Montreal, Que.

SiR,-I beg to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the ilth instant, inclosing
copy of the customs tariff of Canada, in which you have recorded the rates of duty and
reference numbers of the Austro-Hungarian customs tarif for such articles which are
exported from Canada.

I can only say to you now that your letter will receive my consideration and I will
draw the attention of my colleagues to it.

Yours truly,
WM. PATERSON.

OTTAWA, 29th December, 1897.
To the Honourable the Minister of Customs,

Ottawa.

SiR,-According with the desire expressed in your letter of the 29th April last, I
have now prepared a statement showing in official statistics the difference between the
Canadian and the Belgian tarifs. I had the honour to send this statement to the
Prime Minister, who, without doubt, has already communicated it to you. If you should
wish any other statistics such as the " Official Statement of the Trade of Belgium with
Foreign Countries," I shall be glad to send them.

I should be very pleased to receive from you in return, communication of the com-
parison of the tariffs of both countries elaborated by your department.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

FAUCONVAL,
The Consul General for Belgium in Canada.

OTTAWA, 31st Deceniber, 1897.
Hon. Sir WILFRID LAURIER, K.C.M.G.,

Premier, Ottawa.

MY DEAR SIR WILFRID,-I am in receipt of a letter fronm the Consul General for
Belgium at Ottawa, in which the writer states that he has forwarded to you a state-
ment showing in official statistics the difference between the Canadian and the Belgium
tarifs.

If yofi are through with this statement, I should be pleased if you would forward
it to me, for consideration.

Yours faithfully,
WM. PATERSON.

OTTAWA, 3rd January, 1898.
The Consul General for Belgium in Canada,

Ottawa, Ont.

SIR,-In the absence of the Hon. the Minister of Customs, I beg to acknowledge
receipt of your letter of the 29th ultimo, and to say to you that I will place the same
before the Minister immediately on his return to the city.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Yours obediently,

Private Secretary.

A. 1899
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ToRONTO, 26th November, 1897.
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-Will you kindly let me know if Customs Department will allow refund
of duty on entries passed since 23rd April on goods from Japan, or if advantages of
reciprocal tarif take effect on 5th November only ?

Yours very truly,
C. W. IRWIN.

CUSTOMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 30th November, 1897.

C. W. IRWIN, Esq.,
40 Yonge Street, Toronto, Ont.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 26th instant,
inquiring as to the date from which refunds of duty will be allowed in respect of
goods imported into Canada from Japan.

The reciprocal tarif applies to Japan only from 5th November, 1897, as per
memorandum No. 950b.

Refunds of duty on account of such tariff cannot therefore be allowed on the
products of Japan imported prior to the said date.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

NEW YORK, 1lth December, 1897.
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa, Canada.

HONOURABLE SIR,-We would deem it a favour if you would kindly furnish us
with information in regard to the reciprocal tarif under provisions of section 17 of the
customs tarif of 1897. Do we understand that this is a treaty signed by the Japanese
government, or is a case of Japan and the Netherlands commanding the same benefits
as allowed to the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland? Would also ask you
to kindly advise us if there is a question of this concession being repealed at the next
session of parliament.

Any information on this subject will be greatly appreciated by

Yours very truly, MORIMURA BROS.

CUsToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 15th December, 1897.

MESSRS. MORIMURA BRos.,
539 and 541 Broadway,

New York City.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 1lth
instant, inquiring if Japan and the Netherlands have been admitted to participation in
the benefits of the reciprocal tarif of Canada by virtue of a treaty signed by the
governments or otherwise.

Japan and the Netherlands are not entitled to the benefits of the reciprocal
tarif by virtue of any treaty.
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These countries have been admitted to favoured treatment on account of their low
tariffs.

The Dominion parliament can, of course, repeai the tariff at its first sitting, if
deemed expedient; but I am unable to state what action, if any, may be taken thereon.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

ToRONTO, l7th December, 1897.
COMMISsIONER OF CUSTOMS,

Ottawa.

DEAR SiR,-I handile a considerable quantity of goods from Japan, and I under-
stand that goods fron Japan come under the reciprocal tariff. Would you kindly
advise me when this tariff with Japan went into force, and does the reciprocal tariff
with this country expire next July, same as with the other countries such as Germany,
&c., are under the new treaty with Japan it remains in force, and goods from Japan
will likely remain for years on same basis of tariff as Great Britain. Further, is all
goods which may have come in from J apan since May 1st last subject to the one-
eighth off rate? Kindly let me hear from you with full particulars.

WM. BRYCE.

CusTois DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 21st December, 1897.

WM. BRYCE, Esq.,
31 Front St., West,

Toronto, Ont.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 17th instant,
enquiring as to the provisions of the reciprocal tariff as applied to goods imported into
Canada from Japan.

Memorandum No. 950 B. is inclosed herewith, showing that the application of the
reciprocal tariff to Japan took effect on and after 5th November, 1897.

There is no time fixed when the said tariff will cease to apply to Japan; and its
application to that country will be continued after July next, unless there is further
legislation in the meantime by the Canadian parliament, or some action taken by Japan
which may call for reconsideration of the benefits extended to that country.

I inclose copy of memorandum No. 949 B.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

MEMORANDUM.
CusToMs DEPARTMENT,

Collector of Customs. OTTAWA, 1st January, 1898.

You are hereby instructed that Liberia, Morocco, Salvador, South African Repub-
lic, Tonga and Spain are included in the list of countries entitled to the benefits of the
reciprocal tariff set forth in the " Customs Tariff, 1897," since the 23rd day of April,
1897, to the 31st July, 1898.
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Liberia, Morocco, Salvador, South African Republic, Tonga and Spain are to be
added to the list of countries mentioned in schedule "G" of memorandum 949 B.,
dated 22nd October, 1897, and articles which are the growth, produce or manufacture
of any of the said countries, are subject to entry under the regulations set forth in the
said memorandum.

Nothing in the foregoing instructions shall be held as affecting the right to enter,
under the terms of the French treaty Act, 1894, certain articles the produce of Spain
which are mentioned in the said treaty Act, but articles entered at a reduced rate as
provided in the said Treaty Act, shall not be entitled to a further reduction of duty
under the provisions of the reciprocal tariff.
, The excess of duty paid on products imported since the 23rd day of April, 1897,
from the countries hereinbefore mentioned, will be refunded, if the claim therefor with
satisfactory proof of the origin and value of such products is made in the usual form
through the collector of customs at the port where such duty was paid.

The declaration of the importer or his agent, as to the origin of the goods, will be
accepted in lieu of the exporters' declaration, in the case of products of the countries
aforementioned, imported prior to 31st January, 1898.

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

CusToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 7th January, 1898.

The Consul General for Spain,
Montreal, P.Q.

SIR,-I have the honour to send you herewith, for your information, copy of
instructions issued to collectors of customs, respecting the addition of Liberia, Morocco,
Salvador, South African Republic, Tonga and Spain to the list of countries entitled to
the benefits of the reciprocal tariff set forth in the "Customs Tariff, 1897."

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

CusToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 7th January, 1898.

Messrs. SEETON & MITCHELL,
Halifax, N.S.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to send you herewith, for your information, copy
of instructions issued to collectors of customs, respecting the addition of Liberia,
Morocco, Salvador, South African Republic, Tonga and Spain to the list of countries
entitled to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff set forth in the " Customs Tariff, 1897,"

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

The Honourable the Minister of TORONTO, 8th January, 1898.

Trade and Commerce or Controller of H. M. Customs,
Ottawa.

DEAR Si,-Referring tc section No. 17 of the Canadian Customs Act, we notice any
country admitting the products of Canada on terms on the whole as favourable as the
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terms of the reciprocal tariff of Canada, then the products of such foreign country shall
be admitted into Canada at the reduced rate of duty provided in schedule D to the Act.

Mr. Mitchell has just returned from Japan and China; while there he succeeded in
opening up a trade with China, also did some business in Hong Kong, and shortly we
shall be shipping regularly our cigarettes (made by the Imperial Cigarette and Tobacco
Co., St. John, N.B.), to both places above enumerated. As you are aware the port of
Hong Kong, like England, is entirely (or nearly so) free to all, while the average tarif of
China is 5 per cent. This being so under section 17 above referred to, we hold the pro-
ducts of Hong Kong as well as of China proper are entitled to entry into Canada at the
reduced rate. The collector here says as these places do not appear on the official list of
favoured nations, they cannot admit such products, except under ordinary tariff rates,
without instructions from Ottawa. Will you kindly give the matter your early atten-
tion, and let us know the result of your deliberations at earliest moment, and oblige.

Yours faithfully,

CHAS. J. MITCHELL & CO.

HALIFAX, N.S., 10th January, 1898.
JOHN MCDOUGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner of Customs,
Ottawa, Ont.

DEAR SIR,-We beg to thank you for your favour of the 7th instant, inclosing copy
of instructions issued to collectors of customs respecting the addition of Spain and
other countries to the list of countries entitled to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff.

We have the hononr to be
Yours very truly,

SEETON & MITCHELL.

CUsToMS DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, i2th January, 1898.

MESSRS. CHAS. J. MITCHELL & CO.,
25 Front St., West,

Toronto, Ont.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 8th
instant to the Hon. the Minister of Customs, referring to section 17 of " The Customs
Tarif, 1897," and asking if the products of Hong Kong and China may be admitted
into Canada under the reciprocal tariff.

In reply, I am directed to state that the benefits of the Reciprocal Tariff have not
been extended to Hong Kong or to China.

It cannot be stated at present whether the reciprocal tariff will be extended to
these countries or not.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.

A. 1899
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SPANISH CONSULATE GENERAL IN BRITISH NORTH AMERICA,
MONTREAL, 14th January, 1898.

Mr. JOHN McDoU4ALD,
Commissioner of Customs,

Ottawa.

SiR,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of the copy of instructions issued
to the collectors of customs, respecting the addition of Spain to the list of countries
entitled to the benefits of the reciprocal tariff set forth in the " Customs Tariff, 1897,"
which circular was inclosed in your letter of the 7th inst. File No. 30090.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

E. DE BONILLA MARTEL,
Spanish Consul General.

TORONTO, 15th January, 1898.
The Honourable

The Minister of Customs,
Ottawa.

DEAR SIR,-Replying to yours of the 12th instant. The ground we take is that
the tariff of China being an average of only 5 per cent on imports from Canada in
common with other countries, that section 17 of " The Customs Tariff, 1897,"
expressly states such goods are entitled to the benefits of said reciprocal duties. We
would like to have a decision on this point as soon as possible, for the reason that we
have a large consignment (120 tons) of Chinese mattings now on the way. These goods
are sold on a very close margin; we have been depending on this reduction to help us
out on the transaction. We will therefore thank you to have the matter again
considered, and a decision rendered as soon as convenient.

Thanking you in anticipation, we are

Yours faithfully,

CHAS. J. MITCHELL & CO.

CusToMs DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 19th January, 1898.

Messrs. CHAS. J. MITCHELL & Co.,
25 Front St., West,

Toronto, Ont.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 15th
instant to the Hon. the Minister of Customs, with further reference to the extension
of the reciprocal tariff to China.

The attention of the minister will be directed to your request without delay.
The produce of China will not, however, be admitted to the benefits of the

reciprocal tariff until the Hon. the Minister of Customs so decides, with the approval of
His Excellency the Governor General in Council.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner.
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TORoNTo, 12th April, 1898.
JOHN MCDOUGALD, Esq.,

Commissioner, Customs Department,
Ottawa, Ont.

DEAR SIR,-We beg to inquire what will be the rate of rebate of import duty on
the imports from Japan during the month of July, 1898. Can we expect to get 25
per cent rebate on the goods imported from Japan during the month of July ?

Yours respectfully,

K. ISHIWAKA & CO.,
Per S. Mogi.

CUSTOMS DEPARTMENT,
OTTAWA, 21th April, 1898.

Messrs. K. ISHIWAKA & Co.,
24 Wellington St., West,

Toronto, Ont.

GENTLEMEN,- have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 12th
instant, and in reply beg to state that the rebate on goods, the produce of Japan,
imported into Canada, will be 25 per cent of the duty, when entered during the month
of July, 1898.

The rebate does not continue after the end of July next.
Copy of resolutions inclosed herewith.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

JOHN McDOUGALD,
Commissioner
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DOCUMENTS
[No. 110]

RELATING tO the recent disallowance of certain Statutes passed by the Legis-
lature of British Columbia.

List of Acts passed by the Legislature of British Columbia, in the session of
1898, containing a clause attaching a penalty of $5 a day for each and every Chinese-
or Japanese person employed in the construction or operation of the undertakings
authorized by the said Acta, which have been left to their operation:-

Chapter 10.-An Act to confirm an agreement between Her Majesty in right of
fier Province of British Columbia and Frank Owen and William John Stokes, and
to incorporate the Cariboo-Omineca Chartered Company.

Chapter 30.-An Act to amend the British Columbia Publie Works Loan Act,
1897.

Chapter 46.-An Act to incorporate the Alice Arm Railway.
Chapter 47.-An Act to incorporate the Arrowhead and Kootenay Railway

Company.
Chapter 48.-Au Act to incorporate the British Columbia Great Gold Gravels

Dredge-Mining Corporation.
Chapter 50.-An Act to incorporate the Canadian Yukon Railway Companv.
Chapter 52.-An Act to incorporate the Downie Creek Railway Company.
Chapter 53.-An Act to incorporate the East Kootenay Valley Railway Com-

pany.
Chapter 54.-An Act to incorporate the Kitimaat Railway Companv, Limited.
Chapter 55.-An Act to incorporate the Kootenay and North-west Railway

Company.
Chapter 56.-An Act to incorporate the Mountain Tramway and Electrie Com-

pany.
Chapter 57.-An Act respecting the Nanaimo Electrie Light, Power and Heat-

ing Company, Limited.
Chapter 58.-An Act to incorporate the North Star and Arrow Lake Railway

Company.
Chapter 59.-An Act to incorporate the Portland and Stikine Railway Company.
Chapter 60.-An Act to incorporate the Red Mountain Tunnel Company,

Limited.
Chapter 61.-An Act to incorporate the Revelstoke and Cassiar Railway Com-

pany.
Chapter 62.-An Act to incorporate the Skeena River and Eastern Railway

Company.
Chapter 63.-An Act to incorporate the Skeena River Railway Colonization

and Exploration Company.
Chapter 64.-An Act to incorporate the South East Kootenay Railway Com-

pany.
The foregoing A cts have been allowed to go into operation.

The two following Acts have boen disallowed:-
Chapter 28.-An Act relating to the employmient of Chinese or Japanese per-

sons on works carried on under franchises granted by Private Acte.
Chapter 44.-An Act to amend the Tramway Incorporation Act.

3
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(.Persond.13
Hi IMPERIAL JAPANESE MAJESTY'S CONSULATE,

VANCOUVER, B.C., 14th March, 1898.

The Right Honourable Sir WILFRID LAURIER,
Prime Minister and President of the Council.

SiL,-I have the honour of addressing you, as I had to His Excellency the
Governor General, respecting a bill introduced in the House of Commons, by Mr.
McInnis, making the Chinese Immigration Act applicable to the Japanese, and
increasing the poll tax to five hundred dollars.

You are convinced, I believe, that it is unfair and unjust to legislate, or even
attempt to legisiate, discriminately against the subject of the country which I have
the honour to represent here, whose progress in civilization bas excited the admira-
tion of the world, and who bas been internationally recognized as the equal of any
country, in the same way as against the Chinese. Also I believe that the temper of
higher class in this country in these matters is entirely different from that of
certain elements of labourors whose views some politicians are forced to support.
But if the bill shall have any great number of supporters in, or should it pass through
the House of Commons or parliament, Japanese nation caunot be helped considering
it as the attitude of Canada towards thoir country. To say nothing about affocting
the most cordial feeling which happily exists at present between the Dominion of
Canada and the Empire of Japan, it may hinder the development of the trade and
commerce between both countries, which bids fair to grow year by year.

For the highest interests of both countries it is, therefore, to be earnestly hoped
that you may use your influence to cause the bill to be withdrawn, or to minimize
the number of supporters of the bill. I may say confidentially, in addition, that I
am communicating with my government in this matter, and that I myself, or Consul
Nosse, who is now stationed at Chicago, but who bas consular jurisdiction over the
Eastern Canada, may be instructed to proceed over there. If I go you will be
requested to favour me with an interview in this matter.

I avait myself of this occasion to express to you the assurance of my highest
consideration.

S. SHIMIZU,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul.

PRIVY COUNCIL, CANADA.
OTTAWA, 23rd March, 1898.

S. SlIMIzU, Esq.,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul,

Vancouver, B.Ô.
SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 14th

inst. Mr. MeInuis, as yon are aware, in proposing the bill to which you call my
attention, is acting in the exercise of bis rights as a member of the House of Com-
mons of Canada. I will not fail to lay before my colleagues the representations
which you have conveyed to mg in youir letter. I venture to express the hope and
belief that the good relations which at present exist between Japan and the British
Empire will not be marred in any way by anything that may take place in Canada.

I have the honour to be, sir, yours respectfully,
WILFRID LAURIER.

ExTaACT from a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Privy Counicil, approved
by His Excellency on the tOth November, 1898.

The committee of the Privy Countcil have had under consideration a despatch,
hereto annexed, dated 1lth August, 1898, from the Right Honourable Mr. Chamber-
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lain, transmitting copies of correspondence with the Foreign Office, respecting a
note from the Japanese Minister complaining of the recent Acts of the Legislature
of British Columbia aimed at the exclusion of Japanese subjects from employment
in that province.

The committee, on the recommendation of the Minister of Justice, to whom the
despatch was referred, advise that a copy of the said despatch and of the accom-
panying correspondence with the Foreigu Office, be transmitted to the Lieutenant
Governor of the province of British Columbia, and that ho be requested to state the
views of his government upon the subject for the information of Your Excellency in
replying to Mr. Chamberlain's despatch.

All of which is respectfully submitted for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Aberdeen.

Governor General, DoWNING STREET, 1 lth August, 1898.

&C., &c., &c.

Mi LoRD,-With reference to my telegram of the 18th June and rny dospatch No.
214 of the 20th alt., I have the honour to transmit to you for communication to your
ministers copies of correspondence with the Foreign Office respecting a note from
the Japanose minister at this court, complaining of the recent bills of the Legisla-
lature of British Columbia aimed at the exclusion of Japanese subjects from employ-
ment in that province.

I shall be glad if you will move your ininisters to give their early consideration
to this matter.

i have, &c.,
J. CIAMBERLAIN.

(Immediate.)
FoREIoN OFFICE, 6th August, 1898.

The Under Secretary of State,
Colonial Office.

SI,-I am directed by the Marquis of Salisbury to transmit, to be laid before
the Secretary of State for the Colonies, copy of a note which has been received from
the Japanese minister at this court, complaining of recent legislation in British
Columbia for the exclusion of Japanese subjects from employment in that province.

Ris Lordship would be glad to be informed what answer Mr. Secretary Cham-
berlain would suggest to be returned to the Japanese Minister's note.

I amn, &c.,
FRANCIS BERTIE.

JAPANESE LEGATION, 3rd August, 1898.

The Marquis of Salisbury, K.G., &c., &c., &c.

MONSIEUR LE MARQUIs,-The legislative assembly of the province of British
Columbia, in the Dominion of Canada, passed in the month of May last, an Act " to
prohibit the employment of Chinese and Japanese persons on work carried on under
the franchises granted by private Acts," also another Act "to amend the British
Columbia Public Works Loan Act, 1897," and several railway and other private
bills, ail of which contain provisions prohibiting the employment of Japanese sub-
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jects in several works, public and private, under the penalty of a fine for each
Japanese Eo employed. The Japanese Consul at Vancouver has, therefore, under
instructions of the Imperial government entered a proteet to the Lieutenant
Governor of the province in the hope that the necessary approval of the Governor
might be withheld from these enactments. His representations were, however,
fruitless, and the Acts were approved by the Lieutenant Governor, and are now
awaiting the assent of the Governor General of Canada.

My government, although they confidently believe that the legislation se
unfriendly and discriminating against Japanese subjects would not receive the
sanction of the Governor General, have instructed me to call the attention of Her
Majesty's Government te the matter.

The impropriety of such discriminating legislation against the subjects of a
friendly state is evident in itself and requires hardly any comment on the part of
my government. The Japanese subjects in Canada are not large in number. So
far as my government are awaro they have always been law-abiding and have done
nothing that might necessitate a legislative action adverse to their interests.
Moreover, in the opinion of my government, such measures if allowed to become
law, cannot but injuriously affect the cordial and commercial relations which now
happily exist between Japan and the Dominion of Canada, and which have every
prospect of further developments in the near future.

I have therefore the honour to ask the good offices of your lordship se that Her
Majesty's government may see their way to exercise their influence with the
Governor Gencral of Canada in order that his assent may be withheld from the
aforesaid legislation of British Columbia.

I have, &c.,
KATO.

The Under Secretary of State, DOWNING STREET, 1lth August, 1898.

Foreign Office.
Sin,-In reply te your letter of the 6th inst., inclosing a copy of a note from

the Japanese minister at this court protesting against recent legislation in British
Columbia for the exclusion of Japanese subjects from employment in that province,
I am directed by Mr. Secretary Chamberlain to acquaint you for the information of
the Marquis of Salisbury that no reply has yet br en received to the communications
addressed to the Governor General on this subject.

A copy of Mr. Kato's note will, however, be sent to him, with a request that
he will press his ministers for early consideration ot tho matter, and in the mean-
time I am to suggest that M. Kato should be informed that Mr. Chamberlain is in
communication with the Governor General of Canada on this subject.

I amn, &c.,
C. P. LUCAS.

EXTRACT from a Report of the Committee of the Ronourable the Privy Council, ap-
proved by His Excellency on the 17th December, 1898.

The committee have had under consideration the annexed report dated Sth
November, 1898, from the Minister of Justice upon the statutes of the province of
British Columbia, passed in the sixty-first year of Her Majesty's reign (1898), and
received by the Secretary of State of Canada on the 8th June, 1898.

The minister is of opinion that these statutes may be left te their operation
without comment, with the exception of those specially referred to in the said
report, and which are the following:-

Chapter 40 " An Act to give effect to the Revised Statutes of British Columbia."
Chapter 49 " An Act respecting the Canadian Pacific Navigation Company

(Limited.)"
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Chapter 28 " An Act relating to the employment of Chinese or Japanese persons
on works carried on under Franchises granted by private Acte."

Chapter 10 " An Act to confirm an agreement between Her Majesty in right
of Her Province of British Columbia and Frank Owen and William John Stokes,
and to incorporate the Cariboo-Omineca Chartered Company."

Section 30 of this chapter provides that "no Chinese or Japanese person shall
be employed in the construction or operation of the undertaking hereby authorized,
under a penalty of five dollars per day for each and every Chinese or Japanese
person employed in contravention of this section, to be recovered on complaint of
any person under the provisions of the Summary Convictions Act."

Chapters 30, 44, 46, 47, 48, 50, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64.
Each of these statutes contains a provision similar to section 30 of chapter 10
prohibiting the employment of Chinese or Japanese persons by the respective
Companies.

The committee concur in the said report and submit the same for Your Excel-
lency's approval and advise that a certified copy of this minute, if approved, together
with a copy of the said report of the Minister of Justice, and of the papers accom-
panying the same, be transmitted to the Lieutenant Governor of the province of
British Columbia for the information of bis government.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

DEPARTMENT OF JUsTICE, CANADA,
OTTAWA, 8th November, 1898.

To His Excollency the Governor General in Council:

The undersigned has had under consideration the sfatutes of the province of
British Columbia, passed in the sixty-first year of Her Majesty's reign (1898), and
received by the Secretary of State for Canada on 8th June, 1898, and he is of opinion
that these statutes may be left to their operation without comment, with the excep-
tion of those hereafter specially referred to:-

Chapter 40, " An Act to give effect to the Revised Statutes of British Columbia."
This statute relates to the recent revision of the provincial statutes and gives

effect to the revision. Without referring particularly to the various objections which
have been stated in the reports of the undersigned's predecessors in offlee upon the
statutes contained in the revision from time to time as they were enacted, the
undersigned intends that these objections, so far as applicable, shall be considered to
apply to the revised statutes. Having regard to previous comments and to the
abve observation, the undersigned does not consider it necessary to make any
special remarks with regard to any of the revised statutes other than chapter 107,
"The Jarors' Act," as to which he observes that sections 75 to 82, inclusive, relate
to juries in criminal cases, and appear to contain substantially re-enactments of the
corresponding provisions of the Criminal Code, 1892. These affect matters of
criminal procedure and are ultra vires of the legislature. The undersigned does
not propose on that account that the statute should be disallowed, because the pro-
visions in question are not inconsistent with the Criminal Code, and to disallow the
statute which gives effect to the revision might cause serious inconvenience. It is
very undesirable, however, that a provincial legislature should enact rules of
criminal procedure, even although they be copied from the Criminal Code. Such rules
can receive no effect from provincial enactment, and as amendments are being fre-
quently made to the code, the provincial rales iaight soon become inconsistent there-
with, in which case there would be a liability to error from having incompatible
rules affecting the same subject appearing upon the two statute-booke. The under-
signed considers, therefore, that the sections in question should be repealed, and he
recommends that the provincial government be requested to introduce the noces-
sary legislation at the next session of the legislature.

7
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Chapter 49.-" An Act respecting the Canadian Pacifie Navigation Company,
Limited."

Among the powers conferred upon the company is ouie stated in the following
terms:-

" (a.) To purchase, charter, hire, build, or otherwise acquire steamships and
other vessels of any description, and to employ the same in the conveyance of
passengers, mails, cattle, produce and merchandise of all kinds, and in towing
vessels of all kinds, and lumber, between any parts of British Columbia and else-
where, as may seem expedient, and to acquire any postal or other subsidies."

It is beyond the authority of a provincial legislaturo to authorize the establish-
ment or operation of a lino of steam or other ships connecting the province with
anvother or others of the provinces, or extending beyond the limits of the province,
or between the province and any British or foreign country. The words " and else-
where, as may seem expedient " in the paragraph quoted, would seem to indicate
that it is intended to authorize the company to carry on a shipping business between
the province and other places outside the limits of the province, and they should,
for that reason, be struck out. The undersigned recommends that the matter be
called to the attention of the provincial government, and that the goveinmènt be
requested to state whether a proper amendment will be made within the time
limited for disallowance. Meantime the undersigned withholds any further recoin-
mendation with regard to this Act.

Chapter 28.-" An Act relating to the employment of Chinese or Japanese
persons on works carried on under franchises granted by private Acts."

The Act is given the short title of the " Labour Regulation Act, 1898," and is
in effect similar to the bill passed by the logislativo assembly of the province of
British Columbia in 1897, entitled: " An Act relating to the employment of Chinese
or Japanese persons on works carried on under franchises granted by private Acts,"
which was reserved by the Lieutenant Governor for the pleasure of B.is Excellency
in Council, and which was the subject of a report by the predecessor in office of the
undersigned, approved by His Excellency in Council on 15th December, 1897, and
as to which His Excellency's government declined to give effect. The Act defines
the terms "Chinese" and "Japanese" as meaning any native of the Chinese or
Japanese empires, or their dependencies, not born of British parents,and as including
any person of the Chinese or Japanese races. It disqualifies from employment by
persons or companies exerciing provincial franchises Chinese or Japanese persons
as so defined, and renders such persons or companies employing them liable to
penalties for such employment.

Chapter 10.-" An Act to confirm an agreement between Her Majesty in right
of ber province of British Columbia and Frank Owen and William John Stokes, and
to incorporate the Cariboo-Omineca Chartered Company."

Section 30 of this chapter provides that " no Chinese or Japanose person shall
be employed in the construction or operation of the undertaking hereby authorised
under a penalty of five dollars per day, for each and every Chinese or Japanese
person employed in contravention of this section, to be reuovered on complaint of any
person under the provisions of the ' Summary Convictions Act.'"

Chapter 30-" An Act to amend the British Columbia Public Works Loan Act,
1897."

Chapter 44-" An Act to amend the Tramway Incorporation Act."
Chapter 46-" An Act to incorporate the Alice Arm Railway."
Chapter 47-" An Act to incorporate the Arrowbead and Kootenay Railway

Company."
Chapter 48-" An Act to incorporate The British Columbia Great Gold Gravels

Dredge-Mining Corporation.
Chapter 50-" An Act to incorporate the Canadian Yukon Railway Company."
Chapter 52-" An Act to incorporate the Downie Creek Railway Company."
Chapter 53-" An Act to incorporate the East Kootenay Valley Railway Com-

_pany."
Chapter 54-" An Act to incorporate the Kittimaat Railway Company, Limited."
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Chapter 55-" An Act to incorporato the Kootenay and North-west Railway
Uompany."

Chapter 56-" An Act to incorporato the Mountain Tramway and Electrie
Company."

Chapter 57-" An Act respecting the Nanaimo Electric Light, Power and Heat-
ing Company, Limited."

Chapter 58-" An Act to incorporate the North Star and Arrow Lake Railway
Company."

Chapter 59-" An Act to incorporate the Portland and Stikine Railway Com-
pany."

Chapter 60-" An Act to incorporate the Red Mountain Tunnel Company,
Limited."

Chapter 61-" An Act to incorporate the Revelstoke and Cassiar Railway Com-
pany."

Chapter 62-" An Act to incorporate the Skeena River and Eastern Railway
Company."

Chapter 63-" An Act to incorporate the Skeena River Railway, Colonization
and Exploration Company."

Chapter 64-"An Act to incorporate the South East Kootenay Railway Com-
pany."

Each of these statutes contains a provision similar to section 30 of chapter 10
prohibiting the employmen.t of Chinese or Japanese persons by the respective com-
paies.

These enactments have been the subject of complaint by the Japanese Minister
at the Court of St. James, and the Japanese Consul at Vancouver. Copies of the
communications of these gentlemen upon the subject are submitted herewith. In a
despatch to His Excellency the Governor General from the Right Honourable the
Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies, dated 20th July last, reforring to this
legislation, His Excellency is requested to impress upon his ministers that restrictive
legislation of the type of which the legislation in question appears to be is extremely
repugnant to the sentiments of the people and government of Japan. It is stated
that His Excellency should not fail to impress upon his ministers the importance, if
there is any real prospect of a large influx of Japanese labourers into Canada, of
dealing with it by legislation of the Dominion on the lines of the Natal Act, copy
of which accompanies the despatch of the Colonial Secretary, and which, it is stated,
is likely to be generally adopted in Australia. The undersigned submits herewith
copy of the Natal Act in question.

It appears, therefore, that this matter is regarded by Her Majesty's gove ru-
ment as one of Imperial interest, and the representations of that government upon
the subject should, accordingly be carefully considered in determinining upon the
course to be pursued with regard to the legislation. In the meantime it may be
well to communicate with the government of British Columbia upon the subject,
inclosing copies of the complaints of the Japanese minister and consul and of Mr.
Chamberlain's despatch of 20th July, 1898, in addition to the communication which
has been sent pursuant to the recommendation made by the undersigned on -8th
October last. The provincial government should be asked to give the matter early
consideration, and state, for the information of Your Excellency's goveinmont, any
facts or reasons which they desired to be considered. It i8 also important to ascer-
tain whether the provincial goverument would be prepared to recommend the
repeal of chapter 28, and of the anti-Japanese and Chinese sections of the other
chapters above mentioned. A communication should also, in the opinion of the
undersigned, be addressed by Your Excellency's government to the Rtight Honour-
able the Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies, stating what bas so far been
donc with regard to this legislation, and a copy of the statutes should be forwarded
to him. Further action, the undersigned considers, may be delayed until a reply
has been received from the provincial authorities.
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The undersigned recommends that a copy of this report, if approved, and of
papers accompanying the same, be transmitted to the Lieutenant Governor of the
province, for the information of his government.

Respectfully submitted,
DAVID MILLS,

Minister of Justice.

GOVERNMENT HoUsE,
VICTORIA, B.C., 4th January, 1899.

The Hlonourable
The Secretary of State,

Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 24th
ultimo, transmitting copy of an approved minute of the Privy Council, dated the
17th ultimo, adopting the report of the Minister of Justice, thereto attached,
respecting the statutes of this province, passed in the sixty-first year of Her Majesty's
reign (1898) together with correspondence in regard to legislation concerning
Japanese labour. I have requested my ministers to give the subject matter of the
aforesaid report their early consideration, and to state for the information of His
Excellency's government any factP or reasons whieh they may desire to have con-
sidered upon the subject, and to state whether they are prepared to recommend
the repeal of chapter 28, and of the anti-Japanese and Chinese sections of the other
chapters mentioned in the aforesaid report, and in the said minute.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOS. R. McINNES.
Lieutenant Governor.

HIs IMPERIAL JAPANESE MAJESTY's CONSULATE FOR CANADA,
VANCOUVER, B.C., 10th May, 1898.

The Earl of Aberdeen,
&c., &c., &c., &c.

YoUR EXCELLENCY,-I have the honour of calling Your Excellency's attention
to a provision in the several railway bills and other private bills which have passed
or may pass through the legislative assembly of the province of British Columbia,
and to which assent may be given by His Honour the Lieutenant Governor of that
province, prohibiting the employment of subjects of Japan in the construction or
operation of the various railways or other undertakings which may be built or car-
ried out under the sought-for charters. I, in the name of His Imperial Japanese
Majesty's government, most respectfully protest, as far as Japanese persons are con-
cerned, against any such discrimination against the subjects of a friendly nation
whose government I have the honour to represent here, on the following grounds:-

1. That no satisfactory reason has been or can possibly be given, for such dis-
crimination in the legislative assembly above stated.

2. That the article of the Revised Treaty of Commerce and Navigation between
Japan and Great Britain provides that " the subjects of each of the two high con-
tracting parties shall have full liberty te enter, travel or reside in any part of the
dominions and possessions of the other contracting party, and shall onjoy full and
perfect protection for their person aud property; " and the Article 15 of the same
that "the high contracting parties agree that, in all concerns, commerce and navi-
gation, and privilege, favour, or immunity which either contracting party has
actually granted,or may hereafter grant, to the govern ment, ships, subjecte or citizens
Of any other state shall be extended immediately and unconditionally to the govern-

10
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ment, ships, subjcets or citizens of the other contracting party, it being their inten-
tion that the trade and navigation of each country shall be placed in ail respects by
the other on the footing of the most-favoured nations."

3. That though the Dominion of Canada does not participate in the revised
treaty referred to, it is contradictory to international usage that a nation subject to
the duties and privileges of international law, be adversely discriminated in legisla-
tion in a friendly country.

4. That while the legislators of the province of British Columbia apparently
look upon the Japanese in the saine light as Chinese, it is a well known fact that the
education and character, customs and manners of Japanese are entirely different
frum those of Chinese, so that the principal argument of the legislators is contra-
dicted by the fact.

5. That the number of Japanese residents in British Columbia, not exceeding one
thousand and odd persons, is less than one-tenth of that of Chinese.

6. That the government of Japan controls the movements of emigrants by
enforcing the emigration regulations, no intendingemigrant being allowed to leave the
country unless the proper authorities are satisfied that he bas good reason to emigrate
to a certain country, so that the emigration into any country can be restricted
to proper extent by the government of a an.

7. That such discrimination would tend to be detrimental to some extent to the
development of the international trade between Canada and Japan, which the gov-
ernments of the two countries are now endeavouring to foster.

I therefore most respectfully request that Your Excellency will give these pro-
visions in the bills referred to such consideration as will lead to Your Excellenoy's
disallowance.

I avail myself, &c., &c.,

S. SHIMIZU,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul.

Rs IMPERIAL JAPANESE MAJESTY's CONSULATE FOR CANADA, ,

His Excellency VANCOUVER, B.C., 16th May, 1898.

The Governor General,
&c., &c., &c.

Youa EXCELLENY,-I have the honour of calling Your Excellency's attention
to a section of a bill intituled: "An Act to amend the British Columbia Public
Works Loan Act, 1897," which passed through the legislative assembly of the
province of British Columbia, and to which assent may be given by His Honour the
Lieutenant Governor of that province, prohibiting Chinese or Japanese persons to
be employed or permitted to work in the construction or o eration of any under-
taking thereby subsidized. I, in the name of His Imporial Japanese Majesty's Gov-
ernment, most respectfully protest, as far as Japanese persons are concerned , against
such discrimination against the subjects of a friendly nation, whose government I
have the bonour to represent here, on the same grounds as those that I have pro-
pounded in protesting against a provision of the same nature contained in the
various railway bills and several private bills, in my despatch addressed to Your
Excellency on the 10th instant, and most respectfully request that Your Excellency
will give the section referred to such consideration as will lead to Your Excellency's
disallowance.

I avail myself, &c., &c., &c.,

S. SHIMIZU,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul.
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RHs IMPERIAL JAPANESE MAJESTY'S CONSULATE FOR CANADA,
VANCOUVER, B.C., 20th May, 1898.

His Excellency
The Governor General.

Youa EXCELLENCY,-I have the honour of calling Your Excellency's attention
to the " Alien Labour Bill," which has passed through the legislative assembly of
the province of British Columbia. and to which the assent has been given this day
by Bis Honour the Lieutenant Governor of that province. The object of the bill
obviously is " to prohibit the employment of Chinese and Japanese persons on
works carried on under franchises granted by private Acts.

I, in the name of His Imperial Japanese Majesty's government, most respect-
fully protest, as far as Japanese persons are concerned, against any such discrimina-
tion against the subjects of a friendly nation, whose government I have the honour
to represent here, on the following grounds:-

1. That no satisfactory reason has been or can possibly be given for such dis-
crimination in the legislative assembly above stated.

2. That the Article I of the _Revised Treaty of Commerce and Navigation
between Japan and Great Britain provides that " the subjects of each of the two
contracting parties shall have full liberty to enter, travel, or reside in any part of
the dominions and possessions of the other contracting party, and shal enjoy full
and perfect protection for their persons and property; " and the article XV, of the
same, that " the high contracting parties agree that, iii all that concerns com-
merce and navigation, any privilege, favour or immunity which either contracting
party has actually granted, or may hereafter grant, to the government, ships, sub-
jects or citizens of any other state shall be extended immediately and uncondition-
ally to the Government, ships, subjects or citizens of the other contracting party, it
being their intention that the trade and navigation of each country shall be placed,
in all respects, by the other, on the footing of the most-favoured nation."

3. That though the Dominion of Canada does not participate in the revised
treaty referred to, it is contradictory to the international usage that a nation sub.
ject to the duties and privileges ofinternational law, be adversoly discriminated in
legislation in a friendly country.

4. That while the legislators of the proviice of British Columbia apparently
look upon the Japanese in the same light as the Chinese, it is a well known fact
that the education and character, customs and manners of Japanese, are entirely
different from those of Chinese, so that the principal argument of the legislators is
contradicted by the fact.

5. That the iiumber of Japanese residents in British Columbia, not exceeding
one thousand and odd porsons, is less than one-tonth of that of Chinese.

6. That the government of Japan controls the movements of emigrants, by
enforcing the emigration regulatious, no intending emigrant being allowed to leave
the country unless the proper authorities are satisfied that ho has good reason to
immigrate to a certain country, so that the emigration into any country can be
restricted to proper extent by the government of Japan.

7. That such discrimination would tend to be detrimental, to some extent, to
the development of the international trade between Canada and Japan, which the
governments of the two countries are now endeavouring to foster.

i, therefore, most respectfully request that Your Excellency will give these
provisions in the bill referred to such consideration as will lead to Your Excellency's
disallowance.

In adition hereto, I beg to state that " British Columbia Public Works Loan
Act Amendment Bill " and al the " railway bills and other various private bills "
containing a section prohibiting the employment of Japanese persons in works
specified in such legislation, against all of whieh I have, in my despatches of the
10th instant and of the 16th instant, protested, have this day received the assent of
Ris Honour the Lieutenant Governor, and I respectfully reiterate my request that
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Your Excellency will give these provisions in the Acts referred to such considera-
tion as will lead to the disallowance of such legislation by Your Excellency.

I avail, &c., &c.

S. SHIMIZU,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul.

Hrs IMPIERIAL JAPANESE MAJESTY'S CONSULATE FOR CANADA,
VANCOUVEa, B.C., 28th My, 1898.

lis Excellency
The Governor General of Canada.

Ottawa.

YouR EXCELLENCY,-As a supplementary to my despatch of 10th instant, pro-
testing against a provision in the several railway bills and other private bills of the
legislative Assembly of British Columbia, I have the honour of forwarding to Your
Excellency herein enclosed a list of the Acts that have passed the legislative
assembly in its last session and received the assent of lis Honour tho Lieutenant
Governor of that province, on the 20th instant, in which anti-Japanese clauses will
be found.

I have, &c.,

S. SHIMIZU,
His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul.

List of Acts in which the anti-Japaiese clauses will be found:-

4. An Act to incorporate the Mountain Tramway and Electric Company.
5. An Act to incorporate the Kitmat Railway Company, Limited.
7. An Act to incorporate the Alice Arm Railway.
8. An Act to incorporate the South-east Kootenay Railway Company.
9. An Act to incorporate the Kootenay and North-west Railway Company.

12. An Act to incorporate the Revelstoke and Cassiar Railway Company.
13. An Act to incorporate the Skeena River and Eastern Railway Company.
14. An Act to incorporate the Arrowhead and Kootenay Railway Company.
15. An Act to incorporate the East Kootenay Valley Railway Company.
16. An Act to incorporate the North Star and Arrow Lake Railway Company.
17. An Act respecting the Nanaimo Electrie Light, Power and Heating Com-

pany, Limited.
19. An Act to incorporate the British Columbia Great Gravel Dredge Mining

Corporation.
20. An Act to incorporate the Skeena River Railway Colonization and Explora-

tion Company.
21. An Act to incorporate the Downie Creek Railway Company.
26. An Act to incorporate the Canadian Yukon Railway Company.
28. An Act to incorporate the Red Mountain Tunnel Company, Limited.
37. An Act to authorize the Cowichan Lumber Company, Limited, to construct

a dam and works on the Cowichan River, in the Quamichan district and also to
construct a tramway to connect the said dam and works with a point at or near
the mouth of the Cowichan River.

39. An Act to incorporate the Portland and Stikine Railway Company.
41. Au Act to amend the Tramway Company Incorporation Act.

13
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Governor General DoWNING STREET, 20th July, 1898.

The Right Honourable
The Eari of Aberdeen, P.C., G.C.M.G.

My LoRD,-I bave the honour to acknowledge the recoipt of your despatches of
the numbers and dates noted in the margin, in which you forwarded copies of
various communications received by you from the Japanese Consul for Canada
respecting the anti-Japanese legislation recently passed by the legislature of British
Columbia.

2. I shall be glad if you will lose no time in transmitting, in accordance with
the request contained in my telegram ofthe 18th June, copies of the Acts to which
M. Shimizu takes exception, together with the observations of your ministers
thereon.

3. In the meantime I have to request that you will impress upon your ministers
that restrictive legislation of the type of which the legislation in question appears
to be is extremely repugnant to the sentiments of the people and government of
Japan, and you should not fail to impress upon them the importance, if there is any
real prospect of a large influx of Japanese labourers into Canada, of dealing with it
by legislation of the Dominion Parliament on the lines of the accompanying Natal
Act, which is likely to be generally adopted in Australia.

I have the honour to be, my lord,
Your lordship's most obedient servant,

J. CHAMBERLAIN.

THE IMMIGRATION RESTRICTION ACT, 1897.

ARRANGEMENT OF CLAUSES.

Preamble.
1. Short title.
2. Exemptions.
3. Prohibited immigrants.
4. Unlawful entry of prohibited immigrants.
5. Entry permitted on certain conditions.
6. Persons formerly domiciled in Natal.
7. Wives and children.
8. Liability of master and owners of ship for illegal landing of immigrants.
9. Disabilities of prohibited immigrants.

10. Cantract for return of prohibited immigrants.
11. Offence of assisting in contraventions.
12. Offence of assisting contravention by persons named in section 3.
13. Bringing insane persons into colony.
14. Powers of police to prevent entry.
15. Officers for carrying out Act.
16. Rules.
17. Punishments.
18. Jurisdiction of magistrates.
Schedule A.
Schedule B.
(No. 1, 1897.)

WALTER HELY-UUTCHINSON,
Governor.

A. 1899
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ACT.

To place certain restrictions on Immigration.

WHEREAS it is desirable to place certain restrictions on immigration:-
Be it therefore enacted by the Queen's Most Excellent Majesty, by and with the

advice and consent of the Legislative Council and Legislative Assembly of Natal, as
follows:-

1. This Act may be known as "The Immigration Restriction Act, 1897."
2. This Act shall not apply to:-

(a.) Any person possessed of a certificate in the form set out in the
Schedule A to this Act annexed and signed by the Colonial Secretary,
or the Agent General of Natal, or any officer appointed by the Natal
government for the purposes of this Act whether in or out of Natal.

(b.) Any person of a class for whose immigration into Natal provision is
made by law or by a scheme approved by government.

(c.) Any person specially exempted from the operation of this Act by a
writing under the hand of the Colonial Secretary.

(d.) Her Majesty's land and sea forces.
(e.) The officers and crew of any ship of war of any government.
(f.) Any person duly accredited to Natal by or under the authority of the

Imperial or any other government.
3. The immigration into Natal, by land or sea of any person of any of the

classes defined in the following subsections, hereinafter called "prohibited immi-
grant" is prohibited, namely:-

(a.) Any person who, when asked to do so by an officer appointed under
this Act, shall fail to himself write out and sign, in the characters of
any language of Europe, an application to the Colonial Secretary in
the form met out in Schedule B to this Act.

(b.) Any person being a pauper, or likely to become a public charge.
(c.) Any idiot or insane person.
(d.) Any person suffering from a loathsome or a dangerous contagions

disease.
(e.) Any person who, not having received a free pardon has within two

years been convicted of a felony or other infamous crime or mis-
demeanour involving moral turpitude, and not being a mere political
offence.

(f.) Any prostitute, and any person living on the prostitution of others.
4. Any probibited immigrant making his way into, or being found within,

Natal, in disregard of the provisions of this Act, shall be deemed to have contravened
this Act, and shall be liable, in addition to any other penalty, to be removed from
the colony, and upon conviction may be sentenced to imprisonment not exceeding
six months without hard labour: Provided that such imprisonment shall cease for
the purpose of deportation of the offender, or if he shall find two approved sureties
each in the sum of fifty pounds sterling, that he will leave the colony within one
month.

5. Any person appearing to be a prohibited immigrant within the meaning of
section 3 of this Act and not coming within the meaning of any of the subsections
(C), (D), (E), (F), of the said section 3 shall be allowed to enter Natal upon the
following conditions:-

(a) He shall, before landing, deposit with an offioer appointed under this Act
the sum of one hundred pounds sterling.

(b) If such person shal, within one week after entering Natal, obtain from the
Colonial Secretary, or a magistrate, a certificate that he does not come within the
prohibition of this Act, the deposit of one hundred pounds sterling shall be returned.

(c) If such person shall fail to obtain. such certificate within one week, the
deposit of one hundred pounds sterling may be forfeited, and he may be treatod as a
prohibited immigrant.
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Provided that, in the case of any person entering Natal under this section, no
liability shall attach to the vessel or to the owners of the veesel in which ho may
have arrived at any port of the colony.

6. Any persou who shall satisfy an officer appointed under this Act that ho has
been formerly domiciled in Natal, and that ho does not come within the meaning of
any of the subscctions (C), (D), (E), (F), of section 3 of this Act, shall not be
regarded as a prohibited immigrant.

7. The wile and any minor child of a person not being a prohibited immigrant
shall bc frec from any prohibition imposed by this Act.

8. The master and owners of any vossel from which any prohibited immigrant
may bc landed shall be jointly and sevorally liable to a penalty of not less than one
hundred pounds sterling, and such penalty may bc increased up to fivo thousand
pounds sterling by suns of one hundred pounds sterling, each for cvery five
prohibited immigrants after the first five, and the vessel may be mado executable
by a decree of the Suprene Court in satisfaction of any such penalty, and the vessel
may bc refused a clearance outwards until such penalty bas been paid, and until
provision bas been made by the master to the satisfaction of an officer appointed
under this Act for the conveyance out of the colony of each prohibited immigrant
who may have been so landed.

9. A prohibited immigrant shall not be entitled to a license to carry on any
trade or calhiig, nor shalh be be entitled to acqaire land in leasehold, freehold, or
otherwise to exercise the franchise, or to be enrolled as a burgess of any borough
or on the roll of any township; and any license or franchise right which may
have been acquired in contravention of this Act shall be void.

10. Any officer thereto authorized by government may mako a contract with
the master, owners, or agent of any vessel for the conveyance of any prohibited im-
migrant found in Natal to a port in or near to such immigrant's country of birth,
and any such immigrant with his personal effects may be placed by a police officer
on board such vessel, and shall in such case, if destitute, be supplied with a sufficient
sum of money to enable him to livo for one month according to his circumatances in
life after disembarking from such vessel.

11. Any person who shall in any way wilfully assist any prohibited immigrant
to contraveue the provisions of this Act shall be deemed to bave contravened this
Act.

12. Any person who shall in any way wilfully assist the entry into Natal of
any prohibited immigrant of the class (f) in section 3 of this Act shali be deemed
to have contravened this Act, and shall upon conviction be liable to be imprisoned
with bard labour for any period not exceeding twelve months.

13. Any person wbo shall be wilfully instrumental in bringing into Natal an
idiot or insane person without a written or printed authority, signed by the Colonial
Secretary, shall be deemed to have contravened this Act, and in addition to any
other penalty shall be liable for the cost of the maintenance of such idiot or insane
person whilst in the colony.

14. Any police officer or other officer appointed therefor under this Act may,
subject to the provisions of section 5, prevent any prohibited immigrant from enter-
ing Natal by land or sea.

15. The Governor may from time to time appoint, and at pleasure remove,
officers for the purpose of carrying out the provi.,ions of this Act, and may define
the duties of such officers, and such officers shall carry out the instructions from
time to time given to them by the ministerial head of their department.

16. The Governor in Council may, from time to time, make, amend and repeal
rules and regulations for the botter carrying out of the provisions of this Act.

17. The penalty for any contravention of this Act or any rule or regulation
passed thereunder, where no higher penalty is oxpressly imposed, shal notexceed a
fine of fifty pounds sterling, or imprisonment with or without bard labour, until
payment of such fine or in addition to such fine, but not exceeding in any case three
months.

A. 1899
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18. Al contraventions of this Act or of rules or regulations thereunder and
snits for penalties or other moneys not exceeding one hundred pounds sterling shall
be cognizable by magistrates.

Colony of Natal.

This is to certify that of
aged by trade or calling a is a fit
and proper person to be received as an immigrant in Natal.

Dated at this day of

(Signature)

SCHEDULE B.
To the Colonial Secretary.

SiR,-I claim to be exempt from the operation of Act No. 1897.

My full name is My place of abode for

the past twelve months bas been

My business or calling is

I was born at in the year

Yours, &c.,

Given at Government House, Natal, this fif th day of May, 1897.

By command of His Excellency the Governor.

THOS. K. MURRAY,
Colonial Secretary.

GOVEBNMENT HoUsE,
VICTORIA, B.C., 23rd Decomber, 1898.

The Honourable
The Secretary of State,

Ottawa, Canada.

SI,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 15th
instant, calling my attention to your letter of the 17tb ultimo, respecting the
protest of the Japanese minister against certain Acts of the legislature of this
province aimed at the exclusion of Japanese subjects from employment in this
province, and in reply to state that I have forwarded copy of your letter to my
executive council with the request that they give it their early attention, and fur-
nish His Excellency with their views upon the subject with as little delay as
possible.

I have the hODour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOS. R. MoINNES,
Lieutenant Governor.

17
110--2



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 110.)

VANCOUVEl, B.C., 9th February 1899.
His Excellency

The Governor General
of Canada.

Youa EXCELLENCY,-In the naine of His Imperial Japanese Majesty's govern-
ment, I have the honour of calling Your Excelleney's attention to a paragraph in
the speech of Ris Honour the Lieutenant Governor of British Columbia, delivered
at the opening of the present session of the legislative assembly of that province,
stating that "For the better protection of the miners in coal mines, a Bill will be
laid before you prohibiting the employment underground of Japanese in these
mines." I would at the same time beg to call Your Excellency's attention to the
Bill No. 43, entitled " An Act to amend the Coal Mines Regulations Act," which was
recently proposed, seemingly in accordance with the statement of the paragraph
above cited, by the Honourable the President of the Council to the legislative
assembly of that province and passed through that assembly on the Sth day of this
month. And also to the various private bills that are before the House at present
containing sections which prohibit the employment of Japanese in works authorized
by such Acts. I respectfully beg to inclose herewith copies of the Bill No. 43, and
also a sample of the private bills referred to.

And urging the same objections to this legislation as I had the honour of urging
against legislation of the same nature passed at the last session, I most respectfully
request that Your Excellency will give this legislation such consideration as will
lead to Your Excellency's disallowance of the same.

I avail, &c.,
S. SHIMIZU,

His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul.

BILL.
No. 43.] [1899.

An Act to amend the " Coal Mines Regulation Act."

Her Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Legislative Assembly
of the province of British Columbia, enacts as follows:

1. Section 4 of chapter 138 of the Rovised Statutes of British Columbia, is hereby
amended by inserting after the word " hinaman," in the second lino thereof, the
words " or Japanese."

2. Section 12 of the said Act is hereby amended by inserting after the word
"Chinamen," in the fourth line thereof, the word " Japanese."

BILL.

No. 11.] [1899.

An Act to incorporate the " Vancouver Northern and Yukon Railway Company."

37. No Chinese or Japanose persons shall be employed in the construction of
the undertaking or the working of the railway.

38. The preceding two sections are hereby declared to be conditions upon which
this Act is passed, and shall be binding upon bondholders and all other persons in
any way interested in the said company or its property. In case either of said preced-
ing two sections are violated, such violation shall work a forfeiture of all privileges
granted by this Act, but no such forfeiture shall operate except upon proceedings
instituted in the Supreme Court of British Columbia by the Attorney General.

* * * * *

A. 1899
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Imperial Japanese Consul to Governor Gene •sJ.

VANCOUVER, B.C., 9tli February, 1899.

In the name of the Imperial government of Japan I respectfully beg to protest
against the legislation passed or now being passed at the present session of the
legislature of British Columbia, aiming at the prohibition of Japanese labour under-
ground in coal mines or in other works authorized by provincial Acts. I respect-
fully urge the same objections to this legislation as I had the honour of urging
against legislation of same nature of last session and would request such considera-
tion as will lead to Your Excellency's disallowance of the same. Will confirm by
mail.

S. SHIMIZU,
Imperial Japanese Consul.

His IMPERIAL JAPANESE MAJEsTY's CONSULATE FOR CANADA,
VANCOUVER, B.C., 28th February, 1899.

To His Excellency
The Governor Genersl of Canada.

Ottawa.

YoUR ExcELLENCY,-In addition to my protest recentl3 presented against the
legislation of the province of British Columbia aimed at the prohibition of Japanese
labour in certain undertakings, I respectfully beg to call Your Excellency's special
attention to the Bill 60, intituled " An Act respecting Liquor Licenses," in which
Japanese subjects are included among those declared ineligible to hold liquor
licenses (vide the sections 22, 23 and particularly 36 of the Bill No. 60). This bill
,%as introduced to the House by the Honourable the Attorney General of the pro-
vince and passed through it on the 25th day of this month. To this, together with
other bills of a similar nature passed at the closing session, assent was given yester-
day by His Honour the Lieutenant Governor of the province.

Your Excellency will observe that the discrimination in the Bill No. 60 is a
decided advance upon the former measures aimed against Chinese labour, inasmuch
as this bill now imposes restrictions on Japanese subjects in matters of trade also.
It may also be taken I think as an indication that these anti-Japanese measures will
not stop here in this province, unless the higher authorities are pleased to exercise
their power.

I, therefore, respectfully beg leave to more emphatically reiterate my request
that Your Excellency will give this legislation such consideration as will lead to
Your Excellency's disallowance of the same.

I avail myself of this opportunity to renew to Your Excellency the assurance
of my highest consideration. . SHIMIZU,

His Imperial Japanese Majesty's Consul.

Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Minto.

DoWNING STREET, 8th March, 1899.
Governor General,

&c., &c., &c.

My LoRD,-With reference to.your despatch No. 1 of the 3rd January, trans.
mitting copy of an approved minute of the Dominion Privy Council submitting a
report of the Minister of Justice on the anti-Japanese legislation passed during the
last session of the legislature of British Columbia, I have the honour to transmit to
you, to be laid before your ministers, copy of a further note which the Marquis of

19
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Salisbury has received from the Japanese minister at this court, calling attention
to a bill passed during the present session of the same legislature, entitled, " Coal
Mines Regulations Amendment Bill."

2. Monsieur Kato states that the object of this bill is to prohibit the employ-
ment underground of Japanese in coal mines, and he expresses the hope that Her
Majesty's government may extend to this instance the policy pursued in regard to
the legislation of last year.

3. Her Majesty's government will b glad if your ministers will consider the
question of this bill with that of the others to which their attention has already
been called.

I have, &c.,
J. CHAMBERLAIN.

JAPANESE LEGATIoN, 18th February, 1894.
The Most Honourable

The Marquess of Salisbury, K.G.
M. LE MARQUES,-The Jatpaneo consul at Vancouver has reported to me that

the legislature of the province f British Columbia has recently passed a bill at the
instance of the provincial government entitled "Coal Mines Regulations Amendment
Bill." The details of the bill are not before me, but I understand that it has been
formulated with the object of prohibiting the employment underground of Japanese
in the coal mines, and thus it appears to be another instance of discrimination aimed
at Japanese subjects in that province.

Several bills with a similar purport, passed by the legislature of the same pro-
vince last year, have formed the subject of correspondence between Your Lordship and
myself, and while my governmeut is deeply sensible of the solicitous attention which
Her Majesty's government, and at their instance the government of Canada are
paying with respect to the issue of those bills, I feel compelled by this renewed
action on the part of British Columbia to call the attention of Her Majesty's
government once more to the subject.

The exceptions which the Imperial government have taken against the legis-
lation of last year apply in the present case in their full scope and extent. There-
fore, without reiterating the reasons which I set forth against such ldgislation in
the letter which I had the honour to address to Your Lordship under date of August
3rd, 1898, I take the liberty of calling your attention to the fact, and requesting Her
Majesty's government to extend to the present instance the same enlightened
policy which they have pursued in regard to the legislation of last year, with the
confident assurance that such a policy cannot fail in augmenting the neighbourly
relations existing between Japan and the Dominion of Canada.

I have, &c.,
KATO.

EXTRACT fron a Report of the Committee of the Bonourable the Privy Council,
approved by gis Excellency on the 131h March, 1899.

On a report dated 7th March, 1899, from the Minister of Justice, stating that
he has liad under consideration a copy of a minute of the executive council of the
province of British Columbia, dated 16th February, 1899, approving a report dated
the 13th of the î;ame month from the provincial Minister of Finance and Agri-
culture, with regard to certain statutes of the said province passed in the year
1898, affecting the Chinese and Japanese.

The minister represents that these statutes are enumerated in a report of the
Minister of Justice of the 8th November, 1898, approved by Your Excellency in
Council on the 1lth December, 1898, and the report of the provincial minister is in
reply to that portion of the report of the Minister of Justice which refers to the
statutes in question.

62 Victoria. A. 1899
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The Minister of Justice observes-referring to The Immigration Restriction Act,
1897, of Natal, copy of which accompanied the despatch of the Right Honourable
the Principal Secretary of State of the Colonies of 20th July, 1898,-that, while the
provisions of that Act are well adapted to exclude paupers, diseased persons and
criminals, yet the Act does contain a provision (section 3a) which would proba-
bly have the effect of excluding all Asiaties of the class which would be affected by
the British Columbia statutes in question.

The minister is of the opinion, however, that before determining what course
ought to be pursued by Your Excellency's government in regard to these Acts a
copy of the executive minute of British Columbia, and of the report of the Provin-
cial Minister of Finance and Agriculture sBhould be submitted to Her Majeety's
government.

The committee concurring advise that Your Excellency be moved to transmit
copies cf the said papers, together with a certified copy of this minute, to the Right
Honourable the Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies, in order that he may
submit any observations which he may deem proper for the consideration of Your
Excellency's government.

The committee further submit that Mr. Chamberlain should be informed at the
same time that the time for disallowance of these Acts wili expire on the 8th
June, 1899.

All which is respectfully submitted for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE
Clerk of the Privy Council.

Corr of a Report of a Committee of the Honourable the Executive Council approved by
His Honour the Lieutenant Governor on the 16th day of Flebruary, 1899.

The committee of council have had before them the accompanying report,
dated 13th February, 1899, from the Minister of Finance and Agriculture, with
regard to the complaint of the Japanese Minister at the Court of St. James respect-
ing the provisions of certain Acts of the legislature of British Columbia which
prohibit the employment of Japanese subjects on certain works.

The committee concur in the said report, and submit the same for your
honour's approval.

The committee advise that a copy of this minute, if approved, together with a
copy of the report aforesaid, be transmitted to the Honourable the Secretary of
State for the information of His Excellency the Governor General.

Certified.
A. CAMPBELL REDDIE,

Deputy Clerk, Executive Council.

To Ris Honour the Lieutenant Governor in Council.

The undersigned has the honour to report that he has had under consideration
the communication from the government of His Excellency the Governor General
to His lonour the Lieutenant Governor, inclosing copies of a minute of the Com-
mittee of the Privy Council of Canada in reference to a dispatch from Her Majesty's
Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies, inclosing copies of correspondence
which has passed between the Foreign Office and the Japanese Minister in London
and between the Foreign Offlee and the Colonial Office on the subject of certain
statutes passed by the legislature of British Columbia in the sixty-first year of Her
Majesty's reign, and which contained provisions prohibiting the employment of
Chinese or Japanese persons on works carried on under franchises granted by the
said legislature.
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In h.é despatch of 20th July, 1898, to His Excellency the Governor General
of Canada, Mr. Chamberlain states that "restrictive legislation of the type of which
the legislation in question appears to be is extremely repugnant to the sentiments
of the people and government of Japan," and asks His Excellency to impress on his
ministers the importance, if there is any real prospect of a large influx of Japanese
labourers into Canada, of dealing with it by legislation of the Dominion parliament
on the lines of the Natal Act.

It may be stated that legislation on the linos of the " Immigration Restriction
Act, 1897" passed by the legislative council and legislative assembly of Natal,
would not be within the power of the legislature of this province, but would be
within the competence of the parliament of Canada, being somewhat similar to the
act passed by that body imposing a capitation tax of $50 on oach Chinese person
coming into the Dominion.

While the logislature of British Columbia would doubtless welcome any action
by the Parliament of Canada designed to effect objects similar to those aimed at by
the provisions in the statutes which are the subject of this communication from His
Excellency's government, it may be suggested that the provisions embodied in the
Immigration Restriction Act of Natal would not be effectual for the desired purpose,
although such legislation would impose restrictions on Japanese immigration
that would probably be more repugnant to the views of the government of Japan
than those complained of in the legislation passed by the legislature of this province.

The undersigned would point out that the statutes passed by the legislature ot this
province imposing certain restrictions on the employment of Japanese in British
Columbia, while, it is respectfully submitted, clearly within the power of that body,
do not impose restrictions nearly as onerous or far reaching as would be the case
were legislation enacted by the parliament of Canada on the lines of the Immigra-
tion Restriction Act of Natal, which appears not to bc considered objectionable by
Her Majesty's goverrnment. No limitation on the number of Japanese persons who
may come into Canada is suggested by the statutes passed by the provincial legisla-
ture. No restriction is placed by those statutes on such persons pursuing any call-
ing, occupation or employment-with one exception-which is not carried on under
the authority of privileges or franchises conferred by the legislature of British
Columbia. That exception is working in coal mines, the legislature, from the evid-
ence placed before it, having come to the conclusion that the employment of Chinese
or Japanese underground in coal mines is a source of danger.

All that is sought to be attained by the legislation in question is that Chinede
or Japanese persons shall not be allowed to find employment on works, the construc-
tion of which bas been authorized or made possible of accomplishment by the grant
ing of certain privileges or franchises by the legislature.

It will, therefore, be seen that the restrictive provisions are merely in the
nature of a condition in agreements or contracts between the provincial governuient
and particular individuals or companies whereby certain privileges, franchises, con-
cessions, and, in some cases, also subsidies and guarantees are granted to such
individuals or companies in consideration of only white labour being employed in
the works which are the subject matter of such agreements.

The same causes which have led the legislatures of Natal and theAustralian colonies
to take measures to restrict the influx of large numbers of labouring people from
Asia, exist in British Columbia. They are indeed more potent here on account of
the shorter distance intervening between China and Japan and this province as
compared with that between thoso countries and Australasia and Natal. It may
also be pointed out in this connection that the possibility of great disturbance to
the economic conditions existing bore, and of grave injury being caused to the
working classes of this country by a large influx of labourers from Japan, was so
apparent, that the government of Canada decided it was not advisable that the
Dominion should participate in the revised treaty between Great Britain and Japan,
whereby equal privileges were granted to the people of each nation in the country
of the other.
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The economie conditions in British Columbia and Japan and the standards of
living of the masses of the people in the two countries, differ so widely that to grant
freedom of employment to Japanese on snob publie works as are authorized to be
carried out by Acts of the legislature would almost certainly result in ail such
employment being monopolized by the Japanese to the exclusion of the people of
this province. Therefore, while the legislature bas scrupulously abstained from
any interference with the employment of Japanese by private individuals or com-
panies, and has not sought to put any restriction on their engaging in any ordinary
occupation or business, it bas deemed it to be in the intereste of the province to
prohibit their employment on works or undertakings for which it has granted
privileges or franchises. That such restrictions are not only judicions but neces-
sary bas been shown by the manner in which cheap Asiatic labour has in many
cases entirely supplanted white labour on works to which no such restrictions, as
those referred to, were attached.

While it would be a matter of profound-regret if any action of the government
or legislature of this province should cause Her Majesty's government any embar-
rassment or impair its friendly relations with another power, it may be pointed out
that there are other considerations of an Imperial character involved in this matter.
It is unquestionably in the interests of the Empire that the Pacifie province of the
Dominion should be occupied by a large and thoroughly British population, rather
than by one in which the number of aliens largely predominated and many of the
distinctive features of a settled British community were lacking.

The former condition could not be secured were the masses of the people sub-
jected to competition which would render it impossible for them to ínaintain a fair
and reasonable standard of living.

For many years the evil effects of unrestricted Chinese immigration caused great
agitation in British Columbia, and the imposition of the capitation tax of fifty dollars
was the consequence. Since then greater facilities of communication with Japan
and the opportunities for employment in British Columbia, arising from the develop-
ment of its forest, mineral and fishing resources, have led to an influx of Japanese
which bas materially and injuriously interfered with white labour and bas caused
the legislature to pass the statutes now under consideration. There is no reason to
believe that this influx of Japanete is likely to diminish. On thecontrary, there are
many indications that it will become larger and that Japanese labour will, if some
restrictive measures be not adopted, entirely supplant white labour in many import-
ant industries and be used almost exclusively on works carried out under franchises
granted by the legisiature and which are in many cases aided by subsidiesfrom the
provincial treasury, largely with the objectof opening up the province and inducing
an immigration of desirable settlers.

The undersigned, therefore, recommends that a reply be made to the Govern-
ment of the Dominion that Ris Honour's government regrets that in the interosts of
British Columbia and of the labouring classes among its people, it cannot see its way
to introduce a measure in the legislature to repeal the provisions restricting the
employment of Chinese and Japanese in the statutes referred to in the report of the
Minister of Justice, approved by a minute of the Committee of the Privy Council of
Canada on 17th December, 1898, and that if this recommendation be approved a copy
of it should be transmitted to the Secretary of' State for Canada for the information
of Ris Excellency's government.

F. CARTER-COTTON,
Minister of Finance and Agriculture.

Dated this 13th day of February, A.D. 1899.
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GOVERNMENT HousE,
VICTORIA, B.C., J6th February, 1899.

The Honourable the Secretary of State,
Ottawa, Canada.

SIR,-Adverting to your despatch of the 24th December last, and to prior cor-
respondence on the subject of the anti-Japanose legislation of this province, I now
have the honour to transmit herewith, for the information of His Excellency in
Council, a certified copy of a Minute of my Executive Council, approved this day,
wherein is set forth their reasons for not seeing their way clear to repeal the said
legislation.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOS. R. McINNIS,
Lieutenant Governor.

DowNING STREET, 23rd March, 1899.
GoVERNoR GENERAL,

The Right Honourable,
The Earl of Minto, G.C.M.G., &c., &c., &c.

My LoRD,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your despateh No.
40, of the 27th February, forwarding copy of a letter from the Japanese Consul at
Vancouver in which ho cal.s attention to certain measures which have been intro-
duced into the legislative assembly of British Columbia during its present session
prohibiting the employment of Japanese and renewing with regard to these
measures the objections which ho urged against the legislation of the same nature
passed by the legislature of that province last year.

2. lier Majesty's government must regret to find the government and legisla-
ture of British Columbia adopting a course which is justly regarded as offensive by
a friendly power, and they hope that your ministers will be able to arrange for the
cancellation of the objectionable provisions and the substitution of a measure which,
while it will secure the desired exclusion of undesirable immigrants, will obtain
that result by means of some such general test as that already suggested in my
despatch No. 214 of the 20th July, 1898. In any case, Her Majesty's government
strongly deprecate the passing of excentional legislation affecting Japanese already
in the province.

I have the honour to be, my lord,
Your lordship's most obedient humble servant,

J. CHAMBERLAIN.

Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Minto.

DOWNING STREET, 4th April, 1899.

My Loa,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your des patch No.
46, of the 9th ult. covering copy of a letter from the Consul of Japan at Vancouver
on the subject of the British Columbian Liquor License Act, 1899, and to refer in
reply to my despatch No. 58, of the 23rd ult. on the subject of similar legislation
passed by the legislature of the province.

I have, &c.,

J. CH AMBER LAIN.
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Colonial Office to the Governor General.

DowNING STREET, 19th April, 1899.
The Governor G-eneraLl,

&c., &c., &c.

Miy LoRD,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch No.
54 of the 16th March, forwarding copy of an approved minute of the Dominion
Privy Council to which is appended an approved report of the Executive Council of
British Columbia, expressing the concurrence of the government of that province in
a report drawn up by the Minister of Finance and Agriculture on the subject of the
Acts passed by the provinaial legislature in 1898 containing provisions prohibiting
the employment of Japanese on certain works.

2. The provincial government represent that these provisions are required by
the economie conditions of British Columbia and they regret their ina'bility to
introduce legislation for their repeal.

3. Her Majesty's government fully appreciate the motives which have induced
the government and legislature of British Columbia to pass the legislation under
consideration, and recognize the importance of guarding against the possibility of
the white labour in the province being swamped by the wholesale immigration of
persons of Asiatic origin. They desire also to acknowledge the friendly spirit in
which the represontations they have felt compelled to make have been received by
the goverument of British Columbia, and regret that after carefully considering the
minute of the Executive Council they feel unable to withdraw the objections thley
have urged to the legislation in question.

4. There is no difference between Her Majesty's government and the govern-
ment of British Columbia as regards the object aimed at by these laws, namely, to
ensure that the Pacific province of the Dominion shall be occupied by a large and
thoroughly British population rather than by one in which the number of aliens
largely predominates, and many of the distinctive features of a settled British com-
munity are lacking.

5. The ground of the objection entortained by Her Majesty's government is that
the method employed by the British Columbia legislature for securing this object,
while admittedly only partial and ineffective, is such as to give legitimate offence to
a power with which ier Majesty is, and earnestly desires to romain on friendly
terms. It is not the practical exclusion of Japanese to which the government of the
Mikado objects but thuir exclusion nominatim, which specifically stamps the whole
nation as undesirable persons.

6. The exclusion of Japanese subjects cither from the province or from employ-
ment on public or quasi public works in the province by the operation of an
educational test, such as is embodied in the Natal Immigration Law is not a measure
to which the government of Japan can take exception. If the particular test in
that law is not regarded as sufficient, there is no reason why a more stringent and
effective one of a similar character should not be adopted, so long as the disqualifica-
tion is not based specifically on distinction of race or colour.

7. Any attempt to restrict immigration or to impose disqualifications on such
distinctions besides being offensive to friendly powers is contrary to the general
principles of equality which have been the guiding principle of British rule
throughout the empire; and, as your ministers are aware, Her Majesty's govern-
ment were unable to allow the Immigration Restriction Laws passed by some of
the Australasian colonies in 1896 to come into operation for the same reasons as
they are now urging against these laws in British Columbia.

8. Her Majesty's government earnestly trust that on consideration of these
explanations the government of British Columbia will at once procure the repeal of
the provisions complained of and the substitution of legislation on the lines
indicated above.

9. If this is impossible, Her Majesty's government feel compelled, however
reluctant they may be to cause inconvenience to the province, to press upon your
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ministers the importance in the general interests of the empire of using the powers
vested in them by the British North America Act, for cancelling these measures to
which fier Majesty's governmont object on grounds both of principle and policy.

I have, &c.,

J. CHAMBERLAIN.

DowNING STREET, 29th April, 1899.
The Officer Administering

The Government of Canada.

My LoRD,-I have the honour to transmit to you for communication to your
ministers, with reference to your predecessor's despatch No. 185, of the 7th of July
last, copy of the telegram noted below on the subject of the capitation tax on
Chinese in Canada.

I have, &c.,
EDWARD WINGFIELD,

For the Secretary of State.

(G. B. 15 Victoria, 42.)

Secretary of State, Foreign Affairs,
London.

Canadian government introduced bill in parliament. increasing capitation tax
upon Chinese entering Canada, which would injure trade between the two nations.
We have cablegraphed Chinese ambassador, London. Protest such increase. Please
give favourable consideration.

CHINESE CONSULATE BENEVOLENCE ASSOCIATION.

Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Minto.

DOWNING STREET, 2nd May, 1899.
GOVERNOR GENARAL,

The Right Honourable
The Farl of Minto, G.C.M.G., &c., &c.

My LoRD,-I have the honour to request that you will be good enough to-
inform your ministers that a note has been addressed to Her Majesty's government
by the Japanese minister at this cÔurt, complaining of the " Act respecting Liquor
Licenses " recently passed by the legislattiro of British Columbia, of which a copy
was inclosed in your despatch No. 46 of the 9th March.

2. ier Majesty's government can hardly suppose that there is any urgency for
legisiation to prevent the issue of licenses to sell liquor to Japanese subjecte in
British Columbia, and the objections urged to the other acts of the provincial legis-
lature which have formed the subject of recent correspondence apply with equal
force to this act.

3. Her Majesty's government will, therefore, be glad if your ministers will
consider this act together with those to which their attention has already been
called.

J. CHAMBERLAIN.

A 1899,
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Mr. Chamberlain to Lord Minto.

GoVERNOR GENERAL, DoWNING STREET, 9th May, 1899..

The Ri ght Honourable
The arl of Minto, G.C.M.G., &c., &c.

My LoR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch,
No. 83 of the 24th uit. forwarding copy of a letter from the Department of Justice,
representing the desirability of an early expression of the views of Her Majesty's
government with regard to the legislation affecting Japanese subjects passed the
egislature of British Columbia in 1898.

2. In reply, I have to refer you to my despatch No. 92 of the 2nd inst.
I have, &c.,

J. CHAMBERLAIN.

DOWNING STREET, 10th May, 1899.
The Offieer Administering

The Government of Canada.

My LoRD,-I have the honour to transmit to you, for communication to your
ministers, with reference to my despatcb No. 89 of the 29th of April last, a copy of
the documents noted below respecting the rumour of a proposed increase in the
amount of the capitation tax on Chinese entering British Columbia.

I have the honour to be, sir,
Your obedient servant,

EDWARD WINGFIELD,
For the Secretary of State.

The Marquess of Salisbury,K.G. CHINEsE LEGATION, 29th April, 1899.

My LORD MARQUES,-On the 8th May, 1897, replying to a communication from
my predecessor, Kung Tajen, relative to a proposed increase in the poll tax levied
on Chinese subjects entering the colony of British Columbia, Your Lordship did me
the honour to inform me that Her Majesty's Secretary of State for the colonies,
having no official information on the subject of the proposed tax, had transmitted a
copy of Kung Tajen's note to the Governor General of Canada, with the request
that His Excellency would favour him with the observations of his minister upon it,
and a period of nearly two years having elapsed without my hearing anything more
about the matter, I had commenced to think that the information on which the note
of my predecessor was founded had been incorrect, or, if not, that the governmont
of the Dominion had abandoned the idea of raising the tax.

I regret, however, to find that this would appear not to be the case. For I
have received a telegram from the Tsungli Yamen stating that a telegram had been.
received from a benevolent association of Chinese residents at Victoria, B.C.,
acquainting the Yamen that the Canadian governmont had introduced a bill into
parliament with the object of raising the poli tax from $50 to $500.

The Imperial government, by whom I have been instructed to again bring the
matter to the notice of Your Lordship, hope you wili be able to assure them that
there is no foundation for the statement that sncb a bill has either been, or will be,
presented to parliament; for, otherwise, they would feel thomselves compelled to
protest against an act of such illiberality, and inasmuch as the bill is said to affect
Chinese only, againet it as a violation of international comity.

Within the last twenty years, the Imperial government have repeatedly had to
complain of the odious character of the legislation respecting Chinese which has-
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found favour in some British colonies, and they would view the passage of the bill
in question as an aggravation of the grievances to which Chinese emigrants to those
colonies have long been exposed; and more especially would this be the case, should
the crown declinc to exercise its right of vetoing the offensively discriminating
measure.

I have, &o.,
LOFENGLUH.

Sir CHICHCHEN Lon FENG-LuH, K.C.V.O.. FoREIGN OFFICE, 4th May, 1899.

&c., &c., &c.

Sua,-In reply to your note of the 29th ultimo, calling attention to a bill which
you hear has been introduced into the Canadian parliament with the object of
raising the poll tax levied on Chinese subjects in the Dominion, I have the honour
to stato that I have been informed by the Secretary of State for the colonies that he
has heard nothing further from the Governor General of Canada since July last, at
which time it appeared that the Dominion government had no intention of increas-
ing the tax in question.

Mr. Chamberlain will however at once communicate with the Earl of Minto on
the subject, and I shall have the honour of addressing a further note to you in due
course.

I have, &c.,
SALISBURY.

Mr. Chamb!rlain to Lord Minto.

LoNDoN, 25th May, 1899.

In my despatch No. 92 of 2nd May, further note has been received from
Japanese legation urgirg disallowed legisiation objected to before the expiration of
statutory period. Hope you will be able to communicate your ministers' decision
80011.

CHAMBERLAIN.

OTTAWA, 2nd June, 1899.

Fron the Honourable Sir Wilfrid Laurier.

To the Honourable,
C. A. SEMLIN, Premier,

Victoria, B.C.

The Federal government has only four days in which to disallow your acta
relating to Japanese as urged by Imperial goverument which fears prejudice to
Imperial relations with Japan if Act referring to Japanese is allowed to go into
effect.

Have you any suggestion to make as to this legislation so far as it relates to
the Japanese ?

Immediate reply necessary. WILFRID LAURIER.
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VIcTORIA, B.C., 3rd June, 1399.

From the Hon. C. A. Senlin.

To the Honourable,
Sir WILFRID LAURIER.

Telegram received. Regret that in justice to the interests of labour in British
Columbia can only refer you to minute of council of February last, copy of which.
you have no doubt received.

C. A. SEMLIN.

ExTRAcTfrom a Report of the Committee of the Bonourable the Privy Council, approve&
by His Excellency on the 5th June, 1899.

The committee have had under consideration a report, hereto annexed, dated
29th May, 1899, from the Minister of Justice, referring to the minute of council
approved on the 17th Doe:ember, 1898, respecting the statutes of the province of
British Columbia, 1898, and stating that as to chapter 39 " An Act respecting the
Canadian Pacifie Navigation Company, Limited," he has been informed that the
provincial legislature at its last session, pursuant to the recommendation contained
in the said minute of council, passed an amendment removing the grounds of
objection to which the Minister of Justice called attention in his report of the 8th
November, 1898, approved by the said minute, and that the Act may, therefore, be
left to its operation.,

The minister recommends with respect to the Acts which were stated by the
said report to be objectionable as affecting Japanese in British Columbia, which
Acts are chapters 10, 28, 30, 44, 46, 47, 48, 50, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62,
63 and 64, that the same be left to their operation except chapters 28 and 44, with
an earnest recommendation to the provincial government based upon the reasons
stated in his report of the 29th May, 1899, herewith, that at the next cnsuing session
of the legislature they introduce legislation in each case to repeal the clause in
question.

The minister further recommends for the reasons set forth in the said report of
the 29th May, 1>399, that chapter 28 of the statutes of the province of British
Columbia, 1898, intituled " An Act relating to the employment of Chinese or Japanese
persons on works carried on under franchises granted by Private Acts," and also
chapter 44 of the said statutes entituied " The Tramway Incorporation Amendment
Act, 1898." be disallowed.

The committee concur in the said report and the recommendations therein set
forth and submit the same for Your Excelhncy's approval, and the committee-
advise that a certified copy of this minute, if approved, together with a copy of the
said report, be transmitted to the Lieutenant Governor of British Columbia for the
information of his government.

JOHN J. McGE E,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OTTAwA, 29th May, 1899.

To His Excellency
The Governor General in Council.

BRITISE COLUMBIA LEGISLATION.

The undersigned referring to his report respecting the statutes of the province
of British Columbia of 1898, dated the 8th of November last, which was approved by
Your Excellency in Council on 17th December, bas the honour to state that as
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'to chapter 39: " An Act respecting the Canadian Pacifie Navigation Comp any,
Limited," the undersigned has been informed that the provincial legislature at its
*last session pursuant to the recommendation of the said report, passed an amend-
ment removing the grounds of objection to which the undersigned called attention,
.and that the Act may, therefore, he left to its operation.

The Acts which are stated by the said report to be objectionable as affecting
Japanese in British Columbia, are chapters 10, 28, 30, 44, 46, 47, 48, 50 52, 53, 54,
ô5, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63 and 64.

As to these statutes the recommendations of the said report have been carried
into effect, and Your Excellency's government have communicated with Her
Majesty's government and with the provincial government.

The undersigned by his report of 7th March last, which was approved by Your
Excellency on the 1.Rth March, submitted copy of the reply of the provincial
government and recommended that it be transmitted to the Right Honourable the
Principal Secretary of State for the colonies in order that ho might submit any
observations which ho mightdeem proper for the consideration of Your Excellency's
government.

There has been referred to the undersigned copy of a despatch from Mr.
Chamberlain to Your Excellency, dated 23rd March last, acknowledging the des-
patch of Your Excellency of the 27th February, No. 40, forwarding copy of a letter
from the Japanese Consul at Vancouver in which ho calls attention to certain
.measures which were introduced by the legislature of British Columbia during the
last session prohibiting the employment of Japanese, and renewing with regard to
-these measures the objections which he urged against the legislation now in question.
It is stated in this despatch that Her Majesty's government much regret to find the
government and legislature of the province of British Columbia adopting a course
which is justly regarded as offensive by a friendly power and that Her Majesty's
government strongly deprecates the passing of exceptional legislation affecting
Japanese already in British Columbia.

The under8igned hua carefully considered the reasons stated in support of
the legislation by the government of British Columbia. He observes that the
statutes in question have not rendered unlawful the employment of Japanese gener-
ally, yet they have that effect so far as the companies incorporated by the provin-
cial legislature and within the application of these statutes are concerned. Such
legislation may operate to diminish Chinese and Japanese immigration into the
province which as appears by the statement of the provincial government is the
main object, or, if, as is to be inferred from the provincial despatch, the conditions
are such as to induce employers to prefer Asiatic labour, the result might be such as
to cause employers to carry on their business as individuals or partnerships rather
than as corporations under the laws of the province. The undersigned does not con.
eider however, that the reasons urged on behalfof the province or any other reasons
which occur to him are such as to justify Your Excellency's government in approv-
ing of the legislation, in view of the strong objections urged against it by the govern-
ment of Japan, which objections have been so far upheld by Her Majesty's govern-
ment as the correspondence upon the subject shows. The advantages to be derived
by the province of British Columbia from these enactments are in the opinion of
the undersigned very doubtful and not at ail corresponding in importance
to the advantages which may be expected both for the province and the Dom-
inion at large from a friendly sentiment on the part of Japan in matters of com-
merce and otherwise. When it is considered further that these enactments may
affect not only the relations between the Dominion and Japan, but also the relations
of the empire with the latter country, as Her Majesty's government seem to appre-
hend they may do, the duty of Your Excellency's government to provide a remedy
so far as the circumstances fairly permit, becomes apparent.

It is pertinent here to remark also that the authority of a province to legislate
in relation to immigration in the province is, by the British North Ainerica Act,
made subordinate to the authority of parliament, and as these Acte are upheld
largely as affecting immigiation, the case seems to be one in which it is intended
that Dominion policy should prevail.
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The power of the legislature to enact these statutes is not by any means free from
doubt because they principally affect the rights of aliens, and the subject of aliens
is not within provincial authority. It is not, however, in view of the foregoing
considerations necessary at present to determine the question of ultra vire$.

The undersigned observes that chapter 28 to which the short title is given of
"The Labour Regulation Act, 1898," is confined in its provisions to the em ployment,
in British Columbia, of Chinese or Japanese, and chapter 44, entitled the Tramway
Incorporation Amendment Act, 1898. These Acts may, therefore, be disallowed
without serions inconvenience. The other statutes mentioned in the report of the
undersigned, of 8th November last, are mainly concerned with the incorporation of
companies, and they came into effect upwards of a year ago. In these cases or some
of them doubtless c9mpanies have been organized and property acquired, debts and
obligations incurred and business transacted on account of which great incon-
venience, confusion and loss would result if the Acts upon which these companies
depend were now disallowed. The corporations themselves and the persons who have
dealt with them cannot properly be held responsible for the objectionable provision
ip the constituting Acte, because thie section seoms to have been introduced in pur-
suance of a pohey of the government to disqualify Chinese and Japanese from
employment by provincial corporations. The effect of such a provision also, being
confined te a few corporations, is comparatively limited. The undersigned, therefore,
considers that the justice of the case will be met by disallowing the General Act,
namely chapter 28, cited as " The Labour Regulation Act, 1898," and also chapter
44 entitled " The Tramway Incorporation Amendment Act, 1898; " and on account of
the inconvenience, confusion and lose which would otherwise ensue, leaving the other
statutes to their oporation, with an earnest recommendation to the provincial
government based upon the reasons stated in this report that at the next ensuing
session of the legislature they introduce legislation in each case to repeal the clause
in question.

The undersigned faurther recommends that a copy of this report, if approved, be
transmitted to the Lieutenant Governor of British Columbia, for the information of
his government. Respectfuliy submitted,

D. MILLS,
Minister of Justice.

AT THE GOVERNMENT HOUSE AT OTTAWA.

MoNDAY, the 5th day of June, 1899.

Present: His Excellency in Council.

Whereas the Lieutenant Governor of the province of British Columbia, with the
legislative assembly of that province, did on the 20th day of May, 1898, pass an
Act which bas been transmitted, chaptered 28, and intituled: "An Act relating to
the employment of Chinese or Japanese persons on works carried on under Fran-
chises granted by Private Acte ";

And whereas the said Act has been laid before His Excellency the Governor
General in Council, together with a report from the Minister of Justice recommend-
ing that the said Act should be disallowed;

Therefore, His Excellency, by and with the advice of the Queen's Privy Coun-
cil for Canada has this day been pleased to declare his disallowance of the said Act,
and the same is hereby disallowed accordingly.

Whereof the Lieutenant Governor of the province of British Columbia and all
ohetr persons whom it may concern are to take notice and govern themselves accord-

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.
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I, Sir Gilbert John Elliott Murray Kynnynmond, Earl of Minto, Governor Gon.
eral of Canada, do hereby certify that the Act passed by the legislature of the pro-
vince of British Columbia on the 20th day of May, 1898, chaptered 28, and intituled :
"An Act relating to the employment of Chinese or Japanese persons on works car-
ried on under Franchises granted by Private Acts," was recoived by His Excellency
the Governor General of Canada on the 8th day of June, 1898.

Given under my hand and seal this 5th day of June, 1899.
MINTO.

AT THE GOVERNMENT HOUSE AT OTrAWA,

MONDAY, the 5th day of June, 1899.

Present: His Excellency in Council.

Whereas the Lieutenant Governor of the province of British Columbia, with the
legislative assembly of that province, did on the 20th day of May, 1898, pa-s an Act
which has beeti transmitted, chaptered 44, and intituled: " An Act to amend the
Tramway Incorporation Act ";

And whereas the said Act has been laid before His Excellency the Governor
General in Couneil, together with a report from the Ministor of Justice, recommend-
ing that the said Act should be disallowed ;

Therefore, His Excellency, by and with the advice of the Queen'sPrivy Council
for Canada, has this day been pleased to declare his disallowance of the said Act,
and the same is hereby disallowed accordingly.

Whereof the Lieutenant Governor of the province of British Columbia and aIL
other persons whom it may concern, are to take notice and govern themselves
accordingly.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

I, Sir Gilbert John Elliott Murray Kynnynmond, Earl of Minto, Governor
General of Canada, do hereby certify that the Act passed by the legislature of the
province of British Columbia on the 20th day of May, 1898, chaptered 44, and
intituled: " An Act to amend the Tramway Incorporation Act," was received by
Ris Excellency the Governor General of Canada on the 8th day of June, 1898.

Given under my hand and seal thi 5th day of June, 1899.
MINTO.
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RETIURN
[113]

To an ADDRESS of the HousE or COMMONS dated the 30th March, 1898, for
copies of all instructions given by the Government of Canada, or any
department thereof, to Charles Russell, Esq., Solicitor, London, England,
or to the firm to which he belongs, or to any member thereof, in relation
to any case or business in whieh the said government or any department
thereof was or is concerned ; also copies in detail of all bille of costs or
accounts rendered by the said persons to the government or any depart-
ment since lst July, 1896.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

OTTAWA, 2nd December, 1896.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & BROUGHAM,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, W.C., England.

GENTLEEN,-I am directed by the Minister of Justice to inform you that he has
decided to entrust to your charge the future legal business of the Dominion in the
United Kingdom. Heretofore Messrs. Bompas, Bischoff & Company have been the
agents of the Minister in London, and certain business is now in their hands which, of
course, will not be disturbed. I am directed, however, to send you the business arising
in future. I have communicated your appointment to Messrs. Bompas & Company.

I have the honour to be sir,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

OTTAWA, 31st December, 1896.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & BROUGHAM,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, England.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to inform you that the Solicitor General will sail for
England on Saturday next, and that he takes with him a certified copy of the record and
petition for special leave to appeal in a case relating to the conflict of legislative author-
ity between the Dominion and provinces upon the subject of waters and fisheries con-
monly known as the Fisheries Case. The case consists of a reference by the Governor
General in Council of certain questions to the Supreme Court of Canada, under chapter
138 of the Revised Statutes of Canada, " An Act respecting the Supreme and Exchequer
Courts " as amended by 34-35 Victoria, Chapter 28. Some of the questions have been
answered by the Supreme Court of Canada in favour of Dominion jurisdiction and
others in favour of provincial authority. Some of the provinces, I understand, propose
to assert an appeal as against those answers favourable to the Dominion, and it will
doubtless be desirable that ail the applications should be made at the same time. Mr.
S. V. Blake, of 17 Victoria Street, is I believe the solicitor of the province of Ontario,
and Messrs. Hill, Son & Reckards are the solictiors for the province of Nova Scotia.

113-1
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I do not know who represents the other provinces. I may say that the Solicitor General
proposes to retain as junior coansel upon the application and appeal Mr. H. Z. Loehnis,
of 7 ... ...... Street. The Solicitor General will call upon you soon after his arrival
and give you full instructions.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

OTTAWA, 31st December, 1896.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & BROUGHAM,

37 Norfolk Street, W.C.,
London, England.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to inform you that the Honourable Edward
Blake, Q.C., holds a standing retainer as leading counsel for the Dominion in all cases
before the Judicial Committee in which he had not been previously retained in any other
interest. I understand that he holds a previous standing retainer from the province of
Ontario, and at present, I am not aware of any cases which are soon to come before the
committee in which he could by reason of his previous retainer for the province of
Ontario act for us.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

OTTAWA, 27th January, 1897.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & BROUGHAM,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, England.

In Re Queen's Counsel.

GENTLEMEN,-This case is a reference under a statute of the province of Ontario,
53 Vic., cap. 13, by the Lieutenant-Governor of that province to that Court of Appeal of
Ontario of certain questions relating to the authority of the provincial government to
appoint Queen's Counsel. Questions were answered by the Court of Appeal favourably
to the provincial view and the Dominion government is asserting an appeal to the
Judicial Committee of the Privy Council. The appeal is as of right under the statute
quoted and cap. 41 of the Revised Statutes of Ontario.

I have served the notice of the appeal upon the Attorney General of the province,
and the registrar of the Court of Appeal has transmitted a certified copy of the record
to the Privy Council office.

I have the honour to request that you will take all further necessary proceedings
for the purpose of having the appeal heard at the next June or July sittings of the
committee when it is expected that the appeal in the Fisheries case will also be heard,
it being desired that as a matter of convenience that these two appeals should be heard
at the same sittings.

I have already sent the Solicitor General a copy of the record which is the only
one I have. He will doubtless give you that copy and may also desire to give some
further instructions in the matter.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

N.B.--I will give further instructions touching the preparation of the case and
retainer of counsel. E. L N.
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OTTAWA, 28th January, 1897.
Messrs. DAY, RtUS8IZLt & ]BROUGHAM,

Barristers,
37 Norfolk Street,

London, England.

Re Queen's Counsel.

GENTLEME,-Referring to previons correspondence on this subject, I have ascer-
tained since writing you last, that the copies of the reasons of the Judges of the Court
of Appeal as contained in the copy of the record which I sent the Solicitor General are
not exactly the same as those contained in the record certified by the RegistFar of the
Court of Appeal to the Privy Council office, the reason for the difference being that the
print which the Solicitor General has, was made from the judgments as pronQunced in
court and these judgments were afterwards somewhat revised by the judges for the pur-
pose of printing. The registrar, seems to have treated revised judgments as the official
record. It is, I believe, a matter of no consequence, except that for the purpose of the
record and other proceedings before the Committee the certified copy should be followed,
and not that which the Solicitor General has.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,

OTTAWA, 6th March, 1897.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & Co.,

Solicitors, &c.,
37 Norfolk Street,

London, W.C., England.

Queen's Counsel Case.

SIRs,-In compliance with the request contained in your letter of the 18th ultimo, I
have the honour to send you herewith a copy of the record in this case with judgment of
the Court of Appeal for Ontario.

There are no factums in the case that I am aware of.

I am, sirs, your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OTTAWA, 1st April, 1897.

Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & CO.,
Solicitors, &c.,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, W.C., England.

SIas,-I have the honour to send you herewith copies of the instructions issued to
agents of this department, and will be much obliged if, as fer as possible, you will comn-
ply with the directions therein given, in connection with any bu4iuess which mAy be
entrusted to you by this department.

I am, sirs, your obedient servant,
E. L. NEWCOMBE,

Deputy Minister of Justice.
113-1h 3
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DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,

Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & o., OTTAWA, Ist April, 1897.

Solicitors &c.,
37 Norfolk Street,

Londo:i, W. C., England.

Re Fisheries Case.

SIRS,-I have the honour to state that I am informed the Queen's Order for the
appeal in this case has issued, but no copy has yet been received by this department.

Will you kindly advise me in what position the case stands at present, and also be
good enough to send me a copy of the Queen's Order, and record of proceedings as soon
as printed. I will be glad to be kept advised of the progress of the case.

I am, sirs,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE.
Deputy Minister of Justice.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OTTAWA, lst April, 1897.

Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & CO.,
Solicitors, &c.,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, W.C., England.

Queen's Counsel Case.

SIRS,-I have the honour to request that you will inform me what is the present
position of this case, and when the appeal can be heard.

I have not yet received a copy of the printed record of proceedings.

I am, sirs, your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & CO., OTTAwA, 23rd July, 1897.
Solicitors, &c.,

37 Norfolk Street, W.C.,
London, England.

SIRS,-I have the honour to inclose herewith draft in your favour for the sum of
$400 being in advance on account of costs and disbursements in respect of certain
litigated matters now in your hands under instruction from this department.

Please acknowledge the receipt thereof.

I am, sirs, your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE.
Deputy Minister of Justice.
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15th August, 1897.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL, & Co.,

37 Norfolk Street, W. C.,
London, England.

Re Fisheries Case

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of 31st ultimo
with copy of transcript of the short-hand notes in the above case, for which I am much
obliged.

I am, sirs, your obedient servant,
E. L. NEWCOMBE.

Deputy Minister of Justice.

CO.ý l5th August, 1897.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & Co.,

Solicitors, &c.,
37 Norfolk Street, W. C.,

London, England.

Queen's Counsel Case.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of 31st ultimo,
transmitting a copy of the short-hand notes in Ries case, for which I am much obliged.

I am, sirs, your obedient servant,
E. L. NEWCOMBE,

Deputy Minister of Justice.

(Gable.)
"Toilfu" OTTAwA, 27th October, 1897.

"Toilful"
London.

Hlave sugar case postponed until next sittings, if opposite side consent; otherwise
have Loehnis prepare case.

Cable whether case will be heard this sittings and approximate date.

NEWCOMBE

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OTTAwA, 17th December, 1897.

Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & BROUGHAM,
Barristers, &c.,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, W.C., England.

Canada Sugar Company vs. the Queen.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to inform you that I have agreed with the appel-
lant's solicitor here that the argument of this appeal before the Judicial Committee shall
be postponed until the next June sittings, provided he can make satisfactory arrange-
ments to that effect with his counsel in London.

Will you be good enough, therefore, to consent to such postponement in case you
are asked to do so by the London solicitors of the appellant company. I will be obliged
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also if yo" will cable me as soon as any definite arrangement has been reached as to the
time of hearing.

I have the honour to be, sirs,
Your obedient servant,

E. L NEWCOMBE
Deputy Minister of Justice.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OTTAWA, 27th December, 1897.

Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & Co.,
Solicitors, &c.,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, W.C., England.

Queen's Counsel Case.

Sîis,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your communication of the
11th instant, inclosing a copy of the judgment of the Privy Council in the case above
mentioned, for which I am much obliged.

I have the honour to be, sirs,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OrA&WA, 27th Deceruber, 1897.

Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & CO.,
Solicitors, &c.,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, W.C., England.

Sipn,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your communication of
the 15th instant, with inclosures. I will be glad if you will kindly render all bills of
costs in triplicate. Kindly note directions contained in the instructions to agents sent
herewith. Please send me the additional copies of the bills now inclosed by you.

I have the honour to be, sire,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
OrAWA, 25th January, 1898.

Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & Co.,
Solicitors, &c.,

London, England.

SIîss,-I have the honour to send you herewith draft in your favour for £238 18 2,
being the amount of your account for professional services and disbursements in the
Queen's Counsel Case (deducting therefrom the sum of £100 paid you by Hon. Mr.
Fitzpatrick, and for which no credit had been given you) and amounting with this
deduetion to £235 5e. 2d., and also the amount of your account in the matter of the
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Petitions of Right, amounting to £3 12s. Od., making in al] £238 18s. 2d. Please send me
separate receipts for these amounts.

I have the honour to be, sirs,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

OTTAWA, 10th May, 1898.
Messrs. DAY, RUssELL & CO.,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, W.C., England.

R. Fisheries Appeal.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the
30th ultimo.

I should be obliged if you will send me the draft case for perusal and settlement.
It has been arranged that Mr. Christopher Robinson, Q.C., will lead for the

Dominion, and I imagine he would like to revise the case before it is filed. I served no
notice of intention to appeal upon any of the provinces, but I will, upon your suggestion,
serve each province with a notice that the appeal has been lodged. I would like to
receive some copies of the printed record as soon as possible.

I have the honor to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

Messrs. DAY, RUssELL & BRoUGHAM, OTTAWA, 12th May, 1897.

37 Norfolk Street,
London, W.C., England.

Queen's Counsel Case.

GENTLEMEN,-We are very anxious that this appeal should be ready for hearing as
the same time as the appeal in the Fisheries case. Will you be gxd enough, therefore,
to expedite the matter as much as possible and send me some printed copies of the
Record and draft case for revision with the least possible delay.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

(Cablegram.)
ToILFUL-London.

OTTAWA, 2nd June, 1897.

Lodge Queen's Counsel case as settled by Russell.

NEWCOMBE.
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OTTAWA, 2nd June, 1897.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & BROUGHAM,

Solicitors, &c.,
37 Norfolk Street,

London, W.C., England.

Queen v8. The Canada Sugar Refining Company.

GENTLEMEN,-I inclose copy of the case and the appellant's and respondent's
factums upon the appeal to the Supreme Court of Canada; also copy of the opinions
delivered by the Judges of the Supreme Court.

You will observe that the appeal has been allowed by the Supreme Court and
judgment entered in favour of the Crown. I am informed by the respondents' solicitor
that he proposes to apply immediately for leave to appeal to the Judicial Conmittee of
the Privy Council. We desire to oppose the application, and I am, therefore, to request
you to take the necessary steps for that purpose. Mr. Blake, Q.C., in virtue of his
standing retainer, should have the leading brief for the Crown, and the junior brief
should be given to Mr. Loehnis.

I may add that Mr. MacTavish, Q.C., of Ottawa, who is going to London, has
instructions from this department to appear upon the application. The nature of the
case and of the arguments upon both sides will, I think, sufficiently appear fron the
documents inclosed.

I am, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

(Cablegram.)
OTTAWA, 5th June, 1897.

"TOILFUL,"
London.

Lodge fisheries case settled by Haldane Loehnis.

NEWCOMBE.

OTTAWA, 5th June, 1897.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & BROUGHAM,

Solicitors, &c.,
37 Norfolk Street,

London, W.C., England.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of 21st
ultimo, inclosing copies of the cases in the fisheries appeal, as settled by Mr. Haldane,
Q.C., and Mr. Loehnis.

I have submitted these cases to Mr. Robinson, Q.C., who, after consideration,
advised me that they may be lodged as they stand. I have, therefore, cabled you as
follows

" Lodge fisheries case settled by Haldane Loehnis; " which message I now have
the honour to confirm.

I am, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.
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OTTAWA, 10th June, 1897.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & BROUGHAM,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, W.C., England.

Ihe Canada Sugar Refining Co. vs. The Queen.

I have the honor to inform you that I have received notice from the company's
solicitor that the I.ondon agents, for the purpose of this appeal, are Messrs Nicol, Son
& Jones, 39 Limis Street, London.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

OTTAWA, 12th June, 1897.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & BROUGHAM,

37 Norfolk Street,
London, W.C., England.

Fisheries Appeal.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to inform you that Mr. Christopher Robinson,
Q.C., expects to sail for England on 30th instant, and it would suit his convenience to
have the hearing set down for about the 15th of July.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

OTTAWA) l4th June, 1897.
Messrs. DAY, RUSSELL & BROUGHAM,

Solicitors, &c.,
37 Norfolk Street,

London, W.C., England.

Canada Sugar Refining Co. vs. the Queen.

GENTLEMEN,-I have the honour to enclose herewith an extended note of the
remarks of the Honourable Mr. Justice King when dissenting from the majority of the
court, the note being certified by the reporter of the court. You will notice that the
judge expressed considerable doubt when dissenting.

Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

(Cablegram.)
OTTAWA, 28th June, 1897.

Toilful-London.

Sugar case-Brief Blake. Not Loehnis unless junior neocessary.

NEWCOMBE.
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OIrAwA, 28th June, 1897.
Mesars. DAY, RUSSELL & BRoUGHAM,

Solicitors, &c.,
37 Norfolk Street,

London, W.C., England.

Canada Sugar Refining Co. vs. Queen.

GENTLEMN,-I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of 18th
instant.

I have cabled you in reply as follows: "Sugar case brief Blake not Loehnis unless
junior necessary," which I have now the honour to confirm.

I was under the impression that it was usual in all cases for the leading council to
appear before the committee with a junior on the same side, and, therefore, I mentioned
Mr. Loehnis as junior council. If, as I infer from your letter, there is no necessity for
a junior, you will please instruct Mr. Blake only. Mr. MacTavish already has his
instructions from here.

I have the honour to be, gentlemen,
Your obedient servant,

E. L. NEWCOMBE,
Deputy Minister of Justice.

THE GOVERNMENT OF THE DOMINION OF CANADA TO DAY, RUSSELL
& CO., ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPREME COURT OF CANADA.

FisHERIEs CASE.

CosTs, CHARGES AND EXPENsEs relating to the Petition of the Dominion, of Ontario,
and of Nova Scotia and Quebec, for special leave to appeal.

Date. ITEMs. AMOUNXT.

1897. £ s. d.

January 5Retaining fee. .... .... ..... . ...... ..... ... . . .. ................ 1 1 0
Attending solicitors for Quebec and Nova Scotia as to the Petitions for leave to

appeal in this matter. Discussing the desirability of proceeding together in
a friendly manner, explaining that the Solicitor General for Canada would
be in this country in a few days and that we would then go fully into the
question with him .......................... .............. ..... .... 0 10 0

9 Attending Mr. Fitzpatrick, Solicitor General for Canada, at the Savoy Hutel.
on his arrival, and obtaining from him papers connected with this appeal,
and conferring with him at great length...................... ..... 1 1 0

Instructions for petition for leave to apal.. ..................... . ..... 0 0
Perusing official copy proceedings and documents connected with this appeal .. 21 0 0

il Writing Mr. Newcombe, Deputy Minister of Justice, acknowledging his letter
of the 8lst ultimo, that we ad since the receipt thereof had an interview
with the Solicitor General ....... ................ ..... 0 5 0

13i Writing Messrs. Hill & Co., acknowledging their letter of thei 1th, and that we
would write them in a few days with an appointment to meet the Solicitor
General of the Dominion of Canada................................ ..... 0 5 0

Conference with Mr. Blake as to date of hearing ............................. 1 1 0
Perusing draft petition for leave to appeal, fos. 10 .... ..... ................ 1 13 4
Attending rivy Council as to whether they could accept petition for leave to

appal in its present state, when they requested that it should be consider-
ab shortened ................ ................................ ........ 0 10 0

Appointing conference with Solicitor General... .................... 10 0
Amending diaft petition in conference with the Solicitor General.............. 1 1 0
Engrossing and two fair copies .... ..... ....... .. ...................... 6 7 6

10
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Cowrn, Charges and Expenses relating to the Petitions of the Dominion, &c.-Con.

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

Janugry 22 Instructions for and drawing affidavit of E. F. Day in support of petition...... 0 10 0
Engrossming same................................. ... ...... ........ 0 5 0
Attending swearing........ ........... .... ....................... 0 10 0
P aid oath ............ ............ ............... ....................... 0 1 6
Attending lodging affidavit........ . .................................. 0 10 0
Attendmg lodging amended petition for leave, when rems'trar again requested

that it should be considerably shortened as a great deal of the matter con-
tained in it might be eliminated. that any arguments were unnecessary mn
this petition, and only the bare facts were required.. .... ............... 0 10 0

Attending the Solicitor General informing him of the result of our interview,
with the Registrar of the Privy Council and he instructed us to confer with,
junior counsel on the imatter........... ...................... .......... 0 10 0

25 Attending appointing conference with Mr. Loehnis..................... .... 0 10 0
Paid his fee and clerk (see end of bill).
Attending Mr. Loehnis in conference settling petition for leave to appeal 1 1 0
Engrossing petition for leave to appeal as resettled, 61 folios................... 1 10 6
Six copies for counsel and respondents solicitors .............................. 9 3 0
Re-engrossing atfidavit of E. F. Day......................................... 0 5 0
Six fair eopies for counsel and respondents solicitors ........................ 0 15 0
Attending deponent on his swearing.......................................... 0 10 0
Paid oath ........... . ............... ........ .............. .. 0 1 6
Attending lodging petition....... ... ..................................... 0 10 0
Thelifeaffidavit . .............................. ........................... 0 10 0
Paid fee and lodging (ee Leash account.)
Perusing petition for special leave to appeal for province of Ontario ............ 1 1 0
The like petition for Nova Scotia and Quebec ............... ...... ........ 1 1 0

28 Attending Mr. Blake with copy of our petition for special leave to appeal which
we had to-day lodged................................... . . ........ 0 10 0

The like attendance on Messrs. Hill, Son & Rickards..... ... O. ............ 0 10 0
30 Writing Mr. S. V. Blake acknowledging his letter of the 29th, and informing

him that we understood that these petitions would be heard on the 13th
February .... . ... .......... ....... ...... ...... . .. . .......... 0 5 0

Later, attending the Solicitor General, when he reqested us to arrange for the
petitions to be heard on Saturday, the 6th inst., if possible . ....... ... 0 10 0

February 3 Attending at Privy Council office to fix Saturday next, the 5th inst., to hear
these ptitions for special leave to appeal, and we were informed that it
would arranged with the consent of all parties if possible............... 010 0

Attending Mr. Blake at his office, when he agreed to these petitions being heard
on Saturday next, provided we could let him know for certain by to-morrow
morning if the councillors could hear him ...... . ... ..... ..... . O 10 0

Attending Messrs. Bill, Son & Rickards, when they agreed to Saturday being
fixed, provided it was convenient to their counsel, Mr. Lewis Coward...... 0 10 0

Accrdingly attending Mr. Lewis Coward at his chambers, when he agreed to
Saturday being fixed, provided we could let him know by to-morrow morn-
m g.. ........... . ..... . .... ............ .. .... ... . 0 10 0

Attending Privy Council with consent of all parties to these petitions being fixed
for Saturday, the 6th inst., when we were informed that they could be taken
on that day. .. ......................................... ........... 0 10 0

Attending Mr. Blake, informing him that the hearing had been fixed for Satur-
day next ...... ........ . ...... ... ....... ......................... 0 10 0

Paid eoach hire.. ...................... 0 3 0
Writing Mr. Lewis (Coward, informing him that Saturday had been fixed for the

hearing of these petitions for leave to appeal .... .... .. .... ..... ... 0 5 0
Attending the Solicitor General, informing him that we had suoceeded in fixing

Saturday next for the hearing of these petitions ..................... ..... 0 10 0
Writing, inforning Messrs. Hill, Son & Rickards that Saturday next had been

fixed for bearing these petitions................ ............ 0 5 0
Instructions to counsel to support our petitions and to defend petition of Ontario

and Nova Sotia and Quebec..................................... 110 0
Drawing observations..... ... ........... ·....... .... .... .......... 1 0 0
Fair copy for Mr. Loehnis. .......................................... 0 5 0
Copy petition of Quebec and Nova Scotia to acconpany ................... . 1 10 0
Copy petition of Ontario to accompany....................................... 1 10 0
Attending him with papers.......... ................................. ... 0 10 0
Paid fee and clerk with papers attending him .......... ...................... 0 10 0
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CosTs, Charges and Expenses relating to the Petitions of the Dominion, &c.-Con.

Date. Item. Amount.

1897. £. s. d.

February 3 Copy observations for Solicitor General........... .. .... . ............... 0 5 0
Copy petition of Ontario to a.company...... .......................... 1 10 0
Copy petition of Nova Scotia and Quebec to acconipany .................... 1 10 0
Attending him with papers.. ....................................... O 10 0
Attending appointing consultation with the Hon. C. Fitzpatrick, Q.C., and Mr.

Loehnis for to-morrow afternoon................. .... .... .... ... .... 1 0 0
Paid Mr. Loehnis fee and clerk. (See counsel's fe-s.)
Attending him............ ...... .... .... ... ...................... 010 0
Paid for sunmons to attend hearing, 10 fois. (See cash account.)
Paid m essenger... ................................. ....................... 0 2 6
Copy summons for counsel and attending Mr. Loehnis .... ..... ...... .... 0 12 6
Co y for Solicitor General and attendg him.. ..................... .... 0 12 6
Attending consultation with the Hon. C. Fitzpatrick and Mr. Loehnis......... 1 1 0
Attending Privy Council on the hearing of these petitions when special leave

to appeal granted.............. .... .... .. ....... ... ........ .... 1 6 8
Attending paying Council office fees (£9 5s. 6d.) and taking receipt. (See cash

account).. .......... ....... .. ........ . ..................... 0 10 0
Paid for committee report. (See cash account.)
Attending paying for Order of Her Majesty in Council, £3 2s. 6d. (See cash

account.)
Paid m essenger... ................................ ...................... 0 2 6
Paid for 2 copies of the Order. (See cash account.)
A.ttending at the Council Office, obtaining .same. .... ...... ........... .... 0 10 0
Attending serving Queen's Order granting leave to Mr. Blake................. 0 10 0
The like attendance on Messrs Hill, Son & Rickards...... ................. 0 10 0

8 Letter to you with Her Majesty's Order and copies and attending t despatch. 0 10 0
Numerous attendances on the Solicitor General (the Hon. C. Fitzpatrick), dur-

ing his stay in this country, discussing this appeal with him at length, and
advising, not charged in detail, including letters, messages, &c..... .... . 5 10 0

CosTs Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals.

February 11 Retaining free................................... .... ........ .... .... . 0 13 4
Attending at Privy Council (lodging record)......... .... ,.................. 0 10 0

I 15 Writing Mr. Blake acknowledging his letter of even date inclosing the pro-
ceedingson hearing of these petitions....................... . . ...... 0 5 0

Paid proportion of shorthand writers' charges....... ...... ...... ........ ... 0 17 6
Attending paying proportion of charges.......... ... .......... ......... 0 10 0

i 23 Attending at the Pnvy Council office and bespeaking copies of the type-
written documents in the original record and filling up and signing, under-
taking to pay for same and printing............................... . 0 10 0

Attenling obtaining the copy....... ... ...................... .. 0 10 0
Paid for copy transcript........ .......... ............................... 0 5 6
Attending thereon......................................................... 0 10 0
Perusing transcript... ................................ ................... 0 6 8

March 9 Attending Ontario agent on his calling with reference to this appeal when he
lent us material for preparing copy record for printers... ... .............. 0 10 0

10 Writing Mr. Blake that we propoeed making an appointment at the Privy
Council office to examine the record on Wednesday next and asking if this
would be convenient to him, and if so to kindly bring with him the copies of
the printed documents..... ...... ................. ........... 0 5 0

Writing Messrs. Hill, Son & Rickarda acknowledging their letter of the 9th
that we proposed calling at the Privy Council office on Weednesday to ex-
amine the record in this case and that we should be glad to hear that this
was convenient to them ............................... ..... ........... 0 5 0

12 Writing Mr. Blake acknowledging his letter of the 11th inclosing a make u;>
record.................... . ....... . ................. ........ 0 5 0

16 Drawing and copy authority to the Registrar to enter appearance to our
petitions..... ......... .......... ............. .................... 0 5 0

Attending Council office therewith...... ............................ . .... 0 10 0
Paid appearance fee (10 fols.) (See cash account.).......... ................ 0 5 6
Notice of appearance, copy and service on Ontario agent......... ... . ....... 0 5 0

12



Instructions to Charles Russell.

CosTs, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals.-Con.

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

March 16 The like on agent for Quebec and Nova Scotia.......... .. . ......... .... 0 5 0
17 Attending at Privy Council with agents for Ontario, Quebec and Nova Scotia

company, copy record with original and agreeing order of document and
title page, etc. Engaged all day................... ......... ... ...... 4 4 0

Paid coach hire .............................................. .. .... 0 2 0
19 Drawing index of record........................ . ......... ............ . 0 8 0

Fair copy for Ontario agent.... ...... ............ ....... .. . ...... ... 0 2 0
Attendng him with sanie . .. . .. .... ............................... 0 10 0
Fair copy for agent of Quebec and Nova Scotia ............................. 0 2 0
Attending him with same .. .. . . .... .. ........ .. .... 0 10 0
Attending agreeing index with agents for Ontario, Quebec and Nova Scotia.... 0 10 0
The index having been agreed by all parties, fair copy for printer .. ........... 0 2 0
Drawing marginal notes to record and directions to printer...... ........... 1 12 0
Two fair copies for approval of respondent's solicitors................ ......... 0 16 0
Attending solicitor for Ontario an a eeing same.. ................. ........ 0 10 0
Attending solicitors for Quebec and Nova Scotia and agreeing same........... 2 6 0
Copy marginal notes as agreed for printer............... . . ............. 0 8 0
Attending lodging saine with transcript to be printed .... .. . . ..... ....... 0 10 0

April 2 Fair copy arguments used in Supreme Court on the reference by the Governor
in Council, folics 760..... . . ........... ... ..... . ............... 19 0 0

te 5 Drawing petition of appeal, folios...... .. . .......................... 1 8
Fair copy for counsel............. ......... .......................... o 7 0
Attendng hin with same to settle......... .... .......................... 0 10
Paid him fee and ilerk attending him......... .. .. 10

t 6 Attending Privy Council office, examining first print of record with original.
Engaged f romil ........ ............... ...................... 2 2 0

Cab uire ... .............................. ....... ............... 70 2 6
,Attending High Commissioner's offices, 17 Victoria Street, for and obtaining

certain papers............................ ..... ............. 0 10 0
Cab . ......... .... 0 3 07 Attendin Office exanning prin t of record with original. En-

gaged from11to 4 (second dy).............. ...................... 2 2 0
9 Atteningcompletng examination of proof record ........ ................. 1 1

10 Engrossing petition of appeal as setted by counsel, folios 14..... ............. 0 7 0
Attending lodgin saine at Privy Council Office......................... 0 10 0
Paid fee on entenng (1 ginea. (See ch account.)
Paid fee on entering (1 guinea). (See cash account.)
Two copies of respondents, folios, 14 each.................................... 0 14 0
Attending serving same on agent for Attorney General of Ontario............. 0 10 0
Attending serving saine on agents for Attorney General of Quebec and Nova

Scotia...... ...... . . ............ . ..... .. ........ ............ 0 10 0
13 Examining revised proof of record.... ................ ............. ... ... 3 3 0
15 Writing Mr. Newcombe, Deputy Minister of Justice, acknowledging his letter

of the lst, and informing him that the record had been revised and the peti-
tion of appeal lodged, and that the case would be heard about the middle of
July and thereon........... .................................... 0 5 0

22 Writing Mr. Blake asking him to write us, with any observations he wished to
make on the revised print................. ........................ ... 0 5 0

23 Writing Messrs. Hill, Son & Rickards, solicitors for the Government of Quebec
and Nova Scotia as to the fori of the revised record, and arranging for them
to attend here on Tuesday, and we were to write Mr. Blake asking hin to
attend at the saine time to consider their observations...... .. ........... 0 10 0

Writing Messrs. Hill, Son & Rickards that the Privy Council did not give ap-
pointments to compare the revised print, and asking them.to write us with
any observations they might have to make on it......... . .... 5 0

Writing Mr. Blake that we had arranged with Messrs. Hili, Son & Rickards to
attend here on Tuesday to confer as to reports, and we hoped that this would
be convenient to him . .......................................... 0 5 0

e 26 Instructions for case against Ontario and Quebec and Nova Scotia, including
the perusal of the argument in court below, shorthand notes on petition for
leave to appeal, printed record, &c.................. ...... 31 10 o

Drawing saine, folios, 29....................... . .................. .. 3 18 0
e 27 Attending agent for Ontario and solicitors for Quebec and Nova Scotia on their

calling and conferring as to and correcting revised proof of record, and as to
title page for their petition, and conferring as to order of the three petitions 2 2 0

13



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 113.)

CoTss, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals-Continued.

Date.

1897.

April

ff

May

J

fi

it

June

Item.

28 Attending Privy Council with respondents as to title pages and lodging saie for
printng copies and consulting registrar as to the title pages and order of
different petitions..... ....... ......... ......................... ....

29 Attendiy. conference with Mr. Loehnis, when he advised that each party should
lodge only one case if possible, and not a case as appellant and also one as
respondent ......... . .. ... .................................... ..

30 Writing Mr. Blake asking him to call on Monday with reference to the cases in
this matter, and the joint appendix, &c.... ...................... .

30 Writing Mr. Newcombe, Deputy Minister of Justice, that the case in this matter
had now been drawn by Mr. Loehnis and that we would be glad to have if
he wished to be sent over to him to be finally settled and thereon ..........

3 Attending Mr. Blake, solicitor for Ontario, as to the statutes he proposed to in-
clude in the joint appendix and as to the number of cases to be lodged by
each party when he insisted that the three appeals should be quite distinct
and separate cases lodged in each appeal by each party............. .

5 Perusing and considering statutes, cases, &c., for joint appendix and arranging
oider in which to print same......... . .... .. . ... . ....... .. ...

10 Copy of appellant's cases to settle in consultation, fos. 29. .......... ........
Paid him fee and clerk ....... ......... ....... .....
Attending, appointing consultation to settle case with Mr. Loehnis.........
Attending M r. Haldane therewith . .. .... .............................
Paid him fee and clerk attending him. ... ............. .... .........
Attending Mr. Loehnis with draft case ..... .......................
Paid him fee and clerk attending him, appointing consultation .... .......
Paid him consultation fee and clerk attending him.... ......... ...... ......

11 Attending Mr. Blake at his chambers and agreeing contents of the proposed
appendix.... . .......... ...... .... ................ ...... . ....

Preparng and fair copy of statutes, &c., for printer .......... ..............
Preparing title, index, headings, marginal notes and indorsements, &c., and

fair copy, saine .............. .......... .... ... .... ...... .........
Attending printer therewith and afterwards on his handing us proof print.....
Comparing and correcting proof print, 2½ days............... .......... ....

12 Writing Mr. Newcombe, Deputy Minister of Justice, acknowledging his letter
of the 29th ult., and that we hoped on Saturday to send him the draft case
by Mr. Haldane, Q.C., and thereon ... . ............... ..........

14,Attending consultation with Mr. Haldane and Mr. Loehnis settling case of
appellant...... ... . .. .......................................... ..

21 Writing Mr. Newcombe, Deputy Minister of Justice, Ottawa, inclosing copy of
the case herein and that we should be glad te hear fron him on the matter

Copy case to inclose, folios 29 .... ....... ................. ...............
26 Attending printer with corrected proof of joint appendix and afterwards receiv-

ing revised proof. ......... .. ................ ............... ......
Writing Mr. Newcombe, Deputy Minniter of Justice, acknowledging his letter

of the 10th, and informing him that the printed record would be ready in a
few days and that we would then send him saine ... .... ............

27 Attending at Privy Council Office and r uesting them te let us have the
record in this appeal when they informe us that they had not received the
record as yet from the Queen's Printer, but would let us know as soon as
they had it................................. .... ...... .. ... ........

2 On receipt of instructions froin you, attending printer, instructing him to print
first proof of appellant's case ................ ............ ........ .....

Copy, case for printer ........ ........................ .. ............
4 Writing Mr. Blake acknowledging his letter and that we quite agreed te the

clause which he proposed te add to the end of the appendix and that saine
appeared te us te be in order.............. .............................

Examining and correcting proof, case of appellant ...... ...... ........... .
9 Examining revised prooff of joint appendix and comparing saine with first proof

12 Attending printer with corrected proof of case and receiving afterwards from
himi revised proof ....... .... .........................................

Comparing and examining revised proof........... ........ ....... .........
16 Attending printer with revised proof of joint appendix and appellant'scase and

ordering and afterwards receiving printed copies........ . ..... . .......
Attending Council Ofhioe lodging; forty copies joint appendix ..... ..........

16 Attending printer, paying hu . . ............... .. ...............
Paid your proportion of printing joint appendix ..... .............. .... ....

14

A. 1899

Amount.

£ s. d.

2 2 0

1 1 0

0 5 0

0 5 0

1 1 0

116 0
0 14 6

............
0 10 0
0 10 0
0 10 0
0 10 0
0 10 0
0 10 0
1 1 0

17 3 0

1 10 0
0 10 0
9 0 0

0 5
1 1

0 5
0 14

0 10

0 5 0

0 10 0
0 10 0
0 14 6

0 5
0 10
1 16

0 10
0 10

0 10
0 10
0 10

12 10



Instructions to Charles Russell.

Cosirs, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals-Continued.

Date. Item. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

June 17 Attending agent for Ontario, exchanging cases with him .................... 0 10 0
Attending lodging cases at Privy Councîl office.... ................... 0 10 0
Attending agent for Quebec and Nova Scotia, exchanging cases with him, 0 10 0
Perusing Ontario case as respondent................................... . 1 1 0
Perusing Quebec and Nova Scotia case as respondents ..... .... ........... 1 1 0

l 24 Attending Privy Council, inquiring when appeal was likely to be heard....... 0 10 0
Attending printers, instructing them to bind copies of case and record for the

Privy Council, and 12 copies of case record, and joint appendix for counsel. 0 10 0
te 25 Writing Mr. Loehnis, asking him to let us know if he considered that counsel

should be supplied with the arguments of the ccunsel in Canada which were
laid before hin when preparing the cases in this matter ............ 0 5 0

le 30 Writing Messrs. Vacher Sons, asking them to let us have these appeal cases
bound, without fail, this morning ................ .... ........... 0 5 0

Or receipt of proof of labels from printers, examining and correcting same, and
afterwards to printers with same............. ............................ 0 10 0

On receipt of bound proceedings from printers, revising same and makîng
appointments with opponents to exchange..... ............ ............. 1 1 0

July 1 Attending agent for Ontario, exchanging 3 copies of bound proceedings in this
case....... . ............... ........... ...................... 0 10 0

Attending agent for Nova Scotia and Qubeec, exchanging 3 copies of bound
proceedings in this case...., ... ........ . ..................... ,...... 0 10 0

2 Attending at Privy Council, lodging 10 copies of proceedings ........... ..... 0 10 0
Instructions for brief for appellant.............. ........... . .......... 1 1 0
Drawing sam e .... . ........ .... ................................ ..... 1 1 0
Four fair copies for counsel....................................... ... .. 0 10 0
Four copies petition for special leave to accompany, folios 61.................. 6 2 0
Four copies petition, folios 14.. ....... ............................... 1 8 0
Four copies shorthand notes of petition for leave. folios 12 ... ................ 1 2 0
Four copies table showing relative value of fisheries, folios 9.............. . .... 0 18 0
Attending Mr. Christopher Robinson, Q.C., with brief..... ........ ... ..... 2 2 0
Attending him, appointing consultation... ..................... .... .... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., with brief .......... ........ ........ 2 2 0
Paid his fee, and clerk, on brief, attending him ... ................. . 0 10 0
Attending him, appointing consultation................................ .... 0 10 0
Paid him consultation fee, and clerk attending him...... .. ..... ........... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. McTavish with brief.. ...... . .................. .......... 2 2 0
Attending him, appointing consultation ... . ................. .. ........ 0 10 0
Attending Mr. H. W . Loehnis with brief............................... .... 1 1 0
Paid him brief fee, and clerk attending him ...................... .. . 0 10 0
Attending him, appointing consultation ; paid him consultation fee, and clerk

attending him.... .. ....... .. ...... . ................. .... 0 10 0
10 Writing Messrs. Cherer, Bennett & Davis, shorthand writers, that we should

be obliged if they would obtain quotations from the chief firmns of litho-
graphic and printing, copies of notes overnight for the next morning, at say
9oclock. ....................................... ................ 0 5 0

13 Writing Sir Louis Davies, inforiming him of the consultation for 4.30 to-morrow 0 5 0
14 Attending consultation at Mr. Haldane's chambers...... .......... ... ..... 2 2 0
15 Attending Mr. Haldane, as to whether he required shorthand notes to be taken

from day to day in the event of the case lasting more than one day, when
he informed us that he would like this done . .... .. ..... .. . 0 10 0

Attending Messrs. Stanford & Co., Government Ordnance map publishers,
instructing thein to obtain fromî the Imperial Institute the map exhibited
of the Canadian fisheries, and to make a plan half that size, without mark-
ing towns, &c., but paying great attention t. the coast lines, rivers, lakes,
which they pronised to get done immediately..................... 1 o

le 16 Attending Registrar of Privy Council, informing him of the intention to hang
a map in the Council Chamber on the hearng and for his leave to do so
when he infornied us that if all parties consented, this might be done....... 0 10 0

i 17 Attending at Messrs. Stanford's, inquiring as to how they were getting on with
the map therein, when they informed us that they wished to see Sir Louis
Davies about them.. . .... ...... ....... ................ ...... .... 0 10 0

Writing Messrs. Stanford & Co. that our Mr. Russell would call upon them on
Monday afternoon with reference to the maps herein ...................... 0 5 0

le 19 Attending Mr. C. Robinson, appointing further consultation................. 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C,, M.P., appointing consultation ................. 0 10 0

15



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 113.) A. 1899

COSTS, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals-Continued.

Date. Item. Amouut.

1897. £ s. d.

July 16 Paid him consultation fee and clerk attending him......................... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. McTavish as to consultation in this case for to-morrow......... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis, appointing consultation............................ 0 10 0
Paid him consultation tee and clerk attending him................. ... ...... 0 10 0
Attending before Sir Louis Davies thereof......... ....... .... ............ 0 10 0

20 Attending Messrs. Stanfords at Charing Cross, going over map with them and
as te hanging same in the Audience Room of the Privy Council........... 1 1 0

Paid M r. Russell's cab...... ............ ............................ ..... 3 0 0
Writing Mr. Blake that counsel thought it desirable that a map of Canada

should be exhibited in this case and that we had obtained rmission from
the registrar to have it set up in Privy Council Audience m, provided
he consented...........................* . .. ........................ 0 5 0

On receipt of letter, Mr. Robinson containing his remarks making copy for
counsels use at consultation, fos. 15....................... .......... . 0 15 0

A ttending consultation.. . ................................................ 2 2 0
Attending Messrs. Stanford's map publishers with reference to this map when

they informad us they had executed our instructions and that the maps
were ready for Mr. McTavish to look over and have added what he
required.................. .............. ............................ 0 10 0

Writing Mr. McTavish that the map was near ready for his inspection.... .... 0 5 0
21 Writing Messrs. Hill, Son & Richards, with reference to the map which we had

obtained permission to have set up in the Privy Council Audience Room,
and asking if they consented to this arrangement.. .... ........ ......... 0 5 0

Writing Mr. S. V. Blake in reply that the map could be inspected at MessrF.
Stanford's...... ....... ................................. ..... 0 5 0

23 Writing Messrs. Hill, Son & Richards, acknowledging their letter of the 22nd.. 0 5 0
24 Writing Mr. S. V. Blake, acknowledging his letter of the 23rd and informing

hima that Messrs. Hill, Son & Richards had agreed to the map and that we
regretted that he could not see his way to do so also and thereon. .... . . 0 5 0

Attending, appointing further consultation with Mr. C. Robinson..... ...... 0 10 0
26 Attending, appointing consultation with Mr. Haldane, Q.C.. .. ....... . 0 10 0

Paid him fee and clerk attendin him ...... . ........ ................... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. McTavish, appointing consultation............... ..... ..... 0 10 0
Attending, appointing consultation with Mr. Loehnis.. ..................... 0 10 0
Attending him....................... ................ 0 10 0
Attending the Canadian Minister of Marine, Sir Louis Davies informing him

of the consultation.. ... . ...... ... .... ..... ............. .... 0 10 0
Writing Sir Louis Davies, asking him to let us know how many cruisers were

engaged in protecting the fisheries in Canadian waters, as Mr. Robinson
and Mr. Loehnis were asking for this information . ... .. .............. . 0 5 0

Paid for summons to attend hearing (10s.) see cash account. Paid messenger... 0 2 6
27 Four copies counsel and attending them .... ....... ..................... 2 10 0

Attending consultation with Mr. Haldane, Q.C., and other counsel....... .... 2 2 0
Attending Council Office as to hanging of map, when they informed us it could

be hung at any time by leave of the judges . ... .......... .. ... .... .. 0 10 0
Attending Messrs. Stanford, instructing them to be in attendance with map at

10.30 o'clock to-m orrow .... . ... .. ... ............ .... ............ 0 10 0
28 Attending Privy Council when case opened and part heard. Engaged al day.. 3 6 8

Paid coach hiré, with papers....... . .............. ........................ 0 3 0
Copy shorthand notes of proceedings for Mr. Robinson.... ... ............ 7 10 0
A ttending him ......... ................ .. ................. .... ........ 0 10 0
The like M r. Haldane..... .... .... .. . .. ............ ... .. ..... .. 7 10 0
Attending him ..... .... ... .......... ........ ...... ... ....... . 0 10 0
The like Mr. McTavish................................ ... . . .......... 7 10 0
A ttending him . ............................... ......................... 0 10 0
Thelike Mr. Loehnis .. ............. ......... . ....... ....... 7 10. 0
Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., with refresher fee and clerk ............. 2 2 0
Paid him refresher fee and clerk attending him........................... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis with refresher fee and clerk.... ................ .... 1 1 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him......................... ........... 0 10 0
Attending appointing consultation with Mr. C. Robinson ............... . . 0 10 0
Attending appointing consultation with Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P.............. 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him... ............ .... .................. 0 10 0
Attending appointing consultation with Mr. McTavish ........ .......... .. 0 10 0
Attending appointing consultation with Mr. Loehnis.......................... 0 10 0
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Instructions to Charles Russell,

COSTS, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeaa.--Continued.

Date.

1887.

July

Aug.

Ims. Amount.

£ s. d.

28 Paid him consultation fee and clerk attending him.................... . .. . 0
Attending Sir Louis Davies informing him of the consultation... ... ........ 0
Attending at Privy Council Office, bespeaking use of consultation room to-

norrow ......... . . ........... .................. .............. ..... 0
29 Attending consultation.. ..... . ........ ............................... 2

Attending Privy Council when case further heard and adourned part heard.
Engaged all day.............................................. ..... 3

Coach hire, with papers, &c.............. ....... ........................... 0
Copy shorthand notes of proceedings for Mr. Robinson (second day) .. ......... 12
Attending him......... . .............................. .. .. ........ 0
The like for M r. Haldane.................. . ..... ....... ....... . . 12
Attending him. .. . .. .................. ... . ...... ...... .. 0
The like for Mr. McTavish.......................... .... ......... .... 12
A ttendng him ..... ......................... . ...... ............... .. 0
The like for Mr. Loehnis ....... .................................... 12
A ttending hin .... .. .... . ....... .... .... ...... ........ .... ..... .)
Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C., with refresher fee and clerk.. .. ........ ... 0
Paid him fee and clerk. Attending him.. ... ................... ........ 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis with refresher fee and clerk. Paid him........... ... 0
A ttending him ..... ........ .... .... ... ... . ..... .... ............... 1 0
Attending Mr. Robinson appointing consultation .. ............ . .......... 0
Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C., appointing consultation... ................... 0
Paid him consultation fee and clerk attending him...................... 0
Attending Mr. McTavish appointing consultation .. ............... .. . 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis appointing consultation............................. 0
Paid him consultation fee and clerk attending him............. . ...... 0
.Attending Sir Louis Davies informing him of consultation ......... .......... i 0
,Attending bespeaking Privy Council room for consultation ................... 0

30 Attending consultation.. .. .. .... .......... .................... 2
Attending Privy Council, when case finished and judgment reserved... ........ 3
Paid coach hire, with papers... . .... .. .. ..... .... .... . ....... ..... 0
Copy shorthand notes for Mr. Robinson................................ ... 7
A ttending him ...... ........ ..... ... ... ................... ......... 0
The like for M r. H aldane............ ............................... ....... 7
1Attending him ................................... ......... ..
The like for M r. M cTavish.. ..... ..... . ....... .. ................ . 7
A ttending him ................... ................................. .... 0

30 The like for M r. Loahnis................... ............................ .. 7
A ttending him ..... .... ... .... .. . ..... . ......... .... .... ...... 0

31 Writing M r. Newcombe, Deputy Minister of Justice, inclosing transcript of
shorthand notes in this case and thereon.............. . ........ ........ 0

Copy to enclose folios 1,100 ............................ ...... ........... 27
Paid postage .... ............. ..... ... 0
Making up parcel for Mr. McTavish and attending forwarding same at his re-

q u est .. ... ........................... ... ... ... ................ O
P aid . ....... ............... .. ........................ . . . . o

3 Writing Mr. Newcombe, Deputy Minister of Justice, acknowledging the receiptý
of his letter of the 23rd ulto., inclosing draft for $400. ........ .....

5 Writing Messrs. Hill, Son & Richards acknowledging their letter of the 3rd,
stating that Mr. Longley wished to correct h argument and, asking
them to send us a corrected note, when we would forward same to Canada. 0

Letters, messengers, postages, attendances and including attendances on Mr.
McTavish, Iiir Louis Davies, the Privy Council, Messrs, Cherer, Bennett,
& Davies, Messrs. Stanfords, Mr. Blake, Messrs. Hill, Son & Richards,
Mr. Haldane, Mr. Loehnis not before charged ......... ........... ..... 5

10
10

10
2

6
3

10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
2
6
3

10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10

5
10
4

6
6

5 0

5 0

List of Counsels' Fees.

January 2,51Paid Mr. Loehnis cons jîtation fee and clerk ........... .... ............. s16
J Fee t Mr. Loehnis to support petition for leave to appeal ..... ........ .. s15 6
Paid him consultation fee and clerk. ... ............. ............. .... 5 15 6

April 5WFee to Mr. Loehnis to settle petition of appeal .... ..... ... ......... .... 5 15 6
May 10 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M., and clerk fee to settle appellant's case......... 27 10 0

Paid hlim consultation fee and clerk... ..... .. ...... .......... ... ..... 5 15 6
113-2 17



62 Victoria, Sessional Papers (No. 113.) A. 1899

COSTS, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals-Contiuned.

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

May 10 Fee to Mr. Loehnis to settle case.... ... ....................... 16 10 0
Paid him consultation fee and clerk ......................... ........ ..... 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., with brief .......... ... . ......... .,.. . 165 7 6
Paid hii consultation fee............ .... ................ 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis and clerk, with brief.... .... ......... . ........... 8219 o
Paid him consultation fee and clerk............... ............... .. 5 15 6

July 19 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., consultation fee and clerk ............ ...... 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk .......... ...... 5 15 6

26,Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., consultation fee and clerk....... ....... .... 5 15 6
'Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk ..... ............ ......... .. 5 15 6

28Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., refresher fee and clerk..... ....... . ......... 27 10 0
Paid Mr. Loehnis refresher fee and clerk....... ... .... .... .. .... ........ 16 10 0
Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., consultation fee and clerk.. , ................ 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk.................... ............ 5 15 6

29 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M. P., refresher fee and clerk....................... 27 10 0
Paid Mr. Loehnis refresher fee and clerk........ . ..... ..... .. ......... . 16 10 0
Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., consultation fee and clerk .. ......... ...... 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk .................. .............. 5 15 6

THE GOVERNMENT OF THE DOMINION OF CANADA, TO DAY, RUS-
SELL & CO., IN THE PRIVY COUNCIL, ON APPEAL FROM THE
SUPREME COURT OF CANADA, BETWEEN THE ATTORNEY GEN-
ERAL FOR THE PROVINCE OF ONTARIO, APPELLANT, AND THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL FOR THE DOMINION OF CANADA, RE-
SPONDENT.

IN THE MATTER OF CERTAIN QUESTIONS REFERRED TO THE SUPREME COURT OF CANADA

BY HIS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR GENERAL IN COUNCIL.

COSTS, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals.

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

Feb. Il Retaining fee... ......................................................... 0 13 4
Mar. 16 Drawing and copy authority to registrar to enter appearance to the petition by

the Attorney General of Ontario.... ................... ... .... ..... 0 5 0
Attending at the council ottice therewith ... .. ........ .. .. .......... ... 0 10 0
Paid appearance (10 per cent) see cash account, notice of appearance, copy and

service . .. . .... ... .......... ............... ...................... . . 5 0
April 1 iPerusing petition of appeal of Ontario..................... ................. 1 1 0

Instructions for answer to case of Ontario ........................ .......... 1 0 0
ID raw ing saine, folios 26 ... . ............................ . ........... .... 2 12 6
Two fair copies for counsel to settle........................... ... 1 6 0
Attending counsel with same to settle . ........... . .. .......... ... ... 0 10 0
Paid Mr. Haldane fee to settle, and clerk (see list at end of bill), attending him. 0 10 0
'Attending Mr. Loehnis with case to settle................... .......... ..... 0 10 4
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Instructions to Charles Russell.

COSTS, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals-Continued.

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

April 1 Paid him fee, and clerk attending him...... ....... ................ ..... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Haldane appointing consultation........ .... ............ ... 0 10 0
Paid him fee, and clerk attending hui................. .... ................ 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis appointing consultation............................. 0 10 0
Paid him fee, and clerk attending him................................... 0 10 0
Attending in conference when case settled-... ......... .... · · · · · ·... 1 10 0

Writing you with case, as settled by counsel, for a pproval; copy case to enclose,
folios 26. . .... ....... ..... - . ....... .... ............ ... .

June 3 On receipt of instructions from you, attending printer, instructing him to ritO
first proof of respondent's case......... .... . .................. .. 0 10 0

Copy case for printer, folios 26 .......... .................................. 13 O
Examining and correcting proof case as respondent.................... ... .. 1 0

te 12 Attending printer withi correcteci proof of case, and afterwards receiving froîn
h revised proof...............-...................... 0 10 0

Comparing and exaining revised proof................................ 0 I3 0

16 Attending printer with revised proof of case, ordenng, and afterwards receiving

printed copies...... ................................................ 0 0
Attending council office lodging 10 copies of case .. . 0
'Attending printer, paid him, and taking receipt, paid his charges (xc cash

account)....... ..... ................................................ 0 10
t 17 Attending agent for Ontario exchanging cases.............................. 1

Perusing Ontario case ....................................................
Instrutions for brief for respondent....................... ........ 0 0
Drawi11g same....................... ...... ..... .... ............ , 1
Four fair copies.............................................. 0 10 0

Four fair copies petition of Ontario for counsel .... ... ........................ i 16 0
Attending Mr. Robinson, Q.C., with brief ........... .......... ........... I
Attending hlm appointing consultation ..... ...................... ....... 1 0

wit b ie . .. .. . . ..... .... 0 10 0

Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., wihbif............ .. . --- 1
,Paid hini fee, and clerk attending hlm ........... ......... ... ......... 1
Attending him appo)intiiig consultation,............................ ... o 10 o

.... .... 0 10 0

Paid i fee, and clerk attending hlm.......................................0 10 0
Attendings Mr. Mcfavish with brief . .......................... . ......... 0
Attending hiw appointing consultation ..... ........ .......... ........-. 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis with brief................................. .... 0 0

Paid him fee and clerk attending hn ........................... 0 10 (
Attending him appointing consultation,. ................................ 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him............. ....... ...... 0 10 0

July 14ÎAttending consultation with counsef.................................... 1.. 1 0

19 Attending Mr. Robinson appontingn ccsultation...... ........ .. ....... 10 0
Attending Mr. Haldane, Q. C., arif.nt.. consultation.. .. 1 . .. .... .. . 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending im ........ ................ .. ... ...... 0 10 0
IAttendiing Mr. McTavishb appointing consultation......... 0
Attending M r. Loohnis appomntng consultation ... · · · . .·.··· .· . 0 10 0

Paid him fee and clerk attending him....... .......... ....... ............ 0 10 0

1Attending consultation ..... ........ ...... ....... ................... 1 1

2;9 Attending appointing consultation with Mr. Robinson, Q.C................ 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C., appointing consultation ............... 0 10 0
Paid hini fee and clerk attending him ........ ............. .... .......... . 0 10 0

'Attending Mr. McTavish, Q.C., appointing consultation ........ ...... 0 10 o

Attending Mr. Loehnis appointing consultation .... .......... 10 0

IPaid hini fee and clerk attending him ............... .................... 0 10 0
26 Attending consultation ............................................. 1 1 0

iPaid for smin ons to attend hearing, ts. (SeR cash account.)
Paid m essenger..H al e. . ... . ap o. i.c n.. . .at .2-.- .- .--.. 0 1 6
Four copies for counsel andattnding them ..................... ....... ... 2 10 0

28 Attending Privy Couisil when case opened and part heard and then adjorned.
Engaged all day. (See other bill.)

Attending Mr. Haldane, ap ith refresher .......... . ... ........... ... 1 1 0

Paid him fee and clerk attending him.... ...................-.·.-.--... 0 10 0

Attending Mr. Loehnis with refresher................................. .... 1 0

Paid hm fee and clerk attending him.................................... 0 10 0

Attendings fr. C. oobinson appointing consultation . . . .. ...... ............. 2 10 0
Attending Mr. Haldane, apintin consultation .............................- · 1 o
Paid him fee and clerk attending hun . .......... · · · ·. 10 Paid ~ ~ ~ 1 hi.een.cekatedighi........----.······ . 0 10 0
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CosTs, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals-Continued.

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

July 28 Attending Mr. McTavish appointing consultation ................... ........ 0 10 0
Attending Mr Loehnis apponting consultation ............ ............... . 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him ... ............................... 0 10 0

29 Attending consultation...... ...... . .... .... ..... .. .... ....... .... 1 1 0
Attending Privy Council when case part heard and again adjourned. Engaged

all day. (See other bill.)
Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C., with refresher fee.............. ........... 1 1 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him................................ .... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis with refresher................. ........... .... 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him .................... .... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Robinson, Q.C., appointing consultation. .................. 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C., appointing consultation.. 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending hin. ........................ ...... 0 10 0
lAttending Mr. McTavish, Q.C., appointing consultation.............. .. .. 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis, appointing consultation..... .... .............. . 010 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him.................. ... .... ... .... 0 10 0

30 Attending consultation ................... ..... ........... 1 0
Attending Privy Council when case finished and judgment reserved. (See other

bill).
Letters, messengers, attendance, postages, &c., not previously charged. ... ... 1 1 0

List of Counsele' Fees.

May 5 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., and clerk, fee to settie case................22 1 0
Paid Mr. Loehnis and clerk fee to settle ce............... ... ............ 16 10 0
Paid Mr. Haldane, consultation fee on case........................... 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnîs consultation on case................................. .5 15 6

June -Paid Mr' Haldane, Q.O., M.P., brief fe................................55 2 6
Paid him consultation fee and clerk....................................5 15 6
Paid Mr. L<iehnis brief fee. ......................................... 27 16 6
Paid him consultation fee and clerk..... .......................... 5 15 6

July 19 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., consultation fee and clerk.........5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk ............................... 5 15 6

25 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., consultation fee and clerk ................... 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk..... .... .................... 5 15 6

28 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., refresher fee and clerk.....................22 1 
Paid him consultation fee and clerk................................... 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis refresher fee and clerk................................ il il O
Paid him consultation fee and clerk.... .................. .............. 5 15 6

21 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., refresher fee and clerk .......... .22 1

Mr.i Loei consultation fee and clerk.... .. ........... ... ........ 51

Paid Mr. Loehnis refresher fee and clerk.................... ......... il il O
MPaid him consultation fee and clerk.... 

. 15 6

Pai h m on ulttin eeandclrk.. ... .. .. .. ... .. .. . ..... . ... 5 15 6



Instructions to Charles Russell.

THE GOVERNMENT OF THE DOMINION OF CANADA TO DAY, RUS-.
SELL & CO., IN THE PRIVY COUNCIL, NOS. 8, 9 AND 10 OF 1897.
ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPREME COURT OF CANADA, BETWEEN
THE ATTORNEY GENERAL FOR THE PROVINCE OF QUEBEC AND
NOVA SCOTIA, APPELLANTS, AND THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
FOR THE DOMINION OF CANADA, .RESPONDENTS.

IN THE MATTER OF CERTAIN QUESTIONS, REFERRED TO THE SUPREME COURT OF CANADA,
BY DIS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR GENERAL OF CANADA IN COUNCIL.

COSTS, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals.

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

February 1 Retaining fee.................................................. - -. 0 13 4
March 16 Drawing and copy authority to the Registrar to enter appearance to the petition

by Attorney General of Nova Scotia................................. 0 5 0
Attending at the Council Office therewith................................ 0 10 0
Paid appearance, los. See cash account.
Notice of appearance, copy and service.................... .............. 0 5 0

April 3 Perusing petition of appeal of Quebec and Nova Scotia....... ... ... ..... . 1 1 0
ti 26 Instructions for answer to Quebec and Nova Scotia case.......... ........... 0 0

Drawing same,6 .............................................. .... 0 12 0
Two fair copies for counsel to settle ................. ................... 0 6 0

May 5 Attending counsel with same to settle... ......... ..·. · · · · · 0 10 0
Paid Mr. Haldane fee to settle, and clerk attending him ... ......... ....... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis with case te settle.. ... ........... ........... .. 0 10 0
Paid his fee and clerk attending him......................... ...... ... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Haldane appointing consultation..·· •• -•............... 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him................... ................ 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis, appointing consultation.................... ....... 0 10 0
Paid hin fee and clerk attending him................................... 0 10 0
Attending settling case in consultation................ ........ ...... . 1 1 0
Writing you with case as settled by counsel for approval................ -
Copy case to inclose folios.......... ............... ......--- --.----.---. 0 3 0

June 3 On receipt of instructions from you. Attending pr inte r mestructimg him to
1 print first proof of respondent's case ...... ..... ........... .- 0 10 0
Copy case for printer, 6................. .................... ... ..... 0 3 0
Examining and correcting proof case as respondent.......-- -. ·............ 6 8

4l2 Attending printer witb corrected proof of case, and afterwards receiving from
him revi proof ...... .... . ......... .. ......, . -----.. ··. -----.... 0 10 0

Comparing pUf and examining revised proof ........... 0 6 8
l 16 Attending printer with revised proof of case, ordering and afterwards receiving

printed copies......................... .... 0 10 0
Attending colonial office Codging. Attending printer paid him and taking

receipt .... .. ............... ........... .......... ....... .. 0 10 0
Paid his charges. Sce cash account.

17 Attending agent for Quebec aud Nova Scotia, exchanging case............... .0 10 0
Perusing Quebec and Nova Scotia case ......... ·...... .......· · · 1 1 O
Instructions for brief for respondent.................... ................ 1 0 0
Drawing same ...... ........... ...... ...... ........... - - ...... 1 0 0
Four fair copies....... .. ... .. . ................... ...... .- -......- 0 10 0

il petition for counsel. ................ .... ......... . ...... 1 6 0
Attending Mr. C. Robinson, Q.C., with brief... ...... .................... 1 1 0
Attending him appointing consultation. .... .......... ........ ....... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. aldane, Q.C., M.P., with brief .................. ... .... 1 1 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him .. . .. ... ..t f.- e a·· O... 0 10 0
Attending him appointing consultation, paid him consultation fee and clerk.... 0 10 0
Attending him ................... ...................--- .- - ·.... O... . 0 10 0
Attending Mr. McTavish with brief ..................................... 1 1 0
Attending him appointing consultation................................. 010 0
Attending Mr. R. W. Loehnis with brief ... . ......... ....... ....-..... 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him...............-.-.-•••••••.···.·........ 10 O
Attending appointing consultation. ....................... .... .. ...... 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him.......................... .......... 0 10 0

21



62 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 113.) A. 1899

COSTS, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals-Continued.

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

July 14Attending consultation with counsel................ .. ............... . 1 1 0
fi 19 Attending Mr. Ch. Robinson, Q.C., appointing consultation. .......... ... 0 10 0

Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C., appointing consultation............... ... ... 0 10 0
IPaid his fee and clerk attending him.,..... ... ..................... ..... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. McTavish appointing consultation ................ .......... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis appointing consultation. ........... ... ......... . .. 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him ............................. ....... 0 10 0

-22 A ttending consultation..... . ............... ....... ..................... l 1 0
25 Attending appointing consultation with Mr. Robinson, Q.C......... .. ..... 0 10 0

;Attending appointing consultation with Mr. Haldane, Q.C .............. ... 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending himi.............................. .... .. 0 10 0
Attending Mr. McTavish, appointing consultation............. ... .... . . 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis, appointing consultation ................... ........ 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him, attendin- consultation.... . .... .. . 1 1 0
Paid for summons to attend hearing 101. (See Cash Account.)
Paid m essenger. ... ... .. .. . . ..... ... ........................ 0 2 6
Four copies for counsel and attending thei....... .................. . .. 2 10 0

28 Attending Privy Council when case argued and partly heard, engaged all day.
(See other bill.)

Attending Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P.. .. .......... .................... 1 1 0
;Paid him fee and clerk attending him ............ ........... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis, with refresher fee and clerk.... ........... .. . . . . 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending appointing consultation with Mr. Christopher

Robinson, Q.C..... ........... . . . ......................... 0 10 0
Attending appointing consultation with Mr. Haldane, Q.C... .. .......... 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him....................... . ........ 0 10 0
Attending appointing consultation with Mr. McTavish, Q.C........ ......... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis appointing consultation............................ . 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him.............. . . . ............. . 0 10 0

29 Attending consultation.. ....... ................... .......... . .... 1 1 0
Attending Privy Council when case part heard and appointed, engaged all day.

(se other bills.) t
Attending Mr. Haldane with refresher fee and clerk.............. ...... . 1 1 0
Paid him refresher fee and clerk attending hiii. ........ 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehins with refresher fee and clerk. ... ............ ........ 0 10 0
Paid him refresher fee and clerk attending him.. ................ .... ...... 0 10 0
Attending appointing consultation with Mr. Christopher Robinson, Q.C.. .. 0. . 10 0
Attending appointing consultation with Mr. Haldane, Q.C........ ........ ... 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending him .... ................................... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. McTavish, Q.C., appointing consultation.. . .. ..... ........... 0 10 0
Attending Mr. Loehnis appointing consultation......... ... ..... . .......... 0 10 0
Paid him fee and clerk attending hin.......... ......................... 0 10 0

30 Attending consultation........ ...... .......................... ...... 1 1 0
Attending Privy Council when case finished and judgment reserved. (See other

bill).... . . . ............. ........... .. ......... 1 1 0
Letters, niessengers, attendances, postages, &c., not previously charged... .... 1 1 0

189î. List of Counsels' Fees.

May 5 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., and clerk fee to settle case .................. 22 1 0
Paid Mr. Loehnis and clerk fee to settle case........................ ........ 16 10 0
Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., consultation fee and clerk............ ........ 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk.. .... . . . ...... .. ...... 5 15 6

.June - Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., fee and clerk with brief. .......... . ....... 55 2 6
Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., consultation fee and clerk..................... 5 15 6
!Paid Mr. Loehnis fee and clerk with brief...................... .......... 27 16 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk........... .................... 5 15 6

July 19 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., consultation fee and clerk. ..... .......... .. 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk........................... .. 5 15 6

If 25:Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M. P., consultation fee and clerk.. .... .. .. ............ 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk............ ... .... ........... 5 15 6

If 2SPaid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., MI.P., refresher fee and clerk... ...... . . . .... 22 1 0
Paid M r. Loehnis refresher fee and clerk...................................... il 0 0
Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M.P., consultation fee and clerk..................... 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk................................ 5 15 6

22



Instructions to Charles Russell.

COST.S, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals-Continued.

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

July 29 Paid Mr. Haldane, Q C., M.P., refresher fee and clerk ... .. .. ... ...... . 22 1 0
Paid Mr. Loehnis refresher fee and clerk. .......... ............- 1 1 0
Paid Mr. Haldane, Q.C., M. P., consultation fee and clerk ·................... 5 15 6
Paid Mr. Loehnis consultation fee and clerk .. ................. --..... 15 6

THE GOVERNMENT OF THE DOMINION OF CANADA TO DAY,
RUSSELL & CO.

THE BILL OF COSTs of Messrs. Day, Russell & Co. relating to general business on your
behalf including charges for the necessary inquiries as the state of the List of
Canadian Appeals, which charges are not included in the Bills relating to the
various Privy Council Appeals.

Date. Items. Amount.

1896. £ s. d.

October 21 On receipt of special inquiry from the Solicitor General-
Attending at Privy Council office in Westminster making inquiries as to date

when the Judicial Committee would take Canadian cases, when we were in-
formed this date was not fixed and that they could not tell us even approxi-
mately, but they stated that the Committee commenced their sittings on the
1lth November, 1896, and asked us to cali again when they would do all in
their power to give us the necessary information............---- . . -. . -0 10 0

Preparing and despatching wire to the Solicitor General that the Privy Council
sitting commenced on the lth, but that it was impossible to tell when the
Canadian cases would be reached, but that we hoped to hear in a week and
informing him that we had made the fullest enquiry ·.. ........ .......... 0 5 0

P aid . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... ....--.-- - - - -- - - - - - .·. ·.· · · :-------------------. .... 0 19 0
28 Attending at Privy Council as arranged makng inquiry as to when the Cana-

dian cases wonld be taken by Judicial Committee, when we were informed
they would be taken on the lth November next .... - .................. 0 10 0

Paid coach-hire during various journeys to the Privy Council office. .......... 0 5 0
Preparing and despatching wire to the Solicitor General informing him that the

Judicial Committee would take the Canadian cases on the llth November
next........... ......... .................................. 0 5 0

Paid .......... ........................................ . ..... 1 10
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THE GOVERNMENT OF THE DOMINION OF CANADA TO DAY,
RUSSELL & CO.

THE QUEEN (on the information of the Attorney General for the Dominion of Canada)
vs. THE CANADA SUGAR REFINING COMPANY (LIMITED).

IN THE PRIVY COUNCIL.

APPEAL OF THE CANADA SUGAR REFINING COMPANY (LIMITED).

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.

June 16 Retaining fee.... ......... ................................. .. . 0 13 4
Writing Mr. Newcombe, Deputy Minister of Justice, acknowledging his letter

of the 2nd, and also the documents therein referred to and that we would
act as instructed.... . ....................................... .... 0 5 0

Perusing and considering case in appeal as used in the Supreme Court of Can-
ada, appellant's factum and respndent's factum and other papers.......... 5 5 0

Drawing and copy retainer to Mr. hnis............................... o 5 O
Paid himn fee and clerk. &e cash account.
Attending hin... ..... .. ............ . ....... ... ... 0 10 0

18 Writing Mr. Newcombe, Deputy Minister of Justice, with reference to this
matter that we presumed that he did not wish all three counsel briefed to
oppose the petition, and that we should be glad to know whether this was
so, and which of the three counsel he desired to be briefed.... ............ 0 5 0

23 Writing Messrs. Nicol, Son & Jones asking them to let us have a copy of their
petition for leave to appeal as soon as possible........ ......... ... ..... 0 5 0

3 Writing Messrs. Nicol, Son & Jones that we should be glad if they would give
us an indication as to when they proposed to move in this matter and ask-
ing them to send us a copy of their draft petition and thereon............. 0 5 0

Attending the Hon. E. Blake as to what dates would be convenient for him to
attend the petition for leave to appeal when he could not attend to it before
the 24th inst. ........... .. ..................... ...................... 1 1 0

8 Writing Messrs. Nicol, Son & Jones, informing thein that our counsel would
not be in a position to take petition either next Saturday or the Saturday
following, but that it would have to be the 24th. .. ........ .... ........ 0 5 0

Attending the Hon. E. Blake with papers herein..... .. ........ ....... 0 10 0
Attending petitioner's solicitors on their serving us with copy petition and affi-

davit in support and requesting consent to prayer of same and conferring
thereon.............. .......... ................................ 1 1 0

Instructions to oppose....... ............... .... .......................... 1 1 0
Perusing petition and affidavit...... ....... ....................... ........ 1 8 0

10 Writing Messrs. Nicol, Son & Jones acknowledging their letter of the 9th, and
fully in reply thereto........ ... ...................... ......... ...... 5 0

Copy petition for M r. Blake ................ ....... .......... ......... 1 0 0
Attending Messrs. Nicol, Son & Jones on their calling with reference to the date

of hearing of this petition and it was arranged that the 31st should be fixed
if convenient to counsel.. ... ... ......... ......................... 0 10 0

i 12 Attending Mr. E. Blake at 112 Ashley Garden-, asking him what dates would
suit him for opposing the above appeal, when he gave us the following:
24th, 31st and 5th, and said that of the three he preferred the second ..... 0 10 0

Attending Mr. McTavish, Q.C., on bis calling and handing him a copy of the
papers in this m atter............. . ..... ........ .................... 0 10 0

Copy petition for leave for Mr. MacTavish, writing the Hon. E. Blake, M.P.,
inclosing him copy petition for leave to appeal...... ..... ............ 0 5 0

13 Writing Messrs. Nicol, Son & Joncs that the dates most convenient to our
counsel would be the 24th, the 31st inst., or the 5th August, and for prefer-
ence the31st July.... ...... ....... ..... .. ................. .. 0 5 0

14 Attending Messrs. Nicol, Son & -Jones, on their calling, when they inforned us
that the registrar of the Privy Council was of opinion that the council
would not be sitting so late as the 31st inst., and that if this was so, the
petition for leave would be taken that day......... ...................... 0 10 0

Drawng and copy authority to the registrar to enter appearance... .. ... ..... 0 5 0
Attending at the council office therewith ..................... ........ .... 0 10 0
Paid appearance fee (10s.), see cash account, notice of appearance, copy and service 0 5 0



Instructions to Charles Russell.

COSTs, Charges and Expenses relating to the Appeals-Concluded.

Date. Items. Amount.

1897. £ s. d.
July 15 Writing Messrs. Nicol, Son & Jones, acknowledging their letter of the 14th and

thereon .................. ..... .... . .. . ... ......................... 0 5 0
Attending appointing consultation with Mr. Blake for Wednesday next at 5.30,at the House of Commons................ ........................ 0 10 0
Attending Mr. McTavish, informing him of this consultation and arranging

for him to attend here first. .. ..................................... o 10
Brief to counsel to oppose petition......................... ............ 1 0 0
Attending Mr. Blake with brief. .. ...... .. .............. ............ 1 0 0
Attending Mr. McTavish with brief ........... .......-- .... ·· · ... .... 1 0 021 Attending Mr. McTavish on his calling, and with him to the consultation with

Mr. Blake............ .......................... ............. 1 1 0Paid for summons to attend hearing (10s.), see cash account; paid messenger;
2 copies summons for counsel and attendance ....... .. ... . ..... 1 1 5 0

Attending instructing sborthand writer to take notes of this application for
leave to appeal, and we would inform them later whether we required a
transcript of the notes.................:-.. .............. ........ .... 0 10 0

30 Writing the Hon. E. Blake, reminding him that this case would come on
to-morrow morning before the judicial committee of the Privy Council...... 0 5 0

The like letter to Mr. McTavish. .......... ........... ................ 0 5 031 Attending court when petition heard and same allowed .......... 1 6 8
Paid coach-hire with papers ; attending paying council office fees and taking

receipt ............ ......... .. .. ....... - - 0 10 0Writing Mir. Newcombe, Deputy Minister of Justice, informing 01m that this
petition was heard to-day and leave was given to appeal .... ....... .. 0 5 0

Attending paying shorthand writer's charge .............................. 0 10 0
Paid (sec cash account) sittings fee ................ ............ ......... 3 3 0
Letters, messengers, potages, and numerous attendances on Mr. McTavish,

Mr. Blake, counc office, Nicol, Son & Jones, and others not before charged
including numerous petty disbursements not charged in detail ............ 3 3 o

113-3
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RETURN
[134]

To an ADDRESS of the HOUSE OF COMMONS, dated the 8th May, 1899, for
copy of a Memorial signed by the Ion. John Norquay, President of thc
Executive Council of the Province of Manitoba, on behalf of said Coun-
cil, praying to be heard before Her Majesty in Council on the inter-
ference of the Governor General in Council in the practice of disallowing
Acts clearly within the power of the Local Legislature, and asking that
the same be discontinued, which Memorial was addressed to the Honour-
able the Secretary of State of Canada, with request that the same be
transmitted to Her Majesty in Council; also copies of all correspondence,
reports to or from and Orders in Council in connection therewith.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

CEaTIFIED CoPY of a Report of a Committee of the Honourable the Priv1y Council,
approved by His Excellency the Governor General in Council, on the 4ih January,
1888.

The committee of the Privy Council have had under consideratioq a despatch dated
12th October, 1887, from the Lieutenant Governor of the province of Manitoba, trans-
mitting a memorial to Her Most Excellent Majesty in Council, on the subject of the
disallowance by the Government of Canada of certain Acts of the provincial legislature
authorizing the construction of a railway connecting the city of Winnipeg with the
United States system of railways at the international boundary fine, with the request
that the sanie may be forwarded to the Secretary of State for the Colonies.

The sub-committee of council to whom the subject was referred by Your Excellency
in Council, submit the acmompanying observattions on the said memorial.

The comnittee of the Privy Council, concurring in the report herewith, advise that
Your Excellency be moved to forward a copy hereof to the Right Honourable the
Secretary of State for the Colonies, at the same time as Your Excellency is pleased to
forward the memorial of the Executive Council of the province of Manitoba.

All which is respectfully submitted for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk Privy Council.

134-1
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The sub-committee, to whom was referred the petition of the government of
Manitoba to the Queen's Most Excellent Majesty in Council, on the subject of the dis-
allowance by the government of Canada of certain Acts of the provincial legislature,
authorizing the construction of a railway connecting the city of Winnipeg with the
United States system of railways at the International boundary line, submit the follow-
ing observations on the subject of the said petition:-

Upon that part of the petition which recites the conditions under which the
province of Manitoba became a province of the Dominion, it is not necessarv to offer
any remarks. The sub-committee submit that Manitoba occupies in the confederacy
precisely the same position in respect of its legislative powers as other provinces of the
Dominion, those powers being determined by the ninety-second section of the British
North America Act. It is sufficient, therefore, to refer to the general argument of the
petition upon which it is sought to justify the complaint that the policy of the govern-
ment of Canada, in disallowing railway charters, is, in the first place, an act of bad
faith, and, in the second, is calculated to impede the prosperity of the province.

The speeches, extracts from which are given in the petition of the government of
Manitoba, delivered in Parliament when the contract for the construction of the
Canadian Pacific Railway was under discussion, do not bear the significance that is
attempted by the petitioners to be placed upon them. The country extending from the
western boundary of Manitoba to the eastern boundary of British Columbia had no
provincial organization, and was, with the exception of a few subjects which had by
Act of the Canadian parliament been delegated to the North-west Council, under the
direct legislative control of that Parliament. It was competent, therefore, for the
Parliament of Canada to embody in a contract for the construction of the railway any
restrictions which might be deemed necessary, in so far as that territory was concerned.
This right was subsequently recognized in the most formal mianner by the legislature of
the province of Manitoba, when, in the Act passed by that legislature accepting and
confirming the extension cf the boundaries of the province, the restrictive clause of the
Canadian Pacific Railway contract was made applicable to the added territory of the
province. But the Parliament of Canada had no power then, as it has no power now,
to limit or alter any right conferred upon a province of the Dominion by the British
North America Act. The legislative rights of Manitoba could not be, and were not
intended to be, affected by the contract with the Canadian Pacific Railway Company;
and it was to remove a misapprehension which had obtained to some extent in the
public mind upon this point, that the statements which are quoted in the petition of the
Manitoba government were made at the time the contract was under discussion.

But as the Parliament of Canada could not restrict or alter any of the powers con-
ferred upon a province by the British North America Act, neither could it change the
termas of that Act which relate to the power of disallowance. That power remained to
be exercised in the interests of Canada, whether as respects the province of Manitoba
or any other province of the Dominion. The petitioners admit that they acquiesced in
the exercise of that power while the Canadian Pacifie Railway was under construction,
so as not to "impede the completion and rendering permanent of the Canadian Pacific
Railway, the sane being a national highway." This admission of the petitioners covers,
in fact, the whole ground, and reduces the question to one of opinion as to whether it
would be wise, in the interests of Canada, immediately on the completion of the railway,
t. abandon a policy for the protection of the Canadian Pacific Railway and the interests
of Canadian commerce, which it is conceded was properly pursued while the road was
under construction.

Before dealing with that question the sub-committee desire to refer to another
argument used by the government of Manitoba in their petition, based upon the ninety.
second section of the British North America Act, defining the legislative powers of the
Parliament of Canada and the legislatures of the several provinces of the Dominion
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respectively. By sub-clause ten of that clause, control is given to the provincial legis-
latures over-

" Local works and undertakings other than such as are of the following classes
(a.) Lines of steam and other ships, railways, canals, telegraphs, and other works and under-

takings connecting the province with any other or others of the provinces, or extending beyond the
inits of the province;

" (b.) Lines of steamships between the province or any British or foreign country;
" (c.) Such works as, although situate within the province, are before or after their execution

declared by the Parliament of Canada to be for the general advantage of Canada, or for the advan-
tage of two or more of the provinces."

The sub-committee submit that the distinction between works purely local and
those of general interest, embodied in the above clause, is a very obvious one, and may be
made more clear by reference to the sub-clause of the ninety-first section of the British
North America Act, which confers upon the Parliament of Canada exclusive jurisdiction
in all inatters affecting " the regulation of trade and commerce." To say that a provin-
cial legislature shall not have power to legislate in respect of railways extending into
another province or into a foreign country would be mere surplusage, for the reason
that no powers can be conferred by any legislative body for the construction or working
of railways beyond its own boundaries. It is clear, therefore, that the exceptions in
sub-clause ten of the ninety-second section of the British North America Act were
designed to restrict the powers of the legislatures to works of purely local concern,
leaving to the exclusive control of the Parliament of Canada railways which, although
situated technically within the boundaries of a province, are intended to become, and
being created with the express object of connecting with other railways beyond its
limits, would thus become great arteries of interprovincial or international commerce.

Indeed this distinction has been expressly admitted by leading members of the
Manitoba government and legislature. In a debate which took place in the legislature,
during the season of 1883, on the subject of railways leading towards the boundary,
Mr. Norquay, then, as now, Premier of the province, said:-

" My friend contends that we can pass legislation chartering railways to the boundary line. I
contend we cannot. In the B. N. A. Act, under the head of ' Exclusive powers of local legislatures,'
we find telegraph, steamboat and railway lines, other than those connecting one province with an-
other or extending beyond the boundary of the province. But my hon. friend says that I promised
to re-enact the charter of the Emerson and North-western. Now, the avowed object of the parties
seeking the incorporation of that company was to build the line between the town of Emerson and
several other tow-ns in the province of Manitoba. The incorporators never showed any intention of
making a connection south of the boundary. He had sympathized with the people of Emerson-he
beleved they ought to get that charter-would assist them to get it-and would not go back on his
word. But Emerson shall get its charter for the avowed object for which incorporation was sought.
When interested parties say that they intend using that Bill in a manner to exceed the power which
the local legislature could confer upon them-when this was said, those making the statements
were responsible for the disallowance of that measure. The hon. member in alluding again to the
provincial rights cry, explained that he would be the last one to curtail any powers that belonged
to us as a province ; but he would also refuse to delude the people of Manitoba by clap-trap railway
iegislation such as clearly exceeded our powers as a province."

Mr. Wilson, then, as now, a member of the government, said

" He believed that it was against the spirit of the B. N. A. Act for a provincial legislature to
start railwaYs which were intended to connect with foreign lines."

Mr. Leacock, a prominent member of the legislature, said

iHie believed that the plain meaning of the Act was that the provinces should not have the
wer to charter lines to connect with foreign countries. Otherwise they might be able to frustrate

the plans of the federal authorities, as, for instance, in the case of military operations."

And Mr. Attorney General Sutherland expressed his opinion, if possible even more

strongly, as follows :-

« It was absurd to suppose that the provinces were not to be allowed to charter railways con-
necting One province with another, while at the same time they might charter railways to connect a

province with a foreign country."
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Again, in 1886, a debate took place in the Manitoba legislature on the subject of
provincial railway charters, and the powers of the province in relation to them. On
that occasion Mr. Harrison, now Minister of Agriculture in the Manitoba government,
thus expressed himself :-

" To charter railways to run from any one point to any other in the province was a special
power of the legislature, but it was distinctly prohibited that lines could be chartered to join roads
in other provinces, or lines beyond the confines of the province. He would ask if it was of such im-
mense necessity to the traffic of the province to build a line from Emerson to Portage la Prairie? He
did not think so. It was in contemplation to connect the Emerson and North-western with roads
outside the province. In doing that they were doing what was strictly prohibited by the British
North America Act If the line was designed as an interprovincial or international road why did
not the incorporators adopt the proper course open to them, and apply to the Dominion Parliament
for a charter ? (Hcar, hear.) "

During the same session of the legisiature, in March, 1886, a general debate took
place on a motion of the leader of the Opposition, Mr. Greenway, " That an humble
address be forwarded to His Excellency the Governor General in Council, praying that
there be no interference with our rights as a legislature in respect to railway legislation."
In the course of the debate Mr. Norquay, the Premier, dealt somewhat fully with the
question, as follows :-

" Now, in the matter of being able to pass a charter to incorporate a company to operate within
the limits of the province of Manitoba, the authority of the province in that respect lias never been
denied, as far as I know, by any individual on the floor of this House, but there has been a doubt as
to whether the legislature could charter a line to make conuection with a line beyond the boundary
of the province. The House may charter to the boundary, and if, by any means, that line should
make connection with others passing the province, it is a federal businese to say whether that line
shall proceed to operation or not. That bas been the contention of members on the government side
of the House, and they have asserted by their legislation, time and again, the opinions which they en-
tertained on this subject. I believe, and here re-affirm the belief that has been placed on our statute
book, that we can charter within the old province of Manitoba, local companies to operate a line
fron one point to another within the province, but as for the connection with other lines, that re-
mains for the Federal Coveinment either to allow or to disallow. * * * I will refer to another
important point. Gentlemen will come to the House with charters and insist on having those char-
ters just as they place thein before the House, and that no interference be made by the House with
their particular desires in that respect, and when, after they have been informed that these Acts
would be subject to disallowance, and when they have insisted on their passage as they presented
thein to this House, then they should not chagrined at their consequences. It would appear that the
desire of these individuals was that those acts should be disallowed. Charters were presented to this
House more for the purpose of creating excitement than for promoting any really good objects.
* * * The hon. gentlemen opposite affirm that the Federal government claim a right which they
do not possess. I think that the constitution plainly lays down that they do possess the power of
disallowance, although that power should be guarded. * * * In looking over the motions of the
lion. gentlemen (Opposition) there is only one thing I would mention more and that is the reference
to our rights as a legislature. In this respect while we are prepared to stand by our rights as a leg-
islature, I think that anybody who looks over the constitution will see that while we have the un-
doubted right to enact railway charters and while we have the undoubted right to enact anything
coming within the exclusive rights of provincial legislatures, the Privy Council have the right to
advise His Excellency the Governor General to veto any act that is inconsistent with the general
interests of the Dominion of Canada."

Mr, Larivière, then Minister of Agriculture and now Provincial Treasurer, follow-
- ing Mr. Norquay, said:-

" In the course of the debate I find that our friends of the Opposition made no distinction
netween the rights of this province and the rights of the Dominion of Canada. I would like to ask
if there is a gentlemen on the other side of the House who wil! deny that the Dominion government
had not the right to disallow not only railway legislation but any act the House miglit choose to
pass, just the saine as the Privy Council in England had the right to disallow any Federal Act? Such
veto power is provided in the constitution. All the legislature can say is: We wish you not to inter-
fere with our legislation by exercising what is your right. We hope you will not interfere with us,
we know you have a right to impose your veto, but we do not wish yon to do so, and hope you will
see in your wisdom that it will not be done."

At the conclusion of the debate, Mr. Greenway's motion was defeated by a vote of
nineteen to eight, the legislature thus endorsing the views expressed by Mr. Norquay
and others. Now, the railway, the disallowance of the Act authorizing which is com-
plained of in the petition to Her Majesty from the government of Manitoba, is admit-
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tedly intended to connect with a foreign railway, and is therefore of the class referred
to in the speeches, extracts from which are quoted above, as beyond the competency of
the provincial legislature to authorize. The fourteenth clause of the said petition
recites :-

" That the province of Mlanitoba is separated from the markets of eastern Canada by a distance
of froni 1,200 to 1,40) miles, and the province bas only two outiets namely, one north of the chain of
lakes by way of the main line of the Canadian Pacifie Railway, via Thunder Bay, and the other south
of Lakes Superior and Huron by way of branches of the Canadian Pacifie Railway to Gretna and
Emerson and thence by the St. Paul, Minneapolis and Manitoba Railway, south and east, with which
last mentioned railway, the Canadian Pacific Railway is in close alliance and consequently no relief
can be expected therefrom."

So that the railway in question, if constructed, is to connect with a foreign railway
with the express object of becoming an artery of international commerce, and is there-
fore within the evident meaning of the exception mentioned in sub-clause ten of clause
ninety-two of the British North America Act.

It is quite clear, in the opinion of the sub-committee, that but for this international
feature of the enterprise proposed to be created by an act of the legislature of Manitoba,
such a railway, as a mere local work, would never be thought of. The district te be tra-
versed by the proposed line is already well served by railways, there being two lines of rail-
way from Winraipeg southward te the International boundary on either side of the Red
River, which is navigable during the summer months, while it is well known that there
is not sufficient local traffic for one railway. It is between these two lines, which on their
entire length do net average more than twelve miles apart, that it is proposed, in the
interests of foreign railway corporations, to build another line. The sub-commlittee
venture the opinion that under similar circumstances the Imperial Parliament would
not entertain an application for a charter for a third line.

Under these circumstances the sub-committee submit that the manifest interna-
tional character of the enterprise and the absence of all pretense of reason for it as a
"local work or undertaking," fully justifies its being deait with by tbe government of
Canada under the authority conferred by the nineteenth clause of the British North
America Act, and in the interest of the whole Dominion.

It has aleady been pointed out that the policy of disallowance, in respect of Acts
of the legislature of Manitoba authorizing the construction of railways touching the
international boundary and there connecting with the railways of the United States,
was acquiesced in by the Manitoba government while the Canadian Pacific railway was
being built, and in order to ensure its completion as a great national highway; and that
the only point of controversy, by the admission of the petitioners themselves, is as te
whether the time has come for the abandonment of that policy. In order te arrive at
a fair appreciation of this point, it is necessary te refer te the history of the Canadian
Pacific railway and to the efforts of the Canadian government te secure its construc-
tion.

The building of a line of railway te connect the Pacific coast with the systems of
railway in the province of Ontario was one of the conditions of the union of British
Columbia with Canada. A contract was entered into with a company immediately
after the union, but that company, was unable, although aided by most liberal
subsidies in land and money, te enlist the co-operation of capitalists, and the contract
was surrendered. A change of Ministry took place in 1873, and the new administra-
tion, at the first session of Parliament after taking office, procured the passage of an
Act providing still larger subsidies in money and lands te any company which would
undertake the work of building this railway, and caused advertisements te be published
in Great Britain and America inviting tenders under the terms of that Act. These
efforts were unsuccessful, no offer having been made. In the meantime the government
proceeded with the work of construction, as a public work, with a view of obtaining
access te Winnipeg and thence te the North.west from Port Arthur, on Lake Superior,
in summer, and by the American system of railways in winter. But se fully was the
fact recognized that in order te secure a Canadian Pacific railway the territory
tributary te it must be preserved from competitive lines, that Parliament declined te
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grant charters for sach lines; and in a bill introduced by the government in the session
of the Canadian Parliament of 1878 to promote the construction of colonization rail-
ways in Manitoba and the North-west Territories, it was provided that no such railway
should be authorized running within forty miles of the line of the Canadian Pacific
railway. It will thus be seen how general was the conviction, and how fully it was
acted upon, that if private capital was to be enlisted for the building of this railway,
reasonable protection against competition must be assured to that capital.

In the autumn of 1878, as the result of a general election, another change of
Ministry took place. The new administration undertook the prosecution of the work
of constructing the Canadian Pacific railway with great earnestness; and as a result of
its efforts, certain gentlemen, who afterwards became incorporated as the Canadian
Pacific Railway Company, made a proposal to the government for the construction of a
railway from Port Arthur, on Lake Superior, through the Rocky Mountains, to the
Pacific coast. Had that proposal been accepted there would have been less necessity
for providing against competition on the part of United States railways; but it was
felt that such a railway would not meet the requirements of the country; that it would
leave all that portion of Canada west of Lake Superior separated for six months of the
year from the thickly settled provinces in the east by a practically impassable barrier
of over 600 miles of uninhabited country. To leave communication between the por-
tions of Canada to the east and to the west respectively of Lake Superior dependent for
one-half the year upon the railway systems of a foreign country, with all the contin-
gencies involved in such a dependence, would, on commercial grounds, have been folly,
and on national grounds little short of madness. It was with a view of avoiding this,
and of securing a transcontinental line of railway on Canadian territory, that the
stipulation was included in the contract with the Canadian Pacific Railway Company
that for twenty years, or in other words, for ten years after the term fixed for the
completion of the railway, namely 1891, "no line of railway shall be authorized by the
Dominion Parliament to be constructed south of the Canadian Pacific railway, f rom any
point at or near the Canadian Pacific railway, except such line as shall run south-west
or to the westward of south-west, nor within fifteen miles of latitude 49." The object
to be attained by this provision, and without which it could not be attained, nanely,
the construction of that section of the railway running north of Lake Superior, fully
justified its inclusion in the contract; and the motive, namely, that reasonable time
should be allowed for giving direction to the trade of the great west, so as to build up
the commerce of the ports of eastern Canada, was, on commercial grounds, a most
natural one.

It is argued that there is no binding legal obligation on the part of the government
of Canada to protect the Canadian Pacific railway by the exercise of the power of
disallowance in respect of railways chartered by the legislature of Manitoba, and having
their termini within the old boundaries of the province. Without discussing that
question, it is sufficient to repeat that the government of Manitoba, in their petition to
Her Majesty, admit that that power was properly exercised during the period of con-
struction, in view of the terms of the contract with the Canadian Pacific Railway
Company, and it may be inferred therefrom that the same acquiescence would have
been yielded to it until the completion of the railway, had that completion been deferred
until the period fixed in the contract, namely, 1891. The company, by a display of
great energy and at a greatly increased cost to its proprietors, completed the work of
construction five years before the time fixed in the contract, thus giving to Canada the
advantages of a through line of railway, on its own soil, at a much earlier period than
the most sanguine among the promoters of the enterprise believed to be possible. The
same energy which marked the construction of the railway, is being displayed in
measures for the development of trade by it, from which Canada has already derived
great, and in the near future must derive still greater, advantage. Under these
circumstan:es, the undersigned submit that it would be only reasonable that the
company should not be made to suffer because of the energy and increased expenditure
they have contributed to give to Canada, in advance of the time stipulated in their
contract, the advantages of this magnificent interoceanic highway ; and that the same
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protection, which admittedly they were entitled to during the construction of the
railway, should be extended to them at least for the period fixed in the contract for the
completion of the railway, to enable them to carry on successfully the policy of traffic
developient which they are pursuing with so much success.

The government of Manitoba quote, in their petition, a speech delivered by Sir
Charles Tupper, then Minister of Railways, in the House of Commons in 1884, in which
the belief was expressed that, by the more rapid completion of the railway, the early
abandonient of the policy of disallowance might be possible. The undersigned, how-
ever, submit that this speech cannot be interpreted as, in any sense, an arrangement or
implied contract with the province of Manitoba. At that very time this question of
disallowance was the subject of communication between the government of Manitoba
and that of the Dominion. The legislature of Manitoba had sent three of its members,
Messrs. Norquay, Murray and Miller, to confer with the government of Canada on
certain subjects, which were embraced in a memorandum submitted by them. Among
the subjects included in this memorandum was the following:-

" 4. The right of the province to charter lines of railway from any one point to another within
the province, except so far as the sanie bas been limited by its legislature in the Extension Act
of 1881."

The committee of Council to whom this memorandum was referred, after conference
with the delegates, reported ; and upon this subject, after referring generally to the
provisions in the charter of the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company, continued as
follows:

" Whatever the provisions of the Canadian Pacifie Railway Act are, the province of Manitoba
had, in advance, assented to in accepting an extension of her boundaries, and an increase of area,
about ten-fold, under an Act which provided ' that the said increased limits and territory, added to
the province of Manitoba, shall be subject to ail such provisions as may have been, or shal hereafter
be, enacted respecting the Canadian Pacifie Railway, and the lands to be granted in aid thereof.'
Having accepted the increased area upon the above conditions, and knowing the long avowed policy
of Parliament to prevent the legitimate trade of the country, and the Canadian Pacifie Railway,
being diverted to the United States, your sub-committee consider that no injustice will be done to
the people of Manitoba by the exercise of such supervision, by the Dominion governinent, over the
railway charters sought from the Dominion Parlianient, or passed by the legislature of Manitoba, as
will maintain this policy, and the conditions of the Canadian Pacifie Railway Act, until the expiry
of the timne naned therein, or until the road is opened and trade established, when it is believed it
may be repealed or modified without injustice, and with the consent of the contracting parties."

This statement was embodied in the Minute of Council which was forwarded to the
Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba, for the information of his governiment and of the
legislature of the province. Large concessions were made to the province as a result
of the conference between the provincial delegates and the sub-comnittee of the Privy
Council, the terms of which were embodied in the same despatch ; and on 1 Oth January,
1885, Mr. Norquay, Premier and Treasurer of the province, in a letter on the subject
of this despatch, said:-

" Although not authorized by the legislature to accept any settlement, we are of opinion that
the modifications suggested, leaving the other items of subsidy and concessions offered in the despatch
of the 20th May last unchanged, would be favourably entertained by the legislature.

They were so favourably entertained, they were accepted by the legislature and
embodied in an Act of that legislature, and this without any protest or remonstrance in
respect of that part of the despatch quoted above, which relates to the protection
afforded, hy the exercise of the policy of disallowance, to the Canadian Pacifie Railway
in its efforts to develop and direct the trade of the country served hy it, for the benefit
of Canada. Read in the light of the despatch to the Manitoba government of the 20th
May, 1884, the speech of Sir Charles Tupper, upon which the petitioners rely to justify
their appeal against the policy of the Dominion governiment, showed that not only was
it contemplated that the road should be completed before that policy was abandoned,
but that a reasonable opportunity should be afforded for the establishment and develop-
ment of trade by it.

It is most important on commercial as well as national grounds that this policy
should be continued for some time longer. The Canadian Pacific Railway has already
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attracted a considerable trade between China and Japan and the Atlantic markets of
this continent. It has attracted attention as the most valuable highway, under British
control, between the eastern and western possessions of the Empire. The Imperial
authorities have become so impressed with its importance that they have agreed to
grant a subsidy of £45,000 sterling per annum towards the establishment of a line of
steamers on the Pacific Ocean to be run in connection with the Canadian Pacifie Rail-
way. In the struggle for this Pacific trade, the railway has already become a most
important factor, being regarded as in some respects the most important of the trans-
continental lines. Its chief competitor, the Northern Pacific Railway Company of the
United States, bas been making great efforts to bear up against this new competition,
and it is admitted that the efforts to strike the Canadian Pacifie Railway in its centre,
by an extension of the Northern Pacific Railway system from the international bound-
ary line to Winnipeg, is not with the object of affording competitive rates to the people
of Manitoba, but to secure a weapon by which to control the competition for transcon-
tinental traffic from the Pacific coast, now rapidly finding its way over the Canadian
route, and thus retain it for United States railways. It would be a most suicidal
policy on the part of Cannda to assist a foreign railway corporation in obtaining that
weapon, to be used, as it must be used, in hampering a trade from whose growth the
business men of the country have so much to anticipate.

The sub-committee do not underestimate the importance of reasonably low rates
of transportation for the province of Manitoba and the great west; but they would
point out that ample provision bas been made in the contract with the Canadian Pacifie
Railway Company and by the action of the government to secure this object. Under
the contract the tariff of rates chargeable on merchandise and passengers is to be fixed
by order of the Governor General iii Council, and to remain until the earnings of the
road are sufficient to pay a dividend of 10 per cent on the share capitial of the com-
pany. But in order to afford greater protection against excessive charges, the tariff of
rates has, with the concurrence of the company, been established only from year to
year, thus bringing it under the constant control of the government. It is important
to remark, under these circumstances, that no representations have ever been made to the
Government of Canada that the rates, as thus approved from time to time, have been
excessive, unreasonable or oppressive. Not one specific complaint has ever been laid
before the Railway Committee of the Privy Council, the tribunal specially charged with
such matters by law ; while on the contrary the evidence furnished by the company
has shown that its rates are not only reasonable, but that they are, in the main, unusu-
ally low, as compared with those of other lines on this continent worked under similar
conditions.

The policy of the government of Canada, so far from being directed to secure for
the Canadian Pacific Railway a monopoly of the carrying trade within the boundaries of
Manitoba, bas been most generous in aiding in the construction of independent local
lines of railway. There are at this moment upwards of 200 miles of independent local
railway lines in the province, not in any way controlled by the Canadian Pacifie Railway,
and built by the aid of liberal grants of land made by the Dominion government.
There are in addition over 200 miles of railway south of the main line of the Canadian
Pacific Railway, to which subsidies in land were granted when they were in the bands of
an independent company. That company was unable to enlist private capital in the
construction of its railway, and transferred it to the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company,
as the result of which the people of Southern Manitoba have been afforded the advan-
tages of railway communication, of which, but for the liberal policy of the governnent
of Canada and of the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company, thev would have been probably
for a long time deprived. And although the Canadian Pacific Railway controls the only
line leading directly to the Great Lakes and to Eastern Canada, and the two lines
southward to the International boundary, its rates on traffic to and f rom the province
have, in the nature of things, always been largely affected, and must continue to be
largely affected, by the competition of the United States railways.

The sub-committee submit that the statement in the petition that the policy of the
Dominion government in preventing the construction of railways to connect with the
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United States railway system at the International boundary is calculated to deter
immigrants from settling in the province and to prevent the investment of capital
therein, is not justified by the facts. Other circumstances, entirely unconnected with
this question, have, to a limited extent, produced these results, chief among which is the
wild speculation so general in the province between the years 1881 and 1883, caused
by the immense expenditure in the construction of the Canadian Pacific Railway among
a small population, and the depression which necessarily followed the completion of the
railway and the consequent cessation of expenditure. But in spite of these untoward
events the progress of the province has been, on the whole, satisfactory. All experience
shows that the early years of the settlement of new territories are always the most
difficult. Dakota, during ten years from 1860 to 1870, increased only about nine thou-
sand in its population; Colorado between five and six thousand during the same period ;
Montana less than nine thousand between 1870 and 1880, and so with others of the
states and territories of the United States. The overflow into the new territories is
always slow at first. until the attractive influence of the early settlement brings its
natural result in the advent of old friends and neighbours. The progress of Manitoba,
fairly rapid as it has been, has also suffered from other causes. The agitation by the
so-called Farmers' Union, which, although representing only an insignificant minority of
the people, was sufficiently influential to affect the immigration into the country; the
Half-Breed and Indian outbreak of 1885, although the seat of disturbance was several
hundred miles away from Manitoba, was used byforeignrival immigration agencies to deter
immigrants from settling in the province; and the violence of language indulged in by a por-
tion of the people and press in connection with the controversy which forms the subject
of the petition of the Manitoba government to Her Majesty, the foolish threats of
armed resistance to the law which, to those ignorant of local conditions, were apt to be
mistaken for the general sentiment of the people; and the untruthful statements pub-
lished by the associated press as to the intentions of the government of Canada, in re-
lation to this controversy, have all had some influence in deterring the growth of popu-
lation, which, under other circumstances, the splendid resources of the province would
have certainly attracted.

Measured by the condition of the settlers in other parts of the continent, those of
Manitoba have every reason to be satisfied. Ten years ago there was not a line of rail-
way in operation within the province; now, as the result of the policy of the govern-
ment of Canada, largely as the result of that feature of the policy of the government
which forms the subject of complaint by the government of Manitoba, there are over
one thousand miles in operation, and two other railways are under construction. Along
the line of the Canadian Pacific Railway the farmers of Manitoba and the North-west
Territories have been paid higher average prices for their grain than at corresponding
points along the line of the Northern Pacific Railway, a fact which must, the sub-com-
mittee submit, be accepted as the true test of the railway service in the two countries
respectively. It is impossible that a policy which has produced these results can be
properly stated as calculated to deter immigrants from setthng in the province, or to
prevent the investmnent of capital therein. On the contrary, while the policy of the
government has been to afford the fullest development to the resources and industries
of the province, it has had in view to prevent the diversion of a large part of the traffic
of the province to a foreign country, by which the forces which have been most effective
in building up the different industries of the province and bringing settlers to it, would
be seriously impaired.

The sub-committee deem it right, before concluding these remarks upon the petition
of the government of Manitoba to Her Majesty, to call attention to the great interest
which the Canadian Pacific Railway Company has in the growth and prosperity of
Manitoba and the North-west Territories. The company are operating to-day, on their
main line alone, the construction of which was the object of the contract entered into
with the Canadian government, 2,562 miles of railway, along the whole extent of which
the population does not exceed two hundred and forty thousand. Between the eastern
boundaries of Manitoba and the Rocky Mountains, a distance of 1,063 miles, it
traverses the finest grain-producing and cattle-grazing country on the continent, and the
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development of its traffic and its dividend-producing power, is contingent upon the
growth and prosperity of these two great industries. The company, moreover, own
about sixteen millions of acres of land, in the settlement of which they have the
greatest interest. It is inconceivable, under these conditions, that a corporation which
has so direct an interest in the prosperity of the country and in the settlement of a
large immigration within its bounds, will adopt a policy calculated to retard that pros-
perity and that settlement.

The sub-committee, therefore, are unable to recommend that there should be an
abandonment for the present of the policy of Canada, pursued by both political parties
in the past, of preventing the trade of Manitoba and the great North-west from being
diverted for the advantage of foreign railway corporations and foreign commerce, and of
protecting the great national interoceanic highway for a reasonable time to permit per-
manent direction to be given to the traffic of the country. Canada has made great
sacrifices to secure the construction of the Canadian Pacific Railway. Upwards of
seventy-one millions of dollars and over eighteen millions of acres of land have been
voted by Parliament for that purpose. These generous subsidies have been voted under
the conviction that the older provinces of the Dominion would be greatly benefited by
the increased trade which would flow down upon them as the result of the develop-
ment of those portions of the Dominion lying west of Lake Superior; and the unwilling-
ness to forego these advantages, by permitting this great western trade to be diverted
to United States railways for the advantage of the commerce of a foreign country, found
its expression at the last session of Parliament in the emphatic vote of the House of
Commons, in which every province is represented, and which had just come from a
general election at which the question formed one of the leading subjects of discussion.
That vote, the sub-committee submit, must be regarded not only as an endorsement of
the policy of the Canadian government in the past, but as a mandate to the govern-
ment to continue that policy in the future. Under all these circumstances the sub-
committee believe that the wisdom and constitutional propriety of the policy pursued
on this subject will be fully recognized by Her Majesty's government, to which the gov-
ernment of Manitoba in their petition appeal.

All of which is respectfully submitted.
THOS. WHITE,

Minister of the Interior.

J. S. D. THOMPSON,
Minister of Justice.

GOVERNMENT HoUSE,
WINNIPEG, MANITOBA, 12th October, 1887.

Honourable J. A. CHAPLEAU,
Secretary of State,

Ottawa, Ont.

S,-I have the honour to forward by to-day's mail, per registered parcel post, for
transmission to His Excellency the Governor General, a memorial to Her Most Excel-
lent Majesty in Council, with the request that the same may be forwarded to the Secre-
tary of State for the Colonies.

I have the honour, &ce.,

J. C. AIKINS,
Lieutenant-Governor.
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DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE,
OTTAwA, 15th October, 1887..

To His Ronour
The Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba,

Winnipeg, Manitoba.

SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your despatch of the 12th
inst., announcing the transmission under separate cover of a memorial to Rer Most
Excellent Majesty in Council which you request may be forwarded to the Right Hon-
ourable the Secretary of State for the Colonies, and to state that the memorial has been
duly received.

I have, &c.,

G. POWELL,
Under Secretary of State.

To HER MOST EXCELLENT MAJESTY IN COUNCIL:

May it please Your Majesty-The menorial oj the Executive Council of the Province of
Manitoba, Dominion of Canada, RUMBLY SHOWETB:

1. That it was amongst other things provided by the 146th section of the British
North America Act, that it should be lawful for the Queen by and with the advice of
Her Majesty's Most Honourable Privy Council, on addresses from the Houses of the
Parliament of Canada, to admit Rupert's Land and the North-western Territory, or
either of them, into the union on such terms and conditions in each case as are iin the
addresses and as the Queen thinks fit to approve, subject to the provisions of said British
North America Act.

2. That on address from the Houses of Parliament of Canada, the Queen, by and
with the advice and consent of Rer Majesty's Most Honourable Privy Council, under
the authority of the said 146th section of the British North America Act, 1867, did, by
Order in Council in that behalf, admit Rupert's Land and the North-western Territory
into the union or Dominion of Canada, and there was formed out of the same the pro-
vince of Manitoba, which thenceforth became one of the provinces of the Dominion of
Canada, which province of Manitoba was then bounded as follows, that is to say
Commencing at the point where the meridian of 96 degrees west longitude from Green-
wich intersects the parallel of 49 degrees north latitude, thence due west along the said
parallel of 49 degrees north latitude (which forme a portion of the boundary line between
the United States of America and the said North-western Territory) to the meridian of
99 degrees of west longitude, thence due north along the said meridian of 99 degrees
west longitude to the intersection of the same with the parallel of 50 degrees and 30
minutes north latitude; thence due east along the said parallel of 50 degrees and 30,
minutes north latitude to its intersection with the before mentioned meridian of 96
degrees west longitude; thence due south along the said meridian of 96 degrees west
longitude to the place of the beginning.

3. That the terms and conditions on which Manitoba was admitted into the union
and became one of the provinces of the Dominion of Canada are set forth in the Act of
the Parliament of Canada, 32 and 33 Victoria, chapter 3, and amending Acte, which
Acte are styled and known as the Manitoba Act.

4. That it is provided by the second section of the Manitoba Act that on, from and
after the said day on which the Order of the Queen in Council shall take effect as afore-
said, the provisions of the said British North Ainerica Act, 1867, shall, except those
parts thereof which are in ternis made, or by reasonable intendment may be held to be
specially applicable to, or only to affect one or more, but not the whole of the provinces
now composing the Dominion, and except so far as the saine may be varied by this Act,.
be applicable to the province of Manitoba in the same way and to the like extent as.
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they apply to the several provinces of Canada, and as if the province of Manitoba had
been one of the provinces originally united by the said Act.

5. That it is amongst other things provided by the 92nd section of the British
North America Act that in each province the legislature may exclusively make laws in
relation to matters coming within the classes of subjects therein enumerated, and sub-
sections 10, 11 and 16 of said section 92 are in the words following :-

"(10.) Local works and undertakings other than such as are of the foilowing classes:-
(a.) Lines of steam or other ships, railways, canals, telegraphs, and other works

and undertakings connecting the province with any other or others of the provinces, or
extending beyond the limits of the province.

"(b.) Lines of steamships between the province and any British or foreign country.
(c.) Such works as, although wholly situate within the province, are before or

after their execution declared by the Parliament of Canada to be for the general
advantage of Canada, or for the advantage of two or more of the provinces.

"(11) The incorporation of comnpanies with provincial objects.
"(16) Generally all matters of a merely local or private nature in the province."
6. That the legislature of the province of Manitoba by the said in part recited Acts

acquired and ever since has had the undoubted and exclusive power to charter and con-
struct lines of railway situate wholly within the boundaries of Manitoba as above
defined and from any one point to any other point within the province.

7. That by Act of the Parliament of Canada, 44 Victoria, chapter 1, intituled " An
Act respecting the Canadian Pacific Railway," a charter of incorporation was granted
to the Canadian Pacific Railway Company on the terms and conditions in said Act
fully set forth.

8. That the 15th clause of said charter is in the words and figures following: "15.
For twenty years from the date hereof no line of railway shall be authorized by the
Dominion Parliament to be constructed south of the Canadian Pacific Railway, from
any point at or near the Canadian Pacific Railway, except such line as shall run south-
west or to the westward of south-west, nor to within fifteen miles of latitude 49. And
in the establishment of any new province in the North-west Territories provision shall
be made for continuing such prohibition after such establishment until the expiration of
the said period."

9. That while said Canadian Pacific Railway charter was being discussed as afore-
said in the Dominion Parliament, much alarm was occasioned in this province and pub-
lic meetings were held protesting against the granting of a monopoly in the province of
Manitoba to the Canadian Pacific Railway, and the legislature of this province being
then in session the matter occupied much attention, and the following resolutions were
introduced in and unanimously adopted by the legislature on the subject:-

" WEDNESDAY, 22nd December, 1880.

"The Hon. Mr. Norquay, seconded by the Hon. Mr. Girard, moved the follow-
ing:-

" Whereas, it appears from a telegram dated the 18th December, 1880, addressed
by the Right Hon. John A. Macdonald, premier of the government of Canada, to
Thomas Scott, M.P. for Selkirk, that the Canadian Pacific Railway will have power to
build branch lines anywhere.

" And whereas it is further intended, as appears from the publication of the ternqs
-on which the Canadian Pacific Railway syndicate have agreed to construct, equip,
maintain and operate the said Canadian Pacific Railway, to grant to the said company
the exclusive right of building and operating branch lines of railway to the inter-
national boundary between Canada and the United States.

" And whereas it appears further that the said company have the right of accepting
-only such alternate sections of land as they may think proper, and it is deemed that
the powers intended to be granted to the company would be detrimental to the best
interests of the province of Manitoba;
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" And while this House is of opinion that the construction of the Canadian Pacifie
Railway should be entrusted to a private company, it views with alarm some of the
terms of agreement between the government and the syndicate.

" Therefore, be it resolved : whereas it appears, &c., that for the present the Cana-
dian Pacifie Railway Syndicate should iave given to them the power to build only the
main line of the Canadian Pacifie Railway, and that any other line or branch line should
be built by the syndicate or other company only after their obtaining power from time
to time from the Parliament of Canada to build such line or branch line, and that ther
main line of the Canadian Pacific Railway shall not be allowed to approach at any point
within 15 miles of the international boundary line and that Parliament should not
abandon its right of authorizing the construction of railways in any direction by other
companies.

" That the syndicate shall not have the option of choosing and selecting their own
lands, but shall be compelled to take alternate sections or townships for their land grant.
in aid of the construction of the railway, irrespective of the quality of the same."

TuURSDAY, 23rd December, 1880.

On motion of Mr. Ross, seconded by Mr. Drummond,
" Resolved, That in the resolution passed by this House, in reference to the terms

of agreement between the Dominion Government and the Canadian Pacific Railway
Syndicate, it did not commit itself to a limitation of the objectionable terms in the
clauses of said contract."

10. That as fully appears from the official reports of the debates of the House of
Commons of Canada for the years 1880 and 1881, when the said last named Act was
being discussed in the said Parliament of Canada, it was strongly urged on the floor of
the House by way of objection to said clause 15 by certain members that it applied to
Manitoba and would prevent the building of railways in Manitoba; and to such objec-
tion the Right Hon. Sir John A. Macdonald, then and still Premier of Canada and
leader of the government, among other things, said as follows:-

"There will be room for as many railways in that country by-and-by as there are
in Europe, and if there be any attempt-the attempt would be futile-on the part of
the Canadian Pacific Railway to impose excessive prices and. rates, it is folly that would
soon be exposed by the construction of rival lines east and west which would open up
our country in all directions and prove amply sufficient to prevent the possibility of a.
monopoly which has been made such a bugbear of by the honourable gentlemen opposite.

"In order to give them a chance we have provided that the Dominion Parliament
-mind you, the Dominion Parliament, we cannot check any other parliament, we can-
not check Ontario, we cannot check Manitoba-shall for the first ten years after the
construction of the road, give their own road into which they are puttîng so much
money and so much land a fair chance of existence."

And the Honourable Thomas White, then a leading follower and supporter of the
Premier, and now a member of said Premier's cabinet and Minister of the Interior,
among other things said, as follows:-

"But we are told now that because of the flfteen miles clause there never can be
any other railway into this country. To what does that apply 7 Simply to the terri-
tories over which the Dominion Parliament has control. There is nothing to prevent
Manitoba now, if it thinks proper, granting a charter for a railway from Winnipeg to
the boundary line. At this very moment there is a company in course of organization
to build a railway from Winnipeg to West Lynne on the boundary. And after this
agreement is ratified, this provision does not take fron Manitoba a single right it
possesses; in fact this Parliament could not take away those rights. It has the same
rights as the other provinces for the incorporation of railway companies within the
boundaries of the province itself, and there is nothing to prevent the province of Mani-
toba from chartering a railway from Winnipeg to the boundary to connect with any
southern railway. The only guarantee which this company has under the contract is
that their traffic shall not be tapped for west in the prairie section thus diverting the
traffic away from the line to a foreign line, but there is nothing to prevent a railway
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being built in Manitoba within the province that would carry the traffic to any railway
that may tap it from the American side. That is the position with respect to this
matter."

And after these assurances from the government, and on the faith of these assur-
ances, further opposition was withdrawn, and the said clause 15 passed the House
in the form in which it had been introduced, as hereinbefore set forth.

11. That as appears from the official reports of the Debates of the House of
Commons of Canada for the year 1884, Sir Charles Tupper, Minister of Railways,
when urging on the Parliament of Canada the granting to the Canadian Pacific
Railway Company of a loan of thirty millions of dollars (which loan was granted),
amongst other things said as follows:-

" I showed that the present government had adopted the policy of their predecessors
in regard to what is called the monopoly in the province of Manitoba: that when
the late government undertook to carry on the construction of the Canadian Pacific
Railway as a government work, they felt bound to protect the traffic of the road
from being drawn off to lines to the south of us in the adjoining republic, and had
consequently refused to issue a proclamation which would charter lines within the pro.
vince of Manitoba to connect with American lines to the south. I said that the present
government, when we came into power, adopted that policy: that we felt, as our pre-
decessors did, that, grappling with so gigantic a work as the construction of the Canadian
Pacific Railway, we were bound to adopt every possible means of prDtecting our own
line against having its traffic drawn to lines to the south-and, mark you, this was at a
time when we did not contemplate at an early day carrying the Canadian Pacific Rail-
way further than Port Arthur. I said, further, that when we made it obligatory upon
the Canadian Pacific Railway Company to extend at once the line north of Lake
Superior, giving us an all-rail route f rom Montreal to the Pacific Ocean, or from
Callender to the Pacific Ocean, we felt obliged to give to that company, upon
which we imposed such onerous obligations, all the security that we had considered
necessary, and that our predecessors in the government had considered necessary for
the protection of the Canadian Pacific Railway. But I am glad to be able to state to
the House that, although true to that policy, the government refused to give assent to
the construction of lines within the province of Manitoba to connect with American
railways to the south, such is the evidence presented by the operation of the line, so far
as it has gone, such is the conclusion arrived at by the Canadian Pacific Railway Com-
pany itself in regard to the ability of a through line of the Canadian Pacific Railway to
take care of itself, and, by the inherent power of its own advantages, to maintain its
position notwithstanding any competition to which it may be subjected,-although we
have no power, under the contract, to touch any portion of the country in the North-
west Territories, we are now in a position to review and to reconsider the policy of the
late government, and the policy of the present government, as to the continued necessity
for any long period of protecting the Canadian Pacific Railway against competition. I
ami glad to be able to state to the House that such is the confidence of the Canadian
Pacific Railway Company in the power of the Canadian Pacific Railway to protect
itself-that when the line is constructed north of Lake Superior, the government feel it
will not be incumbent upon them to preserve the position they have hitherto felt bound
to preserve, that of refusing to consent to the construction of lines within the province
of Manitoba connecting it with American railways to the south. I can give no better
evidence to the House and to the country of the advanced position which we consider
this great enterprise of the Canadian Pacific Railway has attained, than when I say
that I feel it is consistent with what we owe to the people of this country and to that
great national work, that the government should not deem it incumbent on them-
selves to pursue the restrictive policy, within the province of Manitoba, which we have
hitherto been obliged to maintain."

12. That after the passing of the said Canadian Pacific Railway Act, the legisla-
ture of the province did, according to its undoubted right (as hereinbefore referred to)
by Acts of said legislature, charter divers railway companies for the purpose of con-
structing, maintaining and operating lines of railway wholly situate within the province
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as before defined, yet all of such Acts as chartered a line of railway to be constructed
or operated to any point within fifteen miles of the international boundary line have
been disallowed and vetoed by the Governor General of Canada in Council, and as the
said Canadian Pacifie Railway was then incomplete, such disallowance was submitted
to, rather thaii in any way impede the completion and rendering permanent of the
Canadian Pacific Railway, the same being a national highway.

13. That the said Canadian Pacific Railway has been completed for upwards of
eighteen months and has become permanent and probably the strongest railway corpora-
tion on this continent.

14. That the province of Manitoba is separated from the markets of Eastern Canada
by a distance of from 1,200 to 1,400 miles, and the province has only two outlets, namely,
one north of the chain of lakes by way of the main line of the Canadian Pacifie Rail-
way, via Thunder Bay, and the other south of Lakes Superior and Huron, by way of
branches of the Canadian Pacific Railway to Gretna and Emerson, and thence by the
St. Paul, Minneapolis and Manitoba Rail way, south and east, with which last mentioned
railway, the Canadian Pacifie Railway is in close alliance, and consequently no relief
can be expected therefrom.

15. That there is no railway competition in the province, the Canadian Pacific
Railway having a monopoly of the carrying trade of this province.

16. That the depression and discontent arising froin lack of railway competition
have becorne so great throughout the entire province that the population almost unani-
mously demand that railway competition must be procured by the construction of an
independent line of railway running from Winnipeg (the capital city of the province)
to the southern limit of Manitoba, within the province, as defined in " The Manitoba
Act," where freight can be transferred to an independent line of railway and thus coin.
petition procured.

17. That through an interview had with the Hon. Thomas White, then and now
Minister of the Interior, on the 4th of March, A.1). 1887, in the city of Winnipeg,
which is reported in the Daily Manttoban of the 5th of March, as follows : --

" A deputation of representative Conservative citizens waited on Hon. Thomas
White, Minister of the Interior, at the Dominion Lande Office, yesterday afternoon, and
had a conference with him on the question of Disallowance. Among the gentlemen
composing the deputation were G. F. Galt, R. J. Whitla, F. B. Robertson, W. B. Scarth,
M.P., E. P. Leacock, M.P.P., A. V. McLanaghen, J. S. Aikins, G. F. Carruthers, J. B.
Mather, J. H. Brock, J. Cosgrave, J. B. McKilligan, F. B. Ross, W. Hespler, G. J.
Maulson, C. Glass, T. Gilroy, H. 8. Crotty and J. R. O'Laughlin.

" Mr. Scarth introduced the deputation to Mr. White, and in doing so urged the
discontinuance of the government's Disallowance policy and dwelt strongly on the fact
that he had been elected on a pledge to vote against the Government on this question.

"A desultory conversation then ensued, during which the sentiments of the depu-
tation were expressed clearly to Mr. White. Mr. Whitla and Mr. Robertson were the
principal spokesmen, and they pointed out how higily beneficial it would be to have
competing lines of railway running in the country, that a more rapid development of the
country would follow, that it would cause a confidence among the people and give a re-
newed impetus to the various industries of the country. All present were agreed that
the time had arrived for the abolishment of disallowance within the old boundaries of
Manitoba.

" Mr. White pointed out that when the Act was passed and sent to Ottawa lie had
no doubt that the government would give it their attention, and that from the strong
expressions Of opinion from Manitoba and the North-west, in which friends of the gov-
ernment were found to be inost emphatic, the probabilities were that the law would be
allowed to take its course. He quite appreciated the urgency of the case, and had no
doubt that the government would act promptly when a measure in the event of one
being passed, was submitted to them, so that in the event of the policy of disallowance
being abandoned there may be no delay in making the financial arrangements for carry-
ing out the enterprise. Mr. Carruthers said that it was expected the local legislature
would meet about the 17th of the month, when a charter to build a line of railway to
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the boundary would be applied for, and as soon as it passed the House, the special assent
of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council would be requested. The charter would then be
immediately transmitted to Ottawa, with the request that the Government would reply
whether or not it would be allowed. Mr. Carruthers asked Mr. White how soon a reply
might be expected if this was done.

" Mr. White replied that a reply would be given without delay. He thought that
if the government intended to continue their disallowance policy the people should
know at once.

" The deputation then withdrew, feeling satisfied fron the manner in which Mr.
White expressed himself, that no further opposition may be apprehended from the
government in respect to allowing a railway to be built to the boundary."

And also through a speech delivered by the said Hon. Thomas White (then and
now Minister of the Interior) in the city of Winnipeg, on the 7th day of March, 1887,
in reply to an address presented to him by the Junior Conservative Association, in which
amongst other things he said as follows:-

" Your address refers to the question of disallowance, and the elections which have
recentlv occurred and the discussions to which they have given rise have added addi-
tional interest to the question. As you are aware, the contract with the Canadian
Pacifie Railway in no way interferes with the right of the legislature of Manitoba to
grant charters within the boundaries of the province as they existed at that time. This
was very clearly pointed out during the debates in Parliament, when the contract with
the syndicate and the charter to the company were granted. It was important, how-
ever, on every ground, commercial as well as national, that the Canadian Pacific Rail-
way should be an all-through line on Canadian territory, and that we should not be
dependent in any way upon American lines for our traffic with Manitoba and the North-
west.

" The question now is, bas the time arrived when the policy of disallowance may
be safely abandoned I You will not, I am sure, expect me as an individual minister to
answer that question. No decision upon it has been arrived at by the government that
I am aware of, and until that decision has been arrived at it would be unfair to you and
improper on my part to express a definite opinion. I have always regarded the policy as
a temporary one. I have always regarded the statement of Sir Charles Tupper, when
minister of railways, and when urging the thirty million dollar loan upon the acceptance
of Parliament, as embodying the views of the government. That statement was that
the granting of that loan would secure the completion of the railway some four or five
years before the time fixed in the original contract, and thus render possible the aban-
donnent of the policy of disallowance at an earlier period. But whether that period
has yet arrived must be left for the determination of the government when the question
comes formally before it. This I think I have a right to ask you to assume, that the
decision will be come to, not in the interests of any railway corporation, but in the
interests of the country, including those of Manitoba and the North-west Territories.

"Should the decision of the government be in the sense that the people of Mani-
toba evidently hope it may be, I am quite sure that the Canadian Pacific Railway will
be able to hold its own in the competition to which it may be subjected. (Hear, hear).
It occupies a position of special advantage over any other possible line to the south of
it. It is shorter in mileage, and it is for its entire length under one management, an
advantage the influence of which can hardly be overestimated. Moreover competition,
resulting in creating a new interest in the development of Manitoba and the territories,
would soon create new and enlarged trade. That bas been the result everywhere. In
Ontario, for instance, where the Canadian Pacific Railway has invaded territory which
the Grand Trunk Railway company was disposed to regard as its exclusive possession,
the result has been to enormously increase the general traffic, an increase in which the
Grand Trunk lias become a sharer. Every one must rejoice to see that the traffic
returns of that railway to which Canada has been so much indebted in the past are
showing a steady weekly increase, and I think I am right in saying that that increase
has come chiefly from Canadian freight and passengers (cheers). There will be trade
enough in Manitoba and the North-west to afford profitable traffic returns for both the
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Canadian Pacific and the Grand Trunk Railways, if the latter should find entrance here,
and it would be no small advantage to the country as a whole to have the large inter-
ests connected with these two great corporations enlisted in the work of developing the
Great West, instead of, as there is too much reason to fear has been the case in the past,
as to one of them, devoted rather to the prevention of that development."

The people of Manitoba were led to believe that the policy of disallowance of
Manitoba railway legislation would not be further continued.

18. That the legislature of Manitoba passed at the last session thereof (as herein-
after more fully set forth) " An Act to incorporate the Manitoba Central Railway
Company," and " An Act to incorporate the Winnipeg and Southern Railway Company,"
which were assented to on the 19th day of April, 1887, and were transmitted to the
Secretary of State forthwith thereafter with the request that the Governor General in
Council would pass upon them immediately, yet the Governor General in Council did
not pass upon said two Acts until the ninth day of August, 1887.

19. That the legislative assembly of this province as a consequence were in the
meantime led to believe that the representations made by the said Hon. Thomas White
in Winnipeg, as aforesaid, were being adopted by the Dominion Executive, and that
the rights of the province to charter lines of railway -within the old province of Manitoba
would not in future be interfered with.

20. That the legislature of this province in that belief, and in compliance with the
urgent desire of the people throughout the province for the purpose of procuring rail-
way competition by the construction of an independent line of railway, did, at the said
last session of the said legislature, which session was held in the months of April, May
and June, 1887, unanimously pass an Act intituled " An Act respecting the construe-
tion of the Red River Valley lailway," and being chapter 4 of the Acts of this province
passed in the fiftieth year of Her Majesty's reiga, for the purpose of constructing, main-
taining and operating a governinent line of railw'y from a point within the city of
Winnipeg to a point within or near the town of West Lynne, within the province of
Manitoba, such railway to be styled and known as " The Red River Valley Riailway,"
and to be a public work belonging to the province of Manitoba, and the construction of
the railway and its management to be under the charge of the Railway Commissioner
for Manitoba: (An authentic copy of which last mentioned Act is hereunto annexed)
and the said Act was assented to by His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor and became
law on the first day of June, A.D. 1887.

21. That in pursuance of and under the authority of said " Red River Valley Rail-
way Act," the Railway Comyiissioner for Manitoba did advertise for tenders for the
Construction and equipping of said Red River Valley Railway, and on the 29th day of
June, A.). 1887, did enter into a contract for the construction and equipping of said
railway whereby the contractors became and are bound to construct and equip the said
railway, and whereby the province of Manitoba became and is bound to pay to the said
contractors the sum of $782,340.00 therefor.

22. That in pursuance of said " The Red River Valley Railway Act " and of said
contract, and prior to the 6th day of July, 1887, the said Railway Commissioner for
Manitoba had the line of said railway surveyed and a large part of the right of way
therefor purchased and the contractors had sub-let by contract part of the work of con-
Struction and equipping of said railway, and the contractors and sub-contractors at
once entered upon their work and prosecuted, and were on and prior to the 6th of July,
1887, prosecuting the same vigorously.

23. That the legislature of this province did at its last session pass a certain other
Act, intituled: " An Act to amend the Public Works Act of Manitoba," by which Act the
Minister of Public Works of the province was, amongst other things, given authority to
construct any public work at the expense of the province of which the construction is
assigned Vo him by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council.

24. That the Governor General in Council did, by Order in Council and proclama-
tion, dated the 6th day of'July A.D. 1887, disallow the said Act, intituled: " An Act
respecting the construction of the Red River Valley Railway," and the said Act,intituled, "An Act to amend the Public Works Act of Manitoba," on the general
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ground (as set forth in the report of the iMinister of Justice to Council) that each of the
Acts referred to was in conflict with that policy of the Parliament and of the govern-
ment of Canada by which it is sought to prevent the diversion of trade from the rail-
way system of Canada to the railways of the United States.

25. That the legislature of this province did at its said last session pass certain
other Acts granting charters to railway companies, and amongst them an Act, intituled:
"An Act to incorporate the Winnipeg and Southern Railway Company," by which
Act the company was given authority to construct a line of railway commencing at Win-
nipeg and running south or south-east to the international boundary of Canada, and not
extending beyond the province of Manitoba ; and an Act, intituled: "An Act to incor-
porate the Emerson and North-western Railway Company," by which Act the company
is given authority to construct a railway from a point on the Red River at or near St.
Jean Baptiste, in a north-westerly direction to the town of Portage la Prairie ; and also
a branch line f rom some point on the said line of railway, in a westerly or north-westerly
direction to a point on the western boundary of the province of Manitoba ; and although
the legislature had full power and authority to pass said two last mentioned Acts, yet
the Governor General in Council did, by Order in Council, dated the 9th day of August,
1887, disallow the said two last mentioned Acts, on the ground (as set forth in the
report of the Minister of Justice to Council) that the general objections taken in his
report in regard to said " Act respecting the construction of the Red River Valley Rail-
way " and the " Act to amend the Public Works Act of Manitoba," applied equally to
the Acts then under consideration.

26. That the right of deciding what railway or other local public work should
in the interests of the province be built or constructed, is exclusively within the local
legislature, and the interference with that right by disallowance of the Acts of the
legislature is a violation of the spirit of the British North America Act and an arbitrary
exercie of the veto power.

27. That the legislature of this province lias decided that in the interests of the
province the Red River Valley Railway should be constructed, and to that end unani-
mously passed the said Act, and authorized the construction of said railway as a public
work of the province.

28. That during said last session of the legislature of this province, to wit, on the
9th day of June, 1887, the following resolution was unanimously passed by the legis-
lative assembly :-

"On motion of the Han. Mr. Norquay, seconded by the Hon. Mr. Harrison,
"Resolved, whereas it is the avowed policy of the government of the Dominion to

continue to advise the disallowance of railway charters granted by the legislature for
the construction and operation of a line of railway to the southern boundary of the
province;

" And, whereas, it is of the utmosz importance to the people of the province that a
charter for such a line of railway should be left to its operation whereby they would be
able to secure competing rates with the Canadian Pacific Railway, and obtain access to
the markets of the world for their surplus produce by other than one channel;

" And whereas the rates charged by the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company are
so excessive that the energies of this province are crippled to an unwarrantable extent;

" And whereas the continuance of such a policy on the part of the federal gov-
ernment is calculated to deter immigrants from settling in the province and to prevent
the investment of capital therein;

" And whereas, it is claimed on behalf of the province that in chartering a line of
railway wholly within the limits of the old province-as defined by 33 Vic., cap. 3, the
legislature acts within its legal and constitutional right.

" Therefore, be it resolved, that should the power of disallowance be further
exercised in reference to charters granted by this legislature for the construction and
operation of a line or lines of railway wholly within the limits of the old province of
Manitoba, the government are hereby authorized to submit the case of the province
appealing from the action of the federal government and praying that Her Majesty may
be pleased to order that in future the province may be allowed to exercise in this
respect her constitutional rights."

A. 1899



Disallowance of Manitoba Acts.

29. That the will of the people has been attempted to be set aside by the exercise
of the power of disallowance in disallowing the said Red River Valley Railway Act
and said other railway charters.

30. And that by reason of said policy of disallowance of provincial railway char-
ters all classes of our people have suffered loss, distrust has been created where trust
and confidence should have been inspired; trade and commerce have been mischievous-
ly unsettled and disturbed; immigration has been retarded ; the progress of the pro-
vince has been seriously checked ; and our people feel that in being deprived of their
undoubted rights under the British North America Act they have not the full freedom
of British subjects.

Your memorialists would, therefore, respectfully pray: That they may be heard
before Your Majesty in Council through the Honourable John Norquay, First Minister
and Provincial Secretary; the Honourable C. E. Hamilton, Attorney General of the
province of Manitoba, and such counsel as may be retained, to further explain the
injurious effects of such interference with the legislative powers of the province, and
that an early day be appointed for such hearing, and further that the practice of lis-
allowing Acts clearly within the power of the local legislature may be discontinued;
and that in the future the province may be allowed to exercise in this respect her con-
stitutional rights.

And for such further or other relief as your memorialists may appear entitled to,
and, as in duty bound will ever pray.

Signed on behalf the Executive Council of the province of Manitoba,

J. NORQUAY,
President of the Executive Council.

(Telegram.)

Sir Henry Holland to the Governor General.

16th February, 1888.

Referring to your despatch 4th January, propose to refer to Privy Council petition
frorm Manitoba and report of committee and sub-committee Privy Council of Canada.
Are any more papers coming?

EXTRAcTfrom a Report of the Comnittee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved

by flis Excellency on the lOth March, 1888.

The comittee of the Privy Council have had before them a telegraphic despatch,
dated 16th February, 1888, from Sir Henry Holland to the Governor General, intimat-
ing the proposal to refer to the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council the memorial
of the executive council of Manitoba to Her Majesty in Council on the subject of the
disallowance of provincial statutes, and the reports thereon of the sub-committee and
committee of the Privy Council for Canada.

The Minister of Justice, to whom the cablegram was referred, is of opinion that no
sufficient reason exists for such reference.

The minister submits the following observations in support of this view.

The memorial raised no question of law on which the opinion of the judicial com-
nittee can be asked. It embodied a remonstrance against what the executive council

seemed to consider an arbitrary exercise of the power of disallowance which is vested in
Your Excellency, and made no other suggestion of any legal question than is comprised
in the following general statement :"Our people feel that in being deprived of their
undoubted rights under the British North America Act they have not the full freedom
of British subjects."

In this allusion to the deprivation of "rights under the British North America
Act," it is apparent from the memorial that the executive council had reference to the
rights conferred by that Act on the provincial legislatures to make enactments to
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authorize the construction of such works as the Red River Valley Railway. The power
which the British North America Act confers on the legislatures of the respective
provinces to pass statutes relating to any matter is, however, expressly made subject by
that Act to the power of disallowance by Your Excellency, and the memorial nowhere
states, and the executive council of Manitoba have never urged or suggested that dis-
allowance has been exercised in any instance beyond the power vested in Your Ex-
cellency by the British North America Act.

Sections 56 and 90 of that statute clearly confer that power on Your Excellency
irrespective of any reasons which may induce its exercise or of any reasons which may
be urged against its exercise.

In the reply which has been transnitted to the memorial of the executive council
of Manitoba, the sub-committee and committee of Your Excellency's Privy Council, it
is true, indicated that doubts exist as to the right of the legislature of Manitoba to pass
the enactments relating to the Red River Valley Railway which were disallowed, inas-
much as that railway should not be regarded as a "local work and undertaking " within
the meaning of section 92, subsection 10, of the British North America Act; but the
validity of the disallowance in no way rested upon the soundness of any of the reasons
whicli may have induced it, or which may have been put forward to justify it, and he,
the minister, thinks he may assume that it is upon the validitv of the disallowance alone
that it is proposed that the judicial committee should be called on to pass an opinion.
As to any question of policy in regard to disallowance, the judicial committee has not
satisfactory means of arriving at a decision and is not a tribunal to which resort can
properly be had, or which Canada is bound to regard.

The validity of Your Excellency's veto in the cases complained of, the minister
reports, is not and never has been in dispute, and no question of such validity has ever
been presented.

In addition to the fact that there appears to be no sutticient reason why the pro-
poeed reference should be made, the minister ventures to submit that grave reasons exist
why such a course would be most inexpedient and unjustifiable.

One of these is that the reference has not been asked either by the executive coun-
cil of Manitoba or by Your Excellency's advisers. The reference would therefore be
made by Her Majesty's government without the desire of either of the parties concerned
in the controversy, and certainly without even the consent of one of the parties thereto.

There is no reason for supposing that the executive council of Manitoba would
acquiesce in a decision by the judicial committee that the exercise of the veto was with-
in Your Excellency's power. On the contrary, it seems obvious at present that in case
of such a decision the executive council would contend that no redress from a legal tri-
bunal had been sought or expected by them, and that the reference to the judicial com-
mittee had in no way disposed of their application.

On the other hand, if it were possible to imagine that the decision of the judicial
committee could be adverse to Your Excellency's plain and uncontested right, no con-
clusion would be arrived at. There would be an extra-judicial expression of opinion on
an abstract question, pronounced in a proceedipg in which there would have been no
parties before the tribunal. If the decision were merely that the doubts which
exist as to the Red River Valley Railway being a "local work or undertaking," are not
well founded, there would still remain the ample justification for the exercise of disallow-
ance that the enactments which were the subject of that exercise were against the gen-
eral interests of Canada, and, upon this point, if it were possible for the judicial com-
mittee to express an opinion adverse to the veto, the result would Merely be a difference
of opinion between Your Excellency's constitutional advisers and the Parliament of
Canada on the one side, and a body of gentlemen on the other, who, although wise and
eminent, are charged with no powers or responsibility by the constitution, in relation to
the matter under consideration. Even the private rights and interests involved must
still await the ordinary course of justice in the tribunals by which the law is adminis-
tered in this country.

If it can be supposed that the purpose intended by the reference was that Her
Majesty's government should be advised by the judicial committee with a view to fur-
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ther action, of an exceptienal nature, being taken by that government, or by any other
authority, in the direction of imposing control on the exercise of the prerogatives which
have been constitutionally entrusted to Your Excellency's hands, the Minister of Just-
ice submits that grave reasons exist for a remonstrance on the part of the Canadian
government which will leave no doubt on the minds of Her Majesty's government as to
the extent of the right of self-government which the Canadian people believe they pos-
sess. Her Majesty's governnent has been furnished, it is true, with a full reply to the
memorial of the executive council of Manitoba, but the presentation of that reply ought
not to lead Her Majesty's advisers to suppose that any interference by Hier Majesty's
government or even by the Parliament of Great Britian, with Your Excellency's power
and authority under the British North America Act, or with the distribution of legisla-
tive or executive powers made by that Act, would be regarded otherwise in Canada than
as a dangerous interference with the constitution, to the maintenance of which the faith
and honour of the Parliament of Great Britian are pledged, and on which all the rela-
tions between the respective provinces and the Federal government depend. Whatever
difference of opinion may exist in Canada as to the merits of the complaint of the exec-
utive council of Manitoba, any such interference would be regarded with feelings of
alarm by all Canadians who desire that the union of the provinces of British North
America shall be preserved, and that their connection with the British Empire shal
continue to be regarded as the surest means of perpetuating the rights and liberties
which they enjoy.

Your Excellency's advisers are responsible for the advice which they have given,
or may hereafter give, as to the exercise of the power and authority so vested in you, to
the Canadian Parliament and to the Canadian people, and to no other body-parliamen-
tary, executive or judicial.

The result of the appeal to the Canadian Parliament has been already pointed out
in the report of the sub-comnittee of council on the Manitoba memorial.

The ininister would remind Your Excellency that the principles on which the power
of disallowance as to provincial statutes may properly be exercised were well laid down
and announced in the first year of the confederation. On the 8th day of June, 1868,
the Honourable Sir John A. Macdonald, then as now First Minister of Canada, and
then also Minister of Justice, made a report in which he indicated that the grounds for
disallowance might properly be:-

1. That Acts were altogether illegal or unconstitutional.
2. That they were illegal or unconstitutional in part.
3. That in cases of concurrent jurisdiction they clashed with the legislation of the

general parliament.
4. That they affected the interests of the Dominion generally.
This report was approved and adopted by the Governor General in Council on the

9th day of June, 1868, and was transmitted to the Right Honourable the Secretary of
State for the Colonies and to the several provincial governments. On the 13th Decem-
ber, 1872, Mr. Henry Reeve, Registrar of Ler Majesty's Privy Council, wrote, by
direction of the Lord President, to Mr. Holland, in reply to a request to be informed
whether the opinion of the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council could properly be
obtained on the validity of a statute of the province of New Brunswick, thus :

" It appears to His Lordship that as the power of confirming or disallowing pro-
vincial Acts is vested by the statute in the Governor General of the Dominion of
Canada, acting under the advice of his constitutional advisers, there is nothing in this
case which gives to Her Majesty in Council any jurisdiction over this question, though
it is conceivable that the effect and validity of this Act may, at some future time, be
brought before Her Majesty, on an appeal from the Canadian courts of justice.

' This being the fact, His Lordship is of opinion that Her Majesty cannot with
propriety be advised to refer to a committee of the Council in England a question which
Her Majesty in Council has at present no authority to determine, and on which the
opinion of the Privy Council would not be binding on the parties in the Dominion of
Canada."
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The Minister of Justice feels that this language, emanating from the Judicial Com-
mittee itself, amply justifies the contentions which he has ventured to make in regard
to a reference on the subject of the Manitoba statutes in question now.

Another reason which may be suggested against the course proposed is that such a
reference is clearly unnecessary.

If any question exists as to the legal right or power of Your Excellency to disallow
the Acts which have been disallowed, either the Executive Council of Manitoba or any
individual who feels aggrieved by the disallowance may raise the ques.tion of such
illegality in the courts of the province of Manitoba, in a proceeding in which both
parties to the controversy will have audience, and in which there is an ultimate appeal
to the Judicial Comnittee of the Privy Council.

In fact, proceedings are now being carried on in the courts of Manitoba in which
such questions may be raised and such an appeal may be taken. Shortly after the Acts
before referred to were disallowed, legal measures were taken to prevent the Executive
Council of Manitoba and their agents and contractors from proceeding with works for
which the authority of the disallowed Acts was necessary. Application was made for
injunctions or restraining orders, not only against such agents and contractors, but
against members of the Executive Council as well. The defendants were represented
by counsel, who discussed at great length, first, before the Chief Justice of the province,
and, in a second proceeding, before Mr. Justice Killam, of the Court of Queen's Bench
of Manitoba, the rights of the applicants to obtain such injunctions or restraining orders,
and also the validity of the disallovance and the effect of such disallowance on the Acts
in question, and on the works which had been undertaken before the exercise of such
disallowance.

In both cases the judgments delivered declared that the provincial statutes had
been completely annulled by the exercise of the power of disallowance, that the works
which these statutes vere intended to authorize could not legally be carried on and that
the injunctions or restraining orders might be available to the applicants.

In the second proceeding, which was decided by Mr. Justice Killam, it was held
that members of the Executive Council were properly made parties to the proceedings,
and could be enjoined, as.well as their agents and contractors.

The suits in which these applications were heard were suits for perpetual injunc-
tions. The decisions which have been arrived at are judgments in relation to interim
injunctions or restraining orders, and these decisions appear to have been acquiesced in;
but, if the members of the Executive Council of Manitoba, or their agents or contractors,
should at any time be advised that it is desirable that the opinion of the Judicial Com-
mittee of the Privy Council should be taken on any of the questions involved, they
may yet appeal from the final decisions, and present their cases to the Judicial Com-
mittee, and they can present them in a far more convenient and satisfactory form than
that in which a reference by Her M\lajesty's government would take.

Finally, as to the statement of the Executive Council of Manitoba, that the people
of that province have been, by the exercise of the power of disallowance deprived of
their undoubted rights under the British North America Act, it may be observed that
that power is clearly applicable to provincial legislation which, although within the
competence of a provincial legislature, is opposed to the general interests of the Dominion.
Legislation which is considered bevond that competence may, sometimes, without serious
public injury, be left to its operation, as the judiciary can at any time declare it to be
invalid. Of the question as to how far the interests of Canada may injuriously be
affected by provincial legislation, the federal executive must be the sole judge, and it is
the sole guardian of these interests. It is manifest, therefore, that it cannot with
accuracy or propriety be asserted that in pronouncing the veto upon Acts which were
deemed to have an injurious tendency as regards the country at large, your Excellency
has deprived the people of Manitoba of any of their rights, even though such Acts may
have been within the competence of the legislature of that province.

The minister recommends that your Excellency express to the Right Honourable the
Secretary of State for the Colonies the dissent of your government from the proposal to
submit the memorial of the Executive Council of Manitoba relative to the disallowance
of provincial statutes to the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council.
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The committee concurring in the observations and recommendation of the Minister
of Justice, advise that your Excellency be moved to forward a copy hereof to Sir Henry
Holland, in answer to his cablegram of the 16th February, 1888.

All of which is respectfully submitted for your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

Lord Knutsford to Lord Lansdowne.

DoWNING STREET,
19th April, 1888.

Governor General, The Most Honourable
The Marquis of Lansdowne,

&c., &c., &c.

MY LORD,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your despatches noted
in the margin, on the subject of the disallowance by the Dominion goveriment of the
Manitoba Red River Valley Railway Act.

I have sent an answer'to the niemnorial of the executive council of the province on
this question, in my despatch No. 112 of even date, and I would refer you to that des-
patch for my decision as to the prayer of the melorial.

In the minute of the Privy Council whioh accompanied your secret despatch of the
13th of March, I observe that it is stated that " the reference has not been asked either
by the executive council of Manitoba or by Your Excellency's advisers." This state-
ment would seem to have been made inadvertently, as the executive council of Mani-
toba, in the final paragraph of the memorial, distinctly pray for leave to be heard by
Counsel before Her Majesty in Council.

I am glad to learn that there is a good prospect that the question at issue with the
provincial government will be amicably settled.

I have, &c.,
KNUTSFORD.

DOWNING STREET,
19th April, 1888.

Lord Knutsford to the Marquis of Lansdowne.

Governor General, TDhe Most Honourable
The Marquis of Lansdowne, G.C.M.G.,

&c., &c., &c.

MY LoRD,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of the memorial
addressed by the executive council of Manitoba to Her Majesty in Couneil, praying to
be heard by counsel, with regard to the disallowance of the Red River Valley Railway
Act and other railway charters by the Dominion government.

After careful consideration of this question, I have been unable to advise Her
Majesty to refer the petition to the Privy Council, inasmuch as the disallowances of
the various acts and charters in question appear to have been based upon the general
and undisputed power vested by statute in the Governor General, acting under the advice
of his constitutional ministers ; and further because the question which it is sought to
have argued before Her Majesty in Council is not one of constitutional law, but is in
truth one of policy over which the Privy Council has no jurisdiction.

I request that you will communicate a copy of this despatch to the government of
Manitoba. 

I have, &c.,
KNUTSFORD.
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EXTRACTfrom a Report of the Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council, approved
by His Excellency on the 13th June, 1888.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had under consideration two despatches
dated 19th April, 1888, from the Right Honourable the Secretary of State for the
Colonies in reference to the disallowance by the Dominion government of the Manitoba
Red River Valley Railway Act.

The Minister of Justice, to whom the despatches were referred, reports as follows: -
Lord Knutsford observes in the latter of these despatches that in the minute of the

Privy Council which accompanied Lord Lansdowne's secret despatch of the 13th March,
it is stated that the proposed reference of the memorial of the executive council of Mani-
toba to the Judicial Committee of Her Majesty's Privy Council had not been asked
either by the executive council of Manitoba or by His Excellency's advisers, and his
Lordship adds that this statement would seem to have been made inadvertently, as the
executive council of Manitoba, in the final paragraph of the memorial, distinctly pray
for leave to be heard by counsel before Her Majesty in Council.

The Minister of Justice ventures to suggest in order to remove what seems to be a
mistaken impression, that the prayer to be heard by counsel before Her Majesty in
Council did not, in the opinion of Your Excellency's advisers, import a desire that the
matter of complaint set forth in the memorial should be referred to the Judicial Com-
mittee of Her Majesty's Council, and the expressions which emanated from members of
the Manitoba Executive Council, at the time when the memorial was adopted and since,
have made it clear that such was not in fact the desire of the executive council, but
that the executive council desired to remonstrate on other than legal grounds (which
alone would have been available before the Judicial Committee) against the disallow-
ance of Manitoba statutes, and that the request to be heard by counsel was made with
a view to invoking imperial executive control over the authority vested in Your Excel-
lency by the British North America Act.

The committee concur in the report of the Minister of Justice and they recommend
that a copy of this minute be transmitted to Her Majesty's Secretary of State for the
Colonies in order that His Lordship may not continue to suppose that the statement
made in the minute of Your Excellency's Council, which accompanied Lord Lansdowne's
secret despatch, before referred to, on this subject, was unjustified and made without
due consideration.

All which is respectfully submitted for Your Excellency's approval.

JOHN J. McGEE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

Lord Knuts/ord to Governor General.

DowNING STREET, 12th July, 1888.
Governor General,

The Right Honourable
The Lord Stanley of Preston, G.C.B.,

&c., &c., &c.
My LoRD,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of Your Lordship's confi-

dential despatch of the 20th ultimo., forwarding a minute by your Privy Council with
reference to the disallowance of the Red River Valley Railway Act. I am glad to
receive this explanation from your government, for as counsel are not heard except
before the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council, the Manitoba Government seemed
to desire to appear before that body. As, however, the question of the railway has been
amicably arranged it is unnecessary to pursue the subject further.

I have, &c.,
KNUTSFORD.

A. 1899
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RETURN
(151)

To A ORDER OF THE flOUSE OF COMMONS, dated the lOth May, 189, for a
return showing the number of contracts entered into by the Govern-
ment since the 30th July, 1897, in which there is a clause pro-
bibitrng "weating "; the totaf amount ipvqlved in uch contracts;
the pamne of the reepective departmets is which these contracta
have been -awarded, the names of the companies or firms or idi-
viduale to which such contracts bave be ngiven.

R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.

DEPARTMENT OF MILZTIA AND DEFENCE,
OTTAWA, 27th June, 1899.

The Under Secretary of State,
Ottawa.

SIR,-In returning to you, herewith, the Order of the House Of Commons, dated
10th May last, asking for information respecting contracts entered into by this depart-

ient since the 30th June, 1897, in which there is a clause prohibiting "sweating." I
have the honour to submit, hereon, the information asked for, viz. :-

Mesurs. Marsolais & Monday, Montreal,--Clothing. .. $ 11,035 00
Meesrs. Knight & Munro, Halifax, N.S.-Oliver

Equipment........................ .... 32,250 00
Messrs. Adams Bros., Toronto, O.-Oliver Equipment. 161,250 00
Messrs. The Sanford Mnfg. Coy., Hamilton.-Clothifg. 79,522 00
Mr. Mark Workman, Montreal.-Clothing..,....... 36,932 00
Mr. Philip Jameson, Toronto..-Clothing ........ .. 1,500 00

I have the honour to be, air,
Your obedient servant,

L. F. PINAULT, Lt. Colonel,
Deputy Minister of Militia and Defence.
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PosT OFFICE DEPARTMENT, CANADA,,
OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER OF POSTAL STORES,

OTTAwA, 15th May, 1899.

The two contracts below mentioned are subject to the regulations governing the
"sweating" system

Estimated

Contacts. Duration. Nature of Contract. Contractors. dui term of
Contract.

One 4 years. Cotton Duck & Linen Mail
Bags. ... ........... Ottawa Supply Co'y, Ottawa, Ont. $45,000 00

One 4 years. Leather Bags & Postmens'
Brown Duck Satchels... Wm. Willis & Son, Aurora, Ont. 4,000 00

Total (estimated)............... ...... ... ............. $49,000 00

SIDNEY SMITH,
Controller of Postal Stores.

A. 1899


